U. S. TREASURY DEPARTMENT BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1934

PART 1

COMPILED FROM INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS, ESTATE TAX RETURNS AND GIFT TAX RETURNS

PREPARED UNDER DIRECTION OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE BY THE STATISTICAL SECTION, INCOME TAX UNIT



UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON: 1936

CONTENTS

	Page
Official transmittal	1-56
Official transmittal Individual income tax returns—General explanations	1-5
Returns tabulated	1-3
General definitions	3-4
Geographic distribution	4
Comparability with previous reports	5
	_
INCOME TAX RETURNS	
INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS:	
Number of returns, net income, and tax	5
Simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income	
and tax, by net income classes	5-6
Classification by sex and family relationship Personal exemption and credits against net income	7
Personal exemption and credits against net income	7
Capital gains and losses	8
Sources of income and deductions	8-12
Amounts and percentages	9
Amounts and frequency distribution, by net income classes	10-11
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
Frequency distribution by size of specific items of income and deduc-	
tions, returns of net income of \$5,000 and over	13-14
Profit and loss from business, returns of net income of \$5,000 and over,	
by industrial groups Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations, returns of net income of	14-17
Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations, returns of net income of	
\$5,000 and over	18-20
Amount owned and interest received by net income classes	18-19
Returns on form 1040 with no net income	
By deficit classes	20
Sources of income and deductions, amount	$\begin{array}{c} 21 \\ 21 \end{array}$
Number of returns by counties, cities, and towns	$\frac{21}{21}$
Number by years, 1917–34	$\frac{21}{22}$
HISTORICAL SUMMARIES, INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS:	22
Number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and	
tay 1913-34	22-23
tax, 1913-34Number, by net income classes, 1914-34	23-24
Net income by net income classes 1916–34	24-25
Net income, by net income classes, 1916–34	25-26
Average rate of tax on net income, by net income classes, 1916-34	26
Sources of income and deductions, 1916-34:	
All returns	27-28
Returns of net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
ESTATE TAX RETURNS	
General explanations	32-35
Table 1. Taxable and nontaxable returns of citizen or resident decedents.	
Number of returns, gross estate, deductions, net estate, and	
tax, by revenue acts under which returns were filed	36-38
Table 2. Taxable returns of resident decedents who died prior to May 11,	
1934. Number of returns, gross estate, and deductions, by net	
estate classes	39-41
estate classesTable 3. Taxable returns of citizen or resident decedents who died on or	
after May 11, 1934. Number of returns, gross estate, and	
deductions, by net estate classes	42–43

	Page
Table 4. Taxable returns of resident decedents who died prior to May 11, 1934. Number of returns, net estate, and tax, by net estate	11 15
Table 5. Taxable returns of citizen or resident decedents who died on or after May 11, 1934. Number of returns, net estate, and tax,	
by net estate classes	46-47
returns were filed	48-49
cedents, 1916-35	50
GIFT TAX RETURNS	
General explanations	50-52
by trust, and all other gifts. Gift tax returns for 1932, 1933, and 1934—Total number of returns, taxable and nontaxable, total gifts, net gifts, and tax	52
taxable and nontaxable, total gifts, net gifts, and taxGift tax returns of identical donors for 1934 and preceding years—	52
Number, net gifts, and tax Table 1. Gift tax returns for 1934 by net gift classes—Number of returns,	52
total gifts by form of property, exclusions, total gifts after	50 F4
exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax	53-54
exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax	55–56
BASIC TABLES—INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS	99-90
United States in aggregate (1-8, 10, 11): 1. By States and Territories 2. By net income classes 3. Simple and cumulative distribution, by net income classes 4. Sex and family relationship, by States and Territories 5. Sex and family relationship, by net income classes 6. Sources of income and deductions, by States and Territories 7. Sources of income and deductions, by net income classes; also total number of returns, and for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction 8. Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups—Number of businesses and amount—Returns of net income of \$5,000 and over 10. Returns on form 1040 with no net income—Number and deficit, by States and Territories 11. Returns on form 1040 with no net income, sources of income, deductions, and deficit, by deficit classes 10. States and Territories separately (9): 9. By net income classes with historical summary, 1924-33 REVENUE ACTS OF 1913 TO 1934 AND CERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS OF THE NAT INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY ACT—A SYNOPSIS OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND PI TAX RATES, ESTATE AND GIFT TAX RATES, CREDITS AND EXEMPTIONS AFFE THE COMPARABILITY OF DATA IN "STATISTICS OF INCOME"	62-63 64-65 66-67 68-70 71-74 75-80 106 06-107 81-105
Individual: Required to file returns, personal exemption, credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, 1913-34	Page 12-115 16117 18119
Rates, specific exemption, and credits against estate tax, 1916-34_ 12	20-121
GIFT TAX: Rates, and specific exemption, 1924–32	122
INCOME TAX FORMS: Facsimiles of forms 1040, 1040A, and 1065 for 19341	23-135
INDEX1	37-150

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1934

PART 1

INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS, ESTATE TAX RETURNS, AND GIFT TAX RETURNS

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. C., November 16, 1936.

Sir: In accordance with the provisions contained in the Revenue Act of 1916 and subsequent acts for the publication annually of statistics with respect to the operation of the income, war-profits, and excess-profits tax laws, I have the honor to transmit herewith a report entitled "Statistics of Income for 1934, Part 1", prepared from individual income tax returns for that year filed during 1935, with a historical presentation of the income and tax liability reported by individuals since the inception of the present period of income taxation under the sixteenth amendment to the Constitution. The report also contains tabulations of data from estate tax returns filed during 1935, irrespective of the date of death of the decedent, as well as tabulations of data from gift tax returns filed during 1935, with brief historical summaries.

INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS

GENERAL EXPLANATIONS

Returns tabulated.—The individual income tax returns for the calendar year 1934 were filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of The major changes provided by this act, affecting individual income taxes, were: The revision in the normal tax rate from 4 and 8 percent to 4 percent; for the purpose of normal tax, a credit against net income of 10 percent of earned net income (with certain limitations): for the purpose of a surtax, credits against net income for personal exemption and for dependents; surtaxes graduated from 4 percent on "surtax net income" in excess of \$4,000 and not in excess of \$,6000 up to 59 percent on the amount of "surtax net income" in excess of \$1,000,000, in lieu of 1 percent on net income in excess of \$6,000 and not in excess of \$10,000 to 55 percent on the amount of net income in excess of \$1,000,000; a new definition of capital assets to include all property held by the taxpayer, regardless of time held, whether or not connected with trade or business (except stock in trade, or property which would ordinarily be included in inventory, or property held for sale to customers in ordinary course of trade or business); proration and limitation of the gains and losses from sale or exchange of capital assets whereby (1) certain percentages, which

vary according to the period for which the assets have been held, of the gain or loss recognized upon such sales or exchanges shall be taken into account in computing net income, and (2) the deduction for capital losses is limited to an amount not in excess of \$2,000, after deducting the gains from the sales or exchanges of capital assets.

The year for which the income is reported is, in general, the calendar year ended December 31, 1934. However, there is included a negligible number of fiscal year and part year returns. These returns are tabulated with the calendar year returns for the year in which the greater part of their accounting period falls. Thus there are included with the returns for the calendar year 1934, returns with fiscal year ended within the period July 1, 1934, to June 30, 1935, and part year returns for which the greater part of the period fell in 1934. Returns for fiscal years beginning in 1933 and ending prior to December 31, 1934, were filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and the income tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act.

The general tables for individuals include only returns showing net income. The data tabulated from individual returns with no net income are shown on pages 20 to 21. Prior to 1928 no tabulations were made from individual returns with no net income. The Revenue Act of 1921 and subsequent acts provide that a return be filed, irrespective of the amount of net income (or deficit) by every individual if single or if married and not living with husband or wife, having a gross income of \$5,000 and over, and every married couple living together having an aggregate gross income of \$5,000 and over. Moreover, returns showing net income below the minimum provided by the revenue acts are frequently filed by married couples who elect to file separate returns as provided by law; also as part year returns filed in the case of the death of the taxpayer and covering the income period to the date of death, and in cases where the taxpayer elects to change the accounting period.

The statistics contained in this report are based on the taxpayers' returns as filed, unaudited except for a preliminary examination to insure proper execution of the returns, and include the revised data reported in amended returns showing net income of \$100,000 and over, but do not include tentative returns or data shown in amended returns with net income under \$100,000. Income tax returns filed by individuals having net income of \$5,000 and over and individual returns of net income under \$5,000 filed on form 1040 which display income characteristics similar to those usually found in returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, such as varied or unusual sources of income or large total income, pass through the Statistical Section,

and the data are tabulated from each of these returns.

The statistics applying to individual returns with net income under \$5,000, excepting those on form 1040 specified above (which numbered approximately 417,000), represent estimates based on samples of such returns. Averages for the various items from a sample for each State are applied to the total number of returns of the class which they represent to secure estimates for the particular State. The samples are selected from both forms on which individual incomes are reported—form 1040 for income from salaries or wages of more than \$5,000, or income regardless of amount from business, profession, rents, or sale of property; and form 1040A for net income of not more than \$5,000, derived chiefly from salaries and wages.

All returns, form 1040, are sent to Washington for administrative action and those with net income under \$5,000, excepting those referred to above, are sampled by the Statistical Section. The returns, form 1040A, are retained in the collection districts and samples

only are sent to Washington.

The sample for 1934 included approximately 243,000 returns on form 1040 and 255,000 on form 1040A, representing for each collection district not less than 10 percent of the number of each form of return with net income under \$5,000, distributed about equally between taxable and nontaxable returns. The specified minimum for form 1040 was 4,000 wherever the number filed exceeded that figure, and for form 1040A the minimum was 2,000 wherever the number filed exceeded that figure. When the number of returns filed in any collection district in this class was less than the respective minima the entire number filed was tabulated.

For 1929 and subsequent years the number of returns with net income under \$5,000 is based in part on Income Tax Unit reports and in part on reports of collectors; for years prior to 1929, it is based on

collectors' reports. (See 1929 Statistics of Income, p. 2.)

In all text tables and certain basic tables the amounts in dollars are expressed in thousands. In every case where this rounding occurs it is clearly indicated in the subtitle or in a column heading of the table.

This year, for the first time, in basic tables 2, 5, and 9, the data for returns with net income from \$1,000 to \$5,000 are tabulated in more detail than in former years. Eight net income classes progressing by \$500 brackets are presented in place of four net income classes

of \$1,000 steps.

General definitions.—Throughout this report "net income" represents the amount of gross income, as defined in the revenue laws effective for the year for which the returns are filed, in excess of the deductions claimed by the taxpayer under the provisions of the respective laws, and "deficit" means excess of deductions over gross income. Credits allowed individuals, such as personal exemption, credit for dependents, and credit for earned income, are not included in deductions.

In the returns for 1934, net income of individuals includes the proportion of the gains and losses from the sale of capital assets required to be reported under the Revenue Act of 1934. (See pp. 8 and 9 for a more detailed statement concerning treatment of net capital gains and losses.) The "surtax net income" represents the amount of net income less personal exemption and credit for dependents. The amount of net income subject to normal tax is determined by subtracting from the "surtax net income" the amounts of interest received on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax, dividends received, and earned income credit.

The amount of tax liability as reported in the returns for 1934 and shown in the tabulations in this volume is not entirely comparable with the amount of taxes collected during the calendar year 1935. Several factors are responsible for the differences in the taxes collected and the tax liability reported in the returns, among which

are the following:

1. The amount of tax originally reported in the returns does not always represent precisely the amount of tax paid, for the reason

that adjustment may be made as the result of audit of returns. These adjustments may result in additional assessments, thereby increasing the tax liability, or in certificates of overassessments, representing abatements and credits which reduce the tax liability originally reported. An amended return has the same effect as an adjustment.

- 2. Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States, under certain limitations, are applied as a credit against the income tax payable to the United States or as a deduction from gross income. The amount of such taxes taken as a credit against the income tax liability to the United States has not been deducted from the amount of income tax liability shown in the tabulations in this report. The aggregate amounts of such taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States taken as a credit by individuals are available only for the years 1925 to 1930, inclusive, and appear on page 9 of the Statistics of Income for 1930. Individual income taxes paid at the source on tax-free convenant bonds are deductible from income taxes payable by individuals but are not deducted in the income tax liability of individual returns shown herein.
- 3. The amount of income taxes in fiscal year returns included in this tabulation may not represent taxes collected during 1935 on such returns. Fiscal year returns are required to be filed on or before the 15th day of the third month after the end of the fiscal year, and payment, as in the case of calendar year returns, is required at the time the return is filed, or in four quarterly installments. The first of the quarterly installments is due when the return is filed. Thus, during the calendar year 1935, collections were made of part or all of the taxes reported in returns for fiscal years ended from January 31, 1934 (the last quarterly installment payment on which was due on or before Jan. 15, 1935), to September 30, 1935 (the filing of returns and the full payment or first installment payment on which was due on or before Dec. 15, 1935), whereas, as previously indicated, there are excluded from the statistics in this report the returns for fiscal years ended

prior to July 1, 1934, and subsequent to June 30, 1935.

4. Delays in payment due to financial embarrassment, death, liquidation of business, or any other cause, result in collections of taxes after the close of the year in which such taxes are due, and the classification of such collections as "back taxes" because made in a subsequent year. Certain amounts are uncollectible, due likewise to

the above causes.

5. Collections in the current year include such interest and penalty items as are received in connection with delinquent payments on returns.

Geographic distribution.—An individual files his income tax return in the collection district in which his legal residence or principal place of business is located. The data, although tabulated by returns filed in each State, do not represent what may be called the geographic distribution of income, as income reported by an individual in one State may have been derived from sources in other States. It is not possible to ascertain from the individual income tax returns the amount of income originating in the respective States or the amount of tax paid on that basis.

Comparability with previous reports.—In various sections of this report, attention is called to changes in the provisions of the revenue acts under which the returns for given years are filed which interfere with a precise comparability of the data over a period of years. The major provisions of the revenue acts from 1913 to date are shown on pages 109 to 122.

NUMBER OF RETURNS, NET INCOME, AND TAX (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The returns of individuals reporting net income for 1934 numbered 4,094,420, of which 1,795,920 were taxable and 2,298,500 nontaxable. The aggregate net income was \$12,796,802,082; the net income on taxable returns was \$8,343,558,291, on which the tax liability was \$511,399,778. As compared with the returns for the previous year, the total number for 1934 increased by 370,862, or 10 percent. number of taxable returns increased by 48,180, or 2.8 percent, the net income reported on the taxable returns increased by \$970,897,939, or 13.2 percent, and the tax liability increased by \$137,279,309, or 36.7 percent.

The average net income for 1934 was \$3,125.42 for all returns and \$4,645.84 for taxable returns, the average amount of tax liability was \$124.90 for all returns and \$284.76 for taxable returns, and the average tax rate was 4 percent for all returns and 6.1 percent for taxable returns. For the preceding year the average net income was \$2,956.48 for all returns and \$4,218.40 for taxable returns, the average tax liability was \$100.47 for all returns and \$214.06 for taxable returns, and the average tax rate was 3.4 percent for all returns and 5.1 percent for taxable returns. The ratio of the number of returns reporting a net income to the total population (Census Bureau estimate of population as of July 1, 1934) was 3.2 percent, as compared with a corresponding ratio for the preceding year of 3 percent.

The distribution of returns of individuals by States and Territories

is given in the basic table 1, page 59, and by net income classes in basic table 2, pages 60 and 61. Each of these tables shows number of returns, net income, tax, personal exemption, and credit for dependents. This year, for the first time, basic table 2 contains the amount of personal exemption tabulated separately from the amount of credit

for dependents.

SIMPLE AND CUMULATIVE DISTRIBUTION BY NET INCOME CLASSES OF NUMBER OF RETURNS, NET INCOME, AND TAX (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The distribution of the returns by a limited number of net income classes is exhibited in the following table, which includes the number of returns, net income, and tax; also cumulative totals and percentages. In basic table 3, pages 62 and 63, a similar distribution of the number of returns, net income, and tax is shown by a more detailed net income classification.

Simple and cumulative distribution of individual returns for 1934, by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income, tax, and percentages ¹

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

	Returns							
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative bution fr est incom	om high-	Cumulative distribu- tion from lowest income class			
	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	Number	Percent		
Under 1 (estimated)	320, 460 1, 608, 095 980, 682	7. 83 39. 28 23. 95	4, 094, 420 3, 773, 960 2, 165, 865	100. 00 92. 17 52. 90	320, 460 1, 928, 555 2, 909, 237 3, 671, 773 3, 962, 597	7. 83 47. 10 71. 05		
Under 1 (estimated) 1-2 (estimated) 2-3 (estimated) 3-5 (estimated) 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150	762, 536 290, 824 102, 892 20, 931	18. 62 7. 10 2. 51 . 51	1, 185, 183 422, 647 131, 823 28, 931	28. 95 10. 32 3. 22 .71		89. 68 96. 78 99. 29 99. 80		
300-500	6, 093 982 690 116 86	. 15 . 02 . 02 (2) (2)	8,000 1,907 925 235 119	. 20 . 05 . 02 (2)	4,003,489 4,086,420 4,092,513 4,093,495 4,094,185 4,094,387	99. 95 99. 98 99. 99 99. 99		
500-1,000 1,000 and over	4, 094, 420	100.00	33	(2)	4, 094, 420	100.00		
Total	4, 094, 420	100.00						
			Net in	come	1			
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulativ bution fr est incom	om high-	Cumulative distribu tion from lowest income class			
_	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent		
Under 1 (estimated) 1-2 (estimated) 2-3 (estimated)	211, 113 2, 277, 726 2, 467, 851 2, 839, 348	1. 65 17. 80 19. 28	12, 796, 802 12, 585, 689 10, 307, 964	100. 00 98. 35 80. 55	211, 113 2, 488, 839 4, 956, 690 7, 796, 038 9, 748, 929 11, 262, 521	1. 65 19. 45 38. 73		
Under I (estimated). 1-2 (estimated). 2-3 (estimated). 3-5 (estimated). 5-10 10-25. 5-10 100-150. 150-300.	2, 839, 348 1, 952, 891 1, 513, 592 708, 530 405, 976	22. 19 15. 26 11. 83 5. 54 3. 17	7, 840, 112 5, 000, 764 3, 047, 873 1, 534, 281 825, 751	61. 27 39. 08 23. 82 11. 99 6. 45		60. 92 76. 18 88. 01 93. 55 96. 72		
500-1,000	405, 976 117, 744 140, 960 43, 832 59, 464 57, 775	. 92 1. 10 . 34 . 46 . 46	825, 751 419, 775 302, 031 161, 071 117, 239 57, 775	6. 45 3. 28 2. 36 1. 26 . 92 . 46	12, 377, 027 12, 494, 771 12, 635, 731 12, 679, 564 12, 739, 028 12, 796, 802	97. 64 98. 74 99. 08 99. 54		
Total	12, 796, 802	100.00	57, 775	, 40	12, 790, 802	100.00		
		1	Ta	Y	1	<u> </u>		
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulativ	e distri-	Cumulative distribution from lowes			
	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent		
Under 1 (estimated) 1-2 (estimated) 2-3 (estimated)	111 8, 659 7, 567	0. 02 1. 69 1. 48	511, 400 511, 289 502, 630	100.00 99.98 98.29	111 8, 770 16, 337	0. 02 1. 71 3. 19		
Under (estimated) 1-2 (estimated) 2-3 (estimated) 3-5 (estimated) 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150	7, 567 18, 349 43, 086 83, 960 84, 907	3. 59 8. 43 16. 42 16. 61	502, 630 495, 063 476, 714 433, 628 349, 668	96. 81 93. 22 84. 79 68. 37	34, 686 77, 772 161, 731 246, 638	6. 78 15. 21 31. 63 48. 24		
50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500	20, 854	16. 58 7. 46 11. 34 4. 08	264, 762 179, 970 141, 804 83, 810	51. 76 35. 18 27. 72 16. 38	331, 430 369, 596 427, 591 448, 445	64. 82 72. 28 83. 62 87. 70		
150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	30, 745 32, 211	6. 01 6. 29	62, 955 32, 211	12. 30 6. 29	479, 190 511, 400	93. 71 100. 00		
Total	511, 400	100.00						

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.
² Less than one-hundredth of 1 percent.

CLASSIFIC ATION BY SEX AND FAMILY RELATIONSHIP (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The following table shows the number of individual returns and the net income distributed according to sex and family relationship of the taxpayer. In basic tables 4 and 5, pages 64 to 67, similar data are shown by States and Territories and by net income classes, respectively.

Individual returns for 1934, by sex and family relationship of taxpayer, showing number of returns, net income, and percentages 1

	Retu	rns	Net income		
Family relationship	Number	Percent	Amount (thousands of dollars)	Percent	
Joint returns of husbands and wives, with or without dependent children, and the returns of husbands whose wives, though living with them, file separate returns	2, 034, 946 283, 875 171, 173 889, 951 603, 214 87, 471 23, 790	49. 70 6. 93 4. 18 21. 74 14. 73 2. 14 . 58	7, 865, 596 670, 492 381, 062 1, 816, 535 1, 295, 313 488, 729 279, 075	61. 46 5. 24 2. 98 14. 20 10. 12: 3. 82: 2. 18	

PERSONAL EXEMPTION AND CREDITS AGAINST NET INCOME (INDIVIDUAL

The net income specifically exempt from normal tax through personal exemption, credit for dependents, earned income credit, dividends on stock of domestic corporations, interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax, as well as net income subject to normal tax are shown in the following table:

Net income exempt from and amount subject to normal tax, individual returns for 1934 1

Distribution	Amount (thousands of dollars)	Percent
Net income	12, 796, 802	100, 00
Personal exemption and credits against net income: Personal exemption	875, 962	59. 61 9. 74 6. 85 15. 36
Total Less: Excess exemption and credits.	11, 755, 298 2, 040, 010	91, 86 15, 94
Net income exempt from normal tax	9, 715, 288	75. 92
Net income subject to normal tax	3, 081, 514	24.08

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.
² Interest received on Liberty 4 and 4½ percent bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000 and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)

¹ Includes returns for income of estates or property held in trust, which are distributed by sex and family relationship of the testator or grantor. For general explanations, see pp. 1–5.
² Excludes separate returns of community property income of husband and wife in which the net income is under \$5,000 and joint returns of husband and wife which show net income under \$10,000. In tabulating joint returns of community property, net income of \$10,000 and over, the data are divided to represent the separate returns of husband and wife, the net income class for each of the separate returns being one-half of the combined net income of the joint return. Returns of community property income not included under this heading are classified either under joint returns of husbands and wives, etc., or wives filing separate returns from husbands.

CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The special provisions in the revenue acts for capital gains and losses from the sale of assets held more than 2 years apply, for capital gains, to sales after December 31, 1921, and prior to January 1, 1934, and for capital losses, to sales after December 31, 1923, and prior to January 1, 1934. A summary of the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1921 and subsequent acts, affecting the tax on capital gains, and of the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1924 and subsequent acts, affecting the tax credit on capital losses, is found on pages 8 and 9 of the Statistics of Income for 1933 and in the synopsis of laws in this report, pages 118 and 119. The "total income" and "net income" for individual returns for 1922 through 1933, as presented in the historical tables in this report, pages 27 to 31, include the "capital net gains," whereas, for the years 1924 through 1933 the "net income" has not been reduced by and "deductions" have not been increased by the amount of the "capital net losses."

Under the Revenue Act of 1934 the definition of capital assets is extended to include assets held by the taxpayer, regardless of time held, instead of only assets held over 2 years. Also, certain percentages, which vary according to the period for which the assets have been held, of the gain or loss recognized upon such sales or exchanges are taken into account in computing net income. The deduction for net capital losses from net income is limited to an amount not in excess of \$2,000, after subtracting the gains from the sales or exchanges of

capital assets.

The net income reported in the 1934 individual income tax returns includes net capital gains and net capital losses computed in accordance with the above limitations. It is not possible, by using the net capital gain and net capital loss in the 1934 returns, to adjust the "total income," "net income," and "deductions" so that they will be comparable with those for previous years. Moreover, due to the changed provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 net capital gains and losses reported on individual income tax returns for 1934 are not comparable with "profit and loss from sale of real estate, stocks, and bonds, etc.," "capital net gain," nor "capital net loss" which were reported in returns in prior years.

SOURCES OF INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

In the table on page 9 there appears a distribution by sources of the income and deductions reported by individuals. Income from the various sources represents, for each source of income, the net amount by which the gross receipts exceed the deductions allowed as provided in the schedules of the return (see form 1040, p. 126), and in aggregate represents the sum of the net amounts of income from each source. Net losses reported in "income" items on the face of the returns are transferred in tabulation to deductions, which also include amounts reported in the return under "deductions."

Income from partnerships and fiduciaries does not include amounts received through these entities from dividends on stock of domestic corporations or from taxable interest on obligations of the United States, since these items are reported under their respective classifications. Unlike former years, the income from partnerships and fiduciaries includes the net capital gain and loss resulting from sales of capital assets.

capital assets.

With reference to the amount of net capital gains and net capital losses, attention is directed to the provisions of the Revenue Act of

1934, as described in the section of the text entitled "Net capital gains

The items of "interest paid" and "taxes paid" which are reported under "deductions" in the individual income tax returns do not include amounts reported in business deductions in schedule A, "Income (or loss) from business or profession."

Interest paid is reported as item 13, on the face of the return, form

1040, in accordance with the following instructions:

Enter as item 13 interest paid on personal indebtedness as distinguished from business indebtedness (which should be deducted under schedule A or B). Do not include interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation.

Taxes paid exclude (1) the Federal income tax, (2) estate, inheritance, legacy, succession, and gift taxes, (3) income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States, which are allowed as a credit against the tax, and (4) taxes reported on form 1040F, schedule of farm income and expenses. Taxes paid are reported as item 14 on the face of the return, form 1040, in accordance with the following instructions:

Enter as item 14 personal taxes and taxes paid on property not used in your business or profession, not including those assessed against local benefits of a kind tending to increase the value of the property assessed. Do not include Federal income taxes, nor estate, inheritance, legacy, succession, and gift taxes, nor taxes imposed upon your interest as shareholder of a corporation which are paid by the corporation without reimbursement from you, nor income taxes claimed as a credit in item 33. No deduction is allowable for any portion of foreign income and profits taxes if a credit is claimed in item 33.

A historical summary of taxes paid and interest paid for the years 1927 through 1932 is found in the 1932 Statistics of Income, table 8A, page 80. Amounts shown in reports prior to 1931 as "Interest and other income" are tabulated as "Other taxable interest" and "Other income."

Sources of income and deductions in individual returns for 1934, amounts and percentages 1

1 "		
Sources of income and deductions	Amount (thousands of dollars)	Percent
Sources of income:		
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.	8, 600, 455	56, 98
Business profit	1, 716, 842	11. 38
Partnership profit ²	631, 915	4. 19
Net capital gain 3	211, 319	1.40
Rents and royalties	509, 844	3, 38
Dividends on stock of domestic corporations.	1, 965, 676	13. 02
Fiduciary 2		1.91
Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax 4		. 25
Other taxable interest		6.03
Other income	220, 910	1.46
Total income	15, 092, 960	100.00
Deductions:		====
Business Ioss	63, 885	. 42
Partnership loss 2	29, 004	. 19
Net capital loss 3	183, 762	1. 22
Interest paid 5		3, 42
Taxes paid 5	541, 191	3. 59
Contributions		1. 81
All other	688, 277	4. 56
Total deductions	2, 296, 158	15. 21
Net income	12, 796, 802	84. 79

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.
² See text, p. 8.
³ For explanation of changes in 1934 act affecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.
⁴ Interest received on 4 and 414 percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and

on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax, if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1640, p. 126.)

* Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.

The following table shows, by a limited number of net income classes, the distribution of total income by sources, specific items of deductions, and net income. The distribution by States and Territories and by more detailed net income classes is shown in basic tables 6 and 7, respectively (pp. 68 to 74). This year, for the first time, the following text table and basic table 7 show for returns with net income of \$5,000 and over the number of returns on which were reported specific sources of income and deductions, as well as the total number of returns in each net income class. The table on page 12 shows by a limited number of net income classes the percentage distribution of sources of income, deductions, and net income.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1934, by net income classes; also total number of returns, and for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction ¹

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

		Sources of income									
Net income classes	Total num ber of returns		Salaries, wages, com- missions, fees, etc.			Busine	ss p	rofit	Partnership profit ²		
	returns	Numb of return	Amo	unt	(mber of urns	Aı	nount	Number of returns	Amount	
Under 5 (estimated) 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	3, 671, 773 290, 824 102, 892 20, 931 6, 093 6983 690 116 86	193, 96 2 62, 08 1 11, 96 3 3, 59 2 59 3 3	31 701 31 236 91 107 98 26 90 21 53 3		5. 1.	7) 5, 412 5, 632 2, 260 499 50 27 3 6	. 3	48, 153 14, 641 73, 531 51, 642 20, 751 3, 395 2, 298 425 2, 006	(7) 30, 551 14, 020 3, 255 988 142 84 12 13	193, 849 151, 527 149, 509 72, 970 40, 608 10, 902 10, 636 1, 170 738	
Total	4, 094, 420	8 272, 70	05 8,600	, 455	9 73	3,889	1, 7	16, 842	8 49,066	631, 915	
			Sour	ces of	inco	me—C	ont	inued			
Net income classes		Net capital gain ³		Rents and ro		yal- bividen stock of tic corpo		of dome	s- Fid	uciary ²	
	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns		ount	Num of retu		Amour	Numb of retur	Amount	
Under 5 (estimated)	33, 420 19, 969 5, 715 1, 915 349 249 41 34	51, 101 39, 612 48, 912 29, 748 19, 068 5, 542 7, 989 3, 479 3, 348 2, 519	(°) 55, 245 21, 372 4, 704 1, 427 233 159 28 31 7	76 54 21 9	, 058 , 515 , 231 , 067 , 619 , 980 , 277 360 711 27	1	297 763	380, 65 288, 34 421, 44 305, 85 222, 5 80, 85 110, 26 36, 85 56, 3 62, 56	40 22, 6 46 4, 9 30 1, 1 11 3 56 1 93 1	19 73,705	
'Total	8 61, 704	211, 319	8 83, 266	509	, 844	⁸ 265,	487	1, 965, 6	8 29,5	12 288, 730	

For footnotes see p. 11.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1934, by net income classes; also total number of returns, and for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction \(^1\)—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

	Sources of income—Continued								
Net income classes	ernmen tions n	on Gov- it obliga- ot wholly from tax 4		taxable erest	Other	Total income			
	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	incomo				
Under 5 (estimated)	16, 826 12, 455 3, 997 1, 358 228 173 30 21	11, 544 14, 118 6, 717 3, 048 797 898 674 188	(7) 136, 032 62, 651 15, 393 4, 902 832 601 106 79 29	455, 751 164, 681 160, 874 71, 538 33, 533 7, 136 7, 254 3, 154 3, 695 1, 616	121, 684 34, 971 27, 893 14, 857 8, 927 2, 943 3, 898 1, 614 2, 016 2, 108	9, 080, 298 2, 342, 761 1, 825, 435 849, 785 485, 507 143, 653 170, 578 52, 404 72, 014 70, 526			
Total	35, 097	38, 044	8 220, 625	909, 231	220, 910	15, 092, 960			

		Deductions							
37 / f 1	Busine	ess loss	Partners	hip loss 2	Net cap	ital loss 3	Interest paid 6		
Net income classes	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	
Under 5 (estimated)	(7) 5, 420 3, 010 937 390 95 74 15 20 8	34, 132 9, 200 8, 799 4, 320 2, 717 1, 331 1, 422 443 664 857	(7) 3, 560 1, 942 624 228 39 36 2 2	13, 826 5, 666 4, 959 2, 645 1, 059 546 256 1 38 9	(7) 43, 354 26, 478 7, 160 2, 334 379 306 50 37 12	92, 794 43, 157 33, 037 10, 082 3, 414 585 495 85 66 48	(7) 154, 067 58, 645 12, 646 3, 914 656 480 83 65 20	285, 950 100, 772 71, 501 30, 130 15, 365 4, 519 4, 045 1, 224 3, 144 567	
Total	8 9, 969	63, 885	86,434	29, 004	8 80, 110	183, 762	8 230, 576	517, 217	

	Deductions—Continued									
Net income classes	Taxes	paid 6	Contri	butions	All other	Total	Net income			
	Number of returns	Amount	Number of returns	Amount	deduc- tions b	deduc- tions				
Under 5 (estimated)	241, 775 91, 769 19, 432 5, 750 951 667 112 82	308, 701 86, 972 70, 438 33, 331 19, 929 6, 330 8, 022 2, 387 2, 508 2, 573	(7) 217, 881 82, 163 17, 385 5, 234 882 616 103 75 29	143, 172 41, 493 34, 607 19, 483 13, 503 4, 791 6, 382 2, 246 2, 961 4, 184	405, 686 102, 608 88, 503 41, 263 23, 542 7, 807 8, 996 2, 186 3, 171 4, 513	1, 284, 260 389, 869 311, 843 141, 255 79, 531 25, 909 29, 618 8, 572 12, 550 12, 751	7, 796, 038 1, 952, 891 1, 513, 592 708, 530 405, 976 117, 744 140, 960 43, 832 59, 464 57, 775			
Total	8 360, 569	541, 191	8 324, 368	272, 822	688, 277	2, 296, 158	12, 796, 802			

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.
² See text, p. 8.
³ For explanations of changes in 1934 act affecting net capital gain and loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis

For explanations of changes in 1934 act affecting net capten gain and ross, see tear, pp. 6-6, and synapsis of laws, pp. 118-119.
 Interest received on 4 and 4½ percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)
 The number of returns is not available, since the amount of "Other income" is secured by deducting the sum of specific sources of income from total income, and "Other deductions" is determined by subtracting the sum of specific deductions from total deductions.
 Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.
 Not available.
 Excludes returns with net income of under \$5,000.

Percentage distribution of sources of income, deductions, and net income, individual returns for 1934, by net income classes ¹

	Sources of income									
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Salaries, wages, commis- sions, fees, etc.	Business profit	Partner- ship profit ²	Net capital gain ³	Rents and royalties	Dividends on stock of domestic corporations	Fidu- ciary ²			
Under 5 (estimated) 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over Total	69. 38 51. 20 38. 41 27. 81 22. 22 18. 40 12. 81 6. 84 3. 25 1. 79 56. 98	12. 65 13. 43 9. 51 6. 08 4. 27 2. 36 1. 35 . 81 2. 79	2. 14 6. 47 8. 19 8. 58 8. 36 7. 59 6. 24 2. 23 1. 02 . 01	0. 56 1. 69 2. 68 3. 50 3. 93 3. 86 4. 68 6. 64 4. 65 3. 57	3. 79 3. 26 2. 97 2. 48 1. 98 1. 38 2. 75 69 9. 99 04	4. 19 12. 31 23. 09 35. 99 45. 83 56. 29 64. 66 70. 32 78. 20 88. 76	0. 93 2. 63 4. 04 4. 60 4. 03 2. 55 2. 45 2. 08 . 91 . 47			
	Sour	Deductions	3							
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Interest on Gov- ernment obliga- tions not wholly exempt from tax 4	Other taxable interest	Other income	Total income	Business loss	Partner-ship loss 2	Net capital loss ³			
Under 5 (estimated) 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	0. 49 . 77 . 79 . 63 . 55 . 53 1. 29 . 26	8. 81 8. 42 6. 91 4. 97 4. 25 6. 02 5. 13 2. 29	1. 49 1. 53 1. 75 1. 84 2. 05 2. 28 3. 08 2. 80 2. 99	100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00 100. 00	0. 38 . 39 . 48 . 51 . 56 . 92 . 84 . 84 . 92 1. 22	0. 15 .24 .27 .31 .22 .38 .15 .06 .01	1. 02 1. 85 1. 81 1. 18 . 70 . 41 . 29 . 16 . 09 . 07			
Net income classes		Deductions—Continued								
(Thousands of dollars	;)	Interest	Taxes	Contri-	All other deduc-	Total deduc-	Net income			

Net income classes						
(Thousands of dollars)	Interest paid 5	Taxes paid ³	Contri- butions	All other deduc- tions	Total deduc- tions	Net income
Under 5 (estimated) 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	3. 17 3. 15 2. 37 2. 34 4. 37 . 80	3. 40 3. 71 3. 86 3. 92 4. 10 4. 41 4. 70 4. 56 3. 48 3. 65	1. 57 1. 77 1. 90 2. 29 2. 78 3. 34 3. 74 4. 29 4. 11 5. 93	4. 47 4. 38 4. 85 4. 86 4. 85 5. 43 5. 27 4. 17 4. 40 6. 40	14. 14 16. 64 17. 08 16. 62 16. 38 18. 04 17. 36 16. 36 17. 43 18. 08	85. 86 83. 36 82. 92 83. 38 83. 62 81. 96 82. 64 83. 64 82. 57 81. 92
Total	3. 42	3. 59	1.81	4. 56	15. 21	84. 79

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.
2 See text, p. 8.
3 For explanation of changes in 1934 act affecting net capital gain and loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.
4 Interest received on 4 and 414 percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)
5 Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.

FREQUENCY DISTRIBUTION BY SIZE OF SPECIFIC ITEMS OF INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS, RETURNS OF NET INCOME OF \$5,000 AND OVER (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

In the general tables for individual returns, the data are tabulated by net income classes. In the following table the income and deductions reported in returns of net income of \$5,000 and over for certain sources are classified by size of specific items.

Sources of income not included in this tabulation are partnership, fiduciary, interest, and other income. The total income received through partnerships and fiduciaries may not be included in items 5 and 6, form 1040, provided for such income, since the instructions relative to these items provide:

Enter as item 5 your share of the profits (whether received or not) (or of the losses) of a partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., and as item 6 income from an estate or trust, except that the share of (a) taxable interest on obligations of the United States shall be included in schedule D, and (b) profits which consisted of dividends on stock of domestic corporations which are subject to income tax shall be included in item 10(a) on the return.

Frequency and amount of certain items of income and deductions by size classes, individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over

[Money figures and size classes in thousands of dollars]

	Salaries.	wages, com-	Business				
Size classes of certain items of income and deductions		s, fees, etc.	Pr	ofit	Le	oss	
	Fre- quency	Amount	Fre- quency	Amount	Fre- quency	Amount	
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 500-5000 500-1000	3, 128 2, 389 1, 773 1, 487 1, 143 5, 024 9, 445 9, 953 11, 675 15, 763 147, 469 36, 045 2, 754 1, 169 1, 155 2, 754 1, 155 2, 754 1, 155 2, 100 3, 1	145 332 427 502 508 3, 606 13, 897 24, 586 40, 523 71, 288 1, 017, 836 426, 867 217, 565 128, 655 82, 729 93, 152 93, 152 64, 366 24, 336 28, 364 3, 671 1, 732	1, 107 1, 042 769 687 595 2, 498 3, 848 3, 402 4, 895 36, 741 8, 432 2, 860 1, 275 684 646 291 224 4 4 2 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4	52 151 190 239 266 1, 836 5, 690 8, 533 13, 159 22, 226 254, 497 101, 010 48, 990 28, 306 18, 678 22, 110 6, 693 1, 394 6, 693 1, 394 1, 308	665 638 554 453 1, 734 1, 928 1, 058 644 407 834 263 106 57 34 30 19 20 7 6 6 1	32 94 136 177 1, 259 2, 586 2, 586 2, 230 1, 810 5, 783 3, 151 1, 819 1, 276 830 1, 155 1, 027 830 1, 155 1, 020 324 533	
Total	272, 705	2, 300, 256	73, 889	568, 689	9, 969	29, 753	

Frequency and amount of certain items of income and deductions by size classes, individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Continued

Size classes of certain items of income and deduc-	Dividends on stock of domestic corporations		Rents and royalties		Net capi	tal gain ¹	Net capital loss ¹		
tions and deduc	Fre- quency	Amount	Fre- quency	Amount	Frequency	Amount	Fre- quency	Amount	
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-f 5-10 10-15 115-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-250 250-500 500-1,000	11, 394 9, 287 30, 554 32, 321 19, 282 13, 684 10, 871 32, 402 12, 634 6, 411 3, 909 2, 483 3, 019 1, 656 1, 927 1, 008 219 85	1, 578 3, 023 3, 560 3, 933 4, 148 22, 051 46, 501 47, 426 47, 391 48, 694 227, 893 153, 002 110, 455 86, 954 67, 779 104, 003 73, 731 115, 829 68, 668 149, 922 72, 037 58, 984 67, 482	14, 524 10, 542 7, 338 5, 786 4, 269 12, 246 9, 989 4, 739 2, 811 1, 723 67, 633 206 90 3, 73 3, 23 1, 723 1, 723 1, 723 2, 1, 723 1, 723 1, 723 2, 73 2, 73	686 1, 540 1, 799 1, 992 1, 908 8, 519 14, 124 11, 584 9, 738 9, 113 39, 152 20, 824 11, 581 7, 348 4, 999 7, 058 3, 965 4, 304 2, 334 2, 771	11, 388 6, 359 4, 590 2, 853 9, 084 8, 219 4, 094 2, 570 1, 776 4, 171 1, 226 655 337 184 219 135 110 59 58 144 2 2	474 926 1, 131 1, 249 1, 280 6, 161 11, 827 10, 330 8, 896 7, 936 29, 007 14, 940 11, 270 7, 552 5, 047 7, 533 5, 984 6, 602 8, 955 4, 613 1, 467 1, 623		359 848 1, 131 1, 376 1, 596 8, 971 22, 687 52, 563 467 762 140 26 16	
Total	265, 487	1, 585, 043	83, 206	165, 786	61, 704	160, 218	80, 110	90, 968	

¹ For explanation of changes in 1934 act affecting net capital gain and loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.

PROFIT AND LOSS FROM BUSINESS, RETURNS OF NET INCOME OF \$5,000 AND OVER, BY INDUSTRIAL GROUPS (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The profit and loss from business (other than from partnerships) reported in returns, form 1040, of net income of \$5,000 and over, are classified in the following table according to nature of business.

classified in the following table according to nature of business.

For returns with information on schedule A, there are shown the number of businesses with profit and loss, total receipts, salaries and wages paid, and the amount of profit and loss. For returns with business but without information on schedule A, and for all returns with business, there are presented the number of businesses with profit and loss and the amount of profit and loss. These data represent only such amounts reported by individuals as sole proprietors, and do not necessarily indicate the principal occupation of the individual nor the total income reported in the return.

In the tabulation of sources of income from individual returns the classification "business profit" represents items of profit reported on the returns, as shown by the total receipts from business or profession, less cost of goods sold and other business deductions, such as salaries, interest on business indebtedness, taxes on business or business property, losses from fire or storm, bad debts arising from sales, depreciation, obsolescence and depletion, rents, repairs, and other expenses as provided for in schedule A of the individual income tax return, form 1040. The "business loss" represents the tabulation of the items of loss from business reported on the returns which occur when deductions exceed the total receipts.

Basic table 8, pages 75 to 80, contains, for each industrial group, a frequency distribution of the number of returns with business and the amount of profit and loss from business by size of profit and loss.

the amount of profit and loss from business by size of profit and loss. The following table and basic table 8 exclude (1) income from partnerships reported in item 5 on face of return, form 1040 (see p. 126), (2) salaries, wages, fees, commissions, etc., reported in item 1 on face of return, and (3) business profits and losses reported in returns with net income of less than \$5,000:

Profit and loss from business (other than from partnerships) by industrial groups, with schedule A, number of businesses with profit and loss, total receipts, salaries but without schedule A and for all returns with business, number of businesses for prior years

[Money figures in

					[1,1011,		
	All	returns wi	th busine	ess	inform	ns with nation on dule A	
						ness with profit	
Industrial groups	Num- ber of busi- nesses with profit	Profit	Number of businesses with loss	Loss	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Total receipts	
Agriculture and related industries	5, 988 940	30, 760 8, 865	5, 172 185	17, 274 1, 061	5, 035 765	109, 912 25, 387	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products	864	7,862	40	110	780	91, 681	
Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and non- alcoholic)	129	1, 770	13	39	125	12, 696	
Tobacco products Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures.	25 755	187 7, 387	38	7 93	24 689	2, 105 111, 432	
Leather and its manufactures	78 27	659 301	10 3	23 1	76 24	11, 054 3, 426 17, 356	
Forest products	261	1,913	15	33	238	17, 356	
Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and allied industries.	85 574	742 4, 963	4 46	$\frac{10}{291}$	77 515	8, 820 23, 101	
Chemicals and allied products	210 96	2, 559 856	26 12	71 29	198	15, 353	
Stone, clay, and glass products	595	5, 408	26	59	$\frac{87}{561}$	4, 882 39, 966	
Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	413	4, 750	27	115	370	36, 199	
Total manufacturing	4, 112	39, 357	263	880	3, 764	378, 070	
Construction Transportation and other public utilities	1, 400 1, 065	12, 253 8, 796	102 72	280 202	1, 265 948	98, 124 50, 596	
Trade: Retail	14, 710	100, 885	1, 113	2,051	12, 997	1, 102, 140	
Wholes: le Wholesale and retail	2, 540	23, 993	140	400	2, 327	529, 028	
Wholesale and retail	416	3, 286	8	47	382	52, 931	
Total trade	17, 666	128, 164	1, 261	2, 498	15, 706	1, 684, 099	
Service: Domestic—Laundries, hotels, restaurants, etc	1, 305	8, 567	203	673	1, 200	61, 713	
Amusements	773 16, 884	6, 146 130, 691	170 416	1, 005 515	674 15, 693	27, 645 219, 380 23, 347	
Educational	1, 344	12, 432	174	200	1, 122	23, 347	
Engineering Legal	979 10, 209	7, 412 90, 250	203 495	379 682	863 8, 644	16, 528 123, 595	
All other	3, 034	23, 737	115	164	2, 752	73, 800	
Total service	34, 528	279, 235	1,776	3, 618	30, 948	546, 008	
Finance: Investment brokers	495	5, 286	118	1,002	395	102, 301	
Real estateAll other	809 3,070	5, 448 24, 908	228 165	699 408	694 2, 636	10, 688 68, 756	
	4, 374	<u>-</u>	511				
Total finance	———	35, 642	=	2, 109	3, 725	181, 746	
Nature of business not given	3,816	25, 618	627	1,832	2, 447	148, 297	
Grand total, 1934	73, 889 49, 740	568, 689 393, 815	9, 969 7, 970	29, 753 26, 791	64, 603 43, 127	3, 222, 239 2, 414, 325	
1932	45, 547	354, 488	l		i		
1931 1930 1929 1928	97, 779 154, 640	766, 730 1, 215, 452					
1929	228, 475	1, 836, 329 1, 772, 255					
1998			[
1928 1927 1926	212, 919	1, 704, 175 1, 738, 523					

¹ Less than \$500.

individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over, showing for returns and wages paid, amount of profit and of loss, and showing for returns with business, with profit and loss, and amount of profit and loss; also grand totals for certain items

thousands of dollars]

1	Returns with information on schedule A—Continued							Return out inf	s with boormation	usiness b on sche	ut with- dule A
	Business with profit— Continued			Busi	ness with	loss					
Salarie wages			Num-		Salari wages	es and s paid		Num- ber of busi- nesses	Profit	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Loss
Labor	Salaries not in- cluded in labor	Profit	ber of busi- nesses	Total receipts	Labor	Salaries not in- cluded in labor	Loss	Loss with profit		with loss	
16, 517 4, 078	3, 592 1, 029	26, 222 7, 043	4, 272 135	18, 471 2, 254	7, 509 401	1, 760 167	11,826 757	953 175	4, 539 1, 822	900 50	5, 448 304
8, 749	5,005	6, 920	36	1,093	123	36	84	84	942	4	26
1, 151 556	526 137	1, 326 186	13 3	1, 314 349	108	16 5	39 7	4	443 (1)		
25, 638 2, 354	5, 512 332	6, 902 642	31	3, 042 149	849 17	231 8	80 21	$\frac{66}{2}$	486 17	7 1	13 2
665 3, 563	198 1, 371	251 1, 760	1 13	1, 484	156	I o	(1) 32	3 23	50 152	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 1
1, 301	323	724	3	324	67	10	4	8	19	1 7	6
5, 187 1, 446	2,004 2,023	4, 095 2, 275	39 20	420 249	118 13	88 22	67 34	59 12	868 284	6	224 37
1, 041 7, 234	351 2, 245	767 5, 115	9 23	250 1,888	225	23 163	29 57	9 34	89 293	3 3 3	(1) 2
6, 559	2, 282	3, 343	24	343	99	50	113	43	1, 407		2
65, 444	22, 309	34, 306	224	10, 914	1,780	661	565	348	5, 051	39	315
22, 179 5, 380	5, 028 5, 515	10, 634 7, 274	89 60	2,016 1,496	558 158	107 314	262 134	135 117	1, 619 1, 522	13 12	17 67
47, 092 13, 876 1, 403	73, 664 17, 009 2, 558	91, 566 21, 848 3, 045	801 125 7	31, 395 10, 027 365	3, 224 793 27	2, 386 427 14	1, 661 375 45	1, 713 213 34	9, 319 2, 145 241	312 15 1	390 25 1
62, 371	93, 231	116, 459	933	41, 787	4, 043	2, 828	2,082	1, 960	11, 704	328	416
8, 236 2, 314 9, 737 1, 300 1, 016 2, 843 4, 532	7, 531 4, 121 28, 382 4, 329 2, 878 20, 105 11, 114	7, 774 5, 303 122, 043 10, 308 6, 662 75, 229 21, 870	181 121 365 135 151 397 84	2, 744 1, 404 1, 254 111 395 982 706	547 112 121 6 18 48 172	280 368 379 71 215 542 163	353 678 432 149 313 582 120	105 99 1, 191 222 116 1, 565 282	793 842 8, 648 2, 125 750 15, 021 1, 867	22 49 51 39 52 98 31	320 327 83 52 66 101 44
29, 977	78, 461	249, 189	1, 434	7, 597	1, 025	2, 019	2, 626	3, 580	30, 046	342	992
533 410 2, 249	1, 531 1, 861 13, 743	4, 250 4, 479 21, 225	76 184 122	3, 799 820 5, 648	20 50 29	200 252 269	733 510 304	100 115 434	1, 036 969 3, 682	42 44 43	269 189 104
3, 192	17, 135	29, 954	382	10, 267	99	721	1, 547	649	5, 687	129	562
9, 920	10, 977	18, 618	415	5, 182	1, 574	612	1, 128	1, 369	6, 999	212	704
219, 057 183, 167	237, 277 176, 198	499, 700 347, 615	7, 944 6, 374	99, 985	17, 148 14, 363	9, 189 7, 860	20, 927 22, 248	9, 286 6, 613	68, 989 46, 200	2, 025 1, 596	8, 826 4, 543
	1	1		I			<u> </u>			l	<u> </u>

WHOLLY AND PARTIALLY TAX-EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS, RETURNS OF NET INCOME OF \$5,000 AND OVER (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

Wholly tax-exempt obligations consist of securities the interest on which is wholly exempt from the normal income tax and surtax of the Federal Government. Partially tax-exempt obligations include securities the interest on which is exempt from the normal income tax of the Federal Government and certain issues on which the interest on the principal amount up to \$5,000 is also exempt from surtax. During the calendar year 1934, the wholly tax-exempt obligations of the Federal Government, on which interest was paid, included bonds issued on or before September 1, 1917, First Liberty 3½ percent bonds, Treasury bills, Treasury certificates of indebtedness, Treasury notes, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended, and obligations of United States possessions. Partially tax-exempt obligations of the Federal Government were Liberty 4 and 4¼ percent bonds, Treasury bonds, and obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended.

Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations reported in individual returns for 1934 with net income of \$5,000 and over, showing amount owned and interest received by nature of obligations and net income classes

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

		<u> </u>		Amount	wned i		·	
		Wh	olly tax-exen	ıpt obligat	ions	Partially	tax-exemp	t obliga-
Net income classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States and Terri- tories or political subdivi- sions there- of and United States possessions	Obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act	Liberty 3½ percent bonds, Treasury notes, Treasury bills, and Treasury certificates of indebted- ness 3	Total	Liberty 4 and 4)4 percent bonds and Treasury bonds	Obliga- tions of certain instru- mentali- ties of the United States 4
5-6	233, 280	147, 791	94, 107	16, 234	37, 451	85, 488	79, 759	5, 730
6-7	190, 705	117, 788	80,046	13, 760	23, 981	72, 917	67, 974	4, 943
7-8	171, 289 137, 254	113, 527 91, 210	82, 064 65, 503	10, 888 7, 276	20, 574 18, 432	57, 762 46, 044	54, 436 43, 045	3, 326 2, 999
9-10	124, 932	83, 939	50, 735	8, 715	24, 489	40, 993	38, 333	2, 660
10-11	116, 875	77, 015	50, 659	7, 676	18, 681	39, 860	37, 584	2, 276
11-12	122, 884	86, 813	60, 951	8, 630	17, 231	36,072	32,779	3, 292
12-13	114, 404	80,660	52, 579	9,015	19,066	33, 744	30, 589	3, 155
13-14	109, 839	80, 498	57. 448	5, 392	17, 659	29, 341	26, 997	2,344
14-15	102, 825	76, 452	53, 053	7, 365	16,035	26, 373	24,664	1,709
15-20 20-25	420, 705	312, 901	217, 376	30, 044	65, 482	107, 804	100, 141	7,663
25-30	325, 463 286, 035	252, 881 232, 189	169, 529 170, 498	20, 621 16, 699	62, 732 44, 992	72, 582 53, 846	68, 542 49, 887	4,040 3,959
30-40	438, 634	374, 193	267, 693	27, 542	78, 958	64. 441	60, 393	4,049
40-50.	323, 588	284, 263	201, 810	21, 186	61, 266	39, 325	36, 335	2, 990
50-60	230, 730	206, 450	147, 530	13, 873	45,048	24, 280	23, 362	917
60-70	161, 935	146, 390	104, 417	9,083	32, 890	15, 545	14, 566	979
70-80	266, 702	255, 691	200, 227	11, 513	43, 951	11,011	10, 572	439
80-90	121, 590	113, 747	77, 219	5, 993	30, 536	7,843	7,309	534
90-100	100, 606	94, 011	70, 458	6, 917	16, 635	6, 595	5, 725	870
100-150 150-200	379, 161	348, 042 146, 373	252, 090	20, 673 6, 734	75, 280 38, 142	31, 119	29, 409	1,710 168
200-250	152, 630 143, 166	140, 373	101, 497 96, 534	5, 722	37, 744	6, 256 3, 165	6,089	159
250-300	71, 363	67, 075	41, 037	3, 701	22, 336	4, 289	4, 160	129
300-400	75, 729	72, 804	52,009	2, 380	18, 415	2, 925	2, 814	110
400-500	55, 344	50, 868	32, 991	2,001	15, 876	4, 476	4, 476	
500-750	147, 250	145, 710	102, 001	1, 139	42, 571	1,539	1, 275	264
750-1,000	64, 659	64, 635	47, 345	5, 138	12, 153	24	24	
1,000-1,500	72, 293	72,053	33, 821	283	37, 949	241	241	
1,500-2,000	8, 821	8,821	4,011	310	4,500			
2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000	25, 348	24, 316	9, 930	916	13, 470	1,032	1,032	
4.000-4,000	1 3					1 3	9	
5,000 and over	108, 436	108, 436	31,660	1	76, 776			
	5, 404, 479		3, 078, 829	307, 416		926, 936	865, 523	61, 413
10081	0, 404, 479	1 4, 417, 544	9,010,029	1 307, 410	1.091, 299	920, 930	1 500, 523	01, 413

¹ As of the end of the year. ³ Includes other obligations of United States issued on or before Sept. 1, 1917. ⁴ Includes obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended.

The tabulation presented herewith shows, for returns with net income of \$5,000 and over, the wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations owned as of the end of the year, and the total wholly and partially tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year, segregated by nature of obligation and by net income classes. Since bond holdings are subject to variation during the year, the amount of bonds reported as of the end of the year may include bonds for which no interest was received or accrued, and, vice versa, the interest reported may include interest on bonds which are not included in the amount of bonds reported.

Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations reported in individual returns for 1934 with net income of \$5,000 and over, showing amount owned and interest received by nature of obligations and net income classes—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

		W	holly tax-exer	npt obliga	tions	Partially tax-exempt obliga tions		
Net income classes	Total	Total	Obligations of States and Terri- tories or po- litical sub- divisions thereof and of United States pos- sessions	Obliga- tions issued u ader Federal Farm Loan Act	Liberty 3½ percent bonds, Treasury notes, Treasury bills, and Treasury certificates of indebt- edness 3	Total	Liberty 4 and 414 percent bonds and Treasury bonds 5	Obliga- tions of certain instru- mentali- ties of the United States ⁶
5-6	11, 490	7, 839	5, 722	852	1, 265	3, 650	3, 454	197
6-7	9, 160	6,028	4,545	675	808	3, 132	2,968	164
7-8	9,014	6, 428	5, 071	546	811	2, 586	2, 459	127
8-9	7, 409	5, 252	4, 147	397	707	2, 156	2, 027	129
9-10	7, 410	5, 569	4,060	468	1,040	1,842	1, 764	78
10-11	6, 289	4, 505	3, 267	426	812	1,784	1,720	64
11-12	6, 455	4,807	3, 701	453	654	1, 649	1, 554	95
12-13	5, 676	4, 115	3,003	486	627	1, 561	1,473	87
13-14	5, 865 5, 910	4, 520	3, 436	344	739	1, 346	1, 248	97 57
14-15 15-20	23, 594	4, 745 18, 973	3, 688 14, 079	432 1, 697	$\frac{626}{3,197}$	1, 164 4, 621	1, 107 4, 370	251
20-25	25, 594 17, 859	14,810	11, 419	1, 1097	2, 282	3, 049	2, 936	113
25-30	15, 943	13, 510	10, 457	1, 115	1, 939	2, 433	2, 326	107
30-40	24, 628	21, 281	16, 658	1, 595	3,028	2, 747	2,636	iii
40-50	18, 648	16, 986	13, 203	1, 289	2, 494	1, 662	1, 565	97
50-60	14, 051	13, 019	10, 474	845	1, 700	1,032	1,005	27
60-70	9, 387	8, 544	6,652	551	1, 341	843	801	42
70-80	9, 895	9, 475	7,032	678	1, 766	420	408	11
80-90	7, 755	7, 310	5, 513	433	1,364	445	436	_8
90-100	5, 203	4,894	3,910	398	585	308	233	75
100-150	17,014	16,078	12, 500	1,079	2,499	936	896	39 20
150-200 200-250	10, 139 7, 213	9, 800 7, 036	7, 629 5, 350	369 278	1,802 1,408	339 177	319 175	20
250-300	4,084	3, 787	2,800	188	799	297	272	25
300-400	3, 219	3, 115	2,370	98	647	104	101	3
400-500	2, 382	2, 203	1,648	81	474	179	179	ď
500-750	6, 928	6, 863	5, 437	112	1, 313	65	58	7
750-1,000	4, 545	4, 544	3, 266	181	1,097	ĭ	ĭ	
1,000-1,500	2,824	2,819	1,580	13	1, 226	5	5	
1,500-2,000	267	251	170	14	67	16	16	
2,000-3,000	1,095	1,056	588	42	427	39	39	
3,000-4,000	443	443	389	31	23			
4,000-5,000							[
5,000 and over	12, 418	12, 418	1, 342		11,076			
Total	293, 609	253, 023	185, 106	17, 275	50, 642	40, 586	38, 551	2, 035

² Total amount received or accrued during the year.

³ Includes other obligations of the United States issued on or before Sept. 1, 1917.

⁵ Includes interest received on a principal amount not in excess of \$5,000 which is wholly exempt from income taxes. (See line (e), column 3, schedule D, form 1040, p. 126.) The amount of interest received on a principal amount in excess of exemption of \$5,000 which is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000 is included in the item "Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax" in the text table on p. 12 and basic table 7 on pp. 71-74.

⁶ Includes interest received on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than obligations size and under Federal Farm Loan Act to resuch act as amended. (See line (f), column 3, schedule D, form

issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended. (See line (f), column 3, schedule D, form 1040, p. 126.) The amount of interest received which is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000 is included in the item "Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax" in the text table on p. 12 and in basic table 7 on pp. 71-74.

For the preceding table, "Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations reported in individual returns for 1934 with net income of \$5,000 and over," etc., it was necessary this year, due to the arrangement of the kinds of obligations in schedule D on form 1040 (see p. 126), to tabulate "Obligations of United States possessions" with "Obligations of States and Territories or political subdivisions thereof," instead of with "Obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act," as in 1933. Also, the partially tax-exempt obligations of the Federal Government are tabulated in two parts, as follows: "Liberty 4 and 4½ percent bonds and Treasury bonds" and "Obligations of instrumentalities of the United States other than obligations issued under Federal Farm Loan Act, or such act as amended."

RETURNS ON FORM 1040 WITH NO NET INCOME (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

As noted on page 2, the general tables for individual returns in the Statistics of Income do not include data for returns which show no net income. Such returns are filed in accordance with the statutory requirements that every individual with gross income of \$5,000 and over, irrespective of the amount of net income or deficit, file an income tax return. Tabulations prepared from these returns by deficit classes and by sources of income and deductions are shown below. The distribution of the returns by States and Territories and more detailed tabulation of the sources of income and deductions, by deficit classes, are shown in basic tables 10 and 11, pages 106–107.

Individual returns for 1934 on form 1040 with no net income, by deficit classes, showing number of returns, deficit, and totals for 1930 to 1934

[Money figures and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

Deficit classes	Number of returns	Deficit
Under 5. 5-10. 10-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-150. 150-300. 300-500. 500-1,000. 1,000 and over.	7, 677 4, 643 1, 425 589 171 144 31	112, 31; 53, 59; 70, 24; 49, 31; 40, 24; 20, 79; 29, 49; 11, 40; 11, 43; 14, 02;
Total 1934	168, 449 206, 293 184, 583	412, 85 1, 141, 33 1, 480, 92 1, 936, 87 1, 539, 45

Individual returns for 1934 on form 1040 with no net income, showing sources of income and deductions 1

Sources of income and deductions	Amount (thou- sands of dollars)
Sources of income; Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc Business profit Partnership profit 2 Net capital gain 3.	30, 808 12, 137 17, 746
Rents and royalties. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations. Fiduciary ² Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax ⁴ Other taxable interest. Other income	75, 078 8, 552 2, 224
Total income	344, 055
Business loss Partnership loss ² . Net capital loss ³ . Interest paid ⁵ . Taxes paid ⁵ . Contributions. All other	42, 943 27, 274 88, 538 64, 143 6, 994 396, 499
Total deductions	756, 914 412, 859

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-5.

5 Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.

NUMBER OF RETURNS BY COUNTIES, CITIES, AND TOWNS (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

The statistics showing the number of individual income tax returns for 1934, by counties, cities, and towns having a population of 1,000 and over, are issued in a separate mimeographed bulletin entitled "Individual Income Tax Returns for 1934—Number of Returns by States, by Counties, and by Cities and Towns," which was released in May, 1936. Copies may be secured from the Bureau of Internal Revenue, Washington, D. C., upon request. Information on net income and tax liability in individual income tax returns is not tabulated for smaller civil divisions than States and Territories.

PARTNERSHIP RETURNS OF INCOME

Partnership returns, except for the war excess-profits tax of 1917, are not subject to direct assessment. The partnership net income, whether distributed or not, or the net loss, is reported in the individual returns of the copartners according to their shares. A partnership return of income (form 1065, see p. 132) is, however, required to be filed.

<sup>See text, p. 8.
For explanation of changes in 1934 act affecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9,</sup>

and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.

4 Interest received on 4 and 4½ percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax if the surtax net

The number of partnership returns filed for 1917 to 1934, inclusive, is as follows:

Year:	Number	Year:	Number
1917	31, 701	1926	
1918	100, 728	1927	
1919	175, 898	1928	272, 127
1920	240, 767	1929	263, 519
1921	259, 359	1930	244, 670
1922	287, 959	1931	230, 407
1923	304, 996	1932	216, 712
1924	321, 158	1933	214, 881
1925	309, 414	1934	221, 740

HISTORICAL SUMMARIES (INDIVIDUAL RETURNS)

A résumé of the individual income tax returns for each of the years since the inception of the present period of income taxation, showing number of returns, net income, and tax, by net income classes, also sources of income and deductions, is shown in the following tables.

Individual returns by States and Territories for the years 1924 to 1934, showing number, net income, and tax, are tabulated as a section of basic table 9, pages 81 to 105.

Individual returns for 1913 to 1934, showing number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and tax 1

Monor	Ganzos	:	thousands	∧£	dollard	
Money	ngures	m	tnousanas	OI	dollars	

Yea r				Percent	of total	Net income	
	Total	Taxable	Nontaxable	Tax- able	Non- taxable		
1913 1914 1915 1918 1919 1917 1918 1919 1920 1922 1923 1922 1923 1924 1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931	336, 652 437, 036 3, 472, 890 4, 425, 114 5, 332, 760 7, 259, 944 6, 662, 176 6, 787, 481 7, 369, 788 4, 171, 051 4, 138, 092 4, 101, 547 4, 070, 851 4, 041, 327 3, 707, 509 3, 225, 924	362, 970 2, 707, 234 3, 392, 863 4, 231, 181 5, 518, 310 3, 589, 985 4, 270, 121 4, 489, 698 2, 501, 166 2, 470, 990 2, 440, 941 2, 523, 063 2, 458, 049 2, 037, 645 1, 525, 546 1, 936, 095 1, 747, 740	74, 066 765, 656 1, 032, 251 1, 101, 579 1, 741, 634 3, 072, 191 3, 106, 232 3, 428, 200 1, 669, 885 1, 667, 102 1, 669, 664 1, 566, 278 1, 669, 864 1, 700, 378 1, 941, 335 1, 975, 818 2, 298, 500	83 78 77 79 76 54 55 61 60 60 60 69 61 61 47	177 222 233 221 24 466 45 339 40 401 39 39 45 53 50 53	3, 900, 000 4, 600, 000 4, 600, 000 6, 298, 578 13, 652, 383 15, 924, 639 19, 859, 491 23, 735, 629 19, 577, 231 21, 336, 213 24, 777, 466 25, 656, 163 21, 894, 576 21, 958, 500 22, 545, 091 25, 226, 327 28, 800, 736 18, 118, 635, 757 11, 003, 638 12, 796, 802	

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119. Returns for 1913 pertain to the last 10 months of that year; taxes shown for 1913 to 1915, inclusive, are receipts for fiscal year ended June 30, immediately following, as shown in annual reports of Commissioner of Internal Revenue, which receipts include fines, penalties, additional assessments, etc.; tax for 1916 and subsequent years is amount reported on returns.

² Revised figures. (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28-29.)

Individual returns for 1913 to 1934, showing number of returns, net income, tax before tax credits, tax credits, and tax 1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Tax befor	e tax credit	s		Tax credits	3	
Year	Normal tax	Surtax	Tax on capital net gain, 12½ per- cent	Total	25 percent of tax on earned net income 2	12½ percent on capital net loss from sale of assets held more than 2 years	Total	Тах
1913 1914 1915 1916 1917 1918 1919 1920 1922 1923 1923 1924 1925 1925 1926 1927 1928 1928 1929 1930 1930 1931 1932	12, 729 16, 559 23, 996 51, 441 156, 897 476, 433 468, 105 478, 250 308, 059 355, 410 378, 388 257, 795 216, 360 200, 599 215, 817 281, 895 162, 332 129, 475 82, 302 156, 606 164, 277 123, 261	15, 525 24, 487 43, 948 121, 948 433, 346 651, 289 801, 525 566, 804 411, 327 474, 581 444, 918 437, 541 422, 853 448, 330 511, 731 688, 825 82, 393 316, 816 186, 078 299, 232 244, 307 388, 139	31, 066 38, 916 48, 603 117, 571 112, 510 134, 034 233, 451 284, 654 65, 422 19, 423 6, 039 16, 435	28, 254 41, 046 67, 944 173, 387 4 795, 381 1, 127, 722 1, 269, 630 1, 075, 054 719, 387 861, 057 882, 222 743, 939 766, 784 761, 440 861, 582 1, 204, 170 1, 029, 379 511, 713 287, 803 401, 877 425, 019		9, 036 7, 659 4, 322 6, 028 5, 126 5, 378 10, 112 24, 185 71, 915 50, 899		28, 254 41, 046 67, 944 173, 387 4 795, 381 1, 127, 722 1, 269, 630 1, 075, 054 719, 387 861, 057 661, 665 734, 555 732, 475 830, 639 1, 164, 254 1, 001, 938 476, 715 246, 127 329, 962 374, 120 511, 400

 2 See limit of credit on p. 115, footnote 6(g). 3 Revised figures. (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28–29.) 4 Includes war excess-profits taxes of \$101,249,781 on individuals and of \$103,887,984 on partnerships. 5 25 percent reduction provided for in sec. 1200 (a) of Revenue Act of 1924.

Number of individual returns for 1914 to 1934, by net income classes 1

Net income classes (thousands of dollars)	1914	1915	1916	1917	1918	1919	1920
Under 1							
1-2				1, 640, 758	1, 516, 938	1, 924, 872	2,671,950
2-3				838, 707	1, 496, 878	1, 569, 741	2, 569, 316
3-5	149, 279	127, 994	157, 149	560, 763	932, 336	1, 180, 488	1, 337, 116
5-10	127, 448	120, 402	150, 553	270,666	319, 356	438, 851	455, 442
10-25	58, 603	60, 284	80, 880	112, 502	116, 569	162, 485	171, 830
25-50	14, 676	17, 301	23, 734	30, 391	28, 542	37, 477	38, 548
50-100	5, 161	6, 847	10, 452	12, 439	9, 996	13, 320	12,093
100-150	1, 189	1, 793	2,900	3, 302	2, 358	2, 983	2, 191
150-300	769	1,326	2, 437	2, 347	1, 514	1,864	1,063
300-500	216	376	714	559	382	425	239
500-1,000	114	209	376	315	178	189	123
1,000 and over	60	120	206	141	67	65	33
Total	357, 515	336, 652	2 429, 401	3, 472, 890	4, 425, 114	5, 332, 760	7, 259, 944

For footnotes see p. 24.

Number of individual returns for 1914 to 1934, by net income classes 1—Contd.

Net income classes (thousands of dollars)	1921	1922	1923 3	1924	1925	1926	1927
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3 3-5 5-10 10-25 -25-50 -50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 -50-1,000 1,000 and over	739 162 63	402, 076 2, 471, 181 2, 129, 898 1, 190, 115 391, 373 151, 329 35, 478 12, 000 2, 171 1, 323 309 161 67	368, 502 2, 523, 150 2, 472, 641 1, 719, 625 387, 842 170, 005 38, 832 12, 452 2, 339 1, 301 327 141 74	344, 876 2, 413, 881 2, 112, 993 1, 800, 900 437, 330 191, 216 47, 061 15, 816 3, 065 1, 876 457 242 75	98, 178 1, 071, 992 842, 528 1, 327, 683 503, 652 236, 779 59, 721 20, 958 4, 759 3, 223 892 479 207	119, 513 1, 045, 519 837, 792 1, 240, 400 560, 549 246, 730 57, 487 20, 520 4, 724 3, 267 892 468 231	126, 745 996, 098 855, 762 1, 209, 345 567, 700 252, 079 60, 123 22, 573 5, 261 3, 873 1, 141 557 290
Total	6, 662, 176	6, 787, 481	7, 698, 321	7, 369, 788	4, 171, 051	4, 138, 092	4, 101, 547
Net income classes (thousands of dollars)	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933	1934
Under 1	111, 123 918, 447 837, 781 1, 192, 613 628, 766	126, 172 903, 082 810, 347 1, 172, 655 658, 039	150, 000 909, 155 767, 684 1, 070, 239 550, 977	185, 391 862, 153 675, 019 912, 630 417, 655	359, 688 1, 489, 589 967, 956 703, 755 251, 014	397, 676 1, 480, 717 914, 198 599, 075 229, 754	320, 460 1, 608, 095 980, 682 762, 536 290, 824
25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	7, 049 5, 678 1, 756 983	271, 454 63, 689 24, 073 6, 376 5, 310 1, 641 976 513	198, 762 40, 845 13, 645 3, 111 2, 071 552 318 150	137, 754 24, 308 7, 830 1, 634 1, 056 268 149 77	79, 210 18, 480 5, 902 995 595 140 86 20	75, 643 18, 423 6, 021 1, 084 695 141 81 50	102, 892 20, 931 6, 093 982 690 116 86

Net income in individual returns for 1916 to 1934, by net income classes 1

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes	1916	1917	1918	1919	1920	1921	1922
Under 1						213, 850	247, 564
1-2		2, 461, 137	2, 232, 355	2, 829, 113	4, 050, 067	3, 620, 762	3, 630, 571
2-3	624, 669	2, 064, 977 2, 115, 865	3, 626, 825 3, 535, 219	3, 807, 286 4, 513, 264	6, 184, 543 5, 039, 607	5, 325, 931 4, 054, 891	5, 153, 497 4, 500, 558
5-10	1, 037, 248	1, 827, 508	2, 145, 690	2, 954, 137	3, 068, 331	2, 378, 759	2, 641, 905
10-25 25-50	1, 235, 016 822, 662	1, 687, 166 1, 042, 320	1, 736, 548 978, 043	2, 412, 276 1, 277, 365	2, 547, 905 1, 307, 785	1, 958, 156 979, 629	$ \begin{array}{c c} 2,255,872\\ 1,208,274 \end{array} $
50-100		846, 894	679, 721	896, 497	810, 386	582, 230	805, 224
100-150		400, 492	284, 107	358, 393	265, 512	163, 521	260, 204
150-300 300-500	505, 859 271, 938	474, 652 209, 905	305, 025 144, 545	371, 149 159, 071	215, 139 89, 314	145, 948 61, 343	266, 814 116, 672
500-1, 000	256, 771	214, 631	119,076	128, 290	79, 963	42, 780	107, 671
1,000 and over	464, 264	306, 836	137, 487	152, 650	77, 078	49, 411	141, 387
Total	6, 298, 578	13, 652, 383	15, 924, 639	19, 859, 491	23, 735, 629	19, 577, 213	21, 336, 213

For footnotes see p. 25.

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119. The returns for 1913 are omitted, as they pertain only to the last 10 months of that year.
² Excludes 7,635 returns of married women making separate returns from husbands. In 1916 the net income on returns filed separately by husband and wife is combined and the total appears as one return. In all other years the returns of married women filed separately are included in their individual income classes independently of the husband's income.
³ Revised figures. (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28-29.)

Net income in individual returns for 1916 to 1934, by net income classes 1—Contd.

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes	1923 ²	1924	1925	1926	1927	1928
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-5. 5-10. 10-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-150. 150-300. 300-500. 500-1,000.	1, 350, 680 833, 898 280, 656 260, 584 124, 569 95, 107	235, 452 3, 564, 474 5, 277, 147 6, 827, 924 2, 991, 188 2, 855, 397 1, 599, 848 1, 066, 784 377, 645 374, 609 171, 249 158, 462 155, 974	58, 306 1, 774, 602 2, 047, 970 5, 236, 003 3, 463, 852 3, 544, 898 2, 032, 239 1, 418, 948 572, 860 655, 300 339, 774 327, 368 422, 457	67, 238 1, 747, 917 2, 042, 903 4, 872, 789 3, 838, 953 3, 660, 622 1, 954, 653 1, 389, 339 570, 190 661, 412 340, 214 317, 881 494, 394	72, 231 1, 645, 576 2, 062, 276 4, 700, 816 3, 895, 759 3, 748, 088 2, 051, 771 1, 535, 387 636, 019 787, 270 431, 122 378, 167 600, 641	64, 535 1, 526, 832 2, 030, 901 4, 648, 698 4, 282, 520 4, 037, 853 2, 326, 503 1, 857, 878 850, 451 1, 157, 131 663, 900 670, 863
Total	24, 777, 466	25, 656, 153	21, 894, 576	21, 958, 506	22, 545, 091	25, 226, 327
Net income classes	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933	1934
Under 1. 1-2 2-3 3-5 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over.	73, 742 1, 499, 908 1, 958, 595 4, 772, 596 4, 481, 576 4, 025, 233 2, 774, 458 1, 646, 476 770, 536 1, 087, 410 628, 229 669, 878 1, 212, 099	86, 892 1, 494, 526 1, 864, 162 4, 151, 967 3, 723, 763 2, 922, 750 1, 383, 619 919, 040 374, 171 419, 016 207, 131 211, 693 359, 905	106, 622 1, 399, 430 1, 641, 594 3, 515, 716 2, 807, 001 2, 006, 721 820, 648 528, 049 196, 598 212, 059 102, 311 166, 060	231, 140 2, 145, 834 2, 437, 251 2, 597, 763 1, 677, 039 1, 160, 398 629, 639 393, 206 119, 896 118, 008 52, 469 57, 874 35, 240	264, 784 2, 693, 292 2, 295, 586 2, 207, 458 1, 537, 875 1, 112, 086 630, 005 401, 040 129, 159 139, 215 54, 570 86, 857	211, 113 2, 277, 726 2, 467, 851 2, 839, 348 1, 952, 891 1, 513, 592 708, 530 406, 97 117, 744 140, 960 43, 832 59, 464 57, 775
Total	24, 800, 736	18, 118, 635	13, 604, 996	11, 655, 757	11, 008, 638	12, 796, 802

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119. Data for returns of net income under \$5,000 estimated on basis of sample for 1918 to 1927 and 1929; and partly estimated and partly tabulated 1928, 1930, and following years.

² Revised figures. (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28-29.)

Tax in individual returns for 1916 to 1934, by net income classes ¹
[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes	1916	1917	1918	1919	1920		1921	1922
Under 1							174	247
1-2		16, 244	26, 482	24, 69	6 36.	860	29, 161	27, 081
2-3		9, 097	35, 415	28, 25			20, 712	20, 730
3-5		18, 283	82, 929	75, 91			42, 744	47, 533
5-10	6, 301	44, 066	93, 058	91, 53			68, 871	70, 388
10-25	11, 637	80, 695	142, 449	164, 83			126, 886	123, 576
25-50	11, 603	76, 593	130, 241	154, 94			112, 910	125, 697
50-100	16, 299	85, 028	147, 429	186, 358			115, 712	144, 093
100-150	12, 423	55, 766	95, 680	118, 70			52, 330	71, 337
150-300	24, 007	86, 718	136, 156	163, 09			61, 496	
300-500	17, 951	50, 228	79, 165	86, 03			31, 860	43, 488
500-1,000	20, 902	59, 349	69, 834	76, 22	8 45,		25, 112	38, 559
1,000 and over	51, 487	109, 425	88, 885	99, 02			31, 420	
1,000 and Over	01, 107	100, 120	00,000	33,02	13,	100	01, 120	10,010
Total	173, 387	691, 493	1,127,722	1, 269, 630	0 1,075,	054	719, 387	861,057
Net income classes	1923 2	1924	1925	1926	1927		1928	1929
Under 1	317	146	69	56	40		60	17
1-2				1, 761	1, 234	}	1,550	553
2-3	16, 606			4, 217	3, 970	ì	4, 317	1, 404
2 5	46, 048		8, 326	7, 245	6, 508	ļ	7, 475	2, 413
3-5			19, 149	20, 272	20, 665	l	22, 896	9, 551
5-10	103, 109		74, 172	72, 465	74, 226		82, 758	59, 893
10-25				112, 797	119, 475	ĺ	136, 568	113, 904
25-50		109, 360			156, 675		194, 447	160, 814
50-100	108, 879		147, 843	140,947				99, 560
100-150	55, 719		79, 472	77, 900	87, 398		116, 855	
150-300	62, 104		103, 059	103, 997	123, 776		182, 514	159, 221
300-500			55, 722	55, 256	73, 750		113, 250	97, 336
500-1,000			53, 674	53, 665	64,265		116, 424	106, 219
1,000 and over	_ 35, 788	47, 207	66, 867	81, 893	98, 657	1	185, 140	191,054
Total	661, 666	704, 265	734, 555	732, 471	830, 639	1,	164, 254	1,001,938

For footnotes see p. 26.

Tax in individual returns for 1916 to 1934, by net income classes 1—Contd.

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

Net income classes	1930	1931	1932	1933	1934
Under 1	37	24 943	103	97	111
1–2 2–3	3, 310	2, 466	12, 254 9, 822	10, 345 7, 710	8, 659 7, 567
3–5 5–10		3,832 12,407	20, 895 35, 615	18, 397 35, 077	18, 349 43, 086
10-25	49, 561	31, 897	50, 150	54, 977	83, 960
25-50 50-100		40,096 44.780	43, 546 47, 150	52, 355 57, 491	84, 907 84, 792
100-150	48, 749	23, 135 28, 793	24, 469 31, 912	30, 369 40, 412	38, 166
15 0-300	33, 053	15, 411	18, 554	17, 910	57, 995 20, 854
500-1,000 1.000 and over	34, 289	15, 457 26, 886	19, 016 16, 476	21, 221 27, 759	30, 745 32, 211
Total		246, 127	329, 962	374, 120	511, 400

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119. Data for returns of net income under \$5,000 estimated on basis of sample for 1918 to 1927 and 1929; and partly estimated and partly tabulated 1928, 1930, and following years

years.

² Revised figures. (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28-29.)

Average rate of tax on net income in individual returns for 1916 to 1934, by net income classes ¹

Net income cla		1916	1917	1918	1919	1920	1921	1922	1923	1924		
(thousands of do	llars)		Percent									
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3 3-5 5-10 10-25 5-50 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over.		0. 12 .61 .94 1. 41 2. 25 3. 48 4. 75 6. 60 8. 14 11. 09	0. 66 . 44 . 86 2. 41 4. 78 7. 34 10. 04 13. 92 18. 27 23. 93 27. 63 35. 65	1, 19 , 98 2, 35 4, 34 8, 20 13, 32 21, 69 33, 68 44, 64 54, 77 58, 65 64, 65	0.87 .74 1.68 3.10 6.83 12.13 20.79 33.12 43.94 54.08 59.42 64.87	0. 91 . 74 1. 66 3. 19 6. 76 11. 80 20. 20 32. 61 43. 04 52. 67 57. 08 63. 81	0.08 .81 .39 1.05 2.90 6.48 11.53 19.87 32.00 42.14 51.94 58.70 63.59	0. 10 .75 .40 1. 06 2. 66 5. 48 10. 40 17. 89 27. 42 37. 03 37. 27 35. 81 35. 02	0. 13 . 49 . 27 . 71 2. 04 4. 06 7. 67 13. 06 19. 85 23. 83 25. 42 26. 81 23. 53	0. 06 . 29 . 19 . 39 . 96 2. 73 6. 84 12. 81 20. 04 24. 69 26. 73 26. 87 30. 27		
All returns		2, 75	5.06	7.08	6. 39	4. 53	3. 67	4.04	2. 67	2. 74		
Net income classes (thousands of	1925	1926	1927	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933	1934		
dollars)		Percent										
Under 1	0. 12 . 10 . 19 . 16 . 55 2. 09 4 10. 42 13. 87 15. 73 16. 40 16. 39 15. 83	0.08 .10 .21 .15 .52 1.98 5.77 10.14 13.66 15.72 16.24 16.88 16.56	0.06 .07 .19 .14 .53 1.98 5.82 10.20 13.74 15.72 17.11 16.99 16.42	0. 09 . 10 . 21 . 16 . 53 2. 05 5. 87 10. 47 15. 77 17. 06 17. 35 16. 70	0. 02 . 04 . 07 . 05 . 21 1. 49 5. 24 9. 77 12. 92 14. 64 15. 49 15. 86 15. 76	0. 04 . 08 . 18 . 13 . 47 1. 70 5. 25 9. 51 13. 03 14. 91 15. 96 16. 20 16. 98	0. 02 .07 .15 .11 .44 1. 59 4. 89 8. 48 11. 77 13. 58 15. 08 15. 11 16. 19	0. 04 . 57 . 40 . 80 2. 12 4. 32 6. 92 11. 99 20. 41 27. 04 35. 36 32. 86 46. 75	0. 04 . 49 . 34 . 83 2. 28 4. 94 8. 31 14. 34 23. 51 29. 03 32. 82 37. 43 31. 96	0. 05 . 38 . 31 . 65 2. 21 5. 55 11. 98 20. 89 32. 41 41. 14 47. 58 51. 70 55. 75		

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112–119. Data for returns of net income under \$5,000 esti nated, based on sample for years 1918 to 1927 and 1929; and partly estimated and partly tabulated 1928, 1930, and following years.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1916 to 1934 ¹ [Thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1916	1917 2	1918	1919	1920	1921
Income:						
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc. 3 Business 4 Partnership 5 Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as cap	1, 851, 277 2, 637, 475	3, 648, 438 2, 865, 413 775, 087	8, 267, 392 3, 124, 355 1, 214, 914	10, 755, 693 3, 877, 550 1, 831, 430	15, 270, 373 3, 205, 555 1, 701, 229	13, 813, 169 2, 366, 319 1, 341, 186
ital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 year ⁶ Capital net gain from sale of assets held more than		318, 171	291, 186	999, 364	1, 020, 543	462, 859
2 years 7 Rents and royalties	643, 803	684, 343	975, 680	1,019,094	1, 047, 424	1, 177, 958
Dividends on stock of do- mestic corporations 8 Fiduciary 9	2, 136, 469 379, 795	2, 848, 842	2, 468, 749	2, 453, 775	2, 735, 846	2, 476, 952
Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax ¹⁰				63, 377	61, 550	46, 994
Interest and other in- come 11	701, 084	936, 715	1, 403, 486	1, 437, 402	1, 647, 750	1, 643, 344
Total income	8, 349, 902	12, 077, 009	17, 745, 761	22, 437, 686	26, 690, 270	23, 328, 782
Deductions: Contributions 12All other	2, 051, 324	245, 080 640, 683	1, 821, 122	2, 578, 194	387, 290 2, 567, 351	3, 751, 569
Total deductions	2, 051, 324	885, 763	1, 821, 122	2, 578, 194	2, 954, 641	3, 751, 569
Net income	6, 298, 578	11, 191, 246	15, 924, 639	19, 859, 491	23, 735, 629	19, 577, 213
Distribution	1922	1923 13	1924	1925	1926	1927
Income: Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.3 Business 4 Partnership 5 Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as	13, 693, 993 2, 839, 771 1, 427, 127	14, 195, 356 4, 722, 766 1, 676, 409	13, 617, 663 4, 755, 483 1, 810, 014	9, 742, 160 3, 688, 804 1, 827, 025	9, 994, 315 3, 572, 895 1, 732, 581	10, 218, 450 3, 287, 421 1, 755, 145
capital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 years ⁶	742, 104	863, 107	1, 124, 566	1, 991, 659	1, 465, 625	1, 813, 396
2 years 7	249, 248 1, 224, 929	305, 394 1, 814, 126	389, 148 2, 009, 716	940, 569 1, 471, 332	912, 917 1, 450, 760	1, 081, 186 1, 302, 276
mestic corporations 8 Fiduciary 9 Interest on Government obligations not wholly	2, 664, 219 257, 928	3, 119, 829 329, 124	3, 250, 914 310, 144	3, 464, 625 305, 806	4, 011, 590 333, 365	4, 254, 829 421, 481
exempt from tax ¹⁰ Other taxable interest ¹¹ Other income ¹¹	33, 989 } 1, 738, 601	43, 711 2, 177, 771	29, 645 2, 281, 703	25, 651 1, 814, 402	36, 782 1, 936, 604	47, 479 1, 675, 916 350, 981
Total income	24, 871, 908	29, 247, 593	29, 578, 997	25, 272, 035	25, 447, 436	26, 208, 561
Deductions: Net loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than reported for tax credit on capital net loss from sale of assets held more then 2 weers less.					178, 216	227,879
than 2 years ¹⁴	425, 218 3, 110, 478	534, 797 3, 935, 330	533, 168 3, 389, 675	441, 590 2, 935, 868	484, 205 2, 826, 509	507, 705 2, 927, 886
Total deductions	3, 535, 696	4, 470, 127	3, 922, 843	3, 377, 458	3, 488, 930	3, 663, 470
Net income	21, 336, 213	24, 777, 466	25, 656, 153	21, 894, 576	21, 958, 506	22, 545, 091

For footnotes see p. 31.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1916 to 1934—Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1928	1929 18	1930	1931	1932	1933
Income:						
Salaries, wages, commis- sions, fees, etc.3	10 869 221	11 172 060	0.001.059	0 20E 160	0 120 717	7 200 250
Business 4	10, 862, 331 3, 243, 955	11, 173, 068 3, 327, 989	9, 921, 952 2, 628, 057 1, 089, 646	8, 325, 162 1, 889, 759	8, 136, 717 1, 294, 952 482, 863	7, 390, 356 1, 402, 923
Partnership 5	1, 929, 520	1, 846, 431	1, 089, 646	729, 523	482, 863	1, 402, 923 603, 725
Profit from sale of real		1				
estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed		İ				
as capital net gain from		1	ļ			
sale of assets held more	2, 928, 142	2, 335, 898	636, 738	201 664	110 014	410 50
than 2 years 6 Capital net gain from sale	2, 920, 142	2, 000, 000	000,700	301, 664	112, 814	419, 591
of assets held more than						
2 years 7 Rents and royalties	1, 164, 518	2, 346, 704 1, 278, 757	556, 392 974, 325	169, 949 770, 764	50, 074 529, 989	133, 616 447, 883
Dividends on stock of	· ·			,	· ·	431,000
domestic corporations 8.	4, 350, 979	4, 783, 240	4, 197, 304	3, 113, 861	1, 972, 133	1, 559, 046
Fiduciary Interest on Government	443, 998	508, 221	429, 459	369, 140	310, 949	276, 067
obligations not wholly		1				
exempt from tax 10	40, 553	40, 184	38, 134	25, 325 1, 337, 606	29, 188	31, 689
Other taxable interest 11 Other income 11	1, 841, 818 302, 040	40, 184 1, 908, 030 296, 235	38, 134 1, 608, 434 332, 004	235, 696	29, 188 1, 141, 799 330, 602	31, 689 961, 732 167, 197
Total income	28, 987, 634	29, 844, 758	22, 412, 446	17, 268, 451	14, 392. 080	13, 393, 825
Deductions:		!				
Net loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds,		1	1)
etc., other than re-					į	
ported for tax credit on capital net less from		1				
sale of assets held more	ļ			i	}	}
than 2 years 14	171, 743	994, 665	1, 232, 776	1, 160, 765	375, 445	365, 782 61, 985
Net loss from business 15_ Net loss from partner-	l	}	172, 538	134, 685	112, 659	61, 985 30, 435
shin 15			112,000	101, 000	112,003	507, 520
Interest paid 16 Taxes paid 16	}		 		 	506, 258
Contributions 12	532,886	527, 093	424, 771	328, 300	304,009	252, 251 660, 956
All other	3, 056, 679	3, 522, 265	2, 463, 726	2, 039, 705	1, 944, 209	660, 956
Total deductions	3, 761, 308	5, 044, 023	4, 293, 811	3, 663, 455	2, 736, 323	2, 385, 187
Net income	25, 226, 327	24, 800, 736	18, 118, 635	13, 604, 996	11, 655, 757	11, 008, 638
	Di	istribution				1934
						
Income:	ma food oto	•				8, 600, 455
Salaries, wages, commission Business profit 4						1, 716, 842
Partnership profit 5. Net capital gain 17. Rents and royalties. Dividends on stock of don						631, 915
Net capital gain 17					· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	211, 319 509, 844
Dividends on stock of don	estic corpora	ations 8				1, 965, 670
Fiduciary Landscape Interest on Government o						288, 730
Other taxable interest "	bligations no	ot wnony exe	mpt irom ta	X 10		38, 044
Other income 11						909, 231 220, 910
Total income					. 	15, 092. 960
Deductions:						
Business loss 15						63, 885
Partnership loss 15. Net capital loss 17.						29, 004 183, 762
Interest paid ¹⁶ Taxes paid ¹⁶ Contributions ¹²						517, 217
Taxes paid 16.						541, 191
All other						272, 822 688, 277
Total deductions				•••••		2, 296, 158
Net income						12, 796, 802

For footnotes see p. 31.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1916 to 1934, of net income of \$5,000 and over $^{\rm I}$

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	•	19	1916		7	1918		1919	1920	1921
Number of returns		19272	2, 252	432,	662	478, 9	62	657, 65	9 681, 562	525, 606
fees, etc.3. Business 4. Parnership 5. Profit from sale of real estocks, bonds, etc., than taxed as capital gain from sale of assets more than 2 years 6.	Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.3. Business 4. Parnership 5 Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 years 6. Capital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 years 7. Rents and royalties. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations 8. Fiduciary 4. Interest on Government obli-		3, 329 5, 905	1, 794, 1, 062, 581,	772 708	2, 103, 8 1, 148, 2 913, 8	97 53	2, 948, 00 1, 743, 80 1, 426, 07	0 1,398,069 2 1,261,899	816, 040
assets held more the			-112	213-			=:-			
Dividends on stock of do tic corporations 8 Fiduciary 9 Interest on Government			5, 742 3, 428 5, 326	340, 2, 648,		386, 4 2, 133, 2		445, 70 2, 128, 29		1
gations not wholly ex- from tax 10		627	, 943	822,	480	799, 1	86	62, 57 876, 68	60, 432 7 847, 894	40, 281 732, 697
Total income		7, 393	, 672	7, 463,	702	7, 672, 2	43	10, 308, 41	10, 375, 561	7, 914, 635
Deductions: Contributions 12All other		1, 719	, 764	186, 271,	907 391	1, 142, 0	03	1, 598, 58	1, 914, 150	1, 552, 857
Total deductions		1,719		458, 297		1, 142, 0	03	1, 598, 58	1, 914, 150	1, 552, 857
Net income		5, 673	, 909	7, 010,	404	6, 530, 2	41	8, 709, 82	8, 461, 412	6, 361, 778
Distribution	19	22	19	923 13		1924		1925	1926	1927
Number of returnsIncome:	59	4, 211		25, 897		697, 138		830. 670	894, 868	913, 597
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.3 Business 4 Partnership 5 Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from sale of assets held more	1,01	3, 454 2, 440 8, 183	1,0	14, 006 57, 731 021, 851	1.	490, 916 290, 722 112, 710	1	, 033, 811 , 623, 638 , 422, 799	4, 363, 395 1, 738, 523 1, 329, 786	4, 524, 276 1, 704, 175 1, 354, 422
than 2 years 6 Capital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 years 7		0, 794 9, 248		58, 184 05, 394		770, 026 389, 148	1	, 723, 438 940, 569	1, 224, 278 912, 918	1, 511, 859 1, 081, 186
Rents and royalties Dividends on stock of	48	2, 189 3, 499	4	97, 624 35, 137		570, 427 617, 871	,	679, 569 , 045, 368	912, 918 689, 981 3, 581, 362	644, 302 3, 761, 910
domestic corporations s. Fiduciary s. Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from tax 10 Other taxable interest 11	19	7, 189 0, 962	2	33, 982 30, 465	Í	206, 972 29, 645		248, 163 25, 651	273, 252 36, 782	329, 351 47, 479 1, 115, 925
Other income 13	,	0, 935		64, 514		932, 324		, 084, 120	1, 217, 681	185, 099
Total income Deductions:	9, 33	8, 893	9,9	18,886	11,	410, 761	=14	, 827, 127	15, 367, 957	16, 259, 984
Net loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than reported for tax credit on capital net loss from sale of assets held more than									122, 409	136, 482
2 years ¹⁴ Contributions ¹² All other	21 1, 32	t, 863 3, 067	1, 3	38, 378 91, 835	1,	254, 072 405, 532		293, 401 , 756, 030	326, 511 1, 691, 377	353, 188 1, 706, 122
Total deductions		4,871		30, 214 88, 672		659, 605 751, 156		. 649, 431 . 777, 65 6	2, 140, 298 13, 227, 659	2, 195, 792 14, 064, 193
Net income	7,80	4,022	e, 2	co, 07Z	9,	(11, 100	12		10, 441, 009	14, 004, 193

For footnotes see p. 31.

88019-36-3

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1916 to 1934, of net income of \$5,000 and over 1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	·	,				
Distribution	1928	1929	1930	1931	1932	1933
Number of returns	1, 010, 887	1, 032, 071	810, 431	590, 731	356, 442	331, 892
Income: Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.3 Business 4 Partnership 5 Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds,	5, 008, 286 1, 772, 255 1, 583, 322	5, 179, 041 1, 836, 329 1, 497, 922	4, 407, 606 1, 215, 452 786, 931	3, 320, 028 766, 730 492, 147	2, 057, 254 354, 488 284, 624	1, 838, 646 393, 815 401, 931
etc., other than taxed as capital net gain from sale of assets held more than 2 years 6	2, 700, 557	2, 044, 058	527, 653	196, 574	71, 643	308, 711
of assets held more than 2 years 7 Rents and royalties Dividends on stock of	1, 879, 780 637, 371	2, 346, 704 649, 124	556, 392 479, 401	169, 949 306, 336	50, 074 160, 244	133, 616 124, 144
domestic corporations 8. Fiduciary 9. Interest on Government obligations not wholly	4, 009, 915 364, 889	4, 247, 031 422, 076	3, 708, 656 338, 400	2, 583, 674 280, 627	1, 540, 625 217, 610	1, 199, 867 182, 735
exempt from tax ¹⁰ Other taxable interest ¹¹ Other income ¹¹	40, 553 1, 230, 178 196, 111	40, 184 1, 257, 590 190, 110	38, 134 1, 018, 001 130, 191	25, 325 749, 345 120, 845	29, 188 536, 541 67, 353	31, 689 422, 731 69, 656
Total income	19, 423, 216	19, 710, 168	13, 206, 817	9, 011, 581	5, 369, 646	5, 107, 539
Deductions: Net loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc., other than reported for tax credit on capital net loss from sale of assets held more than 2						
years ¹⁴	129, 865 }	632, 693	947, 121 105, 219	813, 503 72, 125	174, 627 46, 972	152, 959 26, 792 15, 597 208, 311
Taxes paid ¹⁶ Contributions ¹² All other	390, 923 1, 946, 467	384, 458 1, 997, 123	286, 218 1, 347, 170	202, 979 981, 341	139, 846 764, 432	200, 078 111, 219 245, 065
Total deductions	2, 467, 255	3, 014, 274	2, 685, 728	2, 069, 948	1, 125, 878	960, 022
Net income	16, 955, 961	16, 695, 895	10, 521, 088	6, 941, 633	4, 243, 768	4, 147, 517

For footnotes see p. 31.

Sources of income and deductions, individual returns for 1916 to 1934, of net income of \$5,000 and over 1-Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Distribution	1934
Tumber of returns	422, 647
ncome:	
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.3	2, 300, 256
Business profit 4	
Partnership profit 5	438,066
Net capital gain 17	. 160, 218
Rents and royalties	165, 786
Dividends on stock of domestic corporations 8	. 1, 585, 042
Fiduciary •	203, 854
Interest on Government obligations not wholly excipt from tax 10	38, 044
Other taxable interest 11	
Other income 11	99, 226
Total income	6, 012, 662
Deductions:	
Business loss 15	29, 753
Partnership loss 15	15, 178
Net capital loss 17	
Interest paid 18	
Taxes paid 16	
Contributions 12.	
All other	282, 591
Total deductions	1, 011, 898
Net income	5, 000, 764

¹ Changes in the Revenue Acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119. The income items for 1916 are "Gross income," the deductions not having been allocated to the various sources but included in aggregate under "Deductions." Beginning 1917, deductions allowable against the various sources of income are applied against the gross income from the specific sources as reported on the schedules in the income tax returns and wherever net losses are shown on schedules, such net losses are transferred in tabulation to "Deductions," which also contain the other deductions included in the return under "Deductions." Data for returns of net income under \$5,000 estimated on basis of sample for years 1918 to 1927 and 1929; and partly estimated and partly tabulated 1928, 1930, and following years. Data for 1917 exclude 1,640,758 returns with net income under \$2,000 and aggregate net income of \$2,441,137,000. lated 1928, 1930, and following years. Data and aggregate net income of \$2,461,137,000.

² Excludes data for 1,640,758 returns with net income under \$2,000 and aggregate net income of \$2,461,-137,000.

³ Excludes such wages and salaries of the individual, his wife, or dependent minors derived from the business conducted by the individual. Prior to 1924 such wages and salaries were reported either as income under "Wages and salaries" or as part of income from "Business." Includes "Professions and vocations" in 1916.

See notes 3, 5, and 6.

See notes 3, 5, and 6.
Certain income from partnership included in other sources (see notes 7, 8, 10, and 11). In 1934, amount includes net capital gain and loss from sale of capital assets by partnerships (see note 17). Tabulated with "Business" in 1916. In 1918 to 1921, inclusive, the amount includes income of personal service corporations as defined in the Revenue Acts of 1918 and 1921 (except certain amounts included in other sources (see notes 8, 10, and 11) and of fiduciaries, as described in note 9).
Profit from sale of real estate, etc., included in "Business" in 1916.
Capital net gain of individuals, partnerships, and fiduciaries given special classification for taxation in 1922 to 1933, inclusive.
Includes dividends received by individuals, partnerships, fiduciaries, and personal service corporations.

**Registro of individuals, partnerships, and industaries given special classification for taxation in 1922 to 1933, inclusive.

**Includes dividends received by individuals, partnerships, fiduciaries, and personal service corporations (1918 to 1921, inclusive); includes stock dividends 1916 to 1919, inclusive.

**Certain income from fiduciaries included in other sources (see notes 7, 8, 10, 11). In 1934, amount included in "Interest and investment income"; in 1918 to 1921, inclusive, in "Partnerships."

**Interest on such obligations held by individuals, partnerships, fiduciaries, and personal service corporations (1919 to 1921, inclusive). In 1917 and 1918 amount included in "Interest and investment income."

**Includes all years, dividends of foreign corporations and income from all sources not reported elsewhere; includes interest on tax-free covenant bonds of individuals beginning 1917, and fiduciaries, 1917 to 1930, inclusive, of partnerships, beginning 1920, and of personal service corporations, 1920 and 1921; includes in 1917 and 1918 interest on Government bonds not wholly exempt from tax; in 1917 income of fiduciaries as described in note 9. "Other taxable interest" and "Other income" shown separately 1927 to 1934, inclusive.

Deductions (See Statistics of Income for 1925, pp. 28–29.)

**Included in "All other" deductions in 1917 to 1925, inclusive.

**Included in "All other" deductions in 1916 to 1922, inclusive.

**Included in "All other" deductions in 1916 to 1922, inclusive.

**Net capital gain or loss on sale of capital assets (regardless of time held) by individuals, after certain limitative are resided (see a 117, Bergardless of finite held) by individuals, after certain limitative are resided (see a 117, Bergardless of finite held) by individuals, after certain limitative are resided (see a 117, Bergardless of finite held) by individuals, after certain limitative are resided for the second of the finite of the second of the partners are included of the finite of the second of the finite of

Included in "All other" deductions in 1916 to 1932, inclusive.
In Net capital gain or loss on sale of capital assets (regardless of time held) by individuals, after certain limit tations are applied (see sec. 117, Revenue Act of 1934). Excludes net capital gain or loss on sale of capital assets by partnerships or for estates or trusts reported on lines 5 and 6, respectively, form 1040.
Is Revised figures. The revised figures for 1929 for State of North Dakota are as follows: Wages and salaries, \$16.210,666; business, \$10.598,582; partnership, \$3.391,625; profit from sale of real estate, etc., \$1,275,953; rents and royalties, \$1.998,393; dividends, \$1,804,455; fiduciary, \$169,042; interest and other income, \$2837,816; total income, \$38.307,729; net loss from sale of real estate, etc., \$266,206; contributions, \$590,660; all other deductions, \$6,253,613.
Is Exclusive of returns of married women making separate returns from busbands.

19 Exclusive of returns of married women making separate returns from husbands.

ESTATE TAX RETURNS

The data included in the following tables are from estate tax returns filed during the year ended December 31, 1935, irrespective of the date of death of the decedent. The major portion of these returns was filed under the combined provisions of the Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1934, for decedents dying from May 11, 1934, to August 30, 1935, inclusive. However, the provisions of earlier revenue acts apply to some of the returns, since under certain conditions extensions of time for filing are granted. Also, a few returns were filed under the combined provisions of the Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1935 for estates of decedents dying between August 31 and December 31, 1935.

A return is required in the case of every citizen, regardless of place of residence, or resident (only in the case of every resident if the decedent died prior to May 11, 1934, the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1934), whose gross estate, as defined in the statute, exceeded \$50,000 in value at the date of death, except that if the decedent died subsequent to the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1926 (Feb. 26, 1926), and prior to the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1932 (June 6, 1932), the return is required if the gross estate exceeded \$100,000 in value at the date of death. Under the Revenue Act of 1935, effective on or after August 31, 1935, a return is required for every citizen, regardless of place of residence, or resident, if the gross estate exceeded \$40,000 at date of death. A return is required in the case of every nonresident alien (or every nonresident citizen and alien if the decedent died prior to May 11, 1934, the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1934) any part of whose estate, regardless of value, was situated at date of death in the United States, within the meaning of the statute.

The estate tax is not an inheritance tax, the distinction being that the estate tax is based on an estate in its entirety rather than on the distributive shares. The tax is not imposed upon any particular legacy, devise, or distributive share, nor has the relationship of the

beneficiary to the decedent any bearing on the tax liability.

The gross estate as defined by the statute includes certain transfers, such as those made in contemplation of death or intended to take effect at or after death. The net estate is the amount of the gross estate less (1) the sum of the authorized deductions and (2) a specific exemption in the case of citizen or resident decedents (only in the case of resident decedents dying prior to the enactment of the Revenue Act of 1934).

Estates of decedents who died prior to February 26, 1926, are filed under revenue acts passed prior to that date and estates of decedents dying between February 26, 1926, and June 6, 1932 (the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1932), are filed under the Revenue Act of 1926. Estates of decedents dying subsequent to the effective date

of the Revenue Act of 1932 are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1932, 1934, or The tax under the Revenue Act of 1926 applies to net estates after deduction of a specific exemption of \$100,000 and tax credits are allowed for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the several States, Territories, or the District of Columbia, and for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government. The additional tax under the Revenue Act of 1932 applies to net estates after deduction of a specific exemption of \$50,000 and is equal to the excess of (1) the amount of a tentative tax computed at rates in the 1932 act, ranging from 1 percent on net estates not in excess of \$10,000 to 45 percent on the amount in excess of \$10,000,000, over (2) the amount of tax computed at rates in the Revenue Act of 1926 (that is, before deduction of tax credits provided). The Revenue Act of 1934, applicable to returns of decedents dying between May 11, 1934, and August 30, 1935, inclusive, increased the rates of the additional tax imposed by the Revenue Act of 1932. Under the 1934 act the rates used in the computation of the tentative tax range from 1 percent on net estates not in excess of \$10,000 to 60 percent on the amount in excess of \$10,000,000. A further increase in the rates of the additional estate tax, originally imposed by the Revenue Act of 1932, and a reduction of the specific exemption from \$50,000 to \$40,000 are contained in the Revenue Act of 1935. For the negligible number of returns included in this report for decedents dying on or after August 31, 1935, the rates used in the computation of the tentative tax range from 2 percent on net estates not in excess of \$10,000 to 70 percent on the amount in excess of \$50,000,000.

The Revenue Act of 1924 allows a tax credit not to exceed 25 percent of the Federal estate tax (after deduction of any credit for gift tax imposed by the Revenue Act of 1924) for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the several States, Territories, or the District of Columbia. Prior to the Revenue Act of 1924 this tax credit was not allowed. Under the Revenue Act of 1926 this tax credit is increased to an amount not to exceed 80 percent of the Federal estate tax. No credit for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes is allowable against the additional estate tax imposed by the Revenue Act of 1932, 1934, or 1935. Credit for gift tax imposed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1924 is allowable against estate tax accruing under the Revenue Act of 1924 or the Revenue Act of 1926 in respect of any property included in the decedent's gross estate. For decedents dving subsequent to the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1932, a tax credit for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government is allowed both against the tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1926 and against the additional tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1932, 1934, or 1935.

The tables are based on the returns as filed and prior to any adjustments that may be determined upon investigation and audit. The tax liability reported does not correspond with the actual receipts of taxes during the period for the reason that payments may be made at a later date than the filing of the return, and for the reason that field investigation and office audit may disclose deficiency taxes or

excess payments which are not reflected in these tables.

Data included in these tables are compiled from returns filed under revenue acts passed prior to 1926, the Revenue Act of 1926 only, and from returns filed under the combined provisions of the Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1932, 1926 and 1934, or 1926 and 1935. In order to maintain comparability with the method of tabulation for preceding years, the data for taxable returns of decedents who died after the effective date of the Revenue Act of 1926 are classified by net estate classes which correspond to the successive tax brackets specified in the Revenue Act of 1926 on the basis of the net estate arrived at under the provisions of that act rather than the provisions of the 1932, 1934, or 1935 acts.

The total number of estate tax returns filed during the calendar year 1935 is 12,724, and the total tax liability is \$155,466,000 (see table 7, p. 50). The number of returns for citizens or residents is 11,110, of which 8,655 are taxable returns and 2,455 are nontaxable returns. The tax liability on the 8,655 taxable returns is \$153,763,000. As compared with returns filed during the previous year, the number of taxable returns for citizens or residents increased by 674, or 8.4 percent, and the tax liability on such returns increased \$58,535,000, or 61.5 percent.

In table 1, which is in the nature of a summary statement, the taxable and nontaxable returns for citizens or residents are classified according to the various revenue acts under which the returns were

filed, and for each group of returns are shown the number of returns,

gross estate, deductions, net estate, and tax liability.

This year, the data for the taxable returns in table 1 are presented in more detail than in former years. Tables 2 and 3 include the items of gross estate and deductions, and tables 4 and 5 include the items of net estate and tax liability. The taxable returns for resident decedents who died prior to May 11, 1934, are presented in tables 2 and 4 and the taxable returns for citizen or resident decedents who died on or after May 11, 1934, are presented in tables 3 and 5.

Table 6 presents a distribution by States of the returns of citizen or resident decedents which corresponds to table 2 in the Statistics of Income for 1933. However, this year, the table is more complete in that the tax credit for estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the States, Territories, or the District of Columbia is tabulated separately from the tax credit for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government, the number of nontaxable returns is tabulated separately from the taxable returns, and the returns filed under the Revenue Act of 1924 and prior acts are tabulated separately from those filed under later acts.

Table 7, which is a historical summary of all estate tax returns filed, corresponds to table 4 in the Statistics of Income for 1933. No table appears in this report corresponding to table 3 in the Statistics of Income for 1933, since these data are available in tables 1 through 5.

Table 1.—Estate tax returns of resident decedents who died before May 11, 1934, nontaxable returns, showing number of returns, gross

[Money figures in [Returns filed from

				is filed from
			Total	
no.		All returns	Non- taxable returns	Taxable returns
Serial no.	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)
1	Number of returns	11, 110	2, 455	8, 655
2	Gross estate: 8 Real estate Investments in bonds and stocks: Federal Government bonds:	383, 333	76, 116	307, 217
3 4 5 6 7	Wholly tax-exempt 9 Partially tax-exempt 9 State and municipal bonds, wholly tax-exempt All other bonds. Total bonds.	71, 011 73, 762 177, 329 198, 846 520, 950	1, 468 4, 573 3, 493 11, 162 20, 696	69, 543 69, 190 173, 837 187, 684 500, 254
8 9 10 11 12	Capital stock in corporations. Total bonds and stocks. Mortgages, notes, cash, etc. Insurance (gross) ¹⁰ Miscellaneous ¹¹	901, 311 1, 422, 261 351, 759 144, 135 133, 795	58, 173 78, 869 32, 251 33, 010 17, 095	843, 138 1, 343, 392 319, 508 111, 125 116, 700
13	Total gross estate	2, 435, 282	237, 341	2, 197, 941
14 15 16 17 18 19	Deductions: Insurance exemption. Funeral and administrative expenses. Debts, unpaid mortgages, etc. Charitable, public, and similar bequests. Specific exemption: Act of 1924 or prior Acts; Act of 1926 12. Property from an estate taxed within 5 years: Value at date of previous or present decedent's death, whichever is lower.	63, 249 109, 707 517, 023 105, 517 1, 110, 350 37, 943	16, 171 12, 352 344, 916 19, 979 245, 350	47, 078 97, 355 172, 107 85, 538 865, 000
20	Total deductions	1, 943, 789	640, 166	1, 303, 622
21 22 23 24	Net estate: ¹³ To which 1924 or prior rates apply (\$50,000 exemption) To which 1926 rates apply (\$100,000 exemption) To which 1932 or 1934 rates apply (\$59,000 exemption) To which 1935 rates apply (\$40,000 exemption) 15	717 1, 027, 774 1, 311, 474	5.5, 100	717 1, 027, 774 1, 311, 474 2, 697
25 26 27 28	Tax; 14 Under Act of 1924 or prior Acts Under Act of 1926. Under Acts of 1932 or 1934. Under Act of 1935.	10 12, 363 141, 077 313		10 12, 363 141, 077 313
29	Total tax liability on all returns filed in 1935	153, 763		153, 763

For footnotes see p. 38.

and of citizen or resident decedents 1 who died on or after May 11, 1934, taxable and estate by form of property, deductions, net estate, and tax

thousands of dollars]

Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

		Returns	of residen	t decedents	3					
Filed ur of 1924 of Acts (de fore 10:2 Feb. 26	or prior eath be-	(death fr a. m. I 1926, th	26 only on 10:26 Feb. 26, rough 5	1932 (de	ler Acts of eath from 5 1932, thro	5:01 p. m.,	deceder of 1926 1926 an	of citizen o ats i filed u and 1934 d d 1935 (de fay 11, 1934	nder Acts or Acts of ath on or	
					Taxable	returns 6	Non-	Taxable	returns 7	
Non- taxable re- turns— returns with no net estate	Tax- able re- turns— returns with net estate	Non- taxable re- turns— returns with no net estate	Tax- able re- turns— returns with net estate	Nontax- able re- turns— no net estate under 1926 or 1932 Acts	No net estate under 1926 Act but taxable under 1932 Act	Taxable under both 1926 and 1932 Acts	taxable returns— no net estate under 1926, 1934, or 1935 Acts	No net estate under 1926 Act, but taxable under 1934 or 1935 Act	Taxable under Acts of 1926 and 1934 or Acts of 1926 and 1935	Serial no.
(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	(14)	Seri
3	10	56	29	835	1, 196	1, 158	1, 561	3, 287	2, 975	1
195	295	3, 683	1, 514	28, 974	28, 993	75, 448	43, 264	64, 922	136, 044	2
12 12 12 24 3 3	30 97 166 42 336 210 546 138 3 269	32 44 43 184 302 1, 193 1, 496 1, 471 1, 706 395	14 99 37 223 373 1, 497 1, 870 1, 315 430 556	187 1, 198 822 3, 717 5, 924 18, 306 24, 230 10, 597 11, 163 6, 288	1, 483 3, 323 3, 060 9, 804 17, 669 27, 461 45, 133 25, 702 8, 045 7, 326	19, 281 13, 882 50, 517 40, 876 124, 556 279, 150 403, 706 71, 409 24, 354 39, 223	1, 249 3, 331 2, 628 7, 260 14, 469 38, 662 53, 131 20, 159 20, 137 10, 409	1, 994 12, 641 7, 550 27, 162 49, 347 75, 914 125, 261 65, 343 22, 562 15, 802	46, 741 39, 148 112, 506 109, 578 307, 972 458, 903 766, 875 155, 601 55, 732 53, 524	3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
239	1, 251	8, 750	5, 685	81, 251	115, 199	614, 139	147, 101	293, 890	1, 167, 776	13
84 4 150	2 17 16 (16) 500	372 664 7, 700 781 5, 600	167 249 287 21 2, 900	5, 796 4, 322 70, 095 5, 226 83, 500	4, 671 5, 948 13, 141 6, 686 119, 600	8, 401 26, 029 61, 085 25, 057 115, 800	10,003 7,282 267,116 13,972 156,100	13, 346 13, 648 26, 668 10, 139 328, 700	20, 491 51, 465 70, 910 43, 634 297, 500	14 15 16 17 18
54		188	111	478	561	14, 359	679	154	21, 359	19
292	535	15, 305	3, 735	169, 417	150, 606	250, 732	455, 153	392, 655	505, 360	20
	717		1,950		23, 721	363, 408 418, 865		64, 147 588	662, 416 804, 741 2, 109	21 22 23 24
	10		9		479	5, 498 40, 651		1, 294 24	6, 856 98, 654 290	25 26 27 28
	10		9		479	46, 148		1, 318	105, 800	29

1 By sec. 403, Revenue Act of 1934, the definition of resident decedent was changed to include all citizen

*Beturns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$50,000 in value at date of death.

Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$100,000 in value at date of death.

Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$100,000 in value at date of death.

Estates of decedents who died from 5:01 p. m., June 6, 1932, through May 10, 1934, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1932. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$50,000 in value at date of death. For statement of rates, exemptions, and credits contained in the provision of these Acts, see pp. 190-121

at date of death. For statement of rates, exemptions, and credits contained in the provision of these Acts, see pp. 120-121.

§ Estates of decedents who died from May 11, 1934, through Aug. 30, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1934. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$50,000 in value at date of death. Estates of decedents who died on or after Aug. 31, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1935. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$40,000 in value at date of death. For statement of rates, exemptions, and credits contained in the provisions of these Acts, see pp. 120-121.

§ A tabulation of these returns by net estate classes is found in tables 2 and 4, on pp. 39-41, 44-45.

§ The following items are distributed by form of property: Jointly owned property, \$57,692,597; transfers made in contemplation of or intended to take effect at or after death, \$75,977,069, general power of appointment exercised by will or by deed in contemplation of death, \$20,912,132; and property from an estate taxed within 5 years, value at date of present decedent's death, \$71,391,043. For statistics from estate taxe returns filed during 1927 to 1932 "jointly owned property" only was distributed in this manner.

§ Securities the interest on which is wholly or partially exempt from the normal individual income tax and surtax of the Federal Government.

10 For insurance exemption, see "Deductions."

11 Includes debts due the decedent, interest in business, claims, rights, royalties, pensions, leaseholds, the decedent is transfer the rest of the redeath, interest in business, claims, rights, royalties, pensions, leaseholds, the decedent is transfer that the rest of the redeath and surface the rest of the

19 For insurance exemption, see "Deductions."
11 Includes debts due the decedent, interest in business, claims, rights, royalties, pensions, leaseholds, judgments, shares in trust funds, household goods and personal effects (including wearing apparel), farm products and growing crops, livestock, farm machinery, automobiles, etc.
12 Specific exemption in Act of 1924 and prior Acts is \$50,000 (tabulated in columns 5 and 6). Specific exemption in Act of 1925 is \$100,000 (tabulated in columns 7 through 14).

18 A more detailed tabulation of net estate is found in tables 4 and 5 on pp. 44-47.

14 A more detailed tabulation of tax before tax credits, tax credits and tax after tax credits, is found in tables 4 and 5 on pp. 44-47.

14 Forty-one tax the returns were filed for decedents who died on or after Aug. 31, 1935; 30 of these returns

were taxable under the Revenue Act of 1935 only and 11 were taxable under both the Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1935. 16 Less than \$500.

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns of resident decedents filed under Revenue Act of 1924 or prior Acts, 1926 only, or 1926 and 1932, showing, by net estate classes, number of returns, gross estate by form of property, and deductions

[Money figures and net estate classes in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

_						Tax		as filed und						<u> </u>
		Act of			No net estate un- der 1926	Net es		Acts of 1926 s by size of unde		under Rev	enue Act o	of 1926 5—T	axable	
Serial no.		1924 or prior Acts ¹	Act of 1926 only ²	Total	Act, but taxable under 1932 Act	Under 50	50 under 100	100 under 200	200 under 400	400 under 600	600 under 800	800 under 1,000	1,000 under 1,500	Serial no.
Seris	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	Serie
1	Number of returns	10	29	2, 354	1, 196	428	182	204	163	61	33	21	26	1
2	Gross estate: 6 Real estate Investments in bonds and stocks: Federal Government bonds:	295	1, 514	104, 441	28, 993	15, 259	8, 431	9, 895	9, 968	7, 138	2, 852	2, 425	5, 341	2
3 4 5	Wholly tax-exempt 7	30 97	14 99	20, 764 17, 205	1, 483 3, 323	525 2, 256	400 1, 278	1, 406 1, 861	1, 625 2, 362	1,020 952	3, 178 774	827 982	2, 094 1, 131	3 4
6 7 8 9 10	tax-exempt. All other bonds. Total bonds Capital stock in corporations Total bonds and stocks	166 42 336 210 546 138	37 223 373 1, 497 1, 870 1, 315	53, 578 50, 679 142, 226 306, 613 448, 839 97, 111	3, 060 9, 804 17, 669 27, 464 45, 133 25, 702	1, 619 5, 704 10, 104 19, 424 29, 529 12, 977	2, 219 3, 857 7, 754 12, 537 20, 291 8, 055	3, 588 5, 645 12, 500 25, 184 37, 683 9, 918	4, 686 8, 307 16, 980 29, 009 45, 990 10, 735	3, 785 4, 752 10, 509 18, 134 28, 642 4, 673	3, 389 2, 616 9, 958 15, 076 25, 034 4, 822	2, 863 1, 664 6, 336 9, 818 16, 153 2, 459	4, 346 2, 532 10, 104 21, 105 31, 209 2, 592	
$\frac{11}{12}$	Mortgages, notes, cash, etc Insurance (gross) ⁸ Miscellaneous ⁹	3 269	430 556	32, 399 46, 549	8, 045 7, 326	3, 987 4, 452	2, 402 1, 921	5, 045 5, 039	4, 913 5, 187	2, 153 1, 968	2, 265 3, 953	1, 234 2, 844	420 2, 165	11 12
13	Total gross estate	1, 251	5, 685	729, 339	115, 199	66, 204	41, 100	67, 582	76, 793	44, 574	38, 926	25, 116	41, 727	13
14 15 16 17 18	Deductions: Insurance exemption Funeral and administrative expenses Debts, unpaid mortgages, etc Charitable, public, and similar bequests. Specific exemption: Act of 1924 or prior	2 17 16 (11)	167 249 287 21	13, 072 31, 977 74, 226 31, 743	4, 671 5, 948 13, 141 6, 686	2, 046 3, 334 6, 514 935	1, 153 1, 954 4, 353 1, 114	1, 719 2, 925 5, 701 6, 264	1, 623 3, 432 5, 010 2, 014	713 1, 858 4, 285 1, 295	399 1, 963 2, 836 4, 600	215 1, 203 1, 737 303	155 1, 596 2, 142 3, 260	14 15 16 17
19	Act; Act of 1926 19 Property from an estate taxed within 5 years: Value at date of previous or present decedent's death, whichever	500	2, 900	235, 400	119, 600	42, 800	18, 200	20, 400	16, 300	6, 100	3,300	2, 100	2, 600	18
	is lower		111	14, 920	561	1, 646	1,330	2, 183	2, 168	1,001	2, 808	1,390	167	19
20	Total deductions	535	3, 735	401, 338	150, 606	57, 276	28, 104	39, 193	30, 547	15, 252	15, 906	6, 949	9, 920	20

For footnotes see p. 41.

Table 2.—Taxable estate tax returns of resident decedents filed under Revenue Act of 1924 or prior Acts, 1926 only, or 1926 and 1932, showing, by net estate classes, number of returns, gross estate by form of property, and deductions—Continued

[Money figures and net estate classes in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

						Та	xable retur	ns filed un	der				
						Acts of	1926 and 1	932 3—Con	tinued				
		Net es	tate classes	by size of	net estate	under Rev	enue Act o	f 1926 5—Ta	axable und	er both 192	6 and 1932	Acts—Cor	itinued
al no.	,	1,500 under 2,000	2,000 under 2,500	2,500 under 3,000	3,000 under 3,500	3,500 under 4,000	4,000 under 5,000	5,000 under 6,000	6,000 under 7,000	7,000 under 8,000	8,000 under 9,000	9,000 under 10,000	10,000 and over
Serial		(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)
1	Number of returns	11	6	4	5	3	4	2	1	1	1		2
2	Gross estate: 6 Real estate Investment in bonds and stocks:	1, 413	2, 070	740	655	342	4, 177	266	67	75	3, 791		541
3 4 5	Federal Government bonds: Wholly tax-exempt 7 Partially tax-exempt 7 State and municipal bonds, wholly	997 1,022	947 246	928 122	1, 153 131	337	20 72	1, 129 577	42	32 74			2, 663 (11)
6 7 8 9 10	tax-exempt. All other bonds. Total bonds Capital stock in corporations. Total bonds and stocks. Mortgages, notes, cash, etc. Linuranee (gross) §	4, 647 1, 198 7, 863 11, 322 19, 185 3, 308 294	1, 438 636 3, 267 11, 345 14, 613 1, 868 662	5, 485 740 7, 276 2, 784 10, 060 840 25	2, 111 373 3, 768 12, 742 16, 509 616 47	4, 360 739 5, 436 5, 573 11, 010 826 51	1, 311 929 2, 331 7, 642 9, 973 5, 194	3, 586 585 5, 877 2, 567 8, 444 804	161 203 6, 295 6, 498 529	43 327 476 6, 988 7, 465 85 707	1 58 59 21, 238 21, 298 244 1		1, 039 51 3, 753 40, 365 44, 119 863 147
12 13	Miscellaneous 9 Total gross estate	$\frac{2,061}{26,261}$	19, 596	12, 130	701 18, 529	124	4, 796 24, 141	2,600	7,094	8, 362	72 25, 406		46, 131

14 15 16	Deductions: Insurance exemption	120 868 2, 840 2, 267	120 818 3, 138 474	677 278 216	40 1, 188 834 85	35 623 64 298	1, 112 4, 623 351	336 568	325 66	37 177 121	312 15, 126 990	 25 1, 327 847 591	14 15 16 17
18	Specific exemption, Act of 1926 (\$100,000).	1, 100		400	500	300	400	200	100	100	100	 200	18
19	Property from an estate taxed within 5 years: Value at date of previous decedent's death	525	689			 				451		 	19
20	Total deductions.	7, 721	5, 840	1, 571	2, 647	1, 320	6, 487	1, 104	491	886	16, 528	 2, 990	20
20	1 oral deductions	1, 121	0,040	1, 571	2,011	1, 320	0, 201	1, 104	131	300	10, 525	 2, 550	1

1 Returns of decedents who died before 10:26 a.m., Feb. 26, 1926.

Returns of decedents who died from 10:26 a.m., Feb. 26, 1926, through 4:59 p.m. June 6, 1932.

3 Returns of decedents who died from 5 p. m., June 6, 1932, through May 10, 1934.

4 Returns with gross estates of \$50,000 or more.

5 Net estate after deduction of specific exemption of \$100,000.

The following items are distributed by form of property: Jointly owned property, \$13,991,688; transfers made in contemplation of or intended to take effect at or after death, \$26,182,232; general power of appointment exercised by will or by deed in contemplation of death, \$4,288,363; and property from an estate taxed within 5 years, value at date of present deedent's death, \$25,994,076. For statistics from estate tax returns filed during 1927 to 1932, "jointly owned property" only was distributed in this manner.

Securities the interest on which is wholly or partially exempt from the normal income tax and surtax of the Federal Government.

8 For insurance exemption see "Deductions."

9 Includes debts due the decedent, interest in business, claims, rights, royalties, pensions, leaseholds, judgments, shares in trust funds, household goods and personal effects (including wearing apparel), farm products and growing crops, livestock, farm machinery, automobiles, etc.

19 Specific exemption in Act of 1924 and prior Acts is \$50,000 (tabulated in column 2). Specific exemption in Act of 1926 is \$160,000 (tabulated in columns 3 through 25).

11 Less than \$500.

Table 3.—Taxable estate tax returns of citizen or resident decedents 1 filed under Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1934, or 1926 and 1935, showing, by net estate classes, number of returns, gross estate by form of property, and deductions

[Money figures and net estate classes in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

				Taxab	le returns f	îled under	Acts of 192	6 and 1934	or 1926 and	d 1935 ²			
			No net estate un-		Net es	tate classes	by size of	net estate	under Rev	enue Act o	f 1926 f		
Serial no.		Total	der 1926 Act, but taxable under 1934 or 1935 Act 3	Under 50	50 under 100	100 under 200	200 under 400	400 under 600	600 under 800	800 under 1,000	1,000 under 1,500	1,500 under 2,000	Serial no.
Se	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	Se
1	Number of returns	6, 262	3, 287	1, 196	514	509	371	140	79	42	60	22	1
2	Gross estate: 5 Real estate: Investments in bonds and stocks: Federal Government bonds;	200, 966	64, 922	33, 750	19, 196	23, 293	22, 913	10, 024	5, 125	3, 669	6, 742	5, 255	2
3 4 5	Wholly tax-exempt 6. Partially tax-exempt 6. State and municipal bonds, wholly tax-	48, 735 51, 789	1, 994 12, 641	1, 702 8, 480	1, 723 3, 990	2, 419 6, 917	5, 119 6, 997	3, 299 3, 091	2, 793 2, 139	1, 568 1, 106	4, 341 2, 710	1, 817 1, 117	3 4
6 7 8	exemptAll other bonds	120, 056 136, 740 357, 319 534, 817	7, 550 27, 162 49, 347 75, 914	5, 937 19, 142 35, 262 54, 448	4, 722 13, 527 23, 963 35, 707	9, 440 19, 180 37, 955 57, 981	12, 263 18, 906 43, 285 68, 684	10, 670 11, 212 28, 272 40, 427	10, 239 5, 080 20, 251 36, 990	5, 792 3, 867 12, 332 24, 214	11, 453 8, 580 27, 083 41, 611	7, 221 2, 595 12, 750 18, 532	5 6 7 8
9 10 11	Capital stock in corporations. Capital stock in corporations. Total bonds and stocks. Mortgages, notes, cash, etc. Insurance (gross) 7 Miscellaneous 8	892, 136 220, 944 78, 294	125, 261 65, 343 22, 562	89, 710 36, 854 12, 193	59, 670 18, 262 8, 055	95, 936 24, 084 9, 113	111, 968 24, 752 9, 441	68, 698 10, 764 4, 527	57, 242 8, 172 3, 561	36, 546 5, 724 1, 169	68, 694 8, 552 3, 442	31, 282 3, 578 1, 227	6 10 11
12 13	Miscellaneous 8 Total gross estate		15, 802 293, 890	9, 120	6, 698	7,833	7, 074 176, 149	98, 162	2, 733 76, 833	2, 066 49, 175	3,800	5, 392 46, 734	12 13
	Deductions:										91, 230		:
14 15 16 17	Insurance exemption Funeral and administrative expenses. Debts, unpaid mortgages, etc. Charitable, public, and similar bequests	65, 113	13, 346 13, 648 26, 668 10, 139	5, 976 8, 636 14, 091 4, 048	3, 651 5, 227 9, 011 3, 027	3, 661 7, 269 11, 212 10, 901	3, 101 8, 437 11, 825 10, 314	1, 369 3, 910 6, 541 2, 802	757 3, 368 4, 131 4, 001	423 1, 735 3, 884 1, 165	962 3, 354 3, 838 1, 371	267 1, 735 3, 096 61	14 15 16 17
18 19	Specific exemption, Act of 1926 (\$100,000) Property from an estate taxed within 5 years: Value at date of previous or present decedent's death, whichever is lower.	626, 200	328, 700	119, 600	51, 400	50, 900	37, 100	14,000	7, 900	4, 200	6,000	2, 200	18
20	dent's death, whichever is lower Total deductions	21, 513 898, 015	392, 655	3, 303 155, 654	2, 465 74, 781	3, 208 87, 150	2, 834 73, 611	1, 525 30, 147	1, 679 21, 836	12, 336	16, 173	7, 939	19 20

-1		Τε	xable retu	rns filed un	nder Acts o	f 1926 and	1934 or 1926	and 1935 2-	-Continue	ed	
		Ne	et estate cla	asses by siz	e of net est	ate under	Revenue A	ct of 1926 4-	-Continue	d	
Serial no.		2,000 under 2,500 (13)	2,500 under 3,000 (14)	3,000 under 3,500 (15)	3,500 under 4,000 16)	4,000 under 5,000 (17)	5,000 under 6,000 (18)	6,000 under 7.000 (19)	7,000 under 8,000 (20)	8,000 under 9,000 (21)	Serial no.
1	Number of returns	10	11	6	5	1	5	2	1	1	1
2	Gross estate: 5 Real estate Investments in bonds and stocks: Federal Government bonds:	395	2. 351	444	166	616	886	640	258	319	2
3 4 5	Wholly tax-exempt 6 Partially tax-exempt 6 State and municipal bonds, wholly tax-exempt All other bonds	2,006 222 $2,041$	4, 050 274 5, 892	732 21 5, 534	1, 392 910 5, 393	188 18 433	4, 522 1, 120 10, 229	77 (9) 157	7, 789 36	1, 204 5, 090	3 4 5
6 7 8	All other bonds. Total bonds Capital stock in corporations. Total bonds and stocks	575 4, 843 19, 429 24, 272	2, 183 12, 399 16, 103 28, 502	1, 356 7, 643 12, 167 19, 810	438 8, 133 9, 154 17, 287	3 642 1, 474 2, 115	1, 741 17, 611 10, 174 27, 785	942 1, 175 10, 126 11, 301	7, 825 8 7, 834	253 6, 547 1, 675 8, 222	6 7 8
10 11 12	Mortgages, notes, cash, etc. Insurance (gross) ? Miscellaneous [§]	24, 272 2, 236 1, 185 1, 030	2, 184 132 366	1,778 552 276	1, 303 637 346	1, 767	3, 915 496 1, 661	909	315	397	10 11 12
13	Total gross estate	29, 117	33, 535	22, 860	19, 739	4, 607	34, 744	13, 175	8, 557	9, 390	13
14 15 16 17	Insurance exemption Funeral and administrative expenses. Debts, unpaid mortgages, etc. Charitable, public, and similar bequests.	155 1, 386 738 619	41 1, 015 716 741	8 1, 269 566 1, 593	82 554 284 35	77 29	40 1, 947 478 2, 956	377 346	602 41	566 83	14 15 16 17
18 19	Specific exemption, Act of 1926 (\$100,000). Property from an estate taxed within 5 years: Value at date of previous decedent's death.	1, 000 2, 940	1, 100	600	500	100	2, 950 500 548	200	100 372	100	18
20	Total deductions	6, 838	3, 942	4, 035	1, 455	206	6, 469	923	1, 115	749	20

¹ By sec. 403, Revenue Act of 1934, the definition of resident was changed to include all citizen decedents regardless of place of residence.
² Estates of decedents who died from May 11, 1934, through Aug. 30, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1934. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$50,000 in value at date of death. Estates of decedents who died on or after Aug. 31, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1935. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$40,000 in value at date of death. For statement of rates, exemptions, and credits contained in the provisions of these Acts, see pp. 120-121.

For returns filed under Act of 1934 the gross estate is \$50,000 or more. For returns filed under Act of 1935 the gross estate is \$40,000 or more.

4 Net estate after deduction of specific exemption of \$100,000.

4 The following items are distributed by form of property: Jointly owned property, \$34,625,053; transfers made in contemplation of or intended to take effect at or after death, \$44,922,392; general power of appointment exercised by will or by deed in contemplation of death, \$16,060,904; and property from an estate taxed within 5 years, value at date of present decedent's death, \$14,644,372. For statistics from estate tax returns filed during 1927 to 1932 "jointly owned property" only was distributed in this manner.

6 Securities the interest on which is wholly or partially exempt from the normal income tax and surtax of the Federal Government.

7 For insurance exemption see "Deductions."

8 Includes debts due the decedent, interest in business, claims, rights, royalties, pensions, leaseholds, judgments, shares in trust funds, household goods and personal effects (including wearing apparel), farm products and growing crops, livestock, farm machinery, automobiles, etc.

9 Less than \$500.

Table 4.—Taxable estate tax returns of resident decedents filed under Revenue Act of 1924 or prior Acts, 1926 only, or 1926 and 1932, showing, by net estate classes, number of returns, net estate, and tax

[Money figures and net estate classes in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

						Та	xable retui	ns filed un	ıder					
							Acts	s of 1926 an	d 1932 ³					
		Act of 1924 or prior	Act of 1926		No net estate un- der 1926	Net estat	e classes by	y size of ne	t estate un ooth 1926 a	der Revent nd 1932 Ac	ie Act of 19 ts	26 5—-Taxa	ble under	
Serial no.		Acts 1	only 2	Total	Act, but taxable under 1932 Act	Under 50	50 under 100	100 under 200	200 under 40°)	400 under 600	600 under 800	800 under 1,000	1,000 un- der 1,500	
Seri	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	(13)	1.5
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12	Returns filed under Acts of 1924 or earlier years: Number of returns Net estate (\$50,000 exemption) Tax: Tax before tax credits Tax credit for inheritance taxes * Tax credit for gift taxes * Tax (3 less 4 and 5). Returns filed under Act of 1926 only: 2 Number of returns Net estate (\$100,000 exemption) Tax: Tax before tax credits Tax credit for inheritance taxes * Tax credit for gift taxes * Tax credit for gift taxes * Tax (9 less 10 and 11). Returns filed under Acts of 1926 and 1932; 3	11 1 10	29 1, 950 36 27											
13 14	Number of returns			2, 354	1, 196	428	182	204	163	61	33	21	26	
15	Net estate to which 1926 rates apply (\$100,000 exemption) Net estate to which 1932 rates apply (\$50,000 exemption)			363, 408 442, 586	23, 721	8, 928 28, 970	12, 996 21, 786	28, 389 38, 244	46, 246 54, 179	29, 321 32, 316	23, 019 24, 590	18, 168 19, 176	31, 807 33, 100	
16 17 18 19	Tax under 1926 Act: Tax before tax credits Tax credit for inheritance taxes for the credit for gift taxes for tax credit for gift taxes for tax credit for gift taxes for tax for the credit for gift tax for the credit for th			24, 726 19, 215 13		89 66 1	169 129 1 39	546 418 1 126	1, 279 1, 004 7 268	1,004 788 2 213	936 701	820 643	1, 726 1, 379	

88	20 21 22 23	Additional tax under 1932 Act: Tentative tax (application of rates in 1932 Act). Tax at 1926 Act rates (before tax credits). Additional tax (20 less 21) Tax credit for gift taxes 7			65, 860 24, 726 41, 135	479 479 (8)	1, 199 89 1, 109	1, 234 169 1, 065	2, 661 546 2, 115 (8)	4, 678 1, 279 3, 399	3, 208 1, 004 2, 205	2, 768 936 1, 832	2, 337 820 1, 517	4, 626 1, 726 2, 901	20 21 22 23
- 1 '	24	Net additional tax (22 less 23)			41, 129	479	1, 107	1,064	2, 115	3, 398	2, 205	1,832	1, 517	2, 901	24
36 :	25	Total tax liability (sum of 6, 12, 19, and 24)	10	9	46, 627	479	1, 129	1, 103	2, 241	3, 666	2, 418	2, 067	1, 693	3, 247	25
· 4.							Acts of	1926 and 19	932 3—Cont	inued			,		
			Net e	state classe	s by size of	net estate	under Rev	enue Act o	of 19265—T	axable und	er both 192	6 and 1932	Acts-Con	tinued	1
			1,500 un- der 2,000	2,000 un- der 2,500	2,500 un- der 3,000	3,000 un- der 3,500	3,500 un- der 4,000	4,000 un- der 5,000	5,000 un- der 6,000	6,000 un- der 7,000	7,000 un- der 8,000	8,000 un- der 9,000	9,000 un- der 10,000	10,000 and over	
			(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	(22)	(23)	(24)	(25)	ĺ
	Re 13 14	eturns filed under Acts of 1926 and 1932: 3 Number of returns Net estate to which 1926 rates apply	11	6	4	5	3	4	2	1	1	1	·	2	13
:	15	(\$100,000 exemption) Net estate to which 1932 rates apply (\$50,000 exemption) Tax under 1926 Act:	18, 540 19, 077	13, 756 14, 045	10, 559 10, 759	15, 882 16, 132	11, 033 11, 183	17, 654 17, 854	11, 010 11, 110	6, 603 6, 653	7, 475 7, 522	8, 878 8, 928		43, 142 43, 242	14 15
	16 17 18	Tax before tax credits. Tax credit for inheritance taxes 6 Tax credit for gift taxes 7	1, 157 845	977 621	796 636	1, 298 1, 039	965 772	1, 686 1, 348	1, 159 927	750 600	894 715	1, 142 913		7, 335 5, 670	16 17 18
	19 20	Tax (16 less 17 and 18)	312	356	159	260	193	337	232	150	179	228		1, 665	19
	21	Tentative tax (application of rates in 1932 Act) Tax at 1926 Act rates (before tax	2, 973	2, 426	1, 954	3, 136	2, 301	3, 966	2, 721	1, 758	2, 090	2, 657		16, 691	20
;	22 23	credits) Additional tax (20 less 21) Tax credit for gift taxes 7	1, 157 1, 816	977 1, 450	796 1, 158	1, 298 1, 837	965 1, 336	1, 686 2, 280	1, 159 1, 562	750 1,008	894 1, 195	1, 142 1, 515		7, 335 9, 355	21 22 23
	24	Net additional tax (22 less 23)	1,816	1,450	1, 158	1,837	1, 336	2, 280	1, 562	1,008	1, 195	1, 515		9, 355	24
:	25	Total tax liability (sum of 19 and 24)	2, 128	1,805	1, 317	2, 097	1, 529	2, 618	1, 794	1, 158	1,374	1,743		11,021	25

Returns of decedents who died before 10:26 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926.
 Returns of decedents who died from 10:26 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926, through 4:59 p. m.,
 June 6, 1932.
 Returns of decedents who died from 5 p. m., June 6, 1932, through May 10, 1934.
 Returns with gross estate of \$50,000 or more.

Net estate after deduction of specific exemption of \$100,000.
 Estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the States, Territories, or the District of Columbia.
 Credit for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government.
 Less than \$500.

Table 5.—Taxable estate tax returns of citizen or resident decedents 1 filed under Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1934 or 1926 and 1935, showing, by net estate classes, number of returns, net estate, and tax

[Money figures and net estate classes in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

				Taxab	le returns f	iled under	Acts of 192	36 and 1934	or 1926 an	d 1935 ²			
			No net estate		Net es	tate classes	by size of	net estate	under Rev	enue Act o	of 1926 4	-	
Serial no.	•	Total	under 1926 Act, but tax- able un- der 1934 or 1935 Act 3	Under 50	50 under 100	100 un- der 200	200 un- der 400	400 un- der 600	600 un- der 800	800 un- der 1,000	1,000 un- der 1,500	1,500 un- der 2,000	Serial no.
Seria	(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)	(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)	(9)	(10)	(11)	(12)	Seria
	Returns filed under Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1934 or 1926 and 1935:									ļ			
1	Number of returns Net estate to which 1926 rates apply (\$100,000 ex-	6, 262	3, 287	1, 196	514	509	371	140	79	42	60	22	
2	Net estate to which 1926 rates apply (\$100,000 ex-	662, 416		25, 974	37, 100	73, 110	102, 538	68, 015	54, 998	36, 838	75, 056	38, 795	
3	emption) Net estate to which 1934 or 1935 rates apply (\$50,- 000 or \$40,000 exemption) Tax under 1926 Act:	871, 585	64, 735	83, 139	62, 201	97, 948	120, 823	74, 915	58, 945	38, 911	78, 035	39, 883	
4	Tay before tay credits	31, 519		260	485	1, 430	2, 803	2, 351	2, 233	1,676	4, 115	2, 469	
5	Tax credit for inheritance taxes 5	24, 621		196	375	1, 103	2, 166	1, 797	1, 766	1, 282	3, 181	1,943	1
7	Tax credit for gift taxes °	6, 856		2 61	109	321	29 608	552	467	394	933	523	
8	Tentative tax (application of rates in 1934 or	131, 847	1,319	3,648	4, 195	8, 682	14,000	10, 556	9, 475	6, 901	15, 951	9, 211	
9	1935 Act) Tax at 1926 Act rates (before tax credits)	31, 519	1, 319	260	4, 195	1, 430	2, 803	2, 351	2, 233	1,676	4, 115	2, 469	1
o I	Additional tax (8 less 9)	100, 327	1, 319	3,388	3, 710	7, 252	11, 197	8, 206	7, 241	5, 225	11, 837	6, 742	ļ
$\frac{1}{2}$	Tax credit for gift taxes 6	66 $100, 261$	1,318	$\begin{matrix} 14 \\ 3,374 \end{matrix}$	3, 710	7, 239	$\frac{23}{11,174}$	8, 200	7, 233	5, 225	11,837	6, 742	
.3	Total tax liability (sum of 7 and 12)	107, 118	1,318	3,436	3, 819	7, 560	11, 782	8, 752	7, 700	5, 619	12,770	7, 265	1

		r	axable ret	ırns filed u	nder Acts	of 1926 and	1934 or 19	26 and 1935	²—Contin	1ed	
		ı	Vet estate c	lasses by s	ize of net es	state under	Revenue	Act of 1926	←-Continu	1ed	
		2,000 un- der 2,500		3,000 un- der 3,500	3,500 un- der 4,000		5,000 un- der 6,000	6,000 un- der 7,000	7,000 un- der 8,000	8,000 un- der 9,000	
		(13)	(14)	(15)	(16)	(17)	(18)	(19)	(20)	(21)	
1	Returns filed under Revenue Acts of 1926 and 1934 or 1926 and 1935: Number of returns.	10	11	6	5	1	5	9	1	1	1
3	Net estate to which 1926 rates apply (\$100,000 exemption) Net estate to which 1934 or 1935 rates apply (\$50,000 or \$40,000 exemption) Tax under 1926 Act:	22, 279 22, 750	29, 593 30, 138	18, 825 19, 125	18, 284 18, 534	4, 401 4, 451	28, 275 28, 520	12, 252 12, 352	7, 442 7, 489	8, 641 8, 691	3
4 5	Tax before tax credits Tax credit for inheritance taxes 5	1, 563 1, 250	2, 249 1, 651	1, 530 1, 224	1, 594 1, 276	420 336	3,009 2,407	1, 347 1, 078	889 711	1, 099 879	5
7	Tax credit for gift taxes 6. Tax (4 less 5 and 6) Additional tax under 1934 or 1935 Act:	313	598	306	319	84	602	269	178	220	7
8 9 10 11	Tentative tax (application of rates in 1934 or 1935 Act) Tax at 1926 Act rates (before tax credits) Additional tax (8 less 9) Tax credit for gift taxes 6 Net additional tax (10 less 11)	5, 701 1, 563 4, 138	8, 089 2, 249 5, 840	5, 440 1, 530 3, 910	5, 603 1, 594 4, 008	1, 454 420 1, 034	10, 343 3, 009 7, 334	4, 616 1, 347 3, 269	3, 001 889 2, 112	3, 663 1, 099 2, 565	8 9 10 11
12	Net additional tax (10 less 11)	4, 138	5, 840	3, 910	4,008	1,034	7, 334	3, 269	2, 112	2, 565	12
13	Total tax liability (sum of 7 and 12)	4, 451	6, 437	4, 216	4, 327	1, 118	7, 936	3, 538	2, 290	2, 784	13

For returns filed under Act of 1934, the gross estate is \$50,000 or more. For returns filed under Act of 1935, the gross estate is \$40,000 or more.

4 Net estate after deduction of specific exemption of \$100,000.

⁵ Estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the States, Territories, or the District of Columbia.

6 Credit for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government.

¹ By sec. 403, Revenue Act of 1934, the definition of resident decedent was changed to include all citizen decedents regardless of place of residence.

² Estates of decedents who died from May 11, 1934, through Aug. 30, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1934. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$50,000 in value at date of death. Estates of decedents who died on or after Aug. 31, 1935, are subject to two estate taxes, the tax levied under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 and an additional estate tax levied by the Revenue Act of 1935. Returns are required to be filed if gross estate exceeded \$40,000 in value at date of death. For statement of rates, exemptions, and credits contained in the provisions of these Acts, see pp. 120-121.

Table 6.—Estate tax returns of resident decedents who died before May 11, 1934, and of citizen or resident decedents 1 who died on or after May 11, 1934, by States and Territories, and by taxable and nontaxable returns, showing number of returns, gross estate, net estate, and tax

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[Returns filed from Jan. 1 to Dec. 31, 1935]

	Nun	nber of ret	urns	Return	ns filed ct of 1924	Returns	filed unde	r Act of 192	6 only, or u	nder Acts o	of 1926 and	1932, 1926	6 and 193	4, or 1926 a	nd 1935 3
				or prior						Taxal	ole returns				
												Тa	x		
States and Territories	All re-	Nontax-	Tavabla	Number	Number	Number of non-			Net estate		1926 A	ret			
	turns	able	Taxable	of non- taxable returns	of tax- able returns	taxable returns	Number of re- turns	Gross estate	after \$100,000 exemp-	Tax	Tax cr	edits		Addi- tional tax 1932,	Total
						:			tion 4	before tax credits	Inherit- ance taxes, etc.5	Gift taxes 6	Тах	1934, or 1935 Act 7	tax
Alabama. Arizona Arkansas. California. Colorado. Connecticut. Delaware District of Columbia. Florida. Georgia. Hawaii. Idaho Illinois. Indiana. Iowa. Kansas. Kentucky. Louisiana. Maine.	66 25 27 950 75 354 38 121 165 102 20 13 604 169 195 154 142 87	13 9 9 213 222 54 7 18 41 25 4 4 4 147 35 53 33 30 22 23	53 16 18 737 53 300 31 103 124 77 16 9 457 134 142 121 111 64 88	1	1	13 9 9 212 222 54 7 7 18 41 25 4 4 4 147 35 53 33 30 23	52 16 18 736 53 299 31 103 124 77 16 9 457 134 142 121 112 63	9, 026 2, 634 2, 419 149, 060 8, 830 87, 713 11, 704 24, 522 23, 859 10, 957 4, 455 1, 526 104, 314 28, 073 25, 349 15, 861 19, 316 11, 029 22, 231	2, 889 648 277 61, 939 2, 079 41, 469 7, 331 11, 045 8, 727 2, 722 2, 722 2, 604 47, 549 12, 165 9, 869 9, 869 6, 344 3, 419 8, 705	73 17 3 2, 367 40 1, 796 511 302 62 74 14 2, 862 2, 862 169 85 85 85	58 14 3 1,853 32 1,435 325 33 241 49 59 9 1,993 456 345 57 113 67 294 229	(9) 	15 3 1 502 8 8 361 81 508 62 13 15 5 868 114 93 15 55 77	335 80 34 7, 879 217 4, 673 978 1, 431 1, 036 302 218 65, 187 1, 168 406 659 340	350 84 35 8, 381 226 5, 034 1, 059 1, 940 1, 097 333 70 7, 055 1, 602 1, 281 421 714 357 1, 214 1, 133

Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico New York North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Carolina South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia Washington® West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming	139 388 274 177 112 2 755 667 104 166 485 58 66 1,033 111 315 16 39 142 111 315 16 39 142 111 115 16 16 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	157 45 45 45 48 48 48 49 120 66 448 30 11 155 242 199 175 5 30 118 18 2 2 29 46 14 49 6 6	580 190 1188 25 266 133 78 1 1 66 547 7 7 14 15 376 47 51 811 101 37 18 81 197 14 30 113 65 53 174 100	1	2	157 45 211 13 48 4 34 1 1 9 120 6 6 448 248 249 11 15 242 249 49 6 6	580 189 118 25 226 13 78 1 1 66 547 7 7 7 4 47 51 810 101 101 33 30 113 65 53 174 10	140, 536 39, 631 23, 899 4, 945 48, 881 7, 251 9, 160 9, 522 131, 446 1, 086 613, 504 12, 093 2, 212 91, 033 10, 171 9, 329 260, 535 27, 238 5, 124 3, 407 17, 960 37, 545 2, 574 6, 513 27, 962 12, 280 34, 216	66, 946 15, 775 10, 150 1, 072 18, 323 3, 758 1, 657 243 24, 644 61, 943 3, 100 243 39, 408 3, 895 3, 672 130, 256 12, 024 1, 367 1, 367 1, 367 1, 376 6, 524 13, 480 1, 043 2, 100 10, 757 4, 283 4, 352 14, 720 101 101 1027 774	3, 257 517 425 24 629 298 32 6 75 3, 089 4 25, 015 117 7, 629 491 27 45 232 427 427 426 73 406 139 129 717 1	2, 523 411 340 19 498 238 25 5 60 2, 455 1 19, 906 67 7 4 1, 340 94 6, 085 392 222 36 312 21 412 112 103 30 304 312 21 112 112 103 104 104 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105 105	(*) 3	733 106 85 5 128 60 7 1 15 624 3 5, 103 1 7 1 1 3 3 9 9 6 9 6 9 9 1 1 5 1 1 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	8, 273 1, 720 1, 337 106 2, 081 185 26 281 8, 741 33 4, 509 452 389 19, 579 1, 322 139 166 687 1, 593 112 278 1, 223 53, 510 1, 322 1, 329 1,	9,006 1,825 1,423 111 2,209 820 192 28 296 9,365 25 58,913 34 4,878 547 412 21,119 1,422 144 175 733 1,708 1,708 1,504 563 538 2,389
Total	11, 110	2, 455	8,655	3	10	2, 452	8, 645	2, 196, 690	1, 027, 774	56, 281	43, 864	55	12, 363	141,391	153, 753

¹ By sec. 403 of the Revenue Act of 1934, the definition of resident decedent was changed to include all citizen decedents regardless of place of residence.

2 Death at or after 10:26 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926.

3 Death at or after 10:26 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926.

4 Net estate to which the 1926 rates apply.

5 Estate, inheritance, legacy, or succession taxes paid to any of the States, Territories, or the District of Columbia.

6 Credit for gift taxes paid to the Federal Government.

7 For method of computing the additional tax under the Revenue Acts of 1932, 1934, or 1935, see pp. 120-121.

8 Includes Alaska.

9 Less than \$500.

Table 7.—Historical summary of estate tax returns for all decedents filed Sept. 9, 1916, to Dec. 31, 1935, showing number of returns, gross and net taxable estate, and tax 1

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	1	Returns filed	1		Gross estate)
Filing period	Total	Resident deced- ents 2	Nonresident de- cedents 3	Total	Resident deced- ents 2	Nonresident de- cedents 3
Sept 9, 1916-Jan. 15, 1922. Jan. 15-Dec. 31, 1922. Jan. 1-Dec. 31: 1923. 1924. 1925. 1926. 1927. 1928. 1929. 1930. 1931. 1932. 1932. 1933. 1934.	45, 126 13, 876 15, 119 14, 513 16, 019 14, 567 10, 700 10, 236 10, 343 10, 382 9, 889 8, 507 10, 275 11, 853 12, 724	42, 230 12, 563 13, 963 13, 011 14, 013 13, 142 9, 353 8, 079 8, 582 8, 798 8, 393 7, 113 8, 727 10, 353 11, 110	2, 896 1, 313 1, 156 1, 502 2, 006 1, 425 1, 347 2, 167 1, 761 1, 584 1, 556 1, 394 1, 548 1, 500 1, 614	8, 893, 239 3, 614, 073 2, 804, 327 2, 566, 522 3, 001, 089 3, 407, 923 3, 173, 235 3, 554, 270 3, 893, 246 4, 165, 623 4, 075, 575 2, 830, 388 2, 060, 956 2, 267, 285 2, 459, 892	8, 785, 642 2, 955, 959 2, 774, 741 2, 540, 922 2, 958, 364 3, 386, 267 3, 146, 290 3, 503, 239 3, 843, 514 4, 108, 517 4, 042, 381 2, 795, 818 2, 026, 931 2, 244, 107 2, 435, 282	107, 597 58, 113 29, 587 25, 600 42, 725 21, 656 26, 945 51, 032 49, 732 57, 103 34, 570 34, 570 34, 025 23, 178 24, 609
	Net	taxable est	ate		Tax	
Filing period	Total	Resident deced- ents 2	Nonresi- dent de- cedents 3	Total	Resident deced- ents 2	Nonresident de- cedents 3
Sept. 9, 1916–Jan. 15, 1922 Jan. 15–Dec. 31, 1922 Jan. 1–Dec. 31: 1923 1924 1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931	1, 395, 816 1, 658, 869 1, 972, 537 1, 761, 617 1, 992, 503 2, 313, 976 2, 427, 454	5, 407, 674 1, 652, 832 1, 504, 621 1, 372, 421 1, 621, 008 1, 951, 969 1, 735, 840 1, 943, 429 2, 268, 323 2, 376, 973 2, 327, 319	101, 849 52, 142 27, 440 23, 395 37, 861 20, 567 25, 777 49, 075 45, 653 50, 481 29, 013	356, 516 120, 562 89, 109 71, 939 87, 322 101, 805 41, 686 41, 959 44, 388 41, 617 45, 200	351, 138 117, 624 88, 384 71, 451 86, 223 101, 324 40, 931 40, 561 43, 303 39, 003 44, 540	5, 378 2, 938 726 488 1, 099 481 755 1, 398 1, 085 2, 614 660

¹ Changes in the Revenue Acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from estate tax returns are

GIFT TAX RETURNS

There are presented herein tables compiled from gift tax returns for 1934, filed during the calendar year 1935. The provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 apply to gifts made during the calendar year 1934. This Act imposes a tax, payable by the donor, upon the transfer of property by gift made subsequent to June 6, 1932, at rates graduated from three-fourths of 1 percent upon net gifts of less than \$10,000 to 33½ percent on the amount in excess of \$10,000,000. Any individual citizen or resident of the United States who makes any transfer by gift which exceeds \$5,000 in value to any one donee, or regardless of value if the gift consists of a future interest, must file a

<sup>To largest in the Neventer Acts altering the comparability of scattering data from estate tax returns are summarized on pp. 120-121.
Includes citizens residing outside the United States who died on or after May 11, 1934.
Excludes citizens residing outside the United States who died on or after May 11, 1934.
The net taxable estate for decedent who died after 4:59 p. m. June 6, 1932, is shown under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926, whereas the tax is under the provisions of that Act plus the additional tax under the Revenue Acts of 1932, 1934, or 1935.</sup>

gift tax return. A nonresident alien is similarly required to file a return if the gift consists of property situated in the United States.

The rates of tax in force for the calendar year for which the return is filed are applied, first, to the cumulative net gifts made from June 6, 1932 (the date of the enactment of the Revenue Act of 1932), to the end of the calendar year for which the return is filed. From the tax so determined there is deducted an amount computed by applying like rates to the cumulative net gifts made up to the beginning of such calendar year. The balance is the tax liability for the calendar year for which the return is filed.

The following tables show form of property in which gifts were made by net gift classes; also number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax, classified by net gift classes, by total gift classes, and by taxable and

nontaxable returns.

The data presented are based on the returns as filed and prior to any adjustments resulting from the audit. The tax liability shown in the tables will not correspond with the actual collections for the same period, as payment of the tax shown on the returns is at times deferred, and for the further reason that any deficiency taxes or overassessments disclosed by the audit are not reflected.

In the tables, the term "total gifts" represents the value of the property transferred less any money consideration, if any, received in exchange, provided a donative intent existed. The tax is imposed upon the net gifts which are obtained by subtracting from the total

gifts:

(1) An exclusion of \$5,000 for each donee (except in cases of future interests):

(2) The amount of gross gifts represented by charitable, public, and

similar gifts; and

(3) A specific exemption not in excess of \$50,000 for each resident or citizen donor, which may be taken all in one year or spread over a

period of years at the option of the donor.

The several forms of gifts, comprising total gifts, have been classified under the headings of real estate, stocks and bonds, cash, insurance, and miscellaneous. The last-named classification includes jewelry, objects of art, copyrights on books, the forgiveness of debts, interest in business, the assignment of a judgment, the assignment of benefits of a contract of insurance, etc. Gifts of stocks and bonds comprise 72.1 percent of total gifts, followed by gifts of cash amounting to 12 percent, real estate 6.5 percent, miscellaneous gifts 5.4 percent, and insurance 4 percent. Gifts for charitable, public, and similar purposes amounted to 9.2 percent of the total gifts made.

A little more than one-half of the total gifts was effected by trusts. The following table gives, for each form of property, the total gifts,

amount by trust, and all other gifts:

Gift tax returns for 1934 showing by form of property the total gifts, amount by trust, and all other gifts

[Thousands of dollars]

Form of property	Total	Amount	All other
	gifts	by trust	gifts
Real estate Stocks and bonds Cash Insurance Miscellaneous Total	57, 723	12,106	45, 617
	640, 761	406,467	234, 294
	106, 265	21,918	84, 347
	35, 620	17,729	17, 891
	48, 384	11,120	37, 264
	888, 753	469,340	419, 413

From the following table comparison can be made with respect to all returns filed for the calendar years 1932, 1933, and 1934:

Gift tax returns for 1932, 1933, and 1934, showing total number of returns, taxable and nontaxable returns, total gifts, net gifts, and tax

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Nu	nber of ret	urns	Total	,		
Period	Total	Taxable	Nontax- able	gifts	Net gifts	Tax	
June 6-Dec. 31, 1932. Jan. 1-Dec. 31, 1933. Jan. 1-Dec. 31, 1934.	1, 747 3, 683 9, 270	245 878 2, 528	1, 502 2, 805 6, 742	81, 389 241, 008 888, 753	17, 879 101, 793 537, 086	1, 111 8, 943 68, 383	

¹ 1932 covers period June 6 to Dec. 31, 1932.

Of the donors who filed gift tax returns for 1934, there were 1,825 who had also made gifts in preceding years. The number of returns, net gifts, and tax of these identical donors are given in the following table:

Gift tax returns of identical donors for 1934 and preceding years, showing number of returns, net gifts, and tax

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Num- ber of	Net gift	s on retu	rns for—	Taxo	n returns	s for—
	returns for 1934	1934	Preced- ing years 1	Total	1934	Preced- ing years ¹	Total
Returns taxable for 1934 of donors filing nontaxable returns for preceding years Returns taxable for 1934 of donors filing taxable returns for preceding years Returns not taxable for 1934 of donors filing taxable returns for preceding years Returns not taxable for 1934 of donors filing taxable returns for preceding years	419 379 14	66, 061 188, 048	58, 517 2, 216	66, 061 246, 565 2, 216	7, 684 38, 628	6, 337 161	7, 684 44, 965 161
ing nontaxable returns for preceding years	1,013				 		
Total	1,825	254, 108	60, 733	314, 841	46, 313	6, 497	52, 810

¹ Covers period June 6, 1932, to Dec. 31, 1933.

Table 1.—Gift tax returns for 1934 by net gift classes, showing number of returns, total gifts 1 by form of property, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, 2 and tax

[Money figures and net gift classes in thousands of dollars]

			Total gifts	s by form o	f property		Total
Net gift classes ²	Number of returns	Real estate	Stocks and bonds	Cash	Insur- ance	Miscel- laneous	gifts before exclu- sions
Nontaxable returns:							
No net gifts	6, 742	25, 653	105, 869	43, 814	7, 176	13, 812	196, 325
Taxable returns:			- 				
Under 10	514	2,458	13, 231	3,009	1,500	1,853	22, 052
10-20	262	1,075	9, 203	3, 104	1,077	1,038	15, 497
20-30	194	1,753	8,852	1,911	676	1,540	14, 733
30-40	176	919	9,841	3, 200	861	768	15, 588
40-50	192	915	11,481	3, 110	1,669	1,556	18, 731
50-100	391	3,840	35, 136	6, 469	3, 101	2, 958	51, 504
100-200	317	3, 598	46, 297	7,086	3, 471	3, 508	63, 961
200-400		3,525	61, 627	7, 396	2, 308	2, 704	77, 561
400-600	77	1, 525	35, 375	2, 109	2,815	1,334	43, 157
600-800	43	147	27, 986	2, 525	2,979	837	34, 473
800-1,000	31	1,017	24, 243	962	2, 015	1,880	30, 110
1,000-1,500	40	1,312	41,033	4, 251	2,402	349	49, 347
1,500-2,000	25	3, 870	37, 420	1,974	116	2, 483	45, 86
2,000-2,500	9	2, 595	15,003	437		2, 646	20, 68
2,500-3,000	6	383	12,742	3,814	<u></u>	80	17, 020
3,000-3,500		1,800	14, 216	2, 137	1,723	25	19, 900
3,500-4,000	2		7, 240	627		9	7,87
4,000-4,500		-	19,082	2, 964		54	22, 10
4,500-5,000			4,713	10			4,72
5,000-6,000			5, 581				5, 581
6,000-7,000							
7.000-8,000			7,470				7, 470
8,000-9,000			9,926	93		8,903	18, 922
9,000-10,000		1, 338		5, 264	1,729	8, 903	
10,000 and over	3	1, 335	77, 195	3, 204	1, 729	47	85, 572
Total taxable returns	2, 528	32, 070	534, 891	62, 451	28, 443	34, 572	692, 428
Grand total	9, 270	57, 723	640, 761	106, 265	35, 620	48, 384	888, 753

For footnotes see p. 54.

Table 1.—Gift tax returns for 1934 by net gift classes, showing number of returns, total gifts 1 by form of property, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts,2 and tax—Continued

[Money figures and net gift classes in thousands of dollars]

				Deductions	3		
Net gift classes *	Exclusions not exceeding \$5,000 for each donee	Total gifts after exclu- sions	Charitable gifts after exclusions 3	Specific exemp- tion claimed in 1934 return 4	Total deduc- tions	Net gifts	Тах
Nontaxable returns:							
No net gifts	50, 264	146, 061	41, 370	104, 691	146, 061		
Taxable returns:							
Under 10	4, 509	17, 542	754	14, 721	15.474	2,068	25
10-20	2, 825	12,672	559	8, 381	8, 941	3, 731	51
20-30.	2, 214	12, 519	323	7, 465	7, 788	4, 731	75
30-40	1, 930	13, 658	1, 223	6, 327	7,550	6, 108	125
40-50	2, 127	16, 604	1, 223	7, 856	8,010	8, 594	192
50-100	4, 910	46, 594	3,054	15, 299	18, 353	28, 241	964
100-200.	4,870	59, 091	1,834	12, 424	14, 258	44. 833	2, 102
200-400	3, 723	73, 838	1,009	8, 564	9, 573	64, 264	3, 927
400-600	1, 405	41, 752	1,787	3, 059	4,846	36, 906	2, 630
400-000 600 900	795	33, 678		1,605	4, 314	29, 364	2, 030 2, 402
600-800		29, 376	2,709				2, 402
800-1,000	740		495	1,098	1,593	27, 783	
1,000-1,500	1,088	48, 258	236	1,459	1,695	46, 563	4,605
1,500-2,000	630	45. 233	637	600	1, 237	43,996	5, 338
2,000-2,500	200	20, 482	83	350	433	20,049	2,675
2,500-3,000	115	16, 905	164	150	314	16, 591	2, 278
3,000-3,500	170	19,730	84	150	234	19, 496	3, 344
3,500-4,000	80	7, 795	64	99	163	7,632	1, 170
4,000-4,500	250	21, 851	242	32	275	21,576	3, 862
4,500-5,000	15	4, 708	5	50	55	4, 653	777
5,000-6,000	20	5, 561				5, 561	1, 270
6,000-7,000							
7,090-8,000	15	7,455		45	45	7, 410	1,516
8,000-9,000							
9,009-10,000		18, 892	9, 479		9, 479	9, 413	2, 210
10,000 and over	450	85, 122	7, 549	50	7, 599	77, 523	24, 315
Total taxable returns	33, 112	659, 315	32, 443	89, 786	122, 229	537,086	68, 383
Grand total	83, 377	805, 376	73, 814	194, 476	268, 290	537, 086	68, 383

¹ Total gifts before subtracting exclusions and before deducting charitable, public, and sin ilar gifts and

Total gifts before subtracting exclusions and before deducting character, public, and sin har gifts and specific exemptions.

Net gifts after exclusions and deductions.

Total charitable, public, and sinilar gifts after total exclusions for such gifts not exceeding \$5,000 for each donee (except future interests).

A specific exemption of \$50,000 is allowed each resident or citizen donor. At the option of the donor, this amount may be taken in one year or spread over a period of years.

Table 2.—Gift tax returns for 1934 by total gift classes and by taxable and nontaxable returns, showing number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts, and tax

[Money figures and total gift classes in thousands of dollars]

					Tax	able					
							Deductions				
Total gift classes 1	Total num- ber of returns	Num- ber of returns	Total gifts before exclu-	Exclusions not ex- ceeding \$5,000	Total gifts after exclu-	publi	table, c, and bequests	Specific exemp- tion	Total		
			sions	for each donee		Num- ber of donees	Amount after exclu- sions ³	claimed in 1934 return 4	duc- tions		
Under 10	1, 649 2, 070 1, 208 774 733 1, 487 688 348 115 47 29 53 21 17	90 106 73 61 65 821 669 337 112 29 53 21 16	624 1, 459 1, 795 2, 164 2, 912 60, 820 90, 617 91, 754 53, 847 31, 565 25, 799 61, 637 36, 201 34, 339 21, 740	415 671 674 645 700 8,002 8,661 5,925 2,140 815 605 1,713 495 455	209 788 1, 121 1, 519 2, 212 52, 818 81, 956 85, 829 51, 707 30, 750 25, 194 59, 924 35, 706 33, 884 21, 590	2 5 12 3 6 50 81 68 39 19 16 60 14 25	10 49 5 14 343 1,348 1,282 1,189 1,115 247 2,795 4,280 2,161	3 68 251 559 700 34,925 28,826 13,186 4,750 1,769 1,101 1,947 461 563 200	3 78 301 564 714 35, 268 30, 175 14, 468 5, 938 2, 884 1, 347 4, 742 638 4, 843 2, 361		
3,000-3,500 3,500-4,000 4,000-4,500 4,500-5,000 5,000-6,000	$\frac{2}{4}$	6 2 4 3 1	19, 403 7, 258 17, 172 13, 775 5, 581	165 40 175 150 20	19, 238 7, 218 16, 997 13, 625 5, 561	7 8 1 14 8	87 1 157 155	150 100 81 50	237 101 238 205		
6,000-7,000 7,000-8,000 8,000-9,000	1	1	7, 470	15	7, 455			45	45		
9,000-10,000 10,000 and over	5	4	104, 494	480	104,014	60	17, 028	50	17, 078		
Total	9, 270	2, 528	692, 428	33, 112	659, 315	498	32, 443	89, 786	122, 229		

For footnotes see p. 56.

Table 2.—Gift tax returns for 1934 by total gift classes and by taxable and nontax-able returns, showing number of returns, total gifts before exclusions, exclusions, total gifts after exclusions, deductions, net gifts,² and tax—Continued

[Money figures and total gift classes in thousands of dollars]

	Taxable	-Con.				Nontax	able			
								Dedu	etions	
Total gift classes ¹	Net gifts	Тах	Num- ber of re- turns	Total gifts before exclu-	Exclusions not exceeding \$5,000 for	Total gifts after exclu-	publ simil	itable, ic and ar be- ests	Spe- cific exemp- tion	Total deduc-
				sions	each donee	sions	Num- ber of donees	Amount after exclu- sions ³	claimed in 1934 re- turn ⁴	tions
Under 10	206 709 821 955 1, 499 17, 550 51, 782 71, 360 45, 769 27, 865	4 16 17 20 39 376 1,881 4,000 3,103 2,203	1, 559 1, 964 1, 135 713 668 666 19 11	10, 491 27, 326 27, 514 24, 321 29, 862 37, 863 2, 809 2, 995 1, 440 659	6, 816 11, 956 8, 907 6, 762 6, 648 8, 340 436 255 15	3, 676 15, 369 18, 607 17, 559 23, 214 29, 523 2, 373 2, 740 1, 425 639	56 103 81 61 48 87 51 37	125 546 672 435 450 1, 401 2, 057 2, 699 1, 425 639	3, 551 14, 823 17, 935 17, 125 22, 764 28, 122 316 41	3, 676 15, 369 18, 607 17, 559 23, 214 29, 523 2, 373 2, 740 1, 425
800-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000	23, 847 55, 182 35, 068	2,071 5,326 4,222								
2,000-2,500 2,500-3,000 3,000-3,500 3,500-4,000 4,000-4,500	29, 041 19, 229 19, 001 7, 117 16, 759	3, 667 2, 567 3, 246 1, 060 3, 030	1	2,360	5	2,355	1	2, 355		2, 355
4,500-5,090 5,000-6,000 6,000-7,000 7,000-8,000	5, 561	2, 223 1, 270	i	5, 845	100	5, 745	16	5, 732	13	5, 745
8,000-9,000- 9,000-10,000- 10,000 and over-		26, 525	1	22,842	5	22, 837	1	22, 837		22, 837
Total	537, 086	68, 383	6,742	196, 325	50, 264	146, 061	545	41, 370	104, 691	146, 061

¹ Total gifts before subtracting exclusions and before deducting charitable, public, and similar gifts and

specific exemption.

2 Net gifts after exclusions and deductions.

3 Total charitable, public, and similar gifts after total exclusions for such gifts not exceeding \$5,000 for each

Tables exhibiting in greater detail information from individual income tax returns are continued in the following pages.

There is also included a synopsis of individual income and profits tax rates, estate and gift tax rates, credits, and exemptions under the Revenue Acts of 1913 to 1934 which affect the comparability of the data in the Statistics of Income.

Statistics from the corporation income tax returns for 1934 are being prepared and will be issued under the title "Statistics of Income for 1934, Part 2."

Respectfully,

CHAS. T. RUSSELL, Acting Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Approved November 17, 1936.

H. Morgenthau, Jr., Secretary of the Treasury.

donee (except future interests).

4 A specific exemption of \$50,000 is allowed each resident or citizen donor. At the option of the donor, this amount may be taken in one year or spread over a period of years.

BASIC TABLES

INDIVIDUAL RETURNS

STATISTICS OF INCOME

Table 1.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing population and percent of population filing returns, number of returns, net income and tax; also average net income and average tax per return, and personal exemption and credit for dependents

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

	Popula- tion July 1,					Averag retu		
States and Territories	1934 (Census Bureau esti- mate) (In thou- sands)	Percent of pop- ulation filing returns	Number of returns	Net income	Tax	Net income	Tax	Personal exemption and credit for depend ents
Alabama	2,803	0.82	23, 072	\$69, 229, 199	\$1, 407, 104	\$3,000.57	\$60.99	\$54, 157, 767
Arizona	386	2.95	11, 378	29, 802, 959	391, 723	2, 619. 35	34, 43	25, 949, 562
Arkansas	1, 975	. 67	13, 318	38, 885, 585	677, 515	2, 919. 78	50.87	31, 984, 517
California	5,639	5.60	315, 766	968, 067, 116	33, 380, 393	3, 065. 77	105, 71	644, 102, 156
Colorado	1,058	2, 95	31, 232	94, 502, 319	3, 281, 526	3, 025, 82	105.07	69, 459, 896
Connecticut	1,699	5. 38	91, 352	288, 693, 183	12, 325, 678	3, 160. 23	134. 93	185, 794, 434
Delaware	253	4, 20	10, 620	55, 073, 452	9, 312, 466	5, 185. 82	876.88	22, 116, 382
Dist. Columbia.	560	14.80	82, 871	234, 925, 250	5, 653, 864 5, 597, 287	2, 834. 83	68. 22	156, 022, 897
Florida	1,586	2.05	32, 550	112, 102, 614	5, 597, 287	3, 444. 01	171.96	76, 693, 134
Georgia	3, 273	1.17	38, 137	122, 612, 284	3, 104, 301	3, 215. 05	81.40	90, 612, 940
Hawaii	382	2.95	11, 252	37, 515, 719	1, 563, 069	3, 334. 14	138. 91	27, 833, 220
Idaho	473 7, 786	1.89 3.99	8, 932 310, 456	23, 636, 891 1, 006, 927, 934	281, 770 40, 398, 845	2, 646. 32 3, 243. 38	31. 55 130. 13	19, 472, 680
Illinois	3, 398	2,05	69, 623	198, 442, 985	6, 881, 939	2, 850. 25	98.85	682, 120, 407 151, 737, 6 30
Indiana Iowa	2, 524	1, 90	47, 871	119, 454, 155	2, 005, 786	2, 495, 33	41.90	104, 740, 520
Kansas	1,840	1.93	35, 600	91, 867, 863	1, 499, 250	2, 580. 56	42. 11	80, 513, 004
Kentucky	2,808	1. 26	35, 333	107, 389, 715	2, 726, 762	3, 039, 36	77. 17	77, 705, 751
Louisiana	2, 117	1.74	36, 871	106, 168, 279	2, 296, 812	2, 879. 45	62, 29	79, 411, 678
Maine	837	2, 46	20, 584	63, 204, 584	2, 207, 930	3, 070. 57	107. 26	43, 516, 442
Maryland	1,663	5.07	84, 395	282, 624, 171	11, 040, 490	3, 348. 83	130, 82	183, 328, 349
Massachusetts	4, 326	5. 61	242, 728	737, 044, 841	24, 624, 216	3, 036. 51	101. 45	494, 481, 218
Michigan	4,680	2.98	139, 329	418, 569, 373	14, 866, 008	3, 004. 18	106. 70	314, 581, 748
Minnesota	2, 617 1, 961	2. 57 . 64	67, 297 12, 507	196, 345, 236 32, 578, 332	5, 257, 595 479, 717	2, 917. 59 2, 604. 81	78. 13 38. 36	147, 447, 166
Mississippi Missouri	3,866	2.54	98, 125	306, 041, 392	9, 353, 651	3, 118. 89	95.32	30, 529, 018 219, 326, 684
Montana	531	3. 17	16, 825	46, 594, 430	636, 102	2, 769. 36	37.81	38, 035, 613
Nebraska	1,364	1.96	26, 781	77, 236, 225	1, 438, 974	2, 883, 99	53. 73	61, 082, 850
Nevada	98	5.43	5, 321	15, 236, 981	528,009	2, 863. 56	99, 23	10, 654, 667
New Hampshire	496	3.38	16, 785	48, 267, 423	1, 348, 492	2, 875. 63	80.34	34, 288, 046
New Jersey	4, 247	4.96	210, 683	686, 065, 373	29, 121, 247	3, 256. 39	138. 22	479, 415, 143
New Mexico	402	1.90	7,647	20, 107, 880	277, 567	2, 629. 51	36.30	16, 795, 537
New York	12,839	6. 29	807, 818 32, 305	2, 811, 720, 784	166, 789, 731	3, 480. 64	206. 47	1, 738, 161, 006
North Carolina. North Dakota	3, 376	. 96 1, 40	9, 733	112, 913, 710 22, 351, 926	6, 281, 451 183, 955	3, 495, 24 2, 296, 51	194. 44 18. 90	78, 138, 623
Ohio	697 6,697	3, 13	209, 589	631, 348, 370	19, 761, 006	3, 012, 32	94. 28	23, 458, 968 462, 165, 124
Oklahoma	2, 490	1.58	39 279	120, 030, 049	3, 416, 992	3, 055. 83	86. 99	98, 810, 689
Oregon	999	2, 73	27, 253	71, 076, 619	1, 084, 638	2, 608. 03	39.80	59, 017, 324
Pennsylvania	9,994	3, 43	342, 308	1, 067, 788, 870	44, 423, 725	3, 119. 38	129.78	734, 215, 409
Rhode Island	681	4.59	31, 235	104, 193, 731	5, 232, 124	3, 335, 80	167. 51	66, 399, 437
South Carolina.	1,967	. 76	14, 937	41, 023, 968	735, 471	2, 746, 47	49. 24	35, 832, 393
South Dakota	678	1, 22	8,302	20, 105, 511	225, 380	2, 421. 77	27, 15	18, 706, 730
Tennessee	2,856	1.33	37, 938	115, 788, 720	3, 596, 105	3, 052. 05	94.79	87, 803, 657
Texas	6, 035	1.97	118, 930	366, 713, 839	11, 312, 971	3, 083, 44	95. 12	250, 178, 753
Utah	514	2.23	11,458	32, 016, 329	468, 653	2, 794. 23	40.90	29, 262, 689
Vermont	374 2,602	2. 63 1. 84	9, 824 47, 814	26, 565, 697 139, 932, 355	435, 666 3, 665, 810	2, 704. 16 2, 926, 60	44. 35 76. 67	20, 525, 722 108, 494, 124
Virginia Washington 1	1,681	3, 58	60, 151	153, 639, 087	2, 551, 738	2, 920, 00	42, 42	123, 002, 730
West Virginia	1,801	1.68	30, 297	87, 992, 253	1, 674, 942	2, 904, 32	55. 28	69, 347, 917
Wisconsin	2,908	3. 19	92, 826	217, 350, 901	5, 009, 731	2, 341. 49	53. 97	202, 000, 221
Wyoming	231	3. 11	7, 182	19, 035, 620	583, 601	2, 650. 46	81. 27	16, 188, 395
								<u> </u>
Total	127, 068	3. 22	4, 094, 420	12, 796, 802, 082	511, 399, 778	3, 125. 42	124. 90	8, 875, 620, 967

¹ Includes Alaska.

59

Table 2.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and tax, average tax per return, average rate of tax, personal exemption and credit for dependents, and earned income credit

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

Net income classes				T_{ϵ}	ıx	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total	Normal	Surtax	Average tax per return
Under 1 (est.)1	310, 401	\$205, 654, 156				*
Under 1 (est.)	10, 059 623, 136	5, 458, 724 741, 849, 443	\$111,075	\$111,075		\$11.04
1-1.5 (est.)	381, 773	494, 749, 722	2, 609, 257	2, 609, 257		6. 83
1.5-2 (est.) ¹ 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) ¹	381, 773 303, 331 299, 855 321, 008	525, 976, 203 515, 150, 299	6, 049, 872	6, 049, 872		20. 18
2-2.5 (est.)	124, 117	729, 406, 134 275, 120, 717	4, 341, 047	4, 341, 047		34. 98
2.5-3 (est.) ¹	433, 907 101, 650	1, 180, 725, 085 282, 599, 534	3, 225, 739	3, 225, 739		31, 73
3-3.5 (est.)1	196, 161 134, 541	628, 055, 733 438, 144, 975	3, 692, 209	3, 692, 209		27. 44
3.5-4 (est.) ¹ 3.5-4 (est.)	71, 049 131, 608	262, 004, 628 493, 034, 206	4, 577, 988	4, 577, 988		34. 79
4-4.5 (est.)1	22, 756 111, 164	493, 034, 206 95, 722, 680 471, 236, 035	5, 032, 038	5, 018, 871	\$13, 167	45. 27
4.5-5 (est.) ¹	10, 025 85, 232	47, 346, 030 403, 803, 454	5, 046, 378	5, 015, 291	31, 087	59. 21
5-6 ¹	6, 726 107, 136	36, 503, 699 585, 115, 977	9, 539, 352	8, 322, 388	1, 216, 964	89. 04
6-7	72, 405 47, 342	468, 140, 846 353, 497, 664	8, 605, 543 7, 947, 122	7, 354, 430 6, 121, 608	1, 251, 113 1, 825, 514	118.85 167.87
7-8 8-9		276, 395, 908	8, 045, 990	5, 105, 342	2, 940, 648	246. 68
9-10	24, 598	276, 395, 908 233, 237, 289 195, 364, 429	8, 045, 990 8, 948, 123	5, 014, 182	3, 933, 941	363. 77
10-11		195, 364, 429 169, 121, 543	7, 255, 493 6, 959, 421	3, 888, 990 3, 412, 875	3, 366, 503 3, 546, 546	389. 03 472. 3
12-13	11, 884	148, 327, 048	6, 654, 511	3, 034, 370	3, 620, 141	559. 96
13-14	9,768	131, 717, 320	6, 347, 649	2, 709, 177 2, 504, 222	3, 638, 472	649. 84
14-15	8, 333 25, 968	120, 728, 528 446, 546, 040	6. 207, 137 27, 066, 834	2, 504, 222 9, 437, 484	3, 702, 915 17, 629, 350	744. 89 1, 042. 3
20-25	13, 556	301 786 841	23, 468, 704	6, 364, 643	17, 104, 061	1, 731, 2
25-30	7, 971	217, 590, 074 293, 351, 850 197, 588, 193	20, 986, 275	4 511 093	16, 475, 182	2, 632. 8
30-40	8, 534	293, 351, 850	34, 920, 228 29, 000, 197	5, 809, 391 3, 803, 977	29, 110, 837 25, 196, 220	4, 091. 8
40-50	4, 426 2, 480	135, 138, 528	23, 286, 231	2, 467, 549	20, 818, 682	6, 552. 2 9, 389. 6
60-70	1, 527	98, 806, 341	19, 526, 559	1, 716, 619	17, 809, 940	12, 787. 53
70-80		69, 828, 785	15, 656, 449	1, 276, 557	14, 379, 892	16, 762. 7
80-90 90-100		58, 420, 947 43, 781, 504	14, 489, 260 11, 833, 499	975, 230 689, 983	13, 514, 030 11, 143, 516	21, 029. 4 25, 558. 3
100-150		117, 743, 929	38, 165, 893	1, 647, 248	36, 518, 645	38, 865, 4
150-200	364	62, 342, 605	24, 103, 588	758, 592	23, 344, 996	66, 218. 6
200-250	204 122	45, 187, 638 33, 429, 636	19, 047, 973 14, 843, 071	537, 770 284, 940	18, 510, 203 14, 558, 131	93, 372. 4 121, 664. 5
300-400	77	26, 425, 109	12, 331, 034	236, 740	12 004 204	160, 143, 3
400-500	39	26, 425, 109 17, 407, 233 34, 345, 367	8, 522, 792	163, 921	8, 358, 871	160, 143. 3 218, 533. 1 305, 781. 3
500-750	57	34, 345, 367	17, 429, 535	169, 603	17, 259, 932	305, 781. 3
750~1,000	29 21	25, 118, 879 24, 353, 317	13, 314, 968 13, 213, 661	142, 844 70, 568	13, 172, 124 13, 143, 093	459, 136. 8 629, 221. 9
1,000-1,500- 1,500-2,000-	4	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)
2,000-3,000	6	15, 385, 365	8, 642, 034	26, 264	8, 615, 770	1, 440, 339. 0
3.000-4.000	. 1	(2)	(2)		(2)	(2)
4,000-5,000	·	(2)	(2)		(2)	(9)
5.000 and over Classes grouped 2		18, 035, 892	10, 355, 049	60, 622	10, 294, 427	(2) 1, 725, 841. 5
Total	4, 094, 420	12, 796, 802, 082	511, 399, 778	123, 260, 571	388, 139, 207	124. 9
Nontaxable returns 1 Taxable returns		4, 453, 243, 791 8, 343, 558, 291	511, 399, 778	123, 260, 571	388, 139, 207	284. 7

For footnotes see p. 61.

Table 2.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and tax, average tax per return, average rate of tax, personal exemption and credit for dependents, and earned income credit—Continued

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

	Tax— Contd.	Personal exemp	otion and credit	for dependents	
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	A verage rate of tax on net income (percent)	Total	Personal exemption	Credit for dependents	Earned income credit
Under 1 (est.)¹ Under 1 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -1.5 (est.)¹ -2.5 (est.)¹ -2.2 (est.)² -2.3 (est.)¹ -2.5 (est.)² -3.5 (est.)¹ -4.5 (est.)¹ -4.5 (est.)¹ -4.5 (est.)¹ -4.5 (est.)¹ -4.5 (est.)¹ -6.6 -77.8 -9.9 -10 -11 -11-12 -12 -13 -13 -14 -14-15 -15-20 -20 -25 -30 -30 -40 -40 -50 -50 -60 -70 -70 -80 -80 -90 -90 -90 -90 -90 -90 -90 -90 -90 -9	2. 03 . 53 1. 17 1. 58 1. 14 . 84 . 93 1. 07	\$527, 199, 695 1, 049, 645 1, 181, 064, 947 375, 971, 835 797, 994, 302 305, 587, 945 888, 267, 035 131, 150, 856 1, 293, 680, 994 165, 255, 613 638, 929, 320 202, 154, 534 223, 896, 284 320, 899, 648 320, 899, 648 320, 899, 648 321, 180, 897 228, 457, 417 191, 338, 059 21, 180, 897 238, 457, 417 191, 338, 059 24, 265, 791 24, 339, 592 84, 212, 197 63, 488, 541 47, 444, 571 37, 133, 429 29, 504, 998 24, 265, 791 20, 724, 359 63, 787, 589 32, 570, 291 18, 789, 273 19, 928, 990 10, 301, 187 57, 171, 148 3, 570, 282 2, 106, 296 1, 571, 714 8, 3, 570, 282 2, 106, 296 1, 571, 168 3, 577, 282 2, 106, 296 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 171 1, 571, 571 1, 571, 575 1, 5	\$480, 167, 363 1, 024, 370, 898 375, 461, 511 686, 024, 043 297, 862, 397 779, 480, 318 124, 619, 502 1, 070, 976, 081 124, 619, 502 1, 070, 976, 081 171, 192, 173 289, 109, 423 52, 683, 665 248, 053, 197 21, 841, 798 189, 228, 768 16, 043, 771 233, 226, 828 157, 125, 105 101, 430, 521 68, 877, 363 51, 765, 391 38, 964, 307 30, 562, 713 24, 278, 278 16, 627, 754 17, 125, 105 17, 125, 105 18, 17, 125 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18, 18,	\$47, 032, 332 98, 487 156, 694, 049 510, 324 111, 070, 259 7, 725, 548 108, 786, 717 6, 531, 354 222, 704, 913 13, 428, 133 72, 704, 111 31, 790, 225 25, 100, 984 39, 872, 062 9, 576, 560 36, 395, 582 5, 137, 128 30, 589 34, 212, 954 22, 909, 071 15, 334, 834 11, 723, 240 8, 480, 264 6, 570, 716 5, 226, 732 4, 260, 305 3, 698, 662 11, 135, 186 5, 531, 369 3, 126, 485 3, 301, 236 1, 652, 827 919, 194 562, 500 319, 920 233, 466 157, 718 331, 134 105, 999 57, 767 25, 051 114, 867 6, 800 9, 033 5, 067 5, 200	\$11, 314, 647 545, 872 55, 670, 644 49, 474, 972 50, 333, 353 51, 515, 030 41, 050, 215 7, 512, 072 88, 432, 879 48, 432, 879 48, 296, 953 46, 362, 392 42, 045, 993 46, 362, 392 42, 045, 993 46, 362, 397 40, 220, 199 24, 045, 993 34, 063, 795 2, 064, 191 13, 028, 037 10, 926, 448 11, 729, 460 120, 777 598, 999 416, 216 882, 239 302, 933 164, 831 98, 485
1,500-2.000 2,000-3.000 3,000-4.000 4,000-5.000	(2) 56. 17 (2)	(2) 15, 183	(2) 12, 250	(2) 2, 933	(2) 4, 121 (2)
5.000 and over Classes grouped ²	(2) 57. 41	(2) 8, 050	(²) 7, 250	800	(²) 4, 000
Total	4. 00	8, 875, 620, 967	7, 628, 769, 106	1, 246, 851, 861	875, 962, 286
Nontaxable returns 1 Taxable returns	6. 13	5, 700, 516, 481 3, 175, 104, 486	4, 784, 498, 247 2, 844, 270, 859	916, 018, 234 330, 833, 627	303, 799, 311 572, 162, 975

Nontaxable returns. Specific exemptions from normal tax and surtax exceed net income. A negligible number of nontaxable returns in net income classes of \$6,000 and over is not tabulated separately.
 Classes grouped to conceal identity of taxpayer.

Table 3.—Individual returns for 1934 by nct income classes, showing simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income and tax, and percentages
[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

			Retu	rns		
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative tion from income cl	n highest	Cumulative tion from income cl	n lowest
	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total	Number	Percent of total
Under I (est.) 1-2 (est.) 2-3 (est.) 3-4 (est.) 4-5 (est.) 5-6 6-7 7-8 8-9 9-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-60 60-70 70-90 80-90 90-100 100-150 150-200 200-250 250-300 300-400 300-400 300-400 300-400 300-250 250-300 300-400 300-400 300-400 300-250 250-300 300-400 300-250 250-300 300-400 300-400	320, 460 1, 608, 095 980, 682 533, 359 229, 177 113, 862 72, 405 47, 342 32, 617 24, 598 18, 650 14, 733 11, 884 9, 768 8, 333 25, 968 13, 556 7, 971 7, 971 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 426 2, 480 4, 427 7, 934 4, 427 3, 427	7.83 39.27 23.95 13.03 5.60 2.78 1.77 1.16 800 46 366 366 37 633 333 19 211 66 02 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	4, 094, 420 3, 773, 960 2, 165, 865 1, 185, 183 651, 824 422, 647 308, 785 236, 380 189, 038 156, 421 131, 823 113, 173 113, 173 113, 173 113, 173 114, 173 98, 440 86, 556 76, 788 68, 455 42, 487 23, 931 20, 930 12, 426 8, 000 5, 520 3, 993 3, 050 2, 370 1, 907 1, 907 561 1, 907 1, 907 561 1, 907 1, 907	100. 00 92. 17 52. 90 28. 95 15. 92 10. 32 7. 4. 61 3. 81 3. 21 2. 75 2. 39 2. 10 1. 86 1. 66 6. 66 1. 63 1. 70 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1. 19 1. 30 1.	320, 460 () 1, 928, 555 (2, 909, 237 (3, 442, 596 (3, 671, 773 (3, 785, 635 (3, 962, 507 (3, 981, 247 (3, 985, 980 (4, 007, 864 (4, 017, 364 (4, 017	7, 83 47, 10, 10 47, 10, 10 58, 10, 88, 10 88, 10, 88, 10 96, 19 97, 25 97, 61 97, 70 98, 14 98, 97 99, 30 99, 49 99, 87 99, 99 99, 87 99, 99
400-500 500-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500 2,000-3,000 3,030-4,000 4,000-5,000	57 29 21 4 6 1	(1)	158 119 62 33 12 8	(1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	4, 094, 301 4, 094, 358 4, 094, 387 4, 094, 408 4, 094, 412 4, 094, 412 4, 094, 419	99, 99 99, 99 99, 99 99, 96 99, 96 99, 96
5,000 and over	4, 094, 420	100.00	1	(1)	4, 094, 420	100.00
			Net in	come	<u> </u>	
			Cumulati	- 31-4 13		. 22-4-21

			Net income							
Net income classes	Simple dist	tribution	Cumulative tion from income cl	highest	highest tion from					
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total				
Under 1 (est.) 1-2 (est.) 2-3 (est.) 3-4 (est.) 4-5 (est.) 5-6 6-7 7-8 8-9 9-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50	2, 447, 851 1, 821, 240 1, 018, 108 621, 620 468, 141 353, 498 276, 396 273, 237 195, 364 169, 122 148, 327 120, 729 446, 546 301, 787 217, 599	1, 65 17, 80 19, 28 14, 23 7, 95 4, 86 2, 76 2, 16 1, 82 1, 13 1, 13 2, 16 1, 16 1, 16 1, 17 2, 29 1, 53	12, 796, 802 12, 585, 689 10, 307, 964 17, 840, 112 6, 018, 873 5, 000, 764 4, 379, 145 3, 911, 004 3, 587, 506 3, 281, 110 2, 683, 387 2, 582, 509 2, 683, 387 2, 585, 604 1, 386, 668 1, 384, 281 1, 316, 601 1, 102, 339	100. 00 98. 35 80. 55 61. 27 47. 04 39. 09 34. 23 30. 57 27. 81 25. 65 23. 83 22. 30 20. 98 19. 82 18. 79 17. 85 14. 36 12. 00 10. 30 8. 01	211, 113 2, 488, 839 4, 956, 690 6, 777, 930 7, 796, 038 8, 417, 657 8, 885, 798 9, 239, 296 9, 515, 692 9, 744, 929 9, 944, 294 10, 113, 415 10, 291, 742 10, 393, 459 10, 514, 188 10, 960, 734 11, 282, 521 11, 480, 111 11, 773, 463 11, 971, 051	1, 655 19, 455 38, 73 52, 966, 91 60, 91 65, 77 61, 74, 355 76, 17 77, 70 80, 18 82, 151 82, 151 88, 646 88, 000 91, 99				

Table 3.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing simple and cumulative distribution of number of returns, net income and tax, and percentages—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

	and net income classes in thousands of dollars]								
			Net inc	ome					
· Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative tion from income cl	highest	tion from	2, 106, 190 2, 104, 996 2, 204, 996 2, 274, 825 2, 274, 825 95, 96, 3 2, 333, 246 96, 3 2, 377, 027 96, 7 2, 494, 771 97, 62 2, 652, 731 2, 662, 156 98, 7 2, 67, 13, 909 2, 739, 928 2, 739, 928 2, 739, 928 2, 778, 766 (2) (2) (2) 2, 796, 802			
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount				
0.60	135, 139	1.06	825, 751	6. 47	12 106 100	94 5			
0-60	98, 806	.77	690, 613	5. 41	12, 204, 996				
0-80	69,829	, 55	591, 806	4.64	12, 274, 825				
0-90	58, 421	. 46	521, 977	4. 09	12, 333, 246				
0-100	43, 782	$\frac{.34}{.92}$	463, 556 419, 775	3. 63 3. 29	12, 377, 027				
00-150	117, 744 62, 343	. 49	302, 031	2. 37	12, 994, 771				
00-250	45, 188	. 35	239, 688	1. 88	12, 602, 301				
50-300	33, 430	. 26	194, 501	1. 53	12, 635, 731	98.			
00-400	26, 425	. 21	161, 071	1. 27	12, 662, 156	98.			
00-500	17, 407 34, 345	. 14	134, 646 117, 239	1. 06 . 92	12,079,503				
50-1,000	25, 119	. 20	82, 893	. 65	12, 739, 028				
.000-1,500	24, 353	. 19	57, 775	. 45	12, 763, 381				
,500-2,000	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)		(2)			
,000–3,000 ,000–4,000 ,000–5,000	15, 385 (2)	(2). 12	33, 421 (²)	(2). 26					
,000 and over	(2)	(2)	(2)	(2)					
,000 and over Classes grouped 2	18, 036	. 14	18, 036	. 14	12, 796, 802	100.			
Total	12, 796, 802	100.00							
			Та	x					
Net income classes	Simple dis	tribution	Cumulative tion fron income cl	n highest	tion frot	Cumulative distribution from lowes income class			
	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percent of total	Amount	Percen of total			
Inder 1 (est.)	111	0. 02	511, 400	100, 00	111	0. (
-2 (est.)	8, 659	1.69	511, 289	99, 98	8, 770	ĭ. '			
-3 (est.)	7,567	1.48	502, 630	98. 29	16, 337	3.			
-4 (est.) -5 (est.)	8, 270 10, 078	1.62 1.97	495, 063 486, 793	96. 81 95. 19	24, 607 34, 686	4. 6.			
-0 (656.)		1.87	476, 714	93. 22	44, 225				
	9, 539			90.44		X. 1			
-6. -7.	9, 539 8, 606	1, 68	467, 175	91.35	52, 830	8. 10.			
-7	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947	1, 68 1, 55	467, 175 458, 569	91.35 89.67	52, 830 60, 778	10. 11,			
-7. -8. -9.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824	10. 11. 13.			
-7. -8. -9. -10.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57 1, 75	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772	10. 11, 13. 15.			
-7. -8. -9. -10. 11.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987	10. 11, 13. 15. 16. 17.			
7-8-8	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57 1, 75 1, 42 1, 36 1, 30	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987 98, 641	10. 11, 13. 15. 16. 17.			
7-8-8-9	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57 1, 75 1, 42 1, 36 1, 30 1, 24	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987 98, 641 104, 989	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19.			
-7 -8 -9	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57 1, 75 1, 42 1, 36 1, 30 1, 24 1, 21	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48	52,830 60,778 68,824 77,772 85,027 91,987 98,641 104,989 111,196	10. 11, 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21.			
7-8-8-9-10-10-11-12-12-13-3-14-4-15-20-10-25-	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469	1, 68 1, 55 1, 57 1, 75 1, 42 1, 36 1, 30 1, 24 1, 21 5, 29 4, 59	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21.			
7 - 8 - 9	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 4. 21 4. 59 4. 10	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 68. 39	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731 182, 718	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31.			
7. 8. 9. 10. 10. 11. 1-12. 2-13. 3-14. 1-15. 3-20. 3-25. 3-30. 3-40.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 68. 39 64. 29	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 98, 641 104, 989 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731 182, 718 217, 638	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42.			
7. 89. 10	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 986 34, 920 29, 000	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 78, 27 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 85, 027 91, 987 98, 641 104, 989 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731 182, 718 217, 638 246, 638	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42.			
7 - 7 - 8 - 9	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 23, 286	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 428, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80	52, 830 60, 778 68, 824 77, 772 91, 987 98, 641 104, 989 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731 182, 718 217, 638 246, 638 269, 924	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 21. 21. 35. 42. 48.			
7. 8. 9. 10. 11. 11. 1-12. 2-13. 3-14. 1-15. 5-20. 9-25. 5-30. 9-40. 9-60. 9-70.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 986 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656	1. 68 1. 555 1. 577 1. 75 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 10 6. 82 5. 667 4. 55 3. 82 3. 06	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 221, 476 221, 949	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 85 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 78, 27 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43	52, 830, 60, 778, 60, 778, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 98, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 246, 638, 249, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107	10. 11. 13. 16. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42. 48. 52. 56. 59.			
7-7-8-8-9-9-10-10-10-1-11-1-12-2-13-3-14-1-15-5-20-25-30-0-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-10-	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 3. 06 2. 83	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 241, 475 221, 949 206, 292	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 83, 38 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 78, 27 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43 40, 37	52, 830 60, 736 68, 824 77, 772 85, 927 91, 987 91, 987 91, 987 111, 196 138, 263 161, 731 182, 718 227, 638 246, 632 248, 934 289, 451 305, 107 319, 597	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 48. 48. 52. 56. 59.			
789101011122-133-14152025304060607080909090.	9, 539 8, 606 67, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489 11, 833	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 20 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 3. 06 2. 83 2. 32	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 78, 27 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43 40, 37 37, 54	52, 830, 60, 730, 60, 737, 772, 60, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 987, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 246, 638, 249, 521, 305, 107, 319, 597, 331, 430	10. 11. 13. 16. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 32. 42. 48. 56. 59. 62.			
789101112131415202530405070708090901009010090100	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 23, 286 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 1. 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 32 2. 32 2. 7. 47	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 228, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 808 179, 970	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 83, 38 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43 40, 37 35, 22	52, 830, 60, 778, 60, 778, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 98, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 71, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 597, 331, 430, 599, 596	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 19. 20. 21. 21. 31. 35. 42. 48. 52. 56. 59. 62. 62.			
7. 8. 9. 10. 10. 11. 1-12. 2-13. 3-14. 1-15. 3-20. 3-25. 3-30. 3-60. 3-60. 3-7	9, 539 8, 606 67, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489 11, 833	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 20 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 3. 06 2. 83 2. 32	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 82, 02 80, 72 79, 48 78, 27 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43 40, 37 37, 54	52, 830, 60, 730, 60, 737, 772, 60, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 987, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 246, 638, 249, 521, 305, 107, 319, 597, 331, 430	10. 11. 13. 16. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42. 42. 56. 59. 62. 64. 72.			
7. 8. 8. 9. 10. 10. 11. 11. 12. 2-131415202530405060708090100. 00-256. 00-256. 00-200. 00-256. 00-300.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 248 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 3. 06 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 3. 73	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 228, 682 264, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652	91, 35 89, 67 88, 12 86, 55 84, 80 83, 38 82, 02 80, 72 72, 98 68, 39 64, 29 57, 47 51, 80 47, 25 43, 43, 43, 40, 37 37, 54 47, 25 27, 75 227, 75 23, 04 19, 31	52, 830, 60, 778, 60, 778, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 98, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 71, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 700, 412, 747, 591	10. 11. 13. 16. 16. 17. 19. 20. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42. 48. 48. 55. 66. 64. 72. 76. 80. 83.			
7. 8. 9. 10. 10. 11. 12. 13. 14. 15. 16. 17. 18. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19. 19	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 24 1. 24 1. 24 1. 26 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 443, 628 428, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 2241, 476 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 72. 98 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 40. 37 57. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 19. 31 16. 41	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 77, 77, 77, 77, 77, 78, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 319, 597, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 700, 412, 747, 427, 591, 439, 922	10. 11. 13. 16. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42. 48. 52. 56. 69. 64. 72. 76. 80. 83. 88.			
7891011121314155-20255-30140507090100709010090100901009090100909090100901009010090909090909090	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 23, 286 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 11, 833 18, 523 8, 523	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 32 2. 32 2. 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 433 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 88, 809 71, 478	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 19. 31 16. 41 14. 00	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 611, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 922, 427, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445	10. 11. 13. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35. 42. 48. 56. 56. 62. 64. 77. 72. 77. 80. 80. 80. 80. 80. 80. 80. 80			
7	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 11, 2, 331 12, 331 18, 523 17, 430 13, 315	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 1. 24 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 32 2. 32 2. 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 4. 51 4. 51 3. 51 5. 67 5.	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 241, 475 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 141, 804 117, 700 17, 478 8, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 64. 29 67. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 11. 41 11. 40 12. 33	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 987, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 246, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 319, 597, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 700, 412, 747, 427, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445, 465, 874	10. 11. 13. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 34. 48. 48. 56. 59. 62. 76. 80. 83. 86. 87. 91.			
7891011122-133-144-155-20223334405-3060607080909090909090909	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 207 27, 067 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489 11, 833 8, 164 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331 1, 430 13, 315 13, 214	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 5. 29 4. 59 4. 59 4. 50 3. 82 3. 06 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 2. 61 1. 67 2. 61 1. 67 2. 61 1. 67 2. 61 1. 67 2. 61 2. 61 3. 74 4. 71 3. 73 3. 73 3. 74 4. 71 3. 74 5. 61 7. 61	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 294, 476 221, 949 296, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 64. 29 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 52 23. 04 19. 11. 40 11. 38 8. 92 6. 31	52, 830, 50, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 627, 91, 98, 641, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 246, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 432, 740, 412, 747, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403	10. 11. 11. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 342. 48. 52. 56. 64. 72. 76. 80. 88. 86. 87. 97. 91.			
789100111-122.133.144.155.202.55.300.400.500.600.600.700.800.90.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 29, 900 21, 856 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331 8, 523 17, 430 13, 315 13, 214 (2)	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 1. 21 1. 24 1. 21 1. 24 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 1. 2. 61 2. 59 (4)	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 2241, 475 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211 (2)	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 64. 29 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 52 23. 04 19. 11. 40 11. 38 8. 92 6. 31	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 641, 104, 989, 111, 199, 113, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 246, 638, 249, 924, 289, 451, 107, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 700, 412, 747, 427, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445, 445, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2)	10. 11. 11. 11. 13. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 31. 35.5 42. 42. 48. 48. 59. 62. 64. 72. 76. 80. 83. 86. 87. 91. 93. 96. (2)			
7-7 -89100-111-122-133-144-155-200-255-300-400-500-600-700-800-900-1000-	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 207 27, 067 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 19, 527 15, 656 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331 1, 315 13, 214 (8, 642	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 1. 21 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 7. 4. 55 3. 86 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 2. 59 (4) 1. 69 2. 59 (4) 1. 69 3. 69 3. 69 4. 69 4. 71 5. 69 5. 69 5. 69 6. 69 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 433 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 264, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 88, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211 (2) 18, 997	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 19. 31 16. 41 14. 00 12. 33 8. 92 6. 31 (2) 3. 72	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 611, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 430, 922, 448, 445, 4465, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 22. 31. 31. 34. 42. 48. 52. 56. 64. 72. 76. 83. 86. 87. 91. 93. 96. (2) 97.			
789100111-121314155-20255-30000000000	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 900 29, 900 21, 856 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331 8, 523 17, 430 13, 315 13, 214 (2)	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 1. 21 1. 24 1. 21 1. 24 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 1. 2. 61 2. 59 (4)	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 2241, 475 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211 (2)	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 64. 29 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 52 23. 04 19. 11. 40 11. 38 8. 92 6. 31	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 641, 104, 989, 111, 199, 113, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 246, 638, 249, 924, 289, 451, 107, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 700, 412, 747, 427, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445, 445, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2)	10. 11. 11. 11. 13. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 31. 35.5 42. 42. 48. 48. 59. 62. 64. 72. 76. 80. 83. 86. 87. 91. 93. 96. (2)			
78910011122.133.144.155.202.55.300.56.06.06.07.08.09.0.	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 27, 067 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 22, 000 23, 286 14, 489 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 11, 833 17, 430 13, 315 13, 214 (2) (2)	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 24 1. 21 1. 21 1. 24 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 4. 55 3. 82 2. 32 2. 32 2. 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 2. 59 (2. 59 (2. 59 (2. 6) 2. 59 (2. 6) 3. 60 3. 60 4. 60 5. 60 6. 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 6	467, 176 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 2241, 475 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211 (2) 18, 997 (2)	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 78. 27 72. 98 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 19. 31 16. 41 14. 00 12. 33 8. 92 6. 31 (2) (3) (4) (4) (5) (6) (7) (7) (7) (8) (8) (8) (8) (8) (8) (8) (8	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 111, 196, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 249, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 369, 596, 393, 7000, 412, 747, 427, 591, 439, 922, 448, 445, 445, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045, 631, 645, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045, 631, 645, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045, 631, 645, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045, 631, 645, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 645, 674, 675, 675, 675, 675, 675, 675, 675, 675	10. 11. 11. 13. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 27. 31. 35.5 42.2 48. 59. 62. 62. 62. 64. 64. 64. 72. 76. 80. 83. 86. 87. 91. 93. 96. (2)			
789100111-121314155-20255-30000000000	9, 539 8, 606 7, 947 8, 046 8, 948 7, 255 6, 959 6, 655 6, 348 6, 207 23, 469 20, 936 34, 920 29, 000 23, 286 11, 833 38, 166 24, 104 19, 048 14, 843 12, 331 17, 430 13, 315 13, 214 (2) 8, 642	1. 68 1. 55 1. 57 1. 75 1. 42 1. 36 1. 30 1. 24 1. 21 1. 21 4. 59 4. 10 6. 82 5. 67 7. 4. 55 3. 86 2. 83 2. 32 7. 47 4. 71 3. 73 2. 90 2. 41 1. 67 3. 41 2. 59 (4) 1. 69 2. 59 (4) 1. 69 3. 69 3. 69 4. 69 4. 71 5. 69 5. 69 5. 69 6. 69 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60 60	467, 175 458, 569 450, 622 442, 576 433, 628 426, 373 419, 413 412, 759 406, 411 400, 204 373, 137 349, 668 328, 682 293, 762 221, 949 206, 292 191, 803 179, 970 141, 804 117, 700 98, 652 83, 809 71, 478 62, 955 45, 526 32, 211 (2) 18, 997 (2)	91. 35 89. 67 88. 12 86. 55 84. 80 83. 38 82. 02 80. 72 79. 48 68. 39 64. 29 57. 47 51. 80 47. 25 43. 43 40. 37 37. 54 35. 22 27. 75 23. 04 19. 31 16. 41 14. 00 12. 33 8. 92 6. 31 (2) 3. 72	52, 830, 60, 778, 68, 824, 77, 772, 85, 027, 91, 986, 611, 104, 989, 111, 196, 138, 263, 161, 731, 182, 718, 217, 638, 246, 638, 269, 924, 289, 451, 305, 107, 331, 430, 430, 922, 448, 445, 4465, 874, 479, 189, 492, 403, (2), 501, 045	10. 11. 13. 15. 16. 17. 19. 20. 21. 22. 31. 31. 34. 42. 48. 52. 56. 64. 72. 76. 83. 86. 87. 91. 93. 96. (2) 97.			

¹ Less than one-hundredth of 1 percent.

² Classes grouped to conceal identity of taxpayer.

Table 4.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing number of returns and net income by sex and family relationship

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

States and Territories	withor v pendent and the husband wives, the	nd wives, vithout de- children, returns of ls whose hough liv- them, file	Single heads of	men— families		vomen families	Single m heads of	
	Number of returns	Net income	Number of returns	Net income	Number of returns	Net income	Number of returns	Net income
Alabama Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Mississipii Missouri Motana Nebraska Nevada Nevada New Hampshire New Hersey New Hersey New Horlor North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Wisconsin	13, 936 6, 517 8, 266 146, 299 16, 966 41, 613 5, 565 30, 499 19, 299 22, 248 6, 311 4, 550 150, 963 36, 048 24, 885 24, 914 17, 907 19, 114 10, 364 42, 623 103, 421 73, 745 34, 147 7, 911 49, 364 4, 967 4, 946 8, 584 14, 967 12, 315 106, 042 20, 023 6, 057 7, 911 49, 364 4, 791 25, 029 12, 315 166, 757 163, 677 163, 246 8, 618 4, 733 21, 365 64, 572 7, 442 27, 352 27, 352 21, 361 38, 484 48, 448 48, 448 48, 448 48, 4983	50, 897 18, 583 28, 329 459, 553 61, 120 167, 511 34, 192 123, 358 77, 178 88, 096 24, 381 13, 885 647, 554 669, 983 56, 323 39, 360 173, 610 413, 097 280, 724 130, 932 24, 076 200, 559 31, 121 54, 938 7, 487 29, 317 434, 494 102, 558 112, 556 1, 735, 727 82, 277 82, 277 82, 278 82, 274 82, 278 83, 378 84, 278 84, 278 85, 338 85, 338 814, 2, 208	1, 144 441 892 19, 873 2, 056 7, 504 3, 310 2, 584 873 26, 586 624 26, 586 617 2, 274 26, 685 1, 179 5, 504 11, 255 1, 179 5, 504 10, 996 4, 514 10, 996 4, 514 10, 996 4, 514 11, 736 3, 314 11, 736 3,	2, 824 1, 066 2, 182 45, 987 16, 271 2, 863 5, 306 6, 462 1, 930 1, 224 62, 360 3, 147 2, 60 3, 147 2, 102 1, 102	688 255 488 256 488 12,716 1,083 4,456 4,562 1,087 4,562 1,087 1,945 320 1,871 1,880 1,871 1,180 3,534 11,368 3,829 1,772 2,732 4,987 672 11,713 34,824 8,638 2,056 1,532 11,584 569 1,572 299 4,172 299 4,172 299 4,173 228 8,638 2,056 1,532 11,584 569 1,532 11,584 569 1,532 11,832 2,748 1,910 2,037	1, 506 607 1, 141 28, 995 1, 616 10, 246 11, 246 11, 246 12, 604 14, 218 14, 069 14, 218 14, 069 14, 218 15, 069 18, 166 18, 1	5, 032 2, 537 2, 326 70, 672 6, 717 21, 673 2, 181 18, 430 5, 847 6, 489 2, 224 4, 184 11, 354 7, 305 7, 374 7, 752 4, 184 18, 303 51, 669 33, 654 11, 367 21, 046 4, 448 5, 251 11, 892 2, 3, 705 39, 260 1, 482 174, 394 5, 361 1, 367 2, 727 4, 886 6, 991 1, 354 1, 367 2, 104 6, 834 1, 367 2, 104 1, 892 2, 3, 705 3, 705 4, 886 6, 991 1, 903 3, 705 3, 705 3, 705 3, 705 4, 886 6, 991 1, 903 3, 705 1, 907 1, 9	9, 195 4, 297 4, 314 148, 415 13, 878 41, 887 6, 894 39, 956 13, 650 13, 650 12, 342 4, 614 23, 961 151, 644 23, 961 14, 193 13, 743 14, 606 10, 226 65, 431 10, 061 3, 443 7, 009 85, 704 392, 112 11, 121 13, 132 91, 185 10, 420 11, 511 162, 818 11, 903 4, 832 31, 658 27, 506 17, 668 27, 506 14, 303, 443 31, 658 27, 506 14, 314
Wyoming		7, 865, 596	283, 875	670, 492	171, 173	381, 062	2, 042 889, 951	3, 371 1, 816, 535

¹ Includes Alaska.

Table 4.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing number of returns and net income by sex and family relationship—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		omen—not of families	separate	s filing e returns usbands	proj	nunity perty ome 2	Grand	er of turns income 23, 072 69, 229 11, 378 29, 803 13, 318 38, 886			
States and Territories	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Num- ber of returns	Net income	Num- ber of returns				
Alabama	1,928	3,326	344	1, 481			23, 072	69, 229			
Arizona	1,034	1,732	283	865	311	2, 713	11, 378	29,803			
Arkansas	1, 126	2,605	220	915	1-55-555-		13, 318	38, 886			
California	46, 663	101, 209	7, 701	32, 107	11,842	151, 801	315, 766				
Colorado	3,774	8,836	631	3, 075			31, 232	94, 502			
Connecticut Delaware	13,603 1,502	35, 742 5, 511	2, 523 353	17,035 4,511			91, 352 10, 620	288, 693 55, 073			
District of Columbia	24, 616	45, 833	1, 454	6, 112			82, 871	234, 925			
Florida	3, 420	7, 867	863	5, 499			32, 550	112, 103			
Georgia	4, 111	7, 675	760	3, 820			38, 137	122, 612			
Hawaii	1, 229	3,878	285	1,643			11, 252	37, 516			
Idaho	807	1, 337	249	775	266	2, 377	8,932	23, 637			
Illinois	39, 514	80, 912	5,692	31,610			310, 456	1, 006, 928			
Indiana	8, 093	14, 240	939	5, 480			69,623	198, 443			
Iowa	6,671	10, 673	659	2, 359			47, 871	119, 454			
Kansas	3,645	5, 862	482	1,806			35,600	91,868			
Kentucky	4, 834 4, 537	9, 511	744	3, 216 3, 608	1, 838	19, 019	35, 333 36, 871	107, 390 106, 168			
Louisiana	3, 670	7, 936 8, 261	1, 186 477	2, 378		19, 019	20, 584	63, 205			
Maryland	12,670	32, 498	1. 761	9, 487			84, 395	282, 624			
Massachusetts	51, 735	113, 552	7, 081	34, 749			242,728	737, 045			
Michigan	15, 327	28, 517	1,778	11,638			139, 329	418, 569			
Minnesota	8, 954	15, 318	1,076	5, 951			67, 297	196, 345			
Mississippi	1,834	2,875	223	717			12, 507	32, 578			
Missouri	12, 705	25, 970	1,709	9,804		.	98, 125	306, 041			
Montana	1, 584	2, 833	184	641			16, 825	46, 594			
Nebraska	3, 444	5, 583	393	1, 180			26, 781	77,236			
Nevada	319	694	99	373	187	2, 118	5, 321	15, 237			
New Hampshire	3, 134	6, 482	379	1,878			16, 785	48, 267			
New Jersey New Mexico	28, 878 874	65, 357 1, 444	4,422	27, 930 648	254	9 049	210, 683	686, 065 20, 108			
New York	133, 924	324,728	18,653	140, 077		2, 048	7,647 807,818	2, 811, 721			
North Carolina	3,778	7, 118	681	5, 203			32, 305	112, 914			
North Dakota	914	1, 244	83	223			9,733	22, 352			
Ohio	26, 084	50, 965	3,761	20,659			209, 589	631, 348			
Oklahoma	3, 262	5, 962	712	2,969			39, 279	120, 030			
Oregon	3,472	5, 627	398	1, 350			27, 253	71, 077			
Pennsylvania	50, 159	113, 087	6, 576	44, 363			342, 308	1, 067, 789			
Rhode Island	6, 955	17, 643	676	5, 349			31, 235	104, 194			
South Carolina	1, 690 850	2, 775 1, 271	252 81	869 208			14, 937	41, 024			
South Dakota Tennessee	4. 151	7, 966	583	2, 973			8, 302 37, 938	20, 106 115, 789			
Texas	21, 013	39, 569	4,666	13, 462	7, 151	80, 882	118, 930	366, 714			
Utah	933	1, 591	158	681			11, 458	32, 016			
Vermont	1, 905	3,712	180	699			9, 824	26, 566			
Virginia	6, 743	13,059	666	3, 787			47, 814	139, 932			
Washington 1	6, 445	10, 936	1, 515	4,605		18, 116	60, 151	153, 639			
West Virginia	2,682	5, 486	456	1, 965			30, 297	87, 992			
Wisconsin	11, 568	18, 348	2, 127	5, 660			92, 826	217, 351			
Wyoming	451	759	89	324			7, 182	19,036			
Total	603, 214	1, 295, 313	87, 471	488, 729	23, 790	279, 075	4, 094, 420	12, 796, 802			

¹ Includes Alaska. ² See footnote 2 on p. 7.

Table 5.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing number of returns and net income by sex and family relationship

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see p. 1-5]

Net income classes	with or v pendent and the husband wives, th	nd wives, without dechildren, returns of s whose nough livethem, file	Single heads of	men— families	Single w heads of	omen— families	Single m heads of	en—not families
	Number of returns	Net in- come	Number of re- turns	Net in- come	Number of re- turns	Net in- come	Number of returns	Net in- come
Under 1 (est.)1 Under 1 (est.)1 1-1.5 (est.)1 1-1.5 (est.)1 1-1.5 (est.)1 1.5-2 (est.)1 1.5-2 (est.)1 2-2.5 (est.)1 2-2.5 (est.)1 2-2.5 (est.)1 3-3.5 (est.)1 3-3.5 (est.)1 3-3.5 (est.)1 3-3.5 (est.)1 4-4.5 (est.)1 4-4.5 (est.)1 4-5 (e	12, 506 9, 724 7, 572 6, 282 5, 276 16, 209 8, 069 4, 551 1, 329 500 300 300 300 301 101 63 41 114 126 19 6 2 4 1	64, 043 955 157, 733 9, 982 274, 529 15, 446 18, 292 1, 078, 458 126, 542 575, 419 18, 292 1, 078, 458 126, 542 574, 876 334, 593 338, 034 79, 343 384, 226 35, 230 326, 707 28, 433 437, 985 343, 456 251, 483 190, 059 111, 630 94, 498 84, 718 130, 995 111, 630 94, 498 84, 718 130, 995 111, 630 94, 498 84, 718 130, 995 111, 630 141, 199 166, 896 109, 740 72, 408 53, 617 37, 346 63, 371 129, 064 22, 515 17, 270 14, 174 6, 230 6, 230 15, 842 16, 706 6, 701 15, 842 16, 706 7, 015 89, 892 (2)	11, 448 19 92, 190 92, 190 70, 131 1, 384 40, 253 4, 998 22, 074 8, 253 4, 998 777 3, 838 777 2, 944 260 3, 811 2, 638 545 448 328 828 829 840 841 848 848 848 848 848 848 848		9, 484 480, 621 480, 621 15, 100 235 7, 316 1, 237 1, 463 608 1, 115 608 1, 185 1, 385 1,		94, 973 281 174, 447 222, 368 19, 548 181, 996 4, 961 74, 183 2, 662 2, 662 33, 955 1, 511 18, 872 846 11, 633 5, 947 7, 991 3, 429 2, 537 4, 940 3, 429 2, 537 1, 904 1, 580 1, 191 1, 077 851 1, 289	67, 339 197, 001 288, 099 312, 673 313, 211 10, 986 40, 883 3, 155 43, 499 2, 245 46, 883 3, 155 43, 499 22, 456 33, 842 24, 470 28, 246 40, 936 31, 936 42, 470 28, 246 11, 524 41, 524 41, 10, 525 11, 524 41, 723 41, 723 4
Classes grouped 2		14, 348 7, 865, 596	283, 875	1,643	171, 173	2,548	889, 951	8, 225 1, 816, 535
Nontaxable returns 1 Taxable returns	1, 315, 751	3, 102, 656 4, 762, 940	248, 154 35, 721	436, 743 233, 749	156, 211 14, 962	246, 477 134, 585	300, 106 589, 845	328, 494 1, 488, 042

For footnotes see p. 67.

Table 5.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing number of returns and net income by sex and family relationship—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

N	Single women— not heads of families		Wives fi arate r from ht	eturns	Community property Grand to income 3			total
Net income classes	Number	Net in-	Number	Net in-	Num-	Net in-	Number	Net in-
	of re- turns	come	of re- turns	come	ber of returns	come	of returns	come
Under 1 (est.)	74, 487	55, 142	9, 117	4, 651			310, 401	205, 654
Under 1 (est.)	323	180	7,850	4, 151			10,059	5, 459
1–1.5 (est.) 1–1.5 (est.)	144, 604 145, 668	164, 079 189, 081	5, 803 5, 072	7, 074 6, 377			623, 136 381, 773	741, 849 494, 750
1.5–2 (est.)	16, 062	27, 110	3, 368	5, 798			303, 331	525, 976
1.5–2 (est.)	101, 629	173, 521	5, 435	9, 468			299, 855	515, 150
2-2.5 (est.)1	6, 485	14, 361	2,400	5, 386			321, 008	729,406
2-2.5 (est.)	35, 822	79, 145	4, 769	10,712			124, 117	275, 121
2.5-3 (est.)1	3, 831	10, 448	1, 783	4, 876			433, 907	1, 180, 725
2.5-3 (est.)	16, 471	44,809	4, 186	11, 464			101, 650	282, 600
3-3.5 (est.)	2, 626 9, 121	8, 488 29, 441	1, 188 3, 915	3, 844 12, 720			196, 161 134, 541	628, 056 438, 145
3.5-4 (est.)	1, 764	6, 577	1,029	3, 857			71, 049	262, 005
3.5-4 (est.)	6,088	22, 733	3, 615	13, 553			131, 608	493, 034
4-4.5 (est.)1	1, 203	5, 103	619	2,640			22, 756	95, 723
4-4.5 (est.)	4,351	18, 443	3, 238	13, 745			111, 164	471, 236
4.5-5 (est.)1	935	4, 422	388	1,854			10, 025	47, 346
4.5-5 (est.)	3, 248	15, 396	2, 953	14,004	86	450	85, 232 6, 726	403, 803
5-6 ¹	124 5, 422	659 $29,645$	376 3, 053	2, 048 16, 733	5, 753	459 31, 455	107, 136	36, 504 585, 116
6-7	3,858	24, 999	2, 564	16, 599	3, 875	25, 087	72 405	468, 141
7–8	2,840	21, 219	1,950	14, 619	2,667	19, 928	72, 405 47, 342	353, 498
8-9	2, 186	18, 537	1, 621	13, 763	1,933	16, 393	32, 617	276,396
9-10	1,725	16, 369	1, 268	12, 042	1, 487	14, 093	24, 598	233, 237
10-11	1,357	14, 231	1, 037	10, 867	1, 100	11, 507	18,650	195, 364
11-12	1, 158 998	13, 304 12, 467	838 750	9, 609 9, 363	939 746	10, 757 9, 3 09	14, 733 11, 884	169, 122 143, 327
13-14	879	11,840	665	8, 971	558	7, 524	9,768	131, 717
14-15	731	10,609	576	8, 347	538	7, 799	8, 333	120, 729
15-20	2, 401	41, 421	1,982	34, 220	1,566	26, 947	25, 963	446, 546
20-25	1,444	32, 197	1, 138	25,425	843	18, 714	13, 556	301, 787
25-30	886	24, 203	753	20, 576	501	13, 661	7, 971	217, 590
30-40 40-50	997 518	34, 170 23, 086	836 433	28,775 19,317	$\frac{479}{271}$	16, 513 12, 127	8, 534 4, 426	293, 352 197, 588
50-60	305	16, 605	253	13, 823	187	10, 213	2,480	135, 139
60~70	166	10, 701	173	11, 238	81	5, 279	1,527	98, 806
70-80	125	9,358	94	7,063	50	3,770	934	69, 829
80-90	83	7,016	79	6, 717	33	2,829	689	58, 421
90-100	50 119	4,717	56	5, 286 13, 851	$\frac{25}{39}$	2,372	463 982	43, 782 117, 744
100-150 150-200	45	14, 403 7, 558	115 56	9, 521	12	4, 782 2, 104	364	62, 343
200-250	27	6,044	28	6, 206	iĩ	2, 356	204	45, 188
250-300	19	5, 225	14	3,780	8	(2)	122	33, 430
300-400	11	3, 705	9	3, 036	1	(2)	j 77	26, 425
400-500	8	3, 611	10	4, 501			39	17, 467
500-750		6, 565 2, 371	$\frac{6}{2}$	3, 465 (2)	1	(²)	57 29	34, 345 25, 119
750-1,000	· ·	2,3/1	6	6, 682			29	25,118 $24,353$
730-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000 5,000 and over			l i	(2)			4	(2)
2.000-3.000			l î	(2)			6	15, 385
3,000-4,000							1	(2)
4,000-5,000								
5,000 and over Classes grouped ²							1	(2)
Classes grouped 2				6, 110		3, 096		18, 036
Total	603, 214	1,295,313	87, 471	488, 729	23, 790	279, 075	4, 094, 420	12, 796, 802
Nontaxable returns 1	252, 121	296, 388	26,071	42,028	86	459	2, 298, 500	4, 453, 244
Taxable returns	351, 093	998, 926	61, 400	446, 701	23, 704	273, 615	1, 795, 920	8, 343, 558

¹ Nontaxable returns. Specific exemptions from normal tax and surtax exceed net income. A negligible number of nontaxable returns in net income classes of \$6,000 and over is not tabulated separately.

² Classes grouped to conceal identity of taxpayer.

³ See footnote 2 on p. 7.

Table 6.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing sources of income and deductions, and net income

[Thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

	Sources of income									
States and Territories	Salaries, wages, com- missions, fees, etc.	Business profit	Partner- ship profit ¹	Net capital gain ²	Rents and royalties	Dividends on stock of domestic corporations				
Alabama	48, 620	11, 699	6, 785	533	3, 945	5, 569				
Arizona	19, 216	6, 935	1, 732	350	1,819	1, 986				
Arkansas	24, 465	9, 049	4, 209	306	3, 509	2, 544				
California	613, 848	154, 153	51, 831	14, 215	61, 836	131, 231				
Colorado	57, 895	16, 602	4,893	2, 156	4,012	14, 527				
Connecticut	173, 683	31, 086	6,920	4, 314	9, 614	75, 846				
Delaware	22, 928	4, 080	1, 246	1, 846	1.090	27, 441				
District of Columbia	192, 857	21, 581	5, 388	1, 899	9, 354	15, 652				
Florida	64, 408	20, 694	6,084	2, 385	6, 368	22, 174				
Georgia	89, 154	18, 348	7, 326	1, 425	6, 271	15, 929				
Hawaii	24, 029	3, 668	820	280	1, 613	9, 557				
Idaho	14, 390	6, 623	1,752	329	940	1.068				
Illinois	750, 274	114,716	47, 256	16,698	37, 950	119, 370				
Indiana	143, 668	30, 604	9,940	2,033	7,905	25, 183				
Iowa	73, 260	31, 185	7, 999	1, 146	8,605	10, 466				
Kansas	51, 431	24, 894	6,986	1, 294	10, 229	6, 799				
Kentucky	72, 949	15, 340	5, 634	1,516	5, 588	16, 803				
Louisiana	72, 458	16, 654	7, 248	1,641	8, 152	10, 407				
Maine	33, 819	11,070	1, 913	1, 156	2, 251	11,896				
Maryland		31, 423	11,871	5, 083	10, 502	41, 364				
Massachusetts	464, 210	91,021	25, 817	10,747	16, 620	151, 660				
Michigan	315, 499	55, 250	15, 891	7, 437	15, 633	59, 026				
Minnesota	133, 554	32, 075	9, 958	2, 490	6, 383	25, 147				
Mississippi	22, 919	7, 543	3, 336	248	2, 524	2, 113				
Missouri	222, 117	36, 321	12, 560	4,075	13, 630	45, 682				
Montana	31, 345 49, 988	11, 216	1,815	273 920	1,767	3, 02				
Nebraska		17, 968 2, 709	5, 019 1, 118	205	4, 431 556	5, 335 1, 640				
New Hampshire	26, 387	8, 357	1, 746	637	1.816	9, 94				
New Jersey	507, 397	70, 402	17, 910	8, 163	17, 208	101, 386				
New Mexico.	11, 214	5, 811	1,602	155	1, 241	1, 20				
New York	1, 835, 291	291, 648	168, 743	66, 106	58, 926	511, 69				
North Carolina	77, 049	17, 397	6, 661	1, 444	6, 533	26, 31				
North Dakota		6, 183	1,312	111	976	82				
Ohio	462, 294	82, 693	22, 830	8, 473	24, 736	95, 60				
Oklahoma	83, 338	20, 831	8,612	3, 363	12, 220	9, 57				
Oregon	49, 533	13, 985	4,031	709	2, 936	4, 70				
Pennsylvania		137,982	47, 157	15, 571	31, 805	186, 48				
Rhode Island		10, 243	2, 754	1, 308	3, 448	24, 64				
South Carolina	29, 381	7,710	2,606	429	2, 197	4, 02				
South Dakota		5, 160	880	175	1, 149	1, 381				
Tennessee		17, 998	8,719	1, 151	5, 751	13, 700				
Texas	215, 427	73, 402	34, 739	8, 938	47, 431	35, 89				
Utah Vermont	23, 493 16, 885	5, 581 3, 961	1,498	264	958	3, 19				
		19, 810	962	218 1, 746	6 550	3, 95				
Virginia Washington 5	101, 033	30, 984	5, 852 7, 101	2, 191	6, 550 6, 407	21, 63: 12, 18				
West Virginia		12, 771	3, 952	2, 191 799	4, 644	12, 180				
Wisconsin		35, 019	7, 996	2, 215	8, 198	23, 32				
Wyoming		4, 408	903	156	839	1, 785				
•						ļ <u>-</u>				
Total	8, 600, 455	1, 716, 842	631, 915	211, 319	509, 844	1, 965, 670				

For footnotes see p. 70.

Table 6.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing sources of income and deductions, and net income—Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

Ciary tions not wholly exempt from tax minerest minerest minerest minerest mineres	[I Notice	ius or dorn	415(
States and Territories			Sources of	income(Continued	
Arizona. 389 66 1,680 652 34 Arkansas. 588 146 1,682 1,241 47 California. 18,201 2,111 66,886 15,052 1,120 Colorado 1,338 502 7,900 1,578 111 Connecticut. 8,668 78 3,654 1,600 65 District of Columbia. 4,395 548 11,738 2,357 255 Florida. 3,609 478 9,651 2,106 137 Georgia. 1,378 191 4,450 2,064 146 Hawaii. 1,067 40 1,279 849 43 Idaho 160 31 996 535 25 Illinois. 14,881 2,945 59,447 13,855 1,177 Indiana. 1,729 1,244 5,381 2,345 2,345 2,345 Illinois. 14,881 2,945 59,447 13,855 1,177 Indiana. 1,257 253 8,550 2,233 144 Kansas. 1,194 289 5,255 2,283 144 Kentucky. 1,971 556 5,219 1,679 127 Maine. 2,074 211 9,102 1,964 75 Maryland. 10,078 802 21,591 324 Massaclusetits. 19,246 888 19,444 5,881 499 Massaclusetits. 19,246 888 19,444 5,881 499 Minnesota. 3,052 630 14,492 24,451 3,855 1,177 Maine. 2,074 211 9,102 1,964 75 Maryland. 10,078 802 21,591 324 Massaclusetits. 19,246 888 19,444 5,881 499 Minsouri. 4,855 1,580 19,433 3,677 363 Montana. 279 116 2,063 875 52 New Mexico. 264 24 1,909 431 1,070 444 North Dakota. 1,067 224 2,45 230 New Mexico. 264 24 1,909 431 3,27 New Hampshire. 896 100 4,497 1,022 55 New Mexico. 264 24 1,090 444 22 New York. 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,366 North Carolina. 1,067 224 2,167 2,648 22 New York. 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,365 North Carolina. 1,067 244 24 1,090 444 340 22 New York. 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,366 North Carolina. 1,067 244 24 1,090 444 340 22,477 64,681 32 New York. 1,081 3,082 3,083 3,083 3,063 3,366	States and Territories		on Gov- ernment obliga- tions not wholly exempt	taxable		Total income
Arizona	Alabama		98		967	83, 232
California 18, 201 2, 111 66, 886 15, 052 1, 129 Colorado 1, 338 502 7, 990 1, 578 Connecticut 8, 668 8, 555 25, 083 3, 794 338 Delaware 1, 869 78 3, 654 1, 788 2, 357 265 Plorida 3, 669 478 9, 651 2, 106 137 Georgia 1, 378 191 4, 450 2, 064 146 Hawaii 1, 067 40 1, 279 849 43 Idaho 160 31 996 535 26 Illinois 14, 881 2, 945 59, 447 13, 855 1, 177 Indiana 1, 729 1, 244 5, 831 2, 71 223 1, 177 Indiana 1, 729 1, 244 5, 831 2, 73 2, 253 144 Kansas 1, 194 289 5, 255 2, 283 141 Kentucky 1, 971 556	Arizona					34, 825
Colorado 1,338 502 7,900 1,578 111 Connecticut 8,068 555 25,083 3,794 338 Delaware 1,869 78 3,654 1,160 65 District of Columbia 4,395 548 11,738 2,357 266 Florida 3,669 478 9,051 2,106 137 Georgia 1,378 191 4,450 2,064 146 Hawaii 1,067 40 1,279 849 43 Idaho 160 31 996 535 2,51 Illinois 14,881 2,945 59,447 13,855 1,71 Indah 1,729 1,244 5,831 2,713 230 Iowa 1,257 253 8,850 2,253 144 Kansas 1,194 289 5,255 2,815 111 Kentucky 1,971 556 5,219 1,679 122 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>47, 959</td></t<>						47, 959
Connecticut 8, 668 555 25, 083 3, 794 388 Delaware 1, 869 78 3, 654 1, 1, 60 26 District of Columbia 4, 395 548 11, 738 2, 557 265 Florida 3, 669 478 9, 051 2, 106 137 265 Florida 1, 378 191 4, 450 2, 064 146 148 148 1, 279 849 43 143 148 1, 279 849 43 148 148 1, 279 849 43 14 148 1, 279 849 43 14 148 1, 279 849 43 14 148 148 1, 279 849 43 14 148 148 199 144 1450 2, 064 148 127 148 148 127 148 128 148 127 148 128 127 148 148 148 148 148 148 148 14	California					1, 129, 464
Delaware						111, 411 338, 964
District of Columbia	Delaware					65, 394
Florida						265, 771
Georgia 1, 378 191 4, 450 2, 064 146 Hawaii 1, 067 40 1, 279 849 43 Idaho 160 31 996 535 26 Illinois 14, 881 2, 945 59, 447 13, 855 1, 171 Indian 1, 257 253 8, 550 2, 253 144 Kansas 1, 194 289 5, 255 2, 815 111 Kentucky 1, 971 556 5, 219 1, 679 127 Louisiana 853 401 6, 701 2, 648 127 Maryland 10, 078 802 21, 591 5, 191 324 Massachusetts 19, 246 1, 44 5, 81 499 Michigan 4, 966 888 19, 444 5, 81 499 Minesota 3, 052 630 14, 582 2, 845 230 Mississippi 332 39 1, 607 1, 115 41						137, 416
Idaho	Georgia	1,378		4, 450	2,064	146, 536
Illinois						43, 204
Indiana						26, 821
Towa						1, 177, 392
Kansas 1, 194 289 5, 255 2, 815 111 Kentucky 1, 971 556 5, 219 1, 679 127 Louisiana 853 401 6, 701 2, 648 127 Maine 2, 074 211 9, 102 1, 954 75 Maryland 10, 078 802 21, 591 5, 191 324 Massachusetts 19, 246 1, 447 69, 889 7, 900 888 Michigan 4, 966 889 19, 444 5, 881 449 Minnesota 3, 052 630 14, 592 2, 845 230 Missouri 4, 855 1, 580 19, 473 3, 627 363 Montana 279 116 2, 063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4, 631 1, 086 90 New Jersey 14, 883 1, 132 51, 682 9, 261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1, 099 481					2,713	230, 850 144, 974
Kentucky 1,971 556 5,219 1,679 127 Louisiana 583 491 6,701 2,648 127 Maine 2,074 211 9,102 1,954 75 Maryland 10,078 802 21,591 5,191 324 Massachusetts 19,246 1,447 69,889 7,900 858 Michigan 4,966 888 19,444 5,881 449 Minnesota 3,052 630 14,592 2,845 230 Mississippi 332 39 1,607 1,115 41 Missouri 4,855 1,580 19,473 3,627 363 Mortana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 N						111, 187
Louisiana						127, 254
Maine 2,074 211 9,102 1,954 75 Maryland 10,078 802 21,591 5,191 324 Massachusetts 19,246 1,447 69,889 7,900 858 Michigan 4,966 888 19,444 5,881 489 Minnesota 3,052 630 14,592 2,845 230 Mississippi 332 39 1,607 1,115 44 Missouri 4,552 15,580 19,473 3,627 363 Montana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 22 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,366						127, 163
Massachusetts 19, 246 1, 447 69, 889 7, 900 888 Michigan 4, 966 889 19, 444 5, 881 439 Minnesota 3, 052 630 14, 592 2, 845 230 Mississippi 332 39 1, 607 1, 115 41 Missouri 4, 855 1, 581 19, 473 3, 627 363 Montana 279 116 2, 063 875 52 363 Nebraska 565 169 4, 631 1, 086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 86 100 4, 497 1, 202 55 New Jersey 14, 883 1, 132 51, 082 9, 261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1, 099 481 23 New York 88, 121 8, 360 144, 379 3, 366 North Carolina 1, 067 224 2, 162 2, 636	Maine				1,954	75, 447
Michigan 4,966 888 19,444 5,881 49.96 Minnsota 3,052 630 14,592 2,845 230 Mississippi 332 39 1,607 1,115 41 Missouri 4,855 1,580 19,473 3,627 363 Montana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,096 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 22 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,36 North Carolina 1,667 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,162 2,636 141 North Carolina 1,667 31 1,070 464 26					5, 191	324, 240
Minnesota 3,052 630 14,592 2,845 220 Mississippi 332 39 1,607 1,115 41 Missouri 4,855 1,580 19,473 3,627 363 Montana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Jersey 14,883 1,132 51,082 9,261 708 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,36 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Oklahoma 1,304 44 4,521 3,021 147		19, 246				858, 558
Mississippi 332 39 1, 607 1, 115 41 Missouri. 4, 855 1, 580 19, 473 3, 627 363 Montana 279 116 2, 063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4, 631 1, 086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4, 497 1, 202 55 New Jersey 14, 883 1, 132 51, 082 9, 261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1, 099 481 22 New York 88, 121 8, 360 244, 379 63, 376 3, 366 North Carolina 1, 667 224 2, 162 2, 636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1, 070 464 26 Ohio 9, 088 4, 194 22, 147 6, 033 738 Oklahoma 1, 304 844 4, 521 3, 021 147<		4, 960				499, 913
Missouri 4,855 1,580 19,473 3,627 363 Montana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Jersey 14,883 1,132 51,082 9,261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 23 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,336 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Pennsylvania 42,094 3,028 7,390 16,264 1,259						230, 726 41, 774
Montana 279 116 2,063 875 52 Nebraska 565 169 4,631 1,096 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 89 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Jersey 14,883 1,132 51,082 9,261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 22 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 6,376 3,336 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,104 22,147 6,033 738 Oklahoma 1,304 844 4,524 3,021 147 Oregon 808 144 4,784 1,103 82 Pennsylvania 42,094 3,028 97,390 16,264 1,259						363, 920
Nebraska 565 169 4, 631 1, 086 90 Nevada 242 31 601 304 17 New Hampshire 896 100 4, 497 1, 202 55 New Jersey 14, 883 1, 132 51, 682 9, 261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1, 099 481 22 New York 88, 121 8, 360 244, 379 63, 376 3, 386 North Carolina 1, 675 224 2, 162 2, 636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1, 070 484 26 Ohio 9, 688 4, 194 22, 147 6, 033 738 Oklahoma 1, 304 844 4, 521 3, 021 147 Oregon 508 144 4, 784 1, 103 82 Pennsylvania 42, 094 3, 028 7, 390 16, 264 1, 259 Rhode Island 3, 337 316 11, 515 1, 578		279			875	52, 770
New Hampshire 896 100 4,497 1,202 55 New Jersey 14,883 1,132 51,082 9,261 708 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 23 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,336 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,088 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Oklahoma 1,304 844 4,521 3,021 147 Oregon 808 144 4,784 1,103 82 Pennsylvania 42,094 3,028 97,390 16, 264 1,259 Rhode Island 3,387 316 11,515 1,578 121 South Carolina 579 106 2,301 826 50 South Dakota 113 20 916 419 23			169	4, 631		90, 114
New Jersey. 14,883 1,132 51,082 9,261 798 New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 23 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 3,336 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Oklahoma 1,304 844 452 3,021 147 Oregon 508 144 4,784 1,103 82 Pennsylvania 42,094 3,028 97,390 16,264 1,259 Rhode Island 3,387 316 11,515 1,578 121 South Carolina 579 106 2,301 826 50 South Dakota 1113 20 916 419 23 Tennessee 1,433 223 4,599 1,690 137	Nevada					17, 228
New Mexico 264 24 1,099 481 22 New York 88,121 8,360 244,379 63,376 33,336 North Carolina 1,067 224 2,162 2,636 141 North Dakota 165 31 1,070 464 26 Ohio 9,068 4,194 22,147 6,033 738 Oklahoma 1,304 844 4,521 3,021 147 Oregon 808 144 4,784 1,103 82 Pennsylvania 42,094 3,028 97,390 16,264 1,259 Rhode Island 3,387 316 11,515 1,578 121 South Carolina 579 106 2,301 826 50 South Dakota 113 20 916 419 23 Tennessee 1,433 223 4,599 1,696 137 Texas 6,653 1,094 810 541 37 <	New Hampshire					55, 581
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$						798, 824
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					62 276	23, 093 3, 336, 647
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					2, 636	141, 489
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	North Dakota.			1,070	464	26, 756
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Ohio	9,068	4, 194	22, 147	6,033	738, 075
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Oklahoma					147, 628
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$						82, 737
South Carolina 579 106 2,301 826 50 South Dakota 113 20 916 419 23 Tennessee 1,433 223 4,599 1,690 137 Texas 6,053 1,094 18,810 11,321 458 Utah 310 63 1,696 541 37 Vermont 458 63 2,579 511 30 Virginia 2,489 415 8,638 2,236 166 Washington 5 1,404 340 9,320 2,611 173 West Virginia 856 376 1,957 1,299 101					16, 264	1, 259, 289 121, 747
	South Carolina					50, 156
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	South Dakota					23, 566
Texas. 6,053 1,094 18,810 11,321 453 Utah. 310 63 1,696 541 37 Vermont. 458 63 2,579 511 30 Virginia. 2,489 415 8,638 2,236 166 Washington 5 1,404 340 9,320 2,611 173 West Virginia 856 376 1,957 1,299 101	Tennessee	1, 433	223	4, 599		137, 448
Vermont. 458 63 2,579 511 30 Virginia. 2,489 415 8,638 2,236 166 Washington 5 1,404 340 9,320 2,611 173 West Virginia. 856 376 1,957 1,299 101						453, 109
Virginia. 2, 489 415 8, 638 2, 236 166 Washington 5 1, 404 340 9, 320 2, 611 173 West Virginia. 856 376 1, 957 1, 299 101	Utah					37, 602
Washington 5 1, 404 340 9, 320 2, 611 173 West Virginia 856 376 1, 957 1, 299 101	Virginia				9 998	30, 372 166, 065
West Virginia	Washington 5				2 611	173, 577
0.040	West Virginia.					101, 969
W ISCONSIN 2. 949 438 20, 236 4, 549 261	Wisconsin	2,949	438	20, 236	4,549	261, 123
Wyoming 220 62 940 350 21	Wyoming				350	21, 603
Total 288, 739 38, 044 909, 231 220, 910 15, 692	Total	288, 730	38, 044	909, 231	220, 910	15, 692, 960

For footnotes see p. 70.

Table 6.—Individual returns for 1934 by States and Territories, showing sources of income and deductions, and net income—Continued

[Thousands of dollars]

				Dedi	ictions	-		•	
States and Territories	Busi- ness loss	Part- nership loss !	Net capital loss ²	Interest paid 4	Taxes paid 4	Contri- butions	All other deduc- tions	Total de- ductions	Net in- come
Alabama Arizona Arizona Arizona Arizona Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kantacky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massachusefts Michigan Minnesota Missispipi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada Nevada New Hampshire New Jersey New Mexico New Jersey New Mexico North Carolina North Carolina Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Dakota Tennessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia	373 302 246 6, 668 679 806 528 520 768 829 247 710 918 616 638 337 1, 106 2, 496 2, 496 2, 496 61, 858 1174 11, 781 11, 781 11	121 77 78 80 2, 434 247 365 60 2112 306 259 47 213 372 245 243 219 298 69 299 948 1, 332 318 105 377 49 310 30 777 52 9, 547 141 64 1, 029 512 126 2, 545 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 1440 152 176 176 176 176 176 176 176 176 176 176	822 380 380 15, 614 1, 288 5, 632 6088 1, 837 1, 546 1, 243 318 2, 085 1, 499 404 1, 403 1, 263 33, 817 6, 143 1, 263 33, 817 6, 143 1, 263 33, 817 6, 143 1, 263 33, 817 6, 143 1, 263 3, 817 1, 102 1, 102 1, 102 1, 103 1,	3, 541 1, 303 1, 717 37, 263 3, 296 3, 296 6, 115 4, 124 5, 163 5, 163 5, 163 3, 212 5, 173 34, 209 6, 115 4, 209 6, 115 4, 209 6, 115 1, 209 16, 115 17, 209 16, 115 17, 209 16, 115 17, 209 17, 117 18, 117 18, 117 19, 117 11, 117 11, 117 11, 117 12, 117 12, 117 11, 117	2, 966 1, 134 1, 558 36, 359 3, 172 12, 085 1, 910 6, 742 5, 261 1, 471	1, 454 3100 9500 12, 216 1, 595 6, 783 1, 499 4, 046 2, 303 2, 650 495 2, 470 1, 826 2, 470 1, 826 2, 470 1, 826 14, 818 81 81 81 81 70, 829 4, 174 4, 174 4, 174 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81 81	4, 725 1, 790 4, 240 4, 240 51, 844 6, 633 9, 876 1, 911 10, 091 110, 111 10, 111 10, 111 11, 705 12, 650 12, 7, 534 1, 265 140, 304 10, 818 2, 050 31, 587 11, 750 140, 304 150, 304 160, 305 17, 506 31, 587 11, 750 36, 38, 39, 33 2, 915 1, 331 1, 565 1, 311 1, 506 1, 506 1, 507 1, 507	14, 003 5, 022 9, 074 161, 397 16, 999 50, 271 10, 320, 845 25, 313 23, 523 3, 5, 688 3, 184 170, 464 32, 407 25, 520 19, 865 20, 995 12, 242 41, 613 81, 314 34, 381 9, 196 57, 879 6, 176 12, 878 11, 991 7, 313 112, 758 2, 985 5524, 926 28, 575 4, 404 106, 727 27, 598 51, 1991 17, 313 112, 758 2, 985 51, 690 17, 553 11, 691 191, 500 17, 553 1, 1991 191, 500 21, 660 86, 395 5, 586 3, 806 26, 132	69, 229 29, 803 38, 886 968, 067 94, 502 288, 693 55, 073 234, 925 112, 103 122, 612 37, 516 23, 637 1, 006, 928 119, 454 119, 45
Washington 5 West Virginia Wisconsin Wyoming	790 341 982 272	277 139 238 45	1,803 662 4,280 138	4,346 3,666 10,722 483	4,821 2,964 9,285 437	1,636 1,580 4,072 196	6, 264 4, 626 14, 193 996	19, 938 13, 977 43, 773 2, 567	153, 639 87, 992 217, 351 19, 036
Total	63, 885	29, 004	183, 762	517, 217	541, 191	272, 822	688, 277	2, 296, 158	12, 796, 802

¹ For explanation of item, see p. 8.
2 For explanation of changes in 1934 Act affecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.
3 Interest received on 4 and 4½ percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)
4 Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.
4 Includes Alaska.

Table 7.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing sources of income, deductions, and net income; also total number of returns and, for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars] [For text defining certain items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

				;	Sources of i	ncome			
Net income classes	Total number of re- turns	comn	s, wages, nissions, s, etc.	Busin	ess profit		ership fit ¹	Net capital gain ²	
	Vario	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amoun
Under 5 (est.) 5-6 8-7 7-8 8-9 9-10 10-11 11-12 12-13 13-14 14-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 60-70 70-80 80-90 990-100 100-150	113, 862 72, 405 47, 342 32, 617 24, 598 18, 650 14, 733 11, 884 9, 768 8, 333 25, 968 13, 556 7, 971 8, 534 4, 426 2, 480 1, 527 93 463 982	(6) 78, 342 48, 425 30, 859 11, 595 11, 595 11, 595 11, 595 11, 593 17, 199 5, 851 15, 303 7, 920 4, 561 4, 879 2, 521 1, 471 90, 171 1, 905 553 394 268 268 598	6, 300, 199 410, 084 292, 230 210, 460 156, 805 129, 814 103, 633 87, 370 73, 348 63, 232 56, 604 194, 421 122, 607 79, 520 96, 573 60, 193 98, 372 27, 665 18, 500 12, 499 9, 838 26, 439	(6) 22,058 14,115 8,923 6,009 4,307 3,221 2,365 1,900 1,537 1,221 3,742 1,646 948 895 417 203 123 79 61 350	1, 148, 153 104, 973 77, 910 56, 364 42, 481 32, 913 27, 019 21, 725 19, 090 16, 570 13, 568 48, 881 26, 677 18, 404 21, 183 12, 055 7, 099 5, 239 2, 991 3, 693 1, 729 3, 395	(6) 10, 827 7, 531 5, 430 3, 725 3, 038 1, 868 1, 577 1, 296 1, 301 764 399 240 1,53 1, 301 764 399 240 1,53 121 755 142	193, 849 43, 843 35, 384 28, 542 22, 779 20, 979 17, 873 14, 304 12, 076 46, 252 30, 801 21, 900 28, 888 22, 181 13, 226 9, 008 7, 951 6, 087 4, 337 10, 902	(6) 10, 808 8, 204 6, 093 4, 603 3, 707 3, 064 1, 660 1, 660 2, 071 2, 376 1, 269 736 5, 402 2, 207 1, 233 165 2, 33 165 2, 33 165 2, 349	51, 101 10, 233 8, 944 7, 684 6, 977 5, 788 5, 276 4, 577 3, 944 3, 677 11, 077 12, 508 8, 166 5, 599 5, 149 1, 14
180-200 200-250 250-300 300-400 400-500 500-750	204 122 77 39 57 29	207 114 69 41 12 32 14	10, 092 7, 731 4, 037 3, 164 419 1, 454 887	14 7 6 2 1 3 3	1, 325 420 552 303 124 826 1, 180	46 20 18 9 3 8	5, 241 2, 807 2, 587 836 335 691 46	131 75 43 27 14 24 10	3, 25 3, 29 1, 44 1, 99 1, 48 1, 54 1, 80
1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000	21 4 6 1	10 4 3 1	(*) 259 (*)						(8) 35
5,000 and over Classes grouped 8			(5) 148						1, 73
Total				972 000	1, 716, 842	9 49, 066	631, 915	961 704	211, 31

Table 7.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing sources of income, deductions, and net income; also total number of returns and, for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

			Sour	rces of incom	e—Contir	ued		
Net income classes		s and lities	of domes	ds on stock tic corpora- ions	Fidu	ciary 1	Interest on Gov- ernment obliga- tions not wholly exempt from tax ³	
	Number of re- turns	Amount	Number of re- turns	Amount	Number of re- turns	Amount	Number of re- turns	Amount
Under 5 (est.)	2 1 1	344. 058 24, 949 17, 891 13, 875 9, 096 6, 439 5, 351 4, 741 4, 510 10, 052 7, 126 8, 352 5, 588 3, 336 2, 691 1, 760 1, 084 7, 980 653 3, 367 1, 980 653 494 130 309 9 131 672 8, 352 1, 760 1, 1084 1, 1084	(6) 55, 492 39, 733 28, 055 20, 736 16, 281 13, 090 10, 647 18, 827 7, 423 6, 411 20, 843 11, 527 7, 655 21, 339 1, 455 22, 339 1, 455 21, 350 200 1200 76 36 36 36 36 21 4 6 1	380, 628 71, 139 64, 698 56, 673 50, 904 44, 925 71, 131 38, 932 36, 196 34, 117 32, 230 134, 192 104, 268 85, 044 127, 138 93, 647 69, 414 54, 357 736, 784 34, 753 37, 201 80, 856 47, 140 34, 676 28, 476 28, 476 21, 824 15, 029 32, 628 23, 690 24, 037 (3) 19, 084 (5)	(9) 7, 446 5, 688 4, 109 3, 234 2, 206 841 662 587 471 386 686 419 445 298 151 87 53 40 23 192 84 42 28 100 100 16 5 7	84, 876 16, 244 14, 137 11, 738 10, 204 9, 212 8, 255 7, 359 6, 701 5, 982 5, 755 23, 429 16, 223 12, 281 15, 850 10, 997 8, 963 4, 177 3, 966 2, 847 1, 615 3, 663 2, 290 1, 257 3, 257 3, 258 3, 259 3, 259 3, 259 4, 177 3, 257 3, 257	5, 044 4, 074 3, 300 2, 363 2, 045 1, 754 1, 121 1, 133 1, 046 533 163 1, 443 1, 648 906 533 347 203 163 112 12 228 92 46 35 23 77 18 8 3 5 1	3, 105 2, 691 1, 825 1, 599 1, 639 1, 434 1, 251 1, 1212 1, 146 4, 428 3, 008 2, 735 1, 753 1, 764 719 394 450 322 797 331 319 248 491 183 188 (7) 5 (8) 38 (8)
Total	<u> </u>	509, 844	£ 265, 487	1, 965, 670	929, 542	288, 730	35,097	38, 044

Table 7.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing sources of income, deductions, and net income; also total number of returns and, for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

	Sour	ces of inco	ome—Co	ntinued			Dec	luctions		
Net income		taxable erest			Busi	ness loss		nership oss 1	Net capital loss 2	
Classes	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Other in- come 4	Total income	Num- ber of re- turns	Amount	Num- ber of re- turns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amount
Under 5 (est.)_ 5-6	(6) 49, 035	455, 751 47, 781	9, 613	9, 080, 298 741, 966	(6) 1,887	34, 132 2, 826	(6) I, 225	13, 826 1, 899	(6) 13, 892	92, 794 12, 700
6-7	33, 484	38, 641	7,816	560, 339	1,301	2, 018	872	1, 324	10, 412	10, 123
7-8	23, 353	31, 369	6, 226	425, 256	980	1,814	627	1,019	7, 944	8, 152
8-9	17,040	25, 043	7, 171	334, 890	726	1, 549	491	877	6, 153	6, 580
9–10 10–11	13, 120 10, 320	21, 848 19, 214	4, 145 3, 439	280, 310 235, 324	526 474	994 1, 065	345 303	547 494	4, 953 4, 035	5, 601 4, 664
11-12	8, 519	17,677	3, 099	204, 671	391	1,003	226	524	3, 322	3, 958
12-13	7, 012	15, 735	2,751	179, 306	324	925	189	524	2,891	3, 507
13-14	5, 867	14, 277	2,408	159, 110	293	826	203	374	2, 534	3, 107
14-15	5, 186	12, 353	2, 384	144, 302	241	636	163	294	2,100	2, 601
15-20	16, 548	48, 822	7, 941	539, 343	797	2,439	552	1, 493	7,305	9, 349
20-25	9, 199	32, 797	5,871	363, 380	490	1, 907	306	1, 257	4, 291	5, 851
25-30	5, 688	22,959	4, 103	262, 602	318	1, 296	222	874	2,643	3,606
30-40	6, 329	30, 185	6, 518	349, 932	400	1, 790	260	1, 334	2,900	4, 124
40-50	3, 376	18, 394	4, 236	237, 250	219	1, 234	142	437	1, 617	2, 352
50-60	1, 934	11, 350	2,528	160, 044	149 94	737	89 58	382	931	1, 332
60-70 70-80	1, 222 770	8, 563 5, 565	1,878 1,631	119, 446 82, 545	55	555 306	30	219 238	569 377	833 567
80-90	577	4, 561	1,620	71, 037	56	535	22	54	275	398
90-100	399	3, 494	1, 269	52, 435	36	584	29	166	182	285
100-150	832	7, 136	2, 943	143, 653	95	1. 331	39	546	379	585
150-200	313	3, 469	1,743	75, 539	33	451	18	207	161	256
200-250	180	2, 436	1,674	55, 108	25	658	12	24	93	150
250-300	108	1, 350	482	39, 931	16	314	6	25	52	88
300-400	71	1,573	562	31, 370	9	97	2	1	36	64
400~500	35	1,580	1,052	21, 035	6	345			14	21
500~750	52 27	2, 175	1, 667 349	42, 201 29, 814	12 8	433 231	2	90	24 13	46
750-1,000 1,000-1,500	17	1, 520 409	1, 413	29, 814	4	107	1	38 9	7	20 14
1,500-2,000	4	(8)	(8)	(8)	1	(8)	•		• (14
2,000-3,000	6	`211	`399	20, 357	3	696			3	30
3,000-4,000	1	(8)	(8)	(8)					1	(8)
4,000-5,000										
5,000 and over.	1	(8)	(8)	(8)					1	(8)
Classes group-		00-		00.072		F.4				
ed 8		995	295	22, 676		54				4
Total	9220,625	909, 231	220, 910	15,092,960	99,969	63, 885	⁹ 6, 434	29, 004	980, 110	183, 762

For footnotes see p. 74.

Table 7.—Individual returns for 1934 by net income classes, showing sources of income, deductions, and net income; also total number of returns and, for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over, number of returns for each specific source of income and deduction—Continued

[Money figures and net income classes in thousands of dollars]

			D	eductions-	Contin	ued			
Net income classes	Interes	t paid 5	Taxes	paid 5	Contri	butions	Ali	Total	Net income
	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amount	Num- ber of returns	Amount	other deduc- tions 4	deduc- tions	
Under 5 (est.)	(e) 58, 490 38, 434 425, 448 18, 144, 551 10, 603 8, 301 6, 637 7, 931 4, 752 5, 132 7, 762 1, 535 1, 000 624 446 309 656 249 142 8 8 9 57	285, 950 31, 230 24, 402 18, 540 11, 755 9, 956 8, 589 7, 292 6, 178 20, 599 20, 599 20, 599 11, 445 11, 445 2, 450 2, 239 1, 561 4, 519 1, 561 4, 519 1, 471 830 705	(6) 92, 493 59, 914 40, 154 27, 916 16, 214 12, 298 10, 492 8, 701 7, 456 23, 409 12, 592 12, 315 1, 447 883 661 414 951 354 196 196	308, 701 26, 937 20, 644 15, 698 12, 924 10, 768 9, 046 7, 928 6, 824 6, 011 5, 516 10, 200 13, 713 9, 418 6, 017 5, 554 6, 330 3, 104 2, 286 6, 330 3, 244 1, 299 1, 299	(e) 83, 623 54, 055 54, 055 35, 806 25, 184, 488 19, 521 7, 754 6, 898 20, 846 6, 555 7, 105 3, 725 2, 107 1, 318 806 597 406 882 224 180 112 70	143, 172 12, 910 9, 784 7, 519 5, 968 7, 519 5, 968 7, 208	31, 844 23, 903 19, 016 15, 751 12, 094 10, 456 9, 804 8, 606 7, 938 6, 289 27, 416 17, 903 13, 046 16, 077 12, 076 6, 521 3, 180 4, 587 7, 807 4, 084 1, 178 1, 180 1, 141 1, 141	1, 284, 260 120, 346 92, 198 71, 758 58, 494 47, 073 39, 959 27, 392 23, 574 92, 797 45, 012 56, 581 12, 716 12, 716 12, 616 12, 616 13, 909 14, 945 14, 945 14, 945	7, 796, 038 621, 620 468, 141 353, 498 276, 396 233, 237 195, 364 169, 122 148, 327 131, 717 120, 729 446, 546 301, 787 217, 590 293, 352 197, 588 135, 139 98, 806 69, 829 58, 421 43, 782 117, 744 62, 343 45, 188 33, 480 26, 425
400-500	26 45 20 13 2	519 1,841 1,302 272 (8)	36 55 26 19 4	1, 089 1, 525 982 959 (6)	33 51 24 19 4	909 1, 824 1, 137 1, 329 (8)	2, 186 984 449	3, 628 7, 855 4, 695 3, 139	17, 407 34, 345 25, 119 24, 353
2,000-3,000	1	(8) (8) (8) 124	1	(8) (8) (8) (8) 842	1	(8) (8) (8) (8) 2, 399	2, 847 1, 218	4, 972 	15, 385
Total	9230,576	517, 217	9360,569	541, 191	9324,368	272, 822	688, 277	2, 296, 158	12, 796, 802

² For explanation of changes in 1954 Act anecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.

³ Interest received on 4 and 4½ percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$4,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)

⁴ The number of returns is not available, since the amount of "other income" is determined by subtracting the sum of specific sources of income from total income, and "other deductions" is determined by subtractive the sum of specific sources.

tracting the sum of specific deductions from total deductions.

⁵ Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.

Secretal anomals reported in schools:
 Not available.
 Less than \$500.
 Classes grouped to conceal identity of taxpayer.
 Excludes returns with net income of under \$5,000.

¹ For explanation of items, see p. 8. ² For explanation of changes in 1934 Act affecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9,

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups, showing number of businesses and amount ¹

				Industrial g	groups				
Size of profit and		Aggreg	gate		Agriculture and related industries				
loss fro_n business (Thousands of		Profit		Loss	I	Profit	Loss		
ber of busi-	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	
Under 0.1. 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 50-71 1,000 1,0	1, 107 1, 042 769 687 2, 498 3, 402 3, 754 4, 895 36, 741 8, 432 2, 860 1, 275 684 646 291 1 224 83 500 4 2	\$51, 522 151, 300 189, 591 238, 593 266, 389 1, 836, 235 5, 689, 860 8, 532, 617 13, 159, 073 22, 226, 071 254, 496, 838 101, 010, 136 48, 989, 619 28, 305, 852 2, 109, 689 12, 908, 970 13, 472, 790 6, 981, 142 6, 693, 433 1, 393, 623 1, 307, 805	665 638 554 510 453 1,734 1,928 1,058 644 407 834 263 106 57 34 30 19 20 7 6 6 1	\$32, 325 94, 437 136, 435 177, 410 203, 135 1, 258, 794 2, 796, 198 2, 586, 211 2, 229, 866 1, 809, 844 5, 782, 670 3, 151, 205 1, 818, 832 1, 275, 876 914, 585 1, 027, 254 829, 916 1, 154, 813 597, 017 1, 1019, 564 323, 658 532, 896	221 232 159 177 135 490 616 640 387 368 2, 161 368 144 68 199 26 10 6		274 274 240 233 222 871 1,036 625 363 240 468 146 75 34 23 16 9 13 6	\$14, 336 40, 557 59, 232 80, 767 99, 883 634, 110 1, 507, 013 1, 529, 565 1, 260, 957 1, 072, 711 3, 262, 786 1, 760, 099 1, 285, 667 765, 683 614, 008 549, 900 395, 810 759, 715 528, 035	
Total for returns of net income of \$5,000 and over. Total for returns of net income under \$5,000 for which no frequency distributions oy business and by profit and loss is available.	73, 889	568, 688, 999	9, 969	29, 752, 941 34, 131, 775	5, 988	30, 760, 325	5, 172	17, 273, 785	
Grand total	(2)	1, 716, 841, 790	(2)	63, 884, 716					

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups, showing number of businesses and amount 1—Continued

				Indu	sti	rial group	s—Cont	in	ued			
		Mining an	d q	uarryi	ing				Manufac	eturing		
Size of profit and loss from business (Thousands of dollars)	P	rofit		Loss			1	Profit			Loss	
(2110403240014031410)	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	b	lum- er of ousi- esses	A	mount	Num- ber of busi- nesses		Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 1,000 and over Total	28 31 19 18 18 15 47 69 56 51 11 10 283 113 46 35 57 17 12 23 10 44 4 3	\$1, 270 4, 592 4, 837 6, 156 6, 625 35, 018 103, 032 137, 918 175, 916 272, 011 1, 985, 371 1, 362, 689 763, 050 458, 719 429, 364 1, 030, 020 58, 4, 160 327, 648 399, 905		12 4 11 9 3 3 22 26 6 16 16 2 2 4 5 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 2 2 2 2		\$579 634 2, 745 3, 196 40, 759 38, 627 44, 754 53, 988 171, 020 197, 912 37, 714 91, 556 138, 121 65, 581 43, 528 111, 120	25 31 17 19 19 17 64 117 134 178 262 2, 195 572 199 96 65 88 7 27 18 8 8 7 21		\$835 4, 505 4, 214 6, 550 7, 531 49, 834 172, 516 337, 615 624, 254 1, 191, 691 5, 347, 531 3, 478, 926 6, 888, 121 3, 478, 926 2, 142, 877 1, 575, 328 2, 217, 787 6, 75, 174 859, 901 690, 926 800, 323 39, 356, 996	17 18 13 16 16 14 39 62 22 28 11 13 18 7 3 2	\$71; 2, 44; 2, 876 5, 212; 6, 344 26, 46, 91, 856 69, 17, 38, 80, 56, 22; 117, 63; 83, 83, 50, 15(42, 79; 59, 90; 225, 56;	
	-	Con	str	In uction	_	strial grou			portation	and othe	r public	
Size of profit and loss from business		Profit		Loss		oss	Profit			Loss		
(Thousands of dollars)	Num ber o busi- nesse	f Amour	nt	Nun ber bus ness	of i-	Amount	Num ber o busi- nesse	of -	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	
Under 0.1. 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 30 30-40 40-50 50-75 155-100 100-250 250-50-50	33 55 66 59 99 74 177 66 31 1	5 1 1.7 1 3.7 1 3.7 1 3.7 1 88.6 2 2 151. 2 2 2 151. 2 2 2 5.057. 8 11. 2 2 2 5.057. 8 2 2 5.057. 8 3 4 1.120. 6 6 8 2 4 8 6 8 8 4 8 6 8	731 388 398 332 342 315 309 375 367 369 313 336 311 724		8 4 8 4 4 4 118 119 111 6 5 8 4 3	\$479 688 1, 910 1, 458 1, 863 14, 155 27, 987 25, 242 20, 377 22, 823 61, 546 47, 437	3 5 4 4 7 56 11 3 2	5 3 6 3 9	\$219 1, 468 279 1, 702 2, 229 25, 342 80, 751 1123, 466 156, 342 331, 392 3, 845, 254 1, 371, 699 674, 489 655, 372 195, 692 524, 527 305, 165 500, 628	8 8 8 4 2 2 111 166 7 4 4 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$433 1, 233 1, 000 700 705 7, 533 25, 696 17, 55 13, 511 8, 900 25, 15t 27, 800 27, 200 44, 121	
500–1,000 1,000 and over	<i></i> -							 				
				-				_				

Total....

1,400 12,253,002

102

279, 684

1, 065 8, 796, 016

72

201, 667

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups, showing number of businesses and amount ¹—Continued

			Indu	ıstrial grou	ıps—Con	tinued		
		Trade-	-Retail	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		Trade-W	holesale	
Size of profit and loss from business (Thousands of dollars)		Profit		Loss	-	Profit	1	 Loss
(Thousands of gonats)	Nu.n- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Nun- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 23-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	353 145 95 93 87 404 764 721 898 1, 182 7, 756 1, 372 456 152 80 86 34 20 9 3	\$14, 821 20, 905 23, 401 32, 695 39, 167 299, 607 1, 140, 874 1, 817, 300 3, 150, 252 5, 381, 164 52, 372, 742 16, 373, 220 7, 736, 421 3, 325, 624 1, 173, 251 752, 202 501, 404	80 16 6 2	\$3, 666 14, 003 18, 911 29, 205 25, 248 153, 029 285, 295 247, 361 228, 306 172, 631 301, 833 42, 945 2, 945 2, 051, 149	\$ 13 100 4 57 79 89 99 151 1,336 342 138 79 42 - 42 - 15 - 4 - 1	1, 764 43, 612 119, 852 227, 509 347, 165 691, 165 9, 303, 935 4, 102, 203 2, 352, 720 1, 805, 688 1, 143, 521 1, 491, 714 970, 220 908, 427 333, 652 131, 656	8 7 10 6 6 9 9 19 344 8 8 9 9 5 17 4 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$393 1, 123 2, 511 2, 051 3, 910 14, 448 49, 963 19, 617 30, 497 21, 314 118, 685 49, 700 16, 460 43, 973 25, 506
			Indu	ıstrial grou	ips—Con	tinued		
Size of profit and loss	Tı	ade—Wholes	sale and r	retail	Service	Domestic (s, hotels,
from business)	Profit	L	oss] 3	Profit	L	oss
(Thousands of dollars)	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
Under 0.1. 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3. 0.3-0.4	1 1 1	\$98 159 222	1 I	\$122 280	10 8 19 7	\$389 1, 180 4, 674 2, 524	13 11 11 9	\$397 1, 631 2, 676 3, 216
$\begin{array}{c} 0.4\!-\!0.5. \\ 0.5\!-\!1. \\ 1\!-\!2. \\ 2\!-\!3. \\ 3\!-\!4. \\ 4\!-\!5. \\ 5\!-\!10. \\ 10\!-\!15. \\ 15\!-\!20. \\ 20\!-\!25. \\ 25\!-\!30. \\ 30\!-\!40. \\ 40\!-\!50. \\ 50\!-\!75. \\ \end{array}$	2 4 11 13 27 37 230 54 18 9 6 2	3, 179 16, 078 32, 273 95, 511 173, 755 1, 586, 379 638, 916 201, 851 162, 604 62, 096	3 2	2, 312 2, 780 41, 271	12 43 68 61 81 103 742 99 24 8 4 5 8 3	5, 430 30, 641 105, 904 154, 302 282, 444 471, 981 4, 966, 755 1, 161, 585 407, 788 171, 214 108, 647 166, 202 348, 107 177, 619	10 40 41 26 9 8 14 4 1 2 1 1	4, 317 28, 947 58, 668 62, 549 30, 719 34, 005 101, 809 45, 923 15, 530 42, 591 25, 092 31, 060 41, 332
75–100 100–250 250–500							1	142, 182
500-1,000 1,000 and over								
Total	416	3, 286, 208	8	46, 765	1, 305	8, 567, 386	203	672, 644

88019 - 36 - 6

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups, showing number of businesses and amount 1—Continued

			Indu	strial group	os-Cont	inued		
Size of profit and loss	•	Service—A	musemen	its	Service	Curative (l and all
from business (Thousands of dol-	I	Profit	L	oss		Profit	1	oss
lars)	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5. 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 1,000 and over	3 8 5 26 44 34 51 55 368 110 25 10 9 14 3 2 1	\$260 1, 096 1, 183 2, 233 19, 096 67, 010 82, 529 176, 518 247, 507 2, 512, 412 1, 300, 780 442, 017 219, 028 250, 541 472, 422 137, 994 127, 263 85, 660	10 7 7 3 2 16 34 14 16 10 26 15 5 1 1 1 1 1 4	\$118 1, 408 1, 741 1, 079 11, 845 52, 717 33, 453 54, 077 44, 804 193, 662 175, 916 84, 037 24, 423 26, 984 31, 730 41, 688 224, 075		\$4, 068 13, 021 16, 169 20, 163 24, 806 187, 552 738, 388 1, 466, 711 2, 606, 883 5, 166, 197 70, 496, 725 26, 465, 046 10, 632, 095 4, 991, 874 3, 169, 281 2, 577, 622 937, 695 725, 255 344, 978 106, 537	44 40 37 24 26 94 77 34 15 3 21	\$2, 248 5, 849 9, 216 8, 530 11, 628 66, 507 111, 710 86, 158 49, 900 13, 764 129, 338 20, 523 515, 380
		Service—E		ustrial grou	ps-Con	tinued Service—Er	ginogrin	
Size of profit and loss from business		Profit		Loss		Profit		oss
(Thousands of dollars)	Num ber o busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
Under 0.1	5 33 22 2 2 8 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	7, 944 9, 786 92 7, 537 11, 104 44 59, 022 7, 114, 135 7, 143, 793 202, 293, 958 4 3, 368, 493 9, 1, 904, 839 9, 1, 146, 148 7, 825, 380 7, 759, 059 8, 669, 612	23 11 10 9 50 29 6 4 1 3 2 2	\$1, 317 3, 487 2, 776 3, 554 4, 129 35, 211 40, 248 14, 588 13, 744 4, 543 23, 387 21, 324 32, 000	29 29 17 16 58 69 49 44 59 373 110 43 21 12 11 19	\$1, 641 4, 221 4, 032 8, 301 7, 070 43, 896 94, 722 120, 831 155, 958 262, 023 2, 599, 618 1, 322, 874 743, 271 470, 077 335, 235 378, 909 407, 788 194, 059	18 18 12 15 10 39 34 22 15 4 9 9 4 1 1	\$969 2, 769 2, 878 5, 277 4, 480 27, 679 48, 562 53, 783 51, 995 17, 269 55, 835 45, 490 15, 898
30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000	1	1,069,718			1	154, 390 102, 879		

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by industrial groups, showing number of businesses and amount 1—Continued

		Indu	strial grou	ps-Con	inued		
	Service-	-Legal			Service—A	ll other	
I	rofit	L	oss	F	rofit	Loss	
Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
114 152 133 100 83 381 615 501 488 619 4, 425 1, 346 63 263 263 263 263 263 2127 10, 209	\$5, 943 21, 549 32, 457 34, 534 37, 381 282, 855 910, 693 1, 246, 662 2, 805, 682 31, 520, 426 16, 167, 773 9, 132, 529 16, 167, 773 9, 132, 289 3, 781, 233 5, 297, 108 2, 645, 209 3, 764, 513 2, 227, 742 2, 1614, 320 702, 697 507, 482	50 47 49 42 22 41 104 91 27 22 11 22 4 1 1	\$2, 473 6, 849 12, 066 14, 911 10, 618 76, 653 130, 496 63, 962 74, 035 48, 329 155, 614 45, 195 17, 483 23, 753	29 25 22 24 24 21 77 112 115 106 6 162 1, 728 3390 111 48 28 17 7 10 2	\$1, 087 3, 437 5, 312 8, 235 9, 540 161, 681 286, 730 370, 159 740, 758 11, 987, 603 4, 699, 981 1, 895, 722 1, 067, 996 750, 180 570, 090 311, 275 624, 480 187, 228	13 12 12 6 6 6 22 16 9 8 8 4 7	\$454 1, 645 2, 961 2, 004 2, 716 16, 949 23, 184 22, 294 27, 075 17, 772 47, 053
	inance—Inv			ups—Cor		Real estat	
	Profit			-	Profit		oss
ber o	f Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amoun	t ber o	f Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount
1 3 2 2 1 1 1 8 8 3 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	6 906 6 1, 253 4 10, 691 2 45, 860 8 67, 598 4 48, 667 133, 148 9 1, 359, 562 9 191, 823 7 645, 547 1 462, 790 7 188, 142 7 188, 142 7 1 378, 573 3 136, 023 3 136, 023 3 136, 103 2 186, 193 2 186, 193	9 2 2 4 3 14 22 13 14 5 13 3 8 8	1, 36 1, 49 1, 35 11, 26 31, 28 30, 59 48, 15 21, 04 88, 54 89, 95 20, 40 75, 75 132, 92	8 2 11 0 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2	12 13 9 7 13 41 39 22 22 12 21 10 3 1	\$720 1, 889 2, 211 2, 356 5, 658 30, 039 55, 229 56, 773 54, 312 146, 704 123, 386 56, 094 23, 287
	Number of businesses 114 152 133 100 83 381 615 501 488 619 4, 425 1, 346 533 263 27 11 10, 209 F Number of businesses 114 152 11 10, 209	Number of businesses	Num-ber of busi-nesses	Number of businesses	Number of businesses	Number of businesses	Service—Legal

Table 8.—Individual returns for 1934 of net income of \$5,000 and over—Frequency distribution by size of profit and loss from business (other than partnerships) by individual groups, showing number of businesses and amount 1—Continued

			Indu	istrial grou	psCon	tinued			
a		Finance—	All other		Nature of business not given				
Size of profit and loss from business (Thousands of dollars)	Profit		Loss		I	Profit	Loss		
	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	Num- ber of busi- nesses	Amount	
Under 0.1 0.1-0.2 0.2-0.3 0.3-0.4 0.4-0.5 0.5-1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5. 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 25-30 30-40 40-50 50-75 75-100 100-250 25-500 50-75 500 50-1,000					88 137 95 75 71 259 304 224 215 237 1, 467 351 123 37 40 34 17 13 2 7	\$3, 966 19, 376 22, 790 26, 299 31, 560 183, 150 430, 223 563, 630 750, 385 1, 074, 148 10, 029, 764 4, 241, 191 2, 068, 276 1, 244, 825 1, 087, 587 1, 178, 223 754, 906 791, 012 174, 596 941, 646	44 33 35 40 32 93 115 66 39 32 68 15 2 4 4 2 5	\$1, 990 4, 800 8, 4171 13, 763 14, 466 66, 131 159, 495 164, 453 134, 038 141, 281 476, 145 172, 132 34, 351 87, 951 57, 668 173, 800 43, 928 76, 962	
1,000 and over	3,070	24, 907, 744	165	407, 848	3,816	25, 617, 553	627	1, 831, 831	

 $^{^{1}}$ This table excludes income from salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc., as shown in item 1 on face of return. 2 Not available.

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years

		Alabama			Arizona	
Net income classes	Number			Number		1
(Thousands of dollars)	of re- turns	Net income	Total tax	of re- turns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1 Under 1 (est.) 1 -1.5 (est.) 1 -1.5 (est.) 5-2 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1	1, 717	\$1, 157, 227		793	\$479, 325	
Under I (est.)	2,612	30, 611 3, 179, 692	\$652	1,580	3, 661 1, 838, 654	\$8
l-1.5 (est.)	1, 875 1, 291	2, 467, 440	13, 675	1, 123	1, 461, 647	7, 5
l.5-2 (est.) 1 l.5-2 (est.)	1, 291 1, 607	2, 236, 417	32,073	679 921	1, 182, 800 1, 572, 496	17, 5
		2, 467, 440 2, 236, 417 2, 779, 705 6, 189, 063		739	1, 684, 214	
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.)	602 2, 808	1, 333, 908	22, 001	323 1, 697	717, 959 4, 626, 453	10, 3
2.5–3 (est.)	602	1, 702, 816 4, 694, 484 2, 474, 553	15, 195	353	1 990 873	9, 6
1-3.5 (est.) 1	1, 459 758	4, 694, 484	16, 251	710 459	2, 261, 362 1, 500, 754 887, 345 1, 211, 217	13, 7
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹	398	1, 465, 684		241	887, 345	10, 7
3.5–4 (est.)	872	3, 254, 681	27, 154	323	1, 211, 217	10,8
I–4.5 (est.) 1	147 769	618, 809 3, 254, 746	30, 796	102 317	436, 202 1, 335, 892	17, 1
-4.5 (est.) .5-5 (est.)	61	1 293, 598	l	36	168, 124	
1.5-5 (est.) 5-6 1	475 51	2, 262, 818 273, 273 3, 689, 791	26, 910	215 10	168, 124 1, 029, 265 54, 777 1, 471, 279	15, 1
5–6	675	3, 689, 791	52, 881	270	1, 471, 279	27, 1 23, 2
i–7 '–8	408 275	2, 638, 172 2, 056, 681	46, 326 45, 013	166 70	1, 073, 006 516, 244	23, 2 12, 4
-8 -9	208	1 700 907	51, 368	41	349 186	12, 4
-10	125	1, 768, 227 1, 189, 473 1, 117, 356 893, 867 772, 988 820, 093	38, 833	54	511, 446 418, 719 252, 138 224, 352	20, 6
0-11 1-12	106 78	1, 117, 356	41, 361 35, 668	$\frac{40}{22}$	418,719 252,138	16, 8 12, 3
2-13	62	772, 988	35, 582	18	224, 352	12, 3 9, 9
3-14 4-15	61 46	820, 093 662, 688	41, 341 33, 116	9 8	121, 168	7, 2 7, 9
5-20	104	1, 777, 714 1, 029, 476	106, 948	30	517, 777 212, 791	35.0
0-25 5-30	47 28	1,029,476	77, 411 70, 034	9	212, 791 (2)	19, 5 (2)
0-40	30	751, 323 1, 063, 771	1 128, 789	9	323, 011	43, 3
0-50	17	752, 861	111, 751	3	(2)	(2)
0-70	3	(2)	(2)			
0-80				1	(²)	
0-90 0-100	4			1	(2)	(2)
00-150	4	503, 208	179, 459			
50–200 00–250	1	(2)	(2)			
50-300	l					
00-400 00-500						
00.750		1	1			
50-1,000 						
,500-2,000						
50-1,000 ,000-1,500 ,500-2,000 ,000-3,000 ,000-4,000						
.000-0.000						
,000 and over Classes grouped 2		406, 646	126, 516		250, 883	42, 5
			<u>-</u>			
Total	23, 072	69, 229, 199	1, 407, 104	11, 378	29, 802, 959	391, 7
ummary for preceding years:3			,			
1933	19, 962 20, 680	53, 673, 478 54, 020, 284 70, 309, 297 93, 900, 510 122, 569, 172 142, 167, 220 133, 224, 614 136, 523, 003	978, 404 769, 932	8, 588 8, 900	20, 851, 766 23, 354, 960	265, 6 305, 4
1931	19, 532	70, 309, 297	640, 467	8,035	28, 745, 823	947 9
1930	22,605	93, 900, 510	640, 467 1, 353, 584 2, 087, 718 4, 035, 792	10, 590	28, 745, 823 42, 775, 084 60, 788, 434 58, 368, 659	584, 2
1929 1928	25, 818 26, 891	142, 167, 220	4, 035, 792	12, 448 11, 527	58, 368, 659	584, 2 1, 113, 7 1, 600, 3
1927	27,992	133, 224, 614	2, 455, 166	11,059	45, 837, 158	997, 8
1926 1925	28, 540 26, 278	136, 523, 003 130, 024, 575	2, 449, 196 2, 326, 213	10, 509 10, 104	41, 716, 578 41, 382, 939	498, 8 544, 9
1924	47, 591	159, 918, 982	2, 771, 221	21, 301	58, 273, 049	511, 9

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

		Arkansas			California	
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total ta
nder 1 (est.) 1	1,042	\$684,786		24, 702	\$15, 560, 270	
nder 1 (est.)	42	31, 771	\$824	458	299 148 1	\$6, 1
1.5 (est.) 1	1, 614	1, 966, 403		41, 377	49, 495, 996 31, 317, 665 40, 101, 091	
1.5 (est.) 5-2 (est.) 1 5-2 (est.) 2.5 (est.) 1	965	1, 225, 450 2, 039, 786	6, 418	23, 220 23, 141	31, 317, 665	202, 4
5-2 (est.)	1, 164 636	2, 039, 786 1, 076, 904	11, 565	33, 907	58 407 263 1	705, 6
2.5 (est.) 1	1, 506	3 421 848	11,000	23, 478		700,0
2.5 (est.)	262	582, 429 4, 856, 621 918, 017	8, 986	13, 415	29, 707, 202	482, 0
2.5 (est.) 5-3 (est.)	1,778	4, 856, 621		13, 415 28, 375	77, 147, 617	
5-3 (est.) 1	325	918, 017	6, 819	8.436	29, 707, 202 77, 147, 617 23, 317, 131 42, 100, 559	317, 8
3.5 (est.) 1	751	2, 401, 551	0.077	13, 132	42, 100, 559	205
3.5 (est.) 5-4 (est.) ¹	498 261	1, 625, 849 969, 956	8, 977	11, 811 4, 703	38, 434, 289 17, 350, 711	395, 8
5-4 (est.)	446	1 671 039	10, 926	12.406	46, 428, 580	535, 4
4.5 (est.) 1	47	1, 671, 039 194, 993	10,020	1, 228	5, 175, 259	
4.5 (est.) 5-5 (est.) ¹	346	1, 462, 478 188, 740	13, 930	10, 432	44, 171, 984	566, 3
5–5 (est.) ¹	40	188, 740		760	3, 580, 141	
5-5 (est.)	277	1, 308, 536	16, 078	8, 574	40, 596, 320	597,
6 1	24 370	129, 186	29, 996	9, 569	2, 675, 322 52, 196, 849 40, 191, 282	016
7	239	2, 016, 073 1, 549, 284	27, 423	6, 223	40, 191, 282	916, 6 849, 6 695, 6
8	161	1, 198, 604	28, 312	3, 478	25, 940, 837	695,
9	118	1,001,871	27, 726	2, 204	19 861 761	609,
10	90	852, 218	1 25, 873	1, 593	15, 103, 384 12, 433, 188 10, 962, 162 9, 263, 056	569,
-11	58	1 609, 135	24, 417 19, 048	1, 188	12, 433, 188	521,
-12 -13	39 33	446, 735 412, 165	19, 048	954 743	0, 962, 162	499, 449,
~14	22	296, 925	14 099	673		480,
-15	34	490, 217	27, 236	524	7, 588, 172	423,
-20	57	981, 960	61, 078	1,640	28, 232, 817	1, 834,
)-25 -30	34	748, 519	27, 236 61, 078 57, 279 29, 422	933	7, 588, 172 28, 232, 817 20, 736, 581	1, 680,
-30	12	324, 615	29, 422	549	14, 972, 449	1, 494,
⊢40 ⊢50	16 5	549, 872 227, 523	64, 838 29, 926	546 292	18, 822, 591	2, 307, 1, 952,
⊢60	4	(2)	(2)	200	13, 037, 960 10, 900, 781	1, 923,
⊢70. ⊢80.	î	(2)	(2)	130	8, 422, 641 5, 638, 246	1, 923, 1, 702,
⊢80				75	5, 638, 246	1, 296,
9-90				52	4, 414, 575	1, 118, 817, 2, 934,
N-150				32 75	3, 028, 716 8, 986, 056	2 034
i0-200	1	(2)	(2)	25	4, 396, 700	1, 758.
-100				10	2, 159, 909	918,
60-300				7	1, 949, 537	900,
00-400				2	725, 514	340,
00-250 30-300 90-400 90-500 90-500 90-750 900 900-1,000 900-1,500 900-3,000 900-4,000 900-6,000 900 and over				2	1, 118, 574	575,
50-1 000				1	1, 110, 07 3	070,
000-1,500						
500-2,000						
000-3,000						
000-4,000						
000-5,000 000 and over						
lasses grouped 2		423, 535	106, 323			
				04.5. 500	000 007 110	
Total	13, 318	38, 885, 585	677, 515	315, 766	968, 067, 116	33, 380,
ummary for preceding years: 3						
1933	11, 427	29, 366, 515	370, 043	286, 580	785, 354, 006 841, 047, 708 967, 099, 004	21, 444, 21, 635,
1932	10, 350	24, 716, 119	215, 937 107, 830	295, 650 248, 722	841, 047, 708	21, 635,
1931	9,873	29, 256, 385	107, 830	248, 722	967, 099, 004	14, 732,
1930	12, 490	43, 282, 986	241, 787	293, 048	1, 330, 603, 655 1, 689, 896, 424	27, 136, 45, 360,
1929 1928	15, 813 16, 660	68, 910, 936 71, 689, 792	712, 954 877, 747	309, 047 316, 738	1, 765, 573, 139	63 707
1927	17, 331	75, 553, 896	1, 339, 952	315. 566	1, 582, 576, 258	46. 044
1926	19, 363	84, 661, 070	877, 747 1, 339, 952 1, 481, 272	315, 566 315, 344	1, 582, 576, 258 1, 571, 673, 688	63, 707, 46, 044, 46, 238,
1925	20, 597	84, 474, 350	1, 434, 504	305, 074	1, 490, 419, 792	37, 127,
1924	35, 484	110, 255, 418	1, 458, 499	511, 218	1, 741, 063, 671	37, 880,

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

		Colorado			Connecticut	;
Net income classes			 			
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	3, 183	\$1, 996, 184 36, 987		6, 786	\$4, 532, 944	
Under 1 (est.)	65 3, 623	4 496 390	\$711	352 16, 700	188, 433 19, 695, 043	\$3, 713
1-1.5 (est.)	2, 034	2, 727, 781	17, 108	12, 402	15, 680, 150	67, 072
1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1	2, 034 2, 647 2, 517	2, 727, 781 4, 579, 075 4, 365, 920 7, 722, 263 2, 257, 059	53, 059	6, 440 5, 548	1 11. 130 730	98, 454
2-2·5 (est.) 1	3, 396	7, 722, 263		6.704	9, 453, 735 15, 185, 979 4, 088, 411	
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) ¹	1, 027 2, 973	2, 257, 059 8, 109, 850	35, 530	1, 871 8, 133	4, 088, 411 22, 213, 423	57, 790
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.)	757	2, 080, 655	28, 103	2,029	5 585 535	51, 407
3-3.5 (est.) 1	1, 395 1, 033	4, 462, 264	29, 273	4, 035 2, 430	12, 976, 376 7, 897, 571 5, 694, 027	57, 913
3.5-4 (est.) 1	521	3, 357, 175 1, 911, 109		1,532	5, 694, 027	
3.5-4 (est.)	1, 153 117	4, 354, 420 490, 624	40, 553	2,067 774	7, 737, 950	58, 319
4-4.5 (est.)	878	2 710 784	37, 370	1, 438	6, 102, 928	57, 800
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 5-6:	95 743	453, 240 3, 526, 005 378, 308 4, 469, 711	41, 359	347 1, 360	6, 102, 928 1, 647, 919 6, 451, 658 1, 430, 951 12, 273, 090	71, 659
5-61	70	378, 308		264	1, 430, 951	
5-6-7	817 559	4, 469, 711 3, 616, 262	64, 342 60, 391	2, 246 1, 729	12, 273, 090 11, 193, 636	163, 974 169, 964
7-8.	364	2, 714, 969	58, 468	1, 168	8 732 184	175, 373
8-9	240 161	2, 029, 517 1, 525, 657	57, 829 46, 210	801 625	6, 786, 405 5, 922, 392 5, 064, 257	171, 695 178, 174
9-10- 10-11	138	1, 441, 499	53, 943	484	5, 064, 257	169, 881
11-12	120 97	1, 371, 344 1, 216, 306	56, 302 53, 083	392 302	4, 501, 402 3, 771, 638	170, 296 152, 915
13-14	59	800.377	39, 241	272	3 665 312	163, 128
14-15	49	710, 597	34, 454	207	2, 999, 886	163, 128 143, 250 648, 314
15-20 20-25	157 73	710, 597 2, 683, 556 1, 608, 710	154, 264 121, 675	678 397	2, 999, 886 11, 649, 918 8, 862, 963	649,902
25-30	51	1, 395, 179	129, 407	236	6, 426, 461	585, 369
30-40 40-50	51 25	1, 783, 658 1, 130, 235	211, 551 167, 331	271 103	9, 325, 514 4, 559, 189	1, 061, 121 638, 064
50-60	8	1, 130, 235 429, 926	72, 723 125, 795	74	4, 058, 459 3, 168, 442	666, 929
70-80	10	653, 467 (2)	(2)	49 28	3, 168, 442 2, 096, 832	618, 239 466, 782
80-90	4	344, 848 564, 257	83, 217	16	1, 377, 154	338, 235
90-100 100-150	6 7	504, 257 843, 187	149, 363 270, 582	8 27	753, 002 3, 389, 743 1, 333, 099	198, 958 1, 106, 738 508, 293
100-150 159-200 200-250	1	(2) (2)	(2)	8	1, 333, 099	508, 293 9:3, 945
950_300	1 1	(2)	(2) (2)	10 5	2, 324, 286 1, 377, 768	607, 413
300-400	1	(2)	(2)	$\frac{1}{2}$	(2) (2)	(2) (2)
400-500 500-750		(2)	2.6	- :		
750-1,000				1	(2)	(2)
1,500-2,000						
2,000-3,000						
4,000-5,000-						
509-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000 5,000 and over Classes grouped ²		2, 214, 034	988, 289		2, 108, 945	1, 054, 599
Total	31, 232	94, 502, 319	3, 281, 526	91, 352	288, 693, 183	12, 325, 678
Summary for preceding		7 4 1 1 111 1 1 1				
years: 3 1933	28, 725	74, 445, 866	1, 710, 477	81, 850	257, 310, 810	8, 691, 835
1932	30, 537	82, 077, 771	1, 710, 477 1, 815, 932	81, 850 86, 308	274, 908, 669	8, 691, 835 8, 155, 965 6, 067, 228
1931 1930	25, 279 28, 986	74, 445, 866 82, 077, 771 96, 661, 700 125, 795, 609	1, 378, 043 2, 439, 796	65, 306 74, 821	257, 310, 810 274, 908, 669 309, 351, 262 400, 674, 216	6, 067, 228 11, 435, 656
1929	31, 268	158, 751, 528 1	3, 534, 404	82,049	501, 547, 753	23, 693, 045
1928 1927	31, 091 31, 727	158, 931, 875	4, 459, 057	81, 063 77, 778	522, 496, 528 451, 001, 651	23, 104, 139 16, 117, 674
1926	35, 110	154, 804, 655	3, 307, 180 2, 959, 248	81, 449	433, 776, 846	13, 751, 314 13, 533, 990
1925 1924	35, 808 73, 350	154, 804, 655 150, 363, 411 205, 087, 973	2, 840, 926 3, 162, 736	74, 595 143, 406	433, 776, 846 404, 498, 337 478, 174, 249	13, 533, 990 12, 593, 974
	10,000	400,001,010	. 0, 102, 100	110, 100	x10, x17, 279	12,000,014

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes	•	Delaware		D	istrict of Colun	nbia
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	932	\$592, 220		2, 743	\$2,041,086	
Under 1 (est.)	1. 397	19, 825 1, 660, 852	\$363	152 8, 700	81, 334	\$1,612
1-1.5 (est.) ¹ 1-1.5 (est.)	1, 397	1, 607, 129	7, 188	8, 759	81, 334 10, 694, 441 11, 987, 272	83, 704
1.5-2 (est.) 1	845	1, 468, 785		5,015	8, 597, 204	
1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.)	586 811	1, 005, 030 1, 821, 838	10, 584	13, 900 4, 972	23, 952, 739 11, 317, 516	297, 918
2-2.5 (est.)	270	606, 055	8, 788	6, 105	13, 550, 833	227, 159
2.5–3 (est.) 1	908	2, 479, 389 848, 148	7 418	6, 997	19, 044, 476 8, 412, 663 9, 816, 764	140.009
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.)	305 410	1, 310, 411	7, 416	3, 069 3, 067	9, 816, 764	140, 063
3–3.5 (est.)	347	1, 126, 232	8, 963	3, 426	11, 133, 205	118, 079
3.5-4 (est.) 1	157 316	584, 006 1, 182, 774	9, 403	969 3, 321	3, 560, 913	122, 752
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) ¹	78	329.548	5, 405	279	12, 448, 153 1, 178, 161	122, 132
4-4.5 (est.)	250	1, 067, 414	11, 311	2,823	1, 178, 161 11, 937, 877 495, 935	144, 065
4.5-5 (est.) 1	152	1, 067, 414 192, 974 721, 933	7, 287	104 2, 070	495, 935	133, 588
5-61	26	140, 522	l	51	9, 789, 908 279, 290	100, 000
5-6	263	1, 428, 776	19, 093	2,086	11, 351, 545	180, 531
6-7	210 155	1, 368, 731 1, 154, 912	22, 209 24, 279	1, 144 737	7, 395, 677 5, 493, 426	138, 903 127, 956
8-9	118	1, 002, 186 900, 523	25, 719	453	3, 827, 298	109, 883
9-10	95 74	900, 523	26, 690 25, 868	348 224	3, 302, 085	113, 028
10-11 11-12	54	777, 437 621, 943	23, 855	217	2, 343, 773 2, 489, 376	88, 925 105, 188
12–13	45	562, 838	24, 572	121	1, 510, 395	70, 122
13-14 14-15	30	405, 560 475, 459	17, 738 23, 726	117 100	1, 578, 754 1, 447, 047	76, 347 76, 694
15-20	110	1, 904, 840	103, 548	320	5, 503, 341	343, 241
20-25	60	1, 323, 310) 95, 914	144	3 182 691	248, 772
25–30 30–40	49	1, 346, 503 1, 411, 639	123, 801 164, 299	95 109	2, 595, 241 3, 739, 420	259, 478 451, 773
40-50	38	1, 715, 733	241, 641	44	1, 947, 423	294, 366
50-60	15 20	831, 637 1, 302, 557	138, 634 251, 530	31 20	1, 656, 673	284, 684 260, 219
70-80	9	671, 190	145, 838	11	1, 308, 325 813, 741 686, 018	187, 247
80-90	11	671, 190 945, 768 856, 240	226, 181	8	686, 018	172, 765
90-100 100-150	9 7	856, 240 889, 685	227, 266 292, 713	5 13	(2) 1, 609, 047	(2) 527, 539
150-200	9.	1, 498, 844	559, 839	1	(2)	(2)
200-250	5 2	1, 113, 541 (2)	467, 733 (2)	1	(2)	(2)
250-300 300-400	4	1, 432, 473	661,075			
400-500	5	2, 229, 578	1, 073, 403 1, 197, 064			
500-750 750-1,000	4 4	2, 384, 505 3, 565, 172	1, 197, 064			
1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000						-
1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000	1	(2)	(2)			-
3,000-4,000						
4.000-5.000	1					
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2		2, 176, 737	1, 145, 517		824, 183	267, 263
		I—				
Total	10, 620	55, 073, 452	9, 312, 466	82, 871	234, 925, 250	5, 653, 864
Summary for preceding years: 3	0.010	45 500 505	7 040 604	00.00=	100 505 100	
1933 1932	9, 910 9, 822	45, 536, 527 46, 026, 220	5, 042, 284 4, 396, 328	69, 967 73, 501	192, 795, 436 213, 475, 879	4, 625, 042 5, 115, 177
1931	8, 284	51, 044, 537	2, 283, 901	51, 920	200, 628, 347	2, 974, 707
1930 1929 1928	9, 342	51, 044, 537 64, 913, 288 148, 850, 300	2, 283, 901 3, 927, 732 14, 524, 946	51.044	200, 628, 347 217, 558, 448 242, 282, 698	2, 974, 707 4, 200, 940
1928	9, 780 9, 592	148, 850, 300	14, 524, 946	48, 087 44, 183	242, 282, 698 227, 620, 606	6, 408, 622 7, 474, 643
1927	9, 266	90, 262, 899	7, 970, 035	39, 560	198, 938, 042	6, 027, 133
1926	9, 301 9, 131	70, 544, 423 54, 897, 972	5, 100, 884 2, 780, 200	40, 024 43, 298	198, 055, 768 200, 353, 699	5, 526, 436 5, 718, 046
1925 1924		64, 179, 747	2, 480, 200	77, 836	253, 312, 253	5, 765, 861
	-3,352		1 -, -, -, -, -,	, 550		3,,,00,00

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Florida			Georgia	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) !	2, 836	\$1, 738, 795		2, 169	\$1, 482, 676 88, 016	
Under 1 (est.)	122 3, 713	51, 600	\$1,323	166	88, 016	\$1,786
1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.)	2, 534	4, 495, 870 3, 209, 959	15, 175	5, 046 3, 090	6, 119, 194 3, 912, 001	16, 667
1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) ¹	2, 534 2, 952	5, 166, 321		2,859	4, 947, 007	
1.5-2 (est.)	1, 371 3, 045	2, 326, 703	23, 978	1,836 2,912	3, 131, 855	31, 365
1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 2 2.5-3 (est.) 1	620	5, 166, 321 2, 326, 703 6, 909, 816 1, 382, 205	19, 122	683	6, 649, 593 1, 518, 356	21, 742
2.5-3 (est.) 1	3, 383	9, 261, 332		5, 117	1, 518, 356 14, 002, 688 2, 842, 136	
2.5-3 (est.) 1	811 1,866	2, 295, 515 5, 976, 364	15, 791	1,005 2,766	2, 842, 136 8, 844, 995	18, 798
3-3.5 (est.)	1, 369	4, 462, 808	23, 883	1, 614	5, 262, 913	27, 441
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 1	725	4, 462, 808 2, 676, 222 4, 342, 429 1, 004, 254		887	5, 262, 913 3, 297, 704	
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.)	1, 161	4, 342, 429	32, 179	1, 459	5, 484, 523	37, 372
4-4.5 (est.)	240 937	3, 978, 010	34, 201	301 1, 115	1, 267, 775 4, 705, 292	38, 146
4.5-5 (est.) 1	140	660, 231	l	84	400, 518	
4.5–5 (est.) 5–6 ¹	700	3, 313, 624	36, 895	822	9 011 979	45, 110
5-6	108 987	584, 417 5, 388, 367 4, 512, 188 3, 563, 607	79. 528	1, 080	3, 911, 373 425, 963 5, 908, 295 4, 611, 759 3, 884, 776 2, 892, 152	82.160
6–7 _	696	4, 512, 188	79, 528 77, 544 74, 930	713	4, 611, 759	82, 160 75, 204 78, 118
7-8	476	3, 563, 607	74, 930	522	3, 884, 776	78, 118
8-9 9-10	342 227	2, 902, 044 2, 147, 124	77, 173 69, 270	342 226	2, 892, 152 2, 140, 379	74, 846 65, 188
10-11	173	1, 808, 434 1, 451, 037 1, 424, 957 1, 171, 502 1, 189, 566	63, 675	214	2, 243, 361	77, 778
11-12	126	1, 451, 037	58, 929	137	2, 243, 361 1, 575, 171	77, 778 63, 245
12-13	114 87	1, 424, 957	60, 841	106 87	1, 323, 093 1, 174, 655	56, 550 52, 486
14-15	82	1, 189, 066	56, 274 61, 487	87	1, 256, 365	62, 617
15-20	250	4, 310, 709	258, 470	268	4, 569, 490	260, 699
20-25 25-30	112	2, 471, 458 1, 389, 988	186, 359 128, 685	119	2, 665, 341 1, 854, 031	201, 254
30-40	51 73	2, 530, 364	299, 560	68 65	2, 213, 225	166, 514 249, 722
40-50	33 25	2, 530, 364 1, 463, 231 1, 382, 024 636, 959	299, 560 217, 981 235, 240	42	1, 861, 041	272, 176 114, 956
50-60	25 10	1, 382, 024	235, 240 125, 496	13 14	699, 665 909, 997	114, 956 176, 654
70–80	14	1,033,566	222, 271		378, 341	83, 196
80-90	10	845 492	197, 684	5 7	588 794	141, 729
90-100	5	464, 916 1, 695, 825 528, 593	123, 942 350, 029	4	377, 137 661, 312 529, 326	102, 141
150-200	9 3	523, 593	203, 409	6 3	529, 326	198, 974 209, 667
200-250	5 3	1, 054, 693	203, 409 431, 853			
250-300 300-400	$\frac{3}{2}$	853, 770 (2)	375, 296 (2)			
400-500	-	(*)	(-)			
500-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500	1	(2)	(2)			
750-1,000 1,000-1,500	1	(2)	(2)			
1,500-2,000			(-)			
1,500–2,000 2,000–3,000						
3,000–4,000 4,000–5,000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2						
Classes grouped 2		2, 640, 225	1, 358, 811			
Total	32, 550	112, 102, 614	5, 597, 287	38, 137	122, 612, 284	3, 104, 301
Summary for preceding						
years: ³ 1933	28, 775	84, 718, 099	2, 671, 623	32, 229	94, 892, 882	2, 062, 780
1932	29, 303	88, 451, 612 105, 215, 176	2, 557, 631	31, 730	92, 882, 516	1, 692, 089
1931	25, 340	105, 215, 176	2, 219, 520	25, 729	102, 907, 022	996, 756
1930 1929	28, 133 30, 040	103, 213, 176 126, 910, 394 164, 355, 108 178, 843, 603 206, 917, 657	2, 840, 391 5, 936, 377	28, 996 32, 289	128, 081, 049 163, 181, 491	1, 659, 244 2, 785, 942
1928	32, 155	178, 843, 603	7, 714, 261	32, 289 32, 921	167, 063, 587	3, 806, 534
1928 1927 1926	40, 080	206, 917, 657	6, 047, 244	33, 818	167, 407, 479	3, 612, 724 2, 888, 409
1926 1925	56, 109	322, 601, 033 649, 932, 382	10, 415, 636	33, 818 36, 744 37, 410	171, 146, 482	2, 888, 409 3, 529, 883
1924	76, 213 64, 306	250, 963, 654	5, 936, 377 7, 714, 261 6, 047, 244 10, 415, 636 28, 857, 801 7, 229, 272	62, 651	163, 181, 491 167, 063, 587 167, 407, 479 171, 146, 482 177, 203, 659 210, 908, 421	3, 529, 883
	01,000	200, 000, 004	.,, 2.2	U., UUI	~10,000, Tal	5, 550, 500

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Hawaii			Idaho	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	1, 324	\$628, 168		242	\$148, 129	
Under 1 (est.) I-1.5 (est.) !	36 1, 294	14, 036 1, 572, 021	\$298	1, 479	1, 716, 306	
I-1.5 (est.) I-5-2 (est.) ¹	1, 125	1, 435, 912	6, 566	1,068	1, 367, 474	\$6,321
1.5-2 (est.) 1	776 645	1, 338, 002 1, 106, 523	11, 514	480 604	1, 367, 474 838, 541 1, 013, 037	10, 426
1.5–2 (est.) 2–2.5 (est.) ¹	744	1,661,716		355	796, 332	
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 1	237 1, 043	523, 113 2, 849, 080	7, 476	329 1, 333	726, 579 3, 624, 805	9, 285
2.5-3 (est.)	325	913, 567	6, 949	366	1, 021, 167	9. 617
3–3.5 (est.) 1	561	1,801,725	e e10	555	1, 777, 430	
3-3.5 (est.)	423 263	1, 380, 284 977, 108	6, 619	418 201	1, 356, 279 742, 969	10, 921
3.5-4 (est.)	437	977, 108 1, 635, 960	19, 941	341	1 985 104	13, 921
1–4.5 (est.) 1	118 271	496, 164 1, 149, 963 211, 300	9, 136	56 290	232, 889 1, 227, 400 77, 056	14, 864
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.)	44	211, 300		16	77, 056	
4.5-5 (est.) 5-61	214 28	1, 011, 220	11, 024	194 11	920, 768	13, 783
5–6	333	153, 314 1, 822, 499	26, 579	254	58, 183 1, 375, 352	23, 456
5-7	272	1, 762, 536 1, 158, 567	26, 926	139	899.425	20, 344
7–8 8–9	155 111	1, 158, 507 940, 602	21, 089 21, 278	62 23	456, 734 195, 981	13, 216 7, 547
9–10	64	940, 602 607, 780 551, 156	17, 551 18, 277	21	199, 750 166, 581	7, 462
10-11 11-12	53 39	551, 156 446, 617	18, 277 16, 981	16 19	166, 581 216, 590	8, 264 10, 276
12–13	36	448, 252	17, 740	7	88, 673	4, 694
13–14	20	268, 041	11,621	12	161, 029	8, 125
14–15 15–20	22 85	319, 106 1, 459, 313	14, 990 79, 494	6	86, 698 323, 228 107, 928	5, 606 21, 671
20-25	35	1, 459, 313 788, 777 739, 935 1, 259, 126	57, 569	5	107, 928	8,906
25-30 30-40	27 37	739,935	67, 097 139, 435	1 4	(2) (2)	(2) (2)
30–40 40–50	14	612, 544	81,919	6	263, 697	32, 239
50-60. 60-70.	10	388, 879 655, 799	64, 970 124, 879			
70-80	6	454, 765 332, 730 286, 884 1, 030, 239 318, 396	100, 931			
80-90	4 3 9 2	332,730	81, 041 74, 969			
90-100 100-150	9	1, 030, 239	311, 241 115, 969			
	2	318, 396	115, 969			
130-200 200-250 250-300 300-400 400-500 500-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500						
300-400						
500-750						
750-1,000						
1,500-1,500 1,500-2,000						
2,000–3,000 3,000–4,000						
3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2						
Classes grouped 2					164, 777	20, 820
Total	11, 252	37, 515, 719	1, 563, 069	8, 932	23, 636, 891	281, 77
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933 1932	10, 835 12, 192	34, 357, 940 37, 277, 185 33, 869, 092 37, 245, 940	1, 140, 546 1, 101, 535	6, 072 5, 788	14, 582, 154 13, 688, 578 18, 350, 071 27, 757, 374 38, 525, 958	130, 02
1931	7, 328	33, 869, 092	815, 673	5, 684	18, 350, 071	97, 11 46, 04 128, 29 184, 32
1930	7,869	37, 245, 940	815, 673 972, 216	7,852	27, 757, 374	128, 29
1929 1928	8, 210 8, 047	43, 290, 997 43, 349, 731	1, 220, 345 1, 311, 756	9, 830 9, 808) 37, 121, 872	184, 32 283, 17
1927	9,252	44, 618, 510	1, 200, 544 1, 096, 213	10,673	20 440 750	247, 27
1926 1925	9, 146 9, 306	42, 950, 279 41, 465, 375	1, 096, 213 944, 053	11, 617 12, 907	39, 887, 951 40, 443, 781	184, 34 170, 91
1924	12, 387	41, 465, 375 46, 395, 290	1, 481, 883	21, 436	52, 301, 491	261, 00

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Illinois			Indiana	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
T 1 1 () 1		410 000 077		4.400	40,000,700	
Under 1 (est.) 1 Under 1 (est.)	18, 217 678	\$12, 202, 055 363, 427	\$8,068	4, 490 169	\$2, 882, 702 79, 953	\$1, 71
1–1.5 (est.) 1	46, 072	55, 109, 296		12,049	14, 300, 838	
Under 1 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.)	21, 241 22, 367	55, 109, 296 28, 284, 950 38, 752, 130 50, 203, 374	176, 056	8, 856 5, 189	11, 273, 818 9, 025, 587	51, 46
1.5-2 (est.)	29, 053	50, 203, 374	623, 271	5, 189 4, 257 5, 350	9, 025, 587 7, 286, 719 12, 279, 019	82, 05
2-2.5 (est.)	24, 337 12, 540	55, 345, 507 27, 751, 527 87, 952, 676	455, 583	1, 407	3, 128, 141	47, 40
2.5-3 (est.) 1.	32, 398	87, 952, 676 20, 774, 693		7,893	21, 346, 242 5, 152, 877	36, 23
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) ¹	7, 540 14, 475	46, 275, 839	293, 074	1, 821 3, 191	10, 118, 306	· ·
3-3.5 (est.)	10, 588	46, 275, 839 34, 540, 674 18, 281, 511	316, 998	3, 191 2, 340 1, 340	10, 118, 306 7, 652, 116 4, 756, 092	42, 64
3.5–4 (est.)	4, 997 11, 389	42, 768, 711	510, 023	2, 187	4, 750, 092 8, 151, 583	56, 59
-4.5 (est.) 1	1, 361	5, 707, 754	586, 359	269	1 135 479	61, 35
1–4.5 (est.) 1.5–5 (est.) ¹	10, 755 553	45, 574, 767 2, 595, 262	080, 009	1, 576 135	640, 074	
l.5-5 (est.)	7,596	35, 932, 448 1, 897, 886	506, 494	1, 070 110	6, 681, 345 640, 074 5, 080, 946 598, 398	57, 66
5-6 1	8, 622	47, 082, 045 37, 751, 956	691, 152	1,641	8, 950, 794	128, 29
37	5, 839	37, 751, 956 29, 229, 461	674, 107	1, 048 716	6, 743, 543 5, 352, 662	110, 36 113, 48
7-8 3-9	2 702	23 675 802	654, 295 999, 912	459	3, 890, 585	104, 65
0-11 0-11 11-12 2-13	2,097	19, 970, 078 16, 083, 525 13, 931, 972	1, 954, 458 601, 356 578, 212	361	3, 890, 585 3, 417, 421 2, 908, 174 2, 410, 180	110, 43
1–12	1, 536 1, 214	13, 931, 972	578, 212	277 210	2, 908, 174	106, 19 99, 21
2-13	960	11, 993, 723	545, 619	174	2, 166, 622	95, 38
3-14 4-15	766 680	10, 344, 923 9, 859, 309	507, 419 515, 503	124 117	1, 668, 556 1, 691, 363	75, 76: 81, 74
5–20 20–25	2, 176	37, 478, 184	2, 296, 279	320	5, 472, 623	326, 69
20-25 25-30	1, 098 640	37, 478, 184 24, 449, 922 17, 471, 312	515, 503 2, 296, 279 1, 918, 486 1, 698, 915	177 83	3, 925, 533 2, 244, 790	296, 53 208, 30
25-30 30-40	707	24, 413, 126	2, 956, 212	81	2, 797, 796	330, 17
0-50 0-60	332 193	15, 172, 011 10, 505, 819	2, 241, 047 1, 814, 896	49 21	2, 182, 654 1, 150, 271	313, 49 191, 97
0-70	94	6, 058, 538	1, 198, 847	20	1, 300, 294	9/18/80
0-80 0-90	56	13, 172, 011 10, 505, 819 6, 058, 538 4, 933, 801 4, 757, 954 2, 564, 501	1, 814, 896 1, 198, 847 1, 091, 358 1, 187, 391 687, 354	3 9	1, 300, 294 223, 357 766, 849	51, 55 192, 02 200, 82
00-100 00-150	27 75	2, 564, 501 8, 947, 173	687, 354	.8	753, 383 1, 321, 995	200, 82
		4, 856, 862	2, 901, 327 1, 875, 510	11 9	1, 321, 995 1, 562, 370 467, 961	417, 66 596, 59
200-250	13 11	4, 856, 862 2, 789, 311 2, 949, 822	1, 166, 287 1, 303, 319	$\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$	467, 961 (2)	195, 70
30-230 300-250 350-300 300-400 300-500	4	2, 949, 822 (2)	1, 505, 519 (2)	1	(*)	(2)
00-500 00-750		3, 924, 770	1, 997, 495			
750-1,000-	6	(2)	(2)	2	(2) (2)	(2) (2)
,000-1,500	1	(2) (2) (2)	(2) (2) (2) (2)	1	(2)	(2)
2,000-3,000		(-)				
3,000-4.000						
5.000 and over						
500-780 500-1,000 ,000-1,500 ,500-2,000 ,000-3,000 ,000-4,000 ,000-5,000 ,000-5,000 ,000-3,000			2, 866, 163		3, 502, 974	1,848,87
Total	310, 456	1, 006, 927, 934	40, 398, 845	69, 623	198, 442, 985	6, 881, 93
Summary for preceding years; 3						
1933	282, 360	848, 918, 593	28, 596, 559 23, 914, 230	61, 675	161, 600, 241 168, 607, 693	3, 965, 45 3, 311, 60
1932	282, 360 286, 888 270, 759	848, 918, 593 872, 941, 170 1, 182, 411, 350	23, 914, 230 22, 502, 123	61, 675 63, 722 54, 534	168, 607, 693 204, 130, 790	3, 311, 60 2, 540, 94
1931 1930	297 621	1, 630, 447, 207		65, 679 1	280, 940, 214	5, 109, 57
1929. 1928. 1927. 1926.	369, 855	9 258 045 768	86, 825, 072	76 403	900 040 040	8, 208, 03
1928	373, 621 378, 859	2, 392, 631, 092 2, 093, 908, 574 1, 995, 011, 069	73, 796, 361	76, 703	349, 434, 464	10, 100, 84 8, 884, 04
1926	374, 725	1, 995, 011, 009	64, 213, 839	75, 376 76, 703 77, 126 80, 300	358, 624, 820	9, 934, 47 7, 508, 73
1925 1924	357, 448 652, 501	1, 975, 436, 222 2, 413, 605, 350	43, 703, 471 86, 825, 072 110, 659, 199 73, 796, 361 64, 213, 839 64, 791, 507 66, 583, 239	86, 300 156, 845	365, 336, 866 349, 434, 464 358, 624, 829 344, 266, 673 461, 717, 343	7, 508, 73 6, 655, 56
_~	,	,, 555, 550	1,,	,,	,,	1 ., ,

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Iowa			Kansas	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	5, 099	\$3, 346, 726		4, 226	\$2, 649, 038	
Under 1 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.) 1	171 8,830	96, 022 10, 460, 384	\$1, 139	110 5, 189	61, 233 6, 341, 420	\$1, 287
1–1.5 (est.) 1.5–2 (est.) ¹	5, 573	96, 022 10, 460, 384 7, 111, 210 7, 128, 604	33, 401	3, 767	6, 341, 420 4, 766, 208	21, 682
1.5–2 (est.)	4, 079 2, 551	7, 128, 504 4, 402, 494	51, 933	3, 358 1, 962	5, 846, 450 3, 324, 736	37, 726
2-2.5 (est.) 1	4, 157	9, 414, 897		3, 545	7, 962, 561	
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) ¹	940 5, 075	2, 078, 023 13, 833, 176	34, 049	653 3, 415	1, 412, 217 9, 309, 407	22, 659
2.5-3 (est.)	1,093	13, 833, 176 3, 057, 751 5, 551, 802 4, 471, 769	27, 056	912	9, 309, 407 2, 567, 436 4, 211, 317 3, 944, 378	21, 148
3-3.5 (est.)	1, 739 1, 375	5, 551, 802 4, 471, 769	32, 115	1, 313 1, 216	4, 211, 317 3, 944, 378	28, 684
3.5-4 (est.) !	579	2, 145, 922		430	1, 534, 973	
3.5-4 (est.)	1, 178 207	4, 423, 460 873, 209	37, 478	1, 015 126	3, 805, 646 538, 062	32, 410
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.)	1,000	4, 243, 662 227, 258 3, 256, 647	45, 911	736	538, 062 3, 107, 879 388, 371 2, 934, 363	30, 647
4.5~5 (est.)	48 687	227, 258 3 256 647	44, 554	82 620	388, 371 2 934 363	36, 480
5-6 1	67	363, 977		52	280, 597	
5-6. 6-7.	990 619	5, 382, 157 3, 999, 180	78, 802 67, 698	823 575	4, 497, 721 3, 704, 170	69, 902 66, 978
7-8	433	3, 229, 566	68, 888 71, 398	355	2, 661, 446	62, 409
8-9 ₋₁₀	310 234	2, 631, 576 2, 219, 059	71, 398 70, 074	220 164	1, 869, 118 1, 554, 188	53, 622
10-11	135	1, 406, 002	53, 416	133	1, 392, 988	53, 411 52, 514
10-11 11-12	125 74	1, 432, 952 926, 318	55, 486 40, 290	103 88	1, 191, 563 1, 099, 866	51, 186 52, 331
12-13 13-14	58	781, 156	36, 608	65	874, 414	45, 180
14-15	54	781, 156 780, 710	39, 265	53 135	764, 274	40,860
15-20 20-25	170 83	2, 911, 059 1, 826, 457	172, 280 133, 538	72	2, 282, 312 1, 619, 386	140, 083 122, 483
25-30	49	1, 826, 457 1, 337, 071 1, 628, 654	126, 548 193, 112	25 39	696, 218 1, 333, 200	122, 483 65, 431
30-40	48 16	686, 293	93, 660	11	502, 171	158,007 74,896
50-60.	10	536, 035	89, 394 60, 020	4	502, 171 221, 340	36,524
60-70	3	686, 293 536, 035 316, 913 222, 286	46, 134	4 3	268, 450 (²)	50, 206 (2)
80-90	1	(2)	(2)	1	(2)	(2)
90-100 100-150						
150-200						
259-300						
300-400						
500-750						
750-1,000						
1,500-2,600						
100-150 150-200 200-250 250-300 300-400 400-550 500-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000						
4,000-5,000						
5,000 and over						
Classes grouped 2		272, 912	70, 365		318, 746	70, 504
Total	47, 871	119, 454, 155	2, 005, 786	35, 600	91, 867, 863	1, 499, 250
Summary for preceding years: 3			}			
1933	40, 329 42, 624	96, 835, 681 109, 841, 833	1, 441, 695 1, 403, 991 1, 137, 299	30, 738 29, 643	71, 777, 244 73, 547, 043	1,018,001 1,223,811
1931	29, 850	119, 218, 139 174, 965, 757	1, 137, 299	27, 495	91, 616, 462	880, 318 1, 480, 343
1930 1929	39, 917 45, 023	174, 965, 757 222, 103, 300	2, 355, 567 3, 924, 823	32, 660 37, 557	127, 629, 176 181, 661, 364	1, 480, 343 2, 547, 829
1928	. 40,789	221, 881, 247	6, 216, 041	32, 929	162, 394, 758	2, 928, 097
1927	. 45, 349	190, 436, 034 203, 015, 362	3, 310, 099	35, 575	162, 394, 758 157, 394, 402 153, 673, 206	2, 240, 877
1926	49, 476 50, 379	198, 735, 930	2, 917, 845 3, 111, 096	35, 575 32, 732 34, 284	153, 673, 206 141, 511, 127 203, 034, 515	2, 756, 049 2, 222, 306 1, 918, 019
1924	110, 404	298, 734, 381	3, 123, 808	84, 080	203 034 515	1 019 010

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Kentucky			Louisiana	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
TI - J - 1 (- 4) 1	2, 764	\$1,876,596		2,732	#1 770 A9E	
Under 1 (est.)	2, 704	37, 695	\$507	2, 132	\$1, 773, 435 6, 454	\$152
Under 1 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.) 1	5, 486	6 551 779		5, 231	5, 873, 215	Ψ102
1-1.5 (est.)	3, 111	4, 032, 949	21, 974	4, 393	5, 553, 198	23, 550
1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 2 2-2.5 (est.) 1	2,815	4 905 906		1.698	2, 971, 845 3, 353, 188	
1.5-2 (est.)	2, 092 2, 949	3, 579, 930 6, 730, 471	41, 577	1,955	5, 353, 188	38, 602
2-2.5 (est.)	711	3, 579, 936 6, 730, 471 1, 586, 309	23, 836	2,504 1,025	5, 765, 666 2, 281, 862	31, 763
2-2.5 (est.)	4,029	10, 975, 099		4,862	13, 293, 765	
2.5-3 (est.)	800	2, 207, 700 6, 253, 682	22, 559	1,057	2, 963, 900	26, 437
3-3.5 (est.) 1	1, 950 1, 071	3 505 759	30,005	2,337 1,242	7, 478, 166 4, 045, 453	37, 851
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹	633	2, 359, 457 4, 028, 737 896, 702 4, 255, 044	00,000	793	2. 941. 147	51,001
3.5-4 (est.)	1,077	4, 028, 737	32, 114	1, 259	2, 941, 147 4, 709, 262	51, 797
4-4.5 (est.) 1	213	896, 702	49.000	221	922, 428 4, 334, 254	
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) ¹	1,005 108	4, 255, 044 509, 264	43, 882	1,022 129	4, 334, 254 610, 247	55, 170
4.5–5 (est.)	668	3, 170, 025	35, 719	815	3.853.261	58, 504
5-6 1	105	569 301		55	207 566	
5-6	954	5, 210, 107 4, 009, 558	71, 956	1, 201	6, 532, 607	112,021
6-7. 7-8.	622 427	4,009,558 3 179 048	63, 067	706 406	3 093 719	99, 950
8-9	325	3, 179, 948 2, 758, 230	62, 482 63, 067 69, 447	236	6, 532, 607 4, 567, 843 3, 023, 712 2, 009, 813	99, 956 87, 242 73, 443
9-10	228	2, 159, 540	61,816	166	1, 578, 643	64,429
10-11	186	1, 943, 191	61, 171	124	1, 302, 473	55, 938
11-12	135 110	1, 548, 121 1, 378, 952	60, 409 58, 183	112 95	1, 281, 618 1, 184, 628	60, 221 57, 949
13-14	91	1, 233, 560	57, 462	43	582, 525	32,056
14-15	91 73	1, 233, 560 1, 057, 482	57, 462 47, 990	62	582, 525 898, 353 2, 723, 214 1, 788, 364	50, 506 188, 716
15-20	225	3, 888, 145	225, 638	157	2, 723, 214	188,716
20-25	105 69	2, 365, 168 1, 881, 344	188, 152 174, 129	82 62	1, 788, 364 1, 694, 783	149, 388 169, 424
30-40	61	2, 055, 354	230, 568	39	1, 350, 866	166, 149
40-50	32	1.426,062	205, 444	18	824, 441	131, 312 115, 504
50-60	15 7	829, 404	141, 049	13	693, 400	115, 504
60-70 70-80	7	463, 097 598, 297	92, 947 133, 162	$\frac{2}{1}$	125,002 (2)	23, 809 (2)
80-90	8 2 2 4 2	176, 623	45, 495			[(-)
90-109	2	189, 387	54,758	2	(2)	(2)
100-150	4	459, 993	146, 748	3 2	398, 131 317, 334	137, 467 127, 266
100-200 200-250	1	(2)	(2)		317, 334	127, 200
250-300			<u>-</u>			
100-150 150-200 200-250 250-300 300-400						
400-500 500 750						
750-1.000						
300-400. 400-500. 500-750. 750-1,000. 1,000-1,500. 1,500-2,000. 2,000-3,000. 3,000-4,000.						
1,500-2,000	-					
3 000-4 000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped ²						
5,000 and over						
			222, 516		262, 217	70, 190
Total	35, 333	107, 389, 715	2, 726, 762	36, 871	106, 168, 279	2, 296, 812
Summary for preceding						
years:3	39 329	00 753 614	2, 024, 772	33, 094	86, 809, 253	1 407 566
1932	32, 332 32, 454	90, 753, 614 89, 484, 542	1,554,630	33, 974	92, 164, 323	1, 497, 560 1, 423, 510
1931	26, 991	103, 279, 556 135, 098, 479	1,012,557	28, 934	107, 673, 824	891, 913
1930	31,021	135, 098, 479	1,926,048	32, 979	138, 836, 043 170, 713, 998	1,599,63
1929 1928	34, 623 35, 367	191, 640, 708 193, 766, 254	5, 076, 854 5, 639, 394	35, 093 36, 981	170, 713, 998	2, 859, 56 4, 380, 02
1927	33,004	193, 766, 254 172, 582, 213	4, 027, 734	37, 293	184, 035, 325 175, 254, 161	3, 174, 83
1926	32, 821 37, 315	169, 100, 987	4, 027, 734 3, 226, 344 3, 299, 792	36, 981 37, 293 38, 996	185, 478, 850 195, 585, 488	3, 174, 839 3, 311, 538 3, 850, 200
1925 1924	37, 315 72, 119	180, 217, 420 238, 094, 411	3, 299, 792 3, 805, 669	40, 695 67, 658	195, 585, 488 221, 133, 422	3,850,200
				1 67 65X	1 221 (33 422)	3, 528, 51

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Maine			Maryland	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of	Net income	Total tax	Number of	Net income	Total tax
	returns	146t IIICOIIIG	Total tax	returns	Net income	10taitax
Inder 1 (est.) I	1, 696	\$1, 089, 855		5 694	\$3, 666, 590	
Under 1 (est.) 1	102	54, 124 3, 964, 989	\$759	5, 694 212	116, 895	\$2, 10
-1.5 (est.) 1	3, 306	3, 964, 989		10, 926	13, 004, 868	
-1.5 (est.)	2, 212 1, 314	2,815,890	12, 978	5, 403 5, 332	7, 235, 793 9, 314, 905	44, 82
5-2 (est.) *	1, 215	2, 280, 213	22, 298	6, 894	11 915 656	144, 96
-2.5 (est.) 1	1.568	3, 564, 991		6, 196	11, 915, 656 14, 168, 487 6, 947, 225	
~2.5 (est.)	524	3, 904, 989 2, 815, 890 2, 286, 213 2, 084, 449 3, 564, 991 1, 156, 389 5, 724, 936	16, 607	3, 119	6, 947, 225	112, 82
.5-3 (est.)	2, 099 508	5, 724, 935	11, 517	9, 597 2, 084	26, 156, 874	85, 30
-3.5 (est.) 1	944	1, 425, 038 3, 024, 144 2, 428, 253 1, 349, 705		4, 775	15, 398, 078	
-3.5 (est.)	749	2, 428, 253	16, 891	3, 101	10, 141, 661	122, 60
Jnder I (est.) -1.5 (est.) -1.5 (est.) -1.5 (est.) -5-2 (est.) -2.5 (est.) -2.5 (est.) -3.5 (est.) -3.6 (est.) -3.4 (est.) -5-4 (est.)	366	1, 349, 705 2, 186, 085	17, 356	1, 562	6, 947, 225 26, 156, 874 5, 741, 803 15, 398, 078 10, 141, 661 5, 739, 438 11, 569, 174	107, 74
.5-4 (est.)	586 132	2, 186, 085 558, 339	17, 550	3, 087 560	2, 350, 890	107, 74
-4.5 (est.)	512	2, 177, 532	23, 572	3, 237	13, 749, 174	154, 17
.0-4 (886.) -4.5 (est.) -4.5 (est.) .5-5 (est.) -6	72	2, 186, 085 558, 339 2, 177, 532 343, 610 1, 985, 040 292, 212	00 100	231	13, 749, 174 1, 100, 648 11, 539, 351 917, 290	
.5–5 (est.)	418 54	1, 985, 040	23, 130	2,441 169	11, 539, 351	144, 11
-6	599		50, 746	2,708		221, 21
-7	398	2, 570, 571 1, 901, 609 1, 603, 073 1, 132, 646	41,875	1,707	11, 029, 189 8, 460, 862 6, 255, 593 5, 578, 518	195, 92 192, 35 173, 01 182, 74 179, 04
-8	255	1, 901, 609	44, 605	1, 133	8, 460, 862	192, 35
-9 -10 0-11	189 119	1, 603, 073	44, 694 38, 612	738 590	6, 255, 595 5, 578, 518	173, 01
0-11	75		30, 434	457	4, 789, 089	179, 04
1–12	71	812, 932	31, 805	320	2 670 421	153.90
2–13	$\begin{array}{c} 61 \\ 62 \end{array}$	763, 708	33, 143	243 200	3, 036, 390	134, 90
4-15	44	812, 932 763, 708 832, 651 636, 181 2, 396, 774	38, 493 31, 270 139, 553	192	3, 036, 390 2, 699, 042 2, 788, 163 9, 812, 999	147, 67
5-20	140	2, 396, 774	139, 553	570	9, 812, 999	131, 16 147, 67 600, 95
0-25	61	1, 340, 023	102.725	289		512, 22
5–30 0–40	$\frac{30}{52}$	821, 035 1 763, 626	78, 319 202, 447 131, 200 73, 166	181 183	4, 969, 151 6, 315, 460 4, 752, 641 3, 274, 102	494, 48 763, 82
0-40 0-50 0-60	21	1, 763, 626 933, 000 427, 747	131, 200	107	4, 752, 641	692, 88
0-60	8 8 3	427, 747	73, 166	60	3, 274, 102	551, 49
0-70	8	511, 895 225, 608	100, 181 52, 725	25 21	1, 624, 079 1, 558, 365	325, 27 345, 62
0-80	ĭ	(2) (2)	(2) (2)	ĩô	1, 558, 365 838, 083 666, 910 1, 960, 896	204, 92
0-100 00-150	3	(2)	(2)	7 17	666, 910	178, 82
00-150	5	594, 193	188, 064	17		616, 83 390, 90
00-250				6 3	692, 593	304, 34
00–250 50–300 00–400 00–500			İ	2 2	692, 593 556, 781 624, 301 1, 224, 652	304, 34 245, 01
00-400		(2) (2)	(?) (2)	$\frac{2}{3}$	624, 301	280, 44 580, 62
			(2)			300,02
50-1,000				3	2, 477, 752	1, 321, 17
50-1,000 ,000-1,500 ,500-2,000 ,000-3,000 ,000-4,000						
,500-2,000 ,000-3,000						
.000-4.000						
,000 and over Classes grouped 2		1 270 410	608, 765			
classes grouped						
Total.	20, 584	63, 204, 584	2, 207, 930	84, 395	282, 624, 171	11, 040, 49
ummary for preceding years: 3						
1933	19, 435	55, 819, 385	1, 865, 414	76, 409	244, 613, 015	8, 488, 45
1932 1931	20, 867	55, 819, 385 62, 981, 334 74, 771, 180 90, 690, 507 115, 875, 339 111, 558, 275	1, 865, 414 1, 597, 284 1, 527, 436 1, 827, 849	76, 409 83, 223 60, 898	244, 613, 015 265, 618, 871 277, 129, 170 354, 627, 248 425, 185, 985 409, 371, 465 390, 671, 215 375, 758, 859 362, 484, 950 467, 225, 699	8, 488, 45 7, 978, 43 5, 528, 21
1020	16, 218 17, 829	90,690,507	1, 527, 436	I 60 196	277, 129, 170 354, 697, 949	5, 528, 21 9, 796, 08
1929 1928 1927 1926 1925 1924	19, 173	115, 875, 339	3, 561, 754	68, 654 65, 258 65, 099 67, 160 66, 152 126, 226	425, 185, 985	
1928	18,611	111, 558, 275	3, 561, 754 4, 262, 498 3, 300, 741 3, 419, 490	65, 258	409, 371, 465	16, 126, 80
1927	18, 710	103, 080, 848 107, 979, 178 97, 927, 563	3, 300, 741	65, 099	390, 671, 215	13, 859, 68 11, 517, 16
1020	19, 709 19, 444	97 927 563	2, 718, 658	66, 152	362, 484, 950	11, 517, 16
1925						

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Massachusetts	;		Michigan	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) ¹	20, 436	\$13, 454, 520 412, 050	\$8, 146	13, 504 164	\$8, 945, 329 95, 886	\$1,729
1_1 5 (est) 1	42, 489	50 601 096		19.603	23, 649, 036	
1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 2 2-2.5 (est.) 1	21, 059	27, 404, 533 35, 269, 500 31, 442, 799 44, 362, 513	140, 241	8,029	23, 649, 036 10, 901, 677	72, 178
1.5-2 (est.)	20, 262 18, 264	35, 269, 500	354, 989	11, 443 12, 356	19, 954, 369 21, 271, 737 26, 739, 511	261, 104
2-2.5 (est.) 1	[-19,583]	44, 362, 513		11,806	26, 739, 511	
2-2.5 (est.)	8, 746	19, 401, 226	291, 770	5, 104	11, 254, 004 37, 885, 524	186, 438
2.5-3 (est.) 1	21, 640 6, 071	58, 820, 078 16, 793, 212	212, 344	13, 879	37, 885, 524 8 248 770	128, 619
2.5-3 (est.) 1 2.5-3 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1	9, 503	16, 793, 212 30, 416, 257		2, 998 7, 172	8, 248, 770 22, 947, 926	
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.)	7, 291	23, 652, 119 14, 219, 025	207, 762	4, 256	13, 854, 801	140, 689
3.5-4 (est.)	3, 844 6, 140	23, 012, 011	215, 288	2, 425 4, 727	8, 943, 086 17, 726, 221	169, 267
4 4 5 (oct) 1	1 291	5, 410, 469		715	17, 726, 221 3, 004, 258	
4-4.5 (est.)	5, 431	23, 076, 691	242, 609	4, 472	18, 953, 098	194, 708
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 5-6	685 4, 219	3, 245, 111 19, 999, 873 2, 374, 318	252, 011	328 3,896	1, 560, 840 18, 462, 983	217, 778
5-61	436	2, 374, 318		200	18, 462, 983 1, 081, 475	
5-6	5, 571 4, 093	30, 444, 578 26, 465, 713	420, 497 439, 167	3, 236 2, 143	17, 693, 212 13, 849, 110	245, 311
7-8	2, 764	20, 664, 039	444, 582	1, 449	10 816 970	227, 604 225, 705
8-9	1, 971	16 703 804	444, 582 448, 588 443, 078	969	8, 220, 429 7, 346, 525 5, 737, 739 4, 823, 053	219.800
9-10 10-11	1, 479 1, 214	14, 008, 121 12, 723, 799 10, 890, 599	443,078 $451,172$	774 548	7, 346, 525	227, 944 206, 759
11-12	950	10, 890, 599	426, 887	420	4, 823, 053	194, 418
12-13	786		420, 154	335	4, 187, 997	185, 514
13-14 14-15	642 534	8, 605, 747 8, 658, 747 7, 737, 157 29, 860, 992 20, 227, 210	420, 134 404, 042 381, 991 1, 741, 306 1, 514, 205	276 228	3, 725, 517	174, 170
15-20	1,734	29, 860, 992	1, 741, 306	725	12, 452, 756	166, 661 735, 234 650, 126
20-25	908	20, 227, 210	1, 514, 205	384 212	8, 512, 731	650, 126
25–30 30–40	509 597	13, 871, 914 20, 479, 664	1, 304, 822 2, 378, 407	212	4, 823, 053 4, 187, 997 3, 725, 517 3, 297, 354 12, 452, 756 8, 512, 731 5, 794, 330 7, 323, 470	547, 100 846, 849
40-50	330	14, 688, 056	2 103 198	115		740, 947
50 -60	171 91	9, 263, 164 5, 831, 338 4, 337, 512	1, 546, 644 1, 131, 654 946, 071	70 34	3, 820, 119 2, 165, 637	647, 814 416, 440
70-80	58	4, 337, 512	946, 071	20	1, 486, 530	416, 440 328, 037
80-90 90-100	41 15	3, 465, 175 1, 429, 166	855, 355	26 15	2, 199, 153 1, 433, 537	530, 699 391, 577
100-150	51	6, 112, 931	391, 089 1, 957, 326 1, 125, 616	24	2, 892, 787 2, 004, 397 2, 993, 279	929, 523 778, 778 1, 221, 507
150-200	17	2, 935, 163 1, 112, 213	1, 125, 616 466, 389	11	2,004,397	778, 778
250-300	2	572, 331	253, 519	14 5	2, 993, 279 (2)	1, 221, 507 (2)
300-400	2	(2)	(2)	1	(2)	(2)
400-500 500-750	i	(2)	(2)	1	(2)	(2)
500-750 750-1,000				1	(2)	(2)
1,000-1,500						
2,000-3,000				1	(2)	(2)
3,000-4,000						
5.000 and over						
750-1.000 1,000-1.500 1,500-2.000 2,000-3.000 3,000-4.000 4,000-5.000 5,000 and over Classes grouped ²		1, 393, 646	703, 297		5, 203, 155	2, 654, 981
Total	1	737, 044, 841	24, 624, 216	139, 329	418, 569, 373	14, 866, 008
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933 1932	231, 960	682, 666, 696 735, 390, 899	19, 763, 997 15, 619, 149	112, 053 127, 515	293, 131, 080	6, 660, 804 8, 380, 316
1931	193, 504	800, 923, 153	12, 380, 194	119, 623	481, 017, 650	11, 028, 018
1930 1929	231, 960 249, 766 193, 504 202, 253 213, 316	800, 923, 153 1, 010, 333, 740	12, 380, 194 26, 509, 775 57, 857, 223	119, 623 147, 364 177, 918	293, 131, 080 349, 800, 109 481, 017, 650 668, 391, 038 1, 029, 756, 680 1, 066, 529, 992	11, 028, 018 17, 479, 145 40, 599, 864
1929 1928	213, 316 215, 559	1, 371, 651, 741 1, 357, 076, 374	57, 857, 223 59, 738, 973	177, 918 179, 886	1,029,756,680	40, 599, 864
1928	215, 559	1, 357, 076, 374	43, 949, 866	175, 806	950, 085, 831	50, 601, 040 35, 599, 799
1926	224, 042	1, 147, 576, 498	37, 115, 976	175, 806 176, 804	905, 814, 790	32, 408, 357
1925 1924	221, 530 378, 049	1, 132, 289, 870 1, 320, 156, 959	41, 052, 088 40, 857, 137	188, 669 323, 733	910, 910, 113 1, 045, 850, 046	33, 264, 014 30, 983, 705
1944	310,049	1, 020, 100, 909	10, 001, 101	040, 100	1,020,000,040	50, 505, 105

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Not income closure		Minnesota			Mississippi	
Net income classes		1				
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
7T- 3on 1 (ook) !	r 202	\$3, 553, 037		1, 654	\$982, 482	
Under 1 (est.) 1	5, 283 206	91, 059	\$1,962	30	16, 147	\$505
1-1.5 (est.) 1	9, 552 9, 667	11, 370, 539	54, 300	1, 758 866	2, 130, 401	8, 944
1.5-2 (est.) 1	4, 846	8, 467, 534		1, 446	2, 529, 326	
1.5-2 (est.)	4, 076 6, 018	6, 950, 008	77, 281	557 1, 369	963, 182	14, 776
1-1. 5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1	1, 438	11, 370, 539 12, 290, 334 8, 467, 534 6, 950, 008 13, 747, 412 3, 186, 968	49, 199	190	1, 095, 462 2, 529, 326 963, 182 3, 100, 914 424, 292	8, 272
2.5~6 (est.) '	7, 205 1, 568	19, 583, 017 4, 402, 263	37, 026	1, 267 297	1 3,437,373	8, 616
2.5–3 (est.) 3–3.5 (est.) 1	2, 955	9, 472, 940	l	580	837, 643 1, 859, 201	
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 1 3.5-4 (est.) 1	1, 880 1, 215	9, 472, 940 6, 108, 472 4, 512, 230	40, 060	330	1, 071, 856 789, 405	8, 737
3.5-4 (est.)	1, 215	6, 184, 601	45, 205	214 317	1, 191, 610	11, 320
4-4.5 (est.) 1	479	1 2 008 489		61	256, 009	-
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 1	1, 423 139	6, 021, 522 656, 170 4, 405, 079 537, 104	59, 017	259 21	1, 104, 852 95 480	10, 831
4.5–5 (est.) 5–6 1	931	4, 405, 079	48, 180	220	95, 480 1, 051, 220 70, 179	17, 249
5-6 1 5-6	99 1, 716	537, 104 9, 403, 257	133, 570	13 287	70, 179 1, 578, 931	24, 431
6-7	1, 178	7, 602, 179	126 060	184	1, 189, 378	21 146
7–8 8–9	804 478	6, 011, 959	128, 498 107, 666 130, 292 120, 791	156 99	1, 158, 875	25, 589 23, 250 19, 214 19, 870
0-10	432	4, 044, 449 4, 095, 762 3, 405, 630	130, 292	63	829, 708 593, 749	19, 214
10-11	325 228	3, 405, 630 2, 616, 151	120, 791	49	513, 701 552, 897	19, 870 21, 747
11-12	208	2, 587, 570	105, 894 112, 302	33	409, 277	19, 534
12_74	167	2, 587, 570 2, 251, 251 1, 665, 432	103, 828	22	296, 179	15, 686
14-15	115 411	7, 106, 519	103, 828 82, 987 414, 493	18 46	409, 277 296, 179 261, 267 792, 131	13, 395 49, 536
20-25.	210	4, 652, 785	1 340 814	30	003,470	50, 603
25-30	123 131	3, 368, 154 4, 549, 513	317, 348 527, 966 354, 637	12 7	319, 499 245, 918	29, 763 32, 926
40-50	56	4, 549, 513 2, 485, 297 1, 735, 780	354, 637	7 3 1	(2)	(2)
50-60	32 17	1, 735, 780	293, 546 219, 168	1	(*)	(2)
70-80	6	443, 665	94, 842			
80-90	8 8	685, 632 772, 267	170, 380 204, 455			
90-100	13	1 563 035	204, 455 493, 091			
150-200	$\frac{1}{2}$	(2)	(2) (2)			-
200-250- 250-300						
300-400						
500-750						
1.000-1.500						
1,000-1,500 1,000-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000						
2,000-3,000 3.000-4.000						
4,000-5,000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped ²		643, 504	262, 737		176, 310	23, 777
Total	67, 297	196, 345, 236	5, 257, 595	12, 507	32, 578, 332	479, 717
Summary for preceding						
years: 3 1933	50 802	163 750 794	3.817.089	10, 868	24 020 788	271, 063
1932	59, 803 61, 810	163, 750, 734 173, 772, 099 213, 530, 771	3, 817, 982 3, 477, 895 2, 445, 441	10, 548 9, 888	24, 020, 766 21, 581, 610 27, 146, 285	133, 566
1931 1930	52, 853 57, 539	213, 530, 771 266, 572, 313	2, 445, 441	9, 888 12, 147	27, 146, 285	133, 566 87, 221 251, 781
1929	60, 701	337, 880, 743	4, 744, 380 9, 799, 141	15 680	40, 556, 389 63, 922, 168	! 600-076
1928	60,752	340, 152, 949	11, 925, 077 7, 383, 307	16, 140	64.689.480	763, 702
1929 1928 1927 1926	61, 439 64, 227	295, 670, 416 296, 414, 294	6, 475, 311	16, 140 16, 964 17, 196 16, 985	64, 878, 684 64, 859, 892 73, 750, 950	763, 702 816, 429 643, 744 989, 451
1925	71, 291	305, 945, 206	6, 475, 311 6, 125, 915	16, 985	73, 750, 950	989, 451
1924	128, 237	375, 588, 940	6, 720, 567	27, 213	82, 652, 945	1, 155, 729

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Missouri			Montana	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.)1	5, 659	\$3,774,547	~	438	\$279, 590	
Under 1 (est.)	205	116 050	\$2,628	11	9, 211	\$93
1-1.5 (est.)1	16, 315	19, 377, 876	07 000	2, 112	2, 511, 924	
1-1.5 (est.)	10, 321 8, 062	13, 293, 810	67, 326	1, 671 1, 135	2, 207, 624	13, 425
1.5-2 (est.)	6, 198	19, 377, 876 13, 293, 810 13, 967, 296 10, 663, 939 17, 509, 190	126, 820	1, 677	1, 983, 041 2, 885, 299 2, 145, 271	35, 466
2-2.5 (est.)1	7, 758	17, 509, 190		951	2, 145, 271	35, 100
2-2.5 (est.)	7, 758 2, 437	5. 399. 870 1	85, 419	691	1, 534, 272 7, 647, 997	25, 242
1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-3 (est.)	11, 167	30, 253, 148		2,814	7, 647, 997	
	2,340 4,468	6, 561, 068	59, 698	489 1,065	1, 363, 287 3, 397, 943	15, 905
3-3.5 (est.)	3, 068	14, 284, 453 10, 009, 236 5, 260, 682 10, 636, 061	72, 861	509	3, 397, 943 1, 664, 100	13, 777
3.5-4 (est.) ¹	1, 424	5, 260, 682	12,001	435	1, 614, 010	13, 777
3.5-4 (est.)	2,840	10, 636, 061	84,832	552	1, 614, 010 2, 082, 338 608, 202	17, 992
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.)¹	565	2, 385, 735 9, 422, 386		144	608, 202	
4-4.5 (est.)	2, 222 286	9, 422, 386	92, 925	464	1, 966, 066	19, 810
4.5-5 (est.)1	1,776	8 431 808	97, 343	43 413	207, 292	22, 573
4.5-5 (est.) 5-6 1 5-6	164	1, 342, 339 8, 431, 808 896, 769 14, 559, 198		28	1, 923, 380 152, 797 2, 082, 426 1, 661, 447	
5-6	2,664	14, 559, 198	209, 775 192, 765	382	2, 082, 426	31, 824 28, 453 26, 773
6-7	1.788	11,504,171	192, 765	258	1, 661, 447	28, 453
7-8	1, 280 941	9, 568, 766	203, 504	157	1, 171, 878	26, 773
8-9	634	7, 973, 378 6, 020, 551	209, 884	91 68	774, 224 646, 105	21, 409
10-11	512	5, 367, 746	193, 211	46	489 378	21, 177 16, 169
11–12	417	5, 367, 746 4, 796, 971 4, 518, 371 3, 357, 593	194, 266 193, 211 192, 792 192, 941	29 24	482, 378 332, 810 301, 139	13, 883
11–12 12–13	362	4, 518, 371	192, 941	24	301, 139	13, 373
13-14	249	3, 357, 593	151,048	19	255, 405 217, 081	12, 358 11, 351
14-15	242 664	3, 509, 111 11, 384, 114	173, 542 664, 342	15 43	217, 081	11, 351
15-20	383	8 506 043	665 523	21	745, 066 468, 708	45, 284 32, 029
25-30	229	6, 257, 627 7, 573, 070 4, 780, 798 3, 320, 298	665, 523 592, 839 884, 797 695, 739 563, 311	7	196, 008 327, 378 177, 998 260, 809	1 20 570
30-40	220	7, 573, 070	884, 797	10	327, 378	37, 234
40-50	107	4, 780, 798	695, 739	1 4	177, 998	27,972
50-60	61 34	3, 320, 298	563, 311 419, 142	5 1	260, 809	40, 647
60-70	16	2, 182, 130 1, 209, 219	262, 534	l	(2)	(2) (2) (2) (2)
80-90	iš	1, 209, 219 1, 094, 251 765, 297 2, 015, 083 528, 438 726, 550	267, 065	1 2	(2)	(2)
90-100	8	765, 297	267, 065 206, 698			
90-100 100-150	17	2, 015, 083	631, 428 205, 177			
150-200 200-250	3	528, 438	309, 549			
250-300	1 2		(2)			
		(2)	(2) (2)	l .		
400-500						
500-750						
1 000-1 500						
300-400 400-500 500-750 - 750-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000					*************	
2,000-3,000						
3,000-4,000		[
4,000-5,000						
4.000-5,000 5,000 and over Classes grouped ²		875, 455	391, 927		309, 926	71,313
		<u> </u>	ļ	10.005		
Total	98, 125	306, 041, 392	9, 353, 651	16,825	46, 594, 430	636, 102
Summary for preceding	1	Ì		İ		
years: 3	02 200	971 740 970	0 040 000	11 217	20 077 400	
1933	93, 308 95, 808	271, 748, 278 290, 701, 858	6, 848, 926 6, 874, 748	11, 511 10, 087	28, 377, 422	403, 887 496, 685
1931	80, 356	331, 482, 726	4, 747, 522	9,722	29, 877, 422 28, 221, 605 34, 667, 097	209, 809
1930	85, 507	419, 648, 187	8, 750, 374	1 11 625	45, 495, 235 71, 397, 232 72, 908, 121	461, 295
1929	1 98, 367	558 197 640	16, 416, 897	17, 035 17, 067 17, 112 18, 651 16, 191 19, 239	71, 397, 232	1 1 1019 300
1928 1927	99, 295	563, 951, 553 501, 495, 130 512, 801, 163	18, 910, 977	17, 112	72, 908, 121	1, 298, 024
1927	96, 407	512 801 182	13, 738, 256 13, 496, 872	18,001	69, 654, 023 59, 289, 994	1, 298, 024 867, 944 561, 833
1925	99, 509 109, 059	533, 836, 188	14, 246, 816	19, 239	66, 825, 486	580, 196
1924	186, 784	632, 532, 962	12, 373, 492	44, 011	107, 241, 911	731, 111
	1	1		1	1	

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Nebraska			Nevada	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number			Number		
(1 noticends of donars)	ofreturns	Net income	Total tax	ofreturns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.)1	2, 090	\$1, 372, 662 40, 626 4, 517, 628		249	\$150, 839	
Under 1(est.)	77 3, 747	40,626	\$945	639	2, 193 753, 559	\$66
1–1.5 (est.) 1–1.5 (est.)	2,666	3, 466, 741	18, 393	724	924, 082	4, 247
1 5_9 (oct \1	2,060	3, 567, 388		429	750, 787	
1.5-2 (est.)	1, 716 2, 216	2, 942, 625	34, 617	519 433	892, 427	9, 635
1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-3 (est.) 2-3 (est.)	711	5, 048, 899 1, 571, 840 8, 404, 810	24, 594	198	437, 876	6,412
2.5-3 (est.)1	3, 076	8, 404, 810		491	892, 427 980, 326 437, 876 1, 331, 943	
2.5-3 (est.)	583 1, 372	1, 628, 988 4, 389, 069	14, 565	161 187	448, 464 594, 490	4, 358
3-3.5 (est.)	918	0.000,467	20,678	230	751, 964	5, 669
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹	458	2, 990, 407 1, 702, 366 3, 383, 434 549, 154 3, 126, 504 234, 713		45	164 379	
3.5-4 (est.)	901 128	3, 383, 434	27,782	247 25	922, 053 105, 750 687, 869 68, 899	10, 229
1–4.5 (est.)1	735	3, 126, 504	28, 681	162	687, 869	8, 890
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.)	50	234, 713		15	68, 899	
4.5-5 (est.)	519	2, 462, 006	29, 295	133		9, 565
5–6 ¹	41 780	225, 401 4, 265, 610	62 438	158	38, 794 38, 792 866, 944 589, 471 209, 871 236, 045 172, 598 177, 598	16,808
6-7	537	4, 265, 610 3, 476, 202 2, 342, 659 1, 858, 051	62, 438 63, 334 54, 152 53, 179	91	589, 471	14, 195
7-8	313	2, 342, 659	54, 152	28 28 18	209, 871	5, 027
8-9 9-10	220 166	1, 558, 051	53, 179	28 18	236, 045 172 008	8, 983 7, 901
10-11	120	1, 255, 037	46,410	17	177, 598	8, 981
11-12	101	1, 161, 358	48, 803	11	126, 723 88, 278 162, 706 42, 376 259, 060	6, 571
12-13	78 54	973, 115	41,933	$\begin{array}{c} 7 \\ 12 \end{array}$	88, 278	4, 736 9, 331
14-15	49	707, 243	37, 482	3	42, 376	2, 959
15-20	145	731, 672 707, 243 2, 517, 745	35, 933 37, 482 184, 758	15	259, 060	16, 439
20-25 25-30	55 40	1, 215, 420 1, 093, 330	95,689	14 4	310, 935	25, 387 11, 160
00.40	32	1, 101, 435	109, 762 136, 340	5	108, 561 176, 888	21, 188
40-50	19	1, 101, 435 859, 325 218, 830	136, 340 124, 345 38, 481	5 1	176, 888 230, 178	35, 317
50-40 40-50 50-60 60-70	4 3	218, 830 (2)	38, 481		(2) (2)	(2) (2)
70-80	1	(2)	(2)	- 		
80-90				1	(2) (2) (2)	(2)
90-100				2	(2)	(2)
150-200						
200-250						
250-300 300_400				1	(2)	(2)
400-500				 - <i></i>	(-) 	
500-750			[
750-1,090 1 000_1 500						
1,500-2,000						
2,000-3,000	- 					
3,000-4,000						
5.000 and over						
70-80 80-90 90-100 100-150 1150-200 200-250 250-300 300-400 400-500 500-750 750-1,000 1,500-1,500 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000 4,000-5,000 5,000 and over Classes grouped 2		260, 111	52, 696		837, 893	273, 955
Total	26, 781	77, 236, 225	1, 438, 974	5, 321	15, 236, 981	528, 009
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933	24, 939	65, 022, 543	1, 133, 297	3,692	9,772,417	380, 80
1932	25, 503 23, 940	66, 007, 036 86, 120, 131	970, 563 723, 426	4, 102 3, 431	10, 867, 743 14, 041, 657	362, 378 349, 028
1930	27, 271	1 113 934 843	1 1 381 310	4,006	14, 641, 637 16, 688, 195 21, 597, 783 20, 109, 392 17, 443, 233 16, 795, 822	472, 63
1929 1928	27, 271 30, 962	140, 322, 452 139, 471, 054 130, 131, 079	1, 919, 473 2, 109, 341 1, 427, 747	5, 174	21, 597, 783	356.44
1928	31, 426 32, 170	139, 471, 054	2, 109, 341	4, 477 4, 702	20, 109, 392	477, 67 228, 79
1927	32, 170	130, 131, 079	1, 427, 747	4, 702 4, 797	16, 795, 822	228, 79 195, 49
1925 1924	35, 661 66, 512	141, 877, 975 189, 371, 665	1,732,535 1,848,121	6, 164	19,661,369	178, 36

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		New Hampsl	nire		New Jersey	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number	Net income	Total tax	Number	Net income	
	ofreturns	TVet meome	Total tax	ofreturns	Net income	Tetal tax
Under 1 (est.)1	1, 445	\$985, 742		12, 058	\$7, 972, 153	
Under 1 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.)	66 2, 816	35, 698 3, 352, 291	\$580	503	282, 193 36, 883, 786 17, 407, 800 29, 745, 944	\$6,404
1-1 5 (est)	2, 810	2, 737, 602	11, 740	30, 698 13, 035	17 407 800	113, 354
1.5-2 (est.)1	1, 380	2, 400, 606		17, 284	29, 745, 944	110, 504
1.5-2 (est.) ¹ 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) ¹	943	1, 617, 361 2, 651, 326	17, 272	15, 842		326, 340
2-2.5 (est.)1	1, 166	2, 651, 326		16, 910	38, 343, 401	
2-2.5 (est.)	336 1, 581	744, 531 4, 320, 232	11,016	7, 461	16, 537, 829	266, 588
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.)	437	1, 234, 456	8, 557	23, 682 4, 968	38, 343, 401 16, 537, 829 64, 522, 493 13, 696, 195	200, 582
3-3.5 (est.)1	668	2, 158, 080		11, 194	1 35, 877, 918	200, 002
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹	520	1, 701, 215	10, 206	6, 745	22, 052, 898 15, 639, 306	213, 145
3.5-4 (est.)1	316	1, 158, 463	14, 280	4, 238	15, 639, 306	
3.5–4 (est.) 4–4.5 (est.) ¹	482 153	1,799,581 635,209	14, 200	8, 530 1, 403	31, 914, 355 5, 897, 133	278, 627
4-4.5 (est.)	338	635, 209 1, 440, 040	12,930	7, 578	32, 142, 363	309, 029
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) ¹	73	346, 251 1, 270, 207		557	32, 142, 363 2, 631, 833 27, 021, 271	000, 02.
4.5-5 (est.)	269	1, 270, 207	14, 406	5, 711	27, 021, 271	306, 295
5-6 ¹	50 408	271, 701	90, 002	359	[1, 946, 946	
6-7	284	1 838 286	30, 003 29, 592	5, 709 3, 956	31, 210, 112 25, 603, 189	437, 633 434, 582
7–8	194	1, 445, 213	30, 757	2,608		424, 206
8-9	141	1, 193, 079	30, 757 32, 280	1, 783 1, 289	15, 103, 755	414, 514
9-10	102	2, 223, 366 1, 838, 286 1, 445, 213 1, 193, 079 964, 892	29, 118	1, 289	15, 103, 755 12, 209, 230 10, 328, 121	386, 990
10-11-12	61 55	639, 565 633, 032	22, 346 24, 648	986 755	10, 328, 121 8, 655, 278	381, 142
12-13	47	587, 212	23, 154	603	7, 537, 006	343, 734 331, 489
13-14	37	587, 212 499, 521	22, 218	525	7 081, 048	344, 737
14-15	41	594, 520	22, 218 27, 837	408	5 915 543	301, 037
15-20	87 43	594, 520 1, 488, 270 970, 249	88, 843	1, 368	23, 387, 481	1, 404, 913
20-25	16	970, 249 448, 571	70, 071 42, 307	656 364	23, 387, 481 14, 622, 709 9, 918, 700	1, 153, 841 945, 103
30-40	35	1, 217, 134	147, 790	380	13, 168, 849	1, 575, 811
40-50	15	671, 963	95, 014	181	7, 977, 646	1, 163, 758
50-60	9	498, 430	85, 034	107	5, 857, 518	1,004,586
60-70	2 3	121, 564 223, 134	21, 859 46, 417	66 42	4, 264, 417 3, 135, 070	832, 742
80-90	ı i l	(2)	(2)	33	2, 792, 865	705, 791 703, 576
90-100				18	2, 792, 865 1, 702, 855	703, 576 464, 395
100-150	5 2	534, 428	157, 921	49	5, 959, 807	1, 956, 583
150-200	2	(2) (2)	(2) (2)	15	2, 574, 212	995, 830
250-300		(-)	(9)	6	1, 797, 181 1, 651, 309	750, 665 738, 268
200-250 250-300 300-400 400-500				ı i	(2)	(2)
500-750				3	1, 814, 034	917, 421
1.000-1.500				4	5, 001, 743	(2) 2, 716, 420
1,500-2,000				_		
400-500. 500-750. 750-1,000 1,000-1,500. 1,500-2,000. 2,000-3,000.				3	(2)	(2)
3,000~4.000 4,000~5,000						
5,000 and over						
Classes grouped 2		614, 402	220, 296		9, 562, 092	5, 271, 114
Total	16, 785	48, 267, 423	1, 348, 492	210, 683	686, 065, 373	29, 121, 247
Summary for preceding						
years: ²	15 450	41 EEE EO1	Q29 R74	202 100	R10 201 004	99 000 100
1932	15, 458 15, 738	43, 854, 575	746, 847	217, 812	689, 687, 207	22, 079, 975
1931	12, 477	41, 555, 501 43, 854, 575 49, 243, 306	833, 674 746, 847 563, 289	178, 754	618, 361, 894 689, 687, 207 785, 764, 184	13, 971, 251
1930	13, 927	60, 014, 739	952, 064	202, 190 217, 812 178, 754 187, 943	956, 732, 849	23, 002, 182 22, 079, 975 13, 971, 251 23, 219, 240
1929	14, 341	74, 306, 913	1, 734, 828	195, 772	1, 212, 423, 226	43, 956, 017
1928	14, 132 14 484	72, 610, 266 70, 560, 949	1, 991, 854 1, 824, 931	196, 681	1, 241, 411, 359	51, 889, 941 38, 911, 894
1926	15, 276	66, 743, 817	1, 201, 298	195, 467 176, 320	1, 241, 411, 359 1, 117, 398, 064 1, 032, 297, 571	32, 858, 092 32, 383, 155
	16, 413	70, 117, 771	1, 218, 822	150, 874	943, 672, 751	32 383 155
1925 1924	31, 532	94, 132, 914	1, 377, 393	299, 904	1, 177, 421, 081	31, 941, 148

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

		New Mexic	o		New York	
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net in- come	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total ta
Jnder 1 (est.)1	724	\$470, 860		62, 488	\$43, 514, 175 1, 245, 826 151, 747, 663 100, 907, 907 94, 864, 047	
Inder 1 (est.)	880	1, 419 1, 040, 577	\$12	2, 297 127, 596	1, 245, 826	\$23, 2
-1.5 (est.)1	743	965, 180	5, 076	78, 197	100, 907, 907	543, 2
1.5 (est.) 1.5 (est.) 5-2 (est.) 5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 5-3 (est.) 5-3 (est.) 5-3 (est.) 5-4 (est.) 5-4 (est.) 5-4 (est.) 5-4 (est.)	553	965, 180 967, 557 966, 753		54.819	94, 864, 047	
5-2 (est.)	572 652	966, 753 1, 492, 273	10, 715	52, 993 60, 961		1, 088, 8
2.5 (est.)	231	524 011	7, 321	23, 396	51, 864, 743	849, 1
5-3 (est.)1	914	2, 472, 341 716, 355 1, 204, 937	7, 352	84, 137 19, 462	138, 598, 044 51, 864, 743 229, 112, 639 53, 974, 570 126, 503, 721	687, 9
5-3 (est.)!	257 379	1, 204, 937		39, 522	126, 503, 721	
3.5 (est.)	294	953, 692	8, 419	24, 703	80, 428, 560 54, 975, 160	726, 4
5-4 (est.)	132 253	486, 624 949, 108	10, 659	14, 888 24, 544	92 061 971	824, 0
4 5 (apt)1 :	36	153, 120 1, 063, 286		4, 427	18, 629, 030 87, 983, 375 8, 873, 441	
-4.5 (est.)	251 9	1, 063, 286 42, 892	14, 900	20, 740 1, 878	87, 983, 375	. 869, 6
-4.5 (est.) -5.5 (est.) 5.5 (est.)	175	830 334	12,009	15. 984 !	75 754 TUU	899, 3
-b 1	9	48. 939 1, 057. 730 833. 906	10 400	1, 126	6, 105, 422 115, 488, 699 95, 215, 189 76, 084, 399	
·8	195 129	833, 906	18, 466 20, 550	21, 120 1 14, 717	95, 215, 189	1, 703, (1, 967, 1 1, 706, (
-8	76	568. 074	16, 258	14, 717 10, 186	76, 084, 399	1, 706,
-5,	52 42	440 206 399, 429	16, 069 16, 819	7. 206 5, 641	61, 054, 792 53, 483, 616	1, 689, 9 1, 761,
-10	21	219, 772	8, 293	4, 360	45, 719, 110	1, 694,
l-12	9	219, 772 102, 748 99, 182	3, 812	3, 560	45, 719, 110 40, 883, 378 36, 489, 529	1, 689, 7
2-13	8 7	99, 182 92, 800	5, 425 4, 061	2, 924 2, 424	36, 489, 529 32, 681, 362	1, 662, 6 1, 587,
3-14 1-15	7	100, 199	6, 402	2, 110	32, 681, 362 30, 582, 228	1, 574,
5-20	19 3 2 5	317, 756 67, 742	21. 685 5, 409	6, 771 3, 741	116, 523, 399	7, 152, 6
0-25 5-30	3	(2)	(2)	2, 292	83, 339, 235 62, 519, 930 85, 800, 888	6, 533, 6, 079, 10, 313,
0-40 0-50	5	169, 158	18, 249	2, 292 2, 500	85, 800, 888 60, 704, 798	10, 313,
)-59)-69	1 1	179, 869 (2)	24, 605 (2)	1, 361 756	41, 181, 121	9, 014, 7, 129,
)-60.)-70.)-80.)-90.)-100.)0-150.)0-200.)0-250.)0-300.)0-400.)0-500.				510	41, 181, 121 33, 056, 232 24, 947, 699 21, 309, 928	6, 609.
`-80 `-ao				334 251	24, 947, 699	5, 636, 5, 326,
0-100				180		1 4 619
00-150				348 141	41, 675, 908 24, 117, 057 16, 351, 666	13, 609, 9, 392, 6, 984,
00-250				73	16, 351, 666	6, 984,
50-300				46 40	12, 646, 914	5, 641,
00-400				18	13, 677, 607 7, 995, 925	6, 416, 3, 951.
00-759				24	14, 408, ∩90	7, 286,
50-1,000 000-1_500				11	9, 569, 046 9, 797, 000	3, 951, 7, 286, 5, 101, 5, 288,
500-2,000				9 2	3, 688, 256	2, 109,
000-3,000				2	(2)	(2) (2)
.000-5.000						
000 and over		100 001	15 007	1	(2) 15, 696, 845	(2)
03-590 00-750 50-1,000 ,000-1,500 ,500-2,000 ,000-3,000 ,000-4,000 ,000-4,000 ,000 and over. Ilasses grouped ²		109,001	15,001		15, 696, 845	9, 051,
Total		20, 107, 880	277, 567	807, 818	2, 811, 720, 784	166, 789,
ummary for preceding years: 3						
1933	5, 577	14, 268, 551 14, 666, 467	165, 971	748, 054	2, 598, 890, 660 2, 764, 354, 206	137, 414, 109, 593,
1932	5, 574 5, 389	14, 555, 467	178, 605 117, 336 222, 459 299, 882	798, 685 634, 057	2, 764, 354, 206 3, 108, 633, 729	77 975
1931 1930 1929 1928 1927	6, 288 6, 874	18, 231, 469 24, 970, 971 30, 875, 636	222, 459	711, 566 757, 835	3, 108, 633, 729 4, 189, 130, 106 6, 253, 465, 699 6, 458, 089, 207	163, 508,
1929	6,874	30, 875, 636 29, 995, 501	299, 882 464, 430	757, 835	6, 253, 465, 699	163, 508, 396, 687, 451, 606,
1928	6, 686 6, 462	26 288 148	1 263 403	780, 418 766 974	1 5 398 451 005	305, 210.
1920	0.010	24, 631, 507 23, 994, 717	227, 471 178, 762	753, 044	4, 984, 020, 281	305, 210, 247, 164,
1925 1924	7, 203 11, 595	23, 994, 717 31, 951, 117	178, 762 223, 842	751, 941 1, 215, 640	4, 903, 288, 994 5, 144, 766, 182	252, 157, 236, 774,
1741	11, 090	31, 331, 111	1 220,042	1, 210, 010	0, 111, 100, 102	200,114,

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

	1	North Carolin	na		North Dakot	a
Net income classes		1 3			ı	i
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.)1	1,852	\$1, 323, 747		1, 231	\$788,828	
Under 1 (est.)	77	\$1, 323, 747 48, 607	\$1,518	8	5, 535 1, 790, 307	\$6
-1.5 (est.)	4, 210 2, 592	5, 045, 451 3, 300, 571	15, 398	1,474 845	1,790,307	5,60
-1.5 (est.) 5-2 (est.) ¹	0 271	3, 500, 571 4, 150, 978 2, 342, 331 7, 314, 255 1, 036, 878 12, 982, 245 2, 071, 317 7, 750, 978	10, 393	1,085	1, 089, 621 1, 899, 365	0,00
l.5-2 (est.)	1,362	2, 342, 331	25, 207	532	914, 047 914, 047 2, 645, 238 497, 927 2, 589, 461 561, 248	10, 88
.5-2 (est.) .5-2 (est.) .5-2 (est.) .5-3 (est.)	3, 208 466	7, 314, 255	15, 690	1, 170 225	2,645,238	8, 41
2.5–3 (est.) ¹	4, 765	12, 982, 245		987	2, 589, 461	
4.5-3 (est.)	743	2,071,317	15, 945	200	561, 248	4,69
I-3.5 (est.)1	2,413 1,031	7, 750, 978 3, 360, 344	19, 348	393 278	1, 261, 362 906, 753	6, 95
-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 1.5-4 (est.) 1.5-4 (est.) 1-4.5 (est.) 1-4.5 (est.) 1-5-5 (est.)	873	3, 232, 253 3, 369, 776		136	F 503 230 I	
3.5-4 (est.)	900	3, 369, 776	21, 940	224 48	835, 476	7, 10
l-4.5 (est.)	279 792	1, 180, 402 3, 349, 362	29, 074	204	835, 476 199, 931 864, 360	8, 76
1.5-5 (est.)1	169	811, 565		12	55, 567	-
4.5–5 (est.) 5–6 ¹	580 95	2, 735, 723	28,643	153 15	730, 862 80, 000	8, 25
5-6	834	2, 735, 723 519, 636 4, 553, 913 4, 233, 095 3, 010, 195 2, 487, 498 2, 113, 524	59.017	166	1 900 863	12, 40 14, 91 10, 23 8, 13 10, 40
3-7	656	4, 233, 095	62, 103 58, 770 61, 229	129	835, 198 4£5, 693 316, 998	14, 91
7-8 3-9	403 293	3,010,195	58,770	61 38	455, 693	10, 23
9-10	223	2, 113, 524	59, 259 53, 332	32	300, 873	10, 40
10-11	157	1, 646, 004 1, 308, 411 1, 096, 386 1, 106, 337	53, 332	23	238, 130	7,90
11–12 12–13	114	1,308,411	49,986	18 11	205,848	7, 77 6, 61
13-14	82	1, 106, 337	48, 251	9	120, 140	5.70
14-15	73	1, 055, 569 4, 365, 526 2, 170, 665	43, 859 48, 251 48, 658 245, 721 156, 330	6	137, 507 120, 140 87, 723 229, 211	5, 40 14, 39
15-20 20-25	254 97	4,365,526	245, 721	13	229, 211	14, 39 (2)
25-30	59	1, 597, 878	143, 543	2 3	82,633	8, 09
30-40	74	2, 505, 958 1, 350, 466	274, 472	1	(2)	(2)
40-50 50-60	30 22	1, 350, 466	194,617	1	(2)	(2)
39-70	14	1, 192, 001 906, 600 1, 040, 265 414, 547	194, 617 193, 456 171, 651 224, 216			
70-80	14	1, 040, 265	224, 216			
80-90 -100	5 3	1 279.331	98, 621 69, 898			
100-150	12	1, 351, 278 890, 106	415, 372 339, 193			
150-200 200-250	5 3 5	890, 106	339, 193 259, 196			
250-300	5	640, 838 1, 343, 804	584, 475			
300-400	1	(2)	(2)			
400-500 500-750	$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\2\\1\\1 \end{bmatrix}$	918, 304	443, 150 (2)			
50-1,000	ĩ	(2) (2) (2) (2)	(2) (2)			
750-1,000 1,000-1,500 1,500-2,000	1	(2)	(2)			
2.000-3.000						
.000-4.000						
1,000-5,000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2		3, 408, 772	1, 750, 313		121,991	11, 22
Total	32, 305	112, 913, 710	6, 281, 451	9,733	22, 351, 926	183, 95
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933	29, 462	91, 673, 065	4, 121, 232	8,359	16, 799, 800	115, 10
1932	25, 972	91, 673, 065 76, 989, 708 88, 042, 580	4, 121, 232 4, 017, 702 2, 030, 396	8,889	16, 799, 800 18, 182, 308 18, 409, 626	115, 16 110, 56 42, 51 86, 70
1931 1930	22, 625 25, 216	88, 042, 580 103, 624, 484	1 2 426 562	7, 013 8, 262	18, 409, 626 24, 476, 992	42, 5 86, 70
1929	28, 860	120 259 807	3, 282, 957 6, 051, 641	9, 170	21 107 950	111, 54
1928 1927	30,997	161, 039, 786	6,051,641	9,710 9,758	34, 878, 015	269, 44
1926	33, 398 35, 332	153, 231, 981	3, 398, 245	9,758	34, 878, 015 33, 252, 341 33, 169, 117	187, 6: 180, 01
1925. 1924.	35, 332 38, 740	161, 039, 786 155, 916, 827 153, 231, 981 161, 623, 754	4, 519, 870 3, 398, 245 3, 178, 767 3, 777, 873	11, 715	35, 695, 178	162, 58 268, 09
1924	63, 864	200, 888, 953	3, 777, 873	19, 160	48, 689, 794	268, 09

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

		Ohio			Oklahoma	
Net income classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax	Number of re- turns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.)1	13, 848	\$9, 091, 878 255, 730 43, 096, 316		2, 964	\$1, 825, 060 45, 878	
Under 1 (est.)	489 36, 483	255, 730 43, 096, 316	\$5, 544	5, 579	45, 878 6, 810, 166	\$1, 115
Under 1 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.) 1-1.5 (est.)	99 007	28, 143, 143	133, 340	1,536	2, 054, 756	14,079
1.5-2 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.)	14, 350	28, 143, 143 28, 143, 143 24, 752, 941 21, 969, 580 34, 745, 626 9, 402, 029	243, 872	3,749	6, 484, 327	48, 263
2-2.5 (est.)1	12, 865 15, 228	34, 745, 626		2, 351 3, 496	7, 868, 826	l
2-2.5 (est.)	4, 249 25, 622	9, 402, 029	141, 334	880 5, 559	4, 034, 743 7, 868, 826 1, 957, 307 15, 087, 056	32, 516
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.)	5, 177	69, 688, 983 14, 555, 226 34, 341, 460	112, 229	672	1,866,017	22, 709
3-3.5 (est.)1	10, 733 6, 806	34, 341, 460 22, 161, 490	133, 770	2, 632 1, 266	8, 446, 289	30, 590
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹ 3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) ¹	3, 925	14, 439, 878		657	4, 120, 097 2, 412, 367 4, 845, 336	l
3.5-4 (est.)	6, 064 1, 312	14, 439, 878 22, 708, 450 5, 515, 046	175, 344	1, 297 335	4, 845, 336 1, 412, 679	43, 775
		1 21 540 378	193, 417	1, 251	5 316 300	52, 351
4.5-5 (est.)1 4.5-5 (est.) 5-6 1 5-6	522	2, 426, 753 19, 042, 932 2, 062, 654	208, 925	73	341, 959 4, 965, 132 448, 909 5, 211, 430	58, 587
5-6 1	4, 013 380	2, 062, 654		1, 048 83	448, 909	l
5-6	5, 232	28, 544, 784	386, 395	954	5, 211, 430	875, 050 77, 385
6-7	3, 473 2, 290	22, 459, 081 17, 113, 523	360, 494 350, 667	702 440	4, 534, 054 3, 289, 370	70.981
8-9	1,661	14, 064, 763 12, 587, 181 10, 413, 256 8, 984, 839	350, 667 355, 540	306	9 547 495	73, 228
9-10	1, 330 993	12, 587, 181	380, 491 369, 367	197 177	1, 871, 202 1, 853, 110 1, 710, 037	59, 636 69, 490
10-11 11-12	782	8, 984, 839	350, 016	149	1, 719, 037	69, 796
12-13 13-14	623 512	7, 707, 179	329, 391 310, 918	94 99	1 177 209	54, 708 63, 974
14-15	406	5, 877, 316	259, 244	80	1, 157, 257	59, 419
15-20	1, 310	6, 897, 059 5, 877, 316 22, 568, 869 13, 028, 109 9, 989, 272 12, 358, 741 8, 532, 837 5, 780, 188 4, 319, 248 2, 174, 088	259, 244 1, 324, 382 975, 934	262	1, 339, 461 1, 157, 257 4, 492, 717 2, 563, 196	276, 198 206, 923
20-25 25-30	583 366	9, 989, 272	936, 541	114 59	1, 618, 023	169, 826
30-40	350	12, 358, 741	1, 437, 769 1, 235, 686	70 35	9 408 878	288, 968 235, 269
40-50 50-60 60-70	192 106	5, 780, 188	1,068,593	20	1, 566, 971 1, 065, 083 591, 389	179, 698
60-70	67	4, 319, 248	840, 648 480, 091	9 2	591, 389	179, 698 116, 012
70-80 80-90	29 28	2, 114, 000	575, 511	2	141, 972 170, 285	27, 341 39, 411
90-100 100-150 150-200 200-250	13	1, 244, 925 5, 112, 238 1, 406, 386	575, 511 331, 201 1, 641, 003 548, 743 931, 779	$\frac{1}{2}$	(2) (2)	(2)
150-200	43 8	5, 112, 238 1, 406, 386	1, 641, 003 548, 743	2	(4)	(2)
200-250	10	2, 233, 655 2, 499, 556	931, 779			
250-300 300-400	9 4	(2)	1 1, 090, 913			
250-300 300-400 400-500 500-750	i	(2) (2) (2)	(2) (2) (2) (2) (2)			
750-1.000	1	(2)	2)			
1,000-1,500						
2,000-3,000						
3,000-4,000						
4,000-5,000						
500-750. 750-1,000. 1,000-1,500. 1,500-2,000. 2,000-3,000. 3,000-4,000. 4,000-5,000. 5,000 and over. Classes grouped ² .		3, 084, 612	1, 505, 914		333, 876	99, 694
Total	209, 589	631, 348, 370	19, 761, 006	39, 279	120, 030, 049	3, 416, 992
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933	181, 212	511, 694, 014	13, 237, 425 12, 296, 627	33, 224	89, 908, 905	1, 608, 377
1932 1931	188, 141 164, 809	556, 313, 005 689, 352, 135	12, 296, 627 9, 742, 860	31,832	83, 367, 347 93, 593, 901	1, 203, 868 861, 871
1930 1929	199, 600	511, 694, 014 556, 313, 005 689, 352, 135 950, 397, 134 1, 259, 571, 939	9, 742, 860 21, 879, 272 43, 633, 678	33, 224 31, 832 28, 242 32, 526 37, 000	89, 908, 905 83, 367, 347 93, 593, 901 157, 410, 693 216, 346, 916	3, 416, 992 6, 020, 950
1929 1928	215, 804	1, 259, 571, 939	1 55 RUR 575	37, 000 37, 261	216, 346, 916	6,020,950
1927	218, 479 222, 707	1, 302, 762, 001 1, 153, 756, 214	35, 519, 337	39, 806 37, 497	212, 341, 656	6, 446, 274 6, 232, 124
1926	231, 196	1 1, 146, 495, 871	35, 519, 337 32, 839, 052 30, 321, 360	37, 497	223, 036, 805	8, 134, 654 6, 897, 119
1927. 1926. 1925. 1924.	224, 643 418, 048	1, 141, 453, 071 1, 403, 748, 590	30, 321, 360 32, 061, 822	40, 825 63, 357	211, 061, 345 212, 341, 656 223, 036, 805 219, 960, 990 211, 271, 658	6, 897, 119 3, 794, 477
	1	,, ,	1 ,,	1	,,	1

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Oregon			Pennsylvania	ı
(Thousands of dollars)	Number	Net income	Total tax	Number	Not income	(Data) to
	of 1eturns	Net meome	Total tax	of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	939	\$536, 715	\$450	24, 790	\$17, 342, 393	\$9,390
Under 1 (est.)	58 5, 453	6, 497, 497	\$450	844 56, 508	451, 913 65, 984, 753	\$9,390
1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1	4,069	29, 672 6, 497, 497 5, 189, 574 3, 823, 920	24, 401	40,798	65, 984, 753 51, 773, 701 39, 759, 721	232, 506
1.5-2 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2-2.5 (est.) 1 2.5-3 (est.) 1 2.5-3 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1 3-3.5 (est.) 1	2, 223 1, 986	3, 823, 920 3, 391, 176	39, 294	22, 834 19, 660	39, 759, 721 33, 671, 044	370, 208
2-2.5 (est.) 1.	1,309	2, 903, 643		27, 538	69 565 290	l
2-2.5 (est.)	604	1, 342, 490	21, 270	7,825	17, 357, 355	254, 609
2.5-3 (est.)	3, 319 633	8, 960, 773 1, 784, 773 3, 885, 512	12, 549	39, 198 7, 852	11, 357, 355 106, 612, 840 21, 986, 218 56, 871, 040 32, 570, 712 23, 027, 780 34, 763, 503	180, 446
3-3.5 (est.) 1	1, 208	3, 885, 512		7, 852 17, 743 10, 005	56, 871, 040	
3-3.5 (est.)	891 315	2, 906, 418	21,791	10,005 6,226	32, 570, 712	228, 885
3.5-4 (est.)	748	1, 155, 886 2, 791, 295	22, 738	9, 310	34, 763, 503	282, 195
3.5-4 (est.) 1-4.5 (est.) ¹	108	449, 715 2, 757, 962 143, 345 2, 184, 664		2, 123 7, 142	8, 921, 806 30, 258, 344	
4-4.5 (est.)	650 30	2, 757, 962	25, 967	7, 142	30, 258, 344	305, 859
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.)	462	2, 184, 664	25, 589	5, 813	4, 228, 528 27, 541, 801	320, 997
5-6 1	34	182, 076		641	3, 484, 618 45, 710, 257	
5-6 6-7	677 418	3, 687, 049	54, 751	8,370 5,943	45, 710, 257	656, 835 647, 666
7_8	252	1, 873, 236	42, 300	3, 981	29, 705, 659	642.766
8-9 9-10 10-11	195	2, 692, 531 1, 873, 236 1, 654, 425 1, 191, 334	48, 441 42, 300 48, 603 39, 223 39, 519	2,719 2,065	38, 456, 244 29, 705, 659 23, 049, 177 19, 579, 177 15, 908, 650	624, 403 624, 377 595, 720
J-10	126 105	1, 191, 334 1, 101, 750	39, 223	2, 065 1, 519	19, 579, 177	624, 377 505 790
11-12	61	703, 657		1, 219	13, 993, 810	566, 640
12-13	63	789, 452	36, 709 38, 374 36, 391 113, 584 81, 783	1,033	12 006 500	570, 240
13-14 14-15	58 47	783, 332 678, 747	38, 374 36, 301	867 748	11, 685, 143	553, 340 551, 572
15-20	108	783, 332 678, 747 1, 859, 282	113, 584	2, 199	11, 685, 143 10, 839, 815 37, 800, 013 27, 458, 244	2, 269, 468
20-25	49	1, 085, 872	81, 783	1,231	27, 458, 244	2, 151, 029 1, 905, 447
25–30 30–40	22 15	611, 822 505, 957	59, 784 58, 400	719 793	19, 641, 118	1, 905, 447 3, 266, 298
£0~50	12	519, 565	70, 109	412	18, 394, 659	2, 670, 525
50-60 60-70 70-80	3 1	(2) (2)	(2) (2)	229	21, 308, 301 18, 394, 659 12, 496, 593 9, 876, 590 7, 042, 036 4, 460, 000	2, 172, 744 1, 971, 614
70-80				152 94	7, 042, 036	1, 595, 795
80-90	1	(2)	(2)	53	4, 460, 000	1, 102, 926
90–100		(2)	(2)	48	4, 528, 319	1, 231, 564 3, 440, 348
150-200		(-)		35	5, 775, 263	2, 174, 195
200-250				18	3, 943, 028	2, 174, 195 1, 670, 204
250~300 R00~400				11	3,009,712	1, 328, 073 668, 720
100-500				5	2, 252, 114	1, 107, 022 2, 414, 712
500- 750				8	4, 793, 641	2, 414, 712
1.000-1.500				4	(2)	(2) (2)
,500-2,000						
2,000-3,000						
1,000-5,000						
5,000 and over						
80-90 30-100. 30-100. 30-100. 30-100. 300-200 300-250 300-300 300-400 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 300-500 3000-5000		421, 502	91,507		5, 623, 983	3, 064, 387
Total	27, 253	71, 076, 619	1, 084, 638	342,308	1, 067, 788, 870	44, 423, 725
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933	27, 572	66, 190, 038	795, 893	323, 960	970, 250, 517	32, 872, 779
1932	25, 845	60, 519, 751 73, 154, 659 106, 076, 107 129, 360, 587	070 110	224 471	970, 250, 517 1, 023, 234, 341 1, 193, 400, 020 1, 620, 314, 109 2, 217, 958, 557 2, 204, 955, 406 2, 091, 825, 217	39, 904, 410
1931	20, 181 26, 047	73, 154, 659	474, 055 1, 073, 686 1, 663, 775 2, 387, 276 1, 920, 597	267, 848 322, 503 364, 145 361, 220 381, 374	1, 193, 400, 020	24, 854, 558 46, 825, 528
1930 1929	28, 194	129, 360, 587	1, 663, 775	364, 145	2, 217, 958, 557	90, 694, 655
1928 1927	28, 194 29, 333	132, 829, 673 140, 739, 425	2, 387, 276	361, 220	2, 204, 955, 406	90, 694, 655 96, 772, 465 78, 674, 525
1927	33, 903 30, 955	140, 739, 425 135, 030, 190	1, 920, 597 2, 175, 322	381, 374 397, 575	2, 091, 825, 217	78, 674, 525 76, 887, 315
		132, 022, 718	1, 787, 992	376, 923	2, 138, 168, 594 2, 031, 305, 849	73, 364, 345
1925	32, 542	189, 884, 373	1,101.992		2, 548, 132, 809	10,004,040

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Rhode Island	l		South Carolin	na
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est) ¹ Under 1 (est.)	2, 012 57	\$1, 354, 456 32, 213	\$487	1,398 43	\$887, 859 27, 326	\$579
1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1	5, 389 3, 359	6, 413, 944 4, 347, 577	22, 258	1, 964 1, 432	2, 320, 405 1, 831, 473 2, 761, 332	9, 190
1.5-2 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.)	2, 598 2, 393 2, 171	4, 506, 822 4, 145, 573 4, 910, 650	49, 237	1, 584 805 1, 752	2, 761, 332 1, 388, 508 3, 945, 107	15, 865
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 1	752 3,003	1, 670, 008 8, 159, 877 1, 767, 524	24, 480	295 1, 521	650, 595 4, 119, 569	10, 882
2.5–3 (est.) 3–3.5 (est.) 1 3–3.5 (est.)	634 1, 432 853	4, 594, 450	18, 098 22, 008	388 575 387	1, 091, 853 1, 849, 918 1, 261, 725 942, 246	8, 448 9, 137
3.5-4 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.)	580 839	2, 791, 466 2, 141, 551 3, 156, 375	26, 572	252 451	1,688,914	13, 636
4-4.5 (est.) 1 4-4.5 (est.) 1 4.5-5 (est.) 1	229 601 81	964, 156 2, 558, 076 381, 572	23, 948	80 320 30	338, 072 1, 360, 182 144, 283	11, 225
4.5-5 (est.) 5-6 1	576 68	2,731,733	32, 952	280 47	144, 283 1, 330, 071 254, 709	14, 362
5-6 6-7 7-8	817 587 412	4, 464, 746 3, 804, 983 3, 071, 828	62, 180 65, 433 67, 680	368 255 152	1, 998, 492 1, 645, 634 1, 135, 995	25, 997 24, 689 22, 607
8-9 9-10	279 223	2, 367, 336	63, 233 66, 080	119 92 59	1, 011, 564	25, 088 26, 715 21, 479
10-11	173 150 124	1, 813, 926 1, 723, 665 1, 544 721	62, 720 68, 299 65, 289 57, 955 56, 074	51 37	617, 884 587, 975 450, 620 456, 440 331, 836	24, 133 19, 523 21, 001
13-14 14-15 15-20	93 78 224	1, 253, 314 1, 131, 561 3, 831, 708	57, 955 56, 074 222, 651	34 23 63	456, 440 331, 836 1, 098, 424	21, 001 15, 681 67, 622
20-25	142 80	3, 158, 210 2, 174, 245	237, 321 199, 981	33 16	734, 133 431, 725	56, 464 40, 688
30-40	88 50 22	3, 021, 372 2, 239, 375 1, 204, 203 1, 034, 651	357, 897 324, 834 204, 213	17 6 3	578, 395 262, 275 166, 334	69, 784 36, 465 29, 528
60-70 70-80 80-90	16 8 9	1, 034, 651 594, 519 758, 386	204, 213 200, 445 129, 247 184, 933	2	(2) (2)	(2) (2)
90-100	6 12	559, 929 1, 420, 564	145, 639 451, 118 539, 905	1 1	(2) (2)	(2) (2)
150-200 200-250 250-300	8 2 1	1, 389, 175 (2) (2)				
300-400	3	948, 662	(2) 427, 644			
400-500	1	(2)	(2)			
730-1,000- 1,000-1,500- 1,500-2.000- 2,000-3.000- 3.000-4.000-						
4,000-5,000 5,000 and over						
Classes grouped 2 Total	31, 235	1, 575, 491	751, 313 5, 232, 124	14, 937	41, 023, 968	114, 683 735, 471
Summary for preceding years: 3						
1933 1932 1931	29, 489 30, 581 22, 375	92, 589, 659 101, 863, 121 111, 159, 397	3, 452, 803 3, 839, 178 2, 598, 619	12, 686 11, 902 10, 536	32, 131, 067 29, 080, 658 33, 858, 781	450, 922 312, 924 197, 943
1930. 1929. 1928.	23, 862	196 571 969	4, 114, 526 7, 851, 363	12, 179 13, 232 13, 725	42, 714, 132 50, 257, 416	304, 596 566, 252
1927	25, 184 26, 362	130, 371, 303 184, 531, 178 176, 225, 164 157, 464, 733 155, 050, 974 160, 955, 280	8, 093, 013 6, 332, 169 5, 545, 787	14,310	55, 510, 360 55, 218 679 53, 060, 331	716, 628 554, 731 420, 164
1925 1924	29, 123	160, 955, 280 191, 556, 190	5, 545, 787 5, 817, 977 6, 722, 491	15, 727 28, 090	57, 661, 544 79, 613, 886	430, 879 727, 462

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		South Dako	ta	Tennessee			
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	
Under 1 (est.) 1 Under 1 (est.)	1,005	\$611, 068	\$336	2, 974	\$2, 068, 469 42, 417	\$796	
1-1.5 (est.) 1 1-1.5 (est.) 1 1.5-2 (est.) 1	1, 010 992	11, 143 1, 219, 277 1, 264, 438	6, 029	5, 133 2, 770 3, 213	6, 236, 101 3, 563, 672 5, 571, 727	19, 448	
1.5-2 (est.) 2-2.5 (est.)	674 589 819	1, 169, 682 1, 001, 685 1, 865, 663	11,716	2, 507 3, 855	4, 297, 587 8, 769, 523	51, 504	
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 1 2.5-3 (est.)	164 918 187	366, 873 2, 505, 312 526, 635	6, 056 3, 456	959 4, 595 863	2, 116, 492 12, 531, 151 2, 389, 338 5, 716, 222	33, 882 27, 823	
3-3.5 (est.) ¹ 3-3.5 (est.) ² 3.5-4 (est.) ¹	437 254 127	2, 505, 312 526, 635 1, 403, 305 823, 632 467, 674 876, 573	5, 223	1, 787 1, 247 716	4, 083, 185 2, 645, 651	31, 180	
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.) 1 4-4.5 (est.)	234 46 148	876, 573 195, 892 625, 658	6, 393 6, 180	1, 225 177 1, 063	4, 583, 134 742, 714 4, 509, 137	40, 471	
4.5-5 (est.) ¹ 4.5-5 (est.)	18 135 13	86, 578 648, 523	6, 533	93 859 84	444, 736 4, 079, 710 458, 786	51, 449	
5-6 6-7 7-8	159 107 75	68, 766 872, 565 694, 979	11, 928 11, 062 10, 973	981 681 428	5 353 606	75, 948 73, 539 67, 753	
9-10 10-11	42 28 23	556, 193 354, 127 262, 556 241, 304	8, 921 8, 164	313 213	4, 412, 881 3, 197, 655 2, 648, 903 2, 019, 392	68, 497 63, 039 64, 487	
11-12 12-13	11 10	124, 209 124, 275	8, 767 5, 030 5, 494	167 159 106	1, 757, 723 1, 829, 869 1, 321, 121	75, 450 57, 788	
13-14 14-15 15-20	11 7 23 3	146, 305 101, 352 390, 194	6, 312 5, 234 22, 142	95 75 218	1, 283, 551 1, 088, 227 3, 739, 148	61, 226 54, 356 224, 522	
20-25- 25-30- 30-40-	3 5 4	(2) 139, 116 134, 168	(2) 13, 187 14, 888	107 69 57	3, 739, 148 2, 396, 971 1, 883, 631 1, 944, 012	186, 363 205, 555 225, 767	
40-50 50-60 60-70	1	(2)	(2)	27 18 8	1, 208, 902 995, 426 514, 208	174, 706 169, 727 102, 860	
70-80 80-90 90-100	1	(2)	(2)	8 5 2 1	366, 670 176, 301 (2)	78, 458 46, 723 (²) 142, 253	
100-150 150-200 200-250				4 2 2	460, 251 337, 900 453, 871	142, 253 133, 129 188, 092	
250-300 300-400 400-500				1	(2)	(2)	
500-750 750-1,000 1,000-1,500				2	(2)	(2)	
1,500-2,000 2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000							
4,000~5,000		225, 791	41, 356		1, 548, 749	754, 471	
Total	8, 302	20, 105, 511	225, 380	37, 938	115, 788, 720	3, 596, 105	
Summary for preceding years: 3	7, 555	16, 519, 323	188, 033	33, 464 31, 543	93, 395, 213	1, 987, 598	
1932 1931 1930	8, 356 7, 387 9, 449	16, 519, 323 17, 956, 077 22, 130, 693 31, 453, 988 40, 165, 070	188, 033 137, ; 03 105, 602 178, 379 390, 886	31, 543 28, 117 32, 682 34, 664	93, 395, 213 88, 515, 162 107, 251, 482 140, 422, 521 177, 388, 337	1, 987, 598 1, 699, 381 1, 413, 609 1, 955, 201	
1930 1929 1928 1927	10, 449 10, 649 10, 969	35, 906, 515	321, 516 209, 667	35, 039 33, 812	173, 162, 605	5, 624, 112 4, 035, 541	
1926	12, 414 17, 086 26, 506	38, 153, 263 53, 971, 360 66, 124, 303	208, 893 192, 460 306, 097	35, 495 34, 689 66, 981	175, 714, 293 168, 198, 127 224, 184, 198	3, 651, 457 3, 125, 603 3, 419, 535	

Table 9:—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Texas			Utah	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number			Number		
(Thousands of donars)	of returns	Net income	Total tax	of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	10, 610	\$6, 804, 604 59, 538		1, 021	\$646, 186 14, 810 1, 781, 890	
Under 1 (est.)	96 13, 445	15, 984, 509	\$1,306	31 1,466	1, 781, 890	\$354
-1.5 (est.) .5-2 (est.)	9, 269	12, 180, 811	66, 981	867	1, 099, 818 1	4, 393
.5-2 (est.) 1 5-2 (est.)	8, 159 8, 717	14, 149, 393 14, 994, 433	170, 241	1, 090 463	1, 906, 374 790, 831	8, 767
3-2.5 (est.) 1	9, 144	20, 849, 023		1, 219	2, 768, 010	
	4, 060 12, 248	20, 849, 023 9, 052, 813 33, 352, 155 11, 392, 378	125, 747	169 1,721	374, 682 4, 695, 385	5, 820
3.5-3 (est.)	4,087	11, 392, 378	123, 059	219	619, 335	4, 109
) 9 5 (oot \)	5, 196	10, 598, 520	166 000	712	2, 283, 412	
3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) ¹ 3.5-4 (est.) ¹ 4.5 (est.) ¹ 4.5 (est.) ¹	5, 677 2, 077	18, 489, 026 7, 667, 838	166, 828	341 285	1, 110, 476 1, 052, 749 1, 119, 211 470, 983	5, 53
3.5-4 (est.)	5, 269	19, 715, 652 2, 527, 588 18, 802, 786	224, 162	300	1, 119, 211	6, 81
L-4.5 (est.)	604 4, 439	2, 527, 588 18, 802, 786	248, 151	112 245	470, 983 1, 037, 692	7, 94
1.5-5 (est.) 1	313	1, 456, 403		47	216, 699	
1-4.5 (est.) 1 1.5-5 (est.) 1 1.5-5 (est.) - 5-6 1	2, 827 150	13, 403, 886	205, 609	187 28	884, 556	8, 34
5-6	4. 163	806, 096 22, 747, 969	421, 872	261	151, 777 1, 424, 288	17, 44
}- /	2, 346	15, 160, 630 9, 682, 699	356, 859 300, 274	171	1, 424, 288 1, 104, 149	16, 25
7-8 3-9	1, 299 846	7 160 521 1	300, 274 265, 417	129 77	962, 092 653, 987	19, 36 16, 24
9-10	637	6, 030, 177 5, 166, 659 4, 276, 236 4, 107, 892 2, 856, 949	260, 827	63	596, 640	18, 03
10-11	495	5, 166, 659	241, 550	42	443, 060 300, 673	14, 03
11-12	374 329	4, 276, 230	214, 483 223, 875	26 20	253, 505	11, 55 10, 72
12-13 13-14	212	2, 856, 949	168, 681	22	253, 505 297, 585 217, 763	12, 61
14-15 15-20	235 643	3, 407, 628 11, 040, 426	206, 469 761, 271	15 51	217, 763 896, 123	10, 16 52, 42
20-25	351	7, 786, 881	667, 645	22	488, 621	37, 16
25-30	166	4. 573. 381	1 479,692	16	432, 998 380, 226 90, 688	1 40 49
30–40	189 121	6, 473, 413 5, 418, 941	825, 935 856, 754	$\frac{11}{2}$	90, 688	44, 12 12, 00 35, 63
50–60	58		582,614	4 2	221,817	35, 63
60–70 70–80	16 18	1,075,703	219, 984 319, 109	2	(2)	(2)
80-90- 90-100- 100-150-	4	1, 075, 703 1, 347, 039 347, 436 567, 648 2, 351, 091	319, 109 89, 792	1		
90-100	6	567, 648	165, 136 801, 197	1	(2)	(2)
150-200	4	698, 588	271, 496			
200-250	8 2	698, 588 1, 707, 995	703, 876			
250-300 300-400	2	502, 672 732, 563	230, 470 345, 609			
300-400						
500-750						
1,000-1,500						
500-750. 750-1,000. 1,000-1,500. 1,500-2,000. 3,000-3,000. 3,000-4,000. 4,000-5,000.		<i>-</i>				
2,000-3,000 3 000-4,000						
4,000-5,000						
5,000 and over					227, 238	48, 29
Total		366, 713, 839	11, 312, 971	11, 458	32, 016, 329	468, 65
Summary for preceding						
years: 3						
1933 1932	105, 950 102, 966	299, 577, 627 279, 533, 040	7, 160, 953 5, 743, 888	10, 807 10, 624	26, 933, 168	349, 51 366, 27 196, 09 447, 95 881, 60
1931	89, 158	333, 673, 467	4 634 359	9, 785	26, 933, 168 27, 028, 193 31, 863, 657 45, 369, 199 59, 451, 690	196, 09
1930 1929	89, 158 105, 058 113, 555 112, 273	333, 673, 467 448, 849, 717 592, 518, 704 580, 239, 493	8, 633, 146 12, 866, 950	9, 785 11, 777 13, 163	45, 369, 199	447, 9
1929 1928	113, 555	592, 518, 704	12, 866, 950	13, 163 13, 262	59, 451, 690 58, 809, 296	881, 60 1, 095, 83
1927	114,534	560, 322, 568	12, 909, 842	13, 029	53, 628, 897	851.03
1926	111, 438	560, 322, 568 547, 562, 501	12, 681, 519	13. 568	53, 832, 169 61, 634, 951	628, 77 660, 49
1925 1924	109, 448 192, 735	496, 820, 449 638, 109, 285	9, 766, 688 10, 235, 806	16, 101 28, 685	82, 088, 477	599, 19
1041	102, 100	300, 100, 200	20, 200, 000	20,000	02,000,111)

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Vermont			Virginia	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax	Number of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	193	\$101, 507	************	3, 473	\$2, 217, 639	
Under 1 (est.)	2,090	17, 709 2, 463, 535	\$363	6,050	59, 341	\$1,346
1-1.5 (est.)	1, 224	1, 558, 957	6,918	5, 232	6, 703, 612	32, 379
1.5-2 (est.) 1	735	1, 558, 957 1, 275, 293		4,083	59, 341 7, 347, 800 6, 703, 612 7, 093, 358	
1.5-2 (est.)	632 484	1, 075, 683 1, 077, 897	11,628	2,841	4,879,378	53, 865
2-2.5 (est.) 1		l 566. 136	8, 261	4, 428 1, 073	10, 092, 471 2, 373, 886	36, 985
2-2.5 (est.) 2.5-3 (est.) 1	1,408	3, 808, 987		6, 166	16, 762, 042	
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 1	268	747, 505	6, 268	1 1 208	3, 384, 158	27, 709
3-3.5 (est.) 1	560 301	1, 787, 476 980, 643	6, 946	2, 468 1, 798	7, £01, 519 5, 810, 722	35, 604
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.) 1	191	705, 945		935	3, 459, 262	00,001
3.5-4 (est.)	234	878, 048	7, 201	1,484	3, 459, 262 5, 542, 784	46, 600
4-4.5 (est.) 1	49 211	202, 680	9, 672	317 906	1, 322, 882	33, 116
4-4.5 (est.) 4.5-5 (est.) 1 4.5-5 (est.)	211	897, 195 116, 598	9,072	149	3, 841, 451 697, 728	33,110
4.5-5 (est.)	135	641, 551	7, 295	788	3, 742, 903	39, 754
5-6 ¹	1 20	641, 551 105, 345 1, 166, 797 941, 527	75.000	112	610,659	
6-7	215 146	1, 166, 797	15, 838 16, 301	1, 108 755	6, 033, 439 4, 893, 251	83, 833 77, 802
7-8	97	725, 142	14, 593	493	3, 672, 515	70 955
8-9	79	669, 608	17, 620	327	2, 764, 929	68, 453
9-10	57	539, 706	15, 956	291	2, 766, 789	82, 171
11–12	31 20	325, 867 228, 482	11,439 8,019	192 141	2, 001, 539	67, 621 59, 112
12-13	14	173, 422	7,759	100	1, 614, 210 1, 244, 516 1, 384, 429	47, 458
13-14	16	213, 900	10, 313	103	1, 384, 429	60, 937
14-15	44	57, 405 758, 644	2, 522 44, 206	58 251	839, 579 4, 313, 973	39, 780 239, 661
20-25	21	476, 901	34, 521	121	2, 680, 896	194, 985
25-30	10	276, 141	27, 849	75	2, 036, 708	185, 090
30-40	12	412, 766	47, 558	69	2, 367, 106	269, 959
40-50	4 3	180, 565 165, 605	25, 477 27, 320	38 25	1, 685, 989 1, 372, 968	275, 717 231, 026
60-70	4	244, 529	43, 823	12	1, 372, 968 749, 602	143, 147
70-80				10	743, 957	164, 609
80-90-100				6	508, 927 290, 339	123, 135 80, 852
100-150				3 3 8	363, 015	115, 321
150-200				8	363, 015 1, 340, 946	507, 840
200-250 250-300				2	419, 093	168, 988
300-400						
403-500						
500-750						
750-1,000 1,000-1,500						
1,500-2,000						
2,000-3,000 3,000-4,000						
4.000-5.000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2						
Classes grouped 2						
Total	9, 824	26, 565, 697	435, 666	47, 814	139, 932, 355	3, 665, 810
Summary for preceding						
years: 3						
1933	9, 375	23, 937, 326	339, 220	42, 920	117, 634, 811	2, 399, 380
1932	10, 439 7, 803	27, 542, 982 29, 853, 410 39, 259, 341	339, 220 406, 645 264, 753 626, 874	43, 136 34, 689	117, 634, 811 122, 228, 476 129, 365, 027 156, 272, 484 179, 293, 926	2, 220, 452 1, 323, 722
1930	8, 635	39, 259, 341	626, 874	37, 915	156, 272, 484	2,050,554
1929	9,586	49, 916, 326	1,019,863	38, 631	179, 293, 926	3, 201, 104
1928	9, 394 8, 268	48, 086, 175 41, 842, 221	1, 055, 740 846, 932	37, 619 37, 393	181, 750, 013 172, 239, 863	4, 408, 983 3, 611, 135
1926	8, 646	42, 209, 083	840, 932 821, 296 919, 959	37, 393 37, 797	176, 024, 673	3, 495, 042
			070,000	07 507	170,000,000	0, 200, 410
1925 1924	9, 559 20, 618	45, 857, 160 63, 630, 620	919, 959 978, 252	37, 507 71, 597	170, 257, 017 231, 055, 514	2, 981, 412 3, 313, 896

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Washington	•	West Virginia			
(Thousands of dollars)	Number			Number			
(1 nousands of donars)	of returns	Net income	Total tax	of returns	Net income	Total tax	
Under 1 (est.)¹ Under i (est.)	3, 517	\$2,049,529		1, 974	\$1, 358, 109	\$617	
Under i (est.)	32 10, 389	19, 116 12, 272, 489	\$442	.48 4,826	29, 106 5, 796, 240	\$617	
-1.5 (est.)	7,677	9, 832, 645	45, 606	2, 222 2, 454	2, 916, 749	15, 882	
-1.5 (est.) ¹ -1.5 (est.) .5-2 (est.) ¹	4,600	7, 927, 510		2, 454	4, 230, 406		
	5, 018 3, 215	8, 609, 677 7, 254, 088	94, 578	2, 293 2, 261	3, 945, 397 5, 132, 135	46, 920	
-2.5 (est.)	2, 177	4, 846, 358	69, 253	866	1, 935, 410	29, 722	
-2.5 (est.) ¹ -2.5 (est.) ¹ -2.5 (est.) ¹ -5-3 (est.) ¹	6,070	16, 558, 974 5, 467, 461 8, 321, 738		3, 427	1, 935, 410 9, 316, 596 2, 120, 740 6, 110, 353		
.5-3 (est.) -3.5 (est.)	1, 957 2, 603	5. 467, 461 8. 321, 738	50, 442	758 1, 904	2, 120, 740 6 110 353	21, 260	
-3.5 (est.)	2,654	8, 629, 158	69, 427	1,090	3, 513, 870	24, 948	
-3.5 (est.) .5-4 (est.) ¹	687	2 527 001	. 	599	9 918 183		
.5-4 (est.)	2, 245 219	8, 407, 298	84, 740	1, 081 269	4, 070, 184	34, 030	
-4.5 (est.)	1, 562	914, 027 6, 601, 548 431, 990	81, 140	864	1, 135, 721 3, 658, 982 480, 113	35, 31	
.5-5 (est.)1	93	431, 990		101	480, 113		
5-4 (est.) -4.5 (est.) -4.5 (est.) .5-5 (est.) .5-5 (est.)	1, 088 67	5, 132, 996 363, 670	74, 034	537 82	2, 564, 746 447, 782	28, 24	
-6 t	1, 641	9 040 188	161, 272	680	3 722 624	51, 15	
-7	926	5, 951, 609	139, 937 94, 149	512	3, 302, 039 2, 313, 231	49, 41	
-8	439	5, 951, 609 3, 262, 684 2, 533, 067	94, 149	309	2, 313, 231	40, 88	
-9. -10.	299 177	2, 533, 067 1, 677, 316	88, 277 68, 041	215 157	1, 824, 877 1, 484, 531	44, 52 42, 76	
0-11.	128	1, 338, 371	59,003	121	1, 267, 831	40, 21	
1-12	92	1 051 120	48, 445	97	1, 117, 022	40,40	
2-13	78	972, 286	50, 250	86	1, 072, 040	46, 12	
3–14 4–15	60 72	809, 392 1, 046, 250	42, 679 59, 308	55 47	738, 601 680, 413	31, 07 32, 77	
5-20	167	1, 046, 250 2, 882, 127	180, 481	158	2, 710, 064 1, 687, 644	150, 879	
0-25	65	1, 446, 519	117, 674	76	1, 687, 644	122, 67	
5–30 0–40	46 45	1, 259, 904	123, 138 180, 501	46 42	1, 262, 522 1, 418, 088	114, 08 160, 33	
0-50	21	1, 510, 071 929, 997 530, 015	135, 233 89, 875	19	853, 431	123, 80 63, 68	
0-50	10	530, 015	89, 875	7	853, 431 379, 736 324, 688	63, 68	
0-70 0-80	5	323, 614 (²)	62, 201	5 2	324, 088 144, 980	64, 15 30, 14	
0-90	4	335, 363	80, 848	2 3 2 2	250 238	59,95	
0-100	1 4	(2) (2)	(2) (2)	2	190, 891	50, 83 78, 11	
00-150 50-200	4	(*)		2	235, 940	78, 11	
00-150 :50-200 :00-250 :00-400 :00-750 :00-750 :00-750 :00-700 :00-700 :00-00-00 :00-00-00 :00-00-00 :00-00-00 :00-00-00							
250-300	ļ						
.00-400							
00-750							
50-1,000							
.500-2.000							
,000-3.000							
,000-4.000							
6,000 and over							
1,000-5.000 1,000-5.000 1,000 and over Classes grouped ²		662, 911	200, 764				
Total	60, 151	153, 639, 087	2, 551, 738	30, 297	87, 992, 253	1, 674, 94	
Summary for preceding			ŀ				
years: 3	E4 500	121 620 570	1 646 860	05 007	CO 405 751	1 107 74	
1933 1932	54, 539 56, 434 51, 781	131, 639, 579 133, 697, 243	1, 646, 568 1, 557, 558 1, 238, 044	25, 837 26, 872	73, 659, 579	1, 107, 74 928, 48 515, 60	
1931	51, 781	174, 858, 452	1, 238, 044	22, 118	69, 425, 751 73, 659, 579 80, 333, 944 110, 726, 146	515, 60	
1930	63, 129	238, 857, 983	2, 750, 143	27, 130	110, 726, 146	1, 238, 71	
1929 1928	65, 240 66, 167	302, 258, 404 273, 648, 593	5, 775, 343 4, 464, 930	29, 803 30, 643	140, 768, 017	2, 298, 87 2, 920, 82	
1927	62, 200	252, 547, 211	2, 913, 642	32, 500	139, 696, 175	2, 519, 73	
1927 1926	62, 200 61, 950	252, 547, 211 245, 592, 050	2, 913, 642 2, 800, 548	32, 500 32, 544 35, 810	139, 696, 175 141, 396, 917 144, 777, 469 226, 999, 720	2, 304, 31	
1925 1924	78,030	272, 544, 925 393, 961, 927	2, 717, 102 3, 231, 233	35, 810 75, 037	144, 777, 469	2, 298, 67 2, 920, 82 2, 519, 73 2, 304, 31 2, 133, 51 2, 796, 31	
1921	138, 181	030, 901, 927	3, 201, 233	10,037	220, 999, 720	2, 190, 31	

Table 9.—Individual returns for 1934, by States and Territories and by net income classes, showing number of returns, net income and total tax; also totals for preceding years—Continued

Net income classes		Wisconsin			Wyoming	
(Thousands of dollars)	Number			Number		I
(4 nousands of donars)	of returns	Net income	Total tax	of returns	Net income	Total tax
Under 1 (est.) 1	16, 669 547	\$10, 327, 751	#G F01	516	\$333, 615	4000
Under 1 (est.)	16 201	292, 209 19, 140, 349	\$6, 591	1, 037	6, 868 1, 244, 534	\$220
1-1.5 (est.) 1.5-2 (est.)	10, 866 8, 764	13, 707, 877	60, 911	867	1, 114, 079	5, 568
1.5-2 (est.)	4,570	13, 707, 877 15, 156, 694 7, 773, 557 16, 561, 707	83, 737	605 501	1, 041, 666 857, 807	9, 724
1.5–2 (est.) 2–2.5 (est.) 1 2–2.5 (est.)	7, 425 1, 308	16, 561, 707 2, 901, 774	43, 589	565 188	857, 807 1, 286, 871	6, 079
2.5-3 (est.) 1	6,767	18, 320, 552	l	847	421, 440 2, 308, 282	
2.5-3 (est.) 3-3.5 (est.) 1	1,780 2,510	4, 998, 675 7, 945, 414	44, 972	195 359	544, 441 1, 144, 405	5, 033
3-3.5 (est.) 3.5-4 (est.)	2,368	7, 696, 086 4, 227, 163 8, 331, 039 1, 761, 569	54, 651	282	017 996	5, 212
3.5-4 (est.): 1	1, 144 2, 225	4, 227, 163	63, 714	132	487, 236	5, 687
3.5-4 (est.) 4-4.5 (est.)	423	1, 761, 569		217 33	139, 265	
4 -4.5 (est.) 4 .5-5 (est.)	1,740 158	7,359,910	69, 808	158 12	487, 236 808, 326 139, 265 671, 226 57, 560	5, 107
4.5-5 (est.)	1, 259	E 051 015	71, 115	135	040, 007	6, 813
5-6 1	85 1, 622	5, 964, 916 461, 353 8, 889, 522 7, 362, 779 5, 541, 927 4, 261, 213 3, 361, 018	129, 636	14 176	76, 408 956, 216	13, 525
6-7	1, 138	7, 362, 779	131,652	90	578,973	9, 321
7~8 8_q	742 503	5, 541, 927 4 261 213	119,913	64 57	478, 254 483, 540	9, 973 12, 731
8-9 9-10	355	3, 361, 018	119, 913 114, 711 107, 326	36	342, 010	10,070
10-11 11-12	274 191	2, 602, 440	100, 925 90, 464	21 8	219, 364	7,499 3,850
12-13	154	2, 186, 043 1, 918, 921 1, 912, 356 1, 579, 721 5, 536, 734 3, 353, 680	88 195	10	92, 272 125, 330	5, 244
13-14 14-15	142 109	1,912,356	91, 252 79, 908	$\frac{6}{7}$	81, 976 101, 780	4, 511 5, 590
15-20	323	5, 536, 734	322, 392	18	311, 605 117, 662	18, 954
20-25 25-30	151 93	3, 353, 686 2, 553, 871	322, 392 259, 790 240, 866	5 4	117, 662 105, 835	9,630 10,296
30-40	- 88	9 049 116	328, 047	1	(2)	(2)
40-50 50-60	45 31	1,991,800	280, 378 281, 387	3	(2)	(2)
60-70	22	1, 413, 598	265, 949			
70-80 80-90	10	779, 702 335, 176	180, 899 82, 482			
90-100	6	1, 991, 800 1, 693, 807 1, 413, 598 779, 702 335, 176 555, 207	82, 482 142, 138			
100-150 150-200	7 4	(2)	: 295, 114 (2)			
200-250	1	(2)	(2)			
250-300 300-400	1	(2)	(2)			
300-400 400-500 500-750	1	(2)	(2)			
7501 000	1	• • •		1	(2)	(2)
1,000-1,500						
1,000–1,500 1,500–2,000 2,000–3,000 3,000–4,000						
3,000-4,000						
5,000 and over Classes grouped 2						
Classes grouped 2		1, 786, 169	777, 216		933, 881	412, 964
Total	92, 826	217, 350, 901	5, 009, 731	7, 182	19, 035, 620	583, 601
Summary for preceding years: 3	89, 739	104 154 155	9 100 997	0 000	10 005 000	450.040
1933 1932	91, 557	184, 154, 155 203, 833, 124 251, 988, 008	3, 106, 227 3, 222, 425	6, 603 6, 796	16, 095, 689 16, 189, 839	452, 240 143, 717
1931	84, 681 95, 366		2 438 474	5, 891	18, 176, 553 22, 979, 517	65, 346
1930 1929	103 044	357, 657, 240 450, 934, 107	5, 892, 638 10, 287, 020 12, 459, 318	6, 809 8, 140	30, 813, 018	141, 440 188, 964
1929 1928	98, 485 100, 956 99, 251 110, 485	450, 934, 107 453, 394, 323 436, 579, 613 407, 642, 742 418, 618, 008	12, 459, 318	8,622	30, 813, 018 33, 233, 249 31, 297, 698 31, 750, 581	379 198
1927 1926	99, 251	450, 579, 613 407, 642, 742	10, 621, 745 8, 418, 047 6, 799, 312	8, 870 8, 930	31, 750, 581	274, 644 263, 319
1925	110, 485	418, 618, 008	6, 799, 312	10, 336	33, 481, 518 60, 751, 853	274, 644 263, 319 256, 481 414, 087
1924	179, 275	496, 659, 728	7, 344, 053	22, 947	60, 751, 853	414, 087

¹ Nontaxable returns. Specific exemptions from normal tax and surtax exceed net income. A negligible number of nontaxable returns in net income classes of \$6,000 and over is not tabulated separately.

² Classes grouped to conceal identity of taxpayer.

³ Changes in the Revenue Acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of individuals are summarized on pp. 112-119.

⁴ Includes Alaska.

Table 10.—Individual returns for 1934 on form 1040 with no net income, by States and Territories, showing number of returns and deficit

States and Territories	Number of returns	Deficit (in thou- sands)	States and Territories	Number of returns	Deficit (in thou- sands)
AlabamaArizona	606 529	\$1,882 1,113	NebraskaNevada	938 131	\$2, 284 335
Arkansas	437	1,317	New Hampshire	388	955
California	10,874	36, 059	New Jersey	3,857	13,030
Colorado	906	2, 296	New Mexico	420	1,561
Connecticut Delaware	1, 904 243	5,886 562	New York North Carolina	20, 843 715	107, 623 3, 053
District of Columbia	582	3, 218	North Dakota	396	735
Florida	1,389	5, 760	Ohio	4, 192	19, 727
Georgia	814	3, 217	Oklahoma	1,511	5, 108
Hawaii	332	525	Oregon	764	4, 388
Idaho	192	659	Pennsylvania	7, 129	31, 373
Illinois'	7,612	35, 382	Rhode Island	593	1,860
Indiana	1,703	5, 290	South Carolina	439	1,401
Iowa Kansas	1, 687 1, 435	4, 241 3, 431	South Dakota Tennessee	387 772	870 3, 013
Kentucky	754	2,066	Texas	4, 514	20, 601
Louisiana	1, 125	3,714	Utah	349	758
Maine	546	1,856	Vermont	143	428
Maryland	1,340	6, 260	Virginia	946	2, 475
Massachusetts	5, 488	15, 413	Washington 1	1,830	5,068
Michigan	3,988	20, 605	West Virginia		2,474
Minnesota	1,308	4, 524	Wisconsin	3,032	6, 723
Mississippi	734	1,793	Wyoming	337	1, 177
Missouri Montana	2, 046 236	7,968 802	Total	104, 170	412, 859

¹ Includes Alaska.

Table 11.—Individual returns for 1934 on form 1040 with no net income, by deficit classes, showing sources of income and deductions, and deficit

[Money figures and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining items and describing methods of tabulating and estimating data, see pp. 1-5]

	Sources of income									
Deficit classes	Sala- ries, wages, com- mis- sions, fees, etc.	Busi- ness profit	Part- ner- ship profit !	Net capital, gain ?	Rents and royal- ties	Dividends on stock of do- mestic corpo- rations	Fidu- ciary ¹	Interest on Gov- ern- ment obliga- tions not wholly exempt from tax 3	Other taxable interest	Other income
Under 5	42, 955 11, 117 12, 325 6, 595 3, 871 1, 456 1, 400 479 214 2	21, 413 4, 154 2, 699 1, 277 900 168 74 122	6, 740 1, 790 2, 033 877 461 109 93 3 31	5, 106 2, 705 2, 827 1, 893 2, 309 833 1, 345 291 424 12	40, 442 7, 050 6, 234 2, 881 1, 015 376 335 882 11 1	26, 926 9, 115 11, 835 7, 120 8, 288 2, 354 3, 661 955 4, 754 70	3, 909 1, 338 1, 487 598 489 133 201 40 353 4	1, 133 380 370 160 97 60 15 5 2 3	24, 781 6, 426 6, 086 3, 593 2, 121 853 777 344 221 31	5, 227 1, 749 2, 227 1, 317 1, 362 215 304 99 122 13

Table 11.—Individual returns for 1934 on form 1040 with no net income, by deficit classes, showing sources of income and deductions, and deficit—Contd.

[Money figures and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

Deficit classes	Sources of in- come— Contd.	Deductions										
	Total income	Busi- ness loss	Part- nership loss ¹	Net capital loss ²	Interest paid 4	Taxes paid 4	Con- tribu- tions	All other deduc- tions	Total deduc- tions			
Under 5 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-150 150-300 300-500 500-1,000 1,000 and over	26, 310 20, 914	67, 676 23, 343 20, 039 9, 221 4, 902 1, 730 2, 320 22 1, 268	11, 754 6, 368 9, 451 6, 037 3, 273 1, 361 3, 072 565 1, 053	21, 746 2, 317 1, 795 563 438 296 82 23 10	43, 198 11, 875 13, 274 7, 272 6, 353 1, 879 3, 792 600 234 63	34, 409 7, 656 7, 937 4, 246 3, 258 1, 455 1, 672 1, 895 1, 605	5, 143 623 707 230 163 57 38 33 (5)	107, 018 47, 240 65, 171 48, 052 42, 776 20, 569 26, 726 11, 479 13, 368 14, 101	290, 944 99, 422 118, 372 75, 621 61, 162 27, 347 37, 701 14, 618 17, 538 14, 190	112, 312 53, 598 70, 249 49, 310 40, 248 20, 790 29, 495 11, 401 11, 433 14, 022		
Total	344, 055	130, 522	42, 943	27, 274	88, 538	64, 143	6, 994	396, 499	756, 914	412, 859		

¹ For explanation of item, see p. 8.
² For explanation of changes in 1934 Act affecting net capital gain and net capital loss, see text, pp. 8-9, and synopsis of laws, pp. 118-119.
³ Interest received on 4 and 4½ percent Liberty bonds and Treasury bonds, owned in excess of \$5,000, and on obligations of certain instrumentalities of the United States, is subject to surtax if the surtax net income is over \$1,000. (See items 9 and 25, form 1040, p. 126.)
⁴ Excludes amounts reported in schedule A as business deductions.
⁵ Less than \$500.

REVENUE ACTS OF 1913 TO 1934

AND CERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS OF THE NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY ACT

A SYNOPSIS OF

INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND PROFITS TAX RATES

ESTATE AND GIFT TAX RATES

CREDITS AND EXEMPTIONS
AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF DATA
IN "STATISTICS OF INCOME"

109

REVENUE ACTS OF 1913 TO 1934, AND CERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS OF THE NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY ACT.—A SYNOPSIS OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME AND PROFITS TAX RATES, ESTATE AND GIFT TAX RATES, CREDITS AND EXEMPTIONS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF DATA IN "STATISTICS OF INCOME"

INDIVIDUALS

A. Individuals required to file returns, personal exemption, credit for dependents, and normal tax rates, under the Revenue Acts of 1913 to 1934, inclusive, and certain tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act.

B. Individual surtax rates under the Revenue Acts of 1913 to 1934,

inclusive.

C. Individual supplemental income and profits tax rates and tax credits, under the Revenue Acts of 1917 to 1934, inclusive.

ESTATES

D. Estate tax rates, specific exemption, and credits against estate tax, under the Revenue Acts of 1916 to 1934, inclusive.

GIFTS

E. Gift tax rates and specific exemption under the Revenue Acts of 1924 and 1932.

111

A.—Individuals required to file returns, personal exemption, credit for dependents, tax provisions of the National

	Applicable to c	itizens and r	esidents of th	e United St	ates			
		Individuals required to file returns 2						
Revenue Act		Married and husband	d living with or wife [‡]	Single, or married an not living with hus band or wife				
	Income year	Net in- come 5	Gross in- come re- gardless of amount of net in- come	Net income 5	Gross income regardless of amount of net income			
1913 (Oct. 3, 1913)	Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1915.	\$3,000		\$3,000				
1916 (Sept. 8, 1916)	1916	3,000		3,000				
1916 as amended 1917 (Oct. 3, 1917)	}1917	2,000		1,000				
1917 (Oct. 3, 1917)	, (1918	2,000		1,000				
1918 (Feb. 24, 1919)	1919, 1920	2, 000		1,000				
1921 (Nov. 23, 1921)	1921 1922 1923 10	2, 600	\$5,000	1,000	\$5,000			
1924 (June 2, 1924)	1924	2, 500	5, 000	1, 000	5, 000			
1926 (Feb. 26, 1926)	1925	3, 500	5, 000	1, 500	5, 000			
	(1928)						
1928 (May 29, 1928)	1929	3, 500	5, 000	1, 500	5, 000			
	1930							
1932 (June 6, 1932)	1932, 1933	2, 500	5,000	1,000	5,000			
N. I. R. A. (June 16, 1933) ¹⁵ 1934 (May 10, 1934)	1933 1934	2, 500	5, 000	1,000	5, 000			

For footnotes see pp. 114-115.

and normal tax rates, under the Revenue Acts of 1913 to 1934, inclusive, and certain Industrial Recovery Act

Applicab	le to citizens ar	ad resider	nts of the United States-	-Contd.	Applica	ble to non	resident a	liens 1
Personal	exemption and	d credit			Personal	exemption		
fo Married and living	for dependents 3 rried Single, or living married h hus-and not living for each dependent s or wife, and do f not head of ent s		Net income subject to normal tax ⁶	Normal tax rate (per- cent)	Married and living with hus- band or wife, or head of family ⁷	Single, or married and not living with hus- band or wife, and not head of family ?	Credit for each depend- ent ⁸	Nor- mal tax rate 6 (per- cent)
\$4,000	\$3,000	None	All	1	None	None	None	1
4,000	3,000	None	All	2	\$4,000	\$3,000	None	2
2,000	1,000	\$200	First \$2,000	2 4	} None	None	None	2
2, 000	1,000	200	First \$4,000	$\begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 12 \end{array}$	(9)	(9)	(9)	12
2,000	1,600	200	First \$4,000 Balance over \$4,000	4 8	(9)	(9)	(⁹)	8
11 2, 500	1,000	400	First \$4,000 Balance over \$4,000	4 8	1,000	1,000	12 None	13 8
2, 500	1,000	400	First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000	2 4 6	1,000	1,090	(12)	13 6
3, 500	1, 500	400	First \$4,000 Second \$4,000	1½ 3	1, 500	1, 500	(12)	13 5
			Balance over \$8,000 First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000	5 1½ 3 5 14 ½	1, 500	1,500	(12)	13 5
			First \$4,000 Second \$4,000	14 1/2 14 2	1, 500	1, 500	(12)	13 14 4
3, 500	1, 500	400	Balance over \$8,000 First \$4,000	1½ 3 5	1, 500	1, 500	(12)	13 5
			First \$4,000 Second \$4,000 Balance over \$8,000 .	1½ 3	1,500	1, 500	(12)	13 5
2, 500	1, 000	400		5 4 8	1,000	1,000	(12)	13 8
2, 500	1,000	400	All	4	1,000	1,000	(12)	13 4

[Footnotes for table A]

¹ Required to file income tax returns for all income derived from sources within the United States, regardless of amount, unless total tax has been paid at source.

² (a) Under the Revenue Acts of 1913, 1916, and 1917, individuals were required to file returns on a calendar year basis, while under the Revenue Act of 1918 and subsequent acts, returns are permitted for a fiscal year other than that ending Dec. 31.

(b) For the years 1913, 1914, and 1915, citizens or residents of the United States whose net income was less than \$20,000 and for whom a full return was made by withholding agents, were not required to file returns. returns

(c) For 1921 and subsequent years citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States are required to file returns for all income derived from sources within the United States or income from sources within or without the United States received within the United States, regardless of amount. (See sec. 262 of the Revenue Acts of 1921, 1924, and 1926, and sec. 251 of the Revenue Acts of 1925, 1932, and 1934.)

(d) For 1925 and subsequent years American citizens who are nonresidents of the United States for more

of the Revenue Acts of 1928, 1932, and 1934.)

(d) For 1925 and subsequent years American citizens who are nonresidents of the United States for more than 6 months of the year are not required to report earned income from sources without the United States, and are not required to file returns unless their gross income, exclusive of such exempt earned income equals or exceeds \$85,000; or unless their net income, exclusive of such exempt earned income equals or exceeds the amount indicated in this table under "Individuals required to file returns." (See also (c) above.) For 1932 and subsequent years the exclusion from gross income of earned income from sources without the United States does not apply to amounts paid by the United States or any agency thereof. (See sec. 116 (a), Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934.) The compensation of resident alien employees of foreign governments is excluded from gross income under certain conditions. (See subsec. (h) which was added to sec. 116, Revenue Act of 1934 by Public, No. 374, 74th Cong., and which is retroactive.)

3 Not applicable to citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, for 1921 and subsequent years. Such citizens are entitled to the personal exemption shown in this table for nonresident aliens, for 1921 and subsequent years.

4 Husband and wife each to file a return unless combined income is included in joint return.

4 Not income means "statutory" net income, i. e., the excess of gross income over deductions as defined in the various revenue acts. Net income has been adjusted from time to time as follows:

(a) Amortization of buildings, machinery, equipment, or other facilities constructed or acquired on or after Apr. 6, 1917, for the production of articles contributing to the prosecution of the war is included to a reasonal to amount in business deductions for 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921.

(b) Contributions to charitable and scientific organizations, etc., not exceeding 15 percent of the net income

of 1928, 1932, and 1934.)

(c) Losses sustained in transactions entered into for profit but not connected with business or trade are the aggregate income from such transactions; for 1916 and 1917 such losses are deductible to the extent of the aggregate income from such transactions; for 1918 to 1931, inclusive, such losses are wholly deductible, excepting that for the years 1924 to 1933 inclusive, the loss, if incurred through the sale of capital assets held for more than 2 years, is deductible from total tax, to the extent of 12½ percent of the loss. (See table C, p. 119.) For the years 1932 and 1933 losses from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets for more than 2 years, is deductible from total tax, to the extent of 12½ percent of the loss. (See table C, p. 119). For the years 1932 and 1933 losses from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets held for more than 2 years, and other than bonds issued by a government or political subdivision thereof) are allowed only to the extent of the gains from such sales or exchanges. The Revenue Act of 1932 provides that any excess loss thus disallowed, computed without regard to any losses sustained during the preceding taxable year, is, to an amount not in excess of the taxpayer's net income for the taxable year, considered as loss sustained in the succeeding taxable year from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds other than capital assets. (See sec. 23 (r) (2), Revenue Act of 1932.) However, section 218 (b) of the National Industrial Recovery Act repeals, effective as of Jan. 1, 1933, section 23 (r) (2) of the Revenue Act of 1932, thereby limiting the application of losses from the sale or exchange of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets) to gains from similar transactions during the same taxable year and prohibiting the carrying forward and application of such losses to gains from similar transactions in the succeeding taxable year. Under the Revenue Act of 1932, the limitation on the deduction of losses from sale or exchange of stocks or bonds does not apply to persons dealing in securities or carrying on the banking business. (See sec. 23 (r) (3), Revenue Act of 1932.) However, section 218 (c) of the National Industrial Recovery Act amends, effective as of Jan. 1, 1933, Sec. 23 (r) (3) of the Revenue Act of 1932, by removing the exemption from the stock-loss limitation allowed to persons carrying on the banking business, thereby limiting the application of losses from the sale or exchange of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets) to gains from similar transactions and prohibiting the use of such losses to reduce income from other sources. Section 218 (d) of the National Industri assets). Such a provision has been omitted from the Revenue Act of 1934. By the Revenue Act of 1934 the definition of capital assets is broadened to include all property held by taxpayer, whether or not connected with trade or business, regardless of period held, except stock in trade, property which would be included in inventory, or property held for sale in ordinary course of business or trade. For 1934 and subsequent years capital losses are computed on the basis of certain percentages which vary according to the period for which assets have been held, and deduction of capital losses (after the percentages are applied) is limited to \$2,000 plus gains from such asles (such deduction not exceed the final net loss from such sales after the percentages are applied). (For method of computing capital gains and losses, see table C, p. 119.) The Revenue Act of 1934 allows losses from wagering transactions only to the extent of the gains from such transactions, and denies deductions for losses from sales or exchanges of property, directly or indirectly, between members of a family and (except in ease of distributions in liquidation) between an individual and a corporation in which such individual owns, directly or indirectly, more than 50 percent in value of the outstanding stock. (See sec. 24 (a) (6), Revenue Act of 1934.)

(d) Net loss for prior year resulting from the operation of any trade or business regularly carried on by the taxpayer: In the case of a net loss for any taxable year beginning after Oct. 31, 1918, and ending prior to Jan. 1, 1920, the Revenue Act of 1918 provides for the deduction of such loss from net income of the preceding year, the amount of such excess is to be deducted from the net loss exceeds the net income for the succeeding year, be amount of such excess is to be allowed in the next succeeding year. The Revenue Act of 1932 provides that a net loss for the year 1930 or 1931 shall be allowed as a deduction in computing net income for the next succeeding taxable year only. (See sec. 23 (

such net loss exceeds the he income for the succeeding year, the amount of such excess is to be anowed in the next succeeding year. The Revenue Act of 1932 provides that a net loss for the year 1930 or 1931 shall be allowed as a deduction in computing net income for the next succeeding taxable year only. (See sec. 23 (i) and sec. 117, Revenue Act of 1932.) However, section 218 (a) of the National Industrial Recovery Act repeals, effective as of Jan. 1, 1933, sections 23 (i) and 117 of the Revenue Act of 1932, thereby removing the privilege of deducting from the net income for the current taxable year a net loss for the preceding taxable year. There is no provision in the Pevenue Act of 1934 for deduction of net loss for prior year.

able year. There is no provision in the Pevenue Act of 1934 for deduction of net ⁶ Net income subject to normal tax is all net income after deducting the sum of:

(a) Personal exemption.(b) Credit for dependents, 1917 and subsequent years.

(c) Dividends on stock of domestic corporations (other than those deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, 1921 and subsequent years, and other than China Trade Act corporations, 1922 and subsequent years, and other than corporations exempt from tax

China Trade Act corporations, 1922 and subsequent years, and other than corporations exempt from tax for 1932 and subsequent years).

(d) Dividends on stock of foreign corporations receiving a certain amount of income from sources within the United States, for the years 1913 to 1933, inclusive.

(e) Income, the tax upon which has been paid or withheld for payment at the source of income for the years 1913 to 1917, inclusive.

(f) Interest not wholly tax exempt on United States obligations issued after Sept. 1, 1917, which is required to be included in gross income, and for 1934, interest on obligations of instrumentalities of the United States, as defined in section 25 (a) (3), Revenue Act of 1934.

(g) Credit of 10 percent of the amount of the earned net income, but not in excess of 10 percent of the entire net income, for the year 1934. (See table C, p. 119.)

7 No provision for head of family in Revenue Act of 1913. Exemption prorated for period Mar. 1 to Dec. 31, 1913.

8 For each dependent under 18 years of age or incapable of self-support because mentally or physically defective.

defective. ⁹ Nonresident aliens are allowed the personal exemption (\$1,000 if single, \$2,000 if married) and the credit for each dependent (\$200) only when the country of which nonresident alien is a citizen either imposes no income tax or allows similar credit to citizens of the United States not residing within such foreign

country.

country.

10 Tax for 1923 reduced 25 percent by credit or refund under section 1200 (a) of the Revenue Act of 1924.

11 For net incomes in excess of \$5,000, personal exemption is \$2,000.

12 For 1922 and subsequent years, if nonresident alien is resident of contiguous country (Canada or Mexico), \$400 credit allowed for each dependent.

13 For 1922 to 1933, inclusive, alien residents of contiguous countries (Canada or Mexico) on net income attributable to compensation for labor or personal services actually performed in the United States receive benefit of normal tax rate provided for United States citizens. For 1934 the rate of normal tax is the same for all individuals, both resident and nonresident.

14 See John Resolution of Congress. No. 133, approved by the President Dec. 16, 1929, reducing rates.

14 See Joint Resolution of Congress, No. 133, approved by the President Dec. 16, 1929, reducing rates of income tax for 1929.

15 See note 5 (c) and (d).

B.—Individual surtax rates under the

Net income 1					Reve	nue Act				
		19	13	19	016	19)17	1	918	
Exceed- ing	Equal- ing	On incomes for Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1915, in- clusive		On inc	omes for 016	On inco	omes for 017	On incomes for 1918, 1919, 1920, and Act of 1921 on incomes for 1921		
Thousand	is of dollars	Rate (percent)	Total surtax	Rate (percent)	Total surtax	Rate (percent)	Total surtax	Rate (percent)	Total surtax	
4 5 6 7.5 10 12.5 13.3 14 15 16 18 20 22 24 26 28 30 32 44 46 48 40 50 52 54 56 60 62 64 66 68 70 72 74 76 76 88 89 99 99 98 99 90 100 100 100 100 100 100	5 6 7.5 8 8 10 12 12.5 13 14 15 16 18 20 24 44 26 48 30 32 34 36 38 40 24 44 46 48 50 62 64 46 66 68 70 72 74 75 76 78 80 82 84 86 88 90 94 94 100 150 200 200 300 4500 750 1,000 1,500 2,000 5,000 5,000 5,000	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$20 40 60 80 100 120 200 240 260 380 340 380 340 380 620 680 700 780 800 830 950 1,110 1,730 1,1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	\$20 40 60 80 100 120 140 160 240 240 240 440 440 480 520 780 840 900 1,020 1,050 1,080 1,140 1,280 1,380 1,280 1,080 1,2	1 1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 4 4 5 5 5 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	\$10 25 35 35 35 150 170 210 250 300 600 820 980 1, 140 1, 300 1, 460 1, 620 1, 780 2, 180 2, 180 3, 780 3, 780 4, 260 4, 260 4, 840 5, 5520 5, 860 6, 540 6, 880 7, 050 7, 250 7, 560 7, 550 7,	1 2 2 2 3 4 4 5 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 16 17 18 8 19 20 1 22 23 23 34 25 5 6 27 7 3 3 9 40 1 41 2 41 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	\$10 40 50 110 190 215 240 230 350 410 550 710 890 1, 390 1, 310 1, 550 1, 810 2, 390 2, 710 3, 050 3, 410 5, 050 6, 490 9, 910 10, 550 11, 210 11, 890 12, 980 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 11, 890 12, 950 13, 110 14, 050 14, 810 15, 590 16, 390 17, 510 18, 050 18, 910 19, 790 20, 690 22, 550 23, 510 249, 510 77, 510 107,	

¹ In arriving at the net income subject to surtax for 1934, the sum of the personal exemption and credit for dependents is allowed as a credit; prior to 1934 no such credit was allowed.

Revenue Acts of 1913 to 1934, inclusive

Net in	come 1					Reve	nue Act					
			1921		1924		1926		1932		1934	
Exceed- ing ing		On incomes for 1922, 1923 ²		On i	On incomes for 1924		On incomes for 1925, 1926, 1927, and Act of 1928 on incomes for 1928, 1929, 1930, and 1931		On incomes for 1932, 1933		On incomes for 1934	
	ands of lars	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (per- cent)	Total surtax	Rate (percent)	Total surtar	
7. 5 8 10 112. 5 13 115 116 118 202 24 28 302 34 38 442 44 48 552 44 44 48 552 44 44 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66 66	8 10 12 5 13 14 15 16 18 20 22 4 28 30 32 34 36 40 42 44 48 552 54 558 60 62 64 66 68 70 2	1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 8 8 9 100 111 112 12 13 15 15 16 14 17 18 18 19 20 12 22 22 24 26 27 28 29 9 30 31 32 23 33 33 33	20 40 80 95 110 140 180 220 320 440 600 780 1, 200 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300 2, 300 4, 100 4, 520 4, 960 5, 420 6, 400 6, 400 6, 920 7, 460 8, 600 8, 600 9, 820 10, 460 11, 460 11, 120	1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 10 10 11 12 13 13 13 14 15 15 16 17 18 19 19 19 20 21 1 22 2 22 22 22 24 25 5 6	\$20 \$25 30 40 80 140 220 320 320 740 920 1, 120 1, 780 2, 340 2, 580 2, 580 2, 580 2, 580 3, 540 3, 540 4, 660 5, 480 6, 340 6,	1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 9 10 11 11 12 12 13 13 13 14 14 14 15 16 16 16 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	\$20 25 30 40 80 140 220 320 440 580 720 1, 640 1, 220 1, 400 2, 240 2, 720 2, 720 2, 980 3, 240 3, 520 3, 240 4, 720 6, 640 6, 640	1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 8 8 9 10 11 12 21 13 15 15 16 17 7 18 22 22 22 24 22 25 26 27 28 29 30 0 31 32 2 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 3	20 40 40 40 40 40 40 110 110 110	5 6 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 9 9 11 13 15 7 17 19 19 21 12 24 24 22 7 27 27 27 27 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33	1:3444444444444444444444444444444444444	
72 74 75 76 78 80 82 84 86 88 90 92 94 96 98 100	74 75 76 78 80 82 84 86 88 90 92 94 96 98 100 150 200	34 35 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	11, 800 12, 150 13, 220 13, 960 14, 720 15, 500 16, 300 17, 120 17, 960 20, 600 21, 520 22, 460 46, 460 70, 960	26 27 27 28 28 29 30 31 31 32 33 34 35 36 36 36 37	8, 820 9, 090 9, 360 9, 920 10, 480 11, 060 12, 280 12, 900 13, 540 14, 200 14, 880 15, 580 17, 020 35, 520	18 18 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 20 20	6, 780 6, 960 7, 140 7, 500 7, 860 8, 240 8, 620 9, 000 9, 760 10, 140 10, 520 11, 660 21, 660 31, 660	34 35 35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48	11, 800 12, 150 12, 500 13, 220 13, 960 14, 720 16, 300 17, 120 17, 960 18, 820 19, 700 20, 600 21, 520 22, 460 46, 460 70, 960	39 42 42 42 45 45 45 50 50 50 50 52 53	15,9 16,4 16,8 17,6 18,5 19,4 20,3 21,2 22,1 23,0 25,0 26,0 27,0 28,0 54,0 80,5	
200 250 300 400 500 750 1,000 1,560 2,000 5,000	250 300 400 500 750 1,000 1,500 2,000 5,000	50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50 50	95, 960 120, 960 170, 960 220, 960 345, 960 470, 960 720, 960 970, 960 2, 470, 960	38 38 39 39 40 40 40 40 40 40	73, 020 73, 020 92, 020 131, 020 170, 020 270, 020 570, 020 570, 020 1, 970, 020	20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	41, 660 51, 660 71, 660 91, 660 141, 660 191, 660 291, 660 991, 660	50 50 51 52 53 54 55 55 55	95, 960 120, 960 171, 960 223, 960 356, 460 491, 460 766, 460 1, 041, 460 2, 691, 460	54 54 55 56 57 58 59 59 59	107, 5 134, 5 189, 5 245, 5 388, 0 533, 0 828, 0 1, 123, 0 2, 893, 0	

 $^{^{2}}$ Tax for 1923 reduced 25 percent by credit or refund under section 1200 (a), Revenue Act of 1924.

C.—Individual supplemental income and profits tax rates

		Excess-profits tax		Tax credit for income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States pos- sessions			
Rev- enue Act	Income year	Income subject to excess- profits tax	Rate (per- cent)	Rev- enue Act	Income year	Amount of credit	
1917	1917	Salaries in excess of \$6,000,¹ and income in excess of \$6,000¹ from business having no invested capital. Net income from business having invested capital: ²	8	1917	1917	Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions were not allowed as a tax credit but	
		Net income equal to 15 percent of invested cap- ital less deduction. ³	20			were included in general deductions from gross income.	
		Net income in excess of 15 percent of invested cap- ital but not in excess of 20 percent of invested capital.	25			except that taxes paid to foreign countries were not allowed to nonresident allens.	
		Net income in excess of 20 percent of invested cap- ital but not in excess of 25 percent of invested	35	1918 1921 1921	1918, 1919, 1920 1921 1922, 1923 6	Amount paid or accrued.4 Do.3 Do.	
		capital. Net income in excess of 25	45	1924 1926	1924 1925, 1926,	Do. Do.	
	İ	percent of invested cap- ital but not in excess of 33 percent of invested		1928	1927 1928, 1929, 1930, 1931	Do.	
		capital. Net income in excess of 33	60	1932	1932, 1933	Do.7	
		percent of invested capital.		1934	1934	Do.†	

1 In excess of \$3,000 for nonresident aliens.
2 Nonresident aliens having business with invested capital, reported only that proportion of invested capital which net income from sources within the United States was of the entire net income.
3 Deduction (not allowable to nonresident aliens), \$6,000 plus an amount equal to the same percentage of invested capital (not taxable year as the average annual pre-war income was of pre-war invested capital (not less than 7 percent nor more than 9 percent). If not established during at least one whole year of the pre-war period, 8 percent. If, during the pre-war period, the individual had a deficit or a very small income from business, or if invested capital cannot be determined, same percent as that of representative businesses. (See sec. 210, Revenue Act of 1917.)
4 Nonresident aliens were not allowed to deduct income taxes paid to foreign countries, either as a tax credit or in general deductions for the years 1918, 1919, and 1920.
5 Beginning with 1921, the credit cannot exceed the proportion of the total tax against which the credit is taken, that the taxpayer's net income from sources without the United States bears to the entire net income. This credit does not apply to nonresident aliens nor to citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income. This credit does not apply to nonresident aliens nor to citizens deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, but to such persons these taxes are allowable as a deduction from gross income, if imposed upon income from sources within the United States. For the years 1921 to 1931, inclusive, the amount of income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions, in excess of that deducted as a tax credit, is permitted to be included in deductions against gross income. (See note 7.)

6 Tax for 1923 reduced 25 percent by credit or refund under section 1200 (a) of the Revenue Act of 1924.

7 For 1932 and subsequent years, the taxpayer may elect

are taken into account in computing net income:

100 percent if capital asset was held for not over 1 year,
80 percent if capital asset was held for over 1 year, but not over 2 years.
60 percent if capital asset was held for over 2 years, but not over 5 years.
40 percent if capital asset was held for over 5 years, but not over 10 years.

30 percent if capital asset was held for over 10 years.

and tax credits, under the Revenue Acts of 1917 to 1934, inclusive

			Capital gains and losses	
Rev- enue Act	Income	Definition of capital assets	Tax on capital net gain	Tax credit on capital net loss
1921	1922, 1923 6	Assets held over 2 years.	Taxpayer may elect to be taxed at 12½ percent on capital net gain, provided that the total tax, including the tax on capital net gain, is not less than 12½ percent of the total net income (Loss in ordinary net income cannot be deducted from capital net gain.)	
1924	1924 1925, 1926,		Taypayer may elect to be taxed at 12½ percent on capital net gain, if the tax would be greater than 12½ percent by including capital net gain in ordinary net income. (Loss in ordinary net income may be deducted from capital net gain and the balance taxed at 12½ percent.) Same as 1924 Act.	Capital net loss may be reported apart from ordinary net income, and a tax credit of 12½ percent of the capital net loss taken, if tax thus produced is not less than the tax would be if the capital net loss were deducted from ordinary net income. Same as 1924 Act.
1928	1927 1928, 1929,)	do	Do.
1932	1930, 1931 1932, 1933		do	Do.
1934	1934	All property held by tax-payer, whether or not connected with trade or business, regardless of period held.	Taxable gains, and losses are computed on basis of certain percentages which vary according to period for which assets were held. Capital net gains, after the percentages are applied, are included in net income and are subject to normal tax and surtax. Deduction for capital losses, after the percentages are applied, is limited to \$2.000 plus gains from such sales (such deduction not to exceed the final net loss from such sales after the percentages are applied).	None. (See preceding column for deduction of capital losses from net income.)

Credit on earned net income

Rev- enue Act	Income year	Kind of credit	Earned net income subject to tax for computation of credit	Limit of credit
1924	1924	Against tax.	All net income up to \$5,000 whether earned or not, and up to \$10,000, if earned.	25 percent of normal tax on earned net income. (Cannot exceed 25 percent of normal tax on ordinary net income.)
1926	1925, 1926, 1927	do	All net income up to \$5,000, whether earned or not, and up to \$20,000, if earned.	25 percent of total tax on earned net income. (Cannot exceed the sum of 25 percent of normal tax on ordinary net income and 25 percent of surtax on earned net income.)
1928	1928, 1929, 1930, 1931	do	All net income up to \$5,000, whether earned or not, and up to \$30,000, if earned.	Do.
1932 1934	1932, 1933 1934	Against net in- come.	All net income up to \$3,000 whether earned or not, and up to \$14,000, if earned.	10 percent of the earned net income, but not in excess of 10 percent of the entire net income.

STATISTICS
C F
INCOME

Net	estate	Revenue Act													
		1916		as amended by Act of Mar. 3, 1917		1917		1918, 19 amende	1918, 1921, 1924 as amended by 1926		1926	1932 ²		1932 ² as amended by 1934	
Exceeding	Equaling	9, 1916	from Sept. b, to Mar. 2, nclusive	3, 1917	from Mar., to Oct. 3, neclusive	1917, to	from Oct. 4, 0 6:55 p. m., , 1919, inclu-	m., Fe to10:25	from 6:55 p. bb. 24, 1919, a. m., Feb. 3, inclusive		after 10:25 a. b. 26, 1926	June 6,	from 5 p. m., 1932 to May inclusive	11, 1934	from May , to Aug. 30, nelusive
Thousand 20 30 40 50 70 100 250 450 450 600 750 800 1,500 2,500 3,500 4,000 4,500 6,000 6,000 6,000 8,000 10,000	ds of dollars 10 20 30 40 50 70 100 150 200 250 400 750 800 1,000 1,500 2,500 3,000 4,500 4,000 4,500 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000 10,000	Rate (percent) 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 5 5 6 6 6 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Total tax \$100 200 300 400 500 900 1, 500 2, 500 11, 500 21, 000 28, 500 31, 000 211, 000 136, 000 171, 000 251, 000 251, 000 251, 000 251, 000 261, 000 271, 000 281, 000	Rate (percent) 11/2 11/2 11/2 11/2 3 3 4/2 4/2 6 6 7/2 7/2 7/2 9 9 10/2 12/2 12/2 13/2 15/5 15 15 15 15	Total tax \$150 300 450 600 750 1, 350 8, 250 17, 250 20, 250 31, 500 61, 500 151, 500 2044, 750 46, 590 204, 750 46, 590 171, 590 181, 500	Rate (percent) 2 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 6 6 6 8 8 10 10 10 112 112 114 114 116 116 118 118 118 118 118 118 118 118	Total tax \$200 400 600 800 1, 000 1, 800 1, 000 5, 000 23, 000 27, 000 42, 000 272, 000 422, 000 324, 000 272, 000 322, 000 142, 000 272, 000 382, 000 192, 000	Rate (percent) 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	Total tax \$100 200 300 400 500 900 2, 500 1, 500 13, 500 13, 500 22, 500 11, 500 231, 500 301, 500 301, 500 61, 500 61, 500 61, 500 61, 500 101, 500 11, 61, 500 11, 61, 500 11, 61, 500 11, 61, 500	Rate (percent) 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 4 5 6 6 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 13 14 14 15 16 16 17 18 19 20	Total tax \$100 200 300 400 500 900 1, 500 6, 500 12, 500 15, 000 22, 500 34, 500 48, 500 183, 500 183, 500 298, 500 298, 500 653, 500 983, 500 983, 500 983, 500 1, 163, 500	Rate (percent) 1 2 3 4 4 5 7 7 9 9 11 11 13 13 15 15 15 21 23 33 25 27 29 31 33 35 35 37 39 41 43 45	Total tax \$100 300 600 1,000 1,500 2,900 9,500 19,500 36,000 42,500 62,000 123,000 123,000 123,000 221,000 326,000 1,000 846,000 1,166,000 1,886,000 2,276,000 2,686,000 3,116,000	Rate (percent) 1 2 3 4 4 4 5 5 8 5 8 6 6 0	Total tax \$100 300 600 1, 000 1, 500 2, 900 11, 600 25, 600 49, 600 59, 100 87, 609 120, 600 131, 600 131, 600 131, 600 131, 600 131, 600 1, 246, 600 1, 246, 600 1, 246, 600 2, 216, 600 3, 276, 600 3, 276, 600 3, 276, 600 4, 416, 600

. /					Revenue Act		
Net estate	1916 In effect from Sept. 9, 1916, to Mar. 2, 1917, inclusive	1916 as amended by Act of Mar. 3, 1917. In effect from Mar. 3, 1917. to Oct. 3, 1917, inclusive	In effect from Oct. 4, 1917, to 6:55 p. m.,	1918, 1921, 1924 as amended by 1926 In effect from 6:55 p. m., Feb. 24, 1919, to 10:25 a. m., Feb. 26, 1926, inclusive	1926 In effect after 10:25 a.m. Feb. 26, 1923	1932 ² In effect from 5 p. m., June 6, 1932, to May 10, 1934, inclusive	as amended by 1934 In effect from May 11, 1934, to Aug. 30, 1935, inclu- sive
Specific exemption: Resident decedents. Nonresident alien decedents. Nonresident alien decedents. Credits against Federal estate tax: Credits for estate, inheritance, legacy or succession taxes, actually paid to any State or Territory, or the District of Columbia, in respect of any property included in the gross estate of the decedent for Federal estate tax purposes. Credit for Federal gift tax paid by the decedent in respect of property included in the gross estate of the decedent for Federal estate tax purposes.	\$50,000	\$50, 000	\$50,000	\$50,000	\$100,000. (3). Not to exceed 80 percent of tax (after 10:25 a. m., Feb. 28, 1928). Total amount paid under Revenue Act of 1924 as amended. Credit for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1932 not to exceed the proportion of the tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1925 that the value of the included gift bears to the entire gross estate.	\$50,000. None, for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1924, as amended. Credit for amount paid under Revenue Act of 1932 not to exceed the proportion of the additional estate tax that the value of the included gift bears to the entire gross estate, and not to exceed the difference between the gift tax credit allowed against the tax computed under the Revenue Act of 1926, and the total amount of the gift tax.	\$50,000. \$50,000.

¹ Estate tax returns are required to be filed within one year after date of death.
² Subsequent to June 6, 1932, estates are subject to two estate taxes—a tax under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 plus an additional tax under the Revenue Act of 1932 as amended. Rates and exemptions shown are for computation of additional tax; additional tax is amount by which tax computed according to the rates of the Revenue Act of 1932 as amended) exceeds total tax computed under provisions of the Revenue Act of 1926 before deduction for State death taxes.
³ Subsequent to effective date of Revenue Act of 1934, specific exemption of \$100,000 is allowed in case of nonresident citizen decedent for purpose of computing tax under 1926 Act.

E.—Gift tax rates and specific exemption under the Revenue Acts of 1924 and 1932 $^{\rm I}$

			Reven	ue Act		
Net	gifts		924 ded by 1926	19	982 2	
		In effect f 1924, to inclusive	from June 2, Dec. 31, 1925,	In effect from June 6, 1932, to Dec. 31, 1934, inclusive		
Exceeding	Equaling	Rate (percent)	Amount of tax	Rate (percent)	Amount of tax	
\$10, 000 20, 000 30, 000 40, 000 50, 000 100, 000 150, 000 250, 000 400, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 450, 000 3, 000, 000 3, 500, 000 3, 500, 000 4, 000, 000 4, 000, 000 5, 000, 000 6, 000, 000 6, 000, 000 6, 000, 000	\$10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 100,000 250,000 400,000 450,000 600,000 750,000 800,000 1,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 3,500,000 3,500,000 4,000,000 5,500,000 5,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000	1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 6 6 8 8 8 8 8 10 12 14 14 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	\$100 200 300 400 500 1, 500 2, 500 1, 500 11, 500 22, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 31, 500 461, 500 381, 500 461, 500 641, 500 481, 500 1, 041, 500 1, 041, 500 1, 461, 500 1, 681, 500	34 11/2 21/4 33/4 51/2 61/2 8 8 91/2 91/2 11 121/2 141/2 20 211/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 23 241/2 241	\$75 225 450 750 1, 125 3, 625 6, 875 10, 125 26, 125 30, 875 45, 125 61, 625 67, 125 92, 126 162, 125 329, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 324, 625 327, 125 517, 125 624, 625 517, 125 624, 625 517, 125 624, 625 517, 126 624, 625 517, 126 624, 625 517, 126 624, 625 517, 127 517, 128 524, 122, 125 51, 397, 125 51, 397, 125 51, 397, 125 52, 312, 125	
Revenue Ac	et	Net gifts	3	Specific exemption		
1924 as amer ed by 1926 1932	calenda (1) Sp (2) G (3) P Total am calenda (1) Sp (2) E (3) C	r year less: pecific exemp ifts to an ind excess of \$500 reviously ta and charitat ount of gifts r year less: pecific exemp xclusion of \$ donee (exce terests).	lividual not in). xed property de, etc., gifts. made during	Resident \$50,000 s once; ms all in one a period option of	or citizen: allowed but ay be taken year or over of years at	

¹ No gift tax in effect from Jan. 1, 1926, to June 6, 1932. Gift tax returns are required to be filed for the year ending Dec. 31 on or before Mar. 15 of the subsequent year.
² Tax for calendar year is the excess of tax computed on the aggregate sum of net gifts for such calendar year and preceding years over tax computed on aggregate sum of net gifts for preceding years.

INCOME TAX FORMS

123

FACSIMILES OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS AND PARTNERSHIP RETURN OF INCOME FOR 1934

Form 1040. Individual income tax return for net incomes from salaries or wages of more than \$5,000, or incomes, regardless of amount, from business, profession, rents, or sale of property.

Form 1040A. Individual income tax return for net incomes of not

more than \$5,000 derived chiefly from salaries and wages.

Form 1065. Partnership return of income.

125

THEASTRY DEPARTMENT
DOTRING REPORT SHAPE

INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

TO Not Write in These Spaces

Fig.

Condition of Taking Damps

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

Fig.

					SSION, RENTS, OR				TY s	ode erial	******	****		
		For	Cale	nda	Year 1	19	34	Ļ	7	umber	2555555	******		
		or fiscal year begr			1934, and ended			_	935 D	Pintrict .		ler's Star		
			ater Than the ISI	th Day of the	Paird Month Following the RESS PLAINLY BELOW	e Close e	of the	fazable 1	(ear		(Cash	ier's Star	np)	
			(Name) (Bot	b husbacd and	wide, il teas is a Joint petur	n)			c	aab		M.O.		Ind.
		***************************************			er, or rural route)						Fire	4 Paymes	••	
Acce							(State)		\$					
2.	State whether you are (a) a citizen of the United Guisto, or (b) a resident alrea United Guisto, or (b) a resident alrea in which Collector's office was it sent? Were you marred and living with bushass or wiled during your tassible year! of hush-nd and wife of hush-nd and wife Sent the collector of wife it a separate return was made and the Collector's often to which it was sent		during the yea	respect to ques r, state date as	tien 3. 6. or 7 charged d pature of change		11. 151	a say per r matter: r udvise :	affection of pour in the	rsons a iny ite: prepar	n or school ation of t	un respect ule of this has return, or person or advice i of which i was actual purself, ste sturn and by such	of any que return, o or actual	assist by pre-
3.	Were you married and living with bushan- or wife during your taxable year?	d	9. State whether you on cash of accr	our books are k	pt .		1	are this are and	address	of such	person	or person	It so, gt	re the
8.	of husband and wife? State name of husband or wife if a sentrate return was made and the		mussions, Fee	s, etc. Check	price of Canage or Item 1, Salaries, Wayer, y') in proper block that ON before principal amount in it Teacher, or school administrator, Clergyman or enticious worker, Corporation executive or manager.	E oc-		od the its	s received	iedules i, ií thi	in respect	of which i	he assists	unce of red by
	Collector's office to which it was sant		or dentist. Judge or lawy	toon, er.	administrator.		ţ	be inform	sation rep vas furnis	ported bad to	in this re or obtain	turn and ed by suci	the man person	ner la or per-
6.	If not tnarried, were you during your to supporting in your household one or me closely related to you?	xoble year are persons	Technical engl	meer. srobitect.	Corporation executive or manager.			UII	********					
7.	If not married, were you during your to support in in your household one or me closely related to you? Now many dependent persons (other the or wife) truder 18 years of any or incaps support received their chief support from your taxable year?	n husband sble of self- you during			(Gordy)							the calen	dar	
=	your textable year?		OME					ear 10317	(Answe	r "yes	, ot ,, no.	7	1	
HERE	. Salaries, Wages, Commissions,	Fees, etc. (State nam	e and address of ex	apioyer)	and received Expense (Supas is 6)	o peid elekul h							1	
	*****			\$	\$		s						į	
Σ,	. Income (or Loss) from Busine	sz or Profession (D	nom Cabafula A)		************		1			ļ			1	
REMITTANCE	Interest on Bank Deposits, No	otes, Corporation Bo	nds, etc. (excep	ot interest o	u tax-free covenant b	onds)							ļ	
REW	. Interest on Tax-free Covenant						ļ			ļ				
Ħ,	. Income (or Loss) from Partne	rships, Syndicates, F	ools, etc. (Sta	te name, addre	is, and kind of business)	•			ļ			1	į	
È							·						-	
٠,	5. Income from Fiduciaries. (Ste	ate same and address)					-							
,	. Rents and Royaltics. (From 6	chedule B)	······		······································							l	1	
	3. Capital Gain (or Loss). (Freu	Schedule C)			·		ļ						-	
	. Taxable Interest on Liberty E								ļ	ļ				
10). Dividends on Stock of: (a) D									ļ			- 1	
	(b) Domestic Corporation(c) Foreign Corporations.				Act		·····						- 1	
1	. Other Income. (State nature) (U			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·									1	
1:	2. Total Income in Item	в 1 то 11							,		s			
1.	3. Interest Paid	DEDUC	CTIONS					ŀ	l				į	
-	I. Taxes Paid. (Explain in Schedule	F)		·····									1	
1	5. Losses by Fire, Storm, etc. (Explain in table at feet of p	4ge 2)				ļ	ļ				ļ		
-	3. Bad Debts. (Expisin in Schedule	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	•••••				ļ							
	 Contributions. (Explain in Sched) Other Deductions Authorized 						·		ļ				ĺ	
1						*******								· · · · · · · ·
2). NET INCOME (Item 12	minus Item 19)									s			
_	···	C	OMPUTATION	ON OF T	AX (See Instruct	tion 23	3)					·—·		
-	1. Net income (Item 20 above)		_s		29. Normal tax (4?					·		\$		
	2. Less: Personal exemption	l i	-		30. Surtax on Item						••••••			
2	 Credit for Dependents Balance (Surtax net income) 		8		31. Total tax (Item							\$	<i>-</i>	
	5. Less: Interest on Liberty bo		-		32. Less: Income to Item 4)					s		-		
2			1 1	1	33. Income to try or l	ax paid U.S. po	to a f esessio	oreign o	oun-			<u></u>		ļ
2		1 1	1		34. Balance of Tax.	(Iter	n 31 1	l sucin	tems 32	ban S	33)	8		
_	Instruction 22)													
	B. Balance subject to normal tax		AFFID	AVIT (S	ee Instruction 27)							·		<u>'</u> —
k ti	I/we swear (or affirm) that the nowledge and belief is a true, cor ons issued thereunder.	is return (including i rect, and complete re	ts accompanyir turn, made in :	ig schedules good faith,	and statements, if an for the taxable year st	y) has lated, p	been ursua	examin nt to ti	ed by m ie Reve	nc/us, enue A	and to let of 1	the bes 934 and	t of m	r/our gula-
	Sworn to and subscribed by		(E) return is bade	by agent. the reason	therefore more be started on that then)									
ſ	NOTARIAL Of		(Signature and									be eigned by I of the parcel.	er if contain	
•			AFFID	AVIT (S	ee Instruction 27)						à is made by			
-	I/we swear (or affirm) that I/catements, if any) is a true, correturn has been prepared of which	we prepared this retu	rn for the pers	on or perso	ns named herein and tion respecting the in	that th	e reti ax lie	ırn (isa bility a	luding	its ac	compar or per	nying se sons for	hedules	and this
r	turn has been prepared of which	I/we have any kno	wiedge.		109				1					
ŗ	Sworn to and subscribed before	re me this							depende s	PARES P	reparting the	recurs)		
Ĺ		atury of other oderatelesist outh) BREET PRINTING CPFICE 1814			Nuku				(Name of	(partie o s	me aras the Martin of M	return)		
									15.4 6		_,,,			

	sci	HEDULI	E A	INCO	ME (C	R LC)SS)	FROM	BUSIN	ESS	OR PR	OFE	ssto	N (See	Instr	uction 2)			
1. Total receipts from be Cost or			icn (s	tate l	and of	busine	36)				Business							Ţ	s	
2. Labor				s	3	}		10. Sal	lazies no	t incl	luded as impensat	"Lab	or" i	n Line !	2 (do	\$				
3. Material and supplies											iness ind							1		1
 Merchandise bought i Other costs (itemize be 		n soner	ia eboa	• .				12, Ta	xes on t	usino	ces and i	busine	esa pr	operty.				ļ		-
6. Plus inventory at beg											in table			-		ļ <u>.</u>				
7. TOTAL (Lines 2				5	3			14. Bai 15. De	d debts preciati	arisii on, o	ng from bsolesce provide	rales nee, a	or set	vices pletion	(ex-			ļ		
8. Less inventory at end	of year.			-				16. Re	piain in nt, repa low or o	irs, a n sen	and other arate sh	uate re≍pe eet)	enses	(iterniz	e be-					
9. NET COST OF GOODS S				-		!		17.			Liues 10					8		1		ļ
Enter "C", or "C or ? ventories are valued at c	M", on L ost, or co	ines 6 a: ost or m	ed 8 to arket,	indi- whiel	cate wh bever is	ether i lower	in-	18. To	TAL DE	осст	ions (Li	ne 9 p	plus 1	ine 17)						
							!	19. Na	ет Рвог	ет (ол	n Loss)	(Line	1 mir	us Lin	e 18)	(Enter a	s Iten	n 2)	8	
Explanation of deduction claimed on Lines 5 and 1	16						*****	********		*****										
		sc	HEDU	LE I	B—INC	OME	FRO	M RE	NTS AN		OYALT		(See I	nstruct	ion 7)					*********
1. Kind of	Рвогкату				2. AMOUI	er D	3. 6 as o	COST OR T	VALUE 1, 1913,	(Érp	PEPRECLATI plain in tabl out of page)	on lost		S. Rejair	,	6. Oter (Item	en Exe	EN368 (W)	7. Nge (Enter as	Paorre Itom 71
				-		7	S	CHEVAR	HEATER		oos ot page)		_		1			ī	\$	T
			********					,							I				*	
				<u> </u>		<u>.l</u>	<u> </u>		1 1				<u></u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u>l</u>
Explanation of deduction clasmed in Column 6	ns							*******												
<u></u>					au p. c		DIT	LCT						41 C			.,			
			sc	nE0	OLE C	—(A)	ra (A)			-	SSES (S	12	. Dres	ECLATION			. 0	Pra-	i	
1. DESCRIPTION OF PROPER	n 2	DATE COURED	3 De South Excus	ATE GR NGED	4. AMOU	NT REA	T15E0	5. Cost of 3013, V QUIRE THAT LI rote bu	OR MARCH ALUE IF A ED BEFO DATE (IN SE)**	ar s	S. COST OF PROVEMEN UBSEQUEN LOQUISITION MARCH 1, 1	TS T TO I	ALLOV SINCE :	FABLE) ACQUISI- I-[ARCH 1913 Is details)	8. Q	AIN OR LO	X88 01	MAGE GAIN A LOSE TO BE TABEN STO AC-	10. Gain o BE Taken COU	
*Held 1 year or less:	Afo	Dey Year	Mo. Da	y Year						- -							- -	THUD	a. Uains	b Loces
*Heid over 1 year but	not				\$			\$		\$	·	8	S		\$			100	s	\$
ever 2 years:	not				<i>.</i>													80	ļ	
*Held over 2 years but over 5 years:		·····																60		
*Held over 5 years but over 16 years:	. not											- 1						40		
*Held over 10 years:										····								40		
			l												ļ			30]	
TOTAL GAINS AND *In reporting sales or exchanges or "Cost of projecty must be enter that the property was need Every sale or exchange of stock's stock reprise, at c.)	of capital as ed in Colum ared bould be re	sets atrach an 5 if a lo ported in d	separate is is clair letail, in	e sched med in cluding	fule, if nec Column name an	essaty, S. d addres	for true	porations o	elass of ste	hin es ck, nu	ich of the 5 (2 (inter of st	periode Personares, ca	e, and (mal or) spital ci	ransfer ge susiness re hanges att	ins and dations ecting b	i losses for hip, if any ous,s (stock	each per of pur- c divide	ins) red to chaser ads, oth	Column 16 al	S
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporting sales or exchanges 'East of projects must be near East (a) how projects was near East (a) how projects was near East (b) how projects was near East (b) how projects was near East (b) how projects was near East (b) how projects was near East (b) how projects was near East (c) how projects was near the company of the compa	of capital as ed in Colum ared bould be re	sets atrach an 5 if a lo ported in d	seperate is is clair letail, inc REST	e sched med in cluding	fule, if nec Column name an	essaty, S. d addres	for true	poration,	class of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Person ares, co	s, and or lapited of	ransfer go ousiness ro banges atl	dins and	tiosses for hip, if any busis (stock S (Sne S. And	of pure divide	ins) mod to chaser ads, oth etion	Column 16 ab er nontasable 9)	ove. dividends,
TOTAL GAINS AND The reporting sales or stehanges. "Cost of projecty must be note failed (1) how property was one Every sales or exchange of stock is stock from), etc.) SCHEE	of capital as ed in Colum ared bould be re	sets atrach an 5 if a lo ported in dINTE	separate is is clair letail, inc REST	e sched med in cluding ON	fule, if nex Column i name an LIBER	reparty,	for trac	poration,	elass of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Personares, ca	s, and or lapited of	ransfer go ousiness re banges at? SECUI	dins and	tiosses for hip, if any busis (stock S (Sne S. And	each per cof pure divide	ins) mod to chaser ads, oth etion	Column 16 al	ove. dividends,
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporting sales or exchanges that (i) how property was see that (i) how property was see the property was not seen to the property SCHEL (a) Obligations of a Sta or the District of	of capital as ed to Colum ined. DULE D- OBLIGATIO Columbia	ported in d INTE ONS OR SE tory, or a, or Un	separate so is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to itself. The comment of t	e sched med in cluding ON	LIBER	ry Bo	for tran	poration,	class of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Person ares, co	s, and or lapited of	ransfer go ousiness ro banges atl	dins and	tiosses for hip, if any busis (stock S (Sne S. And	each per configuration instru instru instru instru instru instru instru instru	ins) mod to chaser ads, oth etion	Column 16 ab er nontasable 9)	erron Erron Erron fours
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporting sales or exchanges that (i) how property was see that (i) how property was see the property was not seen to the property SCHEL (a) Obligations of a Sta or the District of	of capital as ed to Colum ined. DULE D- OBLIGATIO Columbia	ported in d INTE ONS OR SE tory, or a, or Un	separate so is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to itself. The comment of t	e sched med in cluding ON	LIBER	ry Bo	for tran	poration,	class of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Person ares, co	s, and or lapited of	ransfer go pusiness re- connects at the second SECUF 4. Pain Auror Exempt Tals: All	dins and	i tosses for thip, if any busis (stock S (See S. Amo IN I Ez	each per control of the control of t	ins) red to chase nds, oth etion when	Column 16 at 9) 6 INTER AMOUNT 17 GF EXE (Enter as X X X X X	erron Erron Erron Erron Erron Feurs Irron Ir
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporting sales or exchanges 'Cost of projectly must be state Feety asks or exchange of stock stock forms, sto SCHEE (a) Obligations of a Sta or the District of (b) Obligations issued us as amended.	of capital as ed to Colum ined. DULE D- OBLIGATIO Columbia	ported in d INTE ONS OR SE tory, or a, or Un	separate so is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to is claim to itself. The comment of t	e sched med in cluding ON	LIBER	ry Bo	for tran	poration,	class of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Person ares, co	s, and or lapited of	SECUI A Paix Exempt Taxa	dins and	i tosses for thip, if any busis (stock S (See S. Amo IN I Ez	each per . of pure t divide Instru cover Or Excess Excess	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporter after or exchanges Total of project produce to exchange or Total of project parts to exchange or Total of project produce or Total of project produce or Total of the Charlet of Total or the Charlet of Total or	of capital as ed in Colum- ined. OBLIGATE OBLIGATE Columbia der Fede and oth mber 1, rensury	ests atrach an Sife to ported in d INTE ONS OR SE itory, or a, or Uneral Farm er oblige 1917. Bills, a	separations separations separations	os hed med in clading ON cal st. fates Act, of Ui	LIBER Abdivision possess or under sited St.	ry Bo	or true s of our ONDS reof, Act sued s of	poration,	class of ste	ck, na	ich of the 5	periode Person ares, co	s, and or lapited of	SECUE 4. Paix Auto Exempt Taxa All All	dins and	i tosses for hip, if any busis (stock S (See	instru	ins) red to chase nds, oth etion when	Column 16 at 9) 6 INTER AMOUNT 17 GF EXE (Enter as X X X X X	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint rate or exhause. The condition of the conditio	of capital as ed in Colum- ined. OBLIGATE OBLIGATE Columbia der Fede and oth mber 1, rensury	ests atrach an Sife to ported in d INTE ONS OR SE itory, or a, or Uneral Farm er oblige 1917. Bills, a	separations separations separations	os hed med in clading ON cal st. fates Act, of Ui	LIBER LI	ry Be	or traces of cor DNDS reof, Act sued s of	peration, S AND 2. AMO	OTHE	ek, na	ch of the 5 inter of the BLIGATI 3. INTERES OR AS	periods Person ares, co IONS TRECE CCRUKE	e, and or apital or or or or or or or or or or or or or	SECUE 4. Pain Auto Exempt Tala All All	dins and	i tosses for hip, if any busis (stock S (See	instru	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as ed in Columnied and in Columnied bould be reported. OBLIGATION OF COLUMNIES and other foder and other benearly with the column of the column	teets attached in a bif a loo ported in deported in de	politicated Salaring and Transport Universe Universe Salary to Universe Universe Salary to Universe Salary t	e sched and in cluding ON ON Cal et afates Act, of Un reason at the fact & Cal et afates Act,	tole, if per Colorma answers LIBER L	ry Bo on the ions r such ates is ificate	for trace sof cor DNDS DNDS Act sued s of than	poration, S AND 2 And S	etass of six OTHE	ROM	ch of the 5 (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4	periods Persocares, co IONS TRECE CCRUMP	S, and onal or applied of OR	All	nits and selections are selections and selections are selecting to the selection and selections are selected as se	i tosses for bip, if any passes (stock S (See S. Amon N. I Ez X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	each per divide	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND In reporter after or exchanges Total of project produce to exchange or Total of project parts to exchange or Total of project produce or Total of project produce or Total of the Charlet of Total or the Charlet of Total or	of capital as ed in Columnied and in Columnied bould be reported. OBLIGATION OF COLUMNIES and other foder and other benearly with the column of the column	teets attached in a bif a loo ported in deported in de	politicated Salaring and Transport Universe Universe Salary to Universe Universe Salary to Universe Salary t	e sched and in cluding ON ON Cal et afates Act, of Un reason at the fact & Cal et afates Act,	tole, if per Colorma answers LIBER L	ry Bo on the ions r such ates is ificate	for trace sof cor DNDS DNDS Act sued s of than	poration, S AND 2 And S	etass of six OTHE	ROM	ch of the 5 (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4	periods Persocares, co IONS TRECE CCRUMP	S, and onal or applied of OR	All	nits and selections are selections and selections are selecting to the selection and selections are selected as se	i tosses for bip, if any passes (stock S (See S. Amon N. I Ez X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	each per divide	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as ed in Columnied and in Columnied bould be reported. OBLIGATION OF COLUMNIES and other foder and other benearly with the column of the column	teets attached in a bif a loo ported in deported in de	politicated Salaring and Transport Universe Universe Salary to Universe Universe Salary to Universe Salary t	e sched and in cluding ON ON Cal et afates Act, of Un reason at the fact & Cal et afates Act,	tole, if per Colorma answers LIBER L	ry Bo on the ions r such ates is ificate	for trace sof cor DNDS DNDS Act sued s of than	poration, S AND 2 And S	etass of six OTHE	ROM	ch of the 5 (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4	periods Persocares, co IONS TRECE CCRUMP	S, and onal or applied of OR	All	nits and selections are selections and selections are selecting to the selection and selections are selected as se	i tosses for bip, if any passes (stock S (See S. Amon N. I Ez X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	each per divide	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as ed in Columbia de el in Columbia de el in Columbia de el incolumbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia	teets attached in a bif a loo ported in deported in de	seperations as characteristic services as characteristic services as political services as the	e scheding in a scal states of Un Bon ited & states states states states of Un stat	tole, if research to the columns of	on the control of the	for true s of cor DNDS orcof, Act sued s of	S AND 2 AMO S	OTHE	ROM	ch of the 5 (2) (2) (2) (2) (3) (3) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4) (4	periode o Person res, co respectively ENDS	e, and on all or applied of the server of th	Pansier go	situs and elations ecting i RITIE CIPAL CI	i losses for hits if any mosts stored S (See S. Amore S.	such per of pure of pu	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as ed in Columbia de el in Columbia de el in Columbia de el incolumbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia	tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, and the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate er obliga	seperations as characteristic services as characteristic services as political services as the	e scheding in a scal states of Un Bon ited & states states states states of Un stat	tole, if research to the columns of	on the control of the	for true s of cor DNDS orcof, Act sued s of	S AND 2 AMO S	OTHE	ROM	DIVID	periode o Person res, co respectively ENDS	e, and on all or applied of the server of th	Pansier go	situs and elations ecting i RITIE CIPAL CI	i losses for hits if any mosts stored S (See S. Amore S.	such per of pure of pu	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The appropriate aider or changes for the property and see the form of property and see	of capital as ed in Columbia de el in Columbia de el in Columbia de el incolumbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia	tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, and the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate er obliga	seperations as characteristic services as characteristic services as political services as the	e scheding in a scal states of Un Bon ited & states states states states of Un stat	tole, if research to the columns of	on the control of the	for true s of cor DNDS orcof, Act sued s of	S AND 2 AMO S	OTHE	ROM	DIVID	periode 9 Person 10	e, and on all or applied of the server of th	Pansier go	situs and elations ecting i RITIE CIPAL CI	i losses for hits if any mosts stored S (See S. Amore S.	such per control of purpose of pu	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as ed in Columbia de el in Columbia de el in Columbia de el incolumbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia de la columbia del columbia	tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, and the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate ser of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er of the tory, or a. or Unral Paris er obligate er obliga	seperations as characteristic services as characteristic services as political services as the	e scheding in a scal states of Un Bon ited & states states states states of Un stat	tole, if research to the columns of	on the control of the	for true s of cor DNDS orcof, Act sued s of	S AND 2 AMO S	OTHE	ROM	DIVID	periode 9 Person 10	e, and on all or applied of the server of th	Pansier go	situs and elations ecting i RITIE CIPAL CI	i losses for hits if any mosts stored S (See S. Amore S.	such per control of purpose of pu	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente di Columbia del Federa and other more il , reassury % Bondsammentaliti exported di disconsistente di Columbia di Co	me site of the second s	seperate se la characteristic de la constitución de	e sched commod to continue of the continue of	Colombia (name as a colombia	on the colons. TY Be colons. Tr such ates is ates in interest other the colons. The colons are such at the colons	for traces of corrections of correct	poration of porati	OTHE	ROM	ch of the 19 to 19	periode period	S S s dec	reacter g. securines of the securines of	ins and elations electing it is also electing	i losse for its discovery for the first state of th	secto per control of programme	rine) riod to chaser_nds, oth ection when	Column 16 sh	BET ON ES
Total Gains and In reporting the or exchange of the Conference of	of capital as dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente di Columbia del Federa and other more il , reassury % Bondsammentaliti exported di disconsistente di Columbia di Co	mail of the control o	seperated in the second	e sche	Colombia (Colombia) (C	on the one that is a control of the	for true s of cor ONDS recof, Act stud stud than LE E and ne	porarion A AND 2 AND 2 AND DUCTI	OTHE	ROM	DIVID	periode 9 Person Periode 9 Person Per	e, and e mad or i mad or i sonal	reacter g. securines of the securines of	sins and shations shations shations and shations	i loose to the hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip is a series to took to the hip if any hip is a series to the hip is a series to t	sech per of purpose of	ins)mod to chaser a construction of the con	Column 16 al. of toolcoable 9) A division A division Column Column X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	BET ON ES
TOTAL GAINS AND The apprint adder or changes from of growing the state of the state for the state of the stat	of capital as dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de dis Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente del Columbia de disconsistente di Columbia del Federa and other more il , reassury % Bondsammentaliti exported di disconsistente di Columbia di Co	no site is a man site in a man	seperate se la characteristic de la constitución de	e schede on moderate of the control	tube, if none to Colombia (none to Colombia) (none	on the one that is a control of the	for traces of corrections of correct	porarion A AND 2 AND 2 AND DUCTI	OTHE	ROM SSES	inter of the state	periode period	e, and e mad or i mad or i sonal	reactor g. SECUF 4. Pensage all Analysis and All All All All All All All All All All	sins and shations shations shations and shations	i loose to the hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip is a series to took to the hip if any hip is a series to the hip is a series to t	sech per of purpose of	ins)mod to chaser a construction of the con	Column 16 al. of toolcoable 9) A division A division Column Column X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	Givenings
Total Gains and In opening also or extraore. The opening also or extraore. The opening and or extraore. The opening and of the opening and	of capital as displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and colorable d	mail a local and a	seperated in the second	e schede on moderate of the control	tube, if none to Colombia (none to Colombia) (none	on the one that is a control of the	for true s of cor ONDS recof, Act stud stud than LE E and ne	porarion A AND 2 AND 2 AND DUCTI	CHARGE W. CHARGE	ROM SSES	inter of the state	periode period	MS 1	reactor g. SECUF 4. Pensage all Analysis and All All All All All All All All All All	sins and shations shations shations and shations	i losse for its discovery for the first state of th	sech per of purpose of	ins)mod to chaser a construction of the con	Column 16 al. of toolcoable 9) A division A division Column Column X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	Givenings
Total Gains and In reporting the or exchange of the Conference of	of capital as displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and of colorable displayed and colorable d	no site is a man site in a man	seperated in the second	e schede on moderate of the control	tube, if none to Colombia (none to Colombia) (none	on the one that is a control of the	for true s of cor ONDS recof, Act stud stud than LE E and ne	porarion A AND 2 AND 2 AND DUCTI	CHARGE W. CHARGE	ROM SSES	inter of the state	periode period	MS 1	reactor g. SECUF 4. Pensage all Analysis and All All All All All All All All All All	sins and shations shations shations and shations	i loose to the hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip, if any hip is a series to took to the hip if any hip is a series to the hip is a series to t	sech per of purpose of	ins)mod to chaser a construction of the con	Column 16 al. of toolcoable 9) A division A division Column Column X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X	Givenings
Total Gains and In opening also or exchanges The opening also or exchanges The opening and or exchanges The opening and or exchanges The opening and or exchange of stock as the norm, site of the opening and the opening and opening and opening and (a) Obligations of a Sta or the District of (b) Obligations is seased as (c) Liberty 34% point (d) Treasury Notes, T Intellections (d) Liberty 4% and 44% (f) Obligations of instru- volugations to be r Itemize all dividends rec Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r (of capital and of a Colombia of the Colombia o	man of the late of the control of th	seperated in section in the section	e schede control of the control of t	tube, if no Colorina in the Co	on the both of the	for trace of core of c	peration of perati	OTHE OTHE	ROM LAIN ON France Con Parish	DIVID DIVID Of corpo CLAIM	Periods of Periods of	MS 1	ransite g. Mulipet n Control of the	chations and chations and chations and chations and chations are characteristics. The chations are characteristics and chations are characteristics. The chations are characteristics and chations are characteristics. The characteristics are characteristics and characteristics are characteristics. The characteristics are characteristics are characteristics and characteristics are characteristics. The characteristics are characteristics are characteristics.	i loose for fifty, if any bases (stochaste (Sector person of district of the control of the con	mod to these mod to th	October 26 of the Control of the Con	Givenings
Total Gains and In opening also or extraore. The opening also or extraore. The opening and or extraore. The opening and or extraore. SCHEI (a) Obligations of a State of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and opening and opening the opening and opening	of capital and control of capital and control of capital and control of capital and capital ca	man of the late of the control of th	seperated in section in the section	e schede some of the school of	Colons in the Co	on the on the one of t	for trace of core of c	peration of a pe	OTHE	ROM LAIM ON Prica	BLIGATI BLIGATI STATEMENT OF A STATE	periods of Periods of	MS 1 N SC	PRANCE S SECUE 4. Faint Extent All	hations and hations are the country of the country	i loose for his, if any house i stochouse	Sect person of district of the control of the contr	incl	Counts (a)	CACATON CARD
Total Gains and In opening also or exchanges The opening also or exchanges The opening and or exchanges The opening and or exchanges The opening and or exchange of stock as the norm, site of the opening and the opening and opening and opening and (a) Obligations of a Sta or the District of (b) Obligations is seased as (c) Liberty 34% point (d) Treasury Notes, T Intellections (d) Liberty 4% and 44% (f) Obligations of instru- volugations to be r Itemize all dividends rec Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r Itemize all dividends rec (d) The opening to be r (of capital and control of capital and control of capital and control of capital and capital ca	man of the late of the control of th	seperated in section in the section	e schede some of the school of	tube, if no Colorina in the Co	on the on the one of t	for trace of core of c	peration of perati	OTHE	ROM LAIM ON Prica	DIVID DIVID Of corpo CLAIM	periods of Periods of	MS 1 N SC	ransite g. Mulipet n Control of the	hations and hations are the country of the country	i loose for his, if any house i stochouse	Sector person of district of the control of the con	incl	October 26 of the Control of the Con	CACATON CARD
Total Gains and In opening also or extraore. The opening also or extraore. The opening and or extraore. The opening and or extraore. SCHEI (a) Obligations of a State of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and opening and opening the opening and opening	of capital and control of capital and control of capital and control of capital and capital ca	man of the late of the control of th	seperated in section in the section	e schede some of the school of	Colons in the Co	on the on the one of t	for trace of core of c	peration of a pe	etase of state of the control of the	ROM LAIM ON Prica	BLIGATI BLIGATI STATEMENT OF A STATE	periods of Periods of	MS 1 N SC	PRANCE S SECUE 4. Faint Extent All	hations and hations are the country of the country	i loose for his, if any house i stochouse	Sect person of district of the control of the contr	incl	Counts (a)	CACATON CARD
Total Gains and In opening also or extraore. The opening also or extraore. The opening and or extraore. The opening and or extraore. SCHEI (a) Obligations of a State of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and of the opening and opening and opening the opening and opening	of capital and control of capital and control of capital and control of capital and capital ca	man of the late of the control of th	seperated in section in the section	e schede some of the school of	Colons in the Co	on the on the one of t	for trace of core of c	peration of a pe	etase of state of the control of the	ROM SSGCS LAIM ON LED LED LED LED LED LED LED LED LED LED	BLIGATI BLIGATI STATEMENT OF A STATE	periods of Periods of	MS 1 N SC	PRANCE S SECUE 4. Faint Extent All	hations and hations are the country of the country	i loose for his, if any house i stochouse	Sect person of district of the control of the contr	incl	Counts As As As As As As As As As As As As As	CACATON CARD

INSTRUCTIONS

The Instructions Numbered I to 20 Correspond with the Item Numbers on the First Page of the Return

1. INCOME FROM SALARIES, WAGES, COMMISSIONS, ETC.

Enter as Isom I on page 1 of the return, all salaries or other compensation recition by or received from outside sources. Use a separate line for each entry, Any amount chimod as a deduction for necessary expenses against asiaries, etc., such as traveling expenses, while away from home in the pursuit of a trade or business, should be fully grellaned in Schedule F on page 2 of the return, or on an attached statement. Traveling expenses ordinarly include expenditures for railroad fares, medis, and todging.

2. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM BUSINESS OR PROPESSION

or ounness, stording the truly explained in Schedule 8 on page 2 of the return, or for raillored faren, meeds, and lodging.

2. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM BUSINESS OR PROFESSION

If you comed a business, or practiced a profession on your own account, fill in the profession on your own account, fill in the profession on your own account, fill in the profession on your own account, fill in the profession on your own account, fill in the profession on your own account, fill in the profession of the profession on your own account, fill in the profession of the profession o

3. INTEREST ON BANK DEPOSITS, ETC.

Enter as Item 3 all interest received or credited to your account during the taxable year on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds, except interest on bonds upon which a tax was paid at the source. Interest on bonds is considered income when due and payable.

4. INTEREST ON TAX-FREE COVENANT BONDS

Enter as Item 4 bond interest upon which a tax was paid at source. Such tax (2 percent of the interest entered in Item 4) may be claimed as a credit in Item 32 of the return.

5 AND 6. INCOME FROM PARTNERSHIPS, SYNDICATES, POOLS, ETC., AND FIDUCIARIES

Enter as Hem 5 your share of the profits of whether received or not) (or of the losses) of a partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., and as Hem 6 income from an extate or trust, except that the share of (a) travable interest on obligations of the United States shall be included in Schodule D, and (b) profits which consisted of dividends on stock of domestic corporations which are subject to income tax respectively, credits claimed for income tax paid at source, and foreign income taxes.

taxes.

If the taxable year on the basis of which you file your return does not coincide
with the annual accounting period of the partnership or fiduciary, then you
should include in your return your distributive share of the net profits (or losses)
for such accounting period ending within your taxable year.

7. INCOME FROM RENTS AND ROYALTIES

FILL IS should be B, giving the information requested, it sport the income as the state of the s

R. CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES

Report sales or exchange of capital sasets in Schedule C and oner the not gain or loss to be taken into account in computing not income as Item 8. (CAPITAL LOSSES ARE ALLOWABLE ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF \$2,000 PLUS CAPITAL GAINS.) Describe the property briefly, and state the price received or the fair market value of the property received in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange may be deducted in computing the profit of the price received in exchange.

If the preperty sold or exchanged was acquired prior to March 1, 1913, the basis for determining OAIN is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, the basis for determining OAIN is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, the basis for determining OAIN is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, the basis for determining OAIN is the basis is cost. (Res section 11 3 of the Reveaus Act of 1934). If the amount shows as cost is other than actual cash cost of the property sold or actualing LOSS the basis is cost. (Res section 13 of the Reveaus Act of 1934). If the amount shows as cost is other than actual cash cost of the property and or actualing LOSS the basis is cost. (Res section 13 of the Reveaus Act of 1934). If the amount shows as cost is other than actual cash cost of the property and the result of the March 1, 1931, and the cost of the section 13 of the March 1, 1931, and if the cost of the set than the amount allowable in respect of was acquired before March 1, 1931, and if the cost of such property is greater than to fair market value as of that date, the cost shall be reduced by the depreciation actually Subsequent preparis interest, or taxes in computing gain or local states, and repairs made to restore the property or protong its useful life. Do not declud ordinary repairs, interest, or taxes in computing gain or local social states, and repairs made to restore the property or protong its useful life. Do not declud ordinary repairs, interest, or taxes in computing gain or local social states of the cost of the property or protong its useful life. Do not declud ordinary repairs, interest, or taxes in computing gain or local social states of the cost of the

distribution.

distribution.

distribution by the provision with the Carepary hashed sixth or securities upon such that the contract making the provision for which carepary hashed sixth or exercities the acqualitation of which contract or spince is so require which resisted as the necessignational type of the contract or spince is so require which resisted as the necessignation of 17% relating to making the contract of the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to making the contract of 17% relating to 17% rela

covered for whatch the batch the stock or isocurities the bate from the test deposition of whatch was used.

(a) Extinuction on explaint laws—Level from their or extincting of regularities of the property of the property of the property of the property is the property of the property of the property is the property is the property of the property is the property is the property is the property of the property of the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property in the property is the property i

9. INTEREST ON LIBERTY BONDS, ETC.

Schedule D abould be filled in if you own any of the obligations or securities enumerated in Column 1. Eater in Column 2 the principal amounts of the various obligations owned and cuter in Column 2 the principal amounts of the various obligations owned and cuter in Column 2 the principal amounts of the various obligations of the various obligations, including your share of a column 2 the various obligations, including your share of a laterast on all coupons falling does within the taxable year will be considered as income for the year, where the books are kept on a cash receipt and disbursaments basis. If the books are kept on a cash receipt and disbursaments basis. If the books are kept on an excut basis, report the actual amount of interest accrued on the obligations owned during the taxable year.

of St.000, or any on Liter (1) are owned in any amount, Column 3 and 3 should be filled in, and the total of the interest reported in Column 3 should be cutered as item 9 on page 1 of the return (2), paragraph (4).

10. DIVIDENDS

Enter as Item 10 (a) dividends from a fomestic corporation which is subject to taxation under Title 1 of the 1934 Act (other than a corporation entitled to the benefits of Section 231 of the 1934 Act and other than a corporation organized under the China Trade Act, 1927), including your share of such dividends received on the control of a partnership, or an estate or trust. Enter as Item (a) the control of a partnership, or an estate or trust. Enter as Item (a) the control of a partnership, or an estate or trust. Enter as Item 10 (c) dividends from a foreign corporation and dividends from a corporation entitled to the benefits of Section 251 of the 1934 Act and a corporation entitled to the benefits of Section 251 of the 1934 Act and a corporation capacited under the China Trade Act, 1922.

Dividends reported in Item 10 (a) or 10 (c) must include Federal excise tax thereos, withheld at source. Such tax is deductible in Item 14.

11. OTHER INCOME

Enter as Item 11 all other taxable income for which no space is provided on 12. TOTAL INCOME

Enter as Item 12 the net amount of Items 1 to 11, inclusive, after deducting any expenses reported in Item 1, and losses in Items 2, 5, 7, and 8.

13. INTEREST PAID Enter as Item 13 interest paid on personal indebtedness as distinguished from business indebtedness (which should be deducted under Schedule A or B). Do not include interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation.

14. TAXES PAID

14. TAXES PAID

Enter as Item 14 personal taxes and taxes paid on property not used in your business or profession, not including those assessed against local benefits of a profession of the p

15. LOSSES BY FIRE, STORM, ETC.

Enter as Item 15 Issues of property not connected with your business or profession, sustained during the year if arising from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, and if not compensated for by insurance or otherwise. See Section 23 (e) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

Explain losses claimed in the table provided on page 2 of the return.

16. BAD DEBTS

Enter as Item 16 all bad debts other than those claimed as a deduction in schedule A. State in Schedule F. (a) of what the debts consisted, (b) when they were created, (c) when they became due, (d) what afforts were made to collect, and (e) how they were actually determined to be worthess.

17. CONTRIBUTIONS

Enter as Hem 17 contributions or gift made within the taxable year to any corporation, or trust, or community cheet, fund, or foundation, organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, secintific, liberary, or educational contributions of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the contribution of the deduction, that provided in Section 162 of the 1934 Act. List organizations and amounts contributed to each in Section 162 of the 1934 Act. List organizations and amounts contributed to each in Section 162 of the 1934 Act.

18. OTHER DEDUCTIONS

Enter as Item 18 are other authorized deductions for which no space is provided on the return. Do not deduct losses incurred in transactions which were notible connected with your trade or business, nor entered into for profit, nor expenditures incurred in earning wholly tax-exemple Income other than integrate proper in the property of the profit of

19. TOTAL DEDUCTIONS IN ITEMS 13 TO 18

Enter as Item 19 the total of Items 13 to 18, inclusive. This amount should not include any deduction claimed in Schedule A or B.

20. NET INCOME

Enter as Item 20 the net income, which is obtained by deducting Item 19 from Item 12. The net income shall be computed upon the basis of the taxable year in secondare with the method of accounting regularly employed in keeping your books, unless such method toes not clearly reflect your income.

21. PERSONS REQUIRED TO MAKE A RETURN OF INCOME

21. PERSONS REQUIRED TO MAKE A RETURN OF INCOME

An Income tax return must be filed by every citizen of the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States though not a citizen thereof, whose gross income for the taxable year 1934 amounted to \$5,000, or whose net income amounted to \$5,000, or whose net income amounted to \$1,000 and \$1

22, EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, AND CREDIT FOR DEPENDENTS

22. EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, AND CREDIT
For the purpose of the portaal far, but as for the surface, there may be chined a credit against setamount of the not income. "That is come to be a come to be a come to be a
mount of the not income." That is come a come to be a
mount of the not income. "That is come a
mount of the not income. "That is come a
mount of the not income. That is come a
mount of the notion of the notion of the companion of the stapper for special nervice
reduced, by Jam to a companion when the remease a destination of the stapper for special nervice
reduced, by Jam to a companion when the remease a destination of the stapper for person a remaining to the companion of the stapper for person and a
payer anapsed in a trade or business in which both formend services and catch as a material morne
by the tamper, not to even of 20 per sources of the stapper and catch as a material morne
by the tamper, not to even of 20 per sources of the stapper and the stapper and
the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and
the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and
the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and the stapper and
the stapper and the former and the stapper an

inviduals. The state of the tar payer, incolor as R affects the personal exemption or credit for dependents, changed miner of mostly before any other state change. For the purpose of such approximation of the state of the stat

23. COMPUTATION OF TAX

Suriax.—The suriax on any amount of suriax net income not shown in the table below is computed by adding to the suriax for the largest amount shown which is less than the income, the suriax upon the access over that amount at the rate indicated in the suriax upon the occess over that amount at the rate indicated in the SURIAX RATES FOR 154

Amount of surtar not income	Rate per- cent	Total guriaz	Amount of surtax not income	Bate per- cent	Total surtar
Α	В	0	٨	В	с
\$0 to \$4,000		\$80	\$50,000 to \$56,000	23	\$9,500
1,000 to 8,000	6	190 306 449	68,000 to 68,000	39	13, 640 15, 980 18, 500
L000 to 14,000	8	500) 790	90,000 to 90,000 90,000 to 160,000	15	21,000
1,000 to 18,000. 1,000 to 20,000. 1,000 to 22,000.	13	1,000 1,260 1,560	100,000 to 150,000	53	54, 000 80, 500 131, 500
,000 to 26,000	17	3,380	309,000 to 409,000	65 66	189, 500 245, 500
,000 to 44,000 ,000 to 44,000 ,000 to 50,000	21 24 27	4,840 6,040 7,700	500,000 to 750,000. 750,000 to 1,000,000.	87 88 59	388, 00 533, 00

Income from a partnership or fiduriary competed on a figeal year husta.—The tax on income received from a flutdary making a return for a fixed year ended in 1934 shall be computed as if such income were for the calcular year 1934. If the taxable year of a partner is different from that of the partnership, the distributive slane of the net income of the partnership to be included in computing the net income of the partner for his taxable year shall be based upon the beginning on, before, or after January 1, 19304, ending within the taxable year of the partner. (See Section 188 of the Revenue Act of 1934.)

Income tax paid (a a foreign country or U.S. possession.—In a scorntage harmonic partner. (See Section 188 of the Revenue Act of 1934.)

In the second of the section of the first of the section of the United States, submit Form 1116 with your return with the necession of the United States, submit Form 1116 with your return with the necession of the United States, submit Form 1116 with your return with the necession of the United States, submit Form 110 with your return with the necession of the United States, submit Form 110 with your within the tax was based, and the Commissioner may require a differs from the credit claimed.

24. ITEMS EXEMPT FROM TAX

The following items are seemf from Federal income tax and should not be included in gross income.

(a) Against review gives income.

(a) Against review gives income.

(b) Against review gives income tax and a found in the following included in gross income tax and a found in the following included in gross income tax and a found in the following included in gross income to give a found in the following included in gross income to give a found in the following included in gross income and the following income contract, but it such accounts for the major to give more contract, but it such an advantage to give a found in the following income to give a found in the following income to give a found in the following income to give a found in the following income to give a found in the following income to give a consistent give a found in the found in the following income to give a consistent give a found in the found in the following income to give a consistent give a found in particular give a found in the found in the following in the found in the following in the found in the following in the foll

In collection shall be singled been teached unour process where the collection of th

25. ACCRUED OR RECEIVED INCOME

25. ACCRUED OR RECEIVED INCOME

If your books of account are kept on the accrual basis, report all income accrued, even though it has not been actually received or entered on the books, and expenses incurred instand of expenses paid. If your books are not kept on the accrual basis, report all income received or constructively received, such as basis interest orefuled to your accounts, and expenses paid. The return for a many fine of death regardless of the fact that the decedent may have kept his books on a cosh basis.

26. PERIOD TO BE COVERED BY RETURN

The return must be filed on this form for the calendar year 1834 or for a fiscal year begun in 1834 and ended in 1835.

The accounting period established must be adhered to for subsequent years, unless permission is received from the Commissioner to make a change. An application for a change in the accounting period shall be made on Form 1123 and forwarded to the collector prior to the expiration of 30 days from the close of the proposed taxable year.

27. AFFIDAVITS

Taypayer or agent.—The affloavir must be executed by the person whose income is reported unless he is ill, absent from the country, or otherwise incapacitated, in which case the legal representative or agent may execute the management of the second of th

28. WHEN AND WHERE THE RETURN MUST BE FILED

The return must be sen to the collector of informal revenue for the district in which you like or have your principal place of full place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of the place of place of place of place of business in the United States, the return should be forwarded to the Collectar of internal Revenue, Baltimore, Maryland.

29. WHEN AND TO WHOM THE TAX MUST BE PAID

29. WHEN AND TO WHOM THE TAX MUST BE PAID
The tax should be paid, if possible, by sending or bringing with the return a
check or money order drawn to the order of "Collector of Internal Revenue at
(insert city and State)." Bo not send eash by mail, nor pay it in person except
The tax may be paid when the return is fled, or in four equal installments,
as follows: The first installment shall be paid on or before the fitnesht day of
the third mostli following the close of the taxable year, the second installment
unent on or before the fitnesht day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
on or before the fitnesht day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
on or before the fitnesht day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
on or before the fitnesht on, or the fitnesh of the payment, the whole amount
of tax unpaid shall be paid upon notice and demand by the collector.

30. PENALTIES

For willful failure to make and file a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both, and, in addition, 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 5 years, or both, logsther with the costs of

profesculton.

For deficiency is fax.—Interest on a deficiency at 8 percent per annum to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thritteft day after the filing of a waiver and, in seddition, 5 percent of the amount of the deficiency if the us to neglected or integrational disregard of rules and regulations without intent to defraud, or 50 percent of amount of the deficiency if due to fraud.

31. INFORMATION AT SOURCE

Dony person making parametrs of salvier, wages, alterest, renf., commissions, or other facets of determinable income as \$100000 shower during the scalendar vess, to a single person, a partnership, or a fluciusry, or \$2,500 or more to a minried person, is required to make a return on Forms 1006 and 1099 showing the amount of such payments and the name and address of each recipient. These forms will convert the second of the second second person in the second se

FORM 1094 MUST BE FILED WITH THIS RETURN

FORM 1849A TREASURY DEPARTMENT INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE	INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RET	URN	Do not write in this	space
(Auditor's stamp)	FOR NET INCOMES OF NOT MORE THAN \$5,000	0	Social Number	
	DERIVED CHIEFLY FROM SALARIES AND WAGES For Calendar Year 1934		Amount	
	To be filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue for your district on or before Man	eh 15. 1935	Paid, \$(Cashier's stan	(p)
	PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS PLAINLY BELOW			
	(Name) (Bith hisband and wife, if this is a joint rejurn)	••••••		
	(Street and number, or rural route)			
*	(Post nffice) (County) (核	iate)		
	OCCUPATION		Cash Check N	
1. Are you a citizen or resident		ependents (excep		
Are you a citizen or resident of the United States" Were you married and living band or wife during your ta	3. Was a separate return filed by husband or wife? their chiefs with hus-4. If not married, were you the head of a can be fainly during your taxable year? tanily during your taxable year?	d nature of any	t husband or wife) rece during your taxable ye change uring the year	
Jtem No.	INCOME	1		1
 Salaries, wages, con 	nmissions, fees, etc. (State from whom received)	\$		
***************************************	***************************************			
2. Interest on bank do	posits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds			
3. Interest on bonds u	pon which a tax of 2% was paid at source		ļ	1
4. Other income (inclu	ding income from fiduciaries, partnerships, etc.) (State source);			
5. Total incom	IE IN ITEMS 1 TO 4.		<u></u>	
	DEDUCTIONS		1	
6. Taxes paid		. \$		
7. Contributions (Expla	nin on reverse side)			
8. Other deductions a	uthorized by law (Explain below);			
***************************************			!	
9. Total dedu	CTIONS IN ITEMS 6 TO 8			
	COMPUTATION OF TAX		1.	
	minus item 9)	1	\$	
	ne credit	\$		
	mption			
 Credit for de 	pendents		<u> </u>	
14. Balance taxable at	4% (item 10 minus items 11, 12, and 13)	••••••	<u>\$</u>	
15. Total income tax (4	1% of item 14)	··········	ş	
16. Less: Income tax p	oaid at source on tax-free covenant bonds (2% of item 3)	s		
17. Income tax p	aid to a foreign country or United States possession Attach Form 1116)	-		
18. BALANCE OF TAX (i	tem 15 minus items 16 and 17)		<u> </u>	<u> </u>
. I/we swear (or affi a true and complete ret authority thereof.	rm) that this return has been examined by me/us, and, to the besurn for the taxable year as stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act	t of my/our of 1934 and	knowledge and be regulations issued	elief, is i under
Curan to and sul	(If return is made by agent, the reason therefor must be stated on this lit.	1 ė)	***	
	d by day of,1935. (Sznature; (If this is a loid by both husband and spous preparing the rett by both spous.)	nt return (not m vife and sworn irn, or if neither	ade by agent) it must to before a proper office or both prepare the ret	e signed or by the
	by both spouses.)			
See Instructions (Signatu	are and title of officer administering onth) (Add	ress of agent if re	etura is made by agent	···········

\$.....

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS

Name of Organization	AMOUNT PAID	Name of Organization	AMOUNT PAID
	\$		s
INTEREST O	N GOVERNME	NT OBLIGATIONS, ETC.	
Obligations and	SECURITIES	Amount Owned	INTEREST RECEIVED

(c) Obligations of the United States.

DIVIDENDS FROM DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS

State the amount of dividends received from domestic corporations which are subject to income tax under
the Revenue Act of 1934, including your share of such dividends on stock owned by a partnership, syndicate, pool, joint venture, etc., or an estate or trust.

PENALTIES

PENALTIES

For willful failure to make and file a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both, together with the costs of prosecution, and, in addition, 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution.

For deficiency in tax.—Interest on deficiency at 6 percent per annum to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thirtieth day after the filing of a waiver of the restrictions on assessment and collection of a deficiency in tax, whichever date is the earlier, and, in addition, 5 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to negligence or intentional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to defraud, or 50 percent of amount of deficiency if due to fraud.

INSTRUCTIONS

LIABILITY FOR FILING RETURN

An income tax return must be filed by every citizen of the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States, though not a citizen thereof, having a gross turnon for the ealendar year 100-10 \$5,000, or ever, or a net income for the same persod of or \$5,000 or ever, or a net income for the same persod of or \$5,000 or ever, or married and living with hosband or wide, or (o) more than the personnle examplion if the status of the taxpayer changes during the taxable year. If the combined net income of hughoad and wide, suchdusing that of dependent more over, either each must make a return, or the income of each must be included in a single joint return. In the combined return, or the income of each must be included.

By the person of the contravable, a statement upon Form 1994 of the following items shown upon the return; (1) Name and aidress, (2) total cross income, (3) total defencions, (4) her income, (3) total returns and the return, and 48 shall be added to the tax.

ITEMS EXEMPT FROM TAX

(a) Amounts received under a life-insurance contract paid by reason of the death of the insured under a life-insurance contract paid by reason of the death of the insured under a life-insurance or endowment contract, not to exceed the preniums or consideration paid for such contract. Amounts received as an annutry under an amount paid to for a mount required as a manutry under an amount paid to a proper such as a manutry under an amount paid to a proper such as a manutry under an amount paid to a proper such as a manutry under a proper such as a consideration paid for such annutry (whether or not paid things such year), until or consideration paid for such annutry.

(b) (fifts find made as a consideration for service) and property acquired by another than the paid of the property of taxable and mist be reported.

(d) Interest upon (f) obligations of a State. Territory, or a political subdivision between the property of the prope

Salaries.—Enter as item I all salaries, wages, or other compensation received from outside sources by (a) yourself, (b) your bushand or wife if a joint return is theil, and (c) each dependent ontime child.

Is theil and (c) each dependent ontime child.

In the compensation of the compe

Other income. Enter as item 4 all other tasable forome, including rents, dividends on stock of distinctic corporations not subject to income its under the cost of

DEDUCTIONS

DEDUCTIONS

Taxen.—Enter as item 6 all personal taxes and taxes on property paid during the year. Do not include Federal income taxes, nor-estate, inheritance, legacy, screession, and gift taxes. No point of fereign income have been clearly screened and profit to the property of the fereign of the property of the pro

EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, ETC.

EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, ETC. computing the normal fact, but not the surfact, there may be chained a received in the computing the normal fact, but not the surfact, there may be chained a received for the construction of the personal fact of the personal fact of the construction of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the many fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact of the personal fact

GENERAL INFORMATION

ARIdavit.—The oath will be administered without charge by any collector, deputy collector, or interest resence accest. If an internal revenue officer is act available, the return should be seven to before a person subincise to administer oaths, except an attorney or accent employed to represent the targeter before the Deviation of the collection of the

FORM 1094 MUST BE FILED WITH THIS RETURN

FORM 1965 TREASURY DEPARTMENT INTERNAL REVENUE SERVEE	PARTNERSHIP (TO BE FILED ALSO BY S	RE	TURN	0	FI	٧C	OM.	E	Do 1	iot Write	In T	hese Spa	ces
(Auditer's Stamp)	(TO BE FILED ALSO BY S	YNDICATE	3, POOLS, JOII	NT VI	ENTURES,	ETC.)		_ _					
	For Cale			_			_		de				
	Or Fiscal Year begun	ath Day of th	1934, and end	ed	or the Close	of the	, 19	35	rial				
	PRINT PLAINLY NAME AN							No.	mbe	·			
	***************************************	(Nai	ue)										
		(Street and							strict	(Date	Receiv	red)	
		(Post office											
	Business or Profession							-					
	N												
	1		syndicate, pool, j	dint v	enture, etc.)								
1. Did any person or persons advise the	Date of Organization	r affecting or	y item of schedul	of th	is return, or	assist o	r advise ti	no organic	ation	in the prep	aration	of this ret	arn, or
						any g	season ot b	ersons oth	er th:	the assistan an the organ	ce or ac sization	, state the	source
of the information reported in this return at 2. Did the organization make a return of	nd the manner in which it was furnished to or ob of information on Forms 1006 and 1000 (see Instru	ettion 33), for i	ch parson or perso he calendar year t	03 (se	(Agswer "3	n 3G) . es" of	"no")						
Item and Instruction No.	GROSS INCOME											1	_
1. Gross Receipts from Business						5				-			l
2. Less Cost of Goods Sold: (a) Inventory at beginn	ing of year		s	-					1	1 1			
(b) Merchandise bought			ļ	-						1 1			
	ies, etc. (From Schedule A)		-	₩			[1			
(d) Total of lines (a), (i (e) Less inventory at cr			1	1									ĺ
3. Gross Profit from Business or						s							ł
	Partnerships, Syndicates, Pools, etc. (S	tate separatel	y name and addre	ss and	amount)		1						
••••							·			.			1
	otes, Corporation Bonds, etc. (except			nent	bonds)					- 1			ı
6. Interest on Tax-free Covenar 7. Rents	at Bonds upon which a Tax was Paid	at Source				,	-			1 1			
8. Royalties			·····										1
9. Capital Gain (or, loss). (From			••••••							.]			
10. Dividends on Stock of:	ons subject to taxation under Title I	of 1934 A	rt										1
	ons not subject to taxation under Tit												
(c) Foreign Corporation										-			1
11. Other Income (state nature of inc	ome);				1				1				1
(b)							-	ļ					
	Ітеме 3 то 11									. s			_
	DEDUCTIONS							l				1	
 Salaries of Employees. (Don't Rent on Business Property 				•		s				1 1			l
15. Renairs. (From Schedule C)					-							1	ļ
16. Interest on Indebtedness				•••••				ļ	-	.		1	ł
17. Taxes paid. (From Schedule D)		•••••	•••••					ļ	ļ	-		1	1
 Losses by Fire, Storm, etc. Bad Debts. (From Schedule F). 								†	 	1 1			
 Bad Debts. (From Schedule F). Charitable Contributions. 6 													
	exhaustion, wear and tear, or obsoles	icence). (From Schedule ()										
22. Other Deductions Authorized	d by Law (explain below or an separate sheet):							ļ		1		1	
								 	 	-		1	
23. Total Deduction	Ne IN ITEMS 13 TO 22		•	•••••			<u></u>		J	-			
	m 12 minus Item 23)									s.		-	┼~
25.	PARTNERS' OR MEMBER	S' SHA	RES OF IN	ico	ME AN	D C	REDIT	rs				***************************************	
1. Name and Address of					1	<u></u>			st i			7. INCOME	TAX
(Designate non- Note.—Where return of partner or me speci	OF EACH PARTNER OR MEMBER resident alicus, if any) mber is filed in another collection district, ify district	2 PER- CENTAGE OF NET INCOME	3. DIVIDENDS (1) 10 (a) ABOVS))	4. EARD INCOM	E .	AMOUNTS 3	NCE OF N R (ITEM 2 R STM OF STM COLU: AND 4)	4 MNS	6. INCOME PAID AT SO ,12% OF LT	TAX DUBCE EM 6)	PAID FOI COUNTRIE UNITED S POSSESS	CEIGN ES OR TATES SONS
(a)		}	\$		\$	ļ	s			s		s	-
(b)						····							
(d)													1
(e)													
())		ļ		ļ	ļ	ļ				ļ	ļ	ļ 	-
(g)		-l <u></u>		-	 	 				<u></u>			+
Тотаца		***************************************	·&	1	. \$	····				Φ		3-100	

STATISTICS OF INCOME

			SCHE	DULE A-C		_		SUPPI	IES, ET	c. (8	ee Instr		2)	-		 -			
		ltkus				AMOUNT		<u> </u>			ĺτ	Z M3					-	AMOUN	*
Labor		•••••		••••••	s			ļ									8		
Supplies								ļ									ļ		
•	•••••			•••••				;; }											ul
•			ecu	EDULE B-	CARIT	CAI C	ATAG	AND.	TOTAL (e	nter a	Item 2 Instruct					******	s		
	1	***)	LDUCK B	CALL	1				!.	Danner		<u>'</u>			9. Pan-	ī -	****	-
1. Description of Pa	o rant	2. Date Apquisad	3. Date Sold or Exchanged	4. Amount i	REALIZED	5, Co 1913 QU TEA	er or M , Value rred B of Date basis)	ARCH I. E IP AC- E PORE (Indi-	6. Cost of PROVENT SUBSEQUENT TO ACQUENT TO MARCH 1	ENTS	ALLOWED ALLOWED SINCE ACI TION OR N 1, 1913 nish det	(UR BLE) SUISI- ARCE Fur-	8. Qa	IN OR I	.oss	9. Par- CENTAGE OF GAIN OR LOSS TO BE TAKEN INTO AC-		EN OR LO	
		Me. Day Year	Mo. Day Yea			-					PRD det	11(5)			-	EOUNT	s. 0	bitus b.	Losses
*Held 1 year or less	e:			s		s			\$		S		s			100	\$		
*Held over 1 year i over 2 years:	out not			1															
*Held over 2 years over 5 years:						-		-		1-1					ļ	80			
*Held over 5 years over 10 years:	but not		ļ			-	********									60		$\dagger \dagger$	
•Held over 10 year	s;							-								40 30		11	-
TOTAL GAIN	S AND!LO	sses (Ente	r net gain e	r loss as Ite	n 9) (C	apital	losses s	re allo	wable onl	v to the	extent	of \$2.0	oo olu	s capi	tal ga		\$	8	
"In reporting sales or exc. "Cost of property must. For basis of property seq. State (!) how and from v. If any, of purchaser Every sale or exchange of stock rights, etc.).	banges of co be entered uited after whom prope	apital assets a in Column 5 a February 28, crty was acqui	ttech separate d a loss is clair 1913, see Secti ired	schedule, if ne ned in Column on 113(a) (13) of	ressary, fo 8. 1be Reve	er transi	t of 1934.	oming wi	thin each of	the 5 per	riods, and	transfer	gains as	id losse	: for ea	ch period	l or bus	iness tola	tionship,
SCHEDU	LE C-C	OST OF	REPAIRS	(Sec Instr				_	sc	HEDU	LE D-	TAXE	S PA	ID_(See I	nstruct	on 17	D	
-		I. ITEMS			(En	A MOU ter as It	NT em (5)				1	TREO					(Z	2. Amor ater as It	977 em 17)
					s			ļ											
***************************************								ļ. 											
			·		<u> </u>			l									<u>.l</u>		
# . · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	SCHE	DULE E-	EXPLANA	TION OF	DEDU	CTION	v FOR	LOSS						1		ion 18)	1		***
I. Ki	IND OF PRO	PERTY	i	2. DATE ACOU	CHED		Cost	- 1	1. SUBSE IMPROVE	QUENT MENTS	A LLC	WARLS COURSET	SINCE ION	S.	LEVAGE	VALUE	7. I	DEPOCATES	em IS)
					s		.,	s			\$						s		
			<u>l</u>					<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u></u>	<u>l</u>	<u></u>		<u>l</u>	J		
State how property	was acc															********			
		SCHI	EDULE F-	EXPLANA	TION	OF D	DEDUC	TION	FOR BA	D DE	BTS (lee In	struct	-			,		
													YEAR	CHA	ROED O	N ACCOUN	-	Bad Dz	255
(a)													1931	£			8		
(b)													1932		•••••				
(c)					•••••				*****	•••••	*********		1933						
(d)		cotten	DIE C. I	TOL ANDER	ON O	P. ID 531	DUCT	OM F	OD DED	DECL	THOM	/C I	1934	<u> </u>			<u>.l</u>		········
		SCHED		XPLANATI		-	1						nstruc	HOIS daeU a		TWATEG			
1. Kind of Proventy (If buildings, state material of which constructed)	2. DATE ACQUIREE	DATE O	OR MARCH I VALUE IF AC- PRIOR TO THA (Indicate her)	4. Assets	FULLY I N USE AT F YZAR	END	ALLOW:	DEFRECT ED (OR A PRIOR)	ATION LOWABER) BARS	6. R on C	EMAINING OTHER BAS RECOVER	COST IS TO ED	IN AC	CURU- S Dr-	BE A	TWATEG AINING FROW NNING YEAR	9. E	EPRECIATION	HON YEAR
				s			s			S						s			
						.ļ	ļ	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					ļ						_
				<u>l</u>			1						1		ļ. <u></u> .				
		SCHED	ULE H-1	ONTAXAB			TIONS	s, LIB	ERTY BO	onds,	ETC.	(See I	netrue					2 Ivre	
				1. OBLIGATION										2	MOUN	T OWNED		3. INTE Reven	-
. (a) Obligations of a												>056761	sions.	3			\$		 -
(b) Obligations issu													·····						
(c) Liberty 31/4% I								fore Se	ptember	1, 1917	7						· ·		
(d) Treasury notes (e) Liberty 4% and					s of ma	entea	ness		***********		********			******			1		-
(f) Obligations of i					hor the	n obli	igation	e to be	zenorted	in (b)	shove)								
Q / Obligations of 1	astraine	nearress of	the cont	SCH	EDUL	E I—I	INCOM	IE FR	OM DIV	IDEN	DS								
Itemize all dividen	ds receiv	ed during	the year,	tating amo	unts an	d nan	es and	l addre	ssea of co	rporat	ions dec	hring	the di	viden	ds:				
***************************************																			······································
				•••••		•••••								•••••					
				***********	AFFII	DAVI	T (S	00 In	truction	30)			******						
I swear (or aff	irm) that	this retur	n (includin	ite tecomr	onviva	erhod	hilor a	dieta be	ements if	anc) b	as been	exami	ned b	v me,	and, t	o the b	st of	my kno	evice ge
and belief, is a true issued thereunder.										1 state	a, pursu	ant to	the re	evem	e am	01 1994	and t	ne maga	nations
Sworn to and	subscrib	ed before r	me this	day o	H			,	193		**	•••••		(Par	tner cr	member)			
NOTARIAL	(Sign	sture of other	r administerio	g oath)	,		(Titk)	*****										
					ARFII	NAVI	T (S	ioa In	truction	30)						er or men			
I/we swear (or statements, if any has been prepared	r affirm)) is a tru	that I/we le, correct,	prepared and compl	tnis return : ete stateme	for the nt of al	orgar I the i	uzatior nforma	name	d herein specting	and th	nat the r come tax	return Lisbii	(inch lity of	the o	its ac rgani	compar zation f	or wh	senedu ich this	return
has been prepared	of which	a I/we have	e any knov	riedge.															
Sworn to and	subscrib	ed before r	me this	day e	of			, 1	93			((algle) (d	re of p	ахов рі	repanng t	es retur	13-7	
											*******		(Sig na tu	re of p	ersoa p	reparing t	be retur	9)	
NOTARIAL SEAL	(Sign	sature of office	r administeris	g cath)			(Title)			******		····	no of 2		mployer,	f any i		
2-160	н9												(- JE 15	project, I)		

INSTRUCTIONS

The Instructions Numbered 1 to 25 Correspond with the Item Numbers on the First Page of the Return

1. GROSS RECEIPTS

Describe the business or profession in the space provided at the (op of page 1, and enter as item 1 on page 1 of the return the gross receipts from sales or services, less any discounts or allowances from the sale price or service charge.

Parmer's income schedule.—If the organization operates a farm and keeps no books of account, or keeps books on a cash basis, obtain from the collector and attach to this return Form 1040F, Schedule of Farm Income and Expenses, and enter the net farm income as item 3 on page 1 of this return. If the farm books of account are kept on an accrual basis, the filing of Form 1040F is

pitional.

Installment sales.—If the installment method is used, attach to the return schedule showing separately for the taxable years 1933, 1932, 1933, and 1934 following information: (c) Gross aside; (d) cond of goods asid; (d) gross profits; or profits of gross profits; or profits of gross passes; (d) amount collected; and (f) gross profit an amount collected. See section 44 of the Revenue Act of 1934. (d)

2. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Enter as item 2 the information requested in lines (a) to (e), and list in Sebedule A on page 2 of the return the principal items of cost included in the amount entered on line (c), the minor items to be grouped in one amount. Insrentories.—If the production, purchase, or sale of merchandise is an income-producing factor in the trade or business, inventories of merchandise on hand abould be taken at the beginning and end of the taxable year. Enter "C", or "C or M", on lines (a) and (c) to indicate whether the inventories are valued at cost, or cost or market, whichever is lower.

3. GROSS PROFIT

Enter as item 3 the gross profit derived from the business or profession, which is obtained by deducting item 2, the cost of goods sold as extended, from item 1, the gross receipts.

4. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM ANOTHER PARTNERSHIP, ETC.

4. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM ANOTHER FARTNERSHIP, ETC. Enter as item 4 the share of the profits (whether received or not) (or of the losses) of another partnership, syndicate, pool, joint venture, etc., except that the share of divideade on stock of domestic corporations shall be included in item 10 (a) and/or (b) on page 1 of the return, and interest on obligations of the United States, etc., shall be reported in Schedule H, page 2 of the return. If the accounting period of another partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., from which income is received, there should be included in this return are not provided by the control of the states are not provided by the provid such partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., ending within the accounting period for which this return is filed.

5. INTEREST ON BANK DEPOSITS, ETC.

Enter as item 5 all interest received or credited to the account of the organiza-tion during the taxable year on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds, except interest on bonds upon which a tax was paid at the source. Inter-est on bonds is considered income when due and payable.

6. INTEREST ON TAX-FREE COVENANT BONDS

Enter as jtem 6 interest on boads upon which a tax was paid at the source by the debtor corporation, if an ownership certificate on Form 1000 was filed with the interest coupons. The tax of 2 percent paid at the source on such interest should be allocated to the partners or members in column 6 of item 25, page 1 of the return.

7. RENTS

Enter as item 7 the gross amount received for the rent of property. Any deductions claimed for repairs, interest, taxes, and depreciation should be included in item 15, 16, 17, and 22, respectively.

If property or crops were received in lieu of ceals rent, report the income as though the rent had been received in each. Crops received as rent on a cropshare basis should be reported as income for the year in which disposed of, unless this return shown income accurate.

8. ROYALTIES

Enter as item 8 the gross amount received as royalties. If a deduction is claimed on account of depletion, it should be included in item 22. See sections 23 (m) and 114 of the Revenue Act of 1934.

9. CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES

Report sales or exchanges of capital assets in Schedule B and enter the net gain or loss to be taken into account in computing net lacome as item 9. (CAPITAL LOSSES ARE ALLOWABLE ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF \$2,000 FURS CAPITAL GAINS.) Describe the property briefly, and state the price received or the fair market value of the property received in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange may be deducted in computing the profit or loss.

the price received or the fair market value of the property received in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange may be deducted in computing the profit or loss.

If the property sold or exchanged was acquired prior to March 1, 1913, the High property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property was acquired after February 28, 1913, and the basis is not otherwise determined under any of the paragraphs (1) to (12), inclusive, of section 113 (a) of the Revenue Act of 1934, then the basis shall be the same as it would be in the hands of the transferro, increased in the amount of gain or decreased in the amount of loss recognized to the transfer was made. If the property was distributed in kind by a partnership to any partner, the basis of another under type the property in the hands of the partnershall be such parts of the lasts in his hands of the property in the hands of the partnershall be such parts of the lasts in his hands of the property and or exchanged, full details must be furnished regarding the acquisition of the property.

Euter as depreciation the amount of wars and allowable) in respect of such property given date of acquisition, or since March 1, 1913, the cost shall be reduced by the depreciation actually sustained before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired before that date.

Subsequent improvements include expenditures for additions, improvements, and repairs made to restore the property or protong its useful life. Do not deduct ordinary repairs, interest, or taxes in computing gain or foss.

No loss shall be recognized in any sale or other disposition of shares of stock or securities where the organization has acquired substantially identical stock or securities within 50 days before or after the date of such sales or disposition, or securities within 50 days before or after the date of such sales or disposition, such as the sales of the sa stocks and securities.

stocks and accurities.

No deduction shall be allowed in respect of losses from sales or exchange property, directly or indirectly, (A) between members of a family, or (B) ex in the case of distributions in liquidation, between an individual and a corp tion in which such individual owns, directly or indirectly, more than 50 cent in value of the outstanding stock. For the purpose of this paragrag (C) an individual shall be considered as owning the stock owned, directl indirectly, by his family; and (D) the family of an individual shall include his brothers and sisters (whether by the whole or half blood), spouse, ances and lineal descendants.

The provision of the Revenue Act of 1004 1004.

d lineal descendants.

The provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 relating to capital gains and

The provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 relating to capital gains and leases art:

the 117 to 0 fewers ratio—18 the new of a scapper, either than a corporation, only the following forms art:

the 117 to 10 fewers ratio—18 the new of a scapper, either than a corporation, only the following recordings of the size of the scapper of the provisions of the control of the provisions of the control of the provisions of the control of the contr

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 117 (a) above, 100 percent of the gain resulting to the distributes from distributions in liquidation of a corporation shall be taken into account in computing not income. (See section 115 (c) of the Revenue Act of 1934.)

10. DIVIDENDS

Describe in detail in Schedule I all dividends received during the taxable year. Describe in detail in Schedule I all dividenda received during the taxable year. Enter as item 10 (a) dividenda from a domestic corporation which is subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 (other than a corporation entitled to the benefits of section 251 of the Revenue Act of 1934) and other than a corporation organized under the China Trade Act, 1922), including the share of such dividends received on stock owned by another partnership, syndicate, pool, etc. Enter as item 10 (b) dividends from a domestic corporation which is not subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 (such as a building and loan association, etc.). Enter as item 10 (d) dividends from a domestic corporation which is a building and loan association, etc.). Enter as item 10 (d) of 1934 (such as a building and to an association, etc.). Enter as item 10 dividend to the control of section 251 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and a corporation organized under the China Trade Act, 1922.
Dividends reported in item 10 (a) or 10 (c) must include Federal excise tax thereon, withheld at source. Such tax in deductible in item 17

11. OTHER INCOME

Enter as item 11 all other taxable income for which no space is provided sewhere on page 1 of the return.

12. TOTAL INCOME

Enter as item 12 the net amount of items 3 to 11, inclusive, after deducting any losses reported in items 3, 4, and 9.

13. SALARIES

Enter as item 13 all salaries and wages not included as a deduction in line (c) of item 2; except compensation for partners or members, which shall not be claimed as a deduction in this item or elsewhere on the return.

14. RENT Enter as item 14 rest on business property in which the organization has no equity. Do not include rest for a dwelling occupied by any partner or member for residential purposes.

15. REPAIRS

Enter as item 15 the cost of ordinary repairs to keep the property in a usable condition, including labor, supplies, and other items which do not appreciably add to the value or life of the property. Do not include expenditures for the cost of replacements or permanent improvements to property, nor the cost of evalues equipment or furniture. List in Schedule C the principal items of cost, grouping the maior items in our amount.

16. INTEREST

Enter as item 16 interest on business indebtedness to others. Do not include interest on capital invested in or advanced to the business by any partner or member, nor interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation.

17. TAXES

Enter as item 17 taxes on business property or for carrying on business. not include taxes assessed against local benefits tending to increase the value he property assessed, as for paving, etc., Pederal increme taxes, nor extinheritance, Jegacy, succession, and gift taxes, nor taxes entered in column; tiem 25, page 1 of the return. List in Schedule D cach class of taxes doluct Do

18. LOSSES BY FIRE, STORM, ETC.

Enter as item 18 loses sustained during the year, if incurred in the trade or business, or of property not connected with the trade or business, if acising by fire, storm, abhyreck, or other casualty, or from theft, and not compensated for by incurance or otherwise. See section 23 (c) of the Revenue Act of 1934. Explain such loses in Schedule E.

19. BAD DEBTS

Enter as item 19 debts, or portions thereof, arising from sales or services that have been reflected in income, which have been definitely ascertained to be worthless and have been charged off within the year, or euch reasonable amount as has been added to a reserve for bad debts within the year.

If the debts are included in the deduction claimed, state in Schedule P on line (s) of what the debts consisted, line (b) when they were created and when they became due, line (c) what efforts were made to collect, and line (d) from they were actually determined to be worthless.

If the amount deducted is an addition to a reserve, enter on the lines provided in Schedule P the amounts charged on account, and the bad debts charged cff, for each of the past 4 years.

for each of the past 4 years.

A debt previously charged off as bad, if subsequently collected, must be returned as income for the year in which collected.

20. CONTRIBUTIONS

Enter as item 20 contributions or gifts made within the taxable year to any corporation, or trust, or community cheet, fund, or foundation, organized and operated exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals, no part of the net carnings of which inures to the herafit of any pivates shareholder or individual, and no autostantial part of the activities of which is carrying on propaguads, or otherwise attempting, to influence legislation. The annount claimed shall not exceed it percent of the organization and announts contributed to the carried or the contribution of the carried or the carried o each in a separate schedule.

21. DEPRECIATION

21. DEPRECIATION

The amount deductible on account of depreciation in item 21 is an amount reasonably measuring the portion of the investment in depreciable property by reason of exhaustion, wear and war, or obsolecence, which is properly or greatly of the control of the investment in depreciable property by reason of exhaustion, wear and war, or obsolecence, which is properly or greatly of the control of the control of the property of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the property, and the probable number of years remaining of its expected useful life. In case the property was purchased prior to March 1, 1913, the amount of depreciation will be determined in the same manner, except that it will be computed on its original cost, less depreciation sustained prior to March 1, 1913, or its fair market value as of that date, whichever is greater. If the property was acquired in any other manner than by purchase, see section 114 of the Revenue Act of 1934. The expital sum to be recovered should be charged off ratably over the useful life of the property. Whatever plan or method of apportionment is adopted must be reasonable, must have due regard to operating conditions during the taxable year and should be described in the return.

If a deduction is sclaimed on account of depreciation, filt in Schedule G. In

taxable year and should be described in the return.

If a deduction is claimed on account of depreciation, fill in Schedule G. In
case obsolescence is included, state separately amount claimed and basis upon
which it is computed. Land values or cost must not be included in the schedule, which it is computed. Land values or cost must not be included in the schedule, and where inad and buildings were purchased for a lump sum the cost of the building subject to depreciation must be established. The adjusted property accounts and the accumulated depreciation shown in the schedule should be reconciled with those accounts as reflected on the books of the taxpayer. (See sections '33 () and 114 of the Revenue Act of 1934.)

Do not claim any deduction for depreciation in the value of a building occupied by any partner or member as a dwelling, or of other property held for personal use, nor on stocks, bonds, and like securities.

22. OTHER DEDUCTIONS

Enter as item 22 any other authorized deductions for which no space is provided elsewhere on page I of the return. Do not deduct losses incurred in transactions which were neither connected with the trade or business nor enterediate for profit, nor expenditures incurred in carning wholly tax-exempt income an inter

Explain deductions claimed in the space provided.

23. TOTAL DEDUCTIONS

Enter as item 23 the total of items 13-to 22, inclusive. Do not include any deduction claimed in Schedule Λ or B.

24. NET INCOME

Enter as item 24 the net income, which is obtained by deducting item 23 from item 12. The net income of the organization shall be computed upon the basis of its taxable year in accordance with the method employed in keeping the books, unless such method does not clearly reflect the income.

25. PARTNERS' OR MEMBERS' SHARES OF INCOME AND CREDITS

23. PARTNERS' OR MEMBERS' SHARES OF INCOME AND CREDITS East the, anames and addresses of the partners or members on lines (a), (b), (c), etc., in column 1 of item 25, page 1 of the return, and extend in the proper column each partners' or member's shares of the next income whether distributed or not. Item 25 should also show complete information with respect to all members of the partnership, syndicite, group, etc., having any interest during any portion of the taxable year. Earned income.—The share of the net income of the organization enter or member may claim as earned income is limited, in the case of an organization engaged in a trade or business in which both personal services and capital are material income-producing factors, to 20 percent of his share of the net profits, which amount should be separately shown for each partner or member in column 4. (See section 155 of the Revenue Act of 1934.)

Credit for taxes.—If interest was received on tax-free covenant bonds in connection with which an ownership certificate on Form 1000 was filed, the tax of 2 percent paid at the source on such interest should be allocated to the partners anbers in column 6

or mumbers in column 6.

If income tax paid to a foreign country or a possession of the United States is extered in column 7, submit Form 1116 with this return with a receipt for each such tax payment. In case the amount entered is column 7 includes forcing taxes accrued but not paid, attach to the form a certified copy of the return on which the taxes were hased. The Commissioner may require the partners or members to give a bond on Form 1117 for the payment of any additional tax found due if the foreign tax when paid differs from the amount claimed.

26. NONTAXABLE OBLIGATIONS, LIBERTY BONDS, ETC.

28. NONIAAABLE UBLIGATIONS, LIBERTI BOTILS, ETC.

Enter on the proper lines in column 2 of Schedule II the amount of obligations
or securities owned, including the share of such obligations owned in another
partnership, syndicate, group, etc., and in column 3 the interest thereon. Each
partner or member should be advised as to the amount of his share of these
obligations and of the interest, in order that he may include this information
in his individual iscome tax return and determine whether such interest is
solved to face.

27. RETURNS BY PARTNERSHIPS, ETC.

Every domestic partnership (including syndicates, grotivs, pools, joint ventures, or other uniscorporated organizations, through or by means of which any business, financial operation, or venture is carried on, and which are not, within the meaning of the Revenue Act of 1934, frusts, estates, or corporations) and every foreign partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., doing business within the Ditted States or in receipt of income from sources therein regardless of the amount, shall make a return of income on Form 1965 for the calendar year 1934 or for a fixed year begun in 1938 and coded in 1935. Ges section 801 (a) (3) and Supplement F of the Revenue Act of 1934). If this return is filled on behalf of a syndicate, of the Revenue Act of 1934 in the return is filled on behalf of a syndicate, but the state of the Act of 1934 in the proper state of the Section of the Sect

be attached to this return.

Every person required to file an income return shall file with his return, whether
taxable or nontaxable, a statement upon Form 1994 of the following items shown
upon the return: (I) Name and address; (2) total gross income, (3) total deductions, (4) net income, (5) total credits against net income for purposes of normal
tax, and (6) tax payable. In zess of any failure to file such statement with the
return, the collector shall prepare it from the return, and \$3 shall be added to

28. PERIOD TO BE COVERED BY RETURN

Except in the case of the first return the organization shall make its return on the basis upon which the return was made for the accounting period immediately preceding unless, with the approval of the Commissioner, a change is

maker by recounting period.

If the organization desires to change it as ecounting period in a maker in the accounting period.

If the organization desires to change it as ecounting period from sear layer to account of the control oposed accounting period.

29. ACCRUED OR RECEIVED INCOME

If the books of account are kept on an accoral basis, report all income accrued, even though it has not been actually received or entered on the books, and expenses incurred instead of expenses paid.

If the books are not kept on the accrual basis, report all income received or constructively received, such a bank interest credited to the account of the organization, and expenses paid.

30. AFFIDAVITS

Partner or member.—The return shall be sworn to by any one of the partners or members. If receivers, trustees in bankruptcy, or assignees are in control of the property or business of the organization, such receivers, trustees, or assignees stall execute the return under cath.

Where return is prepared by someone other than the organization.—Question 1 on page 1 of the return abould be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the organization, such person or persons must execute the affidavit at the foot of page 2 of the return. An attempt or agent employed to represent the organization before the Department in connection with tax matters is not permitted to administer the oath.

31. WHEN AND WHERE THE RETURN MUST BE FILED

31. WHEN AND WHERE THE RETURN MUST BE FILED
The return must be filed on or before the filteenth day of the third month
following the close of the taxable year with the collector of internal revenue for
the district in which the organization has its principal office or place of business.
The return for a foreign partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., shall be filed on or
before the fifteenth day of the sixth month following the close of the taxable year
with the Collector of Internal Revenue, Baittimore, Maryland.

On the collector of the property of the collector

32. PENALTIES

For willful failure to make a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000, or imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both, together with the costs of

For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 5 years, or both, together with the costs of

33. INFORMATION AT SOURCE

Every partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., making payments of salaries (other than salaries paid to the partners or members), wages, interest, reats, commissions, or other fixed or determinable income of \$10,000 or more during the calendar year, to a single person, another partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., or a fiduciary, or \$2,000 or more to a married person, is required to make a return on Forms 1908 and 1909, showing the amount of such payments and the name and address of each recipient. These forms will be furnished by any collector of internal revenue upon request. Such returns covering the calendar year 1934 minst be forwarded to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Sorting Section, Washington, D. C., in time to be received not later than February 15, 1935.

	Page
Additional tax, Estate tax returns	45-49
Agriculture and related industries; Individual income tax returns; Net	
income of \$5,000 and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16-17
By size of profit and loss	75
Amended returns tabulated; Individual income tax returns	2
Amusements; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and	
over. (See Service.)	
Average net income; Individual income tax returns by States	59
Average tax per return; Individual income tax returns:	20
Net income classes	60
States	59
Average tax rate; Individual income tax returns: Net income classes	0.
Net income classes	61
Years, 1916 to 1934	26
В	
Bonds. (See Stocks and bonds, Estate tax returns; Gift tax returns.)	
Business profit and loss:	
Individual income tax returns:	
Amount and percent	9
Net income classes10-11,	71, 73
No net income:	. ,
$\textbf{Amount}_{____________________$	21
Deficit classes	6-107
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
States	68, 70°
Years, 1916 to 1934	27 - 31
Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	
Explanatory text	14-15
Frequency distribution:	10
By size classes	13
By size of business profit and lossBy size of business profit and loss and by industrial groups16-17,	75 90
By size of business profit and loss and by industrial groups.	75-80
Returns with Schedule A	16 17
Returns without Schedule A	16 17
Salaries and wages paid.	16_17
Total receipts	16_17
Net income classes	10_11
Years, 1916 to 1934	29-31
	20 01
\mathbf{c}	
Capital gain and loss; Individual income tax returns:	
Explanatory text	8
Income from:	
Years, 1922 to 1934	27 - 28
Years, 1922 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
Income and loss from:	_
Amount and percent	
Frequency distribution, net income of \$5,000 and over:	
Frequency distribution, net income of \$5,000 and over: By net income classes By size of capital gain and loss	10-11
By size of capital gain and loss	14
107	

Capital gain and loss; Individual income tax returns—Continued.	
Income and loss from—Continued. Net income classes	Page
Net income classes10-11, No net income:	71, 73
Amount	21
Deficit classes10	
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
States	
Tax credit for capital loss, years 1924 to 1933	23
Tax on capital gain, years 1922 to 1933	23
Capital net gain. (See Capital gain and loss.)	
Capital net loss. (See Capital gain and loss.)	
Capital stock in estate tax returns by net estate classes. Changes in tax laws affecting comparability of statistical data:	36-43
Changes in tax laws affecting comparability of statistical data:	0 101
Estate tax returns 12	$\frac{121}{122}$
Gift tax returns11	
Charitable bequests:	2-119
Estate tax returns:	
By net estate classes	36-43
By net estate classes	30 10
Acts	36-38
Cift tay returns:	
By net gift classes	54
By total gift classes Chemicals and allied products; Individual income tax returns; Net income	55 - 56
Chemicals and allied products; Individual income tax returns; Net income	
of \$5,000 and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16-17
Profit and loss from businessCities and counties, number of individual income tax returns byCommunity property income: Individual income tax returns:	21
Number and not income: Individual income tax returns:	7
Number and net income	67
States	65
Comparability with previous years	5
Comparability with previous yearsConstruction: Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and	Ŭ
over:	
Profit and loss from business.	
By size of profit and lossContributions; Individual income tax returns:	76
Contributions; Individual income tax returns:	•
Amount and percentFrequency distribution by net income classes; net income of \$5,000 and	9
Frequency distribution by net income classes; net income of \$5,000 and	11
over Net income classes	11
No net income:	11
Amount of deduction for	21
By deficit classes	107
By deficit classes	12
States	70
Years, 1917, 1920, 1922 to 1934	27-31
Counties and cities, number of individual income tax returns by	21
Credits:	44 40
Estate tax returns	44-49
Dependents	7, 61
Dividends on stock of domestic corporations	7, 68
Earned income	7, 61
Interest on Government obligations not wholly exempt from	•, •.
tax	7, 69
Personal exemption	7, 61
Personal exemption Personal exemption and credit for dependents, by States	59
Tax credits, years 1923 to 1933 Cumulative distribution; Individual income tax returns; Number, net	23
Cumulative distribution; Individual income tax returns; Number, net	22 22
income, and tax	62–63
and over. (See Service.)	

Debts, unpaid mortgages, etc.; Estate tax returns:	Page
By net estate classesBy taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue Acts_	36-43
	36-38
Deductions: Estate tax returns:	
Ry not estate classes 30	40_43
By net estate classes 39, By taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue	10 10
Acts	36-38
Gift tax returns:	
By net gift classes	54
By total gift classes	55 - 56
Individual income tax returns:	
Amount and percent	9
Business loss 9, 11, 12,	70, 73
Contributions 9, 11, 12, Frequency distribution; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	10, 14
By not income classes	71
Industrial groups	75-80
Interest paid 9, 11, 12,	70, 74
Net capital loss 9, 11, 12,	70, 73
Net income classes	73 - 74
No net income:	
Amount	21
Deficit classes10	06-107
Partnership loss	70, 73
Sources of income and deduction, revised forumer for 1020 (fact	12
note 18)	31
States	$\frac{31}{70}$
Tayor naid 0 11 19	70 74
Years, 1916 to 1934	-28, 31
77 / 2010 1 1001	00 91
Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
Years, 1916 to 193427- Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over Deficit; Individual income tax returns:	
Amount	20. 21
Amount	20. 21
Amount By deficit classes 20, 10 Defined	20, 21 $6-107$ 3
By deficit classes	20. 21
By deficit classes	20, 21 06–107 3 106
By deficit classes	20, 21 $6-107$ 3
Amount By deficit classes 20, 10 Defined States Dependents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable	20, 21 96–107 3 106
Amount By deficit classes 20, 10 Defined States Dependents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable	20, 21 06–107 3 106
Amount By deficit classes 20, 16 Defined States Dependents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Dividends on stock of domestic corporations; Individual income tax returns:	20, 21 06-107 3 106 7 61
Amount By deficit classes 20, 16 Defined States Dependents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Dividends on stock of domestic corporations; Individual income tax returns:	20, 21 96–107 3 106
Amount By deficit classes 20, 10 Defined States Dependents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Dividends on stock of domestic corporations; Individual income tax returns; Amount and percent Frequency distribution: Net income of \$5,000 and over:	20, 21 96-107 3 106 7 61 7, 9
Deneit; Individual income tax returns: Amount By deficit classes Copendents, credit for; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Net income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Dividends on stock of domestic corporations; Individual income tax returns; Amount and percent Frequency distribution; Net income of \$5,000 and over: By net income classes	20, 21 26–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72
Amount	20, 21 36-107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96–107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68
Amount	20, 21 96-107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29-31
Amount	20, 21 96-107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 11 106 12 68 -28, 31 29-31
Amount	20, 21 96-107 3 106 7 61 7, 9 10, 72 14 10, 72 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29-31

Engineering service; Individual income tax returns; Net income \$5,000	
and over. (See Service.) Estate tax returns:	Page
	32-35
Resident decedents:	
Nontaxable:	
Deductions.	36-37
Form of propertyGross estate	36-37
Number of returns:	- i->#
By Revenue Acts under which filed	36-38
Bv States	48-49
Revenue Acts under which filed	
StatesTaxable:	48-49
Additional tax:	
By Revenue Acts under which filed	45-47
By States	48 - 49
Deductions 36–38, 39,	40-43
Form of property	36-43
Net estate	-49, 50 -40, 50.
Number of returns:	-45, 50
By Revenue Acts under which filed 36-38, 39-40.	42-47
By States	48 - 49
Revenue Acts under which filed	37-49
States	48-49
Tax credits: By net estate classes	44_47
By States	48-49
Tax liability:	
By net estate classes	44-47
By Revenue Acts under which filed 36-38,	44-47
By StatesResident and nonresident decedents; Taxable and nontaxable:	48-49
Rates, specific exemption and credits against tax, Revenue Acts	
1916 to 1934	20-121
Years, 1916 to 1935, Historical summary	50
Excess-profits tax:	
Individual income tax returns (footnote 4)	23 23
Partnership returns (footnote 4)Exemptions:	⊿ 3
Estate tax returns	36-47
Gift tax returns	55 - 56
Individual income tax returns:	_
Amount	7
Net income classesStates	
Exclusions: Gift tax returns	
	01 00
, F	
Family relationship; Individual income tax returns. (See Sex and family	
relationship.)	
Fiduciary income; Individual income tax returns:	^
Amount and percent	9 8
DefinedFrequency distribution by net income classes, net income of \$5,000	8
and over	10
Net income classes	10, 72

Fiduciary income; Individual income tax returns—Continued.	
No net income:	Page
Amount	21
Deficit classes	106
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
States	69
Years, 1916, 1922–193427	-28 31
Years, 1916, 1922–1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	20,31
Finance; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over	
Professional least from business by submount	10 17
Profit and loss from business by subgroups	10-17
By size of profit and loss	79-80
Fiscal year returns; Individual income tax returns	2
Food and kindred products: Individual income tax returns; Net income of	
\$5,000 and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16-17
Profit and loss from business	
over:	
Profit and loss from business	16_17
Forms for 1934:	10 11
	96 191
Individual income tax returns, 1040, 1040A	40-101
Partnership return, 10651 Frequency distribution; Individual income tax returns; Net income of	32-135
Frequency distribution; Individual income tax returns; Net income of	
\$5,000 and over:	
Explanatory text	13
Industrial groups	16-17
Profit and loss from business	
Size of certain items of income and deduction	13-14
Sources of income by net income classes	10-11
Funeral and administrative expenses; Estate tax returns:	10 11
Pur not actata classes	20 42
By net estate classes	39-43
By taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue	
Acts	36-38
${f G}$	
	_
Gains and losses (Capital): Individual income tax returns	8
Gains and losses (Capital): Individual income tax returns	8 3-4
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns	3-4
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns	3-4 1-5
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns.	3-4 1-5
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns:	3-4 1-5 4
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns	3-4 1-5 4 54-56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Excemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 122
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932 Tax 52	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 122 54, 56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932 Tax 52	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 122 54, 56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Tax. 52 Total gift classes.	3-4 $1-5$ 4 $54-56$ $54-56$ $54-56$ $50-52$ $53-54$ 52 $53-54$ 52 122 $54, 56$ $55-56$
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors. Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932 Tax	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 55-56 52 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns General definitions; Individual income tax returns General explanations; Individual income tax returns Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns Gift tax returns: Deductions Exemption Exclusions Explanatory text Forms of property Identical donors. Net gift classes Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932 Tax	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 55-56 52 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government, securities, wholly, and partially tax-exempt: Individual	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 55-56 52 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.)	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 55-56 52 52
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns:	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 55-56 55-56
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 122 54, 56 55-56 52 39-43
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 52, 54, 56 52 52 52 39-43 48-49
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 48-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 48-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 48-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 48-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by. Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents. H	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 48-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents. H Heads of families, classified; Individual income tax returns:	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 55-56 52 52 39-43 48-49 36-37 50
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents. H Heads of families, classified; Individual income tax returns: Number and net income.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 122 54, 56 55-56 52 39-43 48-49 36-37
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents. H Heads of families, classified; Individual income tax returns:	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 53-54 52 52 52 39-43 48-49 36-37 50
Gains and losses (Capital); Individual income tax returns. General definitions; Individual income tax returns. General explanations; Individual income tax returns. Geographic distribution; Individual income tax returns. Gift tax returns: Deductions. Exemption. Exclusions. Explanatory text. Forms of property. Identical donors. Net gift classes. Number of returns, taxable and nontaxable. Rates, Revenue Acts 1924 and 1932. Tax. Total gift classes. Trust, amount by Years, 1932–1934. Government securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Gross estate; Estate tax returns: Net estate classes. States, citizen or resident decedents. Taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts. Years, 1916 to 1935, resident and nonresident decedents. H Heads of families, classified; Individual income tax returns: Number and net income.	3-4 1-5 4 54-56 54-56 50-52 53-54 52 122 54, 56 55-56 52 39-43 48-49 36-37 66-67

Historical Summaries:	•
Estate tax returns: Resident and nonresident, 1916 to 1935	Page 50
Gift tax returns:	50
Years, 1932 to 1934	52
Individual income tax returns: Average rate of tax, 1916 to 1934	26
Net income by net income classes, 1916 to 1934	24-25
Number by net income classes, 1914 to 1934	23-24
Number by net income classes, 1914 to 1934	27-31 21-105
Tax, 1916 to 1934	25-26
Years, 1913 to 1934	23
Husbands and wives; Individual income tax returns: Number and net income Nut income classes	7
Net income classes	66-67
States	
I	
Income. (See Individual income.)	
Income tax. (See Individual income tax.)	
Income tax rates. (See Synopsis of income and profits tax rates.) Income tax returns. (See Individual income tax returns.)	
Individual income:	
Net:	-
Amount and percent	5 5 59
Average per return	62-63
Defined	3
Exempt from normal tax	7 60–61
Net income classes11, Net income classes and by sex and family relationship	66-67
Net income classes and by States	64-65
Percentage distribution by net income classesSex and family relationship	12
Simple and cumulative distribution by net income classes.	62-63
Sources of income 59, 8	70-74
States and by sex and family relationship.	64 - 65
Subject to normal tax	7
Years, 1913 to 1934, amount Years, 1916 to 1934, by net income classes	22
Years, 1924 to 1934, and by States.	$24-25 \\ 81-105$
Nontaxable, under \$6,000:	
Net income classes and by States	60 21 105
Sources of:	
Amount and percentFrequency distribution by size of certain items of income and	9
Frequency distribution by size of certain items of income and deductions.	12_14
Net income classes 10-11,	71-74
No net income:	
Amount	$21 \\ 06-107$
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
Profit and loss from business by size of profit and loss by industrial groups	
Revised figures for 1929 (footnote 18)	75-80 31
States	68 - 70
Years, 1916 to 1934 27-	-28. 31
Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and overTotal:	29–31
Amount and percent	9
Net income classes	11, 73
No net income:	21
Deficit classes	107
Percentage distribution, by net income classes	12

Individual income—Continued.	
	ag
States	6
Years, 1916 to 1934 27-28 Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over 29	, 3.
Tears, 1910 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over 29	−ა.
Individual income tax (see also Excess-profits tax): Amount, average per return, and rate on net income	
Amount, average per return, and rate on het income	•
For 1934 and 1933	,
Net income classes	60
States	59
Average rate of tay on net income:	•
Net income classes	6
Years, 1916 to 1934, and by net income classes	26
Comparison 1934 with 1933	į
Credits (see also Credits)	23
Cumulative distribution by net income classes	6
Net income classes 6, 60,	6
Net income classes and by States81-	10
Normal tax:	
Net income classes	60
Rates, Revenue Acts 1913 to 1934	
Years, 1913 to 1934Simple and cumulative distribution by net income classes6,	$\frac{28}{68}$
States 59, 81-	100
Surtax:	LU
Net income classes.	60
Rates, Revenue Acts 1913 to 1934 116-1	
Years, 1913 to 1934	28
Total:	_
Net income classes 6, 60,	63
States 59. 81-1	10.
Years, 1913 to 1934	28
Years, 1916 to 1934, and by net income classes 25-	-2€
Years, 1924 to 1934 by States81-Individual income tax returns (see also Individual income; Individual	105
Individual income tax returns (see also Individual income; Individual	
income tax):	
Changes in tax laws affecting comparability of statistical data 112-1	117
Credits112-113, 118-1	116
Personal exemption 112-1 Rates, Revenue Acts 1913 to 1934; Excess-profits; Normal tax;	LIZ
Surtax	10
Requirements for filing returns 112-1	119
Requirements for filing returns112-1 Supplemental rates and tax credits, Revenue Acts 1917 to	
1934 118-1	119
Comparison 1934 with 1933 returns	5
Credit for dependents by net income classes	61
Deductions in. (See Deductions.)	
Earned income credit 23.	61
Fiscal year returns tabulated	- 2
Earned income credit. 23, Fiscal year returns tabulated Geographic distribution.	4
Method of compiling data: net income under \$5,000	2 4 2–3
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	2-3
Geographic distribution Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000 Net income classes and, under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns 60-	2-3
Geographic distribution Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000 Net income classes and, under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Net income classes, by States, and under \$6,000, by taxable and	2-3 -61
Geographic distribution Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000 Net income classes and, under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns 60- Net income classes, by States, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable 81-1	2-3 -61
Geographic distribution Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000 Net income classes and, under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Net income classes, by States, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable No net income: 81-1	2-3 -61 .05
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	2-3 -61 .05
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	$\begin{array}{c} 48 \\ -3 \\ -61 \\ .05 \\ .07 \\ .07 \end{array}$
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	2-3 -61 .05
Geographic distribution Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000 Net income classes and, under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable returns Net income classes, by States, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxable No net income: Deficit classes 20, 106-1 Sources of income and deduction States, number of returns and amount of deficit Number of:	$\begin{array}{c} 48 \\ -3 \\ -61 \\ .05 \\ .07 \\ .07 \end{array}$
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	2-3 -61 .05 .07 .06 21
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	2-3 -61 .05 .07 .06 21
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	$\begin{array}{c} 4 \\ -3 \\ -61 \\ 05 \\ 07 \\ 06 \\ 21 \\ 62 \\ 12 \end{array}$
Method of compiling data; net income under \$5,000	$\begin{array}{c} 4 \\ -3 \\ -61 \\ 05 \\ 07 \\ 06 \\ 21 \\ 62 \\ 14 \end{array}$

Individual income tax returns—Continued.	_
Number of—Continued. Net income classes23-24, 60, Net income classes, by years, 1914 to 1934	Page
Net income classes 23–24, 60,	71-74
Net income classes, by years, 1914 to 1934	23-24
No net income2	20, 100
Sex and raminy relationship	60 69
Sex and family relationship 7, Simple and cumulative distribution 6, Sources of income and deduction 10-12, 29-30,	71_74
States 50 income and deduction 50 64_65 68_70 9	11-1% 21-105
States 59, 64-65, 68-70, 8 Taxable and nontaxable returns, by years, 1916 to 1934	22
Years, 1913 to 1934	$\tilde{2}\tilde{2}$
Years, 1934 and 1933 compared	5
Years, 1924–1934, by States	1-105
Years, 1924-1934, by States Percentage of population filing returns, by States	59
Personal exemption and credit for dependents, by States	59
Personal exemption by net income classes	61
Population by States	59
Procedure in tabulation	1-5
Sex and family relationship.	
Amount and percent	7
Net income classes, and, under \$6,000 by taxable and nontaxable.	66-67
States	64 - 65
StatesSimple and cumulative distribution by net income classes	62-63
Sources of income and deductions:	
Amount and percent.	9
Explanatory text	8–9
Frequency distribution; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	10 10
By net income classes By size of certain items of income and deduction	10-12
By size of certain items of income and deduction	75 90
By size of profit and loss from business	73-60
No net income:	11-14
Amount	_ 21
Deficit classes10	16-107
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
States	68-70
Years, 1916 to 1934 27-	-28. 31
Years, 1916 to 1934 27- Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
States 59.8	31–105
Tax-exempt obligations	18-19
Unaudited returns tabulated Years, by net income classes	2
Years, by net income classes	23-24
Years, 1913 to 1934Individuals required to file returns, 1913 to 19341	22–23
Individuals required to file returns, 1913 to 1934 11	12-113
Insurance:	
Estate tax returns:	20 42
By net estate classesBy taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue	39-43
Acts	36_38
Cift tay raturns by not gift alassas	52 53
Gift tax returns by net gift classes	J2, JJ
ual income tax returns:	
Amount and percent	7, 9
Net income classes11,	19.72
No net income:	10, 12
Amount	21
Deficit classes	$1\overline{0}\overline{6}$
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
States	69
Years, 1919 to 1934. 27- Years, 1919 to 1934; Net income of \$5,000 and over.	-28, 31
Years, 1919 to 1934; Net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
Interest other than tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns:	
Amount and percent	9
Net income classes 11,	19, 72
No net income:	
Amount	21
Deficit classes	106

Interest other than tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns—Con. Percentage distribution by net income classes States Years, 1927 to 1934 Years, 1927 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over Interest paid; Individual income tax returns:	29–31
Amount and percent	9 9 11, 74
Amount	21 107 12 70 28 30–31
Estate tax returns: By net estate classes By taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue Acts	36-38
Gift tax returns	52, 53
J	
Joint returns of husbands and wives; Individual income tax returns: Number and amount of net income	66-67 64-65
${f L}$	
Labor: Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business by industrial groups Leather and its manufactures: Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	16–17
Profit and loss from business	16-17
Liberty bonds, Treasury certificates, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount owned and interest received by net income classes Liquors and beverages; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	18–19
Profit and loss from business: Loss from business; Individual income tax returns. (See Profit and loss from business.)	16–17
Loss from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Years, 1926 to 1933	-28, 31
M	20-01
Manufacturing; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and	
over: Profit and loss from business by subgroups By size of profit and loss Manufacturing not elsewhere classified; Individual income tax returns; Net	16-17 76
income of \$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business Men; Individual income tax returns;	16-17
Number of amount of net income Net income classes States	

Metal and its products; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business Mining and quarrying; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	Page 16-17
Profit and loss from business	76
By net estate classes	39–43 36–38
N	
National Industrial Recovery Act	2
By size of profit and loss	80
Net capital gain; Individual income tax returns. (See Capital gain and loss.)	
Net capital loss; Individual income tax returns. (See Capital gain and lo Net estate: Estate tax returns (see also Estate tax returns):	
DefinedNet estate classes	$\frac{32}{44-47}$
Revenue Acts	44-47
Years, 1916 to 1935	50
Net income exempt from normal tax; Individual income tax returns:	7
Amount and percent	•
come tax.) North Dakota, Revised figures for sources of income and deductions for 1929 (see footnote 18)	31
0	
Obligations of States and Territories; Individual income tax returns: Amount owned and interest received, by net income classes. Obligations of the United States and its possessions, etc.: Individual income tax returns:	18–19
Amount owned and interest received, by net income classes	18~19
Other income; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	9
Net income classes	11, 73
Amount	21
Deficit classesPercentage distribution by net income classes	$\frac{106}{12}$
States	69
Years, 1927 to 1934. 27- Years, 1927 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	-28, 31
Other taxable interest; Individual income tax returns:	29~31
Amount and percent	10. 79
Net income classes	19, 72
Amount	21
Deficit classesPercentage distribution by net income classes	$\begin{array}{c} 106 \\ 12 \end{array}$
States	69
Years, 1927 to 1934. 27- Years, 1927 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	-28, 31 29-31

Paper, pulp, and products; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business	Page 16-17
Profit and loss from business Partially tax-exempt obligations; Individual income tax returns (see also Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations) Partnership returns of income, number of, 1917 to 1934 Limitalian and the second	18-19
Partnership profit and loss; Individual income tax returns: Amount of profit and loss, and percentages Defined Frequency distribution by net income classes; net income of \$5,000	9
and over	71, 73 70, 73
Net income classes	-11, 70 21
Deficit classes 10 Percentage distribution by net income classes 11	$06-1\overline{07}$
Profit, by net income classes	68-70
Years, 1917 to 1934 27- Years, 1917 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	$-28, \overline{31} \\ 29-31$
Personal exemption; Individual income tax returns:	
Amount and percentNet income classes, and under \$6,000, by taxable and nontaxableStates	$\begin{array}{c} 7 \\ 61 \\ 59 \end{array}$
Personal exemption and credit for dependents; Individual income tax returns	59 59
Power of appointment; Estate tax returns by net estate classes (footnotes)	
Net income of \$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business: Profit and loss from business; Individual income tax returns. (See Business)	
ness profit and loss.) Profit from sale of real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.; Individual income tax returns:	
Years, 1926 to 1933	36-43
Q	11, 10
Quarrying; Individual income tax returns. (See Mining and quarrying.)	
Real estate:	
Estate tax returns: By net estate classes By taxable and nontaxable returns filed under various Revenue	39-43
ActsGift tax returns by total gifts, and net gift classes	36-38 52, 53
Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over. (See Finance.) Rents and royalties; Individual income tax returns:	,
Amount and percent	9
By net income classesBy size of rents and royalties	$\frac{10}{14}$
Net income classes	10, 72

Rents and royalties; Individual income tax returns—Continued.	
No net income:	Page
Amount	$\begin{array}{c} 21 \\ 106 \end{array}$
Deficit classesPercentage distribution by net income classes	120
States	68
Years, 1916 to 1934	28. 31
Years, 1916 to 1934. 27- Years, 1916 to 1934, net income of \$5,000 and over	29-31
Requirements for filing individual income tax returns	2-113
Retail trade; Individual income tax returns. (See Trade.)	
Returns tabulated; Individual income tax returns	1-3
Returns on form 1040; No net income; Individual income tax returns:	90
Deficit classesSources of income and deductions21, 10	2U 107
States	106
Revenue Acts, 1913 to 1934:	100
Estate tax returns; Tax rates, specific exemption, and credits against	
estate tax	20-121
Excess-profits tax rates; War and	8-119
Gift tax returns: Tax rates, specific exemption, exclusions	122
Individual income tax returns:	
Required to file return; personal exemption; credit for dependents	0 119
and normal tax rates11 Supplemental income and profits tax rates and tax credits11	2-113 2-110
Surtax rates11	6-117
Revised figures for 1929—Sources of income and deduction (footnote 18)	31
Royalties. (See Rents and royalties.)	_
Rubber products; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000	
and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16-17
^	
${f s}$	
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.: Individual income tax returns:	9
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent Frequency distribution; Net income of \$5,000 and over: By net income classes By size of salaries, wages, commissions, etc Net income classes No net income: Amount Deficit classes Percentage distribution by net income classes	10 13 10, 71 21
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31 16–17
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31 16–17
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31 16–17 3
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31 16–17 3
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29–31 16–17 3
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 628, 31 29–31 16–17 77–79
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 122 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79 766-67 64-65
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 122 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79 766-67 64-65
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 122 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79 766-67 64-65
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 62-28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79 766-67 64-65 62-63
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 122 68 -28, 31 29-31 16-17 77-79 766-67 64-65 62-63 98-10
Salaries, wages, commissions, fees, etc.; Individual income tax returns: Amount and percent	10 13 10, 71 21 106 12 62, 31 29–31 16–17 77–79 766–67 64–65 62–63 8–10

Sources of income and deductions; Individual income tax returns—Con.	
No net income:	Page
Amount Deficit classes 10	2) 105–105
Percentage distribution by net income classes	12
thevised lightes for 1929 (toothore 10)	91
States	68-70
Years, 1916 to 1934 27- Years, 1916 to 1934; Net income of \$5,000 and over	-28, 31 20 <u>-</u> 31
State and local securities; Individual income tax returns	18-19
State and municipal hands: Estate tay returns:	
By net estate classes By taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue Acts.	39-43
Stocks and bonds:	30-37
Estate tay returns:	
By net estate classes By taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue	39 - 43
By taxable and nontaxable returns, filed under various Revenue	00 05
ActsGift tax returns, by total gifts and net gift classes	50-37 52 53
Stone, clay, and glass products; Individual income tax returns; Net income	02, 00
of \$5,000 and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16-17
Surtax. (See Individual income tax.) Surtax net income; Individual income tax returns	1
Synopsis of Federal income and profit tax rates; Estate and Gift tax rates:	1
Credits and exemptions, affecting comparability of data in Statistics	
of Income10	9-122
Т	
Tax credits:	
Earned income, years 1924 to 1931	23
Capital net loss, years 1924 to 1933	23
Taxes. (See Estate tax; Gift tax; Individual income tax.) Taxes paid; Individual income tax returns:	
Amount and percent	9
Defined	9
Frequency distribution by net income classes.	11
Net income classes	11, 74
Amount	21
Deficit classes	107
	12
and overStates	70
Years, 1933 and 1934	28
Years, 1933 and 1934, Net income of \$5,000 and over	30–31
Tax-exempt income. (See Dividends; Exemptions; Obligations; Tax-exempt investments.)	
Tax-exempt interest. (See Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations.)	
Tax-exempt investments:	
Estate tax returnsIndividual income tax returns by net income classes	36–43 19 10
Tax forms for 1934: 1040, 1040A, 1065	10–19 6–135
Tentative tax. Estate tax returns	45-47
Textiles and their products; Individual income tax returns; Net income of	
\$5,000 and over: Profit and loss from business	16_17
Tobacco products: Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000	10-11
and over:	
Profit and loss from business	16–17
Trade: Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over:	16_17
Profit and loss from business by subgroups	77
By size of profit and loss	• •
notes) 38,	41 43

150 INDEX

Trusts; Gift tax returns, by form of property	52
U	
United States Government bonds, wholly and partially tax-exempt; Individual income tax returns; Net income of \$5,000 and over. (See Wholly and partially tax-exempt obligations.)	
W	
Explanatory text	7 67 65 7

O

U. S. TREASURY DEPARTMENT

BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1934

PART 2

COMPILED FROM CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS AND PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANY **RETURNS**

> PREPARED UNDER DIRECTION OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE BY THE STATISTICAL SECTION, INCOME TAX UNIT



UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE WASHINGTON: 1937

CONTENTS

	Page
Official transmittal	1-44
Official transmittal CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS—GENERAL	
Explanations	1-4
Returns tabulated	1-2
General definitions	2-4
Industrial classification	4
Geographic distribution	4 4
Comparability with previous reports Corporation Income and Excess-Profits Tax Returns:	4
Number of returns, net income or deficit, and tax	4-5
By major industrial groups	5-7
By net income and deficit classes	7-8
Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of	• • •
the United States, reported as a tax credit, 1925 to 1934	8-9
Dividends paid, 1922 to 1934	9-11
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions Corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets	11-13
Corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets	12 - 13
Assets and liabilities	13-18
Assets and liabilitiesCorporations submitting balance sheets, returns with net income	
and no net income	14
Number of corporation returns filed and number of balance sheets	
tabulated by net income and deficit classes.	15
Gross capital assets, reserves for depreciation and depletion (ex-	
cept on land), and net capital assets, by major industrial groups.	10 12
Assets and liabilities and compiled receipts and compiled deductions, by total assets classes	10-17
Dy total assets classes	17-18
Returns showing net income and no net income Comparability of the data tabulated from corporation returns for	10
1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing	
consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934	19-29
consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934	10 -0
filed for 1933	19
filed for 1933 Major reasons for lack of strict comparability of 1934 and	
1933 data	19 –20
Number of returns, net income, deficit and tax for returns	
with net income and no net income:	
By industrial groups classified on business reported on	01.00
returns for 1934	21-22
By industrial groups classified on business reported on	22-24
consolidated returns for 1933Number of returns in each industrial group in which the	22-2 4
returns for 1934 and the consolidated returns for 1933 were	
classified	25-27
Textual discussion of receipts, deductions, assets and liabilities,	20 20
by industrial groups, for 1933 consolidated returns, 1933 returns	
which were not consolidated, 1934 returns of corporations for	
which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, and 1934 re-	
turns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not	
filed for 1933	27 - 29
Consolidated returns	29 - 32
By major industrial groupsBy net income and deficit classes	31
By net income and deficit classes	32
By number of subsidiaries	32
Fiscal year returns By month in which fiscal year ended	32-33
By month in which fiscal year ended	33
by net income and dencit classes	00
Part year returns	34
Taxes paid other than income tax and cost of goods sold, Statistics of	34
Income for 1933	ა4:

IV CONTENTS

	Page
HISTORICAL SUMMARIES, CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS:	
Total number, number with net income and no net income, gross income, net income, deficit, net income less deficit, and total tax, 1909 to 1934	34-36
1909 to 1934 Number of returns, net income and deficit, by net income and deficit	
classes, 1931 to 1934 Number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, 1926	27 20
Returns submitting balance sheets, showing number of balance sheets, assets and liabilities 1926 to 1934, and compiled receipts and com-	
piled deductions 1931 to 1934	39-40
General explanationsNumber of returns, receipts, deductions, adjusted net income, credits,	41–42
undistributed adjusted net income and surtax, by types of returns	43 44
BASIC TABLES	
Corporation Income and Excess-Profits Tax Returns: United States in aggregate (1-7):	
1 By States and Territories	46-47
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, by major in- dustrial groups:	
All returns	48-51 52-55
Returns showing no net income	56-59
3. By major industrial groups and subgroups4. Returns submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups,	00-09
and by returns with net income and no net income, showing	
assets and liabilities and compiled receipts and compiled deductions	66_71
5. Returns submitting balance sheets, by total assets classes,	00-11
showing assets and liabilities and compiled receipts and	
compiled deductions: All returns submitting balance sheets	72-73
All returns submitting balance sheets	74-75
Returns showing no net income	76-77
 Returns submitting balance sheets by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets 	
and liabilities and certain items of receipts for returns with	
net income and no net income	78-95
7. By major industrial groups for returns with net income and	06 100
no net income, 1925 to 1934	ao-100
8. Historical summary, 1925 to 1934	01–111
Comparability of the Data Tabulated from Corporation Returns	
FOR 1934 AND 1933 AS AFFECTED BY THE LIMITATION OF THE PRIVILEGE OF FILING CONSOLIDATED RETURNS IN THE REVENUE ACT OF 1934	
(9-14):	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, by major industrial	
groups and by returns with net income and no net income: 9. Returns for 1933 classified on business reported for 1933:	
Consolidated returns for 1933	14-121
Consolidated returns for 1933 1 Returns which were not consolidated for 1933 1	22 - 129
10. Returns for 1934 classified on business reported for 1934:	
1934 returns for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933	
1934 returns for which consolidated returns were not filed	90–199
for 1933 1	40 - 145
Returns submitting balance sheets by major industrial groups and by	•
returns with net income and no net income showing number of balance sheets, assets and liabilities and compiled receipts and	
compiled deductions:	•
11. Returns for 1933 classified on business reported for 1933:	
Consolidated returns for 1933 1	46-153

ra ₈	, e
COMPARABILITY OF THE DATA TABULATED FROM CORPORATION RETURNS	
FOR 1934 AND 1933, ETC.—Continued.	
Returns submitting balance sheets by major industrial groups and by	
returns with net income and no net income showing number of	
balance sheets, etc.—Continued.	
12. Returns for 1934 classified on business reported for 1934:	
1934 returns for which consolidated returns were filed for	
1933 162-16 1934 returns for which consolidated returns were not filed	9
1934 returns for which consolidated returns were not filed	
for 1933 170-17	
Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were	
filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified by business	
reported on consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net	
income and no net income:	
13. All returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions 178–18	5
14. Returns submitting balance sheets, assets and liabilities, and	
compiled receipts and compiled deductions 186-19	4
FISCAL YEAR RETURNS (15-17):	
Number of returns by major industrial groups and by returns with	
net income and no net income:	_
15. By month in which fiscal year ended 196-19	
16. By net income and deficit classes 200-20	4
17. By total assets classes 205–20	7
REVENUE ACTS OF 1909-1934 AND CERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS OF THE	
NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY ACT (1933)—A SYNOPSIS OF COR-	
PORATION INCOME AND PROFITS TAX RATES AFFECTING THE COMPA-	
RABILITY OF DATA IN "STATISTICS OF INCOME":	_
Income and profits tax rates and credits	3
INCOME TAX FORMS:	
Facsimiles of forms 1120, 1120L, and 1120H for 1934 215-23	ī
Index 233-25	Ł

STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1934

PART 2

CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS AND PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANY RETURNS

TREASURY DEPARTMENT,
OFFICE OF COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Washington, D. C., November 17, 1937.

Sir: In accordance with the provisions contained in the Revenue Act of 1916 and subsequent acts for the publication annually of statistics with respect to the operation of the income, war-profits, and excess-profits tax laws, I have the honor to transmit herewith a report entitled "Statistics of Income for 1934, Part 2," prepared from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns and personal holding company returns for that year filed during 1935, with a historical presentation of the income and tax liability reported by corporations from 1909 to date. (Statistics compiled from individual income tax returns for 1934, and estate tax returns and gift tax returns filed during 1935, were published in the "Statistics of Income for 1934, Part 1," dated November 16, 1936.)

CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS

GENERAL EXPLANATIONS

Returns tabulated.—In general, the corporation income tax returns included in this report are for the calendar year 1934. However, a considerable number of corporation returns are for a fiscal year other than a calendar year. Thus there are included with the returns for the calendar year 1934, returns with fiscal year ended within the period July 1, 1934, to June 30, 1935, and part year returns for which the greater part of the period falls in 1934. The tables, therefore, include calendar, fiscal, and part year returns, except when otherwise specified. Returns for fiscal years beginning in 1933 are filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and the income tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act.

Returns for the calendar year 1934 and for fiscal years ended within the period January 1 to June 30, 1935, are filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934. Among the major changes in this act affecting tabulated data for corporations are the following: Limitation of the privilege of filing a consolidated return to an affiliated group of corporations each of which must be either (a) a corporation whose principal business is that of a common carrier by railroad or (b) a corporation the assets of which consist principally of stock in one or more corporations which are common carriers and which does not itself operate a business other than that of a common carrier by railroad (the term "common carrier by railroad" includes steam and electric

railroads, but excludes street, suburban, and interurban railways and express, refrigerator, and sleeping car companies); an increase in the tax rate for consolidated returns to 15¾ percent; a new definition of capital assets which includes all property held by the taxpayer, regardless of time held, whether or not connected with the trade or business (except stock in trade, property which would ordinarily be included in inventory, or property held for sale to customers in ordinary course of trade or business); and the limitation of deduction for losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets to an amount not in excess of \$2,000, after deducting the gains from sales or exchanges of capital assets, except in the case of banks and trust companies a

substantial part of whose business is the receipt of deposits.

Under the Revenue Act of 1934, the tax on the excess-profits of corporations is levied at the same rates as previously provided in the National Industrial Recovery Act, but with slight modification in the determination of the adjusted declared value of capital stock and in the net income subject to excess-profits tax. No credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities is allowed against net income for the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d), Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934" in Regulations 86, Income Tax, Revenue Act of 1934, p. 412.) The inclusion of such interest in the net income for the computation of the excess-profits tax results, though infrequently, in returns with no net income for corporation income tax purposes showing an excess-profits tax. In the text and basic tables in this report, the amount of excess-profits tax reported on returns with no net income is either shown in a footnote or presented in the body of the table.

The general tables for corporations include, in addition to aggregates for all returns, tabulations for returns showing net income and no net income. The statistics contained in this report are based on the taxpayers' returns as filed, unaudited except for a preliminary

examination to insure proper execution of the returns.

General definitions.—In this report "gross income" corresponds to "total income" reported in item 14 on the face of the return for 1934, plus "cost of goods sold" and "cost of operations," items 2 and 5, respectively, and minus "interest on Liberty Bonds, etc.," item 11 (see form 1120, p. 218). This last item has been deducted from the total income reported on returns for the calendar year ended December 31, 1934 and for fiscal years ended on or before June 30, 1935, so that "gross income" will include the same items as in prior years. "Deductions" correspond to "total deductions" reported in item 26 on the face of the return for 1934, plus "cost of goods sold" and "cost of operations," items 2 and 5, respectively (see form 1120, p. 218). "Net income" shown in the tables in this report means the amount of income subject to income tax and represents the amount of gross income in excess of the deductions, and the "deficit" represents excess of deductions over gross income.

Throughout this report the term "total compiled deductions" is substituted for "total statutory deductions" in former reports, but consists of identical items. Likewise, other changes in terminology without effect upon the comparability of the amounts are as follows: "Compiled deficit" is changed to "compiled net loss," "statutory net

income or deficit" is changed to "net income or deficit," "miscellaneous receipts" and "miscellaneous deductions" are changed to "other receipts" and "other deductions," and "miscellaneous assets" and "miscellaneous liabilities" are changed to "other assets" and "other liabilities."

The amount tabulated as "income tax" means tax liability reported prior to allowance of credit claimed for income tax paid to a foreign country or United States possession. The amount of tax liability as reported on the returns for 1934 and shown in the tabulations in this volume is not entirely comparable with the amount of taxes collected during the calendar year 1935. Several factors are responsible for the difference in the taxes collected and the tax liability reported on the returns, among which are the following:

1. The amount of tax originally reported on the returns does not always represent precisely the amount of tax paid, for the reason that an adjustment may be made as the result of an audit of the returns. These adjustments may result in additional assessments, thereby increasing the tax liability, or in certificates of overassessments, representing abatements and credits, which reduce the tax liability originally reported. An amended return has the same effect

as an adjustment.

2. Income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States, under certain limitations, are applied as a credit against the income tax payable to the United States or as a deduction from gross income. The amount of such taxes taken as a credit against the income tax liability to the United States has not been deducted from the amount of income tax liability shown in the tabulations in this report. The aggregate amount of such taxes paid to foreign countries or possessions of the United States taken as a credit by corporations, 1925 to 1934, is, however, shown on page 9.

3. Income tax paid at source on tax-free covenant bonds is included in the corporation income tax collections, due to the tax being assessed against the debtor corporation notwithstanding the fact that

it is paid on behalf of individual holders of bonds.

4. The amount of taxes on fiscal year returns shown in this report may not represent taxes collected during 1935 on such returns. Fiscal year returns are required to be filed on or before the 15th day of the third month after the end of the fiscal year, and payment, as in the case of calendar year returns, is required at the time the return is filed, or in four quarterly installments. The first of the quarterly installments is due when the return is filed. Thus, during the calendar year 1935, collections were made of part or all of the taxes reported on returns for fiscal years ended from January 31, 1934 (the last quarterly installment payment on which was due on or before January 15, 1935), to September 30, 1935 (the filing of returns and the full payment or first installment payment on which was due on or before December 15, 1935), whereas, there are excluded from the statistics in this report, as previously indicated, the returns for fiscal years ended prior to July 1, 1934, and subsequent to June 30, 1935.

5. Delays in payment due to financial embarrassment, liquidation of business, or any other cause, result in collections of taxes after the close of the year in which such taxes are due, and the classification of such collections as "back taxes" because made in a subsequent year. Certain amounts are uncollectible, due likewise to the above causes.

6. Collections in the current year include such interest and penalty items as are received in connection with delinquent payments on returns.

Industrial classification.—Due to the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, under the Revenue Act of 1934, the industrial classification of corporations included in this report is not comparable with that for prior years. For returns with years ended December 31, 1934, or thereafter, the industrial classification of all corporations (except railroads which exercise the privilege of filing consolidated returns) is based on the predominant business of each company. Although this is a purer industrial distribution of the returns than was possible for consolidated returns of affiliated groups of companies in former years, it is not a pure industry classification, because of the diversified industrial activities of many corporations. For the small number of consolidated returns included in this report with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and for railroads, the industrial classification is based on the predominant business of the group of subsidiary concerns included in the con-

solidated returns.

Geographic distribution.—The data, although tabulated by returns filed in each State, do not represent what may be called the geographic distribution of income, there being no way of ascertaining from the income tax returns the amount of income originating in the respective States or the amount of tax paid on that basis, as income reported by a corporation in one State may have been derived from sources in other States. A corporation files its income tax return in the collection district in which its principal place of business or the principal office or agency is situated, excepting affiliated concerns filing a consolidated return. In the latter case the consolidated returns are frequently filed in States other than those in which the principal places of business or principal offices or agencies of the subsidiaries are located. the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, under the Revenue Act of 1934, a separate return for each company is filed in place of a consolidated return for closely affiliated groups of companies which was filed formerly. Consequently, the geographic distribution of the returns included in this report is not strictly comparable with that of prior years, because of the changes in the collection districts in which the returns were filed.

Comparability with previous reports.—In various sections of this report attention is called to special conditions affecting the comparability of specific items with similar data for earlier years. Due to the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, under the Revenue Act of 1934, the total as well as the separate items of assets, liabilities, receipts and deductions, the amounts of dividend payments, gross income, net income and tax, and the classifications of the returns by industry, by geographic location, by size of total assets, and by returns with net income and no net income are not strictly comparable with similar items and classi-

fications for prior years.

NUMBER OF RETURNS, NET INCOME OR DEFICIT, AND TAX (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The number of income tax returns filed by corporations for 1934 was 528,898, of which 145,101 show net income totaling \$4,275,197,271, while 324,703 show a deficit of \$4,181,027,486, and 59,094 show no income data. The income tax was \$588,375,365, the excess-profits tax on returns with net income was \$7,635,218, the excess-profits tax on returns with no net income for income tax purposes was \$37,540,

and the total tax was \$596,048,123.

The data for the 1934 returns are not strictly comparable with those for the 1933 returns as published in the report, Statistics of Income for 1933, due to changes in the provisions of the revenue acts under which returns for the two years are filed. The effect on the 1934 data of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, is stated on pages 19 and 20, and in the

general explanations on page 4.

The 1934 data for corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 are more comparable with the 1933 data for corporations which did not file consolidated returns than are the composite data for all corporation returns for these two years. Information for the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 and for the 1933 returns which were not consolidated, classified by major industrial groups, can be obtained from data published in this report and in the Statistics of Income for 1933. The method of securing such data is discussed in the section of this report entitled "Comparability of the data tabulated from corporation returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934," on pages 20, 27–29.

Separate tabulations for fiscal year returns (not ended December) and for part year returns, shown on pages 32 to 34, make it possible to segregate certain data for calendar year accounting periods and for

other accounting periods.

MAJOR INDUSTRIAL GROUPS (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The following table shows the returns of corporations distributed by major industrial groups segregated by "returns showing net income," "returns showing no net income," and "returns showing no income data—inactive corporations." Basic table 1, pages 46 and 47, shows the returns distributed by States and Territories and likewise those with net income, no net income, and no income data (inactive

corporations).

In analyzing the data compiled from returns classified under the major industrial group "Finance" and under the industrial subgroup "Life insurance—Mutual or stock companies," allowance should be made for the two special deductions from gross income permitted life insurance companies under paragraphs (2) and (4), subsection (a), section 203, Revenue Act of 1934, relating to reserve funds required by law and reserves for dividends. For returns with net income these deductions total \$133,690,199; for returns with no net income, \$567,665,116. In basic table 2, pages 48 to 59, the special deductions for life insurance companies are included in "other deductions."

In using 1934 data for returns showing net income and no net income classified by industrial groups and also by States and Territories, attention is called to the fact that these data are not strictly comparable with those for prior years. The effect of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, exept by railroads, is stated in paragraphs numbered 1, 2, 3, and 4 on pages 19

and 20, and in the general explanations on page 4.

Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations ¹

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total Returns showing net income					
Industrial groups	number of re- turns	Number	Percent of total	Gross in- come ²	Deduc- tions 2	Net in- come
Agriculture and related industries Mining and quarrying	10, 526	1, 995	18. 95	296, 513	265, 941	30, 572
	18, 656	4, 460	23, 91	1, 161, 775	1, 005, 712	156, 063
Manufacturing: Food and kindred productsLiquors and beverages (alcoholic	13, 362	5, 374	40. 22	6, 973, 816	6, 671, 487	302, 328
and nonalcoholic)	3, 283	1,368	41. 67	851, 516	753, 868	97, 648
	405	131	32. 35	1, 023, 243	926, 946	96, 296
Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures Rubber products	15, 775	5, 682	36. 02	3, 040, 608	2, 898, 906	141, 702
	2, 423	976	40. 28	709, 035	672, 567	36, 468
	650	267	41. 08	362, 756	347, 780	14, 976
Forest products Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and allied	6, 855	1, 812	26, 43	490, 335	463, 125	27, 210
	2, 318	1, 208	52, 11	966, 703	885, 814	80, 889
industries Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay, and glass products	12, 622	4, 490	35. 57	1, 285, 357	1, 167, 892	117, 465
	8, 220	3, 049	37. 09	3, 322, 986	2, 998, 955	324, 031
	3, 974	997	25. 09	603, 592	541, 842	61, 751
Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	20, 353	6, 844	33. 63	7, 040, 389	6, 505, 242	535, 147
	6, 408	1, 825	28. 48	772, 573	702, 381	70, 192
Total manufacturing	96, 648	34, 023	35. 20	27, 442, 910	25, 536, 806	1, 906, 104
Construction	17, 751	3, 353	18. 89	574, 874	543, 180	31, 694
ties Trade Service—Professional amusements.	28, 537	9, 808	34, 37	5, 895, 192	4, 975, 894	919, 298
	146, 056	52, 823	36, 1 7	22, 949, 508	22, 279, 172	670, 336
hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock	50, 989	11, 194	21. 95	1, 561, 845	1, 454, 038	107, 807
and bond brokers, etc	147, 277	27, 257	18. 51	3, 036, 267	4 2, 583, 852	452, 414
	12, 458	188	1. 51	2, 071	1, 163	908
Grand total	528, 898	145, 101	27. 44	62, 920, 954	58, 645, 757	4, 275, 197

Industrial groups		showing come— inued	Returns showing no net income			
		Excess- profits tax 3	Number	Percent of total	Gross income 2	
Agriculture and related industries. Mining and quarrying.	4, 198 21, 456	80 428	7, 331 . 9, 083	69. 65 48. 69	241, 135 1, 375, 939	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalco-	41, 768	642	7, 150	53. 51	1, 371, 310	
holic) Tobacco products Textiles and their products	13, 427 13, 241	402 5	1, 540 245	46. 91 60. 49	207, 905 36, 383	
Rubber products	2,094	291 66 20	9, 741 1, 368 340	61. 75 56. 46 52. 31	2, 209, 651 324, 117 393, 498	
Forest products Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and allied industries	11, 123	63 211 201	4, 725 1, 032 7, 618	68. 93 44. 52 60, 36	605, 068 347, 752 571, 460	
Chemicals and allied products	44, 627 8, 491	543 59	4, 559 2, 747	55. 46 69. 12	3, 325, 574 235, 95 7	
Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	73, 627 9, 653	788 184	12, 437 3, 767	61. 11 58. 79	3, 588, 045 433, 320	
Total manufacturing	262, 466	3, 477	57, 269	59. 26	13, 650, 040	
Construction Transportation and other public utilities Trade Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc	4, 358 126, 600 92, 200 14, 863	190 329 2, 077 348	12, 588 15, 571 88, 053 34, 718	70. 91 54. 56 60. 29 68. 09	681, 905 5, 215, 038 10, 061, 452 1, 812, 431	
Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc	62, 108 125	742 2	98, 839 1, 251	67. 11 10. 04	4, 868, 813 3, 546	
Grand total.	588, 375	7,673	324, 703	61. 39	37, 910, 299	

For footnotes, see page 7.

Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations - Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Industrial groups		owing no net Continued	Returns showing no income data—Inactive corporations	
	Deduc- tions ²	Deficit	Number	Percent of total
Agriculture and related industries	326, 407 1, 541, 312	85, 272 165, 373	1, 200 5, 113	11. 40 27. 40
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic) Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products. Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay, and glass products. Metal and its products. Metal and its products. Manufacturing not elsewhere classified.	341, 662 404, 064 681, 776 376, 170 635, 613 3, 504, 117 272, 484	51, 130 15, 723 2, 086 124, 914 17, 545 10, 566 76, 708 28, 418 64, 153 178, 543 36, 527 278, 421 41, 456	838 375 29 352 79 43 318 78 514 612 230 1, 072 816	6. 27 11. 42: 7. 16 2. 23: 3. 26: 6. 61 4. 64 3. 37 4. 07 7. 45: 5. 79: 5. 26: 12. 73:
Total manufacturing	14, 576, 229	926, 189	5, 356	5. 54
Construction Transportation and other public utilities Trade Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc. Nature of business not given.	10, 410, 613	66, 482 642, 896 349, 162 283, 406 1, 657, 190 5, 058	1,810 3,158 5,180 5,077 21,181 11,019	10. 20 11. 07 3. 54 9. 96 14. 38 88. 45
	42, 091, 326	4, 181, 027	59, 094	11. 17

3 Includes excess-profits tax of \$37,540 on returns with no net income. (See article 1(d), Treasury Decision 169, "Regulations relating to excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

4 Includes special non-expense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

NET INCOME AND DEFICIT CLASSES (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The following table shows for corporation returns, by net income and deficit classes, the number of returns, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also the number of returns filed for inactive corporations showing no income data.

In using 1934 data for returns showing net income and no net income, classified by the size of the net income or deficit, attention is called to the fact that these data are not strictly comparable with those for prior years. The effect of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, is stated in paragraph numbered 3 on page 19.

¹ For general explanations, see pp. 1-4.

² Gross income and deductions correspond to total income and total deductions (items 14 and 26, respectively, on face of return) plus, in each instance, cost of goods sold and cost of operations (items 2 and 5 on face of return). Interest received on Liberty bonds, etc. (item 11 on face of return), has been deducted from gross income so that gross income includes the same items as in prior years.

² Validace access profits tay of \$27,540 on returns with no net income. (See article 1(d), Treasury Decision

Corporation returns for 1934, by net income and deficit classes, showing number of returns, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages

		Returns showing net income							
Net income classes	Ret	Returns Net		соте	Income tax		Excess-profits tax		
!	Number	Percent	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	Amount	Percent	
Under 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 1,000-5,000 Excess-profits tax on returns showing no not income i	6, 425 4, 080 2, 946 1, 092 599 483	43. 57 12. 29 7. 06 4. 65 3. 44 9. 09 4. 52 2. 69 1. 86 4. 43 2. 81 2. 03 -75 -41 -33 -07	20, 568 25, 680 25, 224 23, 469 22, 293 93, 873 80, 315 67, 669 60, 512 226, 765 286, 729 457, 010 379, 419 424, 504 943, 413 1, 137, 754	0. 48 .60 .59 .55 .52 2. 20 1. 88 1. 58 1. 58 6. 71 10. 69 8. 87 9. 93 22. 07 26. 61	2, \$26 3, 526 3, 464 3, 224 3, 062 12, 893 11, 022 9, 286 8, 313 31, 154 39, 374 52, 163 58, 396 130, 028 156, 800	0. 48 .60 .59 .55 .52 2. 19 1. 87 1. 58 1. 41 5. 29 6. 69 9. 93 22. 10 26. 65	44 64 86 85 83 372 338 274 221 845 1, 025 1, 321 814 669 853 537	0.57 .83 1.12 1.11 1.15 4.85 4.40 3.57 2.88 11.01 13.36 17.21 10.60 8.72 11.12	
Total	145, 101	100. 00	4, 275, 197	100.00	588, 375	100, 00	7, 673	100.00	

	Returns showing no net income				
Deficit classes	Returns		Defi	cit	
	Number	Percent	Amount	Percent	
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000 and over. Total Returns showing no income data—inactive corporations.	44, 376 25, 061 15, 708 11, 132 26, 955 11, 208 6, 154 4, 019 8, 915 4, 942 3, 160 1, 002 542 396 55 324, 703	49. 61 13. 67 7. 72 4. 84 3. 43 8. 30 3. 45 1. 89 1. 24 2. 74 1. 52 97 31 .17 .12 .02	51, 967 64, 010 61, 548 54, 429 49, 794 190, 322 137, 118 106, 336 89, 786 311, 044 344, 082 489, 854 347, 931 382, 472 833, 724 666, 612	1. 24 1. 53 1. 47 1. 30 1. 19 4. 55 3. 28 2. 54 2. 15 7. 44 8. 23 11. 72 8. 32 9. 15 19. 94 15. 95	

¹ See footnote 3, p. 7.

INCOME AND PROFITS TAXES PAID TO FOREIGN COUNTRIES OR POSSESSIONS OF THE UNITED STATES REPORTED AS A TAX CREDIT (CORPORATION RETURNS)

That portion of the income and profits taxes paid foreign countries or possessions of the United States which was reported for tax credit by domestic corporations for the years 1925 to 1934, inclusive, is shown below. These amounts, although tax credits, are not deducted from the income tax liability shown in the tables in this report (see paragraph numbered 2, p. 3).

The Revenue Act of 1934 provides that a domestic corporation

The Revenue Act of 1934 provides that a domestic corporation may elect to credit the income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions against the income tax liability to the United States or to include such taxes in deductions against gross income. When used as a credit the amount cannot exceed the proportion of the total tax against which the credit is taken that the taxpayer's net income from sources without the United States bears to the taxpayer's entire net income, but when reported in deductions from gross income the total amount of such foreign taxes may be used.

For limitations under the various revenue acts governing the tax credit or the deduction from gross income of income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions, see page 211 in the section of this report entitled "Revenue Acts of 1909–1934 and certain provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act (1933)."

The amounts of the income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions which were reported in deductions from gross income are not tabulated separately but are included in the item "taxes paid other than income tax."

Income and profits taxes paid foreign countries reported as a tax credit—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934

Year:	Amount	Year:	Amount
1925	\$20, 139, 995	1930	\$29, 138, 867
1926	21, 653, 994	1931	
1927	24, 236, 955	1932	17, 275, 029
1928	32, 487, 634	1933	18, 640, 265
1929	35, 221, 708	1934	28, 428, 351

¹ Revised figures. See Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

DIVIDENDS PAID (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The amounts of cash and stock dividends paid on the capital stock of domestic corporations, as reported on the corporation income tax returns for 1934, are, cash dividends \$4,889,379,408, and stock dividends \$214,762,769. Amounts specifically designated as stock dividends in item 15 on Schedule L are tabulated as stock dividends. All other dividends (except liquidating dividends) are tabulated as cash dividends, with the result that cash dividends include dividends paid in other property as well as in cash. Total dividends distributed by all corporations, and by corporations with net income and no net income, for the years 1922 to 1934, inclusive, are as follows:

Cash and stock dividends paid by corporations for 1922 to 1934 ¹
[Thousands of dollars]

Year	Aggregate			nowing net ome	Returns showing no net income		
1641	Cash divi- dends	Stock divi- dends	Cash divi- dends	Stock divi- dends	Cash divi- dends	Stock dividends	
1922 1923 1924 1925 1926 1927 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	4, 169, 118 4, 338, 823 5, 189, 475 5, 945, 293 6, 423, 176 7, 073, 723 2 8, 519, 812	3, 348, 050 891, 286 510, 526 544, 431 757, 650, 128 1, 288, 643 414, 180 163, 530 143, 076 102, 043 214, 763	3, 182, 870 3, 820, 620 3, 994, 991 4, 817, 301 5, 530, 211 5, 785, 476 6, 585, 169 2 8, 005, 952 6, 841, 050 3, 871, 880 2, 320, 386 2, 320, 386 3, 852, 599	3, 166, 916 787, 167 466, 820 502, 490 716, 219 642, 178 500, 853 1, 193, 896 250, 499 77, 887 89, 955 80, 450	253, 845 348, 498 343, 832 372, 173 415, 082 637, 701 488, 554 513, 860 1, 361, 191 2, 279, 203 1, 565, 215 741, 570 1, 036, 781	181, 134 104, 118 43, 700 41, 942 41, 434 60, 322 40, 278 94, 74' 163, 681 85, 644 53, 122 21, 598 41, 344	

¹ Excludes eash and stock dividends paid by life insurance companies for all years prior to 1928.

² Revised. For 1927, see Statistics of Income for 1928, pp. 30 and 329. For 1929, the amount of cash dividends paid by corporations reporting net income, but not submitting balance sheets, in the "Metal and its products" group, in Michigan, is increased by \$164,150,000.

The cash dividends paid in 1934 show an increase of \$1,761,920,622, or 56.3 percent over similar payments in 1933, and the stock dividends paid increased \$112,719,683, or 110.5 percent. This large increase in the dividend payments is partially due to the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, under the Revenue Act of 1934. Due to "intercompany eliminations" in the consolidated returns for 1933 and prior years, the cash and stock dividends paid, as reported on consolidated returns (on Schedule L, see form 1120, p. 220), represent, for the most part, payments of the parent company, and do not include intercompany dividend transfers. However, in 1934, when separate returns are filed for the parent company and each subsidiary company, the dividends paid by each corporation are entered on the respective returns. Therefore, the total amount of dividends reported as paid by such groups of companies may appear to be much greater in 1934 than in 1933 without a corresponding increase in the amount of dividends paid to the public by these groups of companies. The statement concerning the general effect of the absence of "intercompany eliminations" in the 1934 returns is found in the section of this report entitled "Comparability of the data tabulated from corporation returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934," paragraph numbered 2, page 19.

When the dividend payments for 1934 by corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 are compared with those for 1933 by corporations filing consolidated returns, the increase in the cash dividends paid is found to be \$1,315,196,719, or 103.8 percent, and the increase in the stock dividends paid is \$53,568,878, or 216.4 percent. In contrast to these figures, a comparison of returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 with returns for 1933 which were not consolidated, reveals smaller increases in dividend payments. The cash dividends paid in 1934 by corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 increased \$446,723,903, or 24.0 percent over cash dividends paid in 1933 by corporations which did not file consolidated returns, and stock dividends paid increased \$59,150,805, or 76.5 percent. The following table gives for the above returns the cash and stock dividend payments in 1933 and 1934:

Cash and stock dividends paid by corporations in 1933 and 1934, showing comparisons of 1933 consolidated returns with 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 and of 1933 returns which were not consolidated with 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933

Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid Increase 1934 Increase 1934 over 1933 over 1933 1933 1934 1933 1934 Amount | Percent A mount Percent Consolidated returns for 1933 and returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 1, 267, 339 2, 582, 536 103.8 78, 321 1, 315, 197 24,752 216.4 53, 569 Returns for 1933 which were not consolidated and returns for 1934 of corpora-tions for which consolidated returns were not 1, 860, 120 2, 306, 844 446, 724 24.0 77, 291 136, 442 59, 151 76.5 filed for 1933_____ 3. 127, 459 4, 889, 379 1, 761, 921 56. 3 102, 043 214, 763 112, 720 110. 5

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

In basic table 1, pages 46 and 47, are shown for 1934, by States, the dividend payments reported on returns showing net income and no net income; in basic table 2, pages 48 to 59, are shown the dividend payments for 1934 by major industrial groups and by corporations reporting net income and no net income; and in basic table 5, pages 72 to 77, the same data are shown for returns with balance sheets by size of total assets.

COMPILED RECEIPTS AND COMPILED DEDUCTIONS (CORPORATION RETURNS)

In the table on pages 12 and 13 there appears a summary of the compiled receipts and compiled deductions for the 469,804 returns of active corporations, classified by corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets. Similar statistics for all active corporations, without segregation as to corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by returns showing net income and no net income, are presented in basic table 2, pages 48 to 59. For certain changes in the terminology of tabulated data in this report,

see pages 2 and 3.

Compiled receipts consist of such items as gross sales, gross receipts from other operations, taxable interest received, rents received, net gain from sale of capital assets (real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.), other items grouped as "other receipts," and tax-exempt income items of major importance (dividends received on capital stock of domestic corporations and interest on tax-exempt obligations). Compiled deductions consist of such items as cost of goods sold, cost of other operations, compensation of officers, rent paid on business property, interest paid, taxes paid other than income tax, bad debts, depreciation, depletion, net loss from the sale of capital assets (real estate, stocks, bonds, etc.), and items not classified, including amounts of negative income, grouped as "other deductions."

The amount tabulated as "cost of goods sold" includes salaries and wages only when so reported. Salaries and wages which may be allocable to "cost of goods sold" but which were reported elsewhere on the return were tabulated as "other deductions." In "cost of goods sold" are included taxes which are reported as a part of such cost. Other taxes allowed as a deduction by law, regardless of where they are reported on the face of the return, are tabulated in the deduction item "taxes paid other than income tax." This method

of tabulating taxes paid has been followed each year.

The deduction item "compensation of officers" excludes the amounts paid to the officers of life insurance companies which file form 1120-L. There is no provision on form 1120-L for reporting this item and from the annual statement submitted with the return it is not possible to

secure the compensation of officers separately.

The net loss from the sale of capital assets in returns with years ended December 31, 1934, and thereafter, is limited by law to an amount not in excess of \$2,000, after deducting the gain from sales of capital assets. The definition of capital assets, the limitation on the net capital loss, and the corporations which are exempt from this limitation are contained in the statement of the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 on page 2.

When items of deduction, the reporting of which is provided for on the return under "deductions," are reported in "cost of goods sold" and "cost of other operations," adjustment is made and the items are transferred to their classifications under "deductions."

Table 2 also shows the compiled net profit (or compiled net loss), net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and total tax, and compiled net profit after deducting total tax. Compiled net profit is the excess of compiled receipts over compiled deductions, and compiled net loss is the excess of compiled deductions over compiled receipts. Part I of table 2 shows the aggregate data for all returns; part II, for returns showing net income; and part III, for returns showing no net income.

For statement of compiled receipts and compiled deductions for all corporations submitting balance sheets distributed by major industrial groups and by returns showing net income and no net income, see table 4, pages 66 to 71, and table 5, pages 72 to 77.

In using 1934 data for compiled receipts and compiled deductions classified by major industrial groups and by returns showing net income and no net income, attention is called to the lack of strict comparability with prior years. The effect of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, is stated in paragraphs numbered 1, 2, and 3 on page 19.

Corporation returns for 1934, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, and dividends paid, by corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	All returns			
	Total	Corporations submitting balance sheets	Corpora- tions not submitting balance sheets	
Number of returns	469, 804	410, 626	59, 178	
Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ¹ Gross receipts from other operations ³ Interest. Rents. Net capital gain Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations ³ Interest on tax-exempt obligations ³	2, 696, 250 1, 585, 017	72, 824, 942 17, 913, 145 2, 640, 487 1, 497, 731 233, 322 1, 206, 852 2, 128, 902 654, 798	1, 484, 364 638, 841 55, 763 87, 285 9, 238 21, 835 88, 544 8, 804	
Total compiled receipts 4	101, 494, 854	99, 100, 179	2, 394, 675	

¹ Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."
² Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of

[&]quot;deductions."

3 Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions."

3 Includes obligations of States and Territories, or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

4 Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income, other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.

Corporation returns for 1934, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, and dividends paid, by corporations submitting and not submitting balance sheets-Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	All returns			
	Total	Corporations submitting balance sheets	Corpora- tions not submitting balance sheets	
Deductions: Oost of goods sold \$. Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers \$. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 7. Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss \$. Other deductions.	3, 421, 519 2, 161, 892 1, 182, 064 3, 362, 108	56, 212, 994 8, 443, 230 2, 101, 883 1, 438, 390 3, 338, 760 2, 108, 050 1, 151, 289 3, 290, 081 303, 383 257, 697 17, 412, 403	1, 245, 409 227, 016 71, 175 47, 181 82, 759 53, 842 30, 774 72, 026 8, 469 39, 700 583, 125	
Total compiled deductions Compiled net profit or net loss Net income or deficit Income tax Excess-profits tax 9 Total tax Compiled net profit less total tax Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	2, 975, 218 94, 170 588, 375 7, 673 596, 048 2, 379, 169 4, 889, 379	96, 058, 159 3, 042, 020 258, 320 578, 388 7, 552 585, 940 2, 456, 080 4, 817, 531 212, 117	2, 461, 477 10 66, 802 10 164, 151 9, 988 120 10, 108 11 76, 911 71, 848 2, 645	

Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold."
Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file form 1120-L.
Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."
For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be reported, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.
See footnote 3, p. 7.
Deficit or compiled net loss.
Compiled net loss plus total tax.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CORPORATION RETURNS)

In the two following tables are shown for 410,626 corporation returns out of 469,804 returns of active corporations, a summary statement of the principal assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at the close of the fiscal year nearest thereto; also by net income and deficit classes, the number of returns and the number of The difference between the number of balance sheets tabulated. balance sheets tabulated and the number of returns represents returns of corporations that did not submit balance sheets, or for which data were of fragmentary nature. In basic table 4, pages 66 to 71, the principal assets and liabilities are shown by major industrial groups. This table also includes items of compiled receipts and compiled deductions for active corporations which submitted balance sheets. For descriptive statement of compiled receipts and compiled deductions, see pages 11 and 12.

In using 1934 data for specific items of assets and liabilities shown on returns with net income and no net income classified by industrial groups, attention is called to the fact that these data are not strictly comparable with those for prior years. The effect of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, is stated in paragraphs numbered 1, 2, and 3 on page 19. If it is desired to compare items of assets and liabilities for the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 (returns which were not affected by the removal of the privilege of filing consolidated returns) with similar data for the 1933 returns which were not consolidated, such information can be obtained from data published in this report. The method of securing these data is discussed in the section of this report entitled "Comparability of the data tabulated from corporation returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934" on pages 27 to 29.

Assets and liabilities of corporations submitting balance sheets for 1934, by returns with net income and no net income, showing major items of assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at the close of fiscal year nearest thereto

[Thousands of dollars]

Assets and liabilities	Aggrégate	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
Assets: Cash (in till and deposits in banks) Notes receivable and accounts receivable (less reserve for	19, 960, 857	7, 114, 717	12, 846, 140
had debts)	40, 528, 879 14, 311, 068	15, 286, 903 8, 714, 965	25, 241, 975 5, 596, 103
the Federal Farm Loan Act and obligations of the United States or its possessions. Investments other than tax-exempt -Stocks, bonds, mort-	19, 083, 771	4, 655, 546	14, 428, 224
gages, loans, real estate, etc. Capital assets—Land, buildings, equipment, etc., including depletable assets (less reserve for depreciation and deple-	90, 573, 299	30, 252, 141	60, 321, 158
depletable assets (less reserve for depreciation and deple- tion)	102, 751, 495 14, 097, 209	42, 679, 829 5, 309, 733	60, 071, 666 8, 787, 475
Total assets	301, 306, 577	114, 013, 834	187, 292, 743
Liabilities: Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities	27, 020, 650 48, 604, 281 84, 096, 415	10, 516, 209 14, 471, 439 18, 462, 664	16, 504, 441 34, 132, 841 65, 633, 751
Capital stock: Preferred	19, 976, 094 84, 970, 011	8, 578, 552 38, 601, 543	11, 397, 543 46, 368, 468
Total capital stock	104, 946, 105	47, 180, 095	57, 766, 011
Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	48, 986, 312 12, 347, 186	24, 774, 885 1, 391, 458	24, 211, 427 10, 955, 728
Net surplus	36, 639, 126	23, 383, 427	13, 255, 699
Total liabilities	301, 306, 577	114, 013, 834	187, 292, 743

Number of corporation returns filed for 1934 and number of balance sheets by net income and deficit classes

	Returns showing net income			Returns showing no net incom		
Net income and deficit classes (Thousands of dollars)	Number of re- turns	Number of balance sheets	Percent of balance sheets to returns	Number of re- turns	Number of balance sheets	Percent of balance sheets to returns
Under 1 1-22-3 3-4 4-55-1010-1515-2020-2525-5050-100100-250250-50050050050050005,000 and over	17, 836 10, 245 6, 752 4, 986 13, 191 6, 553 3, 907 2, 697 6, 425 4, 080 2, 946 1, 092 599 483	55, 841 16, 835 9, 785 6, 523 4, 849 12, 850 6, 421 3, 823 2, 653 6, 298 3, 995 2, 860 1, 069 591 474 97	88. 34 94. 39 95. 51 96. 61 97. 25 97. 41 97. 99 97. 85 98. 02 97. 92 97. 08 97. 89 98. 66 98. 14	161, 078 44, 376 25, 061 15, 708 11, 132 26, 955 11, 208 6, 154 4, 019 8, 915 4, 942 3, 160 1, 002 542 396 55	128, 710 38, 133 22, 070 14, 073 10, 076 24, 827 10, 470 5, 732 3, 767 8, 361 4, 630 2, 941 1, 925 516 377 54	79. 90 85. 93 88. 07 89. 59 90. 51 92. 11 93. 42 93. 14 93. 79 93. 69 93. 07 92. 32 95. 20 98. 18
Total. Returns showing no income data—Inactive corporations	145, 101	134, 964	93. 01	324, 703 59, 094	275, 662	84. 90

Balance sheet items not otherwise classified are tabulated under "other assets" and "other liabilities," among which are the following: Other assets.—Copyrights; formulas; goodwill; patents; trade marks; sinking funds; other funds; deferred charges; organization expenses; prepaid and suspense items; interest, discount, coupons, and dividends receivable; guaranty deposits, and deposits on contracts, meters, and leaseholds; cash value of life insurance. Other assets of life insurance companies include market value of real estate and bonds in excess of book value; interest, rents, and premiums due; and agents' balances.

Other liabilities.—Deferred and suspense items; funds held in trust; borrowed securities; discount and dividends payable; outstanding coupons and certificates; overdrafts; and all other reserves excepting reserves for bad debts, depreciation, and depletion. Other liabilities of life insurance companies include the net value of outstanding policies and securities, and borrowed money. Other liabilities of banks include deposits (time, saving, demand, etc.) and bank notes in circulation.

The following changes in classification of data affect the comparability of asset and liability data over a period of years: Prior to 1929, "investments other than tax-exempt" were included in "other assets" for all corporations; beginning with 1929 such investments were segregated for corporations other than life insurance; for 1930 and subsequent years, "Investments other than tax-exempt" were segregated for all corporations. Over a period of years shifts appear under "liabilities" in the amounts reported as "common stock" and

"preferred stock" due to variations in reporting these data. For balance sheets in which common and preferred stock are not reported separately, the combined amount is tabulated as "common stock." For balance sheets with no par stock but not reporting capital stock value, the net worth is tabulated under "surplus and undivided profits."

In the following table there is shown a more detailed tabulation of the capital assets than has been published in this report in prior years. In addition to the net capital assets (after reserves for depreciation and depletion have been deducted from gross capital assets) there are tabulated, by industrial groups, the gross capital assets [including (1) depreciable and depletable assets (buildings, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, delivery equipment and natural resources) and (2) land] and the reserves for depreciation and depletion (except on land). Attention is called to the fact that the amounts of money in the following table are in millions of dollars.

Returns of corporations submitting balance sheets for 1934, by industrial groups and by returns with net income and no net income, showing gross capital assets, reserves for depreciation and depletion, and net capital assets

[Millions of dollars]

	Aggregate			Returns showing net income			
Industrial groups	Gross capital assets 1	Reserves for depre- ciation and depletion (except on land)	Net capital assets ¹	Gross capital assets 1	Reserves for depre- ciation and depletion (except on land)	Net capital assets 2	
Agriculture and related industries Mining and quarrying	1, 630 10, 290	327 4, 174	1, 303 6, 116	540 3, 959	163 1,812	377 2, 147	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred productsLiquors and beverages (alcoholic	3, 648	1, 399	2, 249	2, 666	1, 048	1, 618	
and nonalcoholic) Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products. Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products.	599 154 3, 393 299 633 1, 809 1, 642 1, 199 8, 114 1, 639	148 72 1,538 131 285 583 664 511 3,761 619	451 82 1,856 168 348 1,226 978 688 4,352 1,020	406 140 1, 667 172 292 408 1, 017 757 3, 098 832	105 66 753 75 123 143 411 320 1, 380	300 74 914 97 169 265 607 437 1,717 513	
Metal and its products	11, 362 847	4, 794 384	6, 569 463	5, 649 454	2, 449 206	3, 200 247	
Total manufacturing	35, 339	14, 888	20, 451	17, 556	7, 397	10, 159	
Construction	927	381	546	303	134	169	
Transportation and other public utilities. Trade. Service—Professional, amusements,	57, 918 5, 598	7, 445 1, 901	50, 472 3, 698	27, 876 3, 108	4, 369 1, 078	23, 507 2, 029	
hotels, etc	6, 917	1, 470	5, 447	1, 527	375	1, 152	
estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc	16, 699 47	2, 010 18	14, 689 29	3, 711 22	581 13	3, 130 9	
Grand total	135, 365	32, 614	102, 751	58, 602	15, 922	42, 680	

For footnotes see page 17.

Returns of corporations submitting balance sheets for 1934, by industrial groups and by returns with net income and no net income, showing gross capital assets, reserves for depreciation and depletion, and net capital assets—Continued

[Millions of dollars]

	Returns s	Returns showing no net income				
Industrial groups	Gross capital assets 1	Reserves for depre- ciation and depletion (except on land)	Net capital assets 3			
Agriculture and related industries	1, 090 6, 331	164 2, 362	926 3, 969			
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products. Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic). Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products. Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products. Manufacturing not elsewhere classified.	14 1,727 127 341 1,401 625 442 5,016 807	352 43 6 785 56 162 440 254 191 2, 381 300 2, 344 178	631 151 8 942 71 179 961 371 251 2, 635 507 3, 369 216			
Total manufacturing	17, 783	7, 491	10, 292			
Construction Transportation and other public utilities Trade. Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc. Nature of business not given	30, 042 2, 491 5, 391	247 3, 076 822 1, 095 1, 428 6	377 26, 965 1, 668 4, 296 11, 559 20			
Grand total	76, 763	16, 691	60, 072			

Includes (1) depreciable and depletable assets (buildings, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, delivery equipment, and natural resources) and (2) land.
 Amounts in this column are tabulated in text table on p. 14 and in basic tables 4, 5, and 6.

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES, COMPILED RECEIPTS AND COMPILED DEDUCTIONS BY
TOTAL ASSETS CLASSES (CORPORATION RETURNS)

For corporations submitting balance sheets, classified by total assets classes, the following table shows for all returns, and for returns with net income and no net income, the number of returns, total assets, total compiled receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit. These data are compiled from 410,626 returns filed by corporations that submitted balance sheets. The difference between this number and 469,804 active corporations represents returns of corporations that did not submit balance sheets, or for which balance sheet data were of a fragmentary nature. In connection with the classification of corporation data by size of total assets, attention is directed to the fact that the balance sheet form "Schedule K" of the corporation income tax return (facsimile on p. 219) provides that reserves for depreciation and depletion of capital assets be deducted from the gross amount of capital assets and also that reserves for bad debts be deducted from the gross amount of accounts receivable.

In basic table 5, pages 72 to 77, are shown for all returns and for returns with net income and no net income, classified by size of total assets, the principal assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at the close of the fiscal year nearest thereto, and the principal items of compiled receipts and compiled deductions. In basic table 6,

pages 78 to 95, are shown for returns with net income and no net income, by major industrial groups and total assets classes, selected items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto; also selected items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid.

In using 1934 data for returns with balance sheets, classified by total assets classes and by returns with net income and no net income, attention is called to the fact that these data are not strictly comparable with those for prior years. The effect of the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, is stated in paragraphs numbered 2 and 3 on page 19.

Returns of corporations submitting balance sheets for 1934 by total assets classes and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, total assets, total compiled receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit

[Money figures and total assets classes in thousands of dollars]

Total assets classes	Number of returns	Total assets— Total liabilities	Total compiled receipts 1	Compiled net profit or net loss 2	Net income or deficit		
	All returns						
Under 50	18, 499 2, 844 2, 411	4, 037, 529 4, 120, 449 9, 230, 935 10, 096, 212 12, 856, 239 38, 603, 148 19, 789, 164 49, 404, 970 153, 167, 932 301, 306, 577	8, 587, 570 5, 401, 588 8, 466, 023 6, 884, 795 7, 114, 978 16, 106, 203 6, 588, 919 14, 408, 424 25, 541, 680 99, 100, 179	3 250, 299 3 47, 208 3 27, 786 21, 403 55, 264 290, 111 171, 621 748, 481 2, 080, 431 3, 042, 019	3 256, 800 3 52, 627 3 49, 774 3 12, 631 3 4, 399 27, 280 11, 334 274, 316 321, 621 258, 320		
	Returns showing net income						
Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 10,000-5000 50,000 and over	22, 484 16, 879 6, 986 6, 856 1, 100 1, 021	1, 338, 541 1, 568, 764 3, 559, 453 3, 831, 641 4, 883, 067 14, 409, 294 7, 704, 940 21, 110, 087 55, 608, 048	3, 836, 096 3, 169, 579 5, 376, 413 4, 643, 585 4, 833, 381 10, 866, 843 4, 474, 792 9, 485, 458 15, 483, 599 62, 169, 745	102, 736 102, 833 227, 677 242, 999 302, 143 822, 221 427, 094 1, 041, 072 2, 050, 702 5, 313, 478	100, 921 100, 979 219, 712 230, 800 279, 981 728, 945 362, 358 854, 968 1, 323, 650 4, 202, 335		
	Returns showing no net income						
Under 50 50–100 100–250 250–500 500–1,000 1.000–5,000 1,000–50,000 1,000–50,000	1, 390 456	2, 698, 988 2, 551, 685 5, 671, 482 6, 264, 571 7, 973, 172 24, 193, 854 12, 084, 224 28, 294, 883 97, 559, 884	4, 751, 474 2, 232, 009 3, 089, 610 2, 241, 210 2, 281, 597 5, 239, 360 2, 114, 127 4, 922, 966 10, 058, 081	3 353, 035 3 150, 041 3 255, 463 3 221, 596 3 246, 879 3 532, 110 3 249, 473 3 292, 591 29, 729	3 357, 721 3 153, 606 3 269, 486 3 243, 431 3 284, 380 3 701, 665 3 351, 024 2 580, 672 3 1, 002, 029		
Total	275, 662	187, 292, 743	36, 930, 434	3 2, 271, 459	3 3, 944, 015		

See footnote 4, p. 12.
 Compiled net profit or loss is total compiled receipts less compiled deductions.
 Deficit or compiled net loss.

COMPARABILITY OF THE DATA TABULATED FROM CORPORATION RETURNS FOR 1934 AND 1933 AS AFFECTED BY THE LIMITATION OF THE PRIVILEGE OF FILING CONSOLIDATED RETURNS IN THE REVENUE ACT OF 1934 (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The provisions of section 141 of the Revenue Act of 1934 limit the privilege of filing consolidated returns to common carriers by railroad (the term "common carrier by railroad" includes steam and electric railroads but excludes street, suburban, and interurban railways, and express, refrigerator, and sleeping car companies). For 1934, there were 27,376 returns filed by corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933. These 1934 returns include 26,931 returns which are not consolidated and 445 returns which are consolidated. (For tabulation of the 1934 consolidated returns by industrial groups, net income or deficit classes, and number of subsidiaries, see pages 29 to 32.) The number of returns with net income is 9.390, showing net income totaling \$1,618,735,899, while 15,068 returns show deficit of \$1,768,452,499 and 2,918 returns show no income data. The income tax is \$223,340,619, the excess-profits tax on returns with net income is \$1,736,413, the excess-profits tax on returns with no net income for income tax purposes is \$5,078, and the total tax is \$225,082,110. The number of 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 represents 5.2 percent of all 1934 corporation returns, the net income 37.9 percent of the net income of 1934 returns showing net income, and the tax 37.8 percent of the total tax for 1934 corporations.

Due to the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, the information presented for 1934 corporations in this report is not strictly comparable with the data published in the Statistics of Income for 1933 and prior years for the following reasons:

1. The consolidated returns, which were necessarily classified according to the predominant industrial activity of the consolidated group, embraced subsidiary concerns which frequently were engaged in industrial activities entirely different from the predominant business of the consolidated group. Under the Revenue Act of 1934, a separate return is filed by each of the affiliated corporations (excepting railroads which may file consolidated returns) and each of these separate returns is classified on its predominant business, with the result that many 1934 returns fall in industrial divisions other than the ones in which they were included in prior years.

2. In the consolidated returns there frequently are offset items commonly referred to as "intercompany eliminations" which, however, do not occur when each company files separate income tax returns. Consequently, items of assets, liabilities, receipts and deductions, as well as dividend payments, gross income, net income, and tax are materially affected by the absence of intercompany eliminations in the tabulation of the 1934 returns.

3. The classification of consolidated returns by net income or deficit classes is based on the composite net income or deficit of the group of affiliated concerns included in the consolidated return, whereas for the separate returns filed for 1934 the classification is based on the net amount for each return. The same basic distinction obtains in the classification of the consolidated returns and the separate returns by size of total assets.

4. Consolidated returns are frequently filed in States other than those in which the principal places of business or principal offices or agencies of the subsidiaries are located. Consequently, for 1934, with the break-up of the consolidated returns and the filing of separate returns by each subsidiary, the geographic distribution of the returns of the subsidiary companies differs in many instances from that of the consolidated returns.

Data are presented in the two following tables for the 27,376 returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933. Through the data presented in these two tables the effect of the discontinuance of the consolidated form of return on the tabulation of all corporation returns for 1934 can, to some extent, be approximated. In the first following table, the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 are classified according to the predominant industrial activity reported on the 1934 returns. The method of classification is similar to that used for all 1934 returns in the text table on pages 6 and 7, and attention is called to the fact that the figures in the first following table are included in the text

table for all 1934 returns on pages 6 and 7.

The data for 1934 corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 are more comparable with the data for 1933 corporations which did not file consolidated returns than are the composite data for all corporation returns for these two years. The number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, and tax, classified by major industrial groups, for the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 and for the 1933 returns which were not consolidated, can be obtained by the following method: By subtracting the figures in the first following table from those for all 1934 returns in the text table of this report on pages 6 and 7, the data for the 1934 corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 can be secured; similarly, if the data for the 1933 consolidated returns, as printed in the text table of the complete report, Statistics of Income for 1933, on pages 33 and 34, are subtracted from corresponding data for all 1933 corporations, as printed in the text table of that report on pages 23 and 24, the data for the 1933 corporations which did not file consolidated returns can be secured. (See also text on pages 27-29.)

In the second following table, pages 22 to 24, the 27,376 returns filed for 1934 by corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 are classified according to the predominant industrial activity shown on the 1933 consolidated returns for these corporations. Consequently, this table presents the 1934 data by the industrial classification of the predominant business under which they were classified on the consolidated returns in which they were included prior to the passage of the Revenue Act of 1934. In a comparison of the 1934 data in the two following tables, the differences in the figures for each industrial group are due to the changes in the industrial classification which occurred because of the break-up of the consolidated returns in 1934. Many of the companies which were included in a consolidated return for 1933 are classified in 1934 under an industrial activity differing

from that of the consolidated return for 1933.

Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups, classified by business reported on the returns for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations ¹

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]							
	Total	Returns showing net income					
Industrial groups	number of re- turns 2	Number	Percent of total	Gross in- come 3	Deduc- tions 3		
Agriculture and related industries Mining and quarrying	377 1, 321	72 400	19. 10 30. 28	92, 280 555, 235	81, 871 498, 973		
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and non-	1, 019	481	47. 20	3, 838, 544	3, 726, 832		
alcoholic)	131 17 488	51 8 172	38. 93 47. 06 35. 25	155, 093 99, 090 354, 506	134, 226 93, 805 338, 447		
Leather and its manufacturesRubber products	99 63	43 30 79	43. 43 47. 62 23. 51	113, 026 243, 650 112, 474	108, 420 235, 497 104, 941		
Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and allied industries Chemicals and allied products	185 539	86 274 383	46. 49 50. 84 52. 61	227, 719 324, 626 1, 565, 316	210, 543 297, 073 1, 446, 042		
Stone, clay, and glass products	212 1, 256 296	70 545 106	33, 02 43, 39 35, 81	202, 439 3, 809, 756 239, 059	182, 315 3, 522, 814 208, 645		
Total manufacturing		2,328	43.36	11, 285, 299	10, 609, 598		
Construction. Transportation and other public utilities. Trade. Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc	419 4, 555 5, 001 2, 242	90 1, 803 2, 264 710	21, 48 39, 58 45, 27 31, 67	72, 378 3, 637, 619 6, 723, 780 558, 650	68, 747 3, 143, 854 6, 528, 244 526, 765		
Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, hold- ing companies, stock and bond brokers, etc Nature of business not given	7, 492 600	1, 695 28	22. 62 4. 67	983, 163 623	* 831, 895 346		
Grand total	27, 376	9, 390	34. 30	23, 909, 028	22, 290, 293		
	Returns showing net income— Returns show no net incomen no net incomen net inc						
Industrial groups	-	1	- 1				

	Returns sh	owing net Continued	Returns showing no net income		
Industrial groups	Net in- come	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Number	Percent of total
Agriculture and related industries	10, 410 56, 262	1, 431 7, 736	2 83	276 769	73. 21 58. 21
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalco-	111, 712	15, 562	192	348	34. 15
holic)	16,060 4,607	2, 870 727 2, 230 637 1, 156	69 2 24 9 3	56 7 293 53 28	42.75 41.18 60.04 53.54 44.44
Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products.	7, 533 17, 176 27, 553 119, 275	1, 038 2, 367 3, 789 16, 473 2, 767	5 21 30 129 (6)	241 93 230 314 130	71. 73 50, 27 42. 67 43. 13 61. 32
Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	1 286, 943	39, 499 4, 184	104 28	654 166	52. 07 56. 08
Total manufacturing	675, 700	93, 299	615	2, 613	48. 67
Construction Transportation and other public utilities Trade Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.	195, 536	500 68, 115 26, 967 4, 461	13 100 670 41	287 2, 247 2, 293 1, 321	68. 50 49. 33 45. 85 58. 92
Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc	151, 269 277	20, 793 38	217 1	5, 171 91	69. 02 15. 17
Grand total	1, 618, 736	223, 341	1,741	15, 068	55. 04

For footnotes, see p. 22.

Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups, classified by business reported on the returns for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations-Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Industrial groups	Returns sh	nowing no net Continued	Returns showing no income data— Inactive corpora- tions		
	Gross in- come 3	Deduc- tions ³	Deficit	Number	Percent of total
Agriculture and related industries	46, 207 953, 432	54, 134 1, 041, 150	7, 927 87, 718	29 152	7. 69 11. 51
Manufacturing: Food and kindred productsLiquors and beverages (alcoholic and non-	423, 405	436, 176	12, 771	190	18. 65
alcoholic)	24, 542 6, 367 498, 176	26, 104 6, 612 527, 451	1, 562 246 29, 275	24 2 23	18. 32 11. 76 4. 71
Leather and its manufactures	64, 191 321, 205 151, 342 161, 375	66, 971 325, 326 173, 110 175, 758	2, 780 4, 121 21, 768 14, 383	3 5 16 6	3, 03 7, 94 4, 76 3, 24
Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products.	149, 351 2, 928, 962 46, 623	183, 606 3, 077, 855 54, 139	34, 255 148, 893 7, 515	35 31 12	6, 49 4, 26 5, 66
Metal and its products	175, 535	2, 180, 107 191, 141	136, 046 15, 606	57 24	4. 54 8. 11
Total manufacturing	6, 995, 135	7, 424, 356	429, 221	428	7. 97
Construction Transportation and other public utilities. Trade. Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.	2, 421, 057	133, 908 4, 501, 792 2, 503, 917 458, 579	13, 628 513, 134 82, 861 72, 566	42 505 444 211	10.02 11.09 8.88 9.41
Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, hold- ing companies, stock and bond brokers, etc. Nature of business not given	1, 368, 753 147	⁵ 1, 929, 390 906	560, 637 759	626 481	8. 36 80. 16
Grand total	16, 279, 682	18, 048, 134	1, 768, 452	2, 918	10. 66

¹ For general explanations see pp. 1-4.

² Includes consolidated returns for 1934 filed by corporations with fiscal years ended prior to Dec. 31, 1934, and by railroads.

³ See footnote 2, p. 7.

⁴ Includes excess-profits tax of \$5,078 on returns with no net income (see article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934").

⁵ See footnote 4, p. 7.

Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups, classified by business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations ¹

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Industrial groups	Total number	Returns showing net income					
	of re- turns 2	Number	Percent of total	Gross in- come ³	Deduc- tions 3		
Agriculture and related industries	291 1, 449	78 465	26. 80 32. 09	135, 331 666, 182	122, 684 605, 341		
Manufacturing: Food and kindred productsLiquors and beverages (alcoholic and non-	1, 617	710	43. 91	4, 435, 800	4, 305, 403		
alcoholic) Tobacco products Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures	166 41 652 204	68 20 230 91	40. 96 48. 78 35. 28 44. 61	212, 267 106, 364 346, 713 164, 141	179, 088 100, 030 330, 972 158, 328		
Rubber products	173	69	39. 88	360, 331	347, 863		

For footnotes see page 24.

Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups, classified by business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[Money figures i	in thousan	ds of d	oliars]				
	Total	Retu	ırns sho	wing n	et in	icome—C	ontinued
Industrial groups	number of re- turns ²	Numi		rcent total		oss in- ome ³	Deduc- tions ³
Manufacturing—Continued. Forests products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products. Metal and its products. Manufacturing not elsewhere classified.	534 348 714 1, 426 304 2, 499 499	1 3 6	119 141 341 358 99 976 181	22. 29 40. 52 47. 76 46. 14 32. 57 39. 06 36. 27	2, 5,	139, 480 258, 224 369, 963 311, 596 224, 802 102, 769 302, 978	130, 302 240, 177 339, 350 2, 081, 500 203, 794 4, 782, 540 268, 903
Total manufacturing	9, 177	3, 7	703	40.35	14,	335, 428	13, 468, 251
Construction Transportation and other public utilities Trade Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, hold- ing companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	366 4, 723 3, 339 2, 042 4, 888	1, 6	174 304	21. 59 34. 83 44. 14 29. 58 22. 26		49, 079 587, 579 046, 989 544, 339 529, 965	46, 135 3, 155, 992 3, 915, 866 516, 176 5 446, 149
Nature of business not given.	1,506		ĭ	16. 67		7	7
Total, all industrial groups 1933 industrial activity not available	26, 281 1, 095	9, 1	137 253	34. 77 23. 10	23,	894, 899 14, 129	22, 276, 600 13, 692
Grand total	27, 376	9, 8	390	34.30	23,	909, 028	22, 290, 293
Industrial groups		proine proi			its		s showing tincome Percent of total
Agriculture and related industries	12, 60,	646 1, 739 841 8, 366			6 46	188 836	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and non alcoholic) Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products. Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products. Metal and its products. Manufacturing not elsewhere classified. Total manufacturing	130, 1- 33, 6, 15, 5, 12, 9, 30, 230, 230, 320, 320, 34,	179 334 740 813 467 178 047 613 096 008 229 075	18, 131 4, 563 871 2, 187 803 1, 749 1. 264 2, 486 4, 209 31, 711 2, 889 44, 076 4, 690 119, 629		273 323 5 18 9 22 6 33 33 153 17 158 39 089	537 65 18 370 105 83 372 168 314 640 181 1, 210	33. 21 39. 16 43. 90 56. 75 51. 47 47. 98 6 99. 66 6 48. 27 43. 98 44. 88 9 44. 88 9 44. 88 9 44. 84 9 53. 11
Construction		944	405	-	2	271	-
Transportation and other public utilities. Trade. Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holdin companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	431, 131, 28,	587 123 163	59, 566 18, 108 3, 949 11, 518		114 309 45	2, 472 1, 587 1, 244 3, 388	52. 34 47. 53 60. 92
Nature of business not given		1	(6)				33. 33
Total, all industrial groups	1, 618	299 437	223, 281 60	1,	$\substack{740 \\ 2}$	14, 316 755	54. 47 68. 68
Grand total.	1, 618	736	223, 341	1,	741	15, 068	55. 04

For footnotes, see page 24.

Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by enums for 1934 of corporations for which consolutated returns were field for 1935, by major industrial groups, classified by business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no nct income, showing number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, and percentages; also number and percent of inactive corporations—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Industrial groups		rns showing a ome—Contin	Returns showing no income data— Inactive corpora- tions		
	Gross in-	Deduc- tions 3	Deficit	Number	Percent of total
Agriculture and related industries	41, 930 908, 095	47, 289 980, 927	5, 359 72, 832	25 148	8. 59 10. 21
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products. Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products Forest products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products. Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	667, 310 33, 793 16, 620 477, 595 95, 749 386, 208 182, 456 162, 584 192, 452 3, 371, 499 72, 702 2, 388, 730 144, 284	688, 928 35, 180 16, 963 508, 345 100, 858 394, 338 204, 221 177, 925 234, 033 3, 562, 116 80, 685 2, 547, 862 159, 282	21, 618 1, 387 343 30, 750 5, 108 8, 128 21, 765 15, 341 41, 581 190, 617 7, 982 159, 132 14, 998	370 33 3 52 8 21 43 39 59 128 24 313 53	22. 88 19. 88 7. 32 7. 97 3. 92 12. 14 8. 05 11. 21 8. 26 8. 98 7. 89 12. 52 10. 62
Total manufacturing	8, 191, 982	8, 710, 733	518, 751	1, 146	12. 49
Construction	70, 887 4, 589, 131 1, 403, 022 345, 583	80, 049 5, 278, 741 1, 460, 145 424, 688	9, 163 689, 610 57, 123 79, 106	16 606 278 194	4, 37 12, 83 8, 33 9, 50
etc Nature of business not given	697, 443 (6)	§ 1, 030, 481	333, 038 1	412 3	8. 43 50. 00
Total, all industrial groups	16, 248, 072 31, 610	18, 013, 055 35, 079	1, 764, 983 3, 470	2, 828 90	10. 76 8. 22
Grand total	16, 279, 682	18, 048, 134	1, 768, 452	2, 918	10. 66

For general explanations, see pp. 1-4.
 See footnote 2, p. 22.
 See footnote 2, p. 7.

An illustration of the effect of the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns on the industrial classification of the 1934 returns is shown in the following table, in which the number of 1934 returns in each industrial group is distributed by the industrial classification of the consolidated returns on which the data for these corporations were reported for 1933. The "Finance" group is illustrative of the shift which occurred in 1934. Of the 7,492 returns for 1934 classified as "Finance," when distributed on the industrial classification of the consolidated returns for 1933, in which the data for these corporations were included, only 4,103 returns for 1934 were classified as "Finance" and 3,389 were classified under "Manufacturing," "Trade," and other industrial groups. Again with special reference to the "Finance"

See footnote 4, p. 22.
See footnote 4, p. 7.
Less than \$500.

group for 1934, the increase in the number of returns over the number in this group based on the industrial classification of the consolidated returns for 1933 is due, in part, to the 1934 returns of corporations which, as parent companies, were formerly included in the group of affiliated concerns filing consolidated returns. If the parent company for 1934 is a holding company, the return is classified under "Finance." However, the 1933 consolidated return, for the group of companies in which this parent company was included, was classified according to the principal business activity of the unit of companies as a whole.

Number of returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by industrial groups in which the returns for 1934 and the consolidated returns for 1933 were classified

	Num-	Numbe	r of retur solida	ns for 193 ted retur	4 by ind ns for 19	ustrial grou 33 were clas	ips in wh	nich con-	
	ber of returns for 1934 by in-				М	ng	ıg		
Industrial groups	dustrial groups in cul- which classi- fied 1	roups Agri- in cul- which ture	Min- ing and quarry- ing	Total manu- fac- turing	Food and kin- dred prod- ucts	Liquors and bev- erages (alcohol- ie and nonalco- holie)	Tobac- co prod- uets	Tex- tiles and their prod- ucts	
Agriculture and related industries. Mining and quarrying	377 1, 321	149 4	12 748	104 302	34 4			5 1	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic) Tobacco products Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures Rubber products Forest products Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and allied industries Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay and glass products Metal and its products Metal and its products	1,019 131 17 488 99 63 336 185 539 728 212 1,256	3 	1 	865 114 17 430 90 63 282 178 472 617 178 1,098	843 5 	7 106	17	399	
Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	296	1	1	246	1			8	
Total manufacturing	5, 369	15	70	4,650	884	118	19	412	
ConstructionTransportation and other public	419	1	23	67	1			1	
utilities	4, 555 5, 001 2, 242	44 32 4	174 219 19	629 1,874 189	91 358 14	20	14	14 125 2	
estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc Nature of business not given	7, 492 600	40 2	159 25	1, 019 343	142 89	22 2	8	74 18	
Total	27, 376	291	1, 449	9, 177	1, 617	166	41	652	

¹ See footnote 2, p. 22.

Number of returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by industrial groups in which the returns for 1934 and the consolidated returns for 1933 were classified—Continued

	Numbe	er of retu ret	rns for 19 urns for	34 by inc 1933 were	lustrial gro classified-	ups in wi -Contin	hich cons ued	olidated	
	Manufacturing—Continued								
Industrial groups	Leather and its manufactures	Rub- ber prod- ucts	Forest prod- ucts	Paper, pulp, and prod- ucts	Printing, publish- ing, and allied in- dustries	Chemicals and allied prod- ucts	Stone, clay, and glass prod- ucts	Metal and its prod- ucts	
Agriculture and related industries. Mining and quarrying	1	3 1	27 6	12	4 1	12 125	22	6 142	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholie and nonalcoholie)						8		5	
Tobacco products Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures_	90	7	1	1		1	4	7	
Rubber products	2 	57	246 7	8 151		3 2	2	3 10 4	
lied industries Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay, and glass products.	2		4		455 1	543 11		12 10	
Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	3	1	4	3	3	18	9	1, 028 54	
Total manufacturing		69	266	174	467	591	181	1, 139	
ConstructionTransportation and other public			3	3		12	9	33	
utilities Trade	7 67	79 79	78 79	64 47	19 42	128 299	14 43	170 57 7	
Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.————————————————————————————————————	2	3	5	1	74	44		26	
and bond brokers, etc Nature of business not given	25 1	10 6	62 8	41 6	97 10	153 62	23 12	303 103	
Total	204	173	534	348	714	1, 426	304	2, 499	

See footnote 2, p. 22.

Number of returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by industrial groups in which the returns for 1934 and the consolidated returns for 1933 were classified—Continued

	Number of returns for 1934 by industrial groups in which consolidated returns for 1933 were classified—Continued									
Industrial groups	Manu- factur- ing not else- where classi- fied	Con- struc- tion	Transportation and other utilities	Trade	Serv- ice— Profes- sional, amuse- ments, hotels, etc.	Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	Nature of busi- ness not given	1933 indus- trial activ- ity not avail- able		
Agriculture and related industries Mining and quarrying		5 7	19 131	16 52	2 3	49 45	1	20 29		
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alco-	1	1	58	57	6	3		21		
holic and nonalcoholic)			2	3		2		9		
Textiles and their products Leather and its manufactures Rubber products	6		2 1	32 3		4		20 4		
Forest products Paper, pulp, and products Printing, publishing, and al-	9	2	7 2	16 3	1	7	1	16 2		
lied industries	4 7		4	11	9	13 12		26		
Chemicals and allied products. Stone, clay, and glass products.	3	6 9	$\begin{array}{c c} 11 \\ 2 \end{array}$	36 6	1 1	12 5		19 7		
Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere	29	ğ	27	33	5	8		40		
classified	166		22	15	4	1		- 6		
Total manufacturing	229	27	138	215	27	56	1	170		
Construction Transportation and other public	5	212	32	11	12	32		29		
utilities	38 124	14 21	3, 283 124	130 2, 257	39 69	166 108	1	76 29 6		
Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.— Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock	18	13	167	41	1, 419	286		104		
and bond brokers, etc	59 26	64 3	763 66	552 65	$\frac{439}{32}$	4, 103 43	1 2	352 19		
Total	499	366	4, 723	3, 339	2, 042	4, 888	6	1,095		

See footnote 2, p. 22.

For a more comprehensive analytical study of the variation and shifts occasioned by the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by railroads, in the data tabulated from the 1934 returns as compared with the returns for 1933, and as a complement of the data elsewhere published in this report, basic tables 9 to 14 are included herein. Items of receipts and deductions and assets and liabilities are shown for 1933 consolidated returns, 1933 returns which were not consolidated, 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, and 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933. As the

Statistics of Income for 1933 did not contain these data for the 1933 returns tabulated separately for the consolidated returns and for those which were not consolidated, they are printed in this report.

Table 9 presents, for 1933 returns of active corporations, classified by major industrial groups, the compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit less total tax, and cash and stock dividends paid. The returns with net income are tabulated separately from those with no net income. The industrial classification of the 1933 returns is based on the business reported on the 1933 returns. Part I comprises the 1933 consolidated returns and Part II comprises the 1933 returns which were not consolidated. The sum of the data in Parts I and II for returns with net income and no net income equals the amounts shown in Parts II and III of table 13, pages 146 to 153, in the Statistics of Income for 1933.

Table 10 presents, for 1934 returns of active corporations, the items which are shown in table 9. The industrial classification of the 1934 returns is based on the business reported on the returns for 1934. Part I comprises the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 and Part II comprises the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933. The sum of data in Parts I and II for returns with net income and no net income equals the amounts shown in Parts II and

III of table 2, pages 52 to 59, in this report.

If it is desired to secure the 1934 data for returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 and compare them with 1933 data for returns which were consolidated for 1933, the information in Part I of table 10 should be compared with that in Part I of table 9. If it is desired to secure the 1934 data for returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 and compare them with 1933 data for returns which were not consolidated for 1933, the figures in Part II of table 10 should be used with those in Part II of table 9.

Table 11 presents, for 1933 returns of active corporations with balance sheets, classified by major industrial groups, the assets and liabilities, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit less total tax, and cash and stock dividends paid. The returns with net income are tabulated separately from those with no net income. The industrial classification of the 1933 returns is based on the business reported on the 1933 returns. Part I comprises the 1933 consolidated returns and Part II comprises the 1933 returns which were not consolidated. The sum of the data in Parts I and II for returns with net income and no net income equals the amounts shown in table 15, pages 160 to 165 in Statistics of Income for 1933.

Table 12 presents, for 1934 returns of active corporations with balance sheets, the items which are shown in table 11. The industrial classification of the 1934 returns is based on the business reported on the returns for 1934. Part I comprises the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 and Part II comprises the 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933. The sum of data in Parts I and II for returns

with net income and no net income equals the amounts shown in

table 4, pages 66 to 71, in this report.

If it is desired to secure the 1934 data for returns with balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 and compare them with 1933 data for returns which were consolidated for 1933, the information in Part I of table 12 should be compared with that in Part I of table 11. If it is desired to secure the 1934 data for returns with balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were not filed for 1933 and compare them with 1933 data for returns which were not consolidated for 1933, the figures in Part II of table 12 should be used with those in Part II of table 11.

Additional tabulations of 1934 data for the returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 are contained in tables 13 and 14. As stated above, Parts I of tables 10 and 12 contain assets and liabilities and receipts and deductions for 1934 returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, distributed according to the business reported on the 1934 returns. In tables 13 and 14 the same 1934 data for returns of corporations for which consolidated returns for 1933 were filed are classified according. to the predominant industrial activity shown on the 1933 consolidated The industrial classifications in tables 13 and 14 of the 1934 returns. returns of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933 are those under which corporations would have been classified if they had continued to be included in consolidated returns and if the business activity of the corporations in 1934 had been the same as in 1933.

A comparison of the compiled receipts and compiled deductions in table 13 with those for the 1934 returns in Part I of table 10 reveals marked differences in the data for each industrial group. Differences are also noted when a comparison is made of assets and liabilities and receipts and deductions for 1934 returns with balance sheets, in table

14, with similar data in Part I of table 12.

The industrial classification in tables 13 and 14 is similar to that in Parts I of tables 9 and 11 in that both are based on the predominant industrial activity reported on the 1933 consolidated returns. However, if receipts and deductions for the 1934 returns with net income and with no net income in table 13 are compared with similar data for the 1933 consolidated returns in Part I of table 9, it must be borne in mind that intercompany eliminations in the 1933 consolidated returns account, in large measure, for the variation in the 1933 data in Part I of table 9 from the 1934 data in table 13. This same caution applies to a comparison of assets and liabilities and receipts and deductions for returns with balance sheets when a comparison is made of the information in table 14 with that in Part I of table 11.

CONSOLIDATED RETURNS (CORPORATION RETURNS)

Due to the discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by common carriers by railroad (the term "common carrier by railroad" includes steam and electric railroads but excludes street, suburban, and interurban railways, and express, refrigerator, and sleeping car companies) effective for returns with years ended December 31, 1934, and thereafter, consolidated returns numbered only 445.

These consolidated returns consist of those for fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and those for railroads. For consolidated returns with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, the tax on income reported for the portion of the tax period in the calendar year 1933 is computed at the rate of 14½ percent, as provided in section 141(c) of the Revenue Act of 1932, and the tax attributable to the calendar year 1934 is computed at the rate of 14¾ percent, as provided by section 218(e) of the National Industrial Recovery Act. The rate of tax for consolidated returns of railroads with year ended December 31, 1934, or thereafter is 15¾ percent, as provided by the Revenue Act of 1934.

Of the 445 consolidated returns included in this report, 369 were for corporations other than railroads with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934. These fiscal year returns were filed under section 141 (a) and (d) of the Revenue Act of 1932, which provides that a consolidated return may be filed when one or more chains of corporations are connected through stock ownership with a common parent corporation, at least 95 percent of the stock of each of the corporations (except the common parent) being owned directly by one or more of the other corporations, and the common parent corporation owning directly at least 95 percent of the stock of at least one of the other

corporations.

The remaining 76 consolidated returns were for railroad corporations. Of these returns, 12 were for railroads with years ended prior to December 31, 1934, which were filed under the provisions of section 141 (a) and (d) of the Revenue Act of 1932, and 64 were for railroads with years ended December 31, 1934, and thereafter, which were filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934. In section 141 (a) and (d) of the Revenue Act of 1934 an affiliated group of corporations is defined the same as in the Revenue Act of 1932, with the additional provision that each of the corporations in the group must be either (a) a corporation whose principal business is that of a common carrier by railroad or (b) a corporation the assets of which consist principally of stock in one or more corporations which are common carriers and which does not itself operate a business other than that of a common carrier by railroad. Thus, the consolidated returns for railroads with years ended December 31, 1934, and thereafter do not include hotels, coal mines, and other extraneous corporations which are owned by railroads, as by law, separate returns must be filed by each of these corporations.

Presented below are tables prepared from the consolidated returns showing the returns distributed by major industrial groups, by net income and deficit classes, and by number of subsidiaries. In interpreting the data contained in these tables it is essential to note that the industrial classification is based on the predominant business of the affiliated group of corporations for which the consolidated return is filed. If it were possible to segregate the income of the subsidiary or affiliated concerns, the data for such concerns might fall in industrial divisions other than the ones in which they are here included.

The consolidated returns for affiliated corporations are included in all the text tables in this report and in the basic tables in which

information for the 1934 returns is presented.

Consolidated corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, showing total number of returns, number with net income and no net income, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits \tan^{1}

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	m., ,		Returns s	howing net	income	
Industrial groups	Total number of returns	Number	Gross in- come ²	Net in- come	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 3
Agriculture and related industries Mining and quarrying	2 7	1	251	11	2	
Manufacturing: Food and kindred productsLiquors and beverages (alcoholic	33	18	1, 654, 532	21, 151	3, 109	27
and nonalcoholic) Tobacco products	5	3	6, 338	78	11	1
Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products. Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied in-	8 6	13 3 2 1 3	40, 965 16, 125 95, 560 8, 481 22, 850	2, 312 387 3, 674 218 519	340 57 540 32 76	(4) 1
dustries Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay, and glass products	4 26 3 54	1 14 19	90 112, 349 	7, 884 4, 739	1, 157 696	(4) 7 1
Metal and its products	9	3	2, 148	192	28	(4)
Total manufacturing	201	80	2, 073, 311	41, 164	6, 050	46
Construction	2	1	435	37	5	(4)
ties Trade	76 66	11 38	326, 244 290, 072	10, 896 8, 806	1, 715 1, 292	103
Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, real es-	41	10	177, 494	8, 420	1, 235	1
tate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	50	6	714	111	16	(4)
Grand total	445	147	2, 868, 520	69, 444	10, 315	154

	Returns	showing no n	et income
Industrial groups	Number	Gross in- come ²	Deficit
Agriculture and related industries		993 4, 895	132 405
Manufacturing: Food and kindred products Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic)	1 2	74, 932 8, 260	1, 640 323
Tobacco products. Textiles and their products. Leather and its manufactures. Rubber products.	5 4	74, 329 14, 015 24, 548	3, 528 351 563
Forest products. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries.	2 3	4, 801 15, 029 2, 211	292 2,857 448
Chemicals and allied products Stone, clay, and glass products Metal and its products Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	12	13, 996 5, 317 78, 285	1, 445 1, 657 12, 088
Manufacturing not elsewhere classified		33, 930 349, 654	1, 139 26, 330
Construction Transportation and other public utilities	65	1, 868, 285	(4) 249, 052
Trade Service—Professional, amusements, hotels, etc Finance—Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc	31	32, 195 33, 920	771 8, 345 11, 707
Grand total.	298	20, 179	296, 741

For general explanations, see pp. 1-4.
 Gross income corresponds to total income (as reported on face of return) plus cost of goods sold and cost of other operations and minus interest received on Liberty bonds, etc.
 Includes excess-profits tax of \$7,366 on returns with no net income. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")
 Less than \$500.

Consolidated corporation returns for 1934 by net income and deficit classes, showing number of returns, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax

[Money figures and net income and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

	Ret	urns showi	Returns showing no net income			
Net income and deficit classes	Number	Net in- come	Income tax	Excess- profits tax	Number	Deficit
Under 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10 10-15 15-20 20-25 22-50 50-100 100-256 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000 and over Excess-profits tax on returns showing no net income ¹	3 9 3 1 12 15 5 9 15 17 14 9 4	7 4 23 10 5 87 180 86 207 492 1, 219 2, 069 3, 040 2, 793 28, 888 30, 337	1 1 3 1 1 13 26 13 30 72 181 304 447 411 4, 281 4, 530	(2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 7 22 7 22 114	15 7 9 5 6 22 15 12 13 35 45 36 25 12 29	\$ 10 24 18 27 156 181 201 293 1, 224 3, 382 6, 011 8, 983 8, 225 75, 702 192, 299
Total	147	69, 444	10, 315	154	298	296, 741

¹ See footnote 3, p. 31.

Consolidated corporation returns for 1934, by number of subsidiaries, showing number of consolidated returns and total number of subsidiaries

Number of subsidiaries	Num- ber of consol- idated returns	Total number of subsid- iaries	Number of subsidiaries	Num- ber of consol- idated returns	Total number of subsid- iaries	Number of subsidiaries	Num- ber of consol- idated returns	Total number of subsid- iaries
1	195 74 38 22 18 14 13 11 8 2	195 148 114 88 90 64 91 88 72 20 66	13	4 4 6 4 2 2 1 2 2	52 56 90 64 36 38 27 58 64 34	38	3 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 445	114 39 49 50 112 107 170 199

FISCAL YEAR RETURNS (CORPORATION RETURNS)

Fiscal year returns are filed by corporations whose fiscal year is other than the calendar year. These returns are included in all text and basic tables containing 1934 data in this report. The tabulations include all fiscal year returns with year ended within the period July 1, 1934, to June 30, 1935, that were received by the Statistical Section prior to the termination of the tabulation of the Statistics of Income data. Returns for fiscal years ended after June 30, 1934, and prior to December 31, 1934, are filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and the income tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act. Returns for fiscal years ended within the period January 1 to June 30, 1935, are filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934.

² Less than \$500.

As in previous reports, the number of returns, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax are tabulated for fiscal year returns with net income and no net income. In the first following table these data are classified by the month in which the fiscal year ended, and in the second following table by the size of the net income or deficit. In this report, three basic tables are presented containing the number of fiscal year returns classified in more detail than in former years. In all three of these basic tables the total number of returns and the number of returns with net income and no net income are shown for each major industrial group. In basic table 15 these data are classified by the month in which the fiscal year ended, in basic table 16 by net income and deficit classes, and in basic table 17 by total assets classes.

Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by month in which the fiscal year ended, showing total number of returns, number with net income and no net income, amount of net income or deficit, and income and excess-profits tax

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Fiscal year ended	Total	Ret	urns showi	Returns showing no net income			
	number of returns	Number	Net in- come	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 1	Number	Defici t
July 1934 August 1934 September 1934 October 1934 November 1934 January 1935 February 1935 March 1935 April 1935 May 1935	4, 597 5, 251 4, 765 5, 072 7, 637 4, 655 6, 132 5, 766	1, 471 1, 438 1, 598 1, 627 1, 884 3, 251 1, 585 2, 024 1, 947 2, 306	27, 114 46, 100 38, 538 55, 273 48, 765 86, 650 57, 372 36, 028 35, 861 46, 528	3. 785 6. 505 5, 333 7, 849 6, 744 11, 914 7, 889 4, 952 4, 926 6, 397	137 100 89 103 92 113 101 111 113 221	3, 034 3, 159 3, 653 3, 138 3, 188 4, 386 3, 070 4, 108 3, 819 3, 896	24, 572 34, 264 85, 207 38, 868 69, 531 45, 583 17, 706 37, 761 30, 508 25, 754
June 1935 Total	12, 465	4, 782	119, 742	16, 457 82, 751	$\frac{647}{1,827}$	7, 683	73, 581

¹Includes excess-profits tax of \$16,093 on returns with no net income for fiscal years ended in the period January 1 to June 30, 1935. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934, by net income and deficit classes, showing number of returns, net income or deficit, and income and excess-profits tax

[Money figures and net income and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

	Ret	urns showi	Returns showing no net income			
Net income and deficit classes	Number	Net in- come	Income tax	Excess- profits tax	Number	Deficit
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000 and over. Excess-profits tax in returns showing no	3, 041 1, 815 1, 194 875 2, 383 1, 228 723 515 1, 260 822 545 194 86	3, 226 4, 403 4, 465 4, 149 3, 894 16, 901 15, 108 12, 547 11, 551 44, 187 57, 389 84, 994 68, 037 59, 976 109, 410 97, 735	444 605 614 535 2, 325 2, 075 1, 726 6, 070 7, 894 11, 708 9, 384 8, 274 15, 283 13, 655	8 9 16 13 16 64 71 52 47 178 229 367 219 149 177 195	19, 805 5, 986 3, 551 2, 290 1, 590 3, 957 1, 673 968 583 1, 336 754 426 122 54 35	6, 693 8, 670 8, 741 7, 944 7, 111 28, 001 10, 683 13, 063 46, 578 52, 217 65, 412 41, 793 36, 880 71, 257 51, 826
net income	23, 913	597, 971	82, 751	$\frac{16}{1,827}$	43, 134	483, 334

PART YEAR RETURNS (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The returns filed by corporations showing income for less than 12 months represent reorganizations, newly organized businesses, liquidating corporations, and changes from calendar year to fiscal year basis, or vice versa. These returns are included in all text and basic tables containing 1934 data in this report. The part year returns tabulated herein represent those in which the greater part of the income period was in 1934.

Corporation part year returns for 1934

Total number of returns	28, 709
Number	6, 872
Net income	
Total tax	\$7, 715, 671
Income tax	\$7, 578, 749
Excess-profits tax 1	\$136, 922
Returns showing no net income:	
Number Deficit	21, 837
Deficit	\$109, 852, 571

¹ Includes excess-profits tax of \$148 on returns with no net income. (See article 1 (d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934."

The figures for part year returns for 1933, as published on page 36 in the Statistics of Income for 1933, are understated and the data to prepare revised figures are not available.

TAXES PAID OTHER THAN INCOME TAX AND COST OF GOODS SOLD, STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1933 (CORPORATION RETURNS)

The "taxes paid other than income tax" and the "cost of goods sold" as published in the Statistics of Income for 1933 will not be revised, although it was stated on page 29 and in the footnotes to the basic tables in that report that a revision of the 1933 figures would be available at a later date. Further examination of these items, after the printing of the Statistics of Income for 1933, revealed that the tabulations for 1933 were, in general, comparable with similar data for prior years and that, both for 1933 and for earlier years, taxes paid other than the income tax which were reported in "cost of goods sold" were tabulated generally, rather than in some instances, in "cost of goods sold."

HISTORICAL SUMMARIES (CORPORATION RETURNS)

A résumé of the corporation returns showing number of returns, gross income, net income, deficit, tax, and the items of compiled receipts, compiled deductions, assets and liabilities is shown in the following tables. This year, for the first time, there is included in this report, on pages 37 and 38, a historical table containing the items of compiled receipts and compiled deductions for corporation income tax returns for 1926 to 1934. Also, the table on pages 39 and 40 for corporations submitting balance sheets for 1926 to 1934 has been expanded to include items of compiled receipts and compiled deductions as well as

items of assets and liabilities. Attention is called to the fact that the amounts of money in these two tables are in millions of dollars.

Corporation returns distributed by States and Territories, for the years 1925 to 1934, showing number of returns, gross income, net income, deficit, and tax for returns with net income and no net income, are presented in basic table 8, pages 101 to 111. Similar data are shown by major industrial groups for the years 1925 to 1934 in basic table 7, pages 96 to 100.

Corporation returns for 1909 to 1934, showing total number, number with net income and no net income, gross income, net income, deficit, net income less deficit, income tax, war-profits and excess-profits tax, and total tax 1

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

		Number	of returns			Gross income	
Year	Total	Showing net in- come	Showing no net income ²	data-in- Total		Total Returns showing net income	
			/ *** ***				
1909	262, 490	³ 52, 498	209, 992				
1910		³ 54, 040 ³ 55, 129	4 216, 162 4 233, 223				
1911 1912	305, 336	³ 61, 116	4 244, 220				
1913	316, 909	188, 866	128, 043				
1914	5 299, 445	174, 205	125, 240				
1915	5 366, 443	190, 911	175, 532				
1916	341, 253	206, 984	134, 269			32, 531, 097	2, 796, 534
1917	351, 426	232, 079	119, 347		84, 693, 239	79, 540, 005	5, 153, 234
1918	317, 579	202, 061	115, 518		86, 464, 281	79, 706, 659	6, 757, 622
1919 1920	320, 198	209, 634	110, 564		99, 918, 754	88, 261, 006	11, 657, 743
1920	345, 595	203, 233	142, 362		118, 205, 563	93, 824, 225	24, 381, 338
1921	356,397	171, 239	185, 158		91, 249, 273	60, 051, 123	31, 198, 150
1922	382, 883	212, 535	170, 348		100, 920, 515	80, 331, 680	20, 588, 835
923	398, 933	233, 339	165, 594		118, 563, 663	97, 457, 479	21, 106, 184
1924	417, 421	236, 389	181, 032		119, 229, 494	97, 158, 997	22, 070, 497
1925	430, 072 455, 320	252, 334	177, 738		134, 260, 149 142, 129, 853	113, 692, 083 118, 022, 117	20, 568, 068
1926 1927	455, 320	258, 134 259, 849	197, 186 165, 826	49, 356	142, 129, 853	118, 022, 117	24, 107, 736 29, 074, 012
1928	495, 892	268, 783	174, 828	52, 281	152, 781, 514	⁷ 127, 369, 525	7 25, 411, 989
1929	509, 436	269, 430	186, 591	53, 415	160, 621, 509	129, 633, 792	30, 987, 717
1930	518, 736	221, 420	241, 616	55, 700	136, 062, 059	7 89, 561, 495	46, 500, 564
1931	516, 404	175, 898	283, 806	56, 700	107, 515, 239	52, 051, 035	55, 464, 204
1932	508, 636	82, 646	369, 238	56, 752	81, 083, 738	31, 707, 963	49, 375, 775
1933	504, 080	109, 786	337, 056	57, 238	83, 642, 421	46, 752, 366	36, 890, 055
934	528, 898	145, 101	324, 703	59,094	100, 831, 253	62, 920, 954	37, 910, 299

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209–213; general explanations appear on pp. 1-5. The period 1909 to 1915 includes to a limited extent, additions made by audit and delinquent returns filed. Taxes shown for 1909 to 1915, inclusive, are receipts for fiscal year ended June 30, immediately following, as shown in annual reports of Commissioner of Internal Revenue, which receipts include fines, penalties, additional assessments, etc.; 1916 and subsequent years, tax is amount reported on income-tax returns; taxes for 1913 include income tax, \$32,456,663; excise tax, \$10,671,077 (Act of Aug. 5, 1909).

² Prior to 1927, returns for inactive corporations showing no income data were included with returns showing no net income.

3 Returns showing net income in excess of \$5,000 exemption.
4 Returns showing deficit or net income not in excess of \$5,000 exemption.

showing no net income.

¹⁹¹⁵ contains approximately 32,000 returns related to 1914. (See Annual Report Commissioner of Internal Revenue, 1916, p. 26.)
7 Revised. For revised figures for 1928, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 238; for revised figures for 1930, see Statistics of Income for 1931, pp. 32, 33; and for revised figures for 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

Corporation returns for 1909 to 1934, showing total number, number with net income and no net income, gross income, net income, deficit, net income less deficit, income tax, war-profits and excess-profits tax, and total tax—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

					Tax	
Year	Net income	Net income Deficit		Income tax	War-profits and excess- profits tax	Total tax
1909 1910 1911 1912 1913 1914 1915 1916 1916 1917 1918 1919 1920 1921 1922	3, 761, 000 3, 503, 000 4, 151, 000 4, 714, 000 5, 310, 000 5, 310, 000 10, 730, 360 8, 361, 511 9, 411, 418 7, 902, 655 4, 336, 048 6, 963, 811	656, 904 629, 608 689, 772 995, 549 2, 029, 424 3, 878, 219 2, 193, 776 2, 013, 555	3, 761, 000 3, 503, 000 4, 151, 000 4, 714, 000	20, 960 33, 512 28, 583 35, 006 43, 128 39, 145 56, 994 171, 805 503, 698 653, 198 743, 536 636, 536 836, 644 775, 310 937, 106	1, 638, 748 2, 505, 566 1, 431, 806 988, 726 335, 132 6 8, 466	20, 960 33, 512 28, 583 35, 000 43, 128 39, 144 56, 994 171, 800 2, 142, 446 4, 175, 342 1, 625, 342 701, 576 783, 770 937, 100
1923 1924 1925 1927 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933	7, 586, 652 9, 583, 634 9, 673, 403 8, 981, 884 10, 617, 741 11, 653, 886 6, 428, 813 3, 683, 368 2, 153, 113 2, 985, 972	2, 223, 926 1, 962, 628 2, 168, 710 2, 471, 739 2, 391, 124 2, 914, 128 4, 877, 595 6, 970, 913 7, 796, 68 5, 533, 339 4, 181, 027	5, 362, 726 7, 621, 056 7, 504, 693 6, 510, 145 8, 226, 617 8, 739, 758 1, 551, 218 8 3, 287, 545 8 5, 643, 574 8 7, 547, 367 94, 170	\$37, 100 881, 550 1, 170, 331 1, 229, 797 1, 130, 674 1, 184, 142 1, 193, 436 711, 704 398, 994 7 285, 576 416, 093 588, 375	9 6, 976 7, 673	937, 106 881, 556 1, 170, 331 1, 229, 791 1, 130, 674 1, 184, 142 1, 193, 436 711, 704 398, 994 7 285, 576 423, 066 596, 048

Corporation returns for 1931 to 1934, by net income and deficit classes, showing number of returns, net income, and deficit ¹

[Money figures and net income and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

	19	931	1	932	1933		1934			
Net income classes	Number of returns	Net in- come	Number of returns	Net in- come	Number of returns	Net income	Number of returns	Net in- come		
		Returns showing net income								
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000 and over. Total.	31, 702 24, 312 9, 703 5, 481 12, 813 5, 321 3, 301 2, 440 4, 450 2, 755 1, 941 729 321 88	27, 836 46, 328 60, 782 33, 282 24, 519 90, 198 65, 292 57, 080 54, 847 157, 445 192, 198 296, 252 252, 021 265, 232 647, 197 1, 412, 858	42, 070 10, 403 5, 734 3, 321 2, 499 6, 259 2, 962 1, 796 1, 172 2, 700 1, 623 1, 159 429 235 59 82, 646	13, 121 14, 912 14, 081 11, 506 11, 196 44, 505 36, 271 31, 158 26, 213 13, 643 176, 676 150, 686 165, 567 464, 892 783, 775	52, 278 13, 558 7, 481 4, 783 3, 404 9, 143 4, 324 2, 634 1, 836 4, 245 2, 638 1, 958 732 385 318 69	16, 350 19, 559 18, 359 16, 574 15, 239 65, 189 52, 927 45, 569 41, 121 149, 596 184, 378 302, 402 254, 594 263, 853 636, 480 903, 781	63, 212 17, 836 10, 245 6, 752 4, 986 13, 191 6, 553 3, 907 2, 697 6, 425 4, 080 2, 946 1, 092 599 483 97	20, 568 25, 680 25, 224 23, 469 22, 293 93, 873 80, 315 67, 669 60, 512 226, 765 286, 729 457, 010 379, 419 424, 504 943, 413 1, 137, 754		

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209-213; general explanations appear on pp. 1-5. Figures for returns showing net income for 1918 and 1920 to 1924; inclusive, and for returns showing net income and no net income for 1925 to 1930, inclusive, appear in Statistics of Income for 1930, pp. 49-51.

On net income earned from July 1 to Dec. 31, 1921, reported on fiscal year returns whose accounting period terminated subsequent to July 1, 1922.
 Revised. For revised figures for 1928, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 238; for revised figures for 1930, see Statistics of Income for 1931, pp. 32, 33; and for revised figures for 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.
 Deficit in excess of net income.
 Excess-profits tax (effective June 30, 1933, under provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act).

Corporation returns for 1931 to 1934, by net income and deficit classes, showing number of returns, net income, and deficit—Continued

[Money figures and net income and deficit classes in thousands of dollars]

	1	931	1	932	1933		1934	
Deficit classes	Number of returns	Deficit	Number of returns	Deficit	Number of returns	Deficit	Number of returns	Deficit
		Returns showing no net income						
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000. 1,000. 5,000 and over.	18, 464 10, 613 6, 688 15, 219 7, 971 5, 167 1, 620 884 712	30, 363 56, 376 64, 451 67, 070 65, 098 284, 961 226, 091 183, 750 149, 584 532, 653 555, 143 794, 466 613, 928 1, 416, 923 1, 367, 460	131, 273 48, 626 31, 146 22, 844 16, 449 44, 854 20, 189 11, 741 7, 458 16, 595 8, 778 5, 592 1, 835 934 782 142	45, 683 70, 861 76, 892 79, 367 73, 621 318, 710 203, 129 166, 736 579, 563 608, 298 851, 933 636, 357 650, 386 1, 544, 855 1, 643, 385	153, 615 47, 221 27, 048 17, 828 12, 545 31, 422 13, 279 7, 322 4, 759 10, 380 5, 629 3, 515 1, 222 641 514 116	50, 836 68, 283 66, 587 61, 917 56, 178 221, 749 162, 142 126, 662 106, 110 361, 666 391, 925 539, 333 423, 833 443, 104 1, 022, 415 1, 430, 599	161, 078 44, 376 25, 061 15, 708 11, 132 26, 955 11, 208 6, 154 4, 019 8, 915 4, 942 3, 160 1, 002 542 396	51, 967 64, 010 61, 548 54, 429 49, 794 190, 322 137, 118 106, 336 89, 786 311, 044 344, 082 489, 854 347, 931 382, 472 833, 724 666, 612
Total	283, 806 56, 700	6, 970, 913	369, 238 56, 752	7, 796, 687	337, 056 57, 238	5, 533, 339	324, 703 59, 094	4, 181, 027

Corporation returns for 1926 to 1934, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit ¹

[Money figures in millions of dollars]

	1926	1927	1928	1929	1930
Number of returns	¹⁰ 455, 320	425, 675	443, 611	456, 021	463, 036
Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ² . Gross receipts from other operations ³ Interest. Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets)	106, 206 9, 332 3, 712 (11)	106, 864 9, 420 3, 989 (11)	112, 436 10, 334 4, 476 (11)	118, 101 28, 598 5, 036 2, 391 1, 315	13 97, 941 25, 267 4, 707 2, 480
Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4		22, 468 1, 658 501	13 23, 619 1, 917 12 523	2, 587 2, 593 537	13 2, 450 2, 571 13 526
Total compiled receipts 5	142, 629	144, 899	¹³ 153, 305	161, 158	¹³ 136, 588
Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets)	3, 989 1, 878 (12) 3, 270 571	83, 487 (12) (12) (12) (12) 4, 375 2, 014 814 3, 346 502 (12)	2, 203 804 3, 597 515	91, 076 (12) 3, 337 (12) 4, 925 2, 222 942 3, 871 559	2, 297 980 3, 986 463 936
Other deductions	40, 927	41, 692	13 40, 473	42, 357	13 39, 088
Total compiled deductions	133, 119	136, 230	13 142, 638	149, 289	13 131, 940
Compiled net profit or net lossNet income or deficit	9, 510 7, 505	8, 669 6, 510	13 10, 667 8, 227	11, 870 8, 740	13 4, 649 13 1, 551

For footnotes, see p. 38.

Corporation returns for 1926 to 1934, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit!—Continued

[Money figures in millions of dollars]

	1931	1932	1933	1934
Number of returns	459, 704	451, 884	446, 842	469, 804
Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales Gross receipts from other operations Interest. Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets) Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations Intere	75, 494 21, 945 4, 122 2, 251 299 1, 436 1, 969 542	13 53, 294 13 19, 584 3, 491 1, 926 142 1, 387 1, 260 554	57, 777 18, 982 2, 786 1, 650 262 1, 159 1, 026 592	74, 309 18, 552 2, 696 1, 585 243 1, 229 2, 217 664
Total compiled receipts 5	108, 057	81, 638	84, 234	101, 495
Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers 7 Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6 Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets) 9 Other deductions Total compiled deductions.	4, 492 2, 231 1, 183 4, 003 268 1, 702 33, 484	13 41, 430 (12) 2, 133 (12) 4, 043 2, 087 1, 313 3, 693 247 1, 705 12 28, 816	43, 626 9, 420 1, 995 1, 422 3, 511 2, 124 1, 249 3, 496 246 1, 686 16, 390 85, 164	57, 458 8, 670 2, 173 1, 486 3, 422 2, 162 1, 182 3, 362 312 297 17, 996
Compiled net profit or net loss	14 777 14 3, 288		14 930 14 2, 547	

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209-213; general explanation appears on pp. 1-5.
² For 1926 to 1931, gross sales for trading and manufacturing concerns. For 1932 and subsequent years, gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold" see "deductions." ² For 1926 to 1931, gross receipts from operations other than trading and manufacturing. For 1932 and subsequent years, gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations" see "deductions."

^{&#}x27;s See footnote 3, p. 12.

's See footnote 4, p. 12.

's See footnote 5, p. 13.

's See footnote 5, p. 13.

's See footnote 6, p. 13.

's See footnote 6, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13.

's See footnote 7, p. 13. than Government bonds) held 2 years or less, see sec. 23(r) of the Revenue Act of 1932 and sec. 218(b) of the National Industrial Recovery Act; for limitation on amount of loss that may be allowed for 1934, see sec. 117(d) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

¹¹⁷⁽d) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

10 Includes returns for inactive corporations showing no income data.

11 Included in "other receipts."

12 Included in "other deductions."

13 Revised. For revised figures for 1928, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 238; for revised figures for 1930, see Statistics of Income for 1931, pp. 32, 33; and for revised figures for 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

14 Deficit or compiled net loss.

Corporations submitting balance sheets for 1926 to 1934, showing number of balance sheets, assets and liabilities as of the end of the calendar year or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit ¹

[Money figures in millions of dollars]

(Lizono) again	0.5 411 411 411		3		
	1926	1927	1928	1929	1930
Number of returns with balance sheets 2	14 359, 449	379, 156	384, 548	398, 815	403, 173
Assets: ³ Cash ⁴ Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁵ Investments other than tax-exempt—	16, 802 23, 552 20, 939 8, 694	50, 959 21, 008	62, 804	22, 371 66, 810 21, 911 10, 338	21, 012 59, 675 18, 771 10, 228
stocks, bonds, mortgages, loans, real estate, etc. ⁴ Capital assets—land, buildings, equipment, etc., including depletable assets (less re-	(15)	(15)	(15)	55, 844	83, 809
serve for depreciation and depletion) Other assets	97, 523 16 94, 669			116, 446 42, 057	120, 994 19, 511
Total assets	16 262, 179	287, 545	307, 218	335, 778	334, 002
Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock—preferred. Capital stock—common. Surplus and undivided profit. Less deficit.	16 31, 801	1 16 37, 740 16 93, 274 17, 800 7 74, 081 4 45, 414	93, 950 18, 475 77, 256 52, 069	29, 453 46, 643 16 99, 314 19, 738 16 85, 520 60, 699 5, 588	26, 870 50, 282 16 95, 568 19, 117 87, 067 16 61, 832 6, 734
Total liabilities	16 262, 179	287, 545	307, 218	335, 778	334, 002
		1931	1932	1933	1934
Number of returns with balance sheets 2		381, 088	392, 021	388, 564	410, 626
Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments other than tax-exempt—stock mortgages, loans, real estate, etc. Capital assets—Land, buildings, equipm including depletable assets (less reserve ciation and depletion) Other assets.	s, bonds, ent, etc., for depre-	15, 880 48, 667 15, 140 10, 667 16 75, 305	15, 917 39, 564 12, 372 11, 917 75, 630 108, 553 16, 129	15, 236 35, 835 13, 597 13, 571 70, 474 104, 958 14, 535	19, 961 40, 529 14, 311 19, 084 90, 573 102, 751 14, 097
Total assets		296, 497	280, 083	268, 206	301, 307
Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities. Capital stock—preferred. Capital stock—common. Surplus and undivided profit. Less deficit		23, 251 48, 101 16 81, 782 16 19, 217 79, 794 51, 976 7, 624	20, 562 16 47, 222 16 78, 730 19, 076 78, 413 45, 664 9, 584	19, 362 45, 883 75, 384 18, 394 74, 088 44, 792 9, 696	27, 021 48, 604 84, 096 19, 976 84, 970 48, 986 12, 347
Total liabilities		296, 497	280, 083	268, 206	301, 307
	1.				

For footnotes, see p. 40.

Corporations submitting balance sheets for 1926 to 1934, showing number of balance sheets, assets and liabilities as of the end of the calendar year or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, and net income or deficit 1-Continued

[Money figures in millions of dollars]

Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ⁷ . Gross receipts from other operations ⁸ . Interest. Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets). Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations ⁵ .	73, 783 21, 206 4, 024 2, 110 284 1, 393	16 52, 586 16 18, 640 3, 418 1, 813 136 1, 356	56, 961 17, 991 2, 713 1, 556 253 1, 130	72, 825 17, 913 2, 640 1, 498 233 1, 207
Gross receipts from other operations s. Interest. Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets) Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	21, 206 4, 024 2, 110 284 1, 393 1, 905	16 18, 640 3, 418 1, 813 136 1, 356	17, 991 2, 713 1, 556	17, 913 2, 640 1, 498
Interest. Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets). Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	4, 024 2, 110 284 1, 393	3, 418 1, 813 136 1, 356	2, 713 1, 556	2, 640 1, 498 233
Rents. Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets). Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	2, 110 284 1, 393 1, 905	1, 813 136 1, 356	1, 556 253	1, 498 233
Net capital gain (sale of stocks, bonds, and other assets). Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	284 1, 393 1, 905	136 1, 356	253	233
assets)	1, 393 1, 905	1, 356		
Other receipts	1, 393 1, 905	1, 356		
Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	1, 905	. 1	1, 130	1. 207
Dividends from domestic corporations		1 207		1, 20.
Interest on tax axampt obligations 5			000	0.100
			962	2, 129
interest on tax-exempt obligations	533	545	582	655
Total compiled receipts 9	105, 238	79, 701	82, 148	99, 100
Deductions:				
Cost of goods sold 10	57, 374	18 40, 842	42, 981	56, 213
Cost of other operations	(17)	(17)	8, 988	8, 443
Compensation of officers 11	2, 574	2,064	1, 928	2, 102
Rent paid on business property	(17)	(17)	1,376	1,438
Interest paidTaxes paid other than income tax 12	4, 369	3, 906	3, 375	3, 339
Taxes paid other than income tax "	2, 172 1, 153	$\begin{array}{c c} 2,012 \\ 1,285 \end{array}$	2,044	2, 108 1, 151
Bad debts Depreciation	3, 933	3, 624	1, 213 3, 423	3, 290
Depletion	261	242	243	303
Net capital loss (sale of stocks, bonds, and other	201	242	240	303
ref capital 1055 (sale of stocks, bolids, and other	1,539	1, 538	1,488	258
assets) 13 Other deductions	32, 351	16 27, 698	15, 727	17, 412
<u> </u>	02, 001	27,000	10, 121	
Total compiled deductions	105, 725	83, 211	82, 787	96, 058
Compiled net profit or net loss.	18 487	18 3, 511	18 639	3,042
Net income or deficit	18 2, 925	18 5, 262	18 2, 183	258

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209-213; general explanations appear on pp. 1-5. Compiled receipts and compiled deductions are not available for corporations submitting balance sheets as distinct from all corporations, for the years 1926 to 1930, inclusive.

² Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balance sheet data.

3 See text pp. 13-18.4 Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.

* Includes cash in that deposits in bank.

See footnote 3, p. 12.

"Investments other than tax-exempt" not segregated from "other assets" prior to 1929. (See text p. 15.)

Tor 1926 to 1931, gross sales for trading and manufacturing concerns. For 1932 and subsequent years, gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold" see "deductions."

For 1926 to 1931, gross receipts from operations other than trading and manufacturing. For 1932 and

8 For 1926 to 1931, gross receipts from operations other than trading and manufacturing. For 1932 and subsequent years, gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations" see "deductions."
9 See footnote 4, p. 12.
10 See footnote 5, p. 13.
11 See footnote 6, p. 13.
12 See footnote 7, p. 13.
13 For limitation on amount of loss that may be allowed for 1932 and 1933, on sale of stocks and bonds (other than Government bonds) held 2 years or less, see sec. 23(r) of the Revenue Act of 1932 and sec. 218(b) of the National Industrial Recovery Act; for limitation on amount of loss that may be allowed for 1934, see

of the National Industrial Recovery Act; for limitation on amount of loss that may be allowed for 1934, see sec. 117(d) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

1 Includes returns for inactive corporations.
1 Included in "other assets."
1 Revised. For revised figures for 1926, see Statistics of Income for 1928, p. 388; for revised figures for 1927, see Statistics of Income for 1931, p. 32; for revised figures for 1929, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 28; and for revised figures for 1930, 1931, and 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

1 Included in "other deductions."
1 Defined in "other deductions."

13 Deficit or compiled net loss.

PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANY RETURNS, FORM 1120H

A personal holding company is defined under the provisions of section 351 of the Revenue Act of 1934 as any corporation (other than the specifically exempt corporations indicated below), if—(A) 80 percent or/more of its gross income for the taxable year was derived from royalties, dividends, interest, annuities, and (except in the case of regular dealers in stock or securities) gains from the sale of stock or securities, and, (B) at any time during the last half of the taxable year more than 50 percent in value of its outstanding stock was owned, directly or indirectly, by or for not more than five individuals. Corporations specifically exempt from this tax are as follows: (1) Corporations exempt from income taxation (as listed in section 101 of the Revenue Act of 1934); banks and trust companies (incorporated under the laws of the United States, or of any State or Territory) a substantial part of whose business is the receipt of deposits; (3) life insurance companies; and (4) surety companies.

The term "adjusted net income" means the net income or deficit reported on Form 1120 plus dividends received (which are allowed as a deduction for income tax purposes), and minus the sum of: (a) Federal income, war-profits, and excess-profits taxes and foreign taxes (not deducted in computing net income on form 1120), paid or accrued during the taxable year, but not including surtax on personal holding companies; (b) contributions or gifts to charitable, educational, and other similar organizations, which are not allowed as a deduction for income tax purposes; and (c) losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets which are disallowed as a deduction by section 117(d) of the

Revenue Act of 1934.

The term "undistributed adjusted net income" means the "adjusted net income" minus the sum of: (a) 20 percent of the excess of the adjusted net income over the amount of dividends received from personal holding companies; (b) amounts used or set aside to retire indebtednesss incurred prior to January 1, 1934, if such amounts are reasonable with reference to the size and terms of such indebtedness; and (c) dividends paid during the taxable year.

Return form 1120H (see facsimile on pp. 228–231) which is required

Return form 1120H (see facsimile on pp. 228–231) which is required to be filed by personal holding companies provides for an additional graduated surtax of 30 percent of the undistributed adjusted net income not over \$100,000 plus 40 percent of the amount over \$100,000. Personal holding companies are subject to this surtax on form 1120H

in addition to the corporation income tax on form 1120.

The personal holding company returns filed by corporations on form 1120H, for the calendar year 1934 and for fiscal years ended in the period January through June, 1935, number 4,457. There are 374 returns which show undistributed adjusted net income amounting

to \$5,369,910 and a surtax of \$1,833,346. No surtax liability is shown for 4,083 personal holding companies, which are divided into (a) 2,105 companies with no undistributed adjusted net income, of which 361 companies report that each shareholder included his prorata share of the adjusted net income of the corporation on his individual income tax return and 1,744 companies distributed to shareholders dividends in excess of adjusted net income and (b) 1,978 companies with no adjusted net income due to deductions exceeding receipts.

The accompanying tables are based on the returns as filed and prior to any adjustment that may be determined upon investigation and

audit.

The following table shows number of returns form 1120H, items of receipts and deductions not allowed on form 1120; adjusted net income, no adjusted net income, credits, and surtax for (a) returns for personal holding companies with adjusted net income, divided into returns with surtax liability and the two types of returns with no surtax liability and (b) returns with no adjusted net income. Each of these types of returns, form 1120H, is separated into those showing net income and no net income on form 1120. In the tables throughout this report compiled from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns for 1934, the returns, form 1120, filed by these companies are merged in the various industrial classifications according to the predominant business activity of the corporation as reported on form 1120.

The 374 returns of personal holding companies which did not make complete distribution of income and which therefore report surtax liability on form 1120H show adjusted net income of \$18,289,104 and dividends paid of \$8,801,066, or 48.1 percent of their adjusted net income. The undistributed adjusted net income subject to surtax is \$5,369,910 and the surtax liability is \$1,833,346. Of the 374 returns, 212 show a net income on form 1120. The surtax liability on form 1120H for these 212 returns is \$1,318,032. The surtax liability for the remaining 162 returns with undistributed adjusted net income but

with no net income on form 1120 is \$515,314.

It is not possible to determine the amount of the income tax liability of the individual shareholders on form 1040 on either the *pro rata* shares of the adjusted net income shown on form 1120H, which were reported on form 1040, or on the dividends distributed by the personal holding companies to the shareholders.

Personal holding company returns, form 1120H, for 1934, in aggregate and for returns with adjusted net income and no adjusted net income, by returns with net income and no net income on form 1120, showing number of returns, receipts, deductions, adjusted net income and no adjusted net income, credits, undistributed adjusted net income, and surtax

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	All ret form 1		Retur	ns fori		H with	adjust	ed net	form	urns 1120H
		50	Shov	ving	Showi	ing no i usted i	ındistr net inc	ibuted ome	juste	no ad- d net ome
	Showing net income on form 1120	Showing no net income on form 1120	undis uted justed incom surta bili	ad- ad- d net e and x lia- ity		es re- ed in idual ie tax	paid to holde other excee juste	dends o share- rs and credits ed ad- d net ome	income on form	Showing no net income on form
	Showing net in	Showing no ne	Showing net income on form 1120	Showing no net income on form 1120	Showing net income on form 1120	Showing no net income on form 1120	Showing net income on form 1120	Showing no net income on form 1120	Showing net 1120	Showing no ne 1120
Number of returns	1, 500	2, 957	212	162	223	138	937	807	128	1.850
Receipts: Net income on form 1120 No net income on form 1120 1 Dividends on stock of domestic	42, 854	48, 579 128, 859		1,053			33, 384	12, 034	1, 598	34, 926
corporations 2		80, 280				<u>-</u>	33, 825 67, 210			19, 072 15, 854
Deductions not allowed on form 1120: Federal income, war-profits and excess-profits taxes, and for-eign taxes i (not deducted in computing net income on form 1120), paid or accrued during the taxable year						2,101	51, 210			70,001
during the taxable year	7, 138 482 15, 902	2, 755 369 54, 361	5	537 26 674	329 14 140	(5) 401	5, 301 226 3, 827	782 94	355 237 11, 052	1, 427 249 46, 024
Total	23, 524	57, 486							11, 644	47, 700
Adjusted net income No adjusted net income 1	67, 185	22, 794	10, 672	7, 617	4, 204	2, 320	57, 855	76, 411	5, 546	63, 554
Credits: 20 percent of adjusted net income in excess of dividends from personal holding companies. Amount for debt retirements. Dividends paid.	11, 763 17, 071 69, 898	14, 275 16, 916 86, 175	115	949			9, 710 16, 729 64, 211	14, 609	227	1, 358 6, 238
Total	98, 731	117, 367	6, 927	5, 992			90, 650	103, 779	1, 154	7, 596
Undistributed adjusted net income Amount taxable at 30 percent Amount taxable at 40 percent Surtax, form 1120H	6 1, 798 6 1, 947	6 1, 348 6 277	1, 798 1, 947	1, 348 277						

Deductions in excess of receipts.
 Includes dividends from personal holding companies.
 The income tax paid or accrued during the taxable year to a foreign country or United States possession, which is not deducted in computing net income on form 1120, is estimated at \$1,500,000.
 No net income on form 1120 in excess of dividends received from domestic corporations.

⁵ Less than \$500. Amounts reported on form 1120H by companies with undistributed adjusted net income and surtax liability.

The following table shows the number of returns with adjusted net income distributed by adjusted net income classes:

Personal holding company returns, form 1120H, for 1934, with adjusted net income showing number of returns by adjusted net income classes

	Number of returns with adjusted net income			
	Showing	Showing no undistributed adjusted net income		
Adjusted net income classes (thousands of dollars)	undistrib- uted ad- justed net income and surtax lia- bility	Pro rata shares re- ported on individual income tax returns of shareholders	Dividends paid to shareholders and other credits exceed adjusted not income	
Under 5 5-10 10-25 25-50 50-100 100-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 500-3,000 500-3,000 500-3,000 500-3,000 500-3,000	30 45 32 20	182 54 79 17 18 10	505 222 335 247 189 205 24 15	
Total	374	361	1, 744	

BASIC TABLES AND SYNOPSIS OF CORPORATION INCOME AND PROFITS TAX RATES

Tables are continued in the following pages exhibiting in greater detail information from corporation income and excess-profits tax returns

There is also included a synopsis of corporation income and profits tax rates under the Revenue Acts of 1909–1934 and certain provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act (1933) which affect the comparability of the data in the Statistics of Income.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING, Commissioner of Internal Revenue.

Hon. Henry Morgenthau, Jr., Secretary of the Treasury.

BASIC TABLES

CORPORATION INCOME AND EXCESS-PROFITS TAX RETURNS

45

Table 1 (Table 12, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, number of returns, gross income, deductions, net income or deficit, income tax,

[Money figures in

[For text defining certain items and describing

	States and Territories	Total number of returns		Retu	rns showing	net income		
			Number	C income 1	Deduc- tions 1	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 2
123456789101121314567891011222324556789101121344567891011222324556789333344142344456478951	Alabama Alaska Arizona Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana Maine Maryland Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Mishigan Minnesota Missouri Montana New Hampshire New Hersey New Mexico New York North Carolina North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Dakota Teunessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington West Virginia Washington	3, 797 203 1, 586 2, 366 2, 366 6, 824 8, 948 2, 572 2, 598 9, 609 5, 900 7, 2, 270 34, 845 12, 275 8, 995 6, 995 5, 290 6, 995 1, 227 1, 298 11, 457 11, 294 11, 457 11, 298 11, 457 11, 298 11, 457 11, 291 11, 291 11, 298 11, 457 11, 291	1, 295 62 889 907 7, 112 1, 559 918 2, 332 2, 277 371 3, 646 2, 654 1, 674 1, 892 2, 012 1, 087 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 2, 187 3, 185 4, 879 4, 747 24, 318 2, 576 785 8, 785 8, 785 8, 11, 196 8, 104 947 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 427 1, 334 1, 776 2, 542 2, 903 1, 776 4, 559 4, 559 4, 559 4, 559 4, 559	241, 750 4, 458 66, 782 133, 632 2, 790, 876 385, 308 962, 925 760, 149 305, 696 326, 861 565, 990 576, 013 7, 446, 960 894, 540 605, 840 605, 840 605, 840 176, 327 687, 119 2, 557, 615 4, 918, 522 11, 326, 095 119, 709 2, 018, 557 105, 102 1, 785, 940 41, 407 16, 088, 093 849, 384 66, 952 3, 812, 17 4, 322, 117 293, 303 65, 905 5527, 901 1, 389, 776 151, 093 655, 284 641, 816 510, 734 430, 706 1, 025, 696 10, 735	230, 810 3, 902 63, 503 127, 630 127, 630 2, 562, 184 352, 323 889, 706 666, 820 282, 825 310, 403 530, 864 159, 741 66, 013 7, 078, 578 834, 424 578, 586 473, 760 532, 035 179, 171 2, 380, 250 4, 635, 940 1, 266, 285 115, 039 1, 875, 668 110, 985 97, 342 1, 618, 739 14, 896, 500 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 498 3, 552, 499 480 1, 297, 271 143, 486 61, 279 587, 135 484, 97, 271 143, 486 61, 279 587, 135 484, 907 698, 480 1, 297, 271 143, 486 61, 279 61, 279 61, 279 61, 279 61, 279 61, 279 61, 279 687, 135 484, 907 698 974, 487 77, 643	10, 940 556 3, 279 6, 002 228, 691 32, 985 78, 219 93, 329 22, 871 16, 458 35, 126 36, 600 368, 385 60, 116 27, 254 19, 990 43, 978 31, 487 12, 638 55, 948 31, 487 12, 638 55, 948 177, 365 282, 582 59, 810 4, 670 142, 891 1, 191, 532 2, 683 2, 683 2, 683 2, 683 2, 683 2, 683 2, 683 2, 684 2, 030 1, 191, 532 2, 083 3, 403 7, 760 11, 191, 532 2, 083 3, 403 7, 760 11, 191, 532 2, 083 3, 259 3, 403 7, 760 11, 191, 532 2, 083 3, 191, 532 2, 083 3, 191, 532 2, 193 3	1, 504 451 451 41, 536 451 31, 449 41, 536 10, 073 12, 882 31, 445 22, 265 41, 830 22, 281 250, 791 82, 275 33, 768 22, 772 63, 047 41, 357 11, 743 77, 581 24, 388, 862 28, 236 689 19, 661 10, 666 23, 036 24, 388 164, 073 27, 37 286 10, 666 23, 036 24, 388 25, 388 26, 639 21, 759 22, 737 25, 288 26, 283 27, 279 27, 289 289 299 299 299 299 3, 920 20, 792 21, 940 22, 792 21, 940 22, 792 23, 920 23, 920 21, 7551 2551 2551 2551 2551 2551 2551 2551	64 66 211 342 103 382 103 42 145 481 711 9 199 210 68 27 143 216 325 151 123 23 256 284 115 110 121 255 284 115 110 121 255 110 110 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121
<i>0</i> 1	Wyoming Total	528, 898	145, 101	62, 920, 954	58, 645, 757	4, 275, 197	588, 375	7, 673

¹ Gross income and deductions correspond to total income and total deductions (items 14 and 26, respectively, on face of return) plus, in each instance, cost of goods sold and cost of operations (items 2 and 5 on face of return). Interest received on Liberty bonds, etc. (item 11 on face of return) has been deducted from gross income so that gross income will include the same items as in prior years.

by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, excess-profits tax, and dividends paid; also number of inactive corporations

thousands of dollars]

returns included, see pp. 1-4]

				Returns showing	_	Divider	ds paid	
Re	eturns showi	ng no net inc	Inactive Returns showing Returns sh		data— Inactive Returns showing Returns showing corpora- net income net income			
Number	Gross income 1	Deduc- tions ¹	Deficit	Number	Cash	Stock	Cash	Stock
2, 098	181, 338	199, 834	18, 497	404	4, 693	72	7, 250	5
115	3, 103	3, 475	372	26	267	6	305	
809 1, 336	37, 302 :	42, 497 88, 706	5, 195 6, 576	388 123	1, 733 3, 021	822 543	368 482	4 43
14, 675	82, 131 1, 714, 305	1, 942, 185	227, 880	3, 319	216, 978	16, 092	67, 619	4, 788
3, 851	203, 087	227, 262	24, 175	1,414	19, 595	840	5, 582	89
5, 940 1, 509	711, 228 570, 810	782, 407 619, 382	71, 179 48, 572	623 357	74, 208 140, 091	3, 750 6, 408	15, 313 95, 416	162
1, 428	221, 222	243, 421	22, 199	252	12, 085	2, 321	3, 054	4, 973 135
5, 423	208, 254	243, 514	35, 260	1,854	7, 325	246	3, 836	66
3, 153	228, 405	251, 033	22, 628	470	22, 897	169	3, 798	179
392 966	40, 655 41, 224	45, 367 45, 938	4,711 4,715	28 711	17, 935 2, 180	890 38	3, 947 735	8 29
21, 099	3, 608, 633	4,057,092	448, 458	3,772	252, 911	11, 198	66, 111	819
6, 965	597, 688	569, 369	61, 681	1,664	41, 687	1, 511	4, 296	89
4, 409 2, 829	232, 770 218, 757	259, 708 239, 013	26, 938 20, 256	1, 927 452	15, 635 30, 569	3, 085 1, 302	1, 369 2, 788	161 161
2, 829	267, 830	291, 831	24, 001	512	22, 726	974	2, 788 5, 716	53
4, 144	262, 124	292, 689	30, 565	839	20, 799	463	2,884	37
2, 313	181, 155	202, 253	21, 097	497	8, 280	341	2, 739	220
3, 735 13, 622	593, 365 1, 872, 967	663, 782 2, 045, 266	70, 417 172, 298	818 1, 396	53, 400 141, 401	1, 310 6, 593	8, 360 57, 424	1, 261 3, 410
9, 103	950, 968	1, 077, 036	125, 068	1,737	182, 514	8, 654	6, 260	152
6, 414	676, 997	768, 801	91, 804	1, 699	49, 529	778	19, 930	181
1, 325	81, 179 939, 236	89, 990 1, 072, 079	8, 811 132, 843	166 1, 805	2, 258 95, 382	219	662	15
9, 151 1, 647	939, 236 46, 340	54, 387	8,047	383	3, 532	7, 163 133	11,001 612	213 138
2, 784	136, 803	154, 626	17, 823	448	13, 166	415	2,069	20
493	33, 599	38, 255	4, 656	268	3, 157		5, 455	53
865 18, 104	73, 149 1, 393, 616	79, 290 1, 588, 462	6, 141 194, 846	98 2, 532	5, 799 182, 069	33 2, 215	391 40, 169	116 826
596	20, 127	22,696	2, 569	238	845	134	310	4
83, 689	11, 552, 650	12, 788, 742	1, 236, 092	10, 934	1, 383, 225	44, 312	359, 674	14, 803
2, 920 1, 454	272, 761 34, 305	298, 963 38, 640	26, 202 4, 335	404 646	54, 815 716	1,872 211	1, 935 83	113 10
16, 067	2, 179, 222	2, 379, 559	200, 337	1,613	182, 870	4, 418	37, 035	2, 868
3, 563	641, 305	688, 943	47, 637	663	35, 855	733	20, 567	1, 182
3, 481 17, 255	226, 652 3, 570, 752	249, 733 3, 890, 510	23, 080 319, 758	1, 185 3, 287	3, 705 281, 544	1, 470 27, 537	2, 305 118, 467	67 2, 040
2, 249	312, 195	349, 147	36, 952	308	20, 065	1, 663	3, 705	197
1, 704	111, 456	120, 610	9, 154	284	6, 380	1, 134	704	414
1, 543	40, 813	45, 087	4, 274 23, 960	576	710	59	225	100
2,858 8,649	233, 119 868, 403	257, 079 976, 501	108, 099	1, 590	16, 456 77, 137	2, 577 2, 320	1, 974 19, 379	188 282
1, 550	80, 449	90, 439	9,991	550	4,891	108	1,663	2
767	49, 680	54, 570	4, 890	73	2, 616	50	270	15
3, 794 6, 483	230, 031 339, 317	266, 481 376, 147	36, 450 36, 830	557 2, 071	35, 866 16, 742	1, 207 644	4, 166 8, 295	14 69
2, 525	187, 118	204, 109	16, 991	411	23, 548	329	3, 081	33
9, 177	614, 934	684, 547	69, 613	2, 174	55, 483	4,052	6, 739	594
787	24, 769	29, 874	5, 105	135	1, 275	5	265	41
324, 703	37, 910, 299	42,091,326	4, 181, 027	59, 094	3, 852, 599	173, 419	1, 036, 781	41, 344

² Includes excess-profits tax of \$37,540 on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4459, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid

[Money figures in

[For text defining certain items and

PART I. ALL

			Industri	al groups	
			Agricul-		Manufac- turing
		Aggregate	ture and related indus- tries	Mining and quar- rying	Total man- ufacturing
1	Number of returns	469, 804	9, 326	13, 543	91, 292
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1. Gross receipts from other operations 2. Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	74, 309, 307 18, 551, 986 2, 696, 250 1, 585, 017 242, 559 1, 228, 688	395, 547 101, 159 5, 358 12, 484 2, 561 14, 957	2, 131, 845 221, 493 19, 148 23, 245 21, 978 44, 257	39, 559, 783 436, 236 148, 048 109, 416 37, 098 413, 731
8	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3	2, 217, 446 663, 601	5, 582 1, 826	75, 747 8, 386	388, 637 63, 852
10	Total compiled receipts 4	101, 494, 854	539, 474	2, 546, 100	41, 156, 801
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss Other deductions	8, 670, 246 2, 173, 058 1, 485, 571 3, 421, 519 2, 161, 892 1, 182, 064 3, 362, 108 311, 852	272, 513 29, 468 16, 900 15, 346 23, 193 21, 669 6, 876 32, 212 4, 824 15, 627 148, 138	1, 434, 536 100, 416 41, 570 17, 426 78, 854 89, 851 16, 512 174, 884 184, 522 4, 888 327, 817	30, 017, 301 175, 103 753, 805 293, 937 367, 205 565, 721 250, 657 1, 316, 817 106, 895 36, 540 5, 840, 416
2 2	Total compiled deductions	98, 519, 637	586, 766	2, 471, 276	39, 724, 397
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	2, 975, 218 94, 170	9 47, 291 9 54, 699	74, 823 9 9, 311	1, 432, 404 979, 915
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax ⁸	588, 375 7, 673	4, 198 80	21, 456 428	262, 466 3, 477
27	Total tax	596, 048	4, 278	21, 884	265, 943
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	4, 889, 379	9 51, 570 26, 410 560	52, 939 266, 133 4, 480	1, 166, 461 1, 609, 659 104, 697

For footnotes, see pp. 58-59.

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and comexcess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divi-

thousands of dollars]

describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 11-13]

RETURNS

		Industr	ial groups—Co	ntinued			
		Manu	facturing—Cor	itinued			
Food and kindred products	Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and non- alcoholic)	Tobacco products	Textiles and their products	Leather and its manufactures	Rubber products	Forest products	
12, 524	2, 908	376	15, 423	2, 344	607	6, 537	1
8, 166, 607 53, 641 18, 333 12, 112 3, 492 56, 091	1, 039, 678 5, 735 1, 401 4, 102 808 6, 068	1, 045, 465 367 2, 267 740 872 3, 221	5, 114, 483 70, 756 7, 820 12, 379 4, 393 34, 266	1, 018, 483 3, 445 1, 930 1, 167 400 6, 677	712, 051 6, 018 4, 332 9, 241 1, 803 4, 233	1, 050, 670 16, 754 5, 212 5, 530 2, 675 12, 154	2 3 4 5 6 7
34, 850 5, 823	1, 629 1, 188	6, 695 3, 714	6, 163 6, 093	1, 050 732	18, 576 696	2, 408 1, 282	8
8, 350, 948	1, 060, 609	1, 063, 340	5, 256, 352	1, 033, 885	756, 950	1, 096, 685	10
6, 569, 265 17, 964 86, 114 37, 491 52, 120 69, 599 26, 227 146, 722 170 3, 915 1, 049, 490	676, 141 1, 956 20, 854 4, 334 7, 778 41, 781 9, 754 25, 968 64 2, 294 184, 883	829, 970 68 6, 767 1, 358 3, 455 8, 183 1, 426 11, 094 962 42 95, 397	4, 220, 264 46, 789 139, 977 41, 660 33, 232 56, 027 18, 979 123, 033 145 8, 033 539, 167	847, 498 1, 586 24, 318 8, 739 4, 668 6, 222 4, 408 11, 861 43 539 103, 296	524, 269 152 7, 603 10, 704 11, 772 12, 867 3, 503 28, 953 8 2, 279 131, 159	813, 934 9, 257 36, 871 7, 578 22, 417 21, 675 13, 399 41, 549 18, 600 3, 225 153, 987	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
8, 059, 077	975, 866	958, 720	5, 227, 308	1, 013, 178	733, 269	1, 142, 493	22
291, 871 251, 198	84, 743 81, 925	104, 620 94, 211	29, 044 16, 789	20, 706 18, 924	23, 682 4, 410	⁹ 45, 808 ⁹ 49, 498	23 24
41, 768 642	13, 427 402	13, 241 5	19, 505 291	5, 018 66	2, 094 20	3, 743 63	25 26
42, 411	13, 830	13, 246	19, 795	5, 084	2, 115	3, 807	27
249, 460 258, 693 9, 037	70, 913 25, 508 1, 457	91, 373 96, 458 958	9, 249 99, 019 9, 357	15, 622 22, 277 1, 392	21, 567 19, 997 78	9 49, 615 33, 410 969	28 29 30

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid—Continued

[Money figures in

PART I. ALL

		Ind	lustrial group	os—Continue	ed
		М	[anufacturing	g—Continue	1
		Paper, pulp, and products	Printing, publishing, and allied industries	Chemicals and allied products	Stone, clay, and glass products
1	Number of returns	2, 240	12, 108	7, 608	3, 744
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ¹. Gross receipts from other operations ². Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations ³.	4, 594 10, 608 4, 221 1, 139 8, 784 4, 961	1, 706, 316 97, 645 5, 834 10, 182 2, 226 19, 207 15, 407 4, 168	6, 284, 780 61, 083 29, 603 18, 784 7, 560 51, 126 195, 625 8, 731	810, 405 9, 006 3, 466 2, 645 1, 234 8, 053 4, 740 2, 111
10	Total compiled receipts 4	1, 316, 576	1, 860, 984	6, 657, 292	841, 661
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6 Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss 7 Other deductions.	917, 500 777 31, 361 11, 592 25, 545 18, 935 7, 941 61, 202	1, 121, 316 54, 466 88, 564 34, 505 20, 226 17, 499 24, 044 48, 558 1, 406 377, 448	4, 385, 142 13, 387 66, 546 57, 229 57, 835 150, 915 37, 380 291, 151 78, 805 3, 835 1, 165, 223	540, 322 3, 308 23, 258 4, 368 12, 962 13, 592 7, 644 61, 152 1, 751 1, 133 140, 095
22	Total compiled deductions	1, 257, 023	1, 788, 098	6, 307, 448	809, 585
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22)	59, 554 52, 471	72, 886 53, 311	349, 844 145, 488	32, 075 25, 224
25 26	Income tax	11, 123 211	16, 148 201	44, 627 543	8, 491 59
27	Total tax	11, 334	16, 350	45, 170	8, 550
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	44, 588	56, 536 81, 969 9, 752	304, 674 363, 423 32, 067	23, 525 44, 866 2, 369

For footnotes, see pp. 58-59.

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and comexcess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divi-

thousands of dollars

RETURNS-Continued

Industrial groups—Continued											
			industriai gro	oups—Contin	uea						
Manufacturi Metal and its products	Manufacturing not elsewhere classified	Construc- tion	Transpor- tation and other public utilities	Trade	Service— Professional, amuse- ments, ho- tels, etc.	Finance— Banking, insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brok- ers, etc.	Nature of business not given				
19, 281	5, 592	15, 941	25, 379	140, 876	45, 912	126, 096	1, 439]			
10, 167, 536 97, 463 51, 983 24, 824 7, 200 190, 399	1, 163, 162 9, 729 5, 259 3, 492 3, 296 13, 452	513, 309 704, 421 6, 760 8, 421 4, 115 14, 586	10, 475, 274 131, 027 97, 332 11, 860 70, 586	31, 708, 822 718, 137 85, 123 84, 664 14, 498 340, 198	3, 163, 822 12, 813 124, 171 6, 856 54, 145	10 2, 728, 223 2, 287, 622 1, 125, 076 143, 457 275, 031	3, 221 351 207 136 1, 196	2 3 4 5 6			
89, 030 25, 413	7, 503 1, 779	5, 167 3, 723	324, 151 20, 564	59, 517 16, 993	12, 470 2, 305	1, 345, 671 545, 919	505 34	§			
10, 653, 847	1, 207, 672	1, 260, 502	11, 130, 794	33, 027, 953	3, 376, 582	8, 450, 999	5, 651	10			
7, 757, 786 22, 063 179, 988 61, 990 107, 308 135, 012 85, 265 426, 302 4, 547 7, 190 1, 495, 227	813, 894 3, 330 41, 584 12, 330 7, 887 13, 414 10, 687 39, 271 176 1, 442 225, 638	411, 847 527, 197 69, 738 10, 578 13, 113 10, 437 13, 647 43, 078 341 2, 277 184, 147	5, 666, 297 87, 565 158, 767 1, 366, 655 706, 340 43, 024 1, 004, 830 10, 746 8, 056 1, 457, 396	25, 322, 205 309, 500 684, 027 609, 219 150, 284 214, 646 226, 328 265, 142 1, 419 13, 862 4, 833, 637	1, 273, 262 163, 074 215, 670 174, 108 123, 794 43, 562 202, 589 264 18, 646 1, 322, 437	10 586, 850 11 355, 845 164, 435 1, 247, 534 429, 154 579, 749 321, 977 2, 829 197, 072 12 3, 878, 740	2, 154 534 192 572 280 1, 708 578 12 430 2, 802	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21			
10, 282, 678	1, 169, 654	1, 286, 400	10, 509, 677	32, 630, 269	3, 537, 406	12 7, 764, 184	9, 262	22			
371, 169 256, 726	38, 018 28, 736	9 25, 898 9 34, 787	621, 117 276, 402	397, 684 321, 174	9 160, 824 9 175, 599	686, 814 9 1, 204, 775	9 3, 611 9 4, 150	23 24			
73, 627 788	9, 653 184	4, 358 190	126, 600 329	92, 200 2, 077	14, 863 348	62, 108 742	125 2	25 26			
74, 415	9, 837	4, 548	126, 929	94, 278	15, 211	62, 850	127	2			
296, 754 477, 118 29, 146	28, 181 42, 333 2, 333	9 30, 447 23, 398 2, 050	494, 188 1, 221, 443 21, 266	303, 406 398, 734 33, 294	9 176, 035 63, 087 4, 170	623, 964 1, 278, 888 44, 248	9 3, 738 1, 629	25 25 36			

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid—Continued

[Money figures in

PART II. RETURNS

_			Industri	al groups	
			Agricul-		Manufac- turing
		Aggregate	ture and related indus- tries	Mining and quarrying	Total man- ufacturing
1	Number of returns	145, 101	1, 995	4, 460	34, 023
234567 89	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations 2 Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3.	50, 103, 497 9, 679, 254 837, 241 495, 941 104, 222 759, 904 940, 895 197, 582	216, 006 60, 626 2, 359 5, 073 1, 134 9, 869 1, 447 1, 133	1, 017, 722 72, 479 7, 892 10, 726 13, 638 22, 983 16, 335 4, 372	26, 583, 716 207, 753 81, 167 57, 304 20, 072 298, 889 194, 010 48, 266
10	Total compiled receipts 4	63, 118, 536	297, 647	1, 166, 147	27, 491, 176
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6. Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss 7. Other deductions.	38, 177, 046 3, 674, 133 1, 152, 493 761, 132 1, 030, 135 1, 015, 321 335, 878 1, 720, 701 151, 534 21, 697 9, 664, 790	136, 595 6, 809 6, 591 11, 930 4, 019 8, 859 1, 758 16, 054 1, 277 70, 466	596, 238 16, 378 20, 621 7, 726 17, 238 33, 816 5, 135 71, 140 101, 158 737 119, 191	19, 724, 317 59, 346 460, 341 151, 988 155, 867 298, 761 122, 507 706, 678 40, 954 8, 171 3, 613, 867
22	Total compiled deductions	57, 704, 862	264, 494	989, 377	25, 342, 796
23 24 25 26	Compiled net profit (10 less 22) Net income (23 less 8 and 9) Income tax Excess-profits tax	5, 413, 675 4, 275, 197 588, 375 7, 635	33, 152 30, 572 4, 198 80	176, 770 156, 063 21, 456 427	2, 148, 380 1, 906, 104 262, 466 3, 474
27	Total tax	596, 011	4, 278	21, 883	265, 940
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	4, 817, 664 3, 852, 599 173, 419	28, 874 22, 188 363	154, 887 175, 052 2, 132	1, 882, 440 1, 419, 963 100, 508

For footnotes, see pp. 58-59.

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and comexcess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divisors.

thousands of dollars]

SHOWING NET INCOME

	Industrial groups—Continued														
	Manufacturing—Continued														
Food and kindred products	Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalco- holic	Tobacco products	Textiles and their prod- ucts	Leather and its manufactures	Rubber products	Forest products									
5, 374	1, 368	131	5, 682	976	267	1,812	1								
6, 831, 178 37, 062 15, 578 7, 923 2, 818 49, 170	838, 160 3, 338 1, 046 2, 204 653 4, 751	1, 009, 445 344 2, 207 665 848 3, 059	2, 977, 642 25, 964 4, 497 6, 360 2, 212 20, 508	699, 762 1, 649 1, 474 541 220 4, 589	353, 271 3, 639 994 1, 359 1, 551 1, 664	477, 140 3, 680 2, 015 1, 802 727 4, 137	2 3 4 5 6 7								
30, 088 5, 433	1, 363 939	6, 675 3, 659	3, 425 5, 118	801 583	278 225	834 709	8								
6, 979, 249	852, 455	1, 026, 902	3, 045, 726	709, 618	362, 981	491, 044	10								
5, 510, 499 8, 238 58, 710 23, 884 35, 770 54, 110 16, 675 107, 186 89 949 825, 290	535, 037 699 15, 468 2, 798 4, 963 31, 037 6, 785 18, 393 64 518 136, 744	801, 163 63 5, 333 1, 068 3, 187 7, 551 1, 137 10, 582 957 23 89, 208	2, 356, 225 15, 457 79, 631 19, 978 12, 313 30, 588 9, 285 65, 760 39 1, 775 304, 430	568, 898 453 15, 341 4, 975 2, 024 4, 064 2, 528 7, 531 20 191 65, 740	240, 345 88 5, 058 6, 130 3, 993 8, 507 1, 939 13, 329 8 81 68, 024	355, 820 1, 134 15, 787 2, 647 4, 603 6, 923 4, 090 13, 682 5, 767 339 51, 498	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21								
6, 641, 400	752 505	920, 271	2, 895, 481	671, 766	347, 503	462, 291	22								
337, 849 302, 328 41, 768 642	99, 950 97, 648 13, 427 401	106, 631 96, 296 13, 241 5	150, 245 141, 702 19, 505 290	37, 852 36, 468 5, 018 66	15, 479 14, 976 2, 094 20	28, 753 27, 210 3, 743 63	23 24 25 26								
42, 411	13, 828	13, 246	19, 795	5, 084	2, 115	3, 807	27								
295, 438 250, 571 8, 940	86, 121 24, 291 1, 360	93, 385 96, 153 958	130, 450 87, 402 8, 834	32, 768 20, 786 1, 208	13, 364 14, 238 78	24, 946 16, 713 714	28 29 30								

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid—Continued

[Money figures in

PART II. RETURNS SHOWING

		In	dustrial grou	ıps—Continu	ied
		1	Manufacturii	ıg—Continue	ed
		Paper, pulp, and products	Printing, publishing, and allied industri e s	Chemicals and allied products	Stone, clay, and glass prod- ucts
1	Number of returns	1, 208	4, 490	3, 049	997
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations 2 Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations	2, 064 2, 495 2, 472 509 6, 132	1, 214, 823 35, 100 4, 461 7, 273 1, 563 13, 684 8, 453	3, 172, 747 22, 086 10, 847 8, 369 2, 440 27, 311 79, 187	583, 258 5, 583 2, 469 1, 291 808 5, 635
9	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3	1, 362	3, 701	6, 376	1,547
10	Total compiled receipts 4	968, 065	1, 289, 058	3, 329, 363	605, 139
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Deductions: Cost of goods sold \$ Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax \$ Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss \$ Other deductions.	362 22, 931 6, 957 11, 187 11, 764 5, 653 42, 129 725 630	766, 521 14, 852 53, 690 19, 880 10, 465 13, 007 13, 522 31, 027 55 673 235, 746	2, 063, 843 3, 749 47, 196 20, 860 17, 658 43, 209 15, 734 116, 657 29, 933 584 560, 345	374, 789 1, 241 12, 320 2, 384 4, 473 7, 523 3, 766 37, 175 924 611 92, 088
22	Total compiled deductions	883, 115	1, 159, 439	2, 919, 769	537, 293
23 24	Compiled net profit (10 less 22) Net income (23 less 8 and 9)	84, 950 80, 889	129, 618 117, 465	409, 594 324, 031	67, 846 61, 751
25 26	Income tax		16, 148 201	44, 627 543	8, 491 59
27	Total tax	11, 334	16, 350	45, 170	8, 550
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	40, 919	113, 269 79, 154 9, 704	364, 424 286, 772 31, 916	59, 296 42, 520 2, 188

For footnotes, see pp. 58-59.

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and comexcess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divi-

thousands of dollars]

NET INCOME-Continued

]	Industrial gro	ups—Continu	ed			
Manufactu Metal and its products	Manufac- turing not elsewhere classified	Construc- tion	Transpor- tation and other public utilities	Trade	Service— Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.	Finance—Banking, in- surance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	Nature of business not given	
6, 844	1, 825	3, 353	9, 808	52, 823	11, 194	27, 257	188	1
6, 728, 717 63, 226 30, 227 15, 310 3, 299 149, 835	747, 241 4, 017 2, 858 1, 735 2, 425 8, 413	179, 075 381, 031 2, 449 2, 082 2, 070 6, 880	5, 532, 828 71, 264 53, 099 4, 226 38, 682	22, 106, 979 447, 143 57, 920 47, 338 9, 853 239, 687	1, 504, 501 4, 986 20, 082 2, 026 23, 948	10 1, 472, 293 608, 978 300, 162 51, 118 117, 995	601 226 75 85 972	2 3 4 5 6 7
49, 774 17, 316	5, 884 1, 298	1, 287 1, 801	195, 093 14, 754	40, 588 9, 478	6, 302 1, 117	485, 721 116, 641	113 19	8
7, 057, 706	773, 871	576, 675	5, 909, 946	22, 958, 986	1, 562, 962	3, 152, 908	2,089	10
5, 004, 926 11, 835 104, 668 34, 453 42, 221 72, 854 36, 136 222, 062 2, 305 1, 538 922, 470	494, 211 1, 175 24, 207 5, 974 3, 011 7, 624 5, 254 21, 164 67 259 133, 550	134, 398 263, 967 26, 012 3, 162 3, 808 3, 669 3, 442 18, 493 191 272 84, 478	2, 449, 228 48, 602 89, 088 533, 804 392, 587 23, 546 621, 639 5, 902 888 615, 516	17, 585, 499 194, 025 393, 481 368, 826 76, 316 135, 906 118, 956 158, 700 736 3, 769 3, 202, 368	568, 146 78, 315 80, 477 29, 025 32, 690 10, 007 54, 134 48 1, 121 593, 773	10 115, 991 11 118, 381 47, 916 210, 031 108, 973 50, 509 73, 529 1, 265 6, 600	242 149 19 26 61 19 334 3 3 195	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21
6, 455, 467	696, 496	541, 893	4, 780, 800	22, 238, 584	1, 447, 736	12 2, 098, 131	1,050	22
602, 238 535, 147	77, 374 70, 192	34, 783 31, 694	1, 129, 146 919, 298	720, 402 670, 336	115, 226 107, 807	1, 054, 777 452, 414	1,039 908	23 24
73, 627 787	9, 653 184	4, 358 190	126, 600 326	92, 200 2, 076	14, 863 346	62, 108 715	125 2	25 26
74, 414	9, 837	4, 548	126, 926	94, 276	15, 209	62, 823	127	27
527, 825 420, 815 27, 133	67, 538 39, 630 1, 829	30, 234 15, 174 1, 820	1, 002, 220 1, 119, 883 18, 302	626, 126 368, 809 30, 671	100, 016 55, 047 3, 120	991, 954 674, 978 16, 503	912 10, 506	28 29 30

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid—Continued.

[Money figures in

PART III. RETURNS SHOW

			Industr	ial groups	
			Agricul-	Mining	Manufac- turing
		Aggregate ture and related industries and quarry ing - 324, 703	Total man- ufacturing		
1	Number of returns	324, 703	7, 331	9, 083	57, 269
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations 2 Interest Net capital gain Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3 Total compiled receipts 4 Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax 6 Bad debts. Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss 7.	8, 872, 732 1, 859, 009 1, 089, 075 138, 337 468, 784 1, 276, 551 466, 019	40, 533 2, 999 7, 411 1, 427 5, 089 4, 135 693	149, 014 11, 256 12, 519 8, 340 21, 274 59, 413 4, 014	12, 976, 067 228, 483 66, 881 52, 113 17, 026 114, 842 194, 628 15, 586 13, 665, 625 10, 292, 985 115, 756 293, 464 141, 950 211, 338 266, 960 128, 150 610, 139 65, 941 28, 369
21 22	Other deductions	8, 330, 738 40, 814, 775	77, 671 322, 272	1, 481, 899	2, 226, 548
23 24 25 26 27 28	Compiled net loss (10 less 22). Deficit (23 plus 8 and 9). Excess-profits tax *. Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax (23 plus 25). Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid.	2, 438, 457 4, 181, 027 38 2, 438, 495 1, 036, 781 41, 344	80, 444 85, 272 (13) 80, 444 4, 222 197	101, 947 165, 373 2 101, 948 91, 081 2, 348	715, 976 926, 189 3 715, 979 189, 696 4, 188

For footnotes, see pp. 58-59.

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and comexcess-profits tax, tatal tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divi-

thousands of dollars]

ING NO NET INCOME

		Industr	rial groups—Co	ntinued		
		Manu	facturing—Con	tinued		
Food and kindred products	Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic)	Tobacco products	Textiles and their prod- ucts	Leather and its manufactures	Rubber prod- ucts	Forest products
7, 150	1, 540	245	9, 741	1,368	340	4, 725
1, 335, 429 16, 579 2, 755 4, 189 675 6, 920	201, 518 2, 397 355 1, 898 155 1, 316	36, 020 23 60 75 24 162	2, 136, 841 44, 792 3, 323 6, 019 2, 181 13, 758	318, 721 1, 796 456 626 180 2, 088	358, 780 2, 379 3, 338 7, 882 252 2, 569	573, 530 13, 074 3, 197 3, 728 1, 948 8, 017
4, 763 389	266 250	20 54	2, 738 975	250 149	18, 298 471	1,574 573
1, 371, 699	208, 154	36, 438	2, 210, 626	324, 266	393, 969	605, 641
1, 058, 767 9, 726 27, 405 13, 607 16, 350 15, 489 9, 551 39, 536 81 2, 966 224, 200	141, 104 1, 256 5, 385 1, 596 2, 815 10, 745 2, 969 7, 575	28, 807 1, 433 290 268 632 289 511 5 19 6, 190	1, 864, 039 31, 332 60, 347 21, 683 20, 919 25, 439 9, 694 57, 273 106 6, 258 234, 737	278, 600 1, 133 8, 976 3, 763 2, 645 2, 158 1, 880 4, 329 23 348 37, 557	283, 924 64 2, 545 4, 574 7, 779 4, 359 1, 564 15, 623 2, 198 63, 135	458, 114 8, 123 21, 084 4, 931 17, 815 14, 751 9, 309 27, 867 12, 833 2, 886 102, 489
1, 417, 677	223, 361	38, 449	2, 331, 827	341, 412	385, 766	680, 202
45, 978 51, 130	15, 207 15, 723	2, 012 2, 086	121, 201 124, 914	17, 146 17, 545	14 8, 203 10, 566	74, 561 76, 708
45, 978 8, 122 96	15, 208 1, 217 97	2, 012 305	121, 201 11, 617 523	17, 146 1, 491 184	14 8, 203 5, 759	74, £61 16, 698 255

Table 2 (Table 13, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934, piled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, dends paid—Continued

[Money figures in

PART III. RETURNS SHOWING

-			dustrial grou		hat
			Manufacturin	ng—Continue	ed
		Paper, pulp, and products	Printing, publishing, and allied industries	Chemicals and allied products	Stone, clay, and glass products
1	Number of returns	1, 032	7, 618	4, 559	2, 747
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ¹ Gross receipts from other operations ² Interest. Rents. Net capital gain Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income:	329, 817 2, 529 8, 113 1, 748 630 2, 652	491, 492 62, 545 1, 373 2, 909 663 5, 524	3, 112, 033 38, 997 18, 756 10, 415 5, 120 23, 815	227, 147 3, 424 997 1, 354 426 2, 419
8	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations \$	2, 262 760	6, 954 467	116, 438 2, 355	191 565
10	Total compiled receipts 4	348, 512	571, 926	3, 327, 930	236, 522
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6 Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss 7 Other deductions.	415 8, 430 4, 635 14, 358 7, 171 2, 288 19, 074 832 577 50, 670	354, 795 39, 614 34, 874 14, 625 9, 761 4, 491 10, 521 17, 531 12 732 141, 702	2, 321, 299 9, 638 19, 350 36, 369 40, 177 107, 706 21, 646 174, 494 48, 871 3, 251 604, 878	165, 533 2, 067 10, 938 1, 985 8, 489 6, 069 3, 878 23, 977 522 48, 007
22	Total compiled deductions	373, 908	628, 659	3, 387, 679	272, 293
23 24 25	Compiled net loss (10 less 22) Deficit (23 plus 8 and 9) Excess-profits tax 8.	28, 418	56, 732 64, 153	59, 750 178, 543 (¹³)	35, 771 36, 527 (13)
26 27 28	Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax (23 plus 25) Cash dividends paid. Stock dividends paid.	3,669	56, 732 2, 815 48	59, 750 76, 651 150	35, 771 2, 346 181

¹ Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deduc-

¹ Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions."

² Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

⁴ Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return

[§] Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.
§ Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and com-excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and divi-

thousands of dollars

NO NET INCOME-Continued

		1:	ndustrial gro	upsContin	ued			Γ
Manufactu	ring—Con.				Service	Finance— Banking,		
Metal and its products	Manufac- turing not elsewhere classified	Construc- tion	Transported tation and other public utilities Trade arm met hotels		Professional, amusements, hotels, etc.	insurance, real estate, holding companies, stock and bond brokers, etc.	Nature of business not given	
12, 437	3, 767	12, 588	15, 571	88, 053	34, 718	98, 839	1, 251	1
3, 438, 818 34, 237 21, 756 9, 513 3, 901 40, 564	415, 921 5, 712 2, 401 1, 757 872 5, 038	334, 235 323, 390 4, 311 6, 339 2, 045 7, 706	4, 942, 446 59, 763 44, 233 7, 634 31, 905	9, 601, 843 270, 994 27, 203 37, 326 4, 645 100, 512	1,659,321 7,826 104,089 4,830 30,196	11 1, 255, 930 1, 678, 645 824, 914 92, 339 157, 036	2, 621 125 133 50 225	2 3 4 5 6 7
39, 255 8, 096	1,618 481	3, 879 1, 921	129, 058 5, 810	18, 929 7, 515	6, 168 1, 188	859, 949 429, 278	392 16	8
3, 596, 142	433, 801	683, 826	5, 220, 848	10, 068, 966	1,813,620	5, 298, 091	3, 562	10
2, 752, 861 10, 228 75, 320 27, 537 65, 087 62, 159 49, 129 204, 239 2, 242 5, 652 572, 757 3, 827, 211	319, 684 2, 155 17, 377 6, 356 4, 876 5, 790 1, 432 18, 107 110 1, 182 92, 088 473, 157	277, 448 263, 230 43, 726 7, 416 9, 305 6, 768 10, 205 24, 586 150 99, 669 744, 507	3, 217, 069 38, 962 69, 679 832, 851 313, 753 19, 473 383, 192 4, 844 7, 169 841, 880 5, 728, 877	7, 736, 706 115, 475 290, 546 240, 392 73, 968 78, 740 107, 372 106, 442 682 10, 093 1, 631, 269 10, 391, 685	705, 115 84, 759 135, 193 145, 083 91, 104 33, 555 148, 455 216 17, 525 728, 664 2, 089, 669	11 470, 859 12 237, 464 116, 519 1, 037, 503 320, 181 529, 240 248, 448 1, 563 190, 472 13 2, 513, 804 13 5, 666, 053	1, 912 386 174 546 219 1, 689 244 9 427 2, 607 8, 212	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
231, 069 278, 421 1	39, 357 41, 456 (¹⁴)	60, 681	508, 029 642, 896 3	322, 718 349, 162 1	276, 050 283, 406 1	367, 962 1, 657, 190 27	4, 650 5, 058	23 24 25
231, 070 56, 303 2, 013	39, 357 2, 703 505	60, 681 8, 223 230	508, 032 101, 560 2, 964	322, 720 29, 925 2, 623	276, 051 8, 040 1, 050	367, 990 603, 910 27, 745	4, 650 123	26 27 28

For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed see statement of provisions of Revenue

⁷ For limitation on amount of het capital loss that may be allowed see statement of provisions of kevenue Act of 1934, p. 2.

8 Excess-profits tax of \$37,540 appears on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469. "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

9 Deficit, compiled net loss, or compiled net loss plus total tax.

10 Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.

11 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return, form 1120L.

Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)
 Less than \$500.
 Compiled net profit.

Table 3 (Table 14, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and subgroups and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax; also number of returns for inactive corporations

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4]

				Return	s showing net	income		Returns	showing no	net income	Number of	
	Industrial groups	Total number of returns	Number	Gross income 1	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax ²	Number	Gross income ¹	Deficit	returns showing no income data—In- active cor- porations	
1	Agriculture and related industries: Farming—Cotton, grain, stock; horticulture and all other farming; lessors.	9, 070	1,760	277, 472	29, 023	3, 986	70	6, 406	204, 611	73, 051	904	1
2	Related industries—Forestry, fishing, ice harvesting, and other related industries; holders and lessors.	1, 456	23 5	19, 042	1, 549	213	10	925	36, 524	12, 221	29 6	2
	Total agriculture and related industries	10, 526	1, 995	296, 513	30, 572	4, 198	80	7, 331	241, 135	85, 272	1, 200	
8	Mining and quarrying: Metal mining—Iron, copper, lead, zinc, gold, silver, quicksilver.	1, 043	213	233, 970	40, 800	5, 610	49	694	172, 910	31, 478	136	3
4 5 6 7	Coal: Anthracite Bituminous, lignite, and peat Oil and gas. Other minerals—Asbestos, clay, granite, precious	152 2, 071 4, 458 2, 047	41 660 1,747 532	64, 753 333, 523 348, 639 134, 550	2, 987 23, 634 56, 177 15, 338	411 3, 250 7, 721 2, 109	8 58 208 17	104 1, 357 2, 544 1, 386	201, 837 384, 905 483, 526 89, 378	11, 146 31, 218 55, 668 15, 419	7 54 167 129	4 5 6 7
8	and semiprecious stones, salt, etc. Mining and quarrying n. e. c., lessors and holders	8, 885	1, 267	46, 341	17, 127	2, 355	87	2, 998	43, 384	20, 444	4, 620	8
	Total mining and quarrying	18, 656	4, 460	1, 161, 775	156, 063	21, 456	428	9, 083	1, 375, 939	165, 373	5, 113	•
	Manufacturing: Food and kindred products:			070.46-	24.05	0.00=	00	0.500	999.007	15.100	070	
9 10	Bakery and confectionery products	4, 044 1, 935	1, 199 875	873, 132 624, 805	61, 014 51, 995	8, 387 7, 150	93 193	2, 593 914	339, 095 126, 554	15, 132 5, 477	252 146	9 10
11 12	Mill products—Bran, flour, feed, etc	1, 284 961	630 457	877, 631 2, 803, 808	31, 240 45, 875	4, 297 6, 476	82 117	557 473	146, 873 312, 553	2, 793 7, 991	97 31	11 12
13	Sugar—Beet, cane, maple, and products	195	81	500, 530	33, 731	4, 638	15	93	78, 918	4, 196	21	13

14	Other food products—Artificial ice, butter substitutes, cereals, coffee, spices, dairy products, etc., food products n. e. c.	4, 943	2, 132	1, 293, 909	78, 473	10, 820	142	2, 520	367, 317	15, 540	291	14
	Total food and kindred products	13, 362	5, 374	6, 973, 816	302, 328	41, 768	642	7, 150	1, 371, 310	51, 130	838	
15	Liquors and beverages: Soft drinks—Cider, mineral or spring water, etc.	1,744	790	121, 316	16, 734	2, 301	111	885	39, 959	2, 439	69	15
16	Liquors—Wines, beer, malt extract, malt yeast, alcohol, etc.	1, 539	578	730, 200	80, 914	11, 126	291	6 55	167, 945	13, 284	306	16
	Total liquors and beverages	3, 283	1, 368	851, 516	97, 648	13, 427	402	1, 540	207, 905	15, 723	375	
17	Tobacco products	405	131	1, 023, 243	96, 296	13, 241	5	245	36, 383	2, 086	29	17
18	Textiles and their products: Cotton goods—Dress goods, plain cloth, etc., napping and dyeing.	918	425	543, 538	34, 103	4, 690	20	481	438, 063	25, 689	12	18
19	Woolen and worsted goods—Wool yarn, dress goods: wool pulling, etc.	592	193	158, 807	7, 987	1, 101	48	370	218, 690	20, 156	29	19
20	Silk and rayon goods—Silk fabrics; spinning,	899	245	255, 054	19, 606	2, 696	10	624	223, 070	18, 689	30	20
$\begin{array}{c} 21 \\ 22 \end{array}$	Carpets, floor coverings, tapestries, etc Textiles n. e. c., cord, felt, fur, hospital and surgical supplies, linen, other textiles, etc.	182 3, 822	42 1, 312	65, 261 591, 710	3, 106 32, 334	427 4, 448	⁽³⁾ 40	133 2, 432	56, 709 354, 673	4,377 21,776	7 78	21 22
23	Clothing-Custom-made, factory-made, coats,	8, 031	2, 909	1, 126, 245	30, 188	4, 166	124	4, 966	671, 043	21, 787	156	23
24	underwear, millinery, and clothing n. e. c. Knit goods—Sweaters, hosiery, etc	1, 331	556	299, 993	14, 378	1, 977	48	735	247, 403	12, 440	40	24
	Total textiles and their products	15, 775	5, 682	3, 040, 608	141, 702	19, 505	291	9, 741	2, 209, 651	124, 914	352	ĺ
25 26	Leather and its manufactures: Boots, shoes, slippers, etc. Other leather products—Gloves, saddlery, harness, trunks, finishing and tanning leather, etc.	1, 167 1, 256	482 494	491, 226 217, 809	26, 993 9, 475	3, 715 1, 303	31 35	642 726	173, 837 150, 280	8, 254 9, 290	43 36	25 26
	Total leather and its manufactures	2, 423	976	709, 035	36, 468	5, 018	66	1, 368	324, 117	17, 545	79	
27 28	Rubber products: Tires and tubes, etc. Other rubber goods—Boots, shoes, hose, and	107 412	30 189	223, 508 112, 029	6, 724 6, 680	960 918	5 13	64 200	340, 814 43, 212	7, 516 2, 498	13 23	27 28
29	artificial rubber. Bone, celluloid, and ivory products	131	48	27, 218	1, 572	216	2	76	9, 473	552	7	29
	Total rubber products	650	267	362, 756	14, 976	2, 094	20	340	393, 498	10, 566	43	
30 31	Forest products: Sawmill and planing-mill products. Other wood products—Carriages, wagons, furniture, baskets, etc.	2, 989 3, 866	734 1, 078	176, 029 314, 306	9, 776 17, 434	1, 344 2, 399	14 49	2, 081 2, 644	320, 208 284, 860	47, 431 29, 277	174 144	30 31
	Total forest products.	6, 855	1, 812	490, 335	27, 210	3, 743	63	4, 725	605, 068	76, 708	318	
	Tor fact notes and m. Ct	······································										

For footnotes, see p. 65.

Table 3 (Table 14, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and subgroups and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax; also number of returns for inactive corporations—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

				Returns	showing net	income		Returns	showing no	net income	Number of	
	Industrial groups	Total number of returns	Number	Gross income 1	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 2	Number	Gross income 1	Deficit	returns showing no income data—In- active cor- porations	
32 33	Manufacturing—Continued. Paper, pulp, and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries	2, 318 12, 622	1, 208 4, 490	966, 703 1, 285, 357	80, 889 117, 465	11, 123 16, 148	211 201	1, 032 7, 618	347, 752 571, 460	28, 418 64, 153	78 514	32 33
34 35 36	Chemicals and allied products: Petroleum and other mineral oil refining Chemicals proper, acids, compounds, etc Paints, pigments, varnishes; carbon black,	922 559 1,084	285 260 458	907, 405 530, 230 278, 633	53, 555 72, 551 22, 373	7, 364 9, 976 3, 133	53 44 33	536 260 567	2, 909, 374 30, 711 62, 346	145, 367 3, 630 3, 768	101 39 59	34 35 36
37	lamp black, putty, rosin, turpentine. Allied chemical substances—Drugs, oils, soaps, and other chemical substances, n. e. c.	5, 270	1,852	1, 503, 238	168, 873	23, 236	380	3,028	271, 061	20, 360	390	37
38	Fertilizers	385	194	103, 480	6, 680	918	33	168	52, 083	5, 417	23	38
	Total chemicals and allied products	8, 220	3,049	3, 322, 986	324, 031	44, 627	543	4, 559	3, 325, 574	178, 543	612	
39	Stone, clay, glass, and related products	3, 974	997	603, 592	61, 751	8, 491	59	2,747	235, 957	36, 527	230	39
40	Metal and its products: Iron and steel—Products of blast furnaces, rolling mills, foundries, etc.	2, 498	888	974, 332	46, 267	6, 361	56	1, 467	1, 193, 003	60, 560	143	40
41 42 43	Locomotives and railroad equipment	212 951 1,503	65 287 578	53, 231 2, 544, 890 267, 282	6, 654 136, 327 32, 231	915 18, 745 4, 442	6 63 104	140 593 863	90, 219 401, 051 143, 883	11, 818 44, 463 15, 294	7 71 62	41 42 43
44 45 46	textile, and woodworking machinery. Agricultural machinery and equipment. Electrical machinery and equipment. Miscellaneous machinery—Building, construction, gas, and mining machinery and	523 721 2, 547	152 273 816	259, 116 217, 453 370, 000	41, 267 17, 150 28, 647	5, 686 2, 358 3, 940	13 36 63	312 408 1,553	55, 053 428, 097 290, 401	7, 887 31, 431 32, 904	59 40 178	44 45 46
47 48 49 50	equipment. Household machinery and equipment, etc Office equipment, etc. Metal building material and supplies. Hardware, tools, etc.	433 2,072	394 149 517 1,003	275, 167 171, 579 236, 964 434, 836	28, 710 22, 634 19, 412 40, 817	3, 965 3, 112 2, 669 5, 614	39 33 26 98	862 256 1, 436 1, 466	110, 157 57, 353 201, 419 211, 765	9, 062 4, 757 22, 840 15, 976	71 28 119 137	47 48 49 50

51	Precious-metal products and processes; jew-	887	291	213, 900	9,360	1, 287	38 }	578	50, 715	4, 941	18	51
52	elry, etc. Other metals, products, and processes; combinations of foundry and machine shop.	4, 073	1, 431	1, 021, 639	105, 673	14, 532	215	2, 503	354, 928	16, 489	139	52
	Total metal and its products	20, 353	6, 844	7, 040, 389	535, 147	73, 627	788	12, 437	3, 588, 045	278, 421	1,072	
53 54	Manufacturing not elsewhere classified: Radios, complete or parts Musical, professional, and scientific instruments, optical goods; canoes; electric launches, etc.	268 5, 991	81 1, 724	61, 861 678, 307	3, 170 65, 551	436 9, 015	30 151	161 3, 514	91, 979 320, 915	8, 754 28, 272	26 753	53 54
55	Airplanes, airships, seaplanes, etc	149	20	32, 405	1, 471	202	3	92	20, 425	4, 430	37	55
	Total manufacturing not elsewhere classified.	6, 408	1,825	772, 573	70, 192	9, 653	184	3, 767	433, 320	41, 456	816	
	Grand total manufacturing	96, 648	34, 023	27, 442, 910	1, 906, 104	262, 466	3, 477	57, 269	13, 650, 040	926, 189	5, 356	
56	Construction: Building and construction above ground— Installing machinery, moving, wrecking, raz-	11, 422	1, 954	190, 261	5, 217	717	27	8, 590	294, 032	27, 489	878	56
57	ing, etc. Other construction underground and on surface— Bridge building, water-front construction, related industries, etc.	6, 075	1, 328	320, 540	23, 386	3, 216	163	3, 835	341, 490	34, 447	912	57
58	Shipbuilding and repairing	254	71	64, 073	3, 091	425	(3)	163	46, 383	4, 545	20	58
	Total construction	17, 751	3, 353	574, 874	31, 694	4, 358	190	12, 588	681, 905	66, 482	1,810	
59 60 61	Transportation and other public utilities: Transportation and related activities: Steam railroads. Electric railways—Pullman cars; refrigerator, stock, poultry, and fruit cars; lessors. Water transportation and related activities—Ocean and fresh-water lines, canals, dock-	671 1, 404 2, 265	186 415 809	735, 948 341, 351 337, 454	86, 723 85, 126 37, 318	12, 096 11, 752 5, 131	7 14 39	458 546 1, 222	2, 990, 436 432, 518 250, 361	370, 216 67, 256 28, 746	27 443 234	59 60 61
62 63	ing, drawbridge operating, lighterage, salvaging, piloting, wharfing; lessors. Aerial transportation Autobus lines, taxicabs, and sightseeing companies.	704 2, 748	56 725	10, 124 132, 204	1, 864 13, 620	256 1, 868	7 26	501 1,770	24, 754 109, 131	7, 892 9, 096	147 253	62 63
64	Cartage and storage—Food storage; packing and shipping; local transportation and related industries, n. e. c.	10, 037	3, 479	349, 249	30, 899	4, 243	127	5, 893	375, 241	22, 805	665	64
	Total transportation and related activities.	17, 829	5, 670	1, 906, 330	255, 550	35, 346	219	10, 390	4, 182, 442	506, 011	1, 769	
65	Other public utilities: Electric light and power companies, and combined electric light and gas companies.	1, 692	741	1, 953, 511	320, 551	44, 076	22	639	394, 664	45, 316	312	65
66 67 68	Gas companies, artificial and natural Pipe line companies Telephone and telegraph companies	1, 076 298 3, 536	374 139 1, 256	363, 233 295, 680 1, 077, 127	41, 747 95, 153 145, 032	5, 740 13, 084 19, 942	6 40 11	612 128 2,013	303, 350 30, 592 202, 150	31, 503 4, 110 23, 974	90 31 267	66 67 68

For footnotes, see p. 65.

Table 3 (Table 14, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and subgroups and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax; also number of returns for inactive corporations—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

			!	Returns	s showing net	income		Returns	showing no	net income	Number of	
	Industrial groups	Total number of returns	Number	Gross income 1	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 2	Number	Gross income ¹	Defici t	returns showing no income data—In- active cor- porations	
69 70 71	Transportation and other public utilities—Contd. Other Public utilities—Continued. Radio broadcasting companies. Water companies. Terminal stations, toll bridges and toll roads, irrigation systems, etc.	484 2, 057 1, 565	197 973 458	69, 275 *80, 162 149, 874	8, 205 15, 521 37, 539	1, 128 2, 123 5, 161	17 6 8	252 810 727	11, 828 13, 222 76, 790	2, 138 2, 435 27, 409	.35 274 380	69 70 71
	Total other public utilities	10, 708	4, 138	3, 988, 862	663, 749	91, 254	110	5, 181	1, 032, 596	136, 885	1, 389	
	Total transportation and other public utilities.	28, 537	9, 808	5, 895, 192	919, 298	126, 600	329	15, 571	5, 215, 038	642, 896	3, 158	
72 73 74 75 76	Trade: Wholesale Retail Wholesale and retail Commission All other trade—Auto wreckers, film exchanges, pneumatic tubes, trading stamps, garages for storage, repair service, etc.	28, 215 82, 667 19, 650 6, 207 9, 317	12, 567 27, 506 8, 440 2, 375 1, 935	8, 867, 265 9, 194, 080 3, 900, 655 683, 680 303, 827	220, 276 301, 626 100, 649 34, 613 13, 172	30, 348 41, 450 13, 832 4, 758 1, 811	964 576 375 115 47	14, 850 52, 215 10, 854 3, 433 6, 701	3, 327, 918 4, 294, 181 1, 938, 269 283, 158 217, 925	95, 954 151, 408 68, 974 15, 041 17, 784	798 2, 946 356 399 681	74 75
	Total trade	146, 056	52, 823	22, 949, 508	670, 336	92, 200	2, 077	88, 053	10, 061, 452	349, 162	5, 180	
77	Service: Domestic service—Laundries, hotels, restaurants,	20, 916	3, 499	435, 849	22,774	3, 131	64	16, 602	1, 184, 280	189, 359	815	77
78 79 80 81	operating apartments or office buildings, etc. Amusements: Theaters, legitimate, vaudeville, etc Motion picture producers Motion picture theaters Other amusements—Circuses, golf links, race tracks, pleasure resorts, etc.	508 293 3, 668 5, 677	75 76 1,327 764	6, 987 201, 181 258, 994 53, 650	528 7, 396 19, 804 7, 342	73 1,031 2,786 1,009	6 33 25 44	272 160 2, 173 4, 014	9, 616 29, 753 194, 072 88, 553	2, 971 3, 417 24, 473 16, 579	161 57 168 899	78 79 80 81
	Total amusements	10, 146	2, 242	520, 811	35, 070	4, 899	108	6, 619	321, 995	47, 440	1, 285	

82	Professional service—Curative, educational, engineering, legal, etc.	7, 228	1,892	133, 921	12, 494	1,718	74	4, 246	102, 931	19, 387	1,090	82
83	Business service—Detective bureaus, trade shows, mimeographing, publishing directories, advertising, etc.	7, 072	2,062	377, 936	30, 779	4, 231	81	4, 058	138, 932	20, 489	952	83
84	Other services n. e. c.—Auto camps, cemeteries, board of trade, newspaper syndicates, photog- raphers, concessionaires of amusements, cloak- rooms, etc.	5, 627	1, 499	93, 328	• 6,690	884	22	3, 193	64, 293	6, 732	935	84
	Total service	50, 989	11, 194	1, 561, 845	107, 807	14, 863	348	34, 718	1, 812, 431	283, 406	5, 077	
85 86	Finance: Banking and related industries: National banks. State and private banks, savings banks, loan and trust companies.	6, 812 14, 213	1, 017 2, 243	69, 894 141, 867	12, 756 17, 239	1, 751 2, 352	39 23	4, 976 9, 157	615, 827 538, 560	217, 673 235, 355	819 2, 813	85 86
87 88	Joint-stock land banks. Loan companies—Building and loan associations; mortgage, note or pawn brokers; insurance agents, promoters, foreign exchange.	26, 274	7, 897	510, 900	138, 976	19,098	261	42 13, 854	4, 803 263, 698	26, 708 162, 163	3 4, 523	87 88
89	Investment trusts, stock syndicates, stock pools, holding companies, etc.	5, 524	1,066	580, 356	73, 907	10, 151	123	4, 126	969, 547	318, 443	332	89
90	Stock and bond brokers, investment brokers,	3, 628	1,042	132, 884	17, 056	2, 345	108	2,328	437, 945	53, 931	258	90
91	investment bankers. Real estate and realty holding companies— Realty development, holding, or leasing; realty trust, etc.	88, 531	13, 132	365, 345	70, 866	9, 706	175	63, 158	875, 624	458, 464	12, 241	91
!	Total banking and related industries	145, 027	26, 397	1, 801, 246	330, 801	45, 403	729	97, 641	3, 706, 004	1, 472, 738	20, 989	
92 93	Insurance companies: Life insurance—Mutual or stock companies Other insurance—Accident, casualty, fire, marine, title, etc.	668 1, 582	189 671	178, 108 1, 056, 913	13, 385 108, 228	1, 840 14, 866	12	421 777	700, 382 462, 427	53, 272 131, 181	58 134	92 93
	Total insurance companies	2, 250	860	1, 235, 021	121, 613	16, 706	12	1, 198	1, 162, 809	184, 452	192	
	Total finance	147, 277	27, 257	3, 036, 267	452, 414	62, 108	742	98, 839	4, 868, 813	1, 657, 190	21, 181	
94	Nature of business not given.	12, 458	188	2, 071	908	125	2	1, 251	3, 546	5, 058	11,019	94
	Grand total	528, 898	145, 101	62, 920, 954	4, 275, 197	588, 375	7, 673	324, 703	37, 910, 299	4, 181, 027	59, 094	

¹ Gross income corresponds to total income, as reported on face of return, plus "cost of goods sold" and "cost of other operations." Interest received on Liberty bonds, etc. (item 11 on face of return), has been deducted from gross income, so that gross income includes the same items as in prior years.

¹ Includes excess-profits tax of \$37,540 on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

³ Less than \$500.

Table 4 (Table 15, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations sub assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting

[Money figures in

[For text defining certain items and

_	[For text defining certain items and							
				Industrial	groups			
		Aggro	egate	Agricult related in	ure and idustries	Mining an		
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	134, 964	275, 662	1,705	5, 741	3, 925	7, 4 37	
2 3	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable.	7, 114, 717 15, 286, 903	12, 846, 140 25, 241, 975	49, 242 53, 952	18, 400 118, 455	151, 034 293, 091	114, 434 445, 160	
4 5 6	Investments, tax-exempt ' Investments, other than tax-	8, 714, 965 4, 655, 546 30, 252, 141	5, 596, 103 14, 428, 224 60, 321, 158	72, 078 30, 869 147, 214	115, 417 13, 180 223, 433	150, 993 109, 262 520, 485	223, 487 69, 357 1, 439, 673	
7	exempt. ⁵ Capital assets—Lands. buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion).	42, 679, 829	60, 071, 666	377, 282	925, 870	2, 147, 407	3, 969, 037	
8	Other assets	5, 309, 733 114, 013, 834	8, 787, 475 187, 292, 743	25, 809 756, 446	80, 356 1, 495, 112	149, 088 3, 521, 359	445, 635 6, 706, 783	
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: 2 Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided prof-	10, 516, 209 14, 471, 439 18, 462, 664 8, 578, 552 38, 601, 543 24, 774, 885	16, 504, 441 34, 132, 841 65, 633, 751 11, 397, 543 46, 368, 468 24, 211, 427	95, 857 33, 718 44, 263 15, 703 393, 323 201, 423	352, 008 210, 590 131, 889 69, 295 749, 788 275, 612	348. 057 182, 390 285, 346 104, 353 1, 603, 131 1, 231, 185	951, 197 856, 708 463, 897 343, 993 3, 314, 493 1, 588, 545	
16 17	its. Less deficit Total liabilities	1, 391, 458 114, 013, 834	10, 955, 728 187, 292, 743	27, 842 756, 446	294, 070 1, 495, 112	233, 102 3, 521, 359	812, 048 6, 706, 783	
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other	49, 513, 538 9, 393, 737	23, 311, 405 8, 519, 408	213, 566 59, 309	166, 202 36, 043	1, 011, 163 69, 860	995, 816 107, 030	
20 21 22 23	operations,* Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts.	816, 556 482, 885 99, 268 752, 618	1, 823, 931 1, 014, 846 134, 053 454, 234	2, 273 4, 773 1, 106 9, 678	2, 801 6, 787 1, 384 4, 685	7, 452 10, 584 12, 856 22, 667	10, 615 12, 286 7, 405 20, 730	
24 25	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obli-	918, 198 192, 946	1, 210, 704 461, 852	1, 416 1, 124	3, 853	16, 283 4, 324	47, 551 4, 009	
26	gations.4 Total compiled receipts 3	62. 169, 745	36, 930, 434	293, 246	222, 445	1, 155, 188	1, 205, 443	
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold* Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business prop-	37, 706, 271 3, 623, 394 1, 133, 154 749, 798	18, 506, 723 4, 819, 836 968, 729 688, 592	135, 129 6, 200 6, 310 11, 846	125, 649 20, 226 9, 456 3, 043	592, 018 15, 822 20, 209 7, 676	728, 952 60, 319 20, 069 9, 152	
31 32	erty. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax.10	1, 021, 654 999, 686	2, 317, 106 1, 108, 364	3, 890 8, 689	17, 953 11, 721	17, 150 33, 571	59, 730 54, 443	
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹¹ Other deductions	331, 074 1, 701, 230 150, 515 21, 359 9, 418, 131	820, 215 1, 588, 851 152, 868 236, 338 7, 994, 272	1, 729 15, 887 1, 228 130 69, 734	4, 620 15, 458 3, 492 14, 492 70, 216	5, 110 70, 559 100, 305 721 117, 906	10, 736 93, 836 76, 355 2, 863 195, 906	
38 39	Total compiled deductions Compiled net profit or net loss	56. 856, 267 5, 313, 478	39, 201, 893 13 2, 271, 459	260, 772 32, 474	296, 324 13 73, 879	981, 047 174, 141	1, 312, 363 13 106, 919	
40 41 42 43 44	(26 less 38). Net income or deficit Income tax. Excess-profits tax ¹² . Total tax. Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43)	4, 202, 335 578, 388 7, 515 585, 903 4, 727, 576	13 3, 944, 015 37 37	29, 934 4, 111 76 4, 187 28, 287	13 78, 422	153, 535 21, 109 419 21, 528 152, 614	13 158, 480 2 2 14 106, 921	
45 46	Cash dividends paid	3, 796, 078 172, 907	1, 021, 454 39, 211	22, 112 363		174, 599 2, 132	90, 275 2, 348	

For footnotes, see pp. 70-71.

mitting balance sheets for 1934 by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income tax, and dividends paid

thousands of dollars)

describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 11-18]

	etai us mere	rueu, see p	p. 1-4 and	11-18j						
			Industri	ial group	s—Conti	nued				\prod
				Manufac	turing					
Total mar	ufacturing		l kindred lucts					and their ducts		
Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
33, 090	52, 408	5, 140	6, 307	1, 318	1, 368	128	219	5, 594	9, 013	1
2, 117, 576 4, 101, 356	888, 335 3, 381, 656	315, 760 648, 691	38, 817 149, 472	32, 339 86, 791	7, 449 26, 899	84, 409 135, 236	3, 509 8, 862	181, 183 368, 852	100, 413 263, 325	2
5, 058, 800 1, 238, 866 4, 229, 972	3, 260, 354 363, 854 3, 824, 668	880, 975 99, 142 663, 277	136, 764 7, 302 164, 558	20, 171	34, 065 5, 684 19, 330	81, 909	11, 235 1, 544 2, 393	127, 120	476, 127 24, 671 160, 434	5
10, 158, 955	10, 291, 642	1, 618, 330	630, 853	1	1	74, 035	7, 956	913, 864	941, 767	7
2, 030, 189 28, 935, 715	1, 576, 415 23, 586, 924	298, 053 4, 524, 228	110, 901 1, 238, 666	46, 885 648, 818		104, 192 980, 065	6,019		I——	
3, 056, 761 1, 535, 475 1, 808, 439 3, 294, 616 10, 808, 036 8, 784, 341	3, 710, 756 2, 489, 125 1, 771, 036 2, 609, 133	536, 727 357, 013 282, 187 609, 034 1, 640, 195 1, 157, 524	255, 783 173, 415 93, 835 142, 388 533, 227 208, 362	127, 604 26, 618 45, 883	56, 525 40, 079 21, 038 19, 629 107, 026	52, 549	5, 081	278, 817 44, 378 148, 292 282, 814 943, 451	366, 734 146, 307 154, 521 314, 484 897, 033	10 11 12 13 14
351, 954 28, 935, 715	2, 191, 078 23, 586, 924	58, 451 4, 524, 228	168, 342 1, 238, 666	5, 430 648, 818	32, 208 273, 845	922 980, 065	5, 231 41, 519	35, 913 2, 440, 521	254, 480 2, 073, 772	16 17
26, 282, 953 197, 508	12, 759, 054 211, 620	6, 790, 788 35, 928	1, 294, 726 13, 157	817, 663 3, 273	196, 567 2, 120	1, 002, 221 344	35, 548 17	2, 945, 940 25, 222	2, 097, 395 40, 003	18 19
79, 564 56, 584 18, 892 297, 659	66, 402 51, 462 16, 833 113, 203	15, 520 7, 891 2, 518 48, 985	2, 638 4, 048 658 6, 809	1, 039 2, 201 644 4, 719	353 1,886 153	2, 142 665 848 3, 033	60 72 24 161	4, 460 6, 268 2, 209 20, 435	3, 301 5, 897 2, 120	20 21 22
184, 991	180, 532	30, 032	3, 671	1, 363	256	6, 675	14	3, 423		24
48, 005	15, 555	5, 430	389	933	249	3, 659	54	4, 992	974	25
27, 166, 157	13, 414, 660	6, 937, 093	1, 326, 097	831, 835	202, 872	1, 019, 587	35, 950	3, 012, 951	2, 165, 368	26
19, 491, 367 56, 373 456, 761 148, 075	10, 102, 929 105, 885 286, 092 138, 635	5, 478, 826 7, 454 58, 268 23, 720	1, 025, 072 7, 360 26, 431 13, 184	523, 014 652 15, 290 2, 750	137, 619 1, 089 5, 176 1, 520	795, 185 63 5, 333 1, 065	28, 423 3 1, 392 276	2, 330, 675 14, 959 79, 086 19, 422	28, 611 58, 646	27 28 29 30
154, 241 295, 093	208, 0 12 263, 807	35, 558 53, 779	15, 642 14, 572	4, 920 30, 778	2, 683 10, 368	3, 074 7, 489	256 616	12, 162 29, 877	20, 687 24, 949	31 32
120, 820 698, 708 40, 918 8, 136	125, 065 602, 323 65, 614 26, 471	16, 575 106, 321 89 945	9, 381 38, 227 81	6, 658 18, 196 64 518	2, 948 7, 388	1, 137 10, 582 957 23	289 508 5	9, 202 65, 083 38 1, 767	56, 722 106	33 34 35
3, 581, 105	2, 186, 657	819, 522	2, 865 217, 814	134, 317	47, 010	88, 214	6, 124	301, 858	5, 225 227, 395	36 37
25, 051, 597 2, 114, 560	13 696, 828	6, 601, 058 336, 035	1, 370, 627 13 44, 530	737, 157 94, 678	217, 560 13 14, 688	$\frac{913, 123}{106, 465}$	$\frac{37,909}{131,959}$	2, 864, 129 148, 822	2, 281, 650	38 39
1, 881, 564 259, 092 3, 451 262, 544 1, 852, 016	13 892, 915 3 3 14 696, 831	300, 573 41, 527 641 42, 168 293, 866	13 48, 591 	92, 382 12, 703 395 13, 099	18 15, 193	96, 130 13, 218	13 2, 028	140, 407 19, 327 287 19, 614	13 119, 323 (15) (15)	40 41 42 43
1, 390, 465 100, 008	187, 609	245, 119 8, 440	6, 516 96	23, 931 1, 360	960	95, 241 95, 930 958	305	129, 208 86, 133 8, 834	11, 543	44 45 46

Table 4 (Table 15, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations sub assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting

[Money figures in

							ngures in		
		Industrial groups—Continued							
			Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued			
		Leather manufe		Rubber 1	products	Forest p	roducts		
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income		
1	Number of returns with balance sheets. 1 Assets: 2	964	1, 293	264	318	1, 773	4, 406		
2 3 4 5	Cash ³	46, 455 107, 392 151, 427 18, 216	11, 169 46, 863 82, 683 3, 269	28, 930 73, 177 107, 091 6, 054	17, 368 133, 792 90, 022 13, 246	36, 047 98, 798 119, 898 20, 810	39, 201 189, 593 218, 890 14, 413		
6 7	Investments other than tax- exempt. S Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation	33, 980 96, 709	16, 329 71, 410	6, 054 66, 272 169, 074	173, 970 178, 965	77, 454 265, 191	203, 222 961, 131		
8	and depletion.) Other assets	37, 652	15, 941	69, 474	20, 386	29, 945	94, 042		
9	Total assets Liabilities: ²	491, 832	247, 664	520, 070	627, 750	648, 143	1, 720, 492		
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	47, 495 8, 074 28, 404 67, 785 196, 946 151, 250 8, 121	73, 995 10, 782 14, 745 48, 075 123, 731 33, 772 57, 436	35, 004 59, 135 26, 056 101, 222 197, 659 109, 248 8, 253	60, 802 138, 284 47, 783 189, 722 172, 749 72, 360 53, 950	75, 118 32, 149 39, 703 40, 902 272, 240 205, 964 17, 933	276, 683 191, 198 140, 763 123, 524 784, 986 457, 868 254, 530		
17	Total liabilities	491, 832	247, 664	520, 070	627, 750	648, 143	1, 720, 492		
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other opera- tions.?	687, 046 1, 649	314, 049 1, 610	352, 742 1, 459	357, 293 2, 372	474, 347 3, 467	567, 658 12, 090		
20 21 22 23	Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	1, 474 537 220 4, 586	620 173	992 1, 359 900 1, 664	3, 337 7, 832 252 2, 568		3, 189 3, 685 1, 945 7, 892		
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	801	249	278	18, 298	834	1, 574		
25	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. 4	583		225	471	709	573		
26	Deductions:	696, 895		359, 620	392, 424	488, 000	598, 606		
27 28 29 30 31 32	Cost of goods sold 9. Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax. 10	556, 893 453 15, 290 4, 973 2, 023 4, 038	986 8, 824 3, 686 2, 617	239, 901 88 5, 058 4, 823 3, 993 8, 276	4, 568 7, 773	1, 031 15, 652 2, 627 4, 577	452, 814 7, 875 20, 731 4, 836 17, 733 14, 644		
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss " Other deductions.	2, 525 7, 357 13 191 65, 631	4, 296 23 287	1, 939 13, 329 8 80 67, 239	15, 620 2, 198	13, 629 5, 760 339	9, 124 27, 692 12, 833 2, 757 100, 630		
38	Total compiled deductions	659, 388	336, 075	344, 736	383, 859	459, 361	671, 668		
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	37, 508	13 16, 721	14, 884	8, 565	28, 639	13 73, 062		
40 41	Net income or deficit	36, 124 4, 971		2,013		3, 728			
42 43 44	Excess-profits tax ¹² Total tax Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	5, 037 32, 471	13 16, 721	2,032	8, 565	3, 791 24, 848	13 73, 062		
45 46	(39 less 43). Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	20, 725 1, 208		12, 852 10, 686 78	5, 759	16, 703 714	16, 679 255		

For footnotes, see pp. 70-71.

mitting balance sheets for 1934 by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income tax, and dividends paid—Continued

thousands of dollars]

			Indu	strial grou	ps-Conti	nued				Γ
			Ma	nufacturin	g-Contin	ued	· · · · ·			
Paper, p	ulp, and lucts	Printing, ing, and indus	publish- allied tries	Chemicals prod	and allied ucts	Stone, clay, and glass products		Metal and its products		
Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1, 188	975	4, 265	6, 767	2, 968	4, 064	966	2, 545	6, 744	11, 681	
74, 826 121, 514 155, 650 30, 409 112, 759	19, 976 140, 651 69, 147 13, 683 364, 400	104, 481 261, 063 99, 295 86, 378 188, 249	23, 149 196, 533 52, 375 6, 381 106, 622	288, 752 628, 501 653, 950 141, 002 1, 039, 447	204, 992 1, 087, 345 635, 002 31, 145 1, 359, 043	80, 819 100, 989 134, 800 44, 011 152, 703	26, 750 55, 314 84, 084 11, 376 47, 155	782, 967 1, 306, 052 1, 469, 814 533, 054 1, 458, 692	361, 921 973, 800 1, 252, 318 223, 168 1, 092, 047	
606, 745	370, 854	437, 155	251, 233	1, 717, 392	2, 634, 824	513, 121	507, 348	3, 199, 597	3, 369, 182	۱
82, 839	47, 787	358, 808	159, 716	320, 946	195, 382	49, 872	48, 856	483, 036	641, 009	1
1, 184, 740	1, 026, 498	1, 535, 429	796, 010	4, 789, 989	6, 147, 733	1, 076, 316	780, 882	9, 233, 211	7, 913, 446	٤
105, 463 113, 407 49, 942 153, 993 474, 206 296, 865 9, 136	122, 006 146, 947 80, 889 199, 863 330, 130 189, 213 42, 550	144, 122 103, 046 105, 199 126, 694 468, 649 617, 592 29, 872	68,530 71,355	569, 206 136, 836 288, 050 444, 809 2, 061, 174 1, 331, 520 41, 606	1, 159, 212 544, 086 464, 806 178, 159 2, 893, 811 1, 311, 874 404, 214	86, 079 31, 609 61, 694 125, 651 480, 265 301, 479 9, 860	87, 828 111, 590 51, 671 142, 370 377, 298 121, 872 111, 747	597 257	957, 226 817, 867 541, 410 1, 080, 296 3, 405, 511 1, 667, 455 556, 318	18
1, 184, 740	1, 026, 498	1, 535, 429	796, 010	4, 789, 989	6, 147, 733	1, 076, 316	780, 882	9, 233, 211	7, 913, 446	13
942, 964 2, 062	321, 580 2, 350	1, 194, 402 32, 921	466, 226 58, 244	3, 050, 413 19, 202	3, 063, 610 38, 197	576, 088 5, 479	220, 959 3, 157	6, 704, 852 62, 838	3, 413, 303 32, 903	18
2, 481 2, 469 500 6, 074	8, 095 1, 739 625 2, 578	4, 417 7, 236 1, 561 13, 620	1, 330 2, 860 607 5, 138	9, 591 7, 888 2, 319 26, 888	18, 681 10, 367 5, 106 23, 604	2, 438 1, 287 808 5, 551	922 1, 290 417 2, 238	30, 150 15, 257 3, 231 149, 744	21, 667 9, 425 3, 882 40, 310	22
2, 676	2, 262	8, 382	6, 719	70, 387	116, 393	4, 547	190	49, 709	27, 230	24
1, 310	760	3, 695	466	6, 314	2, 355	1, 546	565	17, 311	8, 070	25
960, 534	339, 988	1, 266, 234	541, 591	3, 193, 002	3, 278, 313	597, 746	229, 739	7, 033, 092	3, 556, 791	26
646, 837 362 22, 779 6, 877 11, 164 11, 690	258, 477 354 8, 347 4, 497 13, 829 6, 982	754, 234 13, 882 52, 696 19, 619 9, 903 12, 875	332, 465 37, 219 33, 342 13, 814 9, 306 4, 347	1, 963, 030 3, 625 46, 982 19, 625 17, 290 41, 829	2, 278, 302 9, 232 18, 872 36, 076 39, 726 107, 291	371, 419 1, 159 12, 173 2, 375 4, 409 7, 385	161, 060 1, 909 10, 597 1, 939 8, 250 5, 962	4, 986, 274 11, 740 104, 130 34, 262 42, 177 72, 597	2, 727, 736 9, 299 74, 269 27, 209 64, 717 61, 878	28 29 30 31
5, 627 41, 847 725 629 127, 645	2, 283 18, 529 828 518 49, 725	13, 383 30, 513 55 673 230, 083	9, 983 16, 778 12 520 136, 476	14, 667 112, 976 29, 931 571 552, 415	21, 261 172, 617 48, 726 3, 217 598, 283	3, 738 36, 392 906 609 90, 524	3, 821 23, 247 655 508 46, 525	36, 066 221, 360 2, 305 1, 532 919, 551	48, 092 202, 894 2, 237 5, 452 566, 903	33 34 35 36 37
876, 184	364, 369	1, 137, 916	594, 262	2, 802, 941	3, 333, 601	531, 089	264, 474	6, 431, 994	3, 790, 685	38
84, 350	¹³ 24, 381	128, 318	13 52, 671	390, 062	13 55, 288	66, 656	13 34, 736	601, 098	13 233, 894	38
80, 364 11, 051 209 11, 260 73, 090	13 27, 402 	15, 980 199 16, 180	13 59, 856 13 52, 671	313, 360 43, 160 536 43, 696 346, 365	(15) (15) (15) 14 55, 288	8, 327 59	13 35, 491 (15) (15) 14 34, 736	534, 078 73, 480 786 74, 266 526, 832	13 269, 194 1 1 14 233, 895	40 41 42 43 44
40, 402 5, 646	3, 653 136	78, 713 9, 704	2, 811 48	270, 783 31, 916	76, 651 150	42, 499 2, 188	2, 346 181	419, 209 27, 133	56, 236 2, 013	4:

Table 4 (Table 15, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations sub assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting

	r dejicti, income tax, excess-proje	<u> </u>				[Mone:	y figures in
		26		iustriai gr	oupsCon	tinuea	
		Manufac Conti Manufa	nued	Const	ruction	Transport other publ	
Ì		not else class	ewhere ified				
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1 Assets: 2	1, 778	3, 452	3, 154	10, 928	8,762	12, 503
2 3	Cash 3	60, 609	33, 621	48, 812 146, 223	61, 482	704, 999	601, 186
4	Notes and accounts receivable Inventories	164, 301 185, 333	109, 205 117, 642	39, 124	271, 343 86, 175	1, 419, 335	1, 240, 509 313, 878
5	Investments, tax-exempt 4	30, 590	7, 971	37, 147	44, 351	135, 247	133, 910
6	Investments, other than tax-	110, 475	115, 166	62, 011	181, 624	314, 819 135, 247 4, 853, 746	5, 412, 484
7	exempt. ⁵ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion).	247, 269	215, 555	169, 208	376, 958	23, 506, 577	26, 965, 499
8	Other assets	63, 774	99, 488	69, 424	105, 970	1, 213, 038	1, 645, 341
9	Total assets Liabilities: 2	862, 350	698, 649	571, 948	1, 127, 903	32, 147, 762	36, 312, 807
10	Notes and accounts payable	113, 574 19, 730	101, 409	100, 312	291,640	1, 405, 412 9, 809, 710 1, 591, 184	2, 502, 421
11	Bonded debt and mortgages	19,730	49, 197	43, 159 73, 731	88, 095 197, 928	9,809,710	15, 844, 318 3, 391, 672
12 13	Capital stock preferred	85, 039	02 254	30, 482	66, 294	2 250 770	1, 812, 458
14	Capital stock, common	82, 312 270, 764	308, 726	190, 552	419, 425	2, 259, 779 12, 599, 987	10, 458, 636
15	Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits	299, 913	89, 680 92, 254 308, 726 160, 274 102, 890	152, 788	224, 403	4,671,352	3, 981, 714
16	Dess denert	8, 981	102, 890	19, 076	159, 882	189, 662	1, 678, 412
17	Total liabilities	862, 350	698, 649	571, 948	1, 127. 903	32, 147, 762	36, 312, 807
18 19	Gross sales 6-Gross receipts from other opera- tions.7	743, 488 3, 663	410, 140 5, 400	176, 151 375, 316	320, 720 305, 861	5, 488, 476	4, 861, 890
20	Interest	2,851	2, 373	2, 427	4, 223	70, 807	55, 355
21	Rents	1, 735	1,741	2,049	6,041	52, 641	43. 327
22	Interest	2,414	872	1, 985	1,998	4, 046	7, 527
23	Receipts	8, 237	4, 955	6, 732	7, 500	38, 364	30, 497
24	Dividends from domestic corpora- tions.	5, 884	1,609	1, 277	3,872	195, 038	128, 943
25	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	1, 297	478	1, 787	1,897	14, 746	5, 780
26	Total compiled receipts 8 Deductions:	769, 568	427, 567	567.725	652, 112	5, 864, 117	5, 133, 319
27	Cost of goods sold 9	491, 476	314, 827	132, 213	266, 559		
28 29	Cost of other operations Compensation of officers	905 24, 024	1, 885 16, 941	260, 446 25, 402	250, 229 41, 117	2, 427, 879 47, 664	3, 165, 764
30	Rent paid on business property.		6, 187	3, 079	7,052	88, 572	36, 475 67, 210 819, 235
31	Interest paid Taxes paid other than income	2,991	6, 187 4, 793 5, 710	3, 079 3, 728	8, 984	88, 572 532, 532	819, 235
32	Taxes paid other than income	7, 583	5,710	3,622	6, 538	390, 972	311, 038
33	[.H.X .10	5, 234	5, 108	3 493	9, 951	23, 468	18,676
34	Depreciation.	21, 121	17, 807	3, 423 18, 323	23, 648	615, 484	1 371, 631
35	Depletion	67	109	[189	150	5, 892	4,820
36	Bad debts	259	1, 148	269	1,929	851	1 6.688
37	Other deductions	132, 926	90, 235	82, 808	93, 163	609, 699	822, 063
38	Total deductions	692, 522	464. 749	533 502	709, 321	4, 743, 013	5, 623, 601
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	77, 046	13 37, 183	34, 223	13 57, 209	1, 121, 104	13 490, 282
40 41	Net income or deficit Income tax	69, 865 9, 608	13 39, 269	31, 158 4, 285	13 62, 978	911, 320 125, 504	13 625, 005
42	Excess-profits tax 12	183	(15)	184		314	3
43 44	Income tax Excess-profits tax 12 Total tax Compiled net profit less total tax (39	9, 792 67, 254	(15) 14 37, 183	4, 469 29, 754	13 57, 209	125, 817 995, 287	14 490, 285
45 46	less 43). Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid		2, 658 505	15, 039 1, 820	8, 223 230	1, 111, 136 18, 302	101, 376 2, 964

¹ Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balance sheet data.

² See text, pp. 13-18.

³ Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.

⁴ Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

⁵ See text, p. 15.

⁶ Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold" see "deductions."

⁷ Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions."

* Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.

* Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.

mitting balance sheets for 1934 by major industrial groups, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income tax, and dividends paid—Continued

thousands of dollars

housands of	dollars	Indu	strial groups	-Continued				T -
Tra	ade	Service—Pi amusements	rofessional, , hotels, etc.	surance, holding	anking, in- real estate, companies, bond brok-		f business given	
Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net income	
50, 466	76, 991	9, 661	27, 510	24, 088	81, 447	113	697	
921, 481 3, 086, 059 2, 947, 079 254, 697 1, 249, 688	329, 373 1, 700, 453 1, 427, 195 55, 545 706, 873	126, 886 259, 003 102, 522 32, 388 213, 203	119, 590 338, 241 63, 422 23, 695 407, 654	2, 989, 920 5, 923, 769 27, 905 2, 816, 814 18, 972, 145	10, 711, 941 17, 716, 385 105, 629 13, 724, 181 48, 112, 656	4, 766 4, 115 1, 645 257 3, 677	1, 400 29, 772 544 151 12, 093	,
2, 029, 418	1, 668, 202	, ,	4, 295, 527	3, 129, 768	11, 559, 195	9, 440	19, 735	
534, 091 11, 022, 514	523, 974 6, 411, 616	192, 601 2, 078, 377	5, 692, 894	1, 094, 374 34, 954, 694	3, 954, 971	1, 119 25, 019	10, 049 73, 745	
2, 834, 676 367, 309 628, 029 766, 532 3, 913, 945 2, 781, 870 269, 848	2, 116, 523 525, 069 464, 167 648, 896 2, 724, 201 1, 048, 674 1, 115, 915	284, 951 433, 863 168, 256 135, 904 625, 705 482, 757 53, 059	881, 360 2, 570, 307 674, 046 442, 845 1, 500, 462 525, 773 901, 897	2, 376, 077 2, 065, 633 13, 861, 820 1, 971, 015 8, 450, 581 6, 465, 428 235, 859	5, 655, 085 11, 545, 563 58, 522, 537 5, 396, 469 16, 920, 512 11, 576, 233 3, 731, 442	14, 105 182 1, 596 168 16, 285 3, 739 11, 056	43, 450 3, 067 16, 581 8, 159 62, 333 11, 139 70, 985	1 1 1 1 1 1
11, 022, 514	6, 411, 616	2, 078, 377	5, 692, 894	34, 954, 694	105, 884, 958	25, 019	73, 745	1
21, 829, 704 436, 184	9, 069, 612 245, 443	1, 473, 005	1, 556, 026	¹⁶ 1, 293, 807	¹⁶ 1, 194, 477	272	1, 018	1
57, 516 46, 905 9, 740 237, 633	26, 192 35, 686 4, 493 96, 442	4, 896 19, 463 1, 941 23, 681	7, 515 96, 688 4, 604 28, 875	591, 465 289, 817 48, 668 115, 335	1, 650, 731 762, 468 89, 774 152, 135	156 69 36 870	97 101 35 167	2222
40, 263	17, 110	6, 293	5, 661	472, 540	823, 126	98	55	2
9, 470	7, 496	1, 115	1, 160	112, 361	425, 251	13	15	2
22, 667, 415	9, 502, 474	1, 530, 393	1, 700, 529	2, 923, 992	5, 097, 962	1, 512	1, 489	:
17, 355, 545 189, 583 387, 101 365, 130 75, 413 134, 221	7, 282, 633 100, 466 273, 489 226, 874 70, 942 74, 749	555, 018 74, 743 78, 847 28, 709 32, 083	655, 012 76, 235 125, 695 140, 417 87, 249	16 111, 924 17 114, 927 46, 559 205, 968 101, 384	16 461, 157 17 225, 663 110, 829 991, 553 298, 698	151 37 14 22 50	778 134 103 281 121	2 2 2 3 3 3
117, 265 157, 083 725 3, 710	102, 964 102, 197 677 8, 330 1, 557, 396	9, 836 53, 426 40 1, 110 583, 724	32, 564 143, 289 202 15, 253	49, 405 71, 442 1, 217 6, 431 1, 204, 382	515, 202 236, 274 1, 547 160, 094	19 318	438 194 9 217	3 3 3
3, 168, 640 21, 954, 415	1, 557, 396 9, 800, 715	583, 724 1, 417, 536	1, 956, 983	1, 204, 382	18 2, 386, 145 18 5, 387, 161	747	1,660 3,935	3
712, 999	13 298, 242	112, 858	13 256, 453	1, 010, 355	13 289, 199	765	13 2, 446	3
663, 267 91, 230 2, 047 93, 277 619, 722	13 322, 848 1 1 14 298, 243	105, 450 14, 539 330 14, 869 97, 989	13 263, 275 1 1 14 256, 455	425, 454 58, 427 693 59, 121 951, 234	13 1, 537, 576 27 27 14 289, 225	654 90 2 92 673	13 2, 517 	4 4 4
365, 148 30, 665	27, 306	54, 566	8, 003 1, 049	661, 663 16, 497	594, 344	1, 350	99	4

¹⁰ Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

[&]quot; For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue

[&]quot;I For limitation on am ount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.

"I Excess-profits tax of \$36,940 appears on returns submitting balance sheets with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

18 Deficit or compiled net loss.

18 Loss plus tax.

18 Less than \$500.

18 Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.

19 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return form 1120L.

19 Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

[&]quot;Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

Table 5 (Table 16, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, come or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after

[Money figures and total assets

[For text defining certain items and

PART I. ALL RETURNS

-		Tot	al assets class	es
		Total	Under 50	50 to 100
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	410, 626	223, 073	57, 840
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments other than tax-exempt 5 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets	19, 960, 857 40, 528, 879 14, 311, 068 19, 083, 771 90, 573, 299 102, 751, 495	301, 838 960, 796 730, 283 18, 192 155, 045 1, 494, 680	242, 845 892, 807 581, 608 32, 494 245, 096 1, 777, 261
8	Other assets	14, 097, 209	376,696	348, 339
9	Total assets	301, 306, 577	4, 037, 529	4, 120, 449
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: 2 Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	48 604 981	1, 497, 625 418, 966 413, 025 180, 184 2, 842, 729 461, 822 1, 776, 822	1, 061, 837 547, 375 382, 264 201, 382 2, 124, 589 579, 010 776, 009
17	Total liabilities	301, 306, 577	4, 037, 529	4, 120, 449
18 19 20 21 22 23	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales Gross receipts from other operations Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	2, 640, 487 1, 497, 731 233, 322 1, 206, 852	6, 734, 492 1, 659, 279 17, 611 86, 485 72, 794	4, 500, 487 738, 353 21, 237 79, 746 46, 247 50, 099
24 25	Dividends from domestic corporations	2, 128, 902 654, 798	4, 996 1, 505	3, 521 1, 897
26	Total compiled receipts *	99, 100, 179	8, 587, 569	5, 401, 588
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss Other deductions	2, 101, 883 1, 438, 390 3, 338, 760 2, 108, 050 1, 151, 289 3, 290, 081	5, 372, 265 885, 430 556, 596 274, 947 55, 397 73, 546 76, 308 127, 159 3, 710 29, 250 1, 383, 263	3, 585, 559 394, 017 255, 137 105, 323 54, 946 59, 946 55, 563 96, 859 4, 133 10, 840 826, 473
38	Total compiled deductions		8, 837, 868	5, 448, 796
39 40 41 42 43 44 45	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38) Net income or deficit. Income tax Excess-profits tax ¹² Total tax. Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43). Cash dividends paid. Stock dividends paid.	258, 320 578, 388 7, 552 585, 040	13 250, 299 13 256, 800 13, 864 715 14, 579 13 264, 878 91, 575	13 47, 208 13 52, 627 13, 877 595 14, 473 13 61, 681 43, 776
46	Stock dividends paid	212, 117	2, 502	2, 723

For footnotes, see pp. 76-77.

submitting balance sheets for 1934 by total assets classes, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net indeducting total tax, and dividends paid

classes in thousands of dollars]

describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 11-18]

WITH BALANCE SHEETS

		Total as	sets classes—C	ontinued			Γ
100 to 250	250 to 500	500 to 1,000	1,000 to 5,000	5,000 to 10,000	10,000 to 50,000	50,000 and over	
58, 186	28, 673	18, 339	18, 499	2,844	2, 411	761	,
566, 272 1, 835, 432 1, 065, 401 164, 704 798, 337 4, 080, 370	693, 070 1, 886, 018 972, 824 340, 841 1, 209, 235 4, 260, 970	922, 931 2, 248, 304 1, 075, 586 599, 594 1, 971, 141 5, 175, 137	2, 665, 714 6, 235, 015 2, 571, 011 2, 259, 684 8, 417, 328 14, 093, 551	1,322,666 2,930,753 1,107,920 1,143,000 5,193,524 7,151,466	3, 323, 322 6, 601, 037 2, 324, 677 3, 014, 013 14, 634, 230 16, 975, 491	9, 922, 199 16, 938, 717 3, 881, 758 11, 511, 250 57, 949, 363 47, 742, 568	34 5 6 7
720, 419	733, 253	863, 546	2, 360, 843	939, 835	2, 532, 199	5, 222, 078	8
9, 230, 934	10, 096, 213	12, 856, 239	38, 603, 147	19, 789, 164	49, 404, 969	153, 167, 932	٤
1, 897, 758 1, 399, 487 1, 179, 701 548, 861 4, 067, 162 1, 431, 652 1, 293, 677	1, 696, 578 1, 494, 648 1, 833, 602 664, 869 3, 835, 490 1, 735, 239 1, 164, 214	1, 922, 655 1, 764, 099 2, 797, 584 923, 408 4, 386, 918 2, 263, 742 1, 202, 167	4, 937, 487 5, 083, 645 9, 279, 205 2, 905, 237 11, 665, 929 7, 290, 595 2, 558, 951	2, 215, 371 2, 994, 186 4, 676, 183 1, 474, 926 5, 525, 098 3, 847, 712 944, 311	4, 642, 696 7, 868, 659 11, 944, 290 4, 043, 255 12, 855, 154 9, 370, 094 1, 319, 179	7, 148, 643 27, 033, 215 51, 590, 561 9, 033, 982 37, 666, 942 22, 006, 445 1, 311, 856	10 11 12 13 14 15
9, 230, 934	10, 096, 213	12, 856, 239	38, 603, 147	19, 789, 164	49, 404, 969	153, 167, 932	17
7, 088, 168 1, 015, 620 61, 237 174, 865 15, 474 88, 670	5, 804, 922 712, 664 78, 751 162, 009 14, 210 78, 203	5, 975, 184 706, 792 106, 356 165, 541 17, 039 84, 402	12, 868, 765 2, 096, 223 334, 018 303, 381 41, 983 199, 000	5, 109, 086 941, 396 168, 324 106, 672 24, 100 79, 055	10, 352, 255 2, 827, 644 377, 043 171, 832 35, 558 169, 927	14, 391, 582 7, 215, 174 1, 475, 910 247, 276 68, 226 384, 702	18 19 20 21 22 23
13, 619 8, 369	20, 432 13, 601	36, 063 23, 601	171,533 91,299	117, 552 42, 735	362,739 111,427	1,398,447 360,363	24 25
8, 466, 023	6, 884, 795	7, 114, 978	16, 106, 203	6, 588, 919	14, 408, 424	25, 541, 680	26
5, 600, 562 526, 473 330, 084 135, 618 125, 258 116, 021 101, 371 180, 664 9, 005 16, 316 1, 352, 438	4,564,337 364,907 216,137 91,887 129,564 112,839 89,270 168,656 10,472 20,936 1,094,389	4, 664, 888 309, 872 177, 286 92, 128 160, 043 125, 749 91, 403 198, 039 15, 231 21, 630 1, 203, 444	9, 869, 190 968, 848 272, 467 193, 739 448, 970 310, 735 208, 176 516, 100 45, 910 68, 298 2, 913, 658	3,824,714 343,415 74,164 81,349 229,926 136,145 87,556 237,052 24,115 43,180 1,335,683	7, 693, 662 1, 014, 651 113, 575 187, 704 538, 100 343, 214 172, 627 632, 378 71, 404 30, 228 2, 862, 400	11, 037, 817 3, 635, 618 106, 437 275, 696 1, 596, 556 829, 855 269, 015 1, 133, 176 119, 403 17, 020 4, 440, 655	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36
8, 493, 809	6, 863, 392	7, 059, 713	15, 816, 091	6, 417, 299	13, 659, 943	23, 461, 249	38
13 27, 786 13 49, 774 30, 184 1, 064 31, 248 13 59, 034	21, 403 13 12, 631 31, 721 961 32, 682 13 11, 279	55, 265 13 4, 399 38, 464 989 39, 454 15, 811	290, 112 27, 280 100, 234 1, 586 101, 820 188, 292	171, 621 11, 334 49, 776 522 50, 298 121, 323 331, 925	748, 482 274, 316 117, 703 644 118, 347 630, 135 1, 105, 216	2, 080, 432 321, 621 182, 565 474 183, 039 1, 897, 392 2, 139, 790	39 40 41 42 43 44
112, 527 9, 818	134, 063 14, 179	208, 809 19, 708	649, 851 43, 969	331, 925 19, 853	1, 105, 216 52, 601	2, 139, 790 46, 764	45 46

Table 5 (Table 16, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, come or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after

[Money figures and total assets

PART II. RETURNS

		Tot	al assets classe	98
		Total	Under 50	50 to 100
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	134, 964	63, 364	21, 969
2 3 4 5	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments other than tax-exempt 5 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less de-	8, 714, 965	146, 481 361, 400 283, 506 7, 309 43, 116	140, 176 420, 535 298, 403 14, 835 78, 809
7 8	Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less de- preciation and depletion). Other assets		395, 829 100, 901	501, 606 114, 400
9	Total assets	114, 013, 834	1, 338, 541	1, 568, 764
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: 2 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	14, 471, 439 18, 462, 664 9, 579, 559	352, 942 52, 926 104, 337 37, 768 774, 023 228, 672 212, 128	338, 340 85, 517 115, 295 60, 276 755, 327 313, 034 99, 025
17	Total liabilities	114, 013, 834	1, 338, 541	1, 568, 764
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ⁶ Gross receipts from other operations ⁷ Interest. Rents. Net capital gain Other receipts. Receipts. tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations ⁶	816, 556 482, 885 99, 268 752, 618 918, 198	3, 140, 156 625, 797 7, 936 22, 532 5, 964 31, 895 1, 096 719	2, 739, 716 363, 489 10, 647 22, 227 3, 221 28, 425 1, 035 819
26	Total compiled receipts 8		3, 836, 096	3, 169, 579
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	Deductions: Cost of goods sold •	3, 623, 394 1, 133, 154 749, 798	2, 492, 152 298, 612 229, 889 89, 327 13, 662 26, 137 25, 022 40, 608 2, 533 1, 134 514, 284	2, 159, 873 171, 950 147, 186 52, 061 15, 495 23, 515 23, 385 40, 214 2, 781 1, 125 429, 160
38	Total compiled deductions	56, 856, 267	3, 733, 360	3, 066, 746
39 40 41 42 43 44 45 46	Compiled net profit (26 less 38) Net income (39 less 24 and 25) Income tax Excess-profits tax Total tax Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43) Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	578, 388 7, 515 585, 903 4, 727, 576	102, 736 100, 921 13, 864 708 14, 571 88, 165 81, 135 1, 098	102, 833 100, 979 13, 877 588 14, 465 88, 368 37, 931 1, 935

For footnotes, see pp. 76-77.

submitting balance sheets for 1934 by total assets classes, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net indeducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

classes in thousands of dollars]

SHOWING NET INCOME

		Total :	assets classes—	Continued			Ī
100 to 250	250 to 500	500 to 1,000	1,000 to 5,000	5,000 to 10,000	10,000 to 50,000	50,000 and over	
22, 484	10, 879	6, 986	6, 856	1, 100	1, 021	305	1
296, 672 880, 547 588, 696 61, 994 265, 105 1, 213, 743	312, 968 855, 720 569, 087 108, 839 382, 237 1, 346, 454	395, 202 961, 052 645, 348 185, 938 639, 165 1, 751, 367	1, 074, 831 2, 430, 812 1, 619, 225 733, 875 2, 493, 173 5, 172, 276	520, 255 1, 071, 415 741, 346 396, 070 1, 613, 878 2, 970, 319	1, 159, 779 2, 416, 950 1, 548, 755 1, 002, 366 5, 012, 681 8, 694, 977	3, 068, 352 5, 888, 473 2, 420, 598 2, 144, 321 19, 723, 975 20, 633, 259	3 4 5 6 7
252, 695	256, 337	304, 994	885, 102	391, 656	1, 274, 579	1, 729, 070	8
3, 559, 453	3, 831, 641	4, 883, 067	14, 409, 294	7, 704, 940	21, 110, 087	55, 608, 048	9
657, 520 231, 018 326, 714 187, 827 1, 537, 051 767, 506 148, 183	593, 086 258, 847 436, 021 244, 200 1, 473, 639 956, 063 130, 214	666, 522 345, 162 634, 231 368, 312 1, 803, 889 1, 241, 726 176, 774	1, 686, 711 1, 091, 180 1, 986, 232 1, 160, 826 5, 012, 025 3, 769, 737 297, 418	838, 754 762, 402 1, 027, 061 548, 021 2, 528, 704 2, 069, 768 69, 770	2, 067, 323 2, 773, 348 2, 968, 026 1, 796, 238 6, 528, 804 5, 145, 879 159, 530	3, 315, 011 8, 871, 038 10, 864, 747 4, 185, 084 18, 188, 083 10, 282, 501 98, 415	10 11 12 13 14 15
3, 559, 453	3, 831, 641	4, 883, 067	14, 409, 294	7, 704, 940	21, 110, 087	55, 608, 048	17
4, 687, 169 541, 908 29, 932 48, 586 8, 953 51, 901	4, 084, 156 416, 786 32, 285 43, 513 8, 549 46, 097	4, 271, 887 392, 719 39, 882 48, 821 9, 593 48, 316	9, 334, 733 1, 090, 663 108, 846 101, 683 21, 826 115, 817	3, 712, 828 538, 119 57, 658 43, 764 13, 700 49, 986	7, 216, 885 1, 756, 161 138, 113 75, 043 12, 037 101, 133	10, 326, 008 3, 668, 095 391, 257 76, 715 15, 424 279, 049	18 19 20 21 22 23
4, 690 3, 276	7, 378 4, 821	14, 585 7, 578	64, 912 28, 365	43, 699 15, 037	147, 813 38, 272	632, 992 94, 061	24 25
5, 376, 413	4, 643, 585	4, 833, 381	10, 866, 843	4, 474, 792	9, 485, 458	15, 483, 599	26
3, 661, 989 251, 733 201, 767 73, 887 35, 530 46, 904 39, 497 79, 303 6, 394 2, 347 749, 384	3, 165, 861 197, 249 134, 259 53, 829 34, 736 48, 037 32, 775 79, 238 7, 045 2, 103 645, 453	3, 279, 514 162, 372 111, 071 51, 469 42, 758 57, 672 31, 703 94, 250 10, 017 2, 208 688, 203	7, 050, 251 419, 201 158, 901 109, 017 110, 174 147, 581 58, 883 251, 485 25, 509 5, 480 1, 708, 139	2, 721, 251 187, 011 41, 554 41, 053 61, 625 68, 572 22, 911 118, 352 12, 618 1, 755 776, 997	5, 219, 761 535, 002 61, 839 109, 617 188, 078 193, 846 37, 057 366, 894 37, 409 3, 482 1, 691, 401	7, 955, 618 1, 400, 263 46, 688 169, 538 519, 596 387, 422 59, 841 630, 884 46, 210 1, 727 2, 215, 109	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
5, 148, 736	4, 400, 586	4, 531, 237	10, 044, 622	4, 053, 698	8, 444, 386	13, 432, 897	38
227, 677 219, 712 30, 184 1, 059 31, 242 196, 435 93, 160 8, 365	242, 999 230, 800 31, 721 960 32, 681 210, 318 114, 653 11, 775	302, 143 279, 981 38, 464 989 39, 454 262, 690 171, 108 17, 636	822, 221 728, 945 100, 234 1, 579 101, 813 720, 409 534, 603 32, 232	421, 094 362, 358 49, 776 521 50, 297 370, 797 265, 063 18, 497	1, 041, 072 854, 988 117, 703 640 118, 343 922, 729 890, 540 45, 287	2, 050, 702 1, 323, 650 182, 565 472 183, 037 1, 867, 666 1, 607, 884 36, 083	39 40 41 42 43 44 45

Table 5 (Table 16, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Returns of corporations assets and liabilities as of Dec. 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, come or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after

[Money figures and total assets

PART III. RETURNS

		Tot	al assets class	es
		Total	Under 50	50 to 100
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	275, 662	159, 709	35, 871
	Assets:2			
2	Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable	12, 846, 140	155, 357 599, 396 446, 777	102, 669
2 3 4	Notes and accounts receivable	25, 241, 975	599, 396	472, 272
4	Inventories	5, 596, 103	446, 777	283, 204
5	Investments, tax-exempt 4	14, 428, 224 60, 321, 158	10, 883 111, 929	17, 659
6 7	Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less de-	60, 071, 666	1, 098, 851	166, 287 1, 275, 654
٠,	nregistion and depletion)		2,000,001	2, 210, 001
8	Other assets	8, 787, 475	275, 795	233, 940
9	Total assets	187, 292, 743	2, 698, 988	2, 551, 685
	Liabilities:2			
10	Notes and accounts payable	16, 504, 441	1, 144, 683	723, 497
11	Bonded debt and mortgages	34, 132, 841	366, 040	461, 858
12	Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred	65, 633, 751 11, 397, 543	308, 688	266, 968
13 14	Capital stock, preferred	46, 368, 468	142, 416 2, 068, 707	141, 106 1, 369, 262
15	Capital stock, common	24, 211, 427	233, 150	265, 977
16	Less deficit	10, 955, 728	1, 564, 695	676, 984
17	Total liabilities	187, 292, 743	2, 698, 988	2, 551, 685
	Receipts, taxable income:			
18	Oroce color 6	23, 311, 405	3, 594, 336	1, 760, 772
19	Gross receipts from other operations 7	6 8, 519, 408	1, 033, 481	374, 864
20	Interest	1, 823, 931	9, 675	10, 590
21	Rents Net capital gain	1,014,846	63, 876	57, 519
22 23	Other receipts.	134, 053 454, 234	4, 521 40, 898	3, 026
23	Receipts, tax-exempt income:	404, 204	40, 898	21, 675
24	Dividends from domestic corporations	1, 210, 704	3,900	2, 486
25	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4	461, 852	786	1, 079
26	Total compiled receipts 8	36, 930, 434	4, 751, 474	2, 232, 009
	Deductions:			
27	Cost of goods sold 9	18, 506, 723	2, 880, 112	1, 425, 686
28	Cost of other operations	4 810 836	586, 818	222, 067
29 30	Compensation of officers	968, 729 688, 592 2, 317, 106 1, 108, 364	586, 818 326, 707	1, 425, 686 222, 067 107, 951 53, 261
30	Rent paid on business property	688, 592	185, 620	53, 261
31	Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax 10	2, 317, 106	41, 735	39, 451
32	Bad debts	1, 108, 364 820, 215	47, 408 51, 286	36, 431
33 34	Depreciation	1, 588, 851	51, 286 86, 551	32, 178
35	Depletion	152, 868	1, 177	56, 645 1 352
36	Net capital loss 11	236, 338	28, 116	1, 352 9, 715
37	Other deductions	7, 994, 272	868, 978	397, 313
38	Total compiled deductions	39, 201, 893	5, 104, 509	2, 382, 050
39	Compiled net loss (26 less 38)	2, 271, 459	353, 035	150, 041
40	Deficit (39 plus 24 and 25)	3, 944, 015	357, 721	153, 606
41	Excess-profits tax 12	37	8	7
42	Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax	2, 271, 495	353, 043	150, 049
43	Cash dividends paid	1, 021, 454	10, 440	5, 84 4
44	SLOCK UIVIGERUS DAIG	39, 211	1,404	788

¹ Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balance sheet data.

¹ Excludes returns for macrive corporated 2 See text, pp. 13-18.
2 See text, pp. 13-18.
3 Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.
4 Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.
4 See text, p. 15.
5 Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."

Torss receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations", see "deductions."

* Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes non-taxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the

submitting balance sheets for 1934 by total assets classes, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net indeducting total tax, and dividends paid-Continued

classes in thousands of dollars]

SHOWING NO NET INCOME

		Total as	sets classes—C	ontinued			
100 to 250	250 to 500	500 to 1,000	1,000 to 5,000	5,000 to 10,000	10,000 to 50,000	50,000 and over	
35, 702	17, 794	11, 353	11, 643	1,744	1, 390	456	
269, 599 954, 885 476, 705 102, 710 533, 231 2, 866, 628	380, 102 1, 030, 299 403, 736 232, 003 826, 999 2, 914, 516	527, 728 1, 287, 252 430, 238 413, 655 1, 331, 975 3, 423, 771	1, 590, 883 3, 804, 203 951, 786 1, 525, 810 5, 924, 155 8, 921, 275	802, 411 1, 859, 338 366, 574 746, 930 3, 579, 645 4, 181, 147	2, 163, 542 4, 184, 086 775, 923 2, 011, 648 9, 621, 549 8, 280, 515	6, 853, 847 11, 050, 244 1, 461, 160 9, 366, 929 38, 225, 388 27, 109, 308	
467, 723	476, 917	558, 552	1, 475, 742	548, 179	1, 257, 619	3, 493, 008	
5, 671, 482	6, 264, 571	7, 973, 172	24, 193, 854	12, 084, 224	28, 294, 883	97, 559, 884	
1, 240, 238 1, 168, 470 852, 986 361, (24 2, 530, 111 664, 146 1, 145, 494	1, 103, 491 1, 235, 801 1, 397, 581 420, 670 2, 361, 852 779, 176 1, 033, 999	1, 256, 133 1, 418, 936 2, 163, 353 555, 096 2, 583, 029 1, 022, 017 1, 025, 392	3, 250, 776 3, 992, 465 7, 292, 974 1, 744, 411 6, 653, 903 3, 520, 858 2, 261, 533	1, 376, 617 2, 231, 783 3, 649, 122 926, 905 2, 996, 394 1, 777, 943 874, 541	2, 575, 373 5, 095, 311 8, 976, 264 2, 257, 017 6, 326, 351 4, 224, 216 1, 159, 648	3, 833, 632 18, 162, 177 40, 725, 815 4, 848, 898 19, 478, 860 11, 723, 944 1, 213, 441	10 11 12 13 14 14 16
5, 671, 482	6, 264, 571	7, 973, 172	24, 193, 854	12, 084, 224	28, 294, 883	97, 559, 884	1
2, 401, 000 473, 713 31, 306 126, 279 6, 521 36, 769	1, 729, 766 295, 878 46, 466 118, 496 5, 661 32, 107	1, 703, 297 314, 073 66, 474 116, 720 7, 446 36, 086	3, 534, 033 1, 005, 560 225, 173 201, 699 20, 156 83, 184	1, 396, 257 403, 276 110, 666 62, 908 10, 400 29, 069	3, 135, 370 1, 071, 482 238, 929 96, 789 23, 521 68, 794	4, 065, 574 3, 547, 080 1, 084, 653 170, 562 52, 801 105, 653	18 19 20 21 21 22 23
8, 930 5, 093	13, 055 8, 780	21, 478 16, 023	106, 622 62, 934	73, 852 27, 699	214, 927 73, 155	765, 456 266, 302	2.2
3, 089, 610	2, 241, 210	2, 281, 597	5, 239, 360	2, 114, 127	4, 922, 966	10, 058, 081	2
1, 938, 572 274, 739 128, 317 61, 731 89, 728 69, 118 61, 874 101, 361 2, 611 13, 969 603, 053	1, 398, 476 167, 657 81, 877 38, 058 94, 828 64, 801 56, 495 89, 417 3, 427 18, 833 448, 936	1, 385, 374 147, 500 66, 214 40, 659 117, 285 68, 077 59, 700 103, 788 5, 215 19, 422 515, 241	2, 818, 939 549, 648 113, 566 84, 721 338, 796 163, 155 149, 293 264, 614 20, 401 62, 818 1, 205, 519	1, 103, 463 156, 404 32, 610 40, 296 168, 301 67, 573 64, 645 118, 699 11, 497 41, 425 558, 686	2, 473, 901 479, 649 51, 736 78, 087 350, 022 149, 368 135, 571 265, 483 33, 995 26, 746 1, 170, 999	3, 082, 199 2, 235, 354 59, 750 106, 158 1, 076, 960 442, 433 209, 174 502, 292 73, 193 15, 294 2, 225, 545	22 23 33 33 33 33 33 33
3, 345, 073	2, 462, 806	2, 528, 476	5, 771, 470	2, 363, 601	5, 215, 557	10, 028, 352	3
255, 463 269, 486 6 255, 469 19, 367 1, 453	221, 596 243, 431 1 221, 597 19, 410 2, 404	246, 879 284, 380 (14) 246, 879 37, 701 2, 072	532, 110 701, 665 8 532, 117 115, 248 11, 737	249, 473 351, 024 1 249, 474 66, 862 1, 356	292, 591 580, 672 4 292, 594 214, 676 7, 314	15 29, 729 1, 002, 029 2 16 29, 727 531, 906 10, 681	3 4 4 4 4

Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.
 Excludes taxes tabulated in "cost of goods sold."
 For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Reve-

¹¹ For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.

12 Excess-profits tax of \$36,940 appears on returns submitting balance sheets, with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

13 Deficit or compiled net loss.

14 Less than \$500.

15 Compiled net profit less excess-profits tax.

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid

[Money figures and total assets classes in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 11-18]

			[For	text defini	ing certain	items and	d describii	ng returns	included,	see pp. 1-	4 and 11-1	8]				
	Num- ber of	Cash,1 notes,		Capital assets (less de-	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita	l stock	Surplus and un-		Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled	Net in-	Cash
Total assets classes	returns with balance sheets	and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	precia- tion and de- pletion).	Total liabili- ties	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales ²	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts 4	net profit or net loss ⁵	come or def- icit	divi- dends paid
			AGRICU	LTURE .	AND RE	LATED	INDUST	RIES-R	ETURNS	SHOWI	NG NET	INCOM	E			
Jnder 50	288 375 181 93 84 15 6 6	3, 012 2, 638 8, 879 9, 520 8, 623 24, 934 14, 267	1, 774 2, 493 7, 319 6, 714 7, 093 15, 948 13, 936	10, 089 13, 853 35, 763 39, 316 37, 203 97, 425 65, 077	58, 166 65, 096 64, 482 169, 726	3, 395 4, 379 11, 852 10, 121 9, 055 15, 770 33, 574	2,028 4,872 5,388 5,708 7,804	1, 628 2, 037 1, 834 7, 582	10, 730 12, 284 31, 349 31, 029 31, 243 83, 113 38, 991	4, 978 13, 643 14, 382	13, 055 8, 922 29, 257 22, 963 18, 730 56, 016 42, 908	2, 295 4, 087 1, 431 927 2, 861	11, 648 34, 906 26, 488 21, 638 63, 269	940 1, 025 3, 092 2, 670 2, 567 6, 689 4, 200	928 1, 008 3, 019 2, 547 2, 374 5, 765 3, 951	25 34 1, 36 79 1, 52 4, 35 1, 41
0,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	6 1	31, 320	16, 801	78, 555	254, 668	7,711	3,040		154, 584	69, 127	21,715	43, 538	71, 925	11, 291	10, 341	12, 06
Total	1,705	103, 194	72, 078	377, 282	756, 446	95, 857	33, 718	15, 703	393, 323	173, 581	213, 566	59, 309	293, 246	32, 474	29, 934	22, 11
		AC	RICULT	TURE AN	D RELA	TED IN	DUSTRI	ES-RET	TURNS S	HOWING	NO NE	T INCO	ME			
Under 50	2, 575	5, 738	6, 557	38, 306	55, 233	23, 484	9, 194	2, 426	47, 757	7 31, 635	18, 289	8, 510	27, 842	7 5, 010	7 5, 056	29

Under 50	2, 575 1, 011 1, 039 538 284 259 25 10		8, 250 20, 876 21, 042 17, 045	38, 306 49, 238 107, 615 117, 421 126, 489 306, 290 93, 567 86, 944	55, 233 72, 703 162, 300 188, 528 198, 210 491, 299 168, 622 158, 216	23, 484 22, 525 51, 182 44, 744 46, 771 95, 190 27, 161 40, 951	9, 194 11, 222 22, 142 23, 476 24, 153 52, 010 44, 595 23, 797	6, 598 8, 422 7, 959 27, 637	47, 757 45, 609 96, 660 101, 999 96, 192 225, 414 57, 417 78, 741	7 31, 635 7 14, 062 7 26, 654 7 10, 039 4, 518 40, 473 20, 242 7 1, 321	23, 889 23, 771 23, 799	8, 510 4, 537 9, 652 3, 891 3, 755 3, 974 410 1, 314	20, 600 35, 449 29, 901 30, 292 46, 791	7 7,026 7 5,502 7 8,550	7 8, 130 7 7, 308 7 5, 997 7 10, 782	295 54 87 317 1,155 1,402 889 20
Total	5, 741	136, 855	115, 417	925, 870	1, 495, 112	352, 008	210, 590	69, 295	749, 788	7 18, 458	166, 202	36, 043	222, 445	7 73, 879	7 78, 422	4, 219

MINING AND QUARRYING-RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

Under 50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500 500-1.000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000-10,000. 10,000-50,000. 50,000 and over. Total.	1, 441 614 707 424 290 335 58 50 6	7, 911 9, 009 23, 417 28, 926 39, 766 90, 897 54, 655 142, 563 46, 981 444, 125	630 871 2, 392 3, 449 4, 749 18, 401 10, 644 72, 605 37, 252 150, 993	18, 450 27, 209 68, 349 97, 477 125, 180 463, 949 259, 866 610, 416 476, 512 2, 147, 407	30, 673 44, 168 113, 390 152, 880 207, 331 725, 762 409, 316 1, 135, 205 702, 634 3, 521, 359	6, 467 7, 962 19, 122 16, 532 24, 855 66, 937 29, 017 130, 487 46, 677 348, 057	814 815 2, 672 6, 880 6, 555 47, 916 34, 024 36, 714 46, 000	1, 412 1, 190 2, 898 4, 577 9, 795 31, 710 18, 180 34, 592	47, 100 40, 435 77, 625 89, 259 109, 343 375, 499 144, 695 454, 011 265, 164 1, 603, 131	7 28, 788 7 10, 993 7 489 19, 452 33, 727 156, 726 153, 737 379, 440 295, 270 998, 083	17, 389 25, 429 69, 044 75, 575 97, 979 210, 149 87, 428 303, 911 124, 259 1, 011, 163	13, 824 7, 820 10, 272 6, 778 5, 427 11, 010 3, 566 10, 451 712 69, 860	33, 378 35, 240 83, 809 87, 409 109, 001 235, 471 99, 148 341, 585 130, 146	4, 851 4, 794 11, 292 12, 613 15, 008 36, 161 17, 241 52, 567 19, 614	4, 712 4, 718 10, 981 12, 139 14, 141 32, 256 15, 043 42, 572 16, 973	3, 499 3, 578 6, 377 9, 483 12, 480 31, 431 13, 338 70, 335 24, 078
			MI	NING A	VD QUAF	RYING	-RETUI	RNS SH	OWING N	O NET	INCOME	:				
Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	3, 107 1, 116 1, 282 638 496 598 104 75 21	24, 571 24, 178 29, 538 120, 250 56, 060	2, 138 5, 274 4, 849 8, 171 26, 227 13, 691 44, 991 116, 546	138, 987 150, 526 236, 307 818, 077 523, 530 939, 339	2, 415, 348	30, 768 25, 679 54, 578 57, 279 71, 272 220, 146 117, 635 173, 637 200, 202	4, 842 4, 445 20, 331 27, 936 30, 986 136, 293 106, 151 182, 043 343, 680 856, 708	3, 832 7, 148 13, 694 13, 417 22, 399 71, 341 39, 612 41, 913 130, 637	100, 908 78, 570 173, 164 166, 108 222, 431 643, 352 306, 589 614, 638 1, 008, 733 3, 314, 493	7 90, 308 7 47, 955 7 78, 515 7 73, 071 7 37, 404 69, 999 93, 594 289, 153 651, 002 776, 496	20, 137 17, 497 33, 012 34, 598 55, 067 159, 906 76, 584 260, 806 338, 210	18, 776 12, 917 20, 681 13, 184 9, 942 16, 081 3, 603 5, 670 6, 177	41, 035 32, 151 57, 091 51, 165 69, 329 188, 892 87, 680 294, 651 383, 449 1, 205, 443		7 9, 706 7 6, 785 7 10, 654 7 8, 800 7 10, 771 7 31, 004 7 14, 481 7 27, 538 7 38, 741	460 328 663 915 3, 237 8, 394 6, 711 37, 371 32, 197 90, 275
		~		TOTAL	MANUF	ACTUR	ING-RE	TURNS	SHOWIN	G NET	INCOME	;				
Under 50	356 316 73	299, 918 325, 972 410, 679 1, 138, 434 556, 324 1, 215, 891 2, 031, 435	87, 648 219, 129 264, 085 350, 741 995, 260 475, 259 1, 044, 042 1, 567, 715	444, 986 616, 703 1, 850, 901 898, 519 2, 281, 108 3, 492, 274	1, 020, 093 1, 243, 998 1, 667, 157 5, 073, 436 2, 495, 612 6, 307, 941 10, 446, 973	68, 798 82, 411 174, 967 172, 937 218, 265 521, 480 254, 565 693, 282 870, 057		19, 248 70, 253 103, 072 157, 298 583, 401 249, 978 707, 860 1, 394, 844	160, 841 200, 769 465, 681 509, 523 646, 047 1, 903, 836 891, 537 2, 343, 326 3, 686, 476	211, 363 346, 360 489, 506 1, 571, 739 833, 827 1, 875, 160 3, 033, 226	1, 773, 347 2, 125, 480 4, 906, 404 2, 222, 983 4, 159, 273	34, 539 13, 908 13, 347 11, 623 10, 312 29, 763 7, 824 42, 948 33, 244	1, 805, 418 2, 164, 112 5, 026, 030 2, 278, 096 4, 319, 025	22, 621 31, 107 81, 649 106, 756 144, 443 402, 194 205, 937 439, 715 680, 137	22, 355 30, 727 80, 088 103, 949 139, 646 377, 474 191, 102 391, 291 544, 930	10, 440 11, 233 27, 592 45, 045 76, 267 264, 361 119, 986 340, 483 495, 058

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

	Num-	Cash,1		Capital				Canit	al stock	Surplus	·			Com-		
	ber of returns	notes, and ac-	Inven-	assets (less de-	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita		and un-	Gross	Gross receipts	Total	piled net	Net in-	Cash divi-
Total assets classes	with balance sheets	counts receiv- able	tories	precia- tion and depletion)	Total liabili- ties	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	profits less def- icit	sales 2	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts 4	profit or net loss 5	or def- icit	dends paid
			T	OTAL MA	NUFAC'	ruring	-RETU	RNS SH	OWING N	NO NET	INCOM	£				
Under 50	31, 454	150, 613			536, 710	225, 698	38, 608	36, 121	446, 581		962, 017			7 76, 127	7 76, 480	1, 443
50-100 100-250	6,837 6,675	111,660 210,678	90, 042 193, 535	198, 123 460, 493		148, 829 274, 816		41,508 109,075	324, 626 634, 154	7 108, 094 7 133, 503	564, 262 973, 747	18, 085 25, 778	588, 310 1, 014, 128	7 39, 281 7 71, 439	7 39, 582 7 72, 506	1, 195 2, 621
250-500	1 3 1631	193, 266	199, 901	504,089	1, 108, 967	254, 794	93, 651	143, 514	583, 137	7 53, 062	864, 476	12,943	891,664	7 66, 355	7 67, 768	4, 583
500-1,000 1,000-5.000	1, 951 1, 808	220, 057 567, 199	239, 677 610, 915	630, 248 1, 792, 839		270, 283 659, 990	125, 243 366, 991	199, 325 536, 815			926, 506 2, 128, 621			7 74, 412 7 152, 124		13, 719 21, 042
5,000-10,000	254	254, 851	237, 747	892, 202	1, 761, 284	242, 853	254, 812	233, 058	671, 785	235, 833	830, 727	8,380	863, 365	⁷ 55, 263	7 61, 074	12,612
10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	211 55	752, 079 1, 809, 588	558, 197 1, 029, 137	1,968,087 3,643,368		458, 256 1, 175, 237	581, 234 901, 999		1,616,880 3,740,485	787, 209 1, 954, 797	1,934,208 3,574,492		2, 013, 575 3, 863, 421		⁷ 138, 410 ⁷ 199, 369	26, 334 104, 059
Total				10, 291, 642								[13, 414, 660			187, 609
		MANU	JFACTU	RING: F	DOD ANI	KIND	RED PR	ODUCTS	S-RETUI	RNS SH	OWING N	ET INC	OME		70	
Under 50	1,788	11, 296	6, 895	20, 885	42, 539	10,700	1,904	1, 270	26, 963	7 1, 544	134, 351	4,056	139, 242	3, 307	3, 255	1, 246
50-100 100-250	939 1,067	16, 574 37, 881	11,909 31,946	33, 490 82, 728	68, 403 171, 951	13, 627 28, 928	3, 576 9, 541	3, 448 11, 270	33, 748 76, 730	10, 507 34, 375	164, 509 351, 598	1,599 2,122	167, 084 355, 989	5, 225 13, 066	5, 099 12, 800	1,807 4,165
250-500	556	44, 709	37, 938	86, 975	198, 857	31,047	9,915	14,808	77, 715	54, 516	383, 428	1,232	387,711	15, 923	15, 532	7, 201
500-1,000 1,000-5,000	331 342	54, 145	47, 939	95, 258 264, 675	231, 549	34, 741 116, 918	8, 827 35, 454	21, 404 77, 125	85, 355 238, 395	66, 031 169, 325	454, 037 1, 110, 740	919 3, 403		18, 466 53, 910	17, 879 50, 799	9, 192 34, 488
5,000-10,000	542 52	140, 177 83, 952	149, 924 87, 309	135, 117	672,800 356,676	75, 069	17, 970	38,043	132, 753	76, 183	563, 606	1,353	573, 495	33, 528	31, 152	34, 488 16, 858
10,000-50,000	52 48	223, 611	188, 077	342, 803	1,017,174	106, 896	77,631	106, 877	361, 739	307, 536	1,094,941	7,348	1, 117, 648	73, 122	69, 067	81, 481
50,000 and over	17	352, 105	319, 037	556, 400	1, 764, 280	118, 800	192, 194	334, 788	606, 799	382, 145	2, 533, 578	13, 895		119, 488	94, 991	88, 683
Total	5, 140	964, 451	880, 975	1, 618, 330	4, 524, 228	536, 727	357, 013	609, 034	1, 640, 195	1, 099, 073	6, 790, 788	35, 928	6, 937, 093	336, 035	300, 573	245, 119

MANUFACTURING: FOOD AND KINDRED PRODUCTS—RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50	3, 788 958 853 354 168 152 19	13, 994 13, 003 22, 749 20, 729 19, 221 43, 817 13, 690 41, 086		37, 033 37, 118 73, 393 62, 828 58, 499 181, 712 70, 147 110, 123	132, 269 121, 900 113, 134 326, 798 131, 932 276, 164	35, 399 31, 046 26, 207 65, 163 14, 607 35, 394	5, 557 6, 656 15, 616 11, 373 15, 593 58, 043 22, 404 40, 173	13, 154 13, 646 16, 760 45, 088 22, 200 23, 399	53, 140 41, 918 76, 700 54, 165 43, 753 115, 984 54, 974 92, 592	7 27, 515 7 10, 000 7 20, 356 3, 164 3, 933 17, 830 10, 837 62, 126	110, 474 195, 885 163, 118 147, 154 281, 942 96, 536 128, 753	4, 957 1, 793 2, 428 1, 230 767 728 575 681	199, 975 165, 951 149, 359 286, 286 99, 246 135, 313	118	7 8, 031 7 4, 304 7 8, 300 7 5, 411 7 5, 794 7 11, 761 7 2, 671 7 2, 320	309 162 396 534 540 2, 197 823 1, 555
Total	6, 307	188, 289	136, 764	630, 853	1, 238, 666	255, 783	173, 415	142, 388	533, 227	40, 019	1, 294, 726	13, 157	1, 326, 097	⁷ 44, 530	⁷ 48, 591	6, 516
			<u> </u>										l			
MANUI	FACTU	RING: L	IQUORS	AND BE	EVERAGI	ES (ALC	OHOLIC	AND N	ONALCO	HOLIC)	-RETUR	ns sho	WING N	ET INC	OME	
Under 50	460 215 221 157 131 117 11 6	2, 531 3, 557 6, 621 7, 969 16, 547 46, 981 19, 161 15, 764	1, 707 2, 461 5, 289 9, 350 12, 917 41, 019 19, 865 24, 619	5, 475 6, 342 18, 455 32, 460 51, 464 114, 892 27, 414 43, 972		2, 663 7, 071 9, 956 18, 549 45, 428 16, 259	375 566 1, 929 2, 384 3, 912 13, 849 3, 593	163 329 1, 869 3, 588 2, 659 8, 750 5, 594 7, 830	6, 253 7, 174 15, 308 21, 118 33, 821 66, 228 25, 029 21, 462	1, 575 3, 310 6, 979 15, 063 27, 602 93, 552 29, 452 44, 005	32, 243 62, 922 78, 267 132, 302 310, 194 97, 211	251 214 305 209 367 1, 591 85 251	63, 775 78, 963 134, 208 316, 138	2, 640 2, 822 5, 388 8, 492 14, 845 35, 652 10, 604 14, 235	2, 609 2, 803 5, 330 8, 447 14, 408 34, 931 9, 974 13, 880	1, 765 1, 787 2, 198 2, 853 4, 483 6, 332 2, 574 1, 940
Total	1, 318	119, 131	117, 227	300, 474	648, 818	127, 604	26, 618	30, 782	196, 393	221, 537	817, 663	3, 273	831, 835	94, 678	92, 382	23, 931
MANUFA	CTURI	NG: LIQ	uors a	ND BEV	ERAGES	(ALCOE	IOLIC A	ND NOI	JALCOH (OLIC)I	RETURN	s snow	ING NO	NET IN	COME	·
Under 50	784 197 170 100 65 48 6 2 6 2		2, 316 3, 903 3, 843 3, 868 9, 807	7, 428 6, 930 14, 432 23, 101 30, 596 52, 788	14, 189 26, 436 35, 385 46, 082 96, 532	4, 489 7, 450 10, 277 9, 516	1, 262 1, 042 1, 864 3, 882 5, 677 10, 316	1, 927 4, 920 4, 327	10, 548, 9, 164 17, 982 19, 131 19, 102 29, 552	7 5, 006 7 3, 368 7 6, 311 7 5, 274 4, 076 28, 252	15, 358 24, 251 23, 729 25, 824 57, 855	692 411 532 313 126 46	15, 863 25, 009 24, 410 26, 187	71,801	7 1, 810 7 1, 965 7 2, 365 7 2, 523 7 3, 797	30 9 28 202 4 399
Crasses grouped		0, 100	7,004	10, 200	40, 240	2, 200	10,030	1, 100	1, 041	11, 111	20, 910		21, 303	- 770	. 010	209
Total	1, 368	34, 349	34, 065	150, 564	273, 845	56, 525	40,079	19, 629	107, 026	29, 547	196, 567	2, 120	202, 872	7 14, 688	⁷ 15, 193	960

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures and total assets classes in thousands of dollars]

•	Num- ber of	Cash,¹ notes,		Capital assets	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita	l stock	Surplus and un-		Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled	Net in-	Cash
Total assets classes	returns with balance sheets	and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	(less de- precia- tion and depletion)	Total liabili- ties	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales ²	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts 4	net profit or net loss ⁵	come or def- icit	divi- dends paid
		7	MANUF	ACTURIN	G: TOBA	CCO PI	RODUCT	S-RET	JRNS SH	OWING	NET IN	COME				
Under 50	33 18 23 12	202 512 1, 326 1, 364 523	207 416 1,090 1,661 771	209 603 699	675 1, 382 3, 879 4, 461 2, 217	205	16 3 195	17 109 267 653	380 831 1, 773 1, 845 1, 484	161 1,002	2, 021 2, 441 5, 533 6, 667 2, 151	31	2, 174 2, 507 5, 605 6, 726 2, 188	32 153 322 228 115	32 153 311 227 100	18 89 134 174 189
1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	19 5 10 4	7,844 7,349 36,113 164,411	15, 692 17, 689 77, 229 273, 223	4, 687 3, 888 16, 889 46, 513	44, 312 35, 074 212, 958 675, 107	3, 794 5, 395 37, 522 3, 652	307 6 42,809	6, 807 2, 490 43, 229 85, 014	17, 042 11, 074 63, 546 314, 353	15, 098 14, 961 46, 069 203, 318	43, 927 38, 351 179, 332 721, 799	86 79	44, 340 39, 014 182, 735 734, 298	3, 849 3, 120 18, 734 79, 911	3, 657 3, 020 17, 884 70, 746	2, 242 1, 363 15, 901 75, 819
Total	128	219, 645 MA		74, 035 TURING:	980, 065 TOBAC	52, 549 CO PRO	<u> </u>	138, 585 -RETUR	412, 329 NS SHOV	,		NCOME	1, 019, 587	106, 465	96, 130	95, 930
Under 50	129 30 31 10 9	614 593 1, 568 823 1, 643	549 707 1,816 1,202 1,806	458	2, 034 2, 139 5, 079 3, 657 6, 186	893 749 1,040 877 980	61 114 54	178 74 467 1, 190 3, 325	1, 594 1, 550 3, 418 1, 355 1, 589	7 844 7 340 7 319 26 7 205	3, 618 2, 672 6, 853 3, 945 4, 930	8 3	3, 651 2, 687 6, 911 3, 971 5, 017	7 251 7 174 7 260 7 141 7 222	7 252 7 175 7 265 7 148 7 241	17 27 47
5,000–10,000 6 10,000–50,000 50,000 and over Classes grouped	6 Ĭ	7, 129	5, 155	4, 054	22, 424	541	471	1,781	9, 590	9, 502	13, 531	5	13, 714	7 910	7 947	214
Total	219	12, 371	11, 235	7, 956	41, 519	5, 081	1, 143	7, 014	19,095	7, 819	35, 548	17	35, 950	7 1, 959	7 2, 028	305

MANUFACTURING: TEXTILES AND THEIR PRODUCTS—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

Under 50	2, 299 1, 018 944 515 388 363	26, 470 34, 364 58, 190 54, 627 67, 136 159, 965	13, 979 20, 617 43, 566 50, 839 71, 671 182, 997	8, 977 13, 066 34, 523 56, 621 94, 833 298, 043	52, 240 72, 802 150, 016 183, 490 265, 724 746, 390	15, 698 20, 751 36, 582 32, 627 35, 201 68, 813	801 1, 502 3, 868 5, 171 8, 051 16, 067	1, 394 4, 082 10, 188 18, 678 27, 350 110, 520	28, 802 35, 285 67, 596 75, 683 108, 505 273, 467	1, 952 7, 260 24, 903 43, 452 76, 065 240, 322	208, 587 244, 957 391, 148 337, 129 381, 676 766, 911	9, 017 2, 741 1, 594 1, 883 1, 689 6, 433	218, 533 248, 810 395, 402 342, 717 388, 559 786, 397	2, 502 3, 902 9, 626 13, 407 18, 389 47, 686	2, 494 3, 887 9, 514 12, 905 17, 847 45, 518	342 850 1, 928 4, 333 7, 913 24, 905
10,000-50,000 50,000 and over 6	34 6 2	105, 213	148, 575	239, 961	609, 850	32, 672	6, 852	77,418	262, 200	197, 810	390, 530	1, 256	401, 805	34, 748	32, 221	30, 309
Classes grouped		44, 071	63, 115	167, 841	360, 010	36, 472	2, 066	33, 184	91, 913	151, 003	225, 002	609	230, 728	18, 564	16, 021	15, 553
Total	5, 594	550, 035	595, 360	913, 864	2, 440, 521	278, 817	44, 378	282, 814	943, 451	742, 769	2, 945, 940	25, 222	3, 012, 951	148, 822	140, 407	86, 133
	Ŋ	MANUFA	CTURIN	IG: TEX	TILES A	4D THE	IR PRO	DUCTS-	RETURN	is shov	VING NO	NET II	NCOME			
Under 50 50-100 100-250 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped Total	6, 070 961 879 452 280 303 43 6 24 6 1	22, 379 34, 746 29, 593 31, 808 98, 619 37, 920 	24, 544 18, 244 33, 389 36, 463 47, 011 148, 944 60, 106 107, 426 476, 127	23, 489 19, 921 55, 579 73, 913 96, 022 310, 768 159, 527 202, 548 941, 767	93, 343 68, 111 141, 149 158, 749 200, 218 643, 216 307, 916 	41, 273 24, 051 43, 778 40, 930 37, 771 107, 070 31, 502 	4, 053 3, 876 8, 694 11, 474 13, 878 38, 969 22, 752 	5, 517 15, 626 21, 723 30, 790 114, 364 35, 776	72, 925 41, 644 76, 896 85, 719 96, 684 263, 853 133, 147 126, 167 897, 033	7 40, 847 7 11, 785 7 12, 421 7 11, 966 8, 748 90, 340 61, 627 110, 997	330, 087 159, 834 218, 917 192, 970 178, 740 523, 950 213, 479 279, 418 2, 097, 395	24, 204 3, 417 5, 333 1, 480 2, 354 1, 760 804 	183, 751 535, 416 218, 479 			250 192 260 905 1, 409 4, 129 1, 474 2, 924 11, 543
		MANUF	ACTURI	NG: LEA	THER A	ND ITS	MANUF	ACTUR	ES-RETU	URNS SI	DNIWOE	NET IN	COME			
Under 50	199 208	5, 995 12, 942 12, 711 12, 908 41, 135	4, 698 10, 283 13, 095 15, 943 46, 767 15, 492	1, 373 2, 667 6, 460 7, 198 8, 931 23, 117 12, 306	14, 306 32, 916 37, 355 42, 152 135, 542 59, 816	4, 135 7, 643 5, 517 6, 703 12, 293 3, 412	3, 256	863 2, 934 4, 040 5, 105 26, 547	4, 276 6, 641 13, 672 14, 150 16, 652 51, 792 14, 322	1, 483 6, 443 10, 400 10, 168 34, 411 28, 156	25, 710 45, 465 87, 250 79, 032 83, 748 171, 710 40, 908	136 132 7 63 682 7	45, 907 88, 122 79, 903 84, 791 174, 870 41, 982	922 2, 225 2, 673 3, 520 10, 333 2, 122	404 917 2, 197 2, 615 3, 478 9, 785 1, 595	49 202 857 920 1, 289 6, 265 1, 883
Total	964	153, 847	151, 427	96, 709	491, 832	47, 495	8, 074	67, 785	196, 946	143, 128	687, 046	1,649	696, 895	37, 508	36, 124	20, 725
	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>			·		L			!			

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

											·•					
	Num- ber of	Cash, ¹ notes,		Capital assets	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita	al stock	Surplus and un-	_	Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled	Net in-	Cash
Total assets classes	returns with balance sheets	and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	(less de- precia- tion and depletion)	Total liabili-	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales ²	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts	net profit or net loss ⁶	come or def- icit	divi- dènds paid
	M.	ANUFAC	CTURIN	G: LEATI	HER ANI	o its m	ANUFAC	CTURES	-RETUR	ns sno	WING N	ONETI	NCOME			
Under 50	188 80 68 34 63	3, 740 8, 060	4, 009 3, 357 9, 027 8, 452 14, 817 27, 906	3, 288 3, 284 8, 306 8, 641 11, 576 17, 039	13, 598 11, 961 30, 285 28, 141 48, 279 70, 466	3, 476 8, 075 7, 386 9, 416	1, 614 1, 767 2, 194	1, 353 1, 286 3, 683 5, 116 12, 160 11, 211	10, 513 8, 354 16, 364 13, 818 24, 368 32, 672	7 5, 730 7 2, 325 7 1, 137 7 1, 445 7 4, 518 7 14, 727	33, 880 25, 632 53, 825 39, 233 52, 939 69, 930	122	25, 935 54, 447 39, 882 53, 781	7 2, 300 7 1, 320 7 2, 769 7 2, 007 7 3, 532 7 3, 052	7 2, 304 7 1, 331 7 2, 788 7 2, 035 7 3, 651 7 3, 239	5 25 134 50 269 872
10,000-50,000 5	1, 293	6, 762 58, 032	15, 114 82, 683	19, 275 71, 410	44, 934 247, 664	3, 052 73, 995	1, 731	13, 266	17, 643	6, 218 7 23, 664	38, 610	108	39, 063 319, 354	7 1, 740 7 16, 721	7 1, 770 7 17, 119	134
		•	MANUI	FACTURI	NG: RUE	BER PI	RODUCT	S-RET	URNS SH	OWING	NET IN	COME	·			
Under 50. 50-100 100-250 250-500 . 500-1,000 . 1,000-5,000 10,000 10,000-50,000 6 50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	73 38 53 40 16 33 5 6 4 6 2	708 875 2, 798 4, 053 2, 375 18, 749 9, 360	396 627 2, 318 3, 444 2, 068 14, 440 9, 363	518 910 3, 051 5, 378 5, 567 28, 777 13, 370	1, 786 2, 861 8, 864 14, 510 11, 314 72, 325 36, 731	572 638 1, 578 1, 996 1, 123 8, 407 3, 608	15 70 407 807 539 2, 181 75	32 252 481 1, 422 2, 381 8, 154 815 87, 684	866 1, 362 3, 990 5, 225 3, 905 33, 782 18, 169	89' 431 1, 948 4, 174 2, 815 17, 068 13, 162	8, 534 6, 234 15, 074 20, 593 11, 328 72, 778 21, 680	782 39 29 229 58 114 115	10, 198 6, 343 15, 200 20, 973 11, 485 73, 706 22, 114	533 294 727 1, 390 582 4, 037 784	532 292 721 1, 375 579 3, 794 768	2, 061 59 150 668 80 3, 074 156
Total	264	102, 106	107, 091	169, 074	520, 070	35, 004	59, 135	101, 222	197, 659	100, 995	352, 742	1, 459	359, 620	14, 884	14, 381	10, 686

MANUFACTURING: RUBBER PRODUCTS-RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50	168 38 40 18 20 22 6 4	492. 1, 502 1, 076	551 475 1, 151 1, 132 2, 351 9, 189	1, 133 1, 105 2, 781 2, 453 7, 648 22, 637	2, 679 2, 653 6, 277 6, 200 14, 138 49, 691	1, 446 945 1, 390 862 3, 367 12, 471	2, 416 130 455 300 1, 260 4, 919	322 141 744 790 3, 546 12, 020	1, 915 1, 811 3, 419 3, 619 7, 143 14, 578	7 3, 689 7 830 7 384 310 7 1, 976 3, 139	4, 722 2, 580 6, 986 4, 832 12, 103 43, 477	75 6 4 58 88	4, 852 2, 608 7, 053 4, 935 12, 284 44, 088	7 2, 270 7 211 7 324 7 216 7 1, 626 7 2, 006	7 2, 276 7 211 7 326 7 218 7 1, 631 7 2, 074	1 11 106 2 234 149
10,000-50,000 50,000 and over 5	6 2	44, 262	38, 041	37, 822	126, 312	32, 932	6, 192	22, 492	30, 869	18, 796	118, 645	877	120, 970	7 1, 520	7 1, 635	526
Classes grouped		91, 063	37, 131	103, 386	419, 799	7, 390	122, 613	149, 667	109, 395	3, 045	163, 949	1, 264	195, 634	16, 738	⁷ 1, 833	4, 730
Total	318	151, 160	90, 022	178, 965	6 27, 750	60, 802	138, 284	189, 722	172, 749	18, 411	357, 293	2, 372	392, 424	8, 565	7 10, 204	5, 759
			MANUI	FACTUR	NG: FOR	REST PR	ODUCT	S-RETU	IRNS SH	OWING	NET INC	COME				
Under 50. 50-100. 100-250 250-500 5)3-1,0)0 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000	595 306 441 210 111 92 14	6, 719 19, 728 18, 655 18, 492 38, 279 15, 960	20, 080 19, 029 18, 249 31, 100	4, 442 7, 291 24, 307 27, 272 29, 179 80, 882 49, 723	14, 204 21, 411 71, 274 74, 038 78, 460 187, 824 94, 689	3, 696 4, 507 13, 326 11, 040 9, 843 14, 233 13, 266	477 875 2, 765 2, 333 2, 292 7, 800 2, 856	264 499 4, 780 4, 026 7, 602 18, 627 808	8, 150 11, 176 34, 649 36, 355 30, 597 80, 267 39, 641	684 3, 234 12, 238 19, 133 24, 196 57, 225 34, 926	31, 565 31, 500 88, 008 81, 173 65, 974 112, 905 36, 194	339 65 755 282 449 815 509	32, 212 31, 900 89, 929 83, 150 67, 621 116, 811 37, 695	803 1, 049 3, 616 4, 613 4, 068 9, 599 2, 359	785 1, 044 3, 564 4, 462 3, 886 8, 926 2, 177	208 384 1, 229 2, 219 2, 289 6, 241 2, 335
50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	6 1	12, 267	10, 513	42, 094	106, 244	5, 208	12, 752	4, 297	31, 405	36, 395	27, 028	254	28, 681	2, 533	2, 253	1, 797
Total	1, 773	134, 845	119, 898	265, 191	648, 143	75, 118	32, 149	40, 902	272, 240	188, 031	474, 347	3, 467	488, 000	28, 639	27, 096	16, 703
		M	ANUFA	CTURIN	G: FORE	ST PROI	DUCTS-	RETUR	NS SHOV	VING NO	NET IN	COME	<u> </u>			
Under 50_ 50-100_ 100-250_ 250-500_ 500-1,000_ 1,000-5,000_ 10,000-50,000 0_ 50,000-10,000 dover 0_ Classes grouped	1, 963 671 817 430 254 220 32 6 17 6 2	11, 371 26, 022 27, 845 32, 632 49, 921 24, 775		16, 268 21, 485 56, 677 67, 091 77, 017 236, 176 131, 783	39, 550 48, 038, 128, 133 152, 468 178, 554 424, 173 215, 823	15, 920 32, 525 37, 388 32, 038 70, 401 36, 605	3, 263 4, 789 11, 133 11, 899 13, 411 51, 550 27, 069	2, 980 3, 212 9, 837 10, 158 18, 906 40, 201 15, 869	40, 105 36, 045 90, 479 84, 281 97, 541 204, 312 84, 842		47, 715 38, 624 82, 607 76, 817 75, 862 129, 872 54, 361	1, 766 521 421 693 529 1, 693 571	39, 975 85, 679 79, 524 78, 483 135, 621 56, 847	7 11, 215 7 11, 361 7 8, 538 7 14, 248 7 5, 586	7 4, 536 7 11, 343 7 11, 534 7 8, 747 7 14, 771 7 5, 769	128 395 308 1,032 7,023 1,954 2,090
Total	4, 406	228, 794	218, 890	961, 131	1,720,492	276, 683	191, 198	123, 524	784, 986	203, 338	567, 658	12,090			7 75, 209	
			<u> </u>				·				<u></u>		1			<u> </u>

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

				(21-	one, ngan					or uoman	·					
	Num- ber of returns	Cash,1 notes, and ac-	Inven-	Capital assets	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita	al stock	Surplus and un- divided	Gross	Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled net	Net in-	Cash divi-
Total assets classes	with balance sheets	counts	tories	precia- tion and depletion)	Total liabili- ties	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	profits less def- icit	sales 2	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts 4	profit or net loss	or def- icit	dends paid
	MANUFACTURING: PAPER, PULP, AND PRODUCTS—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME															
Under 50	243 191 276 158 128 141 26 6 23	2, 344 4, 630 13, 005 15, 434 22, 006 54, 951 31, 701	1, 362 3, 045 9, 457 11, 409 16, 749 41, 254 23, 518	2, 007 4, 675 17, 120 22, 549 39, 657 146, 435 95, 293	6, 380 13, 869 45, 183 57, 455 92, 397 293, 714 176, 242	2, 858 7, 994	211 444 1, 984 2, 363 4, 608 21, 159 20, 511	146 726 4, 482 5, 574 7, 891 39, 231 32, 491	3, 295 6, 582 18, 027 21, 596 35, 384 117, 303 61, 061	2, 705 10, 147 17, 978 29, 856	14, 735 28, 848 76, 731 83, 773 117, 275 240, 655 127, 710	74 100 91 130 226	77, 615 84, 876 119, 195 245, 277	418 1, 178 4, 418 5, 738 10, 081 24, 588 13, 851	416 1, 156 4, 375 5, 583 9, 684 23, 505 13, 242	259 1, 375 2, 360 3, 953 11, 954
50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	6 2	52, 268	48, 855	279, 008	499, 501	48, 557	62, 127	63, 452	210, 959	95, 449	253, 236	1, 202	259, 668	24, 078	22, 405	14, 922
Total	1, 188	196, 340	155, 650	606, 745	1, 184, 740	105, 463	113, 407	153, 993	474, 206	287, 729	942, 964	2,062	960, 534	84, 350	80, 364	40, 402
		MANU	FACTUR	ING: PA	PER, PU	LP, ANI	PROD	ucts—r	ETURNS	s showi	NG NO	NET IN	COME			
Under 50	444 134 138 79 63 87 15 12	2, 535 2, 336 4, 427 5, 157 5, 678 20, 640 11, 920 25, 089 82, 845	1, 597 1, 830 3, 540 4, 365 6, 688 20, 842 6, 423 19, 055 4, 805	3, 118 3, 808 9, 765 13, 578 23, 585 108, 973 54, 010 116, 805 37, 213	8, 522 9, 596 21, 395 27, 449 45, 743 181, 065 100, 044 237, 557 395, 127	3, 346 4, 774 6, 620 11, 754 27, 494 13, 078 24, 937 26, 536	492 657 1, 685 2, 028 4, 943 25, 324 21, 149 40, 126 50, 542	541 3, 116 3, 126 4, 427 25, 074 15, 950 40, 713	6, 478 6, 450 10, 645 13, 527 18, 191 67, 717 25, 415 77, 866 103, 842	637 4, 498 23, 225 18, 898 45, 237	15, 365 10, 880 22, 414 23, 929 27, 224 87, 138 28, 317 76, 760 29, 554	13 27 16 11 262 647 21 1, 217	11, 030 22, 702 24, 304 27, 720 89, 700 30, 534 80, 299 38, 115	7 845 7 878 7 1, 391 7 1, 647 7 2, 243 7 8, 136 7 1, 706 7 4, 784 7 2, 750	7 846 7 888 7 1, 403 7 1, 658 7 2, 338 7 8, 712 7 2, 223 7 6, 477 7 2, 858	32 63 25 126 1, 218 285 1, 895
Total	975	160, 627	69, 147	370, 854	1, 026, 498	122, 006	146, 947	199, 863	330, 130	146, 663	321, 580	2, 350	339, 988	7 24, 381	7 27, 402	3, 653

MANUFACTURING: PRINTING, PUBLISHING, AND ALLIED INDUSTRIES—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 6 50,000 and over 6	664	17, 491 17, 720 30, 478 31, 392 37, 215 91, 952 47, 287	3, 646 5, 075 9, 643 10, 493 11, 834 29, 564 9, 871	16, 404 16, 955; 34, 824 39, 293 52, 628 96, 954 75, 988	44, 838 51, 001 103, 521 118, 973 155, 877 369, 643 236, 201	9, 728 7, 390 12, 137 14, 831 13, 895 27, 589 13, 688	2, 038 2, 099 5, 701 8, 284 13, 077 25, 257 22, 734	1, 692 2, 001 5, 808 7, 412 16, 486 34, 476 10, 927	25, 364 25, 524 47, 769 49, 374 50, 265 110, 295 46, 527	2, 671 10, 729 25, 636 31, 454 51, 040 146, 337 120, 450	77, 648 67, 722 121, 204 120, 842 133, 716 274, 174 162, 267	13, 924 6, 690 4, 162 2, 508 1, 776 1, 791 359	75, 389 127, 279	3, 471 3, 837 8, 454 9, 351 12, 509 29, 821 22, 568	3, 398 3, 759 8, 303 9, 088 11, 773 28, 066 20, 011	1, 124 1, 373 3, 846 4, 520 6, 469 17, 930 13, 545
50,000 and over Classes grouped	8 1	92,009	19, 168	104, 108	455, 375	44, 863	23, 856	47, 893	113, 532	199, 404	236, 829	1, 712	253, 212	38, 305	31, 842	29, 905
Total	4, 265	365, 543	99, 295	437, 155	1, 535, 429	144, 122	103, 046	126, 694	468, 649	587, 720	1, 194, 402	32, 921	1, 266, 234	128, 318	116, 241	78, 713
MANUFACTURING: PRINTING, PUBLISHING, AND ALLIED INDUSTRIES—RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME																
Under 50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000-10,000. 10,000-50,000.	5, 103 738 532 199 104 76 8		5, 079 8, 966 7, 042 5, 363 10, 457	36, 463 19, 997 29, 998 24, 534 28, 353 45, 214 17, 469	84, 869 51, 267 82, 396 69, 339 70, 177 140, 890 59, 813	33, 786 14, 998 23, 183 17, 787 29, 993 41, 566 8, 238	6, 779 4, 510 6, 723 9, 757 7, 229 23, 259 24, 611	5, 114 3, 938 6, 440 7, 270 6, 713 13, 879 12, 706	62, 319 31, 264 41, 941 30, 770 24, 994 30, 101 6, 699	7 33, 718 7 8, 317 7 4, 582 7 4, 414 7 7, 647 21, 797 7 651	94, 638 45, 827 63, 007 55, 921 49, 550 85, 772 39, 116	25, 656 8, 537 11, 579 5, 426 3, 230 2, 993 351	54, 924 76, 194 62, 578	7 9, 456 7 3, 497 7 5, 276 7 3, 687 7 4, 490 7 7, 012 7 1, 039	7 9, 542 7 3, 519 7 5, 414 7 3, 890 7 4, 787 7 7, 745 7 1, 077	137 59 222 225 301 847 50
50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	61	92, 254	4,090	49, 204	237, 259	17, 923	35, 364	15, 296	37, 206	122, 658	32, 393	471	40, 572	7 18, 213	23, 881	970
Total	6, 767	219, 682	52, 375	251, 233	796, 010	187, 474	118, 231	71, 355	265, 294	85, 126	466, 226	58, 244	541, 591	7 52, 671	⁷ 59, 856	2, 811
	1	MANUF	ACTURI	NG: CHE	MICALS	AND AI	LLIED P	RODUC	TS-RET	URNS S	HOWING	NET I	NCOME			
Under 50	940 436 572 344 255 301 51 56 13	10, 014 28, 693 34, 795 50, 062 163, 259 80, 914 218, 618 324, 143	6, 161 16, 612 23, 187 34, 038 100, 709 64, 187 186, 857 217, 943	4, 890 9, 924 29, 928 38, 439 56, 045 209, 950 129, 277 443, 987 794, 952		4, 989 5, 687 15, 010 15, 981 26, 339 77, 179 29, 192 213, 499 181, 330	499 881 2, 921 3, 959 3, 397 11, 672 7, 841 28, 548 77, 118	873 1, 499 6, 777 10, 413 16, 559 61, 064 121, 036 207, 953	11, 726 16, 290 41, 973 46, 412 68, 178 254, 514 133, 822 467, 853 1, 020, 407	436 5, 632 21, 345 39, 430 52, 421 205, 341 132, 551 304, 307 528, 451	59, 177 57, 902 143, 994 164, 151 212, 010 536, 729 325, 070 757, 823 793, 556	703 706 759 1, 764 2, 554 2, 904 1, 176 4, 778 3, 858	59, 273 146, 517 167, 913 217, 513 551, 715 331, 428 787, 418 870, 827	2, 994 3, 299 9, 580 15, 414 20, 738 65, 226 40, 970 111, 720 120, 122	2, 977 3, 257 9, 464 14, 967 20, 038 59, 973 39, 484 95, 894 67, 306	2, 540 1, 521 3, 594 7, 489 13, 329 43, 774 26, 663 73, 550 98, 324
Total	2, 968	917, 252	653, 950	1, 717, 392	4, 789, 989	569, 206	136, 836	444, 809	2, 061, 174	1, 289, 914	3, 050, 413	19, 202	3, 193, 002	390, 062	313, 360	270, 783

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

Total assets classes	Num- ber of returns with balance sheets	Cash,¹ notes, and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	Capital assets (less de- precia- tion and depletion)	Total assets— Total liabili- ties	Notes and ac- counts pay- able	Bonded debt and mort- gages	Capita Pre- ferred	Com- mon	Surplus and un- divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales ²	Gross receipts from opera- tions ³	Total compiled receipts 4	Compiled net profit or net loss 5	Net income or deficit	Cash divi- dends paid
	M A	ANUFAC	TURIN	3: СНЕМ	ICALS A	ND ALL	IED PR	ODUCTS		RNS SHO	OWING 1	NO NET	INCOME			
Under 50	198 146 105 17 31 22	8, 182 14, 255 14, 437 19, 642 39, 558 15, 305		10, 623 27, 703 27, 965 42, 614 102, 645 65, 732 366, 425	37, 626 36, 611 73, 816 69, 512 105, 176 213, 036 122, 708 742, 285 4, 746, 962 6, 147, 733	9, 334 23, 852 18, 256 20, 859 51, 891 40, 681 132, 787	2, 832 4, 873 4, 304 9, 015 18, 123 16, 911 123, 310 362, 271	3, 312 3, 458 8, 844 7, 724 17, 391 30, 305 6, 752 48, 371 52, 002 178, 159	36, 842 26, 864 46, 003 38, 278 47, 831 96, 101 45, 932 312, 309 2, 243, 651 2, 893, 811	7 9, 624 7 14, 596 7 4, 475 7 3, 344 2, 123	43, 920 32, 293 59, 398 47, 846 72, 580 150, 169 71, 902 385, 667 2, 199, 835 3, 063, 610	962 855 559 1, 972 2, 658 1, 523 4, 647 23, 610	33, 644 61, 101 49, 377 75, 691 156, 156 76, 735 406, 067 2, 373, 685		7 5, 705 7 3, 227 7 4, 398 7 4, 852 7 5, 117 7 11, 222 7 7, 108 7 26, 235 1 106, 174 7 174, 037	132 121 120 291 1, 810 2, 746 2, 670 4, 555 64, 205
	MANUFACTURING: STONE, CLAY, AND GLASS PRODUCTS—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME															
Under 50	146 182 113 82 79 17 18	7, 084 8, 944 13, 169 31, 367 24, 012 63, 433 28, 134	1, 875 5, 184 7, 154 8, 934 23, 970 15, 409 46, 085 24, 557	4, 129 13, 204 17, 547 26, 246 96, 695 42, 850 203, 530 106, 355	29, 533 39, 808 58, 283 181, 364 106, 021 437, 105 205, 945	1, 528 4, 495 3, 923 5, 216 8, 852 3, 772 47, 723 8, 823	435 1, 222 1, 658 3, 493 11, 574 2, 050 10, 951	6, 970 30, 345 18, 671 54, 666 7, 822	4, 658 5, 952 15, 125 16, 984 24, 126 71, 634 47, 155 187, 220 107, 409	1, 487 4, 013 12, 122 15, 606 52, 640 29, 564 107, 269 68, 315	11, 843 11, 890 29, 938 37, 037 49, 560 104, 036 48, 074 156, 299 127, 411	162 228 304 97 713 775 1,038 1,825	12, 209 30, 669 37, 888 50, 467 106, 725 50, 223 165, 287 131, 917	519 703 2, 076 2, 839 4, 364 9, 801 10, 093 21, 897 14, 364	506 696 2, 007 2, 741 4, 222 9, 371 9, 505 18, 499 13, 017	115 237 762 1, 514 2, 049 5, 993 4, 915 17, 873 9, 040
Total	966	181, 809	134, 800	513, 121	1, 076, 316	86, 079	31, 609	125, 651	480, 265	291, 619	576, 088	5, 479	597, 746	66, 656	60, 562	42, 499

MANUFACTURING: STONE, CLAY, AND GLASS PRODUCTS-RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000-10,000. 10,000-50,000. 50,000 and over. Total.	1, 223 427 455 202 103 109 17 9	20, 052 7, 424 16, 430	4, 753 9, 977 9, 017 9, 494 23, 557 11, 810 10, 898	11, 529 17, 423 39, 960 44, 920 40, 757 140, 389 94, 723 117, 647	24, 353 31, 114 71, 728 71, 352 72, 083 223, 015 125, 881 161, 356	9, 412 7, 529 15, 336 12, 412 9, 752 23, 443 6, 245 3, 699	2, 056 3, 541 7, 092 6, 992 10, 619 28, 655 20, 733 31, 901	1, 813 2, 618 6, 193 15, 686 9, 668 44, 319 17, 248 44, 826	20, 342 20, 961 42, 284 40, 778 36, 397 108, 815 65, 636 42, 085	7 11, 645 7 5, 605 7 5, 115 7 10, 637 8, 718 31, 424 10, 125	18, 582 14, 389 26, 621 22, 677 24, 214 61, 827 25, 081 27, 568	869 284 1, 315 327 65 254 16 27 3, 157	28, 702 23, 640 24, 997 63, 665	7 3, 529 7 2, 292 7 4, 465 7 3, 843 7 3, 498 7 9, 717 7 3, 492 7 3, 900	7 3, 534 7 2, 306 7 4, 566 7 3, 904 7 3, 588 7 9, 947 7 3, 621 7 4, 025	88 20 134 194 416 690 456 347
		MA	NUFACT	ruring:	METAL	AND IT	s prod	UCTS—I	RETURN	s snow	ING NET	INCOM	1E			
Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 1,000-5,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	772 547 574 92 77 26	24, 832 63, 282 71, 336 94, 487 289, 861 171, 375 325, 573 1, 029, 914	600, 829	15, 964 26, 417 76, 013 92, 976 134, 992 429, 840 200, 670 545, 325 1, 677, 401 3, 199, 597	49, 946 79, 962 220, 443 273, 857 383, 317 1, 253, 211 669, 471 1, 542, 187 4, 760, 807 9, 233, 211	11, 426 13, 999 31, 927 30, 335 49, 771 101, 622 53, 726 127, 747 464, 452 885, 004	1, 780 3, 527 9, 049 8, 326 14, 034 36, 621 28, 732 74, 838 383, 234	1, 809 3, 418 14, 750 23, 267 33, 972 135, 724 79, 054 130, 346 667, 692 1, 090, 033	40, 082 106, 689 116, 954 161, 159 516, 106 239, 665 616, 307 1, 365, 703	7 866 13, 808 46, 811 80, 708 106, 335 383, 072 218, 485 486, 065 1, 572, 595 2, 907, 011	99, 379 127, 649 278, 218 304, 456 395, 166 1, 001, 276 525, 798 820, 643 3, 152, 267 6, 704, 852	3, 561 1, 304 3, 052 2, 862 1, 606 9, 846 2, 520 24, 799 13, 289	310, 921 401, 935 1, 033, 016 540, 824 877, 172 3, 350, 702	3, 814 6, 139 17, 689 21, 714 29, 328 91, 628 43, 903 91, 727 295, 157 601, 098	3, 799 6, 091 17, 127 21, 122 28, 512 84, 720 40, 538 79, 012 253, 156 534, 078	564 1, 804 5, 862 8, 948 20, 532 92, 653 32, 221 75, 320 181, 307
		MAN	UFACTU	RING: M	ETAL A	ND ITS	PRODUC	CTS-RE	TURNS !	SHOWIN	G NO NI	ET INC	OME			
Under 50	79 24	28, 304 22, 724 51, 136 46, 912 57, 119 188, 525 96, 657 349, 131 495, 214	22, 021 53, 538 57, 845 71, 969 207, 762 86, 732 237, 005 492, 882	41, 766 46, 437 120, 435 132, 800 182, 764 512, 133 252, 817 744, 609 1, 335, 421	111, 401 112, 336 278, 850 297, 405 395, 979 1, 156, 759 552, 249 1, 781, 701 3, 226, 767	44, 091 34, 089 65, 144 56, 039 67, 949 178, 304 82, 428 154, 901 274, 283	7, 734 9, 075 22, 675 24, 883 35, 922 96, 149 82, 102 213, 442 325, 884	8, 733 11, 827 30, 281 44, 373 60, 921 160, 976 85, 236 243, 016 434, 933	98, 903 78, 176 170, 894 162, 004 188, 777 516, 709 201, 663 740, 617 1, 247, 768	7 63, 865 7 31, 327 7 34, 090 7 12, 979 14, 229 121, 108 69, 594 293, 370 755, 096	125, 379 82, 747 171, 442 164, 348 214, 995 533, 687 213, 022 772, 363 1, 135, 321	5, 068 1, 598 2, 725 2, 420 1, 461 2, 639 3, 333 2, 718 10, 942	177, 271 169, 760 220, 574 549, 944 223, 883 797, 476 1, 200, 748	7 13, 937 7 9, 031 7 16, 126 7 17, 432 7 19, 527 7 48, 109 7 18, 823 7 55, 077 7 35, 831	7 13, 967 7 9, 080 7 16, 425 7 17, 838 7 20, 315 7 50, 757 7 20, 455 7 61, 281 7 59, 076	273 129 445 867 1, 352 4, 815 4, 170 14, 328 29, 856
Total	11,681	1, 335, 721	1, 252, 318	3, 369, 182	7, 913, 446	957, 226	817, 867	1, 080, 296	3, 405, 511	1, 111, 137	3, 413, 303	32, 903	3, 556, 791	7 233, 894	7 269, 194	56, 236

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

				[M e	oney figure	s and tota	al assets c	lasses in t	housands	of dollars]						
	Num- ber of	Cash,1 notes,	_	Capital assets	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capita	l stock	Surplus and un-		Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled	Net in-	Cash
Total assets classes	returns with balance sheets	and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	(less de- precia- tion and depletion)	Total liabili-	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales 2	from opera- tions 3	compiled receipts 4	net profit or net loss 5	come or def- icit	divi- dends paid
MANUFACTURING: MANUFACTURING NOT ELSEWHERE CLASSIFIED—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME																
Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 10,000-50,000 6	296 329 174 108 97 11 6 11	6, 709 7, 795 17, 891 19, 982 21, 615 53, 914 22, 117	3, 927 6, 113 14, 018 15, 739 17, 537 44, 381 19, 608	3, 592 5, 586 14, 339 17, 577 21, 512 55, 955 25, 907	16, 312 21, 968 53, 834 62, 403 75, 319 209, 826 83, 187	4, 423 7, 527 7, 812 6, 939	889 1,788 2,604 1,831 6,272	595 1, 568 3, 606 5, 692 8, 921 26, 029 786	9, 007 10, 123 22, 381 26, 111 26, 617 73, 012 40, 906	15, 524 17, 231 26, 800 71, 435	38, 347 38, 931 83, 909 76, 798 86, 537 160, 369 73, 369	179 77 252 603 1, 244	39, 454 39, 439 84, 898 78, 176 88, 647 167, 017 77, 022	1, 175 1, 585 4, 463 4, 974 7, 439 16, 064 11, 173	1, 148 1, 572 4, 376 4, 887 7, 240 14, 431 9, 806	260 859 1, 493 1, 847 4, 501 8, 510 6, 127
50,000 and over 6 Classes grouped	61	74, 887	64, 011	102, 802	339, 501	60, 514	5, 816	35, 116	62, 606	124, 477	185, 227	385	194, 915	30, 173	26, 406	16, 033
Total	1,778	224, 909	185, 333	247, 269	862, 350	113, 574	19,730	82, 312	270, 764	290, 932	743, 488	3,663	769, 568	77, 046	69, 865	39, 630
M	IANUFA	CTURIN	IG: MAI	NUFACTU	URING N	OT ELS	EWHER	E CLASS	SIFIED—	RETURI	из вном	ING NO	NET IN	COME		
Under 50	2, 264	10, 611	8, 451	9, 695		16, 751		2, 863	30, 957		49, 613			7 5, 966		66

Under 50	2, 264 415 368 194 101 90		13, 027 13, 900 13, 644 29, 086	9, 695 9, 533 20, 539 21, 448 29 , 659 58, 496	29, 461 60, 167 67, 409 71, 286 187, 125	16, 751 9, 008 12, 870 14, 914 10, 681 28, 496	4, 938 5, 170 11, 107	7, 791 10, 392 31, 683	20, 426 37, 128 35, 693 31, 351 73, 365		45, 110 40, 391 91, 907	419 499 324 116 895	23, 750 42, 870 46, 462 41, 306 96, 000	7 3, 644 7 5, 551 7 5, 181	7 2, 190 7 4, 679 7 3, 723 7 5, 635 7 6, 203	38 378 254 187
5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	12 8	18, 932 30, 623	13, 801 19, 333	23, 865 42, 320		5, 471 3, 219	7, 078 12, 684	9, 468 18, 360	37, 548 42, 257	13, 251 49, 925	47, 091 71, 536	527 1,026	48, 918 76, 522	7 3, 063 7 6, 977	7 3, 143 7 7, 663	
Total	3, 452	142, 827	117, 642	215, 555	698, 649	101, 409	49, 197	92, 254	308, 726	57, 383	410, 140	5, 400	427, 567	7 37, 183	7 39, 269	2, 658

CONSTRUCTION—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

49581—37-	Under 50 50-100 100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 10,000-50,000 10,000-50,000	1, 936 473 413 166 82 64 15	18, 917 14, 870 26, 532 23, 237 21, 226 46, 458 35, 033 8, 760	4, 430 2, 962 5, 148 3, 657 3, 154 5, 566 11, 347 2, 858	8, 564 9, 818 19, 090 15, 317 14, 919 34, 107 28, 040 39, 352	121, 128	11, 506 8, 244 15, 073 10, 034 13, 178 26, 738 10, 682 4, 857	1, 038 3, 089 1, 931 2, 394 3, 462	664 780 1, 948 2, 459 2, 396 7, 909 10, 195 4, 130		674 5, 740 14, 370 16, 059 15, 911 33, 831 29, 228 17, 899	27, 249 23, 828 12, 295 16, 382 15, 338	38, 507 33, 610 59, 871 54, 196 44, 018 72, 258 29, 153 43, 703	93, 593 62, 005 89, 255 80, 414 58, 000 92, 350 46, 492 45, 616	2, 285 2, 333 4, 201 5, 520 3, 610 10, 481 3, 416 2, 377	3, 991 5, 105	338 668 1, 013 3, 349 1, 499 4, 612 2, 162 1, 399
_1	Total	3, 154	195, 035	39, 124	169, 208	571, 948	100, 312	43, 159	30, 482	190, 552	133, 712	176, 151	375, 316	567, 725	34, 223	31, 158	15, 039

CONSTRUCTION—RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50. 50–100. 100–250. 250–500. 500–1,000. 1.000–5.000.	7, 933 1, 256 1, 041 357 199 125	47, 576 29, 805 50, 455 37, 453 39, 647 67, 802			117, 112 88, 681 162, 729 122, 372 139, 730 237, 231	50, 698 26, 975 45, 526 28, 174 33, 488 52, 075	8, 638 13, 560 10, 680 10, 412	4, 124 2, 713 7, 268 7, 283 8, 225 23, 506	68, 795 44, 683 45, 172	10, 023 17, 173 22, 282	52, 127 32, 931 23, 806	32, 630 61, 795 28, 906 26, 787	64, 700 54, 370		7 15, 226 7 7, 030 7 10, 663 7 6, 558 7 7, 935 7 7, 707	
5,000-10,000	9	20, 300		20, 769	61, 458	21, 631		7, 151						7 1, 838	7 2, 279	198
10,000-50,000 6 50,000 and over 6	61															
Classes grouped		39, 788	14, 446	105, 120	198, 590	33, 073	19, 551	6, 025	42, 168	36, 161	33, 474	37, 684	72, 957	⁷ 5, 262	⁷ 5, 581	3,032
Total	10, 928	332, 825	86, 175	376, 958	1, 127, 903	291, 640	88, 095	66, 294	419, 425	64, 521	320, 720	305, 861	652, 112	⁷ 57, 209	⁷ 62, 978	8, 223

TRANSPORTATION AND OTHER PUBLIC UTILITIES—RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

				1	1		1				i					
Under 50	4, 067	21,877	1,569	42, 795	75, 010	15, 644	3, 857	2, 833	50, 053	7 3, 766		129, 326	133, 843	7, 546	7, 477	4,719
50-100	1,087	19,072	1,661	46, 666	77, 419	13, 430	5, 203	2, 271	38, 266	11,859		86, 232	88, 382	6, 252	6, 163	2, 359
100-250	1, 193	36, 340	2,725		190, 164	25, 447	16, 461	7, 180				135, 227	139, 959		13, 656	7, 692
250-500	635	37, 157	2,872		225, 435	28, 265	28, 543	10, 330				116, 106	119, 466		14, 025	8, 487
500-1,000	509	50, 895	5, 415	263, 844	362, 532	43, 655	48, 780			30, 091		136, 260		21, 861	21, 370	14, 936
1,000-5,000	702	182, 724	20, 934			179, 770						449, 294	464, 734	79, 975		
5,000-10,000	188	95, 381		1,085,396		114, 014	356, 986					247, 388	258, 155		48, 530	49, 147
10,000-50,000	254	416, 842		4,661,186									1, 111, 051		215, 366	
50,000 and over	127	1, 264, 045	208, 780	15, 916, 250	22, 460, 657	672, 766	7, 141, 009	1, 490, 179	8, 931, 856	3, 173, 970		3, 115, 460	3, 407, 835	701, 005	507, 273	700, 412
Total	8, 762	2, 124, 334	314, 819	23, 506, 577	32, 147, 762	1, 405, 412	9, 809, 710	2, 259, 779	12, 599, 987	4, 481, 690		[5, 488, 476]	5, 864, 117	1, 121, 104	911, 320	1, 111, 136
}			-													

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

				•	-						•					
Total assets classes	Num- ber of returns	Cash,1 notes, and ac-	Inven-	Capital assets (less de-	Total assets— Total	Notes and ac- counts	Bonded debt and	Capita	l stock	Surplus and un- divided	Gross	Gross receipts from	Total compiled	Com- piled net	Net in- come	Cash divi-
	with balance sheets	counts receiv- able	tories	precia- tion and depletion)	liabili- ties	pay- able	mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	profits less def- icit	sales 2	opera- tions ³	receipts 4	profit or net loss 5	or def- ieit	dends paid
		TRANS	PORTA'	TION AN	D OTHE	R PUBL	IC UTIL	TIESR	ETURN	s snow:	ING NO	NET IN	COME			
nder 50																
0-250	1, 133	27, 964	2,402	117, 913	177, 340	50, 144	38, 636	19, 850	107, 87	8 7 62, 885		79, 768	83, 464	7 12, 300	7 12, 496	3,
0-500	609	23, 974 34, 241	2, 332 5, 109						108, 99 143, 86	8 776,386	3	62, 470 74, 231	64, 768 77, 325	7 11, 286 7 12, 227	⁷ 11, 400 ⁷ 12, 463	
0-1,000 0-000-5,000 000-10,000 ,000-50,000	489 703	115, 134	14, 438	1, 255, 529	1, 603 568	367, 502	577, 467	87, 468	502, 24	3 7 121, 246		248, 350	260, 141	7 51, 864	7 54, 177	6,
000-10,000	172 176		15, 264	1,003,828 3,057,352	1, 223, 810	180, 050 368, 357	524, 143 1, 813, 796	104, 753 354, 546		1 7 66, 109)	179, 492 622, 086		7 31, 045 7 77, 544	7 32, 902 7 81, 360	2, 13,
),000 and over	102	1, 253, 794	241, 536	20, 999, 379	28, 634, 438	1, 274, 136	12, 698, 205	1, 193, 769	8, 046, 32	0 2, 820, 879		3, 374, 876			7 394, 539	74,
Total	12, 503	1, 841, 695	313, 878	26, 965, 499	36, 312, 807	2, 502, 421	15, 844, 318	1, 812, 458	10, 458, 63	6 2, 303, 303		4, 861, 890	5, 133, 319	7 490, 282	7 625, 005	101,
	·		·		TRADE	-RETU	RNS SHO	WING 1	NET INC	OME				•	·	
nder 50	28, 695	249, 347	214, 059	115, 947	626, 609	181, 621	14, 587	14, 374	331, 16	27 407	2, 317, 32	75 70	0 2, 417, 188	39, 464	39, 124	11, 1
⊢1 00	8, 953	262, 549	197, 516	114, 530	633, 166	157, 528	19, 456	22, 115	295, 80	7 99, 909	1, 817, 75	1 36, 62	0 1,876,084	36, 327	35, 951	9,1
00-250 50-500	7,348 2,772				1, 133, 976 958, 722	261, 409 214, 515	39, 622 30, 038		491, 78 374, 89	1 224, 320	2, 826, 09: 2, 188, 44	2 50, 18	7 2,917,479 1 2,261,151	68, 500 58, 936	67, 054 57, 131	21, 23,
00-1,000	1, 406	374, 985	265, 157	174, 657	967, 590	219,016	27, 864	81,682	356, 08	5 231, 378	2, 017, 40	26, 81	7 2, 081, 030	65, 040	62, 493	32, 8
00-1,000	1, 059 123	745, 671 306, 461		385, 377 169, 095		526, 544 213, 621	58, 914 23, 569	233, 503 75, 598			4, 145, 78 1, 344, 17	1 78,01	2 4, 304, 723 5 1, 435, 380	136, 495 59, 965		71, 27,
0,000-50,000	93	500, 146	334, 350	387, 682	1,673,688	410, 425	115,889	139, 382	513, 97	2 417, 996	2, 731, 986	6 26,72	4 2, 804, 593	103, 085	91,678	88,
,000 and over	17	732, 482	546, 537	296, 336	2, 089, 476	649, 997	37, 370	74, 566	649, 39	555, 173	2, 440, 748	44, 46	7 2, 569, 786	145, 189	127, 269	78,
Total	50, 466	4, 007, 541	2, 947, 079	2, 029, 418	11, 022, 514	2, 834, 676	367, 309	766, 532	3, 913, 94	5 2, 512, 023	21, 829, 704	436, 18	4 22, 667, 415	712, 999	663, 267	365,
	1 1						<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>		<u></u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	1	!

TRADE-RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50. 50–100. 100–250. 250–500. 500–1,000. 5,000–10,000. 10,000–50,000. 50,000 and over.	58, 813 8, 771 5, 979 1, 887 861 566 64 45	216, 069 304, 395 207, 729 181, 887 332, 022 123, 979	214, 472 140, 358 127, 176 203, 512 83, 732	217, 996 158, 981 251, 070 180, 820 155, 766 272, 178 110, 100 255, 689 65, 602	947, 236 614, 135 918, 786 651, 540 589, 951 1, 073, 855 437, 985 823, 113 355, 016	412, 920 204, 823 269, 723 174, 622 197, 287 372, 597 154, 938 260, 644 68, 970	49, 408 44, 848 74, 164 56, 936 43, 311 103, 173 32, 404 74, 618 46, 206	36, 471 29, 068 59, 942 57, 007 65, 106 123, 307 66, 724 65, 297 145, 974	657, 055 348, 491 464, 403 302, 380 239, 727 371, 027 103, 396 213, 612 24, 110	7 289, 307 7 58, 202 7 12, 988 19, 102 4, 461 23, 415 46, 922 141, 258 58, 097	1, 118, 348 1, 318, 225 764, 991 674, 120 1, 185, 346 470, 909		795, 289 707, 835 1, 248, 391 491, 340 948, 439	7 99, 118 7 36, 590 7 45, 536 7 27, 719 7 23, 191 7 32, 157 7 14, 857 7 25, 591 6, 518	7 99, 421 7 36, 962 7 46, 871 7 28, 523 7 24, 340 7 41, 421 7 17, 012 7 26, 309 7 1, 989	2, 156 1, 434 3, 348 3, 486 2, 061 5, 779 1, 642 3, 575 3, 825
Total	76, 991	2, 029, 826	1, 427, 195	1, 668, 202	6, 411, 616	2, 116, 523	525, 069	648, 896	2, 724, 201	7 67, 241	9, 069, 612	245, 443	9, 502, 474	⁷ 298, 242	7 322, 848	27, 306
		SERVIC	E: PROF	ESSIONA	L AMUS	EMENT	s, hotei	LS, ETC	.—RETUI	RNS SH	OWING N	ET INC	OME			
Under 50 50-100 10C-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	6, 012 1, 349 1, 217 505 298 238 20 18	27, 029 44, 775 40, 348 32, 722 85, 685 14, 012 38, 100	4, 238 4, 713 8, 202 205 16, 614	42, 939 47, 420 97, 621 91, 574 128, 555 284, 821 80, 319 186, 206 192, 319		19,048 26,965 23,866 22,386 48,577 12,163 34,411	5, 123 8, 664 20, 481 22, 111 37, 906 105, 322 33, 401 76, 306 124, 610	3, 410 3, 228 10, 036 12, 921 14, 975 37, 239 4, 649 25, 411 24, 036	54, 012 42, 777 77, 540 58, 159 72, 898 145, 929 41, 313 65, 292 67, 775	14, 836 37, 138 42, 759 39, 027		250, 595 132, 226 184, 168 142, 508 115, 441 262, 871 59, 329 125, 377 200, 489	136, 565 192, 323 149, 225 120, 106 272, 260 61, 440 130, 389	14, 728 12, 676 11, 171 30, 925 6, 474	12, 771 7, 781 14, 195 11, 861 10, 463 28, 536 5, 820 5, 331 8, 692	5, 557 3, 971 7, 084 6, 349 6, 641 15, 480 2, 445 4, 430 2, 610
Total	9, 661	385, 889	102, 522	1, 151, 775	2, 078, 377	284, 951	433, 863	135, 904	625, 705	429, 698		1, 473, 005	1, 530, 393	112, 858	105, 450	54, 566
	SI	ERVICE:	PROFE	SSIONAL	, AMUSI	EMENTS	, нотеі.	S, ETC	-RETUR	NS SHO	WING N	O NET I	NCOME			
Under 50. 50-100. 100-250. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000-10,000. 10,000-50,000 4. 50,000 and over 6. Classes grouped.	2, 853 1, 232 848 940 111 6 58	28, 778 47, 969 40, 539 41, 159 122, 849 49, 082	5, 118 7, 639 8, 370 5, 624 18, 928 4, 667	147, 591 137, 068 324, 606 329, 465 469, 588 1, 453, 677 594, 739	261, 542 205, 911 448, 627 436, 748 595, 711 1, 888, 485 732, 699	53, 326 91, 335 81, 500 69, 962 219, 514 78, 011	40, 850 44, 454 136, 559 162, 827 257, 796 874, 376 419, 763	11, 354 9, 944 28, 439 29, 223 51, 280 169, 376 48, 704	149, 500 174, 706 467, 056 120, 136	7 30, 151 7 44, 608 7 37, 426 7 56, 610 7 48, 348 926		495, 959 145, 717 187, 456 101, 929 118, 750 280, 267 95, 254	155, 428 206, 395 120, 216 141, 916 311, 491 102, 379	7 42, 170 7 13, 061 7 22, 774 7 19, 732 7 22, 709 7 70, 312 7 22, 278	7 42, 493 7 13, 258 7 23, 200 7 20, 175 7 23, 264 7 72, 687 7 23, 694	583 231 1, 561 853 770 2, 319 1, 374
Total				4, 295, 527			2, 570, 307									8, 003
	1		1		<u> </u>	1				[<u> </u>	l	1	·	

Table 6 (Table 17, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1934 with balance sheets, by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing certain items of assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, certain items of receipts, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, and cash dividends paid—Continued

	Num- ber of	Cash,1 notes,		Capital assets	Total assets—	Notes and ac-	Bonded debt	Capital		Surplus and un-		Gross receipts	Total	Com- piled	Net in-	Cash
Total assets classes	returns with balance sheets	and ac- counts receiv- able	Inven- tories	(less de- precia- tion) and depletion	Total liabili- ties	counts pay- able	and mort- gages	Pre- ferred	Com- mon	divided profits less def- icit	Gross sales ²		compiled receipts 4	net profit or net loss 5	come or def- icit	divi- dends paid
FINANCE: BANKI	o, ins	URANCI	E, REAI	ESTATE	, HOLDII	NG COM	PANIES,	STOCK	AND BO	NDBRO	KERS, E	TC.—RE	TURNSS	HOWIN	G NET II	COME
TI 1- 60	2 001			40.000	155.00	20.10	16, 72	5, 97	93, 17		35	1 -0 0	1 .0. 00	J		T
Under 50		66, 365	2, 220	69, 613	175, 088	39, 16										
	9 501	00 071														
50-100	3, 581	88, 67	2, 245	110, 214	257, 048	45, 29	4 33, 20	11, 018	109, 63	1 28, 0	21	50, 68	78,840	13, 048	12, 371	6, 143
100-250	4, 870	280, 985	2, 245 3, 671	110, 214 303, 570	257, 048 788, 563	45, 29 122, 600	33, 20 101, 86	37, 01:	109, 63 2 278, 40	1 28, 02 5 90, 03	21	50, 683 84, 748	78,846 152,681	13, 048 30, 068	12, 371 26, 668	6, 143 20, 268
100-250 250-500	4, 870 2, 690	280, 985 322, 944	2, 245 3, 671 3, 900	110, 214 303, 570 324, 416	257, 048 788, 563 950, 937	45, 29 122, 600 116, 60	33, 20 101, 86 5 114, 46	37, 01: 40, 36:	109, 63 2 278, 40 2 284, 15	28, 02 5 90, 08 9 130, 08	21 38 	50, 683 84, 748 47, 110	78, 846 8 152, 681 6 113, 767	13, 048 30, 068 29, 326	12, 371 26, 668 23, 912	6, 143 20, 268 17, 735
100-250 250-500 500-1,000	4, 870 2, 690 1, 918	280, 985 322, 944 416, 631	2, 245 3, 671 3, 900 4, 169	110, 214 303, 570 324, 416 389, 840	257, 048 788, 569 950, 937 1, 345, 959	45, 29 122, 600 116, 600 115, 499	33, 20 101, 86 114, 46 151, 16	11, 012 37, 013 40, 363 63, 455	3 109, 63 2 278, 40 3 284, 15 5 390, 01	28, 02 5 90, 08 9 130, 08 3 209, 88	21 38 55 59	50, 683 84, 748 47, 116 53, 519	7 78, 846 8 152, 681 6 113, 767 9 138, 565	13, 048 30, 068 29, 326 38, 303	12, 371 26, 668 23, 912 26, 109	6, 143 20, 268 17, 735 24, 052
100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000	4, 870 2, 690 1, 918 1, 968	280, 985 322, 944 416, 631 1, 189, 966	2, 245 3, 671 3, 900 4, 169 1, 543	110, 214 303, 570 324, 416 389, 840 840, 324	257, 048 788, 563 950, 937 1, 345, 953 4, 147, 831	45, 29 122, 600 116, 604 115, 499 296, 784	33, 20 101, 86 5 114, 46 9 151, 16 4 343, 36	11, 018 37, 013 40, 363 63, 453 4 167, 164	3 109, 63 278, 40 3 284, 15 5 390, 01 1, 177, 62	28, 02 5 90, 08 9 130, 08 3 209, 88 4 813, 78	21 38 55 59	50, 683 84, 748 47, 116 53, 519 184, 593	7 78, 846 8 152, 681 6 113, 767 9 138, 565 3 407, 454	13, 048 30, 068 29, 326 38, 303 118, 985	12, 371 26, 668 3 23, 912 26, 109 71, 712	6, 143 20, 268 17, 735 24, 052 73, 220
100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000	4, 870 2, 690 1, 918 1, 968 324	280, 985 322, 944 416, 631 1, 189, 966 510, 074	2, 245 3, 671 3, 900 4, 169 1, 543 1, 899	110, 214 303, 570 324, 416 389, 840 840, 324 381, 751	257, 048 788, 562 950, 937 1, 345, 958 4, 147, 831 2, 252, 288	45, 29- 122, 600 116, 60- 115, 499 296, 78- 162, 18	33, 20 101, 86 114, 46 151, 16 343, 36 1 198, 36	8 11, 013 9 37, 013 7 40, 363 63, 453 1 167, 164 86, 683	3 109, 63 278, 40 3 284, 15 5 390, 01 1, 177, 62 635, 08	28, 02 5 90, 08 9 130, 08 3 209, 88 4 813, 78 4 493, 08	21 38 55 59 	50, 683 84, 748 47, 116 53, 519 184, 593 129, 318	7 78, 846 8 152, 681 6 113, 767 9 138, 565 8 407, 454 5 249, 467	13, 048 30, 068 7 29, 326 38, 303 118, 985 7 73, 206	12, 371 26, 668 3 23, 912 3 26, 109 71, 712 3 38, 568	6, 143 20, 268 17, 735 24, 052 73, 220 48, 678
100-250 250-500 500-1,000 1.000-5.000	4, 870 2, 690 1, 918 1, 968 324 279	280, 985 322, 944 416, 631 1, 189, 966 510, 074	2, 245 3, 671 3, 900 4, 169 1, 543 1, 899 8, 154	110, 214 303, 570 324, 416 389, 840 840, 324 381, 751 489, 066	257, 048 788, 562 950, 937 1, 345, 958 4, 147, 831 2, 252, 288	5 45, 29 122, 600 7 116, 603 115, 499 296, 784 5 162, 183 477, 519	33, 20 101, 86 114, 46 151, 16 4 343, 36 1 198, 36 9 362, 69	8 11, 01; 9 37, 01; 7 40, 36; 8 63, 45; 4 167, 16; 9 86, 68; 3 357, 886	109, 63 278, 40 3 284, 15 5 390, 01 1, 177, 62 635, 08 1, 013, 15	28, 02 5 90, 08 9 130, 08 3 209, 88 4 813, 78 4 493, 08 4 1, 458, 58	21 38 55 59	50, 683 84, 748 47, 116 53, 519 184, 593 129, 315 433, 494	7 78, 846 8 152, 681 6 113, 767 9 138, 565 8 407, 454 5 249, 467 1 709, 392	0 13, 048 30, 068 7 29, 326 5 38, 303 118, 985 73, 206 2 208, 571	12, 371 26, 668 3 23, 912 26, 109 71, 712 38, 568 103, 901	6, 143 20, 268 17, 735 24, 052 73, 220 48, 678 128, 182

FINANCE: BANKING, INSURANCE, REAL ESTATE, HOLDING COMPANIES, STOCK AND BOND BROKERS, ETC.—RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

				[1	[1	T	[T		1	
Under 50	28, 805	129, 876			594, 514					7 332, 589			183, 002	7 85, 809	7 89, 200	4, 638
50-100	12, 736													7 37, 389	7 39, 550	2, 204
100-250	15, 630			1, 408, 523								62, 271				7, 209
250-500	9, 355			1, 439, 875							.	58, 408				
500-1,000		1, 245, 494		1, 509, 751					1, 013, 450			52, 917				
1,000-5,000	6, 633	4, 025, 403	30, 063	2, 962, 852	13, 881, 279	1, 259, 967	1,869,330	704, 781	2, 808, 630	909, 547		373, 996			7 322, 720	67, 908
5,000-10,000	1,003	2, 056, 642	2, 189	938, 620	6, 975, 218	545, 890	846, 860	419, 801	1, 357, 460	580, 144	l	100, 737	352, 818	⁷ 80, 223	7 166, 159	41,071
10,000-50,000	808	4, 896, 602			16, 554, 447							245, 586	814, 102	⁷ 15, 349	7 262, 160	131, 723
50,000 and over	270	14, 518, 512	446	1, 172, 886	56, 759, 896	1, 057, 814	4, 114, 275	2, 594, 124	6, 612, 088	5, 024, 697		110, 022	2, 025, 896	355, 787	7 357, 787	316, 695
									ļ							
Total	81, 447	28, 428, 326	105, 629	11, 559, 195	105, 884, 958	5, 655, 085	11, 545, 563	5, 396, 469	16, 920, 512	7, 844, 791		1, 194, 477	5, 097, 962	⁷ 289, 199	71,537,576	594, 344
											1					

NATURE OF BUSINESS NOT GIVEN-RETURNS SHOWING NET INCOME

Under 50	73 9 13 6 6 6 6 5	542 222 480 578 725	2 30 2 13 157	183 234 597 809 465	844 649 1, 837 1, 934 4, 105	212 613	85 45 43 9	50	316 1, 337 3, 530 2, 055	57 370 7 1, 874 1, 071	 175 92 5	249 121 106 248 237	69 14 65 159 141	69 13 59 131 93	71 237 841
10,000-50,000. 50,000 and over Classes grouped	113	6, 335 8, 882	1, 441 1, 645	7, 151	15, 649 25, 019	13, 048		168	1, 330		 272	551 1, 512	316	288 654	143

NATURE OF BUSINESS NOT GIVEN—RETURNS SHOWING NO NET INCOME

Under 50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000 6. 5,000-10,000 6.	511 70 70 15 18 6 11 6 2	 91 243 88 37	1, 240 925	7, 065 4, 841 11, 042 4, 823 12, 684	17, 257 4, 175 619 3, 899		2, 202	2, 460 9, 771	7 21, 063 7 14, 728 7 32 7 5, 132	 	163 53 73	7 356 7 129 7 308	7 344 7 369 7 140 7 327	7
50,000 and over Classes grouped	697		11, 315	33, 290 73, 745	12, 242	223	181	6, 894	3, 454		116	⁷ 536	7 536	

Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.
 Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor.
 Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor.
 Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.
 Compiled net profit or net loss is total compiled receipts less compiled deductions.
 Classes grouped to conceal data reported and identity of corporation.
 Deficit or compiled net loss.

Table 7 (Table 18, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by major industrial groups, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax ¹

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-5]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no 1	net incom e
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income 3	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	1	AGRI	CULTURE	AND RE	LATED	INDUS'	TRIES	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
1925	10, 688 9, 905 10, 265 10, 615 10, 961 11, 014 10, 977	4, 662 4, 698 4, 445 4, 504 4, 407 3, 475 2, 546 1, 153	572, 215 615, 141 633, 782 636, 641 636, 227 363, 718 215, 096 133, 034	76, 862 70, 812 78, 577 80, 476 72, 801 40, 484 14, 002 5, 979	8, 604 8, 175 6 9, 054 8, 217 6, 783 4, 041 1, 201 675		5, 242 5, 990 4, 460 4, 679 5, 023 6, 431 7, 354 8, 615	221, 340 249, 342 188, 645 188, 503 246, 280 307, 122 276, 868 235, 120 217, 990	59, 216 55, 666 61, 893 50, 093 53, 543 86, 370 98, 778 94, 962
1933	10, 490 10, 526	1, 443 1, 995	178, 040 296, 513	14, 894 30, 572	2, 102 4, 198	55 80	7, 818 7, 331	217, 090 241, 135	60, 212 85, 272
			MININ	G AND	QUARRY	ING			
1925	19, 252 18, 519 18, 793 18, 261 17, 635 17, 580	5, 488 6, 006 5, 232 5, 183 5, 211 4, 700 3, 832 2, 868 2, 982 4, 460	3, 711, 407 3, 207, 942 2, 259, 850 2, 501, 468 3, 031, 405 1, 611, 228 732, 720 537, 578 555, 679 1, 161, 775	453, 660 455, 798 276, 369 332, 679 430, 527 194, 118 71, 154 62, 675 71, 686 156, 063	55, 049 57, 308 34, 898 36, 751 44, 319 21, 474 7, 211 7, 445 9, 921 21, 456	280 428	13, 675 13, 246 7, 804 7, 750 7, 291 7, 533 8, 291 9, 178 8, 866 9, 083	1, 213, 439 1, 339, 759 1, 576, 986 1, 087, 745 1, 016, 184 1, 388, 238 1, 496, 571 1, 127, 297 1, 402, 596 1, 375, 939	209, 957 183, 474 246, 924 207, 416 198, 440 238, 459 325, 963 287, 042 248, 127 165, 373
		y.	MANU	FACTURI	NG-TO	ΓAL		·	
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933 1934	93, 415 95, 777 96, 525 95, 098 93, 109 91, 849	54, 137 55, 094 53, 620 55, 007 55, 488 40, 641 30, 270 14, 985 26, 354 34, 023	52, 924, 994 52, 921, 594 50, 134, 091 57, 458, 959 59, 879, 759 6 38, 804, 235 20, 974, 409 12, 696, 792 22, 289, 285 27, 442, 910	4, 383, 357 4, 494, 790 3, 938, 647 4, 744, 261 5, 216, 016 2, 757, 508 1, 464, 619 757, 501 1, 460, 632 1, 966, 104	546, 741 584, 507 6 507, 735 544, 937 544, 053 316, 992 165, 311 99, 949 203, 713 262, 466	3, 649 3, 477	34, 537 38, 150 36, 196 36, 566 36, 742 50, 863 58, 815 72, 931 62, 295 57, 269	7, 904, 788 9, 573, 203 13, 588, 788 9, 813, 970 12, 252, 285 19, 846, 043 23, 058, 882 19, 279, 691 12, 861, 490 13, 650, 040	682, 255 786, 687 851, 053 833, 735 810, 244 1, 639, 844 2, 287, 589 2, 563, 855 1, 256, 586 926, 189
	MA	NUFAC	TURING-	FOOD AN	D KIND	RED P	RODUC	TS 7	
1925 ⁶	15, 008 15, 079 14, 965 15, 124 14, 847 14, 632	9, 303 8, 950 8, 971 8, 844 9, 045 7, 897 6, 466 3, 629 4, 247 5, 374	11, 476, 443 10, 553, 213 8, 524, 432 11, 551, 431 9, 641, 960 7, 637, 397 5, 365, 954 4, 430, 704 5, 536, 520 6, 973, 816	533, 472 475, 074 461, 046 518, 092 540, 186 436, 451 326, 910 199, 387 264, 606 302, 328	66, 587 61, 429 59, 049 58, 391 56, 309 49, 869 36, 823 25, 201 36, 906 41, 768	631 642	5, 419 6, 058 5, 461 5, 405 5, 380 6, 328 7, 524 10, 653 7, 934 7, 150	1, 923, 747 1, 762, 832 4, 188, 757 1, 497, 403 3, 854, 726 4, 377, 338 3, 988, 705 2, 858, 953 1, 748, 880 1, 371, 310	91, 512 93, 052 105, 716 77, 818 87, 721 128, 498 203, 478 207, 211 86, 428 51, 130
MANUFAC	TURING	3—LIQU	ORS AND	BEVERA	GES (ALC	оногі	CAND	NONALCO	HOLIC)
1933 1934	2, 969 3, 283	898 1,368	484, 487 851, 516	73, 363 97, 648	10, 199 13, 427	397 402	1, 648 1, 540	107, 420 207, 905	14, 175 15, 723

Table 7 (Table 18, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934 by major industrial groups, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax 1—Continued

[Money fig	gures in	thousands	of	dollars]
------------	----------	-----------	----	----------

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no	net income
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
		MAI	NUFACTU	RING-TO	BACCO I	PRODU	CTS		
925 •									
926	497	289	1, 124, 966 1, 177, 777	117, 366	15, 718		208	35, 051	2, 25
927	445	261	1, 177, 777	124,775	16, 745		169	23, 525	2, 47 2, 14
928 929	439 437	238 243	1, 180, 870	121,678	14, 548		181 177	19, 122	2, 14 4, 94
930	405	195	1, 220, 530 1, 094, 278	132, 682 143, 788	14, 554 17, 216		197	50, 436 75, 799	6, 65
931	379	155	1 086 321	142 494	17, 066		211	97, 515	5, 60
932	382	114	978, 533 837, 949 1, 023, 243	138, 399 65, 224	19, 061		256	61, 188 105, 158	5, 15 14, 89
933	405	122	837, 949	65, 224	8, 998 13, 241	8	261	105, 158	14, 89
934	405	131	1, 023, 243	96, 296	13, 241	5	245	36, 383	2, 08
	MA	NUFAC	TURING-	TEXTILE	S AND T	HEIR I	PRODU	CTS	
925	12, 271	7, 504	6, 108, Q60	413, 115	48, 815		4, 767	1, 608, 402	114, 772
926	13, 436	7, 504 7, 708	5, 354, 117 6, 285, 401 5, 702, 986	314, 649 417, 484 351, 850	39, 829		5, 728	2, 398, 617 1, 522, 068 2, 134, 380 2, 330, 931	195, 16
927	13,851	8,240	6, 285, 401	417, 484	50, 341		5, 343	1, 522, 068	120, 81- 155, 72
928	14,508	8,076	5, 702, 986	351,850	39, 355		6, 098	2, 134, 380	155, 72
929 930	14,629 14,692	8, 104 5, 678	5, 902, 287	323, 974 105, 610	33, 197 11, 122		6, 236 8, 753	2, 330, 931 3, 774, 112	163, 06 369, 69
931	14 655	4,875	2, 642, 402 2, 132, 182 1, 211, 516 3, 183, 894	77 830	7, 351		9, 503	3 168 902	342 53
932	14, 637	2, 467	1, 211, 516	41.052	5, 047		11, 872	3, 168, 902 2, 672, 436 1, 468, 280	342, 53 332, 24
933	15, 351	2, 467 5, 664	3, 183, 894	203, 733	28,010	764	9, 310	1, 468, 280	96, 83
933 9 34	14, 637 15, 351 15, 775	5, 682	3, 040, 608	41, 052 203, 733 141, 702	19, 505	291	11,872 9,310 9,741	2, 209, 651	124, 91
	MAN	UFACT	URING-L	EATHER	AND ITS	S MANU	JFACTI	URES	
925	2 359	1,373	1, 175, 340	76, 023	9, 169		986	330 191	28, 898
926	2, 491	1.413	1, 234, 232	73, 859	9, 358		1, 078	427, 012	27, 43
927	2, 411	1,448	1, 175, 340 1, 234, 232 1, 415, 200	73, 859 99, 072	9, 358 12, 229		903	339, 191 427, 012 316, 039	27, 43 21, 70
928	2, 359 2, 491 2, 411 2, 440	1.362	1, 325, 306	77, 425	8,892		1,015	396 514	28, 03
929	2, 477	1,349 894	1, 258, 771	76, 803	8, 109		1,084	482, 402	36, 36
930 931	2,401	754	733, 941 545, 388	38, 691 30, 091	4, 389 3, 340		1, 515 1, 487	655, 143 564, 469	64, 12 64, 73
932	2, 294 2, 331 2, 407	468	371, 438	18, 687	2, 404		1,816	469, 593	61, 79
933	2, 407	973	727, 024	47, 586	6, 582	167	1,365	261, 236	20, 76
934	2, 422	976	709, 035	36, 468	5, 018	66	1,368	324, 117	17, 54
	1	MA	NUFACTU	RINGRI	JBBER F	PRODUC	OTS		
925	638	349	1, 373, 495	122, 966	15, 412		289	95, 862	13, 94
926	680	339	1, 147, 455	37, 501 70, 253	4.867		341	452, 909 407, 272	24, 76
9 27 9 28	655	335	1, 039, 525	70, 253	8, 849		284	407, 272	19, 35
928 929	723 638	349	932, 048 916, 242	44, 645 56, 324	5, 149		331	454, 122 510, 967	45, 98
930	607	311 227	559, 565	12, 242	6, 055 1, 336		303 354	540, 748	39, 19 63, 87
31	552	174	401, 314	14, 004	1, 371		361	415 317	38, 15
932	544	96	127, 581	2, 779	301		426	415, 317 507, 935	41, 51
933	572	215	127, 581 300, 313 362, 756	13, 339	1,867	52	330	418, 134 393, 498	10, 00
934	650	267	362, 756	14, 976	2, 094	20	340	393, 498	10, 56
		MA	NUFACTU	RING-F	OREST P	RODUC	CTS		
925	7, 633	4, 657	2, 380, 463	200, 316	24, 667		2, 976	587, 054	53, 110
926	7,862	4, 591	2, 330, 766	172, 972	21, 907		3, 271	738, 045	69, 19
927 928	7,816	4, 178	1, 929, 814	125, 408	15, 612		3, 353	874, 474 780 281	94, 29
920	7, 816 7, 947 7, 869	4, 290 4, 195	2, 052, 903 1, 978, 584	142, 197 135, 612	15, 210 13, 437		3, 367 3, 294	789, 281 816, 194 1, 263, 948	71, 49 68, 49
	7, 501	2, 340	723.630	35, 825	3 591		4,868	1. 263. 948	152, 46
930	,	1 505	220,000	14, 966	1, 379		5, 150	1,014,898	199, 13
929 930 931	6, 954	1,525	332.942						
931 932	6, 954 6, 707	541	332, 942 95, 829	5, 271	666		5, 929	758, 131	212, 38
930 931 932 933 934	6,954		95, 829 407, 146 490, 335	5, 271 22, 745 27, 210	3, 153 3, 743	119 63			212, 38 95, 33 76, 70

Table 7 (Table 18, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934 by major industrial groups, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax 1—Continued

[Money f	figures	in	thousands	of	dollars]
----------	---------	----	-----------	----	----------

	Total		Returns sh	nowing net	Returns	showing no r	et incom		
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income 3	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	М	ANUFA	.CTURING	-PAPER,	PULP, A	ND PR	roudo.	`s	
1925 1926 1927	2 024	1, 288 1, 365 1, 386	1, 260, 563 1, 430, 426 1, 401, 780	111, 186 120, 400 123, 988	14, 04 15, 610 16, 063		€52 €59 642	280, 547 221, 834 267, 600	12, 13 14, 36 13, 61
1927 1928 1929 1930	2, 693 2, 145 2, 113 2, 086	1, 345 1, 406 1, 114 832	1, 374, 722 1, 546, 672 1, 011, 630	118, 590 124, 347 73, 641 37, 472	13, 768 13, 222 8, 475 4, 239		678 673 953	352, 796 249, 444 567, 158	14, 95 19, 89 36, 37
931 932 933 934	2,097	473 993 1, 208	632, 927 291, 719 709, 716 966, 703	16, 600 52, 356 80, 889	2, 237 7, 250 11, 123	169 211	1, 200 1, 582 1, 106 1, 032	639, 142 717, 678 453, 368 347, 752	53, 77 81, 07 36, 09 28, 41
MAN	NUFACT	URING-	-PRINTIN	G, PUBLI	SHING,	AND A	LLIED 1	INDUSTRI	ES
1925	9, 920 10, 545	6, 523 6, 931	1, 988, 485 2, 196, 254	190, 909 203, 507	23, 375 25, 858		3, 397 3, 614	293, 786 351, 190	29, 50 31, 00
926 927 927 928 929 930 931	10, 679 11, 127 11, 569 11, 736 11, 822	6, 931 6, 734 7, 070 7, 331	2, 185, 712 2, 329, 670 2, 468, 283	203, 507 198, 476 243, €50 270, 829 176, 137 115, 795 58, 804	25, 123 27, 310 28, 017		3,629	380, 417 350, 275 402, 692	
930 931 932 933		6, C98 4, 593 2, 155 2, 713	1, 988, 485 2, 196, 254 2, 185, 712 2, 329, 670 2, 468, 283 2, C55, 461 1, 285, 285 888, 484 977, 340 1, 285, 357	176, 137 115, 795 58, 804 71, C79	19, 641 12, 895 7, 795 9, 853	124	5, 271 6, 810 9, 510 8, 886	380, 417 350, 275 402, 692 607, 967 1, 000, 179 900, 273 673, 352 571, 460	34, 10 47, 74 54, 55 77, 86 96, 16 57, 96 64, 16
1934	12, 622	4, 490		117, 465	9, 853 16, 148	201	7,018		64, 15
	MAN	UFACI	URING-C	HEMICAI	JS AND A	ALLIEI	PROD	UCIS	
925 926 927 928	6, 962 7, 286 7, 229 7, 501	3, 951 4, 076 3, 960 4, 231	6, 475, 024 7, 322, 287 6, 799, 331 8, 772, 466	623, 277 785, 155 495, 857 848, 127	78, 393 102, 964 6 64, 767 99, 002		3, 011 3, 210 2, 892 2, 820	590, 301 768, 153 1, 969, 078 778, 526	82, 33 69, 23 110, 36 59, 78
927	7, 505 7, 380 7, 265 7, 443	4, 073 3, 287 2, 797 1, 741	9, 550, 545 6 7, 376, 017 3, 371, 395 2, 761, 691	848, 127 911, 512 534, 077 251, 493 167, 778 272, 909	98, 124 62, 961 29, 409 22, 644		2, 998 3, 727 4, 047 5, 315	737, 016 2, 351, 166 3, 952, 977 3, 696, 099	56, 93 175, 43 318, 80 223, 20
933 934	7, 678 8, 220	2, 458 3, 049	4, 094, 654 3, 322, 986	272, 909 324, 031	38, 240 44, 627	535 543	4, 696 4, 559	3, 050, 055 2, 191, 132 3, 325, 574	189, 21 178, 54
	MAN	UFACT	URING-87	TONE, CL	AY, ANI	GLAS	s prod	UCTS	
925	4, 454 4, 606 4, 682	2,753 2,762 2,587	1, 345, 032 1, 500, 051	181, 547 195, 166 157, 263 172, 007	22, 853 25, 542 20, 564		1, 701 1, 844 1, 876	156, 780 164, 876 243, 350	17, 8- 22, 1 28, 3
925 926 927 928 929 930	4, 852 4, 816 4, 724	2, 676 2, 572 1, 805	1, 357, 109 1, 394, 910 1, 389, 486 1, 027, 449 483, 373	172, 007 163, 646 92, 812 41, 683	19,770 17,268 10,487		1, 933 1, 989 2, 713	259, 911 265, 730 382, 407	32, 5 33, 4: 53, 3
931 932 933	4,200	1, 149 424 642	483, 373 184, 622 428, 580	41, 683 13, 270 34, 762	4, 614 1, 760 4, 826	86	3, 076 3, 685 3, 186	558, 054 485, 794 290, 009	79, 1 110, 0 55, 6

Table 7 (Table 18, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934 by major industrial groups, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax 1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no	net incom
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	<u> </u>	MANUI	FACTURIN	G-META	L AND 1	ITS PRO	DUCTS	3	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
925	21, 529	12, 760	17, 335, 348 16, 661, 793 16, 256, 966 18, 847, 896	1, 756, 753	221,973		8, 769	1, 774, 904	201, 44
926	20,054	11, 989	16, 661, 793	1, 803, 444 1, 501, 274 1, 910, 004	237, 077 6 198, 066		8,065	1, 792, 082 2, 928, 373 2, 326, 047	192, 57 241, 30
927 928	20, 379	11, 412 12, 252	16, 256, 966	1, 501, 274	6 198, 066		8, 227	2, 928, 373	241, 30
928	20, 695	12, 252	18, 847, 896	1, 910, 004	221, 838		7, 479	2, 326, 047	254, 9
29	21, 047	12, 864	22, 125, 989 12, 790, 300 4, 652, 191 1, 031, 353 4, 059, 694	2, 291, 767 1, 003, 020 355, 221	236, 494		7, 292	1, 966, 590	176, 11
330	20, 831 19, 700	8, 188 4, 744	4 652 101	355 221	116, 149 40, 624		11,904 14,174	4, 407, 595 6, 861, 806 5, 475, 380 4, 077, 533	400, 37 760, 95 1, 054, 56 494, 12
929 930 931 932	18, 877	1, 917	1, 031, 353	71, 098	9, 558		16, 191	5, 475, 380	1, 054, 56
933	18, 877 19, 080	4, 291	4, 059, 694	287, 192	9, 558 40, 565	377	13, 849	4, 077, 533	494, 12
934	20, 353	6, 844	7, 040, 389	71, 098 287, 192 535, 147	73, 627	788	12, 437	3, 588, 045	278, 42
M	ANUFAC	TURIN	G-MANU	FACTURI	NG NOT	ELSEV	HERE	CLASSIFII	ED
095	6 246	3, 676	9 006 749	172 709	21 404		9 570	204 915	26.72
925 926	6, 246 8, 755	4, 681	2, 006, 742 2, 066, 035 1, 761, 042 1, 993, 751 1, 880, 411	173, 792 195, 637 163, 752 195, 969	21, 494 24, 349		2, 570 4, 074	304, 215 460, 600	36, 73 45, 48 58, 26
927 928 929	8, 106	4, 108	1, 761, 042	163, 752	20, 326		3, 417	467, 835	58, 26
928	8, 487	4, 274	1, 993, 751	195, 999	20, 326 21, 702		3, 556	467, 835 455, 592	56, 17
929	8, 269	3, 995	1, 880, 411	1 188, 335	19, 267 11, 756		3, 477	585, 157	82, 28
930 931 932	7, 801	2,918		105, 216	11, 756		4, 280	841, 663	134, 44
931	8, 352	2, 206	685, 136	56, 661	6, 201		5, 272	796, 917 676, 232	143, 37
934 092	7, 495 7, 278	960 1,500	541 009	24,377	3, 273 7, 262	220	5,696	480 179	25, 30
933 934	6, 408	1, 825	685, 136 323, 322 541, 968 772, 573	24, 377 51, 736 70, 192	9, 653	184	4, 842 3, 767	480, 173 433, 320	143, 37 138, 36 85, 17 41, 45
	1		(CONSTRU	CTION	1,	1	<u> </u>	
925	15, 338	9, 701	1, 914, 494	156, 491	17, 581		5, 637	391, 555	43, 34
926	16, 770	10,075	2, 287, 548	162, 569	19, 146		6,695	528, 548	53, 62
927	17,609	10,071	2, 413, 184	171, 160	20, 078		6, 281	642, 410	59, 41
928	17, 609 18, 770 19, 947	10, 179 10, 462	2, 413, 184 2, 317, 186 2, 291, 630	171, 160 170, 906 178, 376	17, 175 16, 519		7, 117 7, 896	642, 410 661, 089 790, 254	71, 36 70, 06
930	20, 035	8 871	2, 174, 156	150, 548	15, 210		9, 674	867, 972	82. 48
931	19, 806	8, 871 6, 457	1, 213, 234	80, 699	15, 210 7, 625		11, 675	1, 022, 318	82, 48 111, 04
	19, 046 18, 235 17, 751	2, 115 2, 140	468, 670	30, 691	J 3. 539		15, 204	1, 022, 318 969, 246	141, 06 91, 44 66, 48
933 934	18, 235	2, 140	374, 434 574, 874	23, 638	3, 268 4, 358	173	14, 112	704, 115 681, 905	91, 44
934	17, 751	3, 353	574, 874	31, 694	4, 358	190	12, 588	681, 905	66, 48
	Т	RANSP	ORTATION	AND OT	HER PU	BLIC U	TILITI	ES	
925	23, 613	14, 862	10, 952, 508	1, 468, 693	186, 314		8, 751	928, 339	134, 74
926 927 928 929	25, 100	15, 444	13, 518, 653	1, 723, 399 1, 588, 880	228, 663		9,656	1, 245, 631 2, 295, 882	120, 17
927	22,912	13, 855	12, 844, 090	1, 588, 880	1-210,878		6,982	2, 295, 882	197, 47 173, 17
928	23, 662	13, 882 13, 614	14, 263, 775 15, 584, 026	1, 813, 088 2, 092, 654	211, 681 222, 483		7, 422 7, 994	1, 538, 135 1, 500, 004	173, 1
929	23, 951 23, 662	13, 614	15, 584, 026	2, 092, 654	222, 483		7,994	1,500,004	190, 69 333, 59
930	23, 715	10, 933	12, 935, 569 6, 800, 951	1, 334, 229 902, 635	156, 573 105, 585		9, 522 10, 622	3, 060, 013 6, 584, 845	805 9
931 932	24, 038	6, 700	4, 851, 474	708 168	98 118		14, 981	6, 387, 532	605, 2- 839, 0
933	24, 302	7, 429	4, 782, 688	657, 272	98, 118 92, 258	324	14, 349	5, 826, 561	743, 1
934	28, 537	9, 808	4, 782, 688 5, 895, 192	708, 168 657, 272 919, 298	126, 600	324 329	15, 571	5, 215, 038	743, 11 642, 89
*				TRAI	ÞΕ	·			
925	109, 588	71, 910	32, 617, 032	1, 254, 046	145, 350	1	37, 678	7, 229, 906 7, 478, 473 7, 430, 840	287, 50
926	112, 705	71, 403	32, 617, 032 33, 459, 063	1, 165, 558	145, 350 140, 523		41, 302	7, 478, 473	287, 50 330, 99
0 9 7	199 360	74, 747	1 33 519 876	1 156 870	137, 352		44, 931	7, 430, 840	269 25
928	129, 766	79, 745	34, 824, 464	1, 246, 862	126, 332		46, 602	L 8 379 620	355, 5 419, 3 738, 6 1, 025, 4 1, 039, 9
929	132, 660	78, 606	34, 824, 464 34, 264, 086 23, 380, 483 16, 109, 402	1, 246, 862 1, 149, 235 651, 097 460, 035	107, 149 64, 166 45, 708 30, 644		50, 483 71, 746 86, 799 111, 363	9, 230, 447 13, 828, 241 14, 484, 044	728 6
JOU	134, 769 136, 520	59, 741 46, 049 20, 951	16, 100, 409	460 035	45 709		86.700	14 484 044	1.025.4
331		10,010	1 10, 100, 104	1 200,000	1 20,100	1	00, 100	42, 202, 034	1,040,1
931	135, 977	20, 951	9, 329, 422	234. 674	30.644	l	1111,363	13,804.005	1.039:0
928 929 930 931 932	135, 977 137, 858	20, 951 39, 275	9, 329, 422 14, 976, 095	234, 674 435, 820	30, 644 60, 438 92, 200	1, 751	93, 621	13, 804, 005 9, 222, 849	1, 039, 9 476, 1

Table 7 (Table 18, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934 by major industrial groups, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax and excess-profits tax 1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Year	Total num- ber of returns ²	Returns showing net income						Returns showing no net income			
		Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income ³	Deficit		

SERVICE-PROFESSIONAL, AMUSEMENTS, HOTELS, ETC.

1925	28, 981	16, 571	2, 283, 168	246, 426	28, 467		12, 410	556, 185	72, 226
1926	32, 257	17, 755	2, 628, 040	260, 981	31, 040		14, 502	732, 272	103, 772
1927	34, 193	18, 287	2, 680, 916	244, 464	28, 626		12, 859	906, 079	117, 065
1928	36, 829	19,008	2, 784, 161	254, 186	25, 501		14, 518	1, 043, 450	126, 709
1929	39, 642	20,230	3, 051, 820	314, 426	29, 632		15, 737	1, 140, 089	154, 215
1930	42, 064	18,741	2, 757, 401	234, 227	23, 705		19, 472	1, 407, 466	179, 230
1931	42, 406	15,637	1, 698, 877	117, 925	11, 081		22, 588	1, 980, 348	241, 288
1932 1933 1934	47, 568 47, 843 50, 989	7, 140 7, 566 11, 194	910, 255 868, 980 1, 561, 845	64, 392 60, 982 107, 807	6 8, 396 8, 478 14, 863	239 348	36, 142 35, 419 34, 718	2, 181, 586 1, 952, 228 1, 812, 431	480, 481 378, 023 283, 406

FINANCE-BANKING, INSURANCE, REAL ESTATE, HOLDING COMPANIES, STOCK AND BOND BROKERS, ETC.

		i)					I	
1925	115, 947	73, 246	8, 503, 186	1, 523, 823	179, 949		42, 701	6 2, 013, 582	56, 219
1926		76, 819	9, 356, 744	1, 336, 893	160, 215		53, 614	2, 942, 936	528, 032
1927	137, 425	78, 100	10, 797, 010	1, 522, 834	181, 706		44, 582	2, 407, 046	566, 177
1928	145, 433	80, 315	6 12,556, 460	1, 971, 343	213, 238		48, 824	6 2, 677, 838	566, 199
1929	150, 588	80, 260	10, 872, 951	2, 197, 539	222, 403		53, 677	4, 786, 459	1,008.827
1930	153, 182	72, 102	7, 519, 508	1,064,816	109, 455	l	64, 477	5, 777, 697	1, 566, 677
1931	152, 920	59, 129	4, 293, 852	570, 502	55, 166		75, 434	6, 535, 974	2, 256, 843
1932	143, 805	26, 395	2, 778, 019	287, 992	36, 576		98, 725	5, 378, 896	2, 335, 500
1933	142, 942	22, 369	2, 725, 266	260, 569	35, 848	504	99, 314	4, 695, 482	2, 273, 806
1934	147, 277	27, 257	3, 036, 267	452, 414	62, 108	742	98, 839	4, 868, 813	1, 657, 190
					· ·		1		

NATURE OF BUSINESS NOT GIVEN

1925	13, 544 14, 871 18, 693 16, 597 17, 247 21, 330 19, 334 18, 158 11, 511	840 1, 492 960 1, 152 1, 040 1, 045 339 228	15, 197 12, 494 2, 719 1, 899	2, 604 4, 143 3, 940 2, 312 1, 786 1, 796 1, 041 479	135 67	2	13, 544 14, 031 1, 731 1, 350 1, 748 1, 898 2, 228 2, 099 1, 262	17, 572 37, 336 21, 689 25, 715 17, 773 24, 354 12, 403 7, 643	1, 956 6, 287 9, 398 6, 920 8, 703 12, 303 18, 724 14, 813 5, 838
1933	11, 511 12, 458	228 188	1, 899 2, 071	479 908	67 125	2 2	1, 262 1, 251	7, 643 3, 546	5, 838 5, 058

¹ Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209-213.
¹ Includes returns showing no income data—inactive corporations.
³ Gross income corresponds to total income as reported on face of return, plus the "Cost of goods sold" and "Cost of other operations." For 1934, interest received on Liberty bonds, etc., has been deducted from gross income so that gross income will include the same items as in prior years.
⁴ The excess-profits tax for 1933 became effective June 30, 1933, under the tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act. Under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934, a small amount of excess-profits tax for 1934 appears on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1 (d), Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")
⁵ Prior to 1927, returns showing no income data—inactive corporations—were included with returns showing no net income.

⁵ Prior to 1927, returns snowing no income data—mactive of products.

for no net income.

for Revised. The revised figures for 1925 apply to Statistics of Income for 1925, table 11, p. 118, "Stock and bond brokers", and table 14, p. 149, "Illinois." For revised figures for 1927, see Statistics of Income for 1928, p. 329; for revised figures for 1928, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 29; for revised figures for 1930, see Statistics of Income for 1931, pp. 32, 33; for revised figures for 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

Liquors and baverages included in "Food and kindred products" prior to 1932.

for location in the state of t

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, not income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax 1

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-5]

	Total		Returns s	showing net	income		Returns	showing no	net income
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income *	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income 3	Deficit
				ALABA	MA				
1925	4, 383 4, 656 4, 473 4, 477 4, 299 4, 065	2, 569 2, 618 2, 697 2, 619 2 310 1, 772 1, 380 607	547, 133 547, 389 519, 012 500, 374 454, 089 249, 927 134, 244 50, 683	42, 930 40, 662 35, 667 31, 251 29, 039 12, 394 6, 049 2, 200	4, 979 4, 861 4, 172 3, 055 2, 643 1, 048 412 247		1, 367 1, 515 1, 313 1, 608 1, 767 2, 261 2, 370 2, 953	108, 525 123, 285 138, 880 161, 097 176, 391 276, 462 244, 801 232, 078	8, 288 9, 950 9, 353 10, 519 16, 472 25, 020 29, 845 39, 662
1933 1934	3, 827 3, 797	916 1, 295	175, 190 241, 750	8, 140 10, 940	1, 105 1, 504	84 64	2,416 2,098	160, 538 181, 338	21, 503 18, 497
			''	ALAS	KA	<u> </u>	<u></u>		
1925	159 156 174 175 182 170 181 165 170 203	72 73 94 94 109 92 71 42 61 62	6, 955 7, 283 7, 378 7, 459 8, 618 6, 284 4, 368 2, 949 4, 214 4, 458	572 674 678 642 837 503 333 261 337 556	60 66 63 46 46 35 18 24 46 76	6 6	87 83 48 51 46 55 86 92 87	1, 082 1, 901 1, 441 2, 189 1, 857 2, 808 3, 488 2, 770 2, 762 3, 103	371 380 537 407 252 448 562 637 374 372
	·	<u></u>		ARIZO	NA		<u>'</u>		
1925	I, 451 1, 505 1, 556 1, 734 1, 953 1, 932 1, 893 1, 773 1, 674 1, 586	593 619 668 766 822 629 506 217 240 389	114, 245 119, 900 129, 187 126, 210 161, 623 69, 571 48, 834 19, 672 29, 778 66, 782	7, 679 8, 813 7, 780 9, 811 18, 992 4, 756 2, 522 868 1, 110 3, 279	814 1,011 865 936 1,732 421 194 106 153 451	221	858 886 403 430 510 725 807 1,026 934 809	26, 645 29, 687 30, 332 45, 425 36, 616 74, 354 56, 072 52, 256 42, 635 37, 302	10, 810 5, 154 6, 344 8, 923 19, 259 9, 771 14, 970 11, 863 11, 751 5, 195
		(<u> </u>		ARKAN	SAS	·			
1925	2, 684 2, 634 2, 660 2, 760 2, 629 2, 624 2, 471 2, 306 2, 325 2, 366	1 823 1,701 1,626 1,707 1,680 1,140 899 499 740 907	323, 778 302, 332 272, 395 308, 073 304, 739 146, 506 69, 487 40, 052 87, 868 133, 632	22, 899 18, 597 16, 260 17, 064 17, 566 6, 755 3, 946 1, 901 3, 981 6, 002	2, 515 2, 123 1, 811 1, 573 1, 451 571 303 231 545 825	28 34	861 933 884 889 795 1,309 1,415 1,679 1,460 1,336	70, 654 91, 264 113, 687 107, 435 74, 138 160, 302 144, 318 116, 265 82, 670 82, 131	5, 549 10, 397 12, 107 9, 449 6, 140 19, 094 15, 926 14, 579 8, 949 6, 576
				CALIFOI	RNIA				
1925	20, 263 21, 258 22, 162 22, 754 23, 206 23, 836 23, 738 24, 109 23, 700 25, 106	10, 539 10, 901 11, 098 11, 438 11, 316 9, 517 7, 465 4, 419 5, 264 7, 112	4, 809, 533 5, 217, 404 5, 349, 887 6, 110, 532 5, 274, 664 3, 733, 015 2, 441, 374 1, 595, 538 2, 052, 632 2, 790, 876	417, 826 426, 839 447, 750 552, 289 512, 923 324, 584 190, 149 139, 578 156, 571 228, 691	50, 534 54, 319 56, 530 62, 038 52, 960 36, 114 20, 714 18, 703 21, 644 31, 449	335 382	9, 724 10, 357 8, 494 8, 747 9, 243 11, 538 13, 569 16, 590 15, 352 14, 675	966, 481 1, 344, 545 1, 271, 408 1, 165, 995 1, 507, 059 2, 333, 480 2, 390, 597 2, 221, 271 1, 709, 344 1, 714, 305	119, 912 138, 640 146, 149 145, 859 147, 570 253, 757 395, 716 385, 853 269, 910 227, 880

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax!—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns showing no net income			
Year	num- ber of returns?	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit	
		·		COLORA	DO	·				
1925	6, 399 6, 580	2, 983 3, 071	821, 002 853, 412 745, 766	60, 448 62, 872 47, 758	7, 077 7, 812 5, 647		3, 416 3, 509	161, 788 182, 200 292, 356	26, 159 21, 333	
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933	6, 863	3, 144	745, 766	47, 758	5, 647		2, 291	292, 356	27, 717	
1928	7, 134	3, 342		59, 932	6, 109		2, 313		17, 103	
1929	7,317	3, 311	738, 303	52, 349	5, 084		1 2 474 1	200, 275	21, 166	
1930	7, 257 7, 205	2, 941 2, 359	738, 303 446, 515 284, 298 191, 260	30, 943 18, 442	3, 090 1, 786		2, 845 3, 355	200, 275 364, 806 366, 998 322, 205 233, 981	28, 737 40, 802	
1932	6, 952	980	191, 260	18, 442 14, 283	1, 775		4, 564	322, 205	42, 849	
1933	6, 705	1,098	1 296, 951	25, 825	3, 557	75	4, 251	233, 981	33, 471	
1934	6, 824	1, 559	385, 308	32, 985	4, 536	103	3, 851	203, 087	24, 175	
				CONNECT	ricut					
1925	5, 958	3, 720	1, 578, 481 1, 683, 367 1, 785, 784	125, 093 124, 029	14, 887		2, 238 2, 509 2, 283	388, 403 372, 503	30, 544	
1926	6, 280 6, 685	3, 771 3, 935	1, 683, 367	124, 029 136, 992	15, 646 16, 827		2,509		40, 943 27, 109	
1927	7 105	4, 302	1 1 095 190	177 471	19, 570		1 2 326 1	365, 863 378, 205 763, 913 902, 377 905, 173	28, 197	
1929	7, 105 7, 529	4, 558	2, 021, 940 1, 329, 177 851, 783 462, 884	177, 471 199, 914	20, 782		2, 486 3, 742	378, 205	33, 654	
1930	7,955	3, 698	1, 329, 177	84, 911 58, 810	9, 170		3,742	763, 913	80, 185	
1931	8,074	3, 155	851, 783	58, 810	6, 398 4, 752		4,425	902, 377	104, 327	
1932 1 0 33	8, 370 8, 521	1, 381 1, 861	462, 884 663, 841	35, 344 50, 968	4, 752 7, 069	52	6, 418 6, 101	905, 173 754, 143	124, 782 70, 773	
1934	8, 948	2, 385	962, 925	73, 219	10, 073	42	5, 940	711, 228	71, 179	
	<u>'</u>		<u></u>	DELAW	ARE		! -			
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932	1, 376	780	502, 380	60, 931 82, 896	7, 665		596	52, 555	10, 701	
1926	1, 483	811	644, 264	82, 896	10, 815		672	57, 164	13, 485	
1927	1, 553 1, 705 1, 951	845 984	502, 580 644, 264 1, 088, 616 1, 330, 828 1, 674, 632 1, 477, 488	116, 890 189, 783 272, 455 125, 272	15, 548 22, 067		485 471	57, 164 97, 435 105, 179 175, 492	22, 832 9, 440	
1929	1, 703	1,068	1, 650, 626	272, 455	29, 423		583	175, 492	34, 178	
1930	1,951	888	1, 477, 488	125, 272	14, 548		. 811	210.011	45, 823	
1931	1, 966	674	019,002	76. I9X	8, 939		1,003	813.073	93, 408 100, 758	
1932	2, 054 2, 106	445 472	1 585, 193	40,697	5, 573 8, 688	123	1, 341 1, 356	636, 895	100, 758 79, 425	
1933 1934	2, 572	706	530, 692 760, 149	40, 697 62, 291 93, 329	12, 882	145	1, 509	636, 895 658, 344 570, 810	48, 57	
	71 and 2	<u>'</u>	DIST	RICT OF	COLUMI	BIA		1	<u> </u>	
1925	1, 753	1,081	498, 652 596, 909 548, 825	64, 493 65, 987	8, 119		672	51, 489 68, 254 90, 086	4, 51	
1926	1,888	1, 077	596, 909	65, 987	8,671		811	68, 254	7, 73- 8, 73-	
1925	1,988	1,070 1,126	548, 825	55, 838 55, 898	7, 225 6, 423		695 822	102, 795	8,784	
1929	2, 220 2, 329 2, 317 2, 343 2, 378 2, 445	1, 126	567, 465	52, 909	5, 460		872	88, 083	11, 52 10, 23	
1930	2, 317	1, 124	472, 483	30, 330	3, 286		966	121, 339	15, 13,	
1931	2, 343	1,067	283, 554	22, 376	2, 419		1,081	253, 735	25, 13	
1932	2,378	586	174, 424	14, 949	2,064	14	1,590	257, 854	52, 598 29, 87	
1933 1 934		653 918	216, 810 305, 696	13, 914 22, 871	1, 948 3, 145	49	1, 554 1, 428	211, 183 221, 222	22, 19	
		·	·	FLORI	DA		·	·		
1925	8, 284	5, 478	1, 128, 263	192, 320	23, 516		2, 806	106, 024	26, 54	
1920 1027	10,853	4, 702	818, 159	82, 638 32, 218	9, 625 3, 413	1	6, 151 5, 323	343, 417 372, 695	73, 20, 93, 80	
1928	11, 283	4, 702 3, 443 3, 368	818, 159 369, 737 352, 552	27, 064	2 276		5, 177	288, 297	93, 80, 75, 78	
1929	11, 119	3, 489	355, 211	28, 114	2, 276 2, 210		4,778	284, 945	73, 713	
1930	11, 309 11, 028	3, 469	323, 672	20, 922	1, 676		4, 769	254, 971	63, 39	
1931 1039	11,028	3,064	229, 590	12, 806 6, 481	909 784		5,073	263, 357	77, 57	
1002	9, 853 9, 263	1, 204 1, 541	125, 985 186, 016	8, 471	1, 161	48	6, 611 5, 892	262, 469 207, 694	58, 22 44, 54	
	9, 609	2, 332	326, 861	16, 458	2, 265	81	5, 423	208, 254	35, 26	

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showi ng no r	et incom
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Defici t
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	·	GEORG	HA				
925	5, 251	3, 354	986, 022 871, 829 869, 452 875, 584 806, 659 436, 314	67, 081 61, 824 70, 521	7, 700		1, 897	192, 118 228, 593	18, 20
926	5, 281	3, 234	871, 829	61, 824	7, 564		2, 047	228, 593	23, 5
927 928	5, 524	1 3 416	869, 452	70, 521	8, 320		1,839	229 623 1	19, 38
928	5, 620	3, 409	875, 584	64, 903	6, 891		1,922	257, 331	18, 56 20, 48 39, 20
929	5, 738	3,390	806, 659	62, 281	6, 105	J	2,037	293, 278	20, 48
929 930	5, 678	3, 409 3, 390 2, 681	436, 314	64, 903 62, 281 25, 925	6, 891 6, 105 2, 252		1, 922 2, 037 2, 717	257, 331 293, 278 427, 555	39, 20
931	5, 567	1, 980	910, 909	18, 624	1,664		3,308	356, 912	44, 10
932	5, 360	1,032	178, 537 406, 807	10, 767 22, 769	1, 354		4, 046	326, 905	36, 49
133	5, 556	1,825	406, 807	22, 769	3, 115	84	3, 349	202, 500	20, 3
34	5, 900	2, 277	565, 990	35, 126	4, 830	71	3, 153	228, 405	22, 6
	1	1		HAWA	lII	<u>!</u>	<u> </u>		
	ī	ī		1	i	1	1	[
925	594	380	160, 612 190, 085	22, 148	2, 794		214	31, 931 18, 314 32, 904	2, 2
926	633	429	190, 085	25, 849	3, 996		204	18, 314	1, 6
27	686	445	205, 254	28, 349	3, 715		203	32, 904	2, 2
)28)29)30)31)32	734	455	206, 357	33, 456	3, 883		238	1 41 473	1,6
29	784	448	213, 699 184, 486 46, 360	28, 829 22, 836 4, 552	3, 046		291	26, 577 42, 304 52, 942 105, 213	2, 8 4, 7 9, 2 17, 2
30	785	413	184, 486	22, 836	2,643		339	42, 304	4, 7
31	669	295	46, 360	4, 552	447	 -	346	52,942	9. 2
32	780	304	91,062	7, 675	1,031		446	105, 213	17, 2
33	768	329	156, 898	19, 518	2,680	14	413	50, 812	5, 8
34	791	371	176, 327	16, 586	2, 281	9	392	40, 655	4,7
	!		1	!	1	<u>'</u>	<u> </u>	ļ	
				IDAH	10				
925	2, 279 2, 282 2, 270 2, 352 2, 412	1, 012	142, 932	9, 014	975		1, 267	36, 391	5, 1
926 927 928 929	2, 282	991	146, 791	7, 707	837		1, 291	50, 174	6.2
)27	2, 270	1, 014	118, 271	5, 930	587		564	53, 184	5, 9 6, 8
28	2, 352	1, 061	146, 791 118, 271 126, 777	5, 930 6, 645	-535		553	50, 174 53, 184 50, 413 50, 361	6, 8
929	2, 412	1, 054	135 466 1	7, 525	505		593	50, 361	4,6
30	2, 509 2, 509 2, 350	919	86, 771	4, 943	403		790	73, 898	9, 1
31	2, 509	685	56, 223	2.819	226 177		1, 031	65, 211	12, 7
932	2, 350	279	21, 777	1, 258	177		1, 323	58, 949	13, 9
130 131 132 133	2, 295	470	86, 771 56, 223 21, 777 42, 957	2, 046	280	9	1,078	47, 434	6, 4
34	2, 270	593	69, 703	3, 690	502	19	966	73, 898 65, 211 58, 949 47, 434 41, 224	12, 7 13, 9 6, 4 4, 7
	1		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	ILLIN	01S	<u>'</u>	·		
	1 00 000	1 10 707	10.000.100			1	10.470	1 . 0 044 000	
925	27, 239 28, 340	16, 767	13, 362, 186 14, 390, 967 11, 953, 762 15, 684, 946	851, 832 901, 782 836, 588	105, 692		10, 472	6 2, 044, 832	141, 1
920	28, 340	16, 986	11 052 769	901, 782	116, 559		11, 354	4, 200, 404	159, 6 185, 9
921	29, 248	15,913	11,900,702	1, 012, 940	107, 499 115, 222	1	10, 052	4, 704, 380	170
928	30, 444 31, 700	16, 913 17, 668 17, 698	15, 684, 946	1, 012, 940	115, 222		10, 370 11, 339	2, 238, 434 4, 764, 386 5 2, 151, 365 4, 801, 819	179, 7 216, 6
29	31,700	17, 698	0 617 199	586, 664	66, 135		11, 339	6 400 500	407, 1
926 927 928 929	32, 043	13, 389	9, 617, 188 5, 651, 020		28, 520		10,780	6, 402, 522 6, 825, 575	642, 8
		10,489	0,001,020	263, 614 131, 959	15 719		18, 920	5, 758, 658	990 1
32	32, 117	4, 816 7, 259	5 227 020	101, 909	15, 713 30, 722	E-0	24, 144 21, 731		820, 1
)33)34	32, 266	1, 209	3, 565, 964 5, 337, 930 7, 446, 960	220, 079 368, 385	50, 722 50, 791	579 799	21, 731	3, 899, 593 3, 608, 633	548, 0
194	34, 845	9, 974	7, 440, 900	508, 385	90.791	1 499	21, 099	5, 008, 033	448, 4
	_			INDIA	NA				
)25	11, 057	6, 826	1, 745, 149 1, 806, 530	135, 335 129, 344	15, 736 15, 748 13, 965		4, 231	315, 924 371, 233 479, 236	30, 8 33, 4
926 927 928	11, 080	6, 889	1, 806, 530	129, 344	15, 748		4, 191	371, 233	33, 4
927	11, 463 11, 703	6, 821	1. 582, 823	115, 760	13, 965		3, 343	479, 236	41, 8
28	11, 703	6, 836	1, 635, 492 1, 708, 371	122, 603	12, 902 11, 980		3, 561	469 320	34, 9
120	11, 789	6, 881	1, 708, 371	124, 080	11, 980		. 3, 705	502, 243	40, 1
/20/	11,663	5, 289	994, 645 696, 537	71, 467 50, 362	7, 250		5, 186	502, 243 767, 555 730, 309	70,0
30			1 000 707	I EA 269	4, 888	1	6 236	730 309	1 05 9
930	11, 989	4, 395	090, 007	30, 302	7,000		0, 200	100,000	30,0
932	11, 989 11, 649	1,963	292, 504	1 23 414	3, 108		8, 322	702, 416	70, 0 95, 8 120, 2
)29)30)31)32)33	11, 989 11, 649 11, 773 12, 275	4, 395 1, 963 2, 797 3, 646	292, 504 571, 914 894, 540	23, 414 36, 804 60, 116	3, 108 5, 082 8, 275	182 210	6, 236 8, 322 7, 423 6, 965	702, 416 480, 611 507, 688	120, 2 71, 1 61, 6

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	m.t.l		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no r	net income
Year	Total num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income 3	Deficit
	·	· · · · · · · · ·		iow	A	·	,		
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	8, 643 9, 116 9, 125 9, 350 9, 131 9, 011	5, 115 5, 060 5, 087 4, 981 5, 109 4, 558 3, 527 1, 377 1, 987 2, 654	974, 948 1, 054, 994 1, 047, 967 1, 098, 127 1, 089, 544 935, 209 548, 375 286, 327 415, 557 605, 840	56, 259 56, 751 53, 292 65, 510 68, 045 46, 489 25, 509 11, 239 18, 543 27, 254	6, 302 6, 586 6, 154 6, 605 6, 399 4, 574 2, 361 1, 503 2, 584 3, 768	50	3, 933 3, 783 2, 592 2, 507 2, 430 3, 077 4, 119 5, 867 5, 060 4, 409	241, 131 218, 046 248, 748 219, 656 261, 779 337, 932 408, 076 380, 172 253, 415 232, 770	24, 377 25, 033 19, 190 18, 556 20, 436 28, 276 47, 427 56, 170 37, 714 26, 938
	·····	`	·	KANS	AS	·			
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933 1934	5, 280 5, 191 5, 228 5, 192 5, 308 5, 290 4, 997	3, 132 3, 253 3, 122 3, 258 3, 258 3, 278 2, 846 2, 111 1, 064 1, 175 1, 674	951, 362 1, 109, 432 879, 042 1, 061, 843 1, 157, 222 710, 603 460, 740 288, 764 205, 823 493, 750	109, 216 131, 459 99, 606 108, 127 134, 228 74, 321 32, 439 13, 308 8, 203 19, 990	13, 443 17, 017 12, 807 12, 100 13, 952 8, 241 3, 435 1, 819 1, 131 2, 772	33 49	1, 871 2, 027 1, 677 1, 531 1, 517 2, 059 2, 714 3, 453 3, 131 2, 829	159, 086 141, 554 295, 469 178, 640 154, 393 373, 290 281, 443 239, 684 294, 673 218, 757	13, 573 12, 889 29, 873 10, 460 12, 768 29, 352 52, 645 32, 539 21, 944 20, 256
	<u>· </u>	<u>'</u>	,	KENTU	CKY		<u>'</u>	·	
1925	5, 894 5, 668 5, 764 5, 470	3, 418 3, 403 3, 397 3, 457 3, 316 2, 767 2, 158 1, 079 1, 439 1, 892	768, 520 933, 658 938, 354 955, 937 921, 182 612, 278 267, 715 221, 566 349, 713 576, 013	78, 149 77, 203 72, 270 75, 154 77, 305 38, 453 18, 965 14, 468 23, 933 43, 978	9, 418 9, 612 8, 893 8, 172 7, 746 3, 982 1, 843 1, 873 3, 316 6, 047	110	1, 877 2, 076 1, 691 1, 783 1, 799 2, 364 2, 765 3, 586 3, 141 2, 895	128, 198 194, 012 157, 883 172, 661 193, 354 277, 027 433, 143 327, 561 245, 309 267, 830	11, 484 14, 471 14, 494 15, 998 16, 388 74, 308 40, 242 39, 228 29, 766 24, 001
				LOUISI	ANA	_			
1925	5, 657 5, 817 6, 072 6, 314 6, 440 6, 597 6, 675 6, 605	3, 121 3, 277 3, 219 3, 370 3, 424 2, 903 2, 415 1, 197 1, 502 2, 012	1, 002, 632 930, 187 936, 032 1, 040, 909 885, 801 605, 069 419, 649 243, 716 384, 501 527, 452	64, 233 62, 497 56, 861 60, 221 53, 648 33, 217 23, 234 14, 929 21, 130 31, 487	7, 269 7, 554 6, 753 6, 122 4, 980 3, 096 2, 150 1, 765 2, 880 4, 357	83 68	2, 129 2, 380 2, 092 2, 132 2, 242 2, 881 3, 440 4, 681 4, 315 4, 144	273, 482 312, 137 316, 042 295, 881 339, 902 515, 634 480, 865 399, 762 237, 503 262, 124	26, 15; 26, 200 26, 32; 27, 38; 32, 19; 51, 98; 59, 97; 54, 92; 48, 51 30, 56.
				MAIN	E				
1925	3, 443 3, 489 3, 644 3, 720 3, 789 3, 884 3, 771 3, 771	1, 945 1, 972 2, 072 2, 092 2, 095 1, 888 1, 535 713 854 1, 087	478, 669 461, 039 484, 207 494, 436 487, 657 330, 322 210, 292 107, 009 153, 431 191, 809	39, 072 32, 529 36, 574 34, 915 35, 379 24, 232 13, 355 7, 924 10, 119 12, 638	4, 584 3, 909 4, 327 3, 703 3, 432 2, 496 1, 304 1, 084 1, 358 1, 743		1, 519 1, 471 1, 042 1, 133 1, 180 1, 476 1, 806 2, 614 2, 454 2, 313	97, 833 99, 758 108, 635 124, 662 141, 410 265, 180 270, 579 238, 515 189, 082 181, 155	10, 18 10, 46 11, 27 8, 97 20, 79 28, 48 36, 90 49, 71 38, 06 21, 09

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax—Continued

Money	figures	in	thousands	of	dollars]
-------	---------	----	-----------	----	----------

	Total		Returns s	showing net	income		Returns	showing no r	net incom
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income ³	Deficit
	!			MARYL	AND		<u> </u>	<u>'</u> '	
1925 1926 1927 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	5, 922 5, 841 6, 156	3, 090 3, 188 3, 162 3, 144 3, 334 2, 775 2, 255 1, 300 1, 653 2, 187	1, 288, 345 1, 446, 205 1, 355, 004 2, 348, 695 2, 505, 888 2, 114, 349 1, 529, 221 1, 169, 378 1, 260, 465 687, 119	103, 665 118, 166 104, 113 156, 352 165, 645 116, 375 76, 622 56, 117 55, 447 55, 948	12, 753 14, 934 13, 189 17, 573 16, 851 13, 225 8, 736 7, 712 7, 659 7, 581	80 143	2, 371 2, 433 1, 882 2, 067 2, 143 2, 479 2, 932 4, 102 3, 836 3, 735	220, 659 211, 857 222, 922 236, 587 279, 430 420, 191 719, 472 703, 194 577, 569 593, 365	19, 34 20, 39 36, 98 25, 82 30, 01 57, 80 101, 81 135, 24 102, 82 70, 41
			M	IASSACHU	USETTS	!	<u> </u>		
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933 1934	16, 444 17, 639 18, 182 18, 851 19, 401 20, 070 19, 678 20, 016 19, 972 21, 206	9, 631 9, 752 9, 907 10, 266 10, 383 8, 316 6, 727 3, 476 5, 174 6, 188	5, 436, 777 5, 288, 583 575, 411 6 5, 354, 347 5, 739, 160 3, 506, 843 2, 581, 451 1, 616, 236 2, 492, 028 2, 557, 615	407, 769 382, 932 399, 971 412, 506 444, 570 249, 537 170, 983 106, 685 177, 754 177, 365	49, 269 48, 500 49, 174 45, 923 44, 620 27, 837 18, 985 14, 217 24, 779 24, 388	451 216	6, 813 7, 887 7, 149 7, 501 7, 980 10, 546 11, 948 15, 396 13, 720 13, 622	1, 315, 091 1, 794, 802 1, 366, 466 1, 849, 502 1, 914, 633 2, 729, 715 2, 410, 170 2, 231, 981 1, 616, 687 1, 872, 967	112, 72 146, 12 136, 20 147, 01 190, 66 346, 66 337, 20 369, 37- 226, 79 172, 29
	·			MICHIC	IAN	:	<u></u>	'	
1925	13, 016 13, 553 14, 120 14, 920 15, 543 15, 758 15, 287 14, 951 14, 798 15, 582	8, 103 8, 282 7, 953 8, 655 8, 631 6, C45 4, 562 2, 063 3, 141 4, 742	6, 233, 868 6, 847, 081 5, 920, 512 6, 998, 639 8, 083, 807 4, 654, 505 2, 776, 880 703, 521 2, 391, 165 4, 918, 522	762, 997 672, 422 624, 658 735, 671 762, 435 389, 342 239, 140 54, 022 176, 627 282, 582	96, 056 88, 183 81, 971 85, 310 71, 628 43, 858 27, 123 7, 219 25, 110 38, 862	184 325	4, 913 5, 271 4, 873 4, 840 5, 448 8, 063 9, 124 11, 247 9, 947 9, 103	640, 995 671, 641 1, 235, 428 1, 325, 147 1, 106, 247 1, 716, 269 2, 036, 296 2, 224, 772 1, 306, 356 950, 968	63, 876 84, 488 134, 299 159, 041 193, 922 299, 841 372, 486 169, 299 126, 068
	·	-		MINNES	OTA	·		<u>`</u>	
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933 1934	10, 733 10, 965 11, 101 11, 302 11, 482 11, 476 11, 463 11, 196 10, 792 11, 298	5, 999 5, 870 5, 910 6, 929 6, 316 5, 491 4, 364 2, 030 2, 373 3, 185	2, 304, 606 2, 245, 522 2, 499, 166 2, 544, 669 2, 502, 989 1, 857, 606 1, 063, 009 652, 128 995, 647 1, 326, 095	131, 886 130, 212 117, 224 155, 637 146, 669 87, 556 57, 311 31, 115 44, 779 59, 810	15, 796 16, 156 14, 227 17, C91 14, 697 9, 225 5, 991 4, 166 6, 284 8, 236	77	4, 734 5, 695 3, 693 3, 544 3, 563 4, 435 5, 427 7, 513 6, 855 6, 414	389, 834 517, 264 343, 390 418, 990 477, 318 722, 989 951, 175 867, 046 651, 229 676, 997	31, 810 31, 056 36, 398 28, 226 32, 733 60, 139 105, 601 143, 426 103, 034 91, 804
	<u> </u>	'	<u></u> <u>-</u>	MISSISSI	IPPI		· · · · · ·	,	
925	1, 999 2, 113 2, 240 2, 432 2, 562 2, 604 2, 585 2, 446 2, 337 2, 326	1, 447 1, 413 1, 435 1, 482 1, 493 1, 044 782 367 644 835	262, 518 253, 964 236, 058 257, 632 266, 681 143, 578 83, 099 25, 779 71, 080 119, 709	15, 759 13, 166 12, 176 12, 700 13, 737 5, 999 3, 485 1, 128 2, 856 4, 670	1, 664 1, 435 1, 242 1, 066 1, 131 512 267 133 391 639	12 23	552 700 674 780 894 1, 293 1, 461 1, 778 1, 461 1, 325	48, 648 67, 587 77, 817 80, 317 96, 251 136, 535 111, 822 106, 816 77, 530 81, 179	3, 797 7, 405 7, 861 6, 779 7, 728 14, 365 15, 105 16, 048 10, 721 8, 811

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax1—Continued

Money	figures	in	thousands	of.	dollarsi

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no r	net income
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	<u>' </u>	···		MISSOU	JRI	·			
1925	16, 145 16, 370 16, 751 17, 223 17, 106	9, 372 9, 160 9, 017 9, 137 9, 146 7, 411 5, 723 3, 140 4, 014 4, 879	3, 740, 522 3, 783, 126 3, 441, 649 3, 724, 876 3, 796, 258 2, 574, 540 1, 462, 835 986, 399 1, 478, 323 2, 018, 558	272, 484 267, 510 239, 671 256, 781 262, 695 162, 446 101, 315 78, 524 160, 036 142, 891	33, 347 33, 948 30, 281 27, 953 26, 786 17, 748 10, 872 10, 554 13, 796 19, 661	186	6, 301 6, 985 5, 627 5, 711 6, 068 7, 691 9, 107 11, 243 9, 769 9, 151	574, 474 704, 211 970, 500 766, 051 862, 061 1, 275, 416 1, 573, 324 1, 365, 961 976, 015 939, 236	48, 707 51, 022 66, 966 60, 573 65, 538 103, 086 185, 867 184, 323 151, 477 132, 843
	1	1,010	2,010,000	MONTA	<u> </u>	1 200	1 0,101	300, 200	102,01
	1	1		i	ī	1	1	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>
1925. 1926. 1927. 1928. 1929. 1930. 1931. 1932. 1933. 1934.	3, 866 4, 020 3, 708 3, 585 3, 350 3, 201	1, 609 1, 686 1, 837 1, 933 1, 822 1, 419 1, 099 529 630 937	166, 311 162, 015 194, 574 213, 196 190, 321 116, 180 78, 928 33, 989 50, 459 116, 143	11, 841 13, 937 13, 312 14, 643 11, 942 5, 582 3, 286 1, 048 2, 036 5, 520	1, 196 1, 520 1, 361 1, 249 941 379 251 121 279 759	7 28	2, 298 2, 180 983 960 1, 070 1, 454 1, 729 2, 153 1, 938 1, 647	50, 781 63, 611 48, 014 46, 558 47, 886 72, 374 68, 003 71, 612 59, 639 46, 340	7, 716 6, 643 9, 343 5, 483 6, 770 10, 622 17, 489 11, 790 7, 593 8, 043
		1	1	NEBRAS	KA		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	1
1925	1 504	2, 868 2, 815 2, 958 3, 060 2, 969 2, 708 2, 071 958 1, 180 1, 379	586, 991 607, 508 667, 777 653, 414 646, 677 515, 094 303, 124 133, 967 216, 265 342, 666	30, 391 27, 498 26, 750 30, 624 30, 079 21, 996 12, 648 7, 138 9, 813 19, 905	3, 318 3, 122 2, 982 2, 882 2, 662 2, 043 1, 087 948 1, 360 2, 737	18 54	1, 715 1, 779 1, 296 1, 251 1, 352 1, 705 2, 355 3, 308 2, 844 2, 784	129, 102 127, 779 120, 555 153, 126 137, 689 180, 543 204, 894 236, 421 168, 021 136, 803	12, 533 10, 173 9, 463 10, 356 17, 300 15, 623 21, 100 27, 803 21, 783 17, 823
				NEVA	DA				
1925	969 874 1, 026 1, 033 1, 022 997 938	351 326 314 353 351 309 301 108 106 195	29, 135 67, 879 108, 219 150, 590 252, 796 244, 956 358, 248 254, 427 246, 211 133, 357	2, 342 2, 881 4, 109 6, 963 9, 771 5, 547 6, 840 6, 462 6, 727 3, 403	215 316 487 736 971 595 754 896 953 468	13 18	678 643 253 281 315 401 410 542 502 493	13, 312 12, 557 11, 550 10, 008 11, 935 24, 508 19, 490 26, 225 26, 832 33, 590	6, 44 3, 07 3, 41 4, 60 4, 33 5, 84 4, 77 6, 02 15, 99 4, 65
			N	EW HAM	PSHIRE	*			
1925	. 1,414	758 715 754 767 803 707 587 329 400 509	144, 336 147, 800 149, 966 153, 633 152, 699 112, 734 73, 756 47, 479 75, 778 105, 102	10, 262 9, 293 11, 148 11, 398 11, 948 7, 455 4, 166 2, 151 5, 005 7, 760	1, 169 1, 065 1, 240 1, 168 1, 117 720 362 277 689 1, 066	13 8	440 468 399 466 477 621 687 934 943 865	74, 748 81, 240 48, 475 80, 241 59, 075 94, 389 80, 675 72, 788 67, 653 73, 149	5, 78 8, 05 6, 09 11, 10 4, 78 11, 64 8, 73 10, 57 7, 48 6, 14

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

Year	Total num- ber of returns 2				I				
		Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income 3	Deficit
	1			NEW JE	RSEY	<u>'</u>	<u>'</u>	<u>'</u>	
925	15, 151	9, 494	3, 810, 671 4, 105, 186 4, 393, 566 3, 607, 869 3, 748, 760	331, 624 342, 090 349, 484 376, 247 444, 895	39, 209 42, 830		5, 657 7, 067 6, 863	512, 406 701, 615 808, 805 782, 487 955, 695 1, 405, 281 1, 794, 189 1, 776, 135 1, 551, 898 1, 393, 616	55, 3 67, 5 83, 6 85, 6
925 926 927 928 929 930 931 932 933 933	15, 151 17, 480 19, 143	10, 413 10, 783 11, 310	4, 105, 186	342, 090	42,830		7,067	701, 615	67, 5
927	19, 143	10,783	4, 393, 566	349, 484	43, 337		6,863	808, 805	83,0
928	20, 509	11, 310	3, 607, 869	376, 247	41, 171 45, 680		7,605	782, 487	85,6
929	21, 885	11,646	3, 748, 760	444, 895	45,680 24,075		8, 468 10, 711	955, 695	136, 7 238, 3 441, 4 359, 8 315, 2
930	22, 489 22, 967 23, 278	9, 945 8, 449	2,484,672	224, 871	24,070		10,711	1,405,281	238, 3
050 891	22, 907	2 199	1,740,271	106 566	16, 813 14, 037 17, 395		12, 515 17, 955 17, 972	1,794,189	250 0
904 099	23, 902	3, 128 3, 599	1 990, 010	100, 000	17 205	154	17,900	1,770,100	009, 0
934	25, 383	4,747	3, 748, 760 2, 484, 672 1, 745, 271 996, 615 1, 2?6, 745 1, 785, 940	224, 871 157, 129 106, 566 125, 456 167, 161	23, 036	135	18, 104	1, 393, 616	194, 8
	1 2, 000	1,	1,100,010	l		100	10,101	2,000,010	101,0
	T			NEW ME	XICO	1	i		
925 926	941	435 471	54, 243 57, 108 61, 856 70, 297 66, 999	3, 173 3, 708	311 395		506 637	13, 667 15, 787 16, 840 17, 357 17, 762 27, 216	2, 8 3. 6
926 927 928 929 930	1,019	495	61, 856	3, 708 3, 998	418		283	16, 840	27
928	1, 103	541	70, 297	4, 621	415		282	17, 357	2,5
929	1, 103 1, 126	558	66. 999	4, 621 4, 320	354		300	17. 762	2, 2 2, 5 3, 2
930	1, 136	491		2, 455	179		430	27, 216	3, 2
931	1, 172	375	29, 711	1, 247	68		558		4, 0
932	1, 197	188	12, 157	412	47		738	32, 497	4, 5
931 932 933	1, 132 1, 181	241	24, 325	1, 117	154	6	656	32, 497 20, 541 20, 127	3, 4
934	1, 181	247	29, 711 12, 157 24, 325 41, 407	2, 059	283	14	596	20, 127	2, 5
	,	<u></u>		NEW Y	ORK	<u>.</u>	<u> </u>		<u>'</u>
925	79, 414	46, 838	28, 825, 905 29, 722, 072 31, 285, 699	2, 598, 419 2, 770, 885 2, 545, 507 3, 248, 916 3, 646, 922 2, 091, 540	322, 979		32, 576	5, 440, 764 6, 084, 458 7, 054, 365 6, 116, 345 7, 901, 545 12, 011, 326 16, 194, 996 14, 191, 558 10, 691, 022	455, 7 517, 0
006	90 617	51 424	29, 722, 073	2,770,885	356 400		38, 193	6, 084, 458	517.0
927 928 929 930	96, 949	53,051	31, 285, 699	2, 545, 507	324, 573 367, 733 383, 110 238, 010		36, 108	7, 054, 365	: 576 6
928	103, 372 107, 300 111, 100	55,008	34, 937, 638	3, 248, 916	367, 733		40,062	6, 116, 345	573, 6 854, 2 1, 355, 8
929	107, 300	55, 304 47, 674	36, 812, 023	3, 646, 922	383, 110		43, 865 54, 627 62, 639	7, 901, 545	854,
930	1111, 100	47, 674	⁶ 27, 482, 351	2, 091, 540	238, 010		54, 627	12,011,326	1, 355, 8
931	110, 851 109, 931	39, 271	15, 113, 394		135, 402		62, 639	16, 194, 996	1, 918,
)32)33	109, 931	15, 599	9, 660, 469	700, 156	94, 739	1, 578	85, 234 81, 811	14, 191, 558	1, 918, 4 2, 185, 1 1, 672, 4
133 134	110, 436 118, 941	39, 271 15, 599 18, 922 24, 318	31, 285, 699 34, 937, 638 36, 812, 023 6 27, 482, 351 15, 113, 394 9, 660, 469 13, 241, 667 16, 088, 093	700, 156 831, 980 1, 191, 532	135, 402 94, 739 116, 743 164, 073	1, 578	83, 689	10, 691, 022	1, 672, 4
	118, 941	24, 318	10, 088, 098	1, 191, 552	104,075	1,720	03,089	11, 552, 650	1, 200, 0
			N	ORTH CA	ROLINA		,		
925	6, 267	3, 762	1, 155, 296 1, 212, 142 1, 340, 347	106, 623	12, 822		2, 505	232, 867 252, 468	14. 5
NO.	0 150	3, 686	1, 212, 142	102, 879	13,017		2,764	252, 468	22, 0
927	6, 501	3,688	1, 340, 347	114, 607	14 147		2, 308	190, 775	16,
927 928 929 930 931	6,669	3,462	1, 225, 830 1, 149, 185 732, 451	100, 623 102, 879 114, 607 96, 562 104, 314 73, 172	10, 770 10, 863 8, 334		2, 308 2, 667 3, 011 3, 732	190, 775 261, 057 298, 035 471, 227	20, 25, 36,
29	6, 570 6, 544	3,009	1, 149, 185	104, 314	10,863		3,011	298, 035	25,
130	6,544	2, 161	732, 451	73, 172	8,334		3,732	471, 227	36,8
161	6, 219	1,819	6/3,646	71, 193	8, 148		3,803	381, 167	40,
104	1 0.004	1, 080	404, 287 600 554	62, 687	8, 565 7, 482	154	4, 241	345, 791	51.
933 934	5, 835 5, 900	2, 049 2, 576	673, 646 464, 287 690, 554 849, 384	54, 459 65, 566	9,015	110	3, 206 2, 920	215, 406 272, 761	22. 26,
	1	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	NORTH D	!	1	1	<u> </u>	i
	1	l ,	1	1	1	1	l		i -
3 25	3, 245	1,684	169, 211 131, 654 160, 229 160, 651	7, 972	547		1, 561	41, 851 49, 804 35, 829 44, 525	3, 9
320	3, 445	1,552	131, 654	6, 574 5, 412 5, 688	422		1,893	49,804	4, 8 3, 3,
941	3, 471	1,695	100, 229	5,412	399		943	35,829	3,
740 190	3, 528 3, 425	1,737 1,467		5, 088 4, 538	321 251		972 1, 085	44, 020	3,
740 190	3, 574	1, 407	98 44R	2,721	133		1, 458	44, 399 59, 910	3, 1 4,
71N/	3, 548	826	44 212	1, 651	94		1,735	53, 623	6,
31	0,010	1 (24)	1 11,010	1,001		1	1 2, 100	00,020	1 19, 1
31	3 230	487	26 754	1 897	109	1	1.910	1 52 553	1 6 1
925 926 927 928 929 930 931 932 933	3, 239 2, 938 2, 885	487 649	88, 446 44, 313 26, 754 47, 845	827 1, 267	102 174	4	1, 910 1, 585	52, 553 38, 306 34, 305	6, 8 4, 4

For footnotes, see p. 111. 149581—37——8

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax1—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns	showing net	income		Returns	showing no 1	et incom
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	·	·		ОНІС)	<u> </u>	·		
1925	23, 239 23, 475 24, 305 24, 722 25, 173 25, 459 25, 462 24, 919 24, 823 26, 151	14, 266 14, 266 14, 020 14, 344 14, 299 10, 676 8, 318 3, 969 5, 859 8, 471	6, 884, 609 7, 211, 098 6, 673, 416 7, 557, 768 7, 879, 661 4, 901, 729 2, 910, 398 1, 746, 586 2, 559, 005 3, 812, 172	564, 543 530, 119 505, 740 589, 966 687, 231 301, 339 170, 378 114, 481 175, 811 259, 674	69, 182 66, 541 63, 487 64, 776 71, 393 33, 041 18, 223 15, 124 24, 323 35, 804	428 525	8, 973 9, 209 8, 901 8, 942 9, 515 13, 365 15, 457 19, 399 17, 287 16, 067	1, 185, 619 1, 469, 759 1, 741, 695 1, 339, 516 1, 705, 020 2, 704, 950 3, 071, 048 2, 727, 030 2, 200, 416 2, 179, 222	153, 51 113, 12 132, 17 123, 56 250, 36 391, 05 478, 59 348, 57 200, 33
				OKLAH	OMA				
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	5, 608 5, 835 6, 132 6, 456 6, 671 6, 944 6, 558 6, 092 5, 975 6, 060	3, 141 3, 299 3, 271 3, 512 3, 649 2, 948 1, 717 1, 030 1, 396 1, 834	937, 549 915, 820 804, 266 975, 497 1, 047, 919 519, 489 205, 067 166, 747 254, 399 474, 389	73, 912 84, 301 56, 608 79, 233 105, 607 71, 297 20, 911 20, 218 27, 059 49, 076	8, 025 10, 327 6, 368 8, 124 9, 795 7, 739 2, 171 2, 611 3, 716 6, 747	125	2, 467 2, 536 2, 090 2, 177 2, 169 3, 073 4, 054 4, 369 3, 892 3, 563	183, 943 402, 181 366, 858 293, 740 336, 547 702, 725 591, 717 500, 309 492, 528 641, 305	27, 33 32, 92 45, 64 36, 28 28, 44 69, 41 119, 87 83, 66 62, 46 47, 63
				OREG	ON				
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933 1934	5, 850 6, 144 6, 350 6, 673 6, 863 7, 012 6, 880 6, 446 6, 247 6, 093	2. 910 3. 003 3. 028 3. 131 3. 105 2. 590 1, 910 779 1, 058 1, 427	468, 622 503, 667 486, 618 512, 332 579, 209 430, 249 220, 112 83, 397 177, 766 242, 517	28, 652 26, 867 23, 694 29, 385 30, 027 17, 010 8, 936 3, 055 5, 448 9, 235	3, 154 2, 995 2, 494 2, 737 2, 601 1, 517 768 371 757 1, 269	17 24	2,940 3,141 2,172 2,232 2,345 2,979 3,467 4,336 3,861 3,481	203, 425 197, 205 210, 568 204, 219 206, 520 287, 066 311, 467 280, 190 205, 485 226, 652	16, 87 21, 24 21, 73 18, 90 20, 41 37, 43 43, 97 51, 92 37, 09 23, 08
	<u>'</u>	<u>'</u>		PENNSYL	VANIA	<u>:</u>	<u> </u>		
1925	23, 502 24, 173 24, 883 25, 558 26, 357 26, 577 26, 448 26, 800 26, 665 28, 646	13, 569 13, 820 13, 193 13, 370 13, 880 11, 254 8, 452 4, 546 6, 107 8, 104	9, 907, 817 10, 157, 118 9, 986, 472 10, 209, 117 10, 843, 235 7, 562, 032 3, 227, 380 2, 072, 786 3, 028, 214 4, 322, 117	891, 119 941, 819 806, 494 905, 715 1, 060, 023 565, 536 249, 231 164, 050 225, 937 330, 524	111, 207 122, 361 104, 135 104, 000 112, 113 64, 389 27, 371 21, 983 31, 554 45, 409	566 481	9, 933 10, 353 9, 330 9, 665 9, 795 12, 549 15, 183 19, 143 17, 462 17, 255	1, 633, 985 1, 730, 696 2, 284, 379 2, 151, 155 1, 909, 570 3, 235, 599 5, 010, 370 4, 092, 190 3, 259, 577 3, 570, 752	151, 08 150, 30 188, 39 181, 31 193, 50 316, 42 476, 65 567, 08 409, 01 319, 75
				RHODE IS	SLAND				
1925	2, 503 2, 566 2, 688 2, 871 2, 964 3, 068 3, 127 3, 134 3, 272 3, 504	1, 419 1, 368 1, 536 1, 628 1, 650 1, 370 1, 217 562 846 947	678, 751 616, 015 735, 728 691, 950 683, 002 380, 338 265, 321 127, 045 314, 510 293, 303	50, 376 43, 396 49, 046 51, 732 54, 487 23, 345 18, 184 9, 290 22, 401 20, 307	6, 019 5, 477 5, 791 5, 585 5, 504 2, 677 1, 887 1, 147 3, 093 2, 792	55 35	1, 084 1, 198 947 1, 000 1, 067 1, 450 1, 655 2, 327 2, 143 2, 249	209, 296 252, 858 160, 030 187, 610 231, 893 370, 685 373, 103 347, 445 217, 066 312, 195	24, 13 22, 64 16, 19 15, 10 19, 73 57, 78 55, 36 62, 01 37, 07 36, 95

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	showing net	income		Returns	showing no 1	net income
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income ³	Deficit
			80	UTH CAI	ROLINA				
1925. 1926. 1927. 1928. 1929. 1930. 1931. 1932. 1933. 1934.	3, 924 3, 822 3 713 3, 817 3, 759 3, 626 3, 610 3, 404 3, 245 3, 322	2, 158 1, 768 1, 768 1, 710 1, 597 1, 597 1, 229 980 511 1, 078 1, 334	381, 883 341, 241 404, 553 328, 582 299, 809 147, 121 114, 668 82, 521 224, 948 263, 916	20, 003 15, 325 24, 791 17, 816 16, 161 6, 281 6, 084 3, 448 15, 727 14, 109	1, 912 1, 693 2, 694 1, 804 1, 464 525 539 433 2, 130 1, 940	70 26	1, 766 2, 054 1, 548 1, 709 1, 775 2, 031 2, 244 2, 511 1, 871 1, 704	157, 082 168, 970 106, 947 156, 705 194, 994 224, 452 196, 589 153, 147 91, 936 111, 456	12, 047 12, 468 8, 612 9, 368 11, 463 25, 630 18, 419 20, 668 14, 064 9, 154
			S	OUTH DA	KOTA	<u>. </u>	<u> </u>		
1925	2, 838 2, 872 3, 008 2, 954 3, 071 3, 127 3, 132 3, 023 2, 876 2, 811	1, 576 1, 354 1, 665 1, 712 1, 685 1, 514 1, 093 473 509 692	143, 374 87, 879 151, 272 154, 811 140, 322 107, 590 55, 099 26, 226 36, 871 56, 905	5, 257 3, 437 5, 230 6, 230 6, 296 4, 846 2, 241 699 1, 004 1, 735	426 257 387 394 395 294 118 84 137 239	4 10	1, 262 1, 518 704 677 816 998 1, 361 1, 900 1, 734 1, 543	35, 959 42, 861 28, 127 30, 633 49, 669 55, 074 60, 017 58, 561 42, 343 40, 813	3, 357 3, 927 2, 894 2, 337 2, 784 3, 441 5, 022 5, 853 4, 016 4, 274
				TENNES	SEE	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		·	
1925. 1926. 1927. 1928. 1929. 1930. 1931. 1932. 1933. 1934.	4, 801 4, 955 5, 039 5, 213 5, 338 5, 408 5, 312 5, 199 5, 215 5, 239	3, 047 3, 047 3, 054 3, 039 3, 032 2, 463 1, 832 1, 010 1, 510 1, 968	1, 014, 708 1, 005, 290 1, 039, 656 962, 458 902, 047 570, 822 362, 762 221, 451 414, 280 527, 991	66, 906 66, 926 61, 403 65, 893 59, 533 33, 117 22, 969 12, 997 24, 473 28, 511	7, 793 8, 177 7, 405 7, 039 5, 744 3, 364 2, 274 1, 700 3, 371 3, 920	96	1, 754 1, 908 1, 577 1, 747 1, 852 2, 483 3, 007 3, 678 3, 179 2, 858	206, 591 285, 705 256, 920 268, 428 307, 351 420, 751 389, 176 358, 843 223, 299 233, 119	12, 677 17, 421 18, 545 18, 069 24, 702 46, 888 45, 252 42, 422 29, 553 23, 960
				TEXA	S				
1925	11, 245 11, 970 12, 930 14, 238 14, 552 15, 431 15, 225 15, 154 15, 168 15, 582	6, 890 7, 253 7, 524 8, 293 8, 156 6, 660 5, 216 2, 982 4, 198 5, 343	2, 735, 808 2, 728, 745 2, 315, 682 2, 452, 987 2, 420, 433 1, 593, 901 816, 758 730, 901 1, 057, 647 1, 389, 776	206, 658 199, 525 142, 338 173, 980 189, 132 97, 054 45, 981 40, 858 57, 596 92, 504	24, 862 24, 863 17, 051 18, 441 18, 193 9, 739 4, 311 4, 713 7, 968 12, 721	366 340	4, 353 4, 717 4, 353 4, 761 5, 243 7, 362 8, 582 10, 653 9, 296 8, 649	494, 545 473, 996 567, 896 786, 169 685, 770 934, 254 1, 098, 435 812, 817 578, 827 868, 403	45, 914 52, 191 57, 303 68, 852 66, 899 106, 851 152, 978 156, 413 106, 726 108, 099
				UTA	ΛΗ			··	
1925. 1926. 1927. 1928. 1929. 1930. 1931. 1932. 1933. 1934.	3, 129 3, 083 3, 125 3, 508 3, 245 3, 301 3, 135 2, 901 2, 923 2, 902	1, 635 1, 537 1, 589 1, 712 1, 646 1, 392 977 419 615 802	273, 587 264, 983 279, 069 290, 146 288, 739 199, 849 100, 564 29, 847 98, 744 151, 093	21, 297 18, 566 17, 179 20, 363 19, 933 11, 323 5, 056 1, 573 5, 387 7, 606	2, 432 2, 183 1, 952 2, 004 1, 814 1, 055 426 206 741 1, 043	16 19	1, 485 1, 546 913 932 888 1, 173 1, 516 1, 909 1, 688 1, 550	67, 657 99, 779 79, 433 79, 898 83, 235 121, 243 139, 229 140, 058 90, 107 80, 449	9, 698 9, 894 9, 637 8, 751 8, 582 14, 325 18, 046 18, 527 14, 025 9, 991

For footnotes, see p. 111.

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax —Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no r	net income
Year	num- ber of returns 2	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber 5	Gross income ³	Deficit
	·	•		VERMO	NT	,	<u>'</u> '		
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	1, 088 1, 096 1, 089 1, 112 1, 120 1, 120 1, 169 1, 174 1, 184 1, 244	708 699 683 724 704 572 420 221 291 404	140, 853 145, 614 153, 168 156, 048 142, 257 99, 924 51, 468 25, 752 44, 715 65, 284	10, 238 10, 429 9, 927 10, 314 10, 255 5, 287 1, 933 1, 210 2, 273 4, 005	1, 218 1, 230 1, 164 1, 038 963 491 155 158 308 551	5 6	380 397 348 342 357 492 693 899 826 767	32, 211 45, 470 42, 861 42, 212 55, 113 52, 244 72, 214 71, 086 48, 924 49, 680	3, 470 4, 178 5, 571 4, 598 9, 642 6, 215 7, 792 10, 090 5, 898 4, 890
		·		VIRGIN	NIA.			·	·
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934	6, 214 6, 358 6, 485 6, 785 7, 168 7, 139 7, 071 6, 915 6, 815 6, 893	3, 834 3, 795 3, 795 3, 835 3, 837 3, 241 2, 730 1, 490 1, 930 2, 542	1, 043, 824 1, 112, 614 1, 013, 815 1, 024, 668 1, 016, 915 847, 015 631, 485 378, 009 502, 610 641, 816	112, 238 135, 859 123, 648 118, 505 132, 956 110, 675 76, 746 36, 692 43, 882 54, 682	13, 405 17, 284 15, 770 13, 166 13, 794 12, 519 8, 662 4, 972 6, 060 7, 519	113	2, 380 2, 563 2, 137 2, 337 2, 613 3, 185 3, 661 4, 765 4 211 3, 794	215, 217 202, 865 267, 002 245, 296 294, 173 370, 505 375, 118 360, 176 266, 697 230, 031	38, 640 17, 389 22, 531 18, 790 22, 535 44, 414 50, 870 62, 779 62, 341 36, 450
	· <u>·</u>	<u> </u>		WASHING	TON			·	
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1932 1933 1934	10, 748 10, 977 11, 847 12, 159 12, 709 13, 091 12, 328 11, 472	5, 259 5, 305 5, 355 5, 874 5, 924 4, 934 3, 916 1, 654 2, 128 2, 903	1, 023, 072 1, 024, 089 1, 056, 761 1, 239, 108 1, 153, 890 671, 962 357, 660 166, 579 293, 411 510, 734	63. 839 63. 301 62. 700 75, 391 76, 230 31, 492 17, 608 7, 744 12, 805 25, 764	7, 122 7, 286 7, 222 7, 419 6, 986 2, 686 1, 397 954 1, 768 3, 537	55 100	4, 932 5, 443 3, 748 3, 799 4, 058 5, 306 6, 388 8, 150 7, 206 6, 483	272, 753 365, 543 348, 219 288, 353 397, 561 602, 964 592, 111 499, 153 401, 664 339, 317	29, 367 33, 503 33, 907 31, 004 31, 684 57, 351 83, 322 85, 446 50, 907 36, 830
	'	·	7	VEST VIR	GINIA		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
1925 1926 1927 1928 1929 1930 1931 1931 1932 1933	5, 205 5, 142 5, 239 5, 145 5, 173 5, 101 4, 953 4, 807 4, 554 4, 662	2, 843 3, 000 2, 928 2, 773 2, 873 2, 477 1, 900 962 1, 290 1, 726	723, 896 814, 966 702, 212 656, 932 700, 698 447, 840 228, 123 119, 373 223, 741 430, 706	64, 525 76, 152 57, 024 51, 923 59, 047 27, 487 16, 445 7, 915 17, 919 29, 008	7, 633 9, 415 6, 996 5, 445 5, 757 2, 647 1, 586 1, 039 2, 465 3, 987	32 52	2, 362 2, 142 1, 825 1, 910 1, 843 2, 108 2, 508 3, 344 2, 831 2, 525	147, 176 151, 149 173, 152 170, 774 162, 244 203, 753 277, 974 258, 395 205, 260 187, 118	23, 393 18, 900 23, 973 19, 964 17, 258 21, 380 38, 950 37, 569 26, 103 16, 991
				WISCON	ISIN				
1925	13, 827 14, 456 15, 393 15, 836 16, 009 16, 311 16, 203 15, 852	8, 141 8, 253 8, 567 8, 828 8, 810 6, 777 5, 199 2, 806 3, 422 4, 559	2, 159, 861 2, 268, 270 2, 232, 947 2, 347, 121 2, 377, 121 1, 589, 177 859, 406 391, 493 718, 626 1, 025, 696	171, 193 187, 044 185, 418 184, 569 198, 398 103, 140 50, 205 19, 848 37, 548 51, 209	20, 325 23, 193 23, 118 20, 122 19, 928 10, 921 5, 100 2, 602 5, 201 7, 042	155	5, 348 5, 574 4, 172 4, 681 5, 079 7, 234 9, 067 11, 176 10, 147 9, 177	348, 367 392, 410 437, 508 408, 788 449, 131 730, 197 904, 477 829, 237 531, 140 614, 934	35, 05 36, 632 39, 756 45, 955 47, 430 73, 340 109, 487 149, 780 88, 326

Table 8 (Table 19, Statistics of Income for 1933).—Corporation returns for 1925 to 1934, by States and Territories, showing for returns with net income and no net income, number of returns, gross income, net income or deficit, income tax, and excess-profits tax —Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

	Total		Returns s	howing net	income		Returns	showing no 1	net incom
Year	num- ber of returns ²	Num- ber	Gross income ³	Net income	Income tax	Excess- profits tax 4	Num- ber ⁵	Gross income ³	Defici t
				WYOM	ING				
925	1, 418 1, 402 1, 441 1, 468 1, 440 1, 416 1, 495	789 776 788 881 798 721 580 246 291 391	61, 675 60, 932 57, 921 69, 951 60, 881 47, 049 27, 804 9, 859 14, 800 29, 056	8, 188 5, 233 4, 920 5, 737 3, 976 3, 066 1, 701 528 590 1, 413	884 534 492 457 262 203 91 59 79	1 6	662 642 413 364 450 492 634 1,039 879 787	20, 468 19, 766 22, 990 16, 529 20, 787 22, 214 28, 814 35, 317 25, 870 24, 769	3, 86 3, 56 3, 85 2, 67 3, 69 3, 99 4, 87 6, 35 4, 71 5, 10

ro not income.

Revised. The revised figures for 1925 apply to Statistics of Income for 1925, table 11, p. 118, "Stock and bond brokers", and Table 14, p. 149, "Illinois." For revised figures for 1928, see Statistics of Income for 1930, p. 238; for revised figures for 1930, see Statistics of Income for 1931, pp. 32, 32; for revised figures for 1932, see Statistics of Income for 1933, p. 37.

[!] Changes in the revenue acts affecting the comparability of statistical data from income tax returns of corporations are summarized on pp. 209-213.

Includes returns showing no income data—inactive corporations.

Gross income corresponds to total income as reported on face of return, plus the "Cost of goods sold" and "Cost of other operations." For 1934, interest on Liberty bonds, etc., has been deducted from gross income so that gross income will include the same items as in prior years.

The excess-profits tax for 1933 became effective June 30, 1933, under the tax provisions of the National Industrial Recovery Act. Under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934, a small amount of excess-profits tax for 1934 appears on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1 (d). Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

Prior to 1927, returns showing no income data—inactive corporations, were included with returns showing no net income.

COMPARABILITY OF THE DATA TABULATED FROM CORPORATION RETURNS FOR 1934 AND 1933 AS AFFECTED BY THE LIMITATION OF THE PRIVILEGE OF FILING CONSOLIDATED RETURNS IN THE REVENUE ACT OF 1934 (SEE TEXT, PAGES 19 TO 29)

113

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29]

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933

							Industri	al groups						_
										Manufac	turing			
		Aggr	regate	Agricul related i	ture and adustries		ng and rying	Total mar	ufacturing	Food and prod		erages	and bev- (alcoholic nalcoholic)	2
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	1,880	5, 221	17	89	78	319	841	1, 614	132	176	26	27	,
2	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations.2	12, 182, 734 3, 458, 290	8, 070, 367 5, 800, 513	57, 148 26, 417	24, 985 11, 392	123, 498 38, 051	686, 771 258, 449	9, 053, 684 524, 011	5, 893, 392 367, 395	3, 082, 431 31, 104	618, 768 8, 713	111, 503 908	14, 523 54	
4 5 6 7	Interest Rents Profit, sale of capital assets Other receipts	183, 551 121, 526 18, 422 234, 051	567, 485 309, 232 42, 404 280, 586	838 1, 153 22 869	930 791 69 1, 367	2, 024 1, 957 767 3, 675	8, 106 9, 978 3, 550 14, 943	66, 213 36, 673 7, 330 166, 301	67, 581 31, 342 10, 131 83, 134	13, 437 5, 046 748 19, 037	3, 928 1, 759 306 3, 851	493 1, 840 283 544	133 282 18 139	2
3	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	192, 774	227, 910	18	522	2, 092	6, 980	41, 101	23, 184	6, 504	721	204	4	
,	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. ³	32, 708	151,006	34	150	906	2, 485	16, 539	12, 748	1,826	214	249	19	,
)	Total compiled receipts 4	16, 425, 056	15, 449, 502	86, 499	40, 205	172, 970	991, 261	9, 911, 850	6, 398, 908	3, 160, 133	638, 261	116, 024	15, 172	?
	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ⁵ Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	9, 002, 140 1, 495, 578 96, 677 205, 440	6, 132, 906 3, 278, 844 149, 067 297, 901	37, 238 2, 984 342 9, 736	19, 560 4, 989 1, 131 517	87, 297 22, 217 2, 004 308	577, 339 162, 561 8, 473 5, 793	6, 681, 348 243, 692 58, 436 50, 017	4, 352, 836 169, 873 54, 437 83, 595	2, 502, 451 3, 319 12, 928 9, 853	471, 926 2, 938 4, 170 4, 245	51, 821 4 1, 659 320	7, 979 408 140	-

16	Taxes paid other than income tax.6	379, 665	647, 499	5,810	1,776	7, 403	30, 879	150, 345	199, 521	22, 845	6, 209	9, 468	1, 385	16
17 18 19	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion	105, 760 748, 304 40, 411	262, 535 1, 030, 409 121, 377	1,007 10,265 53	804 2, 280 533	1, 058 8, 653 6, 449	7,800 70,706 46,733	58, 281 376, 524 28, 654	70, 034 465, 893 65, 818	11, 504 55, 661 51	6, 841 21, 034 10	1, 278 3, 131	365 803	17 18 19
20 21	Loss, sale of capital assets Other deductions.	60, 503 2, 785, 618	440, 320 3, 236, 050	218 10, 312	670 10, 490	281 20, 642	18, 858 132, 347	32, 121 1, 627, 877	100, 211 1, 203, 252	7, 659 427, 414	4, 971 129, 247	2, 885 27, 027	2, 150 4, 814	20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	15, 365, 180	17, 033, 555	78, 845	44, 485	159, 736	1, 102, 277	9, 418, 792	6, 944, 106	3, 080, 401	662, 927	98, 272	18, 324	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	1, 059, 876	10 1, 584, 053	7, 655	10 4, 280	13, 234	10 111, 016	493, 058	10 545, 198	79, 732	10 24, 666	17, 752	10 3, 152	23
24	Net income or deficit	833, 394 1	0 1, 962, 969	7, 603	10 4, 951	10, 235	10 120, 481	435, 419	¹⁶ 581, 129	71, 402	10 25, 601	17, 299	10 3, 175	24
25 26	Income tax. Excess-profits tax.	120, 729 254		1, 103 13		1, 485		63, 046 125		10, 359 13		2, 499 14		25 26
27	Total tax	120, 983		1, 116		1, 489		63, 171		10, 372		2, 513		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	938, 893		6, 539		11, 745		429, 887		69, 360		15, 238		28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	911, 342 22, 502	355, 996 2, 250	613	182 284	7, 706	24, 704	363, 427 9, 685	95, 133 245	56, 170 1, 009	2, 967	4,002	99	29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933-Continued

						Ind	ustrial grou	ıps—Cont	inued			·· - · · · -	
						Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued				
		Tobacco	products	Textiles a		Leather manuf		Rubber	products	Forest p	products	Paper, p	oulp, and ucts
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income
1	Number of returns	6	9	129	158	39	36	16	22	40	155	30	55
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1. Gross receipts from other operations 2. Interest Rents Profit, sale of capital assets Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	67, 673 1, 866 149 216 18 5	15, 414 1 16 33 1 72	403, 489 8, 936 2, 270 1, 428 73 3, 540	295, 966 2, 147 1, 190 2, 031 300 2, 740	130, 222 1, 146 388 252 73 995	72, 862 259 102 443 108 703	181, 797 212 869 1, 326 (11) 3, 463	351, 106 1, 458 6, 507 2, 181 139 8, 456	79, 149 3, 673 729 387 451 1, 164	157, 472 15, 475 1, 629 2, 150 2, 496 7, 218	129, 056 1, 456 789 531 65 1, 488	211, 213 2, 095 12, 752 2, 750 1, 080 5, 499
8 9	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3	(11)	5 55	1, 241 827	219 170	$\frac{86}{112}$	69 92	26 146	91 817	160 267	686 219	370 207	585 228
10	Total compiled receipts 4	70, 156	15, 597	421, 804	304, 763	133, 274	74, 638	187, 839	370, 754	85, 980	187, 345	133, 961	236, 204
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6. Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets.	958 463 1,041	11, 232 422 132 44 112 234 284	294, 688 4, 427 6, 654 2, 767 2, 920 6, 807 2, 953 13, 974	233, 296 250 4, 392 3, 940 6, 429 5, 481 3, 818 13, 253 1 5, 072	98, 210 347 1, 908 2, 307 776 1, 333 1, 065 2, 046 115 529	52, 103 116 1, 177 5, 559 411 862 902 1, 984	105, 755 32 1, 284 2, 790 3, 644 8, 116 4, 694 10, 394	270, 353 891 4, 245 12, 987 4, 352 4, 796 16, 914 11 856	54, 167 2, 131 1, 305 416 1, 474 1, 887 1, 018 4, 021 2, 286 167	115, 814 10, 336 2, 660 1, 175 7, 810 6, 250 4, 877 13, 929 6, 712 3, 273	85, 852 464 1, 530 810 2, 714 1, 975 1, 705 7, 428 18 428	162, 519 846 2, 472 2, 948 21, 113 6, 304 1, 904 17, 270 926 1, 891

21	Other deductions	8, 295	3, 791	54,820	š0, 134	16, 238	14, 607	45 , 2 37	61, 344	11, 312	46, 024	22, 463	33, 071	21
22	Total compiled deductions	66, 407	16, 271	392, 944	326, 067	124, 875	78, 200	182, 146	376, 756	80, 183	218, 860	125, 386	251, 265	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	3, 749 3, 520	10 673 10 733	28, 860 26, 792	10 21, 304 10 21, 693	8, 399 8, 201	10 3, 562 10 3, 723	5, 692 5, 521	10 6, 002 10 6, 909	5, 797 5, 370	10 31, 515 16 32, 420	8, 575 7, 998	10 15, 062 10 15, 875	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax	510		3, 842 18		1, 184 32		796		778 2	**********	1, 160 9		25 26
27	Total tax	510		3, 860		1, 215		796		781		1, 169		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27). Cash dividends paid. Stock dividends paid.	3, 239 1, 405	779	25, 000 9, 403 1, 661	848	7, 184 1, 850	161	4, 896 4, 745	1, 548	5, 016 788	1,879	7, 406 4, 477 62	2, 827	28 29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933-Continued

_														
						Indu	istrial grou	ps-Contin	ued					
					Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued						
		Printing, ing, an industr	nd allied	Chemicals prod	and allied lucts	Stone, c	lay, and roducts		d its prod- ets	Manufac elsewhe fled	turing not ere classi-	Consti	ruction	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net - income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	79	134	129	169	22	80	149	493	44	100	25	144	
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations 2 Interest. Rents. Profit, sale of capital assets. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	1,988 8,348	77, 027 69, 410 1, 661 2, 641 638 2, 235	2, 296, 789 216, 595 25, 328 9, 479 3, 399 53, 310	1, 572, 225 184, 190 18, 476 7, 234 2, 630 15, 039	147, 745 354 964 441 50 896	67, 983 1, 114 907 454 259 1, 257	2, 164, 954 59, 098 16, 755 6, 737 1, 323 73, 580	2, 193, 540 81, 411 18, 607 7, 935 1, 878 33, 407	163, 362 3, 697 2, 053 643 498 4, 334	155, 293 1, 067 1, 672 1, 449 278 2, 518	17, 831 9, 035 192 81 7 138	58, 799 40, 540 6, 166 4, 987 1, 002 3, 435	
8	Dividends from domestic corpora- tions.	966	4, 175	24, 273	12, 032	805	37	5, 999	4, 462	239	99	407	5, 246	
9	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3.	415	61	5, 510	956	285	303	6, 573	9, 396	122	217	124	347	
10	Total compiled receipts 4	306, 491	157, 848	2, 634, 683	1, 812, 783	151, 539	72, 314	2, 335, 020	2, 350, 635	174, 947	162, 594	27, 814	120, 522	1
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Deductions: Cost of goods sold §	5, 244 8, 556	52, 789 45, 127 3, 741 3, 595 5, 954 1, 687 3, 386 5, 965	1, 574, 322 99, 151 10, 542 13, 457 43, 113 57, 362 12, 051 175, 025 23, 685	1, 094, 630 76, 353 5, 395 37, 108 48, 001 82, 347 13, 895 163, 925 48, 446	102, 220 23 1, 460 911 524 2, 053 2, 162 8, 188 145	41, 802 772 2, 056 676 3, 714 2, 350 977 12, 024 275	1, 601, 457 8, 358 12, 667 7, 528 18, 885 28, 106 12, 754 78, 063 2, 312	1, 726, 045 33, 039 23, 266 17, 030 54, 490 79, 388 19, 863 188, 803 9, 428	95, 683 561 2, 779 1, 445 903 2, 962 1, 388 8, 996	112, 347 88 3, 388 2, 801 6, 069 2, 793 8, 176 9, 702 3	13, 493 4, 781 642 178 173 510 497 1, 341	44, 434 22, 468 3, 336 2, 087 11, 173 2, 352 1, 130 6, 967	12 13 14 15 16 17

20 21	Loss, sale of capital assets	1, 457 67, 515	1, 992 40, 203	4, 096 491, 381	17, 984 344, 023	115 26, 246	137 19, 42 6	10, 963 391, 552	57, 901 406, 369	$ \begin{array}{r} 522 \\ 38,379 \end{array} $	3, 486 50, 199	128 5, 178	1, 683 30, 519	20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	293, 658	164, 443	2, 504, 184	1, 932, 106	144, 048	84, 210	2, 172, 646	2, 615, 622	153, 642	199, 054	26, 926	126, 157	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22). Net income or deficit	12, 833 11, 452	10 6, 595 10 10, 831	130, 499 100, 716	10 119, 323 10 132, 311	7, 491 6, 402	10 11, 896 10 12, 236	162, 374 149, 801	18 264, 987 18 278, 845	21, 305 20, 944	10 36, 461 10 36, 777	888 358	10 5, 636 10 11, 229	23 24
25 26	Income tax. Excess-profits tax.	1,661		14, 585 14		928		21, 705 12		3, 039 9		52		25 26
27	Total tax	1,662		14, 599		928		21, 717		3, 048		52		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	11, 171		115, 900		6, 563		140, 657		18, 257		836		28
29 30	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	6, 988	2, 195 10	147, 519 6, 658	43, 471	4, 546	952	111, 904 295	37, 027 227	9, 631	378	925	11, 283 1, 245	29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933-Continued

	·										
					Indus	trial groups—	-Continued				
		Transporta other pub	tion and lic utilities	Tr	ade		rofessional, ents, hotels,	surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, d bond bro-		f business given
		Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net income
1	Number of returns	155	484	402	733	117	416	244	1,421	1	1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ! Gross receipts from other operations ? Interest. Rents. Profit, sale of capital assets. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3.	81, 072 51, 592 2, 300 24, 116	4, 292, 663 115, 091 53, 569 5, 237 89, 474 136, 483 5, 206	2, 930, 573 22, 423 8, 347 12, 941 480 28, 829 6, 382 2, 632	1, 496, 420 46, 441 10, 992 21, 450 4, 062 36, 675 4, 256 1, 385	187, 114 672 6, 867 479 5, 223 1, 423 261	487, 328 4, 689 38, 058 671 17, 205 2, 454 156	7 300, 817 24, 173 10, 263 7, 038 4, 900 28, 217 5, 420	7 296, 305 353, 929 149, 057 17, 681 34, 347 48, 787 128, 529	20	5
10	Total compiled receipts 4	2, 630, 429	4, 697, 722	3, 012, 607	1, 621, 681	202, 038	550, 561	380, 828	1, 028, 635	20	7
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax 6 Bad debts Depreciation Depletion	1, 114, 904 8, 591 60, 650 298, 808 178, 513 26, 291 305, 532	2, 681, 936 14, 074 62, 621 880, 370 307, 663 25, 843 355, 527 7, 652	2, 182, 764 3, 111 16, 726 69, 587 16, 905 22, 975 12, 502 36, 186 231	1, 138, 737 12, 326 17, 161 49, 564 29, 209 21, 380 28, 525 29, 502 182	67, 526 4, 477 10, 205 3, 528 3, 645 946 6, 804 150	121, 863 6, 851 52, 320 41, 416 22, 087 9, 762 47, 754	7 36, 363 * 5, 460 4, 760 9, 868 10, 463 5, 174 3, 001 107	253, 319 61, 841 118, 637 51, 780	(11)	(11)

$\frac{20}{21}$	Loss, sale of capital assetsOther deductions	10, 720 245, 190	99, 089 705, 462	4, 486 553, 310	17, 597 356, 041	$\frac{251}{91,309}$	33, 015 331, 923	12, 299 9 231, 799	169, 198 466, 010	<u>-</u> 1	6	$\frac{20}{21}$
22	Total compiled deductions	2, 253, 961	5, 140, 238	2, 918, 783	1, 700, 224	188, 838	666, 990	9 319, 294	9 1, 309, 071	4	7	22
$\frac{23}{24}$	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	376, 468 255, 540	10 442, 516 10 584, 204	93, 824 84, 810	10 78, 542 10 84, 183	13, 200 11, 517	10 116, 429 10 119, 040	61, 533 27, 896	10 280, 436 10 457, 752	16 16	(10) (11) (10) (11)	23 24
$\begin{array}{c} 25 \\ 26 \end{array}$	Income tax. Excess-profits tax	37, 050 9		12, 274 34		1, 672 15		4, 044 55		2		25 26
27	Total tax	37, 059		12, 308		1, 687		4, 099		2		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27) Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	339, 408 457, 211 12, 486	137, 698	81, 517 39, 393 280	8, 486 16	11, 513 7, 323 51	3, 091 401	57, 434 34, 745 1	75, 420 59	13		28 29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933

							Indust	rial groups						
										Manufact	uring			1
		Ag	gregate	Agricul related i	ture and ndustries		ng and rying	Total man	ulacturing	Food and	i kindred ucts	ages (a	and bever- leoholic nalcoholic)	
		Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	-
1	Number of returns	107, 906	331, 835	1, 426	7, 729	2, 904	8, 547	25, 513	60, 681	4, 115	7, 758	872	1, 821	-
2	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1. Gross receipts from other operations 2	23, 490, 579 5, 190, 242	14, 033, 789 4, 533, 447	66, 346 18, 616	121, 842 38, 750	171, 811 185, 185	227, 595 158, 312	11, 652, 831 478, 528	6, 102, 159 230, 930	2, 251, 744 78, 166	1, 069, 075 23, 038	355, 896 8, 100	87, 959 1, 918	
4 5 6 7	Interest Rents Profit, sale of capital assets Other receipts	688, 642 337, 540 97, 307 309, 405	1, 345, 941 881, 847 104, 331 334, 480	1, 035 1, 967 1, 051 1, 627	2, 375 5, 462 1, 639 4, 454	3, 226 3, 276 10, 271 7, 902	4, 216 6, 167 3, 246 9, 720	41, 117 26, 847 13, 143 102, 982	28, 402 23, 402 14, 615 58, 150	6, 452 4, 270 2, 456 27, 315	2, 087 4, 054 615 6, 040	910 1, 402 374 1, 754	203 1, 082 136 832	
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	247, 302	357, 723	932	2, 511	1, 945	4, 563	78, 526	17, 671	7, 810	5, 925	276	136	
•	Interest on tax-exempt obligations.	120, 590	286, 281	239	538	1, 574	3, 178	35, 514	14, 745	5, 019	575	835	316	
,	Total compiled receipts 4	30, 481, 609	21, 877, 840	91, 814	177, 573	385, 189	416, 997	12, 429, 488	6, 490, 075	2, 383, 232	1, 111, 408	369, 547	92, 584	1
	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ⁵ Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	17, 499, 554 2, 350, 189 764, 618 381, 627	10, 991, 188 2, 295, 261 984, 598 536, 810	46, 323 9, 475 3, 727 1, 014	88, 690 21, 080 9, 953 2, 964	98, 049 81, 566 10, 851 2, 223	174, 587 98, 704 16, 280 3, 445	8, 183, 503 271, 364 312, 985 72, 983	4, 714, 330 144, 474 280, 554 85, 851	1, 608, 596 39, 701 41, 422 14, 326	838, 811 14, 310 29, 488 12, 851	188, 904 3, 586 8, 468 1, 231	52, 348 952 4, 793 1, 627	ĺ
,	Interest paid	443, 703	1, 185, 562	2, 371	15, 025	5, 305	23, 396	65, 101	105, 102	12,081	14, 370	1, 959	1,540	1

1	Taxes paid other than income	501,875	594, 757	2, 310	9, 484	10, 828	13, 607	186, 088	109, 507	30, 665	13, 191	28, 867	6, 880	16
	7 Bad debts	227, 322 793, 401 44, 386 110, 790 4, 843, 675	653, 490 923, 728 40, 265 1, 074, 245 5, 524, 300	776 3, 316 836 361 12, 844	3, 745 13, 892 2, 313 9, 861 52, 777	2, 870 24, 350 35, 116 2, 109 46, 952	4, 497 49, 353 25, 768 10, 985 116, 282	91, 249 363, 463 5, 742 39, 214 1, 698, 544	98, 499 317, 204 9, 245 109, 121 1, 159, 230	10, 651 60, 783 63 8, 442 350, 469	10, 121 36, 801 120 17, 446 178, 226	5, 107 9, 764 2 1, 655 62, 831	1, 549 4, 702 20 2, 268 26, 454	17 18 19 20 21
1 2	2 Total compiled deductions.	27, 961, 139	24, 804, 205	83, 352	229, 784	320, 220	536, 903	11, 290, 235	7, 133, 116	2, 177, 200	1, 165, 735	312, 373	103, 131	22
37 2	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22). Net income or deficit	' '	10 2, 926, 366 10 3, 570, 370	8, 461 7, 291	¹⁶ 52, 211 ¹⁰ 55, 261	·	10 119, 906 10 127, 647	1, 139, 253 1, 025, 213	10 643, 041 10 675, 457	206, 032 193, 203	10 54, 327 10 60, 827	57, 174 56, 064	10 10, 548 10 11, 000	23 24
် ဝ 9	5 Income tax 6 Excess-profits tax	295, 364 6, 721		998 42		8, 436 276		140, 667 3, 524		26, 547 618		7, 701 382		25 26
2	7 Total tax	302, 085		1,040		8,712		144, 192		27, 165		8, 083		27
2	8 Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	2, 218, 385		7, 421		56, 258		995, 061		178, 867		49, 091		28
	9 Cash dividends paid	1, 474, 546 57, 947	385, 574 19, 344	2, 792 56	1, 907 36	45, 775 2, 215	12, 739 57	661, 159 24, 033	49, 875 5, 413	126, 961 5, 886	8, 42 3 553	14, 540 1, 595	991 644	29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933-Continued

						Indus	rial groups	-Continu	ed				
						Man	afacturing-	Continue	đ				
		Tobacco	products		and their lucts		and its	Rubber	products	Forest 1	products	Paper, proc	pulp, and ducts
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
1	Number of returns	116	252	5, 535	9, 152	934	1, 329	199	308	1, 598	4,727	963	1, 051
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations? Interest. Rents. Profit, sale of capital assets. Other receipts.	752, 165 581 1, 952 598 128 3, 534	88, 833 60 300 75 3 187	2, 706, 744 23, 917 5, 043 5, 889 1, 303 18, 105	1, 115, 339 33, 397 2, 291 3, 181 740 7, 343	584, 964 1, 454 1, 668 558 194 4, 530	183, 075 587 532 527 81 1, 733	109, 276 1, 429 218 126 72 1, 311	47, 515 154 117 90 4 271	312, 208 3, 006 1, 283 961 819 2, 814	382, 284 4, 627 2, 783 2, 718 1, 085 5, 600	568, 444 863 1, 412 773 340 3, 543	212, 411 466 655 576 223 1, 724
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	8, 834	158	1, 915	1, 397	494	156	188	46	343	591	588	1,338
9	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 3.	3, 426	216	6, 311	1, 167	945	115	189	19	407	1,050	869	684
0	Total compiled receipts 4	771, 218	89, 832	2, 769, 228	1, 164, 855	594, 807	186, 805	112, 810	48, 215	321, 839	400, 740	576, 830	218, 076
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 5. Bad debts Depreciation	604, 998 141 3, 775 1, 036 2, 106 7, 640 986 4, 494	68, 346 40 1, 695 401 1, 373 1, 105 375 1, 010	2, 075, 543 12, 208 75, 252 17, 854 13, 475 41, 498 16, 632 73, 041	919, 901 24, 792 46, 941 17, 011 10, 457 14, 126 12, 372 34, 526	460, 293 866 13, 912 3, 137 1, 934 3, 827 4, 817 8, 062	152, 957 353 7, 191 2, 582 1, 635 1, 411 4, 088 2, 770	76, 421 67 2, 888 362 431 2, 361 834 4, 113	35, 993 74 1, 545 394 446 1, 263 574 2, 765	227, 480 961 12, 176 2, 074 3, 045 4, 586 4, 775 9, 923	306, 369 1, 837 19, 582 3, 891 11, 731 10, 501 12, 228 18, 649	395, 501 63 16, 247 3, 793 4, 738 6, 600 3, 883 25, 179	164, 960 206 8, 409 2, 460 4, 572 4, 077 1, 838 13, 607

20 21	Loss, sale of capital assetsOther deductions	512 71, 528	29, 193	4, 965 253, 387	15, 202 142, 090	739 56, 397	1, 835 28, 751	145 16, 990	$\frac{214}{7,972}$	428 35, 335	7, 164 64, 179	1, 433 73, 297	1,775 34,310	20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	697, 254	103, 617	2, 584, 061	1, 237, 436	553, 984	203, 573	104, 614	51, 241	303, 714	462, 013	531, 016	236, 270	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	73, 965 61, 704	10 13, 785 10 14, 160	185, 167 176, 942	10 72, 581 10 75, 145	40, 824 39, 385	10 16, 768 10 17, 038	8, 195 7, 818	10 3, 026 10 3, 091	18, 125 17, 376	10 61, 274 10 62, 915	45, 814 44, 358	10 18, 193 10 20, 215	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax	8, 488 8		24, 168 746		5, 398 136		1, 071 52		2, 375 117		6, 090 160		25 26
27	Total tax	8, 496		24, 914		5, 534		1, 123		2, 492		6, 250		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	65, 468		160, 253		35, 290		7,073		15, 634		39, 565		28
29 30	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	89, 282 5	3,669	49, 174 2, 864	3, 241 318	16, 586 190	769 1	1, 267 51	261 67	6, 135 861	5, 864 434	21, 168 341	1, 619 31	29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933—Continued

						Ind	Instrial and	ups-Contin						<u> </u>
					M	anufacturi	ngConti	nued						
		Printing, ing, and dust	allied in-	Chemicals produ			lay, and roducts	Metal and	its products	Manufact elsewhere	turing not classified	Consti	ruction	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	2, 634	8, 752	2, 329	4, 527	620	3, 106	4, 142	13, 356	1, 456	4, 742	2, 115	13, 968	1
2 3	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 1 Gross receipts from other operations.2	342, 186 311, 444	375, 169 128, 005	1, 389, 558 15, 352	361, 047 9, 217	267, 189 4, 959	208, 316 3, 539	1, 655, 886 25, 841	1, 666, 682 20, 017	356, 571 3, 415	304, 455 5, 905	100, 127 238, 151	316, 867 244, 495	2 3
4 5 6 7	Interest	3, 529 2, 600 686 5, 859	1, 407 2, 211 890 5, 753	6, 043 2, 668 4, 514 9, 552	1,356 813 1,330 3,921	1,014 550 732 2,215	1, 339 1, 121 389 2, 954	10,028 5,897 1,170 18,628	13, 431 5, 232 8, 767 18, 703	1, 565 556 355 3, 824	1, 900 1, 722 351 3, 090	1,530 1,121 939 3,571	4, 125 6, 615 1, 515 7, 188	4 5 6 7
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corpora-	4, 961	2, 129	37, 795	1,620	668	341	13, 797	3, 460	858	374	1, 305	3, 136	8
9	tions. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. ³	2, 625	815	5, 998	313	1, 151	816	6, 634	7, 577	1, 107	1,081	1, 528	2, 484	9
10	Total compiled receipts 4	673, 890	516, 380	1, 471, 479	379, 617	278, 477	218, 814	1, 737, 881	1, 743, 870	368, 249	318, 878	348, 271	586, 425	10
11 12 13 14 15 16	Deductions: Cost of goods sold	199, 179 198, 067 31, 819 9, 635 4, 903 7, 561	247, 853 80, 299 41, 240 15, 282 7, 905 4, 961	826, 882 5, 909 31, 838 6, 344 7, 710 21, 904	257, 169 5, 370 15, 174 4, 089 7, 488 4, 826	167, 770 2, 349 6, 743 1, 127 1, 600 3, 469	152, 327 2, 558 12, 713 2, 170 8, 192 5, 693	1, 121, 603 6, 203 51, 863 8, 760 9, 172 23, 535	1, 288, 493 11, 095 71, 911 17, 340 30, 840 36, 492	230, 332 1, 240 16, 582 3, 304 1, 946 3, 576	228, 804 2, 589 19, 871 5, 754 4, 555 4, 981	76, 170 159, 823 15, 995 1, 770 1, 717 2, 178	258, 799 188, 541 47, 759 8, 184 9, 339 6, 443	11 12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets Other deductions	8,024 20,164 35 6,485 120,803	9, 892 20, 466 10 3, 543 129, 071	10, 733 46, 919 1, 641 3, 451 292, 163	6, 614 20, 366 1, 975 28, 761 82, 755	2, 162 18, 897 318 3, 298 40, 566	3, 634 23, 873 793 3, 432 45, 672	18, 878 72, 861 196 6, 752 260, 236	27, 915 122, 945 183 21, 078 319, 823	3, 766 9, 263 34 908 64, 541	7, 300 14, 724 187 6, 322 70, 783	1, 879 10, 354 42 2, 054 50, 176	10, 967 27, 989 122 8, 043 94, 834	17 18 19 20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	606, 676	580, 522	1, 255, 493	434, 586	248, 298	261, 057	1, 580, 060	1, 948, 115	335, 493	365, 821	322, 158	661, 021	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less	67, 214	10 44, 142	215, 985	10 54, 969	30, 179	10 42, 242	157, 821	10 204, 244	32, 757	19 46, 943	26, 113	10 74, 597	23
24	Net income or deficit	59, 627	10 47, 087	172, 193	10 56, 901	28, 360	10 43, 399	137, 391	10 215, 282	30, 792	10 48, 397	23, 280	10 80, 217	24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax	8, 193 123		23, 656 521		3, 898 86		18, 860 365		4, 223 211		3, 216 173		25 26
27	Total tax	8, 315		24, 176		3, 984		19, 225		4, 434		3, 388		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	58, 899		191, 809		26, 195		138, 596		28, 322		22, 725		28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	35, 552 1, 223	3, 110 303	179, 067 6, 902	2, 119 322	16, 372 179	2, 694 114	90, 041 3, 058	14, 480 2, 511	15, 013 877	2, 636 116	12, 454 1, 219	5, 68 7 786	29 30

Table 9.—Corporation returns for 1933 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933-Continued

					Indu	s trial grou j	osContinue	ed			
		Transports		Tra	ade		Profession- musements, etc.	surance,	Banking, in- real estate, companies, I bond bro-	Nature of not g	f business given
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
1	Number of returns	7, 274	13, 865	38, 873	92, 888	7, 449	35, 003	22, 125	97, 893	227	1, 261
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ¹. Gross receipts from other operations ². Interest. Rents. Profit, sale of capital assets. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	99 074	1, 085, 085 15, 351 12, 073 1, 483 14, 118	11, 499, 464 257, 388 33, 379 28, 469 7, 894 121, 415	7, 265, 326 180, 453 23, 699 29, 401 4, 447 93, 546	612, 551 3, 314 37, 746 2, 981 8, 905	1, 208, 199 7, 583 152, 561 3, 386 27, 270	7 1,358,310 585,198 214,095 59,158 43,832	7 1, 381, 379 1, 259, 796 645, 916 73, 916 119, 736	1, 084 221 47 153 91	5, 844 393 249 83 298
8 9	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations ³	55, 230 4, 417	5, 934 1, 853	18, 111 6, 384	5, 681 4, 242	1, 706 914	2, 825 917	89, 264 70, 011	314, 633 258, 282	284 9	769 42
10	Total compiled receipts 4	2, 164, 469	1, 135, 898	11, 972, 504	7, 606, 795	668, 116	1, 402, 741	2, 419, 868	4, 053, 659	1, 889	7, 678
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 5 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 6. Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets.	132, 673 12, 863 223, 483	599, 912 28, 585 30, 126 172, 604 59, 249 20, 061 111, 538 1, 382 22, 621	9, 095, 509 111, 495 268, 097 214, 698 42, 087 77, 825 84, 162 95, 710 8, 633	5, 754, 782 91, 539 298, 315 215, 156 61, 988 66, 287 119, 663 92, 141 348 48, 287	250, 002 47, 742 34, 347 11, 646 14, 619 5, 503 25, 837 33 1, 566	560, 997 85, 356 104, 844 111, 754 69, 807 18, 004 122, 151 93 28, 742	7 640, 466 8 75, 753 27, 936 114, 126 75, 322 28, 009 46, 863 54, 542	⁷ 585, 594 8 217, 056 85, 994 685, 556 260, 053 377, 323 189, 095 834, 149	369 204 25 38 31 11 26 2	4, 420 741 246 798 321 732 367 (11) 2, 436

21	Other deductions.	247, 317	240, 945	1, 598, 516	1, 240, 368	224, 737	556, 235	964, 202	9 2, 060, 984	387	2, 644	21
22	Total compiled deductions	1, 703, 091	1, 287, 023	11, 596, 999	7, 988, 872	616. 030	1, 657, 982	9 2, 027, 921	9 5, 296, 798	1, 132	12, 705	22
$\frac{23}{24}$	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	461, 379 401, 732	10 151, 125 16 158, 912	375, 505 351, 010	10 382, 078 10 392, 001	52, 086 49, 466	10 255, 242 10 258, 983		10 1, 243, 139 10 1, 816, 054	756 464	10 5, 027 10 5, 838	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax.	55, 207 314		48, 164 1, 717		6, 806 224		31, 804 449		65 1		25 26
27	Total tax.	55, 522		49, 881		7,030		32, 253		66		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27) Cash dividends paid. Stock dividends paid	405, 857 394, 603 1, 113	10, 023 1, 200	325, 624 139, 612 11, 718	25, 652 3, 499	45, 056 24, 505 299	7, 421 778	359, 694 193, 341 17, 294	271, 896 7, 575	690 307	373 1	28 29 30

Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."
 Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions,"

² Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its 4 Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations

as reported in Schedule L of the return.

Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.

Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.

Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return 11201.

Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies. (See D. 5.)

10 Deficit er compiled net loss.

11 Less than \$500.

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29]

PART I. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933!

						I	ndustrial g	groups						
										Manufac	turing			
		Aggr	regate	Agricul related i	ture and ndustries		ig and rying	Total man	ufacturing	Food and prod		Liquors's ages and not	and bever- (ale o holic aalcoholic)	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns	9, 390	15,068	72	276	400	769	2, 328	2, 613	481	348	51	56	1
2 3	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 2 Gross receipts from other oper-	17, 875, 106 4, 577, 268	9, 785, 480 4, 541, 117	40, 971 44, 494	39, 275 3, 216	501, 283 16, 075	812, 837 56, 537	10, 850, 377 84, 193	6, 601, 872 67, 832	3, 764, 924 15, 687	413, 403 1, 815	151, 288 1, 260	22, 932 117	2 3
4 5 6 7	ations. 3 Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	288, 151 162, 781 26, 830 354, 505	501, 324 267, 942 60, 576 206, 822	632 1, 036 196 4, 830	731 1, 129 401 1, 123	4, 176 4, 913 2, 372 14, 089	8, 351 7, 873 4, 053 11, 145	42, 790 27, 209 7, 845 161, 183	48, 438 31, 663 10, 251 67, 798	10, 842 3, 394 1, 016 23, 259	1, 526 1, 214 132 2, 954	227 971 94 749	133 932 105 215	4 5 6 7
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	624, 387	916, 420	121	332	12, 326	52, 635	111,701	167, 277	19, 421	2, 362	504	107	8
9	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.	55, 891	128, 530	701	262	2, 232	1, 450	13, 481	6, 356	1, 268	46	141	18	9
10	Total compiled receipts 5	23, 964, 920	16, 408, 212	92, 981	46, 469	557, 467	954, 882	11, 298, 780	7, 001, 491	3, 839, 812	423, 451	155, 233	24, 560	10
11 12 13 14 15	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid.	13, 826, 354 1, 807, 508 140, 992 293, 575 577, 658	7, 688, 484 2, 748, 533 124, 581 267, 863 1, 330, 209	22, 524 47 354 9, 208 611	29, 832 949 792 568 4, 084	309, 069 3, 513 3, 964 5, 173 9, 981	613, 488 26, 923 6, 615 5, 541 41, 200	8, 334, 808 11, 449 65, 480 65, 614 92, 622	5, 195, 147 16, 501 41, 462 67, 710 119, 400	3, 187, 275 688 9, 758 9, 865 23, 509	321, 675 779 2, 885 2, 617 5, 176	95, 958 4 1, 236 398 1, 012	13, 178 32 421 184 362	11 12 13 14 15

16	Taxes paid other than income tax. 7	453, 116	574, 223	2,090	3, 070	17, 619	43, 179	108, 542	168, 490	19, 539	4, 289	2, 643	1, 524	16
17 18 19	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion	102, 840 844, 732 83, 376	266, 373 846, 231 123, 092	352 7,617 314	711 3, 983 677	3, 169 37, 105 47, 283	5, 958 67, 040 60, 671	37, 251 302, 972 31, 447	43, 721 362, 309 55, 549	7, 187 46, 511 47	3, 301 12, 567	502 3, 576	847 1, 159	17 18 19
20 21	Net capital loss 8 Other deductions	6,001 3,529,753	53, 548 3, 108, 577	38, 622	154 8, 982	407 49, 365	1, 212 117, 290	2, 554 1, 445, 160	7, 902 1, 178, 888	375 402, 659	571 79, 955	29 28, 363	721 7, 569	20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	21, 665, 905	17, 131, 714	81, 750	53, 802	486, 647	988, 516	10, 497, 898	7, 257, 079	3, 707, 411	433, 814	133, 722	25, 996	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	2, 299, 015	10 723, 502	11, 231	10 7, 333	70, 820	¹⁰ 33, 634	800, 882	¹⁰ 255, 588	132, 401	10 10, 364	21, 511	10 1, 436	23
24	Net income or deficit	1, 618, 736	10 1, 768, 452	10, 410	10 7, 927	56, 262	10 87, 718	675, 700	10 429, 221	111,712	10 12, 771	20, 867	10 1, 562	24
25 26	Income tax. Excess-profits tax ⁹	223, 341 1, 736	5	1, 431 2		7, 736 83		93, 299 613	2	15, 562 192		2, 870 67	1	25 26
27	Total tax	225, 077	5	1, 433		7, 819		93, 912	2	15, 754		2, 937	1	27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	2, 073, 938	11 723, 507	9, 798	10 7, 333	63, 000	¹⁶ 33, 634	706, 970	11 255, 590	116, 648	10 10, 364	18, 574	11 1, 438	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	1, 936, 246 58, 398	646, 290 19, 923	9, 428	953	90, 573 863	78, 910 971	625, 051 26, 194	124, 165 571	114, 927 394	3, 641 3	2,382	356 96	29 30

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax; total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933 1-Continued

					Ind	ustrial gro	upsContin	ued				
					М	anufacturi	ng—Continu	ed				
	Tobacco	products					Rubber p	roducts	Forest 1	products	Paper, p	oulp, and lucts
	Net in- come	No net income	Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
Number of returns.	8	7	172	293	43	53	30	28	79	241	86	93
Rents	98, 636 36 253 61	6, 296 1 13 12 44	344, 814 3, 721 770 930 185 3, 205	486, 144 3, 095 1, 316 1, 955 1, 223 3, 327	110, 346 690 495 158 32 862	63, 003 190 111 182 92 538	235, 631 3, 291 682 1, 296 1, 536 995	287, 437 2, 205 3, 237 7, 749 212 2, 147	109, 420 629 564 343 149 977	137, 432 6, 293 1, 223 1, 172 1, 159 3, 095	222, 885 551 861 673 131 1, 383	147, 649 2, 007 7, 554 1, 191 388 1, 453
Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corpora-	11	1	881	1, 115	443	74	218	18, 219	392	969	1, 233	1, 132
Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4	36	13	467	52	98	63	102	399	240	150	318	62
Total compiled receipts 5	99, 126	6, 380	354, 973	498, 228	113, 124	64, 254	243, 752	321, 604	112, 714	151, 492	228, 037	161, 437
Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 7	80, 212 415 154 176 313	5, 021 118 11 14 42	261, 445 2, 395 5, 229 2, 428 2, 417 5, 301	429, 272 1, 116 5, 047 3, 591 7, 404 6, 682	90, 419 1, 539 1, 125 546 740	54, 240 118 878 1, 081 558 578	156, 903 23 1, 327 5, 676 3, 541 6, 968	225, 352 2 788 4, 199 7, 193 3, 289	80, 246 93 1, 591 348 1, 414 1, 933	102, 537 4, 686 2, 315 890 6, 873 4, 975	143, 898 6 2, 671 1, 583 5, 879 3, 468	118, 863 217 1, 698 2, 692 10, 791 3, 901 818
	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 2 Gross receipts from other operations 3 Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4 Total compiled receipts 5	Net income Number of returns.	Number of returns. 8 7	Net income No net income Net income	Net income No net No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income No net Income	Tobacco products	Tobacco products	Net income No net Come No net Income	Net income No net come No net income N	Note income Note income	Number of returns. No net come Net income Net income Number of returns. 98,636 6,296 344,814 486,144 110,346 63,003 235,631 287,437 109,420 137,432 130,005 130,00	Note income Note income

20 21	Net capital loss *Other deductions	$\begin{array}{c} 2\\11,044\end{array}$	1, 165	615 46, 227	530 55, 26 8	77 12, 0 12	37 7, 7 58	50, 021	44 52, 523	41 11, 811	30, 773	222 35, 246	142 24, 607	20 21
2 2	Total compiled deductions	93, 794	6, 612	337, 566	526, 336	107, 976	66, 897	235, 279	207, 108	104, 549	172, 141	209, 310	174, 626	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	5, 331 5, 285	10 232 10 246	17, 408 16, 060	10 28, 108 10 29, 275	5, 148 4, 607	10 2, 644 10 2, 780	8, 473 8, 152	14, 497 10 4, 121	8, 165 7, 533	10 20, 649 10 21, 768	18, 727 17, 176	10 13, 189 10 14, 383	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax ⁹	727 2		2, 230 23	(15)	637 9		1, 156 3		1, 033 5		2, 367 21		25 26
27	Total tax	729		2, 254	(15)	646		1, 159		1,043		2, 388		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	4, 602	10 232	15, 154	11 28, 108	4, 502	10 2, 644	7, 314	14, 497	7, 122	10 20, 649	16, 340	¹⁰ 13, 189	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	996 176		11, 908 589	3, 492	3,872 676	706 7	11, 574 50	5, 025	4, 833	6,009 6	10, 286 545	1, 339	29 30

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART I. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933—Continued 2

						Indi	ıstrial grou	ips—Continu	ied					{
					Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued						
		Printing, ing, ar industr	publish- id allied ies		and allied lucts		lay, and roducts	Metal and	its products	Manufac elsewhere	turing not classified	Consti	ruction	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	274	230	383	314	70	130	545	654	106	166	90	287	;
2 3	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ? Gross receipts from other operations.3	312, 143 2, 835	135, 957 3, 505	1, 487, 412 10, 967	2, 730, 730 31, 295	193, 332 1, 635	44, 737 739	3, 590, 418 42, 219	1, 959, 058 14, 923	229, 127 669	167, 094 1, 647	18, 385 50, 967	47, 706 67, 250	
4 5 6 7	ations.s Interest Rents	1, 195 3, 588 222 3, 342	614 1, 524 281 1, 848	5, 062 5, 817 1, 213 12, 748	17, 919 9, 807 3, 374 20, 116	1, 357 651 7 2, 683	249 283 69 483	19, 517 8, 804 1, 357 107, 357	13, 086 5, 040 2, 533 28, 578	964 522 1, 853 3, 579	1, 468 602 672 3, 000	839 191 810 768	1, 156 1, 087 379 2, 035	1 8
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	1, 301	5, 622	42, 096	115, 720	2,772	62	40, 084	20, 843	2, 344	1,051	418	667	8
9	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	406	14	1, 393	2, 151	599	83	8, 059	3, 200	354	104	179	284	1
10	Total compiled receipts 5	325, 033	149, 365	1, 566, 709	2, 931, 113	203, 037	46, 706	3, 817, 815	2, 047, 261	239, 413	175, 640	72, 557	120, 564	10
11 12 13 14 15	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6	203, 276 717 4, 960 5, 920 4, 040 2, 774	107, 646 2, 484 2, 428 3, 574 3, 439 1, 038	1, 015, 246 1, 232 10, 128 14, 370 10, 094 21, 111	2, 032, 018 5, 725 5, 426 32, 447 33, 107 103, 142	2, 057 853 2, 121 3, 308	31, 217 526 1, 088 344 1, 872 1, 393	2, 755, 858 6, 179 21, 205 21, 068 37, 091 37, 515	1, 624, 208 720 15, 869 14, 031 40, 954 35, 039	140, 052 112 3, 364 1, 826 784 2, 923	129, 920 95 2, 500 2, 050 1, 658 2, 599	12, 558 29, 697 1, 683 519 1, 279 893	44, 083 58, 216 2, 960 820 1, 939 1, 740	12 13 14 15

17 18 19 20 21	Bad debts	4, 006 7, 055 20 91 62, 913	3, 066 3, 599 8 39 50, 661	6, 816 67, 052 26, 388 159 231, 350	16, 585 159, 437 46, 758 2, 822 524, 668	1, 199 13, 953 465 432 31, 133	478 6, 226 204 38 10, 691	9, 950 115, 374 1, 833 452 476, 204	10, 750 12J, 110 1, 444 1, 895 293, 244	1, 827 9, 191 (15) 46 46, 177	1,746 8,951 21 545 40,005	446 3, 413 8 18 17, 814	1, 279 4, 865 8 464 16, 865	17 18 19 20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	295, 772	177, 983	1, 403, 946	2, 962, 135	179, 543	54, 077	3, 482, 730	2, 159, 263	206, 301	190, 090	68, 328	133, 241	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	29, 261	10 28, 618	162, 763	¹⁰ 31 , 022	23, 495	10 7, 370	335, 086	10 112, 002	33, 112	¹⁰ 14, 451	4, 228	10 12, 677	23
24 25 26	Net income or deficit Income tax Excess-profits tax 9	27, 553 3, 789 30	10 34, 255	119, 275 16, 473 129	10 148, 893 (15)	20, 124 2, 767 (15)	10 7, 515 (15)	286, 943 39, 499 104	10 136, 046	30, 414 4, 184 28	10 15, 606 (15)	3, 631 500 13	¹⁰ 13, 628	24 25 26
27	Total tax	3, 819		16, 602	(15)	2, 767	(15)	39, 604		4, 212	(15)	513		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	25, 442	¹⁰ 28, 619	146, 162	11 31, 022	20, 728	11 7, 370	295, 482	10 112, 002	28, 901	11 14, 451	3, 716	10 12, 677	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	18, 379 3, 002	1,089	123, 471 17, 590	75, 363	14, 288 1, 026	201	286, 769 1, 695	25, 534	21, 366 453	1, 410 460	2, 356 18	2, 552 20	29 30

'Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with ne in ome and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, et noome or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933 1-Continued

FART I. RETURNS OF CORTORA		10 11 HI CH				** 151015 1		1333		
				Indust	trial groups	-Continu	ied			
	Transpor other pub	tation and lic utilities	Tr	ade	sional	amuse-	insurance holding stock	e, real estate, companies, and bond		f business given
	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
Number of returns	1,803	2, 247	2, 264	2, 293	710	1, 321	1, 695	5, 171	28	91
Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	39, 337 1, 668	3, 758, 888 45, 263 33, 789 6, 028 20, 923 123, 767 3, 996	6, 464, 090 135, 709 18, 754 13, 076 2, 419 75, 039 14, 692 2, 489	2, 283, 789 67, 377 10, 717 13, 577 1, 268 30, 562 13, 766 5, 342	535, 740 1, 866 5, 400 236 11, 227 4, 181 298	350, 069 2, 728 18, 192 2, 266 9, 673 3, 084 132	12 358, 930 163, 670 71, 580 11, 283 64, 823 312, 878 25, 813	12 169, 939 383, 938 160, 629 35, 926 63, 443 554, 878 110, 708	5 20 37 (15) 559	10 2 3 2 118 13 (15)
Total compiled receipts 5	3, 648, 318	3, 992, 654	6, 726, 269	2, 426, 398	558, 948	386, 145	1, 008, 977	1, 479, 461	623	147
Taxes paid other than income tax '	13, 715 401, 299 3, 888	2, 494, 217 10, 819 48, 888 658, 361 252, 849 12, 604 272, 533 4, 516	5, 147, 395 62, 839 31, 080 100, 318 23, 408 37, 829 27, 655 47, 629 337	1, 805, 935 9, 612 16, 644 60, 440 21, 261 21, 377 29, 066 34, 067 437	163, 395 7, 875 32, 954 14, 642 11, 790 3, 134 20, 331	124, 374 5, 387 39, 520 37, 049 20, 310 14, 681 36, 165 202	12 15, 088 13 17, 743 14, 619 95, 297 24, 750 17, 114 24, 073	12 17, 730 13 40, 495 44, 369 446, 753 63, 196 158, 297 65, 153 1, 023	6 7 3 9 5 294	11 8 6 162 12 56 116
	Number of returns Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 2 Gross receipts from other operations 3 Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts Receipts. tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4 Total compiled receipts 5 Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax 7 Bad debts Depreciation Depletion	Number of returns 1,803	Number of returns 1,803 2,247	Net income No net come Net income Ne	Net income	Transportation and other public utilities	Transportation and other public utilities	Transportation and other public utilities	Transportation and other public utilities	Transportation and other public utilities Trade Trade Service—Professional, amuse, insurance, realestate, holding companies, ments, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, realestate, holding companies, ments, hotels, etc. Finance—Banking, insurance, realestate, holding companies, ments, hotels, etc. No net income N

21	Other deductions	367, 783	618, 672	1, 034, 295	490, 275	267, 730	176, 140	14 308, 964	14 501, 005	20	460	21
22	Total compiled deductions	2, 975, 784	4, 378, 025	6, 513, 551	2, 490, 151	522, 585	455, 496	14 519, 017	14 1, 374, 512	345	893	22
23 24 25 26	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit. Income tax Excess-profits tax 9.	672, 534 493, 766 68, 115 97	10 385, 371 10 513, 134	212, 718 195, 536 26, 967 670	10 63, 753 10 82, 861	36, 363 31, 885 4, 461 41	10 69, 351 10 72, 566	489, 960 151, 269 20, 793 217	104, 949 10 560, 637	278 277 38 1	10 746 10 759	23 24 25 26
27	Total tax	68, 212	3	27, 637		4, 502		21, 010	(15)	39		27
$\frac{28}{29}$ 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	604, 322 722, 400 14, 199	11 385, 374 90, 609 2, 812	185, 081 137, 441 9, 613	10 63, 753 9, 085 419	31, 861 18, 358 240	10 69, 351 3, 169 400	468, 950 330, 168 7, 271	104, 949 336, 848 14, 731	239 470	10 746	28 29 30

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933

							Industria	l groups						
										Manufacti	ring			
		Aggr	egato	Agricultu lated in	re and re- dustries	Minit quar		Total man	ufacturing	Food and produ			nd bever- (alcoholic nonalco-	:
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	135, 711	309, 635	1, 923	7, 055	4, 060	8, 314	31, 695	54, 656	4, 893	6,802	1, 317	1, 484	
2 3	Receipts taxable income: Gross sales 2 Gross receipts from other oper-	32, 228, 391 5, 101, 986	14, 420, 329 4, 331, 615	175, 035 16, 132	140, 266 37, 317	516, 439 56, 494	301, 286 92, 477	15, 733, 338 123, 560	6, 374, 195 160, 651	3, 066, 254 21, 374	922, 026 14, 764	686, 872 2, 078	178, 586 2, 279	
4 5 6 7	ations 3 Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	549, 089 333, 160 77, 392 405, 399	1, 357, 685 821, 133 77, 761 261, 962	1, 727 4, 036 938 5, 039	2, 268 6, 282 1, 026 3, 966	3, 716 5, 813 11, 266 8, 894	2, 905 4, 646 4, 287 10, 128	38, 376 30, 094 12, 227 137, 705	18, 443 20, 440 6, 773 47, 043	4, 736 4, 529 1, 802 25, 911	1, 229 2, 975 543 3, 967	819 1, 234 559 4, 003	222 967 50 1, 102	
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	316, 568	360, 131	1, 326	3, 803	4, 009	6, 778	82, 309	27, 350	10, 667	2, 401	859	159	
9	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	141, 691	337, 489	433	430	2, 140	2, 564	34, 785	9, 230	4, 165	343	798	231	
0	Total compiled receipts 5	39, 153, 616	21, 968, 106	204, 666	195, 358	608, 680	425, 071	16, 192, 396	6, 664, 134	3, 139, 437	948, 249	697, 221	183, 594	
11 12 13	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6. Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	24, 350, 692 1, 866, 624 1, 011, 501 467, 558	11, 592, 872 2, 247, 580 895, 984 456, 575	114,071 6,762 6,237 2,722	106, 087 21, 710 9, 517 2, 847	287, 169 12, 865 16, 657 2, 553	224, 811 57, 114 14, 934 4, 159	11, 389, 509 47, 897 394, 861 86, 374	5, 097, 837 99, 255 252, 033 74, 239	2. 323, 224 7, 551 48, 952 14, 019	737, 092 8, 947 24, 520 10, 989	439, 079 696 14, 232 2, 399	127, 927 1, 224 4, 964 1, 413	

:	Taxes paid other than income tax.	562, 205	572, 348	6, 769	9,740	16, 196	12, 857	190, 219	98, 471	84, 571	11, 201	28, 394	9, 221	16
-	17 Bad debts 18 Depreciation	233, 039 875, 969 68, 158 15, 696 6, 135, 037	579, 813 795, 176 37, 226 222, 152 5, 222, 161	1, 406 8, 438 963 124 31, 844	4, 407 12, 174 2, 870 15, 336 68, 689	1, 966 34, 035 53, 875 331 69, 826	5, 420 36, 705 22, 693 2, 938 91, 335	85, 255 403, 706 9, 507 5, 618 2, 168, 707	84 429 247, 830 10, 393 20, 467 1, 047, 661	9,489 $60,675$ 43 574 $422,630$	6, 250 26, 969 81 2, 395 144, 246	6, 282 14, 816 64 439 108, 381	2, 122 6, 416 1, 056 40, 570	17 18 19 20 21
	Total compiled deductions.	36, 038, 956	23, 683, 061	182, 745	268, 470	502, 730	493, 383	14, 844, 898	7, 124, 522	2, 933, 989	983, 863	6 18, 783	197, 365	22
37-	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	3, 114, 660	10 1, 714, 955	21, 921	10 73, 111	105, 950	¹⁰ 68, 313	1, 347, 498	¹⁰ 460, 388	205, 448	¹⁰ 35, 614	78, 438	¹⁰ 13, 770	23
	24 Net income or deficit	2, 656, 461	10 2, 412, 575	20, 163	10 77, 344	99, 801	¹⁰ 77, 655	1, 230, 494	10 496, 968	199, 616	¹⁹ 38, 359	76, 781	10 14, 161	24
10	25 Income tax 26 Excess-profits tax •	365, 035 5, 899	32	2, 767 78	(15)	13, 720 344	2	169, 167 2, 861	1	26, 207 450		10, 557 334		25 26
	27 Total tax	370, 934	32	2, 845	(15)	14, 063	2	172, 028	1	26, 657		10, 891		27
!	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	2, 743, 726	11 1, 714, 987	19, 076	11 73, 111	91, 887	11 68, 314	1, 175. 469	11 460, 389	178, 791	10 35, 614	67, 547	10 13, 770	28
;	29 Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	1, 916, 353 115, 021	390, 491 21, 421	12, 760 363	3, 269 197	84, 479 1, 269	12, 171 1, 377	794, 912 74, 315	65, 531 3, 617	135, 644 8, 547	4, 480 94	21, 909 1, 360	861 1	29 30

For footnotes, see p. 145.

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

						Indus	trial groups	-Continu	ed					
			<u> </u>			Man	ufacturing-	-Continue	d					
		Tobacco	products	Textiles prod	and their lucts		and its	Rubber	products	Forest p	products	Paper, p	ulp, and lucts	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	123	238	5, 510	9, 448	933	1, 315	237	312	1, 733	4, 484	1, 122	939	
2	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ² Gross receipts from other operations. ³	910, 809 308	29, 724 23	2, 632, 827 22, 243	1, 650, 697 41, 696	589, 416 959	255, 719 1, 605	117, 640 348	71, 343 173	367, 720 3, 051	436, 098 6, 782	727, 446 1, 513	182, 168 523	
4 5 6 7	Interest	1, 954 604 798 3, 016	59 62 12 118	3, 727 5, 430 2, 028 17, 303	2, 007 4, 064 958 10, 431	979 383 188 3, 726	345 443 88 1,550	312 63 15 669	101 133 40 422	1, 451 1, 459 578 3, 160	1, 975 2, 556 789 4, 922	1, 634 1, 799 378 4, 749	559 557 241 1, 199	
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	6, 665	19	2, 544	1, 623	358	176	59	79	442	605	1, 466	1, 130	
9	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4_	3, 624	41	4, 651	923	485	86	123	72	469	423	1, 043	698	
10	Total compiled receipts 5	927, 776	30, 057	2, 690, 753	1, 712, 398	596, 494	260, 013	119, 230	72, 364	378, 329	454, 149	740, 027	187, 075	11
11 12 13 14 15 16 17	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 7 Bad debts.	720, 951 63 4, 918 914 3, 010 7, 238 694	23, 786 5 1, 315 279 254 590 222	2, 094, 780 13, 061 74, 402 17, 550 9, 896 25, 286 8, 348	1, 434, 766 30, 216 55, 300 18, 092 13, 516 18, 758 7, 491	478, 479 453 13, 803 3, 850 1, 478 3, 318 2, 232	224, 360 1, 015 8, 098 2, 683 2, 086 1, 580 1, 455	83, 443 65 3, 731 454 452 1, 540 588	58, 572 62 1, 757 376 586 1, 070 467	275, 574 1, 041 14, 195 2, 299 3, 189 4, 991 3, 608	355, 576 3, 437 18, 769 4, 041 10, 942 9, 777 6, 970	508, 143 356 20, 260 5, 374 5, 308 8, 297 3, 400	146, 596 197 6, 732 1, 943 3, 567 3, 270 1, 470	1:

$\frac{19}{20}$ 21	Depletion Net capital loss ⁸ Other deductions	957 21 78, 164	5 10 5, 024	39 1, 160 258, 204	106 5, 729 179, 469	20 114 53, 728	20 311 29, 798	8 68 18, 003	2, 154 10, 612	3, 643 298 39, 687	6, 524 2, 376 71, 716	155 408 93, 489	31 435 26, 063	20
22	Total compiled deductions	826, 477	31, 837	2, 557, 915	1, 805, 491	563, 790	274, 515	112, 224	78, 658	357, 742	508, 060	673, 805	199, 282	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	101, 300	10 1, 780	132, 837	10 93, 093	32, 704	10 14, 503	7,006	10 6, 294	20, 588	10 53, 912	66, 222	10 12, 207	23
24	Net income or deficit	91, 011	10 1, 840	125, 642	10 95, 639	31, 862	¹⁰ 14, 765	6, 824	¹⁰ 6, 44 5	19, 677	10 54, 940	63, 713	10 14, 035	24
$\frac{25}{26}$	Income tax. Excess-profits tax 9	12, 514 3		17, 274 267		4, 381 58		938 18		2, 706 59		8,756 190		25 26
27	Total tax	12, 517		17, 541		4, 438		956		2, 764		8, 946		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	88, 783	10 1, 780	115, 296	10 93, 093	28, 266	10 14, 503	6.050	10 6, 294	17, 824	10 53, 912	57, 276	10 12, 207	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	95, 156 783	305	75, 493 8, 245	8, 126 523	16, 915 532	784 177	2, 664 28	735	11, 880 714	10, 689 249	30, 632 5, 101	2, 330 136	29 30

For footnotes, see p. 145.

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART H. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

						Ind	ustrial gro	upsContin	ued				
					М	anufacturi	ng—Conti	nued					
		Printing, ing, as industr	publish- id allied ies	Chemicals: prodi		Stone, c	lay, and roducts	Metal and i	ts products	Manufact elsewho fied	turing not ore classi-	Constr	nction
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income
1	Number of returns	4, 216	7, 388	2, 666	4, 245	927	2, 617	6, 299	11, 783	1, 719	3, 601	3, 263	12, 301
2	Receipts, taxable incomes: Gross sales ? Gross receipts from other operations.3	902, 680 32, 266	355, 536 59, 039	1, 685, 335 11, 119	381, 303 7, 702	389, 926 3, 947	182, 409 2, 685	3, 138, 299 21, 007	1, 479, 760 19, 314	518, 114 3, 348	248, 826 4, 065	160, 690 330, 064	286, 529 256, 140
1 5 7	Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	3, 266 3, 685 1, 340 10, 342	759 1, 385 382 3, 676	5, 784 2, 551 1, 227 14, 563	837 608 1,746 3,699	1, 111 640 802 2, 952	748 1,070 357 1,935	10. 710 6, 506 1, 942 42, 478	8, 670 4, 474 1, 368 11, 986	1, 894 1, 213 572 4, 835	933 1, 155 200 2, 038	1, 611 1, 891 1, 260 6, 112	3, 155 5, 252 1, 666 5, 671
3	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	7, 152	1, 332	37, 091	718	1, 777	129	9, 690	18, 412	3, 540	567	869	3, 212
)	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	3, 295	453	4, 984	204	948	481	9, 257	4,896	944	377	1, 623	1, 637
)	Total compiled receipts 5	964, 025	422, 562	1, 762, 654	396, 816	402, 102	189, 815	3, 239, 890	1, 548, 881	534, 458	258, 161	504, 119	563, 262
2 3 4 5 3	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 7.	563, 245 14, 134 48, 730 13, 960 6, 425 10, 233	247, 149 37, 130 32, 446 11, 050 6, 322 3, 454	1, 048, 597 2, 517 37, 068 6, 490 7, 564 22, 098	289, 281 3, 913 13, 924 3, 922 7, 070 4, 564	250, 768 1, 241 10, 263 1, 530 2, 352 4, 214	134, 316 1, 541 9, 850 1, 641 6, 617 4, 676	2, 249, 067 5, 656 83, 463 13, 384 5, 130 35, 338	1, 128, 653 9, 508 59, 451 13, 506 24, 134 27, 120	354, 159 1, 064 20, 842 4, 148 2, 228 4, 701	189, 764 2, 060 14, 877 4, 306 3, 218 3, 192	121, 840 234, 270 24, 329 2, 643 2, 529 2, 776	233, 365 205, 014 40, 765 6, 596 7, 365 5, 028

17 18 19 20 21	Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss ⁸ . Other deductions.	9, 516 23, 972 36 582 172, 833	7, 455 13, 932 4 693 91, 041	8, 917 49, 605 3, 545 426 328, 995	5, 061 15, 057 2, 114 429 80, 210	2, 567 23, 222 459 179 60, 955	3, 400 17, 751 623 484 37, 316	26, 187 106, 688 472 1, 085 446, 266	38, 379 83, 129 797 3, 757 279, 513	3, 428 11, 973 66 214 87, 373	3, 686 9, 156 88 638 52, 083	2,996 15,080 183 254 66,664	8, 926 19, 720 142 1, 540 82, 804	17 18 19 20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	863, 668	450, 675	1, 515, 823	425, 544	357, 750	218, 216	2, 972, 738	1, 667, 948	490, 196	283, 067	473, 564	611, 266	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	100, 357	¹⁰ 28, 113	246, 830	10 28, 728	44, 352	10 28, 401	267, 153	10 119, 067	44, 262	10 24, 906	30, 555	10 48, 004	23
24	Net income or deficit	89, 911	10 29, 898	204, 756	10 29, 650	41, 627	10 29, 0J1	248, 205	10 142, 375	39, 778	10 25, 850	28, 063	10 52, 853	24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax 9	12, 360 171		28, 154 414		5, 724 59		34, 127 683	1	5, 470 156		3, 859 177		25 26
27	Total tax	12, 531		28, 568		5, 783		34, 810	1	5, 625		4, 036		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23	87, 827	10 28, 113	218, 262	10 28, 728	38, 569	10 28, 401	232, 343	11 119, 068	38, 637	10 24, 906	26, 519	10 48, 004	28
29 30	less 27). Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	60, 776 6, 702	1,726 48	163, 301 14, 326	1, 288 150	28, 232 1, 162	2, 145 181	134, 045 25, 439	30, 769 2, 013	18, 264 1, 376	1, 293 44	12, 818 1, 802	5, 672 210	29 30

For footnotes, see p. 145.

Table 10.—Corporation returns for 1934 by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

					Indi	ıstrial groups	s—Continue	i				
		Transport other publ	ation and lic utilities	Tr	ade		Professional, ents, hotels,	surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, I bond brok-		f business given	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	8, 005	13, 324	50, 559	85, 760	10, 484	33, 397	25, 562	93, 668	160	1, 160	1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ² Gross receipts from other operations ³ Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations ⁴	15, 861 13, 762 2, 558 16, 695	1, 183, 558 14, 500 10, 441 1, 606 10, 981 5, 290 1, 814	15, 642, 889 311, 434 39, 165 34, 262 7, 434 164, 648 25, 895 6, 990	7, 318, 054 203, 618 16, 487 23, 748 3, 377 69, 949 5, 163 2, 173	968, 761 3, 120 14, 682 1, 790 12, 721 2, 121 818	1, 309, 252 5, 099 85, 897 2, 564 20, 523 3, 084 1, 057	1 ² 1, 113, 363 445, 307 228, 582 39, 835 53, 172 172, 844 90, 828	12 1, 085, 991 1, 294, 706 664, 285 56, 413 93, 593 305, 071 318, 570	596 205 37 85 412 112	2, 611 124 130 49 106 379 16	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10	Total compiled receipts 5	2, 261, 628	1, 228, 194	16, 232, 717	7, 642, 568	1, 004, 014	1, 427, 475	2, 143, 931	3, 818, 630	1, 467	3, 414	10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6. Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 7. Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss 8.	927, 755 35, 796 23, 919 193, 989 142, 992 9, 831 220, 340	722, 852 28, 144 20, 791 174, 490 60, 904 6, 875 110, 659 327 2, 601	12, 438, 104 131, 186 362, 401 268, 508 52, 909 98, 077 91, 302 111, 071 400 3, 003	5, 930, 771 105, 864 273, 902 179, 952 52, 707 57, 363 78, 306 72, 375 9, 056	404, 751 70, 440 47, 523 14, 383 20, 900 6, 873 33, 802 48 388	580, 741 79, 372 95, 673 108, 034 70, 794 18, 873 112, 290 14 15, 857	12 100, 903 13 100, 638 33, 297 114, 735 84, 223 33, 305 49, 456 1, 166 5, 330	12 453, 129 13 196, 969 72, 151 590, 749 256, 984 370, 944 183, 295 540 153, 981	237 142 19 23 52 14 40 3	1, 901 378 167 384 207 1, 633 128 (15) 374	11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20

21	Other deductions	247, 733	223, 208	2, 168, 073	1, 140, 993	326, 043	552, 524	1, 055, 971	14 2, 012, 799	175	2, 147	21
22	Total compiled deductions.	1, 805, 916	1,350,852	15, 725, 032	7, 901, 533	925, 152	1, 634, 174	14 1, 579, 114	14 4, 291, 541	705	7, 319	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	456, 612 425, 533	10 122, 658 10 129, 762	507, 684 474, 799	10 258, 966 10 266, 301	78, 862 75, 923	10 206, 699 10 210, 840	564, 817 301, 146	10 472, 911 10 1, 096, 552	761 631	10 3, 905 10 4, 299	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax 9	58, 485 229	(15)	65, 233 1, 406	1	10, 402 305	1	41, 315 498	27	87 1		25 26
27	Total tax	58, 714	(15)	66, 639	1	10, 707	1	41, 813	27	88		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	397, 898 397, 483 4, 103	11 122, 658 10, 951 152	441, 045 231, 368 21, 058	11 258, 967 20, 840 2, 204	68, 155 36, 689 2, 880	11 206, 700 4, 871 650	523, 004 344, 810 9, 232	11 472, 938 267, 061 13, 014	1, 036	10 3, 905 123	28 29 30

1 Includes consolidated returns for 1934 filed by corporations with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and by railroads.

² Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."

³ Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions."

Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

⁵ Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the returns.

6 Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.

⁷ Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.

• Excess-profits tax of \$37,540 appears on returns with no net income for income fax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934."

Deficit or compiled net loss.
Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax.

12 Includes for a limited number of returns, the cost of securities purchased for customers.

13 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return form 1120-L.

¹⁴ Includes special non-expense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

18 Less than \$500.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29]

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933

							Industri	al groups						
										Manufact	uring			
		Aggr	regate		re and re- dustries		nd quarry- ng	Total mar	nufacturing	Food and prod		erages	and bev- (alcoholic nalcoholic)	
		Net in- come	No net in-	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	1, 850	5, 039	17	84	77	311	830	1, 577	131	170	25	26	1
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: ² Cash ³ Notes and accounts receivable. Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁴ Investments other than tax-	1, 474, 036 3, 577, 606 2, 717, 710 700, 049 7, 917, 087	3, 994, 663 9, 083, 651 2, 889, 519 2, 138, 898 18, 197, 701	29, 231 8, 216 11, 930 10, 057 15, 447	4, 573 21, 122 10, 678 3, 320 27, 582	22, 168 41, 341 20, 389 19, 700 71, 549	98, 256 201, 260 297, 032 48, 670 574, 913	893, 119 2, 084, 479 1, 856, 231 440, 545 3, 943, 598	624, 591 1, 425, 458 1, 935, 922 269, 336 2, 737, 680	145, 079 272, 614 358, 814 19, 916 271, 997	28, 901 123, 957 90, 738 2, 081 148, 682	7, 733 21, 833 33, 437 5, 928 26, 073	1, 917 3, 270 2, 883 455 7, 485	2 3 4 5 6
7	exempt. ⁵ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion).	17, 138, 394	41, 386, 559	174, 046	129, 101	284, 153	2, 954, 996	5, 148, 738	9, 253, 942	849, 267	333, 119	66, 721	16, 409	7
8	Other assets	1, 834, 977	3,779,360	11, 991	14, 246	14, 816	225, 663	849, 495	862, 345	172, 061	63, 962	25, 683	10, 300	8
9	Total assets	35, 359, 859	81, 470, 350	260, 919	210, 621	474, 116	4, 400, 792	15, 216, 206	17, 109, 274	2, 089, 747	791, 440	187, 409	42, 720	9
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: ² Notes and accounts payable _ Bonded debt and mortgages _ Other liabilities _ Capital stock, preferred _ Surplus and undivided profits.	3, 022, 447 6, 314, 696 2, 411, 581 3, 707, 957 12, 953, 879 7, 037, 931	4, 620, 928 20, 837, 650 17, 587, 705 6, 415, 808 20, 586, 196 13, 947, 468	8, 744 22, 752 57, 069 1, 753 125, 135 45, 703	24, 128 28, 782 9, 335 22, 150 86, 131 52, 647	19, 346 64, 227 47, 573 21, 944 170, 625 157, 924	323, 524 532, 302 407, 280 269, 817 1, 979, 841 1, 081, 602	1, 691, 044 1, 251, 392 804, 129 1, 494, 962 6, 365, 549 3, 643, 592	1, 178, 717 2, 244, 862 1, 299, 305 2, 303, 686 6, 380, 787 4, 452, 558	211, 838 295, 182 117, 266 278, 158 795, 203 396, 260	137, 071 132, 424 42, 909 176, 171 189, 452 152, 731	20, 486 6, 643 12, 205 9, 223 80, 821 60, 487	4, 424 7, 571 2, 832 7, 352 14, 222 11, 641	10 11 12 13 14 15

16	Less deficit	88, 633	2, 525, 405	237	12, 552	7, 523	193, 574	34, 461	750, 641	4, 159	39, 319	2, 457	5, 323	16
17	Total liabilities	35, 359, 859	81, 470, 350	260, 919	210, 621	474, 116	4, 400, 792	15, 216, 206	17, 109, 274	2, 089, 747	791, 440	187, 409	42, 720	17
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other operations.	12, 130, 069 3, 423, 663	7, 950, 968 5, 367, 675	57, 148 26, 417	24, 322 10, 917	114, 546 38, 051	682, 383 257, 437	9, 014, 496 517, 164	5, 777, 457 366, 913	3, 081, 310 31, 104	613, 499 8, 543	108, 602 871	14, 523 54	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	181, 961 120, 865 18, 375 233, 122	553, 665 300, 795 42, 198 269, 682	838 1, 153 22 869	901 779 69 1, 309	2, 006 1, 955 764 3, 671	8, 097 9, 967 3, 550 14, 754	65, 634 36, 286 7, 323 166, 166	67, 341 31, 254 10, 055 82, 754	13, 276 5, 045 748 19, 037	3, 925 1, 754 300 3, 775	1, 839 283 525	133 281 18 139	20 21 22 23
24	Dividends from domestic corporations.	192, 126	206, 935	18	515	2,092	6, 974	41,087	23, 165	6, 504	718	204	4	24
25	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.	33, 705	149, 379	34	150	906	2, 479	16, 539	12, 729	1, 826	214	249	19	25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	16, 333, 884	14, 841, 296	86, 499	38, 962	163, 991	985, 641	9, 864, 696	6, 371, 669	3, 158, 849	632, 728	113,059	15, 171	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 9 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business prop-	8, 975, 182 1, 489, 148 96, 157 204, 698	6, 043, 831 3, 056, 195 146, 509 287, 079	37, 238 2, 984 342 9, 736	19, 164 4, 571 1, 126 511	82, 134 22, 217 1, 935 308	574, 097 162, 080 8, 399 5, 779	6, 662, 132 243, 460 58, 178 49, 453	4, 331, 484 169, 592 54, 004 83, 415	2, 501, 839 3, 319 12, 903 9, 822	467, 327 2, 774 4, 168 4, 229	50, 210 4 1, 534 320	7, 979 408 140	27 28 29 30
$\frac{31}{32}$	erty. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax. ¹⁰	434, 182 369, 928	1, 375, 003 616, 897	881 5, 810	1, 683 1, 760	3, 375 7, 360	40, 700 30, 438	108, 743 142, 461	178, 243 198, 759	26, 670 22, 813	11, 226 6, 170	656 9, 421	$^{280}_{1,385}$	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets Other deductions	105, 363 742, 090 39, 057 60, 361 2, 763, 275	251, 495 1, 000, 317 121, 032 373, 877 3, 066, 439	1, 007 10, 265 53 218 10, 312	774 2, 228 533 665 10, 068	1, 043 8, 228 5, 095 281 20, 066	7, 798 70, 422 46, 658 18, 526 130, 461	58, 169 373, 359 28, 654 31, 981 1, 615, 996	68, 735 463, 820 65, 671 65, 961 1, 197, 409	11, 499 55, 437 51 7, 659 427, 154	$\begin{array}{c} 6,672 \\ 20,956 \\ 10 \\ 4,682 \\ 128,265 \end{array}$	1, 269 3, 131 2, 884 26, 282	364 802 2, 150 4, 812	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	15, 279, 442	16, 338, 675	78, 845	43, 083	152, 042	1, 095, 358	9, 372, 586	6, 877, 094	3, 079, 167	656, 480	95, 711	18, 320	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss	1, 054, 443	14 1, 497, 379	7, 655	14 4, 121	11, 950	14 109, 717	492, 110	11 505, 425	79, 682	14 23, 753	17, 347	14 3, 149	39
40	(26 less 38). Net income or deficit	828, 612	14 1, 853, 693	7, 603	14 4, 787	8, 951	14 119, 170	434, 485	14 541, 319	71, 352	1 24, 685	16, 895	14 3, 172	40
41 42	Income taxExcess-profits tax	120, 035 247		1, 103 13		1, 298 4		62, 910 125		10, 351 13		2, 440 14		41 42
43	Total tax	120, 282		1, 116		1,302		63, 035		10, 365		2, 455		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax	934, 161		6, 539		10, 647		429, 075		69, 317		14, 893		44
45 46	(39 less 43). Cash dividends paid	905, 900 22, 502	355, 791 2, 250	613	182 284	7, 706	24, 704	363, 353 9, 685	95, 130 245	56, 170 1, 069	2, 967	4,002	99	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933—Continued

						Indu	ıstrial grou	ps-Conti	nued				<u> </u>	
						Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued					
		Tobacco	products	Textiles prod	and their lucts		and its	Rubber	products	Forest 1	products	Paper, p	oulp, and lucts	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	6	9	129	152	39	35	16	20	40	151	30	55	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments, other than tax-exempt 5 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	7, 658 4, 472 25, 179 3, 828 10, 787 6, 551	2, 587 2, 860 13, 808 1, 770 483 4, 196 1, 327	27, 434 70, 114 149, 885 20, 484 27, 612 190, 215 25, 619	17, 336 46, 281 86, 114 2, 304 51, 646 215, 531 33, 161	8, 285 16, 220 51, 515 4, 313 9, 226 44, 374 7, 189	5, 872 7, 561 22, 398 606 9, 254 19, 758	25, 114 40, 623 57, 561 5, 529 53, 879 113, 853 63, 347	21, 560 147, 720 68, 940 29, 963 149, 910 196, 953 14, 763	9, 621 18, 762 23, 525 6, 154 26, 646 83, 616 7, 900	13, 837 67, 539 63, 950 5, 298 121, 167 517, 834 42, 245	9, 576 21, 485 26, 618 2, 097 50, 276 134, 996 7, 910	14, 982 63, 322 53, 457 5, 228 343, 486 446, 120 42, 925	2 3 4 5 6 7
9	Total assets	58, 475	27, 032	511, 363	452, 372	141, 121	80, 954	359, 905	629, 809	176, 223	831, 870	252, 957	969, 519	9
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	8 090	548 546 413 16, 570 4, 084 5, 801 929	52, 337 14, 601 26, 378 117, 584 148, 580 165, 174 13, 291	55, 018 64, 956 48, 522 86, 708 170, 088 96, 637 69, 557	13, 111 7, 210 13, 198 36, 518 31, 444 41, 550 1, 910	10, 886 1, 910 4, 786 21, 614 24, 361 25, 399 8, 002	11, 463 59, 098 11, 080 91, 691 134, 568 52, 005	109, 906 135, 073 68, 939 109, 419 202, 882 71, 835 68, 245	11, 474 17, 145 17, 086 4, 777 65, 292 62, 944 2, 495	84, 352 101, 864 53, 952 60, 779 343, 322 251, 605 64, 004	12, 695 37, 571 6, 071 56, 518 90, 449 50, 294 642	55, 619 191, 959 71, 034 166, 604 301, 408 185, 804 2, 909	10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17	Total liabilities	58, 475	27, 032	511, 363	452, 372	141, 121	80, 954	359, 905	629, 809	176, 223	831, 870	252, 957	969, 519	17
18	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales *	67, 673	15, 414	403, 489	290, 135	130, 222	72, 156	181, 797	348, 310	79, 149	156, 742	129, 056	211, 213	18

19 20 21 22 23	Gross receipts from other operations ? Interest Rents Profit, sale of capital assets Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	5	1 16 33 1 72	8, 936 2, 270 1, 428 73 3, 540	2, 048 1, 186 2, 030 300 2, 706	1, 146 388 252 73 995	255 102 443 108 696	212 869 1, 326 (15) 3, 463	1, 458 6, 492 2, 168 139 8, 456	3, 673 729 387 451 1, 164	15, 453 1, 629 2, 148 2, 496 7, 194	1, 456 789 531 65 1, 488	2, 095 12, 752 2, 750 1, 080 5, 499	19 20 21 22 23
24 25	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4	229 (15)	5 55	1, 241 827	219 179	86 112	69 92	26 146	91 817	160 267	686 219	370 207	585 228	24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	70, 156	15, 597	421, 804	298, 793	133, 274	73, 920	187, 839	367, 930	85, 980	186, 568	133, 961	236, 204	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Loss, sale of capital assets. Other deductions.	91 87 958 463 1,041	11, 232 422 132 44 112 234 284 20 3, 791	294, 688 4, 427 6, 654 2, 767 2, 920 6, 807 2, 953 13, 974 2, 932 54, 820	227, 632 250 4, 275 3, 939 6, 308 5, 392 3, 777 12, 734 4, 797 49, 570	98, 210 347 1, 908 2, 307 776 1, 333 1, 065 2, 046 115 529 16, 238	51, 536 116 1, 159 5, 559 403 858 898 1, 942 444 14, 531	105, 755 32 1, 284 2, 790 3, 644 8, 116 4, 694 10, 394	268, 448 863 4, 243 12, 986 3, 972 4, 283 16, 413 856 60, 431	54, 167 2, 131 1, 305 416 1, 474 1, 887 1, 018 4, 021 2, 286 167 11, 312	115, 182 10, 329 2, 642 1, 174 7, 794 6, 236 4, 874 13, 894 6, 712 3, 273 45, 782	85, 852 464 1, 530 810 2, 714 1, 975 1, 705 7, 428 428 22, 463	162, 519 846 2, 472 2, 948 21, 113 6, 304 1, 904 17, 270 926 1, 891 33, 071	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	66, 407	16, 271	392, 944	318, 674	124, 875	77, 446	182, 146	372, 515	80, 183	217, 892	125, 386	251, 265	38
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38) Net income or deficit	3, 749 3, 520	14 673 14 733	28, 860 26, 792	14 19, 882 14 20, 270	8, 399 8, 201	14 3, 527 14 3, 688	5, 692 5, 521	14 4, 585 14 5, 493	5, 797 5, 370	14 31, 324 14 32, 229	8, 575 7, 998	14 15, 062 14 15, 875	39 40
41 42	Income taxExcess-profits tax	510		3, 842 18		1, 184 32		796		778 2		1, 160		41 42
43	Total tax	510		3, 850		1, 215		796		781		1, 169		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43). Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	3, 239 1, 405	779	25, 000 9, 403 1, 661	848	7, 184 1, 850	161	4, 896 4, 745	1,548	5, 016 788	4, 707	7, 406 4, 477 62		44 45 46

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]
PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933—Continued

_						Indus	strial group	os—Continue	đ					Ī
				····	Mar	ufacturing	-Continu	ed						
		Printing, prand allied i	ıblishing, ndustries	Chemicals prod		Stone, c	lay, and roducts	Metal and i	its products	Manufact elsewhere	uring not classified	Consti	ruction	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets ¹	75	130	126	167	21	79	149	485	43	98	25	135	
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable. Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments, other than tax-exempt 5	16, 995 260, 118 16, 473 10, 543 342, 666	8, 910 43, 720 15, 354 843 75, 331	259, 622 810, 348 558, 787 117, 707 2, 338, 694	183, 679 275, 504 449, 359 21, 015 447, 662	15, 823 23, 168 34, 784 8, 719 36, 505	8, 016 22, 295 33, 140 8, 392 31, 711	336, 490 480, 330 463, 761 234, 763 705, 802	302, 813 580, 271 986, 581 182, 014 1, 221, 017	23, 690 44, 392 55, 894 4, 392 50, 393	14, 180 41, 157 49, 200 9, 366 129, 846	2, 871 8, 979 3, 805 2, 727 2, 132	13, 448 51, 498 18, 463 11, 437 206, 206	
7 8	Capital assets—Lands, build- ings, equipment (less depre- ciation and depletion). Other assets	183, 522 171, 195	94, 540 94, 873	2, 209, 158 151, 638	2, 445, 152 130, 040	121, 217 6, 457	228, 918 17, 713	1, 040, 190 176, 259	4, 598, 353 301, 818	100, 823 27, 686	137, 061 93, 713	18, 942 3, 117	132, 679 25, 947	
9	Total assets	1,001,513	333, 570	6, 445, 955	3, 952, 412	246, 672	350, 186	3, 437, 595	8, 172, 867	307, 270	474, 524	42, 571	459, 678	
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit.	263, 700 103, 460 33, 227 44, 648 269, 026 289, 672 2, 220	41, 468 72, 074 24, 457 47, 748 79, 897 78, 909 10, 983	814, 577 335, 458 205, 719 253, 841 3, 318, 887 1, 520, 017 2, 545	302, 707 527, 508 399, 632 255, 444 1, 618, 334 1, 063, 892 215, 105	8, 270 7, 446 18, 470 14, 979 141, 956 55, 551	17, 062 51, 186 22, 209 72, 360 144, 150 62, 015 18, 796	252, 506 340, 632 296, 098 550, 816 1, 201, 882 799, 694 4, 032	320, 646 871, 806 486, 996 1, 217, 724 3, 079, 508 2, 383, 863 187, 676	13, 569 8, 478 39, 301 33, 146 79, 794 133, 693 710	39, 011 85, 986 72, 625 65, 195 209, 079 62, 423 59, 794	6, 220 1, 609 3, 664 2, 025 13, 905 15, 238 90	58, 425 118, 746 59, 126 56, 904 69, 151 111, 978 14, 652	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
17	Total liabilities	1, 001, 513	333, 570	6, 445, 955	3, 952, 412	246, 672	350, 186	3, 437, 595	8, 172, 867	307, 270	474, 524	42, 571	459, 678	

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ⁶ . Gross receipts from other operations ⁷	95, 262 193, 925	76, 960 69, 314	2, 262, 268 210, 833	1, 572, 015 184, 190	147, 606 350	66, 887 1, 063	2, 164, 954 59, 098	2, 186, 731 81, 398	163, 108 3, 697	152, 873 1, 042	17, 831 9, 035	58, 076 40, 349	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	1, 987 8, 341 348 3, 943	1, 661 2, 641 638 2, 235	24, 923 9, 105 3, 393 53, 195	18, 476 7, 234 2, 630 15, 039	961 441 49 896	851 408 259 1, 246	16, 755 6, 737 1, 323 73, 580	18, 528 7, 922 1, 877 33, 283	2, 053 640 498 4, 334	1, 590 1, 444 210 2, 412	192 81 7 138	6, 161 4, 979 995 3, 418	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	965	4, 175	24, 260	12, 032	804	36	5, 999	4, 462	239	85	407	5, 246	24
25	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	415	61	5, 510	956	285	303	6, 573	9, 377	122	217	124	342	25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	305, 187	157, 684	2, 593, 486	1, 812, 573	151, 393	71, 052	2, 335, 020	2, 343, 578	174, 690	159, 872	27, 814	119, 567	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 9. Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	59, 582 124, 575 3, 455 7, 296	52, 737 45, 063 3, 731 3, 589	1, 557, 672 99, 151 10, 535 12, 957	1, 094, 556 76, 353 5, 386 37, 103	102, 128 23 1, 453 907	40, 931 740 1, 960 676	1, 601, 457 8, 358 12, 667 7, 528	1, 720, 830 33, 043 23, 177 16, 960	95, 518 561 2, 766 1, 442	110, 573 72 3, 342 2, 721	13, 493 4, 781 642 178	43, 526 22, 345 3, 253 2, 085	27 28 29 30
$\frac{31}{32}$	Interest paid	9, 036 6, 459	5, 952 1, 686	40, 453 49, 573	47, 981 82, 345	524 2, 053	3, 714 2, 307	18, 885 28, 106	54, 418 79, 233	903 2, 958	6, 024 2, 759	173 510	11, 155 2, 347	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts	5, 220 8, 486 17 1, 457 66, 924	3, 379 5, 953 4 1, 992 40, 166	11, 979 172, 174 23, 685 3, 957 481, 188	13, 895 163, 909 48, 446 17, 984 343, 897	2, 162 8, 185 145 115 26, 206	977 11, 927 171 137 19, 263	12, 754 78, 063 2, 312 10, 963 391, 552	19, 615 188, 152 9, 386 24, 263 404, 203	1, 387 8, 978 26 522 38, 326	7, 864 9, 583 3, 471 49, 626	1, 341 6 128 5, 178	1, 078 6, 939 9 1, 667 30, 326	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	292, 506	164, 253	2, 463, 325	1, 931, 855	143, 902	82, 802	2, 172, 646	2, 573, 280	153, 387	196, 039	26, 926	124, 730	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	12, 681	14 6, 569	130, 161	14 119, 282	7, 491	14 11, 750	162, 374	14 229, 702	21, 303	14 36, 167	888	14 5, 163	39
40	Net income or deficit	11, 300	14 10, 805	100, 390	14 132, 270	6, 402	14 12, 089	149, 801	14 243, 541	20, 942	14 36, 469	358	14 10, 750	40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax	1, 639 1		14, 537 14		928		21, 705 12		3, 039 9		(15) 52		41 42
43	Total tax	1,640		14, 552		928		21,717		3, 047		52		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	11,041		115, 609		6, 563		140, 657		18, 256		836		44
45 46	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	6, 913	2, 195 10	147, 519 6, 658	43, 471 7	4, 546	952	111, 904 295	37, 024 227	9,631	378	925	11, 283 1, 245	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

|Money figures in thousands of dollars|

PART I. CONSOLIDATED RETURNS FOR 1933-Continued

					Inc	lustrial gro	ups—Contin	ued				
		Transporta other pu ties		Tra	ade	Service—l amusen tels, etc		surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, bond brok-	Nature o		
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	151	470	398	705	114	392	237	1, 364	1	1	
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: ² Cash ³ Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁴ Investments other than tax-exempt ⁵ .	226, 889 46, 021 2, 687, 486	588, 514 965, 261 328, 848 55, 913 6, 316, 877	159, 045 504, 023 565, 955 67, 164 228, 744	81, 299 293, 409 242, 142 35, 642 436, 307	15, 094 19, 963 29, 506 9, 604 37, 195	41, 380 237, 599 43, 797 4, 474 335, 840	100, 882 274, 305 3, 005 104, 232 930, 936	2, 542, 601 5, 888, 042 12, 637 1, 710, 106 7, 561, 460	8 1	1 1 835	
7 8	Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets	10, 753, 192 736, 059	25, 975, 635 1, 578, 093	499, 436 86, 940	582, 846 117, 821	138, 366 28, 102	1, 001, 204 139, 638	121, 520 104, 162	2, 256, 157 815, 489	296	117	
9	Total assets	15, 337, 564	34, 909, 142	2, 111, 306	1, 789, 466	277, 830	1, 803, 931	1, 639, 042	20, 786, 491	305	954	
10 11 12	Liabilities: * Notes and accounts payable	526, 765 4, 720, 040 858, 630	1, 506, 548 15, 058, 391 2, 920, 185	615, 026 93, 450 115, 262	243, 094 406, 490 179, 173	23, 693 60, 119 9, 619	285, 725 656, 272 241, 804	131, 605 100, 811 515, 635	1, 000, 272 1, 791, 806 12, 471, 496	4 296	496	1
13 14 15 16	Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	1, 811, 010 5, 264, 736 2, 178, 668 22, 286	2, 545, 861 8, 615, 350 4, 900, 185 637, 378	212, 566 633, 955 458, 018 16, 970	430, 076 399, 751 304, 331 173, 448	46, 450 77, 178 61, 392 621	138, 344 435, 922 177, 044 131, 180	117, 249 301, 796 477, 397 5, 451	648, 969 2, 618, 759 2, 867, 122 611, 933	1,000	504	l i
10 17	Total liabilities	15, 337, 564		2, 111, 306	1, 789, 466	277, 830	1, 803, 931	1, 639, 042	ļ 	305	954	- 1
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ⁶	2, 322, 834	3, 898, 116	2, 926, 047 22, 268	1, 408, 729 44, 631	187, 078	457, 500	11 300, 815	11 291, 811		******	1

20 21 22 23	Interest Rents. Profit, sale of capital assets. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	80, 170 51, 551 2, 287 23, 432	104, 210 50, 062 5, 237 88, 979	8, 346 12, 937 480 28, 729	10, 604 20, 479 4, 026 34, 368	6, 867 479 5, 223	4, 459 35, 866 615 10, 748	24, 083 10, 035 7, 013 4, 894	351, 890 147, 409 17, 650 33, 346	(15)		20 21 22 23
$\frac{24}{25}$	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4	112, 539 7, 790	115, 705 4, 534	6,378 $2,632$	4, 240 1, 384	1, 423 261	2, 433 155	28, 182 5, 420	48, 657 127, 606			24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	2, 600, 603	4, 266, 844	3, 007, 817	1, 528, 460	202, 002	511, 776	380, 441	1, 018, 370	20	7	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts. Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets. Other deductions.	1, 108, 711	2, 461, 721 14, 025 58, 212 825, 796 281, 041 25, 566 333, 127 7, 529 98, 551 610, 283	2, 180, 186 3, 111 16, 692 69, 586 16, 723 22, 969 12, 434 36, 132 4, 484 551, 834	1, 075, 561 11, 918 16, 890 47, 762 28, 230 20, 510 27, 431 27, 977 182 15, 433 330, 512	67, 522 4, 472 10, 204 3, 527 3, 644 946 6, 806 150 251 91, 288	121, 692 6, 360 48, 238 38, 443 21, 302 8, 139 44, 297 9, 276 297, 077	11 36, 363 12 5, 458 4, 759 9, 780 10, 432 5, 174 2, 964 1107 12, 299 13 231, 758	11 102, 275 12 42, 452 41, 078 250, 751 60, 739 111, 975 51, 507 163, 798 12 460, 296	(15)	(15)	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	2 , 226, 753	4, 715, 851	2, 914, 382	1, 602, 407	188, 803	594, 825	¹³ 319, 102	13 1, 285, 320	4	7	38
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38)	373, 850 253, 521	14 449, 007 14 569, 247	93, 435 84, 425	14 73, 947 14 79, 570	13, 199 11, 516	14 83, 049 14 85, 637	61, 339 27, 737	14 266, 950 14 443, 213	16 16	(14) (15) (14) (15)	39 40
$\begin{array}{c} 41 \\ 42 \end{array}$	Income tax	36, 758 9		12, 219 27		1, 672 15		4, 021 53				41 42
43	Total tax	36, 767		12, 246		1, 687		4, 075		2		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43) Cash dividends paid . Stock dividends paid	451, 931	137, 698	81, 190 39, 393 280	8, 395 16	11, 512 7, 323 51	3, 091 401	57, 264 34, 657 1	75, 310 59	13		44 45 46

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]
PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933

						±. '	Industria	groups			W	-	_ ==	
										Manufact	uring			
		Aggr	egate	Agriculta lated in	re and re- idustries	Minin quari		Total man	ufacturing	Food and prod		Liquors a ages (a and nor	nd bever- alcoholic nalcoholic)	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	99, 091	282, 584	1, 182	6, 012	2, 494	7, 068	24, 750	55, 679	3, 921	6, 889	845	1,422	1
2 3	Assets: ² Cash ³ Notes and accounts receivable.	3, 173, 266 6, 585, 303	6, 594, 124 16, 588, 843	8, 413 24, 931	15, 450 89, 570	72, 044 93, 616	62, 831 167, 910	1, 029, 295 1, 879, 861	537, 444 1, 374, 971	176, 311 226, 437	43, 736 119, 376	20, 356 43, 614	6, 213 14, 363	2 3
4 5 6	Inventories	4, 529, 949 3, 032, 403 15, 487, 895	3, 460, 151 7, 699, 402 28, 871, 167	23, 536 3, 601 25, 325	100, 429 10, 294 115, 437	42, 983 39, 739 115, 195	50, 345 34, 086 308, 820	2, 593, 251 900, 708 1, 811, 665	1, 698, 851 372, 371 1, 005, 591	382, 932 110, 384 342, 215	114, 671 10, 507 130, 425	56, 532 21, 906 29, 973	18, 284 5, 762 13, 165	4 5 6
7	tax-exempt. 5 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion).	19, 038, 141	27, 395, 259	133, 299	780, 110	732, 350	2, 081, 828	4, 812, 605	5, 169, 014	875, 293	583, 184	178, 019	109, 690	7
8	Other assets	2, 920, 864	5, 999, 481	13, 837	97, 299	60, 829	269, 209	1, 072, 260	1, 169, 253	149, 419	104, 278	28, 171	23, 057	8
9	Total assets	54, 767, 820	96, 608, 427	232, 942	1, 208, 589	1, 156, 754	2, 975, 029	14, 099, 645	11, 327, 494	2, 263, 020	1, 106, 177	378, 572	190, 533	9
10	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable.	3, 823, 215	7, 894, 927	32, 529	245, 624	77, 210	309, 618	1, 222, 561	1, 629, 792	198, 085	185, 517	69, 493	36, 449	10
11	Bonded debt and mort-	5, 816, 051	12, 914, 129	15, 714	164, 211	60, 609	270, 552	486, 260	1, 038, 985	92, 692	163, 539	17, 517	17,771	11
12 13 14 15	gages. Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits.	14, 644, 591 3, 674, 860 16, 402, 249 11, 008, 420	40, 740, 523 4, 595, 216 24, 145, 536 12, 798, 384	11, 051 5, 705 116, 460 64, 048	87, 091 60, 885 628, 566 225, 802	107, 002 35, 328 631, 893 354, 530	281, 406 171, 225 1, 765, 118 722, 465	794, 171 1, 555, 323 5, 709, 429 4, 506, 024	770, 367 1, 336, 817 5, 251, 771 2, 730, 918	133, 054 293, 620 886 930 683, 797	76, 462 159, 758 508, 916 145, 461	26, 774 20, 154 121, 398 129, 435	10, 707 8, 450 92, 561 44, 344	12 13 14 15
16	Less deficit	601, 567	6, 480, 288	12, 566	203, 589	109, 819	545, 356	174, 123	1, 431, 158	25, 157	133, 477	6, 199	19, 750	16
17	Total liabilities	54, 767, 820	96, 608, 427	232, 942	1, 208, 589	1, 156, 754	2, 975, 029	14, 099, 645	11, 327, 494	2, 263, 020	1, 106, 177	378, 572	190, 533	17

Ω	
-	
LS.	
-	
٠,	
_	
~	
32	
_	
_	
ATISTICS	
75	
y z	
$\overline{}$	
~	
¥	
9	
Ħ	
)F INCOME	

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other operations.7	23, 240, 317 4, 942, 376	13, 639, 189 4, 257, 079	65, 037 17, 383	115, 318 33, 932	171, 352 182, 537	223, 565 151, 421	11, 571, 529 470, 460	5, 997, 933 216, 206	2, 234, 933 75, 311	1, 044, 007 20, 268	353, 002 8, 095	83, 822 1, 629	18 19
149581 21 22	Interest	674, 592 325, 397 93, 199	1, 302, 945 809, 078 99, 458	997 1,857 1,050	2, 231 5, 009 1, 592	3, 072 3, 198 10, 125	4, 151 5, 987 3, 098	40, 456 26, 775 12, 857	28, 086 22, 992 14, 464	6, 099 4, 256 2, 437	2, 054 3, 974 574	909 1, 401 374	199 1,056 120	$\frac{20}{21}$
1 20	sets. Other receipts	304, 914	322, 685	1, 514	4, 138	7, 589	9,445	102, 095	57, 469	26, 997	5, 873	1,746	807	23
학 ₂₄	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic	235, 888	327, 527	929	2, 449	1, 920	4, 456	78, 372	16, 574	7, 798	5, 924	276	126	24
25	corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations.4	117, 389	281, 119	239	536	1, 545	3, 175	35, 398	14, 742	5, 016	574	834	316	25
26	Total compiled re- ceipts. ⁸	29, 934, 072	21, 039, 081	89, 006	165, 204	381, 337	405, 298	12, 337, 943	6, 368, 466	2, 362, 847	1, 083, 249	366, 635	88, 077	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold * Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business	17, 300, 705 2, 273, 530 750, 712 375, 454	10, 661, 507 2, 169, 549 934, 818 509, 047	45, 558 8, 882 3, 543 950	83, 881 18, 277 9, 147 2, 688	97, 923 80, 700 10, 622 2, 201	171, 435 94, 244 15, 598 3, 316	8, 132, 742 266, 587 310, 574 72, 363	4, 628, 477 135, 006 273, 588 83, 406	1, 596, 158 37, 819 41, 053 14, 245	817, 698 12, 428 28, 474 12, 437	187, 190 3, 585 8, 418 1, 210	49, 805 738 4, 523 1, 567	27 28 29 30
31 32	property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax. 10	438, 833 492, 536	1, 127, 319 564, 256	2, 275 2, 203	14, 058 8, 690	5, 243 10, 715	22, 705 13, 275	64, 457 185, 016	102, 778 107, 988	11, 980 30, 436	13, 927 12, 870	1, 944 28, 731	1, 381 6, 710	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets Other deductions	225, 019 786, 631 43, 875 105, 331 4, 676, 807	631, 371 893, 518 39, 398 948, 522 5, 220, 479	748 3, 213 836 361 12, 230	3, 515 13, 145 2, 258 8, 348 46, 471	2, 833 24, 164 34, 657 2, 081 46, 143	4, 372 48, 189 25, 169 9, 992 111, 924	90, 814 361, 364 5, 728 39, 102 1, 680, 876	96, 150 313, 773 9, 110 95, 157 1, 136, 445	10, 580 60, 430 63 8, 440 347, 304	9, 918 35, 850 120 16, 459 174, 286	5, 082 9, 695 2 1, 639 62, 389	1, 348 4, 583 18 1, 269 25, 166	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions.	27, 469, 433	23, 699, 784	80, 799	210, 476	317, 284	520, 219	11, 209, 623	6, 981, 876	2, 158, 507	1, 134, 469	309, 885	97, 107	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss	2, 464, 639	14 2, 660, 703	8, 207	14 45, 272	64, 053	14 114, 920	1, 128, 319	14 613, 410	204, 340	14 51, 220	56, 749	14 9, 030	39
40	(26 less 38). Net income or deficit	2, 111, 362	14 3, 269, 350	7, 039	14 48, 257	60, 589	14 122, 552	1, 014, 549	14 644, 726	191, 526	14 57, 718	55, 640	14 9, 473	40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax	289, 725 6, 640		964 39		8, 318 272		139, 205 3, 505		26, 320 615		7, 643 382		41 42
43	Total tax	296, 365		1, 903		8, 590		142, 711		26, 935		8, 025		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	2, 168, 274		7, 204		55, 463		985, 609	(177, 406		48, 725		44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	1, 450, 978 46, 122	378, 562 19, 340	2, 792 56	1,899 36	45, 653 2, 214	12, 697 57	650, 213 24, 033	49, 823 5, 413	123, 840 5, 886	8, 422 553	14, 512 1, 595	981 644	

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]
PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933-Continued

_	I	1		NS WHICH										T
						Indu	strial group	os—Contin ———	ued					
						Man	ufacturing	—Continu	eđ					
		Tobacco	products		and their lucts	Leather manuf	and its	Rubber	products	Forest	products	Paper, p	ulp, and lucts	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	112	224	5, 456	8, 429	924	1, 231	197	295	1, 544	4, 426	947	1,010	
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: 3 Cash 4. Notes and accounts receivable Inventories. Investments, tax-exempt 4. Investments, other than tax-exempt.5	79, 779 116, 112 261, 832 106, 768 106, 926	14, 495 11, 647 46, 289 11, 099 4, 878	163, 370 337, 481 613, 207 156, 278 142, 707	53, 066 141, 383 236, 845 22, 377 88, 490	39, 649 93, 488 134, 934 13, 800 36, 377	6, 657 27, 891 46, 260 3, 111 12, 933	8, 202 16, 807 23, 481 5, 340 10, 131	3, 491 7, 496 10, 547 750 4, 204	18, 790 71, 293 89, 390 9, 005 34, 102	26, 574 139, 912 179, 748 17, 602 109, 676	42,710 75, 287 94, 644 20, 298 52, 580	17, 763 36, 419 50, 743 17, 306 42, 099	34 5
7	Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	61, 119	13, 682 7, 321	990, 590 100, 463	515, 778 72, 248	91, 565 21, 384	44, 295 14, 308	49, 297 9, 676	35, 111 8, 671	170, 528 21, 230	567, 784 85, 004	326, 696 33, 211	226, 682	
9	Total assets	838, 806	109, 411	2, 504, 096	1, 130, 186	431, 198	155, 454	122, 934	70, 270	414, 339	1, 126, 300	645, 427	427, 236	;
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: 2 Notes and accounts payable	15, 023 29, 377	6, 561 16, 724 2, 913 13, 355 44, 626 29, 954 4, 721	306, 182 50, 820 147, 976 271, 755 1, 026, 855 741, 947 41, 438	207, 162 68, 171 77, 092 165, 842 566, 407 237, 749 192, 236	50, 807 5, 534 24, 069 50, 447 184, 378 125, 807 9, 844	35, 194 7, 437 8, 464 29, 096 90, 082 21, 805 36, 624	9, 836 2, 086 4, 487 12, 445 47, 892 50, 853 4, 664	12, 574 7, 111 4, 770 11, 823 32, 839 13, 875 12, 721	56, 400 13, 779 19, 059 26, 674 177, 708 129, 805 9, 086	198, 425 98, 519 78, 493 83, 662 572, 904 275, 233 180, 936	55, 309 55, 930 27, 029 91, 216 241, 277 182, 680 8, 013	48, 632 46, 098 21, 880 49, 088 184, 233 108, 391 31, 086	10
17	Total liabilities	838, 806	109, 411	2, 504, 096	1, 130, 186	431, 198	155, 454	122, 934	70, 270	414, 339	1, 126, 300	645, 427	427, 236	1

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other operations.7	742, 975 578	88, 422 40	2, 697, 389 23, 535	1, 092, 351 30, 602	583, 889 1, 394	177, 186 464	109, 000 1, 429	47, 146 154	309, 893 2, 882	377, 151 4, 321	565, 905 862	205, 245 329	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	1, 878 598 128 3, 534	300 74 3 186	5, 035 5, 880 1, 297 18, 038	2, 265 3, 108 734 7, 275	1,662 556 193 4,508	529 494 71 1,699	214 124 72 1,303	117 82 4 270	1, 248 954 784 2, 793	2, 764 2, 698 1, 064 5, 524	1, 403 768 325 3, 513	648 564 220 1,711	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corpo-	8, 834	158	1, 913	673	494	152	187	46	343	582	583	1, 261	24
25	rations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations.4	3, 426	216	6, 311	1, 166	945	115	187	19	407	1, 050	867	683	25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	761, 951	89, 400	2, 759, 398	1, 138, 174	593, 641	180, 710	112, 517	47, 837	319, 304	395, 155	574, 227	210, 662	26
27 28 29 30 31 32	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax.10	597, 400 141 3, 775 1, 031 1, 988 7, 625	68, 013 13 1, 663 385 1, 372 1, 101	2, 067, 857 11, 990 74, 895 17, 772 13, 400 41, 451	899, 600 22, 650 45, 470 16, 395 10, 252 13, 969	459, 415 812 13, 873 3, 129 1, 923 3, 823	147, 985 249 7, 044 2, 490 1, 512 1, 376	76, 220 67 2, 874 362 431 2, 355	35, 632 74 1, 528 387 446 1, 260	225, 646 930 12, 069 2, 029 3, 026 4, 566	301, 697 1, 663 19, 223 3, 789 11, 613 10, 407	394, 075 63 16, 144 3, 781 4, 738 6, 552	158, 897 139 8, 308 2, 399 4, 137 3, 993	27 28 29 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts	981 4, 494 38 512 70, 443	372 999 80 29, 149	16, 577 72, 951 204 4, 956 252, 490	12, 032 34, 273 17 12, 901 138, 736	4, 797 8, 042 739 56, 305	4, 014 2, 680 1, 243 27, 974	833 4, 105 122 16, 974	572 2, 763 189 7, 906	4, 746 9, 881 2, 931 428 35, 059	12, 010 18, 494 5, 866 6, 026 62, 931	3, 869 24, 970 280 1, 432 72, 688	1, 820 13, 284 56 1, 629 33, 793	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	688, 428	103, 148	2, 574, 545	1, 206, 304	552, 858	196, 567	104, 344	50, 756	301, 310	453, 720	528, 590	228, 455	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26	73, 523	14 13, 748	184, 853	14 68, 130	40, 783	14 15, 858	8, 173	14 2, 919	17, 993	14 58, 565	45, 636	14 17, 793	39
40	less 38). Net income or deficit	61, 263	14 14, 123	176, 629	14 69, 969	39, 345	14 16, 125	7, 799	14 2, 984	17, 244	14 60, 198	44, 186	14 19, 737	40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax	8, 427 3		24, 125 745		5, 393 136		1,068 52		2, 357 116		6, 066 160		41 42
43	Total tax	8, 431		24, 870		5, 529		1, 120		2, 473		6, 226		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	65, 092		159, 983		35, 254		7, 053		15, 521		39, 411		44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	88, 921 5	3, 669	49, 150 2, 864	3, 239 318	16, 586 190	763 1	1, 258 51	261 67	6, 131 861	3, 029 434	20, 889 341	4, 447 31	

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]
PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933—Continued

_						Ind	lustrial gro	ups-Contin	ued				
						Ianufactui	ing—Cont	inued					
		Printing, ing, a industr	No net income		and allied ets	Stone, c glass pr	lay, and coducts	Metal and	its products	Manufac elsewhe fied	turing not ere classi-	Consti	ruction
		Net in- come		Net income	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net income	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	2, 492	7, 854	2, 230	4, 035	605	2,890	4, 065	12,640	1, 412	4, 334	1, 955	12, 283
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: 2 Cash 3 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 4 Investments, other than tax-exempt. 5 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation	59, 939 119, 190 51, 665 65, 001 113, 330 273, 119	26, 939 106, 269 61, 371 14, 536 73, 526 241, 377	137, 035 281, 651 260, 333 152, 221 512, 925 562, 824	32, 171 76, 330 83, 082 5, 817 48, 582 308, 825	33, 492 48, 352 60, 753 27, 662 63, 392 247, 063	24, 089 62, 674 86, 356 16, 690 39, 119 475, 828	213, 549 378, 669 473, 173 193, 768 331, 208 869, 258	260, 084 544, 793 659, 165 220, 393 386, 737 1, 847, 069	36, 112 71, 481 90, 375 18, 277 35, 770	22, 166 86, 420 105, 490 26, 423 51, 758 199, 708	29, 980 91, 722 25, 624 35, 565 31, 879 77, 081	53, 875 237, 678 76, 682 61, 498 127, 591 325, 996
8	and depletion). Other assets Total assets	178, 140 860, 384	129, 961 653, 978	211, 929 2, 118, 918	123, 455 678, 262	29, 147 509, 861	54, 412 759, 167	151, 437 2, 611, 062	417, 955	31, 780 401, 028	92, 359 584, 323	41, 073 332, 924	114, 034 997, 353
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: 2 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit.	81, 027 46, 770 51, 954 90, 998 283, 107 321, 189 14, 661	141, 656 65, 303 63, 671 59, 635 298, 358 135, 083 109, 729	140, 099 70, 109 125, 403 228, 747 877, 082 700, 677 23, 198	128, 058 87, 150 63, 580 61, 529 361, 181 97, 643 120, 878	23, 916 12, 104 30, 019 55, 253 201, 471 190, 838 3, 741	80, 769 95, 882 46, 155 112, 456 370, 769 140, 536 87, 400	180, 415 72, 861 148, 535 259, 918 1, 121, 791 849, 125 21, 582	452, 743 328, 401 254, 306 522, 230 1, 812, 234 1, 364, 582 398, 299	35, 969 16, 684 23, 615 44, 201 156, 906 130, 124 6, 471	96, 051 36, 880 61, 873 59, 893 316, 662 116, 263 103, 298	59, 924 24, 534 45, 976 12, 406 103, 863 91, 891 5, 671	251, 346 90, 458 115, 589 41, 723 434, 255 206, 172 142, 191
17	Total liabilities	860, 384	653, 978	2, 118, 918	678, 262	509, 861	759, 167	2, 611, 062	4, 336, 196	401, 028	584, 323	332, 924	997, 353

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 6 Gross receipts from other opera-	334, 364	367, 136	1, 364, 955	353, 647	266, 768	205, 949	1, 653, 088	1, 656, 216	355, 370	299, 656	97,766	303, 044	18 19
	tions.7	308, 143	123, 018	14, 596	8, 783	4, 805	3, 301	25, 587	19, 107	3, 242	4, 190	220, 031	233, 122	
$\frac{20}{21}$	Interest	3, 499 2, 594	1, 383 2, 163	5, 911 2, 647	1, 285 797	1, 012 550	1, 338 1, 087	10, 024 5, 891	13, 321 5, 186	1, 562 555	1, 882 1, 711	1, 480 1, 096	4, 016 6, 153	20 21
22	Profit, sale of capital assets	683	879	4,386	1,328	732	386	1,090	8, 740	355	339	897	1,452	22
23	Other receipts	5, 771	5, 686	9, 268	3, 881	2, 210	2, 920	18, 606	18, 596	3, 809	3, 040	3, 506	7, 014	23
24	Dividends from domestic corpora-	4, 916	1, 964	37, 732	1,618	668	341	13, 797	3, 386	832	343	1, 285	3, 128	24
25	tions. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	2, 624	815	5, 890	313	1, 151	816	6, 634	7, 576	1, 107	1,081	1, 474	2, 468	25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	662, 595	503, 043	1, 445, 385	371, 651	277, 896	216, 139	1, 734, 716	1, 732, 127	366, 831	312, 243	327, 534	560, 397	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold • Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property.	195, 186 196, 070 31, 247 9, 527	242, 250 77, 600 39, 758 14, 826	816, 661 5, 576 31, 435 6, 154	252, 149 5, 152 14, 757 3, 955	167, 492 2, 240 6, 711 1, 120	150, 315 2, 378 12, 507 2, 120	1, 119, 858 6, 138 51, 633 8, 722	1, 279, 659 10, 528 70, 981 17, 087	229, 586 1, 156 16, 448 3, 280	224, 776 1, 395 19, 344 5, 568	74, 430 146, 572 15, 531 1, 701	247, 293 180, 849 45, 372 7, 789	27 28 29 30
$\frac{31}{32}$	Interest paid	4, 831 7, 483	7, 709 4, 865	7, 542 21, 456	7, 285 4, 565	1, 598 3, 468	8, 138 5, 619	9, 115 23, 503	30, 516 36, 335	1, 942 3, 568	4, 491 4, 918	1, 645 2, 106	8, 846 6, 065	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts. Depreciation Depletion Loss, sale of capital assets. Other deductions.	7, 944 19, 724 35 6, 467 117, 658	9, 536 19, 990 6 3, 513 125, 241	10, 630 46, 171 1, 637 3, 426 285, 184	6, 498 20, 043 1, 974 28, 378 80, 087	2, 159 18, 886 318 3, 298 40, 462	3, 571 23, 793 793 3, 386 45, 117	18, 862 72, 785 196 6, 737 259, 605	27, 609 122, 486 183 15, 964 316, 816	3, 755 9, 231 24 907 64, 314	6, 849 14, 534 77 4, 120 69, 242	1, 862 10, 207 42 1, 994 48, 303	10, 396 27, 008 110 7, 272 89, 052	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	596, 172	545, 294	1, 235, 872	424, 843	247, 749	257, 738	1, 577, 154	1, 928, 164	334, 209	355, 313	304, 393	630, 053	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	66, 423	14 42, 251	209, 513	14 53, 192	30, 147	14 41, 598	157, 562	14 196, 036	32, 622	14 43, 070	23, 141	14 69, 657	39
40	Net income or deficit	58, 883	14 45, 030	165, 891	14 55, 123	28, 328	14 42, 756	137, 132	14 206, 998	30, 684	14 44, 495	20, 382	14 75, 252	40
41 42	Income tax. Excess-profits tax.	8, 090 122		22, 789 515		3, 893 86		18, 825 365		4, 209 209		2, 817 165		41 42
43	Total tax	8, 212		23, 305		3, 979		19, 190		4, 417		2, 982		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	58, 211		186, 208		26, 168		138, 373		28, 205		20, 159		44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	35, 215 1, 223	3, 095 303	172, 475 6, 902	2, 119 322	16, 368 179	2, 694 114	89, 854 3, 058	14, 473 2, 511	15, 013 877	2, 633 116	9, 814 1, 219	5, 636 786	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 161.

Table 11.—Returns of corporations for 1933 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1933, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1933, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued.

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS WHICH WERE NOT CONSOLIDATED FOR 1933-Continued

		1			Indu	strial group	os—Continue	e d				
	·	Transport other publ	ation and ic utilities	Tre	ade	amuseme	Professional, onts, hotels, etc.	surance, realing compa	Banking, in- lestate, hold - unies, stock brokers, etc.	Nature of not g		
		Net income	No net in- come	Net income	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net in- come	Net income	No net in-	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 1	6, 194	10, 891	37, 062	81, 899	6, 237	27, 803	19, 093	80, 295	124	654	
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: ² Cash ³ Notes and accounts receivable. Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁴ Investments other than tax-exempt ⁵ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	419, 471 119, 707 56, 095 1, 254, 706 9, 358, 446	167, 015 189, 149 65, 550 27, 548 878, 659 4, 953, 699 638, 303	489, 873 1, 595, 287 1, 688, 824 147, 577 506, 687 1, 235, 692 342, 149	260, 019 1, 551, 515 1, 312, 050 77, 344 532, 818 1, 491, 624 522, 266	68, 914 110, 889 19, 560 18, 857 82, 181 542, 167 95, 359	78, 698 256, 592 46, 519 18, 360 237, 597 3, 388, 077 383, 040	1, 191, 548 2, 367, 413 16, 284 1, 829, 968 11, 653, 238 2, 145, 114 902, 874	5, 417, 216 12, 704, 880 108, 810 7, 086, 914 25, 641, 551 9, 189, 375 2, 794, 589	696 2,113 181 292 7,018 1,388	1, 577 16, 580 915 10, 986 23, 103 15, 537 11, 488	
9	Total assets	11, 882, 470	6, 919, 923	6, 006, 088	5, 747, 634	937, 928	4, 408, 883	20, 106, 439	62, 943, 335	12, 631	80, 187	
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	354, 126 3, 882, 365 526, 244 1, 117, 946 4, 449, 728 1, 593, 017 40, 956	410, 153 3, 298, 175 795, 757 384, 902 2, 001, 830 550, 144 521, 039	1, 301, 042 187, 249 326, 212 438, 434 2, 347, 730 1, 505, 218 99, 797	1, 465, 380 439, 256 396, 479 432, 071 2, 837, 194 1, 050, 265 873, 011	88, 653 180, 672 82, 088 54, 855 347, 002 212, 852 28, 195	556, 222 1, 826, 805 476, 912 341, 279 1, 319, 783 471, 628 583, 746	686, 095 978, 107 12, 751, 395 454, 248 2, 685, 834 2, 678, 268 127, 508	3, 006, 878 5, 781, 396 37, 811, 988 1, 813, 761 9, 841, 730 6, 822, 162 2, 134, 580	1, 076 540 453 615 10, 309 2, 573 2, 933	19, 913 4, 291 4, 934 12, 552 65, 288 18, 829 45, 620	1 1 1 1 1
17	Total liabilities		6, 919, 923	6, 006, 088	5, 747, 634	937, 928	4, 408, 883	20, 106, 439	62, 943, 335	12, 631	80, 187]
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales Gross receipts from other operations 7	2, 025, 944	1,049,092	11, 334, 632 250, 817	6, 999, 329 162, 615	592, 322	1, 117, 230	11 1, 181, 992	11 1, 289, 401	892	4,060	-

20 21 22 23	Interest	19, 431 23, 580 1, 654 18, 892	11, 264 11, 192 1, 434 12, 945	32, 410 28, 169 7, 873 120, 754	23, 471 28, 205 4, 220 91, 969	3, 225 37, 164 2, 938 8, 672	6, 842 145, 287 3, 288 25, 399	573, 389 203, 529 55, 744 41, 810	1, 222, 598 584, 090 69, 862 114, 106	132 30 60 80	287 162 47 200	20 21 22 23
24 25	Dividends from domestic corporations	55, 220 4, 329	5, 776 1, 852	16, 631 6, 353	5, 510 4, 238	1, 643 904	2, 721 913	79, 644 67, 138	286, 568 253, 153	244 9	346 42	24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 8	2, 149, 051	1,093,555	11, 797, 638	7, 319, 558	646, 868	1, 301, 680	2, 203, 246	3, 819, 779	1,448	5, 142	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Loss, sale of capital assets. Other deductions.	28, 360 26, 358 201, 125 132, 130 12, 799 222, 317	580, 682 26, 258 28, 855 165, 206 57, 973 19, 694 107, 896 1, 360 14, 537 226, 119	8, 950, 052 107, 869 264, 364 212, 791 41, 278 77, 200 83, 356 94, 910 259 8, 420 1, 586, 213	5, 530, 422 80, 752 282, 497 204, 493 60, 292 64, 011 115, 367 89, 759 338 43, 707 1, 202, 051	241, 650 45, 440 33, 092 11, 446 14, 307 5, 443 25, 331 26 1, 510 217, 854	513, 774 77, 509 97, 077 107, 913 66, 900 17, 255 116, 970 79 24, 943 515, 065	11 602, 552 12 72, 099 25, 975 111, 330 68, 836 27, 154 45, 102 688 49, 593 13 840, 759	11 562, 871 12 204, 358 81, 297 644, 925 239, 130 364, 157 176, 480 975 743, 161 13 1, 891, 700	279 178 22 34 23 10 24 2 24 351	3, 094 492 127 596 226 464 300 (15) 1, 404 1, 650	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	1, 689, 487	1, 228, 579	11, 426, 710	7, 673, 689	596, 100	1, 537, 486	13 1, 844, 089	13 4, 909, 053	946	8, 353	38
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38)	459, 564 400, 015	14 135, 024 14 142, 652	370, 929 347, 945	14 354, 130 14 363, 878	50, 768 48, 221	14 235, 806 14 239, 440		14 1, 089, 274 14 1, 628, 995	502 248	14 3, 211 14 3, 598	39 40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax			47, 755 1, 706		6, 643 215		29, 020 428		34 1		41 42
43	Total tax	55, 278		49, 461		6,858		29, 448		35		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43)	393, 992	9, 889 1, 200	321, 468 139, 257 11, 715	25, 570 3, 498	43, 910 24, 254 299	6, 857 778	329, 708 184, 696 5, 473	265, 818 7, 571	467 307	372 1	44 45 46

¹ Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balancesheet data.

See text, pp. 13-18.
Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.

Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

See text, p. 15.

6 Gross sales where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold" see "deductions."

⁷ Gross receipts from other operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations" see "deductions."

* Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in schedule L of the return. Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation

see p. 11.

10 Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

11 Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.

12 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file form 1120-L. 15 Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

14 Deficit or compiled net loss.

15 Less than \$500.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] [For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29] PART I—RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933 1

							Industria	l groups						
										Manufactu	iring			
		Aggr	egate	Agricult related in	dustries	Mining and	l quarrying	Total ma	nufacturing	Food and prod		ages	nd bever- (alcoholic nalcoholic)	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with bal- ance sheets. ²	9, 023	14, 013	67	254	383	727	2, 241	2,456	463	325	50	53	
23	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable.	2, 375, 875 7, 204, 209	4, 227, 466 11, 562, 314	25, 347 11, 732	3, 544 34, 172	62, 393 165, 922	62, 451 305, 491	767, 185 1, 958, 287	480, 446 2, 315, 945	106, 318 388, 391	13, 992 61, 669	5, 761 19, 918	805 3, 678	
4 5 6	Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments other than	3, 303, 802 905, 444 16, 670, 983	2, 531, 560 3, 595, 880 29, 951, 453	11, 728 24, 067 91, 129	18, 780 5, 745 36, 400	97, 445 58, 997 371, 907	172, 523 34, 102 1, 160, 300	2, 044, 596 378, 904 2, 310, 555	1, 725, 155 138, 213 2, 996, 574	436, 866 12, 762 362, 101	48, 648 520 96, 691	30, 949 2, 998 12, 226	2, 052 304 8, 786	1
7	tax-exempt.6 Capital assets — Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and	22, 069, 605	34, 896, 127	108, 349	213, 968	1, 126, 727	2, 170, 543	4, 547, 255	6, 150, 588	702, 506	232, 711	63, 082	20, 858	
8	depletion). Other assets	2, 739, 239	3, 373, 189	4, 779	8, 922	56, 587	182, 872	833, 700	660, 376	121, 098	31, 816	10, 926	8, 501	l
9	Total assets	55, 269, 156	90, 137, 989	277, 131	321, 531	1, 939, 979	4, 088, 282	12, 840, 480	14, 467, 298	2, 130, 040	486, 048	145, 861	44, 985	
0	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable.	5, 971, 515	9, 432, 936	46, 654	121, 269	240, 179	654, 424	1, 656, 627	2, 255, 653	303, 746	102, 747	28, 010	6, 948	-
i	Bonded debt and mort-	8, 568, 799	21, 740, 205	5, 790	35, 877	106, 157	610, 239	979, 702	1, 596, 979	278, 263	59, 905	6, 113	7,079	
2 3 4	gages. Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common	5, 483, 409 4, 346, 225 20, 009, 476	17, 47 6 , 640 6, 995, 388 25, 308, 458	20, 485 2, 294 153, 582	32, 512 13, 696 127, 689	143, 749 51, 558 719, 186	213, 109 202, 909 1, 791, 846	812, 236 1, 583, 566 4, 587, 638	1, 046, 244 1, 456, 198 5, 753, 969	124, 454 273, 006 723, 871	28, 297 55, 281 167, 981	12, 862 8, 462 38, 146	2, 980 5, 774 11, 206	1

Οž	
\vdash	
>	
<u></u>	
3	
STATISTICS	
Vź	
_	
▭	
\Box	
S	
$\overline{}$	
E0	
-73	
 	
1	
~	
C2	
õ	
9	
Ñ.	
OME	
INCOME	
OME	

15	Surplus and undivided profits.	11, 416, 115	13, 830, 733	57, 410	57, 280	735, 912	955, 848	3, 376, 108	3, 226, 795	460, 569	113, 886	52, 705	19, 895	15
16	Less deficit	526, 383	4, 646, 372	9, 084	66, 792	56, 762	340, 092	155, 396	868, 540	33, 870	42, 049	438	8, 898	16
17	Total liabilities	55, 269, 156	90, 137, 989	277, 131	321, 531	1, 939, 979	4, 088, 282	12, 840, 480	14, 467, 298	2, 130, 040	486, 048	145, 861	44, 985	17
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 Gross receipts from other operations.8	17, 599, 904 4, 539, 698	9, 458, 469 4, 451, 610	40, 840 44, 494	37, 367 3, 189	497, 449 15, 846	703, 335 21, 172	10, 672, 731 79, 093	6, 515, 225 67, 545	3, 743, 178 15, 659	407, 771 1, 815	150, 227 1, 260	22, 852 117	18 19
$20 \\ 21 \\ 22 \\ 23$	Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	286, 559 161, 055 25, 805 352, 720	495, 133 264, 542 59, 061 203, 312	1, 007 196 4, 771	728 1, 120 401 1, 051	4, 072 4, 862 2, 329 14, 082	7, 760 7, 800 3, 295 10, 990	42, 443 26, 585 7, 107 160, 652	48, 268 31, 479 10, 205 66, 938	10, 823 3, 382 1, 012 23, 228	1, 510 1, 209 130 2, 938	227 970 92 745	133 932 105 207	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic	613, 961	897, 836	96	332	12, 300	41, 101	103, 308	167, 275	19, 421	2, 362	504	107	24
25	corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations.	55, 791	127, 795	693	262	2, 232	1, 450	13, 408	6, 352	1, 268	46	141	18	25
2 6	Total compiled receipts9	23, 635, 494	15, 957, 757	92, 711	44, 451	553, 171	796, 904	11, 105, 326	6, 913, 286	3, 817, 971	417, 780	154, 166	24, 471	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business	13, 603, 674 1, 792, 679 139, 591 289, 396	7, 397, 858 2, 700, 012 121, 908 260, 962	22, 480 47 336 9, 208	28, 449 935 785 544	306, 109 3, 513 3, 931 5, 165	510, 489 7, 651 5, 862 5, 169	8, 191, 290 11, 391 64, 940 62, 375	5, 112, 608 16, 490 41, 034 66, 962	3, 171, 276 688 9, 627 9, 781	317, 208 779 2, 845 2, 614	95, 271 4 1, 228 398	13, 168 32 415 184	27 28 29 30
31 32	property. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax. ¹¹	575, 402 448, 448	1, 310, 680 568, 463	608 2, 075	4, 026 2, 990	9, 970 17, 574	39, 756 41, 955	92, 024 105, 976	118, 674 167, 871	23, 444 19, 356	5, 154 4, 257	1, 012 2, 641	312 1, 518	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	832, 984 83, 152 5, 953	259, 855 821, 676 116, 917 45, 708	352 7,610 312 12	392 3, 962 677 150	3, 166 36, 833 47, 112 407	5, 653 58, 279 54, 661 649	36, 080 297, 452 31, 441 2, 534	42, 391 358, 678 55, 393 7, 814	7, 144 45, 933 47 371	3, 294 12, 399 566	502 3,534	1, 124 721	33 34 35 36
		3, 497, 787	3, 032, 858	38, 552	8, 570	49, 167	110, 259	1, 430, 010	1, 168, 136	398, 845	78, 778	28, 361	7, 554	37
38	Total compiled deduc- tions.	21, 369, 899	16, 636, 897	81, 591	51, 479	482, 947	840, 382	10, 325, 513	7, 156, 051	3, 686, 511	427, 894	132, 980	25, 875	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	2, 265, 595	14 679, 140	11, 119	14 7, 027	70, 224	14 43, 479	779, 814	14 242, 765	131, 460	14 10, 114	21, 186	14 1, 404	39
40	Net income or deficit	1, 595, 843	14 1, 704, 771	10, 330	14 7, 622	55, 692	14 86, 030	663, 098	14 416, 392	110, 772	14 12, 521	20, 541	14 1, 529	40
$\begin{array}{c} 41 \\ 42 \end{array}$	Income tax Excess-profits tax 13	220, 193 1, 720	5	1, 420 2		7, 658 83		91, 566 607	2	15, 432 192		2, 825 67	1	41 42
43	Total tax	221, 913	5	1, 422		7, 741		92, 172	2	15, 624		2, 892	1	43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	2, 043, 682	15 679, 145	9, 697	1 7, 027	62, 483	14 43, 479	687, 641	15 242, 767	115, 836	14 10, 114	18, 293	15 1, 405	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	1, 892, 829 58, 398	636, 686 17, 923	9, 353	1, 064	90, 369 863	78, 262 971	599, 288 26, 194	123, 566 571	110, 596 394	3, 205	2,382	356 96	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued
[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART I-RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933 1-Continued

						Indu	ıstrial grou	ps—Conti	nued					
						Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	neq					
		Tobacco	products		and their lucts		and its	Rubber	products	Forest p	products	Paper, p	oulp, and lucts	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheet 2	8	7	168	278	43	53	27	26	78	236	85	80	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: ³ Cash ⁴ Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁵ Investments other than tax-exempt ⁶ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets	1 11 060	634 1, 086 2, 400 257 1, 103 1, 817	23, 345 58, 509 92, 478 13, 768 34, 966 145, 579	28, 564 76, 394 132, 339 1, 300 69, 863 265, 385	8, 102 37, 478 31, 367 2, 496 6, 640 17, 331	2, 361 11, 218 21, 467 1, 207 5, 206 23, 490	21, 334 54, 567 79, 892 1, 780 58, 116 118, 647	13, 340 120, 951 73, 583 11, 551 170, 641 143, 369	11, 310 21, 318 26, 470 8, 961 39, 386 92, 822	12, 074 74, 527 54, 065 2, 970 102, 587 416, 269	17, 790 33, 937 45, 718 7, 887 53, 201 231, 364	7, 382 110, 493 30, 718 792 330, 895 202, 190	3 4 5 6 7
8			1,568	11, 993	38, 025	14, 357	4, 238	64, 144	9, 647	8, 453	27, 088	39, 775	22, 411	8
9	Total assets	72, 767	8,865	380, 639	611, 870	117, 771	69, 187	398, 480	543, 083	208, 719	689, 581	429, 672	704, 881	9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	34, 937 3, 484 17, 056 6, 834 10, 933 477	163 100 630 3,531 2,364 3,116 1,039	42, 552 10, 010 23, 200 57, 472 127, 509 127, 410 7, 513	96, 967 63, 911 53, 075 132, 144 203, 062 136, 291 73, 579	8, 150 4, 387 13, 310 25, 429 29, 752 37, 530 787	34, 223 2, 123 5, 227 18, 396 23, 727 11, 031 25, 540	21, 465 56, 851 21, 465 89, 244 152, 216 61, 689 4, 450	48, 616 130, 461 43, 331 175, 954 134, 057 52, 879 42, 215	24, 451 16, 391 20, 933 12, 366 69, 418 71, 836 6, 678	97, 832 94, 030 44, 308 36, 784 257, 172 234, 110 74, 656	45, 074 58, 517 10, 339 52, 166 176, 936 89, 315 2, 675	79, 393 110, 627 62, 217 164, 379 196, 847 106, 505 15, 087	10 11 13 14 14 15 16
17	Total liabilities	72, 767	8, 865	380, 639	611, 870	117, 771	69, 187	398, 480	543, 083	208, 719	689, 581	429, 672	704, 881	1
18	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7	98, 636	6, 296	333, 245	474, 619	110, 346	63, 003	235, 102	286, 372	109, 306	137, 151	222, 714	144, 645	1

19 20 21 22 23	Gross receipts from other operations *	253 61	1 13 12 44	3, 692 770 849 184 3, 191	3,074 1,312 1,900 1,192 3,318	690 495 158 32 862	190 111 182 92 538	1, 111 680 1, 296 885 995	2, 205 3, 236 7, 700 212 2, 147	622 564 343 149 977	6, 293 1, 223 1, 171 1, 159 3, 093	551 861 673 131 1,383	1, 996 7, 546 1, 187 388 1, 404	
24 25	Dividends from domestic corporations_ Interest on tax-exempt obligations *	11 36	1 13	881 467	1, 115 52	443 98	74 63	218 102	18, 219 399	392 240	969 150	1, 233 318	1, 132 62	24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	99, 126	6, 380	343, 279	486, 582	113, 124	64, 254	240, 390	320, 491	112, 594	151, 208	227, 866	158, 360	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ¹⁰ Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax ¹¹ Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	415 154 176 313 443 1,036	5, 021 118 11 14 42 67 164	251, 995 2, 373 5, 229 2, 012 2, 302 4, 718 937 10, 343 (16) 615 45, 689	419, 117 1, 116 5, 027 3, 565 7, 370 6, 564 2, 190 14, 949 525 53, 762	90, 419 1, 539 1, 125 546 746 296 1, 216 77 12, 012	54, 240 118 878 1, 081 558 578 425 1, 221 3 37 7, 758	156, 458 23 1, 327 4, 369 3, 541 6, 737 1, 352 9, 457 12 49, 236	224, 585 2 788 4, 199 7, 192 3, 277 1, 067 12, 620 44 52, 211	80, 155 91 1, 586 348 1, 413 1, 931 482 4, 461 2, 124 41 11, 797	102, 314 4, 686 2, 296 882 6, 873 4, 973 2, 338 9, 924 6, 309 510 30, 705	143, 755 6 2, 671 1, 582 5, 879 3, 467 2, 253 13, 514 570 222 35, 237	116, 375 217 1, 679 2, 579 10, 670 3, 788 815 9, 770 797 92 24, 131	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	93, 794	6, 612	326, 213	514, 186	107, 976	66, 897	232, 512	305, 984	104, 429	171, 810	209, 156	170, 913	3
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38) Net income or deficit	5, 331 5, 285	14 232 14 246	17, 065 15, 718	14 27, 604 14 28, 771	5, 148 4, 607	14 2, 644 14 2, 780	7, 878 7, 558	14, 507 14 4, 111	8, 165 7, 533	14 20, 602 14 21, 721	18, 710 17, 159	14 12, 553 14 13, 747	39 40
$^{41}_{42}$	Income tax. Excess-profits tax ¹³ .	727 2		2, 183 23	(16)	637 9		1, 074 2		1, 038 5		2, 364 21		41 42
43	Total tax	729		2, 207	(16)	646		1,076		1,043		2, 385		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43)_Cash dividends paid	4, 602 996 176	14 232	14, 858 11, 408 589	15 27, 604 3, 427	4, 502 3, 872 676	14 2, 644 706 7	6, 802 8, 021 50	14, 507 5, 025	7, 122 4, 833	14 20, 602 6, 009 6	16, 325 10, 286 545	14 12, 553 1, 339	44 45 46

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART I—RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933!—Continue!

						Inđu	istrial grou	ıps—Continu	eđ					
						Manufact	uring—Co	ntinued						
			g, pub- and al- lustries	Chemicals prod	and allied ucts		lay, and roducts	Metal and	its products		cturing sewhere	Consta	ruction	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	255	203	366	290	63	122	532	629	103	154	87	2 72	
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments, other than tax-	18, 484 108, 062 20, 942 8, 751 43, 197	5, 318 121, 169 11, 978 201 62, 332	115, 432 323, 560 335, 257 37, 521 473, 316	182, 987 1, 015, 932 570, 393 26, 284 1, 300, 560	26, 846 46, 955 54, 237 12, 799 91, 473	4, 791 14, 008 17, 595 1, 921 17, 617	390, 181 784, 560 782, 019 259, 343 1, 060, 558	193, 083 650, 752 714, 573 88, 645 755, 998	18, 613 69, 972 64, 910 8, 628 69, 828	15, 114 54, 068 45, 344 2, 260 74, 293	5, 702 31, 985 7, 041 1, 460 18, 948	11, 705 67, 971 20, 849 6, 420 76, 331	
7 8	exempt. ⁶ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	106, 222 164, 352	74, 823 68, 267	1, 042, 421 119, 099	2, 407, 749 103, 940	204, 923 14, 799	133, 479 7, 825	1, 712, 648 227, 988	2, 144, 025 299, 813	102, 509 36, 125	84, 423 37, 238	47, 4 83	131, 378 13, 823	
9	Total assets	470,010	344, 087	2, 446, 606	5, 607, 845	452, 032	197, 236	5, 217, 298	4, 846, 889	370. 585	312, 740	126, 013	328, 478	1
10 11 12 13	Liabilities: ³ Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common.	42, 971 49, 113 37, 008 23, 884 95, 296	75, 028 54, 655 18, 832 32, 496 50, 117	367, 518 81, 386 121, 138 189, 846 1, 123, 025	1, 056, 583 454, 517 420, 531 121, 643 2, 604, 921	56, 528 6, 468 24, 970 52, 883 223, 997	19, 234 30, 763 13, 753 39, 374 96, 701	609, 040 408, 301 343, 533 749, 775 1, 747, 846	599, 844 570, 466 311, 542 628, 173 1, 891, 741	72, 185 3, 902 55, 540 31, 976 72, 791	38, 075 18, 341 41, 522 42, 271 114, 073	13, 514 18, 019 11, 320 16, 582 34, 298	86, 695 17, 374 91, 882 26, 695 84, 569	1 1 1

15 16	Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit	231, 430 9, 691	154, 816 41, 856	579, 565 15, 871	1, 243, 392 293, 742	90, 065 2, 879	25, 761 28, 350	1, 425, 791 66, 989	1, 034, 484 189, 361	137, 271 3, 079	90, 627 32, 167	34, 212 1, 932	64, 429 43, 166	15 16
17	Total liabilities.	470, 010	344, 087	2, 446, 606	5, 607, 845	452, 032	197, 236	5, 217, 298	4, 846, 889	370, 585	312, 740	126, 013	328, 478	17
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7. Gross receipts from other operations, 8	308, 066 2, 746	120, 504 3, 380	1, 369, 674 8, 402	2, 697, 328 31, 247	190, 420 1, 635	41, 45 7 709	3, 572, 872 42, 017	1, 948, 293 14, 871	228, 944 669	164, 936 1, 647	18, 357 50, 927	46, 782 67, 139	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts.	1, 191 3, 560 222 3, 334	612 1, 517 275 1, 589	4, 794 5, 342 1, 139 12, 330	17, 894 9, 805 3, 365 19, 974	1, 335 648 7 2, 677	180 236 69 322	19, 484 8, 781 1, 351 107, 314	13, 044 5, 029 2, 532 28, 389	964 522 1,852 3,571	1, 465 599 672 2, 974	835 189 806 751	1, 124 1, 085 378 2, 024	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	1, 296	5, 622	33, 720	115, 720	2, 772	61	40, 073	20, 842	2, 344	1, 051	413	665	24
25	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. 5	401	13	1,331	2, 151	599	83	8, 054	3, 200	354	101	179	284	25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	320, 816	133, 514	1, 436, 732	2, 897, 482	200, 094	43, 117	3, 799, 946	2, 036, 201	239, 221	173, 444	72, 457	119, 481	26
27 28 29 30 31 32	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income	200, 557 707 4, 851 5, 832 4, 031 2, 758	92, 624 2, 479 2, 386 3, 212 3, 349 1, 001	917, 437 1, 209 10, 030 13, 165 9, 754 19, 808	1, 999, 836 5, 725 5, 370 32, 266 32, 944 102, 984	2, 021 850 2, 069 3, 248	28, 980 526 978 343 1, 718 1, 333	2, 741, 524 6, 179 21, 055 20, 935 37, 073 37, 330	1, 611, 340 714 15, 826 14, 016 40, 863 35, 001	139, 921 112 3, 361 1, 824 783 2, 922	127, 799 95 2, 429 2, 011 1, 657 2, 555	12, 538 29, 697 1, 677 518 1, 278 889	43, 295 58, 169 2, 908 808 1, 915 1, 730	27 28 29 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37	tax. 11 Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	3, 979 6, 986 20 91 62, 009	2,736 3,299 8 36 48,884	5, 777 63, 489 26, 388 146 224, 477	16, 541 158, 395 46, 756 2, 818 522, 713	1, 190 13, 482 460 430 30, 755	465 5, 639 54 30 10, 059	9, 897 114, 828 1, 833 451 474, 383	9, 937 120, 395 1, 444 1, 889 291, 069	1, 827 9, 173 (16) 46 46, 164	1, 667 8, 780 21 538 39, 345	445 3, 412 8 18 17, 756	1, 256 4, 757 8 450 16, 653	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	291, 821	160, 015	1, 291, 682	2, 926, 347	176, 817	50, 126	3, 465, 488	2, 142, 494	206, 133	186, 898	68, 237	131, 948	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	28, 995	14 26, 501	145, 051	14 28, 865	23, 278	14 7, 008	334, 458	14 106, 293	33,088	14 13, 454	4, 221	14 12, 467	39
40	Net income or deficit	27, 298	14 32, 137	110,000	14 146, 736	19, 907	14 7, 152	286, 332	14 130, 335	30, 390	14 14, 605	3, 629	14 13, 417	40
41 42	Income tax. Excess-profits tax 13.	3, 754 30		15, 198 124	(16)	2,737 (16)	(16)	39, 415 104		4, 180 28	(16)	499 13		41 42
43	Total tax	3,784		15, 322	(16)	2, 737	(16)	39, 520		4, 208	(16)	512		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	25, 211	14 26, 501	129, 729	15 28, 865	20, 541	15 7, 008	294, 938	14 106, 293	28, 880	¹⁵ 13, 454	3, 708	14 12, 467	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	18, 298 3, 002	1, 089	107, 775 17, 590	75, 363	14, 273 1, 026	201	285, 181 1, 695	25, 480	21,366 453	1, 365 460	2,356 18	2, 552 20	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars] PART I—RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE FILED FOR 1933 !—Continued

_					Indu	strial grou	psContinu	eđ				-
		Transports other pub	ation and lic utiltities	Tr	ade		-Profession- musements, etc.	surance,	Banking, in- real estate, companies, i bond brok-		f business given	
		Net in-	No net in- come	Net in- come	No net in-	Net in- come	No net in-	Net in- come	No net in-	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 2	1,747	2, 093	2, 139	2, 067	697	1, 232	1, 639	4, 846	23	66	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: \$ Cash 4. Notes and accounts receivable	202, 570 65, 159 3, 994, 622	406, 665 1, 049, 314 247, 756 106, 257 4, 548, 249 21, 875, 876 851, 235	268, 231 1, 067, 983 852, 491 85, 538 547, 637 526, 727 152, 864	109, 542 523, 904 325, 060 10, 582 297, 795 508, 247 127, 127	43, 075 123, 948 76, 586 11, 565 118, 251 439, 859 71, 969	32, 440 130, 642 10, 808 2, 709 202, 438 994, 168 117, 067	797, 926 2, 829, 661 9, 838 279, 755 9, 217, 502 820, 403 803, 023	3, 120, 604 7, 125, 573 10, 601 3, 291, 851 20, 630, 972 2, 844, 567 1, 411, 671	4, 139 2, 830 1, 507 430 5, 150	69 9, 302 30 1 2, 394 6, 791	2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9	Total assets	20, 926, 073	29, 085, 352	3, 501, 471	1, 902, 257	885, 254	1, 490, 271	14, 758, 109	38, 435, 839	14, 647	18 , 6 82	9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: ³ Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common. Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	1, 067, 383	2, 081, 292 12, 469, 294 2, 433, 187 1, 504, 385 8, 331, 477 3, 395, 725 1, 130, 007	1, 245, 541 109, 261 195, 282 243, 120 1, 028, 861 810, 428 131, 023	844, 343 177, 224 139, 404 224, 585 500, 632 378, 131 362, 062	159, 142 225, 427 62, 848 55, 050 203, 407 193, 001 13, 622	382, 097 638, 716 191, 054 103, 882 291, 568 162, 236 279, 280	1, 563, 913 1, 049, 453 3, 169, 798 1, 150, 951 4, 876, 208 3, 030, 508 82, 724	2, 983, 519 6, 193, 340 13, 324, 019 3, 460, 245 8, 412, 857 5, 585, 299 1, 523, 440	11, 652 308 5, 433 410 3, 157	23, 646 1, 162 5, 228 2, 794 13, 851 4, 992 32, 991	11
17	Total liabilities	20, 926, 073	29, 085, 352	3, 501, 471	1, 902, 257	885, 254	1, 490, 271	14, 758, 109	38, 435, 839	14, 647	18, 682	17
18	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7			6, 370, 526	2, 155, 759							18

19 20 21 22 23	Gross receipts from other operations \$ Interest RentsNet capital gain Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income:	3, 321, 877 55, 268 39, 258 1, 587 21, 803	3,716,893 44,975 33,514 5,984 20,192	133, 805 18, 525 12, 937 2, 413 74, 267	65, 351 10, 345 13, 092 1, 232 29, 485	535, 229 1, 863 5, 385 198 11, 222	345, 193 2, 713 18, 104 2, 253 9, 645	17 358, 423 162, 920 70, 795 11, 169 64, 710	17 165, 118 379, 219 158, 346 35, 312 62, 868	5 20 37 462	(16) 3 1 119	19 20 21 22 23
$\frac{24}{25}$	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt obligations 5	168, 034 10, 692	123, 738 3, 974	14, 689 2, 482	13, 724 5, 335	4, 181 298	3, 069 130	310, 939 25, 807	547, 917 110, 007	1	(16) 13	24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	3, 618, 520	3, 949, 270	6, 629, 644	2, 294, 323	558, 376	381, 107	1, 004, 763	1, 458, 787	525	147	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ¹⁰ Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax ¹¹ Bad debts. Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions.	1, 506, 971 12, 765 65, 150 338, 792 248, 420 13, 697 396, 468 3, 888 231 365, 860	2, 465, 759 10, 745 47, 734 651, 317 250, 671 12, 182 263, 571 4, 551 4, 555 614, 733	5, 071, 257 62, 643 30, 392 99, 515 23, 303 37, 088 26, 856 46, 913 37, 488 1, 020, 386	1, 703, 017 9, 444 16, 040 57, 983 20, 891 20, 976 27, 149 32, 699 437 995 463, 256	163, 355 7, 859 32, 946 14, 620 11, 773 3, 134 20, 290	124, 087 5, 198 38, 243 36, 674 20, 035 14, 448 35, 734 202 1, 302 169, 579	17 15, 055 18 17, 686 14, 521 94, 804 24, 645 17, 098 23, 724 55 1, 268 19 308, 657	17 17, 467 18 39, 331 43, 518 437, 305 62, 225 156, 380 63, 881 1, 019 29, 793 19 481, 224	6 7 3 8 5 281 2 20	11 5 1 122 10 5 116 9 (16) 449	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
3 8	Total compiled deductions	2, 952, 241	4, 325, 778	6, 419, 438	2, 352, 888	522, 088	445, 501		19 1, 332, 143	331	727	
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38)	666, 279	14 376, 507	210, 207	14 58, 564	36, 288	14 64, 394	487, 250	126, 644	194	14 580	39
40 41 42	Net income or deficit	487, 552 67, 261 92	14 504, 219 3	193, 035 26, 623 668	14 77, 623	31, 809 4, 451 41	14 67, 594	150, 504 20, 688 214	¹⁴ 531, 280	193 27 1	14 594	40 41 42
43	Total tax	67, 353	3	27, 291		4, 492		20, 902	(16)	27		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43) Cash dividends paid. Stock dividends paid.	598, 925 714, 304 14, 199	15 376, 510 90, 527 2, 812	182, 916 134, 052 9, 613	14 58, 564 6, 678 419	31, 796 18, 217 240	14 64, 394 3, 161 400	466, 348 324, 575 7, 271	126, 644 330, 876 12, 731	167 314	14 580	44 45 46

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued
[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933

							Ind	ustrial group	s					Γ
		_			_		_			Manufac	eturing			
		Aggr	egate		are and re- idustries	Minir quar	ng and rying	Total man	ufacturing	Food and prod		erages	and bev- (alcoholic nalcoholic	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.2	125, 941	261, 649	1, 638	5, 487	3, 542	6,710	30, 849	49, 952	4, 677	5, 982	1, 268	1, 315	1
2 3	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable.	4, 738, 842 8, 082, 695	8, 618, 674 13, 679, 662	23, 895 42, 221	14, 857 84, 283	88, 641 127, 169	51, 983 139, 669	1, 350, 392 2, 143, 069	407, 889 1, 065, 711	209, 442 260, 300	24, 824 87, 803	26, 578 66, 873	6, 644 23, 221	2 3
4 5 6	Inventories. Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments other than tax- exempt. 6	5, 411, 163 3, 750, 102 13, 581, 158	3, 064, 543 10, 832, 345 30, 369, 706	60, 350 6, 802 56, 085	96, 637 7, 435 187, 033	53, 548 50, 265 148, 577	50, 964 35, 255 279, 373	3, 014, 204 859, 962 1, 919, 417	1, 535, 200 225, 641 828, 094	444, 110 86, 380 301, 176	88, 115 6, 782 67, 867	86, 277 17, 173 32, 706	32, 012 5, 380 10, 544	4 5 6
8	Capital assets—Lands, build- ings, equipment (less de- preciation and depletion). Other assets.	20, 610, 225	25, 175, 539 5, 414, 287	268, 933 21, 030	711, 902	1, 020, 679 92, 501	1, 798, 494 262, 762	5, 611, 700	4, 141, 053 916, 039	915, 825 176, 955	398, 141 79, 085	237, 392 35, 958	129, 706 21, 352	8
9	Total assets	58, 744, 678	97, 154, 754	479, 315	1, 173, 581	1, 581, 380	2, 618, 501	16, 095, 234	9, 119, 627	2, 394, 188	752, 618	502, 957	228, 859	9
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits	4, 544, 694 5, 902, 641 12, 979, 255 4, 232, 326 18, 592, 067 13, 358, 770	7, 071, 504 12, 392, 636 48, 157, 111 4, 402, 155 21, 060, 010 10, 380, 694	49, 203 27, 928 23, 778 13, 410 239, 741 144, 013	230, 740 174, 713 99, 376 55, 599 622, 099 218, 332	107, 878 76, 232 141, 597 52, 795 883, 945 495, 274	296, 773 246, 469 250, 788 141, 084 1, 522, 647 632, 697	1, 400, 135 555, 773 996, 204 1, 711, 051 6, 220, 398 5, 408, 233	1, 455, 103 892, 146 724, 792 1, 152, 935 4, 464, 649 1, 752, 540	232, 980 78, 750 157, 733 336, 027 916, 324 696, 954	153, 036 113, 510 65, 538 87, 107 365, 246 94, 475	99, 594 20, 505 33, 021 22, 320 158, 247 174, 263	49, 577 33, 000 18, 058 13, 855 95, 820 41, 860	10 11 12 13 14 15
16	Less deficit	865, 075	6, 309, 356	18, 758	227, 278	176, 341	471, 956	196, 558	1, 322, 538	24, 581	126, 293	4, 993	23, 310	16
17	Total liabilities	58, 744, 678	97, 154, 754	479, 315	1, 173, 581	1, 581, 380	2, 618, 501	16, 095, 234	9, 119, 627	2, 394, 188	752, 618	502, 957	228, 859	17

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 Gross receipts from other operations.	31, 913, 634 4, 854, 039	13, 852, 936 4, 067, 798	172, 726 14, 815	128, 835 32, 854	513, 714 54, 015	292, 481 85, 858	15, 610, 222 118, 416	6, 243, 829 144, 074	3, 047, 609 20, 268	886, 955 11, 342	667, 436 2, 013	173, 714 2, 003	18 19
20 21 22 23 23	InterestRentsNet capital gainOther receipts.	529, 996 321, 830 73, 463 399, 898	1, 328, 798 750, 305 74, 993 250, 922	1, 661 3, 765 910 4, 907	2, 073 5, 667 984 3, 633	3, 380 5, 722 10, 527 8, 586	2, 855 4, 486 4, 111 9, 740	37, 121 30, 000 11, 784 137, 007	18, 134 19, 984 6, 628 46, 265	4, 698 4, 510 1, 506 25, 757	1, 128 2, 840 528 3, 871	812 1, 231 552 3, 974	220 954 48 1, 083	20 21 22 23
24 23	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	304, 237	312, 869	1, 320	3, 521	3, 983	6, 450	81,683	13, 257	10, 611	1, 310	859	148	24
25	Interest on tax-exempt obligations.5	137, 155	334, 057	431	426	2,092	2, 559	34, 597	9, 203	4, 163	343	793	231	25
₽ 26	Total compiled receipts 1.	38, 534, 251	20, 972, 678	200, 535	177, 994	602, 018	408, 539	16, 060, 830	6, 501, 374	3, 119, 121	908, 316	677, 669	178, 401	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business prop-	24, 102, 597 1, 830, 715 993, 562 460, 402	11, 108, 864 2, 119, 824 846, 821 427, 630	112, 649 6, 153 5, 975 2, 638	97, 200 19, 291 8, 671 2, 499	285, 909 12, 309 16, 278 2, 511	218, 463 52, 669 14, 206 3, 983	11, 300, 077 44, 981 391, 822 85, 701	4, 990, 321 89, 395 245, 058 71, 672	2, 307, 550 6, 766 48, 642 13, 939	707, 864 6, 581 23, 586 10, 570	427, 743 648 14, 062 2, 352	124, 451 1, 056 4, 761 1, 337	29
$\begin{array}{c} 31 \\ 32 \end{array}$	erty. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax. ¹¹	446, 252 551, 239	1, 006, 426 539, 901	3, 282 6, 614	13, 927 8, 730	7, 179 15, 997	19, 975 12, 489	62, 217 189, 116	89, 338 95, 936	12, 114 34, 424	10, 488 10, 316	3, 908 28, 136	2, 371 8, 850	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	230, 241 868, 246 67, 363 15, 406 5, 920, 344	560, 361 767, 176 35, 951 190, 630 4, 961, 414	1, 377 8, 277 916 118 31, 182	4, 228 11, 496 2, 815 14, 342 61, 646	1, 944 33, 726 53, 193 314 68, 739	5, 083 35, 557 21, 694 2, 214 85, 647	84, 740 401, 256 9, 477 5, 602 2, 151, 095	82, 674 243, 646 10, 221 18, 656 1, 018, 521	9, 431 60, 388 43 574 420, 677	6, 086 25, 828 81 2, 298 139, 036	6, 155 14, 662 64 489 105, 955	2, 101 6, 264 1, 039 39, 456	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions.	35, 486, 367	22, 564, 996	179, 181	244, 845	498, 100	471, 980	14, 726, 084	6, 955, 437	2, 914, 547	942, 733	604, 176	191, 685	38
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38) Net income or deficit	3, 047, 883 2, 606, 492	14 1, 592, 318 14 2, 239, 244	21, 354 19, 603	14 66, 852 14 70, 800	103, 918 97, 843	14 63, 441 14 72, 450	1, 334, 747 1, 218, 466	14 454, 063 14 476, 523	204, 574 189, 801	14 34, 417 14 36, 070	73, 492 71, 841	14 13, 284 14 13, 664	
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax ¹³	358, 194 5, 795	32	2, 691 74	(16)	13, 451 336	2	167, 527 2, 845	<u>1</u>	26, 095 450		9, 878 328		41 42
43	Total tax	363, 990	32	2, 765	(16)	13, 787	2	170, 371	1	26, 544		10, 206		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43) Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	2, 683, 893 1, 903, 248 114, 509	15 1, 592, 350 384, 768 21, 287	18, 589 12, 759 363	15 66, 852 3, 155 197	90, 131 84, 230 1, 269	15 63, 443 12, 013 1, 377	1, 164, 375 791, 176 73, 815	15 454, 064 64, 043 3, 617	178, 030 134, 523 8, 047	34, 417 3, 310 94	63, 286 21, 549 1, 360	14 13, 284 604 1	45

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued Money figures in thousands of dollars

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

	Industrial groups—Continued													-
		-Continued												
		Tobacco products		Textiles and their products		Leather and its manufactures		Rubber products		Forest products		Paper, pulp, and products		
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	120	212	5, 426	8, 735	921	1, 240	237	292	1, 695	4, 170	1, 103	895	1
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: \$ Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt \$ Investments other than tax-exempt.6	80, 741 124, 176 344, 488 80, 698 106, 757	2, 875 7, 777 8, 835 1, 287 1, 291	157, 838 310, 343 502, 882 113, 352 134, 463	71, 849 186, 930 343, 789 23, 371 90, 570	38, 353 69, 914 120, 061 15, 720 27, 340	8, 809 35, 645 61, 216 2, 062 11, 122	7, 596 18, 610 27, 199 4, 274 8, 156	4, 028 12, 841 16, 439 1, 695 3, 329	24, 737 77, 480 93, 429 11, 849 38, 068	27, 126 115, 067 164, 825 11, 443 100, 634	57, 036 87, 576 109, 931 22, 522 59, 558	12, 593 30, 158 38, 429 12, 891 33, 505	2 3 4 5 6
7 8	Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	66, 836 103, 603	6, 138 4, 451	768, 285 72, 719	676, 382 69, 010	79, 378 23, 295	47, 920 11, 703	50, 427 5, 330	35, 596 10, 739	172, 368 21, 493	544, 862 66, 954	375, 380 43, 064	168, 664 25, 376	8
9	Total assets	907, 298	32, 654	2, 059, 882	1, 461, 902	374, 061	178, 477	121, 591	84, 668	439, 424	1, 030, 911	755, 068	321, 617	9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Liabilities: ³ Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit.	17, 612 43, 341 47, 849 121, 529 405, 495 271, 918 446	4, 918 1, 043 737 3, 483 16, 731 9, 933 4, 191	236, 266 34, 368 125, 093 225, 342 815, 941 651, 272 28, 400	269, 767 82, 396 101, 446 182, 340 693, 971 312, 882 180, 901	39, 345 3, 686 15, 094 42, 357 167, 193 113, 720 7, 334	39, 772 8, 659 9, 517 29, 680 100, 004 22, 741 31, 896	13, 539 2, 284 4, 592 11, 978 45, 443 47, 559 3, 803	12, 186 7, 822 4, 452 13, 767 38, 692 19, 481 11, 734	50, 667 15, 758 18, 770 28, 536 202, 821 134, 128 11, 256	178, 851 97, 168 96, 455 86, 740 527, 814 223, 757 179, 874	60, 389 54, 890 39, 603 101, 828 297, 270 207, 550 6, 462	42, 613 36, 319 18, 672 35, 484 133, 283 82, 708 27, 463	10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17	Total liabilities	907, 298	32, 654	2, 059, 882	1, 461, 902	374, 061	178, 477	121, 591	84, 668	439, 424	1, 030, 911	755, 068	321, 617	17

18	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7	903, 585	29, 253	2, 612, 696	1, 622, 776	576, 700	251, 046	117, 640	70, 921	365, 040	430, 507	720, 249	176, 936	18
19	Gross receipts from other opera- tions.	308	17	21, 530	36, 929	959	1, 419	348	166	2, 845	5, 798	1, 510	353	19
20 21 22 23	Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	1, 888 604 798 2, 990	59 59 12 117	3, 690 5, 420 2, 025 17, 244	1, 989 3, 997 928 10, 292	979 379 188 3, 723	343 438 81 1, 512	312 63 15 669	101 132 40 421	1, 446 1, 448 571 3, 145	1, 966 2, 514 786 4, 799	1, 619 1, 795 368 4, 691	549 552 236 1, 174	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	6, 665	14	2, 542	952	358	175	. 59	79	442	605	1, 443	1, 130	24
25	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.§	3, 624	41	4, 525	923	485	86	123	72	469	423	991	698	25
26	Total compiled receipts •	920, 461	29, 570	2, 669, 672	1, 678, 786	583, 771	255, 100	119, 230	71, 933	375, 406	447, 398	732, 668	181, 628	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10. Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax 11. Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss 12. Other deductions.	714, 973 63 4, 918 912 2, 598 7, 176 694 9, 546 957 21 77, 170	23, 402 3 1, 274 265 243 574 222 344 5 8 4, 959	2, 078, 680 12, 586 73, 857 17, 411 9, 860 25, 159 8, 265 54, 740 38 1, 152 256, 168	1, 409, 961 27, 494 53, 619 17, 279 13, 317 18, 385 7, 200 41, 773 106 4, 699 173, 632	466, 475 453 13, 752 3, 847 1, 477 3, 292 2, 229 6, 141 13 114 53, 619	220, 020 867 7, 946 2, 605 2, 059 1, 566 1, 433 3, 075 20 250 29, 336	83, 443 65 3, 731 454 452 1, 540 588 3, 873 8 68 18, 003	58, 210 62 1, 737 369 581 1, 068 462 3, 001 2, 154 10, 232	273, 449 939 14, 067 2, 279 3, 164 4, 963 3, 587 9, 168 9, 168 3, 635 298 39, 382	350, 500 3, 189 18, 436 3, 954 10, 860 9, 671 6, 785 17, 768 6, 524 2, 247 69, 924	503, 082 356 20, 108 5, 295 5, 285 8, 223 3, 374 28, 334 107 92, 408	142, 102 137 6, 668 1, 919 3, 159 3, 195 1, 468 8, 759 426 25, 594	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	819, 328	31, 298	2, 537, 915	1, 767, 464	551, 411	269, 177	112, 224	77, 874	354, 932	499, 858	667, 028	193, 456	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	101, 133	14 1, 728	131, 757	14 88, 678	32, 360	14 14, 077	7, 006	14 5, 941	20, 475	14 52, 460	65, 640	14 11, 828	39
40	Net income or deficit	90, 845	14 1, 782	124, 689	14 90, 552	31, 517	14 14, 339	6, 824	14 6, 093	19, 563	14 53, 487	63, 206	14 13, 655	40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax 13	12, 491 3		17, 143 264		4, 333 58		938 18		2, 690 58		8, 686 188		41 42
43	Total tax	12, 494		17, 407		4, 391		956		2, 748		8, 874		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	88, 639	14 1, 728	114, 350	14 88, 678	27, 969	14 14, 077	6, 050	14 5, 941	17, 726	14 52, 460	56, 766	14 11, 828	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	94, 934 783	305	74, 724 8, 245	8, 116 523	16, 854 532	784 177	2, 664 28	735	11, 871 714	10, 671 249	30, 116 5, 101	2, 314 136	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 177.

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and labilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

						Indu	ıstrial grou	ıps—Continu	ed					
					Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued						
		Printing, po		Chemicals produ		Stone, o	lay, and roducts	Metal and i	ts products	Manufact elsewhere	turing not classified	Const	ruction	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets. ²	4, 010	6, 564	2, 602	3, 774	903	2, 423	6, 212	11, 052	1, 675	3, 298	3, 067	10, 656	
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments other than tax-	85, 997 153, 001 78, 353 77, 627 145, 053	17, 831 75, 365 40, 397 6, 180 44, 290	173, 320 304, 941 318, 693 103, 482 566, 131	22, 005 71, 412 64, 609 4, 861 58, 483	53, 973 54, 034 80, 564 31, 212 61, 230	21, 959 41, 306 66, 489 9, 455 29, 538	392, 785 521, 492 687, 795 273, 711 398, 134	168, 838 323, 048 537, 745 134, 523 336, 049	41, 995 94, 329 120, 424 21, 963 40, 646	18, 507 55, 137 72, 298 5, 711 40, 873	43, 110 114, 238 32, 083 35, 687 43, 063	49, 776 203, 373 65, 326 37, 931 105, 293	
7	exempt. ⁶ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets	330, 933 194, 456	176, 410 91, 449	674, 970 201, 847	227, 076 91, 442	308, 198 35, 073	373, 869 41, 031	1, 486, 948 255, 048	1, 225, 157 341, 197	144, 761 27, 648	131, 132 62, 250	121, 725 56, 031	245, 580 92, 147	1
	Total assets	1, 065, 419	451, 922	2, 343, 383	539, 888	624, 284	583, 646	4, 015, 914	3, 066, 556	491, 765	385, 909	445, 935	799, 426	-1
0 1 2 3 4	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common	101, 151 53, 932 68, 191 102, 810	112, 446 63, 576 49, 698 38, 859 215, 177	201, 688 55, 450 166, 912 254, 963 938, 149	102, 629 89, 569 44, 275 56, 516 288, 889	29, 551 25, 141 36, 124 72, 768 256, 268	68, 593 80, 827 37, 918 102, 997	275, 964 151, 840 253, 723 340, 258 1, 445, 920	357, 382 247, 400 229, 867 452, 122 1, 513, 770	41, 389 15, 828 29, 499 50, 336 197, 973	63, 333 30, 857 48, 158 49, 984 194, 653	86, 798 25, 141 62, 411 13, 900 156, 254	204, 945 70, 721 106, 046 39, 600 334, 856	=

15 16	Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	386, 162 20, 181	77, 491 105, 325	751, 955 25, 735	68, 482 110, 472	211, 414 6, 981	96, 110 83, 397	1, 598, 695 50, 486	632, 971 366, 958	162, 642 5, 902	69, 647 70, 723	118, 576 17, 144	159, 974 116, 716	15 16
17	Total liabilities	1, 065, 419	451, 922	2, 343, 383	539, 888	624, 284	583, 646	4, 015, 914	3, 066, 556	491, 765	385, 909	445, 935	799, 426	17
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 Gross receipts from other operations. 8	886, 336 30, 176	345, 721 54, 864	1, 680, 739 10, 800	366, 284 6, 950	385, 667 3, 843	179, 503 2, 448	3, 131, 980 20, 821	1, 465, 010 18, 033	514, 544 2, 994	245, 205 3, 752	157, 794 324, 389	273, 938 238, 723	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	3, 226 3, 676 1, 339 10, 286	718 1, 343 331 3, 549	4, 796 2, 546 1, 180 14, 558	787 562 1, 741 3, 630	1, 103 639 801 2, 874	742 1, 054 348 1, 916	10, 666 6, 476 1, 880 42, 430	8, 623 4, 396 1, 350 11, 920	1, 886 1, 212 562 4, 667	908 1, 142 199 1, 982	1, 592 1, 860 1, 179 5, 980	3, 099 4, 957 1, 620 5, 477	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corpo-	7, 085	1, 097	36, 668	673	1, 775	129	9, 637	6, 388	3, 539	558	864	3, 206	24
25	rations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. ⁵	3, 293	453	4, 983	204	948	481	9, 257	4, 871	944	377	1, 609	1, 613	25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	945, 418	408, 077	1, 756, 270	380, 831	397, 651	186, 621	3, 233, 147	1, 520, 590	530, 347	254, 123	495, 267	532, 631	26
27 28 29 30 31 32	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10	553, 678 13, 176 47, 845 13, 787 5, 871 10, 117	239, 841 34, 740 30, 956 10, 602 5, 957 3, 345	1, 045, 593 2, 416 36, 951 6, 460 7, 535 22, 021	278, 467 3, 507 13, 503 3, 810 6, 782 4, 306	249, 107 1, 159 10, 152 1, 525 2, 341 4, 137	132, 080 1, 383 9, 620 1, 596 6, 532 4, 628	2, 244, 750 5, 561 83, 074 13, 327 5, 104 35, 268	1, 116, 396 8, 585 58, 443 13, 193 23, 854 26, 877	351, 554 793 20, 663 4, 112 2, 207 4, 661	187, 028 1, 790 14, 511 4, 176 3, 136 3, 156	119, 675 230, 748 23, 725 2, 562 2, 451 2, 733	223, 264 192, 061 38, 208 6, 245 7, 069 4, 808	27 28 29 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37	tax. ¹¹ Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	9, 403 23, 527 36 582 168, 074	7, 247 13, 478 4 484 87, 592	8, 889 49, 486 3, 543 425 327, 939	4, 719 14, 222 1, 970 399 75, 570	2, 548 22, 910 446 179 59, 769	3, 356 17, 609 601 478 36, 466	26, 169 106, 532 472 1, 081 445, 168	38, 155 82, 499 793 3, 563 275, 834	3, 407 11, 948 66 214 86, 763	3, 440 9, 028 87 610 50, 890	2, 977 14, 911 181 250 65, 052	8, 695 18, 891 142 1, 479 76, 511	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	846, 095	434, 246	1, 511, 259	407, 254	3 54, 273	214, 349	2, 966, 506	1, 648, 191	486, 389	277, 852	465, 265	577, 373	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	99, 322	¹⁴ 26, 170	245, 011	14 26, 424	43, 378	14 27, 727	266, 640	14 127, 601	43, 958	14 23, 729	30, 002	14 44, 742	39
40	Net income or deficit	88, 944	14 27, 719	203, 360	14 27, 301	40, 655	14 28, 338	247, 746	14 138, 859	39, 475	14 24, 664	27, 530	14 49, 561	40
41 42	Income tax_ Excess-profits tax ¹³	12, 227 169		27, 962 413		5, 590 59		34, 065 682	1	5, 428 156		3, 785 171		41 42
43	Total tax	12, 396		28, 375		5, 649		34, 746	1	5, 584		3, 957		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	86, 926	14 26, 170	216, 636	14 26, 424	37, 729	14 27, 727	231, 894	15 127, 602	38, 374	14 23, 729	26, 046	14 44, 742	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	60, 415 6, 702	1,722 48	163, 008 14, 326	1, 288 150	28, 226 1, 162	2, 145 181	134, 027 25, 439	30, 755 2, 013	18, 264 1, 376	1, 293 44	12, 683 1, 802	5, 672 210	45 46
							· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	l 	<u> </u>	····	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	'

Table 12.—Returns of corporations for 1934 submitting balance sheets, by major industrial groups, classified on business reported for 1934, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

PART II. RETURNS OF CORPORATIONS FOR WHICH CONSOLIDATED RETURNS WERE NOT FILED FOR 1933-Continued

					Ind	ustrial group	s—Continue	đ				Γ
		Transport other pub	ation and lic utilities	Tr	ade	Service F amuseme etc.	rofessional, ents, hotels,	surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, i bond brok-	Nature o	f business given	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 2	7, 015	10, 410	48, 327	74, 924	8, 964	26, 278	22, 449	76, 601	90	631	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: \$\frac{1}{2}\$ Cash \$\frac{4}{2}\$ Notes and accounts receivable	407, 474 112, 250 70, 088 859, 124 9, 058, 926	194, 521 191, 194 66, 123 27, 653 864, 236 5, 089, 623	653, 250 2, 018, 077 2, 094, 588 169, 159 702, 051 1, 502, 691	219, 831 1, 176, 550 1, 102, 136 44, 963 409, 078 1, 159, 955	83, 811 135, 054 25, 935 20, 824 94, 952 711, 916	87, 149 207, 600 52, 614 20, 986 205, 216 3, 301, 359	2, 191, 993 3, 094, 108 18, 068 2, 537, 059 9, 754, 642 2, 309, 365	7, 591, 337 10, 590, 812 95, 028 10, 432, 330 27, 481, 684 8, 714, 627	628 1, 285 138 257 3, 247 4, 290	1, 331 20, 470 515 151 9, 699 12, 944	3 4 5 6 7
8	Other assets	410,700	794, 106	381, 227	396, 847	120, 632	327, 699	291, 350	2, 543, 300	528	9, 953	8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16	Total assets Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages Other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit Total liabilities	371, 119 3, 734, 722 523, 802 1, 016, 675 4, 199, 123 1, 493, 227 116, 977 11, 221, 689	7, 227, 455 421, 129 3, 375, 024 958, 484 308, 073 2, 127, 159 585, 990 548, 405 7, 227, 455	7, 521, 043 1, 589, 135 258, 047 432, 747 523, 412 2, 885, 084 1, 971, 442 138, 825 7, 521, 043	1, 272, 180 347, 845 324, 763 424, 310 2, 223, 569 670, 544 753, 852 4, 509, 359	1, 193, 123 125, 810 208, 436 105, 408 80, 854 422, 298 289, 756 39, 438 1, 193, 123	4, 202, 624 499, 263 1, 931, 591 482, 992 338, 963 1, 208, 894 363, 537 622, 616 4, 202, 624	812, 164 1, 016, 179 10, 692, 021 820, 064 3, 574, 373 3, 434, 920 153, 135 20, 196, 586	2, 671, 567 5, 352, 223 45, 198, 518 1, 936, 224 8, 507, 654 5, 990, 935 2, 208, 002 67, 449, 119	2, 453 182 1, 287 168 10, 852 3, 329 7, 899 10, 372	55, 063 19, 805 1, 905 11, 353 5, 366 48, 482 6, 147 37, 994 55, 063	11 12 13 14 15
18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales? Gross receipts from other operations 8 Interest. Rents. Net capital gain. Other receipts. Receipts, tax-exempt income:	2, 166, 598	1, 144, 997 10, 380 9, 813 1, 543 10, 305 5, 205	15, 459, 178 302, 379 38, 991 33, 968 7, 327 163, 366 25, 573	6, 913, 853 180, 091 15, 847 22, 594 3, 261 66, 957 3, 386	937, 776 3, 033 14, 078 1, 743 12, 458 2, 112	1, 210, 833 4, 802 78, 584 2, 352 19, 230 2, 591	==	17 1, 029, 360 1, 271, 512 604, 122 54, 462 89, 267 275, 209	267 135 31 36 408	1,009 97 98 34 47	18 19 20 21 22 23

25	Interest on tax-exempt obligations 5	4, 054	1,806	6, 988	2, 161	817	1,030	86, 553	315, 244	13	15	25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	2, 245, 597	1, 184, 049	16, 037, 770	7, 208, 150	972, 017	1, 319, 422	1, 919, 229	3, 639, 176	987	1, 342	26
27	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10			12, 284, 288	5, 579, 616							27
28 29	Cost of other operations	920, 907	700, 006 25, 730	126, 939 356, 709	91, 022 257, 448	391, 663 66, 883	530, 926 71, 037	17 96, 869 18 97, 241	17 443, 690 18 186, 332	145 30	767 129	28 29
30	Rent paid on business property Interest paid	23, 422	19, 476	265, 616	168, 891	45, 902	87, 452	32,038	67, 311	14	102	30
31 32	Taxes paid other than income tax 11	193, 740 142, 552	167, 918 60, 367	52, 110 97, 134	50, 050 53, 773	14,090 20,311	103, 742 67, 215	111, 165 76, 739	554, 248 236, 473	19 42	158 111	31 32
33	Bad debts	9, 771	6, 494	90, 409	75, 815	6,702	18, 116	32, 307	358, 822	14 37	434	33
34 35	Depreciation Depletion	219, 016 2, 005	108, 060 309	110, 169 389	69, 498 240	33, 136 40	107, 555 (18)	47, 717 1, 162	172, 393 528		(16) 78	34 35
36 37	Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	621 243, 839	2, 134 207, 330	2, 962 2, 148, 254	7, 335 1, 094, 140	377 316, 344	`13, 951 511, 487	5, 163 19 895, 725	130, 301 19 1, 904, 921	(16) 114	217 1, 211	36 37
38	Total compiled deductions		1, 297, 824	15, 534, 978	7, 447, 828	895, 447	1, 511, 481		19 4, 055, 018	416	3, 208	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38)		14 113, 775	502, 793	14 239, 678	76, 570	14 192, 059	523, 104	14 415, 843	571	14 1. 866	39
40			14 120, 785	470, 231	14 245, 225	73, 641	14 195, 681		14 1, 006, 296	461	14 1, 923	40
41 42	Income tax Excess-profits tax 13	58, 243 221	(16)	64, 607 1, 379	1	10, 088 289	1	37, 739 479	26	63		41 42
43	Total tax	58, 464	(16)	65, 986	1	10, 377	1	38, 218	26	65		43
44 45 46	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43) Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	396, 832	15 113, 775 10, 849 152	436, 806 231, 096 21, 052	15 239, 679 20, 628 2, 200	66, 193 36, 349 2, 880	15 192, 060 4, 842 649	484, 886 337, 088 9, 226	15 415, 869 263, 468 12, 886	506 1,036	14 1, 866 99	44 45 46
					L		<u> </u>	l	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	l	L

- 1 Includes consolidated returns for 1934 filed by corporations with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and by railroads.
- ² Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balance sheet data.
- 3 See text, pp. 13-18.
- 4 Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.
- Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.
 - 6 See text, p. 15.
- Gross receipts from operations where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."
 Gross receipts from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations," see "deductions."
 Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.
 - 10 Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.
 - 11 Excludes taxes tabulated in "cost of goods sold."
 - 12 For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.
- 13 Excess-profits tax of \$36,940 appears on returns submitting balance sheets with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1(d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")
 - 14 Deficit or compiled net loss.
 - 15 Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax.
 - 16 Less than \$500.
 - 17 Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.
 - 18 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file returns form 1120-L.
 - 19 Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies.

Table 13.—Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, 1 by major industrial groups classified on buriness reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29]

_			income come come income come														
										Manufact	uring						
		Aggr	egate	Agriculi related i	ture and ndustries			Total man	ufacturing			erages	(alcoholic				
		Net in- come															
1	Number of returns	9, 390	15, 068	78	188	465	836	3, 703	4, 328	710	537	68	65	1			
$\frac{2}{3}$	Gross receipts from other	10 18, 002, 806 10 4, 449, 569	10 9, 915, 066 10 4, 411, 531	72, 734 56, 328	33, 828 4, 787	565, 732 61, 942	765, 236 64, 892	13, 132, 112 500, 016	7, 331, 386 217, 299	4, 323, 945 30, 333	549, 526 6, 203	204, 643 2, 185	25, 058 122	2 3			
4 5 6 7	operations.3 Interest	288, 151 162, 781 26, 830 354, 505	501, 324 267, 942 60, 576 206, 822	868 998 141 4, 136	683 900 183 849	6, 348 3, 760 1, 939 12, 157	9, 206 6, 236 3, 270 9, 572	102, 355 55, 114 12, 900 236, 689	72, 139 58, 573 13, 209 86, 252	11, 706 5, 559 1, 387 33, 769	6, 994 2, 737 350 6, 323	526 1, 869 82 1, 158	780 1, 077 116 422	4 5 6 7			
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	624, 387	916, 420	124	701	14, 303	49, 682	296, 242	413, 125	2 9, 102	95, 177	1,804	6, 217	8			
9	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	55, 891	128, 530	671	337	1, 577	5, 785	18, 865	8, 626	1,369	522	170	19	9			
10	Total compiled receipts 5	23, 964, 920	16, 408, 212	136, 002	42, 267	667, 759	913, 880	14, 354, 294	8, 200, 608	4, 437, 169	667, 831	212, 437	33, 812	10			
11 12 13 14	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	10 13, 923, 293 10 1, 710, 570 140, 992 293, 575	10 7, 768, 998 10 2, 668, 020 124, 581 267, 863	51, 060 4, 312 486 9, 845	26, 554 2, 051 847 1, 306	419, 632 24, 012 5, 180 2, 622	623, 317 34, 433 6, 140 4, 399	10, 188, 742 197, 085 74, 858 93, 171	5, 742, 812 97, 021 49, 281 89, 828	3, 655, 148 4, 240 12, 128 13, 033	430, 579 2, 107 4, 808 4, 620	131, 775 405 1, 668 719	15, 019 29 444 253	11 12 13 14			

15 16	Interest paid	577, 658 453, 116	1, 330, 209 574, 223	943 2, 107	2, 342 2, 054	14, 267 16, 245	36, 124 21, 896	127, 599 143, 349	175, 039 202, 196	25, 802 22, 226	11, 868 6, 421	1, 265 2, 586	560 1, 558	15 16
17 18 19	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion	102, 840 844, 732 83, 376	266, 373 846, 231 123, 092	9, 963 47	448 2, 549 419	3, 748 30, 477 19, 233	8, 468 48, 592 41, 657	54, 448 387, 925 57, 658	56, 384 405, 288 71, 976	8, 651 54, 474 47	5, 942 18, 093 15	576 3, 763	856 1, 149	17 18 19
20 21	Net capital loss 8 Other deductions	6, 001 3, 529, 753	53, 548 3, 108, 577	43, 273	109 7, 909	342 55, 280	1, 604 104, 615	2, 781 1, 844, 392	11, 308 1, 396, 477	394 480, 158	741 108, 558	34, 473	716 8, 378	20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	21, 665, 905	17, 131, 714	122, 560	46, 589	591, 038	931, 245	13, 172, 009	8, 297, 608	4, 276, 301	593, 751	177, 285	28, 96 3	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	2, 299, 015	11 723, 502	13, 442	11 4, 322	76, 722	11 17, 365	1, 182, 285	11 97, 000	160, 868	74, 080	35, 153	4, 849	23
24	Net income or deficit	1, 618, 736	11 1, 768, 452	12, 646	11 5, 359	60, 841	11 72, 832	867, 178	11 518, 751	130, 397	11 21, 618	33, 179	11 1, 387	24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax 9	223, 341 1, 736	5	1, 739 6		8, 366 45	(13)	119, 629 1, 087	2	18, 131 273		4, 563 322	i	25 26
27	Total tax	225, 077	5	1, 744		8, 411	(13)	120, 716	2	18, 404		4, 885	1	27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	2, 073, 938	12 723, 507	11,698	11 4, 322	68, 311	¹² 17, 366	1,061,568	12 97, 002	142, 464	74, 080	30, 268	4, 848	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	1, 936, 246 58, 398	646, 290 19, 923	9, 759	325	67, 645 150	25, 237 640	962, 730 32, 719	289, 854 1, 348	153, 447 301	26, 504	9, 385	1, 550 96	29 30

For footnotes, see p. 185.

Table 13.—Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

			[1.101.0] 1.6		ousanus oi							
					Indu	istrial grou	ıps—Conti	nued				
					М	anufacturi	ng—Conti	ued				
	Tobacco	products		and their lucts		r and its actures	Rubber	products	Forest	products		oulp, and lucts
	Net in-	No net income	Net in-	No net income	Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income
Number of returns	20	18	230	370	91	105	69	83	119	372	141	168
Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ¹ Gross receipts from other operations ³ Interest. Rents. Other receipts Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations ⁴	- 303	16, 387 2 160 12 59	332. 930 6, 740 1, 425 1, 433 209 3, 076	462, 188 4, 350 1, 435 3, 034 1, 192 3, 220	160, 020 820 696 440 39 1, 015	93, 069 791 132 393 93 682	345, 391 6, 295 1, 459 1, 990 1, 540 2, 865	333, 916 19, 407 3, 368 7, 842 564 2, 889	132, 762 3, 212 628 568 144 1, 769	157, 735 16, 540 1, 305 2, 354 1, 156 2, 201	241, 694 6, 207 1, 755 2, 517 202 1, 611	145, 308 3, 242 8, 458 1, 118 456 2, 163
Dividends from domestic corporations. Interest on tax-exempt obligations 4	1,004	1 13	899 557	2, 177 513	1, 112 109	588 65	791 102	18, 221 399	397 248	1, 165 168	4, 238 315	1, 838 71
Total compiled receipts 5	1	16, 634	347, 270	478, 109	164, 250	95, 814	360, 433	386, 607	139, 728	182, 624	258, 539	162, 655
Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6. Cost of other operations. Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax? Bad debts. Depreciation.	- 400	14, 148 123 23 147 75 129 238	251, 687 2, 691 5, 623 3, 102 1, 683 4, 564 1, 125 9, 408	408, 985 1, 564 5, 166 3, 968 7, 421 6, 717 2, 318 14, 815	129, 875 1, 911 2, 686 654 999 337 1, 733	78, 282 460 1, 126 2, 866 860 896 691 1, 717 3	242, 100 76 1, 402 7, 832 4, 823 9, 822 2, 072 10, 803	259, 194 118 949 5, 957 9, 368 3, 850 2, 786 13, 904	96, 217 1, 957 1, 839 878 1, 517 2, 079 668 4, 793 2, 135	115, 287 12, 354 2, 594 1, 119 7, 857 5, 661 2, 920 11, 449 6, 736	161, 133 2, 072 2, 661 1, 943 8, 389 3, 853 2, 433 13, 808 571	117, 543 744 1, 761 2, 693 13, 346 4, 132 797 9, 781 846
Bad debts Depreciation	9 12, 598	2, 069	618 49, 572	1, 194 54, 017	18, 931	28 13,341	19 68, 124	49 79, 940	48 17, 776	625 36, 454	260 38, 816	143 24, 301

22	Total compiled deductions	99, 026	16, 963	330,073	506, 168	157, 215	100, 269	347, 072	376, 115	129, 906	203, 056	235, 939	176, 087	22
23 24	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	7, 374 6, 334	11 329 11 343	17, 197 15, 740	11 28, 059 11 30, 750	7, 035 5, 813	11 4, 455 11 5, 108	13, 361 12, 467	10, 492 11 8, 128	9, 822 9, 178	11 20, 432 11 21, 765	22, 600 18, 047	11 13, 432 11 15, 341	23 24
25 26	Income tax Excess-profits tax ⁹	871 5		2, 187 18	(12)	803 9		1,749 22		1, 264 6		2, 486 33		25 26
27	Total tax	876		2, 204	(13)	812		1,772		1, 270		2, 519		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27). Cash dividends paid	6, 498 1, 697 176	11 329 (13)	14, 993 12, 170 386	12 28, 059 4, 579 10	6, 223 4, 849 929	11 4, 455 1, 565 7	11, 589 19, 952	10, 492 5, 225	8, 552 4, 847 268	11 20, 432 6, 848 6	20, 081 12, 492 6, 142	11 13, 432 1, 384	28 29 30

For footnotes, see p. 185.

Table 13.—Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

_						Indi	ıstrial grou	ıps—Continu	ied					
					Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued						
		Printing, ing, and industr	publish- nd allied ies		and allied lucts	Stone, c	lay, and roducts	Metal and	its products	Manufact elsewhere	turing not classified	Const	ruction	
		Net in-	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	341	314	658	640	99	181	976	1, 210	181	265	79	271	1
2 3	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ² Gross receipts from other operations. ³	343, 186 13, 557	145, 205 8, 010	1, 815, 347 288, 900	3, 016, 512 74, 129	214, 484 2, 531	62, 905 1, 814	4, 642, 221 133, 917	2, 189, 288 80, 412	273, 025 3, 274	134, 288 2, 278	20, 371 26, 226	21, 950 40, 683	2 3
4 5 6 7	Interest Rents Net capital gain Other receipts	1, 511 5, 343 587 3, 658	1, 661 4, 981 540 2, 280	13, 003 14, 055 5, 093 54, 012	31, 113 12, 526 4, 093 29, 405	1, 439 660 9 2, 927	665 307 243 1,817	65, 988 19, 519 1, 395 126, 272	14, 491 21, 004 3, 725 31, 960	1, 856 1, 039 1, 892 4, 512	1, 736 1, 041 668 2, 830	528 266 505 868	2, 295 1, 196 255 1, 855	4 5 6 7
8	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corporations.	2, 121	29, 775	121, 187	203, 722	2, 751	4, 952	113, 457	47, 850	17, 379	1, 443	315	2, 652	8
9	Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.4	443	43	3, 557	2,770	593	82	10, 978	3, 917	389	43	178	25 3	9
10	Total compiled receipts 5	370, 406	192, 494	2, 315, 152	3, 374, 269	225, 395	72, 785	5, 113, 748	2, 392, 647	303, 367	144, 327	49, 257	71, 140	10
11 12 13 14 15 16	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property_ Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax.7	230, 955 1, 419 5, 033 5, 995 5, 170 3, 113	116, 151 4, 270 2, 654 5, 404 8, 437 2, 261	1, 250, 501 117, 583 12, 015 21, 122 26, 318 43, 083	2, 232, 796 28, 245 8, 120 40, 562 55, 742 111, 078	143, 683 607 2, 260 1, 132 1, 951 2, 813	47, 133 754 1, 290 461 3, 683 1, 472	3, 643, 359 64, 306 23, 763 32, 621 48, 638 44, 476	1, 807, 088 45, 622 17, 900 19, 244 49, 476 55, 559	168, 830 1, 730 4, 075 1, 952 1, 102 3, 304	100, 607 754 2, 345 2, 658 6, 274 2, 515	13, 671 9, 671 1, 289 290 533 549	18, 300 32, 172 2, 304 771 4, 072 1, 533	11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss § Other deductions	4, 117 7, 597 20 68 73, 741	2, 990 5, 581 31 58 56, 422	12, 878 126, 675 46, 777 235 303, 126	17, 004 178, 635 58, 802 5, 629 621, 782	1, 344 12, 569 534 427 33, 724	538 6, 670 240 45 13, 448	17, 390 130, 410 7, 519 499 656, 104	17, 735 136, 852 5, 295 1, 991 343, 250	2, 409 10, 755 56 61 57, 250	1, 679 6, 402 9 79 34, 518	320 2, 516 8 15 16, 957	1, 314 3, 717 8 510 12, 697	17 18 19 20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	337, 229	204, 258	1, 960, 313	3, 358, 395	201, 043	75, 733	4, 669, 083	2, 500, 012	251, 524	157, 839	45, 821	77, 398	22
23	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22).	33, 177	11 11, 764	354, 839	15, 874	24, 352	11 2, 948	444, 665	11 107, 365	51, 843	11 13, 512	3, 436	11 6, 258	23
24	Net income or deficit	30, 613	11 41, 581	230, 096	11 190, 617	21, 008	11 7, 982	320, 229	11 159, 132	34, 075	11 14, 998	2, 944	11 9, 163	24
$\begin{array}{c} 25 \\ 26 \end{array}$	Income tax Excess-profits tax ⁹	4, 209 33		31, 711 153	(13)	2, 889 17	(13)	44, 076 158		4, 690 38	(13)	405 2		25 26
27	Total tax	4, 243		31, 864	(13)	2, 906	(13)	44, 234		4, 728	(13)	407		27
28	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27).	28, 934	11 11, 764	322, 975	15, 874	21, 447	12 2, 948	400, 431	11 107, 365	47, 115	12 13, 512	3, 029	11 6, 258	28
29 30	Cash dividends paid	21, 152 3, 014	18, 368	312, 747 18, 238	171, 393 770	16, 976 1, 026	2, 528	359, 926 1, 787	48, 260	33, 090 453	1, 651 460	1, 724 18	2, 840	29 30

For footnotes, see p. 185.

Table 13.—Returns for 1934 of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

_					Indi	ıstrial group	os—Continu	ıed						
			tation and lic utilities	Tre	ade	Service—P amusemen et	ts, hotels,	surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, and bond etc.		of busi- ot given	1933 ind activi avail	ty not	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns	1, 645	2, 472	1, 474	1, 587	604	1, 244	1, 088	3, 388	1	2	253	752	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales ? Gross receipts from other operations ? Interest	14 213, 863 14 2, 962, 868 104, 363 44, 433 3, 283 35, 458	14 340, 355 14 3, 666, 085 132, 036 41, 058 16, 657 51, 384	3, 877, 986 51, 181 14, 783 22, 132 1, 842 45, 975	1, 269, 534 54, 776 10, 561 23, 386 1, 315 23, 668	14 86, 142 14 432, 967 1, 790 8, 646 161 10, 067	14 112, 401 14 192, 083 3, 576 23, 790 1, 904 5, 036	14 22, 386 14 15 356,067 56, 981 27, 072 6, 004 9, 036	14 15, 866 1415 166,948 269, 747 111, 331 23, 688 27, 879		(13)	11, 478 1, 975 128 360 55 117	24, 509 3, 978 1, 083 1, 473 95 326	2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9	Dividends from domestic corporations Interest on tax-exempt ob- ligations 4	223, 311 10, 702	341, 557 5, 477	33, 091 2, 415	19, 780 533	4, 565 274	6, 793 138	52, 418 21, 189	81, 985 107, 171	(13)		17 19	147 211	8 9
10	Total compiled receipts §	3, 598, 280	4, 594, 607	4, 049, 405	1, 403, 555	544, 614	345, 720	551, 154	804, 614	7	(13)	14, 148	31, 821	10
11 12 13 14	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 6 Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business prop-	14 1, 339, 171	14 278, 412 14 2, 414, 171 13, 893	2, 998, 109 14, 246 23, 245	979, 355 20, 850 11, 959	14 61, 134 14 118, 421 6, 668	14 67, 509 14 49, 807 4, 379	14 15, 760 14 15 2, 889 16 15, 475	14 13, 041 14 15 15, 799 16 34, 105	6		9, 116 762 773	19, 700 1, 715 1, 673	12
15 16	erty	59, 422 373, 847	51, 300 842, 031	86, 982 21, 733	46, 319 26, 928	30, 685 12, 120	33, 768 31, 000	10, 288 26, 476	39, 170 211, 087		(13) (13)	269 140	1, 002 1, 585	14 15
10 17	come tax?Bad debts	236, 546 15, 739	262, 140 16, 783	27, 284 15, 308	16, 440 18, 678	8, 987 2, 488	15, 134 10, 225	17, 856 10, 130	51, 980 153, 163	(13)	(18)	193 145	850 909	16 17

18 19 20 21	Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss \$ Other deductions	349, 203 5, 471 293 373, 909	287, 891 8, 637 5, 926 756, 001	37, 971 297 639 656, 910	22, 128 134 994 296, 581	17, 562 13 712 252, 819	31, 592 7 719 173, 753	8, 811 637 1, 149 17 284, 260	43, 256 203 32, 222 17 354, 471		(13)	304 12 8 1, 953	1, 219 50 157 6, 073	18 19 20 21
22	Total compiled deductions	2, 932, 680	4, 937, 184	3, 882, 775	1, 440, 365	511, 611	417, 895	17 393, 731	17 948, 496	6	1	13, 675	34, 933	22
23 24 25 26	Compiled net profit or net loss (10 less 22) Net income or deficit	665, 600 431, 587 59, 566 111	11 342, 577 11 689, 610	166, 630 131, 123 18, 108 309	11 36, 810 11 57, 123	33, 003 28, 163 3, 949 45	11 72, 175 11 79, 106	157, 423 83, 816 11, 518 130	11 143, 882 11 333, 038	1 1 (13)	11 1 11 1	473 437 60 2	11 3, 112 11 3, 470	23 24 25 26
27	Total tax	59, 677	3	18, 416		3, 994	(13)	11, 649	(13)	(13)		62		27
28 29 30	Compiled net profit less total tax (23 less 27)	605, 923 678, 415 11, 522	12 342, 580 215, 700 12, 189	148, 213 96, 004 9, 591	11 36, 810 11, 091 829	29, 009 12, 707 128	12 72, 175 4, 145 130	145, 774 107, 020 4, 269	12 143, 882 96, 772 4, 787	1	11 1	411 241	11 3, 112 326	28 29 30

1 Includes consolidated returns for 1934 filed by corporations with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and by railroads.

² Gross sales for 1934 businesses where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold," see "deductions."

³ Gross receipts for 1934 businesses from operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations" see "deductions."

4 Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its possessions.

⁵ Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.

*Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.

7 Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."

For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.

• Excess-profits tax of \$5,078 appears on returns with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1 (d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")

10 Does not agree with similar item in Part I of table 10, where the 1934 data are classified according to the business reported on the 1934 returns. In Part I of table 10 for the industrial groups Transportation and other public utilities. Service, Finance, and Nature of business not given (businesses where inventories are not an income-determining factor), \$127,699,406 on returns with net income and \$129,585,514 on returns with no net income which were reported as "gross sales" were combined with "gross receipts from other operations"; likewise, in Part I of table 10, \$99,938,553 on returns with net income and \$80,513,336 on returns with no net income which were reported as "cost of goods sold" were combined with "cost of other operations." In table 13, where the 1934 data are classified by industrial groups based on the business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933 such combination is not possible. However, the sum of "gross sales" and "gross receipts from other operations" and the sum of "cost of goods sold" and "cost of other operations" in table 13 agree with similar sums in Part I of table 10.

11 Deficitor compiled net loss.

12 Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax.

13 Less than \$500.

14 The item "gross sales" is not combined with "gross receipts from other operations" and the item "cost of goods sold" is not combined with "cost of other operations" because these figures include 1934 data for 1934 businesses other than Transportation and other public utilities, Service, or Finance, where inventories are an income-determining factor.

15 Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.

Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return form 1120-L.
 Includes special non-expense deductions of life insurance companies. (See p. 5.)

Table 14.—Returns for 1934 submitting balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 19-29]

														
							Industri	al groups						
										Manufac	turing			
		Aggr	egat e		ture and ndustries		ng and rying	Total man	ufacturing		d kindred lucts	Liquors a ages (alc nonalcol	and bever- coholicand holic)	
	ī.	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with bal- ance sheets.2	9, 023	14, 013	73	177	443	793	3, 546	4, 024	674	505	66	60	1
2 3	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receiv-	2, 375, 875 7, 204, 209	4, 227, 466 11, 562, 314	28, 155 23, 219	3, 448 36, 775	79, 714 200, 477	60, 791 306, 286	1, 029, 645 3, 499, 345	583, 193 3, 469, 440	131, 362 492, 920	45, 032 174, 295	8, 749 40, 846	1, 540 21, 398	2 3
4 5 6	able. Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments other than	3, 303, 802 905, 444 16, 670, 983	2, 531, 560 3, 595, 880 29, 951, 453	14, 603 23, 959 93, 044	10, 532 7, 434 54, 577	149, 118 38, 511 672, 456	147, 098 34, 065 1, 310, 742	2, 266, 858 535, 447 5, 696, 403	1, 795, 611 160, 884 6, 904, 189	469, 381 14, 034 404, 190	60, 746 8, 130 918, 516	45, 500 3, 377 28, 885	1, 954 324 46, 566	4 5 6
7	tax-exempt.6 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and	22, 069, 605	34, 896, 127	130, 051	123, 269	995, 547	1, 649, 055	5, 764, 321	7, 372, 062	808, 527	296, 457	64, 418	21, 735	7
8	depletion). Other assets	2, 739. 239	3, 373, 189	5, 740	10, 257	61, 436	124, 698	1, 392, 304	941, 102	143, 311	81, 695	20, 307	8, 467	8
9	Total assets	55, 269, 156	90, 137, 989	318, 770	246, 291	2, 197, 259	3, 632, 735	20, 184, 323	21, 226, 482	2, 463, 725	1, 584, 871	212, 080	101, 985	9
10	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts pay- able.	5, 971, 515	9, 432, 936	66, 907	58, 608	205, 376	417, 472	3, 035, 529	3, 761, 932	392, 104	218, 591	30, 911	19, 421	10
11	Bonded debt and mort-	8, 568, 799	21, 740, 205	18, 173	26, 147	197, 265	453, 146	1, 317, 259	2, 356, 586	312, 678	176, 134	6, 565	7, 957	11
12 13 14	other liabilities Capital stock, preferred Capital stock, common	5, 483, 409 4, 346, 225 20, 009, 476	17, 476, 640 6, 995, 388 25, 308, 458	21, 393 2, 002 162, 395	17, 173 17, 556 101, 047	165, 642 125, 872 926, 264	343, 322 203, 659 1, 740, 459	1, 525, 042 2, 051, 865 7, 379, 875	1, 276, 811 2, 057, 204 8, 309, 221	147, 847 296, 301 803, 090	86, 284 145, 875 518, 627	17, 245 17, 655 65, 032	5, 413 7, 421 39, 418	12 13 14

_	4	
_		

15 Surplus and undivided profits. 16 Less deficit. 526, 383 4, 646, 372 12. 898 33, 143 42, 420 304, 381 296, 177 1, 452, 388 48, 584 64, 628 17 Total liabilities. 55, 269, 156 90, 137, 989 318, 770 246, 291 2, 197, 259 3, 632, 735 20, 184, 323 21, 225, 482 2, 463, 725 1, 584, 871 Receipts, taxable income:	391 8, 524 212, 080 101, 985 202, 851 24, 225	16
16 Less deficit. 526, 383 4, 646, 372 12. 898 33, 143 42, 420 304, 381 296, 177 1, 452, 388 48, 584 64, 626	212, 080 101, 988 202, 851 24, 225	17
17 Total liabilities	202, 851 24, 225	=
Receipts toyable income:		⊒
Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 19 Gross receipts from other operations. 8 11 17 10 tal habilities 55, 209, 150 90, 137, 999 318, 770 246, 291 2, 197, 299 3, 532, 755 20, 154, 323 21, 225, 462 2, 403, 725 1, 584, 871 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297 2, 197, 297, 297 2, 197,	1 5,200	
20 Interest	1,868 1,077 80 116	21 22
□ 24 Dividends from domestic 613,961 897,836 99 701 14,291 38,146 287,671 413,094 23,564 95,177	1,804 6,217	24
corporations. 25 Interest on tax-exempt obligations. 55,791 127,795 664 337 1,575 5,785 18,791 8,616 1,327 516	170 19	25
26 Total compiled re- 23, 635, 494 15, 957, 757 135, 259 42, 145 643, 224 734, 321 14, 117, 132 8, 074, 753 4, 393, 456 656, 309 ceipts. 9	210, 638 32, 970	26
Deductions: Cost of goods sold **\frac{10}{2} = \frac{11}{1} \text{13, 700, 613} & \frac{11}{1} \text{7, 477, 452} & \frac{50, 551}{2} & \frac{26, 446}{2} & \frac{406, 492}{406, 492} & \frac{497, 171}{497, 171} & \frac{10, 025, 548}{10, 025, 548} & \frac{5, 641, 778}{5, 641, 778} & \frac{3, 627, 677}{420, 770} \\ \frac{29}{2} & \text{Cost of other operations.} & \frac{11}{1} \text{1, 695, 740} & \frac{12}{1} \text{2, 620, 418} & \frac{4}{3} \text{12} & \text{2, 051} & \text{20, 669} & \text{15, 510} & \text{189, 703} & \text{96, 078} & \frac{4}{4, 200} & \text{2, 107} & \text{19, 100} & 10, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100, 100,	405 25 1,660 438	28
31 Interest paid	1, 261 511 2, 584 1, 552	31 32
33 Bad debts 100, 833 259, 855 511 448 3, 725 8, 150 52, 938 54, 120 8, 551 5, 546 34 Depreciation 832, 984 821, 676 9, 967 2, 539 27, 966 30, 397 379, 758 401, 158 53, 512 17, 787 35 Depletion 83, 152 116, 917 45 419 19, 221 36, 422 57, 533 71, 077 47 15 36 Net capital loss 12 5, 953 45, 708 12 109 339 1, 045 2, 746 11, 185 385 732 37 Other deductions 3, 497, 787 3, 032, 858 43, 205 7, 888 54, 315 97, 671 1, 821, 267 1, 369, 488 473, 364 107, 014	3, 721 1, 114 55 716	34 35 36
38 Total compiled deductions. 21, 369, 899 16, 636, 897 121, 931 46, 429 569, 577 759, 845 12, 960, 076 8, 153, 765 4, 239, 808 581, 373	175, 827 28, 074	38
39 Compiled net profit or net loss 2, 265, 595 16 679, 140 13, 328 15 4, 285 73, 646 15 25, 525 1, 157, 056 18 79, 011 153, 648 74, 936 (26 less 38).	34, 811 4, 890	39
40 Net income or deficit	32, 837 15 1, 346	40
41 Income tax 220, 103 1,728 7,945 117, 349 17, 905 Excess-profits tax 13 1,720 5 6 16 17, 905 17, 905 17, 905 17, 905 18,000 17, 905 18,000 17, 905 18,000	4, 516	41 1 42
43 Total tax	4, 838	43
44 Compiled net profit less total 2, 043, 682 16 679, 145 11, 595 16 4, 285 65, 656 16 25, 525 1, 038, 628 16 79, 013 135, 470 74, 936 tax (39 less 43).	1 1 1	
45 Cash dividends paid. 1, 892, 829 636, 686 9, 684 323 66, 291 25, 237 927, 590 288, 190 145, 556 26, 022 46 Stock dividends paid. 58, 398 17, 923 150 640 32, 719 1, 348 301		45 46

For footnotes, see p. 194.

Table 14.—Returns for 1934 submitting balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

				[IVIORE)	ngures in t	nousanus (n donats,							
						Ind	ustrial gro	ups—Cont	inued					
						М	anufacturi	ng-Conti	nued					
		Tobacco	products	Textiles prod	and their lucts	Leather manuf	and its actures	Rubber	products	Forest p	roducts	Paper, pro-	pulp, and ducts	
		Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	Net in- come	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets 2	20	17	228	352	89	102	53	69	118	356	140	151	1
2 3 4 5 6 7	Assets: 3 Cash 4 Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt 5 Investments other than tax-exempt 6 Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion).	14, 659 44, 496	897 1, 813 2, 461 257 1, 223 3, 377	27, 773 71, 994 90, 984 17, 394 47, 275 135, 388	28, 590 81, 126 127, 967 1, 093 114, 171 264, 301	9, 312 40, 929 38, 038 2, 766 20, 443 23, 072	3, 044 13, 483 27, 189 1, 450 19, 046 36, 264	22, 383 97, 920 84, 632 1, 785 84, 714 132, 125	25, 870 142, 643 78, 525 11, 551 189, 288 170, 645	12, 463 27, 293 29, 464 9, 125 42, 149 100, 485	14, 813 104, 811 54, 777 3, 673 161, 164 453, 127	20, 266 47, 682 47, 641 7, 854 126, 812 281, 501	8, 944 146, 456 33, 749 1, 190 625, 090 216, 773	2 3 4 5 6 7
8	Other assets	1,835	1,955	17, 429	36, 623	14, 956	7, 443	64, 638	10, 799	8, 799	32, 788	42, 301	25, 179	8
9	Total assets	128, 469	11, 985	408, 237	653, 871	149, 516	107, 918	488, 197	629, 322	229, 778	825, 154	574, 057	1, 057, 381	9
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable. Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common Surplus and undivided profits. Less deficit.	9, 155 17, 777	2, 834 250 885 3, 538 4, 930 3, 124 3, 577	46, 067 9, 930 22, 394 64, 706 133, 292 142, 157 10, 310	91, 481 74, 416 54, 515 133, 068 232, 578 147, 825 80, 012	14, 347 5, 060 16, 856 29, 223 40, 897 44, 727 1, 593	77, 790 4, 776 7, 195 22, 604 33, 204 21, 623 59, 273	68, 556 56, 991 23, 845 89, 384 154, 121 103, 058 7, 758	128, 892 132, 470 48, 226 175, 954 174, 390 54, 376 84, 986	23, 526 17, 153 22, 850 14, 767 83, 986 76, 056 8, 559	105, 800 103, 025 64, 044 48, 392 348, 449 257, 889 102, 445	64, 286 95, 969 12, 735 72, 958 208, 071 123, 699 3, 663	97, 526 143, 662 74, 839 254, 821 341, 582 163, 031 18, 080	11 12 13 14 15
17	Total liabilities	128, 469	11, 985	408, 237	653, 871	149, 516	107, 918	488, 197	629, 322	229, 778	825, 154	574, 057	1, 057, 381	17
18	Receipts, taxable income Gross sales †	102, 464	16, 387	330, 439	456, 727	159, 899	90, 110	324, 744	320, 964	132, 716	156, 551	241, 524	142, 268	18

19 20 21 22 23	Gross receipts from other operations 8_Interest	2, 044 363 123 321 46	2 160 12 59	6,740 1,225 1,433 209 3,073	4, 325 1, 433 2, 961 1, 191 3, 203	820 696 440 39 1, 015	675 121 374 93 618	4, 028 1, 440 1, 744 889 2, 798	19, 223 3, 366 7, 786 560 2, 858	3, 212 628 568 144 1, 769	16, 509 1, 305 2, 333 1, 156 2, 191	6, 207 1, 755 2, 517 202 1, 610	3, 231 8, 450 1, 113 456 2, 114	19 20 21 22 23
24 25	Dividends from domestic corporations- Interest on tax-exempt obligations 5	1, 004 36	1 13	899 557	2, 149 513	1, 112 109	588 65	791 102	18, 221 399	397 248	1, 165 168	4, 238 315	1, 838 71	24 25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	106, 400	16, 634	344, 576	472, 503	164, 129	92, 645	336, 537	373, 377	139, 682	181, 378	258, 368	159, 541	26
27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ¹⁰ . Cost of other operations Compensation of officers. Rent paid on business property. Interest paid. Taxes paid other than income tax ¹¹ . Bad debts. Depreciation. Depletion. Net capital loss ¹² . Other deductions.	480 155 287 433 448 1, 137	14, 148 123 23 140 74 129 238 11 2, 054	249, 521 2, 691 5, 623 3, 102 1, 683 4, 551 1, 125 9, 384 (17) 618 49, 382	403, 962 1, 564 5, 162 3, 912 7, 367 6, 641 2, 308 14, 699 1 1, 186 53, 284	129, 788 1, 911 2, 679 654 998 336 1, 732 87 18, 910	75, 080 460 1, 122 2, 859 821 890 691 1, 710 3 27 13, 176	226, 574 54 1, 402 4, 948 4, 686 8, 649 1, 993 10, 455 16 65, 437	250, 490 118 939 5, 451 9, 367 3, 769 2, 656 13, 774 46 75, 676	96, 217 1, 957 1, 839 878 1, 517 2, 079 668 4, 793 2, 090 48 17, 776	114, 171 12, 343 2, 577 1, 106 7, 842 5, 645 2, 919 11, 410 6, 736 617 36, 345	160, 990 2, 072 2, 661 1, 942 8, 389 3, 853 2, 433 13, 808 571 260 38, 807	115, 020 744 1, 733 2, 573 13, 244 4, 019 794 9, 455 843 92 23, 857	27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	99, 026	16, 940	327, 679	500, 087	157, 097	96, 839	324, 214	362, 285	129, 861	201, 711	235, 785	172, 374	38
39 40	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38) Net income or deficit	7, 374 6, 334	15 306 18 320	16, 897 15, 440	15 27, 583 18 30, 245	7, 032 5, 811	15 4, 195 15 4, 848	12, 323 11, 430	11, 092 15 7, 529	9, 821 9, 176	15 20, 332 15 21, 665	22, 582 18, 030	15 12, 833 16 14, 742	39 40
41 42	Income tax. Excess-profits tax 13.	871 5		2, 145 18	(17)	803 9		1, 607 21		1, 264 6		2, 484 33		41 42
43	Total tax	876		2, 163	(17)	812		1, 628		1, 270		2, 517		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	6, 498	15 306	14, 734	16 27, 583	6, 220	15 4, 195	10, 696	11, 092	8, 551	15 20, 332	20, 066	18 12, 833	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid	9, 385 176	(17)	11, 467 386	4, 579 10	4, 849 929	1, 290 7	15, 553	5, 225	4, 847 268	6, 839 6	12, 492 6, 142	1, 384	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 194.

Table 14.—Returns for 1934 submitting balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns, assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

						Indi	istrial grou	ps—Continu	ed					
					Ma	nufacturin	g-Contin	ued						
		Printing, ing, an industr	publish- id allied ies	Chemicals prod		Stone, o	lay, and roducts	Metal and	its products	Manufaci elsewhere	turing not classified	Consti	ruction	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.	318	278	628	588	93	169	943	1, 123	176	254	77	259	1
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: \$ Cash 4. Notes and accounts receivable. Investments, tax-exempt 4. Investments, other than tax-	20, 008 136, 480 21, 196 9, 438 65, 275	8, 239 163, 591 13, 448 722 391, 251	228, 019 611, 265 425, 770 107, 482 1, 731, 087	203, 111 1, 296, 856 621, 335 33, 753 2, 990, 401	24, 816 51, 148 49, 890 12, 677 90, 908	9, 640 31, 797 17, 874 1, 912 87, 436	488, 669 1, 732, 533 846, 311 332, 918 2, 899, 786	220, 787 1, 196, 684 721, 394 96, 582 1, 106, 472	28, 241 133, 675 73, 553 15, 387 106, 020	12, 688 94, 486 34, 193 247 253, 564	5, 080 34, 888 6, 232 1, 533 16, 576	8, 440 50, 015 9, 401 9, 902 115, 082	2 3 4 5 6
7	exempt. ⁶ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depreciation and depletion). Other assets.	121, 246 166, 151	124, 707 95, 955	1, 656, 840 569, 697	2, 583, 298 158, 624	188, 950 14, 739	130, 655 14, 164	2, 117, 158 288, 768	2, 962, 438 427, 919	124, 787 39, 373	108, 284 39, 490	24, 598 4, 940	76, 608 15, 211	7
9	Total assets	539, 796	797, 913	5, 330, 160	7, 887, 377	433, 129	293, 478	8, 706, 143	6, 732, 276	521, 036	542, 952	93, 846	284, 658	9
10 11 12 13 14	Liabilities: 3 Notes and accounts payable Bonded debt and mortgages. Other liabilities. Capital stock, preferred. Capital stock, common.	60, 728 61, 425 40, 093 30, 835 105, 929	216, 146 105, 145 20, 738 48, 488 280, 025	874, 753 215, 845 257, 361 247, 096 2, 485, 356	1, 352, 412 718, 875 375, 457 316, 079 3, 556, 919	44, 594 6, 522 24, 323 49, 702 221, 841	29, 205 57, 163 17, 352 54, 996 129, 621	1, 283, 936 501, 485 859, 970 1, 077, 855 2, 933, 535	1, 309, 812 770, 819 446, 625 785, 747 2, 429, 858	93, 194 5, 964 70, 368 43, 605 132, 684	112, 022 61, 895 75, 237 60, 221 219, 620	10, 613 2, 944 8, 511 7, 663 23, 089	63, 168 63, 548 30, 472 [38, 223 _ 76, 116_	13

15 16	Surplus and undivided profits Less deficit	249, 047 8, 262	203, 541 76, 169	1, 345, 769 96, 019	1, 954, 867 387, 232	88, 600 2, 454	40, 664 35, 523	2, 151, 272 101, 911	1, 439, 105 449, 690	181, 390 6, 168	96, 208 82, 251	42, 996 1, 969	49, 076 35, 945	15 16
17	Total liabilities	539, 796	797, 913	5, 330, 160	7, 887, 377	433, 129	293, 478	8, 706, 143	6, 732, 276	521, 036	542, 952	93, 846	284, 658	17
18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 Gross receipts from other operations.8	339, 137 13, 382	129, 604 6, 920	1, 704, 017 272, 660	2, 990, 752 70, 155	211, 851 2, 435	58, 565 1, 784	4, 619, 519 133, 354	2, 155, 754 80, 028	271, 181 3, 164	133, 921 2, 278	20, 371 26, 139	21, 218 40, 577	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	1, 503 5, 294 579 3, 650	1, 655 4, 960 534 2, 018	12, 748 13, 495 5, 022 53, 371	30, 842 12, 198 3, 964 29, 219	1, 390 657 9 2, 922	597 259 243 1,622	65, 936 19, 412 1, 388 126, 218	14, 413 20, 974 3, 703 31, 590	1, 847 1, 018 1, 892 4, 503	1, 732 1, 038 668 2, 817	528 266 501 852	2, 262 1, 189 255 1, 837	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic corpo-	2, 115	29, 7 75	118, 171	203, 721	2, 751	4, 951	113, 446	47, 849	17, 379	1, 443	310	2, 650	24
25	rations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions.\$	43 8	42	3, 535	2, 770	593	82	10, 973	3, 914	3 89	43	178	253	25
26	Total compiled receipts 9	366, 099	175, 508	2, 183, 020	3, 343, 621	222, 607	68, 103	5, 090, 247	2, 358, 225	301, 374	143, 939	49, 145	70, 242	26
27 28 29 30 31 32	Deductions: Cost of goods sold 10	228, 254 1, 377 4, 927 5, 907 5, 161 3, 097	101, 079 4, 250 2, 609 4, 037 8, 331 2, 218	1, 156, 958 110, 319 11, 971 21, 037 25, 923 41, 606	2, 211, 467 27, 407 7, 942 40, 257 53, 562 110, 764	142, 153 595 2, 222 1, 130 1, 899 2, 755	43, 787 754 1, 178 455 3, 533 1, 412	3, 625, 726 64, 306 23, 597 32, 380 48, 576 44, 361	1, 777, 310 45, 548 17, 796 18, 764 49, 303 55, 405	167, 795 1, 728 4, 019 1, 937 1, 098 3, 293	100, 213 754 2, 339 2, 648 6, 271 2, 503	13, 671 9, 648 1, 283 289 533 545	17, 642 32, 121 2, 262 763 4, 038 1, 523	27 28 29 30 31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss 12 Other deductions	4, 089 7, 507 20 68 72, 810	2, 652 5, 216 31 53 53, 677	11, 850 121, 059 46, 777 215 295, 204	16, 746 177, 178 58, 461 5, 617 613, 745	1, 335 12, 042 529 426 33, 392	499 6, 161 90 37 12, 824	17, 156 129, 922 7, 444 497 652, 550	16, 689 136, 019 4, 889 1, 972 335, 240	2, 379 10, 685 56 61 56, 599	1, 635 6, 396 9 78 34, 270	320 2, 500 8 13 16, 908	1, 290 3, 614 8 498 12, 575	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	333, 217	184, 152	1, 842, 921	3, 323, 147	198, 478	70, 730	4, 646, 514	2, 458, 937	249, 650	157, 116	45, 719	76, 333	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	32, 882	16 8, 644	340, 099	20, 473	24, 129	15 2, 627	443, 733	18 100, 711	51, 725	¹⁵ 13, 177	3, 425	15 6, 091	39
40	Net income or deficit	30, 329	15 38, 461	218, 393	16 186, 017	20, 786	15 7, 660	319, 314	15 152, 474	33, 957	15 14, 663	2, 938	15 8, 994	40
41 42	Income tax	4, 170 33		30, 102 148	(17)	2, 858 17	(17)	43, 950 157		4, 674 38	(17)	404 2		41 42
43	Total tax	4, 204		30, 250	(17)	2,875	(17)	44, 107		4,712	(17)	406		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39' less 43).	28, 679	15 8, 644	309, 849	20, 473	21, 254	16 2, 628	399, 626	15 100, 711	47, 013	16 13, 177	3, 019	15 6, 091	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	21, 070 3, 014	18, 368	291, 684 18, 238	170, 920 770	16, 976 1, 026	2, 528	358, 924 1, 787	47, 835	33, 090 453	1, 651 460	1,724 18	2, 840	45 46
											-			

Table 14.—Returns for 1934 submitting balance sheets of corporations for which consolidated returns were filed for 1933, by major industrial groups classified on business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, and by returns with net income and no net income, showing number of returns assets and liabilities as of December 31, 1934, or at close of fiscal year nearest thereto, compiled receipts and compiled deductions, compiled net profit or net loss, net income or deficit, income tax, excess-profits tax, total tax, compiled net profit after deducting total tax, and dividends paid—Continued

[Money figures in thousands of dollars]

														
						Indust	rial groups-	-Continued						
			tation and licutilities	Tr	ad e		Professional, ents, hotels,	surance, holding	Banking, in- real estate, companies, and bond etc.		of business given	activity	dustrial not avail- ole	
		Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	Net income	No net income	
1	Number of returns with balance sheets.2	1, 595	2, 309	1, 396	1, 439	594	1, 163	1, 057	3, 187	1	2	241	660	1
2 3 4 5 6	Assets: ³ Cash ⁴ Notes and accounts receivable Inventories Investments, tax-exempt ⁵ Investments other than tax-exempt. ⁶ Capital assets—Lands, buildings, equipment (less depre-	457, 047 1, 229, 971 211, 596 64, 246 7, 652, 420 13, 912, 541	554, 876 2, 198, 380 338, 941 152, 236 13, 815, 439 22, 439, 625	184, 618 727, 378 576, 071 83, 985 497, 362 533, 969	76, 627 335, 740 197, 247 13, 944 730, 220 474, 941	44, 240 138, 071 73, 746 10, 753 162, 327 349, 043	32, 638 338, 404 15, 723 2, 316 465, 457 726, 112	545, 837 1, 347, 604 4, 085 146, 674 1, 877, 239 353, 539	2, 901, 805 4, 808, 399 12, 438 3, 210, 235 6, 530, 695 1, 992, 819	910	681	1, 533 3, 257 1, 494 337 2, 246 5, 995	5, 646 18, 873 4, 570 4, 863 24, 370 41, 637	2 3 4 5 6
8	ciation and depletion). Other assets.	876, 653	1, 637, 122	96, 573	92, 370	60, 467	88, 059	239, 990	455, 914	5	117	1, 132	8, 339	8
9	Total assets	24, 404, 474	41, 136, 619	2, 699, 956	1, 921, 089	838, 646	1, 668, 709	4, 514, 968	19, 912, 307	920	801	15, 993	108, 298	9
10 11 12 13 14 15	Liabilities:3 Notes and accounts payable - Bonded debt and mortgages - Other liabilities - Capital stock, preferred - Capital stock, common - Surplus and undivided profits - Less deficit -	82, 159	3, 140, 568 16, 119, 014 3, 488, 992 3, 348, 222 11, 885, 433 4, 649, 405 1, 495, 014	708, 692 140, 726 138, 633 291, 096 798, 083 667, 009 44, 283	376, 909 365, 025 166, 246 382, 205 474, 979 367, 614 211, 888	165, 158 197, 273 52, 888 63, 177 172, 727 202, 797 15, 373	358, 572 518, 945 243, 582 136, 785 434, 588 252, 907 276, 669	530, 723 196, 610 2, 097, 017 162, 002 712, 418 844, 640 28, 442	1, 235, 202 1, 822, 102 11, 882, 937 806, 341 2, 248, 956 2, 739, 358 822, 590	579 (17) 404 63	3 587 1, 100 18 907	2, 762 1, 371 2, 638 506 9, 008 2, 306 2, 598	20, 503 15, 692 26, 519 5, 194 36, 559 17, 278 13, 447	11 12 13 14 15 16
17	Total liabilities	24, 404, 474	41, 136, 619	2, 699, 956	1, 921, 089	838, 646	1, 668, 709	4, 514, 968	19, 912, 307	920	801	15, 993	108, 298	17

18 19	Receipts, taxable income: Gross sales 7 Gross receipts from other operations.\$	18 208, 296 18 2, 956, 319	18 336, 138 18 3, 625, 819	3, 830, 007 49, 917	1, 198, 037 52, 816	¹⁸ 86, 142 ¹⁸ 432, 480	¹⁸ 112, 025 ¹⁸ 188, 822	18 22, 241 18 19 355,831	¹⁸ 15, 082 ¹⁸ 19 164, 848			11, 182 1, 943	23, 431 3, 808	18 19
20 21 22 23	Interest	103, 797 44, 364 3, 189 35, 416	129, 919 40, 734 16, 504 50, 623	14, 627 21, 919 1, 836 45, 327	10, 226 22, 736 1, 216 22, 950	1, 789 8, 489 124 10, 063	3, 462 23, 308 1, 825 4, 953	56, 895 26, 880 5, 912 8, 937	267, 313 110, 239 23, 306 27, 356	7	(17)	122 339 55 115	1,060 1,296 86 310	20 21 22 23
24	Receipts, tax-exempt income: Dividends from domestic cor-	223, 273	336, 288	31, 322	19, 597	4, 565	6, 689	52, 416	80, 526	(17)		14	145	24
25	porations. Interest on tax-exempt obliga- tions. ⁵	10, 695	5, 454	2, 413	528	274	136	21, 183	106, 479			19	207	25
26	Total compiled receipts	3, 585, 348	4, 541, 479	3, 997, 368	1, 328, 106	543, 927	341, 219	550, 297	795, 148	7	(17)	13, 789	30, 342	26
27 28 29 30	Deductions: Cost of goods sold ** Cost of other operations Compensation of officers Rent paid on business property.	18 1, 335, 164	18 274, 392 18 2, 387, 048 13, 677 50, 518	2, 957, 558 14, 246 22, 796 86, 485	921, 812 20, 479 11, 559 44, 736	18 61, 134 18 118, 380 6, 659 30, 678	18 67, 208 18 49, 804 4, 190 33, 371	18 15, 699 18 19 2, 856 20 15, 422 10, 276	18 12, 238 18 19 15, 652 20 33, 061 38, 446	6	(17)	8, 867 762 756 259	18, 766 1, 676 1, 607 955	27 28 29 30
$\frac{31}{32}$	erty. Interest paid Taxes paid other than income tax.11	373, 250 236, 198	832, 422 260, 478	21, 680 27, 061	26, 589 15, 615	12, 098 8, 971	30, 281 14, 743	26, 346 17, 811	207, 515 51, 506	(17)	(17) (17)	134 188	1, 483 786	31 32
33 34 35 36 37	Bad debts Depreciation Depletion Net capital loss ¹² Other deductions	15, 728 348, 494 5, 398 292 373, 103	16, 169 279, 064 8, 604 5, 908 749, 285	14, 866 37, 782 287 682 650, 537	16, 987 21, 070 129 908 282, 676	2, 488 17, 488 13 712 252, 483	10, 196 30, 877 7 704 168, 251	10, 115 8, 748 637 1, 148 21 284, 049	151, 599 42, 792 201 25, 195 21 339, 354		(17)	142 291 10 8 1, 920	896 1, 164 50 156 5, 670	33 34 35 36 37
38	Total compiled deductions	2, 921, 058	4, 877, 564	3, 833, 982	1, 362, 560	511, 105	409, 633	21 393, 109	21 917, 557	6	1	13, 335	33, 209	38
39	Compiled net profit or net loss (26 less 38).	664, 290	15 336, 085	163, 386	15 34, 454	32, 821	16 68, 413	157, 188	15 122, 409	1	15 1	454	15 2, 867	39
40	Net income or deficit	430, 322	15 677, 827	129, 651	15 54, 578	27, 982	18 75, 239	83, 588	15 309, 413	. 1	15 1	421	15 3, 220	40
$\frac{41}{42}$	Income tax Excess-profits tax 18	59, 393 106	3	17, 905 308		3, 924 45	(17)	11, 487 128	(17)	(17)		58 2		41 42
43	Total tax	59, 499	3	18, 214		3, 969	(17)	11, 615	(17)	(17)		59		43
44	Compiled net profit less total tax (39 less 43).	604, 791	16 336, 088	145, 173	15 34, 454	28, 852	16 68, 413	145, 573	16 122, 409	1	15 1	394	15 2, 867	44
45 46	Cash dividends paid Stock dividends paid	677, 394 11, 522	214, 002 12, 189	90, 438 9, 591	9, 232 829	12, 565 128	4, 137 130	106, 914 4, 269	92, 464 2, 787			229	261	45 46

For footnotes, see p. 194.

- 1 Includes consolidated returns for 1934 filed by corporations with fiscal years ended prior to December 31, 1934, and by railroads. ² Excludes returns for inactive corporations and returns with fragmentary balance sheet data.
- 3 See text, pp. 13-18.
- Includes cash in till and deposits in bank.
- Includes obligations of States and Territories or minor political subdivisions, securities issued under the Federal Farm Loan Act, and obligations of the United States or its
 - 6 See text, p. 15.
 - 7 Gross sales for 1934 businesses where inventories are an income-determining factor. For "cost of goods sold" see "deductions."
 - Gross receipts for 1934 businesses from other operations where inventories are not an income-determining factor. For "cost of other operations" see "deductions."
- Excludes gross receipts from sale of capital assets. Excludes nontaxable income other than interest on tax-exempt obligations and dividends on stock of domestic corporations as reported in Schedule L of the return.
 - 10 Includes taxes which are reported in "cost of goods sold." For method of tabulation, see p. 11.
 - 11 Excludes taxes tabulated under "cost of goods sold."
 - 12 For limitation on amount of net capital loss that may be allowed, see statement of provisions of Revenue Act of 1934, p. 2.
- 13 Excess-profits tax of \$5,078 appears on returns submitting balance sheets with no net income for income tax purposes, due to the credit for interest received on certain obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities, which is allowed against net income in the computation of the income tax, not being allowed against net income in the computation of the excess-profits tax. (See article 1 (d) of Treasury Decision 4469, "Regulations relating to the excess-profits tax imposed by section 702 of the Revenue Act of 1934.")
- 14 Does not agree with similar item on Part 1 of table 12, where the 1934 data are classified according to the business reported on the 1934 returns. In Part I of table 12, for the industrial groups Transportation and other public utilities, Service, Finance, and Nature of business not given (businesses where inventories are not an income-determining factor). \$127,699,406 on returns with net income and \$128,510,060 on returns with no net income which were reported as "gross sales" were combined with "gross receipts from other operations". likewise, in Part I of table 12, \$96,938,553 on returns with net income and \$79,593,561 on returns with no net income which were reported as "cost of goods sold" were combined with "cost of other operations." In table 14, where the 1934 data are classified by industrial groups based on the business reported on the consolidated returns for 1933, such combination is not possible. However, the sum of "gross sales" and "gross receipts from other operations" and the sum of "cost of goods sold" and "cost of other operations" in table 14 agree with similar sums in Part I of table 12.
 - 16 Deficit or compiled net loss.
 - 16 Compiled net loss plus excess-profits tax.
 - 17 Less than \$500.
- 18 The item "gross sales" is not combined with "gross receipts from other operations" and the item "cost of goods sold" is not combined with "cost of other operations" because these figures include 1934 data for 1934 businesses other than Transportation and other public utilities, Service, or Finance, where inventories are an income-determining factor.
 - ¹⁹ Includes for a limited number of returns the cost of securities purchased for customers.
 - 20 Excludes compensation of officers of life insurance companies which file return form 1120-L.
 - ²¹ Includes special nonexpense deductions of life insurance companies.

FISCAL YEAR RETURNS

195

Table 15.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by month in which the fiscal year ended, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 32-33]

				Agricu	ilture and i	related						Manufa	ecturing		
Fiscal year ended		Aggregate		228100	industries		Minii	ng and qua	rrying	Tota	l manufact	uring	Food an	d kindred	products
riscai year ended	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
July, 1934 August, 1934 September, 1934 October, 1934 November, 1934 January, 1935 February, 1935 March, 1935 April, 1935 May, 1935 June, 1935	4, 505 4, 597 5, 251 4, 765 5, 072 7, 637 4, 655 6, 132 5, 766 6, 202 12, 465	1, 471 1, 438 1, 598 1, 627 1, 884 3, 251 1, 585 2, 024 1, 947 2, 306 4, 782	3, 034 3, 159 3, 653 3, 138 3, 188 4, 386 3, 070 4, 108 3, 819 3, 896 7, 683	122 111 126 88 78 58 126 140 100 158 464	23 28 23 27 16 20 46 38 19 43	99 83 103 61 62 38 80 102 81 115 323	91 64 66 74 81 52 78 158 144 100 251	39 25 30 29 27 24 25 64 44 42 76	52 39 36 45 54 28 53 94 100 58	1, 165 1, 030 1, 209 1, 222 1, 718 1, 060 949 1, 359 1, 261 1, 341 3, 173	462 412 444 495 746 367 355 511 528 565 1, 378	703 618 765 727 972 693 594 848 733 776 1,795	139 120 185 202 157 86 192 298 232 260 466	65 46 77 109 70 31 94 153 131 152 243	74 74 108 93 87 55 98 145 101 108 223
Total	67, 047	23, 913	43, 134	1, 571	424	1, 147	1, 159	425	734	15, 487	6, 263	9, 224	2, 337	1, 171	1, 166

							Manufa	cturing—C	ontinued						
Fiscal year ended	Liquors : holic a	and bevera	ges (alco- oholic)	Tot	oacco prod	ucts	Textiles	and their	products	Leather a	and its mai	ufactures	Ru	ibber prodi	iets
	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
July 1934 August 1934 September 1934 October 1934 November 1935 January 1935 February 1935 March 1935 April 1935 May 1935 June 1935	36 55 39 41 22 22 46 30	13 18 22 15 16 11 12 22 13 8 30	22 18 33 24 25 11 10 24 17 20 30	1 2 4 2 1 1 3 4 1 8	2 4 1 1 1 1 1 4	1 1 1 1 2 3	395 311 288 290 567 399 227 259 259 295 691	158 145 121 109 248 136 78 86 85 95	237 166 167 181 319 263 149 173 174 200 417	26 25 25 69 179 24 35 35 47 58 100	13 10 8 30 88 10 16 11 17 24 52	13 15 17 39 91 14 19 24 30 34 48	2 5 4 13 16 3 3 10 3 3 17	2 3 6 6 1 1 2 3 1 8	2 4 7 10 2 2 2 8
Total	414	180	234	27	14	13	3, 981	1, 535	2, 446	623	279	344	79	33	46

Table 15.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by month in which the fiscal year ended, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income—Continued

							Manufa	cturing—C	ontinued	., -					- 11 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5 - 5
Fiscal year ended	Fo	rest produ	cts	Paper,	pulp, and j	products	Printin alli	ig, publishi ed industri	ing, and es	Chen	nicals and products	allied	Stone	e, clay, and products	l glass
	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
July, 1934 August, 1934 September, 1934 October, 1934 November, 1935 February, 1935 March, 1935 April, 1935 May, 1935 June, 1935	68 62 76 75 163 49 40 84 72 69 171	24 24 17 37 56 13 13 28 26 25 52	44 38 59 38 107 56 27 56 46 44 119	18 26 29 30 23 13 10 30 44 39 67	6 14 13 18 19 7 5 12 23 24 33	12 12 16 12 4 6 5 18 21 15 34	117 110 128 102 73 155 103 167 177 146 291	39 30 50 35 20 48 38 53 67 52 110	78 80 78 67 53 107 65 114 110 94 181	90 70 72 92 136 62 58 95 103 156 376	46 37 31 40 70 32 16 33 45 84 189	44 33 41 52 66 30 42 62 58 72 187	22 21 32 33 49 30 26 41 18 27 83	5 5 10 4 18 7 7 10 5 7 32	17 16 22 29 31 23 19 31 13 20 51
		Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued	<u>'</u>				Transn	ortation ar	d other		<u>'</u>	-
Fiscal year ended	Meta	and its pr	oducts	Manufac	turing not classified	elsewhere		Construction	n		iblic utilit			Trade	
	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
July, 1934 August, 1934 September, 1934 October, 1934 November, 1934	175 163 220 204 243	64 58 70 71 103	111 105 150 133 140	77 81 93 69	27 22 23 17 31	50 59 70 52 38	86 110 116 124 74	18 21 23 29 24	68 89 93 95 50	249 196 195 144 115	118 74 81 55 41	131 122 114 89 74	1, 639 1, 654 1, 624 1, 676 1, 804	588 546 578 671 774	1, 051 1, 108 1, 046 1, 005 1, 030

January, 1935 February, 1935 March, 1935 April, 1935 May, 1935 June, 1935	154 163 217 169 184 627	47 56 71 69 68 270	107 107 146 100 116 357	62 69 74 103 75 216	24 19 29 43 24 81	38 50 45 60 51 135	226 267 246 170 131 256	65 76 46 39 22 58	161 191 200 131 109 198	136 271 420 315 425 826	55 111 141 138 198 339	81 160 279 177 227 487	4, 836 1, 845 2, 243 2, 087 2, 508 4, 583	2, 374 704 853 797 1, 104 2, 040	2, 462 1, 141 1, 390 1, 290 1, 404 2, 543
Total	2, 519	947	1, 572	988	340	648	1, 806	421	1, 385	3, 292	1, 351	1, 941	26, 499	11, 029	15, 470
		Fiscal ye	ar endad					Professions		real est	-Banking, i ate, holdin stock an s, etc.	g compa-	Nature o	f business i	not given
		r isom ye			•		Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
July, 1934 August, 1934 September, 1934 October, 1934 November, 1934 January, 1935 February, 1935 March, 1935 April, 1935 May, 1935 June, 1935							419 657 810 578 397 329 391 552 674 573 962	79 167 155 136 92 73 100 139 167 113 273	340 490 655 442 305 256 291 413 507 440 689	725 768 1,094 850 794 932 720 997 1,006 973 1,922	143 164 262 183 163 273 167 231 214 218 474	582 604 832 667 631 659 553 766 792 755 1,448	9 7 11 9 11 8 8 17 9 13 28	1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 3	8 6 9 7 10 8 7 16 8 12 25 116
10/81							0, 322	1, 494	4, 828	10, 781	2, 492	8, 289	130	14	116

Table 16.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by net income and deficit classes, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 32-33]

				A crice	ilture and	ralatad		_				Manuf	acturing		
Net income and deficit classes		Aggregate		rigitot	industries		Minii	ng and qua	rrying	Tota	l manufact	uring	Food ar	d kindred	products
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 50-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000 and over.	28, 968 9, 027 5, 366 3, 484 2, 465 6, 340 2, 901 1, 691 1, 098 2, 596 1, 576 140 94 14	9, 163 3, 041 1, 815 1, 194 875 2, 383 1, 228 723 515 1, 260 822 545 194 86 59	19, 805 5, 986 3, 551 2, 290 1, 590 3, 957 1, 673 968 583 1, 336 754 426 122 54 4	586 219 119 84 60 192 89 54 27 71 34 26 5	148 57 19 24 13 45 39 15 9 26 15 11 1	438 162 100 60 47 147 50 39 18 45 19 15 4	355 127 97 82 52 149 58 54 40 71 44 25 2	101 41 41 21 17 60 28 25 16 32 24 17	254 86 56 61 35 89 30 29 24 39 20 8 2	5, 275 1, 841 1, 149 749 579 1, 643 886 548 388 973 686 469 164 79 6	1, 759 647 421 270 211 649 389 261 207 518 402 307 119 60 37 6	3, 516 1, 194 728 479 368 994 497 287 181 455 284 162 45 19	668 247 200 130 87 278 134 84 65 172 128 86 25 14 17	241 97 85 67 45 139 70 46 45 123 90 71 20 14 16 2	427 150 115 63 42 139 64 38 20 49 38 15
Total	67, 047	23, 913	43, 134	1, 571	424	1, 147	1, 159	425	734	15, 487	6, 263	9, 224	2, 337	1, 171	1, 166

							Manufac	turing—Co	ntinued						
Net income and deficit classes		and bevera		Tol	oacco prod	ucts	Textiles	and their	products	Leather a	and its man	ufactures	Ru	ibber produ	ıets
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3. 3-4. 4-5. 5-10. 10-15. 15-20. 20-25. 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000. 1,000. 5,000 and over.	94 43 29 26 12 49 24 17 12 39 30 23 11	28 11 9 9 6 17 12 6 9 18 20 20 10 3 2	66 32 20 17 6 32 12 11 3 21 10 3	9 3 1 7 2 2 2	2 2 1 1 3 2 1	4	1, 574 549 296 169 150 348 224 117 78 184 142 93 32 21	574 206 104 54 53 123 81 56 30 89 74 56 22 12	1,000 343 192 115 97 225 143 61 48 95 68 37 10 9	182 60 41 32 21 74 36 26 23 49 46 24 2	75 23 25 15 9 27 17 15 15 19 13 6	107 37 16 17 12 47 19 9 8 34 27	21 9 6 6 1 8 5 4 3 6 5 3 1	8 1 3 2 1 4 1 2 3 3 3 3 1	13 8 3 4 4 2 2 3 2 2 2 1
Total	414	180	234	27	14	13	3, 981	1, 535	2, 446	623	279	344	79	33	46

Table 16.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by net income and deficit classes, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income—Continued

							Manufa	cturing—C	ontinued						_
Net income and deficit classes	Fo	rest produ	ets	Paper,	pulp, and p	products	Printin alli	g, publishi ed industri	ng, and es	Cher	nicals and products	allied	Stone	, clay, and products	glass
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
Under 1. 1-2. 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10. 10-15 15-20. 20-25 25-50. 50-100. 100-250. 250-500. 500-1,000.	80 63 37 117 62 47 26 55 46 25	97 32 25 23 10 42 24 15 6 16 17 8	175 66 55 40 27 75 38 32 20 39 29 17	80 32 17 18 7 38 19 11 7 38 20 22 29	24 16 10 6 5 19 10 8 6 22 17 15 7	56 16 7 12 2 19 9 3 1 16 3 7	716 234 132 72 47 133 65 36 21 56 30 17	230 78 42 14 11 45 29 14 9 32 20 13	486 156 90 58 36 88 36 22 12 12 4 10 4	364 133 73 60 44 170 88 65 44 104 68 52 24	111 42 30 19 16 78 54 40 31 71 51 40 20	253 91 43 41 28 92 34 25 13 33 17 12 4	118 53 28 15 24 47 25 15 8 19 16 8	31 17 9 1 2 15 9 3 2 5 10 3	87 36 19 14 22 32 16 12 6 14 6 5
1,000-5,000 5,000 and over				3	2	1	2	1	1	5 2	5 2		2	1	1
Total	929	315	614	329	174	155	1, 569	542	1,027	1,310	623	687	382	110	272

		Ma	nufacturin	g—Contin	ued					Transn	ortation an	d other			
Net income and deficit classes	Metal	and its pro	oducts	Manufac	turing not classified	elsewhere		onstructio	n ·	p	ortation an ıblic utiliti	es		Trade	
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	'Fotal	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
Under 1	265 178 115 102 270 152 97 74 204 115 95	225 92 61 47 36 98 61 41 37 99 61 53 25 7	564 173 117 68 66 172 91 56 37 105 54 42 14	388 115 68 43 46 104 50 27 27 47 29 21 8 2	113 30 17 13 16 6 39 19 12 14 25 19 14 6 6 1	275 85 51 30 65 31 15 13 22 20 7 2 1	902 271 142 87 47 139 65 28 21 65 26 10 1	220 54 30 14 12 24 18 7 5 19 8 7 1	682 217 112 73 35 115 47 21 16 46 18	1,506 459 294 186 117 281 112 74 51 88 59 42 14	546 185 129 71 47 129 55 40 32 49 37 22 6 2	960 274 165 115 70 152 57 34 19 39 22 20 8	12, 397 3, 899 2, 185 1, 416 974 2, 368 988 523 315 723 405 71 24 12 3	4, 485 1, 565 888 606 439 1, 137 518 283 182 460 252 130 53 16 12 3	7, 912 2, 334 1, 297 810 535 1, 231 470 240 133 263 153 66 18 8
Total	2, 519	947	1, 572	988	340	648	1,806	421	1, 385	3, 292	1, 351	1, 941	26, 499	11, 029	15, 470

Table 16.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by net income and deficit classes, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income—Continued

Net income and deficit classes	Service— mer	Professions nts, hotels,	al, amuse- etc.	real es	Banking, itate, hold stock as, etc.	ing com-	Nature o	f business	not given
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
Under 1. -2 2-3 3-4 4-5 5-10. 0-15 5-20. 20-25 20-50. 50-100. 100-250. 50-500. 500-1,000. 1,000-5,000. 5,000 and over.	2, 905 798 519 338 258 565 267 144 90 204 4110 88 19 9 6	720 186 100 75 54 125 61 30 23 60 28 20 5	2, 185 612 419 263 204 440 206 6114 67 144 82 68 14 6 3	4, 963 1, 395 856 534 374 999 436 260 165 400 209 114 40 18 18	1, 175 304 186 1112 82 213 1200 62 41 96 56 31 9	3, 788 1, 091 670 422 292 786 316 198 124 304 153 83 31 17 12 2		9 2 1 1 1 1	70 16 4 7 4 3 3 6 1 1 3 1
Total	6, 322	1, 494	4,828	10, 781	2, 492	8, 289	130	14	116

Table 17.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income

[For text defining certain items and describing returns included, see pp. 1-4 and 32-33]

				Agricu	ilture and i	related	3.51-1-					Manufa	eturing		
Total assets classes		Aggregate		0	industries		MIIII	ng and Qua	rrying	Tota	l manufact	uring	Food an	d kindred	products
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
No balance sheets submitted	4, 253 34, 723 9, 207 8, 895 4, 293 2, 713 2, 365 325 228 45	767 10, 615 3, 987 3, 871 1, 983 1, 259 1, 123 159 122 27	3, 486 24, 108 5, 220 5, 024 2, 310 1, 454 1, 242 166 106 18	165 554 265 293 160 73 47 12 2	24 138 76 97 48 18 18	141 416 189 196 112 55 29 7 2	94 443 190 201 104 53 60 10 4	25 156 78 73 46 20 25 2	69 287 112 128 58 33 35 8	504 7, 029 2, 231 2, 301 1, 374 938 876 122 97	85 1, 997 1, 055 1, 154 760 546 513 81 59	419 5, 032 1, 176 1, 147 614 392 363 41 38 2	102 855 370 401 235 149 171 23 27 4	28 290 191 250 149 91 128 19 21	74 565 179 151 86 58 43 4
Total	67, 047	23, 913	43, 134	1, 571	424	1, 147	1, 159	425	734	15, 487	6, 263	9, 224	2, 337	1, 171	1, 166

Table 17.—Corporation fiscal year returns for 1934 by major industrial groups and by total assets classes, showing total number of returns and number of returns with net income and no net income—Continued

							Manufac	turing—Co	ntinued			 			
Total assets classes	Liquors a	and bevera	ges (alco- pholie)	Tol	pacco prod	ucts	Textiles	and their	products	Leather a	nd its mar	ufactures	Ru	bber produ	acts
(Thousands of dollars)	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
No balance sheets submitted Under 50 50-100 100-250 500-1,000 1,000-5,000 5,000-10,000 10,000-50,000 50,000 and over	12 136 51 78 45 44 43 4	4 27 20 38 31 29 27 4	8 109 31 40 14 15 16	11 3 8 2 1 1	4 2 5 1	7 1 3 1 1	120 2, 237 535 440 240 176 192 22 19	9 625 284 242 136 107 112 10	111 1, 612 251 198 104 69 80 12 9	20 223 105 109 77 52 29 4 3	68 57 62 45 23 18 3 2	20 155 48 47 32 29 11 1	31 9 11 7 7 7 4 2	11 3 7 3 3 3 2 3	20 6 4 4 5 1 2
Total	414	180	234	27	14	13	3, 981	1, 535	2, 446	623	279	344	79	33	46
							Manufa	cturing—C	ontinued						
Total assets classes (Thousands of	Fo	rest produ	ets	Paper,	pulp, and p	products	Printin	g, publishi ed industri	ng, and	Cher	nicals and products	allied	Stone	o, clay, and products	glass
dollars)	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
No balance sheets submitted	22 329 146 208 111 63 45 5	5 89 52 92 37 24 15	17 240 94 116 74 39 30 4	6 95 42 54 38 40 35 9 8	1 31 21 34 23 28 20 7 7	5 64 21 20 15 12 15 2 15	75 984 231 104 90 45 35 3 2	15 304 109 60 32 19 2	60 680 122 104 30 13 16 1	45 461 189 262 137 112 79 9 13	7 135 94 142 87 75 62 8 10	38 326 95 120 50 37 17 1 1 3	16 142 81 68 39 16 15 3	3 33 25 21 7 12 7 2	13 109 56 47 32 4 8 1
Total	929	315	614	329	174	155	1, 569	542	1, 027	1, 310	i 623	687	382	110	227

		2112		- Соции	404					<i>m</i>	4-4	3 -43			
Total assets classes (Thousands of	Metal	and its pr	oducts	Manufac	turing not classified	elsewhere	(Constructio	n	Transp	ortation ar ablic utiliti	es		Trade	
dollars)	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net income	Returns showing no net income
No balance sheets submitted	59 995 353 421 281 178 183 29 16 4	8 249 145 200 142 94 83 17 7	51 746 208 221 139 84 100 12 9	27 530 116 137 72 55 41 6 4	5 131 52 61 39 28 19 4	22 399 64 76 33 27 22 2 3	110 1, 160 224 181 71 33 23 23 3	10 235 69 56 26 13 10 2	100 925 155 125 45 20 13 1	354 1, 962 361 296 117 90 85 13 6	104 749 169 158 70 48 42 4 4 4	250 1, 213 1, 213 192 138 47 42 43 9 2 5	1, 320 16, 181 3, 631 2, 988 1, 191 615 468 58 42 5	251 5, 644 1, 940 1, 707 733 383 296 38 33	1, 069 10, 537 1, 691 1, 281 458 232 172 20 9
Total	2, 519	947	1, 572	988	340	648	1,806	421	1, 385	3, 292	1, 351	1,941	26, 499	11, 029	15, 470
	Total 2, 519 947 1, 572 988 340								al, amuse- etc.	real es	Banking, i tate, hold stock as , etc.	ing com-	Nature	of business	not given
Total assets classes (Thousands of dollars)							Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income	Total	Returns showing net in- come	Returns showing no net income
No balance sheets sul Under 50		620 3, 653 627 644 267 236 229 28 15	117 820 212 160 66 56 51 4 6	503 2, 833 415 484 201 180 178 24 9	1, 049 3, 678 1, 665 1, 981 1, 007 670 577 79 61	151 866 387 464 234 174 168 23 20 5	898 2, 812 1, 278 1, 517 773 496 409 56 41	37 63 13 10 2 5	10 1 2 1	37 53 12 8 2 4					
Total			·····	<u></u>			6, 322	1, 494	4,828	10, 781	2, 492	8, 289	130	14	116

Manufacturing-Continued

REVENUE ACTS OF 1909-1934

AND CERTAIN TAX PROVISIONS OF THE NATIONAL INDUSTRIAL RECOVERY ACT (1933)

A SYNOPSIS OF CORPORATION INCOME AND PROFITS TAX RATES AND CREDITS AFFECTING THE COMPARABILITY OF DATA IN "STATISTICS OF INCOME"

209

Corporation income and profits tax rates and credits, and certain tax provisions of the Na-

			Income tax	
Revenue Act	Income year	Specific credit 2	Taxable income 4 8	Rate (percent)
1909 (excise tax) (Aug. 5, 1909).	1909 to Feb. 28,	\$5,000	Net income in excess of specific credit	1
1913 (Oct. 3, 1913)	Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1915.		All net income	1
1916 (Sept. 8, 1916)	1916		do	2
1916, as amended, and 1917 (Oct. 3, 1917).	1917		Dividends out of earnings from Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1915.	1
			Net income in excess of the sum of (1) excess-profits tax for the current year, and (2) dividends received out of earnings from Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1915.	2
			Net income in excess of the sum of (1) excess-profits tax for the current year and (2) dividends received out of earnings from Mar. 1, 1913, to Dec. 31, 1917.	4
1918 (Feb. 24, 1919)	1918	2, 000	Net income in excess of the sum of (1) the specific credit, (2) excess-profits and war-profits taxes for current year, and (3) interest received on	12
	1919, 1920	2, 000	United States obligations issued after Sept. 1, 1917. Net income in excess of the sum of (1) the specific credit, (2) excess-profits tax for current year, (3) excess-profits and war-profits taxes on income from Government contracts, (4) interest received on United States obligations issued after Sept. 1, 1917, and (5) War Finance Corporation bonds not exempt.	10
1921 (Nov. 23, 1921)	1921 1922, 1923		Net income in excess of specific credit 11.	10 12½
1924 (June 2, 1924) 1926 (Feb. 26, 1926)	1924 1925	2, 000 2, 000	do	13 13
1928 (May 29, 1928)	1929	3, 000 3, 000 3, 000	do	14 11 12
1932 (June 6, 1932) National Industrial Re- covery Act (June 16,	1931 1932, 1933 1933	3,000	All net income "	. 12
1933). ¹⁷ 1934 (May 10, 1934)	1934, 1935		do.11	15 1334

For footnotes, see pp. 212 and 213.

Note.—For the year 1917 there was also a tax of 10 percent upon that portion of the total net income remaining undistributed 6 months after the close of the taxable year, in excess of the income actually employed in the business, or invested in obligations of the United States issued after Sept. 1, 1917.

For the years 1918 to 1920, inclusive, a corporation that permitted an unreasonable accumulation of profits was not subject to the ordinary corporation income tax, but the individual stockholders were taxed upon their proportionate shares of its net income.

For the years 1921 to 1923, inclusive, a na additional tax of 25 percent was imposed upon the taxable net income of a corporation where it was shown that there had been an evasion of surtax as the result of an unreasonable accumulation of profits. This additional tax was increased to 50 percent for the years 1924 to 1933, inclusive, with the provision for 1926 and subsequent years that the additional tax shall not apply if all the shareholders of the corporation include in their gross income their entire distributive shares, whether distributed or not, of the net income of the corporation for such year.

For 1934 and 1935, every corporation improperly accumulating surplus (other than a personal holding company) is subject to a tax on the adjusted net income at the rate of (1) 25 percent of the amount of the adjusted net income not in excess of \$100,000.

under the Revenue Acts of 1909–1934, inclusive,¹ tional Industrial Recovery Act (1933)

Excess-pro	ofits tax 3		Tax credit for income and profits taxes paid to
Credit	Taxable income 4 5	Rate (percent)	foreign countries or United States posses- sions
			1
\$3,000 ° plus: An amount equal to the same percentage of invested capital ?	Net income equal to 15 percent of invested capital less credit.	20	For 1917 and prior years, income and profits tax- es paid to foreign coun- tries or United States
for the taxable year as the average annual pre-war income was of pre- war invested capital (not less than 7 percent nor more than 9 percent); or if corporation was not in existence	Net income in excess of 15 percent but not in excess of 20 percent of invested capital. Net income in excess of 20	25 35	possessions were not allowed as tax credit, but were included in general deductions from gross income, ex-
during at least one whole year of the pre-war period, 8 percent of invested capital for taxable year; or if during pre-war period, corporation had either no net income or a very small	percent but not in excess of 25 percent of invested capital. Net income in excess of 25 percent but not in ex-	45	cept that taxes paid to foreign countries were not allowed to foreign corporations.
net income, or if invested capital can not be determined, same percent as that of representative corporations. (See sec. 210, Revenue Act of 1917.)	cess of 33 percent of invested capital. Net income in excess of 33 percent of invested capital.	60	
\$3,000 ° plus 8 percent of the invested capital 7 for the taxable year.3	Net income equal to 20 per- cent of invested capital less credit.	30	Amount paid or accrued.
	Net income in excess of 20 percent of invested capital.	65	
do	Net income equal to 20 per- cent of invested capital less credit.	20	Do.•
	Net income in excess of 20 percent of invested cap-	40	
do.•	do		Do.10 Do.11
			Do.
			Do. Do.
			Do.
			Do. Do.
			Do.
121% percent of adjusted declared value	Net income in excess of		Do.16
of capital stock.			Amount paid or accrued.10

Surtax rates for personal holding companies

Revenue	Income	Taxable income:	Rate
Act	year	Undistributed adjusted net income ¹⁹	(percent)
1934	1934, 1935	Less than or equaling \$100,000 Exceeding 100,000	30 40

Corporation income and profits tax rates and credits. and certain tax provisions of the National

	_	War- profits tax	3	
Revenue Act	Income year	Credit	Taxable income	Rate (percent)
1918 (Feb. 24, 1919)	1918	\$3,000 b plus either an amount equal to the average pre-war net income plus or minus 10 percent of the increase or decrease of invested capital for the taxable year as compared with average pre-war invested capital, or 10 percent of the invested capital for the taxable year, whichever is greater.	Net income in excess of war- profits credits.	80 (less amount of ex-cess-profits tax).

1 All corporations are required to file returns regardless of amount of net income or loss, except those ¹ All corporations are required to file returns regardless of amount of net income or loss, except those exempted by specific provisions of the law. Under the Revenue Act of 1909, corporations were required to file returns on a calendar year basis; under subsequent revenue acts corporations were permitted to file returns on a fiscal year basis, other than the calendar year; except that under the Act of 1921 and subsequent acts, life insurance companies were required to file on a calendar year basis accordance with the State laws regulating insurance companies. Foreign corporations are required to file income tax returns for all income derived from sources within the United States, regardless of amount. From Jan. 1, 1918, to Dec. 31, 1921, personal service corporations were treated as partnerships. Prior and subsequent to said dates, such corporations were taxed as other corporations. For 1934 and subsequent years, personal holding companies (as defined in sec. 351 (b), Revenue Act of 1934) are required to file returns for surtax in addition to the corporation returns for income and excess profits tax. (For rates, see preceding page.)

¹ Specific credit allowable to domestic corporations with net income of \$25,000 or less for 1921 to 1931, inclusive, except domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a

orporation returns for income and excess profits tax. (For rates, see preceding page.)

1 Specific credit allowable to domestic corporations with net income of \$25,000 or less for 1921 to 1931, inclusive, except domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States for 1928 and subsequent years; not allowable to foreign corporations for 1918 and subsequent years.

3 For the years 1918 to 1921, inclusive, the war-profits and excess-profits tax of foreign corporations, and for 1921 the war-profits and excess-profits tax of corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, is computed by comparison with representative corporations whose invested capital can be satisfactorily determined and which are engaged in a like or similar trade or business and similarly circumstanced (see sec. 328, Revenue Acts of 1918 and 1921). (See note 7.)

4 For the years 1917 to 1921, inclusive, the amount of excess-profits tax (and for 1918 to 1921, inclusive, the war-profits tax) was allowed as a credit in arriving at the net income subject to income tax; for 1933 to 1935, inclusive, no credit was allowed for excess-profits tax in arriving at net income subject to income tax, nor was a credit allowed for income tax in arriving at net income subject to income tax, nor was a credit allowed for income tax in arriving at net income subject to income tax, nor was a credit allowed. Foreign corporations report only net income from sources within the United States; for 1921 and subsequent years domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States report only income from sources within the United States, or income from sources within the United States or income from sources within the United States report only income from sources within the United States, or income from sources within in or without the United States, received within the Unite

sec. 202 of the Revenue Acts of 1921, 1923, and 1920, and sec. 251 of the Revenue Acts of 1925 and subsequent acts. Net income has been adjusted from time to time as follows:

(a) Amortization of buildings, machinery, equipment, or other facilities constructed or acquired on or after Apr. 6, 1917, for the production of articles contributing to the prosecution of the war, is included to a reasonable amount in business deductions for 1918, 1919, 1920, and 1921.

(b) Dividends on stock of all corporations subject to the tax imposed by the Revenue Acts of 1909, 1917, and 1918 are deductible. Under the Revenue Acts of 1921 to 1932, inclusive, dividends on stock of domestic corporations (other than (1) those deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, 1921 and subsequent years, (2) China Trade Act corporations, 1922 and subsequent years, and (3) corporations exempt from tax, 1932 and subsequent years) as well as dividends on stock of foreign corporations receiving a certain amount of income from sources within the United States, are deductible. (Such deductible dividends are not included in the amount of gross income shown in "Statistics of Income" for 1918, due to the fact that on the return these dividends were designated as nontaxable income. Under the Revenue Acts of 1913 and 1916, dividends were not deductible. Under the Revenue Act of 1934, dividends on stock of foreign corporations are not deductible.

(c) Losses sustained during a taxable year and not compensated for by insurance or otherwise, are entirely

1934, dividends on stock of domestic corporations (other than (1), (2), and (3) above), are deductible, but dividends on stock of foreign corporations are not deductible.

(c) Losses sustained during a taxable year and not compensated for by insurance or otherwise, are entirely deductible, except that for 1932 and 1933, losses from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets and other than bonds issued by a government or political subdivision thereof) are allowed only to the extent of the gains from such sales or exchanges. The Revenue Act of 1932 provides that any excess loss thus disallowed, computed without regard to any losses sustained during the preceding taxable year, is, to an amount not in excess of the taxpayer's net income for the taxable year, considered as loss sustained in the succeeding taxable year from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds other than capital assets. The limitation on the deduction of losses from sales or exchanges of stocks or bonds does not apply to dealers in securities, banks, or trust companies. (See sec. 23 (r), Revenue Act of 1932.) However, section 218 (b) of the National Industrial Recovery Act repeals, effective as of Jan. 1, 1933, section 23 (r) (2) of the Revenue Act of 1932, thereby limiting the application of losses from the sale or exchange of stocks or bonds (other than capital assets) to gains from similar transactions during the same taxable year and prohibiting the carrying forward and application of such losses to gains from similar transactions in the succeeding taxable year. By the Revenue Act of 1934 the definition of capital assets is broadened to include all property held by the tax-payer, whether or not connected with trade or business, regardless of period held, except stock in trade, property which would be included in inventory, or property held for sale in ordinary course of business or trade.

For 1934 and subsequent years, corporations are permitted to deduct capital losses to the extent of \$2,000 plus the amount of capital ga

under the Revenue Acts of 1909-1934, inclusive, Industrial Recovery Act (1933)—Continued.

		Tax on income from Government	contracts
Revenue Act	Income year	Taxable income	Rate (percent)
1918 (Feb. 24, 1919)	1919, 1920	Total amount of net income derived from Government contracts made between Apr. 6, 1917, and Nov. 11, 1918, if in excess of \$10,000.	Excess-profits and war- profits tax rates of Revenue Act of 1918, as limited by sec. 301 (c).
1921 (Nov. 23, 1921)	1921	do	Do.

(d) Net loss for prior year resulting from the operation of any trade or business regularly carried on by the taxpayer: In the case of a net loss for any taxable year beginning after Oct. 31, 1918, and ending prior to Jan. 1, 1920, the Revenue Act of 1918 provides for the deduction of such loss from the net income of the preceding year, a redetermination of taxes for the preceding year being made. When the net loss exceeds the net income for the preceding year the amount of such excess is to be deducted from the net income of the succeeding taxable year. The Revenue Acts of 1921 to 1928, inclusive, provide that net loss in any year beginning after Dec. 31, 1920, may be deducted from the net income of the succeeding taxable year, and if such net loss exceeds the net income for the succeeding year, the amount of such excess is to be allowed in the net succeeding year. The Revenue Act of 1932 provides that a net loss for the year 1930 or 1931 shall be allowed as a deduction in computing net income for one succeeding taxable year only. However, section 218 (a) of the National Industrial Recovery Act repeals, effective as of Jan. 1, 1933, sections 23 (i) and 117 of the Revenue Act of 1932, thereby removing the privilege of deducting from the net income for the current taxable year, a net loss for the preceding taxable year. There is no provision in the Revenue Act of 1934 for deduction of net loss for prior year.

(e) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(a) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(b) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(c) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(e) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(e) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(e) For insurance companies, see special provisions in the various revenue acts.

(e) For insurance companies, see specia (d) Net loss for prior year resulting from the operation of any trade or business regularly carried on by the

Foreign corporations were not allowed to deduct income taxes paid to foreign countries either as a tax credit or in general deductions for the years 1918, 1919, and 1920.

The \$3,000 credit not allowable to domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States.

The \$3,000 credit not allowable to domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States.

The Beginning with 1921, the credit cannot exceed the proportion of the total tax against which the credit is taken, that the taxpayer's net income from sources without the United States bears to the entire net income. This credit does not apply to foreign corporations, or to domestic corporations deriving a large portion of their gross income from sources within a possession of the United States, but to such corporations these taxes are allowable as a deduction from gross income if imposed upon income from sources within the United States. For the years 1921 to 1931, inclusive, the amount of income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions in excess of that deducted as a tax credit is permitted to be included in deductions against gross income. (See note 16.)

The results of the united States which is required to be included in gross income (e. g., see sec. 236 (a), Revenue Act of 1924). For 1922 and subsequent years China Trade Act corporations are entitled to a specific credit. (See sec. 264 (a), China Trade Act, 1922.)

Not allowable to China Trade Act corporations for 1922 and subsequent than life, taxable at 124 percent.

percent.

14 See joint resolution of Congress No. 133, approved by the President Dec. 16, 1929, reducing rates of

"4 See joint resolution of Congress No. 133, approved by the President Dec. 16, 1929, reducing rates of income tax for 1929.

15 The rate of tax on consolidated returns for 1932 and 1933 is 14½ percent, except for returns with fiscal year ended in 1934 on which the tax attributable to 1934 is at the rate of 14¾ percent. (See sec. 218 (e), National Industrial Recovery Act). The rate of tax on consolidated returns with year beginning on and after January 1, 1934, is 15¾ percent. Under the Revenue Act of 1934 only railroad corporations are permitted to file consolidated returns.

15 For 1932 and subsequent years, the taxpayer may elect to credit the income and profits taxes paid to foreign countries or United States possessions (with certain limitations) against the income tax liability to the United States, or to include the entire amount of such taxes in deductions against gross income. (See secs. 131 and 23 (c), (2), Revenue Acts of 1932 and 1934.)

17 See note 5 (e) and (d) and note 15.

19 Under the Revenue Act of 1934, interest on Liberty bonds, etc., which is required to be included in gross income, is included in net income for excess-profits tax computation. (See note 11.)

19 For definition of "Undistributed, adjusted net income," see section 351, Revenue Act of 1934.

20 If corporation was not in existence during the whole of at least one calendar year during the pre-war period, the credit (with certain exceptions) shall be the sum of \$3,000 and an amount equal to the same percentage of invested capital for the taxable year as the average percentage of income to invested capital for the taxable year as the average percentage of income to invested capital for the taxable year as the average percentage of income to invested capital for the taxable year as the average percentage of income to invested capital for the taxable year as the average percentage of income to invested capital for the taxable year. (See sec. 311, Revenue Act of 1918).

INCOME TAX FORMS

215

FACSIMILES OF CORPORATION INCOME TAX RETURNS FOR 1934, FORMS 1120, 1120L, AND 1120H

1120. Corporation income and excess-profits tax return.
1120L. Life insurance company income tax return for companies issuing life and annuity contracts, including combined life, health, and accident insurance.
1120H. Personal holding company return.

		Form 1120 TREASURY DEPARTMENT INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE	FORM 1094 N CORPORATION INC							TUR	N¦	P	age I	of R	turn	
	-	(Auditor's Stamp)	For	Calen	dar `	Year	193	4			F	le de				
			or Fiscal Year begun							: 19	35					
			PRINT PLAINLY	CORPORAT	ION'S NAI	AE AND B	USINESS A	DDRES	is		- S	erial umber.				
											_ ,					
					(Name) eet and num						n	istrict	(Cael	Jer's Sta	mp)	
					eet and nun office and i											
			It is Ferential Front Where Otl				That This E	orn be	Compl	dale Fil	=					
			It is Essential, Except Where Others In Irrespective of	Any Statement	, Schedule	, or Report	Le Submitted	Herew	ith							
			Date of Incorporation								2	n.p	Check	M.O.	Cert.e	I led
			Under the Laws of what Sta													
	_		Total de Ball of mail on								3.			********		
		Corporation's Books are in Care of				Locat			******	•••••		•			•••••	
	Kind	l el Business (in detail)(Also check	industrial division on page 3)	This a Consolid			Corporation	1 •			o, of Ho			rations 7	*******	
		Foreign Corporation, State Whether Re												ncome, 5		
		e Corporation a personal holding comp	uany within the meaning of Section	351 of the Rev	essee Act of	1934 7 (Aft	swer "yes" (of "no")	(1)	0, all ac	ditional	1epun	on Ferr	n 1120 H	must be	filed.)
ы	jtes jestru	a sad coes He.	GROSS INCOME	Ε										_		
ER	1.	Gross Sales (where inventories an income-determining fact	or), S; A	s Returns a: Mowances,	na \$; Net Sal	cs\$.						1	1	
ATTACH REMITTANCE HERE	2.	Less Cost of Goods Sold: (a) Inventory at beginning		•		1	1					1				
Ž		1.,	dise bought for manufacture o		3	1	1		- 1	:				[ĺ	
Ě		(c) Missellanaous costs (5	From Scharlote 4. Column 11:	r sale					- 1							
Ξ		(1) Salaries and wages, \$	(2) Other costs, \$	To	tal	1	1 1		- 1					l]	
RE		(d) Total of lines (a), (b)			\$		11		- 1							
3		(e) Less inventory at end		***************************************												
ř	3.	Gross Profit from Sales (Item	1 minus Item 2)					\$.							l	l
¥		Gross Receipts (where inventor	rice are not an income-determi:	ning factor).	s.					1					l	
	5.	Less cost of operations (From Se (a) Salaries and wages, \$	chedule A. Column 2): (b) Other costs, \$; Te	otal											
		Gross Profit where inventories		ng factor (I	tem 4 mis	us Item	5)									
	7.	Interest on Loans, Notes, Mo	itgages, Bonds, Bank Deposit	s, etc				!				ļ			ŀ	İ
	8.	Rents			·····									1	[1
		Royalties				•••••				*****				1	1	1
		Capital Gain or Loss (From Sch			**********		•			•••••		ļ		1		ļ
		Interest on Liberty Bonds, etc Dividends on Stock of:				*****	**********									ļ
		Dividends on Stock of: (a) Domestic Corporation										····			-	1
			ns not subject to taxation und	ier Title I of	Revenue	Act of 1	934		·····	••••••		-		1	İ	
	12	(c) Foreign Corporations. Other Income (State nature of inco							·····							
	14.		IN ITEMS 3, AND 6 TO 13, INCL.		*************	**********	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •					1	s			
			DEDUCTIONS					1						-		
	15.	Compensation of Offic Ses (From				·····		s.			ļ			1		
	16.	Rent on Business Property		•••••							ļ 	ļ				
	17.	Repairs (From Schedule D); (c) Sale	ries and Wages, \$; (b) Other C	ost <i>i</i> , \$	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	; Tot	al						1		
		Interest			******	·····									ľ	
		Taxes (From Schedule E)			*******							-		1		
		Losses by Fire, Storm, etc. (Fi		******	***********											
		Bad Debta (From Schedule G) Dividends (Item 12 (e) above)									i			ŀ	İ	
		Depreciation (resulting from e		obsolescopes	A Company	adula ti						i			ļ	
		Depletion of Mines, Oil and C												1	i	
		Other Deductions Authorized													ł	
			(Not included in Berns 2, 5, 15, or 17 a			••••									1	
	26.		ONS IN ITEMS 15 TO 25							*******				1		1
	27.		om 14 minus Item 26)										\$]		·····
		2100 2110 0810 (21)		COMPU	TATION	OF TAX	ζ						******			******
	_		INCOME TAX			· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					FITS TAX					
	28. 1	Net Income (Item 27, above)			33, 1	Set Income	for Excess-p	roûts T	ax Cor	nputētio	n (Item	27,				<u> </u>
	29. 1	Less Interest on Liberty Bonds, etc. (Ite			36. i	less: 125/5	of \$ tarc1 is you led June 30, 1		value	of capi	tal stock	105				
		Balance subject to Income Tax (Item 28 income Tax (1784% of Item 30) for 1584%		<u></u>		end end	fared in you led June 30, h sleet to Excess	gG4	Par C	can retu	an 101)	- aut	*****			
		income Tax (12%% of Item 30) for 15%% consolidated return of railroad corporat	.101ta)		38.	Exces-proth	u:Ты. (5% of	Item 37				3				122 202
	32. 1	iers: Income Tax Paid at Source. (This crodit can be allowed only to a nonresident foreign corporation)		ł	N mad	ore.—Separ	ete computs 1120 by each : us making a c	tion of :	Excess-	profits T	tex as var	te ail-				
	23.	income Tax Paid to a Foreign Country or U.S. Possession		ļ	7500	l corporation	ns making a c	onsolida	ted Inc	ome Ta	return.					

Types			BEOINNE	10 0	TAXABLE	YEAR				End o	XADLE YEAR					
TAX SEE		Amo	unt			Total	4			Amou	est.			Total	a	_
ASSETS																-
. Cash	-	1			\$			ļ					s			
Notes receivable	ł		1													
Accounts receivable	\$	ļ	ļ	ļ	}	l			\$						ı	i
(a) Less reserve for bad debts						ļ										
. Inventories:					ì			1							i	
(a) Raw materials	\$		l .		ļ				s						ı	
(b) Work in process		}			Ì		-								1	
(c) Finished goods		1		1	ĺ	i		ĺ							1	
	·		ļ		1										i	
(d) Supplies	·														i	
	·				1									ŀ	ļ	
				<u></u>	-	¦		ŀ	<u> </u>					}		
, Investments (nontaxable): (a) Obligations of a State, Territory, or any po- Brical subdivision thereof, or District of Columbia, or United States possessions	1		1			İ		ļ							i	
Rical subdivision thereof, or District of			ļ	•												
Columbia, or United States possessions	8				1				5							
(b) Obligations of Instrumentalities of the United States) 														ı	
(c) Obligations of the United States		l			1									ļ		
Other investments:					1			1							1	Ī
(a) Stocks of domestic corporations	s	!			l				s					i	i	
(b) Bonds of domestic corporations	1	1										/			i	
															ı	
(c) Stocks and bonds of foreign corporations.				i									i .			
(d) All other investments or loans						_		Ì								•
. Deferred charges:			1												1	
(a) Prepaid insurance	\$				1			1	\$					l	1	
(b): Prepaid taxes					1										İ	
(c) All other		l		ļ					ļ							
Capital assets:					1									1	ı	
(a) Land							i		,						ı	
(b) Buildings	1							ŀ						l	i	
					1							_				
(c) Machinery and equipment	·				Ì										ı	
(d) Furniture and fixtures									·				1		ı	
(e) Delivery equipment					l										ľ	
***************************************		ļ														
		ļ	<u> </u>	ļ	1		1							İ		
	S							1	\$			ļ		l	ŀ	ì
(f) Less reserves for depreciation (except on land)	ļ.,		ļ					ļ <u>.</u>	<u> </u>			<u></u>			ļ	
Patente		1		Г					[ļ	
Good will	ĺ	ļ				l			ļ						Ĺ	
Other assets (describe fully):	1	1							1		ĺ					1
Owner assets (describe runy).					l	1						i			ı	
***************************************	*				1		ł		*							ļ
***************************************						i				*********			i	1		
***************************************	4	<u> </u>	l	1				-		<u> </u>						=
Total Assets		i	·····	i	\$			ļ		_		_	8			=
LIABILITIES		1			1					ĺ						
. Notes payable (less than one year)	1				\$	ļ			f		İ		\$		 	
. Accounts payable	1		1	Ì		ļ			1		ì	ĺ		}		
. Bonds and notes (not secured by mortgage)	1	1	ļ						1	1		!		ļ		
. Mortgages (including bonds and notes so secured)	ļ		ĺ	1					ļ	İ	ĺ		ļ		ļ	
: Accrued expenses:	1		i					i	ł	i	ļ	i			ļ	
(a) Interest	s				ļ		ļ		s					İ	ļ	
(b) Taxes	1						1						l	1	1	
(c) All other		1			Í	1	ļ]_				l				
(c) All other	T	<u> </u>	T	1	1		1				<u> </u>		1			
			1		1		ļ						-	[1	
		1	·		1		l		>			ļ		1	l	
	1				·					 		en.			}	
Capital stock:	1	l				i					ĺ			1	İ	
(a) Preferred stock (less stock in treasury)	. S	ļ	ļ	ļ	1				\$				1	1	1	
(b) Common stock (less stock in treasury)		ļ	ļ <u>.</u>	<u>J</u>			ļ	ļ	ļ			<u> </u>	ļ			
. Surplus	s	ļ		ļ			1		s				1		i	
. Undivided profite	1	<u>L</u>	J	L.,.	1			1	ļ	<u>l</u>	<u>l</u>	<u>i</u>		l.,		
Total Liabilities					s.			1					\$		[-
																-
Remarks				••												•

SCHEDULE I	_RECONCI	LIATIO	ON OF	NET I	NCO:	ME AND ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN SURPLU		age 3	of Ret	urm
1 Net income from Item 27, page 1 of the return						13. Unallowable deduction:				
2. Nontaxobe income: (a) Interest on obligations of a State, Territory subdivision thereof, or the District of Cole States possessions.	, or any political mbia, or United					(a) Donations, gratuites, and contributions. (b) Income and profits taxes paid to the United States, and such taxes paid to the possessions or foreign countries if claimed as a credit in whole or in part in Item 33, page I				
(b) Interest on obligations of the United States in excess of exemption as reported in Sci	(except interest					of the return. (c) Federal taxes paid on tax-free covenant bonds				
(c) Dividends deductible under Section 23 (n)										
Act of 1934						(r) Furniture and fixtures, positions, or bettermonts treated as expenses on the books				
(e) Other items of nontaxable income (to be d						(f) Replacements and renewals (g) Insurance premiums paid on the life of any officer or em-				
(1)						(c) Inspirecularity and reasons (d) Insurance permissing paid on the life of any officer or employee where the corporation is directly or indirectly a beneficiary. (h) Interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase				
(2)			·			or carry obligations or recursites the interest upon which is whelly evenif from taxation. (f) Additions to reserve for had debts which are not included in Item 21, page 1 of return.	ļ		ļ	
3. Charges against reserve for bad debts, if Item 21.	page 1 of return.					in Item 21, page 1 of return. (j) Additions to reserves for contingencies, etc. (to be detailed):	ļ			
is not an addition to a reserve	to be detailed)					(1)				
(a)						(2)	·	j		
(8),				ļ		(A) Other unallowable deductions (to be detailed):				
(r)	•••••	<u></u>				(1)	·····			¦
5. Total of Lines 1 to 4, inclusive	•••••	3				(2)		[
6. Total from Line 11.						(3)				
 Net profit or loss for year, as shown by books, b ments are made therein (Line 5 minus Line 6) (\$	ļ			14. Total of Line 13. 15. Dividends paid during the taxable year (state whether paid in eash, stock of the corporation, or other property):	1			
Surplus and undivided profits as shown by bala of preceding taxable year	nce sheet at close		ļ			(c) Dote paid Character	5		ļ	ļ
9 Other credits to surplus (to be detailed):						(b) Date paid Character		ļ		
(0)			}			(c) Date paid				ļ
(8)	***************************************					(d) Date paid				ļ <u>-</u>
(e)						(4)				ļ
10. Total of Lines 7 to 9, inclusive	••••••••	*				(0)			ļ <u>.</u>	ļ
12. Surplus and undivided profits as shown by bala	nce sheet at close		1	1		(6)	ļ <u></u>			
of tamble year (Line to minus Line 11)		3	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	127	17. Total of Lines 15 and 16. AFFILIATIONS WITH OTHER CORPORATION	s		<u>.l</u>	سيا
2. Check the block to indicate the industrial diproducing business fails: Agriculture and related industries, including fabing, forestry, too barresting; leasing such properties. Misling and quarrying, including gas and oll wells; leasing such properties.	MANUS Metal prod	PACTURI locts and sel—prod	ING(Co processes ucts of bla	estinued) : st formaces	ı, roli-	If so, give name of corporation which filed the consolidated return			•	
MANUFACTURING	Locamotive	es and rai	lroad equi	oment,		PREDECESSOR BUSINESS 5. Did the corporation file a return under the same name for the pro-	wedler to	zable vest	7	
Food and kindred products: Bakery and confectionery products.	Motor vehi	icks, com	plete or p	erta. mandualne	fand	West the corporation in any way an outgrewth, result, continuation	a, or reor	mnitation		
Canned products-fish, fruit, vegetables, poul-	Machinery leather, stone, cla	metal, p y, glass, t	aper, pri	pring, re wood pro-	bber, lucts.	businesses in existence during this or any prior year since Decembers is "yes", give name and address of each predecessor business.	and the d	ste of the	change in	entity.
Mili products—bran, flour, feed.	Machinery	—egricult —electric	tona latu: 100 bona la	squipment. Jipment.	-				•••••	
Packing-house, products—meats, lard; slaugh- tering. Sugar—beet, cane, maple; molasses, sirupe; refining.	Machinery and mini	-other, t	ouliding, o	onstructio	n, gus					
redning. Other food products-butter substitutes, ce- reals, coffee, spices, dairy products; artificial ice, etc.	Bousehold eretors so	equipmen	ot—metal chines, wa	furniture, shing mac	refrig- bipes,	Upon such change were any asset values increased or decreased?				
Beverages, soft drinks, mineral water.	Office equi	pment.				If the answer is "yes", closing balance sheets of old business and of must be furnished. BASIS OF RETURN	eanig our	Bride Street	IS OL DOW 1	personal designation of the second
Beverages, eoft drinks, milecal water. Browing and distilling—alcohol, liquors, beer, malt extract, wines. Tobacco products.	Metal build	tools, etc		dmhmerr.		6. Is this return made on the basis of each receipts and disburseme	Telan			•••••
Textiles:	Precious m	intal prod	octs and s	processes.		If not, describe fully what other basis or method was used in compu-	ing net in	NOEDė		
Cotton goods-dress goods, etc.; napping,	Missellene		of actuaries	recesses.		VALUATION OF INVENTOR	ies			
Woolton and worsted goods—dress goods, etc.; Wool poilting, scouring. Silk and rayon goods—dress goods, thrown alls, etc.; spinning, warping. Carpets, floor coverings, tapestries, linoleum.	Radios, con	profession	a). and s	cientido i	nstru-	 State whether the inventories at the beginning and end of the cost or market, whichever is lower. If other basis was used, described. 	tarable y be fully, s	car were	valued at used and	cust, or the date
Carpets, floor coverings, tapestries, lineleum. Other textiles—cord, felt, for, linen, artificial	Airplanes,	girables,	seaplanes;	parts.		inventory was last reconciled with stock,				
Carpets, Boor coverings, tapestries, Binotoum. Other testfles—cord, fet, for, Iloon, artificial leather, surgical testiles, etc. Clothing—custom-made, factory-made, underwest, milinory, etc.	Construction railreads, systems.	on excer , shipe; -	rations, br equipping	rial mot-	amgs, alling	PREPARATION OF RETURN (See In			*******	
Knit geods—sweaters, basiery, etc. Leather boots, shoes, slippers, etc.	Transports leasing si Public aid (artificia	uch facilit	iles.	t or power	r. gas	8. Did any person or persons advise the corporation in respect of item or schedule of this return, or assist or advise the corporation	any quest in the pr	lou or me eparation	ster affec of this re	ting an: Mura, o
Other leather products-saddlery, harness,	telephon tell brids	e, radio, s	water wor	ks, bent s b utilities.	apply,	scually prepare this return for the corporation?	If so, gi	ve the no	me and a	ddress c
Robber tires and tubes.	Storage—c bouses, s Trade: Wholesale,	safe depos	at veults,	etc.	~=0	auch person or persons and state the nature and extent of the assist and schedules in respect of which the assistance or advice was re- pared by any person or persons other than the corporation, state the	nuce or ad sived; if the source of	is return the infort	ved and t was actu nation rep	ally pre orted it
Bone, celluloid and ivery products.	Retail.	•				this return and the manner in which it was furnished to or obtained				
Sawmiti and planing mill products.	Wholesale		ı.			A				•••••
		oo.				information return 9. Did the corporation make a return of information on Forms 109		(see Ins	ruction 5	T) for th
Other wood products-carriages, wagons, fur-	Commissio									_
Cther wood products—carriages, wagons, fur- niture, baskets, etc. Paper, pulp and products.	All other storage,	trade-ro film excha	pair serv	ice, gares	ma for mount,	calendar year 1934?		•		
Cther wood products—carriages, wagons, fur- niture, baskets, etc. Paper, pulp and products.	All other storage, a	trade-re film excha rofessione	pair serv inge, etc. il, busine other.	ice, gares	en for scient,	calendar year 1934? LIST OF ATTACHED SCHED				
Other wood products—carriages, wagons, fur- niture, baskets, etc. Paper, pulp and products.	All other storage, a	trade-re film excha rofessione	epair serv ange, etc. al, busine other. ate, privat	ice, gares ce, amuse ce, savings streent h	en for sment, joint- nakers	calendar year 1934 LIST OF ATTACHED SCHED 10. Enter below a list of all schedules accompanying this return schedule number. The name and address of the corporation about	, giving fo	or each a		
Chemical products, etc. Preser, pulp and products. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Printing, publishing, and allied industries. Products. Products. Chemicals proper, adds, compounds, coal tar products, etc. Allied chemical substances, drups, folls, soops,	All other storage, Service p domestic Finance: Banks—us stock lar Stock and or broke	trade-re- film excha- rofessions c, and all c stional, 8t ad banks. bond bro rs, investi e, realty b	ate, privat kors, inve ment trus solding, re	e, savings stment b ts. ml estate s	en for coent, joint- ankers agents.	LIST OF ATTACHED SCHEDU 10. Enter below a list of all schedules accompanying this return	, giving fo	or each a		
Cther wood products—carriages, wagons, fur- niture, baskets, etc. Paper, pulp and products.	All other storage, a	trade-re- film excha- rofessiones, and all e- stional, fit- stional, fit- bond bro- rs, investi- e, realty b companie	ate, privat kors, inve ment trus solding, re ss (not age	e, savings streent b is. ed estate (ints).	joint- sakers gents	LIST OF ATTACHED SCHEDU 10. Enter below a list of all schedules accompanying this return	, giving fo	or each a		

Page 4 of Return	1							(See	- 1200		ns 2 and			<u> </u>							
L COST OF SALES	(WHERE U	NVENTO	ORIES ARE AN	INCOME	DETERM	NING	FACTOR)		2.0	ost o	OPERATI	ONS (WHERE IS	VENTO	RIES AR	E NOT AN	INCOME	-DETE	RMINING	FACT	OR)
	17	EMS				(Ente	AMOUNT of as liend	2(c))	1				Ite	M5				1	(Enter a	OUNT s Item	6)
Salaries and wages						\$		T	Sal	aries	and wag	A8						- -			
ther costs										her co											
									ļ												
			SC.	UEDIII	F D	CADE	PAL C	ING	ANE	LOS	SES (Son I	netrocti	on 10)							
			J.	I EUUI	LE Danie	LAFI	IAL G	11110	Aire	1					7	8. DEPREC	TATEON A	v. I			
1. Description of Proper	Acqu	MRED	3. DATE SOLD	4 _F	AMOUNT		6.	Cost		VALT BENG	SARCH 1. 1 E IF ACQU SLE THAT I	PIS. IRZD DATE	MENTS .	OF IMPI APTER A OR Mass 1913	cqui-	8. DEPREC LOWED (O ABLE) SING TION OR M. (Furnish	R ALLOW E ACQUI CRCT 1, 1 I details:	g- 1913 1913	9. CLIN	on Lo	168
	Mo. D	y Year	Mo. Day Year	\$			5			s		ļ	s			š		s.			
***************************************										ļ ļ		····	ļ								ļ
NET GAIN OR LOSS (enter as I	tem 1	0) (Capital	losses :	are alloy	vable	only to	the e	xtent	of \$2	000 plu	eapi	tal gain	s),				S.			ſ
State (1) how prin value of your outs Every sale or exing basis (stock divided Cost of property	tanding a change of lends, oth	stock. stock ner no	should be r ntaxable di red in colum	n 5 if a	a loss is	elaim	ed in co	ame :	and a	ddres		oratio	on, class	of ato	ek, nu	nge purc					
	·						1						1			TOCK OWNE		-	6 AM	DINT O	
i	. NAME AN	D ADDS	ESS OF OFFICE	R			2.01	FICIAL '	TITLE	3.	TIME DEV TO BUSINE	58 58	4.	Сощию		_	elerred	\neg	6. Am Courz (Enter a	NSATIO I I tem	N 15)
																		ş.			Ĺ.,
										.ļ											ļ
							1						-l <u></u>								
Note: Schedule								in e	cess	of \$15											_
SCHEDULI	E D—CO	ST O	F REPAIR	S (See	Instruc	tion	17)				SCHE	DUL	E E7	AXES	PAI	D (See	Instr	uction	n 19)	_	_
	1. 1	TEX3		_		(En	AMOUNT or as Itan	177	_				1. 11	TW9				_ _	(Enter s	ltem	19)
Salaries and wages						\$			ļ									\$.			
Other costs				********				·····													
******************			•••••																		Ĺ
	SCHEDI	ULE I	F-EXPLAN	OITAN	N OF E	EDU	CTION	FOR	LO	SSES	BY FII	RE, S	TORM.	ETC.	(See	Instruct	ion 20	1)			_
				T				_			FURATOUS	NT.	5. Di	PRECIA	ton	6. Inerre	ANCT AN		7 Denuc	TOUR E	100
I. Kos	of Profes	RTT		2 10	TE ACQUI	m.	3.	Coer		l'in	PROVEMEN	Ta	ALLOV	PRECIATION S	NCE	6. INSUR. SALVAG	E VALUE	ĭ '	7. Džbuc (Enter a	Lien	20)
				1-		_			i	\$			\$	·	7-1	\$	\top				Γ
			•				*									*					
1. Year			2. BALZS C	e se	3. Ba	D DEB	n) '	ration	which	declar	The divi	ved de Send:	ting toe 5	eer, stat	ing the	smount and	ine nau	ue and	address o	f the o	иро
1930		\$			\$																
1931	·····									•••••	•••••		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·								
1932 1933.						*****				•••••		*****	********			•••••••					••••
1934											······						•••••				
		SCH	EDULE I-	EXPL	OITANA	N O	f DED	UCTI	ON I	FOR	DEPRE	CIAT	ION (_
1. Kind of Property (If buildings, state material of which constructed)	DATE CQUIRED	3 Cos	f or Marcs I, of Acquired P o That Date indicate basis)	1913 RJOR	4. ASSE DEPRECIA AT END	TS PUL TED IN GF YE.	Use S	Dura (0) IN	PCIATION LALLO PRIOR	N ALLO WARLE) YEARS	WED (REM OR O' TO BE	MINING C PRES BAN RECOVER	OST LS ED	7. Life IN ACT Life Dring	CSED & ES	TIMATED LAINING E FROM INNING YEAR	1	DEPRE	DATION LE TE	(. is
			1	- -			T-							r - 1							_
																					ļ
							<u> </u>							<u> </u>				<u> </u>			ļ
SCHE	DULE J	-INT	EREST OF	LIBE	RTY B	OND	SAND	OTI	IER	OBLI	GATION	S O				See Instr	uction	11)			
	1. Onuga	TIONS C	02 SECURITIES				2. A1	OUNT	O WNZ	g. 3.	Interest or Acc	Recei Rubd	Ex	PRINCIP AMOUNT EMPT PR TAXATE	AL OM N	S. AMOUNT IN EXCE EXEN	OWNED 35 OF PRON	٠ ٠	6. INTE. AMOUNT! OF EXE (Enter as	REST OF EXC MPTION LITERE	H 255 N (1)
o) Obligations of a State, Columbia, or United	Territory, o	r politi	icol subdivision	thereof,	or the Di	strict of							All.		_ _		1 x	, .		, , 1	,
b) Obligations issued under c) Liberty 35,% Bonds an tember 1, 1917	r Federal F	srm Lo	an Act, or unde	er such Å	ct es smen	ded							AD.				TX	1	***	1.1	
						re Nep-	ļ				.,		АП.				x x	1 1			ī
d) Treasury Notes, Treasu	ry Bills, an	d Treas	ury Certificates	of ladet	ledness		-						All.				. x- x	x, 1	* * *	* *	×.
 Liberty 4% and 44% B Obligations of instrume reported in line (6) ab 	onds and Tr ntalities of evel	the Un:	Bendsited States (ot)	ber than	obligation	s to be	ļ						15,0	90	\$			s			···
We, the undersign which this return any) has been examinated to the Revection of the Revect	ned, pres is made, l ined by hi nuc Act i bscribed l	ident being im and of 193 before	(or vice pre- severally du d is, to the b i4 and the F	eident, dy swor est of h Regulati	or other n, each is knowl ions issu day o	AFF prince for his edge to led th	IDAVIT	cer) s pose of, a t	nd tr s and rue, c	struct easur- says t orrect 193	on 50) er (or ass hat this , and con		7	(P	resident	or other pr	incipal ci	filor)	(State th	ile)	
J.A.	(Signa	ore of o	nuoce administ	uring onti	•		(Te				sc		1	CFreasu	er, Assi	stant Treas (Si	ate title)	chief A	ecounting	OELO	x)
I/we swear (or at f any) is a true, core eturn has been prepa Sworn to and sui	firm) tha rect, and ared of w oscribed (it I/we comp hich I before	s prepared to dete stateme /we have ar me this	this retuent of a	irn for t iff the is vlodge day o	be pe	TDAVIT	med l spect	nerein	and e inc	on 51) that the one tax	retus and/c			ts acc ts tax		ng sche of the	edules perso	and stone		
													••••			ure of perso					٠
NOTARIAL, SEAL	*********																			*****	
		(Signat	ure of officer ad	Ebanatera	az cath)					(Title)					(5)	ama of firm	or empl	loyer, it	(say)	2-10	1021

Page 1 of Instructions

INSTRUCTIONS

The Instructions Numbered 1 to 27 Correspond with the Item Numbers on Page 1 of the Return

GROSS INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

I. Gross sales.—If engaged in lustiness where inventories are an incomedetermining factor, enter as Item 1 on page 1 of the return, the gross sales, less
goods returned and say allowances or discounts from the sale price.

Banks, insurance companies, and other corporations required to submit statements of income and expenses to any national, State, musicipal, or other public
officer may submit with the return a statement of income and expenses in the
form furnished to such officer, in lieu of the information requested in Items 1 to
25 of the return, except that a railroad complany will submit with the return a
cited by means of Schedule to a page 3 of the return, with the net profit shows
by the income and expense statement submitted, and should be entered as Item
27 on page 1 of the return.

cine to y means of schedule L on page 3 of the return, with the first profit shown by the income and expense statement submitted, and should be entered as Item 2 the information requested on lines (2) to (a) and first shedd—Enter as Item 2 the information requested on lines (a) to (a) and first shedd—Enter as Item 2 the information requested on lines (a) to (b) to (a) and its column to 10 Schedule Ao apage 4 of the return the principal items of cost, including the amount entered on line (c), the minor items to be grouped in one amount. Enter as salaries and wages on line (c) the total compensation, during the period covered by this return, of individuals employed (exclusive of officers and firm members).

If the production, purchase, or sale of merchandise is an income-producing factor in the trade or business, inventories of merchandise on hand should be taken at the beginning and end of the taxable year, which may be valued at cost, immediately before the amount column on lines (c) and (c) under them 2, if the inventories are valued at either cost, or cost or market, whichever is lower, and explain fully in answer to question? You space 3 the method used. In case the inventories reported do not agree with the balance sheet, attach a statement explaining how difference occurred.

3. Gross profit from sales.—Enter at litem 3 the gross profit from husiness in valued at the contract of

. Interest on loans, etc.—Enter as Item 7 all interest received or credited to the corporation during the taxable year on loans, notes, mortgages, bonds, bank deposits, etc.

8. Renis.—Enter as Item 8 the gross amount received for the rent of property. Any deductions claimed for repairs, interest, taxes, and depreciation should be included in Items 17, 18, 10, and 23, respectively.

9. Reyaltens—Enter as Item 9 the gross amount received for the rent of property. By the control of the control of the property of the reported as reyalties. If a defended in Items 17, 18, 10, and 23, respectively.

9. Reyaltens—Enter as Item 9 the gross and received as reyalties. If a defended in Items 17, 18, 10, and 23, respectively.

18 and enter the net gain or loss as Item 19 (carriat. losses, and allowable outs for the Retrieval of the property briefly and state the actual consideration or prior received or the fair market value of the property received in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange may be deducted in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange was equived prior to March 1, 1913, the basis for determining oans is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, the basis for determining oans is the cost or the fair market value as of March 1, 1913, agreater, but in determining toos the basis is cost so adjusted. (See section 113 of the Revenue Act of 1934). If the amount shown as cost is other than actual cash cost of the property was desired to the property.

Enter as depreciation the amount of exhaustion, were and tear, obsolescence, or depletion which has been allowed four not less than the amount allowable) in expensively was acquired before March 1, 1913, the cost hall be recognized by the depreciation actually sustained before that date.

Rubbequent improvements include expenditures for addition, improvements, and repairs made to restore the property or prolong its useful life.

No loas shall be recognized in any sale or other disposition of shares of stock or securities withi

business.

No deduction shall be allowed in respect of loss from sales or exchanges of property, directly or indirectly, except in the case of distributions in liquidation, between an individual and a corporation in which such individual owan, directly or indirectly, more than 50 per cent in value of the outstanding stock. (See section 24 (a) (6) of the Revenue Act of 1934 relating to capital gains and losses of the companion of the Revenue Act of 1934 relating to capital gains and losses.)

oction 54 (a) (b) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

The provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 relating to capital gains and losses are, in part:

"Sec. 117 (b). Definition of capital assets.—For the purposes of this title, "capital assets' means properly held by the taxpayer (whether or not connected with his trade or besissees), but does not include stock in trade of the tax-payer primarily for the purpose of this title, "capital assets' means properly held by the taxpayer (whether or not connected with his trade or business, but does not include stock in trade of the tax-payer if on hand at the close of the taxable year, or properly held by-the taxpayer fine properly for sale to customers in the ordinary course of his trade or business.

"(d) Limitation on capital losses.—Losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets shall be allowed only to the extent of \$2,000 plus the gains from capital assets shall be allowed only to the extent of \$2,000 plus the gains from the same of the tax payer primarily for sale to exact the property of the property has been considered from any loss of the property shall be considered from any loss resulting from such as decreased under the property of the property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered as gains or losses from short sales of property shall be considered

Enter in Column 2 the principal amounts of the various obligations owned an enter in Column 3 all interest received or credited to the corporation's access during the year on these obligations. Interest on all coupons failing due within the taxable year will be considere as income for the year, where the books are kept on a cash receipts and dif-named the property of the property of the property of the property of the amount of interest accuracy on the obligations owned during the taxable year. If the obligations controperty on line (a) are owned in access of the receiption

amount of interest secreted on the obligations owned during the taxable year. If the obligations enumerated on line (e) are owned in access of the exemption of \$5,000, or any on line (f) are owned in any amount, columns 5 and 6 should be filled in, and the total of the interest reported in column 6 should be entered as Item 11 on page 1 of the return. Such interest is allowable as a credit against net income as Item 29, page 1 of the return.

12. Dividenda.—Describe in detail in Schedule II all dividends received during, the taxable was

12. Dividends.—Describe in detail in Schedule II all dividends received during the taxable year.

Enter as I ten 12 (a) dividends from a domestic corporation which is subject to taxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934 (other than a corporation expension of the Revenue Act of 1934 and other taxa a corporation organized under the China Trade Act, 1922). Enter as 1921 (b) dividends from a domestic corporation which is not subject to taxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934. Enter as 1921 (2) dividends from a foreign corporation and dividends from a corporation expension of the Revenue Act of 1934. Enter as 1921 (2) dividends from a Section 251 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and a corporation organized under tight.

Lina Trade Act, 1922.

hins Trade Act, 1922.

3. Other Income.—Enter as Item 13 all other tarable income for which no pace is provided on the return.

4. Total income.—Enter as Item 14 the net amount of Items 3, and 6 to 13, actualye, after deducting any losses reported in Items 3, 6, and 10.

5. Compensation of officers.—Enter as Item 15 the compensation of the ficers, in whatever form paid, and fall in Schedule C, giving the informance,

14. Total income.—Enter as item is the net amount of items 3, and 9 to 18, metralize, after deducting any losses reported in items 36, and items 10 of income and of officer. The comparison of the comparison of

taxable year and should be described in the return. Stocks, bonds, and like securities are not subject to exhaustion; wear and tear within the meaning of the law of the stock of the law of the stock of the law of the stock of the law of the stock of the law of the stock of the

Page 2 of Instructions

26. Total deductions.—Enter as Item 26 the total of Items 15 to 25, inclusive, 7. Net Income.—Enter as Item 27 the net income, which is obtained by deducting Item 25 rom Item 14. The net income of a corporation shall be accounting regularly employed in keeping the books, unless such method does not clearly reflect the income.

CREDIT FOR TAXES

CREDIT FOR TAXES

28. A nonresident foreign exponention subject to tastion may claim as a credit in 1sen 32 may income that required to be declared and withheld at the score.

29. If, in accordance with Section 311 (a) of the Revenue et at 1924, credit is claimed by a domestic corporation in 1sen 33 on account of income tax paid to a foreign country or a possession of the United States, Form 1118 should be submitted with this return, together with the receipt for each such tax payment. In case credit is sought for twosa accrued to two plant, the accrued tax was based, and the Commissioner may require a bond on Form 1119 for the payment of any additional tax found the if the foreign tax when paid differs from the amount claimed. A foreign corporation is not entitled to claim this credit.

EXCESS-PROFITS TAX

EXCESS-PROFITS TAX

30. The excess-profits tax is imposed upon the net income of every corporation for each income-tax taxable year ending after the close of the first year in
respect of which it is subject to the capital-stock tax imposed by Section 701
of the Revenue Act of 1934. The excess-profits tax is equivalent to 5 peryear as is in excess of 12% percent of the adjusted declared value of its capital
stock for in the case of a foreign corporation the adjusted declared value of septial endpoyed in the transaction of its business in the United Stotes) as
of the other fluid processing inconcel-act standle year for as of the date of organella Section 791. No variation between the adjusted declared value or capital endpoyed, in the transaction of its business in the United Stotes) as
for the control of the processing inconcel-act standle year for as of the date of organella Section 791. No variation between the adjusted declared value or
bedied in the excess-profits tax return and the adjusted declared value onbedied in the excess-profit are return, when the composition is a member of an affiliated
poses. Perciga income and profits taxes may not be credited against the excesprofits tax. Every corporation which is liable for the making of an excessprofit star return, whether or not such corporation is a member of an affiliated
not income expansively, without regard to the provisions of Section 141 of the
Revenue Act of 1934.

LIABILITY FOR FILING RETURNS

21. Corportions generally.—Every domestic or resident corporation, joint-short concerns the control of the cont

or agency through which is trausacted the business in the United States. The net income should be computed to accordance with Section 19 of the Revenue A. Any foreign nonresident corporation excluding from gross income from sources within the United States income of the type specified in Section 1918(a)(1)(A)(8) or (C) of the Revenue Act of 1934 must file with its return a statement setting within the United States income from sources within the United States or having an observation et agreement of the properties of the state of the underwriting and investment the state of the state of the state of the underwriting and investment the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the state of the

Revenue Act of 1934.

3. Publicity statement.—Every person required to file an income return shall file with his return, whether taxable or nontaxable, a statement upon Form 1094 of the following items shown upon the return: (1) name and address. (2) total gross income. (3) total deductions. (4) not income. (5) total credits against hetmome for purposes of normal tax, and (5) tax payable. In case of any failure to file with the return the statement required, the collector shall prepare it from the return, and 85 shall be added to the tax.

CONSOLIDATED RETURNS OF RAILROAD CORPORATIONS

CONSOLIDATED RETURNS OF RAILROAD CORPORATIONS
30. Subject to the provisions of Section 141 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and
Regulations 89, an affiliated group of railroad corporations may make a consolidated incore tax return in lieu of separate returns.
40. The common parent corporation, when filing a consolidated return on this form, field attach thereto a schedule showing the names and addresses of all the corporations included in the return. Each taxable year each subsidiary must prepare two of pipiciate critical properties of the return of the state of the state of the consolidated return is filed to the consolidated return in the state of the consolidated return as a part thereof, and the other shall be filed with the consolidated return in filed, in the office of the collector for the subsidiary's district.

14. Supporting sendedles shall be filed with the consolidated return. These schedules shall be prepared in columns form, one column for a total of like flexus before adjustments are made, one column for intercompany climinations and adjustments. The temperature of the column for a total of like flexus before adjustment are made, one column for intercompany climinations and adjustments. The temperature included in the column for climinations and adjustments. The times included in the column for climinations and adjustments are more appended, if necessary. Similar schedules shall so contain in columns from a reconciliation of surplus for each corporation, together with a reconciliation of from a reconciliation of surplus for each corporation, together with a reconciliation of the cousoidated surplus.

42. Consolidated balance sheets as of the beginning and close of the taxable are of the group shall accompany the consolidated return prepared in a form milar to that required for reconciliation of aurplus. See Instruction 30 relative to making excess-profits tax returns.

WORKING PAPERS

43. Every corporation should preserve, for inspection by a revenue officer, working papers showing the balance in each account on the corporation's books used in preparing the return.

BALANCE SHEETS

44. The balance sheets on page 2 of the return, Schedule K, should agree with the books, or any differences abould be recoonsied. The balance sheets for a consolidated return should be furnished in accordance with Instruction 42. All corporations emaged in an interstate and intrastate trade or business and municipal, or other public officer, may submit, in lieu of Schedule K, copies of their balance sheets prescribed by said Commission or State and municipal, or authorities, as at the beginning and end of the taxable year.

In case the balance sheet as at the beginning of the current taxable vear does the end of the provious taxable be balance sheet which was exhibited as the end of the provious taxable when the conditions of the conditions

PERIOD COVERED

PERIOD COVERED

45. Except in the case of the first return the composation shall make its return on the basis upon which the return was made for the taxable year immediately preceding unless, with the approval of the Commissioner, a change is made in the accounting period. desires to change its accounting period. The control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the proposed taxable year. On the control of the co

TIME AND PLACE FOR FILING

48. The return must be filed on or before the fifteenth day of the third month following the close of the taxable year with the collector of internal revenue for the district in which the corporation's principal office is located. In the case of a foreign corporation not having any office or place of business in the United States the return shall be filed on or before the fifteenth day of the sixth month of the control of the control of the sixth month of the control

49. The collector of internal revenue may grant a reconable extensiting for internal revenue may grant a reconable extensiting for filing a return, not to exceed six months, if application therefor is before the date prescribed by law for filing such return, whenever in his judg good cause exists.

SIGNATURES AND VERIFICATION

SIGNATURES AND VERFICATION

50. The return shall be sworts to by the president, or other principal officer, and by the treasurer, assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer. The return of a foreign corporation having no office or place of business by such agont. In cases where receivers, trustees in bankruptcy, or assignees are operating the property or business of the corporation, such receivers, trustees, or assignees shall execute the return for such orporation under oath.

51. Question 8 on page 3 of the return should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some persons other than the corporation, such person or persons other than the corporation, such person or persons must execute the affidavit at the foot of page 4 of the return.

PAYMENT OF TAXES

52. The tax should be paid by sending or bringing with the return a check or money order drawn to the order of "Collector of Internal Revenue at (innerhame and city and State)." Bo not send eash by mail, no pray it in person and the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the paid on or before the fifteenth day of the third month following the close of the paid on or before the fifteenth day of the third month following the close of the paid on the property of the prope

PENALTIES

53. For willful failure to make and file return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both, and in addition 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

54. For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 imprisonment for not more than five years, or both, together with the costs

of prosecution.

55. For deficiency in tax.—Interest on a deficiency at 0 percent per annua to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thirteeth observed to the test the deficiency of the state of the deficiency of

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

UNDISTRIBUTED PROFITS

56. There shall be lovid, especied, and paid for each tamble year upon the adjusted net income of every composition forbier than a personal holding consumy as defined in Section 351 of the 1934 Act (if sends corporation, however created or organized, is formed or availed of for the purpose of preventing the imposition of the sertice upon his shareholders of the shareholders of any other instead of being divided or distributed, a sertax equal to the sum of the following; (1) 25 per cent of the amount of the adjusted net income not in excess of \$100,000, plus (2) 35 per cent of the amount of the adjusted net income not in excess of \$100,000, plus (2) 35 per cent of the amount of the adjusted net income corporated without the allowance of the dividend deduction otherwise allowable, but diminished by the amount of dividends paid during the taxable year. (See Section 102 of the Revenue Act of 1034.)

For neutral on personal holding companies, see Section 351 of the Revenue. Act of 1034.

INFORMATION AT THE SOURCE

57. Every corporation making payments of salaries, wages, interest, rent; commissions, or other fixed or determinable income of \$1,000 or more during the calendar year, to a single person, a partnership, or a fluctuary, or \$2,500 or more than a partnership, or a fluctuary or \$2,500 or more than a partnership, or a fluctuary is reduced to make or the form of the partnership, or a fluctuary is reduced to make or the form of \$1,000 and 100 good howing the amount of such payments and the unseen and address of each recipiont. These forms will be formished by any collector of internal revenue upon request. Such returns covering the calendar year 1934 must be forwarded to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Sorting Soction, Washington, D.C., is thing to be received not later than Fobrauxy 15, 1935.

TREASURY DEPARTMENT INTERNAL REVENCE SERVICE (Auditor's Stamp)	FOR COMPANIES ISSUING LIFE AND AND	Y IN	TRACTS.	INCLID		REI	URN	1	Do N	iot Wri	te in T	hese Sp	aces
	HEALTH, AND A	CCIDENT	INSURAN	CE				Ę	ile ode				<u></u>
	For Calenda								ierial iumber				
	File This Return with the Collector of Internal i	lerense for	Your Dist	trict on o	na Befe	re Marc	h 15, 193	5		******			
	PRINT PLAINLY COMPANY	S NAME A	ND BUSI	INESS A	DDRE	\$ \$		- ,	District .				
]-		(Cash	der's Sta	mp)	
	***************************************	(Name)		•••••	•••••								
	(Street	and Numb		•••••	•								
	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,							- }					
	(Post o	Doe and Sta	to)					= 6	ash (Check	м. о.	Cert.	of Ind.
	Schedule C-1 must be filed with and to any officer or employee during the services in excess of \$15,000.	as pert se tazabi	of this r	eturn, compe	if th neati	e comp on for	pany p persoi	aid rai	 .	Fire	t Payme	mt	
lunud CD	OSS INCOME	1	Los De	PARTMEN	T	2. (TEXE D	PARTME	RTS	l	3. To	MAL	
manches (AV	USS INCOME rtgages, Bonds, Bank Deposits, etc		-	1	П	s			T	 	T	1	Γ
2. Dividends on Stock of:	rigages, Bonds, Bank Deposits, etc				1	*	1	·····			1	1	1
(a) Domestic Corporations	subject to income tax under 1934 Act				ļ		ļ						1
	not subject to income tax under 1934 Act			ļ			·				1	1	1
	***************************************			¦						ł	l	1	
3. Rents (attach schedule) 4. Total Income in Item	is 1 to 3 (extend total to column 3)	8			+	s				s	i		1
	EDUCTIONS		1	1	7	1	1		1	1	1	1	1
	Taxation (attach schedule) (see Instruction !			ļ		\$							1
	he Reserve Funds (Item 6, Schedule A)		+	 			·····				1]	ł
	feld for Deferred Dividends.			·	†				-	ĺ	1	1	1
	schedule)				1		1			1	ĺ	1	1
0. Taxes						ļ		ļ		ŀ	l .	ļ	1
				ļ				ļ			1	1	1 -
	e (attach schedule)				-			·····				1	1
	ITEMS 5 TO 13 (extend total to column 3)					8				ļ <u>.</u>			ļ
	ninus Item 14)									\$			
	COMPUTA	TION (OF TA	X									
6. Net Income of Domestic Con	pany (Item 15 above)							,		s]		T
	pt from Tax (attach schedule) (see Instructi									<u></u>			
	16 minus Item 17)								··-	\$			-
	8)									\$			
	mpany (Item 19 minus Item 20),									8			
	any from Sources within the United States (8,			
3. Less: percent of Interest	Partially Exempt from Tax (attach schedul	e) (see In	struction	ı 16)							1	<u></u>	
	22 minus Item 23)									\$		 	4
	4)									\$	1	†	
	pany (Item 25 minus Item 26)									8			
We, the undersigned, presidentiation for which this return is a tatements, if any) has been example, and to the state of the pursuant to the state of the state o	AFFIDAVIT ent (or vice president, or other principal of made, being severally duly sworn, each for I mined by him and is, to the best of his kno the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulation	(See Inst ficer) and simself de wledge a s issued t	ruction 2 1 treasur poses an nd belief hereunde	271						ounting compa made i	g office: nying s n good	r) of th chedule faith, f	e cor
	ore me this day of	, 1	_	CORPOR	-	•••••	(Preside	nt or oth	er prin	ipal offic	er) (Sta	to title)	
NOTARIAL SEAL (Signature	of officer administering oath) (Title		L	SEAL	ATE	(T i	reasurer,	Assistant	Treasu (Stat	rer, or Cl	nief Accou	inting Of	Bour)
I/we swear (or affirm) that I, f any) is a true, correct, and con f which I/we have any knowledg	AFFIDAVIT we prepared this return for the person name oplete statement of all the information respect.	d herein sting the	and that income	the retax list	turn (includi of the	ng its a person i	ccompa or who	anying on thi	sched	ules and n has b	l staten een pre	ents, pared
Sworn to and subscribed bef	ore me this day of	1	93								g the ret		
											g the retu		
NOTARIAL SEAL												uu)	
(Signature of	officer administering onth) (Title)					******		Name of	Drm or	employe	r, if eny)		

	SCHEDULE I. Irens									2 Bron	NING OF	TAXABLE	VEAR	B 3. END OF TAXABLE YEAR				
										 		1	1	N			1	
1. Reserve for Outstanding Policies and	Annuities			************			•••••	•		8		ļ	}	\$		ļ	ļ	
2. Other Reserve Funds (itemize below):										ļ						1	1	
(a)(b)		******				*******				·····						i		
(c)												1					1	
(d)							····						1				1	
(e)													l	I		l		
3. Totals of Items 1 and 2										\$		1		S			1	
4. Total of Columns 2 and 3, as shown in	Item 3 abov	re												\$				
5. Mean of the Reserve Funds for the Ta	xable Year (one-hal	f of Itea	n 4)			**********		• • • • •					8				
6 percent of the Mean of the Reser-																		
7. Total Reserve Funds of Foreign Compa																		
8. Percentage which Item 7 is of Item 3,																	%	
9. Give the Title and Sections of State St	atutes or Ins	surance	Depart	ment Ru	lling	s Requ	uring th	e Rese	rves	Claime	Abov	e.						
	sc	HEDU	LE B-	NVEST	ED	ASSE	TS BO	OK V	ALUE	s								
1. ÎTEM9				LIFE I	EP/	RTME	NT					отпе	R DE	PARTMI	ENTS			
J. 11243		2. BEGD	INING OF T	AXABLE Y	EAR	3. E:	D OF TA	SABLE Y	EAR	4. Begn	NING OF	TAXABLE	YEAR	5. En	D OF TA	XABLE Y	EAR	
1. Real Estate		\$	ļ			s			J	\$		ļ	ļ	\$		ļ	ļ	
2. Mortgage Loans		ļ							.ļ					ļ	ļ			
3. Collateral Loafis										ļ		ļ	ļ	ļ		ļ	ļ	
4. Policy Loans, Including Premium Note	28	ļ					ļ		ļ	ļ		ļ	ļ	¦			ļ	
5. Bonds and Stocks								····						ļ				
6. Bank Deposits Bearing Interest			·						·}	}						}		
7. Other Interest-bearing Assets (attach s					-4	^				s				s				
8. Totals of Items 1 to 7										1				۰		·····	·	
 Total of Columns 2 to 5, inclusive, as s Mean of the Invested Assets for the Ta 														>	******			
11 One-fourth of one percent of the Mean														o				
SCHEDULE									TIO	N (0.	Laster	otion 1	3)					
SCHEDULE					110	/N FC	K DEF	RECE	1		1		т.		1			
I KIND OF PROPERTY (IF BUILDINGS, STATE MATERIAL OF WHICE CONSTRUCTED)	2. DATE ACQUIRED	3, Cost 1, 1913, Acquir.	or Manci Value if eti Prior at Date te Basis)	4 Assi Derri Use A	CIATI	ULLT ED IN	5. DEFR ALL (OR ALL IN PRIO	ECTATION	d	OST OR O	THER ME	IN ACCU	SED 8	ESTIMAT REMAININ LIFE FRO	EP U 9.	DEPRECIA VLLOWAB THIS YEA	TION	
Constructed)	Acquires	TO THE	at Date te Basis)	3	EAR		IN PRIO	R YEAR		BASIS TO RECOVER	ED	DEFREC	A-	REMAINING LIFE FROM BEGINNING OF YEAR 9. DEPRECIATION ALLOWABLE THIS YEAR				
		\$	$\neg \neg$	-		T-					7		-1-		-		Γ	
		·			****	·····	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				1		1				1	
4					• • • • •	1	**********											
***************************************													1					
######################################	1 1							!										
				.,														
1. Date of incorporation		L				6.1	s the n	pethod	the	same a	that	used in	pre	paring	the Ga	in and	Loss	
Date of incorporation					í							used in	-					
2. Under the laws of what State or coun	try?											used in	-					
 Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under 	try?er the same	name i	for the	precedin	 g								-					
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in	name i	for the	precedin utgrowth	 g	Exhib	t for 19	33?			If not		hang	ge and r	eason t	herefor	: 	
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same contipany in a business or	name i any w	for the ay an o	precedin utgrowth	 в ,,	Exhib	t for 19	33? genera	t expe	enses in	If not	, state o	hang	ge and r	eason t	herefor	: 	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return unde taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917	name i any w r busine	for the ay an o	precedin utgrowth existenc	в в, е	Exhib	it for 19	33? genera	t expe	enses in	If not	, state o	to or	e and r	eason t	herefor	: 	
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917	name i any w r busine	for the ay an o	precedin utgrowth existenc	 g	Exhib 7. /	it for 19	genera	t expe	enses in	If not	, state o	to or	e and r	eason t	herefor invest	: iment	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return unde taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917	name i any w r busine	for the ay an o	precedin utgrowth existenc	 g	Exhib 7. /	it for 19	genera	t expe	enses in	If not	, state o	to or	e and r	eason t	herefor invest	: iment	
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917	name i any w r busine	for the ay an o	precedin utgrowth existenc	e ii	7. / expense 8. I or ma	tre any ses show Poid any tter affe	genera n in I REPA person cting :	t experience 9 RATI or pany it	enses in ? ON OI ersons a em or a	If not part as RET dvise tohedul his retu	state of ssigned URN (he come e of thi	to or See I pany s reti	include Instruct in respure, or	d in th	nerefor invest any que r advis is retur	estion te the	
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try? er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name i any w r busine ? cessor I	for the may an or esses in business	precedin utgrowth existenc	g	7. / expenses 8. I or ma compa	tre any ses show P Did any tter affe ny in t mpany?	genera n in I REPA persor cting	RATI	enses in ? ON OI ersons s em or : on of t	part as	ssigned URN (he come of thi	to or See I pany s reti actus	include Instruct in respuring or ally prep	d in the	nerefor invest invest any que r advis is retur dress of	estion the the	
Under the laws of what State or coun Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try? er the same company in a business or ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name i any w r busine ? cessor I	for the my an or cases in	precedin utgrowth existenc	g	Exhib 7. / expense 8. I or ma compathe compareceive	tre any ses show Poid any tter afferny in t mpany? or period	genera n in I REPA persor cting : the pre	f expediem 9 RATI or pany it parati	enses in ? ON OI ersons sem or : on of t	part as RETickles to chedul his retu	ssigned URN (the come of this irn, or f so, give and excessed to the come of t	to or See I pany s retu actus tent	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name a	d in the	any que r advis is retur dress of ce or a	estion the the n for	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return unde taxable year? Was the result, continuation, or reorganization of a during this or any prior year since Decem answer is "yes", give name and address of date of the change in entity: Upon such change were any asset values in	try?er the same company in a business on ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name i any w r busine ? cessor I	for the ay an oresses in business	precedin utgrowth existenc	B	7. / expense 8. I or ma compa the cor person receive was re other	tre any ses show P Did any tter affe ny in t mpany? or per id and t executed; than th	genera m in I REPA person cting : he pre (Auss sons an he iten if this	RATI	on of t s" or "oc te the th	part as PRETiches to the dulis returned in returned in returned the sound he sound in the sound	ssigned URN (he come of thing in, or f so, give and excepted of the come of the company of the c	to or [See I pany s retusted the tent of who ared he in	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name a of the saich the a by any	d in the	any que r advis is retur dress of ce or a tee or a or pe	estion to the for such dvice dvice resons	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business on ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name is any were business recessor to the en	for the ay an or cases in business	precedin utgrowth existenc , and the	g e e lí	7. / expense 8. I or ma comps the comperson receives re- other return	tre any ses show Poid any tter affe ny in t mpany? or per d and t seeived; than th and the	genera m in I REPA person cting the pre (Australia in the in the item if the	RATI or pany it parati er "ye id stans as and retu	on of t s" or "mate the test of the test o	part as PRETICAL AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY O	ssigned URN (the come of this irn, or f so, give and excepted of the complex of	See I pany s retractus e the tent of whared he ind to	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name sof the soich the solution or obtain	d in the	any que or advis is retur iress of ce or a nor pe orted in such p	estion to the for such dvice dvice resons	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business on ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name is any were business recessor to the en	for the ay an or cases in business	precedin utgrowth existenc , and the	g e e lí	7. / expense 8. I or ma comps the comperson receives re- other return	tre any ses show Poid any tter affe ny in t mpany? or per d and t seeived; than th and the	genera m in I REPA person cting the pre (Australia in the in the item if the	RATI or pany it parati er "ye id stans as and retu	on of t s" or "mate the test of the test o	part as PRETICAL AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY O	ssigned URN (he come of thing in, or f so, give and excepted of the come of the company of the c	See I pany s retractus e the tent of whared he ind to	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name sof the soich the solution or obtain	d in the	any que or advis is retur iress of ce or a nor pe orted in such p	estion to the for such dvice dvice resons	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?er the same company in a business on ber 31, 1917 f each prede	name is any were business recessor to the en	for the ay an or cases in business	precedin utgrowth existenc , and the	g e e lí	7. / expense 8. I or ma comps the comperson receives re- other return	tre any ses show Poid any tter affe ny in t mpany? or per d and t seeived; than th and the	genera m in I REPA person cting the pre (Australia in the in the item if the	RATI or pany it parati er "ye id stans as and retu	on of t s" or "mate the test of the test o	part as PRETICAL AND ADDRESS OF THE PROPERTY O	ssigned URN (the come of this irn, or f so, give and excepted of the complex of	See I pany s retractus e the tent of whared he ind to	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name sof the soich the solution or obtain	d in the	any que or advis is retur iress of ce or a nor pe orted in such p	estion to the for such dvice dvice resons	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return under taxable year?	try?	name is any were business recessor is decreased the energy the second se	for the ay an occases in business	precedin utgrowth existenc , and th	g i, e e (f	8. I expense 8. I expense 8. I expense 1 expen	tre any tre any tres show Poid any tter affe mpany? or period and t teelived; than the sons	genera m in I REPA persor cting : he pre (Aussons at he iten if this e comp	RATI or pany it our parati ver "yeard stars a retu any, it	enses in ? ON OI ersons sem or so on of t te the tschedurn was state t which i	part as RET dvise to chedul his returned in a returned to sur reactual he sout t was f	ssigned URN (he come e of thi urn, or f so, giv and ex- espect of ly prep rce of t urnishe	See I See I see I	include Instruct in respure, or ally preper name a sich the shift or obtain	d in the	any que r advis is retur iress of ce or a nee or a a or pe ported ir such p	estion to the for for such dvice dvice ersons a this terson	
2. Under the laws of what State or coun 3. Did the company file a return unde taxable year?	try?	name is any were business recessor is decreased the energy the second se	for the ay an occases in business	precedin utgrowth existenc , and th	B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B B	Exhib 7. // expense 8. I 1 8. I or ma compa the co person receiv. was re other return 9. I 1	tror 19 tre any tres show Poid any tre afferny in t mpany? or period and the color a	generar in I rREPA person cting : (Austons au he item if this e compa mani	I expedicm 9 RATI parati cer "yy and sta s and s retu any, cer in	on OI or on of t ersons a em or a on of t te the tschedurn was state t which i	part as part as chedula his return actual the sount t was f	ssigned URN (the come of this irn, or f so, give and excepted of the company of	(See I panys s retta actus re the tent of whared d to	include Instruct in respure, or ally pregenance so the soich the	d in the ion 28) eact of a cassist conare the and addressistant person on repuned by	any que or advis is retur dress of ce or a see or a see or pe orted ir such p	estion to the for for such dvice dvice ersons a this terson	

INSTRUCTIONS

e Instructions Numbered 1 to 13 Correspond with the Item Numbers on Page 1 of the Return

GROSS INCOME AND DEDUCTIONS

- Interest.—Enter as item 1 interest received from all sources during the taxable year. Interest on bonds is considered income when due and payable.
- when due and payable.

 2. Dridendar—Enter as item 2(a) the amount received as dividends (1) from a domestic corporation which is subject to taxation under Title 10 the Revenue Act of 1934 other than a corporation entitled to the benefits of section 251 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and other than a corporation organized under the China Track Act, 1922. Enter as item 2(b) dividends from a domestic corporation which is not subject to taxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934. Enter as item 2(c) dividends from a foreign corporation and dividends from a corporation entitled to the benefits of section 251 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and a corporation organized under the China Track Act, 1922. Submit schedule, itemizing all dividends received during the year stating amounts and names and addresses of the corporations declaring the dividends.

 3. Rents.—Enter as item 3 rents received from tenants.
 - 3. Rents.-Enter as item 3 rents received from tenants
- 4. Total income. Enter as item 4 the total of items 1 to 3.
- 5. Interest exempt from taxation.—Enter as item 5 the amount of interest which is wholly exempt from taxation under the provisions of section 22 (b) (4) of the Revenue Act of 1934. Submit a schedule showing for each class of obligations: (a) kind of obligation, (b) amount of principal, (c) rate of interest, and (d) interest received. See Instruction 16 with respect to partially tax-exempt interest which is allowed as a credit tagainst not income.

- which is allowed as a credit against net income.

 6. Percentage of the mean of the reserve funds.—Enter as item 6 the amount reported as item 6 in Schedule A. There may be deducted from gross income an amount equal to 4 percent of the mean of the reserve funds required by law and held at the beginning and end of the taxable year, except that in the case of any such reserve fund which is computed at a lower interest assumption rate, the rate of 3% percent shall be substituted for 4 percent. Life insurance companies issuing policies covering life, health, and accident insurance combined in one policy issued on the weekly premium payment plan, continuing for life and not subject to cancellation, shall be allowed, in addition to the above, a deduction of 3% percent of the mean of such reserve funds (not required by law) held at the beginning and end of the taxable year, as the Commissioner finds to be necessary for the protection of the holders of such policies only. For definition of "allowable reserves" see article in Regulations 86 relating to reserve funds. only. For definition of "allo 86 relating to reserve funds.
- 7. Dividends.—Enter as item 7 the total amount of dividends deductible under section 203 (a) (3) of the Revenue Act of 1934.
- 8. Two percent of the reserve held for deferred dividends.—Enter as item 8 an amount equal to 2 percent of the reserve held at the end of the taxable year for deferred dividends the payment of which is deferred for a period of not less than 5 years from the date of the policy contract. Do not include in such reserve dividends payable during the following taxable year.
- ouring the following axasios year.

 9. Investment expenses.—Enter as item 9 expenses paid which are properly chargeable to investment expenses, the total amount of which, if there be any allocation of general expenses is to investment expenses, should not exceed one-fourth of 1 percent of the mean of the invested assets reported in item 11, Schedule B. Submit a schedule showing the nature and amount of the items included herein, the minor items being grouped in one amount. See section 203 (a) (5) of the Revenue Act of 1934. For definition of "general expenses" see article in Regulations 86 relating to investment expenses.
- new article in regulations 86 relating to investment expenses.

 10. Taxes.—Enter as item 10 taxes paid exclusively upon real estate owned by the company, and that proportion of the taxes assessed against individual shareholders and paid by the company without reimbursement, as provided in section 203 (a) (6) of the Revenue Act of 1934. Do not include taxes assessed against local benefits of a kind tending to increase the value of the property assessed, as for paving, sowers, etc. For limitation on deduction see article in Regulations 86 relating to taxes and expenses with respect to real estate.

- 11. Other real estate expenses.—Enter as item 11 all ordinary and necessary building expenses, such as fire insurance, heat, light, labor, etc., and the cost of incidental repairs which neither materially add to the value of the property nor appreciably prolong its life, but keep it in an ordinarily efficient operating condition. Do not include any amount paid out for new buildings or for permanent improvements or betterments made to increase the value of any property. For limitation on deduction see article in Regulations 86 relations to the reason of the conditions of the relation to the state of the relation to the state of the relation to the to taxes and expenses with respect to real estate.
- property. For limitation on deduction see article in Regulations 86 relating to taxes and expenses with respect to real estate.

 12. Depreciation.—The amount deductible on account of depreciation in item 12 is an amount reasonably measuring the portion of the investment in depreciable property by reason of exhaustion, wear and tear, or obsolescence, which is properly chargeable against to the depreciation on the property that is used, and to the function of the investment in depreciation on the property that is used, and to the function of the property that is used, and to the function of the property that is used, and to the function of the property depreciation on the property was acquired by purchase on or after March 1, 1913, the amount of depreciation should be determined upon the basis of the original cost (not replacement cost) of the property, and the probable number of years remaining of its expected useful life. In case the property was purchased prior to March 1, 1913, the amount of depreciation will be determined upon the basis of the original cost, less depreciation sustained prior to March 1, 1913, or its fair market value as of that date, whichever is greater. If the property was acquired in any other manner than by purchase, see seconded should be charged off rutably over the spring of the top property. Whatever plan or method of apportionment is adopted must be reasonable, nust have due regard to operating conditions during the taxable year, and should be described in the return. If a deduction is claimed on account of depreciation, Schedulc C should be filled in. In case obsolescence is included, state separately amount claimed and basis upon which it is computed. Land value or cost must not be included in the schedule, and where land and buildings were purchased for a lump sum the cost of the building subject to depreciation must be established.

 The adjusted property accounts and the accumulated depreciation shown in the schedule should be reconciled with those accounts as reflected on the b

See sections 23 (l), 114, and 203 (a) (7) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

- see sections 25 (I), 114, and 203 (a) (7) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

 13. Interest paid during the tarable year on the company's indebtedness, expert or since the amount of interest paid during the tarable year on the company's indebtedness, except or includitations incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation. Interest, paid on dividends held on deposit and surrendered during the taxable year should be included in this item. Do not include any interest paid on deferred dividends on which a deduction was allowed under item 8.
- 14. Rental value of real estate.—The deduction included in items 10 to 12 on account of real estate owned and occupied in whole or in part by the company shall be limited to an amount which bears the same ratio to such deduction (computed without regard to subsection (b) of section 203 of the Revenue Act of 1934) as the rental value of the space not so occupied bears to the rental value of the entire property. (Submit detailed schedule):

 15. Items not deductible.—No deduction is allowable in respect of any amount otherwise allowable as a deduction which is allocable to one or more classes of income other than interest (whether or not any amount of income of that class or classes is received or accrued)
- wholly exempt from income tax.

CREDIT AGAINST NET INCOME

16. Enter as item 17 the amount of interest included in gross income which is partially exempt from taxation under the provisions of section 22 (b) (4) of the Revenue Act of 1934. In the case of a foreign insurance company such credit for interest (to be entered as item 23) is limited to an amount which bears the same ratio to the amount otherwise allowed as a credit as the reserve funds required

by law and held by it at the end of the taxable year upon business transacted within the United States is of the reserve funds held by it at the end of the taxable year upon all business transacted. (Submit detailed schedule.)

CREDIT FOR TAXES

- 17. A foreign company subject to taxation and not engaged in a trade or business within the United States and not having any office or place of business therein may claim as a credit in item 26 any income tax required to be deducted and withheld at the source.
- 18. If credit is claimed in item 20 for income tax paid to a foreign country or possession of the United States, Form 1118, together with the receipt for each such tax payment, must be submitted with this return. If credit is claimed for taxes accrued a bond may be also required on Form 1119. A foreign company is not entitled to claim this credit.

LIST OF ATTACHED SCHEDULES

19. Attach a list of the schedules accompanying this return, giving for each a brief title and the schedule number. Place name and address of company on each schedule.

COMPANIES REQUIRED TO FILE A RETURN

- 20. Liability.—Every domestic or foreign life insurance company that derives income from sources within the United States, issuing life and annuity contracts (including life, health, and accident insurance), the reserve funds of which held for the fulfillment of such contracts comprise more than 50 percent of its total reserve funds, shall file a return on this form. See sections 201 to 203 of the Revenue Act of 1934.
- 21. Basis of return.—A return on this form shall be rendered on a cash receipts and disbursements basis in conformity with the annual statement made to the State Insurance Department, instead of the
- 22, Annual statement.—A copy of the annual statement for life insurance companies adopted by the National Convention of Insurance Commissioners for the year 1934, as filed with the Insurance Department of the State, Territory, or District of Columbia, which shows the reserves used in computing the net income reported on the return, together with copies of Schedule A (real estate) and Schedule D (bonds and stocks), must accompany this return. Similar copies for the preceding year must be also furnished, if not filed with the return for the previous year.
- 23. Publicity statement.—Every porson required to file an income return shall file with his return, whether taxable or nontaxable, a statement upon Form 1094 of the following items shown upon the return; (1) name and address, (2) total gross income, (3) total eductions, (4) net income, (3) total eredits against net income for purposes of normal tax, and (6) tax payable. In case of any failure to file with the return the statement required, the collector shall prepare it from the return, and \$5 shall be added to the tax.
- 24. Compensation of officers and employees.—If the company pad to any officer or employee during the taxable year compensation for personal services in excess of \$15,000, Schedule C-I (copies of which may be obtained from the collector of internal revenue) must be filled with and se part of this return.

PERIOD COVERED

25. The return shall be for the calendar year ended December 31, 1934, and the net income computed on the calendar year basis in accordance with the State laws regulating insurance companies.

TIME AND PLACE FOR FILING

26. In the case of a domestic company, the return must be sent to the Collector of Internal Revenue for the district in which the company's principal office is located, so as to reach the collector's office on or before March 15, 1935. In the case of a foreign company

not having any office or place of business in the United States, the return shall be filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue, Baltimore, Maryland, on or before June 15, 1935.

The collector of internal revenue may grant a reasonable extension of time for filing a return, not to exceed 6 months, if application therefor is made before the date prescribed by law for filing such return, whenever in his judgment good cause exists.

- 27. The return shall be sworn to by the president, vice president, or other principal officer, and by the treasurer, assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer. The return of a foreign company having no office or place of business in the United States but having an agent in the United States shall be sworn to by such agent. An attorney or agent employed to represent the company before the Department is not permitted to administer the oath.
- 28. Question 8 at the foot of page 2 of the return should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the taxpayer, such person or persons must execute the affidavit at the foot of page 1 of the return.

PAYMENT OF TAX

PAYMENT OF TAX

20. The tax should be paid by sending with the return a check or money order drawn to the order of "Collector of Internal Revenue at (insert name of city and State)." Do not send cash by mail, nor pay it in person except at the collector's office.

The tax in the case of a domestic company, or a foreign company having an office or place of business in the United States, may be paid at the time of filing the return, or in four equal installments, as follows: The first installment shall be paid on or before March 15, 1935, the second installment shall be paid on or before June 15, 1935, the third installment on or before September 15, 1935, and the fourth installment is not paid on the date fixed for its payment, the whole amount of the tax unpaid shall be paid upon notice and demand by the collector.

PENALTIES

- 30. For willful failure to make and file a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both, and, in addition, 25 percent of the amount of the tax.
- 31. For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$19,000 or imprisonment for not more than 5 years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution.
- 32. For deficiency in tax.—Interest on a deficiency at 6 percent per annum to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thirtieth day after the filing of a waiver of the restrictions on assessment and collection, whichever date is the earlier, and, in addition, 5 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to negligence or intentional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to defraud, or 50 percent of amount of delicency if due to fraud.

INFORMATION AT SOURCE

33. Every corporation making payments of salaries, wages, interest, rents, commissions, or other fixed or determinable income of \$1,000 or more during a second payment of a superfect of the person, a partners and the person, a partners of the person, a partners of the person, a partners of the person of the p

R is Exercial That This Form be Completely 1956d in Irrespective of Any Statements, Schedules, or Reports NOTE—A return on this form must be made even though under section 351(d) of the Revenue Act of 1934 the auritat does not apply. In such it can be an adversed to a such as a complete in the preparation of this return, or austic or experience on the preparation of this return, or austic or experience and such the nature and extent of the assistance or advice received and the items and schedules in respect of the information reported in this return and act actually prepared by any person or persons and state the nature and extent of the assistance or advice west than the corporation, state the source of the information reported in this return anner in which it was furnished to or obtained by such person or persons. The question above should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons on persons or persons must except the additional at the foot of this page. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934)	se spaces
SUBJECT TO SURTAX UNDER SECTION 351 OF THE REVENUE ACT OF 193 FOR Calendar Year 1934 or Fired Year begon (Date of the properties of the	
For Calendar Year 1934 or First Yes begon 1934, and ceded 1935 FRINT PLAINLY CORPORATIONS NAME AND RUSINESS ADDRESS (Chancel Control of Cont	
First Year Department of the First New Department of the Conductive Stat	
FIGURE 1882 (Canabure State PRINT PLAINLY CORPORATIONS HAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS PRINT PLAINLY CORPORATIONS HAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS (Constant of current) (C	
(Assection of the content of the force and the force and be made very thorough a property of the content of the force and the force and the force and the made very thorough a property of the content of the force and the made very thorough a property of the force and the force and the made very thorough a property of the force and the force and the made very thorough a property of the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force and the force of the force and and different of the force and the force and the force and the force of the force and and address of the force and the force	mp)
Cath Chash M.O.	
Cash Chash M.O.	
Ris Exercisis That Thus Form be Complainly Filed in Properties of the Statements, Schedule, as Report NOTE—A release on this form mand be made even though under section 531(d) of the Revenue Act of 1334 the autitax does not spayly. In such thems 1 to 3 and Schedule for the care the filed in. (See Instruction 1.2) Did any person or person or person solve the filed in. (See Instruction 1.2) Did any person or person or person or the composition of the release of the care of the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition of the composit	
Ris Exercisis That Thus Form be Complainly Filed in Properties of the Statements, Schedule, as Report NOTE—A release on this form mand be made even though under section 531(d) of the Revenue Act of 1334 the autitax does not spayly. In such thems 1 to 3 and Schedule for the care the filed in. (See Instruction 1.2) Did any person or person or person solve the filed in. (See Instruction 1.2) Did any person or person or person or the composition of the release of the care of the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition in the proparation of this release, and the composition of the composit	
h is Essential That The Form to Completibly Rife to Intercent of Any Statements, Schedules, we Repeat \$\$\frac{1}{8}\$	
h is Essential That The Form to Completibly Rife to Intercent of Any Statements, Schedules, we Repeat \$\$\frac{1}{8}\$	
NOTE—A return on this form must be made even though under section 53 (d) of the Revenue Act of 1936 the auritax does not apply. In such these is a war of Schedule Duced to filled in. (See Instruction 2.) Did any purson or pursons advise the corporation in respect of any question or muster affecting any item or schedule of this return, or actuality or operation to the preparation of this return, or actuality or purson the term or the corporation. Did any purson or pursons advise the corporation in respect of any question or muster affecting any item or schedule of this return, or actuality or appear to the corporation. Did any purson or pursons advised the corporation in respect of any question and the season and data the satura and extent of the actuality prepared that the return of the corporation. Did the season and data the satura and extent of the actuality purson there is no the corporation of the season and actual to the saturation of the corporation of the season and categories and the season and the season and categories and the season and categories which the actualities are pursons on the season of the season and categories and the season and categories of the season of the season of the season and categories and the season and categories and the season of	Cert. of Indi-
Norse—A return on this force must be made even though where section 351(d) of the Revenue Act of 1934 the surfax does not apply. In such a force of and Schedule D need the filled in. (See Instruction 12.) Did any person or persons obtained to composition in respect of any question or matter affecting any item or schedule of this return, or anist or corporation in the preparation of this return, or actually prepare the force or actually prepare the return for the corporation. If any give the name and address of any operation of the corporation of this return or actually prepared by any person or persons or the return was actually prepared by any person or persons or the return was actually prepared by any person or persons or the return was actually prepared to a return of the return was actually prepared to a return or actually prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, and or persons must execute the affidavia at the foot of this pace. ADUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) I. Net income (as defined in Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1931). 2. Dividends on stack of dementic corporations subject to laxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1954 them bandals Any and the corporation of the person and the return of the return of the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, and the return of the return o	mt
Did any person or persons advise the corporation in respect of any question or matter affecting any item or schedule of this return, or actually prepare to the preparation of this return, or actually prepare to the preparation of this return, or actually prepare to the preparation of this return, or actually prepare to the preparation of this return, or actually prepared by a special prepare this return for the corporation. If you give the names and address of an operation of this return or actually prepared by any person or persons other than the corporation, attact the source of the information reported in this return manner in which it was furnished to or obtained by such person or persons. The question above should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, as or persons and actually prepared by any person or persons. ADUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1931) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) I. Net income (as defined in Title I of the	event only
corporation in the preparation of this return, or actually prepare this return for the corporation? The present of the solidation or persons and state the sature and center of the sevice of a control of the sevice of the information reported in this return was actually prepared by any person or persons other than the corporation, state the source of the information reported in this return manner in which it was furnished to or obtained by such person or persons. The question above should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, so or persons must excepte the affidavit at the foot of this page. ADUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934). 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 3. Torrat or Trays 1 as 2 position and excess-profits taxes two foliation by the Contributions of pitto or schooled an empire in the title of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 4. Lens: Pector make or exchange of explain sents in the methods in the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 5. Lens: Contributions or gifts one schooled an empire in the title of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 6. Lens: From set or exchange of explain sents dischanged by the contribution of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see descreein a computing teen it.) 8. Tortat or trays a 7 to 7. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (form a bine free by University of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 10. Adjusted net income diseas above from its before the Assessment of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 11. Lens: Dividends from personal holding companies (non Schoole 1934) shows the second personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal person	event only
corporation in the preparation of this return, or actually prepare this return for the corporation? The present of the solidation or persons and state the sature and center of the sevice of a control of the sevice of the information reported in this return was actually prepared by any person or persons other than the corporation, state the source of the information reported in this return manner in which it was furnished to or obtained by such person or persons. The question above should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, so or persons must excepte the affidavit at the foot of this page. ADUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934). 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title 1 of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 3. Torrat or Trays 1 as 2 position and excess-profits taxes two foliation by the Contributions of pitto or schooled an empire in the title of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 4. Lens: Pector make or exchange of explain sents in the methods in the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 5. Lens: Contributions or gifts one schooled an empire in the title of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 6. Lens: From set or exchange of explain sents dischanged by the contribution of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see descreein a computing teen it.) 8. Tortat or trays a 7 to 7. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (form a bine free by University of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 10. Adjusted net income diseas above from its before the Assessment of the Revenue Act of 1934 show Boseles As. 11. Lens: Dividends from personal holding companies (non Schoole 1934) shows the second personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal personal person	
if this return was actually prepared by any person or persons other than the corporation, state the source of the information reported in this return manner in which was furnished to record the information reported in this return manner in the was formation and the second of the present of the prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, so or persons must excepte the affidavit at the foot of this page. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) in the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 3. Torrat or Trays 1 as p. 2. 4. Lexe: Federal income, year-profits, and excess-profits taxes then ficted in the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 5. Contributions or gifts on tobored to empetial two 1 (see Scholes) C. 6. Lexes: form sale or exchange of capital assets discussed by securious 1100 of the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see desired in computing two 1). 8. Torrat or trays a row 1. 8. Torrat or trays a row 1. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (from 3 bits from 9). 10. Adjusted met income (see a serve) fixture in both educed. 11. Lexe: Dividends from personal holding companies (see Roberts A. column 7). 12. Balance (see as the close as the serve of the size between the serve of the size between the serve of the serve of the size between the serve of t	
if this return was actually prepared by any person or persons other than the corporation, state the source of the information reported in this return manner in which was furnished to record the information reported in this return manner in the was formation and the second of the present of the prepared by some person or persons other than the corporation, so or persons must excepte the affidavit at the foot of this page. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) in the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 3. Torrat or Trays 1 as p. 2. 4. Lexe: Federal income, year-profits, and excess-profits taxes then ficted in the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 5. Contributions or gifts on tobored to empetial two 1 (see Scholes) C. 6. Lexes: form sale or exchange of capital assets discussed by securious 1100 of the Revenue Act of 1934 from Roberts A. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see desired in computing two 1). 8. Torrat or trays a row 1. 8. Torrat or trays a row 1. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (from 3 bits from 9). 10. Adjusted met income (see a serve) fixture in both educed. 11. Lexe: Dividends from personal holding companies (see Roberts A. column 7). 12. Balance (see as the close as the serve of the size between the serve of the size between the serve of the serve of the size between the serve of t	s received;
The question above should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some persons other than the corporation, so or persons must execute the affidavit at the foot of this page. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934)	rn and the
ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 (thus Schedule A) 3. TOTAL OF ITEMS I AND 2. 4. Less: Federal income, year-profits, and excess-profits taxes them Schedule C). 5. Contributions or gifts one deduced in empate them 1) them Schedule C). 6. Lorest from sale or exchange of explicit served (dasheed by section URG) of the Revenue Act of 1934 (thus Schedule A). 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (one dodescel is computing them 1). 8. TOTAL OF ITEMS (TO 1). 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (thus I missu fires 1). 10. Adjusted met income cites a saved (faster in the cleans). 11. Less: Dividend from personal bodding companies (three Schedule A), edges 27. 12. Balance cites its cleans in its cleans. 13. 20% of Hem 12. 14. Amount used or set saids to retire indebtedness (thus Schedule A). 15. Dividends pulled during year. 16. TOTAL OF ITEMS 13 TO 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (title its cleans) (title in the cleans a). 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (title II show). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (total is seen schedule b) (the Instruction 6). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (title is mass then 19). 20. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (title is mass then 19). 21. Surfax on Hem 19 (00%) them 19 (00%) them 19). 22. Surfax on Hem 19 (00%) them 19 (00%) them 19). 23. Surfax on Hem 19 (00%) them 19). 24. Surfax on Hem 19 (00%) them 19). 25. Surfax on Hem 19 (00%) them 19). 26. TOTAL SURTALL (INCOME) (the stree scheduled, or other principal officer) and transurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accountage officier) of the fine of which this return is made, being severally duly sworn, each for themself deposes and say that this return (including its accompanying schedules) and the Regulations issued thereunder. 28. TOTAL SURTALL (Income Complete scheduled and also applied to the recover o	
ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934) 2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 (then Shedula A) 3. Toryat or Piture I and 2. 4. Less: Federal income, yar-profits, and excess-profits taxes (then Rehedule B) 5. Contributions or gifts (not denote the empirise Item 1) (then Schedule C). 6. Lense from sale or exclange of explaits aretic (stableweb y rescinct URS) of the Revenue Act of 1934 (then Shedule A) 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see deduced in comparing them D). 8. Toryat or Piture I and C. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (then a bristal from 1) 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (then a bristal from 1) 10. Adjusted ret income (then shedule A) 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies (then Schedule A, educe 3) 12. Balance (than to cleans) insuling the IIII. 13. 20% of Hem 12. 14. Amount used or set saids to pretire indebtedness (thus behavior B) (the Income C) 15. Undistributed adjusted het income (then II above). 16. Toryat or Fiture I all To 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (then II, change II, change III). 18. Undistributed adjusted het income (then II above). 19. Amount teachle at rice of 20% (for in severe of the Companies). 19. Amount teachle at rice of 20% (for in severe of the Companies). 19. Amount teachle at rice of 20% (for in severe of the Companies). 19. Amount teachle at rice of 20% (for in severe of the Companies). 20. Amount teachle at rice of 20% (for in severe of the Companies). 3. TOTAL SURTAX (then 2) plus inten II among Item II among II and II an	uch persons
1. Net income (as defined in Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934). 2. Dividends on stock of demestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 (from Schodule A). 3. Torat or Pitage I also 2. 4. Less: Pederal income, year-profits, and cacess-profits taxes (from Schodule D). 5. Contributions or gifts (not schoused is emposite from 1) from Schodule D). 6. Lones from sale or exchange of capital Sancia (classives by section 1936) of the Revenue Act of 1930. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see deduced in comparing from 1). 8. Torat or Pitage I also 2. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (from 3 sinus from 4). 10. Adjusted net income (from a sinus from 1). 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companie (from Schodule A). 12. Balance (item in column 1, sinus from 1). 13. 20% of Item 10. 14. Amount used or set and to from the schodule of the Schodule A). 15. Dividends from personal holding companie (from Schodule A). 16. Torat or I risse I 3 to 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NST INCOME (item is surreurine 6). 18. Undistributed adjusted are income fitted in from the Schodule A). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (item is means in Robert 10. 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (item is means in Robert 10. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (item is means in Robert 10. 21. Surfax on Item 20 (origin tem 20. 22. TOTAL SURTAX (item 2) persident (or vice president, or other principal officer) and the return (including its accompanying schodules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a frue, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for typer stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1594 and the Regulations issued thereunder. 28. Sworn to and subscribed before me this (Preserve, Amutaci Transcer, or Chief accompanying schodules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a frue, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for typer stated, pursuant to	
2. Dividends on stock of domestic corporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 dress Rebetals A1. 3. Total to Firsts I AND 2. 4. Less: Federal income, year-profits, and excess-profits taxes from Schedule IV. 5. Contribution or gifts (see deduced to empetiate Iven I) tome Schedule IV. 6. Lones from sale or exchange of capital scales (daublewed by section 1934) of the Screene act of 1930. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see deduced in computing Iven I). 8. Total or Firsts of 100 III. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (Item 2 minus Item 2). 10. Adjusted met income (Stear a shore) (Stear is sold reduced). 11. Less: Dividends from personal bodding companies from Schedule A1. evaluate 3. 12. Balance (Item 10. ceissum). Instead Item III. 13. 20% of Item 12. 14. Amount used or set saids to retire indebtedeness (rose deschade A1. evaluate 3. 15. Dividends and diving year. 16. Total or Irsus I 3 To 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (Item 10. ceissum is a set of 100 in the second in the secon	}=
2. Dividends on stock of demestic ecoporations subject to taxation under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 these Robeds A1. 3. TOTAL OF TEXES I AND 2. 4. Less: Federal income, year-profits, and excess-profits taxes from Schodok III. 5. Contribution or gifts doe deduced incomputes from 10 the Schodok IV. 6. Lones from sale or exchange of capital associate (anabased by senior III.) of the Revenue act of 1939. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (sed deducted in computing from 1). 8. TOTAL OF TEXES I AT OR III. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (itsel miss a late of deducted in computing from 1). 10. Adjusted met income of texes a serve (State is about from 9). 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies from Schodok IV. 12. Balance (itsel is, ceisses), indeed from 1). 13. 20% of Itsel is, ceisses, indeed from 10 the Schodok IV. 14. Amount used or set saids to refure indebtedness stous Readash IV. 15. Dividends and definity exp. 16. TOTAL OF ITEMS I 3 TO 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME ((itsel ii), column 2, missual lites ii). 18. Undistributed adjusted set income (files ii) about 10 the Instruction 9. 19. Amount taxable at rate of 40%; one is more of the iii) one is consecution 10. 19. Amount taxable at rate of 40%; one is more of the principle officer) and treasurer (or anxietant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the file of the income	
4. Less: Federal income, war-profits, and excess-profits taxes (hom Robeshis D). 5. Contributions or gifts out desired to empetia; Item 10 (fem Schedis C). 6. Lones from sale or exchange of capital sacets (desired with yearing 110) of the Revene Act of 1990. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (see deducted to computing Item 1). 8. TOTAL of Friends (*** 10)	
5. Contributions or gifts not debrated in competitar Item 10 from Schoolist C. 6. Lorest from sale or exchange of capital anexts (insulated by section 1070) of the Revenue Act of 1980) 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (not deducted in computing Item 1). 8. Total or Ivens evo 7. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (trea 2 minus Item 9). 10. Adjusted net income (trea salve) (Etate in both column). 11. Less: Dividends paid including companies (from Schooles A., column 2). 12. Balance (trea 10, column 3, minus Item 1) 13. 20%; of Item 12. 14. Amount used or set aside to pritire indebtedness (trea Schooles A., column 2). 15. Dividends paid divining year. 16. Total or Ivens 13 to 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (trea 10, column 2, minus Item 19). 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (trea 11 sever). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (trea in severe 4 stronger). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (trea in severe 4 stronger). 20. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (trea in severe 4 stronger). 21. Surfax on Item 19 (org. of trea 19). 22. Surfax on Item 19 (org. of trea 19). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (tree 2) plus Item 29). 24. AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 5) We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the tion for which this return in made, being severally duly aworn, each for himself deposes and says that this return (including its accompanying schedules member, if any) has been examined by him, and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for typer stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1924 wayorn, each for himself deposes and says that this return (including its accompanying schedules and pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1924 and the Regulations issued thereunder. 2 Swerts to and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for returns has been pr	
5. Lorses from sale or exchange of capital assets disalored by setion URO of the Revenue Act of 1900. 7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (soit deducted in computing term 1). 8. TOTAL OF TEXES AT 1. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (time 3 minus time 8). UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 10. Adjusted net income (time 3 shore) (Ease in both rolumn). 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies (from Schedule A, column 2). 12. Balance (time in column 1, minus time 11). 13. 20% of I term 12. 14. Amount used or set saids to retire indebtedness (from Schedule A, column 2). 15. Dividends paid diving year. 16. Total or I true is 3 vo 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (time 10, column 2, minus time 19). 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (frees 17 above). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (time 15 minus time 19). 21. Surfax on Item 19 (ook of item 2) (sees it mease of 140,000 00). 22. Surfax on Item 19 (ook of item 2) (sees it mease of 140,000 00). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (time 2) plus liken 20. 24. AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8) We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the food which this return is made, being severally duly aworn, each for himself deposes and says that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and helief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for the year stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this (Signature of officer) subministering onth) 1/*Reserved, Amount and subministering onth) 1/*Reserved, Amount complete statement of all the jatformation respecting the additional graduated income tax or entract liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	1
7. Income tax paid to a foreign country or U. S. possession (sor deducted in computing tiem 1). 8. TOTAL OF ITEMS 4 TO 3. 9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (thus 3 minus tires 8). UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 10. Adjusted the tincome (tiem 3 sub-rol (Easte in both rolumn). 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies (tiem Substate A. column 2). 12. Balance (tiem in column). Institute 11. 13. 20% of Item 12. 14. Amount used or set saide to retire indebtedness (tiem Substate A. column 2). 15. Dividende paid during year. 16. TOTAL OF ITEMS 13 TO 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (tiem 10, column 2, impus tiem 10). 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (tiem 17 slove). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (tiem is messe of 100,000 00. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (tiem is messe of 100,000 00. 21. Surfax on Items 10 cm 20 cm 20 cm 10 cm 20	İ
9. ADJUSTED NET INCOME (Item 3 minus frem 6). UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 10. Adjusted net income frem a short (Easter in both columns). 11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies (from Stebales A. column 2). 12. Balance (Item 18 column 1, minus Item 11). 13. 20% of Item 12. 14. Amount used or set saide to retire indebtedness (from Stebales A. column 2). 14. Amount used or set saide to retire indebtedness (from Stebales A. column 2). 15. Dividends paid diving year. 16. Total or Treme 13 vo 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (item 19, column 2, minus Item 19). COMPUTATION OF TAX (See Instruction 7) 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (item 17 shore). 19. Amount starable at rate of 30% (stem is moses from 190,000. 20. Amount starable at rate of 30% (stem is moses from 190,000. 21. Surfax on Item 19 (00% of item 19). 22. Surfax on Item 19 (00% of item 19). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (them 20 plus item 29). 24. TOTAL SURTAX (them 20 plus item 29). 25. TOTAL SURTAX (them 20 plus item 29). 26. TOTAL SURTAX (them 21 plus item 29). 27. AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8) AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8) We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duly sworp, each for himself deposes and sax that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him each principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or Chief Accounting Officer) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duly sworp, each for himself deposes and sax that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him characteristic schedules and the Regulations is used thereunder. Sworp to and subscribed before me this (Gigasture of effects ediminatering only). (Gigasture of effects ediminatering only). (Signature of person preparing (this third five have a	
UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (See Instruction 5) 10. Adjusted net income (sees a shore) (Buse in both rolumns)	
10. Adjusted net income (item a shorte) (Base in both relumns)	
11. Less: Dividends from personal holding companies from selection A. column 20. 22. Balance (time in relumn 1, insent frem). 33. 20% of Item 12. 44. Amount used or set aside to retire indebtedness trom Schedule D (see Instruction 9	- 1
12. Balance (tens in column 1, minor, item 11)	
14. Amount used or set saide to retire indebtedness (true behedus E) (see Instruction 6). 15. Dividends paid during year. 16. To Tax to Firews 13 To 15. 17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (trees its, columns 2, missus inem 10). 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (trees 17 above). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (trees its nesses of 180,000 00. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (trees its nesses of 180,000 00. 21. Surtax on Item 19 (only of tree 19). 22. Surtax on Item 19 (only of tree 19). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (then 20 (orly of tree 20). 24. TOTAL SURTAX (then 21 plus item 20). 25. We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officery and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the time of which this return is made, being saverally duty swore, each for himself deposes and easy that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and its, to the best of its knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for the year stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this [NOTABLEAL] [Signature of effect estimainsering onth) [CIRCH AFFIDAVIT Live swear (or affirm) that Live prepared this setura for the person named herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and place) [Signature of effect estimainsering onth) [CIRCH AFFIDAVIT [Signature of effect estimainsering onth) [Signature of person preparing (this return) [Signature of person preparing this return) [Signature of person preparing this return) [Signature of person preparing (this return) [Signature of person preparing (this return) [Signature of person preparing this return)	1
13. Dividends paid during year. 16. Tota or Irress 13 to 15	
17. UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME (tion 18, column 2, missus lion 16) COMPUTATION OF TAX (See Instruction 7) 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (tion 17 above). 29. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (see in second 1800,000 00. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (tion 18 missus liven 19	1
COMPUTATION OF TAX (See Instruction 7) 18. Undistributed adjusted net income (Item 17 above)	
18. Undistributed adjusted net income (them 17 above). 19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% (not in second 180,000 00. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (them is most be 180,000 00. 21. Surtax on 16tm 19 (00% of them 19). 22. Surtax on 16tm 19 (00% of them 19). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (them 20 (offs) of them 20). 24. TOTAL SURTAX (them 21 plus 180m 20). AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8). AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8). AFFIDAVIT (see Instruction 8). We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal offser) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duty swore, each for himself deposes and easy that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if (ap.) has been examined by him and its, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for the year stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this [NOTABLIAL] [Signature of effect ediministring only) [Size [Times] AFFIDAVIT I/we swear (or affirm) that I/we prepared this return for the person named herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and yie is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or curtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	
19. Amount taxable at rate of 30% fines in seems of 1900,000. 20. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (then is missus tree 19). 21. Surfax on Item 19 (20% of then 19). 22. Surfax on Item 19 (20% of then 29). 23. TOTAL SURTAX (then 29) then 1900. AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 5) We, the underrigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the toff or which this return is much, being severally duly sworn, seach for himself deposes and assy that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for the year stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this (State Correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for the present of the correct of the country of the return of the principal discent (State 19). AFFIDAVIT I/we swear (or affirm) that I/we prepared this return for the person named horsin and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and state any) is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	1
20. Amount taxable at rate of 40% (then 18 mount item 19	
23. TOTAL SURTAX (time 20 pies inten 20). AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8) We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duly aworn, each for himself deposes and save that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and helief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for tyear stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this [NOTARIAL] [NOTARIAL] [Subscript of deer administration with the present the return for the person named herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and sits any) in a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	
AFFIDAVIT (See Instruction 8) We, the undersigned, president for vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duly sworn, each for himself deposes and says that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, franching the state of the state of the second part of the present of the part of the part of the part of the present of the second part of the part of t	
We, the undersigned, president (or vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer (or assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the tion for which this return is made, being severally duly awore, asch for himself deposes and assy that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for tyear stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this (State NOTABIAL Seal Sea	
We, the undersigned, president for vice president, or other principal officer) and treasurer for assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer) of the time of which the crum is made, being severally dudy sown, each for himself deposes and assist that this return (including its accompanying schedules ments, if any) has been examined by him and is, to the best of his knowledge and belief, a true, correct, and complete return, made in good faith, for types stated, pursuant to the Revenue Act of 1934 and the Regulations issued thereunder. Sworn to and subscribed before me this (Trissient or other principal officer) (State (Trissient or other principal officer) (State (Trissient or other principal officer) (State (Trissient or other administration) (This) AFFIDAVIT I/we swear (or affirm) that I/we prepared this return for the person named herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and state any) is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	
(President or other principal officer) (State NOTABIAL	and state-
[SEAL] [SEAL] [CTHMARTER, ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT THROUGH OF CHIEF ASSISTANT ASSIST	title)
Title AFFIDAVIT I/we awar (or affirm) that I/we prepared this return for the person unneed herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and stated any) is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	
AFFIDAVIT I/we swear (or affirm) that I/we prepared this return for the person amed berein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and state any) is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/we have any knowledge Sworp to and subscribed before me this	ite title)
I/me awar (or affirm) that I/me prepared the return for the person named herein and that the return (including its accompanying schedules and sta any) is a true, correct, and complete statement of all the information respecting the additional graduated income tax or surtax liability of the person for return has been prepared of which I/me have any knowledge Sworn to and subscribed before me this	
(Signature of person preparing the results) [ROTARIAL]	tements, if whom this
NOTABIAL SEAL (Signature of person preparing the return)	
(Signature of officer	
toquature of othors mountainering costs) (1946) (Name of firm or employer, if any)	2-10000

SCHEDULE ADividenda (From	Domestic Cornections Subject to T	Caration Under Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934)

	1. Nai	ne and Address of I	CONTRACTO CONFORMED			2 DISIDEND	HOLDING PROM	3, Drys 0791 180	DENDS FROM COMP. 12 TEAN PERSONAL I COMPANIES	HOLD-
						\$		\$		

*	***************************************	•••••								
***************************************					***************					1
									·····	
•			***************************************		•••••					
		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			******	······			•••••	
	***************************************	***************************************	***************************************							1
TOTALS						\$		\$		1
TOTAL OF COLUMNS	2 AND 3 (enter a	ıs Item 2)						. \$		
		SCHEDUL.	E B-Federal Income	, War-profits, and I	Excess-profits	Taxes				
Itemizo below all Fe	ederal income, wa	r-profits, and ex-	cess-profits taxes paid	or accrued during t	he year, stati	ng the amount	and year	for whi	ch paid or accru	ed:
	•••••								······································	
<i>,</i>		·····						•		••
***************************************	***************************************			***************************************		***************************************		•	***************************************	••
***************************************			***************************************					•••••		
		SCHED	ULE C-Statement of	f Contributions (S.	aa Instruction	. 60				
-		Belleb		t Cantingenous (S						
Name of	P ORGANIZATION		AMOUNT PAID	l	NAME OF OR	OARTEATION.			AMOUNT PAID	
			s					\$		1

*************************************					•••••				••	·
TOTAL CONTRIBUTE								\$		
TOTAL CONTRIBUTI	ONB (enter as item 5)			***************************************	***************************************			3		
		SCHEDULE	D. Payment of Surta (Vil in only if section 351(4)	x on Pro Rata Sha of the Bovenue Act of 19	ares (See Inst 834 applies)	ruction 12)				
	Na	ME AND ADDRESS OF	EACH SHAREHOLDER			CLASS OF STO NUMBER OF SEA	CE AND RES HELD	YMOG	NY REPORTED BY E	ACH
								-		$\overline{}$
								\$		
	***************************************	***************************************						\$		
								s		
								s		
								s		
								\$		
								\$		
								\$		
								s		
								s		
								S		
Total								\$		
								\$	1934	
SCHEI	OULE E—Deduc	tions Claimed fo	r Amounts Used or S	et Aside to Retire	Indebtedness	Incurred Prio	r to Janu	\$	-	
	2. DATE INCURRED OR ASSUMED		r Amounts Used or S	et Aside to Retire				\$	-	
SCHEI	OULE E—Deduc	tions Claimed fo	r Amounts Used or S	5. Awount set and print so ration 70 Jan. 1, 1994	Indebtedness	Incurred Prio	r to Janu	\$	-	
SCHEI	2. DATE INCURRED OR ASSUMED	tions Claimed fo	r Amounts Used or S	et Aside to Retire	Indebtedness	Incurred Prio	r to Janu	\$	-	D 03
SCHEI	2. DATE INCURRED OR ASSUMED	tions Claimed fo	r Amounts Used or S	5. Awount set and print so ration 70 Jan. 1, 1994	Indebtedness	7. BALANCE	r to Janu	\$	9. TOTAL FUN:	
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT RE- TREED DURING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	S ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT RE- TREED DURING TAXABLE YEAR	7. BALANCE	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	S ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased or assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	S ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	S ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03
1. Insparedness	DULE E—Deduct 2. Date increased on assumed Mo. Dog Year	J. Dur Date (or APPROXIMATE DUE DATE) Mo. Day Year	r Amounts Used or S	5. AMOUNT SET ANDE OR ENTER DO PRIOR TO JAM. 1, 1884	Indebtedness AMOUNT BE- THEED DUBING TAXABLE YEAR	7. Balancs	8. AMOS LOWA TAXAB	S ary 1, 1	9. Total for allegery to Da	D 03

TITLE IA. REVENUE ACT OF 1934

ADDITIONAL INCOME TAXES SEC. 351. SURTAX ON PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANIES.

(a) IMPOSITION OF TAX.—There shall be levied, collected, and paid, for ch taxable year, upon the undistributed adjusted net income of every personal idding company a surtax equal to the sum of the following:

(1) 30 per centum of the amount thereof not in excess of \$100,000; plus

- (2) 40 per centum of the amount thereof in excess of \$100,000
- (b) DEFINITIONS.—As used in this title-
- (2) 40 per centum of the amount thereof lif excess of \$100,000.
 (3) DEFINITIONS.—As used in this title—
 (4) The term "personal holding compisny" means any corporation (other than a corporation except from taxation under section 101, and other than a bank or trust company incorporated under the laws of the United States or of any State or Territory, a substantial part of whose business is the receipt of deposits, and other than a kic-insurance company or surety company il—(A) at least 50 per centum of its gross income for the taxable year is derived from royalities, dividends, interest, annulities, and (cettep in the case of regular dealers in stock or securities) gains from the sale of stock or securities, and (8) at any time during the last laid of the taxable year more than 50 per custum for a company of the stock of the sale of
- income minus the sum of:
- (A) 20 per centum of the excess of the adjusted not income over the mount of dividends received from personal holding companies which

- are allowable as a deduction for the purposes of the tax imposed by section 13 or 204;
- ed or set aside to retire indebtedness incurred prior to (B) Amounts used or set aside to retire January 1, 1034, if such amounts are re-size and terms of such indebtedness; and
- (C) Dividends paid during the taxable year.
- (3) The term "adjusted net income" means the net income computed without the allowance of the dividend deduction otherwise allowable, but minus the sum of:
 - (A) Federal income, war-profits, and excess-profits taxes paid or crued, but not including the tax imposed by this section;
 - (B) Contributions or gifts, not otherwise allowed as a deduction, to for the use of donces described in section 23 (o) for the purposes therein specified; and
 - (C) Losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets which are dis-allowed as a deduction by section 117 (d).
- (4) The terms used in this section shall have the same meaning as when used in Title I. (e) ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS.—All provisions of law (including penalties) applicable in respect of the taxes imposed by Title I of this Act, shall insoff as son tinconsistent with this section, be applicable in respect of the tax imposed by this exclion, except that the provisions of section 131 of that title shall not be applicable.
- title shall not be applicable.

 (d) PAYMENT OF SURTAX ON PRO RATA SHARES.—The tax imposed by this section shall not apply if all the shareholders of the corporation include (at the time of filing their returns) in their gross income their entire pro tate abares, whether distributed or not, of the "adjusted net income" of the corporation for such year. Any amounts be included in the gross income of a shareholder shall be treated as a dividend received. Any subsequent distribution made by the corporation out of earnings or profits for each standle, and the shareholder shall be treated as a dividend received. Any subsequent distribution made by the corporation out of earnings or profits for each standle, and the shareholder shall be treated as a dividend received. The shareholder shall be received to the shareholder shall be shareholder shall be shareholder shall be shareholder.
- (e) IMPROPER ACCUMULATION OF SURPLUS.—For surtax on corpor-tions which accumulate surplus to avoid surtax on stockholders, see section 102.

INSTRUCTIONS

Titles and sections of the law referred to in th titles and sections of the Revenue Act of 1934

1. SURTAX ON PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANIES

1. SURTAX ON PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANIES
Section 351 of Tile IA of the Revenue Act of 1934 imposes an additional syraduated income tax or surfax upon corporations classified as personal holding companies. Corporations so classified are very positions in the companies of the companies o

2. CLASSIFICATION OF A PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANY

2. CLASSIFICATION OF A PERSONAL HOLDING COMPANY A personal bodding company is defined as any corporation (other than a corporation specifically exempt), first, 80 percent or more of whose gross income for the taxable year was derived from royalties, dividends, interest, annuties, and gains from the sale of stock or securities; and, second, more than 50 percent in value of whose outstanding stock was owned, directly or inducetly, at any time during the last half of the taxable year by or for not more than five indi-viduals. The only corporations specifically exempt from this tax are as follows and trust companies (incorporated under the laws of the United States, or of any State or Territory), a substantial part of whose business is the receipt of deposits; (3) life insurance companies; and (4) surely companies.

deposits; (3) life insurance companies; and (4) surely companies. It is the nature of the gross income and the ownership of the outstanding stock which determine the classification as a personal holding company, and the several conditions with respect to both must be satisfied to bring a corporation within the classification. Gross income must be determined for the entire taxable year and the ownership of the stock outstanding must be determined according to its ownership at any time during the last half of the taxable year. Inasmuch as such circumstances can vary from year to year, a corporation may constitute a personal hodding company for some years and not for other years. In that case, the surtax liability shall be determined under section 351 only for the years in which the corporation comes within the classification as a personal holding company, while the liability for surtax as to the other years will depend upon whether the corporation comes within the provisions of section 102 with respect to such years. to such years.

The gross income for purposes of section 351 means the gross income as computed under sections 22, 204, and 231 and the regulations thereunder, for purposes of the taxes imposed by Title I. Accordingly, items excluded from the gross income under Title I are not to be included in determining gross income under section 351. Gross incomes in not rynony mous with gross receipts. For example, accordingly, items excluded from the gross income under section 351. Gross incomes in not rynony mous with gross receipts. For example, amount realized therefore over the ediptical includes only the crease of the amount realized therefore over the ediptical includes only that portion of the gain returnable as income under section 41. In the case of a corporation reporting on the installment basis, it includes only that portion of the gain returnable as income under section 44. In the case of a corporation reporting on the installment basis, it includes only that portion of the gain returnable as income under section 44. In the case of a nanufacturing, merchandising, or mining business, "gross income" means the total sakes, less the cost of goods sold, plus any income from investments and from incidental or outside operations or sources. In determining gross income, subtractions should not be made for depreciation, depletion, edling expense, or losses, or for items not ordinarily used in computing the cost of goods sold. Sakes of capital assets as defined in section 117 must be treated as separate transactions and only those sakes which Individually resulted in profits shall be considered in determining the gains derived from such source. Gains from all transactions indowly the spantely.

3. NATURE OF GROSS INCOME

From the standpoint of the nature of the gross income, a corporation comes within the definition of a personal holding company for any taxable year when (80) percent or more of its gross income for such taxable year was derived from the following sources:

(a) Royalties—The term "royalties" includes amounts received for the use of of or the privilege of using patents, copyrights, secret processes and formulas, good will, trade marks, trade brands, franchises, and other like property. It does not include roats, nor overriding royalties received by an operating company. As used in this paragraph the term 'overriding royalties' means amounts received from a sublessee by the operating company which originally leased and developed the natural resource property in respect of which such overriding royalties are paid.

- (b) Dividends.—The term "dividends" means dividends as defined in section 15 (a). It does not include stock dividends, liquidating dividends, or other spital distributions referred to in section 115 (c), (d), and (f).
- (c) Interest.—The term "interest" means any amounts received for the use borrowed money which are includible in gross income under Title I.
- (d) Annuities.—The term "annuities" refers only to annuities to the extent includible in the computation of gross income under Title I.
- includible in the computation of gross income under Title I.

 (a) Gain ground has also of sixtle or securities.—The stem "igning from the sale of stock or securities.—The stem "igning from the sale of stock or securities applies to all gains (including gains from liquidating dividends and other distributions from capitall from the sale or exchange of stock or securities. The form "stock or securities includible in gross income under Title I. The term "stock or securities" includes shares or certificates of stock or interest in any corporation (including any joint-stock company, insurance company, association, or other organization classified as a corporation by the Arch), certificates of interest or participation in any profit sharing agreement or in any only gas, or other mineral reyalty or lease, collateral trust certificates, other trust certificates, billed or exhange, obligation issued by or on behalf of a Government, State, Territory, or a political subdivision thereof, etc.

 In the case of "treating designs in stock or securition" the term does not in
- Government, State, territory, or a pointent subdivision thereof, etc. In the case of "regular dealers in stock or securities" the term does not in-clude gains derived from the sale or exchange of stock or securities made in the normal course of business. The term "regular dealers in stock or securities" means corporations with an established place of business regularly engaged in the purchase of stock or securities and their results do nustomers. A corporation, which is a regular dealer in stock or securities but which buys or sells or holds stock or securities for investment or speculation is not a dealer with respect to such stock or securities.

4. STOCK OWNERSHIP

From the standpoint of the ownership of the outstanding stock, a corporate comes within the definition of a personal holding company for any tax year if a tay time during the last half of the taxable year more than 50 pers in value of the stock outstanding was owned, directly or indirectly, by or not more than five individuals. The ownership of the stock shall be determing a coordance with the following rules:

- (a) All forms and classes of stock, however denominated, which represent the interests of the sharcholders, members, or beneficiaries in the corporation shall be taken indo consideration. For the purpose of determining such owner-ship, the Act provides that stock owned, directly or indirectly, by a corporation, partnership, estate or trust shall be considered as being owned proportionately by its sharcholders, partners, or beneficiaries.
- (8) The stock outstanding only during the last half of the taxable year shall be taken into consideration. However, and in the event of any change in the stock outstanding during such period, whether in the number of shares or classes of stock or whether in the ownership thereof, the conditions existing immediately prior and subsequent to each change must be taken into consideration, since a corporation comes within the classification if the statutory conditions comes within the classification of the taxable of the conditions of the control
- (c) The stock owned by an individual shall include all stock in the same corporation owned, directly or indirectly, by the members of his family. For this purpose the family of an individual shall include only his forthers and sisters (whether by the whole or half blood), spouse, ancestors, and lineal de-1-1899

ecendants. The Act further provides that this rule shall be applied in such manner as to produce the smallest possible number of individuals owning, di-rectly or indirectly, more than 50 percent in value of the outstanding stock.

For example, the M corporation at some time during the last half of the taxable year had 1,800 shares of outstanding stock, 450 of which were held by various individuals shaving no relationship to one another and the remaining 1,250 were held by 30 shareholders having the relationships and individual shareholdings

RELATIONSDIPS	BRARI	ta	SOARI	9	SRARI	23	SHARE	ES STARES		3
An individual		110	B	20	c	20	D	20	P	20
His father	ÂF	10	IFF.	10	ČF	10 3	ĎF	10	Ēr	10
	Ar.	10			CW				EW	10
His wife	AW	10	BW	40		40	DW	40		40
Ris brother	AB	10	вв	10	CB	10	DB	10	EB	10
His son	AS	10	BS	40	CS	40 *	DS	40	ES	40
His daughter by former mar-					1				I	
riage (son's half-sister)	ASHS	10	BSRS	40	CSHS	40	DSB9	40	ESH8	40
His brother's wife	ABW	10	BBW	10	CRW	10	DBW	100	EBW	10
His wife's father	AWF	10	BWF	10	CWE	110	DWF	10	EWF	10
His wife's brother	AWB	10	BWB	10	CWB	10	DWB	10	EWB	14
His wife's brother's wife	AWBW	10	BWBW	10	CWBW	10	DWBW	10	EWBW	110

In the above example by applying the statutory rule, five individuals owned fore than 50 percent of the outstanding stock as follows:

A (including AF, AW, AB, AS, ASHS) B (including BF, BW, BB, BS, BSHS)	160
CW (including C, CS, CWF, CWB) DB (including D, DF, DBW)	220
EWB (including EW, EWF, EWBW)	170
TOTAL OR MORE THAN 50 PERCENT	910

TOTAL OR MORE THAN 50 PERCENT.

It will be noted that individual A represents the obvious case where the head of the family owns the bulk of the family stock and naturally is the head of the group. Individual B represents the case where he is still head of the group because of the ownership of stock by his immediate family. Individuals C and D represent cases where the individuals fall in groups beaded in C's case by his wife and in D's case by his brother because of the preponderance of holdings on the part of relatives by marriage. Individual E represent the case where the preponderant holdings of others eliminate that individual from the

group.

(d) In determining whether the statutory conditions with respect to stock ownership are present at any time during the period specified, the phrase "in value" shall, in the light of all the circumstances, be deemed the value of the corporate stock outstanding at such time (not including treasury stock). This value may be electronized upon the basis of the company's net worth, earning and dividend paying capacity, appreciation of assets, and any other factor having a bearing upon the value of the stock. If a value of stock is used which is greatly at variance with that reflected by the corporate books, the evidence upon which such valuation is based should be filled with the return. In any case where there are two or more classes of stock outstanding, the total value of all the stock abould be allocated among the different classes according to the relative value of each class therein.

5. COMPUTATION OF UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME

5. COMPUTATION OF UNDISTRIBUTED ADJUSTED NET INCOME

In ascertaining the tax basis for personal holding companies, the "adjusted net income" is first computed. This is accomplished by adding to the corporate net income, as defined in Title I, the amount of dividends received from domestic erropractions which are deductible under section 23(p), and by subtracting therefrom (a) Federal income, war-profits, and excess-profits taxes paid or accreace, but not including the surfax imposed by section 331, (b) contributions or gifts not otherwise allowed as a deduction to or for the use of donces described in section 23(c), for the purposes therein specified, and (c) losses from sales or exchanges of capital assets which are disallowed as a reduction by section 117(d). The foreign tax credit permitted by section 31 with respect to the section 35. However, the observation with the propose of the corporate tax imposed by Title 1 a credit for such taxes in taken.

The "undistributed adjusted net income" is computed by subtracting from the "adjusted net income" described above, (a) an amount equal to 20 percent of the excess of the adjusted net income" is computed by subtracting from the "adjusted net income" (seemined above, (a) an amount equal to 20 percent of the excess of the adjusted net income over the amount of dividends received purpose of the tax imposed by section 36 are 204, (4) reasonable domin for the purpose of the tax imposed by section 36 are 204, (4) reasonable domin for the purpose of the tax imposed by section 36 are 204, (4) reasonable domin for the purpose of the tax imposed by section 36 are 204, (4) reasonable domin for the purpose of the tax imposed by section 36 are 204, (4) reasonable domin for the purpose of the tax imposed by calcelland and desired paid during the taxabite year.

The credit against net income for certain interest received upon obligations.

The credit against net income for certain interest received upon obligations of the United States, or of corporations organized under act of Congress, is not allowable for purposes of the surtax.

6. AMOUNTS USED OR SET ASIDE TO RETIRE INDEBTEDNESS INCURRED PRIOR TO JANUARY 1, 1934

If, pursuant to a bona fide plan for the retirement of its bonds, debentures, or similar obligations representing indebtedness incurred prior to January 1, 1993, for the purpose of missing capital (or assumed prior to that date in connection with the acquisition of capital assets by which such indebtedness is secured) the taxpayer-

- (1) retires during the taxable year an amount of such indebtedness, or

(7) retures during the maximity an amount of such indectencies, or (2) establishes a sinking fund or reserve for the retirement of such indebted-ness during the taxable year, and sets aside in such fund or reserve an amount for the retirement of such indebtedness— in determining the undistributed adjusted net income for the taxable year, a deduction from the adjusted net income is allowable in a reservable amount in respect of the amount so paid or set aside in such fund or reserve during the taxable year.

The amount allowable as a deduction in any case must be reasonable, considering the nature, purposes, coope, conditions, amount, maturity, and other term of the indebtedness. No deduction is allowable unless it appears, either from the covenants of the obligations or from a recognized business and accounting practice respecting the retirement of such indebtedness, that providen for retire deathers, that providen for retire the covenants of the control of such indebtedness, that providen for retirements are considered to the control of the c

ment must be made out of earnings for the taxable year before distribution of such earnings may be made. The reasonableness of the deduction shall be determined upon existing conditions known at the close of the taxable year. The fact that amounts have not been used or set saids in prior years will not entitle the taxyaper to deduct in any taxable year a greater amount than would otherwise be allowable. Amounts paid or set aside to discharge current liabilities for expense, salaries, wages, taxes, interest, the purchase of any property for resale, dividends, bulances due brokers, bank or other commercial loans, or any other current liability (whether represented by negotiable instruments, balances on account, or otherwise) do not constitute allowable deductions. This is true as respects liabilities which are payable at the convenience of either the debtor or the creditor, or on the demand of either.

No definition will be promitted with respect to any item for which a debuttion

No deduction will be permitted with respect to any item for which a deduction is otherwise allowable under Title IA or Title I of the Revenue Act of 1934 or under any applicable prior income tax act.

A resolution, specifying the particular indebtedness to be retired, the plan of retirement, and the specific acrets to be used for that purpose, passed by the board of directors or corresponding authority during the taxable period or prior thereto, will be considered sufficient to meet the statutory requirement that the amounts must be "set adde." A certified copy of each resolution must accompany this return.

The burden of proof will rest upon the taxpayer to sustain the deduction chaimed. Therefore, the taxpayer must furnish the information required by Schedule E of this return and such other information as the Commissioner may require in substantiation of the deduction claimed.

7. RATE OF SURTAX

The surtax is to be computed at the rate of 30 percent upon the amount of the undistributed adjusted not income not in excess of \$100,000, and at the rate of 40 percent upon the amount of the undistributed adjusted not income in excess of \$100,000. 40 percent u of \$100,000,

8. SIGNATURES AND VERIFICATION

The return shall be sworn to by the president, vice president, or other principal officer, and by the treasurer, assistant treasurer, or chief accounting officer. The return of a foreign corporation having no office or place of business in the United States but having an agent in the United States shall be sworn to by

9. TIME AND PLACE FOR FILING

The return must be filed on or before the filteenth day of the third month-following the close of the taxable year with the collector of internal revenue-for the district in which the corporation's principal office is located. In the cuse of a foreign corporation not having any office or place of business in the United's States the return shall be filed on or before the firstenth day of the sixth month, following the close of the taxable year, with the Collector of Internal Revenue, Baltimore, Maryland.

The collector of internal revenue may grant a reasonable extension of time-for filing a return, not to exceed 0 months, if application therefor is made before-the date prescribed by law for filing such return, whenever in his judgment-good cause exists.

10. PAYMENT OF TAXES

The tax should be paid by sending or bringing with the return a check or money order drawn to the order of "Collector of Internal Revenue at (insertname and city and State)." Do not send cash by mail, nor pay it in person. except at the collector's office.

The total amount of tax may be paid when the return is filed or in four equal-installment as follows: The first installment shall be paid on or before the date prescribed for filing the return, the second installment shall be paid on or before the fifteenth day of the third month, the third installment on or before the fifteenth day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment on or before the fifteenth day of the ninth mopth, after the date prescribed for paying the first installment. installment.

If any installment is not paid on the date fixed for its payment, the whole-amount of the tax unpaid shall be paid upon notice and demand by the

11. PENALTIES

For willful failure to make and file return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both, and in addition 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution.

For deficiency in tax.—Interest on a deficiency at 6 percent per annum-to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thirtieth day after the filing of a waiver of the restrictions on assessment and collection, whichever date is the earlier, and in addition 5 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to neg-ligence or internional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to-defraud, or 50 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to fraud.

12. PAYMENT OF SURTAX ON PRO RATA SHARES

The surfax imposed by section 351 does not apply to any taxable year if every shareholder includes, at the time of filing his return, in his gross income his entire pro rata share of the adjusted net income of the corporation for the taxable year of such corporation ending with or during his taxable year.

351 (d) of the Revenue Act of 1934. In such event a return on the-made but only items 1 to 9 and Schedule D need be filled in. n this for

13. PUBLICITY STATEMENT

Every person required to file a return on this form shall file with the return, whether taxable or nontaxable, a statement upon Form 1094 of the following; times shown upon the return: Name and address, net income, and tax payable. In addition, the words "Personal holding company" should be written or typed thereon. In case of any failure to file such statement with the return, the collector shall prepare it from the return, and \$5 shall be added to the tax.

Α

Accounts and notes payable, in corporation balance sheets:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	_
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	Page
	66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
Accounts and notes receivable, in corporation balance sheets:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	00 71
Industrial groups	70 05
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-95
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934Adjusted net income, in personal holding company returns	41 44
Adjusted net income, in personal holding company returns	41-44
Aerial transportation, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see	0.9
also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
Affiliated corporation returns. (See Consolidated corporation returns.)	
Agricultural machinery and equipment, income tax returns of corporations	00
engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal products)	62
Agriculture and related industries, income tax returns of corporations	
engaged in:	0.0
Assets and liabilities, classified	66
Capital assets, gross and net	10-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	10 66
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified	31
Consolidated returns	
Fiscal year returns196, 20 Industrial subgroups	60
Posserves for depresentation and depletion	16_17
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	-17 60
Total assets classes	78
Years, 1925 to 1934	96
Airplanes, seaplanes, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in	30
manufacture of (see also Manufacturing not elsewhere classified)	63
Amended returns included	3
Amusements—Theaters, motion-picture producers, motion-picture thea-	J
ters, circuses, race tracks, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see	
also Sarviga)	64
also Service)Anthracite coal—Mining, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	04
(see also Mining and quarrying)	60
Assets, in corporation balance sheets:	00
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Explanatory text	13-18
ANDIGHTON OIT OUNTER THE TERM OF THE PROPERTY	*0 TO

Assets, in corporation balance sheets—Continued.	Page
Industrial groups	66-71
Returns showing net income and no net income	-17, 60
Total assets classes 18.	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
manufacture of (see also Rubber products)	61
Autobus lines, taxicabs, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
В	
Bad debts, corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48–59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classesYears, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37-38
Years, 1931 to 1934, submitting balance sheets	40
Bakery and confectionery products, income tax returns of corporations en-	
gaged in manufacture of (see also Food and kindred products)Banking and related industries, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Finance)	60 65
in (see also Finance) Beverages, soft drinks, distilling, etc., income tax returns of corporations	00
engaged in manufacture of (see also Liquors and beverages) Bituminous coal, lignite, peat, income tax returns of corporations engaged	61
in mining (see also Mining and quarrying) Blast furnaces, steel mills, rolling mills, products of, etc., income tax	60
returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and	
its products)	62
Bonded debt and mortgages, in corporation balance sheets: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups and total assets classes	66-71
Returns showing net income and no net income	10-93
Total assets classes	72 - 77
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
Bone, cell'uloid and ivory products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in the manufacture of (see also Rubber products)	61
Boots, shoes, slippers, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in the manufacture of (see also Leather and its manufactures)	61
Brokers, stock and bond, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also	65
Finance) Building and construction above ground, income tax returns of corporations	
engaged in (see also Construction) Building materials and supplies (metal), income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacure of (see also Metal and its products)	63
Business service—Detective bureaus, trade shows, etc., income tax returns	62
of corporations engaged in (see also Service)	65
C	
Canned products—Fish, fruit, vegetables, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Food and kindred products). Capital assets—Buildings, equipment, etc., natural resources and land, in corporation balance sheets:	60
DefinedGross capital assets by industrial groups	16 16–17
Industrial groups	66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-95
Net capital assets by industrial groups	16–17
Reserves for depreciation and depletion (except on land) by industrial groups	16-17
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	

235

Capital assets—Buildings, equipment, etc.—Continued.	Pε	age
Returns showing net income and no net income		14
Total asses classes	72-	
Years, 1926 to 1934Capital net gain. (See Net capital gain.)		39
Capital net loss. (See Net capital loss.)		
Capital stock, in corporation balance sheets:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Industrial groups and total assets classes	66-	71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-	95
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	70	14
Years, 1926 to 1934		39
Carpets, floor coverings, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged		UÐ
in manufacture of (see also Textiles and their products)		61
Cartage and storage, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see		-
also Transportation and other public utilities)		63
Cash, in corporation balance sheets:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Industrial groups	66	71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-	95
Returns showing net income and no net income	• •	14
Total assets classes	72-	
Years, 1926 to 1934		39
Cash dividends paid:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Increase, 1934 over 1933 Industrial groups 48, 50, 52, 54, 56, 58, Industrial groups and total assets classes		10
Industrial groups 48 50 52 54 56 58	66-	71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78~	95
States		47
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets		13
Total assets classes	72-	
Years, 1922 to 1934		9
Changes in tax laws affecting comparability of statistical data (Corporation income and excess-profits tax returns; Personal holding company		
returns)	10_9	12
returns)21 Chemicals and allied products, income tax returns of corporations engaged		10
in manufacture of:		
Assets and liabilities, classified	1	69
Capital assets, gross and net	16-	17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified	54	52
Consolidated returns	υ±,	31
Fiscal year returns 198.20	2. 2	กล
Gross capital assets	16-	17
Industrial subgroups		62
Net capital assets	16-	17
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-	17
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes		-7
Years, 1925 to 1934		98 98
Chemicals and allied products not separately classified (Drugs, oils,	,	00
paints, soaps, etc.), income tax returns of corporations engaged in manu-		
facture of (see also Chemicals and allied products)		62
Chemicals proper, acids, compounds, etc., income tax returns or corpora-		
tions engaged in manufacture of (see also Chemicals and allied products)	1	62
Clothing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of		0 1
(see also Textiles and their products)	1	61
tions engaged in (see also Mining and quarrying)		60
		J
1 4 9581—37—— 16		

	Fas	36
Commission, income tax returns of corporations (see also Trade)	6	34
Common stock, in corporation balance sheets:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Industrial groups	66 - 7	1
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-9) 5
Returns showing net income and no net income	10 1	14
Total assets classes	79_7	77
Years, 1926 to 1934	12-1	39
1 ears, 1920 to 1934	0.0)9
Common carrier by railroad, defined	2, 2	39
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue		
Act of 1934	4-19)4
Explanatory text	19 - 2	29
Tables	4 - 19	14
Compensation of officers, corporation income tax returns:		_
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Description of the privilege of ining consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Industrial groups 48–59,	66-7	Ĺ
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets]	3
Total assets classes	72 - 7	$^{\prime}7$
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37 - 3	38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	4	ŧŌ
Compiled deductions. (See Deductions.)	_	
Compiled net income. (See Net income.)		
Compiled net medit (a not less) as mount in income tow not upon		
Compiled net profit (or net loss), corporation income tax returns:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Industrial groups48-59.	66 - 7	1
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78 - 9)5
Industrial groups and total assets classesSubmitting and not submitting balance sheets	1	3
Total assets classes18,	72 - 7	7
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37 - 3	Ŕ
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets		ίŏ
Compiled receipts, corporation income tax returns:	-	.0
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
Comparability of data from feturis for 1994 and 1995 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	00 =	
Industrial groups 48-59,	00-7	Ţ
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-9	15
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	1	.2
Total assets classes18,	72 - 7	7
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37 - 3	8
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets		ŧ0
Consolidated returns for affiliated corporations:	_	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated actumes in the		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Common carriers by railroad		
Common carriers by railroad 1	-2, 2	9
Explanatory text	29 - 3	1
Fiscal year returns with year ended prior to December 31, 1934	3	0
Industrial groups	3	1
Limitation on privilege of filing	2	9
Net income and deficit classes	3	$\tilde{2}$
Number of consolidated returns		$\tilde{2}$
	21	
Rate of tax (note 15)		
Subsidiaries, number of	3	32
Construction, income tax returns of corporations engaged in:		
Assets and liabilities, classified	7	0
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Rev-		
enue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51,	55, 5	9
Consolidated returns	3, 3	1

Construction, income tax returns of corporations engaged in—Con.	Page
Fiscal year returns198, 20 Industrial subgroups	93, 207 63
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Total assets classes	91
Years, 1925 to 1934	99
Contributions, personal holding company returns	43
Corporation assets and liabilities. (See Assets and liabilities.) Corporation deficit:	
Assets and liabilities classified	66-71
Assets and liabilities, classified	00 11
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified	66 - 71
Consolidated returns	31, 32
Deficit classes 8,	15, 32
Deficit classes, by years	$\begin{array}{c} 37 \\ 2 \end{array}$
Excess-profits tay on returns showing deficit	5
Fiscal and part year returns	33-34
Fiscal and part year returns 7, 17, 48-59, 66-71, 7	'8-100
Industrial groups and subgroups	60-65
Industrial groups by total assets classes	78 – 95
Industrial groups by years, 1925 to 1934	6-100
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
States, by years 1925 to 1934	47 1111
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets.	13
Total assets classes 18, 72–77,	78-95
Years, 1916 to 1934	36
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37 - 40
Years, 1931 to 1934, in corporation balance sheets	39 – 40
Years, 1931 to 1934, deficit classes.	37
Corporation income: Gross:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Consolidated returns	31
Defined	2
Industrial groups	6
Industrial groups and subgroups	00–00 100
States	46-47
States)1–111
Years, 1916 to 1934	35
Net:	
Assets and liabilities14, Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	66-72
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns	
in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified	66-72
Consolidated returns	31 - 32
Defined	2
Fiscal year returns 33. 19	96-207
Industrial groups 6-7, 48-59,	66-71
Industrial groups and subgroups	60-65
Industrial groups and total assets classes Industrial groups by years, 1925 to 1934	78-95 100
Net income classes	90-100 8
Net income classes by years	$\frac{\circ}{36}$
Part year returns.	34
Personal holding company returns	$\overset{\circ}{43}$
States	46
States, by years, 1925 to 1934	
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classes18.	12-11

Corporation income—Continued.	
Net—Continued. Years, 1909 to 1934	Page
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	36
Years, 1931 to 1934, an returns.	40
Years, 1931 to 1934, net income classes	36
Cornoration income and excess-profits tax:	00
Amount and percent	5
Compared with tax collectionsComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the	3-4
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the	
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Rev-	
enue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Consolidated returns	
Consolidated returns	31 - 32
Excess-profits tax:	_
Returns showing net income	5
Returns showing no net income	5
Fiscal year returns	32−33 9
Foreign countries, paid toIndustrial groups	
Industrial groups and subgroups	60-65
Industrial groups by years, 1925 to 1934	96-100
Net income classes	8
Part year returns	$3\overset{\circ}{4}$
Rates 2	
States	46
States, by years, 1925 to 1934	01-111
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets.	13
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1909 to 1934	36
Corporation income and excess-profits tax returns (see also Corporation	
deficit; Corporation income; Corporation income and excess-profits tax):	66_77
Assets and liabilities, by industrial groups	00-77
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Changes in tax laws affecting comparability of statistical data 2	10-213
Comparison 1934 and 1933 returns 5, 19-29, 11 Compiled receipts and compiled deductions 12-13, 48-59,	14-194
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions 12-13, 48-59,	66-77
Consolidated returns	29-32
Deductions allowed life insurance companies	5
Deductions in. (See Deductions.) Dividends. (See Dividends paid and Dividends received, corporation	
income tax returns.)	
Fiscal and calendar year returns tabulated	1-2
Fiscal and calendar year returns tabulated	36- 2 07
Geographic distribution	4
Industrial classification	4
Net income and deficit classes	8
Number of:	00
Balance sheets	39
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns	
in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of the data,	
etc.)	
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns:	-
Industrial groups and returns with net income and no net	
income:	
Month in which fiscal year ended 33, 19	6-199
Net income and deficit classes 33, 20	00-204
Total assets classes20	
Industrial groups	6-7
Industrial groups and subgroups	00 - 00 001_8(
Industrial groups and subgroups	36-37
Part year returns	34
Part year returnsYears, 1926 to 1934, Receipts and deductions	37–38

Corporation income and excess-profits tax returns—Continued.	_
Returns showing net income and no net income:	Page 12-13
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	6-7
Industrial groupsIndustrial groups and subgroups	60-68
States	46
Years, net income and deficit classes	36-37 35
Years, 1909 to 1934	1-111
Years, 1925 to 1934, industrial groups 9	6-100
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classes 18, Corporation income and excess-profits tax returns for 1933:	78-95
Assets and liabilities and compiled receipts and compiled deductions,	
returns submitting balance sheets:	
Consolidated returns 146-153, 16 Returns which were not consolidated 154-161, 17	2-169
Returns which were not consolidated 154-161, 17	0-194
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions:	0.127
Consolidated returns 114-121, 13: Returns which were not consolidated 122-129, 13:	8-145
Returns which were not consolidated 122-129, 13: 'Corporation compiled net profit (or net loss). (See Compiled net profit or	
net loss.)	
Corporation compiled deductions. (See Deductions.)	
Corporation net income. (See Net income.) Corporation surplus and undivided profits. (See Surplus and undivided	
profits.)	
Corporation taxes. (See Corporation income tax; Corporation excess-	
profits tax.)	
Corporation war-profits and excess-profits taxes; Amounts, years 1917 to	9.0
1922; 1933 and 1934	36
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Defined	11
Industrial groups48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	66-71 13
Total assets classes	72 - 77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37-38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Cost of other operations, corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934 (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Data for 1933 not revised	34
Industrial groups 48-59,	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	$\frac{13}{72-77}$
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	3 7 –38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Cotton goods—Dress goods, plain cloth, etc., income tax returns of cor-	
porations engaged in manufacture of (see also Textiles and their products)	61
Credits:	01
Income and profits tax paid foreign countries, corporation income	
tax returns	9
Personal holding company returns	43
D	
Dabta had composition in come toward (See Dad dabta)	
Debts, bad; corporation income tax returns. (See Bad debts.) Debt retirement, personal holding company returns	43
Debut retriement, personal holding company returns	T U
Corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Defined	2

Deductions—Continued.	
Corporation income tax returns—Continued.	Page ·
Industrial groups 6-7, 48-59, Returns showing net income and no net income	66-71
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
States	46_47
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets Total assets classes	13
Total assets classes	72 – 77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37-38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Personal holding company returns	43
Deficit. (See Corporation deficit.)	
Depletion, corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48-59,	66-71
Reserves for	16-17
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets Total assets classes	13
Total assets classes	72 – 77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37 – 38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Depreciation, corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48–59,	66-71
Reserves for	16-17
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37–38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Discontinuance of the privilege of filing consolidated returns, except by	
railroads	$2\xi - 31$
Dividends received:	
Corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in	
the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48-59.	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets.	12
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37–38
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Personal holding company returns	43
Dividends paid:	
Corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
	10
Consolidated returns	10
Increase, 1934 over 1933	10
Industrial groups 48–59, Industrial groups and total assets classes	00-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes.	78-95
States	47
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classesYears, 1922 to 1934, cash and stock	72-77
Years, 1922 to 1934, cash and stock	9.
Personal holding company returns	43
Domestic service—Laundries, restaurants, etc., income tax returns of	0.4
corporations engaged in (see also Service)	64
TO	
${f E}$	
Electric light and power companies, income tax returns of corporations	
(see also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
Electric railways, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also Trans-	~~
montation and other public utilities	62

	D
Electrical machinery and equipment, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)Excess-profits tax. (See Corporation income and excess-profits tax.)	Page
F	
r	
Factory machinery, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	62
Farming—Cotton, grain, stock, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Agriculture and related industries)	60
Fertilizers, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Chemicals and allied products)	62
Assets and liabilities, classified	71
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	16-17
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55.	59, 71
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns 199, 2	04, 207 65
Industrial subgroupsReserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Special deduction allowed life insurance companies	5
Total assets classes	94
Years, 1925 to 1934	100
Fiscal year returns:	
Defined	32
Returns showing net income and no net income	33
Industrial groups1	
Net income and deficit classes:	00 100
Returns showing net income and no net income	33
Industrial groups 20	00-204
Total assets classes by industrial groups 20	05 –207
Food and kindred products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	
manufacture of:	0.77
Assets and liabilities, classified	67
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	16–17
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	57, 67
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns.	00, 205
Industrial subgroupsReserves for depreciation and depletion	16 17
Returns showing net income and no net income.	6-7
Total assets classes.	80-81
Years, 1925 to 1934	96
Foreign taxes, corporation income and profits taxes paid foreign countries Forest products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufac-	8-9
ture of:	co
Assets and liabilities, classifiedCapital assets, gross and net	68
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	10-17
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	57.68
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns 198, 20	
Industrial subgroups.	61
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income.	6 - 7
Total assets classes	85
Years, 1925 to 1934	97

Forestry, fishing, ice harvesting, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Agriculture and related industries) Forms, corporation income tax returns, 1120, 1120-H, 1120-L 215 Fur. (See Textiles not separately classified.) Furniture, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Forest products)	Page 60 5-231
G	
Gas companies, artificial and natural, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Transportation and other public utilities) Geographic distribution of returns defined Gross income, corporation income tax returns. (See Corporation income.) Gross receipts from other operations, corporation income tax returns: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	63 4
Industrial groups	78–95 12–13 72–77
Industrial groups	$\begin{array}{c} 78-95 \\ 2-13 \\ 72-77 \end{array}$
Hardware, tools, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)————————————————————————————————————	62
Assets and liabilities, 1926 to 1934 Compiled receipts and compiled deductions: 1926 to 1934, all returns	39 37–38
1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40 5-100 6-37 -111
Holders and lessors of mining property, income tax returns of corporations (see also Mining and quarrying)————————————————————————————————————	60
holding companies, Finance) Household machinery and equipment, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	65 62
I	
Income and profits taxes paid foreign countries, 1925 to 1934	9
profits tax.) Industrial classification, corporation income tax returns Insurance companies, life, etc., corporation income tax returns (see also Finance) Special deductions allowed life insurance companies Intercompany eliminations, corporation income tax returns Interest paid, corporation income tax returns: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	4 65 5 10

Interest paid, corporation income tax returns—Continued.	Page
Industrial groups 48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets48-59,	18
Total assets classes	72 - 77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns. Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets.	37-38 40
Interest received, corporation income tax returns:	**
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934 (See Comparability of data etc.)	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Industrial groups	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	12
Total assets classesYears, 1926 to 1934, all returns	
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Inventories, in corporation balance sheets:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups	66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	79-77
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
Investments, tax-exempt and other than tax-exempt, in corporation	
balance sheets: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups	
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	$\frac{14}{72-77}$
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
Investment trusts, stock syndicates, stock pools, holding companies,	
income tax returns of corporations (see also Finance) Iron and steel—Products of blast furnaces, rolling mills, etc., income tax	65
returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and	
its products)	62
, J	
Jewelry, precious metal products and processes, income tax returns of cor-	
porations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	63
Joint stock land banks, income tax returns of corporations (see also	0.5
Finance)	65
K	
Knit goods—Sweaters, hosiery, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Textiles and their products)	61
${f L}$	
Leather and its manufactures, corporation income tax returns:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	68
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	57, 68
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns 107, 20	1,206
Industrial subgroups	61 16–17
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Total assets classes	83-84

Lessors and holders, income tax returns of corporations. (See Agriculture and related industries; Finance; Mining and quarrying.)	
Liabilities, in corporation balance sheets: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	Page
Explanatory textIndustrial groups	13-18 66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934. Life insurance, mutual or stock companies, income tax returns of corpora-	39
tions (see also Finance)	65
Special deduction allowed	5
Limitations of privilege of filing consolidated returns, Revenue Act of	
1934	2,39
Liquors and beverages (alcoholic and nonalcoholic), income tax returns of	
corporations engaged in manufacture of: Assets and liabilities, classified	67
Capital assets, gross and net	16-17
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	E7 67
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53, Consolidated returns	37, 37
Fiscal year returns 197, 20	
Industrial subgroups	61
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income	$\frac{6-7}{81}$
Total assets classesYears, 1933 and 1934	96
Loan companies—Building and loan, mortgages, note or pawn brokers,	
insurance agents, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also	
Finance)	65
Locomotives and railroad equipment, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	62
engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	02
M	
Machinery—Building, construction, mining, etc. (see also Metal and its products)	62
Manufacturing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	67-70 $16-17$
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	10-17
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 48-51,	52-55
Consolidated returns 196–198, 200–203, 20	31 207
Industrial subgroups	60–63
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	6-7
Total assets classes	79-90
Years, 1925 to 1934	96-99
Metal building material and supplies, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Manufacturing)	62
Metal mining—Iron, copper, lead, zinc, gold, silver, etc., income tax	02
returns of corporations engaged in (see also Mining and quarrying)	60
Metal and its products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	
manufacture of:	00
Assets and liabilities, classifiedCapital assets, gross and net	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	10-11
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934 (See Comparability of data, etc.)	

Metal and its products, income tax returns, etc.—Continued.	Page
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified	
Fiscal year returns 198, 2	03, 207
Industrial subgroups	62-63
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	6-7
Total assets classes	89
Years, 1925 to 1934	99
Mill products—Bran, flour, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Food and kindred products)	60
Mining and quarrying, income tax returns of corporations engaged in:	00
Assets and liabilities, classified	66
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	16-17
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 48, 52,	56,66
Consolidated returns	00. 205
Industrial subgroups	60
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	6-7 79
Years, 1925 to 1934.	96
Years, 1925 to 1934	
gages.) Motion-picture producers, income tax returns of corporations (see also	
Service—Amusements)	64
Service—Amusements) Motion-picture theaters, income tax returns of corporations (see also	
Service—Amusements) Motor vahioles, complete or parts, income tax returns of corporations	64
Motor vehicles, complete or parts, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	62
Musical instruments, professional and scientific, etc., income tax returns	
of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Manufacturing not elsewhere classified)	63
	00
N	
National banks, income tax returns of corporations (see also Finance)	65
National Industrial Recovery Act. 20 Nature of business not given, income tax returns of corporations:	9-213
Assets and liabilities, classified	71
Capital assets, gross and net	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55,	59, 71
Consolidated returns 199, 20	31
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Total assets classes	95
Years, 1925 to 1934	100
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the	
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Rev-	
enue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	66_71
Industrial groups 48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	12
Total assets classes	72 – 78
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	37–38 40
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Corporation income tax returns:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected	
by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48–59.	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13

Net capital loss—Continued.	_
Corporation income tax returns—Continued.	Page
	72-78
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returnsYears, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	97 99
Personal holding company returns	40
Net income, corporation income tax returns. (See Corporation income.)	10
Notes and accounts payable, in corporation balance sheets:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups	66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-95
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72–78
Years, 1926 to 1934	39
Notes and accounts receivable, in corporation balance sheets:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups	66-71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-95
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72-78
Years, 1926 to 1934	39,
Number of returns. (See Corporation income and excess-profits tax	
returns and Personal holding company returns.)	
^	
0	
Olimbian of the Thrital Chales and the instance and little	00 77
Obligations of the United States and its instrumentalities14, Office equipment, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in	00-11
manufacture of (see also Metal and its products)	62 °
Oil and gas, income tax returns of corporations engaged in production of	02
(see also Mining and quarrying)	60
Other assets and liabilities, corporation income tax returns	14
Other deductions, corporation income tax returns	66 - 77
Other receipts12, 37-38, 40, 48-59,	66-77
m	
P	
Desking house and dusts. Thesh mosts home steel income toward natural of	
Packing house products—Fresh meats, hams, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Food and kindred	
	60.
Paints, pigments, varnishes, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Chemicals and allied products)	00
engaged in manufacture of (see also Chemicals and allied products)	62
Paper, pulp, and products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	-
manufacture of:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	69
Capital assets, gross and net	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	16–17 58, 69
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	16-17 58, 69 31
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	16-17 58, 69 31
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions 50, 54, Consolidated returns 198, 20 Fiscal year returns 198, 20 Returns showing net income and no net income	58, 69 31 02, 206 5-7, 62
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions 50, 54, Consolidated returns 51, 54, Consolidated returns 198, 20 Returns showing net income and no net income Reserves for depreciation and depletion 198, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion 198, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion 198, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion 198, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion 198, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion 199, 20 Reserves for depreciation 29, 20 Reserves for depreciation 29, 20 Reserves for depreciation 29, 20 Reserves for depreciation 29, 20 Reserves for depreciation 20, 20 Reserves for depreciation 20, 20, 20 Reserves for depreciation 20, 20, 20, 20, 20, 20, 20, 20, 20, 20,	58, 69 31 02, 206 5-7, 62
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 6-7, 62 16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 3-7, 62 16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 5-7, 62 16-17 86 98:
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	16-17 58, 69 31 02, 206 3-7, 62 16-17 86 98 34 41
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 3-7, 62 16-17 86 98 34 41 43
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 3-7, 62 16-17 86 98 34 41 43 43
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	16-17 58, 69 31 92, 206 3-7, 62 16-17 86 98 34 41 43 43 43
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions	58, 69 31 02, 206 3-7, 62 16-17 86 98 34 41 43 43

INDEX	247
-------	-----

Personal holding company returns—Continued. Dividends paid————————————————————————————————————	Page 43
Explanatory text	41-44
Losses from sale of capital assetsNumber of:	43
All returns showing net income and no net income. Returns with adjusted net income by adjusted net income	43
classes Receipts	$\frac{44}{43}$
Returns showing net income and no net incomeSurtax	43
Undistributed adjusted net income and no undistributed adjusted net income	43-44
Petroleum and other mineral oil refining, income tax returns of corpora-	11
tions engaged in (see also Chemicals and allied substances)	62
Pipe line companies, income tax returns of corporations (see also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
Precious metals—Products and processes, jewelry, etc., income tax returns	00
of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Metal and its	00
products)Preferred stock, in corporation balance sheets:	63
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups and total assets classes	66-71 78-05
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	72 - 77
Years, 1926 to 1934 Printing, publishing, and allied industries, income tax returns of corpora-	39
tions engaged in:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	69
Capital assets, gross and netComparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	16–17
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	* • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 50, 54, Consolidated returns	
Fiscal year returns 198, 20	02,206
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	5–7, 62 87
Years, 1925 to 1934	98
Privilege of filing consolidated returns discontinued, except by railroads	1-2
Professional service—Curative, educational, legal, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Service)	65
Public utilities. (See Transportation and other public utilities.)	00
Q	
Quarrying, income tax returns of corporations engaged in. (See Mining and quarrying.)	
R	
Dedie breedenting commonics income toy returns of commonstions (as	
Radio broadcasting companies, income tax returns of corporations (see also Transportation and other public utilities)	64
Radios, complete or parts, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Manufacturing)	63
Railroads, consolidated returns of affiliated corporations	1-2
also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
Real estate, buildings and equipment. (See Capital assets.)	- 0
Real estate and realty holding companies, etc., income tax returns of	0 =
corporations (see also Finance) Receipts, compiled, income tax returns of corporations. (See Compiled	65
receipts, corporation returns.)	
Receipts, personal holding companies	43

	Page ·
Rents paid on business property, income tax returns of corporations:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Industrial groups 48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	66-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	13
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Rents received, income tax returns of corporations:	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	00 =1
Industrial groups 48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	00-71
Submitting and not submitting balance sneets	12
Total assets classes	72-77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returns	
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	40
Restaurants, hotels, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also	0.4
Service)	64
Retail trade, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also	e A
Trade)Returns tabulated, corporation income and excess-profits tax	64
Revenue Acts of 1909 to 1934, income and excess-profits tax rates and	1
Revenue Acts of 1909 to 1934, income and excess-profits tax rates and	0 919
credits, corporation income and excess-profits tax returns21 Rubber products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manu-	.0-415
facture of:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	68
Capital assate gross and nat	16_17
Capital assets, gross and net	10-17
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	57 68
Consolidated returns.	31
Fiscal year returns 198, 20	0.206
Industrial subgroups	61
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Total assets classes	84-85
Years, 1925 to 1934	97
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
S	
Sales, gross. (See Gross sales.)	
Sawmill and planing mill products, income tax returns of corporations	
engaged in manufacture of (see also Forest products)	61
Securities, wholly and partially tax-exempt. (See Tax-exempt obligations.) Service—Domestic, professional, business, amusements, and all other,	
Service—Domestic, professional, business, amusements, and all other,	
income tax returns of corporations:	
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified	17–18
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net	17–18 16–17
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the	17–18 16–17
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Reve-	17–18 16–17
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified. Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	16–17
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55.	16-17 59, 71
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55.	16-17 59, 71
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20	16–17 59, 71 31 4, 207
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified. Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Reve- nue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified. 51, 55, Consolidated returns. 199, 20 Industrial subgroups	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Reve- nue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified. Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Reve- nue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified. 51, 55, Consolidated returns. 199, 20 Industrial subgroups. 199, 20 Industrial subgroups. Reserves for depreciation and depletion. Returns showing net income and no net income.	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Ship building and repairing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93 100
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Ship building and repairing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Construction)	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Ship building and repairing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Construction) Silk and rayon goods, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93 100
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Ship building and repairing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Construction) Silk and rayon goods, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Textiles and their products)	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93 100
income tax returns of corporations: Assets and liabilities, classified Capital assets, gross and net Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55, Consolidated returns Fiscal year returns 199, 20 Industrial subgroups Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Ship building and repairing, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Construction) Silk and rayon goods, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in	59, 71 31 4, 207 64–65 16–17 6–7 93 100

	Pag	σe
State and private banks, income tax returns of corporations (see also		
Finance). Steam railroads, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also	•	65
Transportation and other public utilities) Stock and bond brokers, investment brokers, investment banks, etc., income	(63
Stock and bond brokers, investment brokers, investment banks, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also Finance)	6	65
Stock dividends in corporation income tax returns. (See Dividends.)	•	,,,
Stock dividends paid: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by		
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Increase, 1934 over 1933	1	10
Industrial groups 48-59,		
States	4	17
Submitting and not submitting balance sheets	72-7	$\frac{13}{77}$
Years, 1922 to 1934		9
Stone, clay, and glass products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of:		
Assets and liabilities, classified		69
Capital assets, gross and net	16-1	17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	~ 0 (•
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 50, 54, Consolidated returns	58, 6	59 31
Fiscal year returns 198, 20)2, 20	$\overline{06}$
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	$^{16-1}_{3.7}$	$\frac{17}{82}$
Total assets classes	88-8	39
Years, 1926 to 1934	ę	98
Sugar—Beet, cane, maple, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged		
in manufacture of (see also Food and kindred products)	ϵ	60
Surplus and undivided profits, in corporation balance sheets: Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the		
limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the Reve-		
nue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Industrial groups.	66	71
Industrial groups and total assets classes	78-9	95
Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes]	14
Years, 1926 to 1934		39
Surtax, personal holding company returns	4	43
income and excess-profits tax returns, Personal holding company returns,		
and Life insurance company returns 2	10-21	13
T		
Tax credit. (See Credits)		
Taxes. (See Corporation income and excess-profits tax; Personal holding company returns, surtax.)		
Taxes paid other than income tax, corporation income tax returns:		
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.) Data for 1933 not revised.		
Data for 1933 not revised	66	$\frac{34}{71}$
Industrial groups 48-59, Submitting and not submitting balance sheets.		$1\overline{3}$
Total assets classes	72 - 7	77
Years, 1926 to 1934, all returnsYears, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets		38 40
Tax-exempt investments, corporation income tax returns:		,
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the		
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)		.
Industrial groups 48–59	nn-'	71

250 INDEX

Tax-exempt investments, corporation income tax returns—Continued.	Page
Returns showing net income and no net income	14
Total assets classes	
Years, 1931 to 1934, with balance sheets	39
Tax forms, 1120, 1120-L, and 1120-H, for 193421 Telephone and telegraph companies, income tax returns of corporations	7-231
(see also Transportation and other public utilities)	63
Terminal stations, toll bridges, toll roads, etc., income tax returns of cor-	o
porations (see also Finance)	64
porations (see also Finance) Textiles and their products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in	01
manufacture of:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	67
Capital assets, gross and net	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	·
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns197, 20	
Industrial subgroups	61
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	
Returns showing net income and no net income	6-7
Total assets classes	83
Years, 1925 to 1934Theaters, legitimate, vaudeville, etc., income tax returns of corporations	97
Theaters, legitimate, vaudevine, etc., income tax returns of corporations	64
(see also Service) Tires and tubes, etc., income tax returns of corporations engaged in manu-	04
facture of (see also Rubber products)	61
Tobacco products, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manu-	01
facture of:	
Assets and liabilities, classified	67
Capital assets, gross and net	
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 49, 53,	57, 67
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns 197, 20 Reserves for depreciation and depletion Returns showing net income and no net income 6	1,206
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income	-7, 01
Total assets classesYears, 1925 to 1934	82 97
Trade, income tax returns of corporations engaged in:	91
Assets and liabilities, classified	71
Capital assets, gross and net	16 - 17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55,	
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns198, 20	3, 207
Industrial subgroups	64
Reserves for depreciation and depletion	16-17
Returns showing net income and no net income.	6-7
Total assets classes	
Years, 1925 to 1934	99
tions engaged in: Assets and liabilities, classified	71
Capital assets, gross and net	16-17
Comparability of data from returns for 1934 and 1933 as affected by	TO -11
the limitation of the privilege of filing consolidated returns in the	
Revenue Act of 1934. (See Comparability of data, etc.)	
Compiled receipts and compiled deductions, classified 51, 55,	59, 71
Consolidated returns	31
Fiscal year returns 198, 20	3, 207
Industrial subgroups	63-64
	16-17

INDEX	251
Transportation and other public utilities, income tax returns, etc.—Con. Returns showing net income and no net income Total assets classes Years, 1925 to 1934 Trust companies, savings banks, etc., income tax returns of corporations (see also Finance)	Page 6-7 91-92 99
\mathbf{U}	
Undistributed adjusted net income in personal holding company returns Undivided profits, corporation income tax returns. (See Surplus and undivided profits.) W	41-43
War-profits and excess-profits tax. (See Excess-profits tax.) Water companies, income tax returns of corporations (see also Transportation and other public utilities) Water transportation, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Transportation and other public utilities)	64 63
Wholesale and retail trade, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Trade)	64
Wholesale trade, income tax returns of corporations engaged in (see also Trade)	64
Wines, beer, malt extract, etc., alcohol, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of	61
Woolen and worsted goods, income tax returns of corporations engaged in manufacture of (see also Textiles and their products)	61

STATISTICS OF INCOME SUPPLEMENT

COMPILED FROM FEDERAL INCOME TAX RETURNS OF INDIVIDUALS FOR THE INCOME YEAR 1934

Section I

NUMBER OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS FOR 1934 CLASSIFIED BY COUNTIES, AND CITIES OF 25,000 AND OVER POPULATION, BY NET INCOME CLASSES



UNITED STATES TREASURY DEPARTMENT, DIVISION OF RESEARCH AND STATISTICS, IN COOPERATION WITH THE WORKS PROGRESS ADMINISTRATION WASHINGTON, D. C., 1938

UNITED STATES
GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE
WASHINGTON: 1938

FOREWORD

This is the first section of a report covering statistical data compiled from Federal income-tax returns supplementing the regularly published report entitled "Statistics of Income." The tables included in the several sections comprising the supplemental report have been compiled from income-tax returns for 1934 of individuals, partner-

ships, and fiduciaries.

This section, designated section 1, shows the number of individual income-tax returns for 1934, classified by States, counties, and cities of 25,000 and over population by net income classes. The number of returns on Form 1040, designed for individuals with net incomes from salaries or wages of more than \$5,000 and incomes from business, professions, rents, or sale of property, is shown separately from the number of returns on Form 1040-A, designed for individuals with net incomes of not more than \$5,000 derived chiefly from salaries and wages.

This study was made possible through funds allocated to the Secretary of the Treasury by the Works Progress Administration under Official Projects 12–224, 212–6003, and 512–3-4. The work has been performed under the supervision of the Director of Research and Statistics for the Treasury, with the cooperation of the Central Statis-

tical Board and consulting experts from other agencies.

ш

CONTENTS

Text:	
Returns tabulated	
Persons required to make a return of income	
Geographic distribution	
Net income classes	
ndividual income tax returns for 1934, classified by counties, a	
cities of 25,000 and over population, showing the number of retu	rns by
net income classes—Forms 1040 and 1040-A:	•
Alabama	
Alaska	
Arizona	
Arkansas	
California	
Colorado	
Connecticut	
Delaware	
District of Columbia	
Florida	
Georgia	
Hawaii	
Idaho	
Illinois	-
Indiana	
Iowa	
Kansas	
Kentucky	
Louisiana	
Maine	
Maryland	
Massachusetts	
Michigan	
Minnesota	
Mississippi	
Missouri	
Montana	
Nebraska	
Nevada	
New Hampshire	
New Jersey	
New Mexico	
New York	
North Carolina	
North Dakota	
Ohio	
Oklahoma	-
Oregon	
Panneylvania	

VI CONTENTS

Individual income tax returns for 1934, etc.—Continued.
Rhode Island
South Carolina
South Dakota
Tennessee
Texas
Utah
Vermont
Virginia
Washington
West Virginia
Wisconsin
Wyoming
Appendix A:
Facsimiles of Individual Income Tax Returns, Forms 1040 and 1040-A,
for 1934
Appendix B:
Statement relative to the comparability of this report with "Statistics
of Income for 1934, Part 1" and mimeographed pamphlet of indi-
vidual income tax returns by counties, cities, and towns of 1,000
and over population, prepared under the direction of the Commis-
sioner of Internal Revenue by the Statistical Section, Income Tax
Unit

STATISTICS OF INCOME SUPPLEMENT FOR 1934

RETURNS TABULATED

The individual income tax returns included in the tabulations are of two types, Form 1040 and 1040-A. Form 1040 is designed for "net incomes from salaries or wages of more than \$5,000 and incomes from business, professions, rents, or sale of property." Form 1040-A is designed for "net incomes of not more than \$5,000 derived chiefly from salaries and wages." However, many taxpayers having incomes of such a nature and size as to require the use of Form 1040 have filed Form 1040-A, and vice versa. Facsimiles of these forms are shown in Appendix A (p. 111).

The income period for which the returns are filed is, in general, the calendar year ended December 31, 1934. However, there is included a negligible number of returns filed for a fiscal year ended within the period July 1934 through June 1935, the greater part of the accounting period for these returns falls in 1934. There is, also included a negligible number of part year returns for which the greater

part of the period falls in 1934.

The returns for the calendar year 1934 were filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1934 and returns for a fiscal year or part year beginning in 1933 were filed under the provisions of the Revenue Act of 1932 and the income tax provisions of the National

Industrial Recovery Act.

Income tax returns for the year 1934 which were in process of audit or other administrative action and therefore could not be made available are not included in these tabulations. The relative importance of these returns from the standpoint of net income classes and States can be appraised from the summary tables shown in Appendix B Accompanying these tables is a statement relative to the bases of other reports showing number of income tax returns.

PERSONS REQUIRED TO MAKE A RETURN OF INCOME

Instruction 21, Individual Income Tax Returns, form 1040 for 1934.

An income tax return must be filed by every citizen of the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States though not a citizen thereof, whose gross income for the taxable year 1934 amounted to \$5,000, or whose net income amounted to—
(a) \$1,000 if single or if married and not living with husband or wife;

(b) \$2,500 if married and living with husband or wife; or

(c) More than the personal exemption if status of taxpayer changed.

If an individual is single and the net income, including that of dependent minors, if any, is \$1,000 or over, or if the gross income is \$5,000 or over, a return must be filed. If the combined net income of husband and wife, and dependent minor children, if any, is \$2,500 or over, or if their combined gross income is \$5,000 or over, all such income must be reported on a joint return, or on separate returns of husband and wife. In case the husband and wife elect to file separate returns and their combined net income is \$5,000 or over, each shall make a return on Form 1040.

If the net income of a decedent to the date of his death was \$1,000 or over, if unmarried, or in excess of the credit allowed him by section 25 (b) (1) and (3) of the Revenue Act of 1934 (computed without regard to his status as the head of a family), if married and living with spouse, or if his gross income for the period was \$5,000 or over, the executor or administrator shall make a return for him on Form 1040 or 1040-A.

Income of (a) estates of decedents before final settlement, (b) trusts, whether created by will or deed, for unascertained persons or persons with contingent interests; or income held under the terms of the will or trust for future distribution, is taxed to the fiduciary as a single person, except that from the income of a decedent's estate there should be deducted any amount properly paid or credited to a beneficiary.

GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION

The allocation of returns by counties within each State is governed by (1) the county shown in the space provided therefor in the block on the return for name and address; and (2) in case the county is not shown, then on the basis of the post-office address of the taxpayer as shown on the return. The distribution by city is based on the post-office address given by the taxpayer on the return and in many cases may be other than the town or city in which the taxpayer Moreover, the data do not necessarily represent the geographic distribution of income origin as income reported by an individual in one State or county may have been derived from sources in other States or counties. It is not possible, therefore, to ascertain from income tax returns the amount of income originating in respective areas.

NET INCOME CLASSES

"Net income" means the amount of gross income as defined in the Revenue Act of 1934, in excess of the deductions, claimed by the taxpayer under the provisions of the act, and "deficit" means the excess of deductions over gross income. Credits allowed individuals are not included in deductions. Upon this net income basis the returns have been distributed by net income classes.

The amount of "net income" on which the returns are classified by size represents the amount originally reported by the taxpayer

prior to final audit by the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

The net income class designated "Under 0" in the tables means returns showing a "deficit."

ALABAMA-FORM 1040-A

		Total Net income classes (in thousands of dollars)											
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10	
1 2	Autauga Baldwin	18 51		2 6	5 13	5	2 9	3 12	<u>-</u> 5	1			
3	Barbour	46		5	71	5 8 2	9	9	6	2			
4	Bibb	15		3	3 2 6 73		2	1	3	1			
5	Blount	6		1	3	1	1						
6 7 8 9	Bullock	5 41		2	2	1 11	7	6	4	3			
7	ButlerCalhoun	267		4 18	73	42	24	51	49	8	1		
å	Chambers	83	- 1	2	27	6	12	17	13	6			
10	Cherokee	4		ī		ĭ	1		ĩ				
11	Chilton	12		2 1	1	4	2	2		1			
12	Choctaw	3			1		1						
13	Clarke	27	1	6	3	4	5	5	2	1			
14	Clay	10		<u>2</u>	5	1 3	2	1	1 5				
15 16	Cleburne Coffee	10 12		-	2	3	2	3	5				
17	Colbert	236	i	11	64	35	25	62	31	7			
18	Conecuh	17		1	3	5	3	62 2 1	3				
19	Coosa	16		1	_3	5	4	1	1	1			
20	Covington	52	1	5	12	4	4	8	10	4	4		
21	Crenshaw	6 37		1	1 7		2 5	10	6	4			
22 23	Cullman Dale	20			7	i	6	10	4	i			
24	Dallas	260		21	60	44	32	53	44	6			
24 25	DeKalb.	20			4	4	1	5	2	1			
26	Elmore	41		3 2 1	12	4	7	11	5				
27	Escambia	66			17 80	14	6	12	16 31	6	2		
26 27 28 29	Etowah	231 10	1	8 2	80	30 1	14 5	59	31	0	2		
30	Fayette Franklin	16		4	3	5		l il	3				
31	Geneva	34) ğ	l š	3	[9	6	4			
32	Greene	13		5	3	3		2					
33 34	Hale	23	1	3	5	6	3	4	;	1			
34	Henry	5		1	23		9	1 24	1	1			
35 36	Houston	104 29	<u>î</u>	4	8	17	5	8	24 2	1	-		
37	Jackson Jefferson	5, 568	13	222	1, 694	829			875	195	24	1	
37 38	Birmingham 1	4,778	13	188	1,450	721	539	959	724	162	21	1	
39	Lamar	[5		1		1	2		1				
40	Lauderdale	168		3 2	64	37	16	27	16	5			
41 42	Lawrence	40 75	1	2	14 15	9	5 9	13	18		2		
43	Lee Limestone	39	1	-	17	10			4	i	l		
44	Lowndes	14		3	i) š	3	3) ī				
45	Macon	104		3	19	35	7	13	15				
46	Madison	154		14	43				17	5	1	1	
47	Marengo	40		2	12		4	6	3				
48 49	Marion Marshall	25			7		3		5				
50	Mobile	1, 522	4	63	523	267	152		222	42			
51	Mobile	1,406	4	55	480	248	143	229	205	37	5		
52	Monroe	30		3		4	4	8	4		1		
53	Montgomery	1,273	1	48		185	151 148		210 191			1	
54 55	Montgomery Morgan	1, 193 179	1	46	61	178 34	21	33	191			1	
56	Perry	41	 -	í	19				3	ĺ			
57	Pickens	16		î	4	4		5	2				
58	Pike	71		2	22	13	8	5 17	6	2	1		
59	Randolph	8		1	2	1	2	2			\		
60	Russell	28 30	2	2	8 9	7	4	2	3	2			
61 62	Saint Clair Shelby.	46		2 2 5	8				9	í			
63	Sumter	33		1 2	9			4	3				
64	Talladega	147		10	47	21	18	16	27	8			
65	Tallapoosa	47			11	12	4	9	8			J	
66	Tuscaloosa	373	4	12	106			69	56	10	4		
67	Walker	113		7	33				19		1		
68 69	Washington Wilcox	9 22	j	2	5	3	1	1 7	4		'		
70	Winston	22		l ⁻			2	2	3	2	1		
70 71	Residents of other States	272		16	72	41	39	36	54		2		
	and nonresident aliens.	1		1	1			ŀ					
72	Total Alabama	12, 353	32	569	3, 660	1, 973	1, 377	2, 346	1, 900	432	61	3	
12	i otai Alaballia	12, 600	32	509	3,000	1, 5/3	1,077	2, 540	1,000	402	1	"	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

counties and by cities of $25{,}000$ and over population, showing the number of income classes

ALABAMA-FORM 1040

Total num-				Net in	come e	lasses (ir	thouse	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	No.
ber of re- turns 40 1022 80 0253 54 166 33 144 141 111 1246 1388 88 7 27 80 30 333 349 511 82 265 377 163 484 444 112 57 724 50 283 372 12 12 13 22 1, 206	0 11 8 22 3 3 5 14 77 3 3 3 2 4 4 13 3 3 20 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 20 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 5 180 150 150	4 12 111 10 2 2 8 8 7 7 266 4 1 1 1 6 6 2 2 2 2 1 1 4 6 6 5 5 1 1 9 9 3 3 307 7 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	3 3 10 7 7 2 2 18 8 5 5 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 3 30 4 4 6 6 6 6 2 6 2 5 5 3 3 3 2 5 5 3 3 3 11 5 5 3 3 3 11 6 6 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	1.5-2 9 11: 16 24 22 23 33 31 12 25 15 15 15 15 11 28 8 29 9 3 27 55 4 4 4 32 31 1 21 21 6 11 11 22 6 11 11 22 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 7 7 7 7 7 8	37-10 7-33 1-22-1-33 1-22-1-33 1-22-1-33 1-33 1	2.5-3 5 15 7 10 31 2 10 31 5 5 5 2 16 19 6 19 6 5 14 4 4 5 7 7 7 2 2 13 6 337 7 277 14 4 14 112 103 2 105	3-4 4 19 9 9 9 12 3 3 7 7 12 3 3 16 6 6 11 1 18 9 14 3 3 47 1 10 1 12 1 17 4 2 6 6 8 9 9 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	33 10 23 55 55 27 11 23 10 66 61 33 33 77 22 36 60 77 30 37 55 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57 57	5 16 4 4 3 5 5 8 26 6 6 2 13 36 6 2 2 36 33 3 3 3 3 3 17 3 3 5 5 8 6 6 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 6 6 6 6 6 2 7 7 7 8 7 8 8 9 8 9 9 1 9 1 1 7 7 8 8 9 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1 8 1	7-10 2 1 3 5 6 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 2 6 6 2 2 1 1 1 6 2 2 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 2 2 2 3 2 3 2 3 2 3 1 1 0 9 9 1 1 4	1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 0 11 1 12 2 13 14 1 15 16 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 32 24 25 27 28 9 29 30 3 1 3 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4
860 160 34 89 28 40 27 46 40 141 263 142 23 24 84	13 8 8 1 3 70 65 5 5 32 30 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 5 5 4 4 4 4 2 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	84 14 13 4 9 2 7 1 11 15 17 1 25 17	13 2 6	17 92 28 4 33 5 6 12 3 25 16 3 4	81 30 84 55 56 44 77 46 266 3 25 166 4 5	1000 200 8 4 8 3 3 5 6 6 7 15 1 1 3 3 19 3 4 6	125 22 100 6 14 3 7 7 7 5 9 22 22 10 50 11 4 4 2	78 11 3 4 8 8 4 2 2 1 11 11 11 11 11 4 4 12	966 122 33 312 35 51 4 4 111 9 222 19 22 19	63 6 2 1 1 2 1 5 5 5 11 12 2 2 2	59 3 1 7 2 2 1 1 1 5 2 15 3	1 1 1 2 2	51 52 53 54 555 56 57 58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65 66 67 68
10, 195	592	1, 013	861	947	1,090	1, 103	1, 534	874	1,086	569	458	68	72

ALASKA-FORM 1040-A

Line No.	County and city	Total	Net income classes (in thousands of dollars)										
		ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	
1	Alaska	1, 786		2	577	547	280	158	141	65	16		
2	Total Alaska	1, 786		2	577	547	280	158	141	65	16		

ARIZONA-FORM 1040-A

						_						
1	Apache	64		1	27	10	6	12	8	 		
2	Cochise	408	1	17	145	76	42	60		7	1	
3	Coconino	271		13	96	67	20	43	30	2		
4	Gila	183		6	61	44	18	26	22	6		
5	Graham	42		1	13	6	3	6	10	3		
6	Greenlee	23		3	6	7	4		2	1		
7	Maricopa	2, 116	4	83	723	350	260	350		57	2	
8	Phoenix	1,826	3	65	631	308	225	302		50	1	
9	Mohave	117		4	45	26	4	16		4		
10	Navajo	365	1	8	95	65	74	81	37	4		
11	Pima	941	3	32	319	222	98	165		21		
12	Tueson	852	2	31	283	206	86	151	72	21		
13	Pinal	247		7	94	66	26	20	31	3		
14	Santa Cruz	87	1	9)	23	23	12	12				
15	Yavapai	454	5	25	172	98	42	64	37	11		
16	Yuma	229		8	88	51	20	33	23	5	1	
17	Residents of other States	131	1	8	41	24	10	18	17	11	1	
	and nonresident aliens.								!			
18	Total, Arizona	5, 678	16	225	1,948	1, 135	639	906	669	135	5	
- 1					- 1				ļ .	1	l	1 1

ARKANSAS-FORM 1040-A

				CJAN,	- 0							
1	Arkansas	135		13	44	22	11	22	21		9	
2	Ashley	49		13	7	10	6	11	9		4	
3				Ð					9	1		
	Baxter	32		[<u>-</u>	1	7	18	5	1	;		
4	Benton	61		1	14	18	2	11	11	4		
5	Boone	37		6	8	6	2	9	5	Ī		
6	Bradley.	37			8	5	12	7	3	z		
7	Calhoun	4			1	2	1					
8	Carroll	15			5	1	3	5	1			
9	Chicot	56		3	16	2	15	9	7	4		
10	Clark	60	2	8	6	11	14	13	5	1		
11	Clay	18]	7	5	2	2		1.			
12	Cleburne	8		1	1		3	1	2			
13	Cleveland	5		1			2	2				
14	Columbia	14		1	7		1	3	2			
15	Conway	32	1		7	8	3	8	5			i
16	Craighead.	162		6	34	16	32	30	32	10	2	
17	Crawford	82		2	7	24	19	25	5			
18	Crittenden	63	1	4	12	22	6	8	8	2		
19	Cross.	51		6	11	6		19	8			1
20	Dallas	27		5	8	5	2			3	1	
21	Desha	84	i	٠ 7	ğ	14	13		17			
22	Drew.	23	_	1 4	3	3	ı	3	8		ī	
23	Faulkner	64		3	13	7	12		9	3	1	
24	Franklin	13		ľ	5	•	1 2	2	ĭ	2		
25	Fulton	5			ľ	4	_	"	-	-	٠ -	
26	Garland	265		23	67	45	45	40	29	12		
20 27	~ .	203	٠,	1 1	2	4.0	1 *0	1	29			
28		98		8	31	21	14	13	10		٠.	
28 29	Greene			4	16			137	8			
29	riempstead	54		4		8	4 7		2	1		
30	Hot Springs	31		3	4	8		7	10			
31	Howard	42		2		4	2 7	7		1	1 1	
32	Independence	49		5	8	7	7	14	8			
33	Izard	3			2			1 1				
34	Jackson	57		2		7	8	13	9		1	
35	Jefferson	494	6			70	72	108	66	14		
36	Johnson	31	l	2				7	7	1		
37	Lafayette	17	1		2	7	2		3			
38	Lawrence	37		5	16	8	2	4	2			
39	Lee	24		i	7	6	5	2	1	1	. 1	
40	Linceln	14		Ī		ĭ	ĺi	3	2	l	l	
41	Little River	l îõ			5	 _	1		4			
42	Logan	$\hat{23}$		2	7	3	1 2	6	3		1]
43	Lonoke	49	2	6	l 11	3 5	2 7	4	5	8	1	
		10			. 11.		•	*	·	٥		

ALASKA-FORM 1040

				27.4		SKA-F		1040					
Total num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
647	38	95	77	62	56	65	83	45	68	28	28	2	1
647	38	95	77	62	56	65	83	45	68	28	28	2	2
					ARIZO	NA-F	ORM	1040		··		-	
53 453 232 251 90 34 2, 601 2, 078 100 201 1, 022 960 197 129 460 199 92	8 34 15 29 5 160 6 6 6 91 184 14 16 50 19 8	5 78 30 36 8 4 277 209 110 103 28 22 555 31	55 58 15 29 8 2 255 196 12 21 113 108 17 17 56 26 14	9 69 22 33 12 273 212 17 41 99 97 19 18 59 26	3 41 23 16 14 8 301 252 20 27 123 113 24 7 43 22 5	7 51 45 20 10 4 265 199 9 23 120 112 23 10 44 21 6	5 56 34 44 14 363 122 26 161 154 23 20 76 26	6 26 222 24 8 8 267 232 2 10 97 19 6 27 10 5	3 27 14 9 8 2 177 143 5 16 63 53 20 12 35 10	2 9 7 4 3 3 1 67 62 21 17 7 7 10 4	33 4 7 54 47 2 22 20 3 3 5 4 4	1 1 1 4 4 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
6, 114	516	737	648	712	677	658	962	531	414	143	108	8	18
				A	RKAN	ISAS—	FORM	1040					
151 45 9 9 72 20 41 1 7 20 6 6 6 6 8 43 48 190 35 104 73 27 79 34 4 80 43 27 42 2 70 296 5 54 80 43 32 77 42 2 70 296 32 31 31 43 86 19 14 28 86 88	15 5 3 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 2 17 13 6 6 6 6 2 2 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	24 44 12 24 42 25 58 99 16 47 77 33 39 15 15 77 33 44 41 41 41 41 41 41 41 41 41 41 41 41	222 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	21 6 9 12 14 4 6 8 8 8 7 7 20 21 31 5 1 1 5 1 3 5 1 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	14 5 8 4 3 1 1 10 9 2 7 7 6 6 22 7 7 3 8 8 10 4 4 1 23 4 5 7 7 7 2 2 2 3 3 8 4 3 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	16 6 1 1 9 3 8 8 4 5 7 6 6 21 6 6 5 7 7 9 4 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	18 66 11 66 67 17 65 13 13 15 16 18 19 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	9 33 4 77 46 1 17 21 17 17 27 12 77 12 77 27 12 77 27 12 33 25 55	6 22 4 4 3 4 4 2 2 12 12 14 1 7 7 5 3 3 1 1 8 5 1 1 18 5 1 1 18 5 1 1 1 18 5 1 1 1 1	2 33 33 32 1 1 2 1 1 10 2 6 2 2 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	3 2 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 2 2 4 4 4 4 1 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1

ARKANSAS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

				N	et inco	me ele	sses (in	thous	ands M	dollar	e)	i
		Total					3303 (11	· · · · · · ·		donai		
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 111 122 133 14 15 16 17 18 19 20	Madison	5 6 199 132 155 34 18 17 2 128 202 13 64 23 64 23 27,70 2,429	2 2 1 1 1	2 2 5 5 5 14 4 3 3 10 13 4 2 4 121 113 1 11	24 41 59 35 41 7 1 3 2 2 2 10 5 4 7 7 7 6 80	35 23 18 5 5 20 20 20 11 13 1 18 8 8 434 366	1 20 144 233 22 5 77 224 3 3 6 3 3 144 13 384 327 1	34 24 27 5 4 2 24 33 2 7 6 8 8 5 524 442	32 20 19 4 2 12 27 5 11 3 439 439 394	1 9 6 12 2 2 8 6 4	2 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 2	1
21 22 23	Saint Francis Saline Scott	86 46 10	2	5	16 12 2	18 7 1	16 5 2	11 12	15 4 2	3 5	1	
24 25 26 27 28 29	Searcy Sebastian Fort Smith Sevier Sharp Stone	3 556 537 30 9		18 18 4	1 168 157 6 6	101 99 3 2	59 59 4	1 103 99 9	1 88 87 4	19 18		
30	Union	391	4	18	128	75	40	54	62	9		1
31 32 33 34 35 36	Van Buren. Washington. White Woodruff. Yell. Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	189 63 31 15 146	1 1 2	10 3 7	35 9 9 3 32	42 12 2 5 26	5 4	42 17 1 2 25	22 5 7 1 21	13 1 13	i 3	1
_37	Total Arkansas	7, 764	48	453	1, 997	1, 303	1,080	1,432	1, 127	276	41	7

CALIFORNIA-FORM 1040-A

1	Alameda	19, 130	30	602	6, 384	3, 522	2,009	3,003	2, 726	750	100	4
2	Alameda	1, 803	5	50		320	185	305	269	72	10	1
3	Berkeley	4, 427	5	139		722	445	734	769	240		1
4	Berkeley Oakland 1	11, 190		351		2, 155				369		3
5	Alnine	11, 100	10	001	5	2, 100	1, 200	1,000	3	000	02	
6	Alpine Amador	146	1	10	65	32	12	12	12			
7	Butte	444		23	135	102	40	64	54	13	5	
8	Calaveras			4	51	18	9	10	7	10	0	
ရှိ	Colusa			12		24	10	14	18	3	1	
10	Contra Costa	2, 925		80	1, 343	661	191	313	268	52	11	- 2
11	Del Norte	2, 923	Y	2	1, 545	7	191	313	200	1	11	
12	Eldorado	120	2	7	47	29	7	10	15	6	1	
13				50	747	404		331	290	91	14	
	Fresno	2, 141		30 42	558		$\frac{211}{172}$	$\frac{531}{272}$			$\frac{14}{12}$	
14			;			286			239	71	12	
15	Glenn	88		11	20	25	13	11	6	. 1		
16	Humboldt	596		14	221	151	50	75	65	17	3	
17	Imperial	413		10	140	79	37	62	69	12	2	
18	Inyo.	146		5	48	36	22	16	16	_2		
19	Kern	1,850	2	36		499		333		58		1]
20	Bakersfield			24		220	103	198	150	29	3	1
21	Kings	383		16			29	41	44	7	4	
22	Lake			5	15	5	8	4	5	. 2	1	
23	Lassen	249		4	123	52	21	17	23	6	3	
24	Los Angeles	59, 127	192	2, 597	20,655						326	14
25	Alhambra	903		34		140	104	185		29	2	1
26	Glendale	2,045	8	74	520	254	220	413	437	109	9	1
27	Long Beach 1	2, 528	8	104	902	502	216	382	317	85	12	
28	Los Angeles 1	40, 156		1, 766	14, 785					1, 413		11
29	Pasadena	2,709	14	142			276		365	110		
30	Santa Monica	819		43			73	125				
31	Madera			3				20	18			
32	Marin	1,644		7Ĭ								2
J		, 011			. 100	. 010						

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

ARKANSAS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net ii	acome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				T
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
4			1	1		1	<u>ī</u>		1				1
170 143 325 62	13 11 17 8	20 17 22 10	10 7 27 11	17 13 25 4	12 8 24 6	15 14 40 5	28 22 66	16 15 30 5	18 16 23 4	10 9 27	8 8 24	3 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
3 47 3	4	1	2	1 2	<u>4</u>	6	12 1	2	6 2		1		7 8
93 2	9	6	11	8	9	11 1	11	7	11	6	3	i	10
211 8	12	22	14	13 2	24 1	17	34 1	22	29	18 2	6		12
100 27	2		1 8 2 3	14 7	16 1	7 4	19 4	9 2	6 2	5	4		14 15
30	4	3	3 1	4	4	7 3	4	5 1	í	2	2		16 17
26 1, 263 1, 156 12	76 68	126 114	99 88	103 88 4	143 128	110 95 1	181 168 2	112 107	149 139 2	103 101	51 50	10 10	18 19 20
135 21 11	2 2 4 3 76 68 1 8 2	17 1	15 7	11	20 2 2	14 4 1	16 2 3	12 1	10 2	5	6	1	21
1 483	22	38	46	35	46	55	1 60	48	56	38	36	3	24 25
445 30 2	20	30 4	42	30 4	45 4	54 6	59 6 2		55	35	31	2	22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
290	9	20	27	26	39	36	54	28	22	15	12	<u>2</u>	29 30 31
5 106 62	1 5	7	1 5 7	7	14	19	$\begin{smallmatrix}2\\22\\7\end{smallmatrix}$	$\frac{11}{2}$	1 9 3	5	2		31 32
74 10	5 8 3 2	14 1	5	6 7	8 8 2	6 7 3	10 1		9 1	4 1	Ī		32 33 34 35
54	9	10	2	5	6	5	4	3	6	1	3		36
6, 187	421	683	576	563	663	665	926	522	568	330	235	35	37

CALIFORNIA-FORM 1040

ī														
ł	11,554	753	1, 177	1,040	1,032	1, 105	1,062	1,739	1, 332	1,406	524	319	65	1
1	833	44	77	69	77	87	77	115	104	107	38	35		1 2 3 4 5
-1	2, 984 6, 200	159	274	223	258	242	291	476	369	424	168	90	10	3
1	6, 200	438	682	625	569	638	576	945	652	684	225	137	29	4
ı	16		1	. 2	1)	2	4	.1	1		1	3		
1	119	12	15	14	5	$1\overline{2}$	15	11	13	12	6	3	(1	6 7
ı	652	65	111	63	59	55	66	99	43	57	21	10	3	(
ŀ	99	12	13	11	14	6 36	9 20	16 35	$\frac{3}{27}$	9 19	21 3 7	1	2	8 9
1	265	26 86 5	33	18	31				95		· · · · ·	13 20	2	10
1	1, 026 75	80	126	110	102 7	125	108 10	143	99	85	24 3	3	2	10 11
1	231	13	9 30	11 20	26	26	24	$\frac{11}{32}$	8 22	4 15		9		12
1		196	279	195	231	251	258	359	237	231	14 117	52		12
1	2, 411 1, 735	126	185	118	157	179	189	271	180	185	98	45	5 2	13 14
1	1,735 210	126	28	23	187	22	189	18	22	26	13	2] 4	15
1	606	39	110	73	56	72	61	89	45	42	9	9		10
1	000	39 95	82	70	75	80	64	79	70	63	15	12	4	17
1	715 146	95	82 28	76	16	19	15	22	10	03	2	12	4	10
1	1, 617	13 77		14 138	165	171	188	280	155	161	70	47	6	15 16 17 18 19
1	944	39	159 82		97	90		162	103	87	55	34	5	20
1	451	39 28	62 44	76 42	31	48	114 45	74	46	48	25	15	5	
1	137	18	13	14	10	20	16	20	11	8	3	3	1 1	99
1	145	15		10	17	20	17	12	19	13	8	9	i *i	22
-	59 044	4, 546	16 6, 472		5, 204	15	5, 425	8, 090	5, 671	6, 351	2, 898	2,609	652	21 22 23 24 25 26 27
1	58, 944 675	4, 340	62	5, 408 81	5, 2041	5, 618 87	67	97	67	52	2, 090	2,005	0.02	25
		121	184	131	180	176	190	286	204	192	49	27	2 4 17	20
1	1,754 $3,263$	298	417	357	313	328	328	471	270	280	109	37 75	17	20
1	34, 003	2,694	3, 768		2, 938	3, 169	3, 010	4, 623	3, 282	3, 775	1, 693	1, 542	390	28
1	3, 627	2, 094	347	3, 119 307	2, 938	294	339	506	372	400	234	213	53	20
1	1, 106	114	135	111	125	129	100	120	103	89	47	32	33	29 30
1	222	18	44	22	22	26	29	31	12	11	6	1		31
1	1, 050	71	120	95	79	97	103	175	113	110	47	31	9	31 32
ı	1,000	411	120	901	191	971	103	170	119	110	4/1	91	יש	04

CALIFORNIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (i	thous	sands o	f dolla	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1	Mariposa	106		1 9	38 63	27	15	13	8	3	1	
2	Mendocino	158 397	1	40	143	35 82	16 42	17	12	5 7		
3 4	Merced	91	5	7	28	22	13	51 13	31	- 1	1	
5	Modoc Mono	19	9	3	8	22	10	$\frac{13}{2}$	3	2		
6	Monterey	968	2	68	330	199	100	105	114	42	8	
7	Napa	331	3	14	137	73	42	38	119	5	0	
8	Nevada	570	Ĭ	ĺií	246	180	51	44	26	9	2	
9	Orange	1.008	$\hat{2}$	46	352	184	100	150	136	31	5	2
10	Santa Ana	304	Ī	-š	129	43	26	39	45	12	ĭ	
ii	Placer	494	3	22	173	94	76	78	35	12	1	
12	Plumas	158	2	8	47	30	31	21	14	3	2	
13	Riverside	1,030	5	54	329	207	103	155	134	38	5	
14	Riverside	560	2	29	186	110	49	83	76	23	2	
15	Sacramento	3,603	10	141	1, 239	775	375	505	440	95	23	
16	Sacramento	3, 354	9	118	1, 158	703	348	481	423	93	21	
17	San Benito	94	1	13	34	15	11	10	9	1		
18	San Bernardino	1,889	9	65	619	362 82	224 54	338	221	42	9	
19	San Bernardino	522 3, 917	13	16 152	166 1, 291	713	372	102 632	83	14	20	;
20 21	San Diego 1	3, 917	5	93	1, 291	574	284	499	609 469	114 84	120	i
22	San Francisco	38, 669	67		15, 021	8, 313	4, 040	4, 314	4, 197	1, 257	171	3
23	San Francisco 1	38, 669	67	1 286	15, 021	8, 313	4,040	4, 314	4, 197	1, 257	171	3
24	San Joaquin	1, 910	ı "i	84	679	406	201	261	217	52	1 1 9	ľ
25	Stockton	1, 450		53	522	315	136	204	171	43	6	
26	San Luis Obispo	388	1	24	127	90	41	57	43	3	Ĭž	
27	San Mateo	3, 317	3	128	946	476	319	548	680	183	34	
28	Santa Barbara	1, 484	2	62	580	334	142	157	168	36	2	1
29	Santa Barbara	1, 114	2	37	431	251	111	117	133	30	2	
30	Santa Clara	3, 202	7	161	1,067	593	366	435	439	115	19	
31	San Jose	1, 537		69	551	292	187	212	182	36	8	
32	Santa Cruz	634 185	2 1	43	218 76	119 45	73 15	86 21	80	7	6	
33 34	ShastaSierra	185 83	1 1	7	19	29	14	21	16 14	1		i
35	Siskiyou	434	i	11	198	80	34	55	43	8	4	
36	Solano	1, 486	î	31	588	364	149	179	140	30	4	
37	Sonoma	823	7	71	292	186	91	90	72	12	ĺ i	1
38	Stanislaus	574		41	222	103	67	62	63	13	3	
39	Sutter	97	1	4	31	24	11	17	7	2		
40	Tehama	125		8	36	27	18	17	16	2	1	
41	Trinity	54	1	. 1	26	11	. 7	4	4			
42	Tulare	541	4	41	168	96	57	81	76	14	4	
43 44	Tuolumne Ventura	147 768	$\frac{1}{2}$	10 35	48 238	43 156	19 61	13 114	126	5 35	1	
45	Yolo	243	3	25	67	47	23	42	126 28	55 5	2	1
46	Yuba	243 238	1	20	79	56	26 26	28	20	6	$\frac{2}{2}$	
47	Residents of other States	3, 954	8	171	1,019	677	507	695	693	162	20	2
•	and nonresident aliens.	0,001	Ĭ		1, 020		551	550	000	-92	-~	· 1
40		163, 990	428	G 491	57 049	32,095	17 096	99 970	91 900	5, 645	852	35
48	Total Camornia.	100, 990	4.28	0,481	07, 948	oz, 095	17,020	22, 212	21, 208	0, 045	652	35

COLORADO--FORM 1040-A

												,
1	Adams	68		3	24	12	3	13	12	1		
2	Alamosa	68		4	22 77	14	12	9	6	1		
3	Arapahoe	170		[7]	77	25	15	24	16	4	2	
4	Archuleta	3			1	1		1				1
5	Baca	11	1	2	2	1.	1	2	1		1	
6	Bent	74		3	23	28	6	5	7	2		
7	Boulder	309		38	97	49	27	50	37	7	1	
8	Chaffee	108		8	33	25	24	13	5			
9	Cheyenne	6	2	1		2		1				
10	Clear Creek	36		6	15	5	4	4	2			
11	Conejos	17		2	3	2	5	3	2			
12	Costilla	7		1	1	2		1	2			
13	Crowley	18		4	2	2	4		5	1		
14	Custer	6		2		1	2		1			
15	Delta	65		5	20	8	7	10	11	4		
16	Denver	9, 397	25	529					1, 209			
17	Denver 1	9, 397	25	529	3, 330	1, 465	1, 057	1, 477	1, 209	271	34	[
18	Dolores			1	4		3					
19	Douglas	40		3	21	6	3	4	1	1		1
20	Eagle	68		4	35	6	6	9	4	4		
21	Elbert	8		1	1	1	2	2	. 1			
22 23	El Paso	895	2	82	308	164		109	99	24	3	
23	Colorado Springs	804	2	73	270	147	95	97	95	22	' 3	' '

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

CALIFORNIA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Ne	t incom	e classes	(in tho	usands	of dollar	rs)			
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
57 301 623 81 20	5 35 54 10 2	8 48 79 10 2	2	5 33 74 8	11 37 52 12	4 34 85 7 5	4 38 99 12 4	3 18 25 8	9 19 41 5	2 3 14 2	2 16 1	1	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1, 579 450 239 3, 171 1, 069 424	121 41 12 194 73 40	166 44 32 314 91 62	51 19 287 105 39	163 64 25 307 102 48 8	155 50 18 376 111 55	165 41 28 365 119 43	214 67 35 532 194 53 11	157 38 19 309 108 47 5	147 39 22 302 112 19	76 11 11 117 35 8	58 4 15 58 18 9	14 3 10 1	6 7 8 9 10 11 12
91 1, 472 746 2, 978 2, 564 224 2, 092	15 128 60 256 219 21 257	13 175 77 386 301 35 255	171 74 304 258 20 193	151 75 303 261 25 217	160 63 308 272 34 239	156 83 315 280 27 244	182 101 378 332 25 254	127 74 286 246 17 186	116 72 261 235 10 158	48 32 107 95 6 57	50 33 65 58 3 26	8 2 9 7 1 6	13 14 15 16 17
547 4, 223 2, 913 25, 533 25, 533 2, 247	66 364 247 1, 747 1, 747 188	67 453 302 2, 821 2, 821 245	43 451 285 2, 149 2, 149 244	49 388 254 2, 115 2, 115 271	57 474 309 2, 155 2, 155 239	75 427 298 2, 039 2, 039 2, 039	81 637 473 3, 421 3, 421 327	41 371 283 2, 601 2, 601 205	49 369 263 3, 044 3, 044 172	14 139 104 1, 500 1, 500	5 127 77 1, 499 1, 499 49	23 18 442 442 7	19 20 21 22 23 24
1, 535 512 2, 323 1, 995 1, 316 3, 850	132 58 113 146 91 308	160 57 180 208 119 489	151 84 181 191 112 363	184 53 176 172 114 356	162 54 173 213 135 397	150 47 217 199 120 385	233 71 350 282 189 564	136 32 300 168 116 338	120 33 362 173 133 347	59 16 144 102 64 155	41 7 101 118 103 129	7 26 23 20 19	25 26 27 28 29 30
1, 934 902 225 53 294 721	148 60 19 4 33 66	251 105 23 12 40 75	209 83 26 5 35 80	192 113 23 2 36 77	202 97 27 3 38 101	205 83 25 6 35 75	288 133 31 4 24 114	157 72 25 7 26 35	140 93 17 5 21 56	69 35 3 3 5 28	68 27 6 2 1 9	5	31 32 33 34 35 36
1, 348 1, 111 258 196 23 1, 271	134 71 25 23 100 9	216 124 34 20 1 161 18	158 127 25 22 5 118	161 114 30 25 6 128	168 141 25 13 3 163 18	120 128 21 21 2 117	192 177 29 29 2 197	81 86 20 15 2 114 8	70 88 23 22 1 101	29 30 18 2 54	16 24 7 4 1	3 1 1 2	37 38 39 40 41 42 43
1, 407 509 315 719	101 57 29 69	173 66 34 85	118 45 30 58	144 48 30 48	135 54 38 56	125 46 28 48	215 53 48 82	135 58 26 59	133 43 35 83	60 27 12 60	58 11 3 54	10 1 2 17	44 45 46 47
144, 662	11, 022	16, 179	13, 384	13, 168	14, 114	13, 523	20, 249	13, 984	15, 128	6, 776	5, 742	1, 393	48

COL	ΩÐ	A DA	-FORM	1040

$\frac{72}{109}$	4	13	7	8	8 17	8	14 14 9	4		1		
109	8	16 20	13 9	11 14	17	17	14	6	7			
116 22 21 71 457	14 5	20	9		13	10 2 5 12	9	6	9	8	1	3
22	5	3	4 2 5 90	4		2	1	1	2			
21	1	4	[2]	2 8	2 6	5	4		1			
.71	10 24	10	5	8	6	12	11	5 32	4			
457	24	55	90	12 15	51	41	11 72 14	32	41	24	13	2
103	4	10	14	15	14	13 2	14	9	1 3		3	
10 32 33 12 25 20 94 7, 390 7, 390	2	2		2		2			1			
32	2	3	5	6	4	1	5	4	1		[i	
33	2	7	6	2	1	4	6	3	1		1	
12	1	3	3		1	1	2		1			
25	2	10		2	4	2	3	1	1			
20	3	6.		7		1	3					
94	8 285 285	18	10	12	12 703	14	12 978	4	3	1		25
7, 390	285	784	643	617	703	667	9/8	655	903	518	538	99 99
7, 390	285	784	643	617	703	667	978	655	903	518	538	99(
3	;	1					1		1			
22	1	4	5 12	5	4	3				<u>-</u>		
95	6	10	12	8	10	9	16	6	8	2	2	
22 95 13 1, 210 1, 121	55 51	16 3 141 126	123	105	$\frac{1}{125}$	110	150			<u>-</u> -		
1, 210	95	141	123	105	125	113		97	142	74	58 57	24 24
1, 121	91,	126	114	94	110	107	144	94	129	71	57	241

1258—38——2

Individual income tax returns for 1934, Forms 1040–A, and 1040, classified by returns by net income COLORADO-FORM 1040-A-Continued

Termont													
No. Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns Country and city Per of turns	Line		num-	 	N	et inco	me cla	sses (ir	thous	ands o	f dollar	:s)	
Control Cont		County and city	re-	der	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
Control Cont	1	Fremont	92	1	12	40	12	8	12	6	1		
Signar	2												
Grand													
S Gunnison	4						1 3	3	1	2			
6 Hinsdale 1 1 1 1 1 2 10 6 13 8 8 Jackson 10 2 3 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <t< td=""><td>5</td><td>Gunnison</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>18</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></t<>	5	Gunnison		1	18								
Huerfano													
9		Huerfano	69	1		26	10	6	13	8			
10 Kiowa	8	Jackson											
Till Kit Carson 122	9						40	25	40		2		
12		Kiowa									1	1	
Table Tabl		Kit Carson											
14 Larimer 178 11 54 33 22 32 19 5 2 15 Las Animas 234 18 59 38 32 59 24 4													
15				2									
16		Larimer						22				2	
Total Column			234										
18											1		
19			966										
Moffat								11	31			1	
Montezuma		Moffat						2	1		1	3	
22		Montagiima	33									"	
Norman					7					7			
24 Otero 197 1 16 50 19 30 59 14 6 2 25 Ouray 24 1 9 4 6 4 3 2				1							4	1	
25 Ouray		Otero		1	16	50	19	30		14	6		
Phillips	25	Ouray			1	9		6					
28 Pitkin 10 3 3 2 1 1 1 29 Prowers 51 3 15 7 9 7 9 1		Park	53		5	20		4	3	2			
Provers													
The bload Section Se													
Pueblo		Prowers	51										
Rio Blaneo			859										
33 Rio Grande									148		9	3	
31 Routt 68 10 26 13 1 10 8 35 Saguache 15 5 5 2 1 2		Dio Granda											
Saguache				0							1		
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$								1					
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$					9			3		3		ļ	
Second Second													
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		Sedgwick		1					6		1	1	
40 Teller 134 7 66 25 12 8 11 5 41 Washington 9 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 42 Weld 274 3 27 82 47 48 27 30 8 2 43 Yuma 9 2 1 1 3 1 1 44 Residents of other States and nonresident aliens 210 6 29 42 41 25 26 32 9					1							l	
42 Weld. 274 3 27 82 47 48 27 30 8 2 43 Yuma 9 2 1 1 3 1 1 44 Residents of other States and nonresident aliens. 210 6 29 42 41 25 26 32 9		Teller	134		7	66		12			5		
42 Weld		Washington											
Residents of other States and nonresident aliens. 210 6 29 42 41 25 26 32 9		Weld		3							8	2	
and nonresident aliens. 210 6 29 42 41 25 26 32 9			9		2	j 1	1	3	1	1			
	44	Residents of other States		1 .	000	46	_ ر	0.5	000	000		1 -	
45 Total Colorado 15 366 56 1 047 5 347 2 495 1 781 2 359 1 833 389 58		and nonresident aliens.	210							32	9		
10 1 10 10 10 10 10 10	_45	Total Colorado	15, 366	56	1.047	5, 347	2, 495	1, 781	2, 359	1.833	389	58	1

CONNECTICUT--FORM 1040-A

											,	
1	Fairfield	12,891	25	619			1, 207					
2	Bridgeport 1	4,804		208	2, 283	791	414	532		91	19	
3	Norwalk	977	2	52	342	169	93	163	122	30	4	
4 (Stamford	1,791	6	96	670	288		267	235	61	5	\ <u>-</u>
5	Hartford	17, 917	31	854	8,022	2,868	1,527	2, 135	1,945	476	59	
6	Bristol	837		25	393	128	70	104	96	21		İ
7	Hartford 1		20	499	4, 984	1,841				282	41	[
8	New Britain	1,599	4	74	723	239	125	230	168	32	4	
9	Litchfield		7	152	907	372	183	247	235	61	10	
10	Torrington	679		51	332	103	40	68	70	14	1	l
11	Middlesex	1,409	3	73	694	216	113	142	135	26	7	<i>-</i> -
12	New Haven		27	887	6,802	2,608	1,517	2,058	1,774	440	44	3
13	Meriden	1, 209	3	59	596	179	109	140		18		
14	New Haven 1	6, 145	14	329		1, 120	614	694	629	178	17	
15	Waterbury	3, 360	4	177	1,523	543	286	417	323	75	11.	1
16	West Haven	1,022	2 3	59	377	147	101	184	130	19	3	
17	New London	2,710	3	119		506	239	413	334	80	6	
18	New London		1	32	349	213		172	130	28		
19	Tolland		1	33		71	41	56		16		
20	Windham	832	4	82	314	143	69	112	86	19	3	lI
21	Residents of other States		i									1 1
	and nonresident				ĺ							
	aliens.	582	1	50	174	103	66	87	73	28		
22	Total Connecticut	55, 210	102	2.869	23. 429	9.015	4, 962	7,003	6. 134	1, 516	176	4
	1 0001 Connecticut	00, 210	1021	D. 000	20. 120	0. 010	7.702	1.000	17. 17.17	1, 010	170	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

COLORADO-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net in	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				Line
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5~2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	No.
172	13	22	25	22	23	10	23	12	12	6	4	-	
108	9	21	18	11	12	îĭ	7	3	12	4 i			2
10		. 3	1		1		3		2				3
30	3	6	4	3	3	3	2	3 7	3				4
103	7	18	12	10	18	10	14	7	3	2	2		5
3		1	1	1									6
75	4	6	5	6	7	10	16	8	6	3	3	1	7
31	3	12	1	3	4	4	2	12	2				8
204	10	36	15	20	27 2	33 1	28 2	12	10	10	3		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
11 49	$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 6 \end{vmatrix}$	1 8	7	11	4	5	3	<u>i</u> -	2	1	1		11
93	2	8	8	9	13	11	14	9	16	3	1		12
111	6	16	16	12	18	13	ii	8	6	3	2		13
435	33	48	46	58 22	49	54	64	32	23	15	$1\overline{2}$	1	14
192	19	26	16	22	28	18	28	13	12	6	4	İ	15
46	4	5	5	3	10	10	5	1	2	i			15 16
156	11	22	15	16	23	20	20	9	11	5	3	1	17
264	22	22 33 2	33	19	29 2	33	37	20	21	11	6		18
9		2		1	2		2	<u>-</u> -	1		1		19
34	2	6	6	4	3	5	4	2	2				20
59	10	9	18	10 9	$\frac{6}{11}$	$\frac{6}{21}$	8 17	13	3 4	$\frac{1}{2}$	1		21 22 23 24
118	9 12	$\frac{13}{22}$	15	17	26	21	32	14	5	12	1 3		22
179	20	40	24	20	20		27	19	10	6	2		23
236 22	20	20	6	29 3 4	2	35 2 3 3 3 12	2	2	10		-		25
40	4	$\frac{2}{9}$	6	4	3	3	1 4	2	2	1	2		25 26 27 28 29 30 31
45	Ĝ	8	7	$\bar{6}$	5	3	l 7	2 3			Ī		27
27		4		7	5 7	3	1	2	2	1			28
131	10	17	12	16	18	12	20	10	13	3	Ì		29
131 661	33 32	66	62	56	65	73 72	115	44	75 75	35 35	27 27	10	30
647	32	64	59	55	61	72	113	44		35	27	10	31
36	7	7	2	4	4	.5	6		1 5 2 2				32 33
133	20	21	14	17	16	15	19	5 4	5	1			33
63	4	18 19	6 7	6 3	7 2	6	3	9	2	1 1			34
55 12	9 2	19	í	3	4	0	1 3	3 2	í	1 1	1		35 36 37
14	1 1	5	1		2		2	1	1	3	1		37
43	5	4	5	5	6	10	4 2 3 1	3	1	1			38
13	5 3 2 3	ŝ		5 2	ľ	li	li		- 	2			38
13 72	2	3 7	16	5	5	9	9	2	10	4	3		40
33	3	4	5	8	3	4	1	2	3				41
694	50	93	116	69	61	78	92	47	41	28	17	2	42
48	6	4	6	10	7	4	5	2	2	1	1		43
154	9	11	10	22	17	11	16_	24	12	8	13	1	44
14, 954	821	1,815	1,536	1, 380	1,550	1,505	2,008	1, 177	1, 479	810	729	144	45

CONNECTICUT-FORM 1040

-														
Ī	9, 479	583	990	748	795	787	764	1, 214	832	1,006	698	819	243	1
١	2,742	181	326	239	275	278	237	343	214	268	174	168	39 2	2 3
4	503	28 89	44	42	48	38	48	83	54	63	16	37		3
1	1, 237		119	100	94		108	148	126	130	90	90	39	4
1	9,821	464	940	839	836	924	811	1, 238	857	1, 192	716	764	240	5
1	388	17	31	41	33	39	37	52.	32	31	32	26	17	6
١	4, 855	264	489	442	420	501	413	565	384	515	323	410	129	. 7
ı	894	55	105	80	86	83	78	122	76	89	52	57	11	8
١	1,845	98	198	165	161	186	176	216	175	168	122	130	50	9
1	400	14	57	38	39	33	37	50	39	38	28	22	5	10
-1	1,003	58	123	95	89	97	95	123	88	118	71	33	13	11
Ť	9,785	543	1, 111	911	845	898	840	1, 171	868	1, 119	702	619	158	12
-	704	41	85	72	55	83	62	100	71	64	40	22	9	13
ı	4, 394 1, 746	259	443	372	374	362	361	510	372	543	372	347	79	14
-	1,746	194	227	156	150	160	151	191	151	201	107	113	35	15
-	294	14	35	41	46	23	31	30	25	31	6	10	2	16
1	1, 954	120	231	196	202	211	199	248	149	179	81	115	23	17
-	689	54	75	67	65		70	78	58	69	28	43	8	18
ļ	398	27	54	46	39	42	31	44	30	30	25	20	10	19
	821	46	121	93	93	83	86	100	58	76	38	20	10 7	20
-1													-	
1														
	596	34	73	36	45	37	46	69	63	58	53	50	32	21
1	35, 702	1, 973	3,841	3, 129	3, 105	3, 265	3,048	4, 423	3, 120	3, 946	2, 506	2, 570	776	22

DELAWARE-FORM 1040-A

		DE	LAW	ARE-	FORM	¶ 104	0-A					
		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands o	f dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2 3 4 5	Kent New Castle Wilmington 1. Sussex Residents of other States and nonresident aliens	261 5, 420 4, 604 311	11 9 3	39 337 268 30	68 1, 897 1, 599 74	45 862 738 59	41 596 529 44	37 759 643 30	19 720 610 58	9 192 169 11	3 43 38 2	3
6	Total Delaware	6, 213	15	420		1, 012	704	862	826	220	50	3
	DIS	TRICT	OF (COLU	M BI A	FOI	RM 10)40-A				
1	District of Columbia	62, 550	89	1, 625	21, 215	14, 392	6, 671	7, 363	7, 826	2, 931	422	16
2	Total District of Columbia	62, 550	89	1,625	21, 215	14 392	6, 671	7, 363	7, 826	2, 931	422	16
		F	LORI	DAF	ORM	1040	- A				l	
1	Alachua	189	2	23	31	25	24	33	3,1	19	1	
2 3	Baker	12 95		8	33	16	7	2 17	1 9	1 4	<u>1</u>	
4 5	BradfordBrevard	21 75	1	2	3 19	5 11	3 11	5 17	2	<u>î</u>		
6	Broward	123	2	11	30	21	17	15	19	7	ī	
7 8	CalhounCharlotte	8 19	<u>1</u>	1 5	2 6	<u>-</u>	2 2	1	2			
9 10	CitrusClay	$\frac{24}{21}$		2 2	5	4 3	3 2	5 4	5			
11	Collier	16		1	8	7	3	î	2	i		
12 13	Columbia Dade	96 2, 930		5 155	$\frac{20}{752}$	35 556	316	14 449	15 507	$\frac{1}{152}$	1 30	3
14 15	Miami ¹ DeSoto	2, 555 45	10	135 4	663 8	501 7	275 9	375 9	437 5	133	23	3
16	Dixie	12			3.		i.	2	4	2		
17 18	Duval Jacksonville !	3, 491 3, 406	7	151 144	973 951	632 621	377 370	640 616	562 549	136 135	13 13	
19 20	Escambia	690 594	5 4	27 24	187 159	125 111	77 67	128 109	108 89	21 19	12 12	
21	Flagler	4		1	2					1		
$\frac{22}{23}$	Franklin Gadsden	19 55	2	2	3 12	11	4 5	1 12	2 10	$\frac{1}{2}$		<u>-</u>
24 25	GilchristGlades	3 13	1 1	i		$\frac{1}{2}$	2		1 3	í	<u>ĩ</u>	
26	Gulf	5		1		1		1	1	î		
27 28	Hamilton Hardee	16 19		1 2	4 7	2 5	3	2 1	4			
29 30	Hendry Hernando	57 25		$\frac{1}{2}$	20 6	15 7	4 2	10 5	5 3	2		
31	Highlands	52		8	13	1	4	13	8	4	,1	
32 33	Hillsborough Tampa 1	1, 903 1, 762	12 8	79 70	520 488	$\frac{282}{263}$	$\frac{219}{206}$	360 326	340 317	77 70	14 14	
34 35	Holmes Indian River	4 29	i	<u>-</u> 5	1 8	4	1 3	1 3	1 2	3		
36	Jackson	38		3	8	5	5	4	11	2		
37 38	Jefferson Lafayette	19 2		1	3	4 1	1	1	3	2		
39 40	LakeLee	138 122	1 2	21 5	32 39	18 13	18 10	19 21	24 20	5 8	4	-
41	Leon	180	Ĩ,	11	43	29	31	24	29	11	î	
42 43	LevyLiberty	12 5		I	3 4	1	2	3 1	1	1		
44 45	Madison Manatee	$\frac{25}{113}$	î	8 10	31	$\frac{2}{19}$	$\frac{2}{15}$	6 23	$\frac{3}{12}$	<u>-</u> 2		
46	Marion	147	i	9	25	22	25	24	32	8	1	
47 48	Martin Monroe	38 110		. 3	6 30	5 18	1 13	12 21	10 20		1	
49 50	NassauOkaloosa	24 18	<u>î</u>		9	3	4 5	7 4	1 1	<u>î</u>		
51	Okeechobee	10		2 2 2	3	1		3	1			
52	Orange	631	5	47	159	108	70	113	97	30	2	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

DELAWARE-FORM 1040

					DELAN	ARE-	FORM	1040					,
Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Li N
379 3, 681 3, 097 443	26 163 139 24	63 439 364 55	53 372 302 39	56 325 259 57	40 310 267 55	33 276 232 44	36 363 297 60	25 266 226 36	22 354 312 37	14 304 262 16	6 327 287 14	5 182 150 6	
131	3	10	6	15	6	8	15	14	18	13	16	7	
4, 634	216	567	470	453	411	361	474	341	431	347	363	200	
			D	ISTRI	CT OF	COLU	MBIA-	-FORI	M 1040)			
16, 063	564	1, 011	1, 075	1, 216	1, 246	1, 275	2, 158	1, 774	2, 857	1, 422	1, 172	293	
16, 063	564	1, 011	1, 075	1, 216	1, 246	1, 275	2, 158	1, 774	2, 857	1, 422	1, 172	293	
		_	'		FLOR	IDA—F	ORM	1040				1	<u>'</u>
175	11	18	13	16	16	23	24	17	18	11	7	1	
$^{9}_{64}$	2 3 2	5 4	5 3	4	3 6 5	1 8 2	10 3	6 2	1 7 1	4	6		
194 278	23 29	28 24	21 23	20 15	22 32	29 19	18 44	11 28	10 27	5 26	7 9	2	
10 25 19	1 3 1	1 2	1 2	1 1 4	2 5	1 5 1	1 7 1	1 2 4	2 3	1			
47 28	6 4	5 1	4	5	4 1	7 2	$\frac{4}{2}$	6 5	3 5	2 5	1 2		
65 3, 362 2, 616	7: 238 184	5 304 228	246 193	6 269 208	7 302 241	308 248	9 450 348	272 211	3 407 329	260 199	245 190		
57 15 2, 455	6 1 155	12 2 272	7 2 195	214	8 228	6 1 205	8 1 372	1 4 223	2 2 264	2 158	1 1 142	1 27	
2, 455 2, 380 544	147 39	261 75	190 58	210 37	218 61	203 203 68	358 73	223 219 44	259 38	152 30	136 17		
492 17	34 2	63 1	54 2	33 1	60	62 2 5	66 1	43 2	34	24 1	15	4	
$^{23}_{104}$	1 4	3 14	5	10	$\begin{bmatrix} 2\\7\\2 \end{bmatrix}$	10	7 18	1 11	3 14	7	4		
11 7	1 2		1	2	1	2 1	3 1	1	1		1		
24 52 17	1 1	8	8	2 10	$\begin{bmatrix} & \frac{1}{7} \\ & 2 \end{bmatrix}$	5 3	6 11 5	2 1	1 4 4		$\frac{1}{2}$		
28 66	1 7	8		2 8	1 9	4 7	9 11	2 4	1 6	1 3	1		
1, 486 1, 354	126 111	155 142	89	113 99	161 150	157 137	204 190	121 111	157 148 3	106 99	70 66		
16 77 76	10 8	13 8	10	1 <u>5</u>	1 3 6	2 8 9	1 8 4	13 5	4 4	2 8 8	2 7	3 2	
20 302	$\frac{2}{34}$	36		$\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\\frac{1}{30} \end{bmatrix}$	4 45	1 29	$\frac{2}{36}$	2 <u>19</u>	2 20	2 <u>11</u>	11		
144 166 24 8	17 16 3 3 6	15 17 5	13 13 1	15 14 3	20 17 2 1	9 9 3 1	14 14 5 2	15 18 1	10 25	6 13	7 9		
31 199	22	3 26	1 27	19 10	4 17	2 21	4 31	12 16	2 11 17	3 5 2 2 1 2	2 5	3 2	
194 50 99 53 16 12 977	13 4 9	24 8 15	3 10	19 3 10	22 11 9 7 4	26 3 9	23 3 16	16 4 11	17 1 8 1	$\begin{array}{c c} z \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{array}$	$\begin{bmatrix} & 8 \\ 6 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$	j 2	
53 ₁	8	113 2 2 113	5 3		7 4	4	9	5	4	2 1	1 1		
977	75	$\frac{2}{113}$	₈₀	<u>8</u> 5	2 114	107	133	$\begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 82 \end{array}$	1 101	46	36	5	

FLORIDA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	ses (in	thous	ands o	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Orlando. Osceola	442 34 653 451 33 898 679 572 28 293 66 17 106 28 35 48 6 426 426 421 12	4 2 2 7 7 7 6 2 4 4 1 1 3 7 7 1 1 8 8 2 2 3 3	33 31 115 2 100 65 33 8 8 21 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 1 3	117 7 126 9 249 193 138 222 22 27 24 4 11 11 9 2 38	777 44 1115 77 7 168 88 126 49 13 22 16 6 10 9 71 7 30	39 55 83 57 6 111 82 71 13 39 10 2 2 13 30 6 6 6 2 51	80 111 1122 76 3 1133 89 113 12 29 48 10 4 4 4 15 29 10 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	65 2 104 80 6 1188 98 98 15 41 5 4 1 19 24 8 8 1 5 5 4 1 5 2 4 1 2 2 5 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	25 177 10 31 23 24 9 3 6 6 6	2 2 2 2	1
24	Total Florida	15, 386	103	938	4, 026	2, 677	1, 802	2, 646	2, 464	625	100	5

GEORGIA-FORM 1040-A

					ا۔				_			
1	Appling.	16			3	1	4	5	2	1		
2	Atkinson	9			4	2	1	1		1		
3	Bacon	3			2			1				
4	Baker	2						1	1			
5	Baldwin	48		7	15	10	7	6	1		2	
6	Banks	6			4		1			1		
7	Barrow	13			6	5			2	 -		
8	Bartow	78		10	20	15	7	13	10	3		
9	Ben Hill	65	1	4	12	10	5	23	8	2		
10	Berrien	9		1		3		4	1			
11	Bibb	970	1	32	269	136	106	222	166	32	6	
12	Macon	925	l ī	31	254	129	99	216	159	30	6	
13	Bleckley	6	î	"	2	1			2			
14	Brantley	l š	_		4	1		2	ī			
15	Brooks	24		2	7	5		5	3	2		
16	Bryan	13		2	3	ž	3	ľ	2	_ ~		
17	Bulloch	38		3	5		9	11	6	2		
18	Burke	24		3	8	4	"	4	1	-	,	^
19	Durke	24		1 2	9	4	1	4	4			
	Butts			1	1	4	1					
20	Calhoun	į b				1) 3	2				
21	Camden	6	1		!	ļ		1 1	2			
22	Campbell	4			1	2		1				
23	Candler	8		1	2		2	1	1		1	
24	Carroll	64		3		13		10	14			
25	Catoosa	36			9	4		8	10			
26	Charlton	4				2		1				1
27	Chatham	1, 923	4	93	535	339	213	375	274	81	9	
28	Savannah	1,888	4	88	529	333	209	369	267	80	9	
29	Chattahoochee	158		1	22	13	13	45	55	6	3	
30	Chattooga	41	1	3		11	5				1	
31	Cherokee	45] -	4	š	10				4	ĺí	
32	Clarke	228	4	13		31					Î	
33	Clay	6	1 1	1 **	ľi	"	l ž	2		"	_ ^	
34	Clayton	43		3		4						
35	Clinch.	6		1 "	10	2		2				
36	Cobb	187		17	42			32	22			[
37	Cobb	34	1							· '	1	
	Coffee			$\frac{2}{3}$	9							
38	Colquitt	74	3	3						7	1	
39	Columbia	14		1 2	4	4		1				
40	Cook	10			2			2				
41	Coweta	74		5	14					2	2	[]
42	Crawford	} 7		1	2			2]	1
43	Crisp	36			5	9	5	9	5	2	1	
	-											

FLORIDA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	icome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
689 52 943 503 58 1, 577 1, 191 727 151 301 115 39 198 219 18	77 71 29 6 136 108 87 15 20 13 2 28 28	160 97 18 42	83 52 7	62 9 89 42 156 110 55 20 36 14 4 15 17	82 4 91 47 6 161 115 89 15 38 14 4 13 19	64 16 39 10 2 13 24	82 7 229 170 110 22	3 74 41 3 110 89 54 12	777 2 833 366 2 121 95 633 9 222 5 3 21 14	33 51 23 1 67 55 22 4 12 3 3 4 5 8	28 1 522 23 	36 17 9 5 2	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
7 731 3 36 20 93	1 3 3 5 1 10	9 3 1 116 2 3 6	69 4 2 5	2 4 1 66 1	3 68 22 9	2 2 5 1 71 71 4 3 8	3 10 10 1 1 103 8 8 3 13	2	54 1 3 2	26 1 1	35 	5	16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23
17, 057	1, 416	1, 966	1, 451	1, 476	1, 734	1, 654	2, 405	1, 353	1, 630	950	831	191	24

GEORGIA-FORM 1040

GEORGIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

Line County and city Der of turns Dade Creturns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretarns Cretar			Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Dawson	ine No.	County and city	re-	der	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10
De Kalb	1	Dade				1	1	1	1				
De Kalb	2	Dawson		;		20	16						
5 Dodge	4			1	25	154	79	83	192	140	37	2	
Solution	5	Dodge				4	1			4	1		
Solution	6	Dooly				5					1		
9 Early 14 1 7 1 1 1 4 1 7 1 1 1 4 1 1 7 1 1 1 1	8	Dougles				5 5		32		31	3	1	
11 Effingham	9	Early			1	7	1	1		4			
Elbert	10	Echols	4			2							
13 Emanuel 30	12	Elbert			4	7		5	10	7	5	2	i
15	13	Emanuel					2	š	5	7	Ĭĭ		
Fayette	14	Evans				2	2			2			
17 Floyd	16	Fauth		2							. 1		
19	17	Floyd			19	138	62	44	80	43	14	2	
Fulton	18	Forsyth											
Heard	20			26	367		1.652		1.879	1.842	505	81	7
Heard	21	Atlanta 1	10, 344	26		3, 138	1.587	1,093		1,779	494	81	7
35 Heard	22		9			5	3			1			
35 Heard	23		173		8	53	28	18	28	30	6	2	
Heard	25	Gordon	33		2	6	2		6	9	ì	1	
Heard	26			1		2	3		4		1		
Heard	28				3	21		4	8		3		
Heard	29	Habersham	25		2	7			1		4	1	
35 Heard	30			1	5	29		15	18	20	5	1	
35 Heard	32	Haralson	13				2	3	3	í			
35 Heard	33	Harris	10			5	3	1		1			
36 Henry 19 1 5 3 4 3 2 1 4	34		7		2	2	1	3	1			1	
37 Houston	36	Henry			i	5		4	3				
40 Jasper 9 2 1 2 2 2 41 Jeff Davis 7 1 2 3 5 5 43 Jenkins 15 7 1 2 4 4 44 Jonson 10 1 2 4 3 45 Jones 3 1 1 2 4 3 46 Lamar 20 5 3 5 2 5 47 Lanier 1 7 12 10 8 13 11 48 Laurens 62 7 12 10 8 13 11 49 Lee 3 1 2 2 2 50 Liberty 6 1 2 2 2 51 Lincoln 6 1 1 2 2 2 50 Liberty 6 1 1 1 2 2 2 51 Lincoln 6 1 1 1 2 2 2 53 Lowndes 168 1 9 47 20 32 31 20	37	Houston			2	3	3	2					
40 Jasper 9 2 1 2 2 2 41 Jeff Davis 7 1 2 3 5 5 43 Jenkins 15 7 1 2 3 5 5 43 Jenkins 15 7 2 4 4 4 44 Jonson 10 1 2 4 3 45 Jones 3 1 5 3 5 2 5 47 Lamar 20 5 3 5 2 5 5 47 Lanier 1 7 12 10 8 13 11 48 Laurens 62 7 12 10 8 13 11 49 Lee 3 1 2 2 2 2 50 Liberty 6 1 1 2 2 2 51 Lincoln 6 1 1 1 2 2 2 51 Lincoln 8 1 1 2 2 2 2 54 Lumpkin 8 1 7 3	39		19	1		2	2	3	8		1		
43 Jenkins 15 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 4 4 3 3 1 1 2 4 4 3 3 1 2 5 5 4 4 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 5 5 4 1 4 4 4 4 4 1 4 4 4 1 4 4 4 4 4 1	40	Jasper	9			2	1	2	2	2			
43 Jenkins 15 7 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 3 4 4 3 3 1 1 2 4 4 3 3 1 2 5 5 4 4 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 5 5 4 1 4 4 4 4 4 1 4 4 4 1 4 4 4 4 4 1	41	Jeff Davis				;			2	4			
46 Jones	43	Jenkins	15				[<u>_</u>		4	4			
Addition						1	2						
47 Lanier 1 1 1 8 13 11 48 Laurens 62 7 12 10 8 13 11 50 Liberty 6 2 2 2 2 51 Lincoln 6 1 1 2 2 2 52 Long 2 - - 1 2 2 2 53 Lowndes 168 1 9 47 20 32 31 20 54 Lumpkin 8 1 - 1 2 1 3 3 4 4 1 3 3 4 4 1 3 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 4 4 5 5 5 5 3 4 4 1 4 4 5 6 4 4	46				1	5	3	5				- 	
49 Lee 3 1 2 3 3 1 20 4 4 4 1 2 2 1 3 2 2 5 <td>47</td> <td>Lanier</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td> </td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	47	Lanier	1				1						
50 Liberty 6 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 3 1 20 1 1 2 1 3 1 20 1 3 1 2 1 3 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 3 4 4 1 4 4 5	48	Laurens	62		7			8	13	11		1	
52 Long 2 1 1 1 53 Lowndes 168 1 9 47 20 32 31 20 54 Lumpkin 8 1 1 1 2 1 3 55 McDuffle 22 7 3 4 4 1 56 McIntosh 20 1 5 2 2 5 5 57 Macon 24 1 4 4 5 6 4 58 Madison 11 2 2 1 2 3 1 59 Marion 3 1 2 2 1 2 60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 61 Miller 2 1 1 4 4 5 2 62 Milton 1 1 4 4	50	Liberty					2	2	2				
52 Long. 2 1 1 20 1 20 32 31 20 20 54 Lumpkin 8 1 1 1 2 1 3 20 1 55 McDuffle 22 7 3 4 4 1 1 2 2 5 5 5 2 2 5 5 5 5 2 2 5 3 1 4	51	Lincoln	6			i		$ $ $\tilde{2}$		2			
54 Lumpkin 8 1 1 2 1 3 55 McDuffle 22 7 3 4 4 1 5 56 McIntosh 20 1 5 2 2 5 5 57 Macon 24 1 4 4 5 6 4 58 Madison 11 2 2 1 2 3 59 Marion 3 1 2 2 1 2 2 60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 61 Miller 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 2 4 2 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	52	Long	160	;		A7	1 20		21		6		
55 McDuffle 22 7 3 4 4 1 56 McIntosh 20 1 5 2 2 5 5 57 Macon 24 1 4 4 5 6 4 58 Madison 11 2 2 1 2 3 59 Marion 3 1 2 2 2 2 60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 61 Miller 2 1	54	Lumpkin	8	<u></u>			1	2					
57 Macon 24 1 4 4 5 6 4 58 Madison 11 2 2 1 2 3 59 Marion 3 1 2 2 2 60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 61 Miller 2 1	55	McDuffie	22				3	4	4	1	3		
59 Marion 3 1 2 2 60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 61 Miller 2 1	56		20		1 1		5	2	5	5			
60 Meriwether 64 4 20 6 4 14 10 6 6 6 1 Miller 2 1	58	Madison			2	2			2	3	1		
61 Miller 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		Marion			1			₋				 -	
62 Milton					4		1 6	4	14	10	2 1	4	
64 Monroe 16 3 2 4 2 3 1	62	Milton				l							
	63		17		1	4		4	5				
65 Niontgomery 10 11 21 21 21 1	65	Monroe Montgomery	16 10		3	2	4 2	2	3	1	1 2		
66 Morgan 18 3 6 1 4 2 2	66	Morgan			3			4	2	2			
67 Murray 3 1 1 1 1 1	67	Murray	3			1	1		:::				
		Columbus									31 30	5	[
70 Newton 38 6 7 7 3 7 6	70	Newton	38										
71 Oconee 3 1 2 2	71	Oconee	3	- -		1		2					
		Paulding			1	3	6		2	3			
73 Paulding 15 3 6 1 2 3 74 Peach 5 11 4 7 7 8	74	Peach	45	1	5	11	4	1 7	1 7	8	3	1	1

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

GEORGIA-FORM 1040-Continued

otal um-				Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thousa	ands of	dollars)			
er of re- irns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over
4 10	1					3	2		1		î	
$\frac{74}{264}$	4 9	6	6 10	10 23	6		11	6 26	5 31	6 18	6 10	
30	2	6 23 2 6	4	20 2 2	18 3	8 43 5 3	2	5	2	3	10	
30 26 252	1 15	6 23	$\frac{1}{25}$	2 25	4 25	3 24	53 2 2 47	$\begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 22 \end{array}$	1 23	3 14	9	
19	2	23 2 3	1	4	3	1	1 2	3	2 5			
38 1	2 1	3	1	5	4	7	2	4	5	5		
231		4	4	3	1	3	4	2	1	$\frac{1}{2}$	2	
52 32 17	4 3	4	7 1	3 3 3	7 4	9 4	9 8	3 1	2 3	2	1	
17 6	i	1 1	4 2	3 1	1	2		5 1	1			
8	1	1				1	3	1		1		
276 9	10	18	9	29	24	32 2	37 1	39	34 1	32 1	12	
32	1	3	3	1	3	7	4	5	3	ī	1	
5, 416 5, 251	225 218	$\frac{379}{370}$	364 343	379 367	449 432	494 472	808 777	578 561	766 753	434 426	430 423	110 109
4 3	1	<u>-</u>			1		2	<u>î</u>		j		
160 21	12	21 1	19 2	16 1	17	15 3	19 2	17 2	12 4	6	4 3	2
21 19	1	î	2	$\hat{2}$	$\hat{\underline{2}}$		1			2		
24 52	1 3	5	2 2 7 1 7	4	1 2 7 4 7 7	1 4 7 2 7 4	2 6 3	2 1 3	5 1 2 1	2 2 2	9	
24	3	3	1	1	7	2	3	1	1	1	1	
110 17	8	11	4!	12 1	2	4	19 5	12	13	8 1	5	1
9 14	1	1	2 2			1.	1		1	2		
19	3	2		2 5	2 2	4 2	3		ī		1	
23	3	2	2	3	2	3	2	3	2	· ₁		
26	3 3 2		- 1	3 1 2 6	1	3	10	3 2 1 2	$\frac{5}{2}$	3		
16 39	1	$\frac{1}{2}$	<u>2</u> 5	6	1 1	3	3 4	2	5	9	1	
15 15		3		1	3 3		4 2 6	1		2	1	
30	$\frac{1}{2}$	2	1 2	5 4 3 1 2 1 3	1	8 2 8 3	6	3 2	6		1	
37 14		4 1	4 3	4 3	6 2 2 9	8 3	3	2 1	2	2	2	
7	3	1		1	2	6	1		2	1	î	
39 8 63	- 1	5 2	1	1	1		4 2	3 1		1		
63	6	4	7	3	5	5 2 2	14	6	9	2	2	
8	1	2 2	1 7 2 1 2	2		2	$\hat{2}$					
9	1	2	1	2	<u>-</u>		1	1		1		
179	9	11	12	18	27	$\frac{22}{1}$	29	16	18	6	10	1
2 42 23 48	2	5	9	1 2	6		6	1	4	1	2	
23 48	2 7	6 10	3	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 5	4 2 7	4 8	1	1	1 3	1	
10	2 2 7 1 2 2	1			ĭ		3	1	î			2
6 34	2	1 4	2	<u>-</u>	2	5	1 5	1		<u>2</u>	· <u>2</u>	
7				1	1		2		ĭ		2	
33		3	1	2 2	7	5 7	5	<u>2</u>	7	1		
30 5	2	1	1	$\frac{2}{1}$	5 1		6	1	3	2		
16		1		4	$\frac{1}{2}$	2	5	ī	i			
709	15	93	2 49	68	72	77	124	63	1 56	40	46	6
690	15	90	48	66	71	77 75	119	61	56	39	44	6
47		5	5	4	8	4	5	3	7	4	2	
8.			1	2	1		1	1	i		1	
34	1	1 5	5	2	5	5	2 5	$\frac{1}{2}$	2	_i		

GEORGIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (ir	thous	ands o	f dolla	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	57	7-10
1	Pickens	22	1	1	6	5	1	4	4			
2	Pierce	8			2	š	3					
3	Pike	17		2	4		1 1	3	4	2	1	
4	Polk	117	1	5	27	15	17	28	18	4	2	
1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Pulaski	16		1	7	1	2	1	1	3		
6	Putnam	5		2	2		- 	1				
8	Quitman Rabun	$\frac{1}{3}$			<u>ī</u>	1 1	- -	ī				
9	Randolph	14		ī	2	5	1	i	2	1		
1ŏ	Richmond	849		33	255	131	113	157	117	39	4	
11	Augusta	831		33	247	129	112	153	115	38	4	
12	Rockdale	17		$\frac{2}{1}$	7	5	2		1			
13	Schley	6		1 1	3	2						
14	Screven	18		2	1	5	3	. 2	4	1		
15 16	Seminole	131	1	10	31	2 15 2 2 9	17	24	26	5	2	
17	Stephens	24		2	4	2	7	4	5		<u>"۔۔۔۔</u> ُ	
18	Stewart	14		4 7	4 3 23	2	2	3				
19	Sumter	111		7	23		20	31	17	3	1	
20 21	Talbot	7	1		2	1		<u>i</u>	2	1		
21	Taliaferro	5		1 3	1	4	1		1 6			
22 23 24	Tattnall Taylor	14 10) 3	3	3	3	1	1			
24	Telfair	10			4	3	١	2		1		
25 i	Terrell	16 16		2	ī	3	5	2	3			
26 27	Thomas	128		2 7 3	28	19	16	25	25	7	1	
27	Tift	37			11	8	6	5	1	3		
28 29	Toombs	30		1	2	6	6	10	4	1		
30	Towns Treutlen	1 7				1	i	2	3			
31	Troup.	252		11	65	41	22		45	19	6	
32	Turner	3		1				ĺ			i	
33	Twiggs	4		1	1	1		1				
34	Union	6			3 20	1		1 1	1	4		
35 36	Upson Walker	59 51		1	14	7 9	4 5	14 11	5 9	2	5	
37	Walton	30		i	5	5			6	Ĩ		
38	Ware	179		5	52	27	21	50	22	2		
39	Warren	16			2		3	3 3	6	1		
40 41	Washington	31		3	5 4	10 4	2	3	6 2	1		
42	Wayne Webster	19			1	**	í	*	4	,	*	
43	Wheeler	3				1		i	1			
44	White											
45	Whitfield	65		5	11	17	7	11	13		1	
46 47	Wilcox Wilkes	5 14			3	1 4		3	4	<u>i</u>		
48	Wilkinson	1 9		1	2	2	l	2	1	1		
49	Worth	8			l ī	2	4		ī			
50	Residents of other States	425	1	28	96	58	48	81	80	27	6	
	and nonresident aliens.								İ		1	
51	Total Georgia	21, 556	58	918	6, 080	3, 346	2, 405	4, 047	3, 582	944	167	9
		1,	1			, , , , ,	,	1 /	′ -	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	l
		1	HAWA	\11—F	ORM	1040-	- A					
	Tramali	200			.,.					90		
$\begin{array}{c c} 1 \\ 2 \end{array}$	Hawaii Honolulu	269 2,669		31	75 712	45 477	19 303	29 397	66 532	29 207	3	
3	Honolulu	2, 377		29	617	444	279	341	475	183	9	
4	Kauai	193			66	30	18	27	39	8	- -	
5	Maui	189	1	9	49	31	19	23	36	18	3	
6	Residents of other States	65		1	23	6	5	12	14	4		
	and nonresident aliens.							<u> </u> .	L			
7	Total Hawaii	3, 385	1	49	925	589	364	488	687	265	16	
	<u> </u>	l	[<u></u>	·	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	1	l	<u>. </u>	!	

GEORGIA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
12 23 15 64 19 12	1	1 1 6 2	2 2 8 4	2 1 4 1 1	2 5 1 10 2 3	1 11 4	2 3 4 14 5	1 6 1 5 2	4 2 2 2 2 2	2 2	2		1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
9 31 784 771 12 4	2 21 21	4 76 73	1 1 60 60 1 1	1 4 73 69 1	3 102 100 2	2 4 87 85 2	3 3 111 110 1	1 3 67 67 2	1 4 93 93 1	2 46 45	1 45 45	3 3	10 11 12 13
14 12 130 21 23 88	1 3 1	1 15 4 5 14	1 13 1 3 10 2	2 1 18 3 1 11 11	2 19 3 2 6	6 14 1 3 8	1 12 3 5 11	14 5 1 8	2 7 1 10	1 2 7 2 5	7	1	14 15 16 17 18 19 20
2 15 16 33 34 104 64	1 3 2	1 7 2 18 7	3 1 2 3 11 5	2 7 4 15 8 2	2 3 1 1 5 10 13	4 3 4 6 14 4 4	3 3 4 5 10 14	3 5 2 7 3	1 1 3 5 4	2 1 6 3	<u>2</u>		111 122 134 145 166 177 188 199 200 211 222 233 244 255 26 27 27 29 30 31 31 33
28 9 202 15 1		5 2 23 3	1 1 18	25 1	1 16 2	2 19 2	8 2 41 3 1	20 3	1 9	15	16 1		26 29 30 31 32 33 34
54 39 35 135 20 41 22	3 1 3 2 1 2	3 2 4 15 1 3 4	5 2 1 9 1 5 2	8 3 2 17 2 5 7	6 1 2 14 3 4 2	11 5 1 22 2 2 7	1 3 13 5 28 1 5 2	1 4 1 12 3 4 2	6 3 5 6 3 4	2 3 5 7 1 2	3 4 5 1 1 1	1	35 36 37 38 39 40 41 42 43
1 93 9 20 8 31	2	1 9 1 3	13	7	8 3 3 2 4	6	13 2 5	8 2 1 10	14 3 1	7	7	1	44 45 46 47 48
633 15, 388	148 	1, 416	1, 181	1, 335	1, 504	1, 592	2, 341	1, 458	1, 690	1,009	34 ——— 884	161	50 51
				'	HAW	AII—F	ORM 1	040		<u>. '</u>		·	
467 3, 406 3, 204 160 460 137	27 222 191 8 41 6	116 678 617 27 117 16	52 299 274 21 50 5	41 228 219 13 41 11	33 250 232 12 43 13	45 223 212 10 37 10	40 331 318 9 44 16	23 274 263 16 30 3	45 413 399 25 33	25 212 207 9 13 17	17 193 190 8 7 8	3 83 82 2 4	1 2 3 4 5 6
4, 630	304	954	427	334	351	325	440	346	547	276	233	93	7

IDAHO-FORM 1040-A

				N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	f dollar	rs)	
Line		Total num-	[₁				· · · ·					
No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Ada	785		1	342	109	31	133	136	26	5	2
$\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	BoiseAdams	739 6		1	323 2	106	29	125	126	23	4	2
4	Bannock	406	1	1	167	62	26	95	44	9	1	
5 6	Bear LakeBenewah	$\frac{29}{32}$		1	7 18	3 6	4 1	10	4			
7	Bingham	57		î	24	4	3	13	12			
8	Blaine	14	1		6	1		3	3			
9	Boise	11 69			7 37	2 8	8	1 8	1 6	2		
11	Bonneville	122		1	39	19	ĭ	34	27	ī		
12 13	Boundary	32		- 	17	5		8	2			
14	Camas	1				<u>i</u>						
15	Canyon	156		1	54	16	4	49	27	4	1	
$\frac{16}{17}$	Caribou Cassia	15 25		1	6 5	3	3	2 6	1 8	3		
18	Clark	3				i		2	ĭ			
19 20	Clearwater	37 4	1		17	7	1	5 1	4	1	1	
20	CusterElmore	81			35	23	2	15	6			
22	Franklin	6			1		1	2	2			
23 24	Fremont	12 25			3 15	1	2	5 2	3			
25	Gooding	27		2	8	6	ī	5	4	1		
26	ldaho	33			14	4	7	3	4		1	
27 28	Jefferson Jerome	8 17			6	<u>ě</u>		$\frac{1}{3}$	5	<u>i</u>		
29	Kootenai	160		i	72	25	12	30	16	2	2	
30 31	Latah Lemhi	98 12			42 3	13	4	18	13 4	6	2	
32	Lewis	4			2 7	2						
33	Lincoln	20		1	7 6	3 2		6	2		1	
34 35	Madison Minideka	11 24	1		6	6	2	3 5	3	<u>î</u>		
36	Nez Perce	169		1	69	26	11	28	27	4	3	
37 38	Oneida Owyhee	5			5							
39	Payette	25		2	11			6	5	1		
40 41	Power.	7 554		3	375	73	15	1 46	33	1 6	3	
42	Shoshone	334		[13	1		i		
43	Twin Falls	133		2	42	20	9	34	20	6		
44 45	Valley Washington	38 24	1		20 7	6 8	1 3	7	4	i		
46	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	79		1	18	10		23	17	4		
47	Total Idaho	3, 379		~21	1, 527	487	161	618	457	81	21	
	Total Idano	0, 019	*		1, 021	401	101	010	407	01	21	
		II	LLING	IS-F	ORM	1040	-A	1				
1	Adams	800			311	135	87	105	80	23	5	
2	Quincy	766	1	45	302	126	85	103	76	23	5	
3 4	Alexander Bond	256 52		12	88 17	41	24	50 12	31 8	8 2		
5	Boone	72	1	3	25	15	7	10	9	í		
6	Brown.	20		5		5	5					
7 8	Bureau Calhoun	104 12		10		22	5	10	12 1			
9	Carroll	155	3	5	49			19	15		2	
10	Champaign	144 764		15 58					127			
11 12	Champaign Christian	282		22				45	18			
13	Clark	66		6	19	11	9	16	5			
14 15	Clay Clinton	56 84		3 6								
16	Coles	401	1	26	118	41	71	97	36	11	J	
17 18	Cook Berwyn				49, 775 685	24, 687 287	14, 895 230	20, 700 429	20, 389 282	5, 647 61		
19	Chicago 1	117, 625		4, 251	43, 122	21, 288	12, 297	16, 257	15, 747	4, 241	173	
20	Cicero	1,696	4	60	758	291	146	220	189	27	' 1	
$\frac{21}{22}$	Evanston Maywood	3, 917 1, 115				566 166			904 225		15	
23	Oak Park	4, 927	16		1, 209				1,011		12	
1 C	ities of 100,000 and over po	pulation	1.									

ī	n	A	H	•		n	R	M	1	n.	16	•

				Not i	noome o	elasses (i			dollars)				-
Total num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
636 606 17	31 29 1	20 20 2	48 45	54 49	65 61 3	92 88 5	136 131	76 75	74 69 3	18 17	16 16	6	1 2
381 36 34	11 i	15	32 6 4	2 35 6 5	28 5 9	103 11 7	71 5 1	52 1 3	30 1 2	1	3 1		1 1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
120 25 11	8	3	11 6 3	10 4 3	10	16 3	27 4 1	23 1 3	8	3 1	1		8
63 225 36	1 8 1 4	1 12 1 1	11 25 3	14 15 5	$\begin{array}{c} 1\\22\\6\end{array}$	7 38 8 1	11 44 3 1	9 33 3	3 18 6	5	5 5		10 11 12
9 12 257 21	9 1	18 3	1 2 35 2	26 2	30 3	1 35 5	3 53 2	17 2	23	8 1	······································	1	13 14 15 16
64 5 48	3 1 2	3 1 4	<u>-</u> 3	5 1 8	11 3	11 2 1	15 9	3 8	6 7	1 2	<u>i</u>		18
7 33 24 43	1 3 1 1	4 1 3 3	$\begin{array}{c}1\\4\\1\\2\end{array}$	2 2 2 6	1 4	1 9 5 11	7 5 8 5	2 3 6 2	1 2 6				20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37 38 40
31 75 123	3 3 2 1	3 2 2 1	6 10 13	3 7 10	3 15 14	4 11 23	16 35	4 7 9	12 12	3			24 25 26
28 79 151 220	1 3 7	1 3 11	3 5 16 22	1 7 27 22	2 11 33 22	6 15 18 39	8 21 28 52	3 9 6 14	2 6 12 18	1 3 2 6	3 7		28 28 29 30
33 33 35	5 1	1 3 2	6 4 5	6 3 2	3 7	4 5 7 7	6 7 9	2 6	<u>2</u> 1	1 1	2		31 32 33
46 50 265 42	5 2 15	6 1 17 2	1 4 24 5	8 3 18	5 7 19 9	7 7 40 5	6 11 59 12	7 33 5	6 7 27 3	1 10 1	3		34 35 36
11 63 27	1 5 3	5 1	4 10 1	1 2 8	1 14 2	6 3	13 5	$\begin{array}{c}1\\1\\2\end{array}$	1 5 1	 1	2		38 39 40
302 14 440	5 3 8 2 8	$\begin{array}{c} 13 \\ 1 \\ 20 \end{array}$	34	34 2 33	34 1 57	43 2 63	59 4 100	31 43	30 1 46	5 1 19	$\frac{10}{12}$	1 1	41 42 43
27 58 51	8	10 3	6 3 2	3 9 8	9	5 2 6	5 8 12	2 5 4	5 3 6	1 4	2		44 45 46
4, 311	179	202	428	425	476	693	890	443	389	100	77	9	47
					ILLIN	OIS-F	ORM	1040					
677 617 191	47 39 19	85 79 20	86 79 26	66 60 13	59 52 24	57 52 26	99 87 19	47 43 11	63 62 17	39 37 7	21 19 7	8 8 2	1 2 3
57 74 26 240	3 2 3 23 21	4 2 6 32	6 7 2 28	11 7 4 30	7 11 6 30	$\begin{array}{c} 7 \\ 6 \\ 2 \\ 24 \end{array}$	5 5 1 27	11 24	5 11 2 11	2 5 8	6	1	2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
28 121 175	23 11 13	1 23 36	15 20	8 15 17	21 21 23	3 6 15	5 14 23	10	3 5 7	î	2	4	8 9 10
997 277 93	85 27 2	135 35 10	92 28 10	100 28 16	96 33 8	109 31 13	142 37 13	79 15 5	79 21 7	46 12 7	33 9 2	1	11 12 13
38 121 390	12 24	8 16 49	6 13 54	13 38	19 49	10 56	50 50	3 4 22	10 27	2 3 15	1 4 5	2	14 15 16
77, 160 587 60, 863 501	4, 980 25 4, 184 41	6, 499 49 5, 400 66	5, 599 50 4, 671 58	5, 460 53 4, 539 55	6, 125 55 5, 156 54	6, 318 66 5, 108 62	9, 921 100 7, 842 73	7, 225 47 5, 402 27	10, 436 86 7, 684 35	6, 525 34 4, 719 18	6, 430 21 4, 833	1, 642 1 1, 325	17 18 19 20
3, 742 249 2, 905	161 15 131	205 14 180	160 24 155	162 9 139	168 25 171	252 26 233	441 41 386	436 27 370	761 39 527	505 15 324	408 13 244	83 1 45	21 22 23

ILLINOIS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thouse	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1	CrawfordCumberland	179	1	13	82	18	18	28	11	6	2	
3	Cumberland DeKalb	$\frac{25}{238}$	3	3 16	9 89	9 34	2 17	1 36	1 35	7	<u>i</u>	
4	DeWitt	167		14	41	28	29 21	28	25	i	i	
5 6	Douglas Du Page	93 3, 340	7	9 116	20 736	14 361	410	19 710	$\frac{3}{782}$	205	3 13	
6 7 8	Edgar Edwards	99	3	13	33	15	8	14	9	2	1	1
9	Effingham	81	2	9	23	13	15	9	8	2		
10 11	Fayette	71 82	1	9 11	15 26	12· 12	15 11	6 13	5 6	6	1 2	1
12	Franklin	175		12 25	40	30	22	46	20	5		
13 14	FultonGallatin	235 15		25	105 6	31 3	20	17 1	25 4	10	2	
15	Greene	99 199	1	7 13	29	21 33	13	16	11 16	1		
16 17	GrundyHamilton	14		2	95 7	2	20 1	18 2	10			
18 19	Hancock	101 16	6	25 2	25	18	10	10	7 2			
20	Henderson	3			3	:						
21 22 23	Henry Iroquois	260 124	1	20 9	109 50	33 23	18 10	38 19	35 12	6	î	
23	Jackson	323 28	2	14	76	53	41	84	47	4	2	
24 25	Jasper Jefferson	118		3	8 18	12 21	2 17	26 26	1 21	10	2	
26	Jersev	77 93	1	7 10	28 34	15 22	10 11	5	10 9	1		
24 25 26 27 28 29	Jo Daviess Johnson	13		2	5	5		í				
29 30	KaneAurora	2, 504 1, 269	3 2	116 58	955 492	383 187	239 125	387 205	351 169	67 30	3	
31 32	Elgin	677	ī	24	244	110	62	100	115	21		
$\frac{32}{33}$	Kankakee Kendall	458 35		21 3	182 14	62 5	55 I	61 4	66 6	10 2	1	
34	Knox	637 476	1	29 22	200	91 71	104 74	127 90	71 53	13 11	1	
35 36	GalesburgLake.	2, 568	11	104	153 930	416	241	395	371	97	3	
37 38	Waukegan Le Salle	849 928	3	21 66	352 390	131 152	74 93	140 112	99 87	$\frac{28}{22}$	1	
39	Lawrence	141	;	6	50	24	13	23	23	2		
40 41	LeeLivingston	209 217	3	14 21	61 77	38 47	22 25	29 21	25 17	17- 3	3	
42 43	Logan	180 118	3	36 17	56	25 13	19 14	25 9	13 20	3 5		
44	McDonough	329		34	37 88	65	36	62	35	8	1	
45 46	McLean Bloomington	1, 104 766	5	96 56	378 287	168 117	136 84	184 116	117 90	16 11	4	
47	Macon	1, 268	4	63	451	175	128	244	177	21	5	
48 49	Decatur Macoupin	1, 229 229	4 2	60 31	441 93	170 40	122 20	236 27	170 15	21 1	5	[
50 51	Madison	2, 355 1, 079	8 7	104 41	896	421 193	218 89	335 161	$\frac{277}{148}$	85 55	10 3	1
52	Alton Granite City	185		12	381 75	28	20	24	20	6		
53 54	Marion Marshall	397 49	1	16 3	109 25	65 10	67	75 6	53	9	2	
55	Mason	81		10	29	17	9	7	5	4		
56 57	Massac	53 34		5	12 16	10 6	10 2	10 5	6			
58 (Mercer	31		3	9	8	2	7	2			
59 60	Montgomery	97 146	$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 2 \end{array}$	5 11	34 56	18 25	11 12	14 26	$\frac{11}{12}$	3		
61	Morgan	328 33	2	43 3	106	53 5	41 9	41 2	33 3	6	3	
62 63	Moultrie Ogle	232		14	10 61	37	34	45	34	$\tilde{6}$		i
64 65	Peoria Peoria 1	3, 505 3, 354	4	140 133	1,318 1,256	557 540	318 306	556 524	451 436	135 130	25 24	1
66	Perry	157	î	14	62	21	24	20	15			
67 68	Piatt Pike	$\frac{60}{72}$	1 3	4 13	22 15	8 15	10	13 9	8 5			
69	Pope	12		2	1	3	1	2	3		اً	
70 71	Pulaski	40 10		4 1	12 3	9	3 1	8	$\frac{2}{1}$	1	1	
72	Randolph	127	3	18	41	19	10	21	15			
73	Richland	56		7	15	10	5	8	7	2	2	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

ILLINOIS-FORM 1040-Continued

Fotal				Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thousa	ands of	dollars)	 -;			_
er of re- urns	Under 0	0–1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	L
154 34	13	21 5	11 5	16 5	21	19 7	25 1	10	11 2	4	3		-
273	28	26	31	27 22	26	26	32	21	22	$2\overline{3}$	11		
215 181	6 13	27 35	26 17	31	31 25	26 15	33 20	16 8	19 11	6	3		
1, 853 258	102 20	123 20	116 25	122 36	146 29	142 26	263 32	210 26	328 21	135, 13	135 10	31	
24 91	$\frac{1}{9}$	4 10	3 16	5 9	5 9	2 11	4 12		5	2	2		١.
81 146	10 10	12 26	13 15	9 19	8 21	7 15	9 21	5 5	6 10	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 2		
$\frac{229}{224}$	14 27	46 31	24 23	26 30	30 28	21 16	27 34	14 18	11 11	11 3	5	1	ŀ
26 142	3 15	6	4 16	15	1 13	3 13	3	5 4	1 8	2			
150	9	28 25	32	13	16	14	27 12	6	14	5	3	1	
$\frac{25}{132}$	3 18	3 28	1 17	2 17	3 15	10	2 14	2 4	6 4	5			
12 27	1	<u>-</u>	4	5	$\frac{1}{2}$	i	4	4 2	4	1 I	1		
$\frac{278}{223}$	21 24	31 45	30 29	37 30	28 21	27 23	37 24	18 12	23 7	11 3	11 5	4	
203 28	16 3	24	29 23 6	27	17 3	18 5	32 3	15 1	15	10	4 2	2 I	ļ
118	5 7	2 8 18	21 18	8 15	20 5	10 14	15	10	7	5	8	1	
110 109	13	19	13	17	12	8	14 5	10 7	7	1 7	1		
22 1, 784	141	$\frac{5}{230}$	182	3 159	163	3 159	2 246	$\frac{1}{120}$	181	100	93	10	
778 540	79 32	110 59	73 57	64 45	71 45	53 64	99 89	57 36	84 54	43 32	41 26	4	
417 50	40	52 9	42 3	42 5	49 4	52 8	37 7	$\frac{22}{6}$	35 2	21 1	24 2	1 1	
474 379	33 26	47 41	52 39	38 29	46 34	59 51	64	42 31	50 42	21 16	18 16	3	
2, 234	147	169	135	143	195	160	277 277	190	294	218	225	81	
375 882	34 71	45 109	30 94	33 78	38 91	36 80	68 115	29 88	42 79	12 39	7 33	1 5	
$\frac{120}{285}$	12 11	15 29	14 32	11 39	14 35	7 40	19 36	16 28	7 15	3 6	13	<u>î</u>	
370 293	36 27	52 43	64 32	49 32	38 32	41 33	44 39	$\frac{15}{21}$	19 17	8. 8	4 6	3	
$\frac{220}{544}$	22 54	33 121	23 63	29 50	34 66	23 52	22 47	18 26	7 40	1 13	6	$\frac{3}{2}$	
1, 096 747	68 51	152 101	96 66	122 76	142 89	108 69	154 106	88 63	84 64	40 30	34 24	8	
1,011	49 44	99 82	89 82	84 75	113	93 83	157 141	100	105 94	74	39	9	ļ.
350	33	103	46	48	100 31	25	36	89 9	15	70 2	36 2	9	i
1, 376 572	89 28	183 56	160 63	162 63	143 45	158 53	158 69	85 42	93 57	58 28	62 45	25 23	
194 208	16 18	33 36	22	25 23	15 25	23 26	23 26	12 10	11 10	5 6	3 6	1	ļ
82 122	1 13	4 21	8	14 13	10 18	10 10	14 17	7	6 5	4	3	1 3	
47 85	5 5	2 12	13	3	6 14	3 8	9	3	3	2	2		
102	7	15 26	8	16	5	14	19	7 7	3	7	1		
114 224	4 18	38	21	11 30	18 23	14 22	17 22 57	19	2 16	1 11	<u>2</u>	2	
400 85	30 3 13	49 14	10	41 10	34 12	42 11	11	40 7	25 3	22 3	4 1		
160 1,825	13 119	18 182	28	15 142	19 168	10 171	$\frac{24}{283}$	5 168	15 204	6 132	$\frac{5}{102}$	2 17	ĺ
1, 724 102	108	168	127	129	155 8	162 12	271 21	165 6	193 14	128	101	17	Ì
141	16	20	17	11	17	14	17	15	8	3	3		l
113 11	10 1	$\frac{19}{2}$	2	16 1	8 2	12 1	11 1	6	8	5 1			
52 20	4	10 3	2	6 1	9	1	5 3	2 3	3	1	1		
155 53	7	30 6	17	14	18	19	16 5	12 2	11 5	5 3	4	2	

Individual income tax returns for 1934, Forms 1040-A, and 1040, classified by returns by net income ILLINOIS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	f dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7-10
1 2 2 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 4 15 5 16 17 18 19 20 1 22 23 24 4 25 5 27 28 29 30 31	Rock Island. Moline Rock Island. Saint Clair. Belleville. East St. Louis. Saline. Sangamon. Springfield. Schuyler. Scott. Shelby. Stark Stephenson. Tazewell. Union. Vermillon. Danville. Wabash. Warren. Washington. Wayne White. Whiteside. Will. Joliet. Williamson. Winnebago Rockford. Woodford. Woodford.	1, 608 638 811 3, 116 2, 008 2, 1150 2, 1150 2, 1159 277 533 233 516 6629 877 980 815 611 141 141 202 1, 445 1, 396 202 1, 441 1, 396 21, 411 1, 411 92 836	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	66 33 32 256 66 33 32 256 66 878 77 399 124 11 3 3 12 2 2 27 750 3 3 100 8 8 5 6 6 6 42 12 2 556 53 32 20 48	6699 2622 2811 1, 3522 2811 9300 499 77 1866 2988 225 3022 2488 77 91 673 366 629 663 288 2235	237.7 99 31 113 503 31 16 331 16 301 14 4 4 4 3 3 4 4 19 175 150 6 6 4 4 3 362 28 3 40 205 198 13 151 151	222 217 5 8 8 3 588 54 14 101 91 16 19 21 21 167 130 24 106 103	179 155 14 15 6 2 8 36 315 234 39 206 204 15	103 171 222 248 244 566 627 111 91 8 19 222 177 28 222 177 34 195 195	444 211 222 64 211 37 57 57 57 1 1 100 9 9 3 3 27 24 1 1 3 3 3 1 2 2 4 5 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 6	11 11 5 4 4 4 3 3 3 3	1
32 33	and nonresident aliens. Total, Illinois	184, 414	456	7, 598	64, 924	31, 357	19, 324	27, 565	 25, 872	6, 918	386	14

INDIANA-FORM 1040-A

1	Adams											
		125	2	13	44	17	16	15	13	5	1 1	- 1
2	Allen.	3, 344	2 5	135	1, 447	472	308	518	369	76		
3	Fort Wayne 1	3, 266	5	127	1, 398	464	304	514	364	76		
4	Bartholomew	143	u	7	42	26	21	25	17	4	17	
5	Benton.	57	2	8	16	5	2	16	7	î	^ -	
6	Blackford	103	ĩ	8	29	14	15	26	ģ	î	-	
7	Boone.	83	*.	5	32	13	8	18	ő	î	1	
8	Brown.	~~š		١ ٧	02	ĭ	٦,	2		-	^ -	
ğ	Carroll	26		2	6	10	3	3	2		-	
10	Cass.	312	2	15	101	55	45	49	33	9	3	
ii	Clark	256	3	14	117	44	23	31	19	5	" -	
12	Clay	127		9	43	22	10	24	14	5		
13	Clinton	233	3	18	67	38	30	47	26	3		
14	Crawford	12	·	1.7	2	3	00	5			71-	
15	Daviess.	159	1	13	38	16	28	39	20	4	* -	
16	Dearborn.	187	•	13	75	33	16	30	16	3		
17	Decatur	92		5	27	15	10	18	14	1	5 -	
18	De Kalb.	278	1	15	55	32	72	61	32	á	1 71-	
19	Delaware	869	1	41	339	103	69	160	120	30		
20	Muncie.	811	î.	35	307	98	63	154	118	29	6	
21	Dubois.	91	1 1	4	25	18	8	18	14	23		
22	Elkhart.	735	- 1	53	203	102	99	157	90	26		
23	Elkhart	575		36	159	81	77	124	73	22	3 -	
24	Fayette	180		11	58	44	17	23	18	8	1)-	
25	Floyd	465	2	19	160	79	43	80	64	17	1 -	
26	New Albany	447	2	19	154	76	41	75	62	17		
27	Fountain.	68	1	2	21	16	71	12	6	10		
28	Franklin	35	9		8	5		5	1	-	^ -]
29	Fulton	61	-	12	14	6	.	7	14	~ <u>1</u>	-	
30	Gibson	170		12	41	21	27	38	24	5	; -	
31	Grant	512	1	21	173	104	43	79	71	15		
32	Greene	90	1	11	23	14	10	17	11	10	4	- 1
33	Hamilton	130	2	10	39	16	17	17	21	9		
34	Hamilton Hancock	98	2	4	33	10	12	15	21	8	-	
35	Harrison	98 46	ī	2	15	10	4	15	7	2	-	
36		102				13				1	' -	
37	Hendricks.	296	1 3	9 12	35 114	27	14 33	15 51	12 49	3 5	2	
31	Henry	4901	31	12	114	211	991	116	49	9	1 21.	1

 $^{^1}$ Cities of 100,000 and over population,

ILLINOIS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total	,		. <u> </u>	Net ir	come c	lasses (i	n thouse	nds of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
1, 022 385 497 1, 624 504 835 157 1, 657 1, 472 53 67 124 436 427 870	4 5 6 2 46 23 13 88	130	101 32 48 198 58 104 8 179 149 7 16 3 43 40 5 107	84 27 41 152 51 72 10 153 135 4 6 18 4 35 59 4 9	120 29 70 186 57 91 29 156 135 6 2 39 14 2 39 45 14	116 48 55 159 39 86 31 166 147 12 8 8 11 7 47 47 47 75	131 47 70 184 49 100 20 239 203 9 8 8 14 3 49 62 10 109	75 30 32 315 36 70 10 134 126 2 3 3 6 33 36, 33 38, 35	100 53 41 127 43 69 11 150 145 3 8 8 11 3 42 31 31	67 28 29 85 34 39 7 7 80 75 3 2 4 11 23 17 13	16 27 5 52 51 1 2 1 23 11 1 29	6 	4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
566 85 193 62 42 79 288 878 695 190 1, 011 947 203 606	56 11 9 6 5 6 23 46 21 62 56 24 52 56	72 12 15 5 9 90 30 95 64 29 81 73 32 85	66 66 26 4 27 80 55 16 75 21 76	57 12 12 7 7 2 10 19 81 66 27 80 72 27 51	57 10 24 8 6 11 30 87 73 27 97 90 30	47 111 15 8 5 6 28 79 58 17 129 116 41	75 13 29 13 7 10 47 143 119 26 147 143 33 75	42 4 19 5 1 6 65 25 77 65 13 86 81 7	45 44 222 3 3 9 27 95 83 5 123 120 72	26. 1 14 1 2 2 15 41 37 3 59 57 3	35 27 5 63 63	$\frac{2}{1}$	19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
111,834	7, 554	10, 788	9, 132	8, 809	9, 777	9, 725	14, 521	9, 882	13, 577	8, 273	7,849	1, 947	32

INDIANA-FORM 1040

ī	107	10	12	6	13	25	15	9	4	Q	3	1	
-	107 1, 585 1, 533 238	10 110	168	6 173	163	169	160	193	4 119	9 167	3 87 86	70	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
	1, 533	105	161	163 29 6 9	154 26	163	156	190	117	164	86	70 68 12	6 2 6 3
1	238	14 7 8	25	29	26	17	27	26	17	25	16	12	4
1	51	7	$^{7}_{12}$	6	7 9	4 11	4 9 12	4 9	3 4	4	1 7	4	- 5
-	92 108	6	15	10	12	12	19	16	9	7 5	7	3	- 5
	1	٧	1	10	**	12	12			ľ	· 'l		8
İ	39	8	10	1 22 13 17	8	1	2	7		9			9
1	199 126 141	15	28 17	22	31	1 24 14 15	22 12 16	26 17 17	7	9	8	7	_ 10
1	126	. 8	17	13	9	14	12	17	13 6 12	10 13 17	6	4	3 11
-1	141	10	24 17	17 19	16 19	15 24	16 29	30	6	13	4 10	3	2 13
-	202	19	3	19	2	24	1	30	12	14	10	4	2 13
	21 105	3	19	14	14	4 8	15	14	4	12	, ,	2	15
	123	6	9	îî	14	16	16	13	12	12 14	4	2	1 16
	105	8	22	16	15	12	6	9	5	7	2	3	17
	165	8 15 8 10 19 2 3 6 8 13 27 24	27	22	20	10	14	15 77 70	5 9 63 56	12	12	10	1 18
1	638	27	67	58	51	54 50 12 92 57	59	77	63	75 70	45	42 2 39 1	0 19
	576	24	64 18	52 7	46 6	50	55 4	9	5 5	70	40	39 1	20
-	18	50	80	60	45	02	94	80	34	51	4 27	31	1 21 6 22
	372	6 50 31	52	68 43	30	57 57	6	40	25	36	20	26	6 23
-	204	19	30	22	30 27	18	17	23	14	20	6	8	24
	302	18	35	33	32	34 31	44	38	18	20 22	16	12	25
	279	15	32 8	33	28	31	41	34	18	21	16	10	_ 26
ı	638 576 78 588 372 204 302 279 90 63 70 110	19 18 15 9 7 9	8	10	9	18 9 3 21 34	10	40 23 38 34 11 8 7	4	21 5 3 6 5 33	16 2 1 3	3	1 27
ł	63	7	14 14	3 8 8 28 7	10 6	9	3	8	4 6	3	1	2	- 28
	110	10	19	0	14	91	11	13	1	5	3	1	29
- 1	335	16		28	30	34	11 37	48	4 27	33	4 29	21	5 31
1	118	14	12	7	17	9	20	48 17 15	9	4	6	3	32
1	120	9	22	10 7	8i	14	16 8	15	8 10	$\frac{4}{12}$		4	2 33
1	118 120 102 39 104 204	16 14 9 7 2 6 12	15	7	12	14 14 7	8	19	10	6	4		. 34
1	39	2	5	4	.5	. 7	6	4	1 8 16	4		1	35
	104	6	11 25	12 13	15 21	15 22	12 24	12 31	10	5	5	3	36
Į	2041	12	25	13	21	22	24	. 21	16	21	11	· • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	r. 3/

1258-38--3

INDIANA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total num-		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	57	7-10
1	Howard	397		21	131	 55	41	66	69	13	1	
1 2	Kokomo	374		21	124	49	39	61	66	13	1	
3 4	HuntingtonJackson	216 145	- 5	14 8	54 44	32 18	30 33	51 24	22 16	6	2	
5	Jasper	42			12	11	3	6	4	î	.	
6	Jay	125		5 7	40	31	6	21	14	5	1	
7	Jefferson.	64		3	13	15 9	9	9 7	11	4		
8	Jennings Johnson	48 128		15	15 49	18	12 17	16	10	3	1	
10	Knox.	275	ī	16	95	32	31	45	43	12		
11	Kosciusko	134	1	16	39	21	16	20	18	3		
12 13	Lagrange	6. 160	<u>i</u> i	1 170	2, 828	3 1, 117	443	808	648	110	25	
14	East Chicago.	1, 248	2	41	681	207	58	112	114	27	6	
15	Gary 1	2,007	3	39	932	305	131	296	249	41	11	
16	Hammond	1,641	2	46	646	320	160	265	171	24	7	
17 18	La Porte Michigan City	668 357	1	56 23	242 136	93 51	69 35	105 56	83 47	18 9	1	
19	Lawrence	170	2	14	41	30	23	43	12	4	i	
20	Madison	1, 247	2	41	543	152	123	202	143	32	8	1
21	Anderson	956 12, 568	1 29	24 506	433 4, 610	113 1,819	91 1, 324	160 2, 110	107	20 400	7 57	
22 23	Marion Indianapolis 1	12, 382	$\begin{vmatrix} \tilde{2}^{3} \\ 27 \end{vmatrix}$	496	4, 538	1, 798	1, 306	2, 072	1, 711 1, 691	396	56	2
24	Marshall	155	2	11	44	15	18	33	25	6	i	
25	Martin	12		3	5	2	1		1			
26 27	Miami	290 238	3	22 24	66 67	48 36	54 23	60 47	33 34	6 4		
28	Montgomery	217		15	74	25	15	44	36	8		
29	Morgan	64		1	22	12	5	9	10	4	1	
30	Newton	44	1	3 7	12	.8	11	4	4		1	
31 32	Noble	92	3	7	32 4	10	12	16	8	4		
33	Orange	50	i	2	21	5	5	<u>8</u>	8			
34	Owen.	37		1	13	7 7	7	5	3	1		
35	Parke	47	1	4	17		8	8	,1	1 3		
36 37	Perry	77 65	1	10 5	22 16	16 8	11	16	11	3		1
38	Porter	270		28	96	31	32	46	29	7	i	
39	Posey	67		6	18	11	10	14	7	1		
40 41	PulaskiPutnam	18 173		9	4 39	32	2 23	$\frac{2}{34}$	2 28	6	1 2	
42	Putnam Randolph	172	1	14	52	30	30	24	20	ĭ		
43	Ripley	56		9	18	6	8	9	5	1		
44	Rush	62 2, 529	3 7	4 114	17 969	10 317	248	12	10 349	1 65	16	
45 46	St. Joseph	2, 529 304	l í.	28	132	44	248	443 35	29	7	ı ı	1
47	South Bend 1	2, 145	6	81	812	262	205	397	309	57	15	1
48	Scott	24		1 7	4	5 17	1	8	4 36	1		
49 50	ShelbySpencer	144 22	1	4	43 7	3	11 3	23 2	36	5	1	
51	Starke	28		4	9	5	4	2	4			
52	Steuben	49		2	12	11	3	11	9	1		
53	Sullivan Switzerland	86 11	1	6	28 3	11	$^{13}_{\ 2}$	13	13 1	1		
54 55	Tippecanoe	643	1	32	238	99	55	117	81	19	i	
56	La Fayette	541	î	32 27	217	88	45	95	54	14		
57	Tipton	56	:	4	10	11	7	8	12	2	2	
58 50	Union Vanderburg	19 1, 957	1 4	2 85	704	6 323	227	321	226	58	6	3
59 60	Evansville 1	1, 948	4	82	702	322	227	319	225	58	6	3
61	Vermillion	98	3	6	42	14	12	16	5			
62	Vigo	1, 459	3	47	471	205	158	303	209	54	8	1
63 64	Terre Haute Wabash	1,419 143	3	47 8	457 42	200 22	150 23	296 26	204 17	53 4	8	1
65	Warren	27		2	5	4	20 5	3	8			
66	Warrick	90		8	30	$1\hat{5}$	12	11	13	1		
67	Washington	37		5	13	6	3	8	2			
68	Wayne.	657 561	3 2	36 33	230 190	94 83	90 81	103 89	81 68	17 14	3	
69 70	Richmond Wells	71		33	24	12	81	11	14	2	1 1	
71	White	49		4	14	9	7	9	5	ĩ		
71 72 73	Whitley	55		8	15	6	6	8	10	2		
73 74	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	1, 408	1	9	488	330	111	114	225	107	21	2
75	Total Indiana	43, 766	131	1. 984	16, 274	6. 704	4, 500	7, 124	5, 559	1, 265	213	12
_ '''	Town Hidisher	20, 100	101	1, 001	, 2. 1	0, 101	2, 7700	.,	V, 000	-, 200	210	

¹Cities of 100,000 and over population.

INDIANA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net in	come c	lasses (ii	thouse	ands of	dollars)			-	T :
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
279 247 197 162 79 96 75 32	18 17 13 7 10 7 5 4	39 34 38 20 19 11	23 21 31 18 6 7 14	22 20 21 21 7 5 7	31 26 22 22 22 10 4 7	27 22 23 17 5 10 3	31 26 20 12 8 15 17 3	26 22 6 14 5 9 6	33 31 14 19 4 14 11	12 12 6 6 4 6	15 14 3 5 1 8	1	1 2 3 4 6 5 7 8
122 294 148 44 2, 228 402 721	6 20 13 8 164 33 50	12 35 19 1 346 87	17 32 22 4 234 44 77	13 40 15 8 266 58 76	8 13 30 24 7 247 38 79	2 9 20 19 5 221 46 73	19 36 15 4 264 34 119	9 23 9 4 151 14 55	8 29 4 2 189 29 53	9 16 6 1 88 13 33	7 12 2 51 4 25	1 7 2	9 10 11 12 13 14 15
574 560 310 125 605 436 6, 680 6, 559 172	36 33 15 12 32 25 369 361 19	83 114 63 13 54 42 644 634 37	53 66 45 14 54 29 548 534 20	52 30 14 64 44 523 516 13	66 60 35 11 54 36 604 587 37	63 56 29 8 55 37 621 603	61 63 36 23 93 62 810 796 23	44 36 20 12 48 36 616 607	58 36 18 11 66 56 865 852	25 16 6 5 47 40 505 498 2	14 26 12 2 34 25 467 464 2	77 22 22 22 11 	16 17 18 19
19 171 285 208 81 45 172 8 63	2 17 15 13 7 3 7 1	3 24 42 20 9 6 32	3 21 30 25 12 5 28 1 6	1 14 32 24 4 7 19 2 9	3 20 34 29 12 6 16 1	3 21 32 23 8 1 20 2	4 17 34 29 8 10 21 1	8 26 11 5 1	13 15 17 10 4 8	8 15 7 5 1 4	7 9 9 1 1 6	1 1 1 1	20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32
22 38 48 38 191 64 28 93	1 1 4 15 7 2 6 9	6 2 9	2 11 4 6 36 5 2 13	5 2 22 10 4 7	1 4 4 3 22 8 2	4 2 4 6 2 15 3 4	2 11 8 8 22 4 7	4 6 2 7 4 2 6	3 1 2 2 5 4 1	3 1 3 4 5	4 2	1	34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41
142 70 108 1, 565 205 1, 307 18 196	6 7 121 18 102	15 11 212 35 167 2 22	20 5 16 125 23 93 2 20	17 9 8 131 18 110 1	14 3 17 156 23 127 4 20	17 5 8 139 17 114	20 15 18 214 29 176 4 28	6 6 7 97 8 8 88 2 18	12 1 9 180 21 157 2 14	3 3 5 101 4 93 1 8	7 2 2 75 8 67	14 1 13	42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49
40 61 75 109 11 490 399 63	5 4 6 9 2 45 36 2	8 12 12 16 16 43 10	9 7 16 2 38 31 5	4 8 11 9 47 41 5	1 11 7 9 1 56 50 6	2 8 11 11 1 36 29	7 4 7 14 1 78 58 12	4 2 5 9 2 42 35 5	2 6 7 1 38 29	3 2 28 24 5	3 4 23 20 5	3 3 3	50 51 52 53 54 55 56
35 1, 101 1, 089 92 952 926 148 32 71	1 60 60 11 65 61 13	3 116 114 17 72 68 16 8	5 86 84 9 85 80 17 5	5 96 96 8 60 60 18 4	103 102 12 74 74 19 2	101 99 11 85 81 12 2	4 154 153 10 132 129 14	3 103 101 5 93 93 12 5	3 129 128 7 119 115 16	1 68 67 1 70 69 8	1 67 67 1 80 79 2	18 18 17 17 17	58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65
71 43 579 460 103 62 70 185	4 7 42 32 6 1 6 18	14 11 85 65 15 12 16 18	58 40 11 7 5 11	5 2 60 44 10 6 9	17 11 51 44 14 11 8 11	2 5 3 59 49 9 5 6	9 4 51 41 14 11 4 31	2 1 37 35 9 4 7	7 3 49 37 8 4 2 25	2 1 38 30 1	1 44 38 5 1 1 8	5 5 1 3 6	66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73
26, 466	1, 784	3, 266	2, 570	2, 503	2, 761	2, 509	3, 344	2, 032	2, 651	1, 487	1, 300	259	74 75

IOWA-FORM 1040-A

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1 2 3 4 5 6	Adair	52 13 44 102 45 97 1, 149 1, 050	2 1 2 3 5	7 1 7 10 6 8 62 59	17 2 15 33 14 31 492 460	10 4 7 17 9 16 158 139	5 3 6 14 5 16 122 108	6 2 2 18 3 10 165 148	5 3 5 4 7 120 107	2 5 1 4 28 27	1	
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15	Waterloo. Boone Bremer Buchanan Buena Vista Butler Calhoun Carroll Cass	280 71 61 120 26 78 174 89	2 2 2 4 1	23 7 9 8 3 10 23	76 27 21 44 11 22 59 24	47 11 7 22 2 10 36 10	108 42 7 7 16 2 7 22 19	12 12 12 17 15	31 8 17 14 7 11 9	2		
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24	Cedar Cerro Gordo Cherokee Chickasaw Clarke Clay Clayton Clinton	57 596 110 40 22 129 84 758	5 7 3 6	14 24 12 4 3 14 11 62	21 240 35 15 6 37 32 313	6 89 13 6 3 27 18 125	8 49 13 5 5 19 6 94	102 16 5 2 10 10 86	2 64 11 5 3 13 4 56	27 5 2 16	1	
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32	Clinton Crawford Dallas Davis Decatur Delaware Des Moines Burlington	633 101 198 20 25 48 549 520	1 15 5 2	45 24 21 2 2 4 37 33	261 29 58 4 14 196 186	105 12 24 8 4 4 85 80	79 10 37 2 8 71 64	80 6 30 2 2 11 84 84	48 3 19 5 59 57	14 2 4 3 2 15 14	1 1	
33 34 35 36 37 38 39 40 41	Dickinson Dubuque Dubuque Emmet Fayette Floyd Franklin Fremont Greene	54 943 891 891 167 94 51 59	3 9 8 2 1	9 57 50 6 14 9 7	18 348 325 23 83 35 16 13 20	9 144 139 17 17 15 7 7	9 105 101 14 26 7 9 6 14	132 125 17 25 8 3 10	106 102 8 7 11 6 8	38 37 3 1 3 1 3 6	3 3 1	1
42 43 44 45 46 47 48 49	Grundy. Guthrie. Hamilton. Hancock. Hardin. Harrison. Henry. Howard	22 38 98 49 116 87 73 37	1 6 3	6 13 2 12 14 6 5	3 12 36 19 38 26 29	8 7 19 13 18 15 17	4 3 9 5 14 8 7	3 4 6 4 24 6 6	5 13 4 8 11 5	1 1 2 1 2 2	1	
50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57	Humboldt Ida Iowa Jackson Jasper Jefferson Johnson	58 102 45 88 242 90 307 62	11 2 2 2 2 5	11 35 3 13 25 9 27 5	12 18 9 33 98 30 111 26	6 12 7 15 35 14 67 8	15 10 5 11 21 7 18 6	5 11 3 11 33 10 36 7	5 6 3 19 16 35	4 1 1 9 2 8		
58 59 60 61 62 63 64 65	Keokuk. Kossuth Lee Linn Cedar Rapids Louisa Lucas. Lyon	78 127 592 1, 789 1, 642 47 96 55	1	14 10 47 76 71 14 9	40 227 722 676 14 35 16		8 17 76 205 187 8 19			2 4 11 45 42 1		
66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73	Madison. Mahaska. Marion Marshail Mills. Michell Monona. Mouroe Montgomery.	45 167 134 266 68 71 88 32 117	1 2 1 6 1 6	24 11 19 11 6 17	40 61 104 20 32 26 14	18 8 7 2	6 23 12 29 6 9 8 2	5 7 9	3 21 9 16 2 8 13 1	13 2	1	
74 75 76	Muscatine	293	2	21	110	49	22	49	33	7		

IOWA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		No	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3–4	45	5-7	7–10
1 2 3 4 5 5 6 6 7 8 8 9 100 111 12 133 14 15 6 116 117 18 18 19 20 1 22 22 23 30 31 32 33 34	Osceola. Page Palo Alto Plage Palo Alto Plymouth Pocahontas. Polk Des Moines 1 Pottawattamie Council Bluffs Poweshiek Ringgold Sac. Scott. Davenport Shelby Sioux Story Tama Taylor Union Van Buren Wapello Ottumwa Warren Washington Wayne. Webster Winneshiek Woodbury Sioux City Worth Wright Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	53 175 444 955 73 5,655 5,453 1,055 912 133 101 1,588 81 101 233 130 22 583 130 247 641 2476 411 85 2,261 2,142 2,	1 6 6 1 1 4 4 3 3 10 0 9 9 11 1 2 2 1 1 1 7 2 2 2 2 3 3 2	4 16 14 10 19 9 2799 423 13 11 13 677 122 14 4 4 28 8 15 4 4 32 2 4 4 10 105 85 4 4 13 3 4	18	9 9 19 49 19 9 8100 6161 1444 21 2 2633 251 11 1 19 9 400 18 8 566 8 8 4 4 18 2297 21 14 15	3 27 27 7 612 123 1099 14 22 14 137 130 111 155 200 11 2 27 3 3 44 700 4 13 2 2 2 12 12 13 13 10 10 11 11 12 2 13 13 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	7 7 32 4 12: 4 12: 4 12: 4 15: 6 13: 5 13:	8 8 19 5 5 6 6 8 8 715 5 6 6 10 0 15 188 8 8 22 2 5 10 0 2 2 5 1 4 4 3 3 26 33 2 6 5 5 7 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	3 2 2 1 1 3 3 1 1 2 2 3 5 5 2 2 1 1 4 5 5 4 4 4 2 2 7 7 3 3 8 8 2 4 4 7 7 7 7 3 7 9 7 7	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
35	Total Iowa	25, 978	280	1,858	9, 719	3, 920	2, 915	3, 702	2, 751	801	31	1

KANSAS-FORM 1040-A

						-						
١,	Allen	88	1	8	17	21	15	15	9	2		
2	Anderson	40	•	ı A	14	8	7	3	2	5		
3	Atchison	177	2	23	46	23	30	29	16	8		
4	Barber	22	- 4	20	9	9	90	1	10			
5	Barton	137		5	44	32	16	$2\hat{4}$	12			
				20	33	26	23	35		5		
6	Bourbon	148			18	10	7	5		-		
	Brown.	52	Z	5				33				
8	Butler	239	1	20	98	47	15		20	5		
9	Chase	26		4	11	2	3	6				
10	Chautaugua	14			5	3	6					
11	Cherokee	84	1	13	24	12	12	9		1		
12	Cheyenne	9			2	ļ			3	2		1
13	Clark	20		1	9	4	3		2	1		
14	Clay	30		8	7	4	4	2		1		
15	Cloud	91		3	49	8	9	14	5	3		
16	Coffey.	22		1	5	8	4	2	1	1		
17	Comenche	8		1	2	1	1	1	1	1		ļ
18	Cowley	358		19	119	54		64		12		ll
19	Crawford	308		25	97	42	47	53	37	7		
20	Decatur			1	6	2		2	1	2		
21	Dickinson	220	2	15	74	42	39	29	14	5		
22	Doniphan	1 28	-	5		-3				2		
23	Douglas	250	3			52			25	4		
24	Edwards	4			· 1	-		1 1				
25	Elk	11		2	l il	4	ĺ ĩ	•	3			
26	Ellis	67		9		$1\bar{2}$		9	1 4			
27	Ellsworth	60		10		15	-6			1	1	
28	Finney	46		6		12	3	7		i	_ ^	
29	Ford	124		18		19		18		1 4		
30	Franklin	102	<u>،</u>	14		15						
		102		8		14						
31	Geary	120		1 1		14	3		1 19	1 0	*	
32	Gove	10		1 1	Į Đị		1 3		1 1			

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

IOWA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
111 245 109 109 159 155 3, 231 3, 097 782 610 156 35 180 1, 177 1, 070 128 152 320 153 33 43 45 153 33 447 71 164 447 71 89	6 15 8 8 8 11 13 146 141 141 141 141 141 141 141 141 141	21 32 24 361 361 30 110 80 27 7 152 28 29 26 7 7 7 13 22 26 35 35 29 36 35 29 36 36 37 36 37 36 37 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38 38	18 27 23 367 341 122 99 24 7 37 149 132 22 22 22 29 9 9 9 9 69 13	111 29 23 21 318 302 94 94 70 21 11 106 122 54 4 53 44 81 82 55 55	13 27 15 16 25 299 280 93 93 17 7 20 112 115 15 38 19 3 3 17 5 5 37 11 16 4 4	10 30 30 24 14 331: 332 81 169 20; 3 123 123 120 66 66 65 56 46 41 13 3 48 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49 49	14 48 111 13 15 390 373 95 71 18 3 21 123 123 12 18 41 10 10 3 3 14 41 10 5 5 49 9 9 22 3 3 3 12 11 5 5 7 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	7 14 7 7 26 20 40 33 7 1 12 71 66 5 5 6 12 22 22 23 24 23 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	4 15 4 4 5 6 6 348 345 50 50 348 1 1 3 105 598 1 18 7	3 7 1999 1999 34 32 1 1 3 84 82 2 2 4 4 6 6 5 1 25 24 4 1 1 4 3 3 1 3 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5 1 5	3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9
153 1, 539 1, 390 66 213 110	13 93 77 8 15 4	36 169 144 15 34 10	29 197 177 9 34 8	19 188 164 6 32 16	18 147 136 6 32 12	12 178 164 6 24 4	13 185 169 8 27 17	3 104 93 4 9 10	7 140 133 3 4 11	3 77 74 1 2 1	50 48 12	11 11 5	30 31 32 33 34
24, 699	1, 676	3, 812	3, 570	3, 016	2, 722	2, 513	2, 765	1, 331	1, 625	924	633	112	35

KANSAS-FORM 1040

,	,												
135		26	10	15	10	10	91	۰	8		1	1	١,
62	111 2 62 200 122 143 133 133 433 433 5 5 5 5 166 6 6 6 6 111 113 29 5 5 5 7 7 29	26 12 39	10 6 20 20 78 21	15 8 23 19 77	18 9 29	10 3 32	21 6 28 18	8 6 17 5	1 %	4	7		1 2
231	200	20	90	02	90	20	90	17	4 10	6	6	1 1	2
121	10	16	20	10	12	10	10	11	6	0	1	1 ;	1 3
145	14	53	70	77		35	72	94	29	11	11	1	‡
448 171	14	26	91	16	99	19	21	24 11	11	11 7	11	~	1 2
134	10	20	21	16 17 62 11 5	22	9	21	11	5	'	1 7		9
101	10	20	23 57	20	20	90	22 39 5	10	20	15	12		6
401	40	64 10 11	16	11	90	32 6	99	10	20 2 1	1.0	10		2
00	3	10	10	11	0	91	9	9	1	1	1		10
401 66 59 230	္ကိ	33	23	24	9	99	19	99	1 14	1 1 9	8		10
230	23	33 5	10	34 5 3 24 14	44 22 20 38 6 9 28 5 6 15 22 11	4 22 3 6 12 12	13 10 6 16 28 3	4 18 3 5 222 3 1 10 16 3 2 23 23	14 2 4 9 17	9		1	11
1 10	1.5	7	10	91	9	3	10	3	1 4	5	1		12
146	13	18	10	04	10	10	10	10	#	6			10
142	10	30	5 18 17	24	10	12	10	10	177	1 2 2 9	4		14
46 53 142 172 51	9	30	14	14	22	12	28	10	17				10
} 21	1 1	3	8	4		12 3 40	3	<u>ن</u>	2	4			16
54	13	10	4 60 62	12 69 68 15 46 6 49 17	4 52 63 7 25 9 37	3	4 40 37	2	31 25		<u>-</u>		17
449	29	76	60	69	52	40	40	23	31	20	8		18
45/	39	68	62	68	63	40	37		25	14	16	2	19
81	5	19	11	15	.71	11	6	4.	2		1		20
333	15	44	56	46	25	35	51	28	20	7	6		21
57	7	44 11 57	4 48 21	6	9	5 36 8	51 10 42 13 7	2	1 24 6 3	2 9			22
365	29	57	48	49	37	36	42	24	24		9	1	23
133	14	22	21	17	23	8	13	8	6	1			24
48	4	1	5	10	10	1	7	5	3	2			25
160	18	29 17	15	11	22	23 21	27	5	6	2	1	1	26
184	5	17	29	24	10 22 19 21	21	27 30	14	10	9	5	1	27
449 457 81 333 57 365 133 48 160 184 194	18 5 23 39	42	15 29 21	26	21	14	15	4 28 24 8 5 14 13 15 2	10 12	1 2 2 9 6 7 3 5	1		28
345	39	66	52	45	36	30	34	15	15	7	5	1	29
189	14	35	25	24	26	19	20	2	13 14	3	7	1	30
150 48	14 12 7	27	12	11 24 26 45 24 19 5	36 26 12 5	10	34 20 23 6	10	14	5	6		1 1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 10 11 11 11 13 13 11 14 15 11 16 16 17 17 18 18 11 19 20 22 22 33 22 42 25 28 22 93 30 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31
48	7	11	8	5	5	4	6	1		1			32

KANSAS-FOBM 1040-A-Continued

-		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10
1	Graham	4		1		3						
$egin{array}{c} 1 \ 2 \end{array}$	Grant.	2			1		1					
3	Gray	7	1	1	3		2					
4 5	GreeleyGreenwood	4 61	₁	1	24	$\frac{2}{10}$	8	1 7	5			
6	Hamilton	3	1	6	24	10	ů					
7	Harper	49		3	18	9	5	6	6	2		
6 7 8 9	Harvey	268		16	85	42	33	54	26	12		
10	Haskell Hodgeman	7			2	4	1					
11	Jackson	32	1	3	13	11	1	1	1	1		
12	Jefferson	10		2	4		2	1	1			
13 14	Jewell Johnson	39 194	2	1 23	15 44	32	4 37	9 26	5 21	2 8		
15	Kearny	7	$\frac{2}{2}$	20	3	1		1	1			
16	Kingman	46	1	4	18	10	1	5	3	3	1	
17 18	Kiowa Labette	250		30	3 58	38	1 58	50	2 14	2		
19	Lane	200		30	3	1	2		1	î		
20	Leavenworth	472	3	29	137	106	2 47	60	62	28		
21 22	Lincoln Linn	9 27	-	<u>-</u>	5 5	$\frac{1}{7}$	9	3	1 1			
22	Logan	6		1	1	í	ı	1	i	1		
23 24 25	Lyon	272	2	24	85	38	61		20	2	1	
$\frac{25}{26}$	McPherson	212 47	2	18	94 15	36 8	19 4	24	15	4		
26 27	Marion Marshall	88		5 9	29	11	12		8			
28	Meade	7		4	1			2				
29	Miami	126	2	9	25	20	34	28	10		-	
$\frac{30}{31}$	Mitchell Montgomery	51 369	3	20	17 129	16 46	8 53	2 65	31	12		
32	Morris	41		29 5	10	12	5	6	2	1		
33	Morton	15		1 2	4	3	3					
34 35	Nemaha Neosho	15 104	1	4 11	25	13	1 20	3 25	7	<u>i</u>	1	
36	Ness.	14	<u>-</u>	1	6	4				î		
37	Norton	13		2 2 1	7	1	3		3		;	
38 39	Osage Osborne	25 25		1	14 9	2			2 2	1	1	
40	Ottawa	19		3	6	5 4	5	1	1	i		
41	Pawnee	42		3	12	6	5	9	7 2	- -		
42 43	Phillips Pottawatomie	18 46	3	3 2 9 7	14	6	3	1 5	4	₁		
44	Pratt	89		7	18	14		17	12			
45	Rawlins	9		1 17 12	5			80	2]]
46 47	Reno Hutchinson	395 252	$\frac{2}{2}$	17	90 31	97 76	45 24		46 33	17 16	1	
48	Republic	43		3	15	4	6	10	2	3		
49	Rice	82	1	3 8	23 39	15	13	9	8	5		- -
50 51	Riley Rooks	125 11	1	18 1	39	19	15		11			
52	Rush	10			3	4	2	1				
53	Russell	48		1	21	10			1	1		
54 55	Saline	304 7		10	111	45	36		41	10	1	
56	Sedgwick Wichita 1		5	115	979	298	242	351	275	79	10	
57	Wichita 1	2, 354 2, 297	4	112	959	291	236	339	270	77		
58 59	Sewara	32		82	10	263	173	228	182	30	5	
59 60	Shawnee Topeka	1, 736 1, 692	6	82	767 751	258	167		178			
61	Sheridan	7		3		1	2	2				
62	Sherman	56	- -	3	16	7 2	11		7	1		
63 64	SmithStafford	14 23		5 3	4 4	2	6	6 6	2			
65	Stanton	2	j		1			. 1			-	
66	Stevens	13		2	6	1	1	1 2				
67 68	Sumner Thomas	113 20		7	35		13			2	1	
69	Trego	7		2 7 2 1					i			
70	Wabaunsee	14	1	1 3	8 2 5 5	3	2		2			
$\frac{71}{72}$	Wallace Washington	15 20		3 6	5	1 3 3 7	3		1			
73	Wasnington Wichita	20			4 2	1 1		11	\ ¹			
	,	·				-						

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

KANSAS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	come c	lasses (ii	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	01	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Li N
31 50 48 12	1 2 10	6 9 10	6 5 7 1	7 7 5	4 7 1	3 6 6	2 7 9	1 i	1 5	1 1			
185 25 132 354	3 20 1 10 15	38 2 12 44 8	19 6 17 54	32 5 14 50	24 3 13 35	21 1 18 45 3	11 2 25 44 5	3 1 12 29	10 2 7 19	3 1 1 8	4 1 2 10	1 1	
27 33 61 58 70 194	15 3 5 2 7 5 12	4 9 11 7 20	5 7 15 7 14 24	3 14 13 11 22	2 5 3 7 7 24	5 7 5 10 15	4 7 4 5	2 1 7	1 2 2 19	1 8	1 1 1 8	4	
25 97 54 262 39	4 7 4 12 7 30	7 6 15 45	3 11 10 37 9	17 5 35	2 9 5 30 2	2 8 6 30	4 22 5 41 3	1 7 3 7 7	2 8 1 10 2	7	8	1	
307 56 67 29 359	30 8 5 4 27 18 16	28 12 19 8 66	42 6 17 1 37	49 10 5 2 51	4 8 5 39	41 5 6 1 37	36 5 1 6 41	26 1 1 1 22	25 4 5 1 20	20 1	5		
481 167 182 44 150	18 16 13 7 10	46 27 33 7 17 23	71 28 40 6 21 12	60: 22: 23: 7: 19:	53 16 23 4 25	55 18 16 2 26 22	68 19 22, 7 15	42 8 10 2 7	36 2 1 2 7	14 11 1	16	2	
139 603 75 49 84 192	43 7 3 5	91 20 5 12 40	79 10 6 9 23	18 72 10 3 17	22 73 5 10 11 26	68 8 10 10	69 5 4 9	5 31 2 3 2 10	8 47 4 2 7 14	15 4 3 1 6	12 1 1 2	3	
60 91 70 69 90	4 9 9 5 4	8 29 12 11 14	9 9 11 15 15	17 6 15 11 14	13 6 6 13	10 11 4 8 13	4 6 9 6	1 3 1 4 4	3 5 2 2 3	3	1 1 1		
172 75 106 210 84 737	9 11 9 6 5 27 25 11	26 17 28 22 13 49	22 15 14 19 22 83	19 10 13 19 11 55	18 5 13 31 5 88	21 3 10 33 6 78	25 6 8 27 13 140	16 2 8 24 3 76	8 4 3 12 3 70	11 2 33	4 1 6 1 31	7	
562 125 230 270 64	25 11 8 20 8	40 23 20 45 8	66 20 24 52 12	38 20 25 30 6	69 17 27 29 10	56 9 35 24 13	98 11 43 33 2 14	56 9 14 18 3 7	54 4 15 13 2	33 25 13 2	28 1 6 4	<i>†</i>	
127 172 424 38 2, 802 2, 603	14 18 3 194	21 20 30 4 276 263	18 31 56 6 286 265	11 19 46 5 300	17 18 58 8 277 256	17 20 42 4 303 278	14 26 68 5 383 350	7 9 22 2 2 246 222	8 11 37 1 258 242	2 2 25 137 129	21 21 123 119	19	
1, 325 1, 277 31 85	184 12 92 85 2 11	13 119 111 10 16	265 8 143 139 8 15	277 10 140 137 1	11 129 123 2 7	10 114 110 1	16 183 173 6	5 123 121 1 1 4	242 8 133 132	8 84 83	58 56	7 7	
72 158 30 50 317		14 20 6 8 47	19 16 4 9	18 3 1 44	10 22 5 7 45 9	8 7 22 6 6 40	12 20 4 6 35 12	2 15 5 19	12 4 19	1 7 1 13	1 1	3	
105 51 48 40 68 17	5 1 3 22 9 1 7 6 4 5	8 9 5 12 22 2	28 22 6 8 3 12 2	12 6 4 5 10	9 4 6 5 7	13 6 4 8 4 2	12 12 7 1 1 1	5 5 3 5	9 2 4 3	1	5		

KANSAS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

	·	Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands o	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2,5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7~10
1	Wilson	81	1	9	21	10	12	19	8	1		
2	Woodson	17			6	4	2	2	3			
3	Wyandotte	2, 067	3	98 92	856	335	265		139	29	1	
4	Kansas City 1 Residents of other States	1, 999	2	92	835	329	2 56	324	132	28	1	
5	and nonresident aliens.	164		17	35	29	28	20	26	9		
6	Total Kansas	13, 872	58	963	5, 029	2, 235	1, 762	2, 105	1, 339	351	29	1

KENTUCKY-FORM 1040-A

		KE.	NTUC	KY—I	FURM	1040	<i>j</i> -A.					
1	Adair	7			1	1	1		4	,		
2	Allen	6			3	i			2	1		
3	Anderson	23			10	1	3	6	3			
4	Ballard	9			10	3	3	ĭ	٥			
5	Barren	54		9	11	9	9	9	5			
6	Bath	17		3	6	2	3	3	2	-		
7	Bell	149	*!	4	37	15	24	44	19	6		
8	Boone	36		1	18	6	6	3	2			
9	Bourbon	96		12	26	19	1ŏ	15	11	2	1	
10	Boyd.	585		13	176	80	45	129	106	31	5	
11	Ashland	530		10	156	73	42	116	99	29	5	
12	Boyle	139			27	22	25	37	21	-ĭ	Ů	
13	Bracken	23		š	6	-2	2	4	4	$\bar{2}$		
14	Breathitt	7		2	ĭ	$\bar{2}$	ī	1		ī		
15	Breckinridge	20		4	<u>-</u>	2	4	2	2			
16	Bullitt	20		11	8	1	4	3	2		1	
17	Butler	4		2		1			19			
18	Caldwell	28		1	8	6	4	5	4			
19	Calloway	17		2	1		4	5	5			
20	Campbell	1,846	ī	107	776	304	163	233	194	55	13	
21	Newport	665		49	354	112	54	48	38	9	1	
22	Carlisle	2			1	1						
23	Carroll	42	1	7	12	5	7	6	4			
24	Carter	17			10	2	2	1	1	1		
25	Casey	2			1		1					
26	Christian	161		18	32	27	28	24	23	8	1	
27	Clark	118	1	12	38	19	14	17	16	1		
28	Clay	4		1		1		1		1		
29	Clinton											
30	Crittenden.	20		1	3	8	2	4	2			
31	Cumberland	5				;		1	37	6	1 1	
32 33	Daviess	230 12		9	71 2	41 2	23 2	41 3	1	1	2	
	Edmonson			4	2	2	4	1	1	1		
34 35	Elliott	1		5		7	11	26	7	2		
36	Estill	1 167		64	348	182	150	212	156		1 0	
37	Fayette Lexington	1, 167 1, 153	2	60	343	180		211	155	45	8	
38	Floring	1, 133	-	1	4	100	149	211	100	40	l °	
39	Fleming Floyd	117		5	45	16	10	16	19	5	1	
40	Franklin	184	3	12	46	37	17	26	28	13	5	
41	Franklin Fulton	79	٥	7	20	7	1 7	21	10			
42	Gallatin	1 '5		i	20	•	' '	2.1	10	١ ،	1 1	
43	Garrard	25	1	4	4		ii		7	1	*	
44	Grant	33	1 1	4	10	7	6	<u>-</u>	5	l*		
45	Graves	61		4	14	6	7	9	20	1		
46	Grayson	11		, T	2	1	6	3	3	1		
47	Green	6			i	i	3		ĭ	1		
48	Greenup	116		2	23	23		40	8	1		
49	Hancock	7		1 1	1 1	1	18	2	1	l ^		
50	Hardin	116		9	33	17		25	17	1		
51	Harlan	262	1	10	76	37	31	48	45		4	
52	Harrison	52	1 -		12	8		8	7		ļ *	
53	Hart.	16		3 3 6	5	2		1	3			
54	Henderson	97	i	3	24	18		16	12			
55	Henry	24	1 *	6	6	4	2	ž	3			
56	Hickman	5		2	ا"۔۔۔۔ا	1	l	2				
57	Hopkins	114	i	2	29	25	17	19	18	3		
58	Jackson	3		1 ~	1		l î	i		l	1	
59	Jefferson	8,943		474	3, 289	1, 452		1, 311	1, 107	285	49	3
60	Louisville 1	8, 665			3, 203	1, 414					48	
61	Jessamine	32	1	5	0,208	7		4	3		l ĩ	J
-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	-			•		-	-	_		_	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

der 0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No
	92						ļ			0.61	
	11	13	13	15 6	11	12 2 90	6	2	2		
66 197 59 183	162	156 141	140 134	107 103	137 127	90 87	106 104	49 46	45 44	6 6	
10 17	6	9	15	20	16	7	14	7	11	2	
478 2,849	2, 684	2, 513	2, 279	2, 126	2, 578	1, 382	1, 396	698	542	69	
	10 17	10 17 6	10 17 6 9 78 2,849 2,684 2,513	10 17 6 9 15 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279	10 17 6 9 15 20 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126 2,578	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 7 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126 2,578 1,382	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 7 14	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 7 14 7 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126 2,578 1,382 1,396 698	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 7 14 7 11 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126 2,578 1,382 1,396 698 542	10 17 6 9 15 20 16 7 14 7 11 2 78 2,849 2,684 2,513 2,279 2,126 2,578 1,382 1,396 698 542 69

					KENT	UCK Y	-FOR	M 1040)			
4	1			1 2			3 2 4					
31	1	4	3	4	5	3	4	3	í	2	1	
6 55	7	7	$\frac{1}{2}$	5		8	6	4	3	3	2	
19 118	11	3 11			8 3 6	1 7	4	1 12	4 23	2		
118 22 195	2 9	3	4		3	1	4	3	23		5	
195 369	30	26 34		24 24	3 25 32	17 39	27 60	20 37	9 47	5 23	9 16	3
326	28	`30	18	18	27	38	51	33	44	22	16	1
143 35	10	12 3		16	16	11 3	19 4	9	13	9	9	-
10		3			5 2 3	1	l	3	ĩ			
30 7		4	4	5 2	$\begin{vmatrix} 3\\1 \end{vmatrix}$	4	2	4	1	1		
3			1	1							1	
61 43	5	12 5		12	7 9	6 5	6 3	2	3	$\frac{2}{2}$		
725 258	5 52 21	71	80	73	80	76	106	50	54	50	29	4
258 7	21	34	35	29 1	30	32 1	30	13	9	16	6	3
54	8	5	5	10	8	7	5	1	4	1		
$\frac{21}{5}$	[1	5 1	2	5 1	1	4	1	2	1	1	
138 192	4 7	$\frac{24}{28}$	20 35	10 18	3 22	14 16	15 21	21 10	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 12 \\ 17 \end{array}$	9 9	6	
5		1	1	10	1	10		10	2	9		
2 12		2			1	1	2		4			
9						1		2 2	4	1	1	
317	14	27 2	20	24	23 1	35	54 2	28	42	30	15	5
· · · · · · ·												
16 1, 327	77	5 134	98	150	107	5 139	1 185	1 108	1 151	1 86	75	17
1, 327 1, 309	77 73 3 3 6	132	97	149	106	138	180	108	149	85	75	17
36 69	3	1 5	6 8	3 6	3 7	5 12	5 9	6	5 6	1 4	3	
182	6	22	23	16	18	18	25	13	17	8	14	2
70 10	ll	10 1	5	9	$^{11}_{2}$	10	10 2	5	4	1	z	
21	2	3	5	1	2 3	2 7	2 1	2	2			
36 144	2	8	7 15	$\begin{vmatrix} & \bar{2} \\ & 22 \end{vmatrix}$	7 12	17	$\frac{2}{19}$	$\frac{1}{17}$	2 15	2 10	6	1
14 13	1	$\frac{2}{2}$	$\frac{1}{2}$	2 5		<u>2</u>	3		4	1		
47	2	6	6	5	6	6	10	1	1 4	1		
10 32	2 2 1	<u>1</u>	1	1 1	1	4	1					
139	6	13	1 7	1 3 7 9	3 10	4 11	5 19	5 16	6 18	$\frac{2}{14}$	14	1 4
92	i 11	11 3	10	9	17	10	15		4	4	2 5	1
29 114	6	13	15	1 8 1	$\frac{1}{12}$	9	4 17	8 2 8	$\frac{2}{12}$	4	10	
18	3	1		1	3	3	2	3	2			
7 97	11	1 17	3 5	8	1 7	12	11	11	7	1 6	2	
4		1 453	2	l			1					110
5, 135 4, 902	208 201	432	376 362	386 364	413 394	446 426	688 669	497 475	688 659	422 409	440 410	118 101
49	5	4		17	6	4		4	1	i		

KENTUCKY-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thouse	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	710
1	Johnson	50		2	21	7	2	6	11	1		
1 2 3	Kenton	2,362	1	120	1,048	441	206	322	177	42	5	
3	Covington	1,952	1	104	882	367	172	252	139	31	4	
4	Knott	5				3	1		7		1	
5	Knox Larue	60 5		li	10	4	13	24 1	- 1	1		
7	Laurel	25		Ιî	8	4	4	3	5			
8	Lawrence	23		Ī] ĕ	5	3	7	ĭ			
9 }	Lee	6		1	1	1	1	2				
10	Leslie	12		1	7	3	1					
11	Letcher	156	i	11	78	21	10	19	11	5	1	
12 13	Lewis	9 25	1	3	5	2 8	1	4	3			
14	LincolnLivingston	29 5		i °	١ ،	•	2	1 1	3			1
15	Logan	41	1	3	9	7	10	6	4	î		
16	Lyon	3		l	1		1	1				
17	McCracken	502		16		91	47	130	64	16	2	
18 19	Paducah	494		16		90	45 2	128 11	63	16	2	
20	McCreary	27			3	3 2	5	11	5	2	1	
21	Madison	184	2	14		32	2 8	32	18	5		
22	Magoffin	5			2	1		1	1			
23	Marion	44			11	12	8	8	5			
24	Marshall	14		2	4	3	1	2	1	1		
24 25 26	Martin Mason	112];	1 9	29	$\frac{1}{22}$	1 16	14	17	$\frac{1}{3}$		
27	Meade	5	1] "	3	1	10		1,	٥	i	
27 28 29	Menifee											
29	Mercer	44		6		5	7	3	10	2		
30	Metcalle	1			[1							
31 32	Monroe	52 52		2	15	3	13		1 7	3		
33	Montgomery Morgan	5		ĺ		2	10	$\frac{9}{2}$				
34	Muhlenberg	69	2			10		13	9	6	1	
35	Nelson	46		2	16	10	5	8 2	2	3		
36 37	Nicholas	14		8 2 2 1	3	3	5 2 1	$\frac{2}{2}$	2			
38	OhioOldham	15 38		3	3 16	8	5	í	4			
39	Owen.	15		2		5	i	î				
40	Owslev.											
41	Pendleton	15		1	6	$\frac{2}{2}$	4			2		
42 43	Perry	158		5	41 27	22 18	19 13	34 30	26 30	10 9	1	
44	Powell	131		l °	4	10	10	30	30	9	1	
45	Pulaski	107	i .	4	22	15	17	33	12	3		
46	Robertson											
47 48	Rockcastle Rowan	11	;	1	5 4	2	$\frac{1}{2}$	$\frac{2}{1}$	<u>-</u> 3	<i>-</i>		
49	Russell	15	1		4	4	2	1	3			
50	Scott.	90	\bar{z}	13	20	20	12	14	5	4		
51	Shelby	62		9	22	6	5	9	7	4		
52	Simpson	33		- 	11	2	8	7	5			
53	Spencer	9		4	1	2	3	$\frac{1}{2}$	1	2		
54 55	Taylor Todd	16 12		1	3	2 2 3	1 1	4	3 1	2		
56	Trigg	13			2	4	3	-	2	2]	
57	Trimble	5		i	ī	2		1				
58	Union	28	2	5	5	3	1	7	3	2		
59	Warren.	190		17	55	24	29	38	24	2		
60 61	Washington	45 4		4	10	5	5 2	6	13	2		
62	Wayne Webster	28		4	9	7	ĺ	4	3			
63	Whitley	128		5	43	19	14	29	15	3		
64	Wolfe	2					2					
65	Woodford	57	1	10	17	11	7	4	2	4	1	
66	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	227	2	15	62	36	32	36	32	11	1	
1]								ļ	
67	Total Kentucky	20, 628	57	1, 164	7, 220	3, 390	2, 233	3, 287	2, 513	650	110	4
!					1			i				

KENTUCKY-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (in thous	ands of	dollars)				
per of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Li N
41 891 759 3	3 49 46	4 156 132	100 84	3 87 72	4 99 78	2 82 70 1	6 112 104	2 47 40 1	5 59 49	5 51 44	5 40 31	9 9	-
16 6 13		2		1 1 1	4	2 1	1 2 6	3	2	2	1 1 1		
23 7 2	$\begin{smallmatrix}2\\3\\1\end{smallmatrix}$	4	2 1 1	2 2	1	2	1	î 	1 1	2			
27 14 33	1 1 1	3 5 4	4 1 7	<u>-</u> 6	3 1 1	2 6	1 1	3 <u>1</u>	3	1 2 1			
3 53 20 310	1 3 22	3 4 23	2 1 19	7 3 28	2 25	8 1 42	9 1 60	9 1 24	1	6 1 20	1 4 17		
283 8 7	22 22	22 1 1	17	24	21	35	53	<u>-</u> 22	26 4	$\frac{20}{1}$	17	4	
138 10 28 12	9 1	14 3	15 2 2	12	21 1 3	16 2	8	$\begin{bmatrix} 11\\2\\3 \end{bmatrix}$	1 4	7	1		
163 163	9	2 23 2	14	$\frac{2}{16}$	15	11 2	4 1 26	19	3 1 10	1 1 7	13		
67	2	1	1 5	6	11	10		7	4				
101 4	10	12 3	6	11	6 1	9	10	7	10	14	6		
80 54 28 33	8 1	12 3 7 7 2 1 1	1 2 1 2 2 2	7 4 8	9 7 3 8 3	4 6 3 4	12 6 3 5 2	7 3 2 7	8 11 5 4	8 4 1 1	6 3		
27 18	2	4		4 2		4 2 2	4	1 1	4	1	5		
20 65 105 3	1 2 4	2 4 8	3 5 6	6	1 4 21	5 10 10 2	5 11 17	11 15	10 12	7 3	1 3		
45 3 8	1 1	4	1 2 1 3	10	5	2 5 1	8	8 i	1 i	1			
11 54		1 5 7	2 5	9	7 3	$\begin{smallmatrix}2\\1\\6\\6\end{smallmatrix}$	3 14	3	2 5 8	<u>1</u>	2 2		
60 15 5 15		2	1 1	7 2	3 4 1 1	8 2	7 2 1 4	3 8 2	3	5 1 2			
15 13 2		4 2	3	1	$\begin{array}{c}2\\2\\2\\2\end{array}$	1	4 2 5	2 1 1	1		1		
36 132 12	2 1	5 14	1 10	5 17	13 4	4 6 1	7 18 2	2 12 1	4 14 3	1 11 1	16	1 	
9 29 51	1 4	1 2 3	1 2 1 1	1 4	2 5 4	5 8	$\begin{array}{c} 1\\3\\2\end{array}$	1 5 11	1 4 11	2 1 2	i		
84 176	28	6 32	5 12	6 9	22 19	6 16	11 20	8 10	9 15	8 7	3 8		
13, 584	696	1, 416	1, 146	1, 221	1, 285	1, 310	1,881	1, 202	1, 500	927	826	174	

LOUISIANA-FORM 1040-A

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7–10
1 2 3 4	Acadia	116 48 58 22	2	6 2 1 2	27 13 18	15 6 11 5	18 5 8	27 10 13	16 10 4	4 2 2 3	1 <u>1</u>	
5 6 7 8	Avoyelles Beauregard Bienville Bossier	31 24 19 50	2	9 2 1 1	8 4 4 9	5 3 4 5	8 8 3 8	4 6 4 13	2 6 1 10	4		
9 10 11 12	Caddo Shreveport Calcasieu Caldwell	1, 757 1, 597 621 23	5 3 1	64 57 25 4	504 449 208 7 18	283 254 75 3	184 168 82 2 2	325 304 117 2 7	327 300 90 5 4	57 54 22	8 8 1	
13 14 15 16 17	Cameron Catahoula Claiborne Concordia De Soto	35 6 61 42 60	1	3	10 20 10 23	1 8 10 7	1 9 4 8	1 13 4 14	7 6 4	1 1 4		
18 19 20 21	East Baton Rouge Baton Rouge East Carroll East Feliciana	1, 013 978 33 24		24 23 1 1	267 249 10	179 173 8	101 98 4 4	232 228 1 9	165 162 5	42 42 4	3 3	
22 23 24 25 26	Evangeline Franklin Grant Iberia Iberville	13 27 16 121 115		2 7 5	2 8 2 29 56	3 6 5 19 13	2 3 1 14 9	2 6 2 27 15	4 3 2 20 15	1 2 2 2	3	
27 28 29 30	JacksonJeffersonJefferson DavisLafayette	46 288 76 166	ī	1 15 4 10	9 97 16 32	7 50 13 37	5 36 9 17	8 38 21 33	12 42 10 31	3 8 3 6	1 1	
31 32 33 34	LafourcheLa Salle Lincoln Livingston Madison	125 31 52 9 45	I 2	11 4 2 1 2	23 13 13 	11 4 17 3 2	10 4 6 2 9	26 4 5 1	37 1 6 2 9	7 1 3		
35 36 37 38 39	Morehouse Natchitoches Orleans New Orleans 1	78, 49 9, 965 9, 965	1 1 29 29	5 410 410	36 16 3,583 3,583	7 10 1, 620 1, 620	9 5 1,018 1,018	10 4 1, 407 1, 407	10 7 1, 435 1, 435	427 427	1 35 35	1 1
40 41 42 43	Ouachita Monroe Plaquemines Pointe Coupees Rapides	462 285 103 31 451	3	18 13 4 4 12	133 77 33 15 102	66 37 21 3 87	47 30 14 4 57	100 67 20 2 98	87 53 9 1 74	10 7 2 2 18	1 1 	
44 45 46 47 48	Red River Richland Sabine St. Bernard	20 19 50 23	1 	3 1	102 5 13 13	3 2 13 1	3 4 4 4	3 6 7 2	3 1 7 2	3 1 3		
49 50 51 52	St. Charles St. Helena St. James St. John the Baptist	91 1 37 42 83	 1	1 2	45 1 13 14	15 5 6 26	11 7	8 6 7	10 1 10	$ \begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 4 \\ 2 \end{array} $	1	
53 54 55 56 57	St. Landry St. Martin St. Mary St. Tammany Tangipahoa	83 24 92 61 79	I 1	5 3 7	22 9 21 13 26	20 10 23 10 13	3 7 6 6	9 13 16 12	11 22 8 14	<u>2</u> <u>1</u>		
58 59 60 61	Tensas Terrebonne Union Vermilion	37 130 19 58		4 10 4 1	12 23 7 12	10 26 3 12	6 23 3 10	3 23 11	2 21 2 7	3	2	
62 63 64 65 66	Vernon Washington Webster West Baton Rouge West Carroll	23 160 94 39 6		1 11 6 1 2	3 53 29 13	17 19 7	12 8 2	38 17 13	7 22 13 5	1 6 2 1	1	
67 68 69	West Feliciana	9 35 285	1 1	1 1 15	4 7 89	1 5 42	8 31	3 8 56	3 33	2 15	3	
70	Total Louisiana	17, 829	55	763	5, 840	2, 910	1, 908	2, 906	2, 686	697	63	1

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

LOUISIANA-FORM 1040

Total				Net in	icome cl	asses (i	n thouse	nds of	iollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3–4	4–5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
232	18	19	16	29	30	22	38	20	23 3 3	8	9		1
54	4	10 4	9	4	5 7	8	8	2	3	1 3			1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
45 42	4		5	5 4		3 5	8 9	4 2 4	2	2	2		4
62	5 4 7 3 4 4 161	5 7	3 5 5 5 6	6	2 7	10	11		5				5
57 40	3	8 5	5 3	3 5 13	9 5	7 7	14 7 7 316	5 1	1	$\frac{2}{2}$		1	3
74 2, 003	4	19	6	13	8	6	7	4	4	3		l	
2, 003 1, 823	161 146	185 161	145 124	165 140	222 205	187 164	$\frac{316}{292}$	221 205	202 193	110 108	73 70	16 15	1
550	19	44	42	51	70	74	92	48	62	20	23	5	i
28	4	2	1	6	3	2	3	5 3	1		1		1
9 18	6	<u>1</u>	$\frac{1}{2}$	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 ₁ 3	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 1	0	1		1		1
103	11	12	13	12	12	11	15	4	9		4		1 1 1 1
51 77	2	8	8 8 53	10	4 11	10	5 18	3 5	1 3		3		1
777	8 40	11 73 71	53	3 67	68	7 112	18 148 142	94	76	19	26	ī	î
749	40	71	53	62	65	101	142	93	76	19	26	1 2	1
81 50	8 6	14 10	6 5	5 5	8 9	7 3	14 5	2	5 3	$\frac{1}{2}$	4	2	1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
40		6	1	1 <u>1</u>	5	4	5	2 8					2
86 32	2	9	8 2	9	9	11	24	4 3	6	3	1		2
191	14	18	12	15	21	5 23	36	23	17	8	4		2
118	6 2 8 14 11	13	9	7	10	12	11 36 28 10	16	8	4	5		2
$\frac{29}{232}$	8	$\frac{2}{29}$	4 40	1	26	1 30	41	4 31	5 13	11		2	2
145	14	16	11	20	26 21	17	10	9	8	5	5	-	2
202	11	21 9	25 17	22 10	22	21 14	29	24 14	$\frac{14}{22}$	9	2 3	2 4	3
140 43	5 3	11	6	6	13 3 13	4	29 25 5	1	2	1 1	1	4	3
99	9	10	8	12		11	14	11'	9	2			3 3 3 3
10 69	9	12	2 7		3 6	7	4 12	1 5	4		5	2	3
115	4 10	21	17	12	9.	12	17	12	4	4	1	2 2	3
102	10	9 895	11 844	11 787	12 833	7 775	21 1, 459	062	7 1, 035	499	351	86	3
8, 971 8, 971	515 515	895	844	787	833	775	1, 459	963 963	1,035	428 428 21 20	351	86	3
622	32 27 3	50	46	59	69	775 70	110	76	60	21	27	2	4
530 39	27	41 6	39 1	44	57 4	57 5	93 7	65 8	60 1	20	25	2	4
60	4	6	7	2 7	6	- 5	1 81	5	6	3	3		4
463 17	44	47 1	30 2 7	54 1	40 5	38 2	97 2	46	44	14 1	6	3	4
53	3	3	7	12		10	10	1 5	2		<u>î</u>		4
79	4	15 3	8 4	4	9	9	18 6	8	2	2			4
53 79 38 32 2	44 44 2 3 4 2	4	3	8 4	4	8	5	4	2 2 2 2 1	3	1 1		4
2							1		1				5
62 39	6	6	11 3	7 5	2 4	5 5	11 5	7 5	5 2	2	3		5
256	11	30	15	51	35	26	30	30	18	9	i		}
45 172	4 20 11 17 2 6 4 5 5	$\frac{3}{21}$	9 20	3	6 11	5	8 25 21 29	3	18 2 6	2 7			0 40 40 40 A0
124	11	18	9	20 12 17	15	23 16	20	11 13	3	í	8	2	E F
150	17	22 10	17	17	11	13	29	11	4	6	3		5
61 116	2	10 14	2 5	11 16	15 13	10 11	13	3 16	4 14	7	<u>ī</u>		5
26	4	7	2	2 3		2	13 7 30 3 29 15	1		í			1 6
131	5	12	10	.3	9	18 2 16	30	1 18 2	21	5			f
$\frac{42}{132}$	5 5	3 9	6	14 14	6 16	16	3 20	15	1 12	6	$\frac{2}{4}$		6
94	5 9	12	12	14 6	13	8	15	4	4	6	5		∣ €
14 27	2	2	3	2 2	3		4	1		1		1	- (
27 24	2	4 2	6	4	9 4	$\frac{2}{1}$	4	3	2				
37		$\tilde{9}$	ě,	4 3	2	1 7	7	$\frac{3}{2}$	1				
227	16	24	25	24	24	19	29	20	21	13	10	2	-
18, 161	1, 147	1,867	1,633	1, 690	1,829	1, 777	3, 018	1,892	1, 799	771	605	133	, ,

MAINE-FORM 1040-A

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Androscoggin	1, 059		45	400	147	119	158	143	37	8	
2	Lewiston	433	<u></u>	17	174	73	40	50	55	21	3	
3	Aroostock	423	3	31	148	63	38	69	60	9	2	
4	Cumberland		14	233	1, 434	639			411	101		
5	Portland	2,948	12	192	1, 168	531	261	381	311	76	16	
6	Franklin	124		8	52 86	20	12	13	14	4	1	- -
7 8	Hancock	278		24 69	397	49 143	35 90	34 138	46 115	9	$\frac{1}{6}$	- -
9	KennebecKnox.	996	3	15	85	52	26	39.	28	35 11	6	
10	Lincoln	261 92	2	10	33	8	13	10	20 14	4	3	·
11	Oxford	337	_i	26	126	46	34	51	44	8		
12	Penobscot.	1, 450	7	60	541	202	118	248	212		10	
13	Bangor	816	5	34	294	116	74	127	123	34	ğ	
14	Piscataquis	130		11	52	15	9	26	12	5		
15	Sagadahoc	212		14	81	36	17	21	30	13		
16	Somerset	234	1	16	88	37	23	38	28	2	1	 -
17	Waldo	97	1	12	29	19	9	15	11	1		
18	Washington	193	2	20	59	25	29	28	19	9	2	
19	York	908	2	72 9	398 53	154 11	78 32	108 11	81	14	1	
20	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	151	2	9	99	11	32	11	23	9	1	
21	Total Maine	10, 652	40	675	4, 062	1,666	1, 025	1, 521	1, 285	323	55	

MARYLAND-FORM 1040-A

												
1	Allogany	1, 667	5	79	723	258	158	228	176	39		
2	Allegany Cumberland	1, 206	5	59	494	181	119	173	146	28	1	
3	A nno. A nundal	1, 200	1	30	265	169	92	230	223	28 57	1	
	Anne Arundel		3								0	
4	Baltimore City 1	2, 354		126	750	323	253	437	357	97	8	
5	Baltimore City	26, 170	52	1, 348	9, 420	4, 279	2, 871	3, 912	3, 303	891	91	3
6	Calvert			2	13	6	2	!	3			
7	Caroline	64		.8	13	13	6	11	8	5		
8	Carroll	229	2	16	93	33	23	32	24	6		
9	Cecil	280		31	108	51	28	29	27	6		
10	Charles	137		7	49	27	10	22	18	4		
11	Dorchester	117		14	30	19	14	27	7	2	4	
12	Frederick	496	1	30	173	98	63	72	47	9	3	
13	Garrett	61		7	21	12	8	5	7	1		
14	Harford	500		18	174	72	47	93	75	17	4	
15	Howard	195	1	6	85	39	16	19	14	13	1	1
16	Kent.	81	1	11	26	7	7	14	11	4	. 	
17	Montgomery	3, 530	3	97	712	464	377	671	820	338	45	3
18	Prince Georges	2, 274	6	75	664	393	252	443	337	99		
19	Queen Annes	47		3	18	6	5	7	6	2		
20	St. Marvs			4	5	ĭ	5	7	4	3		
21	St. Marys	52		3	10	8	ž	12	10	2		
22	Talbot	163	2	17	55	27	24	19	15	2	1	
23	Washington		1	31	249	107	67	124	113	27	1	
24	Washington			24		84	56	104	90	21	1	
25	Hagerstown Wicomico	260	1 1	16		42	27	54	40	41	9	
		260 93	1				16		17	. 0	٥	
26	Worcester			8	28	12						
27	Residents of other States	9,838	39	305	1,631	1, 270	962	1,851	2, 663	1,008	107	2
	and nonresident aliens.			1								
											i	
28	Total Maryland	50, 460	118	2, 292	15,386	7, 736	5, 340	8, 332	8, 325	2, 639	283	9
- 1											f	l .

MASSACHUSETTS-FORM 1040-A

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MAINE-FORM 1940

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
1, 025 491 555 2, 922 2, 074 414 1, 019 396 178 420 1, 021	44 20 63 123 95 9 23 46 21 5 34	95 411 67 289 208 34 25 101 39 37 45	106 50 70 288 204 27 40 114 45 9 57 80	93 50 63 280 193 31 27 90 38 15 36 68	106 55 56 302 210 28 43 119 39 19 41	95 53 56 317 212 33 39 115 33 15	150 68 70 388 278 32 66 156 61 25 69 137	93 46 33 256 187 18 33 85 44 24 32 108	135 52 41 322 217 14 54 103 34 9 34 128	52 35 26 177 137 12 23 52 20 9 15	47 17 9 161 124 19 33 30 16 8 14 60	9 4 1 19 9 1 8 8 6 3 4 8	1 22 33 44 55 66 77 88 99 100
656 149 259 304 144 218 1,078 144	17 7 8 19 3 17 43 6	57 14 20 41 15 29 130 15	45 8 27 43 15 11 130 17	38 12 21 25 16 27 118 11	65 17 30 36 23 25 123 10	66 16 20 25 14 20 129 13	78 23 44 48 19 29 132 18	70 15 27 26 15 20 72 13	100 19 25 21 14 18 65 18	67 11 15 12 4 11 67 9	46 5 21 8 8 9 56 8	8 7 2 1 3 2 13 6	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
10, 504	505	1, 091	1, 087	971	1, 129	1, 081	1, 467	914	1,054	604	507	94	21
				N	IARYI	AND	FORM	1040					
876 709 602 1, 409 15, 748 34 111 278 195 81 205 464	44 38 25 74 613 3 13 21 12 2 13	99 80 57 122 1, 292 7 4 22 20 8 27 58	93 73 50 119 1, 250 2 5 29 28 7 23 62	91 67 39 130 1, 324 4 18 31 21 79	89 77 62 125 1, 458 5 15 34 28 8 8 26 49	85 70 54 108 1,402 5 11 34 12 13 20 51	111 84 112 172 1, 981 5 12 36 29 9 24 66	72 60 69 122 1, 522 25 19 9 20 31	93 72 74 175 2, 017 2 12 32 16 6 15	57 49 38 110 1, 293 1 7 6 6 7 6 11 23	36 34 19 129 1, 252 3 6 3 4 6 12	6 5 3 23 344 2 2 2 1 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
73 302 132 121 1,590 519 100 62 86 234 728 532 247 144 4,669	66 177 55 100 411 222 55 20 5 15 46 36 111 15 261	7 26 11 7 92 36 26 10 6 24 58 44 33 37 444	13 16 15 23 76 56 13 9 6 23 81 47 11 241	58 7 26 17 6 94 51 3 3 5 24 61 55 25 25 20 8	13, 29, 18, 11, 89, 15, 9, 15, 31, 68, 54, 29, 13, 245,	5 28 5 14 128 59 5 4 8 8 19 62 51 27 15 268	66 48 18, 223 755 15 9 12 322 113 87 43 18	5 33 6 10 240 61 4 4 4 5 10 60 37 25 6	37 17 9 320 54 6 3 13 19 63 52 19 10	23 10 6 160 24 4 10 19 60 38 10 4 393	3 16 8 20 109 20 3 3 1 14 48 26 7 4 335	18 2 4 2 4 8 5 1	13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
29, 010	1, 295	2, 523	2, 268	2, 290	2, 543	2, 442	3, 746	2, 947	4, 098	2, 290	2, 043	525	28
	•		·	MAS	SACH	USETT		RM 10)40				
920 2, 338 999 5, 041 1, 405 1, 651 500 119	77 160 73 325 97 108 22 9	124 352 138 807 214 314 65 19	107 283 128 633 170 212 64 12	91 270 113 591 162 213 52 12	99 263 118 546 161 171 58 12	88 188 83 454 132 142 43 13	107 233 108 458 128 139 65 14	42 137 57 258 67 81 27 6	70 206 84 427 124 119 34 8	50 103 41 243 70 63 32	45 112 44 257 70 78 35 13	20 31 12 42 10 11 3	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

MASSACHUSETTS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

ŀ		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
ne o.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10
	East	15, 287	41	1,003	6, 242	2, 497	1, 529	1,891	1, 555	503	26	
1	Essex Beverly	1,052	3	75	470	167	89	133	90	24	20	
2 3	Haverhill	915	1	61	356	146	97	109	109	33	3	
		1, 566	5	132	692	304	125	166	101	33 41	ಿ	
4	Lawrence	3, 416	7	198	1, 502	582	385	401	274	64	3	
5	Lynn ¹ Salem	1, 504	3	71	716	240	161	151	116	45	1	
7	Franklin	1, 171	2	95	417	207	117	155	124	53	1	
8	Hampden	10, 524	18	588	4, 263	1, 661	1.089		1. 154	395	16	\
9	Chicopee	231		18	130	20	14	27	1, 181	4	10	
ő	Holyoke	1, 514	5	86	626	247	155	172	164	57	2	
ĭ	Springfield 1	6, 623	7	315	2,687	1.070	724	862	725	224	9	
2	Hampshire	1, 947	3	158	684	339	216	216	223	101	7	
3	Middlesex	42, 259	101		15, 636	7, 164				1.794	104	
4	Arlington	2,810	5	166	944	417	328	472	367	107	4	
5	Cambridge 1	5, 390	8	306	2,081	1, 315	565	483	444	174	14	
6	Everett	1,575	4	105	765	285	140	163	90	20	2	
7	Lowell 1	2,076	3	123	948	394	147	202	187	68	4	
8	Malden	2, 509	5	145		454	294	252	233	75	4	
9	Medford	3, 176	3	175	1, 217	479	351	499	356	89	7	
20	Newton	3, 487	18	296	942	466	424	453	629	239		l
21	Somerville 1	4,071	6	247	2,056	734	391	348	229	55		
22	Waltham	1, 279	2	81	533	235	135	146	109	36	2	
23	Watertown	1,800	2	99	656	259	206	276	217	81	3	Į
4	Nantucket	91		16	24	19	14	8	7	2	1	
25	Norfolk	17,456	56	1, 168						886		
6	Brookline	4, 221	29	342	1,327	675	522	460	581	259		
7	Quincy		6	$\frac{157}{363}$	998	$\frac{429}{763}$	323	493	356	94		
8	Plymouth	4,643	20 9	106	1, 781 855	305	478 190	555 236	503 179	166		
9	Brockton		70		15, 197					52 872		
0	SuffolkBoston 1	34,660 31,616	62		14, 014		3, 291	2, 991	2, 415	784		
1 2	Chelsea		02	67	338	165	85	94	64	19		!
33	Revere	778		59	303	135	94		66	11		
4	Worcester	12, 726	33	764		2,014			1, 349	453		
5	Fitchburg	847		46	371	139	81	88	89	30		l
6	Worcester 1	6, 500	18	308		1,070	619		697	236		
37	Residents of other States	1, 142	2	116	301	172	156	156	171	56	11	
	and nonresident aliens.	''	İ		ļ			i				
8	Total Massachu- setts.	152, 281	386	9, 898	59, 605	25, 635	16, 099	18, 311	16, 339	5, 647	343	

MICHIGAN-FORM 1040-A

-	···											
1	Alcona	9			5	1		2	1			
2	Alger	102		11	33	23	8	13	10	4		
3	Allegan	132		19	45	14	17	18	11	6	2	
4	Alpena	107		8	28	17	11	26	14	3		
5	Antrim	30		7	10	6	1	5	1			
Ř	Arenac.	17		1	6	1		5	4			
7	Baraga	23		2	8	5	4	3		1		
8	Barry	75	2	12	15	9	11	16	9	1		
9	Bay	709	2 2	49	269	105	64	108	83	22	5	2
10	Bay City	611	2	38	234	93	57	92	69	20	4	1 2
11	Benzie	57		5	20	9	7	8	5	3		
12	Berrien	719	3	71	223	99	70	108	112	28	5	II
13	Branch	108	1	9	30	18	12	22	6	9	1	
14	Calhoun	1,495	4	89	567	221	151	237	179	44	3	
15	Battle Creek	1, 290	4	71	511	185	136	195	148	37	3	
16	Cass	93		17	24	10	16	15	9	2		
17	Charlevoix	40	1	7	15	4	1	6	6			
18	Cheboygan	64		7	20	11	11	6	7	2		
19	Chippewa	363	2	10	198	42	22	50	34	4	1	
20	Clare	19			3	2	6	6	2			
21	Clinton	53		11	9	7	2	9	8	7		
22	Crawford	32		2	12	6	5	3	4	~		
23	Delta	363	1	32	101	44	73	58	45	9	 -	
24	Dickinson	211	1	18	79	33	33	24	23	-		
25	Eaton	114		17	41	14	13	18	9		2	
26	Emmet	122		12	35	16	19	19	20		1	
27	Genesee	2, 548	5		800	440	267	440	405			1
28	Flint 1	2, 386	4	861	733	416	257	407	385	89	8	1

 $^{^{\}rm 1}$ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MASSACHUSETTS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net ir	come c	lasses (in	thouse	ands of o	iollars)		<u> </u>		
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
9, 447	664	1, 375	1, 113	996	978	789	935	513	856	538	551	139	1
474	33	59	58	49	47	38	43	27	52	26	24	18	
818			96	100	92	73	84	37	63	52	44	4	3
1, 135	111		155	143	132	100	102	43	46	32	30	3	4
1,498	117		194	195	169	115	131	77	117		58	19 12	5
857 775	54 44		115 84	94 104	76	78 64	91 79	54 34	84 74	44 34	58 31		6
5, 430	339		585	564	111 558	464	620	295	552	339	297	63	1
119	8		13	13	11	19	12	253	6	4	3	00	ြိ
1, 061	70	177	139	111	105	96	90	46	92	62	59	14	
2, 670	173		245	272	281	230	339	173	279	168	156	36	11
1, 250	90		135	136	147	104	119	91	145	65	43	7	12
21,632	1, 170		2,010	2, 019	1,986	1,834	2, 186	1,368	2, 870	1,715	1,625	363	13
1,021	57		92	113	116	97	104	62	127	63	53	13	14
2,508	143		212 48	222	$\frac{205}{44}$	$\frac{218}{39}$	239	178	342 17	227	214	49	15
345	18 107		171	50 155	154	$\frac{39}{121}$	21 116	13 54	133	16 57	11 82	9 12	
1, 389 854	53		88	88	102	91	95	47	86	41	35	9	18
692	40		71	91	78	76	66	44	83	28	18		19
1. 449	74		86	99	117	102	138	113	212	181	185	48	20
1, 449 960	59	173	133	128	117	95	85	53	58	35	22	2	21
541	44		75	76	48	37	51	32	42	23	22	3	22 23
310	14	33	29	29	36	41	39	16	45	16	11	1	23
134	15		16	23	15	9	13	7	6	3	1 100		24 25 26 27 28
10, 690 4, 430	607 292	1,050 356	855 310	846 311	861 294	815 304	1, 124 438	692 300	1, 467 621	953 455	1, 123 601	297 148	25
818	56	105	90	87	92	93	94	34	73	48	43	3	20 27
3, 305	216	461	403	364	339	277	332	193	331	176	182	31	28
1, 023	80		134	104	97	86	121	39	106	53	57	9	29
18, 033	1,317		1,738	1,703	1,685	1,432	1,699	1,049	1,727	1, 173	1,535	587	30
12, 867 583	966	1,625	1, 148	1,100	1,043	904	1, 153	794	1, 255	959	1, 363	557	31
583	41	98	74	65	92	58	54	33	28	20	19	1	32
223	19	28	32	29	36 869	22	21	9	16	473	5		33 34
7, 687 628	435 36	1, 055 85	904 83	804 58	56	641 49	738 61	427 37	766 66	48	454 43	121 6	35
3, 493	202	436	389	330	367	309	339	191	396	234	242	58	36
1, 348	99	229	83	117	107	96	134	97	164	88	107	27	37
88, 149	5, 567	11, 402	8, 961	8, 640	8, 576	7, 268	8, 791	5, 209	9, 669	5, 953	6, 377	1,736	38

MICHIGAN-FORM 1040

1							í -		1	r	r	T		_
- {	90		9	f [9	3	9	,	,	,	1	2	1	١.
1	52	9	2 8	6	3 7	6	2	1 6 27 11 6	- £	5	1	3		6
- 1	230	93	49		22	6 24 30	20	27	18	19	4	8		1 3
-	192	~ o	42 36	21	33 27	30	21	i ii	12	iĩ	5	6	3	4
- 1	50	Ř	13	10		4	72	6	2	l î	ľ	"	"	ĺ
-	40	š	13	3	3	$\tilde{2}$	5	4	3	$\bar{3}$	1			ì
Ţ	43	š	13 9	š	4 3 8	4	5	7	1	ī	2			
- 1	107	11	13 93	10	10	14	11	12	9	13	1	3		١
	702	47	93	74	82	73	60	77	65	59	26	39	7	į
-[20 52 230 192 50 40 43 107 702 629 57	42	83	55	69	6 6	54	72	59	58	25	39 39	7	10
1	57	33 23 99 33 31 11 47 42 4 66 14 60 12 22 6 6 14 9 9 17 14 16 16 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	11	9	10 82 69 6 107 19 118	4 2 4 14 73 66 7 90 12	20 21 21 5 5 11 60 54 52 12 106	4 7 12 77 72 7 128 23 139 112	2 5 5 188 2 2 9 6 5 5 8 2 7 0 5 5 1 5 5 1 8 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 5 12 11 1 3 1 13 59 58 58	$\begin{array}{c} 26 \\ 25 \\ 1 \end{array}$			3 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
ı	916	64	146	83	107	90	82	128	58	77	32 3 45	42		12
1	163 1, 099 846 139	16	33	20	19	12	12	23	13	6 92	3	4 42 40 2	6	13 14
-	1, 099	84	158	109	118	118	106	139	82	92	45	42	6	14
- {	846	60	123	70 18	88	86 15	88	112	70	63	40 6 2	40	6	1.
1	139	12	23 33 21	18	18	15	8	22	5	10	6	2		16
-	118 90	2	33	23	10	15	11	18	I	1	2	2		18 16 17 18
1	90	6	21	11 24 7	88 18 10 17 28 7	14	- 8	4	. 5		4	- 		18
}	218	14	20	24	28	31	19	29	18	22	10	3		19
1	46	4	9	- 71	- 71	15 14 31 5 8 8 24 24	88 8 11 8 19 4 7 2 28 13	. 8			1			20
1	84	9	11	10 5 38 18	141	8	7)	10	6	2 2 21	4 3 13 10	3		21
-	48	3	13 29	5	3	8	2		- 1	. 2	3	1		22
ł	265	24	29	38	26)	24	28	37	13	21	13	11] 1	28
1	218 46 84 48 265 200 211	20	34	18	14 3 26 24 25 27	24	13	22 18 4 29 8 10 7 37 25 18	6 1 13 12 19 10	13	10	7		19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
1	211	17	41 33	24	25	25	18	18	19	15	47	5		25
1	205 2, 012 1, 799	14	33	31	100	19	18	31	104	10	105	5		20
1	4, 012	166	214	152	192	209	220	294	164 155	193	105 98	79 74	24	27
1	1, 799	153	180	132	163	181	199	264	199	176	98	14	24	28

MICHIGAN-FORM 1040-A-Continued

T :		Total num-		N	et inco	ne clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollars	;)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	45	5-7	7-10
1	Gladwin	11		3 18	1 66	2		1	4 22			
2 3	Gogebic Grand Traverse	$\frac{206}{140}$	1	8	32	38 21	24 21	31 26	24	6	1	
4	Gratiot	126	1	10	35	22	19	20	14	3	1	1
5	Hillsdale Houghton	106 334	1 2	14 42	26 124	16 53	14 32	14 41	16 35	2 5	3	
6 7	Huron	97		10	29	19	10	12	13	4		
8 9	Ingham	1,637	5 5	85 77	495 477	231 219	165 151	294 263	273 248	70 65	17 16	2
10	Lansing	1, 523 108	1	14	411	13	11	203 14	10	1	10	
11	Iosco.	43	1	5	13	. 8	5.	4	4	2	1	
12 13	IronIsabella	157 141		$\frac{12}{12}$	37 41	38 20	13 12	24 20	28 23	$\frac{2}{11}$	3	
14	Jackson	1, 221	4	69	425	148	130	228	181	36		
15 16	Jackson	1,072	4	56	372	126 228	114	197	169	34 60		
17	Kalamazoo	1, 582 1, 479	5 5	102 94	582 551	216	147 135	246 231	197 179	55	13 12	1
18	Kalkaska	. 9			1	1	5		2			
19	Kent Grand Rapids 1	3, 465 3, 297	8	268 260	1, 185 1, 113	478 460	348 329	572 549	480 458	118 113	8	
20 21 22 23 24 25 26	Keweenaw	10		1	3		2	2	2			
22	Lake	12 79		3 14	3 20	$\frac{2}{12}$	1 8	1 12	$^2_{11}$	<u>-</u>		
24	Lapeer	12		2	3	4	2	1	11			
25	Lenawee	282	2	39	76	42	35	39	36	11	2	
26 27 28	Livingston	103 33		10 1	38 13	6 5	17 6	15	16 4	$\frac{1}{2}$		
28	Mackinae	40		5	18	- 8	2	7				
29 30	Macomb Manistee	723 128		56 12	269 49	$\frac{111}{23}$	57 10	122 19	84 12	$\frac{21}{2}$	3	
31	Marquette	489	4	44	169	79	63	72	48	10		
32 33	Mason	155	3	20	49	13	21	25	21	2	1	
34	Mecosta Menominee	59 183		4 17	17 66	31	13 19	10 19	6 18	12	i	
35	Midland	406 3		18	152	61	39	43	68	16	8	1
36 37	Missaukee Monroe	529	4	1 48	208	64	53	65	60	25	2	
38	Montcalm	85	1	17	19	11	12	12	10	3		
39 40	Montmorency Muskegon	7 743		39	278	121	48	107	118	29	3	
41 42	Muskegon	425		19	156	75	26	69	61	18	1	
43	Newaygo Oakland	3, 285	10	119	15 887	10 384	284	$\frac{9}{682}$	708	193	15	3
44	Pontiac	946	4	29	333	146	80	159	159	35	ĭ	
45 46	Oceana Ogemaw	17 28		3 3	17	$\begin{vmatrix} 1 \\ 3 \end{vmatrix}$	3	$\frac{1}{2}$	3	1		
47	Ontonagon	38		6	12	9	i	3	6	i		
48 49	Osceola	26 10	1	3	10 3	$\frac{2}{2}$	$\frac{2}{2}$	2	6	1		
50	Otsego	14	i	2	4	2		4		<u>î</u>		
51 52	Ottawa	471	1	57	131	62 4			63	13	1	2
53	Presque Isle	43 5	1	3 1	14 1	4	5	6			1	
54	Saginaw	1,538	4	90	592	220	146	244	206	36		
55 56	SaginawSt. Clair	1, 445 903	4 4	84 67	550 308	209 133	135 98	234 132	196 132	33 26		
57	Port Huron	649		38	222	94	79	101	94	16		
58 59	St. Joseph Sanilac	248 46		18 2	75	39 14	32	35 3	34	11	4	
60	Schooleraft	74		6	24	8	11	11	11	3		
61	Shiawassee	214	1	15	59	39	38	40	22	2		
62 63	Tuscola Van Buren	67 145	2	11 19	17 37	14 17	9 28	5 19	9 21	l î	1	
64	Washtenaw	1,034	7	122	319	160	98	159	135	32	2	
65 66	Ann Arbor Wayne	703 53, 174	102	79 2.130	209 20, 919	9,061	71 4, 704	110 7, 498	94 6, 856	$\frac{22}{1,706}$		
67	Dearborn	1,052	2	34	340	137	92	211	184	46	6	'
68 69	Detroit 1 Hamtramek	47, 052 371	90	1,856	18, 598 258	8, 112 61	4, 200	6, 588	5,984	1,462		6
70	Highland Park	1.835	2	92	749	342	154	228	204	56	8	
71 72 73	Wyandotte Wexford	685		27	273 21	117	52		107	16	3	
73	Residents of other States	74 509	2	44	132	12 85	13 59	75	13 83	22	7	
	and nonresident aliens.	02.000		4 001	20.700	10 000	7 000	10.00	11 100	9 700	900	
74	Total Michigan	83, 086	201	4, 261	30,796	13, 377	7,800	12, 367	11, 180	2, 760	323	21

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MICHIGAN-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	псоте с	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
37 294 182 183 123 487 170 1, 193 997 210	3 17 19 15 13 48 17 75 66	9 67 40 22 17 81 30 123 96 44	5 39 18 16 12 58 17 110 92 19	5 27 19 24 12 44 12 99 84	2 43 22 20 14 33 24 101 78 26	5 21 8 16 11 32 12 123 103 26	2 30 19 23 10 65 29 177 147 25	3 16 13 16 13 41 13 131 113	3 23 16 19 10 40 4 115 98	11 4 6 9 23 6 76 65	3 5 2 18 4 57 50 3	1 1 1 2 6 5	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
63 122 171 789 715 1, 166 1, 097 25 3, 327	4 12 9 59 51 52 47 1 284	12 28 34 79 65 129 113 5 403	9 13 12 61 56 114 107 4 328	8 13 14 77 69 96 87 4 274	14 10 23 89 77 114 110 4 315	3 12 14 70 64 111 106 5 314	7 8 26 96 91 150 142	3 12 9 70 66 95 90 1 258	2 7 15 91 89 113 108 1	1 6 7 41 39 89 88	1 4 40 34 78 76	4 16 14 25 23	15 16 17 18
3, 106 13 14 163 43	260 3 4 5	369 4 1 27 7	311 2 35 6	242 1 1 21 6	301 19 8	295 2 2 16 4	422 1 4 17 2	245 2 1 11	316 1 7 3	178 1 3	3	26	20 21 22 23 24
364 128 39 53 511 149 467 153 69	31 4 4 5 54 13 27 13 5	40 24 4 7 76 27 72 26	52 19 4 9 62 22 54 18	32 14 3 14 72 17 50 22	38 18 3 4 62 11 53 17 13	44 16 6 6 43 9 44 13	51 11 4 3 57 18 61 18	24 10 3 2 29 13 32 5 3	25 5 4 1 32 6 31 6	16 3 3 2 11 6 20 8	9 3 1 10 7 19 5	3 4 2	25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33
155 253 19 328 144 23 738	7 3 19 21	21 16 4 24 35 2 118	14 24 3 43 34 4 78 65	22 22 26 10 5 57	16 17 	8 26 3 22 14 4 61	8 28 1 48 5 1 106 85	17 13 2 26 5 2 52	17 37 1 40 5 2 67	7 25 1 19 2 1 37	13 24 1 16 1 2 32	3	34 35 36 37 38 39 40
578 94 2, 411 604 64 41 46 55	40 7 176 64 7 3 2	87 12 250 64 13 4 10 9	11 189 52 6 3 14 5	44 12 158 46 10 9	59 8 185 55 6 3 4	45 11 206 62 5 7 6	85 13 316 80 7 7 7 3	38 7 216 49 6 1 3	55 9 335 71 2 4	30 3 197 32 	30 1 148 24	35 5 2	41 42 43 44 45 46 47 48
11 39 471 59 28 1, 249 1, 119	5 39 4 95 83	5 86 15 6 165 146	4 14 52 9 4 140 121	43 7 3 141 128	1 5 48 7 6 131 117	2 39 5 4 126 110	1 4 61 5 2 122 105	2 37 2 2 84 79	1 32 3 3 124 115	15 1 1 61 60	1 18 1 52 47	1 8 8	50 50 51 52 53 54 55
687 433 298 106 60 252 168	59 33 19 5 5 21	107 65 50 16 9 46 33	61 34 38 9 8 30 20	69 43 41 14 8 27 20	71 46 37 18 7 35 22	88 59 25 11 5 27	67 42 28 14 8 18 20	54 29 24 11 3 16	49 39 14 4 4 17	25 16 10 2 2 2 6 6	34 25 7 1 1 7 4	8 8 3 2 5 1	56 57 58 59 60 61 62
270 1, 078 808 24, 362 472 20, 895 97	14 100 65 1, 867 21 1, 618	33 49 147 106 2, 518 52 2, 169 21	34 116 95 1, 967 39 1, 706	32 101 67 1, 968 38 1, 732	38 122 93 2, 123 32 1, 859	16 99 70 2, 145 48 1, 870	40 143 106 3, 129 73 2, 662	10 17 62 45 2, 098 49 1, 783	18 88, 75 2, 824 58 2, 393	9 64 54 1, 701 28 1, 430	32 29 1, 594 31 1, 323	4 3 428 3 350	63 64 65 66 67 68
565 258 129 450	6 39 22 12 40	63 34 22 49	50 21 14 34	42 22 13 27	14 50 17 18 42	8 55 25 17 34	10 65 42 17 59	60 24 7 32	74 27 5 50	37 8 4 32	27 9 41	3 7 10	70 71 72 73
52, 103	3, 987	6, 347	4, 841	4, 689	4, 997	4, 727	6, 606	4, 174	5, 276	3, 075	2, 721	663	74

MINNESOTA-FORM 1040-A

_		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (ir	thous	ands o	f dolla	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2	Aitkin	31 80	1	5	6	5 12	4	2 16				
3	Becker	72	ī	3	32 21	16	8	10	9	4		
4 5	BeltramiBenton	87 46		6 4	23 21	18 6	10 6	19	8	$\frac{2}{1}$	1	
6	Big Stone	31		2	9	ğ	6	1	4			
7 8	Blue Earth Brown	280 158		12 14	88 49	36 30	35 13	46 25	53 19	10		
9	Carlton	157	2	11	69	24	13	15	18	5		
10 11	Carver	54 126		8	20 18	8 25	5	6 9	62 62	1		
12	Chippewa	85	2	8 5 6,	30	12	10	15	7	ŝ		
13 14	ChisagoClay	58 202	1 1	7 12	11 69	36	8 24	36 36	26 19	5		
15	Clearwater	10		1	5	1	1	1	1			
16 17	Cook Cottonwood	26 38	1	1	9	117	4 7	3 2	2 10	1		
18	Crow Wing	185	1	12 15	60	23 62	21 38	32 45	34 39	2 5		[
19 20	Dakota Dodge	350 18			146 10	2	58 4	40	39	5		
21 22	Douglas Faribault	74 47		6 4	30 14	13 13	9	8 5	5 2	$\frac{2}{1}$	1	
23	Fillmore	60	1	8	19	10	3	6	11	2		
24 25	FreebornGoodhue	227 224	1	17 22	88 91	34 30	24 23	36 22	$\frac{24}{31}$	3 5		
26	Grant	44		327	5	5	. 2	2	25	1		
27 28	Hennepin Minneapolis 1	17, 153 16, 651	38 37	327 299	7, 458 7, 272	2, 555 2, 472	1,724 1,682	2, 329 2, 249	2,146 $2,078$	561 547	15 15	
29	Houston	35		4	10	5	5	10	1			
30 31	HubbardIsanti	32 39	1	2	$\frac{6}{11}$	9	3.	5	11 8			
32	Itasea	160		3	56	27	13	23	26	12		
33 34	Jackson Kanabee	98 25		2 3 2 5 6	18	5 1	8	9	55 12	1		
35	Kandiyohi	224	3		48	29	29	28 2	73	8		
36 37	Kittson Koochiching	19 167	1	1 6	2 65	5 19	4 12	19.	3 42	1 4		
38 39	Lar qui ParleLake.	35 105		7	15 53	3 15	4	5. 16	7	1 3		
40	Lake of the Woods	21			6	6	1	1 7	7			
41 42	Le SueurLincoln	67 125		12	20	15 5	6	7	6 112	1		
43	Lyon	88		8	26	18	12	12	11	ī		
44 45	McLeod Mahnomen	62 14	2	5 2 2	21	10 1	8 1	8	8 6			
46	Marshall	34 98		2 14	7 38	4	6	4 13	11	9		
47 48	Martin Meeker	98 62		11	21	15 8	8 13	2	8	3		
49 50	Mille Lacs Morrison	23 72		5 7	6 28	1.8	1 8	4 10	3 10	3		
51	Mower	484	2	23	242	75	43	46	38	12	1	2
52 53	Murray Nicollet	36 84		5 2 3	11 35	$^{6}_{11}$	3 6	3 10	8 18	2		
54	Nobles	73	i	3	24	10	13	9	9	3	1	
55 56	Norman Olmsted	43 442		2 42	13 207	53	5 30	43 43	15 45	21		
57	Otter Tail	190	2	16	74	40	19	18	17	4		
58 59	Pennington Pine	74 51	1	3 7	20 11	9 14	11	12 6	13 8	4	1	
60	Pipestone	55		5	22	11	4	6	7			
61 62	Polk Pope	289 76		13 4	57 17	27 14	23 17	28 15	129 5	10 4		
63	Ramsey	9, 273	22 22	336	3, 948 3, 850	1,453	879	1, 274	1,061	294		
64 65	St. Paul 1 Red Lake	9,047 20	ļ ļ	328 4	4	2	851 2	1, 242 2	5	291		
66	Redwood	62	2	5 5	16 16	17	2	8 9	10 28	2		
67 68	Renville Rice	76 234	1	26	76	10 34	20	37	36		1	
69 70	Rock Roseau	56 28	1	6	19 5	7 5	7 6	7 3	8	1		
71	St. Louis	3,071	1	109	1, 171	486	278	466	451	109		
72 73	Duluth 1Scott	2, 235 57	1	76 8	880 19	345 10	186 5	329 9	329 6		1	
74	Sherburne	30		ĭ	ii	Š	5	1 3	6 2	2	1	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MINNESOTA-FORM 1040

Total				Net ir	ncome c	lasses (ii	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4 –5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No.
49 67 104 111 36 66 56 6 58 184 145 7 77 7 77 7 77 7 77 7 77 7 7 7 7 7 7		0-1 12 11 177 7 6 9 42 233 11 13 7 7 7 7 15 5 2 2 5 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	3 3 9 9 5 5 6 5 5 77 77 15 5 77 77 17 7 3 3 4 4 5 5 22 2 25 5 3 3 100 15 15 22 22 14 4 5 7 8 10 6 6 1 1 6 6 22 14 4 5 5 10 1 1	440 100 133 144 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191 191	40 140 144 188 42 244 199 15 111 122 66 166 166 17 188 300 255 3924 886 6 33 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	6 6 13 15 1 5 5 28 15 10 6 15	4 4 8 8 16 14 4 13 35 55 6 10 10 10 10 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	4-5 3 3 3 3 9 9 13 15 1 1 29 13 12 2 2 2 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	44 366 122 1188 177 3 11 522 25 177 199 22 25 133 14 1,270 1,227 4 4 4 1 122 133 3	22 27 7 22 20 05 5 5 1 1 2 8 8 2 2 12 4 4 6 6 6 9 9 1 1 3 3 4 4 6 6 6 9	11 11 12 11 17 22 88 82 11 14 4 		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
90 41 35 35 162 97 148 161 90 256 39 77 110 256 383 223 323 243 5, 110 112 112 112 112 112 112 112 113 114 115 116 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117 117	77 6 4 4 4 2 12 2 13 3 5 17 15 2 2 2 2 2 2 12 12 8 4 235 229 1 12 2 12 8 4 4 4 33 6 6 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	77 107 5 8 87 200 111 3 6 6 26 15 15 111 19 6 6 10 10 12 14 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	18 22 33 32 27 19 19 17 7 7 12 33 30 6 9 9 9 5 24 4 4 8 7 7 23 3 8 427 414 2 2 10 9 23 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 193 19	14 31 22 33 199 188 66 133 199 66 100 101 177 177 177 177 177 177	100 55 66 66 111 33 122 122 77 17 1459 9 166 224 8 215 123 8 2	9 117 66 75 522 133 44 9 19 21- 11 10 14 55 32 21- 14 55 32 14 488 476 67 13 10 26 26 25 20 27 77	13	3 2 2 4 4 1 1 8 8 5 1 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4	\$\frac{1}{5}\$\frac{1}{1}\$\frac{1}{5}\$\frac{1}{1}\$\frac{1}{3}\$\frac	3 1 1 1 4 4 23 	2 2 1 1 7 7 1 1 2 2 3 1 1 378 371 2 2 5 5 1 20 1 102 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 1 1 2 2 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 2 3 3 1 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 1 3 3 3 1 3	1 2 2 2 66 62 11 19 18	

MINNESOTA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	ses (in	thouse	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
	Oth Less	90				10		٦	-			
1	Sibley	39	2	1	13	10	5	3	7			
2 3	Stearns	501	2	25	188	85 21	56 25	73	60	10	2	
	Steele	150		10	49 13	21	25	15	26	4		
4 5	Stevens	34 52		2 5	13	6	9	6	11			
6	Todd	96	1	4	$\frac{12}{22}$	13	23	10	20	4		
7	Traverse	23	1	4	8	2	23	12 2	20 8	1		
8	Wabasha	99	1	11	28	2^{2}_{4}	4	6	20	;		
9	Wadena	56	1	11	10	5	ô	9	20 25	1 2		
10	Waseca	55 55		2 6	$\frac{10}{25}$	8	8 9 8	6 3 5	20			
11		226	1			33	33	27	29	5		
12	Washington Watonwan	63	9	10	19	11	11	13	4	١		
13	Wilkin	54		3	16	9	ii	10	5			
14	Winona	538	1	18 3 3 22 7	204	92	60	72	69	17		
15	Wright	60	î	7	15	15	7	' 7	8		_	
16	Yellow Medicine	47		8	16	14	3	i	5			
17	Residents of other States	434	2	33	88	78	35	56	128	14		
•	and nonresident aliens	101	_							1		
18	Total, Minnesota	38, 859	104	1, 419	15, 696	5, 957	3, 868	5, 215	5, 367	1, 195	36	2

MISSISSIPPI-FORM 1040-A

_				~	أمما			-00				- 1
1	Adams	213	4	25	83	34	18	23	23	3		
2	Alcorn	61		5	15	14	10	10	5	2		
3	Amite	18		4	6	3	1	1	1	2		
4	Attala	29	1	2	8	7	2	6	3			
5	Benton											
6	Bolivar	117	1	23	25	20	19	14	13	2		
7	Calhoun	4		1	1		1		1			
8	Carroll	26		7	10	2	4	2 5		1		
9	Chickasaw	21		. 2	7	6	1	5				
10	Choctaw	9		2	1	1		3	2			
11	Claiborne	45	3	8	9	8	8	3	5		1	
12	Clarke	15		1	4	3	1	4	2			
13	Clay	37		4	6	10	4	5	8			
14	Coahoma	171	8	25	32	33	37	13	13	6	1	3
15	Copiah	58	1	10	16	11	8	8	2	1	1	
16	Covington	9		1	5	2	1					
17	De Soto	13		4	3	2			4			
18	Forrest	223	6	11	60	3 8	30	40	26	12		
19	Franklin	13		1	3	2	2	2	2	1		
20	George	4		1	1		1	1				
21	Greene	5		2	1		1			1		
22	Grenada	59		3	12	. 12	18	6	8			
23	Hancock	27	1	4	6	8	2	5		1		
24	Harrison	399	1	35	131	82	54	44	42		1	
25	Hinds	1, 181	8	87	324	189	181	196	162		6	
26	Jackson	1,074	5	79	297	168	167	180	146	27	5	
27	Holmes	71	2	6	13	15	15	16	3		1	
28	Humphreys	43	3	8	11	9	4	2	4	2		
29	Issaquena	12				5	3	4				
30	Itawamba	5					1	4	 -			
31	Jackson	71	6	7	22	11	6	6	11	2		
32	Jasper	7		1	1	1	2	1	1			
33	Jefferson	9		1	4	1		3				
34	Jefferson Davis	6		2	l i	1		ì	1			
35	Jones	182		17	47	29	30	32	21	4	2	
36	Kemper	7		2			2	2		l î	-	
37	Lafayette	20		4	2	4	4	4	2		1	
38	Lamar	9		$\hat{2}$	3	î	1 1	ŝ	~			
39	Lauderdale	367	3	23	106	66	55	64	40	8	9	
40	Meridian	278	2	18	81	50	40	46		6		i 1
41	Lawrence.	6	"	19	3		1	10	"	"	"	
42	Leake	1		l "	"			1				
43	Lee	73		3	21	12	11	11	11	3	1	
44	Leflore	252	3	17	85	47		41			1	
45	Lincoln	68		16		18		9				
46	Lowndes	143		4		23	30	29			3	
47	Madison	48		10		7	30	29			' ³	
21	wauson	1 49		10	1 10		. +		, 0	1 F		

MINNESOTA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net ii	come c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
51	3 26 12 7 6 3 2 11 2 8 8 9	10 42	2 37	8 34 28 17 7 12 5	5 38 21	32	10 37	4 21	2 25 13		2		1
311	26	42	37	34	38	32	37	21	25	11	8		2
171	12	10 12	13	28	21	20	30	13	13	5 2	5	1	3
70	7	12 14	8	17	6	5 5	5	2	5	2	1		5 5
50	9	14	4 5	19	12	10	19	4	1				6
56 74 32	9	11 5	8	5	10	10	12	3	3				7
107	าา์	20	21	10	13 2 11	10 1 8	30 5 8 12 3 10	4 3 7	3	4	2		8
65	2	12	10	5	7		15	10	ĭ	2	ī		8
109	8	20 12 18 34 12 6	10 19	10 5 8 24 17	16	8	16	6	7	3			10
183	8	34	22	24	18 9	17	23	10 3 5 37	16 2 5	7	3	1	11
88 43	9	12	6	17	9	12	13	3	2	4	1		12
43	1	6	4	4	8	6	4	5	5				13
406	18	34 23	34 25	43 23	42	38	58 13	37	51	25	22	4	11 12 13 14 15
127	8	23	25	23	14	9 7	13	4	3	5			15
65	18 8 6 8	10 35	17 17	6 27	9 21	19	$\frac{7}{31}$	$\frac{2}{19}$	23	24	14	6	16 17
244	8	35	17	27	21	19	31	19	23	24	14	6	17
26, 385	1,358	2,786	2, 455	2, 483	2, 656	2, 528	3, 622	2, 286	2, 897	1, 589	1, 434	291	18

MISSISSIPPI-FORM 1040

						1			1			i	_
159	20	27	21	18	13	10	10	18	12	5	5		1
159 68 8 44	20	11	7	4	13 8 1	6	9 3 2	18 3	5		ž		2
8	1		1		1	1	3	1					3
44	5	8	5 1	1	7	3	2	4	6	3			4
302	42	65	35	38	42		28	15	19	12	5	1	6
6				1	2	1	1			1			7
26 31 2 50 16 36	1	2 9	6 5	4 3	3 3	1 2 3	3	1	1 3	2	1		8
31	1	9	5	3	3	3	4		j 3				9
50	1 7	14	7	9	4	1 4	4		3	2	3		110
16	2	14 2 5	í	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 3 \\ 1 \end{array}$	4 2 1 30 7	1	3		1	ĺ í			12
36	4	5	38 5	ĭ	Ī	1 7	3 7	2 19 3	$\frac{1}{2}$		2	1	13
311	34	49	38	40 3	30	28 4	24	19	19	14	16		14
50	6	9	5	3	7 1		8	3	3	1	1	-	15
59	2 4 34 6 2 7	6	6	1 6	7	3	24 8 2 8	4	3	5	4		17
175	15	26 8	20	24	19	11	20	11	15	6	$\hat{7}$	1	18
13	2	8	2			1							19
311 50 9 59 175 13 8	1	5	2	6_2	2								20
62	5	11	20 2 2 2 4 5	10	8	7	2 8 6	3	ā	9			21
62 50 314 634 568 107 63	5 8 39 63 51	9	5	10 11	4	4	6		4 1	$\frac{2}{1}$	1		23
314	39	61	46	36 63	32 59	18 65 57 7 5	26 72 65 10 2 2	15	19 59	12	9	1	24
634	63	82 73	54	63	59	65	72	53	59	39	25 23		25
107	17	73 19	46 10	55 20	55 9 5 1	57	10	50 5 3	55	38 3	23 3	2	26
63	18	14	5	6	5	5	10	3	3	ĭ	1		28
9		1	5 2	1		ĭ	$\bar{2}$		-	ı i			29
3		1		1	1								30
61	12	11	8	4 6	8	4	7 2	3	4				31
28	$\frac{1}{2}$	2 5	6	6	2		-	$\frac{1}{3}$	1	1			33
5				ĭ	2 2 15 3	2		1	_				34
170	13	25	20	1 24	15	9	21	17	12	5	7	2	35
14 28 5 170 27 23 11 249 227	13 2 1 1	25 9 3 38 34	4	$\frac{1}{2}$	3		21 2 3 1	17 2 2	12 3 4	1			36
23		3	3	2	ī	2 2 15 13	. j	2	4	1	2		37
249	18	38	35	25	22	15	27	24	26	13	4	2	39
227	18 18	34	27	25 24	20	13	27 26	23	26 23	13	4	$\frac{2}{2}$	40
1 7	1 1		2	1	1	1 1 11	1 2 12						41
13	1	4 11	1	2	1	,1	2		₇		1		42
13 99 291 77	1 8 37	46	4 3 2 35 27 2 1 8 26 8		22 20 1 1 13 30	11 15	90	15 23	24	5 13 2 7	4 6	2	43
77	10	14	8	15	6	7	20 3	4	4	2	3	ı	45
91 85	6	14	9	1 2 5 49 15 9	10 8	12 5	11 4	23 4 8 7	4 3 4		2		1 1 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 9 9 10 11 11 15 16 16 17 7 18 19 12 22 23 24 4 25 26 27 7 22 24 25 3 3 3 3 4 5 3 6 6 3 7 3 8 3 3 9 0 4 1 4 4 4 5 4 6 4 7
85	10	17	15	14	8	5	4	7	4	1			47

MISSISSIPPI-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	ne clas	ses (in	thouse	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7–10
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 19 20 20 22 23 30 30 31 32 24 25 26 27 28 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30	Marion. Marshall. Monroe Montgomery. Neshoba Newton. Noxubee. Oktibbeha. Panola Pearl River Perry Pike. Pontotoc. Prentiss. Quitman Rankin Scott. Sharkey Simpson Smith. Stone. Sunflower Tallahatchie Tate. Tippah Tishomingo Tunica. Union. Wathall Warren Washington. Wayne. Webster. Wilkinson Winston Yalobusha. Yazoo Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	444 311 744 224 226 366 322 433 12 131 160 688 3668 368 369 1660 689 559 667 77 79 117 160 688 688 688 688 688 688 688 688 688 6	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	4 6 6 11 1 4 4 5 7 7 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 3 3 5 2 2 1 1 4 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 4 1 2 1 2	26	14 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	66 6155 33 355 56 66 67.7 150 2 2 111 99 2 2 33 1 1 1 4 4 1 1 67.7 53 2 2 15 6 6 6 19	4 4 3 3 20 2 2 4 4 3 3 3 1 1 5 9 9 2 8 8 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 6 6 2 2 2 2 3 3 3 2 2 2 7 2 0 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	2 2 2 1 1 5 5 3 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 4 4 4 4	1 1 1 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
39	Total Mississippi.	6, 249	78	594	1, 682	1, 174	936	927	661	164	29	4

MISSOURI-FORM 1040-A

,	Adair	72	,	۰	22	13	-7	9	0	9		
2	Andrew	22	- 1	8	11	3	- 1	9	9	3		
			1	9			7	2	1	1		
3	Atchison	41		- 3	13	10		3	3	2		
4	Audrain	144	1	12	44	24	16	19	23	5		
5	Barry	61		3	16	11	16	11	4			
6	Barton	27		1	10	3	1	7	5			
7	Bates	49	1	5	12	10	7	10	3	1		
8	Benton	13		2	1	3	4	1	2			
9	Bollinger	9			3	1	1	2	2			
10	Boone	257		11	79	49	32	31	41	12	2	
11	Buchanan	1,603	2	64	579	299	192	248	170	42	7	
12	St. Joseph	1,582	2	61	573	293	190	246	168	42	7	
13	Butler	114		7	23	16	25	17	19	7		
14	Caldwell	19		6		2	3	5	2	ĺi		
15	Callaway	46		3	20	10	7	4	2			
16	Camden	3			- ĭ		•		2			
17	Cape Girardeau	250		12	8Ô	42	45	36	30	4	lī	
18	Carroll	67		- 8	18	14		12	7	^	1 -	
19	Carter	10		1	2	2	9		,	1		
20	Cass	59		8	19	11	ã	8	1 1	,		
21	Cedar	7		1	10	11	ī	9	1			
22	Chariton	32		5	12	É	1	4	5	1		
23	Christian	04	9	- 4	12	9	*	9				
24		17		3	6	့		4				
25	Clark		2		95	51	49	41	36	6		
	Clay	295	. 2	13				41		0	2	
26	Clinton	40		7	12	6	4	8	2	1 1		
27	Cole	353		21 8	125	57	48	53	36	11		
28	Cooper	100	1 1.	8	28	15	22	17	8	1	1	II

MISSISSIPPI-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thousa	nds of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No
35 37 37 37 80 26 26 21 43 72 61 4 119 9 9 13 3 5 8 111 200 90 38 8 16 16 16 30 36 36 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31	2 2 8 3 3 2 2 100 7 7 7 7 4 1 1 6 6 1 1 2 7 12 2 12 2 12 2 12 2 14 1 6 6 1 1 1 2 8 4 5 5 1 1 1 2 8 1 1 1 2 8 1 1 1 2 8 1 1 1 1 2 8 1 1 1 1	2 2 3 3 18 5 2 2 6 6 3 3 6 6 8 9 9 7 7 4 2 2 3 3 5 1 1 5 2 2 5 6 4 4 2 2 5 6 4 4 2 2 5 6 4 4 2 2 5 6 4 5 2 6 6 4 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	22 5 5 7 7 7 7 7 7 8 8 11 1 13 3 5 5 3 3 12 2 14 2 2 3 3 1 1 10 0 3 3 3 3 4 5 3 4 5 3 8 8 6 6 4 4 1 8 8 8	3 4 4 6 2 2 3 3 7 4 4 100 7 7 2 4 1 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	3 3 4 6 3 3 3 2 6 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 7 1 8 7 1 1 5 5 3 3 1 1 3 3 3 2 7 7 4 4 3 3 3 3 1 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	77 56 22 24 77 77 33 11 11 11 11 25 22 22 22 28 8	88 44 33 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 12 2 2 6 	3 3 4 4 4 4 1 1 1 1	2 2 3 3 5 3 3 1 1 5 7 4 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 2 4 4 1 1 2 5 5 4 4 8 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 1 1 1 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	2	111111111111111111111111111111111111111
6, 159	668	1,018	768	759	613	449	589	395	422	263	197	. 18	1

	132 23 46 134 26 27 36 14	10 1 2 10 3 3	22	16	13 2 6 16 4	16	16 2 2 18	18 9 9 12 2 6	7	7	4	3		1
1	23	1		1	2	4	2	9	1	1	1	1		2
	46	2	4	5 16	6	5	2	9	4	8	1			3
1	134	10	16 3	16	16	12 2	18	12	6	14	5	8	1	4 5
1	26	3	3	3		2	4	2	2	3				5
1	27	3		6 5 3	4 5		4 2 5	6	4 6 2 3 2	2	1			6
ı	36	1	6	5			5	3	2	3	2			7
1	14		3	3	4	1	1			1	1			8
1	3.		1		4 2 32 74 69 13									9
1	261 865 840	17 38 36 7 2 5	28 64	30 72	32	29 59 59	25 83 80 10 2 10	39	18 94 93 6	32 120 116 7	8	3		10
	865	38	64	72	74	59	83	126	94	120	56 55	61	18	11
1	840	36	61 15	71 15	69	59	80	122	93	116	55	60	18	12
1	113 12 79	7	15	15	13	14	10	126 122 16 2	6	7	4	6		13
ļ	12	2					2	2	1 6	2				14
j	79	5	6	16		10	10	7	6	4	1			15
4	4	1	1 33		1			1						16
1	215	1 16 3	33	18	17 6	19	16	34 11	17	26	12	7		1.7
١	56	3	4	5	6	7	6] 11	6	5	3			18
1	3					1				2				19
Į	215 56 3 57	2	20		10 1	6	4	7	2	3	1	1	1	9 10 11 11 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28
1	4	1.		- 			1			1			!	21
1	23	3	2	4			4	4	1		1			22
1	6	1	1	1	$\frac{1}{2}$			2						23
1	11	2	$\begin{array}{c c} & \hat{2} \\ & 16 \\ & 6 \end{array}$	1 7	2	3		1						24
1	135	13	16	7	19	15	16	14	8	14 2	5	7	1	25
1	54	1	6	5	6	5	8	11	4	2	6			26
1	23 6 11 135 54 209 68	13 13 16 10	18 4	5 17 8	19 6 26 9	15 5 15 2	16 8 23 5	11 32 7	21 10	18 8	13	10		27
j	68	10	4	8	9	2	5	1 7	10	8	4	1		28

MISSOURI-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		Ne	et inco	ne clas	sses (in	thouse	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1 2	CrawfordDade	15 6		2	4	3	2 2	5	2	- 		
2 3	Dallas	2							2			
4	Daviess	9		1	3	1	1 1	1	1	1		
6	De Kalb Dent	10		i	3	3	1	1	i	1		
5 6 7 8	Douglas	1						1				
8	DunklinFranklin	51 185		3 16	14 97	9 29	10 10	5 16	7 14	$\frac{3}{2}$		
10	Gasconade	38		5	ıii	8	7 7	4	3			
11	Gentry	34		3	9	11		101	100	1	<u>-</u>	
12 13	Greene Springfield	865 845		26 25	295 289	157 155	96 92	161 156	103 101	25 25	2 2	
14	Grundy	98	ī	9	16	15	24	21	8	4		
15 16	Harrison	35		1 10	12 39	8 12	3 11	5 10	6 10			
17	Henry Hickory	96	1	10	39	12	11	10	10			
18	Holt	11		1	8	1				1		
19 20	Howard	63 50		8	12 10	12 10	13	13 8	4 10	1 4		
21	Iron	12		745 713	5	10		4	10			
22 23 24	Jackson	14, 329	62	745	4,808	2, 346	1,804	2, 163	1,845	483	70	3
23 24	Kansas City 1 Jasper	13, 776 559	57	713	4, 621 159	2, 256 79	1,726 91	2, 066 102	1, 796 70	471 15	68 5	2
25	Jonlin	404		38 25	111	51	69	75	55	13	5	
26 27	Jefferson	184	1	10	77	25	23	24	19	5		
28	Johnson Knox	74 8		8	22	9	8	13 1	11 1	3		
29	Laciede	23		1	2 8 47	3 7	3	3	1	1		
30 31	Lafayette	136		19	47	22	17	14	9	6		
32	Lawrence.	36 31	4	4 2	5 13	5 9	2	8	$\frac{6}{2}$			
33	Lincoln	17		1	4	3	1	5	3			
34 35	Linn Livingston	168 75		13	35 19	32 14	41 7	29 12	17 11	1 3		-
36	McDonald	1 8			4	2 11	1		11			
37 38	Macon	62	-	8	15		13	7	6	2		- -
39	Madison Maries	14		1	5	3	3		1 2	1		
40	Marion	304		5	112	45	30	66	38	8		- -
41 42	Mercer Miller	6 42		5 2 3	$\begin{vmatrix} 2\\ 9 \end{vmatrix}$	1 4	13	1 9	4			
43	Mississippi	27		1	12	6		5	$\frac{1}{2}$	1		
44 45	Moniteau	33	1	1 2 4	9	6	5	4 3	4 3	2		
46	Monroe Montgomery	29 25		5	8	8 7	4	3	3			
47	Morgan	10			3	1 2	3	2				
48 49	New Madrid	14		2	8	3 5	6	6	1 11	3		
50	Newton Nodaway	66	3	5	8 3 8 8 21	11	13	2	11			
51 52	Oregon	31		2	5	2	13	10	1			
53	Osage Ozark	26		1	11	4 2	6	2	1			
54	Pemiscot	48		1	13	7	6	[6	10	5		
55 56	Perry	40		12	27	6		53	5 29	1 8		
57	PettisPhelps	254 47		2	8	4.8 9	12	53	6	2		
58	Pike Platte	60		3	21	16	6		8	2		
59 60	Polk	72		8 2	22	11 4	12	8 2	8	2		
61	Polk. Pulaski	10			2		2					
62	Putnam	8			4		2	2				
63 64	Ralls Randolph	261		1 14	61	41	1 66	1 56	$\frac{2}{17}$			
65	Ray	41						6	4	2		
66	Reynolds	2				1	2	1				
67 68	Ripley	207		1 9		45		19	11	1		
69	St. Charles	13		5	3	3	1		1			
70 71	St. Francois	128		12	26	19				2		
71 72	Ste. Genevieve St. Louis.	5, 755	7	260	1, 327	763		1,053	1, 127	364	32	
73	University City	1, 245	3	64	213	179	178	216	284	97	11	
74	St. Louis City 1	27, 841	l¹ 4€	5' 1,300	11,626	4,897	3, 115	3, 430	2,691	676	59	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MISSOURI-FORM 1040-A-Continued

Total				Net in	come c	lasses (ii	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No
19 7 2	1	1	6	2 3	4	3 2 1	2	1					
16 11 14 1	1 1 2	1 2 1	1 1 1	2 2 1	1 1 2	1 1 2	5 2 2	1 2 1	3	1			1 1 1 1
102 146 42 31	7 9 1 3	7 22 9 2	11 19 7 4	5 28 4	12 27 6 4	5 13 2 6	17 12 6 6	15 6 2	13 4 2 1	3 6 1	6 2 2 2	1]
569 550 55 22	18 18 3	29 29 9	51 51 4	32 32 6 2	39 37 5 4	75 73 6 2	126 120 13	60 57	76 73 5	43 40 1 2	18 18 3	1 2 2]
77 1 23 70	7	5	9	10 1 3 9	7 5	10	11 4	6 3	5	<u>-</u> 2	3	1]
57 16 6, 474	7 4 1 314 297	14 7 1 355 336	8 2 3 403 388	4 2 452 415	9 6 2 395 372	10 9 1 543 512	5 12 892 850	4 1 2 700 674	4 6 3 1, 015 982	4 1 654	614	137	2
530 350 193 88	30 19 11 3	31 20 34 11	36 21 29 4	52 35 24 9	39 27 27 14	74 50 18 12	84 47 22 11	69 51 6 4	56 39 11 7	641 23 14 7 5	602 33 24 4 4	136 3 3	
9 31 121 30	3 1 14 3 1	4 8	1 5 16 6 7	1 5 23 4 6	3; 7; 3; 2; 6	2 15 2 2 2 3	4 17 5	1 3 10 2	2 7 3	1 2 2	1 2		
30 26 31 68 72 18	$\frac{1}{2}$ $\frac{10}{7}$	9 14 9	3 11 10	5 13 5	6 13 7 1	1 10	2 1 2 6	1 2 6 1	2 6 4	1 5 1	1		0.00
68 18 5 283	13	13 4	2 6 2 2 30	11 5 1 42	11 3 37	3 9 2	5 2 1 46	3	20	2 8	1 1 15		
11 27 60 25	1 4 2	1 6 3	1 2	3 6 2 9	3 6	6	1 3 8 4	1 7 5	2 5 4	1 5	2 3	ī	
34 23 10 70	3 3 2	6 6 1 7	11 2 2 2 2 2 9	9 6 2 8	1: 2 3 2 1 9	5 2 4 2 2 5	1 1 2 13	10	4 1	2 4	1	2	
51 63 10 14	2 1 4	4 4 2	6 5 <u>1</u>	8 9 2	4 5 1 3	4 7 2	8 12 1 1	7 9 2	8 7 8 1	2 1	1 1 1		
1 128 40 169	7 	7 6 13	8 8 10	8 5 21	19 5 22	15 4 28	25 6 18	9 1 15	16 3 13	6	8 2 5		
50 87 45 16	2 8 5 2	10 12 2 1	4	8 5 6 3	8 7 5	6 12 5 1	5 11 5 6	1 4 7 2	13 2 5 3	2 4 1	2 4 2	2	
17 7 15 172	1 11	6 1 36	1 4 20	5 3 2 20	3 14	3 2 2 23	1 2 14	1 8	10	6	8	2	
60 7 13 172	8 1 14	3 2 1 22	2 27	5 1 23	9 17	5 3 1 12	10 5 2 <u>1</u>	12	5 16 2	6 1 6	2		
18 163 53 5, 412	1 14 3 238 53	24 4 414	351	3 27 4 401	2 20 9 433	4 422	5 24 10 633	9 5 537	4 5 843	1 2 1 528	1 3 2 505	107	
1, 459 17, 804	1,044	$\frac{77}{2,317}$	73 2,004	$\frac{82}{1,943}$	108 1, 823	121 1,444	189 1, 739	162 1, 183	257 1,656	169 1, 134	150 1, 169	18 348	

MISSOURI-FORM 1040-A-Continued

\neg				N.	at ingo	mo alos	sses (in	thouse	nde of	dollar	e)	
		Total num-			et meo	me cias	2262 (111	mouse	inus or	donar	s) 	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Saline	176		12	64	35	2 5	21	16	3		
2	Schuyler	8		2	3	1	20		10.			
2 3	Scotland	2					1	1				
4	Scott	120		2	22	19	41	22	8	6		
5 6	Shannon Shelby	3 8		<u>î</u>	3 4	<u>1</u>						
7	Stoddard	26		2	5	6	8	2	3			
8	Stone	46		3	19	4	9	8	2	1		
9	Sullivan	15		1	3	4	3	2	2			
10 11	Taney Texas	6 5		1	2	2	2	1				
12	Vernon	165	2	11	39	21	32	38	18	3	1	
13	Warren	12		1	7	2	9					
14	Washington	18		2	8	$\frac{2}{2}$	Ĩ	2 1	3 2			
15 16	Wayne Webster	13 14		3	3 6	1	2 3	1	4			
17	Worth.	3		2				1				
18	Wright	[5					4	1				
19	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	393		12	139	62	38	60	60	20	2	
20	Total Missouri	57, 568	152	2,882	20,881	9,672	7, 127	8, 151	6, 733	1, 781	185	
-		1		<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>					<u> </u>
		M	ONTA	NA-I	FORM	1040)-A					
1	Beaverhead	73		1	12	17	7	15	13	6	2	
2	Big Horn	34		i	6	11	2	5	8		1	
3	Blaine	46			14	8	5	10	7	2		
4 5	Broadwater Carbon	11 51			5 17	2	4	2 16	$\frac{1}{12}$	1		
6	Carter	1						1				
7	Cascade.	1, 042	2 2	18	381	194	66	178	163	35	5	
8 9	Great Falls Chouteau	951 53	2	16 2	340 24	178	62 4	169	149	30	5	
10	Custer	144			46	22	18	9 37	19	2		
11	Daniels	14			5	1	3	3	_2			
12 13	Dawson Deer Lodge	117 225		5	44 84	16 55	11 17	28 23	15 29	3 10		
14	Fallon	9		_	4	2	i	1		10		
15	FergusFlathead	138	1	2	56	11	9	34 52	20	5		
16 17	FlatheadGallatin	244 197	1	5 2	81 57	40 41	29 18	52 42	29 33	7	1	
18	Garfield	197	l		o i	41	10	1	l. .	9		
19	Glacier	109		1	33	30	13	16	11	4		1
20	Golden Valley	3		2	1				<u>-</u>			
$\frac{21}{22}$	Granite Hill	43 211		3	16 51	9 29	5 30	60 60	6 31	1 6		
23	Jefferson	42			15	7	3	14	$\tilde{2}$	ĭ		
24	Judith Basin	9		1	3	3	1	1				
25 26	Lake Lewis and Clark	26 758	2	14	325	5 138	3 53	108	79	1 36	3	
27	Liberty	100		14	323	100	1	100	19	50 1	1	
28	Lincoln	46			23	4	2	7	10			
29 30	McCone	4			3		2		1			
31	Madison Meagher	20 10			11	3 2	2	4				
32	Mineral	22			7	5	4	5	1			
33	Missoula	622	1	5	225	113	48	117	89	21	3	
34	Musselshell	71	- 	5	41	7	6	13	2	2		
35 36	Park Petroleum	180 8	i		60 5	42	14 1	33	23 1	3		
37	Phillips	37		2	11	5	6	5	6	1	1	
38 39	Pondera	65		2	13	13	4	11	13	6	3	
39 40	Powder River Powell	100			1 34	20	3 12	20	11	3		
41	Prairie	5			3	2						
42	Ravalli	40		2	22	7	1	3	4	1		
43 44	Richland Roosevelt	38 34			17 11	6 10		3 4 7	$\frac{3}{2}$	2		
	Donahad	59			16	13		10		2		
45	Kosebua											
45 46 47	Rosebud Sanders Sheridan	34 18			12	9	3	6	4			

MISSOURI-FORM 1040-Continued

				MISSO	UKI—	FORM	1040~		nueu				
Total				Net in	come c	lasses (ii	thousa	nds of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Li: No
133 11	10	13	21	15	12 2		24 1	5 1	15	6	4		
108	1 6	1 8	1 9	19	12	1 15	16	8	1 11	ī	2	1	
1 20 40	$\frac{2}{3}$	1 7 4	4 6 2	2 5	3 8	3 2	1 7	1 3	<u>1</u>	 			
10 13 8	1	3 1	_î	2 5 2 2 1 2 12	1 1 2		1 4 1	2	1	1	1		
8 19 86 12 22	1 3 1	1 1 2 3 4	5 12 2	$\begin{smallmatrix}2\\12\\1\end{smallmatrix}$		1 3 8 2 2 2 3	13 13	7 1	1 13 1	5	<u>2</u>		
11	1 1		$\frac{6}{1}$	1	2 3	2 3 2	$_{2}^{2}$	2 1	3	1	1		
8 7 8 457	37	53	1 2 1 54	1 1 46	2 28	36	2 3 40	1 1 31	52	34	33	13	
37, 788	2, 114	3, 945	3, 609	3, 719	3, 462	3, 274	4, 416	3, 058	4, 272	2, 686	2, 586	647	
01, 100	2, 111	0, 010	0,000						1,212	2,000	2,000	017	_
		,			MONT	ANA-	FORM	1040				T	
85 3 0	7 2 3	8 3	14 3	3 2 5	5	12 6	16 5	7 3	12 2 6	1 1			
58 9 52	3 1	5 7	3 5 2		3 8 3	14 1 7 2	$\begin{array}{c} 7 \\ 2 \\ 12 \end{array}$	7 3 5 2 6	6 1 2	5 3	<u>1</u>		
13 650 583	30 27	16 16	1 45 41	6 2 63 54	49	100	4 139 127	1 77 67	63 56	43 42	24 22	1 1	
141 114 19	30 27 2 7 2 2 2 4	4 7 3	17 9 4	5 12 2 3 11	9 10 2	90 21 23 3	43 15 1	15 14	56 17 15 1	4 2 1	4		
67 124 12	2 4	1	8 9	3 11	8	13 17	15 23 3	5 17	4 15	3 1	$\frac{1}{2}$		
128 147 162	3 9 9	7 4 6	3 11 15 16	14 14 12	40 9 10 2 4 8 1 22 17 25 2 4	3 22 17	23 24 25	12 24 19	1, 9 15 18	5 7 3	1 5		
8 65	3			1 5	25 2 4	24 2 9	3 10	10	11	<u>-</u> 8	<u>1</u>		
5 33 92	2 3	3 2	1 4 8	1 5 3 2 5 3	4 6	1 7 17	7 17	1 7	2 14	1 8	4	i	
19 11 30	2 3 2 1 1	3 2 2 1 1 17	1 1 4	.	2 3	4 2 3	2 5 8 85	 8 55	<u>2</u>				
442 14 29 7	13 1 1	17 1 2	2	32 i	38 1 3	68 2 8 2 7	85 3 7 1	55 2 2	52 1 1	28 1	16 1	3	
36	1		5 3	2 5 1	3 2 7 3	2 7	1 7 10	1 1 2	1 2	i	ī		
32 12 317	6 3 1 8 3 8	13 2 3	22	30	30	2 49	4 54 7	29 7 7	1 41	24	17		
38 103 11			13 2 3	15 2	$\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 6 \\ 2 \end{bmatrix}$	5 16 3	25 2		5 7	1 2	1		
44 87 16 50	1 3 1		4	2 15 2 2 6 2 3	8 2	4 11 3 9	11 21 4	6 16 2	7 8 2	1 5	1		
9: 69	5 3 2 1	1 2	10 9	9	1 1 6	9 1 9	14 2 16 19	7 1 9	1 5	 ī	<u>-</u>		
63 49 25	1 5	4	9 7	5	6 2 6 8 2 1 1 6 3 2 1 4 4 1	1 9 7 12 5 6	19 8 5	12	5 3 4 2 2 1	$\frac{3}{2}$	î		
31 23	1	1	1	6	4	6 4	8 5 4 5	4 3 4 2	2	1 3	i		

MONTANA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

	190	UNTA	NA-F	URM	1040	-A-U	onun	ueu				
		Total num-		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	inds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1 2 3 4	Silver Bow	1, 577 1, 522 13 12		17 17 1 1	622 598 3 4	306 294 1	127 123 1 2	227 219 2 3	194 189 4	73 71 1	11 11	
5 6 7	Teton Toole Treasure	45 92 4	1		11 31 1	6 14	8 2	9 22 1	14 13	4 3		
8 9 10	Valley Wheatland Wibaux	296 39		1	151 12	52 5	33 4	28 10	25 6	7		
11 12	Yellowstone National Park (part).	666 19		12	212 8	99 4	55	140 4	117 3	25	6	
13	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	110		3	37	17	13	11	20	6	3	
14	Total Montana	7, 904	9	108	2, 901	1, 420	678	1, 379	1, 077	288	43	1
		NI	BRAS	KA-	FORM	I 1040)-A		, — ,		,	,
$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 2 \\ 3 \end{array}$	Adams Antelope Arthur	170 12		10	64 2	25 2	13 5	33	20 1	5 2		
4 5	Banner Blaine	i		1		;				2		
6 7 8	Boone Box Butte Boyd	29 127 9		3 3 4	9 31 4	28 1	3 22	31	6 10	2	1	
9 10 11	Brown Buffalo Burt	19 88 29	1	1 4 4	6 26 6	12 6	5	17 7	5 11 2	2 1		
12 13 14	Butler Cass Cedar	33 80 18	1	4 5 2	11 33 6	8 18 5		12 1	6 1 2	1 		
15 16 17 18	Cherry Cheyenne	6 26 33		$\begin{array}{c}1\\4\\2\end{array}$	9 12	7 5	1	1 3 9 3	$\frac{2}{1}$	3		
19 20 21	Clay Colfax Cuming Custer	11 11 25 45	2	3 2 5	1 9 11	3 6 5	3 1 5 5	<u>1</u>	3	1 1		
22 23 24	Dakota Dawes Dawson	33 102 50		5 6	12 26 13		2	11 27 5	1 11 7	2		
25 26 27 28	Deuel Dixon Dodge	9 21 142		2 2 11	2 6 50	$\begin{bmatrix} 8\\ 3\\ 7\\ 22 \end{bmatrix}$	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 3 25	1 14			
29 30	Douglas Omaha ¹ Dundy	7, 599 7, 523 6	13 13	263 257	3, 059 3, 038 1	1, 196	635 626 3	1			25 25	1 1
31 32 33	Fillmore Franklin Frontier	9 5 10		2	$\begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 2 \\ 1 \end{array}$	3 1 1	2	<u>2</u>	1		 - -	
34 35 36	Furnas Gage Garden	163 7		1 10 2	12	19	4	$\frac{5}{42}$	2	3	2	
37 38 39	Garfield Gosper Grant	3 4 12			3	1		1 1	1 <u>1</u>	<u>2</u>		
40 41 42	Greeley Hall Hamilton	292 21		1 11	97 97	51 9	$\begin{bmatrix} \frac{2}{26} \\ 3 \end{bmatrix}$	54	40	10	3	
43 44 45	Harlan Hayes Hitchcock	16 3 15	1	5	4	2	3	3 1 2	1		1	
46 47 48	Holt Hooker Howard	27 3 14		4	5 7 3 4		5	4 <u>2</u>	2	2	1	
49 50 51	Jefferson Johnson Kearney	83		2 2 2 2 1	27 3	8 5		14 4 4			2	
52	Keith	1 9		ī	$\frac{1}{2}$	l	ī		3			

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

MONTANA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No.
													
624	32	42	32 30	41 39	51 50	89	118	55 52	82	36 36	37 36	9	:
600 19	31	39	30	39	50 3	82 3	116	52 2	80	36	36	9	
22	2	2		i	3 3 15	4	6	$\bar{2}$	i		1		
149	2 2	2 7	8	7	15	11	6 37	22 6	27	14 3	4		١.
149 72 12	4	7	5	$\frac{6}{2}$	1	11 3	17	6	7	3	5		
113	4	4	7		7	10	4 29	14	15	4	8		
21	ŝ	î	2	10 3	2	4	ĭ	3					
410	1			1 27	2 25	65	90	44	60	37	10		10
13	12	11 3	29 2		25 1	2	4	44		01	10		10 1 1
											- 7		
93	12	5	13	5	8	13	8	7	10	3	6	2	1
5, 134	234	240	421	416	436	779	1,044	565	558	266	158	17	14

NEBRASKA-FORM 1040

													_
247 44	24 2	25 7	24 4	24 6	31 4	30 6	33 9	11 2	28 2	7			
1		1											1
4			1	1			2						
$\frac{4}{92}$	1 5	2 19	13	11	11	12	14		3				
129	15	14	14	19	15	24	15	3	6	3	l î		
129 20 27	4	6	3	3 4	2 4		15 2 1						
27	1	. 7		4	4	3	_ 1	3	3		1		1
200	10	28	25	23	2 5	19	32	11	18	6	3		
135 108 124	11 13	24 19	$\frac{22}{11}$	23 14 7	16 12	21 13	16 12 15 9 7 12 21 3	10	6 4	5			Į
124	8	9	25	17	18	9	15	10	9	1	3		1
86	8 12 2 19 5	15	25 15	17 17	18 9	4	9	10 2 3 7, 8 3 6	9 2 5 3 4	î			1
38	2	6	3 12	2	3	2 16	7	3	5	2	3		ļ
121	19	19	12	20	11	16	12	7	. 3	2)
87 57	5	11 17	$^{14}_{9}$	2 20 5 7	9	8 2 8	21	8	1	2			
91	13	10	11	18	3 8	8	6	8	2	1			ŀ
83 194	14	30	24	18 24	30	21	20	15	$\frac{2}{7}$	5	4		
85 49	iil	14)	10	12	12	10	7 5	6	1	2			
49	1	10	6	6 7	4	7	5	15 6 4 3 11	4 5	2			
86 161	8	13	8 14	.7	12	15	13 29	3	5	1	1		
0.1	1 0	20	14	13	21 6	20	29	11	18	6	3		
91	8 6 3 6 31	17	16	13 3 14	8	5 8 38 491	5 9 57 692 676 3	2 2 5	i	9	i		
360 4, 817 4, 701 29	31	57	47	39	45 482	38	57	5	23	10 339 335	$\hat{6}$	2	
4, 817	238	412	359	400	482	491	692	415	23 623	339	310	56	
4, 701	228	396	345	382	478 9	479	676	408	613	335	305	56	ı
29	238 228 2 7 5	5	13	400 382 3 5 7 6	10	479 2 7 3 3	3	408 2 3		1 3	2		
74 40	[]	10 4	6	5	10	4	9 5	3	О	3	1		
25	1!	8	4	6	7 2	3	9	ď	1	1			
69 253 27	1 9	8 12 35 7 3 4	8 24	ıŏ	14	3 23	5 42	2	5	î			
253	21	35	24	30	25	23	42	11	21	13	8		
27	3	7	4		1	5	3	. 1	1	1	1		
14 13	2	3	2	2 1	2	3 5							
13 61	21 3 2 2 13 3 12	19	6	1	14 25 1 2 1 5 2 36 6 2	5	4	1	3	4			
61 27	3	4	4	5	2	2	4		3 3 29				
316	12	15	23 9	$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 5 \\ 26 \end{array}$	36	2 33	53 13	51	29	19	16	3	
75 42	7	15	9	10 5	6	4	13	3 4	6	2			
42	7	6	6	5	2	4	5	4	2	1			
2				1					i				
39 63	2	12	6 10	2	6	6	7 6	5 1	1 2 7	2			
17	2 7 5 5	12 1 3	2	i	í	4	2			ĩ			
25	5	3		2	1/	4	2 5	2	2 7	1 3			
153	10	19	13	20	21	22	25	8		3	5		
25 153 42 56 57	3	9	2 11 3	1 2 3 1 2 20 6 6	21 7 7 3	22 4 8 9	25 5 11 11	8 5 4	1				
56	4 3	1 7	11	6	7	8	11	4	1 7	3			

1258-38---5

NEBRASKA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	ne clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4–5	5-7	7–10
1	Keyapaha	2										
2	Kimball	7			i	3	2	1				
3	Knox	17		3	4	4	5		1			
4	Lancaster	1,716	6	94	628	256	176	262	220	66	8	
5	Lincoln	1,686	5	93	615	251	174	257	217	66	8	
6	Lincoln	297		13	73	43	37	90	37	3	1	
7	Logan											
8	Loup.	2	1		1							
.9	McPherson	149		5	45		20	37	19			
10	Madison Merrick	30		1	8	18, 6	4	3/1	19	0		
12	Morrill	26	1	1	7	2	1	14	î	1		
13	Nance	15	1.		4	4	•	4	î	î		
14	Nemaha	40	l	3	17	5	2	4	7	$\hat{2}$		
15	Nuckolls	$\tilde{29}$		š	7	8	3	4	3	ī		
16	Otoe	86		ğ	29	14	10	11	11	2		
17	Pawnee	9	1		3	2	1	1	1			
18	Perkins	4			1	1			2			
19	Phelps	45	1	7	13	6	6	7	5			
20	Pierce	_4			3				1			
21	Platte	87	2	7	31	16	6	11	13	1		
22	Polk	11			2 27	4	57	2	. 3			
23	Redwillow	143	1	4 10	27	25 23	24 10	46 24	14 11	2		
24 25	Richardson	102	1	10	21	23	10	24	11	1	1	
26	Saline	67	4.	10	17	13	16	4	3			
27	Sarpy	45		3	13	5	5	12	6	1		
28	Saunders	61	2	6	21	6	5	12	8	ĺ í		
29	Scotts Bluff	169	1	8	35	33	18	39	21	14		
30	Seward	31		1	18	7	1	1	2	1		
31	Sheridan	30		1	9	5	8	4	2		1	
32	Sherman	9		1	4	2		1	1			
33	Sioux	3		1	1 2	1						
34 35	StantonThayer	14			10	1			1			
36	Thomas	9		ī	3	2	i	2	1	1		
37	Thurston	21		ì	8	4	2	3	3			
38	Valley	13	í	2	2	5			3			
39	Washington	32	2	2	11	8	i	3	2	î		
40	Wayne	26	1	2	8	2	2	8	2	1		
41	Webster	11	1	3	1		. 3	3				
42	W heeler											
43	York	52		5	19	17	$\frac{2}{22}$	4	4		1	
44	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	147		18	45	23	22	14	18	6	1	
	and nonresident aliens.											
45	Total Nebraska	13, 052	50	623	4, 800	2. 094	1, 263	2, 148	1, 608	417	48	1
10	200011100100000	20,002		0.20	., 000	2,001	2, 200	-, - 10	1,000	1	1 20	

NEVADA-FORM 1040-A

1	Churchill	53		3	14	13	2	9	9	2	1	
2	Clark	1, 145	3	ğ	368	413	145	109	71	24	3	
3	Douglas	35			17	7		2	9			
4	Elko	271	1	9	80	62	24		29	8	1	
5	Esmeralda	42		2	13	12	2	4	4	5		
6	Eureka	15		1	- 8	3	1		l ī	i		
7	Humboldt	88		1 1	27	16	15	17	9	3		
8	Lander	27		1	10	3	5	3	ĺĨ	4		
9 l	Lincoln	60		3	26	10	3	10	6	2		
10	Lyon	54		1	16	15		4	4			
11	Mineral.	. 39		2	10	8	4	9	6			
12	Nve	139		3	45	38	18	14	13	8		
13	Ormsby	99		6	44	24	5	10		3		
14	Pershing	71	1	3	35	12	8	8	3	1		
15	Storey	33			11	12	5	1	2	2		
16	Washoe.	976	4	27	291	182	125	172	140	34	1	
17	Reno	793	3	19	231	153		126	128	33	1	
18	White Pine	290		6	159	29	19	37	28	11	1	
19	Residents of other States	90		4	33	17	15	11	6	4		
	and nonresident aliens.			ļ			1			1	1	1
	- " '			<u> </u>			 -				 	
20	Total Nevada	3, 527	9	81	1, 207	876	410	477	348	112	7	
	1		١	1			1				<u> </u>	<u> </u>

NEBRASKA FORM-1040-Continued

Total				Net ii	асоте с	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10–25	25 and over	Lin No.
63 80 1, 748 1, 677 233 16 3	2 2 7 88 82 12 2	1 9 25 194 181 23 3	9 9 160 155 36 1	1 7 7 172 166 19 2	1 2 11 191 178 30 2 1	1 8 10 261 251 31 1	10 5 170 164 38 3	5 3 163 161 12	5 3 162 159 19	2 94 89 8 2 1	88 86 5	5 5	
278 664 59 955 96 185 31 21 87 60 203 69 103 151 11 43 147 358 48 115 101 4 4 4 9 9 9 9 9 110 110 110 110 110 110 110 1	26 6 6 77 111 9 8 8 2 13 13 13 2 2 2 2 2 2 12 2 2 12 12 2 13 14 14 17 14 17 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	41 112 11 14 11 15 22 25 3 3 10 10 27 25 24 47 7 7 15 22 24 47 7 7 17 14 45 22 22 34 47 17 17 17 17 17 18 22 23 23 24 24 24 25 25 26 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27 27	27/ 111: 66 7 72: 177 23: 22 7 7: 120 25: 57 7 22: 222 7: 222: 188 8 8 3 3 2: 59 9: 144 99: 199: 199: 199: 199: 199: 199: 199:	31 8 8 12 5 5 22 5 7 16 15 9 9 22 2 3 3 33 39 10 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 7 7 7 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	431 29 77: 117: 32: 12: 29: 6: 15: 21: 16: 5: 16: 17: 72: 13: 13: 17: 17: 17:	300 99 100 121 12 12 12 12 12 99 288 7 144 145 155 522 3 3 155 522 3 3 3 4 4 	422 111 8 44 17 170 10 155 55 12 12 99 18 199 174 22 199 14 22 199 100 177 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	14/42/66/63/39/91/44/122/11/15/55/55/55/55/55/55/55/55/55/55/55/	14/ 22 1 33 8 6 11 11 15 6 6 13 36 12 6 2 2 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8	7 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	3 3 1 1 1 1 2 1 2 2 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1	11 11 11 12 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 24 24 44 44 44
14, 445	971	1, 719	1, 456	1, 458	1, 635	1, 657	1, 968	1, 053	1, 259	659	541	69	4

NEVADA-FORM 1040

43 263	1 4	7	4 6	19	3	4 25	9 61	2 52	9 45	4 12			Ł
263 42 161	5 15	12 2 17	9	6 24 2	15 9 23	4 20 3	6	2 8	3 9	1 4	2	Î	3: 4
161 21 19	1	1 1 11	$\begin{array}{c}2\\6\\13\end{array}$	2 4 6	1 1 6	3 2	2	3 2	4				5 6
84 24 16	15 4	5 5	2	1	$\frac{3}{2}$	4 2	15 2 3	1 1	1 2	1			8.
63	7 2 3	8 6	6 2 3	6 4 6	9 2 2	8 4 11	5 4	7 2 14	<u>1</u> 2	1 4	2 <u>2</u>		10 ³ 11 12 ³
63 26 74 48 33 21 775	3 4 2	4	6 2 3	7 3		3	15 2 6	5 1	5	2	4		13: 14: 15:
21 775	1 43	48	3 50 40	58 54	10 3 2 64 57	3 97 91	3 152 143	3 94 92 12	102 98 15	29 26 3	31 29	7	15 16 17
719 106 43	43 38 13 3	44 15 7	10 2	11 1	8 6	5 1	9 12	12 2	15 4	3 1	29 4 2	1 2	18 19
1,862	124	153	127	161	169	206	342	213	230	65	59	13	20°

NEW HAMPSHIRE-FORM 1040-A

-		Total		N	et inco	me clas	ses (in	thouse	nds of	dollars	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Belknap Carroll Cheshire Coos Grafton Hillsborough Manchester Nashua Merrimack Concord Rockingham Strafford Sullivan Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	1, 104 1, 518	1 1 2 3 1 2 2 2 2	33 19 64 26 72 210 110 51 108 74 64 67 19		62 36 96 70 162 599 359 157 255 184 231 115 35	147 81 131 92 106 64	60 13 96 63 148 426 250 117 181 137 143 119 45	209 120 153 107 156	15 5 20 10 55 109 61 30 52 35 36 19	5 10 10 14 6 8 8 8 11 12 2	1
15	Total New Hamp- shire.	10, 816	16	709	4, 587	1, 714	845	1, 333	1, 204	342	65	1

NEW JERSEY-FORM 1040-A

						~						
!	Atlantia	0.105	اء,	144	600	410	969	201	000	E0.		
1	Atlantic City	2, 195	15	144	688	416	262	321	283	58	8	
2		1, 262	9	87	434	257	130	170	142	27		
3	Bergen	17, 813	42	872	4, 737	2, 546	2,095	3, 246	3, 312	909	54	
4	Garfield	166		8	93	23	10	16	12	4		
-5	Burlington	1, 780	10	96	589	307	198	269	224	75	11	1
-6	Camden	6, 718	14	271	2, 255	978	720	1, 230	982	238	29	1
7	Camden 1	2,662	4	130	1,058	473	274	384	277	58	4	
8	Cape May	358	3	52	101	51	37	62	45	4	3	
9	Cumberland	848	5	44	300	128	99	136	107	25	4	
10	Essex	36, 905	84		12,053	5, 910	4, 274	5, 386	5, 637	1,671	78	
11	Belleville	1, 201	1	46	387	162	144	240	186	35		
12	Bloomfield	2,480	2	89	711	365	291	444	448	126	.4	
13	East Orange	5, 674	12	242	1, 561	927	651	920	987	357	17	
14	Irvington	2, 678	1	.97	1,040	443	304	426	303	64		
15	Montelair	2, 239	12	157	549	357	273	297	430	150	14	
16	Newark 1	13, 220	28	686	5, 573	2, 387	1, 418	1,404	1, 355	350	19	
17	Orange	1, 577	2	93	577	295	173	205	169	61	2	
18	Gloucester	1, 545	4	67	527	234	188	256	209	55	5	
19	Hudson	24, 709	46 4		10, 528	4,886 496	2, 525	2,842 307	2, 142 218	452 49	24 2	
20 21	Bayonne	2, 436 1, 704	2	113	1,006		241 172				2	
22	Hoboken Jersey City 1			78	832	369 2, 439		122	104	24	1,1	
23		12, 925	25 1	607 108	5, 261	2, 439	$1,219 \\ 132$	1, 289 227	946	228 15	11	
23	Kearny North Bergen	1, 527 1, 320		75	655	235			151	25	3	
24 25	Union City	1, 856	1 4		467 758	373	159 223	209 224	170	25 22	3	
26	West New York	1, 318	3	89			125		160		3	
20 27	Hunterdon	1, 518	3	71 33	500	280 94	125 51	179 55	140	20		
28	Mercer	4, 362	18	223	162 $1,373$				57	13 205		
29	Trenton 1	3, 117		173		744	505	688	586		19	1
30	Middlesex	4, 773	15 11	215	1,020 1,836	518	351 483	510	403	117	10	
31	New Brunswick	1, 306				741		692	614	171	10 3	
32			5	56	531	206	135	159	164	47	1 1	
33	Perth Amboy Woodbridge	731 274	1	41 16	315 102	126 44	68 29	84 30	79 44	16	2	
34	Monmouth	3, 303	20	218		553	368		487		16	
35	Morris			230				552		110	10 5	1
36	Occor	4, 121 433	10	230 42	1,362	614 75	446	594	662 53	198	8	
30 37	Ocean				129		51	70		7		
38	Passaic	8, 354 1, 491	27	441 63		1, 414 205	934 185	1, 252	1,085 228	263 32	11	
39	Passaic	1,491	3	109		205 330	185 192	256 250	228 229	32 73	2	
40	Paterson 1	3. 539		203			374			103	Į	
41		3. 539	3			679 129		479	400		ا ا	
42	Salem Somerset	1, 787	7	26 95		339	65 126	83	93 281	26 81		
43	Sussex	436		95 30		58	50		281 39	17	٥	
44	Union	14,025		574		2, 169		9 406			38	3
45	Elizabeth 1									651		
46	Plainfield	4,439 1,898		189 75		774	474	602	599	148		
47	Warren	713				312 126	250	288	319 75	108		
48	Residents of other States	1.684		29 99		307	69 213		272	11 84		
20	and nonresident aliens.	1,084	12	99	431	307	213	200	1 2/2	84	10	
	and nomesident allens.								l	l		l
49	Total, New Jersey	137, 973	371	6 877	46, 457	22 810	15 361	20. 746	10 672	5, 324	337	8
# J	100ai, 110W Jeiscy	201, 010	3/1	0,011	*0, *07	22,019	10, 001	20, 140	10,010	0,024	937	l °
			1		<u>'</u>			<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>		, ;

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

NEW HAMPSHIRE-FORM 1040

Total				Net in	ncome c	lass es (ii	n thousa	nds of o	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
358	23	58	39	31	51	30	44	23	32	17	10		
203	17	30	17	26 47	28	22	18	15	11	11	6	2	2
568	27 25	57	75	47	71	52	61	48	52	37	37	4	3
409	25	50	62	37	47	48	56	31	29	13	11		4 5 6 7
829	$\frac{45}{124}$	$\frac{101}{251}$	83 233	98 218	97	74	96 320	62 181	94	4.7	25	7	5
2, 286 1, 297	65	$\frac{251}{126}$	233 135	121	240 138	204 125	193	94	234 135	125 78	119 68	36 19	1
554	36	69	49	49	51	47	73	46	60	32	31	11	á
980	52	122	96	100	87	88	142	90	77	65	53	8	8
594	52 29	65	50	56	50	53	92	53	60	42	37	8 7	10
846	48	95	95	83	72	94	112	62	83	53	39	10 7	11 12
598	30	73	50	58	66	74	94	51	42	31	22	7	12
299	12 15	38	35	36	27	31	44	21	23	17	13	2	13
163	15	24	8	16	15	12	17	12	11	10	15	8	14
7, 539	418	899	793	750	801	729	1,004	596	688	427	350	84	18

NEW JERSEY-FORM 1040

1,753	105	110	132	122	126	237	340	172	217	85	87	20	ī
1, 733	84	82	93	88	88	155	200	107	132	50	57	11	2
7,000	378	716	572	616	699	633	990	806	1, 214	650	518	116	2 3 4 5 6 7
7, 908 131	12	19	20	19	21	16	7	7	1, 214	1	4	110	1
931	24	38	69	55	63	97	175	108	134	87	60	21	* *
1, 987	71	86	129	108	140	234	366	250	306	143	143	11	e
680	32	39	57	50	57	82	130	78	79	30	41	5	7
332	23	27	27	23	42	57	66	21	28	7	9	2	
485	18	26	42	37	37	65	95	39	64	29	301	3	8 9
	1,080	1, 751	1.427	1, 492	1,746	1,688	2, 599	1, 990	3, 122	1, 906	1, 893	451	10
21, 145 241	1,080	1, 751	1,427	23	23	33	2, 399	1, 990	3, 122	1, 900	1, 595	3	11
643	28	46	49	59	60	63	90	62	100	45	37	4	12
	113	195	180	171	221	192	336	303	488	261	229	51	13
2, 740 646	31	86	65	74	86	75	87	50	57	26	229	2	14
2, 649	106	157	139	140	156	147	304	246	449	325	370	110	15
2, 049	520	802	678	660	737	709	937	532	655	389	411	87	16
7, 117 830	36	59	57	62	74	71	98	64	133	75	80	21	17
549	17	16	34	28	43	76	102	61	93	52	25	21	18
9,063	739	1, 235	928	967	1,090	954	1, 112	568	697	381	301	91	19
894	75	1, 233	923	112	1,090	92	131	55	50	23	18	2	20
798	67	135	96	75	105	69	87	38	67	18	26	15	21
4, 241	347	525	429	421	488	468	504	272	343	224	165	55	22
121	931	14	19	12	12	17	17	717	7	3	4	امم	23.
335	28	44	34	42	40	33	40	22	35	9	7	1	23- 24
1 082	103	198	100	119	141	119	126	55	66	26	26	3	25
1, 082 455	39	66	45	64	58	51	55	24	27	15	5	6	26.
381	24	52	38	41	32	35	54	32	38	16	13	6	27
2, 296	91	96	155	117	137	258	418	253	314	238	178	41	27 28 29
1, 467	63	61	109	76	91	197	300	161	178	131	85	15	29
2, 160	163	246	172	197	217	209	305	177	223	137	95	19	30
701	57	81	50	58	59	56	95	57	80	58	45	. 5	31
389	41	62	25	41	44	39	55	30	29	16	7		32:
83	3	9	9	9	8	12	12	7	6	5	3		33
2, 307	119	108	148	157	160	261	357	270	311	168	173	75	34
2, 556	127	224	205	189	230	168	313	221	352	215	232	80	35
422	18	24	27	38	40	57	83	50	42	15	20	8	36
4, 955	337	543	473	457	502	520	612	371	527	294	271	48	37
461	18	43	52	48	51	45	54	31	59	43	16	1	38
1, 306	94	145	112	126	123	125	182	90	141	79	77	12	39
2, 566	193	302	255	234	262	275	289	189	252	140	145	30	40
311	9	15	22	15	20	53	62	36	46	23	9	1	41
974	52	83	80	83	104	119	124	74	110	47	70	28	42
351	20	34	29	41	36	39	53	32	32	20	9	6	43
6, 585	306	494	426	458	568	519	827	702	1,040	610	568	67	44
1,818	94	161	152	149	177	159	260	190	216	148	98	14	45
1, 818 1, 322	68	107	77	109	97	98	146	119	193	146	127	35	46
478	34	59		44	53	47	65	36	49	22	18	2	47
1, 197	75	102	77	110	64	81	121	127	189	110	133	8	48-
													ł
\ 		ļ— 											
69, 126	3,830	6,085	5, 261	5, 395	6, 149	6, 407	9, 239	6, 396	9, 148	5, 255	4,855	1, 106	49
	ł	1	1	1			1		ļ		J		

NEW MEXICO-FORM 1040-A

		Total	!	N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands o	f dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7-10
1 2 3	Bernalillo	848 839 5	2 2	24 24	269 268 3	162 157	93 93 1		112 110	25 25		
4 5 6	Chaves	106 220 110		5 8 5	23 85 27	21 29 17	11 27 11	27 50 31	14 17 17	3	i	
7 8 9	De Baca Dona Ana Eddy Grant	75 108 151	1	5 4 6	15 32 52	16 29 41	14 10 14	18	9 15 15			
11 12 13 14	Guadalupe Harding Hidalgo Lea	29 1 32 71		5 3 1	9 8 21	4 1 7 20	6 5 5	4 9	1 5 12	3		
15 16 17 18	Lincoln Luna McKinley Mora	54 26 255 19	1	5 3 14 4	22 4 105 7	6 6 44 5	10 6 34 2	5 5 37 1	5 2 17	4		
19 20 21 22	OteroQuayRio ArribaRoosevelt.	39 81 35	1	4 5 4 2	11 15 9 4	9 13 13	3 13 2 2	5 29 2	7 5 3	1	i	
23 24 25 26	Sandoval San Juan San Miguel Santa Fe	25 60 154 303		 8 27	13 29 43 97	4 15 28 68	1 3 21 33	5 5 33 47	2 8 18 21	2	1	
27 28 29 30	Sierra Socorro Taos Torrance	11 15 19 8		1 1	8 6 5 1	3 2 5 4	2 3	2 2 1	2 3 2			
31 32 33	Union	18 51 92		1 2 8	16 20	8 11 23	2 4 11	2 11 12	3 7 11	4	3	
34	Total New Mexico	3, 032	5	155	963	615	349	540	333	66	6	

NEW YORK-FORM 1040-A

1	Albany	7, 502	6	364	2, 849	1, 211	757	1, 122	951	235	6	,
2	Albany 1	5, 821	5	249		949	601	836	756	193		1
3	Allogony	936		249 59		127		168	117	43		
4	Allegany	54.617			21, 135			8, 001	6, 757	1, 444	78	
5	Bronx Boro 1	54, 617			21, 135			8,001	6, 757	1, 444		4
6	Broome	6, 367	10	2, 767 242	3, 318	898		905	467	83		
7	Binghamton	3, 237		156	1, 583	454		421	292	59	111	
8	Cattaraugus			75	471	145		128	83	19	3	1
ş	Camara			84		174		159	128	45		
10	CayugaAuburn	926	3	61		135		125	98	27	2	
11	Chantanana	1,759		105		263		259	216	62	2	
12	Chautauqua Jamestown	741				203 92	76	104	93			
13				48 96		270			93 126	8		1
14	Chemung Elmira	1,004						262				
15	Chananas	1,356 990	5	81		241	176	235	107	21		
16	Chenango			87		156	111	111	104	25		
17	Clinton	526		32		85	60	70	86	12	1	
	Columbia	606		44		104		58	61	19		
18	Cortland	592		46		105		68	57	17	1 4	
19	Delaware	493		47		91	49	71	46	14		
20	Dutchess	2, 649		160		455		372	298	86	4	
21	Poughkeepsie Erie	1,484		75		250	166	222	185	51	1 1	
22	Erie	24,005			10, 140		2, 312		2, 442	570		
23	Buffalo 1			1, 129			1,879	2, 361	1,706		35	2
24	Essex	389		39	130	65	39	56	47	12	1	
25	Franklin	668		54		142		81	52	5	4	
26	Fulton	1,074		75		172		124	91	24		
27	Genesee	650		51	258	109	64	77	72	13	1	
28	Greene	472	2	32	147	75	60	70	64	22		
29	Hamilton	59		. 4	14	12	6	9	11	3		
30	Herkimer	1,047	1	101	508	135	93	115	74	18		
31	Jefferson	1,456	4	143		212	135	195	141	29		
32	Watertown	930	1	89		127	85	123	94	13	3	
33	Kings	107, 465	228	5, 907	40, 833	18, 594	10,948	14, 412	13, 226	2,990	313	
34	Brooklyn 1	107, 465	228	5, 907	40, 833	18, 594	10,948	14, 412	13,226	2,990	313	14

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

NEW MEXICO-FORM 1040

Total				Net ir	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
892 883 29 480 198 189 388 279 247 230 35 55 159 66 86 86 81 19 94 100 43 38 64 65 40 65 40 53 53 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65 65	59 58 6 57 27' 8 100 10 16 18 20 10) 19 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11 11	711 711 713 33 33 33 33 33 36 111 123 23 22 23 7 7 7 10 20 20 4 4 8 22 2 2 7 7 7 4 4 5 5 13 3 6 6 7 7 15	24 5 16 10 6 10 2 8 17 20 12 9 9 3	94 93 44 46 16 26 33 27 29 35 6 14 77 31 14 55 10 9 9 9 4 2 9 9 9 9	102 99 11 79 19 21 5 40 22 25 4 1 18 8 8 8 12 13 7 7 4 1 1 6 6 1 5 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	11	155 155 155 266 233 13 500 268 3 3 155 11 15 5 14 10 30 17 8 8 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	107 107 11 34 18 14 4 4 31 26 	73 722 2 112 13 29 27 17 15 5 8 8 3 3 6 6 6 6 2 2 1 2 1 2 1 3 1 3 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7 1 7	35 35 35 35 36 5 9 8 7 3 3 3 1 1 1 1 5	16 16 3 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	4	1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 10 111 12 13 13 4 15 5 16 16 17 18 19 20 22 23 24 25 6 27 7 28 9 30 31 32 2 33 33 33 23 23 33 33 23 23 33 33 23 2
46 76 4, 487	419	16 544	478	500	10 11 512	5	5 9 636	419	290	2 2 133	52	3	32 33 34

NEW YORK-FORM 1040

	3, 743	237	306.	313	314	343	348	531	329	431	252	275	64	1
١	2, 971	195		243	247	262	267	419	261	354	204	231	48	2
1	630	52	85	69	77	71	63	72	43	43	25	21	9	2 3
1	13, 341	1,099		1, 327	1,417	1,605	1,416	1, 762	1,030	1, 215	509	287	51	4
1	13 341	1 000	1,623	1, 327	1,417	1,605	1,416	1, 762	1,030	1, 215	509	287	51	4 5 6 7
ł	2, 427 1, 776 1, 007 987	126	223	251	244	251	291	348	206	232	129	116	10	6
١	1,776	100	155	167	173	186	206	253	150	186	102	91	7	7
Į	1,007	65	121	119	108	101	122	150	69	74	41	28	9	8 9
1	987	62	124	116	100	94	81	138	74	88	51	48	11	9
١	772	57	89	90	73	72	64	110	58	72	38	38	11	10
ſ	1,600 777	110		166	186	187	177	201	93	119	81	60	13	11
ļ	777	55	86	80	90	75	88	101	49	60	51	35	7	12 13
1	1,076	90	116		99	134	95	146	86	89	65	48	5	13
ł	948	83	107	94	86	113	81	130	68	76	60	45	5	14
1	470	32	50	49	45	57	56	64	28	27	30	25	7	15
1	382		27	36	39	37	47	52	44	33	23	16	2	16
ł	640	41	79	83	66	76	64	69	50	55	27	26	4	17
1	504	24	63	49	48	52	52	84	26	52	20	30		18
1	457	52	66	55	53	66	45	54	16	24	16	4	6	19 20 21
1	1,936	129		185	180	188	195	263	166	156	110	119	40	20
١	1,047	76	101	94	97	96	104	144	104	. 88	67	61	15	21
ı	12,956	957	1,490	1, 257	1, 208	1, 343	1, 231	1,686	1,072	1, 189	682	667	174	22 23 24
١	10, 503	800	1, 199	1,032	989	1, 077	993	1, 337	853	916	564	583	160	23
١	497	34	59	48	46	46	54	71	31	33	29	33	13	24
ĺ	686	77	117	77	76	75	68	77	46	46	13	14		25
١	914	55	88	73	69	102	102	142	91	88	53	41	10	26 27
1	479	37	49	42	40	49	51	68	37	48	26	27	5	
ļ	405	28	54	47	41	46	45	52 8	27	27	20	14	4	28
١	60	. 8	14	6	7	5	3	8	5	$\frac{2}{36}$	$\frac{1}{37}$	Ţ		29
ı	745	11	190	95	78	80	70	78	40			21	9 10	28 29 30 31
1	1, 441	62		206	159	174	162	157		89	48	44 33		31
1	911	58	123	130	93	99	101	104	59	64	38		999	32 33
1	39, 901	2,940			4, 124	4, 227	3, 771	5,030	3,068	3, 800	1, 939	1,602		33
- ł	39, 901	2, 940	4.952	4, 160	4. 124	4, 227	3, 771	5, 030	3,068	3,800	1, 939	1,602	288	: 34

NEW YORK-FORM 1040-A-Continued

	· ,						·					
		Total num-		N	et inco	me clas	ses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1	Lewis	191	1	31	58	31	22	22	21	4	1	
$\frac{2}{3}$	Livingston	346 564	6	32 56	135 180	56 96	33 65	44 83	32 65	8 12	4	
4	Monroe	13,673	21	729	5,866	2, 177	1, 338	1,749	1,416	351	23	3
5	Rochester 1	12, 701 1, 034	18	664 44	5, 476 479	2, 054 142	1, 225 77	1, 627 155	1, 292 103	321 30	22	2
7	Montgomery Amsterdam	613	3	26	288	82	44	91	59	20		
8 9	Nassau	17, 766 102, 007	65 330	957	4, 168 36, 800	2, 208	2, 187	3, 429	3, 612 12, 183	1, 012 4, 292	117 394	11 29
10	Manhattan 1	102,007	330	6, 402	36, 800	19, 550	10, 819	11, 208	12, 183	4, 292	394	29
11	Niagara	3, 881	7	219	1,744	589	339	483	396	91	12	1
12 13	Niagara Falls	2, 676 4, 574	5) 8 ₁	123 271	1, 205 1, 981	$\frac{417}{721}$	233 423	345 591	285 440	55 125	7 14	1
14	Rome	492	1	28	199	79	40	65	62	18		
15 16	Utica I Onondaga	3, 092 8, 943	5 20	163 465	1, 364 3, 618	484 1, 369	307 872	$\frac{415}{1,322}$	271 1.049	75 192	8 35	
17	Syracuse 1	7, 836	17	401	3, 188	1, 223	752	1, 141	912	169	32	î
18 19	Ontario	1, 063 3, 086	10	75 203	412 1, 180	196 513	$\frac{116}{352}$	138 437	97 330	23 61	5	
20	Orange Newburgh	853	1	48	321	144	92	127	103	17		
21	Orleans	230		24	81	48	29	17	19	11	1	
22 23	Oswego	1,026 908	4	89 71	417 369	168 137	$\frac{112}{102}$	121 147	92 78	22 9	$\begin{vmatrix} 1\\2 \end{vmatrix}$	i
24	Putnam	372	1	28	119	80	47	58	31	7	1	
25 26	Queens 1	67, 159 67, 159	147 147	3,808	23, 393 23, 393	10, 325 10, 325		10, 691 10, 691	9, 224 9, 224	1,990 1,990	244 244	11 11
27	Queens 1. Rensselaer	2, 973	5	184	1, 217	526	266	411	273	88	3	
28 29	Troy Richmond	2, 123 6, 989	4 15	137 433	874 2, 541	380 1, 108	189 713	271 1,032	199 922	68 209	1 15	
30 l	Richmond 1	6, 989	15	433	2, 541	1, 108	713	1,032	922	209	15	1
$\frac{31}{32}$	Rockland	2, 028	8	137	715	328	205	278	285	69	3	
33	St. Lawrence Saratoga	1, 087 1, 241	3	77 91	393 490	156 211	147 124	151 169	131 129	19 24	4	
34	Schenectady Schenectady	3, 916	6	137	1,386	625	414	694	541	109	3	1
35 36	Schenectady	3,355 147	5 1	113 17	1, 219 44	541 19	359 18	563 21	454 20	97 7	3	1
37	Schoharie Schuyler Seneca	120		8	55	17	17	15	4	3	1	
38 39	Seneca	283 1,560	3 5	37 78	107 612	49 251	20 151	$\frac{28}{259}$		5 36		
40	Suffolk	4, 453	18	387	1,452	741	498	650	562	136	9	
41 42	Sullivan	341° 369	3	26 34	132 170	68 46	35 34	41 51		5		
43	Tioga Tompkins	1,409	22	115	474	199	150			50		i
44 45	Ulster	1,082 570	7	83 45	377 192	175 97	135 67	141 84		32 16		
46	Kingston	869	11	65	326	161	88	83	96	38		
47 48	Washington	565	8	64	207	89	74	72	41	9		
49	Wayne Westchester	613 26, 686	96	65 1,497	7, 981	94 4, 034	2, 993			16 1,507		10
50	Mount Vernon	3,873	15	194	1,099	592	452	597	679	232	12	1
$\frac{51}{52}$	New Rochelle White Plains	2, 447 2, 342	9	143 127	704 729	379 345	286 276			162 131		
53	Yonkers 1	5, 703	10	306	2,021	858	585	909	788	218	7	í
54 55	Wyoming	251	2	35 22	101	47 37	20 21	25 29	16 16	5 5		
56	Yates	188	2	22	53	34	21	25	' 16	٥	' 2	1
57	and nonresident aliens.	12,060	30	688	3,884	1,718	1, 186	1,875	2, 027	592	57	3
58	Total New York	514, 191	1, 300	29, 780	189,239	85, 889	53, 179	71, 040	65, 076	17, 024	1, 566	98
59	Total New York City	338, 237	796	19, 337	124,702	58, 793	34, 925	45, 344	42, 312	10, 925	1,044	59

 $^{^{1}}$ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

NORTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-A

1 2 3	Alamance Alexander Alleghany Anson	432 12 4	 31 2 1	157 2 1	68 1 1	54 4	60 2 1	42 1	17	3	
5 6 7	Ashe Avery Beaufort	5 6 100	 1 5	1 1 29	20	1 15	14	8	2 2 6	1 2	1 <u>1</u>

NEW YORK-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	in thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
237 421 7, 984 7, 178 481 10, 883 93, 620 2, 215 1, 273 3, 580 1, 894 1, 4, 964 14, 964 14, 964 11, 680 119, 68	122 255 608 538 600 66888 7, 117 7, 117 157 200 200 200 200 38 124 340 298 65 141 35 27 41 29 31 1, 340 89 70 70 159	388 600 533 818 724 104 655 7, 405 7, 405 52 2200 988 244 84 84 39 98 870 40 2, 241 165 125 323 323	39 52 42 42 96 99 43 69 45 5, 81 45 5, 81 42 22 13 88 45 21 44 48 33 93 93 11, 80 66 37 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80 66 1, 80	266 499 588 588 666 644 340 7900 5,913 35,913 137 374 494 410 1099 183 57 32 90 733 288 1,835 1,	27 69 64 752 667 97 57 843 6, 392 6, 392 113 345 209 524 439 95 278 84 41 101 78 26 2, 144 2, 144 2, 144 178 138 238 238	20 48 48 48 645 79 53 841 6, 125 6, 125 6, 125 138 323 323 64 181 1524 467 96 212 212 1, 960	24 44 44 75 941 843 844 49 1, 324 10, 165 10, 165 225 6599 83 225 567 104 292 99 106 107 57 2, 521 2, 521 153 2690 2690	23 28 51 694 633 555 36 1,061 7,572 7,572 1100 240 27 156 326 326 44 155 44 30 57 59 30 1,694 1,	144 266 388 801 7333 788 51 1, 599 11, 601 104 304 468 422 57 468 422 59 26 54 57 45 2, 181 2, 181 2, 181 2, 166 216 216	10 10 26 483 451 355 22 936 8, 700 8, 700 113 58 156 37 75 210 311 16 37 37 37 17 1, 065 1, 065 1, 065 1, 067 107	1 8 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 11, 788 11, 788 11, 788 11, 788 210 179 266 213 266 24 29 20 788 898 988 898 885 885	3 3 2 1 1 114 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108 108	1 2 2 3 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 8 8 9 9 100 111 12 13 13 14 15 15 6 17 7 18 8 19 200 21 22 23 3 24 4 25 26 27 28 8 29 9 30
1 2, 327 1, 106 926 788 1, 771 1, 603 218 127 275 4, 143 284 846 1, 140 562 633 448 611 19, 952 2, 303 2, 433 2, 433 2, 779 284, 077;	159 91 67 52 95 86 11 7 16 41 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47	124 145 86 142 133 18 455 113 579 81 139 87 140 65 68 60 177 1, 476 198 153 132 230 38 222	2555 1011 1044 688 1225 1133 333 337 70 70 366 67 1466 69 788 60 64 1, 1200 1187 341 222	252 855 103 87 87 87 87 133 255 1066 4766 476 476 476 115 557 557 38 80 1,208 1,208 1,208 1,208 2,207	238 1100 1106 1066 311 181 181 183 33 1022 4344 822 377 76 114 611 71, 259 165 148 118 118 197 399 399 392 382 25, 270	258 1177 90 888 197 175 26 26 69 365 68 83 30 81 100 46 47 1,382 143 126 236 35 18	269 141 1124 2000 274 200 103 396 63 396 640 126 143 89 95 2, 207 264 255 223 283 377 28 837	151 151 56 59 167 149 12 11 19 73 231 32 22 74 68 31 42 1,945 15 16 17 18 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	216 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1	107 85 33 34 99 89 77 4 12 55 176 10 0 8 48 49 22 216 236 236 236 152 177 2,055 177 8 8 8 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	555 555 522 399 900 866 44 11 11 29 444 11 11 298 152 126 7 7 13 957 	14 166 4 8 122 111 17 888 4 4 17 11 3 5 563 32 22 33 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	301 312 333 343 353 366 377 389 401 442 455 466 477 488 499 511 553 556 57
284, 077 168, 749		28, 581 16, 544	===	13, 541	25, 270 14, 606	13, 530	19, 747	23, 197 ====================================	19, 013	12, 320	14, 550	5, 366	58 59

NORTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040

237 9	4	17 1	19 1	25 4	23	27 1	31 1	23	39	10	17	2	$\frac{1}{2}$
62 62	7	6	1 9	1 5	9	3	7	5	1 4	1 4	3		3 4 5
116	5	1 10	1 11	13	17	10	1 16	1 15	12	3	3	1	6 7

NORTH CAROLINA FORM-1040-A-Continued

		Total Net income classes (in thousands of dollars)										
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10
1	Bertie	23		1	7	5	4	1		1	1	1
2 3 4	Bladen	21			3	5	1	5	5	2		
3]	Brunswick	15		2	5	$\frac{1}{237}$	3	2	100	47	10	
	Buncombe Asheville	1,366 1,100	4	95 82	382 318	166	203 174	249 215	139 107	28	6	
6	Burke	1, 100	*	13	66	24	13	13	21	1	•	
5 6 7	Cabarrus	259	i	21	76	35	37	40	33	12	4	
8 }	Caldwell	105	1	2	21	17	18	23	15	8		
.9	Camden	3		1	1		1		2			
10 11	Carteret	41		5	9	10 2	3	10	1	2		
12	Catawba	199	1	18	60	31	30	33	20	5	1	
13	Chatham	21		ĩ	4	4	4	5	2		ĩ	
14	Cherokee	15			5	4	1	2	1	2		
15	Chowan	36		2	9	6	2	5	5	7		
16 17	Clay Cleveland	167		10	1 38	24	30	31	1 17	13	3	[
18	Columbus	36	- 1	3	11	1	4	7	7	2	1	
19	Craven	145		5	41	33	30	23	10	3		
20	Cumberland	266	2	19	66	38	26	64	27	20	4	
21	Currituck	10 6	1		3 2	3	3 2					
22 23	Dare	173		10	46	$\frac{1}{32}$	19	32	23	9	9	
24	Davidson Davie Duplin	19		10	6	3	3		6		ī	
25	Duplin.	50	1	1	8	10.	8	10	8		4	
26 27 28	Durham Durham	1, 174	2	58	393	187	137	195	151	43	8	
27	Durham	1, 148	2	57	383	183	131	194	148	42	8	
28	Edgecombe	305 1,364	4	9 99	82 427	49 214	56 195	63 249	$\frac{26}{142}$	13 30	3	2
30	Forsyth. Winston-Salem.	1, 290	4	92	394	205	185	236	141	29	4	
31	r rankini	16		1	3	1	2	3	4	2		
32	Gaston	374	2	30	113	59	40	62	37	26	4	1
33 34	Gates Graham	1 7							1			
35	Granville	86		6	14	18	14	15	13	6		
36	(treene	6					1	3	1		1	
37	Guilford.	2, 173	9	164	674	333	294	418	195	66	20	
38 39	Greensboro High Point	1, 559 491	4	112 40	503 132	228 88	210 63	312 87	133 52	44 20	13 5	
40	Halifax.	179	2	9	46	28	17	37	24	12	4	
41	Harnett	68		4	14	7	9	17	12	3	2	
42	Haywood	171	1	18	53	17	20	30	19	11	2	
43 44	Henderson Hertford	98 30		18 7 2	27	9 5	15 3	$\frac{21}{3}$	17 4	$\frac{2}{1}$		
45	Hoke	16		2	11 6	3	1	3	*	1 1	<u>,</u>	
46	Hyde											
47	Iredell	172	2	14	44	20	37	17	31	6	1	
48 49	Jackson Johnston	20 79	1	4	5 21	4 10	13	17	10 10	1 3		
50	Jones	19		5	21	10	10	11	10	9		
51	Lee	56		5	14	8	8	15	3	3		
52	Lenoir	187		8	35	30	32	39	25	10	7	1
53	Lincoln McDowell	48	1	5	7	5	10	11	9	2		
54 55	Macon	67 27		5 1	11 10	11 6	7	23	7	2	1	
56	Madison	ii			4	4		3				
57	Martin	52		6	21	5	8	8	3	1		
58	Mecklenburg	3, 191	14	190	960		429	614	402	115	20	1
59 60	Charlotte Mitchell	3, 075 16		182	921	434	420 3	594	377 4	113	20	1
61	Montgomery	39	1	2	12	12	4	5	-		3	
62	Moore	130		18	39	$\tilde{20}$	19	15	12	2	ī	
63	Nash	222	1	13	55	38	24	58	27	5	2	
64	New Hanover	978		55	372	149	110	175	94 93	18	3	
65 66	Wilmington Northampton	959 22		54	366 5	145	108	171	93	18	1	
67	Onslow.	6	_		ľ	í		2				
68	Orange	87	2	9	22	14	16	13	10	í		
69	Pamlico	6				1 1	1	4				
70 71	Pasquotank	121	2	11	32	17	23	21	10	4 1	1	
$\frac{71}{72}$	Pender Perquimans	11 12		1	3	2	4			2	ī	
73	Person	52	1	4	5 31		6		14	4	l	
74	Pitt	173	. 2	4	31	24	33	39	29		5	 -

NORTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	ncome o	lasses (i	n thous	nnds of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	45	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
33 13 12 677 593 91 196 99	1 1 52 · 46 3 4 2 1	2 	2 1 2 66 59 6 11	3 2 3 81 75 7 12	5 1 2 70 61 8 16 6	5 1 1 58 54 9 25	5 1 1 72 65 13 31	3 4 48 45 10 19	4 1 1 66 54 15 16	1 1 45 38 5 21	2 1 32 26 10 22 12	5 3 1 6	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
5 61 12 206 22 18 35	11. 2	25 1 4	1 9 2 17 2 2 2 1	1 10 4 18 3 2 6	14 22 3 3 4	3 3 18 3 3 2	5 1 25 3 6 2	5 1 12 5	24 1 1 1 5	1 1 14 3 2	18 2	2	10 11 12 13 14 14 16
113 56 121 148 6	10 4 16 12 1	2 7 14 10 1	5 2 9 18 2	11 4 13 17	11 10 18 19	4 8 15 1	10 14 13	9 8 13	14 4 12 15	11 6 6	3 8	2	17 18 19 20 21
10 155 17 34 717 695 253 1, 213 1, 167 35 315	10 20 36 35 9 59 59 1 20	1 15 69 69 20 74 69 7 39	5 56 52 24 105 99 3 37	4 19 2 5 45 45 27 99 94 5 24	2 21 	14 4 4 52 49 27 132 125 2 23	23 3 91 87 44 179 168 8 34	16 2 61 56 17 98 96 4 23 2	100 24 101 101 18 115 111 2 30 1	6 1 1 61 60 16 78 78 1 20	10 1 2 49 48 14 97 96 1 20	3 17 16 4 58 58	20 21 22 23 24 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36
2 68 22 1, 146 782 295 141 49 77 87 30	1 2 76 51 24 8 1 5 9	6 2 101 67 28 9 3 17 16 4	92 65 19 16 1 7 13 2	3 3 104 76 23 16 5 12 7 3	8 3 104 755 25 18 9 8 10 3	7 1 118 76 40 13 1 12 8 1 6	1 13 7 150 104 33 21 10 4 8 2 2	99 68 24 12 5 5 3	123 79 32 15 4 4 7 3	9 2 69 48 16 7 6 2 3 1	2 1 75 51 20 6 4 1 3	1 1 35 22 11	39 40 41 42 43 44
151 23 65 5	6 1 5	13 4 10	14 6 3	19 4 4 1	29 1 6	20 1 6	11 2 9	12 3 5	13 7 3	7 	6 1 2		46 47 48 49 50
52 181 38 57 14 10 61 1,466	3 8 1 1 4 89	8 13 4 5 2 1 3 114	9 2 3 2 2 4 110	13 4 10 2 1 1 124	11 6 5 4 2 1 8 135 131	22 1 1 7 117	7 26 7 10 2 2 13 180	23 4 6 2 1 9 150	5 22 4 11 1 1 6 210	15 4 3 4 120	20 2 4 2 92	1 25	49 50 51 52 53 54 55 56 57
1, 419 18 24 141 180 495 472 64 14	85 4 15 10 32 30	109 2 5 24 12 60 56 4 3	3 8 13 43 41	119 5 2 14 15 39 36	131 3 3 16 22 58 56 8 2 6	114 1 6 19 56 52 5	169 5 16 24 45 44 17	144 	206 1 2 14 19 57 55 5	120 11 16 32 30	91 1 4 14 28 27	25 1 2 9 9	59 60 61 62 63 64 65
51 11 144 11 21 60 320	3 4 20 1 2 13	6 2 21 1 2 5 28	14 3 4 5	6 2 20 20 6 41	16 6 9	12 1 1 1 7 29	9 	4 7 2 6 34	5 1 9 2 2 2 5 33	5 8 3 29	1 1 4 22	3	66 67 68 68 70 71 72 73

NORTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	t inco	me clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10
1 2 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 26 27 28	Polk Randolph Richmond Richmond Robeson Rockingham Rowan Rowan Rutherford Sampson Scotland Stanly Stokes Surry Swain Transylvania Tyrrell Union Vance Wake Raleigh Warren Washington Watauga Wayne Wilkes Wilkes Wilkes Wilson Yadkin Yancey Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	29 127 184 118 236 398 74 32 45 95 111 113 36 19 1 1,318 1,224 59 202 54 322 1,318 1,224 1,318 1,224 1,318 1,224 1,318 1,224 1,318 1,224 1	11 2 2 2 2 1 1 1	4 100 9 11 13 22 25 57 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 100 64 11 13 64 57 2 6 11 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	4 37, 35, 53, 107, 11, 6, 9, 22, 24, 4, 29, 18, 14, 11, 12, 7, 400, 37, 4, 14, 5, 3, 48, 12, 73, 3, 35, 35	8 177 16 32 533 18 7 7 3 11 2 15 3 9 9 11 12 3 193 179 8 8 3 3 179 9 42	8 16 128 18 37 72 12 12 13 3 8 16 6 2 15 11 1 1 17 18 169 13 13 14 11 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	4 277 53 117 64 91 115 58 81 12 19 	122 132 155 466 8 8 5 5 8 8 15 1 1 233 2 2 1 1 100 211 1866 1688 4 2 2 27 6 6 43	66 65 3 311 33 55 11 22 5 5 22 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
29	Total North Caro- lina	19, 439	81	1, 250	5, 674	2, 954	2, 687	3, 651	2, 250	718	163	1

NORTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-A

٠,١	1 dama	10		,				, ,				ĺ
1	Adams	19		Ī	6	4	4	1	3			
2	Barnes	87		7	31	18	11	13	6	1		
3	Benson	31		2	10	8	4	4	3		-	
4	Billings	2	1					1				
5	Bottineau	33		7	4	5	9	4	4			
6	Bowman	14			4	2	3	3	2		- -	
7	Burke	19		2	4	7	3	3				
8	Burleigh	389	2	24	137	67	58	54	37			
9 [Cass	1, 190	5	95	371	165	191	187	146	28	2	
10	Fargo	1,075	3	83	333	143	175	173	137	26	2	
11	Cavalier	20		3	4	2	3	5	3		_	
12	Dickey	37		7	13	8	5	3	1			
13	Divide	14		١ '	2	7	2	1	1	1		
14	Dunn	6			1	•	3		î	1		
15	Eddy	18		2	1	5	9				1 1	
16	Eddy			4	4	9	2	1	4			
	Emmons	15		1	5	Ţ	4	2	1	1		
.17	Foster	12			7	1	3		ī			
18	Golden Valley	16		1	6	3	1	3	1	1		
19	Grand Forks	518	1	42	140	93	88	95	44	14	1	
20	Grant	14		2	3	4	3	2				
21	Griggs	16			5	4	2	2	2	1		
22	Hettinger	26	1	3	3	7	8	1	2	1		
23	Kidder	9		1	3	2	"	2	Ĩ	_		
24	La Moure	25	4	6	6	5	1	3	_			
25	Logan	i -7	1	1 1		3	2	v		1		
26	McHenry	25		1 2	4	10	6	1		*		
27	McIntosh	17		3	5	2	2	4	1			
28	McKenzie	16		1	3	4	- 2	2	1			
29	Molon	33		3								
	McLean			3	12	7	6	3	- 2			
30	Mercer	23		2	5	- 9	5	1				
31	Morton	180	5	22	51	36	25	29	11			1
32	Mountrail	20		5	4	5	3	1	1	1		
33	Nelson	13		2	6	1	1	2	1		\	
34	Oliver	1			. 	1					1	
35	Pembina	29		6	6	6	6	4	1		1	1
36	Pierce	21		š	6	6	3	2	ī			1
37	Ramsev	101	3	11	33	17	15	13	÷	2		1
38	Ransom	62	, ,	6	13	6		8	, á	2	- 	
30	***************************************	02		. 0	131	0,	20	0;	4	. 4	1	1

NORTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
45 88 85 150 187 278 57	7 6 22 4	6 11 6 11 23 19	7 12 9 20 12 22 5	4 9 8 17 15 37 6 7	1 5 12 17 24 45	2 5 9 13 13 28	11 11 8 23 29 33 9	5 10 3 6 16 19	6 10 5 17 31 24 7	1 5 6 9 14 14	1 6 10 8 4 10 3	1 1 2	1 2 3 4 5 6 8
45 49 76 8 152 12 17	4	7 2 14 2 4	4 5 5 19 19	7 1 6 4	5 4 16 1 14	7 7 9 3 15 3 3	8 8 9 1 23 2 1	2 5 13 2	4 7 7 17	4 3 4 7 1	4 3 4	1 1	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 14
44 120 616 540 56 26	1 6 39 36 2	2 6 9 51 45 2 2	2 7 47 42 7 2	9 9 61 49 6 2	6 16 63 55 12 8	8 12 57 41 7 4	6 18 105 91 5 4	5 10 56 50 3 1	8 61 58 7 1	1 15 36 36 3 1	8 34 31 2 1	2 6 6	10 10 10 10 10 10 20 21 21 21 22
165 60 228 10	29 66 55 13	27 8 12	12 6 13	12 4 17 1	16 8 23 3	15 6 16 1	22 8 28 5	15 3 25	17 9 38	12 1 20	9 2 19	2 4	23 24 24 26 26 27 28
1 176	6	14	6	15	7	17	16 16	21	30	19	18	7	28
13, 193	757	1, 209	1, 109	1, 246	1,428	1, 225	1,748	1, 133	1,448	874	784	232	29

NORTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040

 			1			_		1	1			T
27	2	4	3 38 5	5	2 11	3	7			1		
$\frac{140}{42}$	2 7 3	4 26	38	16	11	16	7	10	4	3	2	
42	3	-9	5	10	6	3	4		$\bar{2}$	١		
51 51	5	11	10	8	6	4	3	3	1			
51	4	15:	5	7	4	4	10	2				
46	5	10	10	6	3	3	7	2				
46 280 957 767	4 5 11 71 43 7	41	5 10 33	6 29	4 3 34 85 67	4 3 16 105	10 7 33 125 100	3 2 2 32 83	25 86	12 39 37	13 27 27	1
957	71	123	114	98	85	105	125	83	86	39	27	1
767	43	93	85	80	67	86	100	69	79	37	27	1
56	7	16	8	6			5	2	3			
55	6	11	1Ĭ	6	3	7	5	4	_	i	1	
38	4	7	9	5	6	5 7 2	1	$\frac{4}{2}$	1		1	
7	-	i	2		š		ī	_	_			
39		6	9 2 6	5	4 3 6 3	6	2	2	ī		1	
19			ا ق	11		1	5	ī	2		-	
46	الم	á	5	4	ź	ŝ	4	3	$\bar{2}$			
42	5	3	8	6	5	3	5	4	2	1	•	
56 55 38 7 32 19 46 42 3711 28 40 20 48 18 75 32 21 59 148 56	4 5 25	1 9 3 42	3 5 8 45 7	52	4 7 5 45 3	6 1 8 3 34	2 5 4 5 48 2 5 6	28 1	2 37	ŝ	7	
277	20	7.2	7	52 5	30	01	2	20	1	1		
20		7 6 5 7	4	3	2		5	i	2	i		
40	$\frac{2}{3}$	5		7	5	2	é	3	-	1		
40	il	2	8 3 8	í		2	9	ĭ				
40		ý	3	e	1	2	3 5	1	1			
10	ុ	4	2	6 3	9	o o	1	- 1	1			
19	1	19	4 19	6	2	2	3					
75	10	19	19		9	(9	1	1			
32	9	5	4	4	31	2	2	1	1			
211	9	3	2	.2	2	2 2 2 5 2 2 2 9	2	- 1				
59	8 1 10 9 6 3 2 12 8 2	6 3 18 7	4 2 6 6 19	4 2 13 4	5 3 9 3 2 7 3 21 3 5	9	3 2 3 2 5	1				
29	_2	7	6		3	1	00	1				
148	12	20	19	$\frac{21}{7}$	21	1 14 5	23	6	10	2		
56	8	10	111	7)	3	5	23 8 7	7	1	2		
43	2	10	5 2	6	5	3	7	1	3	1		
43 6 82 42 231 50		1	2	3								
82	8	12 7	11	13	13 3 28 4	6	6	9 3 13	3	1	2	
42	1	7	5	6	3	4	. 7	3	3	2 6	1	
231	15 5	44 12	5 22 9	30 11	28	29	36 2	13	7	6		1
50	5	12	9	11]	4	5	2	2				

NORTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
<u> </u>	Renville	5			1							
2	Richland	113	2	12 3	40	15	15	14	11	3	1	
3	Rolette	41	1	3	14	7	4	9	2	1		
4	Sargent	9		3	5	2	2					
5 6	Sheridan	5		3	2	2	2	2				
7	Sioux Slope	5					-	4	. 1			
8	Stark	108	3	13	32	20	18	13	6	3		
9	Steele	4			2	2				••••		
10	Stutsman	207		12	55	31	49	36	18	5	1	
11	Towner	15		4	7		2	2				
12	Traill	35 51	1	4 6 7	13	5	7	2	3	1		
13	Walsh	437	2	7	13 147	68	58	80	6 42	2		
14 15	Ward Wells	437	3	35 3	13	14		3	42	4		
16	Williams	101		9	29	19	19	15	8		i	
17	Residents of other States	54		6	12	10		8	. š	ì	l	
	and nonresident aliens.	1							_			
18	Total North Da- kota.	4, 305	34	387	1, 302	732	700	656	400	83	10	1

OHIO-FORM 1040-A

41 Cincinnati 17,726 34 807 6,938 2,840 1,654 2,476 2,251 635 42 Norwood 1,352 59 571 199 97 236 154 34 43 Hancock 403 2 18 152 56 41 73 48 10	
Allen	1 !
Lima	<u> </u>
Ashland	3
5 Ashtabula 865 1 29 292 148 84 188 101 21 6 Athens 188 188 12 62 29 16 37 27 4 7 Auglaize 147 18 36 30 19 20 18 6 8 Belmont 865 5 41 411 142 75 98 77 15 10 Butler 2,068 70 880 311 163 294 268 72 11 Hamilton 906 27 366 110 71 140 144 44 13 Carroll 46 2 9 8 7 11 6 3 14 Champaign 173 12 62 22 20 29 23 3 16 Springfield 1,547 24 44 739 210 92<	3
6 Athens 188 12 62 29 16 37 27 4 7 Auglsize 147 188 30 19 20 18 6 8 Belmont 865 5 41 411 142 75 98 77 15 9 Brown 44 3 15 8 3 8 6 72 11 Hamilton 994 30 451 170 74 136 105 22 12 Middletown 906 27 366 110 71 140 144 44 13 Carroll 46 2 9 8 7 11 6 3 3 15 Clark 1,600 2 47 775 218 102 240 175 49 16 Springfield 1,547 2 44 739 210 99 235 168 49 17 Clermont 196 1 13 81	1
Table Tabl	1
8 Belmont 865 5 41 411 142 75 98 77 15 9 Brown 44 3 315 8 6	1
Brown	-{
10	1
Hamilton	1
12	9 1
13	6
Champaign	3 1
15 Clark	
16	2
17 Clermont 196	1
18	1
19	1
Coshocton	1
Crawford	1
Crawford	1
Cleveland 40,088 199 1,647 14,693 6,569 3,802 6,075 5,655 1,361	
24	7
24	4
25	8
26 Lakewood 4,824 40 163 1,248 632 467 994 1,004 271 27 Darke 136 2 24 38 16 18 25 11 2 28 Defiance 138 1 12 53 10 20 18 19 5 29 Delaware 142 7 53 23 17 26 14 2 2 30 Erie 699 2 55 265 104 70 116 70 16 31 Fairfield 345 4 18 126 52 33 52 46 14 2 32 Fayette 107 1 2 32 16 8 22 18 6 33 Franklin 7,335 20 270 2,680 1,129 710 1,220 1,082 258 35 Fu	3
27 Darke	5
28	9
Delaware	
30 Erie	
Fairfield	1
32 Fayette	1
33 Franklin	2
34 Columbus! 7,395 20 270 2,680 1,129 710 1,220 1,082 258 35 Fulton 1111 1 15 40 11 9 23 11 1 36 Gallia 57 5 22 7 9 6 7 1 37 Geauga 83 6 23 12 9 17 11 5 38 Greene 310 2 14 111 55 58 31 7 39 Guernsey 162 2 5 68 29 9 25 19 5 40 Hamilton 21,299 37 986 8,426 3,377 1,920 3,045 2,661 741 1 41 Cincinnati 17,728 34 807 6,938 2,840 1,654 2,476 2,251 635 42 Norwood 1,352	26
35 Fulton	24 2
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	A 2
37 Geauga	
38 Greene	
39 Guernsey	
40 Hamilton 21, 299 37 986 8, 426 3, 377 1, 920 3, 045 2, 661 741 41 Cincinnati 1 17, 726 34 807 6, 938 2, 840 1, 654 2, 476 2, 251 635 42 Norwood 1, 352 59 571 199 97 236 154 34 43 Hancock 403 2 18 152 56 41 73 48 10	
42 Norwood	:: :
42 Norwood	01 5
43 Hancock 403 2 18 152 56 41 73 48 10	36 5
43 Hancock 403 2 18 152 56 41 73 48 10	2
	3
44 Hardin 129 20 33 19 20 16 15 4	2
45 Harrison 104 3 5 43 16 7 13 11 6	
46 Henry 94 2 11 22 14 15 16 12 2	
47 Highland 100 5 40 18 3 21 11 2	
48 Hocking 7 22 13 3 7 12	
49 Holmes 38 3 13 4 4 12 2	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

NORTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-Continued

_				Net in	come et	aggas (in	thouses	nde of a	iollers)				
Total num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
19 111 28 12 19 10 8 115 31 159 69 177 115 375 72 2111	2 12: 4 4 2 1 1 11: 2: 12: 10: 16: 9 30: 10: 10: 4	4 23 6 2 5 16 9 19 16 23 14 57 13 15 7	2 26 2 3 1 1 15 5 18 12 33 24 24 23 10	2 15 6 1 1 1 1 1 16 8 18 9 17 15 5 5 7 9 24 2	22 99 55 33 11 29 20 77 17 144 40 9 144 3	2 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 8 5 5 2 2 2 1 2 2 9 7 7 7 5 5	2 8 1 16 3 25 8 26 13 4 8 8 6	22 54 4 7 7 12 11 11 5 24 4 5 5	1 4 1 2 5 5 12 7,6 6 28 28 28 5 4	5 4 2 10	2 4 1 1 1 1 5		1 2 3 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 14 15 16 17
4, 794	392	773	716	614	511	454	561	311	278	110	71	3	18
					OHIC)—FOR	M 104	0-A					
299 747 619 2222 647 210 208 419 77 1, 231 627 437 41 169 836 7788 788 788 788 183 213 757 159 420 21, 162 13, 032 24, 172 24, 722 4, 730 111 839 285 172 4, 730 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 49 83 221 11, 151 117 412 210 67 67 67 67 67 67	19 23 30 31 11 15 39 34 12 16 6 6 8 8 8 18 18 19 200 1855 16 8 8 8 16 17 17 17 17 17 17 17	19 26 22 1, 238 1, 061 45 49 23 11 27 26 8	78 266 200 900 100 1, 964 41 133 28 5 61 14 41 100 317 291 11 1, 156 802 38 38 38 18 9 9 20 40 8	4 73 58 58 20 277 20 30 30 5 114 588 114 588 24 288 1, 32 1, 32 1, 32 21 1, 32 22 289 17 30 21 13 30 21 15 30 21 15 30 21 15 30 21 30 30 30 30 4 4 28 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30 30	5 91 78 322 89 17 24 39 63 37 33 32 82 82 1,996 1,342 198 56 204 41 41 66 24 41 42 42 41 17 1,065 45 42 41 41 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42 42	70. 255 199 144 100 126 66 65 999 211 266 1,086 165 600 1700 177 151 122 299 1499 4488 122 1,086 66 110 267 17 151 1,052 878 49 121 1,053 1,054 1,054 1,056	2 977 800 366 888 364 777 777 105 58 8 23 117 105 222 255 31 31, 401 342 799 299 112 20 67 666 188 89 31 1, 401 113 113 113 114 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115	1 38 34 20 39 30 39 30 32 6 95 49 95 49 95 41 11 12 11 13 20 20 1, 845 95 27 845 95 282 55 278 13 10 26 47 10 10 26 47 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	17 13 34 55 115 64 39 91 1 96 91 14 49 17 2,418 1,166 6 6 6 6 7 7 7 26 13 13 34 4 9 13 13 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31 31	45 43 100 199 12 111 199 699 33 299 111 61 599 6 6 11 138 8 209 50 181 133 188 77 386 6 6 1,447 77 386 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	344 31 33 38 18 178 344 444 4100 33 355 66 177 1, 391 770 207 24 134 44 7 7 7 11 15 8 8 360 328 33 11 11 15 15 16 17 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	1 2 2 3 3 3 6 3 3 6 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 6 9 3 3 3 3	4 5 6 6 7 7 7 8 9 100 111 122 13 144 15 14 15 14 19 20 20 22 22 22

OHIO-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		Ne	t incor	ne clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Huron	459		49	131	61	88	87	33	6	4	
2	Jackson	85		4	18	18	11	18	12	3	i	
3	Jefferson	1,612	1	51	713	267	130	238	175	37		
5	Steubenville	1, 138 177	1	21 14	455 44	200 21	107 17	181 32	143 40	30 7		<u>1</u>
6 7	Lake	925	3	32	386	130	80	151	122	21		
7	Lawrence	241 740	2	8 37	84 308	40	29	43	30	.3	2	
8	Licking Newark	611		26	262	111 88	47 36	133 112	89 75	15 12		
10	Logan	290		16	92	48	47	58	25	4		
11	Lorain	1, 593	4	53 15	625 196	226 70	133	282	208 79	59	3 2	
$\frac{12}{13}$	Elyria Lorain	549 677	1	23	317	95	57 39	117 109	75 75	13 18	2	
14	Lucas	8, 383	32	411	3,077	1, 351	854	1,310	1,082	238	27	1
15	Toledo 1	8, 161	32	392	3, 008 35	1, 323	824	1, 269	1,052	234	26	1
16 17	Madison	$\frac{78}{3,626}$	7	96	1, 299	13 581	294	649	575	$\frac{3}{123}$	2	
18	Youngstown 1	3, 265	5	87	1, 141	522	271	600	530	107	2	
19 20	Marion	444 409		16) 14	163 151	74 68	38 31	97 91	44 44	11 9	1	
21	Medina	332	1	30	128	46	28	46	41	11	1	
22	Meigs	89		4	29	18	9	15	14			
23 24	Mercer Miami	100 493	3	10 30	29 183	16 66	9 42	23 92	10 51	$\frac{2}{24}$		
25	Monroe	27		4	9	5	3	3	2	1		
26	Montgomery	6, 348	7	239	2, 547	947	536	986	875	188		3
27 28	Dayton 1 Morgan	6, 055 36	7	220 1	2, 406 14	899 7	516 5	953	849 6	184	18	3
29	Morrow	35		5	12	4	6	4	3	1		
30	Muskingum	691		37	255 212	111	70	119	84	14	1	
31 32	Zanesville Noble	545 14		30	6	86	49	89	67 2	12		
33	Ottawa	170		16	56	28	25	25	18	2		
34 35	Paulding Perry	139	<u>i</u>	5 7	15 62	18	17	12 20	6 10	1 3		
36	Pickaway	84		7	31	18	10	5	ii	2		
37	Pike	18			.5	8	1	3	1			-
38 i	Portage Preble	470 54	1	24 5	177 18	80		67	62	10		-
40	Putnam	64		5	20	11	5	13	7	3		
41 42	Richland Mansfield	1, 156 945	1	69 52	437 355	141 115		179 152	181 158	37		
43	Ross	543	2	20	223	84		65	75	19		
44	Sandusky	326		33	109	60				10		
45 46	Scioto Portsmouth	641 586	1	22 22	202 176	95 87		151 136		17	, 2	
47	Seneca	443	2		168	57	48	72	45	10	2	
48 49	Shelby	118 3, 784	7	123	1, 568	14				121		
50	Stark Canton 1	2, 393			1,008		280 164					
51	Massillon	600		17	212	98	52	110	89	22	2	
52 53	Summit	8, 473 6, 863	11	172 130		1, 565 1, 360	607				$\begin{pmatrix} 2 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix}$	
54	Trumbull	1, 275	1	50	507	192	93					
55	Warren	692		23								
56 57	Tuscarawas	406		24	123 14						₽ 3	
58	Van Wert	234		15	84	32	29				i	
59	Vinton	33			12	7	7] 5	2	6	1		
60 61	Warren Washington	210 235	:	12 19							/)i	
62	Wayne	. 450) 1	30	137	69	50	89	59	18		
63 64	Williams	175 398		17 29							7 1	
65	Wood	398		29							5 1	
66	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	308		29	79						1	
67	Total, Ohio	128, 693	397	5, 519	48, 648	20, 50	11, 810	20, 208	17, 172	4, 13	5 286	1

 $^{^{\}mathbf{1}}$ Cities of 100,000 and over population

OHIO-FORM 1040-A-Continued

Total	н			Net in	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)			••	
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
279 109 7899 5922 127 4411 349 1600 957 3287 4, 765 320 125 300 175 325 325 300 175 325 325 325 325 325 325 325 325 325 32	21 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	0-1 48 48 11 91 59 27 59 66 49 49 43 22 1088 33 44 40 61 62 233 34 44 40 61 62 62 63 63 64 64 65 66 67 67 67 67 67 67 67 67	33 177 822 577 211 411 199 177 198 178 22 471 113 122 170 188 449 177 111 18 224 177 182 182 190 26 225 174 196 53 36 46 9 9 1	366 980 521 161 393 123 126 441 465 439 12 207 174 477 33 311 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	2-2.5 42 16 181 552 488 15 562 488 15 91 17 31 204 33 33 26 27 7 31 41 11 169 60 60 5 27 7 31 41 11 169 60 60 60 65 27 7 31 44 12 7 58 66 63 47 68 43 43 43 43 43 43 66 33	29 111 722 511 17230 45 111 377 300 15 125 44 44 39 473 455 10 209 180 39 473 36 36 38 8 10 49 5 5 388 49 5 5 88 49 11 11 65 19 9 12 19 11 33 111 65 57 51 11 14 126 24 24 24 24 24 24 300 239 89 48 88 88 88	27 15 108 80 27 666 288 57 47 11 39 575 14 34 608 88 434 19 88 81 43 44 22 88 81 42 22 55 56 66 62 88 81 43 44 62 88 88 81 43 44 64 65 66 66 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88 88	140 699 533 366 8 8 151 356 4 191 177 391 177, 333 38 191 177, 391 28 191 117, 107 46 43 44 46 43 44 46 43 44 46 46 47 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48 48	122 100 833 726 653 111 150 866 866 240 455 122 256 86 11 1 5 5 188 422 111 1 5 5 188 789 422 29 39 39 32 366 147 470 3888 599 422 29 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39 39	7-10 7-10	88 3 36 36 34 4 12 30 30 15 15 5 2 2 24 10 6 6 327 314 20 6 6 6 327 31 11 12 20 29 19 19 11 20 17 17 10 19 83 39 179 179 288 23 31 2 28 21 1 11 1 1 2 17 12 12 17 16 17 16 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 16 17 17 17 18 18 31 12 17 17 17 18 18 31 12 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18		No
19 199 265 379 153 352 116	23	34 36 45 22 62 21	20 26 33 13 41 15	3 19 23 41 16 53 12	23 26 58 19 47	2 17 30 30 24 33 8	22 33 67 21 29 14	16 25 33 6 18 4	3 14 31 24 3 20 9	13 10 13 8 9 5	11 10 21 6 7	3 10	63
707	48	66	60	61	58	94	70	67	81	40	42	20	
77, 606	4, 174	8, 600	7, 148	7, 110	7, 702	7, 239	10, 057	6, 597	8, 232	4, 872	4, 719	1, 156	67

OKLAHOMA-FORM 1040-A

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands o	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10
	Adair	13 33		1	4	2	4	1	1			
2	Alfalfa	33			8	10	3	8	1	2	1	
3	Atoka	11	1		2	1	3	1	3			
4	Beaver	11 69		2 8	4 19	12	2 15	3 10	3			
5	BeckhamBlaine	41	- 1	3	6	8	6	8	6	4		
6 7 8 9	Bryan	74	i	6	21	12	14	8 12	6	2		
ន់	Caddo	118	îl	ıĭl	34	30	21	10	9		1	i
ğ.	CaddoCanadian	317		11 22	80	55	65	57	32	4	2	
10	Carter	297	1	24 2	69	51	51	44	46	9	2	
11	Cherokee	40		5	15 8	7	8	15	2 4	4		
12 13	ChoctawCimarron	47		1	1	l '	°	10	-1	2		
14	Cleveland	156	ī	1 17 3	49	24	17	24	22	2		
15	Coal	14		3	4	1	i	2	2	1	1	
16	Comanche	249	2	18	58	32	32	49	50		1	
17	Cotton	23		3 7	5	7	2 3	2.3	1 11	3		
18	Craig	48 430	4	90	20 129	93	63	61	42	9		
19 20	Creek	94	*	29	129	18		19	10			
21	Delaware	10	1	29 7 1 3	3		1 2	2	ĩ			
21 22 23 24	Dewey	22		3	6	2		3	. 			
23	Ellis	13	1		2		3	2	2	2		
24	Garfield	446	1	34 22	142	68	56	87	45		1]
25	Enid	260 59	1	22	76 9	35 13	40 10	56 4	23 7	2	2	
20	Garvin Grady	189	<u>î</u>	12 17	60	28	32	27	22	Ĩ		
26 27 28	Grant	38		5	ĭŏ	5	6	3	7	2	1	
29 30	Greer	38		5 5	7	8	10	3	5			
30	Harmon.	11	1		3 2	2	1	1	3			
31 32	Harper	11 5		2			3 2	2	1			
33	Haskell Hughes	72	2		16		14	13	7			
34	Jackson	80	Ιĩ	8 7	13	12	14 12	19	12	3		
35	Jefferson	25		2 2	6	5	4	5	2	: 1		
36	Johnston	12	4	2	3	j ?	2	116	3	26	. <u>-</u>	
37 38	Kay	811 45	4	54	239 11	141		110	125			1
39	Kingfisher Kiowa	47	1	8 5	io) 8		10	2		1	1
40	Latimer	6		2	ĵ	1	1) 1	. 1			
41	Le Flore	71		2 7 7 13	13		10		7	1		
42	Lincoln	91	1	7	24			11 40	7			
43 44	Logan Love	170	2	13	46		11	- 6		4	² 1	
45	McClain	25		1		1 3	3	5				
46	McCurtain	14		1			1	. 2	1			
47	McIntosh	27		2			9 3		4			.
48	Major.	23 10			6	3	7 3	2			·	·
49 50	Marshall. Mayes.	31		1 2			; <u>-</u>	4				
51	Murray	39		4		3 7	7 10) 3	8 4	1 2		1
52	Muskogee	717	5	35	201	157	7 122	110	72	2 1	1) 4	1
53	Muskogee	613	3 2	26	180	136	100					l
54	Noble	71	2					1 5				
.55 56	Nowata Okiuskee	39		1		3 3	8 8		3 3			
56 57	Oklahoma	5, 256	23	303	1, 572	854	679	873		200	2	i
.58	Oklahoma City 1	5, 148	18	296	1, 539	834	662	861		190	3 2	1
59	Okmulgee	297	' 1	. 18	9	[] 44	45		5 34	1 1	3	L
60	Osage	332		21 23	120		8 46 2 23			4	7	2
61 62	Ottawa Pawnee	150 100	3 8	12	29	13	3 13	₹!	2∤ 1/	1	2	-
63	Payne.	_ 230	[i]	17	63	3 4:	21 28	3 3	3	ól i	9	i
64	Pittsburgh	169		. 11	1 43	2 3:	2 2	39 39 36	3 2	5	5 :	i
65	Pontotoc	156	<u>i</u>) 3:	1 2	5 25	36	3 2	6	7	1
66	Pottawatomie	372			10	7	59	51	[4:			2
67 68	Pushmataha Roger Mills	10		8			$\tilde{2}$	ś i	1 '	+	1 :	4
60	Rogers	4.					1 4	1	7	6	_	
70	Seminole	398	3	17		1 8	3 42	2 5	i 4		i	2
70 71 72	Sequoyah	_ 18	5			4	3	3	1	1		-
72	Stephens	144		9	4		7 20		1 1	3	4	
73 74	Texas Tillman	40		4	10	ál .	4 10	il i	5 1	n i	3	1
14		. 40	·	-1 4	.: 11	v: '	z. 10	٠, ,	J; I	01		*:

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

OKLAHOMA-FORM 1040

rotal				Net i	ncome c	lasses (ii	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- per of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7-10	10–25	25 and over	Lit No
22 77	1	7 4	4	3 10	2 12	1	2		2				_
77		4	4	10 3	12	14 2	14 1	13 3	2	3	1		
16 34	8	$\frac{2}{7}$	1 7		3 5 17	1	6				1		
133	8 26 7 8 23 20	$\frac{21}{22}$	19	10	17	$\frac{1}{12}$	19	4	3	2			ĺ
93	7	22	11	9 10	111	8 9	12 8 22 27 41	8	4	1			ļ
64	8	5 31	4 18	10	9	9 14	8	6	3	1	1		
$\frac{165}{217}$	20	25	16	38	20 27 25	26	27	10	4 13	5 11	$\frac{2}{7}$		}
283	23	$\frac{25}{42}$	16 19	33	25	18	41	7 21	27	11	19	4	l
283 13 51			2 5	3	1 7	26 18 2 5 3 24	2_4			2	1		
51	5	15	5	6	7	5	4	1 1	2	1			
$\frac{19}{172}$	3 16	$\frac{2}{21}$	21	22	20 20	21	4 21	11	2 9	6			
19		3	5	1	۱ و	1 1	3	41	1		2		İ
220	16	25	34	29	25 3	17	33	16	14	2 9	2		
30	4	10	3	16 38 33 3 6 2 23 1 29 2	3	17 2 3	4		1	1			
51 336	4 40	15 62	5 52	10 42	6	3 19	4 39	21	3 9		1 7	2	!
134	13	21	15	15	38 20	13	21	5	6	5 5	'	2	Ì
4		î	10		ı	1 1	2						
44	2 4 28 19	11	7	4	11	3	2	2	2				İ
49	4	11	7	9	- 8	11	_6	1	1		1		
520	28	59	45	59	58	74 59	74 49	38 28	55	16	14		
397 96	19	44 9	36 13 26 12 12	44 11	48 17 32 9	99	14	28	45 4	13 3	12		l
270	6 20 13	53	26	36	32	25	32	8 13 12	16	10	7		
270 112	13	8	12	16	9	11	32 20	12	7	4			
62	6	11	12	13	8	3	5 1	1	3				
62 27 25 12	6 7 2	5 5 2	5 2		2	5	1 6	1	2				
25 19		9	4	9	0	20	ь	1					
97		19	10	3 2 20 13	8 2 5 2 10 15	8 25 11 3 5 1 2 8	14	2	5	1			i
95	11	17	Š	13	15	9	5	$^{2}_{4}$	10	2	1		
48 17	5 1	9	8 5	9	5 3 78 12	3:	7	2	1	2			
17	1 1	3	4	1	3	1	1	2		1		2	
633 96	99	101 11	73 13	51 12	19	56 17	$\frac{76}{12}$	40 9	39 6	29	29 2	2	l
121	16	21	10	13	22	11	8	8	5	4	3		ĺ
16	ž	4	1 2	2 8	1	2	8		ĭ	î			
53	4	6	6	- 8	- 8	5	8 19	2	5		1		
149 244	111	20 43	9	21 23	14 24	15	19	12 13	14 18	13 5	3		
13	3	3	2 6 9 37 2 3	20	24	20	30 2 7 4 4	13	10	9	0		ì
43 42	5	7	3	7 6	4 8	5	7	2	2	1			1
42	5	10	1 1	6	8	2	4	2 3 2	2		1		
53 39	59 2 16, 2 4 11, 20, 3, 5 5 6, 6	9 7	7 3	7	4 4	6		2	3	5			İ
39 19		9	3	í	4	3	6 7	4	1		1		
32	2	2 11	1 7	4	2	2	2				2		
47	3	11	6 74	6	6	6	6	1	2				ļ
638	68	98	74	70	59	47	$\frac{68}{62}$	39	43	32	35	5 5	
$\frac{590}{111}$	2 3 68 58 8 3 13	90 13	64 11	66 17	55 10	2 5 15 28 2 5 2 6 3 4 2 6 47 45 15	20	38 6	43 8	31 2	33 1	5	1
65	3	10	12	1/	10	5	13	2	4	3	3		
81	13	11	6.	6	10	5 7	151	2 4	1	3 3 207	2		
3, 825 3, 654	290	430	338 322	361	406	353	485 475 35 82 24 12 31 21 34	329 313 17	382	207	213	31 31 2	
3, 654 367	274 51 21 26 10 29	402	322	345 39	380 47	339	475	313	368 14	198	207	31	1
599	91	67 79 22 13	97	39 44	65	37 55	30 89	36	35	10 18	6	2	ĺ
528 197	26	22	23	29	18	55 17	24	14	12	8	3	1	1
76 246	10	13	87 23 7 19	29 12 32 28 28	0	5 24	12	3	12	2 9		l	
246	29	42 33 19	19	32	27 28	24	31	14	17	9	1	1 1	Į
195 220	20 6	33	24 15	28	28 19	15 23	21	8 19	$\frac{11}{26}$	4 15	$\frac{2}{12}$	1	,
377	32	53	47	28 54	37	34	55 55	19 16	26 24	17	127	4	ì
15	1	- 5	5			34	33	10	44	1.7	l'	1	
6	i	3		1	1								ļ
45	1 2 26 2 11	5	7	11	11	2	5	2					1
288	26	40	34	30	41	26	39	20	16	10	6		
17 196	1	$^{1}_{21}$	1 28	3 27	26	$\begin{array}{c} 4 \\ 22 \end{array}$	3 26	6	2 15	1 7	4	3	
98 95	3 11	12 18	16	15	13 17	11	9	4 3	15 7	7 2	6	3	1
• • •	ا ا	: 5	13	7	17	8	13	9	3		2		i

OKLAHOMA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

ļ		Total num-		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2	Tulsa	5, 523 5, 216	28 26	267 248	1, 450 1, 364		717 671	945 906	825 772	236 227	32 30	2 2
3 4 5	Wagoner Washington Washita	30 893 23	5	3 56 2	279 8	7 143	108 3	142 5	123	$\frac{2}{28}$	8	<u>i</u>
6 7	Woods Woodward	81 77	3	8	21 23	13 16	11 10	12 10		5 3	1	
8	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	196	4	11:	49	46	24	26	28	8		
9	Total Oklahoma	20, 010	112	1, 254	5, 640	3, 533	2, 749	3, 253	2, 671	690	102	6

OREGON-FORM 1040-A

1	Baker	110		,	42	21	8	18	19	٠,		
2		80		1		21 15		17	19			
	Benton			1	22							
3	Clackamas	314	1	3 2	150	43	13	60	35			
4	Clatsop	280		2	142	37	16	42	29	10	2	
5	Columbia	111		1	64	13	3	20	10			
6	Coos	186		2	78	24	13	34	27	5	2	1
7	Crook	11			3	2	1	2	3			
8	Curry	3				1	1		1			
9	Deschutes	150		3	79	25	1	26	13	3		
10	Douglas	104		l ī	45	22	10	12	8	6		
11	Gilliam	5				1	l	1	3			
12	Grant	22			16		1	l î	Ĭ			
13	Harney	37	i		21	6		3	3	3		
14	Hood River	55	3	2	21	12		11	2			
15	Jackson	271	ı	4	86	53		56	41	8		
16	Jefferson	7	1	i *	80	3	20	2	2			
17	Jenerson	71		2	36	9	9	6	6			
18	Josephine	408	1	3		87	15	62	36	2	2	
	Klamath		1	3			19	9	2	'	4	
19	Lake	33			13	8				;;		1
20	Lane	336	2	6	129	56	20	69	43	11		
21	Lincoln	35			12	7	1	9	3	3		
22	Linn	91		1	50	10		14	9	2		
23	Malheur	57	1	2	23	13		8	4	1		
24	Marion	385		14	141	60		78	52	13	1	
25	Salem	312		9	116	44	23	67	41	11	1	
26	Morrow	5			2	2		1				
27	Multnomah	8, 959	9	98	4,006	1,535	504	1, 427	1,079	270	29	2
28	Portland 1	8, 820	9	98	3,943	1,506	498	1,407		266	29	2
29	Polk	44	1	ĩ	17	7	3	10	4	1		
30	Sherman	- 8	_	_	3	i	ĩ	2	ī	l		
31	Tillamook	42		2	18	5	6	9	î	1		
32	Umatilla	192	3	2	73	37	13	32	26	5	7	
33	Union	139	اها	3	50	29	9	24	20	, ,	1 1	
34	Wallowa	139		3		29 5	9	24	3	7		
				3	4	12	[]		12			
35	Wasco	104			53		5	20				
36	Washington	137		1	67	25	7	24	10	2	1	
37	Wheeler	25			16	4		2	3			
38	Yamhill	68			30	12	7	10	5	2	1	1
39	Residents of other States.	243		2	74	43	18	45	46	14	1	
	and nonresident aliens.			}							1	
40	Total Oregon	13, 147	23	160	5, 781	2,248	753	2, 168	1,579	387	43	5
		,,			-,	_,		-,	,			

PENNSYLVANIA-FORM 1040-A

1 2	AdamsAllegheny	239 45, 363	119		74 16, 680	7, 565		45 6, 492		5 1,459	1 220	<u>2</u>
3	McKeesport Pittsburgh	1, 468 23, 712		53 1, 232	691 8, 267	234 4, 218	133 2, 740	178 3, 200	149 2, 982	25 865	. 138	i
5	Wilkensburg	2, 156		88	659	348	247	370	338	80	22	
6	Armstrong	703		52	266	112	49	109	94	14	4	
7	Beaver	2, 735	11	150	1, 109		232	433	316	66	7	1
8	Aliquippa	405	3	21	159	62	35	70	50	5		
9	Bedford	160		11	68	26	12	21	14	5	3	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

OKLAHOMA-FORM 1040-Continued

	· · · · · ·		·	Net ir	come c	lasses (in	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
Total num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5~7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
3, 056 2, 917 53 453 70	256 241 14 24 12	352 330 11 58 13	257 237 3 42 13	256 236 6 53	248 227 5 41	260 248 4 40 7	360 347 5 42 4	262 256 3 39 2	386 383 1 56 2	170 168 1 27	218 216 26	31 28 5	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
120 112 219	6 7 11	22 16 36	10 16 14	18 19 18	17 15 14	13 8 17	17 17 28	5 5 24	8 6 21	2 3 17	18	1	6 7 8
16, 996	1, 435	2, 332	1, 751	1,824	1, 831	1, 570	2, 134	1, 193	1, 415	733	684	94	9
					OREG	ON-F	ORM 1	1040					
129 125 211 215 68 185 20	13 11 13 13 6 19	13 7 19 16 3 16 2	12 22 35 17	13 17 21 27 3 26 3	21 15 23 21 5 21 2 2	19 19 36 38 8 17	16 29 36 29 12 30 3	13 11 20 9 5	7 3 14 20 6 11	1 1 4 5 10 1	3 2 3 6	1	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
14 130 131 54 44 31	3 6 9 5 7 5	2 9 17 4 4	20 6 4 3	16 21 10 4 3 10	12 13 4 3 3 9	11 21 9 11 6 11	1 25 15 13 5 2 12	14 8 1	13 6 2 2 4 3	12 1 1 2 1 2	2		14
319 12 83 326 70 357 60	30 5 21 8 21 3	32 11 25 8 31	40 8 49 12 33 12	35 2 14 37 7 40 5	34 2 13 34 5 48 6	36 11 41 11 61 9	41 10 47 11 52 5	31 4 27 4 31 31	22 3 25 4 23 3	8 1 13 11 3	9 3 6	1	15 16 17 18 19
119 92 491 353 45 4, 850 4, 761	9 13 30 19 8 283 277	14 9 42 30 5 368 368	21 5 53 39 10 601 595	18, 7, 57, 39, 5, 489, 478,	15 13 59 36 2 428 421	12 12 61 41	15 16 71 54 3 700 685	7 5 57 45 2 456 445	5 3 32 25 449 440	3 5 17 16 246 243	4 11 9 224 224	33 32	22 23 24 25 26 27
84 62 73 409 135 44	8 5 3 46 20 3	5 6 7 45 18 8	12 9 10 56 25 6	19 6 9 54 17 8	10 7 12 40 10 3 25	9 7 10 47 11 5	55 16 9 22	7 3 30 6	8 7 5 29 9	1 3 3	1 4		20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36
161 129 12 133 150	14 9 2 9 11	14 4 2 14 11	19 21 2 20 14	16 10 1 22 14	19 1 14 14	23 1 20 21	20 11	9 12 	10 7 2 7 13	5 1 15	2 1 1 4	3 2	38 39
9, 646	689	810	1, 208	1, 069	968	1, 231	1, 378	821	759	376	295	42	40
,				PE	NNSYI	VANIA	A—FOR	RM 104	10	,		,	
327 19, 235 597 13, 098 574 353 1, 013 123 190	13 891 21 636 25 18 54 6	50 1, 189 44 772 34 20 75 6 31	1, 443 65 910 37 41 85	36 1, 332 52 854 54 25 96 12 29	37 1, 525 46 992 46 46 102 11 22	2, 056 87 1, 272 70 55 147 27	48 2,820 94 1,838 127 63 180 24 22	1, 950 53 1, 347 65 26 83	2, 523 56 1, 791 71 29 104	1, 113 31 20 50	1, 500 3 1, 179 13 10 32	1 467 1 12 2 394 3 1	2 3 4 5 6

PENNSYLVANIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Berks.	5, 526	6	228	2, 460	919	461	757	531	143	21	
3	Reading 1	3, 561	2	141	1,685	629	286	439	296	73	10	
3 4	Blair	2, 122	4	121 86	911 755	349 295	222	281 225	182	42	10	
5	Altoona Bradford	1, 700 632	3 1	80 34	275	293 91	163 62	104	138 54	27 ¹ 8.	8	
6	Bucks	1,645	2	85	650	286	165	218	175	52	12	
7	Butler	934	2	61	354	126	103	146	99	35	. 8	
8 9	Cambria	2, 218 1, 462	3	159 78	871 537	317 221	201 152	329 232	267 190	59 41	$\frac{12}{8}$	
10	Cameron	125	٥	5	60	22	132	19	9	1		
11	Carbon	1,429	4	94	629	223	136	180	131	25	6	1
$\frac{12}{13}$	Centre	411	3	51	138	69	30	56	53 249	9	2	<u>î</u>
14	Chester Clarion	2, 173 261	10	146 24	822 105	401 41	215 24	250 35	249	71 7	8	1
15	Clearfield	630		31	226	89	73	106	101	4		
16	Clinton	447	1	41	180	89	47	47	37	4	1	
17 18	Columbia Crawford	377 1, 153	1	28 77	138 461	63 157	32 126	66 165	36 131	12 28	1 4	
19	Cumberland	1,095	3	57	328	149	126	226	154	48	4	
20	Dauphin	3, 759	13	213	1,393	575	426	581	433	109	16	
$\frac{21}{22}$	Harrisburg	2, 912 13, 197	8 23	162	1,007 3,791	448 1,824	366	459	357 2, 339	90 627	15 95	
23	Delaware	1, 515	3	570 67	667	256	1, 461 122	2, 465 205	155	37	95	í
24	Elk	568		38	228	77	57	88	68	10	2	
25 26	Erie I Fayette	3, 433	11	168	1, 243	490	336	651	435	89	10	
26 27	Favette	2, 948 1, 713	8 12	133 94	1,080 705	424 258	289 162	553 269	375 177	77 31	9	
28	Forrest	36	12	2	13	5	4	203	717	3		
29	Forrest Franklin	596	3	51	188	85	64	93	94	15	2	1
30 31	Fulton	15 466	2	2 23	297	48	20	37	$\frac{2}{37}$	$\frac{1}{2}$		
32	Greene Huntingdon	287	1	32	96	41	26	51	34	5	<u>î</u>	
33	Indiana	651	1	55	330	71	52	76	56	8	2	
34 35	Jefferson	454	4	44	162 15	76 5	42 5	63 4	50 6	11	2	
36	Juniata Lackawanna	40 8,670	11	380		1, 553	741	1, 219	755	136	14	
37	Scranton 1	5, 106	7	230	2, 209	909	453	711	480	99	8	
38 39	Lancaster	2,613	7	149	1, 039 629	389 227	282 174	336 232	328 216	63 47	20 12	
40	Lancaster Lawrence	1,613 1,482	2	72 77	619	192	143	247	164	33	5	
41	New Castle	945	2	59	341	123	111	177	109	21	2	
42 43	Lebanon	717		38	305	116	56 34	101	80	16 9	5	
44	Lebanon Lehigh	$\frac{422}{2,834}$	3	26 192	168 977	65 427	278	67 436	50 390	111	20	
45	Allentown	2, 282	3	151	761	343	225	368	323	93	15	
46 47	Luzerne	9,828	17	486	4,469	1,739	863 99	1, 283	816	139	16 6	
48	Hazleton Nanticoke	1, 339 537	5	57 41	570 234	246 103	46	198 74	132 33	26 5	1	
49	Wilkes-Barre	2, 507	9	135	1,065	496	257	330	184	28	3	
50 51	Lycoming	1,575	5	92			141	251	181	50	7	
52	Williamsport McKean	1, 222 1, 351	3	71 64	449 615	239	107 95	200 152	146 146	40 34	6 3	
53	Mercer	1,616	8	83	605	221	157	297	204	33	š	
54	Sharon	761	7	33	278		64	161	99	21	6	 -
55 56	Mifflin Monroe	313 365		34 20	113 113		32 45	45 58	35 39	6 9	4	
57	Montgomery	8, 945		510			986		1, 438	415	83	2
58	Norristown	1, 208	6	67	456	199	131	163	155	28	3	-
59 60	Montour	115 2 790	1	200	1, 426	18	10	18 547	9 483	2 134	1 21	
61	Northampton Bethlehem	3,729 $1,346$	9	47	1, 420	565 179	344 111	547 183	216	66	10	
62	Easton	1,564	3	92	548	261	159	261	182	50	8	
63	Northumberland	2, 257	3	98	1,034	427	195	291	172	32	5	-
64 65	Perry Philadelphia Philadelphia	156 61, 268	136	3 241	24, 500	25 10 976	6,580	7, 296	6, 562	1, 7 07	260	10
66	Philadelphia 1	61, 268	136	3, 241	24, 500	10, 976	6, 580	7, 296	6, 562	1, 707	260	10
67	Pike	92		14	30	8	17	17	5	1		
68 69	Potter Schuylkill	131 3, 295	1 3	10 200		23 644	16 330	16 439	301	4 55	3 12	
70	Snyder.	3, 293 81		5	1, 311				8	1	12	(
	,			·		0	·			•		

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

PENNSYLVANIA-FORM 1040-Continued

otal um-				Net in	come cl	asses (ir	thousa	nds of c	lollars)				_
er of re- urns	Under 0	0–1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4-5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Li N
3, 329 2, 010	270 168	435 254	365 119	363 318	361 213	307 183	386 234	239 144	278 166	163 112	127 79	35 20	
1, 359	105	194	178	154	163	135	140	98	95	50	39	8 6	
939 503	70 24	135 75	123 60	112 64	110 55	97 60	92 65	67 26,	70 33	29 25	28 13	3	
1, 220 591	68 19	131 38	133 63	128 63	142 50	127 73	162 110	98 54	111 54	62 30	46 30	12 7 2 2 3 2 1	
1,075	66	96	95	94	94	135	199	84	119	57	34 26	2	
735 65	54	65 8	70 3	67 8	57 7	86 10	125 7	57 2	84 4	42 8	5	3	
545 471	29 36	87 64	65 43	66 65	66 76	56 35	62 54	29 43	48 32	23 14	12 8	2	
1,864	125	201	174	144	179	163	229	152	194	137	8 127	3 9	
246 403	12 20	17 37	24 32	16 43	32 30	29 56	45 75	28 39	28 31	4 23	9 15	2 2 3	
303 381	12 20	46 34	44 31	35 30	42 65	18 40	32 56	18 38	26 33	16 19	11 13	3 2	
596	23	38	38	62	64	65	116	58	54	36	27	15	
$\frac{716}{2,241}$	28 185	70 288	75 233	79 231	78 230	76 211	109 263	71 144	72 206	33 122	23 107	2 21	
1, 672 6, 125	139 294	210 456	168 410	163 423	167 503	162 506	184 822	106 680	169 978	96 548	93 400	15 105	
737	59	77	88 20	73	86	79	83	73	53	32	27	7	
$\frac{257}{1,676}$	13 107	17 101	15!	23 132	$\frac{22}{136}$	29 182	43 251	20 187	30 200	19 102	17 93	4 34	
1, 369 879	90 57	77 68	116 91	105 81	106 104	148 89	$\frac{206}{137}$	149 84	173 91	87 37	80 36	32 4	
17	2		1		5 57	3	3		2	1			
614	33	$\frac{70}{2}$	60 1	.74	57	47	87 1	54. 1	68	29	31	4 1	
185 253	7 17	15 27	17 23	17 28	12 16	22 25	32 41	27 23	26 26	9 15	1 10	2	
364	37	24	35	35	47	46	53	24	26	17	16	4	
303 62	22 3	27 7	38 7	26 8	37 8	46	46 10	29 6	19 4	6 4	6	1	
$\frac{4,101}{2,725}$	279 183	538 303	439 261	465 287	499 317	427 291	531 364	244 174	278 219	181 137	173 151	47 38	
2, 413	169	285	248	231	250	241	322	245	207	105	94	16	
1, 385 607	106 36	143 31	132 66	126 56	131 58	138 81	184 102	122 59	151 48	72 34	71 32	9	
459 755	29 47	19 113	48 86	44 68	40 59	63 95	77 99	48 56	36 60	26 34	25 32	4 6	
458	27	73	44	41	33	58	61	32	43	20	21	5	
2, 132 1, 651	172 141	313 212	261 199	193 129	245 192	194 160	$\frac{229}{175}$	159 122	168 154	97 81	82 69	19 17	
4, 461 626	345 45	606 80	441 54	468 63	469 60	429 46	554	321 43	353 60	227 48	195 40	56 15	
207 1, 540	14 128	39 204	33 147	16	20 153	27 155	72 23 194	12 108	11 115	7 84	5 74		
1, 150	69	152	142	153 117	123	113	139	81	104	48	55	25 7	
837 1, 070	43 45	102 59	86 83	81 71	82 103	86 109	108 169	71 114	86 116	39 75	46 105	7 21	
689	37	46	65	71	63	92	97	64 26	89	30	32	3	
305 298	18 34	18 37	24 36	33 31	26 37	33 24	42 35	20	45 22	15 14	24 7	1	
372 7, 979	40 407	53 627	32 482	44 503	39 553	51 601	44 951	19 771	27 1, 166	14 779	6 886	$\begin{array}{c} 3 \\ 253 \end{array}$	
753	45	79	80	66	69	73	89	69	96	48	28	11	
126 2, 618	11 177	11 313	$\frac{17}{258}$	17 255	19 254	13 196	318	11 208	7 293	180	6 135	31	
978 1, 039	61 78	100 123	81 98	83 94	89 98	63	108 129	85 86	136 117	87 75	68	17	
1, 216	81	182	152	131	148	77 137	141	80	86	42	51 26	13 10	
102 3, 599	$\frac{9}{1,974}$	3, 205	16 2, 878	12 2, 958	3, 005	2, 918	14 4, 024	2, 857	3, 780	2.481	2, 644	875	
3, 599	1, 974	3, 205	2,878	2,958	3, 005	2, 918	4, 024	2,857	3, 780	2, 481 2, 481	2,644	875	
97 134	9 12	16 19	10 11	8 13	8 23	11 12	16 18	5 13	4 7	6	$\frac{1}{2}$	3	
1, 922 80	121	267 10	197	238 9	$\frac{220}{14}$	206 15	250	134	133	77	68	11	

PENNSYLVANIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

	PENI	NSYLV	ANIA	-FOI	RM 10)40-A	–Con	tinue	i			
		Total num-		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Somerset Sullivan Susquehanna Tioga. Union Venango Warren Washington Wayne Westmoreland Wyoming York York Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	574 28 376; 277 219 1, 268 3, 247 243 4, 218 1, 125 1, 586 749	4 1 3 3 7 6 8 3 1	67 1 21 23 13 107 38 213 25 232 10 120 76 49	240 9 145 117 61 480 215 1, 480 1, 848 49 787 593 242	73 5 81 38 36 220 93 471 37 597 27 317 256 116	45 3 37 27 22 129 48 233 325 8 223 167 83	65 4 53 33 44 144 80 418 33 593 14 300 222 103	67 4 34 31 31 148 71 351 20 490 10 275 198 112	111 1 5 6 100 311 144 711 4 1112 79 600 37	1 2 5 1 3 	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
15	Total Pennsylvania.	221, 031	518	11,877	85, 618	36, 585	22, 422	30, 713	25, 893	6, 377	1,003	25
		RH	ODE !	ISLAN	D-F	ORM	1040	A				
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13	Bristol. Kent. Newport. Newport. Providence Central Falls Cranston. East Providence Pawtucket. Providence t. Woonsocket. Washington Residents of other States and nonresident aliens. Total Rhode Island.	600	1 1 19 2 2 3 10 2 1	5 80 17 77	436 6, 124 123 498 252 838 3, 485 333 273	62 139 297 277 2, 331 37 189 95 316 1, 359 137 107 4	97 112 99 1,346 18 149 69 176 732 63 65 3	135 2, 124 24 287 88 281 1, 057 88 81	134 113 1,855 13 249 57 212 985 90 70 2	25 480 4 55 22 34 271	6 29 3 3 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2
		SOU'	 FH C/	AROL	INA-	FORN	1 104	0-A]			<u> </u>
1 22 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 16 17 7 18 8 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 7 28	Abbeville Aiken Allendale Anderson Bamberg Barnwell Beaufort Berkeley Calhoun Charleston Charleston Cherokee Chester Chesterfield Clarendon Darlington Dillon Dorchester Edgefield Fairfield Fairfield Forence Georgetown Greenville Greenwood Hampton Horry	1, 500 1, 438 118 45 18 35 153 90 60 17 56 321 65 992 869 163	1 2 9 9 9 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 13 2 2 1 125 122 14 6 2 13 122 14 6 7 7 60 55	2 60 7 133 8 4 457 440 155 28 9 9 3 3 30 21 21 21 276 251 49	8 2 296 285 13 11 13 5 5 27 11 13 15 160 138 31 14 15 160 138 15 160 138 15 160 138 15 160 138 15 160 138 15 160 138 15 160 15 1	4 29 5 3 14 16 181 174 16 29 10 2 2 2 2 15 9 4 8 8 57 9 144 130 130 130 140 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 15	1 2 2 3 1 2 3 1 2 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2	3 299 5 4 100 4 4 4 4 150 139 6 10 2 2 2 1 2 2 2 1 2 2 1 5 5 6 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 7 5 7 5 7 5 7 5 7	1 1 2 48 47 22 2 2 2 1 1 1 8 3 3 3 3 1 1 4 4 27 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 1 1	1 1 144

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

PENNSYLVANIA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7-10	10–25	25 and over	Line No.
311 56 218 229 208 841 449 1,376 314 1,630 110 1,964 1,281 1,585	16 4 17, 10 12 39 24 54 26 86 3 1311 79	7 45 32 27	31 6 30 19 26 75 47 133 38 154 18 194 107 154	31 4 30 28 53 35 147 31 124 22 188 122 116	31 11 19 34 16 66 47 136 33 154 20 220 220 127 98	33 2 22 29 26 108 41 192 29 202 5 159 86 167	61 66 28 34 28 133 58 234 47 276 11 250 163 245	33 6 16 19 95 39 114 23 167 4 176 131 82	25 6 13 16 14 98 52 130 19 174 3 200 153 196	111 22 55 99 66 488 288 63 36 86 7 106 85 125	10 5 3 13 5 55 34 49 11 73 4 106 82	3 1 1 13 9 18 	1 22 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 14
122, 989	7, 263	11, 815	10, 985	10, 797	11, 504	11, 885	16, 246	10, 696	13, 481	8, 192	7,869	2, 256	15
	,			RH	ODE 1	SLAN	D FOR	M 104	:0				
393 574 946 946 9,641 121 735 190 949 6,118 730 660 9	144 355 577 455 4677 99 322 847 264 73 34	60 102 86 921 19 54 18 94 543 110 65	87 75 943 16 68 15 97	40 70 116 95 813 20 61 19 78 490 73 62 2	30 59 88 72 879 18 67 20 99 542 65 69 1	422 488 78 577 857 857 35 85 511 67 59 2	49 67 103 85 1,186 108 32 128 742 62 92	31 50 60 46 843 74 19 86 533 54 44	54 48 89 70 1,117 4 109 14 105 739 62 59 1	28 30 55 37 680 47 5 54 486 35 55	27 31 68 56 745 6 37 5 55 557 40 42 1	8 9 433 38 1900 1 1 8 21 145 7 26	1 23 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
····	! <u>.</u>	l		sou	TH CA	ROLI	VA-F)RM 1	040		l	l	<u> </u>
35 128 29 290 30 36 46 19 25 866 797 64 84 47 32 43 122 98 61 24 35 268 52 806 73 21	666 52 11 8 4 10 8 8 8 9 11 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 14 14 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16	18 24 8 8 8 7 7 112 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100	6 41 3 14 4 4 4 96 91 10 6 10 6 4 7 3 8 8 8 6 6 4 8 3 3 3 2 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5	12 55 266 66 4 5 92 83 3 9 7 7 7 3 8 8 14 4 4 4 6 6 5 5	2 32 4 5 5 5 8 8 10 6 6 6 2 2 11 14 4 4 4 4 7 8	33 3 11 3 3 3 103 94 6 6 7 7 4 4 2 2 2 5 6 11 4 4 7 7 3 3 5	11 8 5 1 32 7 129 117	19 3 1 1 58 55 6 6 5 4 4 4 7 7 7 7 7	1 66 722 688 25 1 2 166 6 2 1 116 2 2 103	2 2 2 7	6 2 4	3 3 3	1 1 2 2 3 3 4 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 100 111 123 134 14 15 16 16 17 18 18 19 20 21 22 24 25 26 27

SOUTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1 2 3 4 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23	Jasper Kershaw Lancaster Laurens Lee Lee Ley McCormick Marion Marlboro Newberry Oconee Orangeburg Pickens Richland Columbia Saluda Spartanburg Spartanburg Sumter Union Williamsburg York Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	35 55 41 1,614 1,567 13 625	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 3 3 1 1	14 47 10 10 10 8 8 3 11 2 3 11 10 4 5 2 4 5 5 21 8	44 111 133 36 9 9 222 2 155 21 25 7 7 13 14 500 481 3 174 42 8 11 555 35	3 8 8 13 18 12 5 1 1 18 2 2 22 22 22 13 7 7 286 . 282 . 282 . 31 81 31 81 31 9 6 37 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	1 3 10 21 3 6 3 15 15 15 15 2 206 6 91 76 28 12 4 34 20	2 8 6 8 7 251 248 1 113 85 34 11 13	9 4 4 4 11 2 8 5 4 6 205 201 1 1 80 68 38 7	46 45 17 15 10 2 2 6	1 1 2 2	1
24	Total South Caro- lina.	7, 955	47	624	2, 220	1, 405	1, 157	1, 281	948	249	18	6

SOUTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-A

1	Armstrong						ŀ					
2						;						
	Aurora	001		1 1	1	1 00			29			
3	Beadle	231		11	75	32	32	49	29	3		
4	Bennett	2				1	1					
5	Bon Homme	19		1	8	4		3	3			
6	Brookings	49		3	17	8	8	6	6	1		
7	Brown	348		12	113	56	40	63	51	11	2	
8	Brule	14		5	6	3						
9	Buffalo	9			2	5		1	1			
10	Butte	41		5	13	3	2	4	10	4	1	Í
11	Campbell	6		1	4	_	1	_		Ī		
12	Charles Mix	17		4	1	4	î	3	1	•		
13	Clark	10		6	1 1	\hat{z}	î	, ,				
14	Clav	18	1	1 1	3	5		3	2		1	1
15	Codington	138		11	53	21		19		5	1 1	
			-							0	1	
16	Corson	16		3		1		4	2			
17	Custer	26		2	9	10		1	1			
18	Davison	157		6	62	23			20	5		
19	Day	29		3	7.	6	6	6		1		
20	Deuel	5		1	1 2	2						
21	Dewey	18		1	7	6	3		1			
22	Douglas	10		i i	3	4	2		_			
23	Edmunds	8	~	2	š	•	ī	1	1			
24	Fall River	88		1 4	20	22	15	16	10	1		
25	Faulk	6		1 *	20	1	1 1	10	10	;		
26	Grant	30		3		4	3			1	i	
20				3	9	5	3	5	4	1		
27	Gregory	. 8		1	2	2		2	1 1			
28	Haakon	12		4	3		3	1	1			
29	Hamlin	4		1	3							
30	Hand	11		2	3	1	1	2	2			
31	Hanson	7	l		4	1	2		_ 			
32	Harding	5			3	1		1			1	
33	Hughes	113		8		20	9	15	8	4	2	
34	Hutchinson	14	1	"	7		i		3	•	_	
35	Hyde	1 6	i *		,	_	-	3	, ,			
36					1 1			٥				
37	Jackson	1/7			;	3			1			
	Jerauld	1 %		3	1	3						
38	Jones	6		1	2			3				
39	Kingsbury	20		3	6	5	2	2				
40	Lake	57		1	14							
41	Lawrence	765	1	11	280			139		10		
42	Lincoln	15	 	3	6		1	1	3		l	l
			,									

SOUTH CAROLINA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	45	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
111 377 344 366 51 100 888 844 533 500 7722 100 465 365 127 67 67 69	5 1 1 5 2 2 3 3 2 3 2 3 5 5 1 1 3 6 3 2 2 7 7 5 5 1 10 5 5	1 11 11 5 6 4 5 5 8 6 6 6 6 8 4 4 17 8 8 10 17 7	4 11 70 69 1 45 33 15	77 1 8 8 9 9 122 4 277 7 80 79 57 45 5 9	4 6 15 15 17 7 7 6 112 28 28 28 14 11 4 23 5	66 25 10 77 55 11 14 66 55 12 28 49 49 34 11 61 11 61 16	2 2 4 4 2 9 9 5 8 8 16 16 10 10 26 8 113 111 1 3 63 4 9 30 8 6 19 7	1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 6 6 7 6 7 2 8 2 1 1 7 5 3 3 1 3 1 7 7	3 3 3 5 4 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 4 2 2 1 3 3	3 4 3 3 1 1 7 5 5 3 4 4 2 2 3 4 4 3 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 14 15 16 16 16 17 18 19 20 20 23
5, 940	416	644	607	643	699	611	823	434	531	279	213	40	24

SOUTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040

10														7	
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1			1			}			i	1	1	1	ļ	
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1									l		1			1
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	10	5	3	1	1]	1		9
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1		140	17	000	0.5	ı						<u>-</u>			
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1		140	17	20	25	4	25	14	9	7	1 4	4	i 1	1	3
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	9	1	1	1 1	1	2		1			1 1	.		4
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	38	2	10	9	9	5	4	9	3	i -	_			5
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	90	2	10	0	1 2				9					1 2
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	81	5	16	9	12	12	9	12	3	2	ļ I			- 6
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	366	41	53	l 48	35	36	42	55	20	23	8	4	1	7
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	55		14	l Ӌ	19	1 11			9	1		1 -	_	l è
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	20		1 17	*	12	1			1 -					1 %
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1		3	1			·			1		1				9
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1		89	8	15	3	10	6	18	1 13	7	i 6	! 3	1		10
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	19	_	4	اً	i	3	1			_	_			11
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	- 65		1 .7			2					- -			10
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	90	8	14	l b	8	Đ	1	4	. 2	2	i			12
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	34	2	1 7	7	3	3	5	5	2				1	13
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	ł	66	13	10	5	10	10	4	7	5	9	1		}	14
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	į	100	10	1 54	00	100	10	10	10						17
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	i i	108	17	24	23	30		10	10	8	9	4	3		19
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	22	2	1 6	3	3	1	2	3	2		l. .			16
164 8 18 18 19 24 18 27 15 8 7 1 1 18 18 19 10 6 3 6 1	1	34	2	6	4	4	3	4	5.	9	9	1			17
48	1	104		10	10	1.0	പ്	10	97	1 15	ء ا	i			1 16
21	1	104	8	19	19	19	24	18	21	19		- 4	1	1	19
21	1	48		10	9	10	6	3	l 6	1	1	1	1		19
21	1	14		4	3	1 4	2			1 1					20
21	}	00		1 7	ı ,	آتا	្រី គឺ								01
21	ł	20	Ō	4	4	4	2	4.	2						21
21	1	23	2	1 5	8	1	1	2	2		2		[22
21	1	28	3	6	6	3	9	3							93
21	í	70	ő	10	×	, o	1.5	10	1 10						64
21 1 6 8 1 3 1 3 1 25 36 4 9 4 3 4 4 4 1 3 27 35 6 5 5 5 2 6 2 4 2 3 28 17 4 4 6 1 2 2 2 2 3 1 30 25 5 3 2 5 4 4 1 1 30 30 8 3 1 7 1 2 2 2 3 32 32 98 6 14 11 1 14 8 17 6 4 4 3 33 36 4 9 6 4 5 2 3 1 2 3 33 15 1 2 2 2 1 3 1 6 4 4 4 3 33 17 2 2 2 1 3 1 6 4 4 4 4 3 3 33 13 - -	1	70		10	4		10		10	3	3	5			24
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	i .	211	1	6	8	1	3	1				1	1		25
29 6 7 3 5 2 6 2 4 2 3 2 28 17 4 4 6 1 2 4 2 3 28 28 25 3 1 2 5 4 4 1 1 1 30 30 8 3 1 7 1 2 2 1 1 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 33 34 4 4 1 1 1 30 33 34 2 34 4 4 4 3 33 33 33 33 31 1 2 2 34 4 4 4 <td< td=""><td>I</td><td>36</td><td>Ā</td><td></td><td></td><td>31</td><td></td><td>4</td><td>4</td><td>1</td><td>3</td><td>-</td><td> </td><td> </td><td>26</td></td<>	I	36	Ā			31		4	4	1	3	-			26
29	i	90	ė	, ž	5	, i	-		,						20
$ \begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$		29	0	1 4	3	i o									21
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	351	6	i 51	5	2	6	2	4	2	3				28
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	17	4	4	6	1	9								90
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	i	0.5	- 4] [0	9	اءً			;					20
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	ł	25		ا ا	3	2	Đị		4	1		1			30
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	l	81	3		1		2	1	1						31
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	20	2	3	1	7	il	2	2		2				32
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	50	2	1 12	7.1	,,,,	, 11	- 6	,						99
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	98		14	TI	11	14	8		- 6	4	4	3		55
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	36	4	9	6	4	5	2	3	1		2	l		34
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	15	1	ارة ا	9	9	3	9	ă.	"					3.5
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	10	<u>.</u>	, a	5	- 51	8		9						96
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	17	2	2	2	1	3	1 }	6				[- -		36
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1	13		6	2	1	11	1		1		1			37
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	l	11		9	2	-(- 1	Ē		- 1		-			36
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	ĺ	11		1.5							1				90
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	i	33	5	111	6	5	2					1			39
$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	I	631	2	111	12	91	4	9	4	5	5	1	1		40
71 7 18 7 9 8 5 11 3 3 3 1 1 4 3 42	l	201	11	27	21	วกั	20	22	62	20	99		14	2	41
71) 71 181 71 91 81 51 111 31 31	i .	021	17	1 40	91	20	90	99	0.5	92	32	14	14	3	41
	i	711	71	181	71	91	81	5,	111	31	3				42

SOUTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total num-		N	et inco	me cla	sses (ir	thous	ands o	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5–7	7–10
1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7 7 8 9 9 10 11 12 12 13 14 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 23 24 25 29 29 29 29 29 29 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	Lyman McCook McPherson Marshall Meade Mellette Miner Minnehaha Sioux Falls Moody Pennington Perkins Potter Roberts Sanborn Shannon Spink Stanley Stully Todd Tripp Turner Union Walworth Washabaugh Washington Yankton Ziebach Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	1 6 6 6 9 9 23 2 2 3 3 8 9 2 5 4 1 1 8 4 8 1 0 1 0 2 5 5 1 7 7 3 6 6 6 6 6 1 1 - 9 2 4 4 8 2	3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 1 49 42 1 1 6 6 1 1 3 3 2 2 1 1 3 3 1 1 1 4 4 8 8 3 3 3 1 1 6 6 8	3 3 2 2 4 4 8 8 11 334 316 6 7 7 7 57 7 7 7 7 7 13 3 4 4 12 2 9 9 2 2 5 17 10 18 1 1 1 2 2 0	1 2 6 6 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 3 2 2 8 8 7 7 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1 2 3 1 1 1 3 6 15	117 1 27 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 4 4 2 2 2 2 1 3 3	1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 7 7 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	23 1	2 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
30	Total, South Da- kota.	3, 979	12	2 23	1, 392	762	426	612	446	97	9	

TENNESSEE-FORM 1040-A

1	Anderson	278	1	15	143	34	17	35	28	4	1	
2	Bedford	50		3	18	7	6	10	4		2	
3	Benton	7			4	1	1		1 1			
4	Bledsoe	12			2	5	2	2	i		1	
5	Blount	197		4	52	35	25	37	34	8	2	
6	Bradley	164		26	50	17	20	16		8	2	
7	Campbell	112		7	42	23	14	12	13		1	
8	Cannon	4						2	1	1		
9 '	Carroll	49		8	6	14	10	8	3			
10	Carter	195	1	12	77	31	13	24	26	9	2	
11	Cheatham	8		1	1	2			2	2		
12	Chester	2			2				_	_		
13	Claiborne	33			10	6	1	10	4	2		
14	Clay	3			1		-		2	_		
15	Cocke	39		5	11	6	3	5	5	3	1	
16	Coffee	68		4	iil	14	10	13	14		Ī	1
17	Crockett	23	1	5	3	- 5		- 2	3	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_	
18	Cumberland	15	_	ĭ	3	3	4	_	4	_		
19	Davidson	6, 484		337		969	678	1,084	924	268	41	
20	Nashville 1	6,051	10	320	1, 939	924	654	1,034	879			
21	Decatur	7		020	2,000	2	1	1	ľ		"	
$\frac{1}{22}$	De Kalb	i 4		3		-	î	-	_			
23	Dickson	26		3	4	6	2	9	2			
24	Dyer	108		4	20	16	19					
25	Fayette			6	14	7	5			1 1		
26	Fentress	17		Ιĭ	3	3	2	"	5	3		
27	Franklin	122		10		16		36			1	
28	Gibson	83	i	14		16				2	1 *	
29	Giles-	42		5		ľš.	5					
30	Grainger	5			2	1		2		-		
31	Greene	104		10		15	20			3		
32	Grundy.	15		1 1	5	13		1 1	3		lί	
33	Hamblen	85		8	25	11		16			i i	
34	Hamilton	3,090	8	157							27	
35	Chattanooga 1	2,950		153								2
Şõ	Charranooga '	<u>∠,9</u> 50	1 4	100	1 2,024	409	1 200	1 997	1 401	1 102	1 40	1 4

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

SOUTH DAKOTA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	icome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
13 27 18 34 67 5 26 67 751 67 33 31 179 47 25 33 31 16 17 7 7 7 84 9 9 16 11 77 76 48 22 22 145 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 6 7 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8 7 8	33 34 4 344 29 1 111 5 5 5 5 5 2 2 14 2 2 2 13 14 5 16	3 5 5 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2 2 2 2 2 1 1 5 5 8 8 2 2 4 4 9 1 7 6 6 10 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	20 45 12 83 74 5 11 16 3 3 8 8 12 2 3 4 4 8 8	16 33 44 42 686 79 44 177 11 22 11 10 10 73	3 1 3 3 3 5 1 1 67 59 5 5 22 2 1 1 1 1 3 3 1 1 5 1 1 2 4 4 9 1 1 3 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	1 1 5 4 4 3 3 14 4 9 1 1 8 4 4 3 3 5 5 1 1 4 4 1 1 7 7 6 6 10 0 7 7 1 1 6 6 10 6 7 6 6 10 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6	1 1 1 56 53 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	766 733 24 22 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 3	1 1 38 37 12 12 11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 5 5 5 5 5	1 286 266 266 1 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	2 2 2	1 2 2 3 3 4 4 5 5 6 6 7 7 8 8 9 10 11 12 13 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 5 26 27 28 29
4, 281	388	713	532	462	486	439	543	243	268	130	69	8	30

TENNESSEE-FORM 1040

													
43 40 3	4	2 2	4 2 1	i i	13 9 1	i	14 7 1	3 1	6 11		1 2		1 2 3
85 87 50	4 5 1	6 5 2	8 3 3	8 6 7	20 17 10	5 5 1	14 12 6	8 4 5	11 23 12		1 5 3	2	5 6 7
85 87 50 3 41 49 11	4 4	1	2 8 2	1 3 5 1	1 5 4 5	1 7 5	7 3 2	4 4	3 14 1		2 1		10 11
14		2	1 1		3 4 8	1	2 2 5 6	1 1 8	2				8 9 9 100 111 112 113 113 114 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115 115
38 19 22 2, 984 2, 888	1 2 137	5 3 1	1	4 2 5 1	8 4 3	6	6 2 3	2 2 5	8 3 1 6	4	000		16 17 18
7		267	264 257	264 264	293 272 3 1		382		1	214 198	203 201	37 37	20 21 21
32 121 29 11	10	2	$\begin{array}{c} 4\\18\\2\end{array}$	3 16 3	8 8 4	5 13 4	18 3	4 5 1	19 6 1	2	6		2: 2: 2: 2:
53 127 35	3 5 6 1	9 13 3	13 2	1 14 3	30 10		26 2	6	5 5 3	5	1		2 2 2 2
2 32 121 29 11 53 127 35 6 95 19 58 1, 495 1, 369	10	3	6	2	19 6 6 143 125	2 2 9 148 136	16 4 9 223 199	12 1 8	2	1	4		31 31 31
1, 495	84 79	113 105	8 92 78	110	$\frac{143}{125}$	136	199	156 151	170 158	107 92	109 105	40 37	34

TENNESSEE-FORM 1040-A-Continued

	:	Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands o	f dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10
1	Hancock	7			3 7	1	1		2			
2	Hardeman	24 27	1	5	7 12	5 3	2	- 6	2 3	$\frac{1}{2}$	1	}
2 3 4	Hardin Hawkins	83		1 7	27	8	16	9	14	2		
	Haywood	36		7 3 2 5	9	9	6	3	2	4		
5 6 7	Henderson	22 123	1	2	3 32	17	28	$\begin{array}{c} 4 \\ 24 \end{array}$	2 15	2		
8	Henry. Hickman	26		2	8	4	7	2	2	í		
8	Houston	7			1	3	<u>-</u> 3	3				
10	Humphreys	13 23		<u>î</u>	4	3 5		3 7	2			
11 12	Jefferson	30		2	7 7	3	3	8	4	2		î
13	Johnson	12	5	126	5	2	334	$\frac{2}{540}$	396	===	1	
14 15	Knoxville 1	2, 705 2, 568	4		759 719	411 392	316	508	380	111 108	22 18	1
16	Lake	29	1	5	6	7.	1	4	4	1		
17 18	Lauderdale Lawrence	45 35		5 6	13 7	11 8	6	6 4	3	1		
18	Lewis	9		1	3	ĭ	3	1				
20	Lincoln	63 43		5 7	17	5 10	8 1	10	17 7	1		
21 22	Loudon McMinn	150	<u>î</u>	12	11 33	23	26	38	12	1 4	i	
23	McNairy	13		4	2	5.		1		i		
24	Macon Madison	509		40	100	64	1 74	127	82	;;		
25 26	Marion	49		6	109 15	6	6	3	11	11 2		
27	Marshall	32		4	4	4	6	4	10			
28	Maury Meigs	209 11		11	80	38	23 1	$\frac{27}{2}$	18: 3	11	1	
29 30	Monroe	3 5		2	8	gi	5	5	6			
31	Montgomery	182	1	15	45	21	27	32	27	13	1	
32 33	Moore Morgan	38		3	1 10	<u>-</u> 8	5	7	5			
34	Obion	62		6	16	7	14	11	7	1		
35 36	Overton Perry	11 5		1 1	3	5 1		1 3	1			
37	Pickett	ĭ						1				
38	Polk Putnam	95 62		4 14	14 12	16 10	11 13	23 8	21	5 2	1	
39 40	Rhea	34		3	9	. 8	3	4	7	2	1	
41	Roane	125		8	40	25	16 18	17	12	7	;	{
42 43	Robertson	95 166		6 15	22 53	12 30	26	18 23	15 12	3 6	i	
44	Scott	15		2	3	î	2	4	2	1		
45	Sequatchie	4 44		3			2 6	1	3	1		
46 47	SevierShelby		21	351	2, 310	1, 216	835	1, 326	1,046	254	47	6
48	Memphis !	7, 412 7, 300	21	347	2, 310 2, 270	1, 200	823	1, 303	1, 031	252	47	6
49 50	SmithStewart	10 5		3 2	1		2	2				
51	Sullivan	580		31	170	71	66	109	105	19	9	
52	SumnerTipton	65 25		5	15	6	10	14 5	13 3	2		
53 54	Trousdale	23		1	3 2	4						
55	Unicoi	137		5	21	9	29	49	21	3		
56 57	Union Van Buren	16	-	1	9	1 1	3	1	1	- 		
58	Warren	30		7	6	3	5	6	2		1	
59	Washington	467		35	123	97	52	67	71	17	5	
60 61	Johnson City Wayne	343 5		29	85	79 1	37 1	44 2	52 1	14	3	
62	Weakley	55		6	19	10	6	9	3	1	i	
63	White	10		$\frac{2}{14}$	3 26	1 19	1 20	1 12	1 16	1.		
64 65	WilliamsonWilson	110 54		14	26 24	9	8	3	6	1 2	1	
66	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	399	12	34	87	65	8 53	3 64	53	24	7	
67	Total Tennessee	26, 189	67	1, 494	8, 072	4, 102	3, 002	4, 604	3, 687	956	194	11

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

TENNESSEE-FORM 1040-Continued

otal				Net in	come cl	lasses (ir	thousa	nds of o	lollars)				
er of re- urns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4~5	5–7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Li No
1 24			6			1	3	3					
15	 .	2		2 2 4 5	1	4 2 2 4	4	1	3				ļ
25 55	2 1	2 2 5	2 6	4 5	2 8	21	4 10	6 8	1 7	<u>-</u>			}
20	4	2	8	2 7	1 7	4 3	6 9	8 3 11	1 6	1			
64 9	1				2		3	2	1	5	2	1	
3 15	<u>î</u>	<u>1</u>	1 4	2	1	4	1	<u>i</u>		<u>1</u>			
5 23	1	1	1		î				i				1
23 8		$\frac{2}{1}$	3	5 2	2		4	4	4	2			
1, 487 1, 425	79 74	144	101 100	112 107	144	149	224	145	182	110	83	14	
1, 425) 37)	. 1	140 3	$\frac{100}{2}$	107	136 4	139 5	215 2	138	177	106 4	80 2	13	
37 75	4	13		7	7	8	16	7	5 7	3			İ
25 7		3	$\frac{3}{2}$	5 7 3 1	5 1	5 8 2 2	5	1	2	4			
52	4	9 5	8	4 7	7	6 3	5 7	2	2 5 5	2	1	1	
53 61	5 5	9	5 3 2	5	12 7	10	8	3	2	$\frac{1}{2}$	7	1	ļ
9		1	2	1	2 1		1	<u>1</u>	1		1		
253	13	28	12	28	26	32 7	30	28	24	14	14	4	
47 38	$\frac{2}{1}$	5 6	6	4 5	6	7	9	6 5	2	2	-		
141	13	15	4 15	16	10	3 19	17	5 12	15	4	4	1	
35	1	6		3	6	5	7	<u>-</u>		3			
169	9	18	7	3 9	19	5 9	27	21	26	12	9	3	
9	1 2		1	3	2		i		1				
65	2	3	8	3 7 2	12	$^{6}_{2}$	8	10	5	2	2		
(1										
32		3		4:	3			<u>-</u> 6	5		3		
35	5	3	2 1 5	5	5	3 4	3 2	3	1	4	2		
35 26 87	5 1 6 3 4	3 2 10	5 11	8 8 8	6 9	1 8	1 12	1 4	11	<u>3</u>	5		[
101	3	10	11	8	3	11	20	4 6	17	5	7		
96 17	4	12 2	8 3	12 1	6	13 1	15 3	9	6 3	10	1		
1			2	<u>2</u>	1 4	2	4						
3, 919 3, 822	257 253	5 387	331	320	359	335	528	323	447	291 290	284	1 57	ĺ
3, 822 8	253	374 1	319	311	348 2	321	514	317 1	437	290	281	57	
8	i	Í	2			3	i	-	1				
257 61	13 2 4	26 4	15 11	31 4	34 8	33 5	38 13	19 7	20 3	16	11	1	
68	4	10	5	4	9	9	13 1	5 1	2	3	4		
7 17		1 3		2	1	5	i	$\overset{1}{2}$	2		1		
2		1	1										
29	1	2	1		3	5	6	2	6	i	2		
186 144	20 15	16 15	9	15 12	3 26 20	16 12	30 20	21 16	16 14	10 8	7		
3					ĩ				1		ľ		
27 22	3	3 2	4	10	6	3	1 9	1	1		1 1		
82	4	15	10	7		3 1 7 5	12	3	6	6	2	i	
27 22 82 32 182	4 2 11	3 55	0	18	9 3 0	5	8 39	3 3 17	$\begin{array}{c c} 6 \\ 2 \\ 22 \end{array}$	3 15	1 4	1	
-02		50	L								_ ^	_ ^	1
13, 806	788	1, 347	1, 103	1, 178	1, 457	1, 267	1, 978	1, 269	1, 565	879	809	166	

TEXAS-FORM 1040-A

		Total		Ne	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thouse	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10
1	Anderson	347	1	19	87	59	59	78	38	6		
2	Andrews	19			1 19	6	2 21	4	6			
3 4	AngelinaAransas	107	2	6	19	13 1		23	22	1		
5	Archer	21		1 2 1 2 3	6	$\hat{2}$	3 2	4	5			
6	Armstrong	11	2	1	3		1	1	11	2		
6 7 8	Atascosa	33		2	9	6	3	11	2			
8	AustinBailey	85 8		ા	25	20	13	16 2	6	. 2		
10	Bandera	12			5	- 4	3 13 2 2	ĩ				
11	Bastrop	101		16	12	17	21	27	4	3	1	
12	Baylor	20	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 7	45	5	1	.3	3	1	1	
13 14	Bee	132 274	$\frac{2}{2}$	16	74	29 51	19 47	14 50	11 26	5 8		-
15	Bexar	4, 355	25	237	1,336	693	492	697	656	189	28	2
16	San Antonio 1	4, 137	24	227	1, 284	680	467	650	601	174	28	2
17	Blanco	5			2	$\frac{2}{1}$			1			
18 19	BordenBosque	21			8	5	1	5		7		
20	Bowie	185	1	8 7	8 49	31 22	17	40	33	5		1
21	Texarkana	149	1	7	41	22	15	31	28	4		
22 23	BrazoriaBrazos	231 99	1	8	84 20	42 21	33 8	30 17	29 17	4· 5		1 1
24	Brewster	44	î	8	5	8	3	7	7	5		
25	Briscoe	5	1		1	2	l		1			
26	Brooks	22	2	9	5 24	5 6	2 8	26	4	1	1	
27 28	Brown Burleson	89 53	1	7	11	8		9	13 4	1		
29	Burnet	11		7 2 12	5	2	1			î		
30	Caldwell	121		12	39	23	14	19	8	6		
31 32	Calhoun	8 28		2 3	3	5	3 5	11	$\frac{1}{1}$	2		
33	Cameron	494	5	42	135	86	55 2	95	58	16	2	
34 35	Camp	24		3	2	7			3			
35	Carson	58 21		6	38 3	5	6	4 4	5 3			
36 37	Castro	5		3 6 2 1	1			i	1	ī		
38	Chambers	116	1	3	36	26 30	16	18	13 15	$\hat{2}$		
39	Cherokee	115	1	4	16	30	17	19	15 7	11	2	
40 41	ChildressClay	47 24	1	4	7	10	2	11	2			
42	Cochran			- 		-						
43	Coke	<u>-</u>		:								
44 45	Coleman	38 80	1	10 13		11	5 10	5 7 3	15	3		
46	Collingsworth	15	1		3	4	10	3	ı	i		
47	Colorado	52 73	2	9	17	5 15	5	11	1 2	1		
48 49	Comal Comanche	73 30	1	7	20	9	8	12	6 1	4		
50	Coneno	10	1		4	1	1	2		ľ		
51	Cooke	63	ī	7	17	6	8	15	7	1	1	
52 53	Coryell Cottle	36 15		1 4	11			5	8 2	4		
54	Crane	26			7	1 5	4	2	8	*		
55	Crockett	24	4	6	4	2	2	4	1	1		
56	Crosby	1 9			2	1		1	1		1	
57 58	Culberson Dallam	15 66	2	i	8	5		18	8	1 4		
59	Dallas	9,078	21	341	2,676	1, 443	893	1,571	1,635	409		4
60	Dallas 1	8,955	20	329	2, 631	1, 420	883	1,560		405	84	4
61 62	Dawson Deaf Smith	5 14	i	1	5	1	$\frac{1}{3}$	<u>-</u>	1 3			
63	Delta	5	1		2	2	1	¹				
64	Denton	5 67	1	7	21	11	6		12	4		
65	De Witt	107	1		26	18	9	13		4		
66 67	Dickens Dimmit	19		3	4	3	3	4	2	<u>i</u>		
68-	Donley	23	4	3	} 7	4	1	4				
69	Duval	112		3	46	33	13	7 28	9	1		
70	Eastland	170		13	49 14	29 14	17	28 13	28 7	4	2	
71 72	Ector Edwards	54		<u>î</u>				l			1	
73	Ellis	159	2	10	36	22	24	38	24	2	i	1

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

TEXAS-FORM 1040

otal				Net i	ncome o	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
er of re- urns	Under 0	0–1	1~1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5~7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	N
286	4	12	11	20	49	47	70	35	24	12	2		_
3 151	6	11	10	11	23	14	43	1 5	11	$\frac{1}{2}$	15		
24	2 7	3	4	2		5	1	5 3 2 5 8	4	<u>-</u>			
62 33	i	10 7	$\frac{4}{2}$	8 3 7	9 5	10 5	6 4	3 2	3 5	2			
54	4	7	31		8	9	- 8	5	1	2			
139 10	9	17	17	18, 1	20	14 1	$\frac{21}{2}$	8 2	10 2	2	3		}
20		3	4		4	4	3		2				}
124	5	21	19	19	18	12	20	3	6	1)
47 203	8 8 18	$\frac{6}{22}$	10 20	$\frac{2}{34}$	$\frac{6}{22}$	28	$\frac{3}{27}$	6 16	1 14	8			ļ
338	18	45	35	37	55	39	46	27	18	9	9)
4, 207	342	449	397	375	448	416	666	430	379	155	126 126	24 24]
4, 142 13	334 3	440	392 2	370	443	407	656 1	426 1	370	154	126	24	1
16	3	î		3	2		4	1	2				İ
233	6 18	8 30	5 23	3	8 17	7	6	$\frac{2}{15}$	2	$\frac{2}{6}$	11	2	
166	11	15	18	18	13	22 15	48 37 35	12	13 11	6	9	ĺ	
197	15	18	24	28 18 27 21	24	25	35	17	10		[2		
207 89	15 23	27 16	16 8	21 10	19 6	17 8	34 8	16 6	$\frac{24}{3}$	7 1	10	1	
23	7	2	1		. 5	5	1		2				
61	6	.3	4	10	4	9	11	7	7				
131 82	7	17 24	11	15 12	17 19	22 7	28 15	8 7	$\frac{4}{2}$	1	1		1
46	6	5	5	6	12 7	6	5 32	4		1	1		1
229 39	10 5	28 9	24	44	26 2	26 2	32 8	$\frac{21}{2}$	14	2	2		
51	11	7	1 11	4	5	5	5		4 3	1			
616	11 71	89	71	73	5 77	69	89	32	26	10	8	1	
22 122	1 6	1 15	4 6	18 18	5 16	8 12	1 19	1 10	13	<u>i</u>	4	2	
45	ğ	7	3	7	2	3	5	4	3	2			
8		1	3				1	3				-	
77 225	1 16	14 14	3 15	10 27	5 27	$\begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 22 \end{array}$	19 43	$\frac{5}{23}$	9 20	3 12	$\frac{1}{6}$	1	
93	10	22	9	$\frac{27}{11}$	11	9	14	2	2		3		
60 10	13	15	6	6	2	5	6	4	2	1			
18	1 2 16	1	2 1 8 20	1	4 3	1 1	5		ī				
113	16	17 23	8	14 26	14	16	13	8	6	.1	;		
182 55	14 6	23	20 7	26 10	17 9	16 4	24 7	18 3	9 3 7	11 1	4		
190	10	5 28 27	19	10 16	31	28	7 27	3 19	7		2	3	
160 45	9	27 4	28 4	14	18 7	12 5	21 9	9	12 6	6 1	4		
60	2 8 15	7	11	2	7	5	15	5 2	3				
140 61	15 1	20 6	10	12	23 10	9 7	20 9	14 5	12 12	2 3	3 1		
85	3	9	9	6	7	8	13	14		3	5		
15	1	2	3	1	1	1		1	8 2				
103 64	55 7	12 10	12 8	6 8	4 5	10	4 3 5 5	6	3	2			
32	7 10	5			1	3	5	8 5	1	2			
78	$\begin{array}{c} 16 \\ 324 \end{array}$	11 492	5 464	7 539	15 654	724	14 1, 345	926	$\frac{2}{1,010}$	$\begin{array}{c} 1\\364\end{array}$	362	74	
7, 278 7, 142	313	481	451	533	627	708	1, 345	912	996	364	357	74	
531	1	9	12	8	6	2	10	1	2	2		i	
62 25	11	9 5	11	6	5 4	4 2	7	4	4	1	1	1	
171	2 13	24 33	26	27	21	17	26	11	5	ĭ			
176	16	33	25	20	10	28 7	18	18	7		1		
36 40	5	3		3 8	6		9	2	1				
73	10	12	9	20	7	1 7	7	ĩ 7	2	ī			
95	5 21	16 23 4 7	10	12 17	51	12 32	18 32	7 12	10		3		
203 60	6	23 4	13 4 3 33	17 8 4	35 7 3	7	32 9	12 5	11 6	4	3		
	32	.*!	*	9	- 1	i	~	9	۷	-	1		

1258-38-7

TEXAS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
1 2 3	El Paso	2, 132 1, 997	11 11	95 90	586 550	381 363	264 250	387 366	318 289	75 65	14 12	1
3 4	Erath Falls	41 76		6	6 20	6 17	9 12	7 10	9 10	4		
5	Fannin	46		7	28 28	7	10	9	4	1		
6	Fayette	79		8		14	14	8	5	2		
8	Fisher Floyd	18 12	1	1	5 1	3	2 1	5	3	1		
9	Foard	6				4	2					
10	Fort Bend	163		6	59 2	19	18	27	30	4		
11 12	FranklinFreestone	69		6	10	8	1 17	19		2		
13	Frio	21		2	5	4	3	1	6			
14	Gaines	7	8	2		2	2	1				
15 16	Galveston	2,008 1,778	8	83 75	742 650	403 354	190 172	266 231	244 221	64 59	7 7	1
17	Garza	1,776		i	4	4	1,2	3	221		<u>'</u> ۔۔۔۔'	İ^
18	Gillespie	28		6	6	7	3	2	4			
19 20	Glasscock	21		2	10	1	$\frac{3}{2}$	<u>ŝ</u>	3			
21	Gonzales	65		11	22	10	5	10	7			
21 22 23	Gray	299	1	8	133	50	35	26	33	13		
23 24	Grayson	379 906	2 1	20 31	95 305	66 214	59 84	87 119	42 107	7	1	
25	Gregg	72		6	28	14	7	119	107	37	8	
26	Guadalupe	65		4	21	6	14	9	10	1		
27 28	Hale	87	5	10	23	16	13	10	9	1		
28 29	Hall	13 27		3	3	7	6	1 2	5 5	1		
30	Hansford	6		2 3 2 3	2 12			2				
31	Hardeman	50	1		12	6	6 18	10	10	2		
32 33	Hardin	124 11,867	27	373	3, 870	19 2, 051	1, 229	19 1, 849	18 1,846	528	92	
34	Harris. Houston 1	11, 112	25	373 363	3, 870 3, 574	1,907	1, 146	1,752	1,750	505	88	2
35 36	Harrison	170 9		13	59 1	24 4	12	35	25 2	2		
37	Hartley Haskell	8	1	1	2	1	i	1	í	1		
38	Have	78	2	8	15	23 3	12	9	8	1		
39 40	Hemphill Henderson	29 36		4	6 12	6	8 4	8	2	1	-	
41	Hidalgo	310	3	28	86	48	47	56	34	5	1 3	
42	Hill	77		9	19	10	11	15	12	1		
43 44	Hockley	4		1	1 1	;		i	3			
45	Hopkins	30		4	5	ŝ	6	7	3	1	1	
46	Houston	47 177		4	16	8	5 38	7 44	7			
47 48	Howard Hudspeth	117		1	37 3	23 2	1	1	27 1	4		
49	Hunt	131	2	10	29	25	16	26	19	4		
50	Hutchinson	270 12		11	144	36	23	19	32	2	3	
51 52	Irion Jack	18		7	1	3	i	i	3	1	ī	
53	Jackson	22		2	6	4	2	4	2	2		
54	Jasper	37	1	2 2	9	9	4	6	6			
55 56	Jeff Davis	12 2, 875	9	131	1, 02 5	584	247	426	370	71		
57	Beaumont	1.326	5	47	420	263	142	217	194	32	5	ĺ
58	Port Arthur	1, 234	3	47 77	480	257	77	176	129	29		
59 60	Jim Hogg	56 46		3 2 8 3 5 6	19 13	12 12	8 4	9 7	4 3	3	1 1	
61	Jim Wells. Johnson	124		8	32	21	17	36	10	l		
62	Jones	62		3	18	13	4	13	8	2	ī	
63 64	Karnes Kaufman	58 81	1	5	19 17	12 18	7 13	9	5 9	4	<u>ī</u>	
65	Kauiman Kendall	23		8		18	3	13	3	4		
66	Kenedy	5			5 2	2			ĭ			
67	Kent	1 2		1			;-	1		<u>-</u>		
68 69	Kerr Kimble	140		20	39	31 5	14	14	14	7	1	
70	King											
71	Kinney	19		10	7	1	2	42 42	5			
72		153	1	. 10	43	18	21	1 42	19	f	1	1

¹Cities of 100,000 and over population.

TEXAS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	acome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1–1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3–4	4–5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Line No.
1, 702 1, 570 64	120	180 166 4 26	133 126 11 19	155 140 7 21	174 160 15 21	189 176 5 25	303 265 8 40	164 153 3	178 169 4 23	59 53 3	38 36 1	6 6	1 2 3 4 5 6 77 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18
208 111 214 35	8 13	14 43	14 32	24 22 5	14 24 7	12 26 6	19 20 3	14 3 14	25 2 14 5	. 5 1 3	<u>3</u>		5 6
77 34 218	10 2	13 8 23	1 7 3 24	5 3	10 3 26	5 6 19	12 5 39	5 3 20	10 4 16	10	2		8 9
14 82 39	1 4 10	3 10 4	2 11 5 5	28 3 11 4	1 9 4	2 11 4	13 5	6 1	6 2			1	11 12 13
16 1, 471 1, 371	86 84	152 147	5 140 131	4 2 147 134	1 146 125	166 150	233 217	143 138	134 126	1 47 41	67 65	10 10	14 15 16
22 77 14 60	2 4 2 3 9	3 15 1 7	10 5	3 13 2 8 15	6 2 5	13 1 6	2 10 1 13	3 2 2 6	3 1 3 4	2 3 2			17 18 19
124 369 484	9 31 23 29	20 19 56	15 25 52	$\frac{31}{62}$	9 48 68	16 38 43	19 56 63	9 49 42	5 48 41	6 13 22	ī	1	20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32
1, 150 146 169	29 5 10 21	49 11 35	61 17 18	89 25 17 17	134 16 31	165 22 19	223 20 22	148 10 8	122 10 7	61 9 2	55 1		24 25 26
188 64 40 51	9 1 1	20 11 6 13	15 5 3 1	6	27 5 8 4	19 12 6 6	38 9 7 6	13 3 4 7	12 3 3	6	1		27 28 29
87 83 7, 617 7, 193	9 8 425	6 16 587	6 2 554	5 8 7 7 583	10 9 638 589	12 12 711	21 12 1, 355	7 7 869	7 6 961	416	F 2 401	2 117	31 32 33
7, 193 334 11 48	404 21 4 6	536 29 2 14	509 21 2 5	533 40	39	657 40 1 4	1, 274 65	847 19 1 3	929 25 1 1	408 18	390 12	117 5	34 35 36 37 38
127 62 107	16 17 4	16 11 16	12 4 9	10 5 12	18 6 7	13 4 11	20 10 18 98	12 3 14	13	2	2		39 40
674 203 28 8	62 12	105 35 2 3	68 16	69 27 7	105 18 2 1	61 19 5	98 40 5	50 18 5	37 12 2	16 3	3		41 42 43 44
68 92 197	5 5 13	7 6 21	7 7 17	11 12 25	8 18 27 3	7 16 31	12 9 26	4 8 15	5 8 14	2 1 4	2 4		45 46 47 48
30 234 132 22	3 16 12	4 29 16 4	8 24 17 1	21 11 2	34 18 4	3 26 16 3	3 44 19 3	18 11	13 6	3 7 3	1 3	i	48 49 50 51
44 79 49	5 3 5	10 7 3 3 151	5 9 7	2 7 11	7 9 6	7 6 5	6 20 6	1 12 3	1 1 2	2 2	1 6		52 53 54 55
1, 630 1, 068 430	9 80 60 16	151 110 32	1 144 95 35	1 151 103 29	$161 \\ 103 \\ 42$	1 194 119 54	317 195 94	1 160 110 43	1 155 91 51	67 43 23	33 22 11	17 17	55 56 57 58
58 131 126	5 9 10	6 6 14 11	6 10 15	4 12 14	10 20 18 17	3 22 18	9 16 20	7 23 11	6 7 5	5	1		59 60 61
134 154 143 64	6 9 6	11 20 18 10	13 18 18 11	13 12 25 10	17 18 19 9	21 23 19	30 30 24 9	12 14 6 4	5 4 4	5 1	1 1 1	2	62 63 64
13 12 160	6 2 3 3 32	1 2 26	2	2	1 22	24	1 1 12	1 8	6	1	4	1	65 66 67 68 69
41 5 47	7	7	10	8 1 8	1 1 2	3	2	1 2	1 2 5				69 70 71 72 73
86 52	8	5 9	8	10	17	12 3	17 7	2	5 -		2		72 73

TEXAS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

-		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
1	Lamar.	120		12	36	20	14	15	18 2	5		
1 2 3	Lamb	21			7	2	1	4		ĭ	1	
3	Lampasas	32	1	3 2 3	8 2	5 3	9	4	3			
4	La SalleLavaca	11 65	3	6	12	14	$\frac{1}{12}$	1 16	1 1			
6	Lee	15		1		3		3	3			
7	Leon	13		2	5 3	1	2	1	4			
8	Liberty	165	1	15	53 35	33	14	25	20	3	1	
4 5 6 7 8 9	Limestone	103 6		15 8 2 2	3	16	14	16	12 1	2		
11	Lipscomb	24		2	. 5	10		4	3			
11 12	Llano	15		2		1	6	3	2		1	
13 (Loving	2			1	1	32					
14 15	Lubbock	241 9		10 1	39 5	31 1	32 1	53 1	59	10	6	1
16	Lynn McCulloch	36		8	6	2	8	8	3			1
17	McLennan	921	5	43	248	178	124	160	117	36	10	
18	Waco	794	4	30	225	153	94	138	107	34	9	
19	McMullen Madison	1 10		3	<u>i</u>	5	<u>ī</u>	1 2	<u>-</u>			
21	Marion	12	3		3	2	$\hat{2}$	ī	î			
22	Martin	2		1		1						
23	Mason Matagorda	12 116	1	1 13	$\frac{4}{32}$	2 25	9	13	17	<u>5</u>	2	
25	Maverick	51	2 1	4	12	9	6	10	9	5		
26	Medina	29		9	8	6	6 2	2	2			
27	Menard	16 109	1	4 7	$\frac{3}{22}$	20	2 7	4 25	$\begin{array}{c} 2 \\ 24 \end{array}$			
28	Midland Milam	75	ī	5	12	15	19	25	24 10	4	1	
30	Mills	7		ž		1			4			
31	Mitchell	49		5 2 2 3	20	10	6	5	4	2		
32	Montague	35 124	1	6	8 36	$\frac{4}{34}$	$\frac{2}{12}$	10 15	4 16	2	1	
34	Montgomery	16		4	9		ĩ		2			
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28 29 30 31 32 33 34 35 36 37	Morris	9		2			1	3	2	1		
36	Motley	3 78		7	16	ii	1 14	2 15	13	2		
38	Nacogdoches Navarro	136	<u>ī</u>	9	32	28	11	27	22	5	1	
39	Newton	18		1 1	5	2	3 10	4	3			
40 41	Nolan	78 538	<u>2</u>	2 27 18	19 184	14 95	10 49	19 88	12 73	19	;	
42	Nueces	430	ĺ í	18	145	79	43	65	62	17	1	
43	Ochiltree	8		1	3	1		ĭ	2			
44	Oldham	107			1 41	16	1					
45 46	Orange Palo Pinto	107 71	<u>i</u>	5 6	22	12	8	17	16 13	3	1	
47	Panola	9	1		2	1		3	1	1		
48	Parker	41	1	$\begin{array}{c c} & 1 \\ & 2 \\ & 1 \end{array}$	7	7	3	7	11	3		
49 50	Parmer Pecos	8 78		6	23	21	ii	1 12	2			
51 52	Polk	53		6	11	9	5	7	12	4		
52	Potter	842	1 2 2 2	24 23	195	147	110	200	141			
53 54	Amarillo Presidio	747 43	2	23	174 12	128	100		123 7	20	1	
54 55	Rains			l								
56 57	Randall	25		4	8	6	2		2			
57 58	Reagan	78	1	3	l .	14	6	4	8	3		
59	Red River	13	ii		i	2	5	3		1		
60	Reeves	45		7	18		4	5	2			
61 62	Refugio	128		5	50	27	6	17	15	5	3	
63	Robertson	57		2	15	11	8		1 11	1		
64	Rockwall	€			1 2		1		3			
65	Runnels	54	1	8	15	6	7	13	5			
66 67	Rusk Sabine	324		5		100	39	53 1	33 1	9	1 3	
68	San Augustine	4				î		î				
69	San Augustine	1 .5		1	2				1	1		
70 71	San Patricio	133		6			3	25	8	1		
72 73	Schleicher	1 7		1 9		2	Pi .	1 1				
73	Scurry	8		i	1	1 3	1	1 2 6	2		\ -	
74 75	ShackelfordShelby	25	1	<u>i</u>		1 3	3		8			
43	DEGINY			•	-	•	•					

TEXAS-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
er of re- urns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	Li N
293	21	39	26	28 5	42	32	39	28	17	13	8		-
72	11	11	11	5	10	8	5	5	1	4	1		
451	8 6	4	3	4	4	3	9	5	4	1			
33, 152	10	7 22	15	25	4 15	6 23	3 18	3 10	1		3		
28		4	15 3	4	4	5	10	3	11 1				
38	1	9	6 12	2 15	3	5	3	7			2		
188	5	15	12	15	29	31	41	16	19	5			
225	16	31	191	34	35	19	38 6	13	11	3	6		
225 29 28	7	3	2 2	4	6		6	1					
28	3 16	5	5	4	2 6	4 7	5 2	2	1 2				
52	10	10	5	4		í			2				
4 423	44	38	26	33	1 51	54	60	1 44	49	16		1	
33	3	3.	3	5	4	2	. 4	6	3	10	1	1	
107	17	13	25		6	12 12	21	7	5	1			
l, 190	78 63	109	101	166	142	124	176	115	$10\tilde{2}$	40	28	9	
l. 0011	63	84	71	142	104	109	152	104	101	36	28	7	
2								2					
43	1		3	$\frac{3}{2}$	6	9	9	5	2	3	2		
14	2 3	<u>6</u>	3	2	2		4		1				
35 55	10		5 6	8 4	4	5 4	4	2	;				
160	19	10 19	14	15	10 23	21	4 34	12	4 16	1 3	4	2	
182 75 89 72 225 171	11	14	9	6	7	6	12	12	5	1	2	í	
89	10	20	16	9	9	9	18	6	1		ı î		
72	21	11	77	9	7	6	8 6	4	í				
225	25	22	7 17	23	20	27	45	16	19	7	2	2	
171	15	24	18	19	22	20	25	11	9	5	3		
12			3 8	4	8	2 7	1		2				
67	7	12	- 8	6		- 7	9	4	3	2			
72 186	4	10	11	10	10	10	6	5	2		4	2	
186	9	20	16	14	27	16	28	20	20	6	8	2	ł
23 13	1	4	2	5	2		2	9	2				
22	<u>-</u>	3	3 2 17	3	4	1	2 8	1	1				ļ
135	8 5	9	17	16	19	22	5 17	15	13	ī	1		İ
423	28	42	32	44	52	45	61	32	40	28	18	1	
14	28 1 17	1		3 12	52 2		4	$\frac{32}{2}$	i				ļ
124	17	20	14	12	16	19	8 145	11	i 5	2			
919	56	102 71	89	112	114	96	145	91	75	18	19	$\frac{2}{2}$	ļ
681 92	46	71	74	89 10	81 22	61	109	63	54	12	19	2	ļ
14	9 4	$\frac{11}{2}$	14 3	2	22	6	12	7	1				
112	6	15	9	20	7	12	12	14	11	5	1		
144	10	16	15	20 14	30	20	15	10	10		3	1	
$\frac{29}{76}$	2	2	6	5	2	1	6	- 0		1			ĺ
76		10	5	$\frac{11}{2}$	18	3	10	9	3	2			
341	5 19	6	5 3 7	2	4 13	1	10			1	2		
92	19	16	7	. 8	13	10	7 18	6	5		1		Ì
79	90	10 116	5 181	10 4	8 101	8 147	18 179	3 85	13	41	24		
, 065 , 025	89 89	111	175	4	98	147	179	83 83	93 91	39	24	4	
89	17	12	7	8	14	12	109	4	3	39		l · *	
4				1		1/	10						
47	7 7	5	6	4	7	8	4	3	1	2			
43		7	2	4	3	4	7	6	3				
13	4	6	1		6	1		1					
48	4 5 23 7 8 7 1	4	6	5	6	.6	5	5	4	2			
97	23	9	14 7	6	12	11	10	3	8	1	2	2	
140 25	6	17	4	8 2	12	20	25	17 3	19	4	2	2	
148	9		4 12	10	17 17	$\frac{1}{16}$	25 3 27	22	12	6	1		
143	1	18 5	12	3		1	1	1	12	l "	·		
165	18	25	32	14	34	14	19	5	2	2			
421	12	13	11	30	45	45	88	66	58	30	19	4	Ì
13		3		2		1	5		1				1
25		2	1 2 2	7		6	5 2	1		2			
9		3	_2	1			2		.1				
260	19	25	34	28	36	33	34	24	17	8	1	1	
42	13	13	4 2 5 10 2	5	$\frac{2}{2}$	1	1	1		2			}
28 32 78 55	10 3 7 5	4 8	2 E	3 5 7 6	6	3 2 8	3	1		3			
34	2	13	10	2	137	6	7	4 7	7	2			ĺ
781													

TEXAS-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		No	t incor	ne clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollars	s)	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4–5	5-7	7–10
1	Sherman	9		1	6		2					
2	Smith	573	1	$3\tilde{4}$	153	103	57	107	95	19	4	
3	Somervell	3		1			1	1				
4 5	Starr	57 74		6	13	8 15	8	8	11	3		
6	StephensSterling	10		4	19 1	20	6 3	15	13 1	2		
7	Stonewall	2		1	1	- 1		ĩ	1	•		
8	Sutton	16	1	3	7			5				
9	Swisher	15	1	1	2	6	1	2	2			
10	Tarrant	3, 231	9	88	940	482	349	597	588	147	31	
$\begin{array}{c c} 11 & \\ 12 & \end{array}$	Fort Worth 1	3, 124 278	9	85 12	905 63	466 47	335 31	582 70	570 39	142 11	30 3	
13	Terrell	30	2	3	5	10	6	10	3	11	3	
14	Terry	15	ĩ		3	5	U	3	2		1	
15	Throckmorton	. 5			ĭ		1	3	- 			
16	Titus	23			4	4	2	7	- 6			
17	Tom Green	293	5	20	72	47	35	54	36	21	3	
18 19	San Angelo Travis	229 1,051	4	19 70	51 329	33 158	31 140	44 149	32 134	13 57	2	
20	Austin	961	4	69	307	141	123	137	120	50 50	(4	
21	Trinity	25		3	307	6	7	3	2	1	i . 'i	
22	Tyler	33		2	ğ	8	2	5	5	î	1	
23	Upshur	32		2	7	4	4	5	3	5	2	
24	Upton	86		1	32	22	11	10	8	2		
25 26	Uvalde Val Verde	46 110	4	4 10	18 27	$\frac{7}{21}$	8 13	2 16	4 14	1 5		
27	Van Zandt	68	4	10	32	9	10	10	4	3		
28	Victoria	200		15	55	33	28	36	26			
29	Walker	79	2	3	23	10	10	13	9	9		
30	Waller	21		3	9	3		5	1		ļ- -	
31 32	Ward Washington	41 101		2 16	10	14	1 14	7	6 3			
33	Webb	376	3	21	31 101	17 61	53	17 58	51		3	
34	Laredo	195		14	36	35	30	40	25	15		
35	Wharton	202	2	7	62	38		35	28	9		
36	Wheeler	39	1	1	7	11	3	7	6	3		
37 38	Wichita Falls	637 524	2	31 27	137 113	114 92	81 65	102 83	134 112		5	
39	Wilbarger	66	2	9	16	6	12	9	112	3	4	
40	Willacy	22		4	4	5	3	2	3	1		
41	Williamson	204		28	57	41	21	31	23	3		
42	Wilson	16		1	5	2	3	2	2			
43 44	Winkler Wise	84 17		2	29	20 5	10	6	12			
45	Wood	54		5	1 8	10	7	15				
46	Yoakum	2				1	1					
47	Young	82	3	6		12	18	13	9			
48	Zapata	10			6	3	₌		1			
49 50	Zavala Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	17 426	1 2	55 55	97	3 86	42	67	3 53	18	6	
51	Total Texas	55, 918	262	2, 744	16, 859	9, 736	6, 196	9, 245	8, 323	2, 154	380	1

UTAH-FORM 1040-A

_				<u> </u>								
1	Beaver	40		1	5	8	13		3			
2	Box Elder	74	1	6	21	14		11	- 8	5	2	
3	Cache	170		21	25	23	21	38 57	31	11		
4	Carbon	375	1	31	158	59	29	57	37	2	1	
5	Daggett						 -					
6	Davis	76		4	26	10	8	15	10	3		<u>-</u>
7	Duchesne	15	[6	2	3	1	1 1		1	1 1
8	Emery	15		1	7	1		5	1 1			
.9	Garfield											
10	Grand	21			9	1 4	4	3	1 10	<u>-</u>		
11	Iron	38		4	.8	11	5	5 3	10	2		
12 13	Juab	46		3	18	11	1 3	3	3	3		
	Kane	23		3	8		1		1 5			
14 15	Millard	10		3	3	1 0	9	1 1	3			
	Morgan	10			1 *	l i	2	1 1	i -			
16	Piute	4	1] -	2		l i	l <u>"</u>			

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

TEXAS-FORM 1040-Continued

	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·												
Total num-			1	Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				Line
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	No.
15 893 9	5 31 4	4 42 2	3 67	1 63	99	97	183	118	95	49	1 34	15	1 2 3
30 154	2 12	6 9	10	1 21	2 25	8 9	2 6 29	1 17	2 17	2 5			4
43 8	4 2	11 2	3	5	20 2 1	7	5 3		4		2		2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
109 79	35 13	16 8		15 6	12 14	8 10	4 8	3 7	8	2	5 1		8
2, 924 2, 829	211 205	279 269	214 206	267 260	280 267	318 299	512 496	318 313	$\frac{320}{312}$	106 104	78 77	21 21	10 11
528 72	40 27	70 6	42	56 1	67 8 3	59 7	104 12 7	48 4	18 2 6	15	5 1	4	12 13 14
31 21 25	5 2	5	1	1 1	4	5 2 6	7 3 4	8 1 1	<u>6</u>	1	3		15 15
640 562	69 59	67 57	60 56	74 64	66 55	$\begin{array}{c} 71 \\ 62 \end{array}$	106 89	48 45	38 35	22 21	13 13	6	17 18
1, 278 1, 228	67 62	121 114	121 116	140 133	140 135	158 150	206 200	119	118 115	42 42		9	19 20
47 37	8 2	9	6	5 5	5 3 7	8 7	3 .5	3	4		1		21 22 23
84 71 139	4 6 18	3 6 27	7 8 20	6 6	10	6 8 12	17 15	20 6 6	8 6 4	5	4		24
292 129	98 3	31 8	27 10	12 29 17	15 27 21	17 17	21 25 27	23 10	9	1 3	2	3	25 26 27
255 91	21 8	23	22 18	35 8	$\frac{32}{11}$	23 10	31 14	22	24	11 2	7	4	28 29
47 34	4 3	3 2 21	6 4	3	8	3 8	8 5	5 2 3 11	3 2		3		30 31
191 348 215	14 42 32	30 20	18 21 16	35 8 7 3 29 31 17	29 39 25	21 39 18	27 57	11 41 23	32	1 6	10	2	32 33 34
308 118	21	25 13	37 9	36 14	29 11	34 11	33 52 32	34 10	20 27 9	3 7 1	8 5 6	ì	35
1, 183 983	153 132	146 119	103 85	114 95	127 102	124 103	151 117	97 83	93 82	31 27	40 34	4 4	36 37 38
198 72	16 9	24 9	30 5	23 6	21 13	25 11	25 10	17 8	6	8	3		39 40
300 39 31	18 5 4	39 8 2	32 6 4	39 5 4	42 4 3	33 4 2	53 5 6	20 2 2	18 4	5	1		41 42 43
42 89	4 2	6 9	9	6 7	5 14	6 18	3 13	8 12	2 4	1			44 45
230	18	21	30	32	28	27	1 40	2 13	14	5	2		46 47
6 46 570	11 50	1 11 53	2 3 62	7 52	1 6 62	2 1 60	5 94	1 45	1 52	25	15		48 49 50
60, 228	4, 535	6, 134	5, 289	5, 718	6, 527	6, 491	9,926	5, 831	5, 523	2, 122	1, 744	388	51
50, 226	4 , 000	0, 104	5, 209	0, 110	0, 021	0, 431	9, 920	5, 551	0, 023	4, 122	1, 111	500	

UTAH-FORM 1040

31 131 212 149 1 51 16 21 5 8	3	41 9 2 10 1	31 18 4 6 1	19 13 1 7 3 2 7	177 300 13 4 1 2	19 15 	12 30 17 5 2 1 1 1 1 6	1 6 15 6 	5	1	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
51 57 10 16 13		8 4	8 3	7 8	6 10 1		6 5	4	2 2	2	 11 12 13
16 13 5	1 1	3 2	1	$\begin{array}{c c} & 1\\ & 1\\ 2 \end{array}$	1 1 1	5 2	1	2		 	 14 15 16

UTAH-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me cla	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	rs)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10
1 2 3 4	Rich Salt Lake Salt Lake City ¹ San Juan	4, 972 4, 566	6 5	2 245 212 1	1 1, 460 1, 273	703 656	581 551	908 860	2 824 779	223 208	19 19	3
5 6 7 8 9	Sanpete Sevier . Summit . Tooele . Uintah	36 45 91 94 50	i	4 4 11 3 7	8 9 35 28 13	10 7 17 25 12	2 3 3 10	5 7 13 9 4	6 7 12 15	1 6 3 4	1 <u>î</u>	
11 12 13	Utah	302 9 14 3		11 1 1 2	87 2	49 1 2	40 2 2 1	57 1 3	51 3 2	7 1 1	1	
14 15 16	Weber Ogden Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	1, 117 1, 089 177	4 4 1	60 57 21	298 290 30	161 158 33	178 177 18	223 217 26	158 151 38	33 33 10	2 2 	
17	Total Utah	7, 825	15	447	2, 266	1, 165	941	1, 409	1, 235	[315	28	4
		VEH	MON	T—FC	RM 1	1040-	A					
1 2 3	AddisonBennington	152 335	ī	2 1	54 160	22 60	23 27	21 40	26. 36	3 10		1
3 4 5 6 7	Caledonia Chittenden Burlington Essex	257 738 635 62	 	2 5 5 1	117 316 264 29	49 117 102 10	15 55 49 6	38 125 110	29 95 83 7	$\begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 24 \\ 22 \\ 1 \end{array}$	1	
8 9	Franklin Grand Isle Lamoille	328 12 43	î 	3 1	159 7 20	51 1 6	26 1 2. 4	62 2 10	23 1 4	3		
10 11 12 13 14	Orange Orleans Rutland Washington Windham	61 120 657 774 356		1 2 5 2	24 64 329 371 168	14 18 102 131 55	5 34 52 25	6 26 115 111 58	10 7 66 84 39	8 20 8	i	
15 16	Windsam Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	416 272	1 2	3 25	194 52	80 22	19 11	56 22	53 108	8 29	1	
17	Total Vermont	4, 583	6	53	2, 064	738	305	699	588	122	7	1
		v	IRGI!	VIA-I	ORM	1040)-A					
1 2 3 4	AccomacAlbemarleAlexandria (city)Alleghany	113 395 1, 335 547	2 3 3	9 32 43 32	25 105 436 188	15 46 202 93	20 51 171 67	21 73 258 94	20 67 181 62	1 18 40 11	i	
4 5 6 7 8	Amelia Amherst Appomattox Arlington	13 123 18 1, 224	2	1 3 23	38 5 283	$\begin{array}{c} 4 \\ 22 \\ 4 \\ 171 \end{array}$	3 18 1 128	24 24 281	$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 16 \\ 2 \\ 256 \end{array}$	4 1 76	4	
9 10 11 12	Augusta Bath Bedford Bland	509 65 94	3 1	33 11 10	180 18 32 2	80 11 17	60 5 7	71 11 11 2	57 6 13	22 2 3	3 1	
13 14 15 16	Botetourt Brunswick Buchanan Buckingham	46 35 11 17	1	3 2 3 1	16 11 1 6	9 10 2 6	6 4 2 2 12	3 6 2 1	9	1		
17 18 19 20	Campbell Lynchburg (city) Caroline	78 926 17 23	1	8 44 1 3	20 289 6 5	9 147 6 3	89 2	10 173 2 3	16 151	31	1 1	
21 22 23 24	Charles City	8 28 100 36	1	6 7 4	8 35	1 1 11 3	5 2 5 10 6	3 2 19	1 4 14	1 1 4 2		
25 26	Craig Culpeperties of 100,000 and over po	10 54		8	2	3 2 10	1 1	4 3 7	4 2 6	ì		

Cities of 100,000 and over population

UTAH-FORM 1040-Continued

													
Total num-	 i			Net in	come c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				Line
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1–1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7–10	1025	25 and over	No.
2, 196 2, 056 5	1 140 129	3 240 217	1 161 150 1	2 176 153	204 195	1 201 189	317 298	228 214	254 246	147 143	107 103	21 19	1 2 3 4
67 59 59	8 7 13	17 8 13	10 6 7 2	10 9	5 5 7	5 5 4	10 11 4	1 5 1	1 1 2	1	i		5 6 7
37 49 224 23	11 8 24 9	8 7 37 6	6 24 2	8 2 3 19	5 8 26 3	2 9 26	3 2 27 27	2 4 12 1	1 1 17	1 1 8	3	1	10 11
13 2 610 563 63	38 37 6	96 80 3	57 50 3	82 74 3	1 63 58 13	3 45 42	4 1 77 72 10	39 39 4	62 60 9	29 29 10	21 21 21 2	1 1	1 22 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 14 15 15
4, 192	334	603	386	405	431	384	558	340	386	204	138	23	17
· · · · · ·				,	VERM	ONT-	FORM	1040	·		·	!	
57 192 109 347 299 11 114	5 9 10 19 16	6 9 2 17 12 2 9	3 13 8 17 17 17	6 15 13 25 23 1 14	6 15 11 32 20 1 7	6 15 9 22 18 1 1	7 22 13 50 46 2 12	3 9 13 30 27 1 9	14 72 63	4 29 13 36 34 2	3 25 22	2 1	1 2 3 4 5 6
8 26 64 77 298 259 171 196 36	1 6 6 19 23 9 16 3	4 6 11 12 8 8	2 1 16 13 7 16 1	3 3 11 8 18 13 15 10	1 5 8 18 15 15 12	6 7 9 30 17 17 18 3	1 5 9 10 48 40 28 26 2	2 4 7 20 16 15 14	10 13 63 52 23	2 4 4 4 27 33 21 21 5	3 5 22	6 2 2 8	8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1, 965	130	96	106	156	147	173	275	146	360	214	136	26	17
					virg	NIA-l	FORM	1040					
100 414 358 265 10	18 35 10 9	17 36 35 43	17 34 33 33 4	12 35 31 33	13 34 43 30 1	11 37 47 29 3	6 68 51 37	1 38 30 14		21 21 24 8	23 11 11	4 2	1 2 3 4 5
29 13 325 359 49 117	12 23 5 6	3 29 37 10 18	20 20 35 5 14	34 38 2 11	2 2 32 46 6	2 1 46 29 4 14	7 2 45 56 4 23	39 34 3 6	30 5	2 17 11 2 6		2	1 2 3 4 4 5 5 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 22 24 25 26
5 39 35 14 14 47	4 1	1 4 2 3 2 2	2 3 4 2 2 7	11 6 3 5	3 6 1 3 65	3 6 3	4 5 1 1 5	6 1 3 2 8 85	1	3	2 2		12 13 14 15 16 17
703 40 19 14 20 63	21 4 3 3 6	49 7 2 5 4	$\begin{bmatrix} 7\\2\\ \dots \\1 \end{bmatrix}$	6 4 1	5 4 4	67 3 2 2 8 7	94 5 3	85 1 2 1 7 5	1 1	59 1	1 ī	1 1	18 19 20 21 22
63 48 7 74		6 2 2 11	!	8 5 1 8	8 5 3 14		7 8 1 8	5 4	l	3 2	ļ		23 24 25 26

VIRGINIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total num-		No	et incor	ne clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollars	s) .——-	
Line No.	County and city	ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	45	5-7	7–10
1	Cumberland	6 57		1 1	38 38	1	<u>î</u>	1 8				-
1 2 3	Dickenson Dinwiddie	55	2	7	13	8	4	10	9	2		
4	Petersburg (city)	415	3	21	139	64	46	83	49	12	1	
5	Elizabeth City Essex	773 23	3	2 8	178 8	143	98 4	154 5	138	29	2	
6 7 8	Fairfax	387	1	13	124	53	46	55	73	22		
8 9	Fairfax Fauquier	161	1	13	49	21	20	25	22 1	10		
10	Floyd Fluvanna	13		1	2	i	4	3	î	1		
11	Franklin	35		. 1	11	6 30	6	9 23	1 28	1		
12 13	Frederick Giles	174 49		17	52 7	12	14	10	28 7	10 4		
14	Gloucester	20		i	10	9	1 1	4	2			
15 16	Goochland Grayson	14 31		3	3 5	$\frac{2}{2}$	5 4	3 6	9	1	₁	
17	Greene- Greensville-	5	ĩ	1	1		î		2			
18 19	Greensville	49 120	1	9 13	11 22	9 22	4 11	8 25	6 16	1 10		
20 1	Halifax	106		9	40	8	9	14	22	4		
21	Henrico	194	1 14	7	63	29 1, 111	21 808	37	28 1.037	8 261		
$\frac{22}{23}$	Richmond 1 (city) Henry	7,060 126	14	328 5	2, 273 35	1, 111	18	1,217 24	1,037 20	201	11	
24 25	Highland	6			4	1	1					
25 26	Isle of Wight. James City	27 82		2 6	8 20	3 17	1 9	8 15	5 10	5	- -	
27	King and Queen	7		ĭ	4		1		1			
28	King George King William	34 51	1	4	7 17	8 5	7	6	3 10	2		
29 30	Lancaster	24		3	4	5	3	4	4	i		
31	Lee	49	1	3 2 9	17	4	8	9	5	3		
32 33	Loudoun Louisa	91 29	1	6	26 12	15 4	17	10	$\frac{11}{2}$	2		
34	Lunenburg	55		3	8 7	11	6	15	12			
35 36	Madison Mathews	21 25		4	5	3 5	1 4	6	6			
37	Mecklenburg	65		6	19	10		1 9	10	4		
38 39	Middlesex Montgomery	16 148		1 14	6 30	$\frac{1}{25}$	1 24	3 28	$\frac{3}{22}$	$\frac{1}{2}$	ī	2
40	Nansemond	195		16	47	29	23	33	42	5	-	
41 42	Nelson New Kent	45 8		8	15 3	4	1	6	5	4	1	
43	Norfolk.	90		8	35	12	1 12	15	8			
44 45	Norfolk 1 (city) Portsmouth (city)	3, 635 1, 249	10	130 44	1,077 454	590 259	434 130	696 238	561 103	133 20	4	
46	Northampton	63		5	14	10	13	8	12	ĩ		
47	Northumberland	11 155		4 14	3 32	$\frac{1}{34}$	18		1 22	3		
48 49	Nottoway Orange	62		5 2	16	15	7	8	7	4		
50	Page	66 6		2	20	13	6 2		12	2		
51 52	Patrick Pittsylvania	490		31	150	81	64		65	13	1	
53	Powhatan	7			3) 1	1	2			
54 55	Prince Edward Prince George	79 179		3 14	15 33	29	17	15 39	19 42	3 4		
56	Princess Anne	102		5	26	23	8	14	20	6		
57 58	Prince William Pulaski	139 112		12		27 14			23 19	2		
59	Rappahannock	5		1	1	2	1					
60	Richmond	13	3	8	2	3 39			28	3		
61 62	Roanoke	224 2, 257	2			322	245		325	64	3	
63	Roanoke (city)	160		6	38	36	24	19	1 29	7	1	
64 65	Rockingham Russell	211 32		18	54 8	36 4	40		27	1 6		1
66	Scott.	10		1	4	1	1	2	1			
67	Shenandoah	83 122		3 7	19 26				8		2	
68 69	SmythSouthampton	60		4		12 53	16	11	5	1	1	
70	Spotsylvania	233		14	67	53	24 2	33	31	9	1	
71 72	StaffordSurry.	11 6			4	1	1 1		2			
73	Sussex	32		2	13	1 4	5	5	3			

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

VIRGINIA-FORM 1040-Continued

otal				Net ir	come c	lasses (ii	n thousa	nds of	dollars)			
r of er of e- irns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2 –2.5	2.5-3	3–4	4–5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over
3 11	1		3	1	1		3	<u>1</u>	1			
45 415 228	1 3 27 18	4 47 24	8 43 25 3 22	6 43 24	4 62 27	2 31 25	9	2 33 21	4 39 23	21 10	3 13 3	2
11 226 156	7 14	16 9	3 22 16	15 15 10	28 17	1 23 13	54 28 2 48 24	1 33 5	23 3 22 18	8 10	4 16	4
3 14	1	1 5	1 5	1 2 3	1 4	2 6	1 6	i	4	1 2	1 3	
46 234 34	20 3 1	11 35 10	35 4	21 3 2	18 3	17 2 6	33 4 5	20	19 1	7 1 1	7 1 2	2
234 34 27 9	1 1 1	$\begin{array}{c} 6 \\ 1 \\ 2 \end{array}$	1 1	₁	1 3 2		<u>î</u>	3	2	<u>1</u>	<u>1</u>	3 2
$\frac{2}{62}$ 129	2	12 10	12 14	1 7 13	1 5 16	4 9 7	5 26	4 11	10 11	2 11	1 5	i
66 47 3, 632 152	161 3	7 7 306 13	7 12 317 13	326 11	335 19	300 16	5 452 27	2 4 353 17	14 9 481 11	3 2 281 10	1 6 254 6	66
4 34 60	2	1 7 6	2 12	1 4 9	5 4	2 4	1 3 3	4	1 4 6	1 3	2	
4 6 35		3 5	2	2	3	1	<u>1</u>	4	1 5	2 2	1	
15 30 146	4 8	2 2 19	2 13	3 3 10 2 5	1 2 19	2 3 2 4 10	4 7 24	1 3 12	2 12	2 8	1 11	
21 30 12		6 3 1	1 4	2 5 4	4 6	4 2	1 3 2	3	1 3	i	1	
14 99 15	3	1 6 4	10 4	4 2 10 1	2 14	1 16 2	4 17 3	12 1	1 5	3	1 3	
99 211 25	8 15 1	16 19 2	14 16 4	14 16 1	8 32 4	15 23	14 37 4	4 14	6 22 4	10	5	2
16 53 2, 080	1 5 139	5 9 226	206	1 7 206	2 8 231	1 6 185	2 7 262	1 1 177	1 5 230	1 2 111	<u>2</u> 85	22
499 138	28 35 4	69 27 2	59 21 2	60 11	14	79 11 4	64 4 1	24 4	24 5	10 3	12	1
20 70 54 45	28 35 4 5 4 3	5 4 7	59 21 2 2 2 2 3	1 7 8 2 2	3 13 7	9 4 5	16 7 10	$\begin{array}{c} 3\\2\\4\end{array}$	9 7 2	2 3 3	3	i
14 558	13		4 51	44	$\frac{2}{67}$	71	77	46	59 2	35	39	8
69 78 72 39 86	3 8 5	2 14 1	2 12 8 7 9 7	7 1 10	8 11 9	11 3 7	10 10 14	4 3 6	6 8 7	2 7 5	4 5 1	
39 86 14	1	6 6 2	9 7 2	4 11 1	5 8 1	13	5 16 2	6 3 9	3 5 1	1 2	3	
15 108 909	1 6 57	1 11 104	1 13 75	2	4	10 78	1 16 130	10 86	2 8 122	1 3	3 37	1 8
154 205 24	7 2 1 6 57 9 15	18 25 2	1 13 75 20 22 3	11 75 18 21 3	16 79 22 22	15 18 3	21 35 3	16 15	10 19 3	58 2 9 2	3 4	
9 56 65	1 4 7	2 10 5	1 7 6	10 6	3 2 5 7	1 4 7	1 6 11	4	3 2 7	2 2 2	2 1	1
59 145	5 14	6 12	9	6 9	1 12	5 17	7 13	5 4 11	5 27	5 9	6 8	4
1 15 37	2 5	4 6	2	2 4	3	$\frac{1}{2}$	1 	<u>2</u>	4	1	1 4	

VIRGINIA-FORM 1040-A-Continued

		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	Tazewell Warren Warwick Newport News (city) Washington Westmoreland Wise Wythe York Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	201 29 216 1, 057 257 14 238 60 36 424	2	7 2 5 23 12 1 12 4 1 27	69 12 39 364 62 6 57 18 16	24 3 18 193 33 2 38 13 12 73	25 4 15 134 40 1 29 10 3	29 69 187 53 1 45 5	25 3 62 131 44 3 43 6 3 95	11 8 25 11 		
11	Total Virginia	_29, 120	71	1, 367	8, 862	4, 670	3, 410	5, 303	4, 344	1, 033	57	3

WASHINGTON-FORM 1040-A

1 2 3 4 4 5 6 6 7 8 9 10 111 12 13 14 15 16 17 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 22 23 24 29 30 31 32 22 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32 32	Adams Asotin Benton Chelan Clallam Clark Columbia Cowlitz Douglas Ferry Franklin Garĥeld Grant Grays Harbor Island Jefferson King Seattle I Kitsap Kittitas Klickitat Lewis Lincoln Mason Okanogan Pacific Perde Tacoma I San Juan Skagit Skamania	71 222 387 271 384 200 418 18 16 170 418 16 170 15, 164 14, 361 15, 164 14, 361 17, 82 217 82 217 82 22 123 3 90 88 88 83 83 83 83 84 11 16 16 17 82 18 18 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19	3 6 	3 3 2 2 211 113 3 2 2 2 2 1 1 5 5 1 8 8 1 1 6 6 5 5 8 0 5 3 9 1 9 5 5 5 5 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	177 6 133 1488 95 1544 8 181 2 2 2 199 2000 5 5 348 362 74 14 14 1, 264 11, 264 11, 264 11, 277 771	155 66 66 54 49 49 66 6 11 199 2. 6833 2. 5644 2388 39 100 46 18 15 5 238 376 6 22 22 22 22 238 22 238 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24 24	2 22	13 13 16 66 72 45 56 60 2 2 77 77 19 2 2, 181 188 27 77 7 24 48 8 8 16 13 15 15 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 17 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18 18	99 5 6 6 422 35 59 3 32 2 2 2 1 1 21 21 21 1,886 4 4 9 30 15 15 15 15 4 5 379 306 6 3144	2 	2 2 2 2 2 2 1 1 766 733 5 1 1 2 2 2 1 1 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
	Island			1			1		•			
	Jefferson			590			1 476			481	76	
						2, 564	1, 401		1, 886			i
19	Kitsap	1, 081	2	19	362	238	140	188	101		5	
	Kittitas		3								1	
	Lewis		i								2	
23	Lincoln		1	5			7			7	2	
	Mason			2			12				1 2	
26			i							1		
27	Pend Oreille	36			14							
28	Pierce											
	San Juan		4	90	1, 044	3/0	223		300	10	12	
				12	57	25	22					
32	Skamania	19			7	2					1	
33	Snohomish	869	2	32	371	137	64		114		2	
34 35	Everett	549 3, 759	1 10	20 129	224 1, 409	83 560	40 405	82 638	85 484	13 110	11	3
36	Spokane 1	3, 739	10	129	1, 345	532		602		99	111	3
37	Stevens	43		4	12	11	6	6	3	i		
38	Thurston	382	2	14	149	64	28	51	55		2	
39	Wahkiakum	25			11	4	1	_3	_5			
40	Walla Walla	404	1	23	136	60		78	55 79	10 11	2	
41 42	Whatcom Bellingham	519 369	3 2	17 8	185 126	95 73		81 62			9	
43	Whitman	200		16	58	35		30				
44	Yakima	713		35	234	116		111	114			
45	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	1094	26	123	198	156		209	172	48	9	
46	Total Washington	30, 940	103	1, 268	11, 407	5, 251	3, 045	4, 746	4, 019	944	152	5

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

VIRGINIA-FORM 1040-Continued

Total num-				Net in	come cl	asses (ii	n thousa	nds of d	lollars)				
ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No.
142	10	23	7	12	10	17	14	13	15	11	9	1	-
42	10 2	6	2	12 9 3 52 18	5	6	6	3	3				
47	. 7	5		3	4		4	4	3	2	1		
380	34 16 2	60	43	52	36 26	34 20	37	22	31 11 2 6	22	7	2	
172	16	18	14 2		26	20	24 3	15	11	7	3		
18	2	10	13	8 10	12	2		Z	2	1	<u>-</u>		
107	9	16	10	10	9	6 5	16 13	8	3	11	Z		
72 31	1	10 5	10	10	9	2	13	4	٥	Đ	1		
198	11	15	32	4	8	12	31	21	35	11	8	10]
16, 533	977	1, 767	1,715	1, 521	1, 764	1, 583	2, 223	1, 398	1,748	923	741	173	1

WASHINGTON-FORM 1040

	1												
164	1 4	13	18	27	15	23	27	18	11	4	4	1	l
28	87 15 7	7	10	5	15 5	23 3	3	18 2 8 58 14	1		*		
85	7	11	12	10	10	9	3 13 84	8	5				1
718	87	101	73	89	102	69	84	58	35	11	9		i
181	15	30 25	19 27	23	25 32	21	21	14	9	4			
188	7	25	27	19	32	21	21 23 10 38 12	11	14	6	3		Ì
100	13	13	10	16	9	19 28	10	3 18	6	1			
250	15	39	36	22	25	28	38	18	$\begin{array}{c} 24 \\ 2 \end{array}$	3	2		
117	17 2 5 6 5 40	17	14	15 1	9 25 15 2 12 37	16	12	6	. 2	3			
16	2	5 27 12 110	1	1	2	2	3						1
105	5	5	17	13	12	18	13	6	11	2	3		1
215	6	27	26	43	37	15	36	13	11	1			1
47	5	12	5	8	4	7	5			1			1
164 28 85 718 181 188 100 250 117 16 105 215 47 617	40	110	68	13 43 8 72 2	100	56	76	32	42	13	7	1	1
21	3	7	3	2	1	1	2	1			1		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
57	7	9	17		4	7	4	4	5				1
9, 240 8, 666 365	578 533 15	1, 245 1, 130 46	957 886 46	900	946	893 835 44	1, 358 1, 291 63	892	895	315	206	55	1
8,666	533	1, 130	886	842 38	866	835	1, 291	859 28	871 18	305	195	53	1
365	15	46	46	38	64	44	63	28	18	1		2	1
209 55	10	31	34	17	26	19	33	20	15	4			2
55	2 27	.7	6 58	5 34 21 3 19	26 5 31 32	14	33 10 23 42 17 23 15	.3	15 3 7				2
290 203 84 152 132 54 1,899 1,624	27	$\frac{67}{22}$	24	01	31	21 27 8	49	18 19	10	$\frac{2}{1}$	2		2
203	4 1	10	19	21	9	41	17	10	10 7 7 2	7			2
150	14	27	12 23 21	10	19	15	17	10	- 4	2			2
192	14 10	21	23	91	18 20	14	15	4 7	9	í			2
54	10	17	12	21 8 219	6	14 2	10	3	-	$\frac{1}{2}$	1		2
1 800	ากจึ	243	12 211	219	193	$22\tilde{0}$	1 254	174	177	56	41	2	2
1 624	103	190	177	185	156	186	219	154	160	53	40	2	- <u>5</u>
28	109 93 5	7	2	2	3	1	-1	3	169 3 8 2	1	10	-	3
292	19	60	51	26	32	25	47	3 23	8	î			3
20	1 37	5	2 66	2	2	1	i	4 39	2				3
586	37	91	66	72	58	76	75	39	44	12	9	7	3
293	14	36	21	32	29	45	37	26	28	11	9	5	3
2, 363	107	250	220	185 2 26 2 72 72 32 257	32 58 29 288 263	276	402	241	44 28 204	60	46	12	3
586 293 2, 363 2, 176	101	224	198 12	237 9	263	254	1 75 37 402 365	230 5	195	53	44	12	3
74)	7	11	12	9	10	7	10	5	2		1		3
296	10	29 2 96	32	36 3 83	44	3 3	43	30	20	12	7		3
25		2	5 73	3	3	3	5 101	3	1				3
717	52 24 15	96	73	83	111	84	101	46	43	17	11		4
473	24	681	50	31	49	56	90 71	40	47	10		1	4
342	15	46	32	20	30	43	71	33	39	7	6		4
571	30	62	108	16	85 139	89	102 146	44 80	39 26 67	9			4
1,060	105	140	109	112	139	101	146	80	67	39	13	9	4
25 717 473 342 571 1, 060 295	22	27	30	27	41	21	40	35	28	10	11	3	4
		ļ		j)	}	j	i			'		
99.963	1 400	0.012	0 710	0.000	0.610	0 207	3, 272	1, 965	1, 812	611	200		4
22, 392	1, 426	3, 015	2, 510	2, 326	2, 613	2, 365	3, 2/2	1, 905	1, 812	911	385	92	4

WEST VIRGINIA-FORM 1040-A

	County and city	Total Net income classes (in thousands of dollars)										
Line No		ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10
1	Barbour	53		4	22	6	5	11	3	2		
2 3	Berkeley	235		16 12	79 53	41 21	25 10	38 24	34	2		
3 1	Boone Braxton	133 35		1	7	3	9	12	12	1		
4 5	Brooke	390	1	21	186	57	35	54	29	5	2	
6	Cabell	1, 724	2	28 28	489 469	270 263	164 159	341	351	76	3	
7 8	Huntington Calhoun	1, 681 20	2	28	409	203	109	335	346	76	3	
9	Clay	20			3	4		3	10			
10	Doddridge	33		6	13	3	4	3	4			
11 12	FayetteGilmer	790 18	1	30 1	317	137	50 4	109	121	23	2	
13	Grant	8		î	ĭ	3	$\hat{2}$	ī				
14	Greenbrier	213	1	14	66	35	21	30	35	9	2	
15	Hampshire Hancock	18 774		29	450	101	3 39	2 75	66	2 11	3	
16 17	Hardy	20		5	5	4	1	1	3	1		
18	Harrison	1, 168	1	55	434	201	93	190	156	35	3	
19 20	Clarksburg Jackson	910 14	1	36 1	311	165	82 3	151	135	27	2	
21	Jefferson	80	1	6	27	11	9	8	17		ī	
22	Kanawha	3, 472	10		1,005	610	368	606	583	167	10	1
23 24	Charleston Lewis	2,608 204	10	86 15	718 58	471 38	293 21	452 37	436 32	134 3	7	1
24 25	Lincoln	204		13	6	4	4	°í	4	3	1	
26	Logan	552		30	208	75	52	83	85	17	2	
27	McDowell	751	2	31 72	288 506	122 176	61 90	110 197	114 130	25 23		
28 29	Marion Marshall	1, 197 265	2	25	114	38	15	46	20	7	¹	
30	Mason	95	1	5	23	22	10	21	7	5	1	
31	Mercer	1,031	1	31 7	263	161	86	268	189	31	1	
32 33	Mineral Mingo	164 286		6	76 92	26 48	23	18 51	12 54	$1\frac{1}{2}$		
34	Monongalia	375		12	154	73	26	62	40	8		
35	Monroe	78 33		1 2	40 11	19		5	5 8	2		
36 37	Morgan Nicholas	67		2	22	10	5 7	13	10	3		
38	Ohio.	2, 124	2		885	382	183	273	242	52		
39 40	Wheeling Pendleton	1,995	2	91	828	370	166	258	226 2	51	3	
41	Pleasants	40		ī	18	5	5	4	5	1	1	
42	Pocahontas	28			6	9		6	6			
43 44	Preston Putnam	54 31	1	2	21 16	9		9	3			}
45	Raleigh	729	2	32	279	103	71	115	97	26	4	
46	Randolph	178	3	6	57 15	31		33 11	23	5	1	
47 48	Ritchie Roane	50 55		1	18			119	4/7	1 1		
49	Summers	264	2	18	62	42	46	52	42			
50	Taylor	247	1		76				23	3		
51 52	Tucker	71 92		2 5	37			11 13	16	1 1		
53	Upshur	65	7	13	15	7	8	5	8	2		
54	Wayne	72		3 2	24				7	. 8	i	
55 56	Webster Wetzel	55 148		9	56				10) <u>a</u>	1	
57	Wirt	. 4	1	1	1 3	1		1				
58	Wood	1,005	2	44								
59 60	Parkersburg Wyoming	. 967 118		41	385					28		
61	Residents of other States	534		14						1		i
	and nonresident aliens.	İ		1			1	1		i	1	
62	Total. West Vir-	20, 307	42	855	7, 384	3, 354	1,872	3, 313	2, 818	618	49	2
62	1	20, 307	42	855	7, 384	3, 354	1,872	3, 313	2,818	618	3	49

counties and by cities of 25,000 and over population, showing the number of classes—Continued

WEST VIRGINIA-FORM 1040

Total				Net i	ncome c	lasses (i	n thous	ands of	dollars)				
er of re- urns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5–7	7-10	10-25	25 and over]
35 161 56	3 19 2	4 14 5	7 11 5	4 17 7	1 15 5	5 16 6	5 25 10	2 14 1	4 16 8	6 5	7 2	i	-
16 179 961 932 20	12 50 47 2	5 24 75 75	73 71	19 25 79 75 1	2 15 86 79 1	6 2 17 107 104 2	3 22 145 140 6	14 93 92 2	1 10 129 126	9 57 57	52 51	1 15 15	
15 36 302 17	1 3 11	$\begin{array}{c} 1 \\ 3 \\ 32 \\ 2 \end{array}$	6 3 7 19 3	6 27 3	2 4 35 4	2 3 23 1	3 3 51 1	2 3 28	4 34 2	25	14	3	
11 154 25 236	1 15 3 12 1	22 1 39	1 11 2 34	9 2 25 2	1768	2 16 2 25	3 23 5 25	10 10 3 7	1 16 17	<u>ī</u> ī	1 4 9	1 4	
586 471 29 94	46 38 4 7	67 53 3 5	53 36 3 16	49 36 2 8	65 52 3 10	63 46 3 6	71 57 6 12	47 43 2 8	59 48 2 14	31 28 7	32 31 1 1	3 3	
1, 756 1, 517 124 28 247	87 76 3 1 8	190 162 14 2 21	127 110 21 1 22	127 109 21 2 12	143 116 13 5 34	148 122 17 1 26	275 236 8 3 37	$158 \\ 139 \\ 10 \\ 3 \\ 27$	216 184 8 6 37	129 114 4 3 13	131 124 5 1 7	25 25 3	
320 587 193 49 454	20 47 12 6 33	21 88 25 3 40	19 67 20 5 41	32 43 25 5 40	32 64 29 6 49	29 56 18 5 39	55 76 25 8 67	33 45 13 1 38	43 54 14 4 43	22 32 6 4 30	13 15 6 2 29	5	
81 167 322 17	7 16 22 1 7	11 17 37	13 16 32 2 3	10 17 30 2	8 13 31 2	10 27 33 3	9 23 44	5 15 36 1	6 7 25	1 8 19	1 8 13 1		
22 33 1,819 1,733	116 110	2 3 199 186	3 175 167 2	2 1 161 153 1	2 3 172 154	5 157 152 1	3 2 5 256 245	1 3 119 115	2 3 184 181	1 1 120 114	2 131 127	29 29	
37 27 54 25 302	3 2 4 2	7 3 13	1 3 5 3	8 3 7 3 20	6 2 10 5 25	4 5 5 3 32	4 7 2 54	1 2 2 2 29	1 1 37	1 1 1 28	2 2 3 19	3	
114 78 72 70 100	18 13 5 8	14 8 11 12	9 8 7 5	10 13 6 14 7	14 7 13 4 7	16 5 8 3 11	16 14 9 9	10 10 4 8 6	10 7 4 5	28 1 1	1 1 1 1		
23 98 63 29 24 97	13 5 7 5 2	15 3 16 14 5	16 5 8 3 5	3 9 6 4	2 9 6	9 9 4	16 9 2 1	6 7 3	7 3	6	3	2	
611 593	4 5 35 34	3 8 61 58	3 11 1 77 72	1 15 46 46	15 1 73 70	60 59	14 1 91 88	5 7 49 48	2 15 57 56	32 32	26 26	4	
41 158	7 3	5 12	20	4 11	3 19	15	26	5 14	16	9	10	3	
1, 193	733	1, 215	1, 055	988	1, 133	1, 077	1, 615	916	1, 154	638	566	103	

Individual income tax returns for 1934, Forms 1040-A, and 1040, classified by returns by net income

WISCONSIN-FORM 1040-A

		Total		Ne	t incor	ne clas	ses (in	thousa	nds of	dollar	s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7–10
	Adams	51					14		5			
1 2	Ashland	246	3	49	94	35	26	29	10			
3 4	BarronBayfield	122 69	1	20 9	41 17	20 16	14 11	18	5 9	3		
5	Brown	1, 384	7	140	516	217	151	186	121	40	6	
6 7	Green Bay Buffalo	1, 194 70	5	105 13	441 28	186 11	138	171	105	37	6	
8	Burnett	19		6	7	6						
9 10	Calumet Chippewa	121 253	3	28 55	33 78	22 48	14 32	10 19	8 12	$\frac{3}{7}$		
11	Clark	102.	i)	32	33	17	8	4	6	2		
12 13	Columbia Crawford	270 74	3	57 16	87 29	41 12	38 8	30 5	14			
14	Dane	2, 570	58	333	859	415	286	306	$\frac{3}{231}$	69	12	i
15 16	Madison Dodge	2, 282 488	52 11	256 122	775 145	371 81	255 59	284 39	215 24	62 3	11 4	1
17	Door	89	3	19	28	11	11	8	7	2		
18 19	DouglasSuperior	842 684	5 4	51 43	345 281	159	94 68	98 82	68	21	1	
20	Dunn	120	5	33	32	131 21	10	10	56 7	18 2	1	
21 22 23	Eau Claire	692 625	4	76 70	281 256	93	71 61	95 85	55 49	15 12	2 2	
23	Eau Claire	13	l I	5	200	86 3	4	00:	49	1.2		
24 25	Fond du Lac Fond du Lac	933 729		149 109	341 288	154	111	104	54 41	10	3	{
26	Forest	38	1	9	14	111	81 4	83 5	1			
27 28	Grant	187 227	2 5	45 50	63 80	32	19	19	5	1 2	1	
29	Green Lake	93	1	21	33	32 15	28 8	13 7	17 8	2		
30 31	Iowa	70		27 9	16 27	10	7	4	47	1		
32	Iron Jackson	63 56		20	16	11 8	2 6	5 3	3	1	1	
33 34	Jefferson	470 88	15	103 17	143 21	83 19	57 16	36 8	26 6	6	1	
35	Kenosha	1,090	. 5	114	464	173	107	119	82		2	
36 37	Kenosha Kewaunee	1, 047 92	4	107 21	445 15	167 26	103 10	114 8	81 6	24 4	2	
38	La Crosse	980	9	128	351	146	126	128	80	11	î	
39 40	La Crosse Lafayette	926 56		114 20	328 13	138	123 10	126	77	10	1	
41	Langlade	195	5	30	58	39	33	17	13			
42 43	Lincoln Manitowoc	161 716	3	37 100	56 249	30 122	16 89	13 81	4 57	17		
44	Marathon	633		69	237	101	53	78	70	20		
45 46	Marinette Marquette	338	1	63 12	115 11	46	39	28 2	37	8	1	
47 48	Milwaukee	23, 771	127	2, 595	9, 167	4, 191 3, 715	2, 577	2, 514	1, 991	550		1
49	Milwaukee 1 West Allis	21, 056 641		2, 330 66	8, 368 258	3, 715	2, 254 54	2, 140 69	1,656 41	440 14		
50 51	Monroe	173	4	45	55	31	13	13	12			
52	Oconto Oneida	110 267		25 51	32 85	22 46	15 34	6 22	12	10		
53 54	Outagamie	1, 194		157	432	177	126	130	121	32	2	1
55	AppletonOzaukee	816 273	5	86 64	281 97	129 53	91	98 19	98 13			
56 57	Pepin	36		9	11	9	1	2	4			
58	Pierce Polk	61 59	1 2	19 12	19 19	8 7	11 6	3 7	$\frac{1}{3}$	3		
59	Portage	478		62	172	71	57	56	42	14	2	
60 61	PriceRacine	1, 925	15	24 194	31 819	18 309	14 192	184	155	49	8	
62	Racine	1,701	. 10	147	727	281	171			47	1 4	
63 64	Richland Rock	1, 275	8	12 197		11 189	141	139	121	28		
65	Rusk	58	3 1	9	18	8	15	4	3			
66 67	St. Croix	168 291	2			31 55	15 26	12 25	14			
68 69	Sawyer	44	1	10	13	10	5	4	1			
70	Shawano	1,011				19 166	12 107					
71	Sheboygan	781		144		136	83				اء	

¹ Cities of 100,000 and over population.

counties and by cities of 25,000 and over population, showing the number of classes—Continued

WISCONSIN-FORM 1040

otal				Net ii	ncome cl	asses (in	thousa	nds of o	iollars)				
er of re- urns	Under 0	0–1	1-1.5	1.5–2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4–5	5-7	7–10	10-25	25 and over	L N
35 253	2 21	12 56	9 54	4 36	3 17	2 16	27	2 12	1 6	6	 ₁	i	
233	18	63	38	32	26	16	23	6	7	2	2		
66 996	5 64	27 150	7 113	8 115	8 112	5 97	$^{3}_{119}$	56	2 65	57	1 45	3	
813 112	46 10	117 33	88 20	97 20	89 12	84 8	96 4	48 2	56 3	49	40	3	
45	6	9	$\frac{13}{22}$	9 19	5 13	9	3 8	2	8	2 6	2		
128 263	39	55	41	25	25	22	20	16	12	3	4	1	
198 365	15 32	57 90	36 53	28 51	16 32	18 28	12 34	8 14	4 13	13	1 4	1	
84 2, 166	3 157	18 389	15 314	14 251	10 202	10 195	8 214	$\frac{4}{129}$	1 154	78	1 77	6	
1,760	129	269	241	178	163	170	193	117	144	74	76	6	
614 141	49 15	146 35	106 19	83 16	63 19	46 13	53 12	20 5	27 5	8	11 1	$\frac{2}{2}$	
$\frac{577}{521}$	30 27	$\frac{123}{106}$	98 88	84 76	55 52	49 45	54 50	31 30	33 28	13 12	7 7		
160	13	49	25	17	18	7	11	6	6	5 23	3		
571 519	46 43	88 71	77 68	66 60	72 65	40 36	60° 55°	39 39	43 43	23 22	14 14	3 3	
23 838	4 64	$\frac{2}{158}$	4 115	3 106	88 88	1 69	3 81	1 45	52	1 29	28	3	
571	54	98	69	71	55	49	59	33	34	24	22	3	
$\frac{50}{320}$	2 30	15 86	4 53	9 33	29	6 26	29 29	3 12	2 8	7	6	1	
317 176	15 18	75 33	57 33	· 46	37 11	$\frac{22}{13}$	30 15	12 16	10 12	8	4 4	1	
124	18 13	35 22	18 21	23 11	10	9 7	11	3 2	2 3	ž			
87 110	7 11	30	20	15	6	8	9	5	5		1		
576 91	49 5	141 20	86 20	61 12	59 13	59 6	55 8	17 5	29 2	7	13		
954 842	78 64	$\frac{202}{171}$	133 111	118 104	96 87	61 57	92 84	45 41	62 59	33 32	28 26	6 6	
102	13	16	18	12	10	8 87	10	6	7	1	1	5	
901 798	46 40	180 151	136 113	108 92	94 87	87 78 7	65 62	54 47	71 69	36 36	19 18	5 5	
100 197	12 15	30 40	16 39	13 19	9 22	7 24	8 20	4 6	1.	3	<u>-</u>		
247	24	71	36 97	29 100	27 78	8 48	31 66	4 48	10	6 39	1.		
740 612	47 52	139 104	78	52	63	49	66	41	58 53	28	10 23	10 3	
296 36	13	59 11	39 3	34 7	37 5	$\frac{27}{1}$	30 4	12 1	18	13	13	1	
6, 067 4, 228	1, 202 1, 089	3, 022 2, 697	2, 196 1, 980	1, 764 1, 568	1, 495 1, 301	1, 156 1, 018	1, 560 1, 363	983 840	1, 173 999	723 659	642 573	151 141	
337	34	92	55	39	36	30	18	16	12	2 2	3		
$\frac{219}{125}$	29 10	42 40	39 22	33 14	23 17	16 7	14 9	14 4	6		1		
242 927	25 54	58 144	45 136	$\frac{33}{117}$	24 80	11 78	16 111	8 53	11 82	8 40	3 28	4	
694 273	39 23	91 56	103 38	79 32	53 38	56 19	86 22	45 12	74 15	38 5	26 10	4 3	
58 124	2	17	7	13	3 17	4	8 7	1	2	1			
$\frac{124}{146}$	8 11	31 41	35 35	10 20	9	6 10	10	4	3 6	2	1		
$\frac{299}{154}$	23 17	55 33	40 21	42 27	28 16	21 10	27 3	16 7	18 14	19 3	8	2	
1,527	124	269	197	166	142	149	140	95	127	61	45	12	
1, 302 98	105 6	210 26	165 13	139 8	120 7	128 18	124 13	83 2	115 3	57 1	44 1	12	
1, 170 80	86 7	236 11	154 15	145 14	125 16	88	135 7	71 5	65 1	34 1	24	7	
198	15	55	32	25	22	13	16	11	4	3	2	1	ĺ
356 54	22 5	80 17	71 12	$_{2}^{50}$	38 6	23 2	32 6	11 2	15 1	9	4	1	
182 1, 058	19 65	42 226	32 144	29 139	16 116	17 79	19 90	3 57	5 57	33	34	18	
825	52	183	110	104	88	55	74	49	46	23	25	16	l

Individual income tax returns for 1934, Forms 1040-A, and 1040, classified by returns by net income

WISCONSIN-FORM 1040-A-Continued

ļ		Total		N	et inco	me clas	sses (in	thous	ands o	f dollar	:s)	
Line No.	County and city	num- ber of re- turns	Un- der 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5-3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10
	Taylor	51		8	16		4	10	3	,		
2	Taylor Trempealeau	79	1	20	21	23	8	3	3			
3	Vernon	87	4	$\tilde{18}$	32	- 9	11	9	3	1		
4	Vilas	58	1	11	23	8	8	i	5	ï		
5	Walworth	365	4	84	119	60		35	17	1	1	
6	Washburn	76	1	10	15	16		10.	6	1	1	
7	Washington	310		66	118	34		27	19	7	2	-
8	Waukesha	889	15	166	287	144	104	75	80	18		
9	Waupaca	213	1	59	45	50	25	14	13	6		
10	Waushara	40	1	10	11	5	4	5	4			
11	Winnebago	1,640	10	291	548	262	206		115		1	1
12	Oshkosh	864	6	168	275	136	118	82	54	25		
13	Wood	443	1	85		85	40	40	32	12		
14	Residents of other States and nonresident aliens.	558	5	71	148	114	82	66	54	18		
15	Total Wisconsin	50, 373	411	6, 857	18, 463	8, 549	5, 580	5, 256	4, 009	1, 119	125	4

WYOMING-FORM 1040-A

										,		
1	Albany	263	2	8	80	44	42	49	37		1	1 1
2	Big Horn	88		2	19	18		16	19	3		
3	Campbell	22		_	5	6		6	ĩ	1		
4	Carbon	303	3	10	95	56	$3\hat{4}$	64	38	3		
5	Converse	69		4	21	10		12	8	5	1	
6	Crook	27		*	22	10	2	1~	2			
7	Fremont	94	3	8	25	21	12	11	13	1		
8	Goshen	31		٠	6	10		9	3	2		
9	Hot Springs	78	1	1	42	7	Ĝ	10	9	5		
10	Johnson	26	1	3	9	i	3	7	3	_		
11	Laramie	938		20	314	159		200		16	2	[
12		808		17	279	137	92	164	108			[
13	CheyenneLincoln.	124	1	5	62	19		111	15			
14	Natrona	791	3	14	279	187		114			2	
15	Niobrara	14		1.2	6	101	1	114	2	21	-	
16	Park	88		2	35	13		9	14			
17	Platta	26		3	33	6	19	5	3	1 2		
	Platte	318		13		62	30	65		2		
18	Sheridan			13	94	62	30	60	45 2	9		
19	Sublette	3	3			86				12		
20	Sweetwater	651	ં	29	357	80		63	61	12		
21	Teton	15			3	. 5	.1	2	4.	<u>-</u>		
22	Uinta	81		4	13	14	15	24	9	2		
23	Washakie	27			8	4	2	2	11			
24	Weston	28	1	3	6	4		6	7	1		
25	Yellowstone National.	11			1	3	1	4	2			
	Park.											
26	Residents of other States.	90		6	24	12	8	20	14	5	1	
	and nonresident aliens.	i i)				ł	(
				l								
27	Total Wyoming	4, 206	18	135	1, 529	753	417	710	543	94	7	
		,			,							

counties and by cities of 25,000 and over population, showing the number of classes—Continued

WISCONSIN-FORM 1040-Continued

Total				Net in	ncome c	lasses (ii	n thousa	inds of o	iollars)				
num- ber of re- turns	Under 0	0-1	1-1.5	1.5-2	2-2.5	2.5–3	3-4	4-5	5-7	7-10	10-25	25 and over	Lin No
64	3	16	12	9	6	4	5	3	5	1			_
167	20 10	59	12 22 25	21	15	10	14 15		1!				
167	10	53	25	25	15	14	15	5 4 2	2 5	2	2		
90	10 59 6	16	10	11	14 55	10	10	2	5	2			
535	59	132		75	55	40	43	26	14	5	8	1	
64	6	17	11	9	9	4	4	3		1			
360	22	85		55	28	23 67	27	15	22	8	8	2	
868	22 76 38 8	170		94	80 34 8	67	93 22	44	45	45	31	7	ļ
334	38	96		45	34	17	22	9	11				1
73	8	14	10	13	8	6	4	1	3	2	3	1	
1, 377	70 47 35	221	199	169	177	59	171	85	89	67 37	50 26	20	
805	47	150		94	79	59	77	58	57	37	26	2	
486	351	70		62	47	40	49	32	49	21	19	1	l
274	27	42	30	29	23	20	27	21	31	14	9	1	
42, 120	3, 185	8, 392	6, 070	5, 004	4, 167	3, 171	4, 035	2, 311	2, 687	1, 553	1, 266	279	

WYOMING-FORM 1040

215	1													
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	215	19	31	23	26	30	27	31	8	10	8	2		1
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	103	4)	14	7	17	11	10	19	8	6	7			2
135	87	18	7	11	.7	13	7	13	3	6		2		3
135	218	28	28	19	25	24	21	31	17	14	10	1		4
135	84	20	15	5	6	13		4	7	5	1	2	1	5
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	51	9	9	5	- 6	6	4	. 7	3	2				6
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	135	12	28	13	12	21	9	21	12	5	4			7
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	1 73	4	12	8	6	14	7	. 8	8	8	1	1		- 8
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	54	4	4	[7]	6	. 6	3	15	4	3	2			- 9
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	193	20	12	30	50	12	F9	-4	8	1.5	2			10
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	409	9.2	31	90	90	04	00	74	43	40	26		1	11
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	422	30	41	29	40	10	40	04	34			14	1	12
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	483	14	15	10	10 51		53	60	1 44		25	15		13
$ \begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	93	10	4.0		31	***	90	1 03	44			10		14
49 16 6 3 5 3 5 2 2 4 3 19 229 22 31 23 25 27 30 30 20 13 6 2 20 30 3 3 2 7 5 3 3 2 1 1 21 56 9 5 8 7 7 7 9 1 2 1 22 60 11 7 5 3 3 9 9 6 5 2 23 51 5 6 4 11 7 5 10 3 24	128	10	10	15	11	15	15	97	11		1			10
49 16 6 3 5 3 5 2 2 4 3 19 229 22 31 23 25 27 30 30 20 13 6 2 20 30 3 3 2 7 5 3 3 2 1 1 21 56 9 5 8 7 7 7 9 1 2 1 22 60 11 7 5 3 3 9 9 6 5 2 23 51 5 6 4 11 7 5 10 3 24	45	7	5	8	5	3	5	- 6	1	1	1	-		17
49 16 6 3 5 3 5 2 2 4 3 19 229 22 31 23 25 27 30 30 20 13 6 2 20 30 3 3 2 7 5 3 3 2 1 1 21 56 9 5 8 7 7 7 9 1 2 1 22 60 11 7 5 3 3 9 9 6 5 2 23 51 5 6 4 11 7 5 10 3 24	342	29	39	34	42	30	40	46	18	39	18	5	9	18
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	49	16	6	1 3	- 5	3	5	ž	2	4	1 3		-	19
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	229	22	31	23	25	27	30	30	20	13	6	2		20
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	30	3	3	2	7	5	3	3	2	1	1			21
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	56	9	5	8	7	7	7	9	1	2	1			22
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	60	11	7		3	3	9	9	6	5	2			23
45 3 5 4 3 2 8 4 7 7 2 26	51	5	6	4	11	7	5	10	3	- 			i	24
														25
	٠.		_	1 .		_	_	_		_	_)	
3, 233 359 390 294 352 364 336 464 239 244 139 48 4 27	45		3	5	4	3	2	8	4	7	7] 2		26
3, 233 359 390 294 352 364 336 464 239 244 139 48 4 27	<u> </u>													
1 0, 200 500 200 201 502 502 502 500 404 250 244 159 48 4 27	3 222	250	200	204	252	264	996	181	220	244	120	40		97
	0, 200	509	390	294	30Z	304	330	404	239	244	139	48	4	21

APPENDIX A

FACSIMILES OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS FOR 1934

Form 1040. Individual income tax return for net incomes from salaries or wages of more than \$5,000, or incomes, regardless of amount, from business, profession, rents, or sale of property.

Form 1040-A. Individual income tax return for net incomes of not

more than \$5,000 derived chiefly from salaries and wages.

111

FORM 1864 MUST BE FILED WITH THIS RETURN

	FORM 1646 TREASURY DEPARTMENT DITERNAL REVENUE SERVER	IIVIANI	MAI	INCO	MF	TAX I	?FT	IIR	NI.	Do Not	Write in	These Sp	ece#
4	(Auditor's Stamp)					I TI TI I IGES OF MORE			1				
		AND INCOMES									**********	*******	
						•			· j	hamber			******
		For	· Care	enda	r I	ear 19	934	ł.	1.				
		or fiscal year beg	un		1934, an	d ended		19	35 -	istrict	(Cashler's S	tamp)	
		File This Return Not	Later Than the 15	ith Day of the	Third Mo	oth Following the Cle AINLY BELOW	ee of the	Taxable Y	ear				
		1	PRINT NA	ME AND ADD	RESS PL	AINLY BELOW			-				
			(Name) (Bo	on basedud da	wife, if th	is is a joint return)			- 9	inh C	First Pays		of Ind
			(8	treet and numb	er, of tural	route)					First Page	Denz	
			(Post office)				(State)	1				
i	Binis whether you are (a) a citizen of the United States, or (b) a resident alien		 If your status in during the ye 	respect to ques ar, state date as	stion 3, 6, or ad poture o	7 changed (change	II. D	d any perior meter at	on of pe	raons advi	se you in respect of this return was used that return was used that return a obtained by a obtained by a	ect of any his return,	or assist
	to which Collector's office was it sent? Were you married and living with husban	<u>a</u>	9. State whether y	our books are k	ept	Salaries, Wager, Composer block that ONE oo cipal amount in item 1 er, or school einstatuor. Franco con consument of the control of the contr	•	pare this i	etura i	or you?		. II so, (give the
4	of wise during your taxable year?		10. Occupational	CLASSIFICATION	OF TEN 1	Salaries, Wager, Com		nature and nature and and the ites	ettent i ns or sel	of the assistants	person or per stance or advi respect of whi	sons and s coreceived cuthe assis	tate the by you stance of
4	Baste name of husband or wife if a separate return was made and the Collector's office to which it was sent		Physician, sa	m which you red treese.	Tesch	ipal amount in item i er, or school	•	advice was any person the inform	or pers	d; if this :	than yourself,	state the s	ource of
	M not married were you during your to	zable resi	Judge or lawy	yer.	Cherry	rman or rious worket.		which it w	es furnis	hed to or	obtained by	uch person	a or per-
•	If not married, were you during your to supportine in your household one or me closely related to you? How many dependent persons (other the or wide) under 18 years of ano or incaps support received their chief support from your actable year?	ue berions	Technical en	gineer, architect.	Corp	ration executive nanager.						<i>.</i>	
7	 How many dependent persons (other that or wide) under 18 years of age or incape gapport received their chief support from 	n bushend this of self- you during			(8)	mily)					ation on For 31) for the ce	ns Jendar	
	your taxable year?				(Specify)		·	year 19347	(Apswe	r "yes" o	f "BO")		
e '	mention No. 1. Salaries, Wages, Commissions,		OME	Ame	unt reciped	Expenses paid	i,						
HEN				\$		\$	s				1		
E											Ì	1	1
REMITTANCE	2. Income (or Loss) from Busine	ss or Profession. (F	rom Schedule A).									1	1
ŧ	3. Interest on Bank Deposits, No				State kind n tax-fre	of business) se covenant bonds	5)						
Ž.	4. Interest on Tax-free Covenant										ł		1
=	5. Income (or Loss) from Partne				es, and kin	d of business)					ł	1	i
ATTACH			~~~~					[]			- 1	1	1
7	6. Income from Fiduciaries. (Sta	ate name and address)						<u> </u>			- 1	1	}
	***************************************							ļ				1	1
	7. Rents and Royalties. (From 8	chedule B)											1
	8. Capital Gain (or Loss). (From	Schedule C)									- 1	1	1
	9. Taxable Interest on Liberty B	ionds, etc. (From Sci	tedule D)								ı		
1	io. Dividends on Stock of: (a) D	omestic Corporation	s subject to ta	xation unde	r Title I	of 1934 Act							1
	(b) Domestic Corporation	us not subject to tax	ation under Ti	itle I of 1934	Act						i		ì
	(c) Foreign Corporations.												1
	11. Other Income. (State nature) (U							11			1	1	İ
	12. Total Income in Item						····i	T		,s.			
:	3. Interest Paid	DEDU	CTIONS				s						
	14. Taxes Paid. (Explain in Schedule	F)						1					1
	15. Losses by Fire, Storm, etc. (Explain in table at feet of ;	nage ()					ļ					1
	16. Bad Debts. (Explain in Schodule	F)					 .				- }	1	
	 Contributions. (Explain in School 	lulo F)						4			- 1	1	1
:	Other Deductions Authorized	by Law. (Explain in	Schedule F)				l <u></u>	ابيمييار			- 1	1	1
	19. Total Deductions in		······					********				<u></u>	
- 1	20. NET INCOME (Item 12						****			1s.		<u></u>	<u>-l</u>
		C	OMPUTATI	ON OF T	AX (S	See Instruction	23)						
	21. Net income (Item 20 above)	·····	5		8	ormal tax (4% of			•••••		s		
:	22. Less: Personal exemption	s			ľ.	rtax on Item 24.					·····	4	
:	 Credit for Dependents 	<u>L</u>				tal tax (Item 29					s		
	24. Balance (Surtax net income)		s		32. Le	ss: Income tax p ltem 4)	aid at s	ource (29	% of	s			1
	25. Less: Interest on Liberty bo etc. (Item 9)	nds, s	-		33.						7		1
	26. Dividends. (Item 10 (1	Income tax po try or U.S.				·	4 		
,	27. Earned income credit. Instruction 22)			1	34. Be	dance of Tax. ()	tem 31	minus It	ems 3	2 and 33	\$		
			<u></u>		i								
- 3	28. Balance subject to normal tax		8		<u> </u>								ــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ
	I/we swear (or affirm) that th knowledge and belief is a true, cor tions issued thereunder.	is return (including	AFFID its accompanyi	ing schedules	ee insti	ruction 27) tements, if any) h	as been	examine	d by n	ne/us, ar	nd to the I	est of r	ny/ou
	tions issued thereunder.	and complete i	eturn, made in				., ,						
	Sworn to and subscribed by		di mare i au										
	NOTARIAL Of					_	and sec	re to believe a p	ruper chie	or by an afroi y by the spoor be return thes	of the properties of the second of the secon	by both Loste was or a settle	2144
	SEAL - VI	, 100	(Eigencure an			_		₁₄₄		and of products in	Bade by agent		
	Time emeat (or affirm) +1-171	era managad this a-s	AFFID	AVIT (S	ee Inst	ruction 27)	the mi	uyn finel	ndine	ita acen	mospeine	schedul	eg and
	I/we swear (or affirm) that I/statements, if any) is a true, correturn has been prepared of which	ect, and complete st	atement of all	the informs	tion resp	ecting the incom	e tax li	ability of	the 1	erson o	r persons	for who	m this
	Sworn to and subscribed before										uring the Mistry		
		Line of other educatories with									numb rya waren)		
		wide of office obsciritation with INSERT PRINTING OFFICE: 1934				•			Over -		and to Missel		

(Name of Streets or Ampleyor, Magazin

	SCHEDU	TLE A-	INCO	ME	(OR	LOS) FROM	BUSI	NES	S OR PI	ROF	ESSIC	N (See	Instr	uction 2)			
I. Total receipts from busi		ession (s	tate l	tind o	of bu	sinese)											\$	
Cost or Go	oda Sold			·		L	10. 8	daries n	ot is	Busines: cluded as	"La	bor"	in Line	2 (do	l	- 1	1	- 1
3. Material and supplies								not dec	luct	compensa	tion	for yo	ur servi	ces)	\$		1	- 1
4. Merchandise bought for	sale						!!			siness ind				ns			i	i
6. Other costs (itemize belo	w or on sept	rate she	n)							ness and n in table							1	ı
6. Plus inventory at begins																	1	- 1
7. TOTAL (Lines 2 to			٠ ١				15. D	epreciat plain is	ilon, tab	sing from obsolesce le provide and othe	nce,	and d	epiction [page).	(ex-]	- 1
6. Less inventory at end of							16. R	ent, rep low or	OD 8	and othe parate sh	r exp	penses	(itemiz	e be-			1	- 1
9. NET COST OF GOODS SOL						نخانت	17.	To	TAL	(Lines 10	to 1	6)			s		4	i
Enter "C", or "C or M' ventories are valued at cost	, on Lines t t, or cost or	market,	whiel	cate t bever	is lo	ver.	l)			TIONS (Li						*******	<u> </u>	
Explanation of deductions claimed on Lines 5 and 16.							19. N	et Pro	FIT (OR LOSS)	(Lin	e 1 mi	nus Lin	e 18)	Enter as I	tem 2)	§	
			•••••	•••••			•••••	••••••	*****	********					••••••			
***************************************		CHED	JLE I	BIN	(CO)	ME F	ROM RE	NTS A	ND	ROYALT	IES	(See	Instruct	ion 7)	************		***********	**********
1. Kind of Pro	PERTY		Π	2. Aug Reces	OUNT	<u> </u>	3. COST OR S OF MARCI	VALUE 1, 1913.	(É	DEFRECIATI	ION le at	Ī	S. REPAIR		6. OTHER I	EXPENSES	7. Net	Paorre s Item 7)
					1			BEATES	-	foot of page) 	-			(10000000	1	(Euser &	1
••••••	***********		\$	•••••		\$	**********		\$	••••		5		' 	\$		\$	
***************************************	••••••			*****		····					ļ	ļ	**********	†		•	·	
Explanation of deductions claimed in Column 6																	1	**********
enamed in Column o					••												**********	**********
		so	HED	ULE	c	CAPIT	AL GAL	NS AN	D L	OSSES (Sec I	nstruc	tion 8)					
]	1					S. Cost	OR MARI	na 1,	6. Cost of	In-	7. DEP	ECLATION NED (OR			9. PER- CENTAGE OF GAIN OR LOSS TO BE TAKEN INTO AC- COUNT	10. Gaps o	LOSS TO
t. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY	2. Date	S D SOLD EXCHA	OR NGED	e du	OUNT	REALIE	D QUIR	OR MARG VALUE IF ED BET DATE, (I	AC ORE	6. Cost of PROVEMEN Subsequen Acquisition Masca I,	T TO	SINCE TION OF	ECTATION NED (OR WABLE) ACQUISI- I MARCH 1913 b details)	8. 0	LDI OR LOSS	or Loss	DE TAXES	INTO AC-
	1	1	- i				cate b	POINT.		Masca I,	1913	(Furnis	1913 b details)			INTO AC-	s. Gains	b. Losses
*Held 1 year or less:	Mo. Day Y	ear Mo. De	y Year				1.							_		ł		
*Held over 1 year but no	ot			\$			\$		*****	\$		S	•••••	\$	*********	100	\$	\$
*Held over 2 years but n	ot												•••••			80		
over o years.	1															60		
*Held over 5 years but D over 10 years:	ot	1														١.,		ł
*Held over 10 years:															***************************************	40		
***************************************												·····		ļ	··	. 30		
*In reporting sales or exchanges of or	osses (Ente	r net gai sch separat	n or lo	ule, if	Item	S) (C	apital loss	coming w	llow	able only each of the 5	to th	e exte	nt of \$2, transfer go	000 p	lus capital	gains)	Column to a	\$
TOTAL GAINS AND L *In reporting sales or exchanges of or "Cost of property must be antered is Biate (i) how property was secure Every sale or exchange of stock show stock rights, etc.)	gi Column 5 if s d 	i los is clai a detail, la	cluding	Colum	13 8. 86 0 8 0	dires of	ourporation	class of 8	lock.	number of sh	Pers	onal or apital c	business re hanges aff	dationsi scung b	hip, if any, of	purchaser .	her nontanabi	e dividends.
SCHEDU	LE D-INT	EREST	ON	LIBE	RTY	BON	DS AND	отн	er c	BLIGAT	ION	s or	SECUE	RITIE	S (See Ins	truction	9)	
	BLIGATIONS OR	Carrage					Ι	OUNT OV		3. INTERES	or Res	EIVED	4. Prin Anot Exempt Taxas	CIPAL	S. AMOUNT	OWNED SS OF	0 INTE	REAT ON IN EXCESS SUPTION S HELD S)
								OURT OF	RED	02 4	(CEUE	Δ.	TAKA	PROM	Exem	TON	OF Ext	s Item 9)
(a) Obligations of a State, or the District of Co (b) Obligations issued under	Territory, lumbia, or	or politi United S	cal su tates	rbdivi posse	ision ession	there	s		l	s			AU		****	x x x	***	* * * *
(b) Obligations issued under as amended.	r Federal Fa	rın Loan	Act,	or un	der s	uch A	ct		ļ	ļ		ļ	ΑII		****	x x	***	* * * *
(c) Liberty 3½% Bonds at on or before Septem! (d) Treasury Notes, Tree Indebtedness	ber 1, 1917.	and T	OL CI	neu C	ortifi	es issu							AU		****	x x	***	* * * *
								•	ļ	ļ			All	•••••	****	x x	XIIX	** **
(c) Liberty 4% and 434% (f) Obligations of instrum obligations to be rep	Bonds and entalities of	Treasury the Un	Bon ited f	ds States	(oti	her the	an						\$5,600	•	\$		S	
obligations to be rep	orted in (b)	above)	*******					OME I	RO	M DIVID	ENE	8	None			b		
Itemize all dividends recei	ved during	the year	stati	ng az	noun	ts and	names a	bba bu	resse	s of corpo	ratio	ns do	claring (he di	videods:			1711100
***************************************						•••••								•				
	SCHEDU	LE F—f	XPL/	INAT	rion	OF.	DEDUCT	IONS	CLA	MED IN	ITI	EMS	1, 14, 1	6, 17,	AND 18			
•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••							-											
***************************************		·····	·····			····												
***************************************															•••••			
<u></u>	EXPLAN	· mron	08.5	ED	CMF					CR ATT	PD S		HPD	rea ·	AND			
						-		1	$\overline{}$		_		-01			Kotimatko	1	
f. Epro or Property (If buildings, state material of which constructed)	2 Date	Cost on M Value it Paion to T (Indicat	ACQUIA BAT D	ATE	DE	ASSET	FULLY ED IN USE FYEAR	ALLOY ABLE)	DEPRI PEO (c IN PR	PATION OR ALLOW- OR YEARS	6.	OSBER BE REC	CONG COST BARRS TO OVERED	D	ACCUMU- R LATING L ETHECIA- B TIOK (PE YEOM EGINNING	9. DEPE	MILITON THE YEAR
		(trace)	- 04315)	_	<u> </u>		-	-	_	1				- -	HOR (OF YEAR		
	\$				\$	*****		\$			\$						\$	
			••••		ļ						ļ						ļ	
EXPLANATI	ON OF DE	DUCTION	ON F	OR I	LOSS	ES B	Y FIRE.	STOR	M, 1	ETC., CL	AIM	ED II	SCHE	DUL	E A AND	IN ITE	M 16	}
1. Epp or Paors		7	2 Da1			T	a. Co		1	Вуравора мурочения	_		DEPERCIAL OWARLE S ACQUISITION		& INSURAL S	******	7. DEDOOR	pul Loss
						-		-	<u> -</u> '			-	Acquismo	# T	OVTAYOR	- ALUE		
•					•				\$	••-		\$	<u>`</u>	 	\$		\$	
***************************************							*******					·		†				-
					*****													10066

INSTRUCTIONS

The Instructions Numbered 1 to 20 Corr with the Item Numbers on the First Page of the Return

1. INCOME FROM SALARIES, WAGES, COMMISSIONS, ETC.

Enter as Hem I on page I of the return, all staires or other compensation to the received from notation sources. Use a separate line for each entry, Any amount chained as a deduction for necessary expense spains talaries, i.e., such as fraveling expenses, while sway from home in the pursuit of a trade to uninest, should be fully explained in Schedule 7 on page 2 of the return, or an attached statement. Traveling expenses ordinarily include expenditures or allocal frave, meals, and lodging.

2. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM BUSINESS OR PROFESSION

or business, should be fully explained in Sebedule F on page 2 of the return, or on an attached statement. Traveling expenses ordinarily include expenditures for allicod faron, mash, and location.

2. INCOME (OR LOSS) FROM BUSINESS OR PROFESSION

If you owned a business, or practiced a profession on your own account, fill in Schedule A on page 2 of the return, and enter the net income (or loss) as in the control of the property of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of the control of manufacturing, mining, construction, and agriculture; (b) Business service, such as hotel, retaurant, and garage service, ansuesnesses, laundering, storage, made and the control of the c

3. INTEREST ON BANK DEPOSITS, ETC.

Enter as Item 3 all interest received or credited to your account during the taxable year on bank deposits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds, except interest on bonds upon which a tax was paid at the source. Interest on bonds is considered income when due and payable.

4. INTEREST ON TAX-FREE COVENANT BONDS Enter as Item 4 bond interest upon which a tax was paid at source. Such tax (2 percent of the interest entered in Item 4) may be claimed as a credit in Item 32 of the return.

5 AND 6. INCOME FROM PARTNERSHIPS, SYNDICATES, POOLS, ETC., AND FIDUCIARIES

AND FIDUCIARIES

Enter as Hem 5 your share of the profits (whether received or not) (or of the losses) of a partnership, syndicate, pool, etc., and as Hem 6 income from an estate or trust, except that the share of (o) taxable interest on obligations of the United States shall be included in Schedule D, and (b) profits which consisted of dividends on stock of domestic corporations which are subject to income tax shall be included in Hem 10 (a) on the return. Include in Hema 52 and 53, respectively, eredits claimed for income tax pad at source, and foreign income

AXES.

If the taxable year on the basis of which you file your return does not coincide ith the annual accounting period of the partnership or fiduciary, then you hould include in your return your distributive share of the net profits (or losses) or such accounting period ending within your taxable year.

7. INCOME FROM RENTS AND ROYALTIES

Fill in Schedule B, giving the information requested. Typort the income as five the control of t

8. CAPITAL GAINS AND LOSSES

Report sales or exchanges of capital savet in Schedule C, and enter the net control of the control of the control of the control of the control of (CAPITAL LOSSES ARE ALLOWABLE ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF \$2,000 FLUS CAPITAL GAINS.) Describe the property briefly, and sais the price received or the fair market value of the property received in exchange. Expenses connected with the sale or exchange may be deduced, in computing

If the property sold or exchanged was acquired prior to March I, 1913, the basis for determining OAIN is the cost or the fair market value as of March I, 1913, adjusted as provided in section 113 (b) of the Revenue Act of 1934, whichever is greater, but in determining LOSS the basis is rote. (Rose section 115 of 1941, 1913, adjusted as provided in section 110 of cost of the property sold or exchanged, full details must be furnished regarding the acquisition of the property.

Enter as depreciation the amount of wear and tear, obselecence, or depletion. The cost of the property since the same than the amount allowable) in respect of such property since date of acquisition, or since March 1, 1913, if the property was acquired before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired to the cost of the property or protocome to the fair market sustained before that date. In addition, if the property was acquired to the cost of the property or protocome to the fair market, and repairs made to restore the property or protocome to the sustained before that date.

No loss shall be recognised in any sale or other disponition of shares of stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired substantially identical stock or securities where you have acquired as of the continual to the property directly or indirectly or indirectly or indirectly or indirectly or indirectly or indirectly, or (B) except contained to the outstanding stock. For the purpose of this paragraph—(C) as individual shall be connidered as owning the stock owned, directly or and instructive the bard of

and lineal descendants.
The provisions of the Revenue Act of 1924 relating to capital gains and losses are:

One of the control with 1924 to the control of

9. INTEREST ON LIBERTY BONDS, ETC.

9. INTEREST ON LIBERTY BONDS, ETC.

Schedule D should be filled in if you own any of the obligations or securities enuocated in Column 1. Enter in Column 2 the principal amounts of the enuocated in Column 1. Enter in Column 2 the principal amounts of the toy our second the column 2 the principal amounts of the toy our second during the year on these obligations, including your share of such interest received from a partnership, or an estate or trust.

Interest on all coopons failing due to the large large will be anothered. Interest the contract of the column of the column is another than the contract of the column of the column is anothered interest accurate on the obligations owned during the taxable year emprison of \$5.000, or any on Line (f) are owned in any smount, Columns 5 and 6 should be filled in, and the total of the interest reported in Column 6 should be entered as Item 9 on page 1 of the return.

(See also lateration 2-5, paragraph (d).)

10. DIVIDENDS

10. DIVIDENDS

Enter as Item 10 (a) dividends from a domestic corporation which is subject to taxation under Title 1 of the 1934 Act (other than a corporation entitled to the benefits of Section 253 of the 1934 Act and there than a corporation organized under the China Trade Act, 1927), including your share of such dividends received the China Trade Act, 1927), including your share of such dividends are considered to the constant of the China Trade Act, 1927, including Your share of the China Trade Act, 1922. Enter as Item 10 (c) dividends from a foreign corporation association, etc.). Enter as Item 10 (c) dividends from a foreign corporation captained under the China Trade Act, 1922.

Dividends reported in Item 10 (a) or 10 (c) must include Federal excise tax thereos, withheld at source. Such tax is detertible in Item 14.

11. OTHER INCOME

Enter as Item 11 all other taxable income for which no space is provided on the return.

12. TOTAL INCOME

Enter as Item 12 the net amount of Items 1 to 11, inclusive, after deducting ay expenses reported in Item 1, and losses in Items 2, 5, 7, and 8.

13. INTEREST PAID

Enter as Item 13 interest paid on personal indebtedness as distinguished from business indebtedness (which should be deducted under Schedule A or B). Do not include interest on indebtedness incurred or continued to purchase or carry obligations the interest upon which is wholly exempt from taxation.

14. TAXES PAID

Enter as Item 14 personal taxes and taxes paid on property not used in year business or profession, not including those assessed against local benefits of a kind tending to increase the value of the property ascessed. Do not include Federal income taxes, nor estate, inheritance, legacy, succession, and gift taxes, nor taxes imposed upon your interest as abstractioned or of a corporation which are paid by the corporation without reimbursement from you, nor income taxes claimed as a credit in item 3. No deduction is allowable for any portion of long, and the control of th

15. LOSSES BY FIRE, STORM, ETC.

Enter as Item 15 losses of property not connected with your business or profession, austained during the year if arising from fire, storm, shipwreck, or other casualty, or from theft, and if not compensated for by insurance or otherwise. See Section 23 (e) of the Revenue Act of 1934.

Explain losses claimed in the table provided on page 2 of the return.

16. BAD DERTS

But as Item 16 all bad debts other than those claimed as a deduction in Schedule A. State in Schedule F, (e) of what the debts consisted, (b) when they were greated, (c) when they became due, (d) what efforts were made to collect, and (e) how they were created to, be worthly determined to, be worthly as

17 CONTRIBUTIONS

Enter as Hem 17 contributions or gifts made within the taxable year to any corporation, or trust, or community cheef, fund, or foundation, organized and operated exclusively for religious, charakble, selentific, literary, or educational operations of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of the selection of which hourse to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual, and no substantial part of the settivities of which is carrying on progrands, or otherwise attempting, to influence legislation. The amount claimed this deduction. A fluciary fling the return for an state may claim, in lite of this deduction, that provided in Section 182 of the 1934 Act. List organizations and amounts contributed to each in Scheduler 1

18. OTHER DEDUCTIONS

Enter as Item 18 are other authorized deductions for which no space is pro-ected in the property of the property of the property of the pro-sent the connected with your trade or business, nor entered into for profit, nor expenditures incurred in earning wholly tax-example facoms other than interest. If the return is filed for an existe in process of administration, there should be a property of the property of the property of the property of the pro-tending of the property of the property of the property of the pro-tending of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the pro-tending of the property of th

19. TOTAL DEDUCTIONS IN ITEMS 13 TO 18

Enter as Item 19 the total of Items 13 to 18, inclusive. This amount should not include any deduction claimed in Schedule A or B.

M NET INCOME

Enter as Item 20 the net income, which is obtained by deducting Item 19 from Item 12. The net income shall be computed upon the basis of the taxable year in accordance with the method of accounting regularly employed in keeping your books, unless such method does not eterally reflect your focuse.

21. PERSONS REQUIRED TO MAKE A RETURN OF INCOME

21. PERSONS REQUIRED TO MAKE A RETURN OF INCOMÉ.

An income tax return must be filed by every citizen of the United States whether residing as home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States their properties of the United States whether residing as home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States though the States and the States whether the States in the United States though the States and the

22. EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, AND CREDIT FOR DEPENDENTS

22. REARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, AND CREDIT
For the purpose of the pormal far, but not for the surface, there may be channel a credit against set
amount of the six forces. "Earnel pormo" means were, somition, produced see, and other amounts
ment set of compensation for prepared services accounts and other amounts
ment set of compensation for prepared services accounts and other amounts
ment set of compensation for prepared services accounts and other amounts
ment set of compensation for prepared services and contract to the compensation of the co

bashed or with under 15 were of any or torqueble of self-support, because recently or appropriate to the self-support because recently or appropriate to the self-support because recently or appropriate to the self-support because recently or the person not because the self-support self-support because the self-support self-suppo

23. COMPLITATION OF TAX

Surtax.—The surfax on any amount of surfax net income not shown in the table below is computed by adding to the surfax for the largest amount shown which is less than the income, the surfax upon the excess over that amount at the rate indicated in the table.

	SURT	AS RAT	res por 1834		
Amount of surtax pet income	Rate per cont	Total surter	Amount of surtax net income	Rate per- cent	Total surias
	В	0	A .	В	c
\$0 1.0 \$4,000. 4,000 to \$1,000. 4,000 to \$1,000. 4,000 to \$1,000. 5,000 to \$1,000.	6 6 7 8 9 11 13 13 13 17 19 21	\$56 189 300 410 607 730 1,000 1,260 2,240 2,380 4,640 6,090 7,790	\$50.000 to \$56.000. \$69.00 to \$60.000. \$69.00 to \$60.000. \$69.00 to \$60.000. \$71,000 to \$60.000. \$71,000 to \$60.000. \$71,000 to \$60.000. \$70,000 to \$60.000. \$70,000 to \$70,000. \$70,000 to \$70,000. \$70,000 to \$70,000. \$70,000 to \$70,000. \$70,000 to \$70,000.	3824982355867	\$9,500 11,490 13,640 15,360 16,500 23,000 28,000 59,500 134,500 134,500 139,546 245,500 533,000

Income from a partnership or fiduciary computed on a figeal year basis.—The tax on income received from a fiduciary making a return for a fiscal year ended in the statute complete as entered in the statute of the fiduciary making a return for a fiscal year ended in the statute of the partnership of the statute of the partnership of the statute of the partnership of the pa

** ITEMS PTEMPT FROM TAT

The following items are sample from Federal income tax and should not be included in gross incomes.

(a) Against rever incide all histories control table by peace of the death; the thorse it, whether it is not the control to the co

value of such confirmation, because the superior of the superi

25. ACCRUED OR RECEIVED INCOME
If your books of account are kept on the accrual, basis, report all income accrued, even though it has not been actually received or entered on the books, and expense incurred instead of expense paid. If your books are not kept on the accrual basis, report all income received or constructively received, such as beank interest received to your account, and expense paid. The return of a continuous paid of the return of a continuous paid of death regardless of the fact that the decedent may have kept his books on a cost basis.

26. PERIOD TO BE COVERED BY RETURN

28. PERIOD TO BE COVERED BY RETURN
The return must be filed on this form for the calendar year 1934 or for a facal
year begun in 1934 and ended in 1935.
The accounting period established must be adhered to for subsequent years,
unless permission is received from the Commissioner to make a change. An
application for a change in the accounting period shall be made on Form 1132
and forwarded to the collector prior to the expiration of 30 days from the close
of the proposed taxable year.

27. APPIDAVITS

27. APPIDATTS

Taxpayer or agent.—The allidavit must be executed by the person whose income is reported unless he is ill, absent from the country, or otherwise incapitated, in which case the legal representative or agent may execute the afficiart. A minor making his own return must execute the afficiart. In the page 1 of the return should be answered fully, and where the return is actually prepared by some person or persons, other than the taxpayer, such person surpression must execute the afficiart at the foot of page 1 of the return is actually prepared by some person or persons, other than the taxpayer, such person are called the analysis of the person are called the analysis of the control of the person are called the analysis of the control of the person are called the analysis of the person arthorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green action of the text page 1 of the person arthorized to administer on the green action of the text page 1 of the person authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer on the green authorized to administer of the green authorized to administer of the green authorized to administer of the green authorized to administer of the green administer of the green authorized to administer of the green administer of the green and the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green administer of the green admi

28. WHEN AND WHERE THE RETURN MUST BE FILED

The return must be sent to the collector of internal revenue for the district in which you live or have your principal place of business, so as to reach the col-close of the collector of internal revenue for the collector of collector of your tascable year. In case you have no legal residence or place of business in the United States, the return should be forwarded to the Collector of Internal Revenue, Dailmore, Maryland.

29. WHEN AND TO WHOM THE TAX MUST BE PAID

29. WHEN AND TO WHOM THE TAX MUST BE PAID
The tax should be paid, if possible, by sending or bringing with the return a
check or money order drawn to the order of "Collector of Internal Revenue at
(inner' city) and State)." Bo not send eash by mait, nor pay it to person except.
The tax may be paid when the return is flied, or in four equal installments,
as follows: The first installment shall be paid on or before the fifteenth day of
the third month following the close of the taxable year, the second installment
enter on or before the fifteenth day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
on or before the fifteenth day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
on or before the fifteenth day of the sixth month, and the fourth installment
of paying the first installment.
If any installment is not paid on the date face for payment, the whole amount
of tax unpud shall be paid upon notice and demand by the collector.

30. PENALTIES

For willful failure to make and file a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 1 year, or both, and, in addition, 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

For willfullr making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than 5 years, or both, together with the costs of

imprisonment for not more than 5 years, or both, together was me cose or prosecution.

For deficiency in tax.—Interest on a deficiency at 6 percent per annum to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thrittent day after the filing of a waiver of the restriction on assessment and collection deficiency if doe to negligence or intentional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to definud, or 50 percent of amount of the deficiency if due to fraud.

AL INFORMATION AT SOURCE

Every person making payments of salaries, wages, interest, rents, commissions, or other fixed or determinable income of \$1,000 or more during the calendar year, person, is required to make a return or Forms 1096 and 1098 showing the amount of such payments and the name and address of each recipient. These forms will be firminated by any collector of internal revenue upon request. Buth returns to firm the same of the strength of the same of the same type in the same of the same of the same type in the same of the same of the same type in the same of the

FORM 1094 MUST BE FILED WITH THIS RETURN

TREASURY DEPARTMENT	INDIVIDUAL INCOME 17	AX RETU	JKN		net white in the sa	
(Auditor's stamp)	FOR NET INCOMES OF NOT MORE DERIVED CHIEFLY FROM SALARIES		'	Social Number	<u> </u>	
	For Calendar Year			Annual Paid, 3	!	
	To be filed with the Collector of Internal Revenue for your dist:	rict on or before Marc	h 15. 1935		(Caphier's steamp)	
	PRINT NAME AND ADDRESS PLAINLY					
	(Name) (Both bushand and wife, if this is a jo	pint fetura)	•••••••			
	(Street and number, or rural route)					
	(Post office) (County)	(Bu	ite)			
	OCCUPATION.				ash Cheek M.O.	_
1. Are you a citizen or resident of the United States?	3. Was a separate return filed by bushand or wife?	5. How many de-	pendents (excep	t husba	nd or wife) received your taxable year?.	1
2. Were you married and living band or wife during your ta	with hus- 4. If not married, were you the head of a	6. State date and under quest	l nature of any ions 2, 4, or 5 du	change uring th	e year	
Item No.	INCOME		i	ı i		-
	missions, fees, etc. (State from whom received)		s	<u> </u>	1	
			·		j	
	posits, notes, mortgages, and corporation bonds		·····		1	
3. Interest on bonds up	pon which a tax of 2% was paid at source			<u> </u>		
4. Other income (inclu	ding income from fiduciaries, partnerships, etc.) (Sta	to source):				
5. TOTAL INCOM	E IN ITEMS 1 TO 4				. 1	
U. IOIALINCOM	DEDUCTIONS	***************************************	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	i	•	****
6. Taxes paid	DEDUCTIONS		8			
	in on reverse side)					
	athorized by law (Explain below);				1	

9. TOTAL DEDUC	TIONS IN ITEMS 6 TO 8		<u> </u>			
••	COMPUTATION OF TAX	****************	***************************************			
10. Net income (item 5	minus item 9)				\$	
	ne credit		l .			

	nption					
	pendents			<u>!</u>		•••••
	1% (item 10 minus items 11, 12, and 13)				s	
	% of item 14)		1	;	\$	****
=	aid at source on tax-free covenant bonds (2% of ite		ļ			
17. Income tax p	aid to a foreign country or United States possession A	ttach Form 1116)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		
18. BALANCE OF TAX (it	em 15 minus items 16 and 17)				\$	
a true and complete ret authority thereof.	rm) that this return has been examined by me/us, urn for the taxable year as stated, pursuant to the	Revenue Act o	f 1934 and	knowl regula	edge and belie ations issued u	f, is
	(If return is made by agent, the reason therefor must	be stated on this line)			
	l by(Signa	ture) (If this is a join	return (not m	ade by	agent) it must be s	igned
before me this	day of, 1935. by to by b	ture) (If this is a join toth husband and w se preparing the retur toth spouses.)	ne and sworn to the or if petther o	or both	e a proper officer b prepare the return	then
See Instructions (Signatu	re and title of officer administering oath)	(Addr	ess of agoust if re	rturo is	made by agent)	•

STATEMENT OF CONTRIBUTIONS

AMOUNT PART I

NAME OF ORGANIZATION	A MOUNT PAID	NAME OF ORGANG	EATION	AMOUNT PAID
	s			\$
INTEREST ON	GOVERNME	NT OBLIGATIONS, ETC.		. <u>k</u>
OBLIGATIONS AND S	Securities		AMOUNT OWNE	D INTEREST RECEIVED
Obligations of a State, Territory, or political sub- or possessions of the United States	i States (such	as obligations issued under	\$	8
(c) Obligations of the United States		********************************		

DIVIDENDS FROM DOMESTIC CORPORATIONS

PENALTIES

FENALTHES

For willful failure to make and file a return on time.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than one year, or both, together with the costs of prosecution, and, in addition, 25 percent of the amount of the tax.

For willfully making a false or fraudulent return.—Not more than \$10,000 or imprisonment for not more than five years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution.

For dedicinery in tax.—Interest on deficiency at 6 percent per annum to the date the deficiency is assessed, or to the thirtieth day after the filing of a waiver of the restrictions on assessment and collection of a deficiency in tax, whichever date is the earlier, and, in addition, 5 percent of the amount of the deficiency if due to negligence or intentional disregard of rules and regulations without intent to defraud, or 50 percent of amount of deficiency if due to fraud.

INSTRUCTIONS

LIABILITY FOR FILING RETURN

NAME OF ORCANISATION

An income tax return must be filed by every citizen of the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States whether residing at home or abroad, and every person residing in the United States, though not a citizen thereof, having a gross income for the ealendar year 1894 of \$3,000, or over, or a net income for the same period of (a) \$1,000 or over, if the states of the term of the same period of the personal exemption if the status of the taxpayer changes during the taxable year. If the combined net income of husband and wile, including that of dependent minor hold the states of the taxpayer changes during the taxable year. If the combined net income of husband and wile, including that of dependent minor as the personal exemption of the states of the taxpayer changes during the taxable year. If the combined net income of each must be included in a single joint return.

Every, person required to file as income return shall file with his return.

Every, person required to file as income return shall file with his return.

Every, person required to file as income return shall file with his return.

Every person required to file as income return shall file with his return, of the top of the following items shown upon the return: (1) Name and address. (2) total gross income (3) total deductions, (4) per income, (3) total credits against net income for purposes of normal tax, and (6) tax payable. In case of any inflature to file such a shall be added to the tax.

ITEMS EXEMPT FROM TAX

(a) Amounts received under a life-insurance contract paid by reason of the death of the insured catch of the insured under a life-insurance contract paid by reason of the death of the insured under a life-insurance contract, not to exceed the premiums or consideration paid for such contract. A mounts received as an annuity under an annuity or endowment contract shall be included in gross income, except that there shall year over an amount equal to 3 per centum of the aggregate premiums or consideration paid for such annuity (whether or not paid during such year), until the aggregate amount exclude 10 aprenties of the gargestap regards promiums or consideration paid for such annuity (whether or not paid during such year), until the aggregate amount excluded for my ross income capitals the aggregate regards the aggregate premiums or consideration paid for such annuity (whether or not paid during such year), until the aggregate and the such annuity (whether or not paid turing such year), until the aggregate and the such annuity (whether or not paid turing such year) (c) (illist tool made as a consideration for services) and property acquired by sequest, device, or inheritance (but the income from such property is taxable sequest, device in paid to the such annuity of t

INCOME

Salaries.—Enter as item 1 all salaries, weges, or other compensation received from outside sources by (e) yourself, (b) your hubband or wife if a joint return stield, and (e) asch dependent minor child.

Stield, and (e) asch dependent minor child.

The standard of the stield of the standard

Other income.—Enter as item 4 all other taxable income, including rents, dividends on stock of domestic corporations not subject to income tax under the knewsne ket of 1905 (such as building and ions associations, etc.), and dividends (whether received or not) in the profits of a partnership, syndicate, pool, jetin vesture, etc.

DEDUCTIONS

Taxes.—Enter as item 6 all personal taxes and taxes on property paid during the year. Do not include Federal income taxes, nor states, inheritance, jegacy, but a property paid the property paid the property paid to the property paid to the property paid to the property paid to any corporation or fund organized and operated esclusively for religious, and to any corporation or fund organized and operated esclusively for religious, to the benefit of any private shareholder or individual, and no substantial part of the activates of which is carrying on propagada, or otherwise attempting to the activate of which is carrying on propagada, or otherwise attempting to the activate of which is carrying on propagada, or otherwise attempting the sattenance computed without the benefit of this deduction. List names of organizations and amounts centributed to each in space above. Other deductions—Enter as item 8 any other deductions authorized by law, including interest paid on personal indebtediers.

EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, ETC.

EARNED INCOME CREDIT, PERSONAL EXEMPTION, ETC.

In computing the normal tax, but not the surtax, there may be claimed a credit against net income of 10 per centum of the amount of the aread net mones, but not in excess of 10 per centum of the amount of the net income. If the net cannot not in excess of 10 per centum of the amount of the net income. If the net income is more than \$3,000, the estrate at income shall not be considered to be less than \$3,000. A single person, or a married person not living with husband or wife, may far an exception of \$2,500. If husband and wife fits generate returns, the personal exemption of \$2,500. If husband and wife fits generate returns, the personal exemption may be taken by either or divided between them, may claim an exemption of \$2,500. If husband and wife fits generate returns, the personal exemptions may be taken by either or divided between them, one household one or more individuals who are closely connoted with him by blood relationship, relationship by marriage, or by adoption, and whose right to exercise family control and provide for these dependent individuals is based in a didition to the personal exemption, a credit of \$400 may be claimed for each person (other than husband or wise under eightieney person described to the personal exemption, a credit of \$400 may be claimed for each person (other than husband or wise under eightieney person described to the status of the targayer, insofar as it affects the personal exemption or each of the targayer, insofar as it affects the personal exemption or and credit shall be apportioned in accordance with the number of months before and after such change. For the purpose of such apportionment a fractional part of a found that the department of the status of the targayer, insofar as it affects the personal exemption or each credit shall be apportioned in accordance with the number of months before and after such change. For the purpose of such apportionment a fractional part of a first person that the submit of the person

GENERAL INFORMATION

Affidavit.—The oath will be administered without charge by any collector, deputy collector, or internal revenue agent. If an internal revenue officer is not available, the return should be saven to before a person authorized to administer a saven to the property of the saven to be the person and the property of the property of the property of the property of the property of the present in connection with his tax.

Returns.—The left per terrum with the Collector of Internal Revenue for the district in which you reside out or before March 15, 1935.

TRA.—The tax may be pold at time of thing the return, or in four equal installments payable quarterly.

APPENDIX B

STATEMENT RELATIVE TO THE COMPARABILITY OF THIS REPORT WITH "STATISTICS OF INCOME FOR 1934, PART I" AND MIMEOGRAPHED PAMPHLET OF INDIVIDUAL INCOME TAX RETURNS BY COUNTIES, CITIES, AND TOWNS OF 1,000 AND OVER POPULATION, PREPARED UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE BY THE STATISTICAL SECTION, INCOME TAX UNIT

Number of individual income tax returns for the year 1934, by States and by net income classes, shown in "Statistics of income for 1934, Part I", as compared with the number tabulated for this report, and percent of number in "Statistics of income"

[Net income classes (thousands of dollars)]

	Under 0 2		0	0-5		5–10		10-25		25 and over		Total	
States and Territories	Number of returns in "Sta- tistics of income"						of returns	Number of returns tabulated for this report	of returns	Number of returns tabulated for this report	Number of returns in "Sta- tistics of income"		of returns in this report to number in "Sta- tistics of income"
Alabama Alaska Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Delaware District of Columbia Florida Georgia Hawaii Idaho Illinois Indiana Iowa Kansas Kentucky Louisiana	606 (3) 529 437 10, 874 906 1, 904 243 582 1, 389 814 332 192 7, 612 1, 703 1, 687 1, 435 754 1, 125 546	624 38 532 469 11, 450 877 2, 075 231 653 305 1, 519 875 305 1, 915 1, 956 1, 936 1, 536 753 1, 526 753 1, 526 1, 536 1, 536 1, 545	20, 743 (3) 10, 617 12, 000 283, 555 27, 319 79, 241 9, 114 76, 471 28, 525 33, 931 9, 880 9, 8327 276, 157 63, 157 44, 381 32, 675 31, 544 33, 284 18, 323	19, 679 2, 253 10, 582 12, 266 267, 276 26, 222 78, 859 9, 222 71, 778 6, 545 6, 909 256, 192 262, 395 45, 395 30, 195 29, 918 31, 416 18, 297	1, 742 (3) 611 1, 002 23, 559 3, 049 8, 540 8, 867 4, 819 963 510 23, 614 4, 335 2, 653 2, 189 2, 661 2, 770 1, 614	1, 719 112 562 946 22, 791 2, 348 6, 632 831 4, 717 2, 685 2, 875 512 22, 250 4, 363 2, 581 2, 124 2, 541 2, 634 1, 713	504 (3) 136 277 6, 655 693 2, 732 406 1, 243 944 1, 018 290 84 8, 430 699 649 925 675 514	458 28 108 235 5,742 729 2,570 363 1,172 831 884 233 77 7,849 1,300 633 542 826 605	83 (3) 14 39 1,997 171 8399 233 338 245 227 111 2,255 300 138 87 203 142	68 2 8 35 1,393 144 776 200 293 191 161 93 9 1,947 259 112 69 174 133	23, 678 (3) 11, 907 13, 755 326, 640 32, 138 93, 256 10, 863 33, 939 38, 951 11, 584 9, 124 318, 068 71, 326 49, 558 37, 035 36, 087 37, 996	22, 548 2, 433 11, 792 13, 951 308, 652 30, 320 90, 912 10, 847 78, 613 32, 443 36, 944 8, 015 7, 690 296, 248 70, 232 50, 677 34, 466 34, 212 35, 990 21, 156	95. 2 (3) 99. 0 101. 4 94. 5 94. 3 97. 5 99. 9 94. 2 95. 6 94. 8 69. 2 84. 3 93. 1 98. 5 102. 3 93. 1 94. 8 94. 8 94. 8
Maine Maryland Massachusetts Michigan	1, 340 5, 488	1, 413 5, 953 4, 188	74, 451 217, 756 126, 877	68, 809 210, 381 118, 922	7, 043 16, 314 8, 771	6, 680 15, 983 8, 695	2, 271 6, 768 2, 916	2, 043 6, 377 2, 721	630 1, 890 765	525 1, 736 663	85, 735 248, 216 143, 317	79, 470 240, 430 135, 189	92. 7 96. 9 94. 3

Minnesota Mississippi Missouri Montana Nebraska Nevada New Hampshire New Hersey New Mexico New York North Carolina North Dakota Ohio Oklahoma Oregon Pennsylvania Rhode Island South Carolina South Carolina South Dakota Tennessee Texas Utah Vermont Virginia Washington	1, 308 734 2, 046 236 938 131 388 715 396 4, 192 1, 511 593 439 387 772 4, 514 4, 514 143 946 1, 830	1, 462 ; 746 2, 266 2, 266 2, 267 243 1, 021 133 434 4, 201 1, 767 838 426 4, 571 1, 547 712 7, 781 631 463 400 855 4, 797 31 136 1, 048 1, 529 2	60, 529 11, 436 87, 111 15, 614 24, 023 4, 891 15, 146 188, 397 7, 058 713, 032 23, 683 9, 205 307, 099 27, 559 307, 099 27, 559 307, 099 21, 557 7, 779 34, 113 106, 237 10, 496 9, 027 43, 511 10, 496 9, 027 43, 511 15, 803	57, 533 10, 729 82, 710 11, 752 23, 899 4, 882 16, 306 182, 189 6, 607 692, 859 28, 282 8, 200 182, 450 32, 425 20, 561 303, 413 26, 534 12, 345 7, 376 101, 173 10, 885 5, 668 40, 960 48, 748	4, 707 802 7, 471 984 2, 057 15, 704 503 59, 996 2, 504 441 14, 386 2, 682 1, 702 23, 719 2, 386 1, 033 424 2, 700 9, 441 8, 286 1, 702 3, 504 4, 3, 866 3, 549	4, 524 718	1, 664 2466 2, 829 197 602 371 5, 301 5, 301 5, 209 975 491 8, 816 984 300 88 927 2, 639 150 666 662	1, 434 197 2, 586 158 541 59 350 4, 855 52 22, 234 784 719 4, 684 295 7, 869 914 213 899 1, 744 136 136 744 741 138	397 23 714 714 714 714 714 714 714 715 7	291 18 647 17 69 13 84 1, 106 7, 532 232 232 232 242 2, 256 276 42 2, 256 276 8 166 388 166 388 166 388 173 292 293 293 294 295 296 297 298 29	68, 605 13, 241 100, 171 17, 061 27, 719 5, 452 17, 173 214, 540 8, 067 828, 661 33, 020 10, 129 213, 781 40, 790 28, 017 349, 437 31, 828 8, 689 8, 710 123, 444 11, 807 9, 967 48, 760 61, 981	65, 244 12, 408 95, 356 13, 038 27, 497 5, 389 18, 355 207, 099 7, 519 798, 268 32, 632 9, 099 37, 006 22, 793 344, 020 30, 641 13, 895 8, 260 39, 995 116, 146 6, 548 45, 653 53, 332 53, 332	95. 1 93. 7 95. 2 76. 4 99. 8 106. 9 98. 8 106. 9 98. 2 96. 3 98. 8 89. 5 90. 7 98. 4 96. 3 96. 5 90. 1 10. 3 98. 4 96. 5 96. 5 96. 5 96. 3 96. 5 96. 3 96. 5 96.
										2, 200			
South Debate				7 376									
Tannacca													
TTA. I.					729								
					614		150	136	33	26			
Virginia													
Washington				48, 746							61, 981		
west virginia	734	775	27, 574	28, 213	1, 955	1,843	640	566	128	103	31, 031	31, 500	101, 5
Wisconsin	3, 032	3, 596	86, 724	82, 983	4, 445	4, 369	1, 344	1, 266	313	279	95, 858	92, 493	96, 5
Wyoming	337	377	6, 661	6, 620	437	390	75	48	9	4	7, 519	7, 439	98. 9
Total	104, 170	111, 039	3, 669, 228	3, 514, 693	293, 369	272, 459	102, 892	90, 750	28, 931	24, 230	4, 198, 590	4, 013, 171	95, 6

¹ Statistics of Income, Part I, compiled from individual income tax returns, estate tax returns, and gift tax returns, is prepared under the direction of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue by the Statistical Section Income Tax Unit, and is published annually. The volume for 1934 is for sale by the Superintendent of Documents, Government Printing Office, Washington, D. C., at a cost of 15 cents.
² No net income.
³ Alaska included in Washington.

For the "Under 0" net income class shown above the number of returns in "Statistics of Income for 1934, Part I" is smaller than that shown in this report because the "Statistics of Income" figure includes in this class only Forms 1040 showing a deficit, while this report includes both Forms 1040 and 1040-A showing a deficit.

The net income class "0-5" for "Statistics of income" shows a larger number of returns than this report because it is based on total number of returns filed being partly an actual count and partly an estimate while this tabulation includes only those returns available at time of tabulation. (See p. 1.) For purpose of "Statistics of Income" the number of returns in the "0-5" net income class is obtained by an actual count made by the Income Tax Unit of the current year taxable returns Forms 1040 and 1040-A and nontaxable Forms 1040, which includes Forms 1040 with a deficit and the collectors' count of nontaxable returns, Form 1040-A, adjusted to eliminate prior year returns and Forms 1040-A with a deficit. From this total the tabulated total of Forms 1040 showing a deficit and Forms 1040 and 1040-A with net income of \$5,000 and over is subtracted, leaving the number of returns used in "Statistics of Income" as representing the number of "Under \$5,000" net income returns. The distribution of the returns by the several net income classes within this group is based on the tabulation of samples for "Statistics of Income."

The number of returns in each of the net income classes of \$5,000 and over shown in "Statistics of Income" is larger than the number in this report because the former report includes a complete tabulation of all returns of this type filed for the year 1934 while this report includes only those available at the time of tabulation. (See p. 1.)

In addition to the report "Statistics of Income" there is also issued annually by the Bureau of Internal Revenue a mimeographed pamphlet entitled "Individual Income Tax Returns—Number of Returns by States, by Counties, and by Cities and Towns," in which, as stated in the text, the figures are based on reports from collectors of internal revenue and represent an actual count of the index cards from the returns filed in each collection district. Although reasonable care has been used to secure accurate figures, absolute accuracy in the count by the numerous civil divisions involved is impossible except through the expenditure of considerably more time and money than are available for this work.

The number of returns shown for each county and city in the foregoing tables of this report will differ in many instances from that shown in the mimeographed pamphlet referred to above due (1) to the fact that the distribution by county is based on the county reported by the taxpayer in the heading of the return rather than on post-office address, (2) the distribution is the result of an actual machine tabulation of the returns rather than a hand count of index cards, and (3) in aggregate it will include less returns because the machine tabulation is based on only those returns which were not in audit processes. (See p. 1.)

 \bigcirc